# **HOUSE JOURNAL**

**PROCEEDINGS** 

OF THE

# House of Representatives

OF

# The Legislature

OF THE

STATE OF KANSAS

REGULAR 2020 SESSION
JANUARY 13 THROUGH ADJOURNMENT MAY 21, 2020

SUSAN W. KANNARR, Chief Clerk of the House

DIVISION OF PRINTING DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION TOPEKA, KANSAS 2020

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

### **REGULAR SESSION, 2020**

PAGE
OFFICERS AND MEMBERS
Officers of the House
House Members (alphabetically, with county, occupation, party and district)v
Committees of the House
Individual House Member Informationxi
RULES
Kansas Constitutional Provisions Concerning Legislative Powers
JOINT RULES OF THE SENATE AND HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Rules of the Kansas House
HOUSE JOURNAL
Explanation of Abbreviations and Page Numberingxcvi
Text of House Journal
TITLE AND HISTORY OF HOUSE BILLS
HOUSE BILLS, RESOLUTIONS, PETITIONS
Numerical Schedule of House Bills
Summary of Action on House Bills
Appointments, Communications, Messages, Guests, Etc
GENERAL INDEX
Index by Author
INDEX BY SUBJECT 3019

# $Governor \\ LAURA KELLY, Topeka$

## Lieutenant Governor LYNN ROGERS, Wichita

#### OFFICERS OF THE HOUSE

#### Session of 2020

## HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES—2020 MEMBERS LISTED ALPHABETICALLY

Name	Party	Dist.	Occupation
Alcala, John, Shawnee	Dem.	57	Retired
Amyx, Mike, Douglas		45	Barber
Arnberger, Tory, Barton	Rep.	112	Human Resources Dir., Pryor Automatic
Awerkamp, Francis, Pottawatomie	Rep.	61	Business owner
Baker, Dave, Morris		68	Consultant/realtor
Ballard, Barbara, Douglas	Dem.	44	University Administrator
Barker, John, Dickinson	Rep.	70	Retired Judge
** Benson, David, Johnson	Dem.	48	Retired Educator
Bergquist, Emil, Sedgwick	Rep.	91	Retired Aircraft R and D
Bishop, Elizabeth, Sedgwick		88	Retired
Blex, Doug, Montgomery	Rep.	12	Wildlife Biologist/Farmer
Burris, Jesse, Sumner		82	Attorney
Burroughs, Tom, Wyandotte		33	Ret. Colgate-Palmolive
Capps, Michael, Sedgwick	Rep.	85	Business Management Consultant
Carlin, Sydney, Riley	Dem.	66	Investments, Property manager
Carlson, Suzi, Clay	Rep.	64	Retired Municipal Judge
Carmichael, John, Sedgwick		92	Attorney
Carpenter, Blake, Sedgwick		81	Contractor
Carpenter, Will, Butler		75	Business Owner
Claeys, J. R., Saline	Rep.	69	Nonprofit Management
Clark, Lonnie, Geary		65	Retired
Clayton, Stephanie, Johnson	Dem.	19	Social Media Consultant
Collins, Kenneth, Crawford	Rep.	2	Convenience Store Owner
Concannon, Susan, Mitchell	Rep.	107	Philanthropy
Corbet, Ken, Shawnee	Rep.	54	Small Business Owner
Cox, Tom, Johnson	Rep.	17	Small Business Owner
Croft, Chris, Johnson	Rep.	8	Retired Army
Curtis, Pam, Wyandotte	Dem.	32	Community Relations
Day, Jennifer, Johnson	Dem.	48	Real estate investor
Delperdang, Leo, Sedgwick	Rep.	94	Retired
Dierks, Diana, Saline	Rep.	71	Realtor
Dietrich, Brenda, Shawnee	Rep.	52	Retired Superintendent
Donohoe, Owen, Johnson	Rep.	39	Medical Sales
Dove, Willie, Wyandotte	Rep.	38	Insurance Sales
Ellis, Ronald, Jefferson	Rep.	47	Rancher
Eplee, John, Atchison	Rep.	63	Family Physician
Erickson, Renee, Sedgwick	Rep.	87	Retired
Esau, Charlotte, Johnson	Rep.	14	Genealogist
Finch, Blaine, Franklin		59	Attorney
Finney, Gail, Sedgwick	Dem.	84	Small Business Owner
Francis, Shannon, Seward	Rep.	125	Property Management
French, David, Leavenworth	Rep.	40	Retired
Frawnfelter Stan Wyandotte	Dem	37	Small Rusiness Owner

Garber, Randy, Nemaha	Rep.	62	Retired Navy/
			Construction Worker
Gartner, Jim, Shawnee	Dem.	53	Retired
Hawkins, Daniel, Sedgwick	Rep.	100	Insurance Agent
Helgerson, Henry, Sedgwick	Dem.	83	Businessman
Helmer, Cheryl, Sumner	Rep.	79	Professional School
			Counselor
Henderson, Broderick, Wyandotte	Dem.	35	Parking Controller Office
Highberger, Dennis "Boog", Douglas	Dem.	46	Attorney
Highland, Ron, Pottawatomie	Rep.	51	Retired Veterinarian
Hineman, Don, Lane		118	Farmer
Hodge, Tim, Harvey		72	Attorney
Hoffman, Kyle, Comanche		116	Farmer/Rancher
Hoheisel, Nick, Sedgwick		97	
Holscher, Cindy, Johnson		16	
Horn, Eileen, Douglas		10	Consultant
Houser, Michael, Cherokee		1	Construction Estimator
Howard, Ron, Sedgwick		98	Lawn Care
Huebert, Steve, Sedgwick		90	Self-Employed
Humphries, Susan, Sedgwick		99	Attorney
Jacobs, Trevor, Bourbon		4	Welder
Jennings, Russell, Kearny		122	Self-Employed
Johnson, Steven, Saline		108	Farmer
		42	Retired School
Karleskint, Jim, Leavenworth	кер.	42	Superintendent
Kelly, Jim, Montgomery	Ren.	11	Banker
Kessinger, Jan, Johnson		20	Management and Sales Consultant
Kuether, Annie, Shawnee	Dem	55	Retired
Landwehr, Brenda, Sedgwick		105	Retired
Long, Marty, Grant		124	Farmer/Small Business
Lusk, Nancy, Johnson		22	Small Business Owner
Lynn, Megan, Johnson		49	Children's Ministry
• , , ,	•		Assistant
Mason, Les, McPherson		73	Retired
Mastroni, Leonard, Rush	Rep.	117	Retired County Commissioner/Judge
Moore, J.C., Sedgwick	Rep.	93	Retired Teacher
Murnan, Monica, Crawford		3	Education Administrator
Neighbor, Cindy, Johnson	Dem.	18	Retired Medical
	_		Administrator
Newland, Joe, Wilson		13	Farmer-Rancher
Ohaebosim, KC, Sedgwick		89	<del>-</del>
Orr, Boyd, Meade		115	Farmer/Rancher
Ousley, Jarrod, Johnson		24	Paint Contractor
Owens, Stephen, Harvey		74	Self-employed
Pannbacker, Bill, Washington		106	Farmer/stockman
Parker, Brett, Johnson		29	Teacher
Patton, Fred, Shawnee		50	Attorney
Phillips, Tom, Riley	Rep.	67	Community Development Consultant
Pittman, Jeff, Leavenworth	Dem.	41	Supply chain technologist

Probst, Jason, Reno		102	Freelance Writer
Proehl, Richard, Labette		7	Banker
Rahjes, Ken, Phillips	_	110	Agricultural Communications
Ralph, Bradley, Ford	Rep.	119	Attorney
Resman, John, Johnson		121	Retired Deputy Sheriff
Rhiley, Bill, Sumner	Rep.	80	
Ruiz, Louis, Wyandotte		31	Retired; Lucent
Ruiz, Susan, Johnson	Dem.	23	Social Work
Ryckman, Ron, Johnson		78	Contractor
Samsel, Mark, Franklin		5	Attorney/KSHSAA Referee
Sawyer, Tom, Sedgwick	Dem.	95	Accountant
Schreiber, Mark, Lyon		60	Retired
Seiwert, Joe, Reno		101	Agricultural Business Owner
Smith, Adam, Wallace	Rep.	120	Farmer/Rancher
Smith, Eric, Coffey		76	Deputy Sheriff
Stogsdill, Jerry, Johnson		21	Real Estate Investor
Straub, Alicia, Barton		113	Merchandising
	•		Contractor
Sutton, Bill, Johnson		43	Inventory Control
Tarwater, Sean, Johnson		27	Business Owner
Thimesch, Jack, Kingman	Rep.	114	Farmer/Construction
Thomas, Adam, Johnson	Rep.	26	Restaurant Owner
Thompson, Kent, Allen	Rep.	9	Real Estate/Rancher
Toplikar, John, Johnson	Rep.	15	Carpenter/Contractor
Vickrey, Jene, Miami	Rep.	6	Floor Covering
Victors, Ponka-We, Sedgwick		103	Community Support Worker/Volunteer
Waggoner, Paul, Reno	Rep.	104	Manager, Waggoners, Inc.
Ward, Jim, Sedgwick		86	Attorney
Warfield, Freda, Shawnee		58	Retired
Warren, Kellie, Johnson		28	Attorney
Wasinger, Barbara, Ellis		111	Business Owner
Waymaster, Troy, Russell		109	Farmer/Office Manager
Weigel, Virgil, Shawnee		56	Retired
Wheeler, John, Finney		123	Retired Attorney
Williams, Kristey, Butler		77	Former mayor/Former
•	•		teacher
Winn, Valdenia, Wyandotte		34	College Professor
Wolfe Moore, Kathy, Wyandotte	Dem.	36	External Liaison/KU Hospital
Woodard, Brandon, Johnson	Dem.	30	Higher Education Fundraising
Xu, Rui, Johnson	Dem.	25	Marketing Analyst
*Yeager, Stephanie, Sedgwick	Dem.	96	Digital Twist, Owner

<sup>\*</sup> Rep. Yeager was sworn in on January 14, 2020 to replace Rep. Whipple who resigned effective January 13.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Rep. Benson resigned effective May 15, 2020. His replacement, Rep. Jennifer Day was sworn in on June 3, 2020, after Sine Die for the 2020 Regular Session.

## STANDING COMMITTEES OF THE HOUSE 2020 LEGISLATIVE SESSION

**Agriculture:** Highland, Chairperson; Smith, E., Vice-chairperson; Blex, Jacobs, Karleskint, Newland, Orr, Pannbacker, Schreiber, Seiwert, Straub, Thompson.

Carlin, Ranking Minority Member; Horn, Probst, Weigel, Xu.

**Appropriations:** Waymaster, Chairperson; Hoffman, Vice-chairperson; Carpenter, W., Claeys, Concannon, Dove, Francis, Johnson, Landwehr, Owens, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Sutton, Tarwater, K. Williams.

Wolfe Moore, Ranking Minority Member; Alcala, Ballard, Burroughs, Carlin, Helgerson, Parker.

Calendar and Printing: Hawkins, Chairperson; Ryckman, Vice-chairperson; Finch, Mason. Parker, Ranking Minority Member; Horn.

Children and Seniors: Concannon, Chairperson; Humphries, Vice-chairperson; Carlson, Dierks, Esau, Garber, Mastroni, Rhiley, Waggoner.

Ousley, Ranking Minority Member; Lusk, Neighbor, Ruiz, S..

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: Tarwater, Chairperson; Corbet, Vice-chairperson; Carpenter, W., Croft, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Kessinger, Long, Mason, Ralph, Williams.

Frownfelter, Ranking Minority Member; Burroughs, Curtis, Probst, Ruiz, L..

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: Jennings, Chairperson; Delperdang, Vice-chairperson; French, Owens, Pannbacker, Patton, Resman, Smith, E., Wheeler.

Highberger, Ranking Minority Member; Carmichael, Kuether, Weigel.

**Education:** Huebert, Chairperson; Dietrich, Vice-chairperson; Erickson, Samsel, Karleskint, Johnson, Thomas, Helmer, Toplikar, Schreiber, Vickrey, Smith, A..

Clayton, Ranking Minority Member; Benson\*\*, Stogsdill, Ward, Yeager.

**Elections:** Sutton, Chairperson; Carpenter, B., Vice-chairperson; Awerkamp, Clark, Collins, Dove, Moore, Rhiley, Waggoner.

Parker, Ranking Minority Member; Hodge, Ousley, Yeager.

**Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications:** Seiwert, Chairperson; Schreiber, Vicechairperson; Bergquist, Corbet, Cox, Delperdang, Garber, Hoheisel, Long, Samsel, Thimesch, Warren.

Kuether, Ranking Minority Member; Carmichael, Frownfelter, Gartner, Neighbor.

Federal and State Affairs: Barker, Chairperson; Awerkamp, Vice-chairperson; Arnberger, Burris, Carpenter B., Eplee, Erickson, Houser, Humphries, Jacobs, Karleskint, Kessinger, Mason, Resman, Smith, E., Thomas.

Ruiz, L., Ranking Minority Member; Clayton, Henderson, Highberger, Lusk, Stogsdill, Woodard.

**Financial Institutions and Pensions:** Kelly, Chairperson; Orr, Vice-chairperson; Lynn, Blex, Dietrich, Delperdang, Toplikar, Cox, Mastroni, Wasinger, Rhiley, Carlson.

Finney, Ranking Minority Member; Benson\*\*, Frownfelter, Weigel, Xu,

Health and Human Services: Landwehr, Chairperson; Eplee, Vice-chairperson; Arnberger, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Collins, Ellis, Howard, Kelly, Lynn, Warren.

Murnan, Ranking Minority Member; Henderson, Holscher, Horn, Ward.

**Insurance:** Vickrey, Chairperson; Cox, Vice-chairperson; Awerkamp, Capps, Carpenter, B., Collins, Dierks, Dove, Moore, Rhiley, Sutton, Waggoner.

Neighbor, Ranking Minority Member; Bishop, Finney, Frownfelter, Woodard.

**Interstate Cooperation:** Ryckman, Chairperson; Finch, Vice-chairperson; Carpenter, B. Hawkins, Mason.

Winn, Ranking Minority Member; Holscher.

**Judiciary:** Patton, Chairperson; Ralph, Vice-chairperson; Bergquist, Burris, Garber, Hoheisel, Humphries, Jennings, Owens, Samsel, Warren, Wheeler.

Carmichael, Ranking Minority Member; Curtis, Highberger, Kuether, Ohaebosim.

Legislative Budget (House): Waymaster, Chairperson; Hoffman, Vice-chairperson; Finch, Hawkins, Ryckman.

Wolfe Moore, Ranking Minority Member; Alcala, Helgerson.

**Local Government:** Thompson, Chairperson; Bergquist, Vice-chairperson; Capps, Clark, Esau, Howard, Long, Moore, Straub.

Curtis, Ranking Minority Member; Amyx, Bishop, Ousley.

Rules and Journal: Finch, Chairperson; Highland, Humphries, Patton, Ralph. Sawyer, Vice-chairperson; Highberger.

**Rural Revitalization:** Smith, A., Chairperson; Highland, Vice-chairperson; Baker, Collins, Donohoe, Helmer, Hineman, Jennings, Newland, Pannbacker, Vickrey, Waggoner.

Probst, Ranking Minority Member; Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Murnan.

**Taxation:** Johnson, Chairperson; Mason, Vice-chairperson; Baker, Barker, Concannon, Corbet, Croft, Eplee, Hineman, Kelly, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Thimesch, Toplikar, Wasinger. Gartner, Ranking Minority Member; Alcala, Clayton, Helgerson, Stogsdill, Warfield, Wolfe Moore.

**Transportation:** Proehl, Chairperson; Thimesch, Vice-chairperson; Awerkamp, Baker, Claeys, Cox, Francis, Hoheisel, Houser, Seiwert, Sutton, Thompson.

Helgerson, Ranking Minority Member; Ballard, Ohaebosim, Pittman, Victors.

Veterans and Military: Clark, Chairperson; Ellis, Vice-chairperson; Croft, Dierks, Dietrich, French, Howard, Phillips, Wheeler.

Weigel, Ranking Minority Member; Pittman, Ruiz, S., Warfield.

#### **Budget Committees**

**Agriculture and Natural Resources Budget:** Dove, Chairperson; Clark, Vice-chairperson; Jacobs, Newland, Orr, Straub.

Carlin, Ranking Minority Member; Gartner, Warfield.

**General Government Budget:** Claeys, Chairperson; Arnberger, Vice-chairperson; Delperdang, French, Helmer, Long.

Burroughs, Ranking Minority Member; Amyx, Henderson.

**Higher Education Budget:** Rahjes, Chairperson; Phillips, Vice-chairperson; Burris, Carpenter, B., Moore, Wasinger.

Woodard, Ranking Minority Member; Amyx, Xu.

K-12 Education Budget: Williams, Chairperson; Hoffman, Vice-chairperson; Erickson,

Huebert, Smith, A., Dietrich, Landwehr, Tarwater, Thomas.

Winn, Ranking Minority Member; Benson\*\*, Holscher, Ward.

Social Services Budget: Carpenter, W., Chairperson; Mastroni, Vice-chairperson; Carlson, Donohoe, Howard, Lynn.

Ballard, Ranking Minority Member; Murnan, Ruiz, S..

Transportation and Public Safety Budget: Francis, Chairperson; Resman, Vice-chairperson; Ellis, Esau, Houser, Kessinger.

Pittman, Ranking Minority Member; Lusk, Victors.

#### JOINT COMMITTEES

Administrative Rules and Regulations: Highland, Vice-chairperson; Carmichael, Cox, Kuether, Sutton, Wasinger, Winn.

Senate members: Tyson, Chairperson; McGinn, Rucker, Ware.

Corrections and Juvenile Justice Oversight: Jennings, Vice-chairperson; Carlin, Finney, Highberger, Hoffman, Owens, Resman.

Senate members: Wilborn, Chairperson; Baumgardner, Berger, Doll, Faust-Goudeau, Miller, Taylor.

**Information Technology:** Hoffman, Vice-chairperson; Collins, Huebert, Pittman. Senate members: Petersen, Chairperson; Braun, Sykes, Tyson.

Kansas Security: Smith, E., Vice-chairperson; Baker, Houser, Ousley, Ruiz, L.. Senate members: Goddard, Chairperson; Braun, Petersen, Pettey, Ware.

Legislative Budget Committee: Waymaster, Vice-chairperson; Carpenter, W., Hoffman, Wolfe Moore.

Senate members: McGinn, Chairperson; Billinger, Hawk.

Legislative Coordinating Council: Ryckman, Chairperson; Finch, Hawkins, Sawyer. Senate members: Wagle, Vice-chairperson; Denning, Hensley.

Legislative Post Audit Committee: Williams, Vice-chairperson; Barker, Burroughs, Gartner, Toplikar.

Senate members: Lynn, Chairperson; Bowers, Hensley, Olson, Sykes.

**Pensions, Investments and Benefits:** Johnson, Vice-chairperson; Blex, Dietrich, Henderson, Kelly, Kuether, Parker, Tarwater.

Senate members: Longbine, Chairperson; Billinger, Miller, Pettey, Taylor.

Robert G. (Bob) Bethell Home and Community Based Services and KanCare Oversight: Landwehr, Chairperson; Ballard, Barker, Carpenter, W., Concannon, Murnan. Senate members: Suellentrop, Vice-chairperson; Berger, Estes, Hilderbrand, Pettey.

**Special Claims Against the State:** Ralph, Chairperson; Samsel, Ward, Warren. Senate members: Kerschen, Vice-chairperson; Haley, Pyle.

**State -Tribal Relations:** Awerkamp, Garber, Lusk, Victors, Wheeler. Senate members: Estes, Francisco, Givens, Haley, Hilderbrand.

**State Building Construction:** Claeys, Vice-chairperson; Alcala, Horn, Houser, Long. Senate members: Billinger, Chairperson; Francisco, Hawk, McGinn, Skubal.

### Individual House Member Information

Term: Indicates the start and end, if applicable, of member terms. Term begins on start of annual Session of the year indicated unless otherwise noted. Members who left office during Session are shown in italics.

\*RM denotes Ranking Minority party member

Alcala, John Term: 1-3-2013 Appropriations Jt. State Building Construction Taxation House Legislative Budget	District: 57 Member Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 12:00 pm 3:30 pm Daily On Call	112-N 159-S 112-N On Call
Amyx, Mike Term: 2019 Local Government Higher Education Budget General Government Budget	District: 45 Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	218-N 281-N 281-N
Arnberger, Tory Term: 2017 Federal and State Affairs Health and Human Services General Government Budget	District: 112 Member Member Vice-Chairperson	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 13:30 pm Daily	346-S 546-S 281-N
Awerkamp, Francis Term: 2017 Federal and State Affairs Transportation Elections Insurance Joint State-Tribal Relations	District: 61 Vice-Chairperson Member Member Member Member	Republican 19:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Tue/Thu 3:30 pm Mon/Wed On Call	346-S 582-N 212-N 212-N On Call
Baker, Dave Term: 2017 Rural Revitalization Transportation Taxation Joint Kansas Security	District: 68 Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	582-N 582-N 112-N On Call
Ballard, Barbara Term: 1993 Appropriations Transportation Social Services Budget Robert G. (Bob) Bethell Jt. Comm. on HCBS & KanCare Oversight	District: 44 Member Member *RM Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	112-N 582-N 144-S

Barker, John Term: 2013 Federal and State Affairs Health and Human Services Taxation Legislative Post Audit Committee Robert G. (Bob) Bethell Jt. Comm. on HCBS & KanCare Oversight	District: 70 Chairperson Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call On Call	346-S 546-S 112-N On Call
Benson, David Term: 2019 Education	District: 91	Republican	
Financial Institutions and Pensions K-12 Education Budget	Member Member	9:00 am Mon/Wed 3:30 pm Daily	281-N 546-S
Bergquist, Emil Term: 1-23-2018 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Local Government Health and Human Services Judiciary	District: 91 Member Vice-Chairperson Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 19:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	281-N 218-N 546-S 346-S
Bishop, Elizabeth Term: 2017	District: 88	Democrat	
Local Government Insurance	Member Member	9:00 am Mon/Wed 3:30 pm Mon/Wed	218-N 212-N
Blex, Doug Term: 2017 Financial Institutions and Pensions Health and Human Services Agriculture Jt. Pensions, Investments & Benefits	District: 12 Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	281-N 546-S 582-N On Call
Burris, Jesse Term: 6-1-2017 Federal and State Affairs Higher Education Budget Judiciary	District: 82 Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	346-S 281-N 346-S
Burroughs, Tom Term: 1997 Appropriations Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. General Government Budget Legislative Post Audit Committee	District: 33 Member Member *RM Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	112-N 112-N 281-N On Call

Capps, Michael Term: 7-28-2018 Local Government Insurance	District: 85 Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Mon/Wed 3:30 pm Mon/Wed	218-N 212-N
Carlin, Sydney Term: 2003 Appropriations Ag & Natural Resources Budget Agriculture Jt. Corr. & Juv. Justice Oversight	District: 66 Member *RM Member *RM Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	112-N 142-S 582-N On Call
Carlson, Suzi Term: 2019 Financial Institutions and Pensions Children and Seniors Social Services Budget	District: 64 Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	281-N 346-S 144-S
Carmichael, John Term: 10-16-2013 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Corrections and Juvenile Justice Judiciary Jt. Admin. Rules & Regulations	District: 92 Member Member *RM Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	281-N 152-S 346-S On Call
Carpenter, Blake Term: 2015 Federal and State Affairs Higher Education Budget Elections Insurance Interstate Cooperation	District: 81 Member Member Vice-Chairperson Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Tue/Thu 3:30 pm Mon/Wed On Call	346-S 281-N 212-N 212-N On Call
Carpenter, Will Term: 2013-2016; 2019 Appropriations Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. Social Services Budget Legislative Budget Committee Robert G. (Bob) Bethell Jt. Comm. on HCBS & KanCare Oversight	District: 75 Member Member Chairperson Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call On Call	112-N 112-N 144-S On Call
Claeys, J. R. Term: 2013 Appropriations Jt. State Building Construction Transportation General Government Budget	District: 69 Member Vice-Chairperson Member Chairperson	Republican 9:00 am Daily 12:00 pm 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	112-N 159-S 582-N 281-N

Clark, Lonnie Term: 2015 Local Government Veterans and Military Ag & Natural Resources Budget Elections	District: 65 Member Chairperson Vice-Chairperson Member	Republican 9:00 am Mon/Wed 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Tue/Thu	218-N 218-N 142-S 212-N
Clayton, Stephanie Term: 2013 Federal and State Affairs Education Taxation	District: 19 Member *RM Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	346-S 218-N 112-N
Collins, Kenneth Term: 2019 Rural Revitalization Health and Human Services Elections Insurance Joint Information Technology	District: 2 Member Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Tue/Thu 3:30 pm Mon/Wed On Call	582-N 546-S 212-N 212-N On Call
Concannon, Susan Term: 2013 Appropriations Children and Seniors Taxation Robert G. (Bob) Bethell Jt. Comm. on HCBS & KanCare Oversight	District: 107 Member Chairperson Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	112-N 346-S 112-N
Corbet, Ken Term: 2013 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. Taxation	District: 54 Member Vice-Chairperson Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	281-N 112-N 112-N
Cox, Tom Term: 2017 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Financial Institutions and Pensions Transportation Insurance Jt. Admin. Rules & Regulations	District: 17 Member Member Member Vice-Chairperson Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 13:30 pm Mon/Wed On Call	281-N 281-N 582-N 212-N On Call
Croft, Chris Term: 2019 Veterans and Military Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. Taxation	District: 8 Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	218-N 112-N 112-N

Curtis, Pam Term: 2014 Local Government Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. Judiciary	District: 32 *RM Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	218-N 112-N 346-S
Delperdang, Leo Term: 2017 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Financial Institutions and Pensions Corrections and Juvenile Justice General Government Budget	<b>District: 94</b> Member Member Vice-Chairpersor Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 9:00 am Mon/Wed 11:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	281-N 281-N 152-S 281-N
Dierks, Diana Term:2013 Veterans and Military Children and Seniors Insurance	District: 71 Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Mon/Wed	218-N 346-S 212-N
Dietrich, Brenda Term: 2017 Financial Institutions and Pensions Veterans and Military Education K-12 Education Budget Jt. Pensions, Investments & Benefits	District: 52 Member Member Vice-Chairpersor Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Mon/Wed 9:00 am Tue/Thu al:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	281-N 218-N 218-N 546-S On Call
Donohoe, Owen Term: 2007-2012; 2019 Rural Revitalization Social Services Budget	District: 39 Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 3:30 pm Daily	582-N 144-S
Dove, Willie Term: 2013 Appropriations Ag & Natural Resources Budget Elections Insurance	District: 38 Member Chairperson Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Tue/Thu 3:30 pm Mon/Wed	112-N 142-S 212-N 212-N
Ellis, Ronald Term: 2017 Veterans and Military Health and Human Services Trans. & Public Safety Budget	<b>District: 47</b> Vice-Chairpersor Member Member	Republican 19:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	218-N 546-S 142-S

Eplee, John			
Term: 2017	District: 63	Republican	
Federal and State Affairs	Member	9:00 am Daily	346-S
Health and Human Services	Vice-Chairperson		546-S
Taxation	Member	3:30 pm Daily	112-N
Erickson, Renee	D: 4 : 4 07	D III	
Term: 2019	District: 87	Republican	246.0
Federal and State Affairs	Member	9:00 am Daily	346-S
Education V. 12 Education Pudget	Member Member	1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	218-N 546-S
K-12 Education Budget	Member	5:50 pm Dany	340-3
Esau, Charlotte			
Term: 2019	District: 14	Republican	
Local Government	Member	9:00 am Mon/Wed	218-N
Children and Seniors	Member	1:30 pm Daily	346-S
Trans. & Public Safety Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	142-S
, ,		, and the same of	
Finch, Blaine			
Term: 2013	District: 59	Republican	
Calendar and Printing	Member	On Call	On Call
Interstate Cooperation	Vice-Chairperson	n On Call	On Call
House Legislative Budget	Member	On Call	On Call
Legislative Coordinating Council	Member	On Call	On Call
Rules and Journal	Chairperson	On Call	On Call
Finney, Gail	71.1.01	<b>.</b>	
Term: 2009	District: 84	Democrat	201.37
Financial Institutions and Pensions	*RM Member	9:00 am Mon/Wed	281-N
Insurance	Member	3:30 pm Mon/Wed	212-N
Jt. Corr. & Juv. Justice Oversight	Member	On Call	On Call
Francis, Shannon			
Term: 2015	District: 125	Republican	
Appropriations	Member	9:00 am Daily	112-N
Transportation	Member	1:30 pm Daily	582-N
Trans. & Public Safety Budget	Chairperson	3:30 pm Daily	142-S
Trans. et l'acité suret, suaget	enum p <b>e</b> rsen	sico più Buny	1.2 5
French, David			
Term: 2019	District: 40	Republican	
Veterans and Military	Member	9:00 am Tue/Thu	218-N
Corrections and Juvenile Justice	Member	1:30 pm Daily	152-S
General Government Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	281-N

Frownfelter, Stan Term: 2007 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Financial Institutions and Pensions Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. Insurance	District: 37 Member Member *RM Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Tue/Thu 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Mon/Wed	281-N 281-N 112-N 212-N
Garber, Randy Term: 2011 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Children and Seniors Judiciary Joint State-Tribal Relations	District: 62 Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	281-N 346-S 346-S On Call
Gartner, Jim Term: 6-22-2016 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Ag & Natural Resources Budget Taxation Legislative Post Audit Committee	District: 53 Member Member *RM Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	281-N 142-S 112-N On Call
Hawkins, Daniel Term: 2013 Calendar and Printing Interstate Cooperation House Legislative Budget Legislative Coordinating Council	District: 100 Chairperson Member Member Member	Republican On Call On Call On Call On Call	On Call On Call On Call On Call
Helgerson, Henry Term: 1983-2000; 1-5-2016 Appropriations Transportation Taxation House Legislative Budget	District: 83 Member *RM Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	112-N 582-N 112-N On Call
Helmer, Cheryl Term: 2019 Rural Revitalization Education General Government Budget	District: 79 Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	582-N 218-N 281-N
Henderson, Broderick Term: 1995 Federal and State Affairs Health and Human Services General Government Budget Jt. Pensions, Investments & Benefits	District: 35 Member Member Member s Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	346-S 546-S 281-N On Call

Highberger, Dennis "Boog" Term: 2015 Federal and State Affairs Corrections and Juvenile Justice Judiciary Jt. Corr. & Juv. Justice Oversight Rules and Journal	District: 46 Member *RM Member Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call On Call	346-S 152-S 346-S On Call On Call
Highland, Ron Term: 2013 Rural Revitalization Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. Agriculture Jt. Admin. Rules & Regulations Rules and Journal	District: 51 Vice-Chairperson Member Chairperson Vice-Chairperson Member	1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	582-N 112-N 582-N On Call On Call
Hineman, Don Term: 2009 Rural Revitalization Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. Taxation	District: 118 Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	582-N 112-N 112-N
Hodge, Tim Term: 2017 Rural Revitalization Elections	District: 72 Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 3:30 pm Tue/Thu	582-N 212-N
Hoffman, Kyle Term: 2011 Appropriations Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. K-12 Education Budget Jt. Corr. & Juv. Justice Oversight Joint Information Technology House Legislative Budget Legislative Budget Committee	District: 116 Vice-Chairperson Member Vice-Chairperson Member Vice-Chairperson Vice-Chairperson Member	1:30 pm Daily 13:30 pm Daily On Call On Call	112-N 112-N 546-S On Call On Call On Call
Hoheisel, Nick Term: 2019 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Transportation Judiciary	District: 97 Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	281-N 582-N 346-S
Holscher, Cindy Term: 2017 Rural Revitalization Health and Human Services K-12 Education Budget Interstate Cooperation	District: 16 Member Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	582-N 546-S 546-S On Call

Horn, Eileen			
Term: 8-30-2017	District: 10	Democrat	
Rural Revitalization	Member	9:00 am Daily	582-N
Jt. State Building Construction	Member	12:00 pm	159-S
Health and Human Services	Member	1:30 pm Daily	546-S
Agriculture	Member	3:30 pm Daily	582-N
Calendar and Printing	Member	On Call	On Call
Houser, Michael			
Term: 2013	District: 1	Republican	
Federal and State Affairs	Member	9:00 am Daily	346-S
Jt. State Building Construction	Member	12:00 pm	159-S
Transportation	Member	1:30 pm Daily	582-N
Trans. & Public Safety Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	142-S
Joint Kansas Security	Member	On Call	On Call
Howard, Ron			
Term: 2019	District: 98	Republican	
Local Government	Member	9:00 am Mon/Wed	218-N
Veterans and Military	Member	9:00 am Tue/Thu	218-N
Health and Human Services	Member	1:30 pm Daily	546-S
Social Services Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	144-S
Section Services Budget	1/10/11/00/	Siso pin Bung	15
Huebert, Steve			
Term: 2001	District: 90	Republican	
Education	Chairperson	1:30 pm Daily	218-N
K-12 Education Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	546-S
Joint Information Technology	Member	On Call	On Call
Humphries, Susan			
Term: 2017	District: 99	Republican	
Federal and State Affairs	Member	9:00 am Daily	346-S
Children and Seniors	Vice-Chairperson	•	346-S
Judiciary	Member	3:30 pm Daily	346-S
Rules and Journal	Member	On Call	On Call
Jacobs, Trevor		<b>.</b>	
Term: 2017	District: 4	Republican	
Federal and State Affairs	Member	9:00 am Daily	346-S
Ag & Natural Resources Budget	Member	1:30 pm Daily	142-S
Agriculture	Member	3:30 pm Daily	582-N
Jennings, Russell			
Term: 2013	District: 122	Republican	
Rural Revitalization	Member	9:00 am Daily	582-N
Corrections and Juvenile Justice	Chairperson	1:30 pm Daily	152-S
Judiciary	Member	3:30 pm Daily	346-S
Jt. Corr. & Juv. Justice Oversight	Member	On Call	On Call

Johnson, Steven	D: 100	D 11	
Term: 2011	District: 108	Republican	112 N
Appropriations Education	Member	9:00 am Daily	112-N
Taxation	Member	1:30 pm Daily	218-N 112-N
Jt. Pensions, Investments & Benefits	Chairperson	3:30 pm Daily	On Call
Jt. 1 chsions, investments & Benefits	vice-champerson	TOII Can	On Can
Karleskint, Jim			
Term: 2017	District: 42	Republican	
Federal and State Affairs	Member	9:00 am Daily	346-S
Education	Member	1:30 pm Daily	218-N
Agriculture	Member	3:30 pm Daily	582-N
Kelly, Jim			
Term: 2011	District: 11	Republican	
Financial Institutions and Pensions	Chairperson	9:00 am Mon/Wed	281-N
Health and Human Services	Member	1:30 pm Daily	546-S
Taxation	Member	3:30 pm Daily	112-N
Jt. Pensions, Investments & Benefits	Member	On Call	On Call
Y7 . Y			
Kessinger, Jan Term: 2017	District. 20	Donublican	
Federal and State Affairs	District: 20 Member	Republican	246 8
Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev.	Member	9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily	346-S 112-N
Trans. & Public Safety Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	142-N
Trans. & Tublic Safety Budget	Wiember	3.30 pm Dany	142-5
Kuether, Annie			
Term: 1997	District: 55	Democrat	
Energy, Utilities & Telecomm.	*RM Member	9:00 am Tue/Thu	281-N
Corrections and Juvenile Justice	Member	1:30 pm Daily	152-S
Judiciary	Member	3:30 pm Daily	346-S
Jt. Admin. Rules & Regulations	Member	On Call	On Call
Jt. Pensions, Investments & Benefits	Member	On Call	On Call
Landwehr, Brenda	D: 4 : 4 105	D III	
Term: 1995-2012; 2017	District: 105	Republican	112 N
Appropriations	Member	9:00 am Daily	112-N
Health and Human Services K-12 Education Budget	Chairperson Member	1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	546-S 546-S
Robert G. (Bob) Bethell Jt. Comm.	Chairperson	On Call	340-3
on HCBS & KanCare Oversight	Champerson	Oli Cali	
e			
Long, Marty			
Term: 2019	District: 124	Republican	
Energy, Utilities & Telecomm.	Member	9:00 am Tue/Thu	281-N
Local Government	Member	9:00 am Mon/Wed	218-N
Jt. State Building Construction	Member	12:00 pm	159-S
Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev.	Member	1:30 pm Daily	112-N
General Government Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	281-N

Lusk, Nancy Term: 2013 Federal and State Affairs Children and Seniors Trans. & Public Safety Budget Joint State-Tribal Relations	District: 22 Member Member Member *RM Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	346-S 346-S 142-S On Call
Lynn, Megan Term: 2019 Financial Institutions and Pensions Health and Human Services Social Services Budget	District: 49 Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	281-N 546-S 144-S
Mason, Les Term: 2014 Federal and State Affairs Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. Taxation Calendar and Printing Interstate Cooperation	District: 73 Member Member Vice-Chairpersor Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 13:30 pm Daily On Call On Call	346-S 112-N 112-N On Call On Call
Mastroni, Leonard Term: 2017 Financial Institutions and Pensions Children and Seniors Social Services Budget	District: 117 Member Member Vice-Chairpersor	Republican 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 13:30 pm Daily	281-N 346-S 144-S
Moore, J.C. Term: 2019 Local Government Higher Education Budget Elections Insurance	District: 93 Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Tue/Thu 3:30 pm Mon/Wed	218-N 281-N 212-N 212-N
Murnan, Monica Term: 2017 Rural Revitalization Health and Human Services Social Services Budget Robert G. (Bob) Bethell Jt. Comm. on HCBS & KanCare Oversight	District: 3 Member *RM Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	582-N 546-S 144-S
Neighbor, Cindy Term: 2003-2004; 2007-2010; 2017 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Children and Seniors Insurance	District: 18 Member Member *RM Member	Democrat 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Mon/Wed	281-N 346-S 212-N

Newland, Joe Term: 8-12-2019 Rural Revitalization Ag & Natural Resources Budget Agriculture	District: 13 Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	582-N 142-S 582-N
Ohaebosim, KC Term: 2017 Transportation Judiciary	District: 89 Member Member	Democrat 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	582-N 346-S
Orr, Boyd Term: 2017 Financial Institutions and Pensions Ag & Natural Resources Budget Agriculture	District: 115 Vice-Chairperson Member Member	Republican 19:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	281-N 142-S 582-N
Ousley, Jarrod Term: 2014 Local Government Children and Seniors Elections Joint Kansas Security	District: 24 Member *RM Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Tue/Thu On Call	218-N 346-S 212-N On Call
Owens, Stephen Term: 2019 Appropriations Corrections and Juvenile Justice Judiciary Jt. Corr. & Juv. Justice Oversight	District: 74 Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	112-N 152-S 346-S On Call
Pannbacker, Bill Term: 2019 Rural Revitalization Corrections and Juvenile Justice Agriculture	District: 106 Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	582-N 152-S 582-N
Parker, Brett Term: 2017 Appropriations Elections Calendar and Printing Jt. Pensions, Investments & Benefits	District: 29 Member *RM Member *RM Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 3:30 pm Tue/Thu On Call On Call	112-N 212-N On Call On Call
Patton, Fred Term: 2015 Corrections and Juvenile Justice Judiciary Rules and Journal	District: 50 Member Chairperson Member	Republican 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	152-S 346-S On Call

Phillips, Tom			
Term: 2012 Veterans and Military	Member	9:00 am Tue/Thu	218-N
Higher Education Budget	Vice-Chairperson		281-N
Taxation	Member	3:30 pm Daily	112-N
		F	
Pittman, Jeff		_	
Term: 2017	District: 41	Democrat	210.37
Veterans and Military	Member	9:00 am Tue/Thu	218-N
Transportation Trans. & Public Safety Budget	Member *RM Member	1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	582-N 142-S
Joint Information Technology	Member	On Call	On Call
Joint information reciniology	Wellioei	Oli Cali	On Can
Probst, Jason			
Term: 6-26-2017	District: 102	Democrat	
Rural Revitalization	*RM Member	9:00 am Daily	582-N
Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev.	Member	1:30 pm Daily	112-N
Agriculture	Member	3:30 pm Daily	582-N
Proehl, Richard			
Term: 12-21-2005	District: 7	Republican	
Appropriations	Member	9:00 am Daily	112-N
Transportation	Chairperson	1:30 pm Daily	582-N
Taxation	Member	3:30 pm Daily	112-N
Rahjes, Ken			
Term: 12-29-2015	District: 110	Republican	
Appropriations	Member	9:00 am Daily	112-N
Higher Education Budget	Chairperson	1:30 pm Daily	281-N
Taxation	Member	3:30 pm Daily	112-N
Ralph, Bradley			
Term: 2017	District: 119	Republican	
Appropriations	Member	9:00 am Daily	112-N
Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev.	Member	1:30 pm Daily	112-N
Judiciary	Vice-Chairperson		346-S
Jt. Special Claims Against the State	Chairperson	On Call	On Call
Rules and Journal	Member	On Call	On Call
Resman, John			
Term: 2-16-2017	District: 121	Republican	
Federal and State Affairs	Member	9:00 am Daily	346-S
Corrections and Juvenile Justice	Member	1:30 pm Daily	152-S
Trans. & Public Safety Budget	Vice-Chairperson		142-S
Jt. Corr. & Juv. Justice Oversight	Member	On Call	On Call

Rhiley, Bill Term: 2019 Financial Institutions and Pensions Children and Seniors Elections Insurance	District: 80 Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Tue/Thu 3:30 pm Mon/Wed	281-N 346-S 212-N 212-N
Ruiz, Louis Term: 2005 Federal and State Affairs Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. Joint Kansas Security	District: 31 *RM Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily On Call	346-S 112-N On Call
Ruiz, Susan Term: 2019 Veterans and Military Children and Seniors Social Services Budget	District: 23 Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	218-N 346-S 144-S
Ryckman, Ron Term: 2013 Calendar and Printing Interstate Cooperation House Legislative Budget Legislative Coordinating Council	District: 78 Vice-Chairperson Chairperson Member Chairperson	Republican On Call On Call On Call On Call	On Call On Call On Call On Call
Samsel, Mark Term: 2019 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Education Judiciary Jt. Special Claims Against the State	District: 5 Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	281-N 218-N 346-S On Call
Sawyer, Tom Term: 1987-1998; 2003-2009; 2013 Legislative Coordinating Council Rules and Journal	District: 95 Member Vice-Chairperson	<b>Democrat</b> On Call On Call	On Call On Call
Schreiber, Mark Term: 2017 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Education Agriculture	District: 60 Vice-Chairperson Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	281-N 218-N 582-N
Seiwert, Joe Term: 2009 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Transportation Agriculture	District: 101 Chairperson Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	281-N 582-N 582-N

Smith, Adam			
Term: 2017	District: 120	Republican	
Rural Revitalization	Chairperson	9:00 am Daily	582-N
Education	Member	1:30 pm Daily	218-N
K-12 Education Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	546-S
2		1 ,	
Smith, Eric			
Term: 2017	District: 76	Republican	
Federal and State Affairs	Member	9:00 am Daily	346-S
Corrections and Juvenile Justice	Member	1:30 pm Daily	152-S
Agriculture	Vice-Chairperson		582-N
Joint Kansas Security	Vice-Chairperson		On Call
ž	1		
Stogsdill, Jerry			
Term: 2017	District: 21	Democrat	
Federal and State Affairs	Member	9:00 am Daily	346-S
Education	Member	1:30 pm Daily	218-N
Taxation	Member	3:30 pm Daily	112-N
Straub, Alicia			
Term: 3-19-2019	District: 113	Republican	
Local Government	Member	9:00 am Mon/Wed	218-N
Ag & Natural Resources Budget	Member	1:30 pm Daily	142-S
Agriculture	Member	3:30 pm Daily	582-N
		1 ,	
Sutton, Bill			
Term: 8-29- 2012	District: 43	Republican	
Appropriations	Member	9:00 am Daily	112-N
Transportation	Member	1:30 pm Daily	582-N
Elections	Chairperson	3:30 pm Tue/Thu	212-N
Insurance	Member	3:30 pm Mon/Wed	212-N
Jt. Admin. Rules & Regulations	Member	On Call	On Call
Tarwater, Sean			
Term: 2017	District: 27	Republican	
Appropriations	Member	9:00 am Daily	112-N
Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev.	Chairperson	1:30 pm Daily	112-N
K-12 Education Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	546-S
Jt. Pensions, Investments & Benefits	Member	On Call	On Call
Thimesch, Jack			
Term: 2013	District: 114	Republican	
Energy, Utilities & Telecomm.	Member	9:00 am Tue/Thu	281-N
Transportation	Vice-Chairperson	1:30 pm Daily	582-N
Taxation	Member	3:30 pm Daily	112-N

Thomas, Adam			
Term: 2019	District: 26	Republican	
Federal and State Affairs	Member	9:00 am Daily	346-S
Education	Member	1:30 pm Daily	218-N
K-12 Education Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	546-S
č		1 ,	
Thompson, Kent			
Term: 2013	District: 9	Republican	
Local Government	Chairperson	9:00 am Mon/Wed	218-N
Transportation	Member	1:30 pm Daily	582-N
Agriculture	Member	3:30 pm Daily	582-N
8		- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Toplikar, John			
Term: 1993-2002; 2019	District: 15	Republican	
Financial Institutions and Pensions	Member	9:00 am Mon/Wed	281-N
Education	Member	1:30 pm Daily	218-N
Taxation	Member	3:30 pm Daily	112-N
Legislative Post Audit Committee	Member	On Call	On Call
Legislative Fost Audit Committee	Member	Oli Cali	Oli Cali
X2.1 X			
Vickrey, Jene Term: 1993	D:-4:-4. (	D	
Rural Revitalization	District: 6 Member	Republican	502 N
		9:00 am Daily	582-N
Education	Member	1:30 pm Daily	218-N
Insurance	Chairperson	3:30 pm Mon/Wed	212-N
X' D. L. XX			
Victors, Ponka-We	D: 4 : 4 102	D 4	
Term: 2011	District: 103	Democrat	500 N
Transportation	Member	1:30 pm Daily	582-N
Trans. & Public Safety Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	142-S
Joint State-Tribal Relations	Chairpersonpers	o On Call	On Call
Wagganar Paul	n		
Waggoner, Paul Term: 2019	District: 104	Donublican	
Rural Revitalization	Member	Republican 9:00 am Daily	582-N
Children and Seniors	Member		346-S
Elections	Member	1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Tue/Thu	340-S 212-N
	Member		212-N 212-N
Insurance	Member	3:30 pm Mon/Wed	212-IN
Wand Yan			
Ward, Jim	D:-4:-4- 06	D4	
Term: 2003	District: 86	Democrat	210 N
Education	Member	1:30 pm Daily	218-N
Health and Human Services	Member	1:30 pm Daily	546-S
K-12 Education Budget	Member	3:30 pm Daily	546-S
Jt. Special Claims Against the State	Member	On Call	On Call

Warfield, Freda Term: 1-14-2019 Veterans and Military Ag & Natural Resources Budget Taxation	District: 58 Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	218-N 142-S 112-N
Warren, Kellie Term: 2019 Energy, Utilities & Telecomm. Health and Human Services Judiciary Jt. Special Claims Against the State	District: 28 Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	281-N 546-S 346-S On Call
Wasinger, Barbara Term: 2019 Financial Institutions and Pensions Higher Education Budget Taxation Jt. Admin. Rules & Regulations	District: 111 Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Mon/Wed 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	281-N 281-N 112-N On Call
Waymaster, Troy Term: 2013 Appropriations House Legislative Budget Legislative Budget Committee	District: 109 Chairperson Chairperson Vice-Chairperso	Republican 9:00 am Daily On Call n On Call	112-N On Call On Call
Weigel, Virgil Term: 2013 Financial Institutions and Pensions Veterans and Military Corrections and Juvenile Justice Agriculture	District: 56 Member *RM Member Member Member	Democrat 9:00 am Mon/Wed 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily	281-N 218-N 152-S 582-N
Wheeler, John Term: 2017 Veterans and Military Corrections and Juvenile Justice Judiciary Joint State-Tribal Relations	District: 123 Member Member Member Member	Republican 9:00 am Tue/Thu 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily On Call	218-N 152-S 346-S On Call
Williams, Kristey Term: 2015 Appropriations Commerce, Labor & Eco. Dev. K-12 Education Budget Legislative Post Audit Committee	District: 77 Member Member Chairperson Vice-Chairperso	Republican 9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily 3:30 pm Daily n On Call	112-N 112-N 546-S On Call

#### Member and Committee Information

xxviii

Winn, Valdenia			
Term: 2001	District: 34	Democrat	
K-12 Education Budget	*RM Member	3:30 pm Daily	546-S
Interstate Cooperation	*RM Member	On Call	On Call
Jt. Admin. Rules & Regulations	Member	On Call	On Call
Wolfe Moore, Kathy			
Term: 2011	District: 36	Democrat	
Appropriations	*RM Member	9:00 am Daily	112-N
Taxation	Member	3:30 pm Daily	112-N
House Legislative Budget	*RM Member	On Call	On Call
Legislative Budget Committee	Member	On Call	On Call
Woodard, Brandon	D: 4 : 4 20	<b>D</b>	
Term: 2019 Federal and State Affairs	District: 30 Member	Democrat	246.6
Higher Education Budget	*RM Member	9:00 am Daily 1:30 pm Daily	346-S 281-N
Insurance	Member	3:30 pm Mon/Wed	212-N
msurance	Wiember	5.50 pm Won wed	212 11
Xu, Rui			
Term: 2019	District: 25	Democrat	
Financial Institutions and Pensions	Member	9:00 am Mon/Wed	281-N
Higher Education Budget	Member	1:30 pm Daily	281-N
Agriculture	Member	3:30 pm Daily	582-N
V (4			
Yeager, Stephanie Term: 1-14-2020	District: 96	Democrat	
Education	Member	1:30 pm Daily	218-N
Elections	Member	3:30 pm Tue/Thu	218-N 212-N
Licetions	1410111001	5.50 pm ruc/rmu	414-14

# Constitutional Provisions Governing the Kansas Legislature



**State of Kansas** 

#### KANSAS CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS CONCERNING LEGISLATIVE POWERS

#### Article 2.—LEGISLATIVE

- **§ 1.** Legislative power.—The legislative power of this state shall be vested in a house of representatives and senate.
- § 2. Senators and representatives.—The number of representatives and senators shall be regulated by law, but shall not exceed one hundred twenty-five representatives and forty senators. Representatives and senators shall be elected from single-member districts prescribed by law. Representatives shall be elected for two year terms. Senators shall be elected for four year terms. The terms of representatives and senators shall commence on the second Monday of January of the year following election.
- **§ 3.** Compensation of members of legislature.—The members of the legislature shall receive such compensation as may be provided by law or such compensation as is determined according to law.
- § 4. Qualifications of members.—During the time that any person is a candidate for nomination or election to the legislature and during the term of each legislator, such candidate or legislator shall be and remain a qualified elector who resides in his or her district.
- § 5. Eligibility and disqualification of members.—No member of congress and no civil officer or employee of the United States or of any department, agency, or instrumentality thereof shall be eligible to be a member of the legislature. Any member of the legislature who accepts any appointment or election contrary to the foregoing shall be disqualified as a member of the legislature.
  - § 6. This section was eliminated by the 1974 revision of this article.
  - § 7. This section was eliminated by the 1974 revision of this article.
- § 8. Organization and sessions.—The legislature shall meet in regular session annually commencing on the second Monday in January, and all sessions shall be held at the state capital. The duration of regular sessions held in even-numbered years shall not exceed ninety calendar days. Such sessions may be extended beyond ninety calendar days by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the members elected to each house. Bills and concurrent resolutions under consideration by the legislature upon adjournment of a regular session held in an odd-numbered year may be considered at the next succeeding regular session held in an even-numbered year, as if there had been no such adjournment.

The legislature shall be organized concurrently with the terms of representatives except that the senate shall remain organized during the terms of senators. The president of the senate shall preside over the senate, and the speaker of the house of representatives shall preside over the house of representatives. A majority of the members than elected (or appointed) and qualified of the house of representatives or the senate shall constitute a quorum of that house. Neither house, without the consent of the

other, shall adjourn for more than two days, Sundays excepted.

Each house shall elect its presiding officer and determine the rules of its proceedings, except that the two houses may adopt joint rules on certain matters and provide for the manner of change thereof. Each house shall provide for the expulsion or censure of members in appropriate cases.

Each house shall be the judge of elections, returns and qualifications of its own members.

- **§ 9. Vacancies in legislature.**—All vacancies occurring in either house shall be filled as provided by law.
- § 10. Journals.—Each house shall publish a journal of its proceedings. The affirmative and negative votes upon the final passage of every bill and every concurrent resolution for amendment of this constitution or ratification of an amendment to the Constitution of the United States shall be entered in the journal. Any member of either house may make written protest against any act or resolution, and the same shall be entered in the journal without delay or alteration.
  - § 11. This section was eliminated by the 1974 revision of this article.
- **§ 12. Origination by either house.**—Bills and concurrent resolutions may originate in either house, but may be amended or rejected by the other.
- § 13. Majority for passage of bills.—A majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified of each house, voting in the affirmative, shall be necessary to pass any bill. Two-thirds (2/3) of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified in each house, voting in the affirmative, shall be necessary to ratify any amendment to the Constitution of the United States or to make any application for congress to call a convention for proposing amendments to the Constitution of the United States.
- § 14. Approval of bills; vetoes.—(a) Within ten days after passage, every bill shall be signed by the presiding officers and presented to the governor. If the governor approves a bill, he shall sign it. If the governor does not approve a bill, the governor shall veto it by returning the bill, with a veto message of the objections, to the house of origin of the bill. Whenever a veto message is so received, the message shall be entered in the journal and in not more than thirty calendar days (excluding the day received), the house of origin shall reconsider the bill. If two-thirds of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified shall vote to pass the bill, it shall be sent, with the veto message, to the other house, which shall in not more than thirty calendar days (excluding the day received) also reconsider the bill, and if approved by two-thirds of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified, it shall become a law, notwithstanding the governor's veto.

If any bill shall not be returned within ten calendar days (excluding the day presented) after it shall have been presented to the governor, it shall become a law in like manner as if it had been signed by the governor.

(b) If any bill presented to the governor contains several items of appropriation of money, one or more of such items may be disapproved by the governor while the other portion of the bill is approved by the governor. In case the governor does so disapprove, a veto message of the governor stating the item or items disapproved, and the reasons

therefor, shall be appended to the bill at the time it is signed, and the bill shall be returned with the veto message to the house of origin of the bill. Whenever a veto message is so received, the message shall be entered in the journal and, in not more than thirty calendar days, the house of origin shall reconsider the items of the bill which have been disapproved. If two-thirds of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified shall vote to approve any item disapproved by the governor, the bill, with the veto message, shall be sent to the other house, which shall in not more than thirty calendar days also reconsider each such item so approved by the house of origin, and if approved by two-thirds of all the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified, any such item shall take effect and become a part of the bill.

- **§ 15. Requirements before bill passed.**—No bill shall be passed on the day that it is introduced, unless in case of emergency declared by two-thirds of the members present in the house where a bill is pending.
- § 16. Subject and title of bills; amendment or revival of statutes.—No bill shall contain more than one subject, except appropriation bills and bills for revision or codification of statutes. The subject of each bill shall be expressed in its title. No law shall be revived or amended, unless the new act contain the entire act revived or the section or sections amended, and the section or sections so amended shall be repealed. The provisions of this section shall be liberally construed to effectuate the acts of the legislature.
- § 17. Uniform operation of laws of a general nature.—All laws of a general nature shall have a uniform operation throughout the state: *Provided*, The legislature may designate areas in counties that have become urban in character as "urban areas" and enact special laws giving to any one or more of such counties or urban areas such powers of local government and consolidation of local government as the legislature may deem proper.
- **§ 18. Election or appointment of officers; filling vacancies.**—The legislature may provide for the election or appointment of all officers and the filling of all vacancies not otherwise provided for in this constitution.
- **§ 19. Publication of acts.**—No act shall take effect until the enacting bill is published as provided by law.
- **§ 20. Enacting clause of bills; laws enacted only by bill.**—The enacting clause of all bills shall be "Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:". No law shall be enacted except by bill.
- § 21. Delegation of powers' of local legislation and administration.—The legislature may confer powers of local legislation and administration upon political subdivisions.
- § 22. Legislative immunity.—For any speech, written document or debate in either house, the members shall not be questioned elsewhere. No member of the legislature shall be subject to arrest—except for treason, felony or breach of the peace—in going to, or returning from, the place of meeting, or during the continuance of the session;

neither shall he be subject to the service of any civil process during the session, nor for fifteen days previous to its commencement.

- § 23. This section was eliminated by the 1974 revision of this article.
- **§ 24. Appropriations.**—No money shall be drawn from the treasury except in pursuance of a specific appropriation made by law.
  - § 25. This section was eliminated by the 1974 revision of this article.
- $\S$  26. This section was repealed by the adoption of 1972 HCR 1097, on Aug. 1, 1972.
- § 27. Impeachment.—The house of representatives shall have the sole power to impeach. All impeachments shall be tried by the senate; and when sitting for that purpose, the senators shall take an oath to do justice according to the law and the evidence. No person shall be convicted without the concurrence of two-thirds of the senators then elected (or appointed) and qualified.
- **§ 28. Officers impeachable; grounds; punishment.**—The governor and all other officers under this constitution, shall be removed from office on impeachment for, and conviction of treason, bribery, or other high crimes and misdemeanors.
  - § 29. This section was eliminated by the 1974 revision of this article.
- § 30. Delegations to interstate bodies.—The legislature may confer legislative powers upon interstate bodies, comprised of officers of this state or its political subdivisions acting in conjunction with officers of other jurisdictions, relating to the functions thereof. Any such delegation, and any agreement made thereunder shall be subject to limitation, change or termination by the legislature, unless contained in a compact approved by the congress.

# Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives



**State of Kansas** 

2019-2020

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
Joint Rule 1.	Joint rules; application and date of expiration;	
	adoption, amendment, suspension and revocation	xxxix
Joint Rule 2.	Joint sessions	xxxix
Joint Rule 3.	Conference committee procedure	xl
Joint Rule 4.	Deadlines for introduction and consideration of bills	xliv
Joint Rule 5.	Closure of meetings to consider matters relating to security	xlvii
Joint Rule 6.	Floor amendments to bills making appropriations	xlvii

#### JOINT RULES OF THE SENATE AND HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 2019-2020

- Joint rule 1. Joint rules; application and date of expiration; adoption, amendment, suspension and revocation. (a) Joint rules; expiration, adoption, amendment, suspension and revocation; vote required. Joint rules are adopted under the authority of section 8 of article 2 of the Constitution of the State of Kansas and shall govern matters made subject thereto except when otherwise specifically provided by joint rule. Joint rules shall expire at the conclusion of the terms of representatives. Joint rules shall be adopted, amended, suspended and revoked by concurrent resolution of the two houses of the legislature. Concurrent resolutions adopting joint rules shall receive the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified in each house.
- (b) Amendment, suspension or revocation of joint rules; previous notice; vote required. After one day's previous notice, joint rules may be amended, suspended or revoked by the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified in each house. Upon the filing of such notice in either house, a message shall be sent to the other house advising of the filing of such notice and the reading of the message shall constitute notice to the members of such house. If such previous notice is not given, the affirmative vote of  $^2/_3$  of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified in each house shall be required for the amendment, suspension or revocation of a joint rule.
- (c) Amendment, suspension or revocation of joint rules at commencement of legislative session; vote required; conditions. Notwithstanding any provision of this rule to the contrary, no notice shall be required for the adoption of a concurrent resolution amending, suspending or revoking any one or more joint rules at the commencement of a legislative session, and adoption of any such concurrent resolution shall require only the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified in each house, subject to the following conditions: (1) The concurrent resolution is sponsored by the speaker or the president; and (2) either: (a) A copy thereof is mailed to each member of the legislature by deposit in the United States mails not later than 11:00 p.m. on the Thursday preceding the Monday on which the legislative session is to commence; or (b) in lieu of mailing, copies of the concurrent resolution are made available to members on the first day of the legislative session and final action is taken on a subsequent legislative day.

Joint rule 2. Joint sessions. (a) Joint session called by concurrent resolution; vote required; time, place and subject matter. A joint session of the senate and house of representatives may be called by concurrent resolution adopted by the

affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified in each house of the legislature or as may otherwise be prescribed by law. Any such resolution shall fix the time and place of the joint session, and the subject matter to be considered at the joint session. Joint sessions shall consider only such matters as are prescribed by law or by the concurrent resolution calling such joint session.

- (b) Presiding officer at joint sessions; record of joint session; rules applicable. The speaker of the house of representatives shall preside at all joint sessions of the senate and house of representatives, and the clerk of the house of representatives shall keep a record of the proceedings thereof and shall enter the record of each such session in the journal of the house of representatives. The rules of the house of representatives and the joint rules of the two houses, insofar as the same may be applicable shall be the rules for joint sessions of the two houses.
- (c) Votes in joint session; taking; requirements. All votes in a joint session shall be taken by yeas and nays, and in taking the same it shall be the duty of the secretary of the senate first to call the names of the members of the senate, and after which the clerk of the house of representatives shall in like manner call the names of the members of the house. Each member of the senate and the house of representatives present shall be required to vote on all matters considered in joint session, unless excused by a vote of a majority of the members of both houses present.
- Joint rule 3. Conference committee procedure. (a) Action by house of origin of bill or concurrent resolution amended by other house. When a bill or concurrent resolution is returned to the house of origin with amendments by the other house, the house of origin may: (1) Concur in such amendments; (2) refuse to concur in such amendments; or (3) refuse to concur in such amendments and request a conference on the bill or concurrent resolution.
- (b) Concurrence by house of origin; concurrence prior to taking action on conference committee report by other house; final action; effect of failure of motion to concur. The house of origin of any bill or concurrent resolution may concur in any amendments made by the other house, except that if the bill or concurrent resolution has been referred to a conference committee such action may only be taken prior to the taking of final action upon the conference committee report upon such bill or concurrent resolution by the other house. A vote in the house of origin of

any bill or concurrent resolution on a motion to concur in amendments to such bill or concurrent resolution by the other house shall be considered action on the final passage of the bill or concurrent resolution and the affirmative and negative votes thereon shall be entered in the journal. If the motion to concur is upon amendments to a bill or concurrent resolution for which a conference committee has been appointed and action has not been taken upon the report of such committee by the other house and such motion fails, the bill or concurrent resolution shall not be deemed to have been killed thereby and the motion to concur may be renewed but not on the same legislative day. If the motion to concur is upon amendments to a bill or concurrent resolution for which a conference committee has not been appointed and such motion fails, the bill or concurrent resolution shall be deemed to be killed.

- (c) Motion to nonconcur; when considered final action; effect of adoption of motion. A vote in the house of origin of any bill or concurrent resolution on a motion to nonconcur or to refuse to concur in amendments to such bill or concurrent resolution by the other house which is not coupled with a request for the appointment of a conference committee shall be considered action on final passage of the bill or concurrent resolution and the affirmative and negative votes thereon shall be entered in the journal, and the bill or concurrent resolution shall be deemed killed on the adoption thereof.
- (d) House of origin refusal to concur or nonconcur; request for conference; procedure. When a bill or concurrent resolution is returned by either house to the house of origin with amendments, and the house of origin refuses to concur or to nonconcur therein, a conference may be requested by a majority vote of the members present and voting. Such request shall be transmitted to the other house by message which shall include the names of the conferees on the part of the requesting house. Upon receipt of any such message, the receiving house may, in like manner, approve such conference, and shall thereupon notify the requesting house by message stating the names of its conferees.
- (e) Membership; appointment; chairperson; house of origin of substitute or materially changed bill or concurrent resolution; meetings of conference committee. Each conference committee shall consist of three members of the senate and three members of the house of representatives, unless otherwise fixed by agreement of the president of the senate and speaker of the house. Senate members shall be appointed by the president of the senate and house members shall be appointed by

the speaker of the house of representatives. The president or the speaker may replace any conferee previously appointed by such person. Not fewer than one member appointed from each house shall be a member of the minority political party of such house except when such representation for such house is waived by the minority leader of such house. In all cases, the first-named member of the house of origin of the bill or concurrent resolution assigned to the committee shall be chairperson of the conference committee. The house of origin of a substitute bill or substitute concurrent resolution shall be the house in which the bill or concurrent resolution in its original form was introduced. The chairperson of a conference committee on a bill or concurrent resolution the subject matter of which has been ruled to be materially changed shall be a member of the house which amended the bill or concurrent resolution to materially change the subject matter. Each conference committee shall meet on the call of its chairperson. All meetings of conference committees shall be open to the public and no meeting shall be adjourned to another time or place in order to subvert such policy.

(f) Conference committee reports; matters which may be included; report not subject to amendment; house which acts first on report; copies of reports; reports considered under any order of business. Only subject matters which are or have been included in the bill or concurrent resolution in conference or in bills or concurrent resolutions which have been passed or adopted in either one or both houses during the current biennium of the legislature may be included in the report of the conference committee on any bill or concurrent resolution except in any appropriations bill there may be included a proviso relating to any such item of appropriation. Subject to any limitations imposed under the constitution of the state of Kansas, no more than a total of four additional bills or concurrent resolutions or parts of bills or concurrent resolutions in conference or bills or concurrent resolutions or parts of bills or concurrent resolutions which have passed in either one or both houses during the current biennium of the legislature may be included in the report of the conference committee on any bill or concurrent resolution, except that reports of conference committees on any taxation bill are not subject to the limitation contained in this provision. A conference committee report shall not be subject to amendment. The original signed conference committee report shall be submitted to and acted upon first by the house other than the house of origin of the bill or concurrent resolution. Except when a conference committee report is an agree to disagree coupled with a request that a new conference committee be appointed or is a

recommendation to accede to or recede from all amendments of the second house, electronic and paper copies of the report shall be made available to all members of the house considering the report not later than 30 minutes before the time of its consideration, except that if the report is more than six pages in length no paper copies will be required to be distributed to individual members provided that at least 10 paper copies of the report are made available to members at the clerk's or secretary's desk at the front of the respective house. By written notice, the majority leader may direct the clerk or secretary to increase from six pages to some greater number of pages the size of conference committee reports that need not be distributed by paper copies to individual members pursuant to this rule. The affirmative vote of  $^{2}/_{3}$  of the members present in the house at the time of consideration of the report shall be sufficient to dispense with distribution of copies of the conference committee report to all members of that house. Reports of conference committees may be received and considered under any order of business.

- (g) Signatures required on conference committee reports. All initial conference committee reports other than an agreement to disagree coupled with a request that a new conference committee be appointed shall be signed by all of the conferees. All initial conference committee reports which are an agreement to disagree coupled with a request that a new conference committee be appointed shall be signed by a majority of the conferees appointed in each house. If a conference committee report which is an agreement to disagree coupled with a request that a new conference committee be appointed is not adopted, a subsequent conference committee report shall be signed by all conferees unless a subsequent conference committee report which is an agreement to disagree coupled with a request that a new conference committee be appointed is adopted, in which case a conference committee report subsequent to the adoption of such report shall be signed by a majority of the conferees appointed in each house. All other conference committee reports shall be signed by a majority of the conferees appointed in each house.
- (h) Vote to adopt conference committee report final action; effect of failure of motion to adopt conference committee report. The vote to adopt the report of a conference committee, other than a report of failure to agree coupled with a recommendation for appointment of a new conference committee, shall be considered final action on the bill or concurrent resolution and the affirmative and negative votes thereon shall

be entered in the journal. If the motion fails, the bill or concurrent resolution shall be deemed to be killed. If the motion on a conference committee report which is an agreement to disagree coupled with a request that a new conference committee be appointed fails, the bill or concurrent resolution shall not be deemed to have been killed thereby and remains in conference.

- (i) Report of conference committee unable to agree; effect of failure to request new conference committee; effect of failure of motion to adopt report requesting new conference committee. If a conference committee upon any bill or concurrent resolution is unable to agree, it shall report that fact to both houses. Such report may request that a new conference committee be appointed thereon. If the committee so reports but fails to request the appointment of a new conference committee thereon, the bill or concurrent resolution shall be deemed to have been killed upon the adoption by either house of such report. If the motion to adopt a report requesting the appointment of a new conference committee fails, the bill or concurrent resolution shall be deemed to be killed.
- (j) Bills or concurrent resolutions under consideration by conference committees and reports thereof; carryover from odd-numbered to even-numbered year. Bills or concurrent resolutions under consideration by a conference committee, or a report of which has been filed but no action taken thereon in either house, at the time of adjournment of a regular session of the legislature held in an odd-numbered year shall remain alive during the interim and may be considered by the committee and legislature as the case may be at the regular session held in the following even-numbered year.
- Joint rule 4. Deadlines for introduction and consideration of bills. The senate and house of representatives shall observe the following schedule of deadlines in making requests for drafting and in the introduction and consideration of bills.
- (a) Bill request deadline for individual members. Except for bills introduced pursuant to (i) of this rule, no request to draft bills, except those made by committees, through their respective chairpersons, shall be made to, or accepted by, the office of the revisor of statutes after the hour of 5:00 p.m. on February 4, 2019, during the 2019 regular session and on February 3, 2020, during the 2020 regular session.
- (b) Bill introduction deadline for individual members. Except as provided in (i) of this rule, no bill sponsored by a member or members shall be introduced in either house of the legislature after the hour of

- adjournment on February 13, 2019, during the 2019 regular session and on February 12, 2020, during the 2020 regular session. Such deadline for the introduction of bills by individual members may be changed to an earlier date in either house at any time by resolution duly adopted by the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified in such house.
- (c) Bill request deadline for certain committees. Except for bills to be introduced pursuant to (i) of this rule, no committee except the committee on ways and means of the senate, the committee on assessment and taxation of the senate, select committees of either house when so authorized, the committee on federal and state affairs of either house or the house committees on calendar and printing, appropriations and taxation shall make a request to the office of the revisor of statutes for any bill to be drafted for sponsorship by such committee after the hour of 5:00 p.m. on February 11, 2019, during the 2019 regular session and on February 10, 2020, during the 2020 regular session.
- (d) Bill introduction deadline for certain committees. Except as provided in (i) of this rule, no bill sponsored by any committee of either house of the legislature, except the committee on ways and means of the senate, the committee on assessment and taxation of the senate, select committees of either house when so authorized, the committee on federal and state affairs of either house or the house committees on calendar and printing, appropriations and taxation shall be introduced in either house after the hour of adjournment on February 15, 2019, during the 2019 regular session and on February 14, 2020, during the 2020 regular session.
- (e) House of origin bill consideration deadline. No bill, except bills sponsored by, referred to or acted upon by the committee on ways and means of the senate, the committee on assessment and taxation of the senate, select committees of either house when so authorized, the committee on federal and state affairs of either house or the house committees on calendar and printing, appropriations and taxation shall be considered in the house in which such bill originated after the hour of adjournment on February 28, 2019, during the 2019 regular session and on February 27, 2020, during the 2020 regular session.
- (f) Second house bill consideration deadline. No bill, except bills sponsored by, referred to or acted upon by the committee on ways and means of the senate, the committee on assessment and taxation of the senate, select committees of either house when so authorized, the

- committee on federal and state affairs of either house or the house committees on calendar and printing, appropriations and taxation shall be considered by either house, not the house of origin of such bill, after the hour of adjournment on March 27, 2019, during the 2019 regular session and March 25, 2020, during the 2020 regular session.
- (g) Exceptions to limitation of (d), (e) and (f); procedure. Specific exceptions to the limitations prescribed in subsections (d), (e) and (f) may be made in either house by resolution adopted by the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the members of such house then elected (or appointed) and qualified.
- (h) Deadline which falls on day neither house in session; effect. In the event that any deadline prescribed in this rule falls on a day that neither house of the legislature is in session, such deadline shall be observed on the next following day that either house is in session.
- (i) Bills introduced in odd-numbered years after deadlines; effect. Bills may be introduced by members and committees in regular sessions occurring in an odd-numbered year after the times prescribed in (b) and (d) of this rule, but there shall be no final action thereon by either house during the session when introduced. Such bills shall be held over for consideration at the next succeeding regular session held in an even-numbered year.
- (j) Modification of schedule of deadlines for introduction and consideration of bills; procedure. In any regular session a concurrent resolution may be adopted by the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified in each house setting forth a different schedule of deadlines for introduction and consideration of bills for that session and the provisions of such concurrent resolution shall apply to such session notwithstanding provisions of this rule to the contrary.
- (k) Bill consideration deadline; exceptions. No bills shall be considered by the Legislature after April 5, 2019, during the 2019 regular session and after April 3, 2020, during the 2020 regular session except bills vetoed by the governor, the omnibus appropriation act and the omnibus reconciliation spending limit bill provided for under K.S.A. 75-6702, and amendments thereto. This subsection (k) may be suspended for the consideration of a specific bill or bills not otherwise exempt under this subsection by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified in the house in which the bill is to be considered.

Joint rule 5. Closure of meetings to consider matters relating to security. Any standing committee of the house of representatives, any standing committee of the senate, the legislative coordinating council, any joint committee of both houses of the legislature, any special or select committee of the house of representatives or the senate, the house of representatives in session, the senate in session or a joint session of the house of representatives and the senate may meet in closed, executive session for the purpose of receiving information and considering matters relating to the security of state officers or employees, or both, or the security of buildings and property under the ownership or control of the state of Kansas.

Joint rule 6. Floor amendments to bills making appropriations. (a) Unless by majority consent to correct an error in drafting, no amendment from the floor in either house of the legislature to increase the amount of expenditures that would be authorized in a provision of an appropriations bill shall be in order unless the amendment contains a provision reducing, by a like or greater amount, expenditures that would be authorized in another provision of such appropriations bill. Notwithstanding any rule in either house of the legislature, those portions of a motion to amend a bill as described in this rule shall be indivisible.

(b) The provisions of subsection (a) shall not apply if the ending balance in the state general fund for the ensuing fiscal year is equal to 7.5% or more of the total amount authorized to be expended or transferred by demand transfer from the state general fund in such fiscal year based on the most recent budget profile of the Kansas legislative research department.

# Rules of the Kansas House of Representatives



2019 - 2020 BIENNIUM

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Rule 101. Time of Meeting.  Rule 102. Speaker Taking Chair.  Rule 103. First Business.  Rule 104. Order of Business.  Rule 105. Members Excused from Attendance.  Rule 106. Introduction of Guests.  Rule 107. Session Proforma.  Rule 108. Rulings on Germaneness, Division of Amendments, Points of Order and Procedural Motions.  ARTICLE 3. QUORUM.  Rule 301. Quorum, What Constitutes.  Ivi Rule 302. Absence of Quorum.  Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum.  Ivi Rule 501. Admission to Floor.  Rule 503. Galleries.  Ivi Rule 503. Galleries.  Ivi Rule 504. Placing Material on Member's Desk.  Ivi Rule 505. Photographic Record of Vote.  Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices.  Ivi Rule 507. Computer Usage.  Ivi Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions.  Rule 702. Introduction of Foenate Bills and Resolutions.  Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions, Procedure Following Introduction.  Iki Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.  Rule 705. Reference, Generally.  Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.  Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.  Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.  Iki Rule 101. Standing Committees; Names and Members.  Iki Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members.  Iki Rule 1102. Committee Appointments.  Iki Rule 1103. Select Committees; Names and Members.  Iki Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.  Iki Rule 1105. Budget Committees.  Iki Rule 1106. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.  Iki Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.  Iki Rule 1301. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.	ARTICLE 1. HOUSE SESSIONS; GENERAL OPERATION	lv
Rule 102. Speaker Taking Chair. Rule 103. First Business. Rule 104. Order of Business. Rule 105. Members Excused from Attendance. Rule 106. Introduction of Guests. Rule 107. Session Proforma. Rule 108. Rulings on Germaneness, Division of Amendments, Points of Order and Procedural Motions.  **RIVER 108. Rulings on Germaneness, Division of Amendments, Points of Order and Procedural Motions.  **RIVELE 3. QUORUM		
Rule 104. Order of Business		
Rule 105. Members Excused from Attendance	Rule 103. First Business.	lv
Rule 106. Introduction of Guests.   Iv Rule 107. Session Proforma.   Iv Rule 108. Rulings on Germaneness, Division of Amendments, Points of Order and Procedural Motions.   Iv ARTICLE 3. QUORUM.   Ivi Rule 301. Quorum, What Constitutes.   Ivi Rule 302. Absence of Quorum.   Ivi Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum.   Ivi ARTICLE 5. CONDUCT IN THE HOUSE CHAMBER.   Ivi Rule 501. Admission to Floor.   Ivi Rule 502. Food and Drink.   Ivi Rule 503. Galleries.   Ivi Rule 503. Galleries.   Ivi Rule 504. Placing Material on Member's Desk.   Ivi Rule 505. Photographic Record of Vote.   Ivi Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices.   Ivi Rule 507. Computer Usage.   Ivi Rule 707. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 708. Reading of Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 709. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction.   Ivi Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 907. Appropriation Bills.   Ivi Rule 907. Appropriation Bills.   Ivi Rule 908. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 909. Appropriation Bills.   Ivi Rule 909. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 909. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 909. Appropriation Bills.   Ivi Rule 909. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members.   Ivi Rule 1102. Committee Appointments.   Ivi Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.   Ivi Rule 1105. Budget Committees.   Ivi Rule 1106. Committee Appointments.   Ivi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.   Ivi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.   Ivi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ivi	Rule 104. Order of Business.	1v
Rule 107. Session Proforma. Iv Rule 108. Rulings on Germaneness, Division of Amendments, Points of Order and Procedural Motions. Iv ARTICLE 3. QUORUM. Ivi Rule 301. Quorum, What Constitutes. Ivi Rule 302. Absence of Quorum. Ivi Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum. Ivi Rule 501. Admission to Floor. Ivi Rule 501. Admission to Floor. Ivi Rule 503. Galleries. Ivi Rule 504. Placing Material on Member's Desk. Ivi Rule 505. Photographic Record of Vote. Ivi Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices. Ivi Rule 507. Computer Usage. Ivi Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions. Ivi Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions. Ivi Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions. Ivi Rule 705. Reference, Generally. Iii Rule 902. Appropriation Bills. Iii Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. Iii Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. Ivi Rule 905. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. Iii Rule 906. Appropriation Bills. Iii Rule 907. Reference, Generally. Iii Rule 908. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. Iii Rule 909. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. Iii Rule 1004. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. Iii Rule 1005. Procedure Following Introduction. Iii Rule 1105. Budget Committees; Names and Members. Iii Rule 1105. Budget Committees. Ixi Rule 1106. Committee Appointments. Ixi Rule 1107. Sunding Committees. Ixi Rule 1108. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. Ixi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place. Ixi Rule 1301. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. Ixi		
Rule 108. Rulings on Germaneness, Division of Amendments, Points of Order and Procedural Motions. Iv ARTICLE 3. QUORUM. Ivi Rule 301. Quorum, What Constitutes. Ivi Rule 302. Absence of Quorum. Ivi Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum. Ivi Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum. Ivi Rule 501. Admission to Floor. Ivi Rule 501. Admission to Floor. Ivi Rule 502. Food and Drink. Ivi Rule 503. Galleries. Ivi Rule 504. Placing Material on Member's Desk. Ivi Rule 505. Photographic Record of Vote. Ivi Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices. Ivii Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices. Ivii Rule 507. Computer Usage. Ivii Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions. Ivii Rule 702. Introduction of Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions. Ivii Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction. Ii: Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction. Ii: Rule 901. Reference, Generally. Ii: Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. Ii: Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. Ii: Rule 905. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. Ii: Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. Ii: Rule 905. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. Ii: Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. Ii: Rule 1105. Budget Committees; Names and Members. Ii: Rule 1104. Announce Appointments. Ix: Rule 1105. Budget Committees. Ix: Rule 1105. Budget Committees. Ix: Rule 1105. Budget Committees. Ix: Rule 1105. Dudget Committees. Ix: Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place. Ix: Rule 1301. Committee and Agenda for Committee Meetings. Ix: Rule 1301. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. Ix: Rule 1301. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. Ix: Rule 1301. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. Ix: Rule 1301. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. Ix: Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. Ix: Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. Ix:	Rule 106. Introduction of Guests.	1vi
Order and Procedural Motions.   Ivi  ARTICLE 3. QUORUM.   Ivi  Rule 301. Quorum, What Constitutes.   Ivi Rule 302. Absence of Quorum.   Ivi Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum.   Ivi ARTICLE 5. CONDUCT IN THE HOUSE CHAMBER.   Ivi Rule 501. Admission to Floor.   Ivi Rule 503. Galleries.   Ivi Rule 504. Placing Material on Member's Desk.   Ivi Rule 504. Placing Material on Member's Desk.   Ivi Rule 505. Photographic Record of Vote.   Ivi Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices.   Ivi Rule 507. Computer Usage.   Ivi Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 702. Introduction of Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction.   Ivi Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction.   Ivi Rule 904. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 905. Reference, Generally.   Ivi Rule 906. Appropriation Bills.   Ivi Rule 907. Introduction Bills.   Ivi Rule 908. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 909. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 909. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members.   Ivi Rule 1103. Select Committees; Names and Members.   Ivi Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.   Ivi Rule 1105. Budget Committees.   Ivi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.   Ixi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi	Rule 107. Session Proforma.	1vi
ARTICLE 3. QUORUM	Rule 108. Rulings on Germaneness, Division of Amendments, Points of	
Rule 301. Quorum, What Constitutes.   Ivi Rule 302. Absence of Quorum.   Ivi Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum.   Ivi Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum.   Ivi ARTICLE 5. CONDUCT IN THE HOUSE CHAMBER.   Ivi Rule 501. Admission to Floor.   Ivi Rule 502. Food and Drink.   Ivi Rule 503. Galleries.   Ivi Rule 504. Placing Material on Member's Desk.   Ivi Rule 505. Photographic Record of Vote.   Ivi Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices.   Ivi Rule 507. Computer Usage.   Ivi Rule 507. Computer Usage.   Ivi Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 702. Introduction of Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction.   Ivi Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction.   Ii Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction.   Ii Rule 901. Reference, Generally.   Iii Rule 902. Appropriation Bills.   Iii Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Iii Rule 905. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members.   Ix Rule 1102. Committee Appointments.   Ix Rule 1103. Select Committees; Names and Members.   Ix Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.   Ix Rule 1105. Budget Committees.   Ixi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302.	Order and Procedural Motions.	1vi
Rule 302. Absence of Quorum.   Ivi Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum.   Ivi ARTICLE 5. CONDUCT IN THE HOUSE CHAMBER.   Ivi Rule 501. Admission to Floor.   Ivi Rule 502. Food and Drink.   Ivi Rule 503. Galleries.   Ivi Rule 504. Placing Material on Member's Desk.   Ivi Rule 505. Photographic Record of Vote.   Ivi Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices.   Ivi Rule 507. Computer Usage.   Ivi ARTICLE 7. INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS.   Ivi Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 702. Introduction of Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction.   Ivi Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction.   Ivi Rule 901. Reference, Generally.   Ivi Rule 902. Appropriation Bills.   Ivi Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 905. Appropriation Bills.   Ivi Rule 906.   Ivi Rule 1101. Standing Committees; COMPOSITION.   Ivi Rule 1103. Select Committees.   Ivi Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.   Ivi Rule 1105. Budget Committees.   Ivi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.   Ivi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ivi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ivi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ivi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ivi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ivi	ARTICLE 3. QUORUM	lvii
Rule 302. Absence of Quorum.   Ivi Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum.   Ivi ARTICLE 5. CONDUCT IN THE HOUSE CHAMBER.   Ivi Rule 501. Admission to Floor.   Ivi Rule 502. Food and Drink.   Ivi Rule 503. Galleries.   Ivi Rule 504. Placing Material on Member's Desk.   Ivi Rule 505. Photographic Record of Vote.   Ivi Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices.   Ivi Rule 507. Computer Usage.   Ivi ARTICLE 7. INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS.   Ivi Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 702. Introduction of Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction.   Ivi Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction.   Ivi Rule 901. Reference, Generally.   Ivi Rule 902. Appropriation Bills.   Ivi Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Ivi Rule 905. Appropriation Bills.   Ivi Rule 906.   Ivi Rule 1101. Standing Committees; COMPOSITION.   Ivi Rule 1103. Select Committees.   Ivi Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.   Ivi Rule 1105. Budget Committees.   Ivi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.   Ivi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ivi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ivi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ivi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ivi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ivi	Rule 301. Quorum, What Constitutes.	lvii
ARTICLE 5. CONDUCT IN THE HOUSE CHAMBER	Rule 302. Absence of Quorum.	lvii
Rule 501. Admission to Floor	Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum.	lvii
Rule 501. Admission to Floor	ARTICLE 5. CONDUCT IN THE HOUSE CHAMBER	lvii
Rule 502. Food and Drink		
Rule 503. Galleries		
Rule 504. Placing Material on Member's Desk.   Ivii Rule 505. Photographic Record of Vote.   Ivii Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices.   Ivii Rule 507. Computer Usage.   Ivii ARTICLE 7. INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS   Ivii Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions.   Ivii Rule 702. Introduction of Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.   Ivii Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction.   Iii Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction.   Iii Rule 904. Reference, Generally.   Iii Rule 901. Reference, Generally.   Iii Rule 902. Appropriation Bills.   Iii Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Iii Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Iii Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Iii Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members.   Iii Rule 1102. Committee Appointments.   Ixi Rule 1103. Select Committees.   Ixi Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.   Ixi Rule 1105. Budget Committees.   Ixi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1304.   Ixi Rule 1305.   Ixi Rule 1306.   Ixi Rule 1306.   Ixi Rule 1307.   Ixi Rule 1407.   Ixi R		
Rule 505. Photographic Record of Vote		
Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices.   Ivii Rule 507. Computer Usage.   Ivii ARTICLE 7. INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS Ivii Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions.   Ivii Rule 702. Introduction of Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.   Ivii Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction.   Iii Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction.   Iii Rule 904. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction.   Iii Rule 901. Reference, Generally.   Iii Rule 902. Appropriation Bills.   Iii Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Iii Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Iii Rule 905. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.   Iii Rule 1101. Standing Committees; COMPOSITION.   Iii Rule 1102. Committee Appointments.   Ixi Rule 1103. Select Committees; Names and Members.   Ixi Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.   Ixi Rule 1105. Budget Committees.   Ixi Rule 1105. Budget Committees.   Ixi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   Ixi Rule 1304.		
ARTICLE 7. INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS Ivii Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions		
Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions	Rule 507. Computer Usage.	lviii
Rule 702. Introduction of Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions. Ivii Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction. Ii: Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction. Ii: ARTICLE 9. REFERENCE OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS II: Rule 901. Reference, Generally. Ii: Rule 902. Appropriation Bills. Ii: Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. II: Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. II: Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. II: ARTICLE 11. COMMITTEES; COMPOSITION. II: Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members. II: Rule 1102. Committee Appointments. Ix: Rule 1103. Select Committees. Ix: Rule 1104. Announce Appointments. Ix: Rule 1105. Budget Committees. Ix: Rule 1105. Budget Committees. Ix: Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place. Ix: Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. Ix: Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.	ARTICLE 7. INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS	S lviii
Rule 702. Introduction of Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions. Ivii Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction. Ii: Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction. Ii: ARTICLE 9. REFERENCE OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS II: Rule 901. Reference, Generally. Ii: Rule 902. Appropriation Bills. Ii: Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. II: Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. II: Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. II: ARTICLE 11. COMMITTEES; COMPOSITION. II: Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members. II: Rule 1102. Committee Appointments. Ix: Rule 1103. Select Committees. Ix: Rule 1104. Announce Appointments. Ix: Rule 1105. Budget Committees. Ix: Rule 1105. Budget Committees. Ix: Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place. Ix: Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. Ix: Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.	Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions.	1viii
Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction. In Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction. In ARTICLE 9. REFERENCE OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS In Rule 901. Reference, Generally. In Rule 902. Appropriation Bills. In Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. In Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. In Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. In Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members. In Rule 1102. Committee Appointments. In Rule 1103. Select Committees. In Rule 1104. Announce Appointments. In Rule 1105. Budget Committees. In Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place. In Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. In Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. In Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. In Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. In Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. In Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. In Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.		
Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction. In ARTICLE 9. REFERENCE OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS IN Rule 901. Reference, Generally. In Rule 902. Appropriation Bills. In Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. In Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. In Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. In Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members. In Rule 1102. Committee Appointments. In Rule 1103. Select Committees. In Rule 1104. Announce Appointments. In Rule 1105. Budget Committees. In Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place. In Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. In Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. In Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. In Rule 1302.		
Rule 901. Reference, Generally.       li         Rule 902. Appropriation Bills.       li         Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.       li         Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.       li         ARTICLE 11. COMMITTEES; COMPOSITION.       li         Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members.       lx         Rule 1102. Committee Appointments.       lx         Rule 1103. Select Committees.       lxi         Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.       lxi         Rule 1105. Budget Committees.       lxi         ARTICLE 13. COMMITTEES; PROCEDURE       lxi         Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.       lxi         Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.       lxi		
Rule 901. Reference, Generally.       li         Rule 902. Appropriation Bills.       li         Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.       li         Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.       li         ARTICLE 11. COMMITTEES; COMPOSITION.       li         Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members.       lx         Rule 1102. Committee Appointments.       lx         Rule 1103. Select Committees.       lxi         Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.       lxi         Rule 1105. Budget Committees.       lxi         ARTICLE 13. COMMITTEES; PROCEDURE       lxi         Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.       lxi         Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.       lxi	ARTICLE 9. REFERENCE OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS	lix
Rule 902. Appropriation Bills. li: Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions. li: Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. li: ARTICLE 11. COMMITTEES; COMPOSITION. ly: Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members. li: Rule 1102. Committee Appointments. lx: Rule 1103. Select Committees. lx: Rule 1104. Announce Appointments. lx: Rule 1105. Budget Committees. lx: Rule 1105. Budget Committees. lx: Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place. lx: Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. lx:		
Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.  Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.  ARTICLE 11. COMMITTEES; COMPOSITION.  Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members.  Rule 1102. Committee Appointments.  Rule 1103. Select Committees.  Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.  Rule 1105. Budget Committees.  Rule 1105. Budget Committees.  Ixi  Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.  Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.		
Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions. 1:  ARTICLE 11. COMMITTEES; COMPOSITION. 15.  Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members. 1.  Rule 1102. Committee Appointments. 1.  Rule 1103. Select Committees. 1.  Rule 1104. Announce Appointments. 1.  Rule 1105. Budget Committees. 1.  Rule 1105. Budget Committees. 1.  Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place. 1.  Rule 1301. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. 1.  Interval 1.		
ARTICLE 11. COMMITTEES; COMPOSITION.  Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members.  Rule 1102. Committee Appointments.  Rule 1103. Select Committees.  Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.  Rule 1105. Budget Committees.  Ixi  Rule 1105. Budget Committees.  Ixi  ARTICLE 13. COMMITTEES; PROCEDURE  Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.  Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.		
Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members. lx Rule 1102. Committee Appointments. lx Rule 1103. Select Committees. lxi Rule 1104. Announce Appointments. lxi Rule 1105. Budget Committees. lxi Rule 1305. Budget Committees. lxi ARTICLE 13. COMMITTEES; PROCEDURE lxi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place. lxi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. lxi	·	
Rule 1102. Committee Appointments	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Rule 1103. Select Committees.   1xi Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.   1xi Rule 1105. Budget Committees.   1xi  ARTICLE 13. COMMITTEES; PROCEDURE.   1xi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.   1xi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.   1xi	Rule 1102 Committee Appointments	lxi
Rule 1104. Announce Appointments. lxi Rule 1105. Budget Committees. lxi  ARTICLE 13. COMMITTEES; PROCEDURE. lxi Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place. lxi Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. lxi		
Rule 1105. Budget Committees. lxi  ARTICLE 13. COMMITTEES; PROCEDURE lxi  Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place. lxi  Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings. lxi		
ARTICLE 13. COMMITTEES; PROCEDURE		
Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place		
Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings		
Rule 1303. Duties of Committee Chairperson	Rule 1303. Duties of Committee Chairperson.	
Rule 1304. Introduction of Committee Bills and Resolutions.		
Rule 1305. Quorum of a Committee		
Rule 1306. Voting in Committees.	· ·	

Rule 1307. Procedure in General.  Rule 1308. Committee Action on Bills and Resolutions.	lxiv
Rule 1309. Motion to Withdraw a Bill or Resolution from a Committee.	
Rule 1310. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices	
ARTICLE 15. CALENDAR LOCATION OF BILLS AND RESO	
Rule 1501. General Orders; Description and Function.	
Rule 1502. Posting of Sequence for Succeeding Day.	
Rule 1503. Change in the Sequence on General Orders	
Rule 1504. Adversely Reported Bills and Resolutions; Calendar Location	
Rule 1505. Motion to Move Adversely Reported Bill or Concurrent Res to General Orders.	
Rule 1506. Motion to Lay on Table Bill or Resolution while on Final Ac	ction
Subject to Amendments and Debate.	
Rule 1507. Disposition of Bills Subject to Certain Deadlines	
ARTICLE 17. MEMBERS ADDRESSING THE HOUSE	
Rule 1701. Requesting the Floor.	
Rule 1702. Order During Speaking.	
Rule 1703. When Question is Put.	
Rule 1704. Violation of Rules While Speaking.	
Rule 1705. Point of Personal Privilege.	
ARTICLE 19. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE	
Rule 1901. Motion to go into Committee of the Whole House	
Rule 1902. Committee of the Whole; Normal Procedure	
Rule 1903. Motion to Pass Over a Bill or Resolution While in Committee of	the Whole Ivviii
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole	in lxviii
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.	in lxviii lxviii
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.	inlxviiilxviiilxviii
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.  Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.	inlxviiilxviiilxviiilxviiilxviiilxii
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.  Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.  Rule 1908. Rise and Report.	inlxviiilxviiilxviiilxiiilxii
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole	inlxviiilxviiilxviiilxiiilxixlxixlxix
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.  Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.  Rule 1908. Rise and Report.	inlxviiilxviiilxviiilxiiilxixlxixlxix
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.  Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.  Rule 1908. Rise and Report.  Rule 1909. Effect of Recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1910. Report of Committee of the Whole.  ARTICLE 21. AMENDMENT OF BILLS AND RESOLUT	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.  Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.  Rule 1908. Rise and Report.  Rule 1909. Effect of Recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1910. Report of Committee of the Whole.  ARTICLE 21. AMENDMENT OF BILLS AND RESOLUT.  Rule 2101. Germaneness.  Rule 2102. Form of Amendment Motions.  Rule 2103. Reading Amendments; General Rule.  Rule 2104. Motions to Amend Motions.  Rule 2105. Dividing Amendments.  Rule 2106. Substitute Motions.	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.  Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.  Rule 1908. Rise and Report.  Rule 1909. Effect of Recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1910. Report of Committee of the Whole.  ARTICLE 21. AMENDMENT OF BILLS AND RESOLUT  Rule 2101. Germaneness.  Rule 2102. Form of Amendment Motions.  Rule 2103. Reading Amendments; General Rule.  Rule 2104. Motions to Amend Motions.  Rule 2105. Dividing Amendments.  Rule 2106. Substitute Motions.  Rule 2107. Subject Change by Senate.  Rule 2108. Motions to Strike Out and Insert.	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.  Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.  Rule 1908. Rise and Report.  Rule 1909. Effect of Recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1910. Report of Committee of the Whole.  ARTICLE 21. AMENDMENT OF BILLS AND RESOLUT.  Rule 2101. Germaneness.  Rule 2102. Form of Amendment Motions.  Rule 2103. Reading Amendments; General Rule.  Rule 2104. Motions to Amend Motions.  Rule 2105. Dividing Amendments.  Rule 2106. Substitute Motions.  Rule 2107. Subject Change by Senate.  Rule 2108. Motions to Strike Out and Insert.  Rule 2109. Identical Motions.	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.  Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.  Rule 1908. Rise and Report.  Rule 1909. Effect of Recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1910. Report of Committee of the Whole.  ARTICLE 21. AMENDMENT OF BILLS AND RESOLUT  Rule 2101. Germaneness.  Rule 2102. Form of Amendment Motions.  Rule 2103. Reading Amendments; General Rule.  Rule 2104. Motions to Amend Motions.  Rule 2105. Dividing Amendments.  Rule 2106. Substitute Motions.  Rule 2107. Subject Change by Senate.  Rule 2108. Motions to Strike Out and Insert.	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.  Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.  Rule 1908. Rise and Report.  Rule 1909. Effect of Recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1910. Report of Committee of the Whole.  ARTICLE 21. AMENDMENT OF BILLS AND RESOLUT.  Rule 2101. Germaneness.  Rule 2102. Form of Amendment Motions.  Rule 2103. Reading Amendments; General Rule.  Rule 2104. Motions to Amend Motions.  Rule 2105. Dividing Amendments.  Rule 2106. Substitute Motions.  Rule 2107. Subject Change by Senate.  Rule 2108. Motions to Strike Out and Insert.  Rule 2109. Identical Motions.	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.  Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.  Rule 1908. Rise and Report.  Rule 1909. Effect of Recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1910. Report of Committee of the Whole.  ARTICLE 21. AMENDMENT OF BILLS AND RESOLUT.  Rule 2101. Germaneness.  Rule 2102. Form of Amendment Motions.  Rule 2103. Reading Amendments; General Rule.  Rule 2104. Motions to Amend Motions.  Rule 2105. Dividing Amendments.  Rule 2106. Substitute Motions.  Rule 2107. Subject Change by Senate.  Rule 2108. Motions to Strike Out and Insert.  Rule 2109. Identical Motions.  Rule 2110. Floor Amendments to Bills Making Appropriations.	in
Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.  Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.  Rule 1908. Rise and Report.  Rule 1909. Effect of Recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  Rule 1910. Report of Committee of the Whole.  ARTICLE 21. AMENDMENT OF BILLS AND RESOLUT  Rule 2101. Germaneness.  Rule 2102. Form of Amendment Motions.  Rule 2103. Reading Amendments; General Rule.  Rule 2104. Motions to Amend Motions.  Rule 2105. Dividing Amendments.  Rule 2106. Substitute Motions.  Rule 2107. Subject Change by Senate.  Rule 2108. Motions to Strike Out and Insert.  Rule 2109. Identical Motions.  Rule 2110. Floor Amendments to Bills Making Appropriations.  ARTICLE 23. PROCEDURAL MOTIONS	in

	. Previous Question	
	. Motions Not Subject to Debate.	lxxii
Rule 2306.	. Motion to Refer Bills or Resolutions to Committee When Not in	
	Committee of the Whole.	lxxii
Rule 2307.	. Motion to Strike Bills and Resolutions from Calendar When Not in	
	Committee of the Whole.	lxxii
Rule 2308.	. Stating Question.	lxxiii
Rule 2309.	. Dividing Motion	lxxiii
	. When Motions to be in Writing	
	Suspension of Rules of the House.	
Rule 2312.	. Mason's Manual; When Applicable.	lxxiii
ARTICLE	E 25. VOTING	lxxiii
Rule 2501.	. Control and Use of Voting System.	lxxiii
Rule 2502.	. Procedure for Taking a Roll Call Vote.	lxxiv
Rule 2503.	. Display of Recurring Totals.	lxxiv
Rule 2504.	. Voting by Members.	lxxiv
Rule 2505.	. Explaining Vote	lxxiv
	. Copies of Voting Records.	
	. When Roll Call Vote to be Taken.	
	. Call of the House.	
Rule 2509.	. Voice Vote; Division of the Assembly.	lxxvi
ARTICLE	E 27. FINAL ACTION	.lxxvi
Rule 2701.	. Description and Function.	lxxvi
Rule 2702.	. Reading and Vote.	lxxvi
	. Amendment and Debate, When	
Rule 2704.	. Speaker to Preside	lxxvi
	. Consent Calendar.	
	. Majority for Bill Passage.	
	. Vote Required for Adoption of House Resolutions and Concurrent Resolutions.	
Rule 2708.	. Motion to Adopt Report of Conference Committee	. lxxvii
ARTICLE	E 29. RESOLUTIONS	lxxvii
	. Resolving Clause; Form.	
Rule 2902.	. House Resolutions; Introduction and Consideration	. lxxvii
Rule 2903.	. Resolutions; Limitations.	lxxviii
Rule 2904.	. Applications for Introduction of certain Resolutions; Certificate of the House.	.lxxviii
ARTICLE	E 33. MEMBER OFFICERS	xxviii
Rule 3301.	. Elected Member Officers.	lxxviii
	. Duties of the Speaker.	
	. Speaker Pro Tem.	
Rule 3304.	. Filling Certain Vacancies.	lxxviii
ARTICLE	E 35. NONMEMBER OFFICERS	lxxix
Rule 3501.	. Chief Clerk; Appointment.	lxxix
Rule 3502.	Duties of the Chief Clerk.	lxxix
	Other Clerks.	
	. Document Care.	
	. Sergeant at Arms; Appointment	
	Duties of the Sergeant at Arms.	

Rule 3507. Assistant Sergeants at Arms.	1xxx
ARTICLE 37. AMENDMENT OF RULES OF THE HOUSE	lxxx
Rule 3701. Adopting, Amending or Revoking Rules of the House	lxxx
Rule 3702. Resolutions for Rule Changes.	
Rule 3703. Printing.	
Rule 3704. Adoption of Resolutions.	
Rule 3705. Special Sponsorship of Rule Change Resolutions	lxxx
ARTICLE 39. FORM AND PRINTING OF BILLS AND RESOLUTION	ONS lxxxi
Rule 3901. Bills Amending Existing Statutes.	
Rule 3902. Bills, Copies.	
Rule 3903. Showing Committee Amendments.	
Rule 3904. Substitute Bills and Substitute Concurrent Resolutions	
Rule 3905. Appropriation Bills.	
Rule 3906. Committee of the Whole Amendments.	
Rule 3907. Concurrent Resolutions, When Printed.	
Rule 3908. Embellished Printing of Certain Resolutions.	
Rule 3909. House Resolutions.	
ARTICLE 41. JOURNAL AND CALENDAR	
Rule 4101. Journal; Preparation.	
Rule 4102. Entering in Journal.	
Rule 4103. Resolutions in Journal.	
Rule 4104. Messages from the Governor in Journal.	
Rule 4105. Calendar; Preparation.	
Rule 4106. Status of Bills and Resolutions Shown in Calendar	
Rule 4107. Copies of Journals and Calendars.	
Rule 4108. Notations Related to Certain Committee of the Whole Amendmen	
in Journal.	lxxxiii
ARTICLE 43. MISCELLANEOUS	lxxxiii
Rule 4301. Employees; Employment.	lxxxiii
Rule 4302. Special Order.	lxxxiii
Rule 4303. Petitions; Presentation.	
Rule 4304. Petitions; Endorse Name.	
Rule 4305. Open Meetings.	lxxxiii
ARTICLE 45. EXECUTIVE REORGANIZATION ORDERS	lxxxiv
Rule 4501. Referral of Executive Reorganization Orders.	1xxxiv
Rule 4502. Committee Report on Executive Reorganization Orders	lxxxiv
Rule 4503. Return in Event of Committee's Failure to Report.	lxxxiv
Rule 4504. Special Order of Business for ERO.	
Rule 4505. Nonapplication to Bills.	lxxxiv
Rule 4506. Nonaction When Moot.	lxxxiv
ARTICLE 47. IMPEACHMENT	lxxxiv
Rule 4701. Impeachment; Powers.	lxxxiv
Rule 4702. Same; Select Committee.	1xxxiv
Rule 4703. Same; Reference.	
Rule 4704. Same; Report.	lxxxv
Rule 4705. Same; Call into Session.	
Rule 4706. Same: Procedure.	1xxxv

ARTICLE 49. REPRIMAND, CENSURE OR EXPULSION OF ME	MBERSlxxxv
Rule 4901. Complaint.	lxxxv
Rule 4902. Select Committee; Consideration of Complaint.	
Rule 4903. Action by House.	lxxxvi
INDEX TO HOUSE RULES	lxxxvii

# Rules of the House of Representatives 2019 - 2020

Changes from 2017 - 2018 House Rules shown in italics

#### ARTICLE 1. HOUSE SESSIONS; GENERAL OPERATION

#### Rule 101. Time of Meeting.

The hour of meeting on the first day of each regular session shall be at 2:00 p.m., and on other days, shall be the hour set at adjournment on the previous legislative day except that if no hour of meeting is set at adjournment on the previous legislative day, the hour of meeting shall be 11:00 a.m. No hour of meeting on any day of the session shall be set prior to 8:00 a.m., and no meeting on any day of the session may continue after 12 midnight, except when a question is under consideration, the meeting may continue until the question is disposed. No meeting may take place between the hours of 12 midnight and 8:00 a.m. on any day of the session.

#### Rule 102. Speaker Taking Chair.

The Speaker shall take the chair each day, at the hour to which the House has adjourned. The Speaker shall call the House to order and proceed to business in accordance with the Rules of the House.

#### Rule 103. First Business.

The first business each legislative day shall be the taking of the roll, the taking of roll shall be followed by prayer and the prayer shall be followed by the recitation of the pledge of allegiance to the flag of the United States of America led by a member designated by the Speaker.

#### Rule 104. Order of Business.

- (a) The regular order of business each legislative day, except on days and at times set apart for the consideration of special orders and except as provided by the joint rules of the House and Senate, shall be as follows:
  - (1) Introduction and reference of bills and concurrent resolutions.
  - (2) Reports of select committees.
  - (3) Receipt of messages from the Governor.
  - (4) Communications from state officers.
  - (5) Messages from the Senate.
- (6) Introduction and notice of original motions and house resolutions.
- (7) Consideration of motions and house resolutions offered on a previous day.
- (8) The unfinished business before the House at the time of adjournment on the previous day.
- (9) Consent calendar.
- (10) Final Action on bills and concurrent resolutions.
- (11) Bills under consideration to concur and nonconcur.
- (12) General Orders.
- (13) Reports of standing committees.
- (b) The presentation of petitions shall be a special order of business on Friday of each week immediately preceding the regular order of business.

#### Rule 105. Members Excused from Attendance.

Members may be excused from attendance on any legislative day by the Speaker for the following reasons and such reasons shall be shown in the Journal: (1) Veri-

fied illness; (2) legislative business; and (3) excused absence by the Speaker.

#### Rule 106. Introduction of Guests.

Except when permission has been given by the Speaker before taking the chair, no guests in the gallery shall be introduced to the House.

#### Rule 107. Session Proforma.

- (a) The House of Representatives may meet from time to time for the sole purpose of processing routine business of the House of Representatives. These sessions shall be known as Session Proforma.
- (b) Time of Meeting. Session Proforma shall be announced at least one legislative day in advance with the hour for meeting Proforma set on the previous legislative day.
- (c) Order of Business. The only orders of business that may be considered during Session Proforma are:
- (1) Introduction and reference of bills and concurrent resolutions.
- (2) Receipts of messages from the Governor.
- (3) Communications from State Officers.
- (4) Messages from the Senate.
- (5) Reports of Standing Committees.
- (6) Presentation of Petitions.
- (d) Motions. No motion shall be in order other than the motion to adjourn.
- (e) Objections. Any objection by any member shall require the Session Proforma to adjourn to the next day, Saturday and Sunday excluded, at 11:00 a.m.
- (f) Quorum and Roll. There shall be no requirement for a quorum or taking of the roll. No demand for a roll call for a quorum shall be in order.
- (g) Effect on Certain Rules. If a legislative day referred to in Rule 1309, 1503, 1505, 2303, 2705 or 3705 occurs on a legislative day which is also the day on which a Session Proforma is held, the term "legislative day" as used in such rule means the next legislative day subsequent to the legislative day on which the Session Proforma is held.

## Rule 108. Rulings on Germaneness, Division of Amendments, Points of Order and Procedural Motions.

Any member, upon recognition by the presiding officer, may request a ruling upon the germaneness of any amendment to a bill or resolution, the division of an amendment to a bill or resolution, a point of order or a procedural motion. Any such ruling shall be made by the chairperson of the House Committee on Rules and Journal, or in the absence of the chairperson the vice chairperson of the Committee. At the time of making such ruling, the chairperson, or vice chairperson, shall state the reasons or basis for such ruling. Appeals from rulings of the chairperson, or vice chairperson, may be taken upon the motion of any member. Such appeals shall be in order at the time of the making of the ruling and shall take precedence over any question pending at the time the chairperson, or vice chairperson, makes such ruling.

Appeals from rulings on questions of germaneness of an amendment shall be debatable only by the member making the motion to amend which is the subject of the ruling, the member carrying the measure sought to be amended, the Majority Leader or a member designated by the Majority Leader and the Minority Leader or a member designated by the Minority Leader. Appeals from rulings on requests for division of an amendment shall be debatable only by the member requesting divi-

sion of the motion to amend, the member making the motion to amend which is the subject of the ruling, the member carrying the measure sought to be amended, the Majority Leader or a member designated by the Majority Leader and the Minority Leader or a member designated by the Minority Leader. Appeals from rulings on a point of order or procedural motion shall be debatable only by the member raising the point of order or making the procedural motion which is the subject of the ruling, the member appealing the ruling, the Majority Leader or a member designated by the Majority Leader and the Minority Leader or a member designated by the Minority Leader. Each member may speak no more than two minutes. Debate shall be limited to the question of the ruling of the chairperson, or vice chairperson, and, in the case of division of an amendment, shall be limited as provided in Rule 2105. At the conclusion of debate the presiding officer shall inquire: "Shall the chairper-

At the conclusion of debate the presiding officer shall inquire: "Shall the chairperson's (or vice chairperson's) ruling be sustained?"

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 3. QUORUM

#### Rule 301. Quorum, What Constitutes.

A majority of all members then elected (or appointed) and qualified shall constitute a quorum. In the absence of a quorum no business shall be transacted by the House, except as provided in Rule 107, 302 and 303 or to recess or adjourn.

#### Rule 302. Absence of Quorum.

In the absence of a quorum during any session of the House, the members present may do what is necessary to attain a quorum. In the absence of a quorum while in the committee of the whole, the committee shall rise and report. Reprimand, censure or expulsion may be imposed as provided by Article 49 when there is found to be no sufficient excuse for absence of a member.

#### Rule 303. Roll Call to Determine Quorum.

A roll call shall be taken to determine the existence of a quorum on demand of any member. The result of each roll call to ascertain a quorum shall be recorded in the Journal by statement of the total number present, naming only the absentees.

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 5. CONDUCT IN THE HOUSE CHAMBER

#### Rule 501. Admission to Floor.

- (a) During daily sessions, from the time of convening until adjournment to the following legislative day, only the following classes of persons shall be admitted to the floor of the House, the cloakrooms to the east of the house chamber and the hallway at the west of the house chamber: (1) Members of the Legislature; (2) officers and employees of the legislative branch who are properly identified; (3) persons having permits from the Speaker; (4) infants or children who are being breastfed by their mother who is a member of legislature.
- (b) No person who is an officer or employee of the executive or judicial branch of Kansas government or an employee of the federal government shall be admitted to the area of the chamber on which legislators' desks are located during the time the House of Representatives is in session, except as provided by resolution, nor shall any such person be on the floor of the House chamber during a call of the House. No person, other than a member, shall lean on the railings on the floor of the House chamber next to the area of the chamber on which legislators' desks are located

during any time the House is on final action.

- (c) No person registered with the Secretary of State as a lobbyist shall be on the floor of the House chamber 15 minutes before the time of convening the daily session until 15 minutes after adjournment to the following legislative day.
- (d) The sergeant at arms shall remove all persons from the floor, except persons authorized under the Rules of the House or a House resolution.
- (e) The provisions of this rule shall not be construed to prevent the right of access (through the west hallway) by persons going directly to or returning from the offices of the Speaker and the Majority Leader.

#### Rule 502, Food and Drink.

Members may have food or drink, or both, on their desks in the House chamber only when the member is present at the member's desk.

#### Rule 503. Galleries.

Visitors shall be allowed in one or both galleries of the House in accordance with directions to the sergeant at arms from the Speaker. Except for security personnel authorized by the Speaker, the use of telephones and the making of telephone calls in the galleries of the House are prohibited.

#### Rule 504. Placing Material on Member's Desk.

No items or material shall be placed upon the desk of any member of the House unless any such item or material bears the signature and printed name of the member responsible for its distribution. This Rule 504 shall not apply to items or material provided by legislative staff.

#### Rule 505. Photographic Record of Vote.

No photographic or similar record shall be made of the vote of any member upon any measure upon which a division of the assembly has been called.

#### Rule 506. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices.

Except for security personnel authorized by the Speaker, the use of wireless electronic telecommunications devices emitting an audible sound or tone to announce or initiate communications in the House chamber is prohibited during any time the House is in session.

#### Rule 507. Computer Usage.

Computers may be used on the floor of the House chamber only for legislative or personal business during any time the House is in session.

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 7. INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

#### Rule 701. Introduction of House Bills and Resolutions.

Every House bill or resolution intended to be introduced shall be delivered to the chief clerk. The delivery shall be by a legislator who is a sponsor of the legislation or by a legislator who is the chairperson or vice chairperson of a legislative committee that has authorized the introduction, or by a legislative staff person or another member of the House authorized by such legislator. In lieu of introduction as provided by this rule, introduction may be as provided by law for prefiled bills and resolutions.

#### Rule 702. Introduction of Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

Senate bills and concurrent resolutions sent to the House shall be introduced upon

reading of the message received by the chief clerk.

#### Rule 703. Reading of Bills and Resolutions for Introduction.

For the purpose of introduction, the chief clerk shall read bills and resolutions by title, except citations of statutes. The Speaker may require any House resolution to be read in full. The name of the sponsor shall be read if there is only one sponsor. If there are two sponsors, both names shall be read. If there are more than two sponsors, the name of the first sponsor shall be read, followed by the words "and others."

## Rule 704. Senate Bills and Concurrent Resolutions; Procedure Following Introduction.

Following introduction, all Senate bills and Senate concurrent resolutions when in the House shall follow the same procedure as House bills and House concurrent resolutions.

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 9. REFERENCE OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

#### Rule 901. Reference, Generally.

- (a) On the day of introduction or the following legislative day, the Speaker shall refer each bill to:
- (1) A standing committee,
- (2) a select committee,
- (3) the committee of the whole House,
- (4) two or more standing committees separately, or
- (5) two or more standing committees jointly.
- (b) On the day of introduction or the following legislative day, the Speaker shall refer each concurrent resolution:
- (1) In any way that a bill may be referred under subsection (a), if the concurrent resolution is a proposition to amend the Constitution of Kansas, to call a constitutional convention to amend or revise the Constitution of Kansas, to ratify an amendment to the Constitution of the United States, to apply for a United States constitutional convention, or to amend the joint rules of the House and Senate;
- (2) if the concurrent resolution is not one of those specified in subpart (1) of this subsection (b), it may be referred in any way that a bill may be referred under subsection (a), or the Speaker may authorize consideration thereof on the day of introduction under the order of business introduction and reference of bills and concurrent resolutions.
- (c) On the day of introduction, the Speaker may refer any House resolution (1) in any way that a bill may be referred under subsection (a) or (2) make no reference, except the Speaker shall make any reference required by the Rules of the House.
- (d) Bills or resolutions prefiled under K.S.A. 46-801 et seq., and amendments thereto, for the regular session of the legislature held in even-numbered years may be referred by the Speaker to the appropriate committee or the committee of the whole at any time subsequent to the prefiling of such bill or resolution with the chief clerk of the House.

#### Rule 902. Appropriation Bills.

Bills containing more than one item of appropriation shall be referred to the standing committee on appropriations, except that bills introduced by the committee on appropriations may be referred to the committee of the whole House.

#### Rule 903. Separately Referred Bills and Resolutions.

- (a) When a bill or resolution has been referred separately to two or more standing committees, each committee shall consider the bill or resolution separately in the order specified by the Speaker.
- (b) If the first committee to which a bill or resolution has been separately referred reports the bill or resolution adversely, the bill or resolution shall not be considered by the second committee, unless returned to the second committee by the committee of the whole House in accordance with Rule 1505.
- (c) When a bill has been referred separately and the report of the first committee was not adverse, the report of the second committee shall be the report considered by the committee of the whole House.

#### Rule 904. Jointly Referred Bills and Resolutions.

When a bill or resolution is jointly referred, it shall be considered and acted upon at a joint meeting of the two committees. The chairperson of the first committee named in the joint referral shall be the chairperson of the joint committee when considering such bill or resolution.

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 11. COMMITTEES; COMPOSITION

#### Rule 1101. Standing Committees; Names and Members.

(a) The standing committees of the House shall be the following and have the number of members indicated for each:

1. Agriculture	17
2. Appropriations	23
3. Children and Seniors	13
4. Calendar and Printing	
5. Commerce, Labor and Economic Development	17
6. Corrections and Juvenile Justice	
7. Education	17
8. Elections	
9. Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications	17
10. Federal and State Affairs	23
11. Financial Institutions and Pensions	17
12. Health and Human Services	17
13. Insurance	
14. Interstate Cooperation	. 7
15. <i>Judiciary</i>	17
16. Local Government	
17. Rules and Journal	. 7
18. Rural Revitalization	17
19. Taxation	
20. Transportation	17
21. Veterans and Military	
(h) The house standing committee on commerce and economic developm	ant

(b) The house standing committee on commerce and economic development shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on economic development and tourism, the house standing committee on tourism and the house standing committee on tourism and parks for purposes of references in statutory or other documents. The house standing committee on commerce and eco-

nomic development shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on commerce and labor, the house standing committee on economic development and the house standing committee on new economy for purposes of references in statutory or other documents. The house standing committee on agriculture and natural resources shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on environment for purposes of references in statutory or other documents. The house standing committee on insurance and the house standing committee on financial institutions shall constitute the successor committees to the house standing committee on insurance and financial institutions for purposes of references in statutory or other documents. The house standing committee on commerce, labor and economic development shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on commerce and economic development for purposes of references in statutory and other documents. The house standing committee on energy and environment and the house standing committee on utilities and telecommunications shall constitute the successor committees to the house standing committee on energy and utilities for purposes of references in statutory and other documents. The house standing committee on agriculture shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on agriculture and natural resources for purposes of references in the following Kansas statutes: K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 2-3805 and 76-4,112. The house standing committee on agriculture shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on energy and environment for purposes of references in the following Kansas statute: K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 66-1285 and shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on utilities and communications for purposes of references in statutory and other documents. The house standing committee on financial institutions and pensions shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on financial institutions and the house standing committee on pensions and benefits for purposes of references in statutory or other documents. The house standing committee on government, technology and security shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on veterans, military and homeland security for purposes of references in the following Kansas statutes: K.S.A. 74-2012 and K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 75-5156 and 75-5158. The house standing committee on veterans and military shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on veterans, military and homeland security for purposes of references in statutory or other documents except for references in the following Kansas statutes: K.S.A. 74-2012 and K.S.A. 2016 Supp. 75-5156 and 75-5158. The house standing committee on water and environment shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on energy and environment for purposes of references in the following Kansas statutory documents: 65-3407c. The house committee on general government budget shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on government technology and security for purposes of references in the following statutes: K.S.A. 74-2012 and K.S.A. 2018 Supp. 75-5156 and 75-5158. The house standing committee on energy, utilities and telecommunications shall constitute the successor committee to the house standing committee on water and environment for purposes of references in statutory and other documents and in K.S.A. 65-3407c.

#### Rule 1102. Committee Appointments.

(a) The Speaker shall appoint the members of the standing committees. The Speaker may remove or replace any such committee member at any time.

(b) The Speaker shall appoint the chairperson and vice chairperson of each standing committee. The Speaker may remove or replace any such chairperson or vice chairperson at any time.

#### Rule 1103. Select Committees.

The Speaker may appoint select committees and the chairpersons and vice chairpersons thereof. The Speaker may remove or replace any such chairpersons or vice chairpersons or members of such committees. Select committees shall meet on call of the chairperson or when directed by the Speaker.

#### Rule 1104. Announce Appointments.

All committee appointments shall be announced in open session.

#### Rule 1105. Budget Committees.

(a) There is hereby created the following budget committees of the committee on appropriations, which shall have the number of members indicated for each:

1. Agriculture and natural resources budget	. 9
2. General government budget	. 9
3. Higher education budget	
4. K-12 education budget	
5. Legislative budget	
6. Social services budget	
7. Transportation and public safety budget	

- (b) Members of the budget committees are not required to be members of the committee on appropriations. The Speaker shall appoint the members, chairpersons and vice chairpersons of the budget committees. The Speaker may remove or replace any such chairperson, vice chairperson or member at any time.
- (c) Budget committees shall be advisory to and make recommendations to the committee on appropriations regarding matters referred to the budget committee by the committee on appropriations. A budget committee is authorized to introduce bills or resolutions within the subject matter of the budget committee. Except as otherwise provided in this rule, budget committees shall be deemed to be standing committees under the rules of the House of Representatives. Budget committee meetings are subject to the Kansas open meetings act, K.S.A. 75-4317a et seq., and amendments thereto.

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 13. COMMITTEES; PROCEDURE

#### Rule 1301. Committee Meetings; Time and Place.

- (a) When the Legislature is in session, standing committees shall meet at the times and place assigned by the Speaker on the call of the chairperson.
- (b) Also, when the Legislature is in session, a standing committee shall meet upon written request of three members of the committee. Such a request shall be submitted to the Speaker and the chairperson at least one legislative day before the requested time of meeting. The time and place of a meeting under this subsection (b) shall be set by the chairperson with the approval of the Speaker.

#### Rule 1302. Notice and Agenda for Committee Meetings.

The chairperson shall provide notice of meetings and an agenda or agenda information to committee members, the chief clerk and the public. The chief clerk shall include in the calendar such information as is practical.

#### Rule 1303. Duties of Committee Chairperson.

The principal duties of the chairperson of a standing committee are:

- (a) To preside over meetings of the committee and to put all questions;
- (b) to maintain order and decide all questions of order subject to appeal to the committee:
- (c) to supervise and direct staff of the committee;
- (d) to keep, or have the committee secretary keep, subject to the approval of the committee at a subsequent meeting, minutes of meetings which shall include:
- (1) The time and place of each meeting of the committee;
- (2) the attendance of committee members; and
- (3) the names and city and state of residence of persons appearing before the committee and whom each represents; and
- (4) when a committee recommends amendments to a bill that strike all sections in the bill subsequent to the enacting clause that contain new or amendatory language and inserts sections that contain new or amendatory language, a notation specifying: (A) The committee that recommended the amendment or amendments; (B) the date the amendment or amendments were recommended; and (C) the bill number of the source bill or bills, if any, that included the inserted sections added to the underlying bill pursuant to the amendment or amendments. Such information contained in this subsection shall also be included in the committee action index;
- (e) to prepare and sign reports of the committee and submit them promptly to the chief clerk;
- (f) to appoint subcommittees to perform duties on an informal basis; and
- (g) to inform the Speaker of any committee activity which caused any member of the committee to be absent during any recorded vote.

#### Rule 1304. Introduction of Committee Bills and Resolutions.

- (a) A committee may *sponsor* bills and resolutions *for introduction* while the Legislature is in session respecting any matters referred to it. Unless approved by the Speaker, a standing committee may *sponsor* bills and resolutions *for introduction* only within the general subject area assigned to the committee. No standing committee shall originate a bill which is substantially identical with any bill which has been referred to another standing committee, and which is under consideration by such committee.
- (b) Requests for bill introductions shall be the first order of business for each committee meeting, except that for committees subject to the committee bill request deadline specified in joint rule 4(c) of the joint rules of the Senate and House of Representatives, until the last day for committee to request bills for introduction in such joint rules. The person making the request shall state for the minutes of the committee such person's name, a short description of the bill, the RS number and the name of the individual or organization on behalf of which the bill is being requested, if any. To be considered, a request must have previously been assigned an RS number by the Office of Revisor of Statutes. Requests for bill introductions shall be deemed accepted as offered unless there is objection by a committee member. Upon objection, a vote of the committee will be required to accept the request for introduction.

#### Rule 1305. Quorum of a Committee.

A quorum shall be present at a meeting for a committee to act officially. A quorum of a committee is a majority of the members of the committee. A quorum of a committee may transact business and a majority of the quorum, even though it is a

minority of the committee, may adopt a committee report.

#### Rule 1306. Voting in Committees.

- (a) All final actions by a committee shall be taken at a called meeting while the Legislature is in session. The final action taken shall be recorded in the committee minutes. An individual member's vote may be recorded at the member's request.
- (b) The committee chairperson may vote but shall not be required to vote unless the committee is equally divided. If the chairperson's vote makes the division equal, the question shall be lost.
- (c) An action formally taken by a committee cannot be altered in the committee except by reconsideration and further formal action of the committee.
- (d) A motion to take from the table may be adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present at any called meeting of the committee.

#### Rule 1307. Procedure in General.

Committee procedure shall be informal, but where any questions arise thereon, the rules or practices of the House are applicable except that the right of a member to speak to any question shall not be subject to the limitations prescribed by Rule 1704. All motions in a committee shall require a second.

#### Rule 1308. Committee Action on Bills and Resolutions.

- (a) A committee shall not take action to report a bill out of committee on the same day that the committee holds a hearing on the bill unless the committee approves such action by a two-thirds vote.
- (b) A committee may recommend amendments to measures referred to it which are germane to the subject of the measure. Committee recommendations shall be made by committee report to the House. Committee reports shall be signed by the chairperson or other committee members authorized by the committee to make the report, and shall be transmitted to the House not later than the second legislative day following the action of the committee. If a committee recommends amendments to a bill or resolution referred to it *that strike all sections* in the bill or resolution subsequent to the enacting clause *that contain new or amendatory language*, and the bill or resolution was sponsored by an individual member or members, the committee becomes the sponsor of the bill or resolution and the committee name will be printed on the bill as the sponsor.
  - (c) All committee reports on bills and resolutions shall be recorded in the Journal.
- (d) If amendments are pending on a measure when referred to a committee, the amendments accompany the bill and the committee may recommend the adoption or rejection of the amendments already proposed and make further recommendations.

#### Rule 1309. Motion to Withdraw a Bill or Resolution from a Committee.

(a) If a committee does not report on any bill or resolution within 10 legislative days after its reference to the committee, the bill or resolution may be withdrawn from the committee by an affirmative vote of 70 members of the House. Such a motion shall be made in writing, giving the reasons for withdrawal from the committee. Such motion shall be made under the order of business introduction and notice of original motions and House resolutions. Only one bill or resolution may be named in such a motion. The motion shall be read by the chief clerk or the member making the motion and shall be printed in the calendar of the next legislative day under the order of business consideration of motions and House resolutions offered

on a previous day. The motion shall be considered on the legislative day following the day it is made. If the motion prevails, the bill or resolution shall be placed on the calendar under the order of business General Orders.

- (b) Motions to withdraw a bill or resolution from a committee are not subject to amendment or debate.
- (c) The provisions of subsections (a) and (b) of this rule shall not apply to resolutions adopting or amending rules of the House. Resolutions relating to the adoption or the amendment of rules of the House may be withdrawn from the Committee on Rules and Journal at any time by the affirmative vote of 63 members of the House.

#### Rule 1310. Wireless Electronic Telecommunications Devices.

Except for security personnel authorized by the Speaker, the use of wireless electronic telecommunications devices emitting an audible sound or tone to announce or initiate communications in a committee room is prohibited during any time when a committee or subcommittee is in session in the room.

\*\*\*\*

## ARTICLE 15. CALENDAR LOCATION OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS Rule 1501. General Orders; Description and Function.

Bills, concurrent resolutions and House resolutions reported for further action by the committee to which they were referred and bills and concurrent resolutions referred directly to the committee of the whole shall constitute the General Orders of the calendar of the House. The titles of such bills and resolutions shall appear under the heading General Orders in the order directed by the Speaker and the Majority Leader. The reporting committee and its action on the bill or resolution shall be shown under each bill and resolution. Such bills and resolutions shall be considered by the committee of the whole in the order which they appear on General Orders. The Speaker and the Majority Leader may consult with the Committee on Calendar and Printing in preparing the order of bills and resolutions under this rule.

#### Rule 1502. Posting of Sequence for Succeeding Day.

When the Speaker and the Majority Leader have prepared the sequence of bills and resolutions to appear on General Orders for the succeeding legislative day, a copy of the list giving the number designation of each bill and resolution in the order they are to appear shall be posted near the entrance to the House chamber. No bill or resolution shall appear on General Orders or be considered in the committee of the whole without notice of the same having been announced in the House not later than 4:00 p.m. or prior to adjournment if at a later hour on the previous day.

#### Rule 1503. Change in the Sequence on General Orders.

(a) The order of a bill or resolution on General Orders may be changed by unanimous consent or by the affirmative vote of 70 members on a motion made as provided in this subsection. Such a motion shall be made in writing, giving the reasons for the proposed change. Such motion shall be made under the order of business introduction and notice of original motions and House resolutions. Only one bill or resolution may be named in such a motion. The motion shall be read by the chief clerk or the member making the motion and shall be printed in the calendar of the next legislative day under the order of business consideration of motions and House resolutions offered on a previous day. The motion shall be considered on the legislative day following the day it is made. If such a motion fails, a motion to change the order on General Orders of such bill shall not be in order until the fifth

legislative day following such failure.

- (b) Motions to change the order of a bill or resolution on General Orders are not subject to amendment or debate.
- (c) This Rule 1503 does not apply to the addition or removal of a bill or resolution from General Orders.

#### Rule 1504. Adversely Reported Bills and Resolutions; Calendar Location.

Bills and resolutions that are adversely reported shall appear on the calendar for one day under the heading bills adversely reported.

## Rule 1505. Motion to Move Adversely Reported Bill or Concurrent Resolution to General Orders.

- (a) A motion to add an adversely reported bill or resolution to General Orders shall be made in writing. Such motion shall be made under the order of business introduction and notice of original motions and House resolutions, and such motion may not be made after the legislative day when the bill or resolution appears on the calendar under Rule 1504. The motion shall be read by the chief clerk or the member making the motion and shall be printed in the calendar of the next legislative day under the order of business consideration of motions and House resolutions offered on a previous day. The motion shall be considered on the legislative day following the day it is made.
- (b) When a bill or resolution has been separately referred and is adversely reported by the first committee of separate reference, a motion to add the adversely reported bill or resolution to General Orders is not in order, but a motion to move the adversely reported bill or resolution to the next committee of separate reference may be made in the same manner as the motion in subsection (a).
- (c) Adoption of a motion under this Rule 1505 requires the affirmative vote of 70 members of the House.
- (d) If a motion under subsection (a) prevails, the words "Adversely Reported" shall be printed in a line below the title of the bill when it is listed on General Orders.

## Rule 1506. Motion to Lay on Table Bill or Resolution while on Final Action Subject to Amendments and Debate.

When a motion to lay on the table a bill or resolution is adopted while on final action subject to amendment and debate, on the next legislative day such bill or resolution shall be placed on the calendar under the order of business the unfinished business before the House at the time of adjournment on the previous day.

#### Rule 1507. Disposition of Bills Subject to Certain Deadlines.

Any bill which is subject to a deadline for consideration under subsection (e) or subsection (f) of Joint Rule 4 of the Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives and which remains on General Orders at the close of business on such deadline day shall be considered as killed and shall be stricken from the calendar unless such bill is referred by the speaker to a committee before the close of business on such day. Any bill so referred shall be subject to all applicable deadlines under the Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives.

#### ARTICLE 17. MEMBERS ADDRESSING THE HOUSE

#### Rule 1701. Requesting the Floor.

Any member desiring to request the floor shall press the member's "speak bill" button, and shall not proceed until recognized by the chair.

#### Rule 1702. Order During Speaking.

While a member is speaking to the House, no other member shall engage in private conversation or pass between the member speaking and the chair.

#### Rule 1703. When Question is Put.

While a question is being put or a roll call or division is being taken, members are not to speak or leave their seats.

#### Rule 1704. Violation of Rules While Speaking.

- (a) Members shall address the House from the microphone located in the well of the House chamber.
- (b) No member shall speak more than twice on the same day to the same question without leave of the House, unless the member is the mover or is carrying the measure, in which case such member may open and close the debate and may respond to direct questions from other members addressed to them during the course of consideration of the measure. For the purposes of this subsection, an amendment to any measure shall be considered as a separate and independent question.
- (c) The privilege of a member carrying a measure to open and close the debate shall not be affected by any order for the previous question or that debate shall cease. Such member may occupy 20 minutes in closing the debate after the previous question is ordered and may divide that time with other members.
- (d) While a member is carrying a measure, such member may yield to another member for explanation of the measure, or for personal explanation, or for a motion to adjourn without losing the privilege to carry the measure for the remainder of their time except that such member may not yield to any member who has already spoken twice on such question on the same day.
- (e) If any member, in speaking, violates the rules of the House, the chair shall call such member to order.

#### Rule 1705. Point of Personal Privilege.

Except when permission has otherwise been given by the Speaker before taking the chair:

- (a) A member shall be allowed to raise a point of personal privilege only for the following purposes: (1) Recognition of another member or former member of the House; or (2) recognition of an individual or group which has received statewide or national award or statewide or national recognition.
- (b) A member shall be allowed to speak not more than five minutes in making a point of personal privilege.

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 19. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

#### Rule 1901. Motion to go into Committee of the Whole House.

When the order of business General Orders is reached, a motion shall be in order for the House to go into Committee of the Whole for consideration of bills and resolutions as listed on General Orders.

#### Rule 1902. Committee of the Whole; Normal Procedure.

Bills and resolutions shall be considered in the Committee of the Whole as follows: If the standing committee has recommended that the bill or resolution be amended, the standing committee report shall first be considered, and if it is adopted, the bill as amended by the committee report shall be considered section by section, and as each section is considered, amendments from the floor are in order to that section. If the committee report is not adopted, or if the committee has recommended no amendments, the bill, without committee amendments, shall be considered section by section, and as each section is considered, amendments from the floor are in order to that section. After a section has been once considered, no amendment thereto shall be in order until the whole bill shall have been considered section by section. After the original bill, together with standing committee amendments if any, has been considered section by section, the chairperson shall announce, "Amendments to the bill generally are in order," and amendments not before offered may be made to any part of the bill. A motion that when the committee arises it report a bill favorably, or report a bill favorably as amended, shall not be in order until all other motions have been disposed of, and such a motion shall not be offered as a substitute motion. A motion to strike the enacting clause is in order at any stage until the final vote is announced. The motion to strike the enacting clause may be debated upon the merit of the proposition, and shall not be subject to amendment or substitution. A roll call vote shall be taken upon a motion to strike the enacting clause.

## Rule 1903. Motion to Pass Over a Bill or Resolution While in Committee of the Whole.

When in the Committee of the Whole, either (1) a motion to pass over a bill or resolution and that it retain its place on the Calendar or (2) a motion to pass over a bill or resolution and that it retain a place on General Orders shall be in order only after the chairperson has announced that the next order of business is such bill or resolution and has recognized a member to carry it. Either motion shall require the vote of a majority of the members present for adoption. Motions under this rule shall not be subject to debate.

## Rule 1904. Motions to Refer Bills or Resolutions to a Committee While in Committee of the Whole.

When in the Committee of the Whole, a motion may be made to refer a bill or resolution to a standing committee only after the chairperson has announced that the next order of business is such bill or resolution and has recognized a member to carry it. Such motion shall require the vote of a majority of the members present for adoption.

## Rule 1905. Striking Bills and Resolutions from the Calendar While in Committee of the Whole.

- (a) While in Committee of the Whole, a motion to strike a bill or resolution from the calendar shall be in order only after the chairperson has announced that the next order of business is such bill or resolution and has recognized a member to carry it.
- (b) A motion to strike a bill from the calendar under this Rule 1905 (1) shall require a vote of a majority of the members present for adoption, and (2) shall be subject to roll call in accordance with subsection (e) of Rule 2507, but shall not be subject to a call of the House under Rule 2508.

#### Rule 1906. Requesting the Floor.

Any member desiring to request the floor shall press such member's "speak bill"

button to speak on a bill or offer an amendment and "speak amendment" button to speak on a pending amendment, and shall not proceed until recognized by the chairperson of the Committee of the Whole.

#### Rule 1907. Rules Applicable.

The same rules, except Rule 2508, shall be observed in the Committee of the Whole as in the House, so far as the same are applicable, except that the previous question and the motion to lay on the table shall not apply.

#### Rule 1908. Rise and Report.

A motion for the Committee of the Whole to rise and report shall be in order at any stage, and shall be decided without debate. When the Committee of the Whole has a bill under consideration and rises without final action thereon, the bill shall retain a place on General Orders.

#### Rule 1909. Effect of Recommendation of Committee of the Whole.

Bills recommended for passage and resolutions recommended for adoption by the Committee of the Whole shall not be subject to amendment or debate after the adoption by the House of the Committee of the Whole report. When a bill or resolution is reported with the recommendation that the enacting or resolving clause be stricken, and the Committee of the Whole report is adopted by the House, the bill or resolution shall be considered as killed and shall be stricken from the calendar.

#### Rule 1910. Report of Committee of the Whole.

When the report of the Committee of the Whole recommends the passage of a bill or adoption of a resolution, and the report is adopted by the House, such bills and resolutions shall be considered as ordered to the order of business Final Action. If the bill or resolution has been amended by the Committee of the Whole it shall be reprinted.

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 21, AMENDMENT OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

#### Rule 2101. Germaneness.

Amendments to bills and resolutions shall be germane to the subject of the bill or resolution. The principal test of whether an amendment is germane shall be its relationship to the subject of the bill or resolution, rather than to wording of the title thereof. The amendment, including any amendment from the floor to strike all of the substantive provisions of a bill or resolution and insert other provisions, must be relevant, appropriate, and have some relation to or involve the same subject as the bill or resolution to be amended. For the purposes of this rule the subject matter of any appropriation bill is the spending and appropriating of money and any amendment which changes the amount of money spent in any state agency or program is germane to any appropriation bill.

#### Rule 2102. Form of Amendment Motions.

Motions to amend bills and resolutions shall specify the page and line number, as shown on the printed bill or resolution, and shall be in writing on a form provided by the House or a form substantially similar. A motion shall be out of order unless the written motion is first delivered to the chief clerk. In the case of amendment by substitute bill, motion shall be made to substitute a written bill for the bill under consideration.

#### Rule 2103. Reading Amendments; General Rule.

Motions to amend bills and resolutions shall not require readings as for bills introduced, except as otherwise provided in Rule 2107, but shall be subject to Rule 2306.

#### Rule 2104. Motions to Amend Motions.

A motion to amend a motion to amend a bill or resolution shall not be in order.

#### Rule 2105. Dividing Amendments.

- (a) When any motion to amend a bill or resolution contains distinct propositions, it shall be divided by the presiding officer at the request of any member. The division by the presiding officer shall be made in accordance with the following:
- (1) A motion to strike out and insert words of less than a sentence shall be indivisible:
- (2) the distinct propositions shall be only in the form submitted in the motion to amend;
- (3) each proposition must be so distinct that, one being removed, the remainder may stand entirely on their own; and
- (4) those portions of a motion to amend a bill as described in Rule 2110 shall be indivisible.
- (b) Upon a request to divide a motion to amend a bill or resolution, the presiding officer shall inquire as to whether there is a request for a ruling on germaneness of the motion to amend. If such a request is made, the issue of germaneness shall be determined prior to dividing the motion.

If no request for a ruling on germaneness of the motion to amend is made, the presiding officer shall proceed to divide the motion to amend in accordance with this rule, and no subsequent request for a ruling on germaneness of any distinct proposition of the motion so divided shall be in order.

- (c) The presiding officer, or any member, may request that the member requesting the division make the request in writing specifying the manner in which the motion to amend should be divided.
- (d) The division of the motion to amend shall be in accordance with the rules of the House and with items (1) to (4), inclusive, of subsection (a). The ruling of the chairperson of the Committee on Rules and Journal, or in the chairperson's absence the vice chairperson of the Committee, on how to divide the motion to amend shall not be subject to appeal except that any member may appeal the ruling of the chairperson, or vice chairperson, on the grounds that the division is not in accordance with a rule of the House including the provisions of items (1), (2), (3) or (4) of subsection (a), or any combination thereof.

#### Rule 2106. Substitute Motions.

No substitute motion to amend a bill or resolution shall be in order.

#### Rule 2107. Subject Change by Senate.

- (a) When the Senate adopts amendments to a House bill which materially changes its subject, upon return of such bill to the House, it shall be read as provided for the introduction of bills and be referred as provided in Rule 901.
- (b) The Speaker may determine when a bill is subject to subsection (a). An affirmative vote of 70 members shall be required to sustain a challenge to the Speaker's determination hereunder.

#### Rule 2108. Motions to Strike Out and Insert.

The rejection of a motion to amend a bill or resolution by striking out and inserting one proposition shall not prevent a motion to strike out and insert another proposition, nor prevent a subsequent motion simply to strike out; nor shall the rejection of a motion simply to strike out prevent a subsequent motion to strike out and insert.

#### Rule 2109. Identical Motions.

Except upon the unanimous consent of the House, an identical motion to amend a bill or resolution shall not be made a second time on the same legislative day.

#### Rule 2110. Floor Amendments to Bills Making Appropriations.

- (a) Unless by majority consent to correct an error in drafting, no floor amendment to increase the amount of expenditures that would be authorized in a provision of an appropriations bill shall be in order unless the amendment contains a provision reducing, by a like or greater amount, expenditures that would be authorized in another provision of such appropriations bill.
- (b) The provisions of subsection (a) shall not apply if the ending balance in the state general fund for the ensuing fiscal year is equal to 7.5% or more of the total amount authorized to be expended or transferred by demand transfer from the state general fund in such fiscal year based on the most recent budget profile of the Kansas legislative research department.

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 23. PROCEDURAL MOTIONS

#### Rule 2301. Order of Motions.

When a question is under consideration, no motion shall be received except as specified under the Rules of the House, which motions shall have precedence in the following order:

- (a) For adjournment of the House.
- (b) For call of the House.
- (c) To lay on the table.
- (d) For the previous question.
- (e) To postpone to a certain time.
- (f) To commit to a standing committee.
- (g) To commit to a select committee.
- (h) To reject the adoption of reports of conference committees coupled with the request for appointment of a new conference committee.
- (i) To adopt the report of conference committees.
- (i) To amend.
- (k) To postpone indefinitely.

#### Rule 2302. Motion to Adjourn.

The motion to adjourn shall always be in order, except while a vote is being taken and until announced, or when a member has the floor, or when the previous question is pending; but a motion to recess is not equivalent to a motion to adjourn.

#### Rule 2303. Motion to Reconsider.

A motion to reconsider shall take precedence of all other questions except the motion to adjourn. No motion for reconsideration of any vote shall be in order, unless made on the same day or the legislative day following that on which the decision

to be reconsidered took place, nor unless a member voting with the prevailing side shall move such reconsideration. A motion for reconsideration, being put and lost, shall not be renewed, nor shall any subject or vote be a second time reconsidered without unanimous consent, but this provision shall not be construed as preventing the introduction of a bill on the same subject. The member moving for reconsideration shall be allowed not more than two minutes for stating the reasons in support of the motion. Such motion shall be subject to debate by any member, stating reasons in support or opposition to the motion. Each of such members shall be allowed not more than one minute for the purpose of such debate. Such motion shall require the affirmative vote of members equal in number to that required to take the action proposed to be reconsidered. A motion to reconsider any final action of the House shall be in order at any time prior to the time at which the message of the House thereon is read into the record of the Senate. A motion to reconsider any final action of the House may be made after the time at which the message of the House thereon is read into the report of the Senate but any action taken pursuant thereto will be contingent upon the return of the measure to the House by the Senate.

#### Rule 2304. Previous Question.

The "previous question" shall be: "Shall the main question be now put?" and until it is decided shall preclude all amendments or debate. When voting on the previous question, the House decides that the main question shall not now be put, the main question shall be considered as still remaining under debate. The main question shall be on the passage of the bill, resolution or other matter under consideration. When amendments are pending, a vote shall first be taken upon such amendments in their order without further debate or amendment. A majority vote of the members present shall order the previous question.

#### Rule 2305. Motions Not Subject to Debate.

All questions relating to priority of business shall be decided without debate. The motion to adjourn, to change the order of consideration of a bill, for a call of the House, and to lay on the table shall be decided without amendment or debate. The several motions to postpone or commit shall preclude all debate on the main question.

## Rule 2306. Motion to Refer Bills or Resolutions to Committee When Not in Committee of the Whole.

When not in the Committee of the Whole, a motion to refer a bill or resolution from the Calendar to a standing committee shall be in order only when the body is meeting as the House of Representatives and shall be authorized only when offered by the Majority Leader, or in the absence of the Majority Leader, by the Assistant Majority Leader. Such motion shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House.

## Rule 2307. Motion to Strike Bills and Resolutions from Calendar When Not in Committee of the Whole.

When not in the Committee of the Whole, a motion to strike a bill or resolution from the Calendar shall be in order only when the body is meeting as the House of Representatives and shall be authorized only when offered by the Majority Leader, or in the absence of the Majority Leader, by the Assistant Majority Leader. Such motion shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House.

# Rule 2308. Stating Question.

Every motion shall be first stated by the presiding officer or read by the chief clerk, before debate, and again immediately before putting the question.

# Rule 2309. Dividing Motion.

If any motion, other than a motion under Rule 2105, contains distinct propositions, it shall be divided by the chairperson at the request of any member. Motions under Rule 2105 shall be divided in accordance with that rule.

# Rule 2310. When Motions to be in Writing.

Every motion, except those specified in Rules 2301 and 2303, shall be in writing if the Speaker or any member desires it. All motions to amend a bill or resolution and all resolutions shall be in writing.

# Rule 2311. Suspension of Rules of the House.

- (a) No rule of the House shall be suspended except by unanimous consent or by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House, subject to the following exceptions:
- (1) A motion to suspend the rules, and to declare an emergency and to advance a bill to the order of business Final Action, as contemplated in article 2, section 15 of the Constitution shall require an affirmative vote of 2/3 of the members present in the House.
- (2) A motion to suspend the rules and to permit amendment and debate of a bill under the order of business Final Action shall require an affirmative vote of 2/3 of the members present in the House.
- (b) When under the rules of the House a motion, question or action requires a vote of a majority greater than a majority of the members present, the majority specified for such motion, question or action shall be required to suspend the rules for the purpose of such motion, question or action. When under the rules of the House notice of a motion reduces the required majority for adoption of the motion, the required majority shall not be reduced if the notice is disposed of by suspension of the rules.
- (c) Suspension of the rules or unanimous consent shall not reduce the majority required under subpart (1) of subsection (a) of this rule.

# Rule 2312. Mason's Manual; When Applicable.

- (a) In any case where rules of the House or the joint rules of the Senate and House do not apply, Mason's Manual of Legislative Procedure (2010 edition), with the exception of section 4, paragraph 2, shall govern.
- (b) Rules of legislative procedure are derived from several sources and take precedence in the order listed below. For the Kansas House of Representatives, the principal sources are as follows: (a) Constitutional provisions; (b) statutory provisions; (c) adopted rules; (d) adopted parliamentary authority; (e) custom, usage and precedents.

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 25. VOTING

#### Rule 2501. Control and Use of Voting System.

The electronic voting system shall be under the control of the Speaker or other presiding officer and shall be operated by the chief clerk. The electronic voting system shall be used to record the vote whenever a roll call vote is taken on any

question and may be used for ascertaining the vote upon any measure upon which a division of the assembly has been called. In the event that the system is not operating properly, roll call votes may be taken by calling the roll.

# Rule 2502. Procedure for Taking a Roll Call Vote.

When a roll call vote is taken, the presiding officer shall state the question and instruct the members to proceed to vote. When sufficient time has been allowed the members to vote, the presiding officer shall inquire: "Has every member had an opportunity to vote?" After a short pause the presiding officer shall direct the chief clerk to close the roll. After the roll has been closed, when Rule 2505 applies, the presiding officer shall inquire: "Does any member desire to explain his or her vote?" and any member so desiring may give such explanation when recognized by the presiding officer. The presiding officer shall inquire: "Does any member desire to change his or her vote?" If any member does desire to change his or her vote, such member when recognized by the presiding officer, shall advise how they desire to change such vote and the presiding officer shall then instruct the chief clerk to make the appropriate change. A member who has not previously voted may vote at this time when permitted by the presiding officer. Such member shall advise how they wish to vote and the presiding officer shall then instruct the chief clerk to record such vote. After all members who desire to vote or to change their votes have had reasonable opportunity to do so, the presiding officer shall announce the vote and, when the vote has been announced, shall direct the chief clerk to record the vote.

# Rule 2503. Display of Recurring Totals.

Under Rule 2502, recurring totals shall be displayed only after the roll is closed. No recurring totals shall be displayed for a determination of the vote upon a division of the assembly.

# Rule 2504. Voting by Members.

- (a) A member may vote only when at their desk or at any place within the chamber of the House when authorized by the presiding officer, who shall direct the chief clerk to so vote for such member.
- (b) No member shall vote for another member. No person not a member shall cast a vote for a member, except as otherwise provided in the rules. In addition to such penalties as may be prescribed by law, any member who votes or attempts to vote for another member shall be subject to Article 49 of these rules. If a person not a member votes or attempts to vote for any member, such person shall be barred from the floor of the House for the remainder of the session, and, in addition to penalties prescribed by law, may be punished further as the House determines.
- (c) The Speaker shall not be compelled to vote except in case of a tie.

# Rule 2505. Explaining Vote.

Any member may, when a roll call vote is being taken on the passage or adoption of any bill or resolution, explain their vote. Such member shall be allowed not more than one minute for such explanation. Such explanation, if furnished in writing and signed, with printed name and district number, by such member by 4:00 p.m. upon the day the vote is taken or if the vote is taken subsequent to 3:30 p.m., within one-half hour after the adjournment of the House on that day, shall be entered in the Journal, provided it does not contain more than 100 words.

# Rule 2506. Copies of Voting Records.

- (a) Unless otherwise ordered, the chief clerk shall record each roll call vote and make copies available for the use of the news media. No record shall be made of the vote of any member voting upon any measure upon which a division of the assembly has been called.
- (b) When a roll call vote is taken, it shall be recorded in the Journal by a statement of the names and total number voting in the affirmative, the names and total number voting in the negative, names and total number indicating presence but not voting and the names and total number absent or not voting, except that the provisions of this section shall not permit a member to fail to vote in violation of Rule 2508.

#### Rule 2507. When Roll Call Vote to be Taken.

- (a) A roll call vote shall be taken for the passage of any bill.
- (b) A roll call vote shall be taken for the adoption of any concurrent resolution to amend the Constitution of the state of Kansas, to call a Kansas constitutional convention, to extend a session of the Legislature in even-numbered years, to ratify any amendment of the Constitution of the United States, to make any application for Congress to call a convention for proposing amendments to the Constitution of the United States and when required by the joint rules of the House and Senate. A roll call vote is not required for adoption of concurrent resolutions pertaining to commendations or acknowledgments, unless required under subsection (e) of Rule 2507.
- (c) A roll call vote shall be taken for the adoption of any House resolution to adopt, amend or revoke any rule of the House or to reject any executive reorganization order.
- (d) A roll call vote shall be taken to concur in Senate amendments to any bill or concurrent resolution or to adopt any conference committee report other than a report agreeing to disagree.
- (e) A roll call vote shall be taken on any question on demand of 15 members, unless a roll call vote is already pending.

#### Rule 2508. Call of the House.

- (a) A call of the House shall be ordered on the demand of any 10 members at any stage of the voting previous to the announcing of the vote or, if the voting system is used, prior to recording the vote. This Rule 2508 shall apply to the taking of a vote upon the final passage of any bill or final adoption of any resolution whether under the order of business Final Action or under any order of business. Also, this Rule 2508 shall apply to the taking of a vote on a motion to strike the enacting clause of a bill and the resolving clause of a resolution and on a motion to strike all after the enacting clause or resolving clause, except when the House is in the Committee of the Whole. When the call of the House is invoked, the doors to the House chamber shall be secured and all members shall be required to be in their seats unless excused by the Speaker. All members present during the call shall be required to vote before the call is raised. The call of the House shall not be raised (so long as 10 members continue the demand) until a reasonable effort, as determined by the Speaker, has been exerted to secure absentees.
- (b) Any member, who is directly interested in a question, may be excused from voting, when there is a call of the House. The member, who is requesting to be excused from voting, shall state the reasons therefor, occupying not more than five minutes. The question on excusing such member from voting shall be taken without debate and a 2/3 majority of members present shall be necessary to ex-

cuse such member. If a member refuses to vote, when not excused, such refusal shall constitute grounds for reprimand, censure or expulsion under Article 49 of the Rules of the House.

# Rule 2509. Voice Vote; Division of the Assembly.

Except when a roll call vote is required, a voice vote shall be taken on all questions. Any member may call for a division of the assembly to determine the vote by the voting system.

\*\*\*\*

# ARTICLE 27. FINAL ACTION

# Rule 2701. Description and Function.

Subject to Rule 2705, bills and resolutions reported favorably by the Committee of the Whole shall constitute the order of business Final Action of the House. The titles of such bills and resolutions shall appear under the heading Final Action in numerical order. The standing committee which reported it and the Committee of the Whole action on the bill or resolution shall be shown under each thereof.

#### Rule 2702. Reading and Vote.

Each bill and resolution under the order of business Final Action shall be read by title, except citations of statutes amended or repealed and a roll call vote shall then be taken upon final passage or adoption without amendment or debate.

# Rule 2703. Amendment and Debate, When.

Upon motion as provided in subpart (2) of subsection (a) of Rule 2311 or when recommended in the Committee of the Whole report which has been adopted by the House, bills or resolutions may be debated and amended on Final Action prior to the vote taken upon final passage or adoption. Each bill or concurrent resolution considered under this Rule 2703 shall be considered in the manner provided in Rule 1902 so far as it is applicable. A motion to strike the enacting clause or resolving clause shall be in order.

# Rule 2704. Speaker to Preside.

Subject to Rule 3303, the Speaker shall preside during the order of business Final Action.

#### Rule 2705. Consent Calendar.

Whenever a standing committee is of the opinion that a bill or concurrent resolution upon which it is reporting is of a noncontroversial nature, it shall so state in its committee report. Whenever a bill or concurrent resolution is so reported, it shall be placed upon the Consent Calendar. Each bill or concurrent resolution placed on the Consent Calendar shall remain thereon for at least two full legislative days before being considered under the order of business Final Action. Under the order of business Consent Calendar and prior to the call for the vote, any member may object to the bill or concurrent resolution as being controversial and thereupon it shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and shall be placed on General Orders. If no objection is made prior to the call for the vote on the bill or concurrent resolution, it shall be ordered to Final Action for vote before other bills and concurrent resolutions on Final Action.

# Rule 2706. Majority for Bill Passage.

As provided in section 13 of article 2 of the Constitution of Kansas, a majority of

the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified, voting in the affirmative, shall be necessary for the passage of a bill.

# Rule 2707. Vote Required for Adoption of House Resolutions and Concurrent Resolutions.

- (a) A majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified voting in the affirmative shall be necessary to adopt House resolutions and concurrent resolutions, except as otherwise specified in these rules.
- (b) Adoption of concurrent resolutions to amend the Constitution of the state of Kansas, to call a Kansas constitutional convention, to extend a session of the Legislature in even-numbered years, to ratify any amendment of the Constitution of the United States, to make any application for Congress to call a convention for proposing amendments to the Constitution of the United States and when required by the joint rules of the House and Senate shall require a 2/3 majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified, voting in the affirmative.

# Rule 2708. Motion to Adopt Report of Conference Committee.

The member carrying the report of a conference committee shall move that such report be adopted prior to yielding the floor to any other member and a motion to adopt a report of a conference committee shall not be offered as a substitute motion.

\*\*\*\*

# ARTICLE 29. RESOLUTIONS

# Rule 2901. Resolving Clause; Form.

- (a) Concurrent resolutions to amend the Constitution of the state of Kansas, to call a Kansas constitutional convention, to extend a session of the Legislature in even-numbered years, to ratify any amendment of the Constitution of the United States, to make any application for Congress to call a convention for proposing amendments to the Constitution of the United States and when required by the joint rules of the House and Senate shall have a resolving clause which reads, "Be it resolved by the Legislature of the State of Kansas, two-thirds of the members elected to the House of Representatives and two-thirds of the members elected to the Senate concurring therein."
- (b) Concurrent resolutions for any purpose other than subsection (a) shall have a resolving clause which reads, "Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas, the Senate concurring therein."
- (c) House resolutions shall have a resolving clause which reads, "Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas."

# Rule 2902. House Resolutions; Introduction and Consideration.

- (a) House resolutions, except for those changing rules of the House or approving or rejecting executive reorganization orders, shall lay over at least one legislative day before action is taken thereon and do not require a roll call vote unless required under subsection (e) of Rule 2507.
- (b) House resolutions shall be considered under the order of business consideration of motions and House resolutions offered on a previous day, except House resolutions to (1) adopt, amend or revoke any rule of the House or (2) when the resolution has been referred to a standing committee and reported favorably. Resolutions under subparts (1) and (2) shall take a place on General Orders when favorably reported or when referred to the Committee of the Whole by the Speaker.

#### Rule 2903. Resolutions; Limitations.

- (a) Appropriations shall not be made by resolutions.
- (b) Resolutions do not require approval of the Governor.

# Rule 2904. Applications for Introduction of certain Resolutions; Certificate of the House.

Notwithstanding any other rule of the House of Representatives to the contrary, no House resolution or concurrent resolution which congratulates, commemorates, commends, honors or is in memory of any individual, entity or event shall be introduced by a member or committee of the House of Representatives unless application for approval of the introduction of such resolution is first made to the Speaker, and the resolution is approved for introduction by the Speaker. The application shall be determined on the basis of content alone. The Speaker shall consider all such applications and shall determine whether a House resolution or House concurrent resolution should be approved for introduction, or whether a certificate of the House should be approved for issuance or whether no action should be taken on the application. The speaker may consult with the Committee on Calendar and Printing in making determinations under this rule.

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 33. MEMBER OFFICERS

#### Rule 3301. Elected Member Officers.

The Speaker and the Speaker Pro Tem shall be members and shall be elected by the members of the House, except as otherwise provided in subsection (b) of Rule 3304

# Rule 3302. Duties of the Speaker.

In addition to other powers and duties of the Speaker provided by the Rules of the House and by law, the Speaker shall have the powers and duties as follows:

- (a) To preserve order and decorum;
- (b) to decide all questions of order, subject to appeal to the House;
- (c) in the absence of the Speaker Pro Tem, to appoint any member to perform the duties of the chair for not more than two consecutive legislative days; and
- (d) to name a chairperson to preside when the House is in Committee of the Whole.

#### Rule 3303. Speaker Pro Tem.

In the absence of the Speaker, the Speaker Pro Tem shall exercise the powers and duties of the Speaker.

# Rule 3304. Filling Certain Vacancies.

- (a) When a vacancy occurs in the office of Speaker and the Legislature is adjourned to a date more than 60 days after the occurrence of the vacancy, the House of Representatives shall meet within 30 days and elect a member to fill the vacancy. The Speaker Pro Tem shall within 10 days of such occurrence issue a call for such meeting at a time not less than 10 days and not more than 20 days after the date of the call.
- (b) When a vacancy occurs in the office of Speaker Pro Tem or Majority Leader of the House of Representatives, the Speaker shall appoint an acting Speaker Pro Tem or acting Majority Leader, to serve until the convening of the next session of the Legislature, at which time the vacancy shall be filled in the manner provided for the original election or selection of such officer.

(c) When a vacancy occurs in the office of Minority Leader of the House of Representatives and the Legislature is adjourned to a date less than 30 days after the occurrence of the vacancy, the Assistant Minority Leader shall become the acting Minority Leader to serve until the convening of the next session of the Legislature, at which time the vacancy shall be filled in the manner provided for the original selection of such officer. When a vacancy occurs in the office of the Minority Leader of the House and the Legislature is adjourned to a date 30 days or more after the occurrence of the vacancy, the Assistant Minority Leader shall within 10 days after such occurrence issue a call for a meeting of the members of the minority party at a time not less than 10 and not more than 20 days after the date of the call to be held in the state capitol for the purpose of filling the vacancy in the office of Minority Leader for the remainder of the term of office. From the time of the occurrence of such vacancy until the filling of the vacancy, the Assistant Minority Leader shall serve as acting Minority Leader and shall exercise the powers and duties of the Minority Leader.

When a vacancy occurs in the office of Assistant Minority Leader, the Minority Leader shall appoint an Assistant Minority Leader to serve until the convening of the next session of the Legislature, at which time the vacancy shall be filled in the manner provided for the original selection of such officer.

Any person elected, appointed or designated to fill a vacancy under this rule shall exercise all of the duties and powers prescribed for the office so filled.

\*\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE 35. NONMEMBER OFFICERS

# Rule 3501. Chief Clerk; Appointment.

The chief clerk shall be appointed by the Speaker and shall serve under the Speaker's direction, control and supervision and at the pleasure of the Speaker. As used in the Rules of the House, "chief clerk" means the chief clerk appointed under this Rule 3501 or a person designated by the chief clerk to perform a function of the chief clerk.

#### Rule 3502. Duties of the Chief Clerk.

The chief clerk shall supervise the keeping of and be responsible for a record of all proceedings of the House; number and present to the House all bills, resolutions, petitions and other papers which the House may require; deliver all messages from the House to the Senate; transmit bills and other documents to be printed and take a receipt therefor; transmit bills for engrossment and take receipt therefor; receive all bills, resolutions and other papers which are enrolled and give receipt therefor; and cause all enrolled bills, resolutions and other documents to be proofread and corrected prior to signing thereof by officers of the House.

# Rule 3503. Other Clerks.

The chief clerk shall appoint additional clerks and personnel to assist in performance of the duties of the chief clerk. Such additional clerks and personnel shall serve under the chief clerk's direction, control and supervision and at the pleasure of the chief clerk.

#### Rule 3504. Document Care.

No bill, resolution, petition or other document shall be loaned or delivered to any person, except when delivered to an officer of the House, to the director of printing, the revisor of statutes or the Senate and only upon a written receipt therefor.

# Rule 3505. Sergeant at Arms; Appointment.

The sergeant at arms shall be appointed by the Speaker and shall serve under the Speaker's direction, control and supervision and at the pleasure of the Speaker.

# Rule 3506. Duties of the Sergeant at Arms.

The sergeant at arms shall preserve order within the chamber of the House and its lobby and galleries. The sergeant at arms may arrest and take into custody any person for disorderly conduct, subject at all times to the authority of the House or Speaker, or chairperson of the Committee of the Whole, and shall be responsible for the enforcement of Rules 501 through 506 and 2506(a). The sergeant at arms shall receive items or material for distribution among the members of the House. The sergeant at arms shall execute all orders of the House not otherwise provided for.

# Rule 3507. Assistant Sergeants at Arms.

The Speaker may appoint and remove assistant sergeants at arms to serve under the supervision of the sergeant at arms. All doorkeepers shall be assistant sergeants at arms.

\*\*\*\*

# ARTICLE 37. AMENDMENT OF RULES OF THE HOUSE

# Rule 3701. Adopting, Amending or Revoking Rules of the House.

No rule of the House shall be adopted, amended or revoked except by a House resolution which has been adopted by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House.

# Rule 3702. Resolutions for Rule Changes.

- (a) Notwithstanding any other rule of the House, the Speaker shall refer all resolutions which provide for the adoption, amendment or revocation of any House rule to the standing Committee on Rules and Journal before its consideration by the House
- (b) No resolution relating to the rules of the House which has been referred to the standing Committee on Rules and Journal shall be tabled or reported adversely by such committee except by the unanimous vote of all members of such committee.

#### Rule 3703. Printing.

Resolutions to which this Article 37 apply shall be printed and are subject to subsection (c) of Rule 2507.

# Rule 3704. Adoption of Resolutions.

Resolutions to which this Article 37 apply shall be subject to Rule 2902.

# Rule 3705. Special Sponsorship of Rule Change Resolutions.

Notwithstanding any provision of the rules of the House to the contrary, no referral to the standing Committee on Rules and Journal shall be required for the adoption of a resolution adopting, amending or revoking any one or more rules of the House at the commencement of a legislative session, and adoption of any such resolution shall require only the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified, subject to the following conditions: (a) The resolution is sponsored by the Speaker or the standing Committee on Rules and Journal and (b) either (1) a copy thereof is mailed to each member by deposit in the United States mails not later than 11:00 p.m. on the Thursday pre-

ceding the Monday on which the legislative session is to commence or (2) in lieu of mailing, copies of the resolution are made available to members on the first day of the legislative session and consideration under Rule 3704 occurs on the second legislative day.

\*\*\*\*

# ARTICLE 39. FORM AND PRINTING OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

# Rule 3901. Bills Amending Existing Statutes.

Any bill intended to amend or repeal any section or sections of the Kansas Statutes Annotated shall recite in its title the section or sections to be amended or repealed, and if to amend or repeal any section of a session law not in the Kansas Statutes Annotated, the section and chapter of the session law affected.

# Rule 3902. Bills, Copies.

Each bill introduced shall consist of an original and copies. All bills shall be printed with as many copies as the Speaker specifies. Except for prefiled bills, printing shall be ordered subsequent to introduction.

# Rule 3903. Showing Committee Amendments.

All bills and resolutions reported by a committee with recommendation for amendments and to be passed as amended shall be reprinted.

#### Rule 3904. Substitute Bills and Substitute Concurrent Resolutions.

- (a) When a substitute bill is recommended by a committee report, and when an amendment from the floor is adopted replacing the bill under consideration with a substitute bill, the substitute bill shall be printed in the manner provided for bills introduced, and the bill number designation shall be substantially as follows:
- (1) In the case of bills substituted for House bills, "Substitute for House Bill No.\_\_\_\_," and the blank shall be filled with the number of the bill for which substitution is made or recommended.
- (2) In the case of bills substituted for Senate bills, "House Substitute for Senate Bill No. \_\_\_\_\_," and the blank shall be filled with the number of the bill for which substitution is made or recommended.
- (b) When a substitute concurrent resolution is recommended by a committee report, and when an amendment from the floor is adopted replacing the concurrent resolution under consideration with a substitute concurrent resolution, the substitute concurrent resolution shall be printed in the manner provided for concurrent resolutions introduced, and the concurrent resolution number designation shall be substantially as follows:
- (1) In the case of concurrent resolutions substituted for House concurrent resolutions, "Substitute for House Concurrent Resolution No. \_\_\_\_\_," and the blank shall be filled with the number of the concurrent resolution for which substitution is made or recommended.
- (2) In the case of concurrent resolutions substituted for Senate concurrent resolutions, "House Substitute for Senate Concurrent Resolution No. \_\_\_\_\_," and the blank shall be filled with the number of the concurrent resolution for which substitution is made or recommended.

# Rule 3905. Appropriation Bills.

All bills making an appropriation shall be printed and distributed, or shall be made available to members electronically online and all members shall be notified by E-

mail, at least 24 hours before such bills are considered by the House.

#### Rule 3906. Committee of the Whole Amendments.

If a bill or concurrent resolution is amended by the Committee of the Whole: (a) The bill shall be reprinted showing the amendments; and

(b) when such amendment strikes all sections in the bill subsequent to the enacting clause that contain new or amendatory language and inserts sections that contain new or amendatory language, the daily Journal of the House of Representatives shall contain a notation specifying: (1) The member that offered the amendment or amendments; (2) the date the amendment or amendments were recommended; and (3) the bill number of the source bill or bills, if any, that included the inserted sections added to the underlying bill pursuant to the amendment or amendments.

#### Rule 3907. Concurrent Resolutions, When Printed.

- (a) Concurrent resolutions to amend the Constitution of Kansas, to call a constitutional convention to amend the Kansas constitution, to ratify amendments to the Constitution of the United States, to apply for a United States constitutional convention or to amend the joint rules of the House and Senate shall be printed as provided for bills under Rule 3902.
- (b) Other concurrent resolutions shall be printed as provided for bills under Rule 3902, unless otherwise directed by the Speaker.

# Rule 3908. Embellished Printing of Certain Resolutions.

Unless otherwise directed by the Speaker, not more than five copies of any enrolled House resolution and any enrolled House concurrent resolution may be printed on embellished parchment and shall be distributed as directed by the resolution. Additional copies of any resolution may be printed on embellished parchment and mailed at the expense of the member requesting such additional copies.

# Rule 3909. House Resolutions.

Subject to Rule 3908, House resolutions shall not be printed, except resolutions to amend rules of the House, to approve or disapprove executive reorganization orders or if the resolution has been referred to a committee, in which cases the resolution shall be printed.

\*\*\*\*

# ARTICLE 41. JOURNAL AND CALENDAR

# Rule 4101. Journal; Preparation.

The daily Journal of the House of Representatives shall be prepared by the chief clerk in accordance with the Rules of the House.

#### Rule 4102. Entering in Journal.

When a bill, order, motion or resolution is entered in the Journal, the names of the members or legislative committee introducing or moving the same shall be entered.

# Rule 4103. Resolutions in Journal.

All House resolutions and all House concurrent resolutions shall be printed in the Journal when introduced.

# Rule 4104. Messages from the Governor in Journal.

All messages from the Governor and all executive reorganization orders shall be printed in the Journal.

# Rule 4105. Calendar; Preparation.

The House Calendar shall be prepared for each legislative day by the chief clerk in accordance with the Rules of the House.

# Rule 4106. Status of Bills and Resolutions Shown in Calendar.

The status of all House and Senate bills and concurrent resolutions and House resolutions shall be shown by number in the Calendar for each legislative day.

# Rule 4107. Copies of Journals and Calendars.

Each member shall be furnished with a printed copy of the daily Journal and the daily Calendar.

# Rule 4108. Notations Related to Certain Committee of the Whole Amendments in Journal.

When a bill is amended by the Committee of the Whole as described in Rule 3906(b), the notation provided in Rule 3906(b) shall be entered in the Journal.

\*\*\*\*

# ARTICLE 43. MISCELLANEOUS

# Rule 4301. Employees; Employment.

Such employees as are necessary to enable the officers, members and committees to properly perform their duties and transact the business of the House with efficiency and economy shall be recruited under the supervision of the director of legislative administrative services subject to approval of the Speaker. The director of legislative administrative services shall keep a roster of the employees of the House and an account of the hours of service performed. No employee shall lobby for or against any measure pending in the Legislature and any employee violating this rule shall be discharged immediately.

# Rule 4302. Special Order.

Any matter may be made the special order for any particular time or day, but all requests and motions for special orders shall be referred to the Committee on Rules and Journal, which may designate particular times and days for such special orders and report to the House for its approval. Upon adoption of such report by 2/3 of the members present, the matters designated shall stand as special orders for the times stated, but no special order shall be made more than seven days in advance. This Rule 4302 shall not apply to executive reorganization orders or resolutions relating thereto.

#### Rule 4303. Petitions; Presentation.

Petitions and memorials addressed to the House shall be presented by a member.

# Rule 4304. Petitions; Endorse Name.

Each member presenting a petition or memorial shall endorse it with their name or the name of the committee, and a brief statement of its subject.

# Rule 4305. Open Meetings.

The open meeting law (K.S.A. 75-4317 et seq., and amendments thereto) shall apply to meetings of the House of Representatives and all of its standing committees, select committees, special committees and subcommittees of any of such committees. Caucuses of the House majority party may be closed as determined by the Majority Leader. Caucuses of the House minority party may be closed as determined by the Minority Leader.

\*\*\*\*

# ARTICLE 45. EXECUTIVE REORGANIZATION ORDERS

# Rule 4501. Referral of Executive Reorganization Orders.

Whenever an executive reorganization order is received from the Governor, it shall be referred to an appropriate committee by the Speaker.

# Rule 4502. Committee Report on Executive Reorganization Orders.

If the committee to which an executive reorganization order is referred recommends that the executive reorganization order be disapproved, the committee, not later than 15 calendar days after referral of the executive reorganization order to the committee, shall introduce a resolution for disapproval of the executive reorganization order. Such resolution shall be accompanied by the report of the committee recommending that the resolution be adopted.

# Rule 4503. Return in Event of Committee's Failure to Report.

If a committee fails to report upon an executive reorganization order within 15 calendar days after the executive reorganization order is referred to the committee, the committee shall be deemed to have recommended approval of the executive reorganization order.

# Rule 4504. Special Order of Business for ERO.

When a resolution for disapproval of an executive reorganization order is introduced and accompanied by the committee's report recommending adoption of the resolution, action on the resolution shall be made the special order of business on a particular day and hour specified by the Speaker but not later than the last day the executive reorganization order may be disapproved under section 6 of article 1 of the Constitution of Kansas. A resolution for disapproval of an executive reorganization order shall be considered under the order of business Final Action and shall be subject to debate and final action by the House.

#### Rule 4505. Nonapplication to Bills.

This Article 45 shall not apply to bills amending or otherwise affecting executive reorganization orders.

# Rule 4506. Nonaction When Moot.

The House shall act on any resolution for disapproval of an executive reorganization order unless at the time set for such action the Senate has already rejected such executive reorganization order.

\*\*\*\*

# ARTICLE 47. IMPEACHMENT

# Rule 4701. Impeachment; Powers.

Nothing in the rules of the House or in any statute shall be deemed to impair or limit the powers of the House of Representatives with respect to impeachment.

#### Rule 4702. Same; Select Committee.

The Speaker may appoint a select committee comprised only of members of the House of Representatives, and appoint its chairperson, to inquire into any impeachment matter. Any such committee may be appointed at any time and shall meet at the call of its chairperson or at the direction of the House, with the numbers of such appointees being minority party members and majority party members in the same

proportion as for the entire House membership.

# Rule 4703. Same; Reference.

The Speaker may refer any impeachment inquiry or other impeachment matter to any standing committee or any select committee appointed under Rule 4702, and any committee to which such a referral has been made shall meet on the call of its chairperson.

# Rule 4704. Same; Report.

Whenever a report is made by a committee to which an impeachment inquiry or other impeachment matter has been referred, the report thereon shall be made to the full House of Representatives, except that any such report may be submitted preliminarily to the Speaker.

# Rule 4705. Same; Call into Session.

The Speaker or a majority of the members then elected (or appointed) and qualified of the House of Representatives may call the House of Representatives into session at any time to consider any impeachment matter.

# Rule 4706. Same; Procedure.

The Speaker and any officer or committee acting under authority of this rule may follow any statutory procedure to the extent the same is not in conflict with the provisions of this rule, but nothing in this rule nor in any statute shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of any inherent powers of the House of Representatives.

\*\*\*\*

# ARTICLE 49. REPRIMAND, CENSURE OR EXPULSION OF MEMBERS

### Rule 4901. Complaint.

When any member of the House of Representatives desires to lodge a complaint against any other member of the House of Representatives, requesting that the member be reprimanded, censured or expelled for any misconduct, the complaining member shall file a written statement of such complaint with the chief clerk, and such complaint shall bear the signature of the complaining member.

# Rule 4902. Select Committee; Consideration of Complaint.

- (a) Whenever any complaint has been filed under Rule 4901, the Speaker shall appoint a select committee of six members for consideration thereof except that if the complaint is filed against the Speaker, the Speaker Pro Tem shall appoint the select committee of six members. A select committee created under this subsection (a) shall be comprised equally of majority and minority party members.
- (b) The select committee may dismiss the complaint after the inquiry or may set the matter for hearing. Reasonable notice and an opportunity to appear shall be afforded the member complained of at any hearing held hereunder. Any select committee meeting under authority of this section shall constitute an investigating committee under article 10 of chapter 46 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated and shall be authorized to meet and exercise compulsory process without any further authorization of any kind, subject, however, to limitations and conditions prescribed in article 10 of chapter 46 of Kansas Statutes Annotated.
- (c) Upon completing its hearing the deliberations thereon, the select committee may dismiss the complaint or may make recommendations to the full House of Representatives for reprimand, censure or expulsion.

# Rule 4903. Action by House.

Upon receiving any report under Rule 4902, the House of Representatives may, without further hearing or investigation, reprimand, censure or expel the member complained of. Reprimand, censure or expulsion of a member shall require a 2/3 majority vote of those members elected (or appointed) and qualified of the House of Representatives.

# INDEX TO HOUSE RULES

#### Indexed by Rule Number

# ADDRESSING THE HOUSE (Article 17)

Debate on question, 1704

Division of time, 1704(b), (c)

Limitation, 1704(b), (c)

Decorum, 3302(a)

Passing between member and chair, 1702

Private conversation prohibited, when, 1702

Putting questions, 1703

Motions, this index

Points of order, rulings on, 108

Previous question, effect, 1907, 2304

Speaking to House, member,

Call to order by presiding officer, 1704(e)

Point of personal privilege 1705

Recognition by presiding officer, 1701, 1906

Requesting the floor, 1701

Right to open and close, 1704(b), (c)

Speak only twice on same question, 1704(b)

Exceptions, reasons, 1704(b)

Violation of rules, 1704(e)

Yielding floor to another member, 1704(d)

#### ADVERSELY REPORTED BILLS

Calendar, how unfavorably reported bills to appear, 1504 Motion to move adversely reported bill to General Orders, 107(g), 1505

Resolutions, 107 (g), 1504, 1505

Separately referred bills, 903, 1505(b)

# **AMENDMENT OF BILLS (Article 21)**

Appropriation bills, 2101, 2110

Dividing question, 108, 2105, 2309

Engrossment and enrollment, 3502

Form of amendment,

Page and line to be specified, 2102

Writing required, 2102, 2310

Germane requirement, 2101

Identical motions, 2109

Motions to strike out and insert, 2108

Precedence of motions, 2301, 2302, 2303

Reading, when, 2103

Subject change, 2107

Substitute bill, 2102

Substitute motions, 2106

# APPEAL OF RULINGS

Mason's Manual, 2312

Rulings on Germaneness, Division of Amendments, Points of Order and Procedural Motions, 108

Speaker's rule on order, 3302(b)

# APPOINTMENTS

Announcement in open session, 1104 Speaker's appointments,

Chairpersons, 1102(b)

Committee of the Whole, chairperson, 3302(d)

Select committees, 1103

Impeachment, 4702

Censure, expulsion, reprimand, 4902

Standing committees, 1102(a)

Vice-chairperson, budget committee, 1105 (b)

Vacancies in leadership offices, 3304

# ATTENDANCE AT SESSIONS

Absence, unexcused, censure, 302

Call of the House, 2508(a)

Excused, absence, 105

Information from chairperson, 1303(g)

Taking the roll, 103

When not taken, 107(f)

#### BILLS

Amending statute, requirements of title, 3901

Amendments to bills, this index

Appropriation bills, 902

Resolutions not to be used, 2903(a)

Printing before consideration, 3905

Care, 3504

Copies, 3902

Introduction, 701, 702, 703

Budget committee, 1105(c)

Exception, 1105(b)

Committee bills, 1304

Filing with clerk, 701

Order of business, 104(a)(1)

Prefiling, 701, 3902

Printing, 3902, 3903, 3904, 3905, 3906

Proofreading, 3502

Reading, 703

Referrals, 901 et seq.

See, also, Reference of Bills and Resolutions,

this index

Committee of the Whole, 901(a), (3)

Committee, standing, 901(a)(1)

Separate or joint referrals, 901(2)(4)(1),

901(2)(5), 903, 904

Time, 901(a)

Senate bills, 702, 704

Signing, 3502

Sponsors, 701, 703

Statute amendments, requirements, 3901

Subject change, 2101, 2107

Substitute bills, 2102, 3904

Transmission, 3502

Withdrawal from committee, 1309

# **BUDGET COMMITTEES**

Appointment, 1105(b)

Bill introduction, 1105(c)

#### lxxxviii

Creation, 1105(a) Purpose, 1105(c)

Vice-chairpersons, 1105(b)

#### CALENDAR (Articles 15, 41)

See, generally, Order of Business, this index Adversely reported, 107 (g), 1504, 1505(d)

Committee recommendations, 1501

Copies, 4107

Disposition of bills on deadline, 1507

General Orders, this index

Order of bills on GO, 1501

Posting GO bills by number on previous day, 1502

Preparation, 4105

Status of bills to be shown, 4106

Striking, 2307

# CALL OF THE HOUSE (2508)

Committee of the Whole, not available, 1907

Debate, not permitted, 2305

Persons allowed on floor, 501

Precedence of motions, 2301

Requirement to vote, 2508

Excuse, when, 2508(b)

When call available, 2508(a)

# CENSURE, REPRIMAND OR EXPULSION OF MEMBERS

Absence of member, unexcused, 302

Complaint, 4901

Misuse of electronic voting system, 2504(b)

Procedure, 4901, 4902, 4903

Refusal to vote when required, 2508(b)

#### **CERTIFICATES**

Congratulate, commemorate, commend, honor, 2904

# **CHAIRPERSONS**

See, also, Committees, this index

Appointment and removal, 1102(b), 1103

Committee action, 1308(a)

Duties, 1302, 1303

Jointly referred bills, 904

Voting in committee, 1306

Recording, 1306

#### CHAMBER, HOUSE

Admissions,

Call of the House, 501 (b)

Lobbyists prohibited on floor, when, 501

Who admitted, generally, 501

Computer usage, 507

Conduct, 501 et seq.

Preserving order, 3302, 3506

Galleries, visitors, 503, 3506

Materials on desk, placing, 504, 3506

Sergeant at arms, duties, 501, 503, 3506

#### CHIEF CLERK

Additional clerks, 3503

Appointment, 3501

Calendar preparation, 4105

Censure of members, filing complaint, 4901

Duties, 3502, 3503

Introduction of bills and resolutions, 701, 702

Journal preparation, 4101

Supervision of other clerks, 3503

Voting system operation, 2501

Copies of roll call votes, 2506

Voting for members, 2504(a)

# COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (Article 19)

See, also, General Orders, this index

Call of House, not available, 1907

Carrying a bill, 1704

Chairperson, appointment by Speaker, 3302(d)

Deadlines, bills in, 1507

Debate, 1704, 1902

General Orders, this index

Notice required, 1502

When not allowed, 2305

Division of the assembly, 2509

House to become committee, when, 1901

Previous question, not allowed, 1907

Procedure, 1902, 1907

Committee reports, adoption, 1902

Favorable report of bills, last motion, 1902

Manner of consideration, 1902

Substitute motions, limitation, 2106

Ouorum, lack of, 302

Reference of bill or resolution back to committee, 1904

Report of Committee of the Whole.

Adoption, effect on amendment or debate, 1909

Order to Final Action, 1910

Striking enacting clause, 1909

Requesting floor, 1906, 1701

Rise and report, 302, 1908

Roll call votes, 2507(e)

Rules of House to apply, exception, 1907

Separately reported bills, 903

Striking bill or resolution from calendar, 1905

#### **COMMITTEES (Articles 11 and 13)**

Agenda, 1302

Appointment by Speaker, 1102, 1103, 1104

Appropriations, 902, 903, 1101(a), 3905

Attendance of members, record in minutes, 1303(d)

Bill, introduction, 1304

Chairpersons, ante

Discharge of, 1309

Jurisdiction, 1304

Meetings,

Notice, 1302

Time and place, 1301

Minutes, 1303(d), 1306(a)

Motions, second, 1307

Meeting Law, application, 1105(d),4305

Procedure on bills and resolutions, 1307

Amendments, 1308

Debate not limited, 1307

Final committee action during session, 1306(a)

Quorum, 1305

Reconsideration, 1306

Reports, 1303

Take from table, 1306(d)

Voting, 1306

Chairperson's vote, 1306(b)

Quorum, 1305

Reports of committee,

Chairperson to sign, 1303(e)

Order of business, 104(13)

Requirement, 1309(a)

Secretaries.

Employment, 4301

Minutes, 1303(d)

Select committees,

Appointment, 1103

Censure, reprimand or expulsion of members, 4902

Impeachment, 4702

Meetings, 1103

Special order, for, 4302

Standing committees, 1101(a)

Subcommittees permitted, 1303(f)

Successor to, 1101(b)

Voting in, 1306

Wireless electronic communication devices, 1310

Withdrawal of bill from committee, 107 (g), 1309

# COMPULSORY PROCESS

Censure or expulsion of member, 4902

Impeachment, 4706

#### COMPUTER USAGE

Limits on, in session, 507

#### CONCURRENCE

Order of business, 104(11)

Roll call vote, 2507(d)

# **CONDUCT IN HOUSE (Article 5)**

Admission to floor, 501

Food and drink on desks, 502(b)

Galleries, 503

Material on desks, 504

Order, keeping, 506, 3302, 3506

# CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Motion to adopt, 2708

Precedence of motions, 2301(h), 2301(I)

#### CONSENT CALENDAR

Order of business, 104(9) Procedure, 107 (g), 2705

#### CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS

Call of the House, 2508

Majority for adoption, 2901(a)

Printing, 3907(a)

Reference, 901(b), (1)

#### DEBATE

Addressing the House, ante

#### **EMPLOYEES**

Admission to floor, 501

Chief clerk, this index

Committee secretaries, 1303(d)

Director of legislative administrative services, 4301

Hiring, authority, 4301

Lobbying, prohibited, 4301

Placing materials on desks, 504

Sergeant at arms, post

# EXECUTIVE REORGANIZATION ORDERS (Article 45)

Journal, 4104

Printing, 3909

Procedure, generally, 4501 to 4506

Resolution, roll call vote, 2507(c)

# FINAL ACTION (Article 27)

Advance to FA on emergency, 2311

Amendment and debate, when, 2309, 2703

Bills to appear,

Numerical order, 2701

Reported by Committee of the Whole, 1910, 2701

Call of House available, 2508(a)

Committee of the Whole report, effect, 1910

Consent calendar, 107 (g), 2705

Executive Reorganization Order, 4504

Majority needed,

Bills, 2706

House resolutions and concurrent resolutions, 2707

Order of business, 104(10)

Reading of bills, 2702

Stating the question, 2502

#### GALLERIES

Conduct in, 503

Telephones, 503

# **GENERAL ORDERS (Article 15)**

See, also, Committee of the Whole, this index

Bills to appear under, 1501, 1502

Consent calendar, bills objected to, 2705

Reported by committees, 1501

Withdrawn from a committee, 107 (g), 1309(b)

House to become Committee of the Whole, when, 104(12), 1901

Motion to change order, 107 (g), 1503

Notice for consideration, 1502

Order of bills on calendar, 1501

Change in sequence, 107 (g), 1503

Passing over bill or resolution, 1903

Reference of bills and resolutions back to committee, 1904

Striking at deadline, 1507

Striking of bills and resolutions from calendar, 1905

# **GERMANENESS**

Appropriation bills, 2101

Committee amendments, 1308(a)

Rulings on, 108

#### **GOVERNOR**

Executive Reorganization Orders, 4501

Messages, 104(3), 4104

Print in journal, 4104

Resolutions, Governor not to approve, 2903(b)

#### **GUESTS**

Introduction, 106

Visitors, 503

# **IMPEACHMENT (Article 47)**

Procedure, 4701 to 4706

# **JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE (Article 41)**

Absences and excuses recorded, 105

Committe of the Whole Amendments, 4108

Committee on Rules and Journal, 1101(a) Committee reports to be recorded, 1308(b)

Copies, 4107

Entries, member's name to be shown, when, 4102

Explanation of vote, 2505

Preparation, 4101

Resolutions, 3907, 3909

Vote, when and how shown,

Division, 2506(a)

Roll call, 2506(b)

#### LOBBYISTS

Committee attendance recorded, 1303(d)

Prohibited from floor of House, 501

#### MAJORITY LEADER

Vacancy, how filled, 3304(b)

#### MEDIA, NEWS

Admission to floor, 501

Copies of roll call votes, 2506(a)

#### MESSAGES

Delivery by chief clerk, 3502

Governor, 104(3), 4104

Senate, 104(5)

State officers, communications, 104(4)

# MINORITY LEADER

Assistant minority leader, duties, 3304 Vacancy, how filled, 3304(c)

#### MOTIONS

Adjourn, to, 1704(d), 2301, 2302, 2305

Adversely reported bills, to move, 107 (g), 1505 Amend, to, 2104, 2301

See, also, Amendments to Bills, this index

Call of the House, ante

Change order of a bill, 107 (g), 1503, 1903, 2305

Commit, to, 2301(f),(g)

Debate on main question suspended, 2305

Conference committee report, 2301(h),(i)

Consideration, 104(7)

Debate, when permitted, 1902

Debate, not permitted, 2305

Division of motion, 2309

Division of question, 2105, 2309

Introduction of, 104(6)

Motions to amend motions, not in order, 2104

Motion to lay on table, 1506

No substitute motions, 2106

Notice of, 104(6), 107 (g), 1309(b), 1503(b)

Pass over a bill, 1903

Postpone, 2301(e)

Debate on main questions suspended, 2305

Pass over a bill, 1903

Precedence of certain motions, 107 (g), 2301, 2302, 2303

Previous question, 1704(c), 1907, 2301(d),

2302, 2304 Reconsider, 107 (g), 1306, 2303

Reference back to standing committee, 1904, 2306

Rise and report, 1908

Session proforma, 107(g)

Stating the question, when, 2308, 2502

Strike enacting clause, 1902, 1909, 2508(a), 2703

Strike from calendar, 1905, 2307

Strike resolving clause, 2508(a)

Substitute motions, 2106

Table, lay on, 1506, 2301(c), 2305

Withdrawal of a bill from a committee, 1309

Written motion, when required, 2102, 2310

#### NOTICES

Committee meetings, 1203, 1302, 4305 Motions, 104(6), 107 (g), 1503(b)

Rules change, 3705

#### **OPEN MEETINGS**

Application of law, 4305

Impeachment, exception, 4706

Budget Committees, 1105(d)

#### ORDER OF BUSINESS

Call to order, 102

Daily session, 103, 104

Session proforma days, 107

Exceptions,

Joint rule provisions, 104

Special orders, 4302

Petitions, presentation, 104(b)

Pledge of allegiance, 103

Question of order, determination, 3302(b)
Debate on priority not permitted, 2305
Regular order prescribed, 104
Unfinished business, 1506
Visitors' introduction, 106

#### PETITIONS

By whom presented, 4303 Endorsement by member, 4304 Presentation, when, 104(b) Subject statement, 4304

#### **PHOTOS**

Prohibition, 505

#### PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Recitation, daily, 103

# **QUORUM (Article 3)**

Absence of quorum, 303 Committee of the Whole, 302 Majority, requirement, 301 Roll call to ascertain, entry in journal, 303

#### RECONSIDERATION

Committee action, 1306(c) Generally, 2308

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS (Article 9)

Concurrent resolutions, 901(b) House resolutions, 901(c) Motion for, 2306 Prefiled bills and resolutions, 901(d)

Rule amendments, 3701, 3702 Subject change by Senate, 2107 Speaker to refer, 901

#### **REPRIMAND (Article 49)**

Procedure, 4901 Select committee, 4902

# **RESOLUTIONS (Article 29)**

Calendar and Printing Committee, certificates, 2904 Executive Reorganization Orders, 4502, 4504 Form, 2901, 2902

Governor, not to approve, 2903(b)

House concurrent resolutions,

Constitutional matters, 2901(a)

Majority for adoption, kind required, 2901

Substitute for, 3904(b)

House resolutions, 2902

Introduction, 104(1),(6), 701, 702, 703, 2902

Memorials, 3908, 4303

Printing, Embellished parchment, when, 3908

Reading, 703

Referral, 901

Resolving clause, striking, 2508(a)

Roll call, when required, 2507(b),(c), 2902(a)

Rules amendment, 2902

Senate concurrent resolutions, 704 Substitute concurrent resolutions, 3904 Written, required, 701, 2901, 3907, 3909

#### **RULES OF THE HOUSE (Article 37)**

Adoption, 3701, 3704

Amendment, 107 (g), 3701, 3702, 3704, 3705

Mason's Manual, 2312

Referral, 3702

Rules and Journal committee, 108, 1101(a), 3702 Rulings on Germaneness, Division of Amendments, Points of Order and Procedural Motions, 108 Suspension, See, Suspension of Rules of House,

#### SENATE

Messages, order of business, 104(5) Procedure, 704

Subject change of bill, 2107

#### **SERGEANT AT ARMS**

Appointment, 3505

Arrest of violators, 3506

Assistants, 3507

Doorkeepers, 3507

Duties, 3506

Galleries, visitor control, 503, 3506

Material placed on member desks, 504, 3506

Order, preservation, 3506

Removal of persons from floor, 501, 3506

Supervision by Speaker, 3505

# **SESSIONS (Article 1)**

Hours prohibited, 101

Order of business, 104

Session proforma, 107

Prayer, 103

Roll taking, 103

Session proforma, 107

Time to commence, 101

# **SPEAKER**

Complaint against, 4902(a)

Duties, 3302

Absence excused, granting, 105

Admission to floor, permits, 501

Appoint budget committee members, 1105(b)

Appoint house officers,

Chief clerk, 3501

Sergeant at arms, 3506

Appoint member to lead pledge, 103

Call House to order, 102

Committee appointments, 1102, 1103, 4902

Election, 3301

Executive Reorganization Orders, 4505

Guests, permission to introduce, 106

Impeachment procedure, 4702, 4703, 4705, 4706

Listing of certain duties, 3302

Officers of House, filling vacancies,

Majority Leader, 3304(b)

Speaker pro tem, 3304(b)

Reference of bills and resolutions, 901

Senate bill, subject change, 2107

Signing bills, 3502

Supervise chief clerk, 3501

Supervise sergeant at arms, 3505

Vacancy in office of, 3304(a)

Voting, when, 2504(c)

Voting system control, 2501

# SPEAKER PRO TEM

Appointment of select committee, 4902(a)

Duties, 3303

Election, 3301

Substitute, when Speaker pro tem absent, 3302(c)

Vacancy in office of Speaker,

Call for meeting to fill, when, 3304(a)

Performance of Speaker's duties, 3303

Vacancy in office of Speaker pro tem, 3304(b)

# SPECIAL ORDER

Executive Reorganization Orders, rule not to apply, 4302 Requests for special order, 4302

Rules and Journal committee, referral, 4302

# SUSPENSION OF RULES

Motion, 2311(a)

Vote required, 2311

# TELEPHONES, TELECOMMUNICA-TION DEVICES

Committees, 1310

Galleries, 503

House chamber, 506

# VACANCIES IN HOUSE OFFICES

Duties, by whom performed, 3304

# Journal of the House

2020 REGULAR SESSION JANUARY 13 THROUGH ADJOURNMENT MAY 21, 2020

SUSAN W. KANNARR, Chief Clerk of the House

# **EXPLANATION OF ABBREVIATIONS**

Substantial economy of space was achieved in the text of the Journals by shortening the numerous references to bill and resolution numbers. Placing these in boldface type facilitates locating the bills readily on each page. The abbreviations used are as follows:

HB 20011	House Bill No. 2001
HCR 5001 H	House Concurrent Resolution No. 5001
HR 6001	House Resolution No. 6001
HP 2001 H	House Petition No. 2001
SB 1	Senate Bill No. 1
SCR 1601	Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 1601

# EXPLANATION OF PAGE NUMBERING

The Senate and House Journals are printed in separate volumes. Paging in both Journals is consecutive and begin with page 1, continuing through the two-year biennium.

Under the section "History of Bills" HJ and SJ page numbers refer to the separate House Journal and Senate Journal volumes.

# Journal of the House

#### FIRST DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Monday, January 13, 2020, 2:00 p.m.

#### COMMUNICATION FROM STATE OFFICER

I, Scott Schwab, Secretary of State of the State of Kansas, do hereby certify that Joe Newland was appointed by the Governor effective August 12, 2019, for the unexpired term of State Representative for the 13<sup>th</sup> Legislative District, to fill the vacancy created by the resignation of Larry Hibbard, and was administered the following oath of office on August 12, 2019.

State of Kansas County of Shawnee} SS.

I do solemnly swear, or affirm, that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of Kansas, and will faithfully discharge the duties of the office of

Kansas State Representative So help me God. JOE NEWLAND

Subscribed and Sworn to, or Affirmed, before me this 12<sup>th</sup> day of August 2019.

Scott Schwab
Secretary of State

This being the day fixed by the constitution of the State of Kansas for the assembling of the 2020 session of the legislature, the House was called to order at 2:00 p.m. by Speaker Ron Ryckman.

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Susan Kannarr as Chief Clerk, Foster Chisholm as Sgt. At Arms and The Rev. Eunice Brubaker as the House Chaplain for 2020.

The roll was called with 120 members present.

Reps. Hodge and Victors were excused on verified illness.

Reps. Eplee, Landwehr and Pannbacker were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Almighty God, here we are again for another session. Although this is the official first day of session, we understand that many of our representatives have already been working extensively on the matters that are to be tackled over the next few months. We start off today knowing all that needs to be addressed, but You alone, know what and how things will happen. You alone know what the results of our business will be ninety days from now. So, it would stand to reason that since You are the only one who knows the outcome, we would be wise to "Trust God from the bottom of our hearts; and not try to figure out everything on our own; listen for God's voice in everything we do, everywhere we go; For You God are the one who will keep us on track.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Proehl.

#### PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

Rep. Whipple announced his resignation, effective today. He was joined by his wife, parents, and grandfather and thanked the body for their friendship and support. Rep. Whipple will now serve as Mayor of Wichita.

May we not assume that we know it all."
(Proverbs 3:5-6, The Message)
In Christ's Name I pray, Amen.

#### COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

Dear Mr. Speaker:

This letter is to advise you that the Office of Chief Clerk has received the following communications during the interim since adjournment of the 2019 Regular Session of the Legislature:

From Derek Schmidt, Kansas Attorney General, pursuant to K.S.A. 22a-243, the 2019 annual report of the Kansas State Child Death Review Board.

From James R. Hubbard, Attorney, in accordance with the requirements of K.S.A. 19-5005(e), the Johnson County Educational Research Triangle Authority, its Annual Report concerning the financial activities of the Authority.

From Ethan Belshe, Legislative Liaison, Kansas Department for Children and Families, the Crossover Youth Working Group Interim Report.

From Megan Milner, Director of Community Based Services, Kansas Department of Corrections-Juvenile Services, the 2019 Kansas Juvenile Justice Oversight Committee Annual Report.

From Julie Menghini, Communications Director/Legislative Director, Kansas

Department of Labor, the 2019 Economic Report.

From the Governmental Ethics Commission, the 2019 Annual Report.

From Jeff Zmuda, Acting Secretary of Corrections, the Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Report.

From the Kansas Criminal Justice Reform Commission, the report to the 2020 Kansas Legislature.

From Bob Page, President and Chief Executive Officer, The University of Kansas Hospital Authority, in accordance with KSA 76-3312(p), the 2019 Annual Report.

From Clark Shultz, Executive Director, Health Care Stabilization Fund, in accordance with 2019 HB 2119, the Report to the 2020 Kansas Legislature from the Kansas HealthCare Stabilization Fund Board of Governors.

From Scott W. Miller, Director of Investments, in compliance with K.S.A. 75-4222(h), the Annual Report of the Pooled Money Investment Board for Fiscal Year 2019.

From the Office of Governor Laura Kelly:

Executive Directive No. 19-502, Authorizing the Establishment of a Federal Fund.

Executive Directive No. 19-503, Authorizing Personnel Transactions.

Executive Directive No. 19-504, Authorizing Personnel Transactions.

Executive Directive No. 19-505, Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

Executive Directive No. 19-506, Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

Executive Directive No. 19-507, Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

Executive Directive No. 19-508, Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

Executive Directive No. 19-509, Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

Executive Directive No. 19-510, Authorizing Personnel Transactions and Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

From Earl Lewis, Acting Director, Kansas Water Office, in accordance with K.S.A. 74-99f05, the State of Kansas Geographic Information Systems Policy Board, the FY 2019 Annual Report for July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019.

Executive Order No. 19-09, Promoting cooperation in economic development.

Executive Order No. 19-10, Establishing the Governor's Council on Medicaid Expansion.

Executive Order No. 19-11, Establishing the Governor's Council on Tax Reform.

The complete reports are kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

# COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Dwight D. Keen, Commission Chairman and Ryan A. Hoffman, Director, Conservation Division, Kansas Corporation Commission; Abandoned Oil & Gas Well Status Annual Report 2020 and Oil & Gas Remediation Site Status Annual Report 2020.

From Herman T. Jones, Superintendent, Kansas Highway Patrol; pursuant to KSA 60-4117, Annual Report regarding State Forfeiture Funds, December, 2018 - November, 2019.

The complete reports are kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, **HR 6025**, by Reps. Ryckman, Hawkins and Sawyer, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

#### HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6025-

A RESOLUTION relating to the organization of the House of Representatives.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives notify the Senate that the House is organized with the following officers:

Ron Ryckman, speaker, Blaine Finch, speaker pro tem, Dan Hawkins, majority leader, Tom Sawyer, minority leader, Susan Kannarr, chief clerk, Foster Chisholm, sergeant at arms, and awaits the pleasure of the Senate.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, **HR 6026**, by Reps. Ryckman, Hawkins and Sawyer, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

#### HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6026-

A RESOLUTION relating to assignment of seats of the House of Representatives.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That the members of the 2020 regular session of the legislature shall occupy the same seats assigned pursuant to 2019 House Resolution No. 6020 with the following exceptions: Newland, seat No. 111. Stephanie Yeager will be assigned to seat No. 32 after being sworn in as the appointed replacement for district 96, which is being vacated by Representative Brandon Whipple.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills and concurrent resolutions were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2420**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to military surplus vehicles, registration and regulation; amending K.S.A. 8-194, 8-195 and 8-196 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1486 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative K. Williams.

**HB 2421**, AN ACT concerning persons with disabilities; relating to the right to accommodation for individuals who raise assistance dogs; the procedure for verification of a person's right to be accompanied by an assistance dog or professional therapy dog; accredited training facilities; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 39-1109, 39-1111 and 39-1113 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative K. Williams.

**HB 2422**, AN ACT establishing daylight saving time as the permanent standard time for the state of Kansas, by Representative K. Williams.

- **HB 2423**, AN ACT concerning sheriffs; relating to qualifications; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 19-801b and repealing the existing section, by Representative Rhiley.
- **HB 2424**, AN ACT concerning police officer-involved deaths; requiring investigations; amending the open records act; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 45-221 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Benson.
- **HB 2425**, AN ACT enacting the Kansas anti-red flag act; prohibiting the enactment or enforcement of extreme risk protection orders against individuals regarding firearms; establishing criminal penalty for violation, by Representative Houser.
- **HB 2426**, AN ACT concerning civil procedure; relating to the code of civil procedure; small claims procedure act; code of civil procedure for limited actions; amending K.S.A. 60-467 and 61-2706 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 61-2709 and 61-3105 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Highberger.
- **HB 2427**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to Kansas adjusted gross income; providing subtraction modification for national service education awards; amending K.S.A. 79-32,117 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Murnan.
- **HB 2428**, AN ACT concerning the board of technical professions; relating to license fees; promulgation of rules and regulations; amending K.S.A. 74-7009 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Dietrich.
- **HB 2429**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas criminal justice reform commission; relating to membership; public defender; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6902 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Owens and Finney.
- **HB 2430**, AN ACT concerning property taxation; amending K.S.A. 79-5a27, 79-1466, 79-1467, 79-1801 and 79-2925b and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-432 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 79-2925c and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-433a, by Representative Rhiley.
- HB 2431, AN ACT concerning roads and highways; relating to the commemorative designation of a bridge on United State highway 166 as the SGT Tyler A Juden memorial bridge, by Representative Rhiley.
- **HB 2432**, AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to environmental remediation; establishing the Kansas pesticide waste disposal program and the Kansas pesticide waste disposal fund; allowing annual transfers from the Kansas agricultural remediation fund to the Kansas pesticide waste disposal fund; amending K.S.A. 2-3702 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-3708 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Highland.
- **HB 2433**, AN ACT designating the watermelon as the state fruit of Kansas, by Representative Samsel.
- **HB 2434**, AN ACT concerning traffic regulations; relating to driving privileges; revoking the authority to suspend driving privileges for the nonpayment of fines from traffic citations; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-2106 and 8-2110 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-2110b, by Representative Finney.
- **HB 2435**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to sentencing; court fines; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6604 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Pittman.
- **HB 2436**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to unpaid and overpayment of taxes; providing for the rate of interest; amending K.S.A. 79-2968 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Rhiley.

**HB 2437**, AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to the labeling of certain foods; prohibiting the use of identifiable meat terms on labels or in advertisements of meat analogs without use of proper qualifying language; amending K.S.A. 65-656 and 65-665 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Highland.

**HB 2438**, AN ACT concerning the state child death review board; relating to confidentiality of records; exceptions; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22a-243 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Concannon.

**HB 2439**, AN ACT concerning the legislative division of post audit; removing the requirement to submit certain reports thereto; amending K.S.A. 22-4514a, 75-3728c, 76-721 and 79-3233b and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Legislative Post Audit Committee.

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. HCR 5016—

By Representatives Victors, Alcala, Ruiz, L. and Ruiz, S.

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION urging Congress to ensure access to healthcare and other benefits for all veterans of the United States armed forces by enacting legislation to provide healthcare and other benefits to deported veterans.

WHEREAS, More than 300 immigrant veterans of the United States armed forces have been deported since 2013; and

WHEREAS, The U.S. Congress has incentivized non-citizen servicemembers to enlist in the armed forces by enacting legislation that extends eligibility for naturalization, promises a pathway to citizenship and provides healthcare benefits; and

WHEREAS, Around 5,000 legal permanent residents enlist to serve in the U.S. armed forces each year; and

WHEREAS, Immigrant servicemembers have been a vital part of the U.S. armed forces serving honorably since the American Revolution; and

WHEREAS, The men and women who have served in the U.S. armed forces are entitled to a variety of healthcare services, including hospital treatment, outpatient care, dental care, pharmaceutical services, counseling and more; and

WHEREAS, Deported veterans do not have access to programs and services provided by the Veterans Affairs system, denying them medical care, resources to claim disability compensation and other benefits they have earned through their service; and

WHEREAS, Deported veterans would seek treatment for post-traumatic stress disorder or other service-connected injuries, but because they are denied, their lives are at risk; and

WHEREAS, The U.S. Government Accountability Office found that the U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement has not consistently followed policies that would help ensure veterans receive the proper review before any removal proceedings; and

WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs' stated vision is to "provide veterans the world-class benefits and services they have earned"; and

WHEREAS, These men and women have served in the U.S. armed forces and have earned the right to receive healthcare and benefits: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas, the Senate concurring therein. That we urge Congress to ensure access to healthcare and other benefits for all veterans of the United States armed forces by enacting legislation to

provide healthcare and other benefits to deported veterans; and

Be it further resolved: That the Secretary of State shall send an enrolled copy of this resolution to the President and Secretary of the United States Senate, the Speaker and the Clerk of the United States House of Representatives, members of the congressional delegation from Kansas, and to the President of the United States.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, **HCR 5017**, by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins and Sawyer was introduced and adopted:

# HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. HCR 5017--

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION providing for the appointment of a committee to inform the governor that the two houses of the legislature are duly organized and ready to receive communications.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas, the Senate concurring therein: That a committee of two members from the Senate and three members from the House of Representatives be appointed to wait upon the governor, and inform the governor that the two houses of the legislature are duly organized and are ready to receive any communications the governor may have to present.

In accordance with HCR 5017, Speaker Ryckman appointed Representatives Hawkins, Williams and Whipple to wait upon the Governor.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, HCR 5018, by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins and Sawyer was introduced and adopted:

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. HCR 5018--

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION providing for a joint session of the Senate and House of Representatives for the purpose of hearing a message from the Governor.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas, the Senate concurring therein: That the Senate and House of Representatives meet in joint session in Representative Hall at 6:00 p.m. on January 15, 2020, for the purpose of hearing a message from the Governor; and

Be it further resolved: That a committee of two members from the Senate and three members from the House of Representatives be appointed to wait upon the Governor; and

Be it further resolved: That a committee of two members from the Senate and three members from the House of Representatives be appointed to wait upon the Lieutenant Governor

In accordance with HCR 5018, Speaker Ryckman appointed the following escorts:

To escort the Governor: Representatives Hawkins, Williams and Wolfe Moore

To escort the Lt. Governor: Representatives Landwehr, Adam Smith and Benson

To escort the Supreme Court: Representatives Claeys, Humphries and Xu

To escort the Senate: Representatives Erickson, Lynn and Stogsdill

#### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

Speaker Ryckman introduced Dr. Sheryl Beard, from the Kansas Academy of Family Physicians.

Dr. Beard received her medical degree from the University of Kansas School of Medicine-Wichita and completed her residency at the Via Christi Family Medicine Residency program in Wichita. After completing her residency training Dr. Beard joined the United States Air Force where she was stationed at McConnell Air Force Base in Wichita and served a tour in northern Iraq at Kirkuk Air Base in 2006. Once out of the military, Dr. Beard spent a short time in private practice before entering her academic career at Via Christi where she served on faculty from 2008 to 2019. In July 2019, Dr. Beard joined Ascension Medical Group in an exclusive arrangement with Spirit Aerosystems to provide direct primary care like model of care to a select group of Spirit employees.

Dr. Beard has been an active member of the Kansas Academy of Family Physicians since 2002, serving on the Board of Directors since 2009. Additionally, Dr. Beard has served on the KAFP Foundation Board of Trustees since 2013 and she currently holds the position of Secretary.

The Academy sponsors the doctor of the day program and provides daily assistance for health concerns of those serving the Statehouse during the session. We appreciate this program and your efforts, Dr. Beard. Thank you for again providing this service.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Tuesday, January 14, 2020.

# Journal of the House

#### SECOND DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Tuesday, January 14, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

#### OATH OF OFFICE

I, Scott J. Schwab, Secretary of State of the State of Kansas, do hereby certify that Stephanie Yeager was appointed by the Governor effective January 14, 2020, for the unexpired term of State Representative for the 96<sup>th</sup> Legislative District, to fill the vacancy created by the resignation of Brandon Whipple.

State of Kansas County of Shawnee} SS.

Stephanie Yeager, of the 96<sup>th</sup> District, came forward, took and subscribed, or affirmed her oath of office, administered to her by Secretary of State, Scott J. Schwab, as follows:

I do solemnly swear, or affirm, that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of Kansas, and will faithfully discharge the duties of the office of

Kansas State Representative So help me God, Stephanie Yeager

Subscribed and Sworn to, of Affirmed, before me this 14th day of January 2020.

Scott J. Schwab
Secretary of State

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 119 members present.

Reps. Neighbor and Victors were excused on verified illness.

Rep. Johnson was excused on legislative business.

Reps. Carlson, Henderson and Pannbacker were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Creator God, Thank You for this another new day with new opportunities for new beginnings.

Help each one to not dwell on what has happened in the past, but to realize that the past provides gateways for new beginnings.

May we understand that the beginning Is always today.

We have the occasion to have a fresh start any moment we choose.

Help us to choose many moments to work together on the issues at hand for a better future for Kansas.

In Your Name I pray, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Barker.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2440**, AN ACT concerning county appraisers; providing for the election of county appraisers; amending K.S.A. 19-425, 19-433, 19-434, 19-435, 19-4110, 74-2433f, 74-2438, 75-5105a, 79-201q, 79-201s, 79-412, 79-5a04, 79-1404, 79-1404a, 79-1411b, 79-1412a, 79-1413a, 79-1420, 79-1448, 79-1455, 79-1460, 79-1460a, 79-1466, 79-1467, 79-1479, 79-1481, 79-1606, 79-1609 and 79-2005 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-1915, 19-432, 25-101, 25-213 and 25-611 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 19-426, 19-428 and 79-1427c and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 19-430 and 19-431, by Committee on Taxation.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills and concurrent resolution were referred to committees as indicated:

Agriculture: **HB 2432**, **HB 2437**. Appropriations: **HB 2439**. Children and Seniors: **HB 2438**.

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: HB 2429.

Elections: HB 2423.

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2421, HB 2422, HB 2425, HB 2433, HCR 5016.

Judiciary: HB 2424, HB 2426, HB 2434, HB 2435.

Taxation: **HB 2427**, **HB 2430**, **HB 2436**. Transportation: **HB 2420**, **HB 2431**.

Transportation and Public Safety Budget: HB 2428.

#### COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Derek Schmidt, Kansas Attorney General, pursuant to K.S.A.74-7316; 2019 annual report of the Crime Victims Compensation Board.

From Derek Schmidt, Kansas Attorney General, pursuant to K.S.A. 75-723; 2019 annual report of the Abuse, Neglect and Exploitation Unit.

The complete reports are kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing adoption of **SR 1746**, a resolution relating to the organization of the 2020 Senate and selection of the following officers:

Susan Wagle, President,

Jeff Longbine, Vice President,

Jim Denning, Majority Leader,

Anthony Hensley, Minority Leader,

Corey Carnahan, Secretary,

Don Cackler, Sergeant-at-Arms,

and awaits the pleasure of the House of Representatives.

Announcing adoption of HCR 5017, a concurrent resolution relating to a committee to wait upon the Governor and advise her the 2020 session of the Legislature is duly organized and ready to receive communication. Senators Masterson and Francisco are appointed as Senate members of the committee to wait upon the Governor.

Announcing adoption of HCR 5018, a concurrent resolution providing for joint session of the Senate and House of Representatives for the purpose of hearing a message from the Governor.

The following escorts are appointed for the State of the State:

To escort the Governor: Senators Billinger and Sykes

To escort the Lt. Governor: Senators Goddard and Ware

To escort the Supreme Court: Senators Wilborn and Haley

# 2020 Committee Assignments for Representatives 9:00 AM Committees

Appropriations (112-N): Troy Waymaster, Chair; Kyle Hoffman, Vice Chair; Kathy Wolfe Moore, Ranking Minority; John Alcala; Barbara Ballard; Tom Burroughs; Sydney Carlin; Will Carpenter; J.R. Claeys; Susan Concannon; Willie Dove; Shannon Francis; Henry Helgerson; Steven Johnson; Brenda Landwehr; Stephen Owens; Brett Parker; Richard Proehl; Ken Rahjes; Brad Ralph; Bill Sutton; Sean Tarwater; and Kristey Williams.

Federal and State Affairs (346-S): John Barker, Chair; Francis Awerkamp, Vice Chair; Louis Ruiz, Ranking Minority; Tory Arnberger; Jesse Burris; Blake Carpenter; Stephanie Clayton; John Eplee; Renee Erickson; Broderick Henderson; Boog Highberger; Michael Houser; Susan Humphries; Trevor Jacobs; Jim Karleskint; Jan Kessinger; Nancy Lusk; Les Mason; John Resman; Eric Smith; Jerry Stogsdill; Adam Thomas; and Brandon Woodard.

Rural Revitalization (582-N): Adam Smith, Chair; Ron Highland, Vice Chair; Jason Probst, Ranking Minority; Dave Baker; Ken Collins; Owen Donohoe; Cheryl Helmer; Don Hineman; Tim Hodge; Cindy Holscher; Eileen Horn; Russ Jennings; Monica Murnan; Joe Newland; Bill Pannbacker; Jene Vickrey; and Paul Waggoner.

Energy, Utilities, and Telecommunications (T/Th) (281-N): Joe Seiwert, Chair; Mark Schreiber, Vice Chair; Annie Kuether, Ranking Minority; Emil Bergquist; John Carmichael; Ken Corbet; Tom Cox; Leo Delperdang; Stan Frownfelter; Randy Garber; Jim Gartner; Nick Hoheisel; Marty Long; Cindy Neighbor; Mark Samsel; Jack Thimesch; and Kellie Warren.

Financial Institutions and Pensions (M/W) (281-N): Jim Kelly, Chair; Boyd Orr, Vice Chair; Gail Finney, Ranking Minority; David Benson; Doug Blex; Suzi Carlson; Tom Cox; Leo Delperdang; Brenda Dietrich; Stan Frownfelter; Megan Lynn; Leonard Mastroni; Bill Rhiley; John Toplikar; Barb Wasinger; Virgil Weigel; and Rui Xu.

Local Government (M/W) (218-N): Kent Thompson, Chair; Emil Bergquist, Vice Chair; Pam Curtis, Ranking Minority; Mike Amyx; Elizabeth Bishop; Michael Capps; Lonnie Clark; Charlotte Esau; Ron Howard; Marty Long; J.C. Moore; Jarrod Ousley; and Alicia Straub.

Veterans (T/Th) (218-N): Lonnie Clark, Chair; Ron Ellis, Vice Chair; Virgil Weigel, Ranking Minority; Chris Croft; Diana Dierks; Brenda Dietrich; David French; Ron Howard; Tom Phillips; Jeff Pittman; Susan Ruiz; Freda Warfield; and John Wheeler.

#### 1:30 PM Committees

Agriculture and Natural Resources Budget (142-S): Willie Dove, Chair; Lonnie Clark, Vice Chair; Sydney Carlin, Ranking Minority; Jim Gartner; Trevor Jacobs; Joe Newland; Boyd Orr; Alicia Straub; and Freda Warfield.

Children and Seniors (346-S): Susan Concannon, Chair; Susan Humphries, Vice Chair; Jarrod Ousley, Ranking Minority; Suzi Carlson; Diana Dierks; Charlotte Esau; Randy Garber; Nancy Lusk; Leonard Mastroni; Cindy Neighbor; Bill Rhiley; Susan Ruiz; and Paul Waggoner.

Commerce, Labor, and Economic Development (112-N): Sean Tarwater, Chair; Ken Corbet, Vice Chair; Stan Frownfelter, Ranking Minority; Tom Burroughs; Will Carpenter; Chris Croft; Pam Curtis; Ron Highland; Don Hineman; Kyle Hoffman; Jan Kessinger; Marty Long; Les Mason; Jason Probst; Brad Ralph; Louis Ruiz; and Kristey Williams.

Corrections/Juvenile Justice (152-S): Russ Jennings, Chair; Leo Delperdang, Vice Chair; Boog Highberger, Ranking Minority; John Carmichael; David French; Annie Kuether; Stephen Owens; Bill Pannbacker; Fred Patton; John Resman; Eric Smith; Virgil Weigel; and John Wheeler.

Education (218-N): Steve Huebert, Chair; Brenda Dietrich, Vice Chair; Jim Ward, Ranking Minority; David Benson; Stephanie Clayton; Renee Erickson; Cheryl Helmer; Steven Johnson; Jim Karleskint; Mark Samsel; Mark Schreiber; Adam Smith; Jerry Stogsdill; Adam Thomas; John Toplikar; Jene Vickrey; and Stephanie Yeager

Health and Human Services (546-S): Brenda Landwehr, Chair; John Eplee, Vice Chair; Monica Murnan, Ranking Minority; Tory Arnberger; John Barker; Emil Bergquist; Elizabeth Bishop; Doug Blex; Ken Collins; Ron Ellis; Broderick Henderson; Cindy Holscher; Eileen Horn; Ron Howard; Jim Kelly; Megan Lynn; and Kellie Warren.

Higher Education Budget (281-N): Ken Rahjes, Chair; Tom Phillips, Vice Chair; Brandon Woodard, Ranking Minority; Mike Amyx; Jesse Burris; Blake Carpenter; J.C. Moore; Barb Wasinger; and Rui Xu

Transportation (582-N): Richard Proehl, Chair; Jack Thimesch, Vice Chair; Henry Helgerson, Ranking Minority; Francis Awerkamp; Dave Baker; Barbara Ballard; J.R. Claeys; Tom Cox; Shannon Francis; Nick Hoheisel; Michael Houser;

KC Ohaebosim; Jeff Pittman; Joe Seiwert; Bill Sutton; Kent Thompson; and Ponka-We Victors.

#### 3:30 PM Committees

Agriculture (582-N): Ron Highland, Chair; Eric Smith, Vice Chair; Sydney Carlin, Ranking Minority; Doug Blex; Eileen Horn; Trevor Jacobs; Jim Karleskint; Joe Newland; Boyd Orr; Bill Pannbacker; Jason Probst; Mark Schreiber; Joe Seiwert; Alicia Straub; Kent Thompson; Virgil Weigel; and Rui Xu.

General Government Budget (281-N): J.R. Claeys, Chair; Tory Arnberger, Vice Chair; Tom Burroughs, Ranking Minority; Mike Amyx; Leo Delperdang; David French; Cheryl Helmer; Broderick Henderson; and Marty Long.

Judiciary (346-S): Fred Patton, Chair; Brad Ralph, Vice Chair; John Carmichael, Ranking Minority; Emil Bergquist; Jesse Burris; Pam Curtis; Randy Garber; Boog Highberger; Nick Hoheisel; Susan Humphries; Russ Jennings; Annie Kuether; KC Ohaebosim; Stephen Owens; Mark Samsel; Kellie Warren; and John Wheeler.

K-12 Education Budget (546-S): Kristey Williams, Chair; Kyle Hoffman, Vice Chair; Valdenia Winn, Ranking Minority; David Benson, Brenda Dietrich; Renee Erickson; Cindy Holscher; Steve Huebert; Brenda Landwehr; Adam Smith; Sean Tarwater; Adam Thomas; and Jim Ward.

Social Services Budget (144-S): Will Carpenter, Chair; Leonard Mastroni, Vice Chair; Barbara Ballard, Ranking Minority; Suzi Carlson; Owen Donohoe; Ron Howard; Megan Lynn; Monica Murnan; and Susan Ruiz.

Taxation (112-N): Steven Johnson, Chair; Les Mason, Vice Chair; Jim Gartner, Ranking Minority; John Alcala; Dave Baker; John Barker; Stephanie Clayton; Susan Concannon; Ken Corbet; Chris Croft; John Eplee; Henry Helgerson; Don Hineman; Jim Kelly; Tom Phillips; Richard Proehl; Ken Rahjes; Jerry Stogsdill; Jack Thimesch; John Toplikar; Freda Warfield; Barb Wasinger; and Kathy Wolfe Moore.

Transportation and Public Safety Budget (142-S): Shannon Francis, Chair; John Resman, Vice Chair; Jeff Pittman, Ranking Minority; Ron Ellis; Charlotte Esau; Michael Houser; Jan Kessinger; Nancy Lusk; and Ponka-We Victors.

Elections (T/Th) (212B-N): Bill Sutton, Chair; Blake Carpenter, Vice Chair; Brett Parker, Ranking Minority; Frances Awerkamp; Lonnie Clark; Ken Collins; Willie Dove; Tim Hodge; J.C. Moore, Jarrod Ousley; Bill Rhiley; Paul Waggoner; and Stephanie Yeager.

Insurance (M/W) (212B-N): Jene Vickrey, Chair; Tom Cox, Vice Chair; Cindy Neighbor, Ranking Minority; Francis Awerkamp; Elizabeth Bishop; Michael Capps; Blake Carpenter; Ken Collins; Diana Dierks; Willie Dove; Gail Finney; Stan Frownfelter; J.C. Moore; Bill Rhiley; Bill Sutton; Paul Waggoner; and Brandon Woodard.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, January 15, 2020.

### THIRD DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Wednesday, January 15, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 123 members present. Rep. Neighbor was excused on verified illness. Rep. A. Smith was excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Gracious God,
We come before You today once again asking for Your guidance and wisdom.
Help each of us to keep our minds on You; for when we do,
You keep us steadfast and at peace.
When we walk with You,
You make our paths level and straight.
When we listen to You,
we see difficulties and differences resolved in a peaceable manner.
Impress this upon our hearts, I pray,
Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Claeys.

#### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Landwehr are spread upon the Journal:

Today in the gallery we are pleased to welcome fifty JROTC student cadets from Wichita, USD 259. For many years Colonel Robert Hester has organized a trip to Topeka so that the students can see firsthand the governmental process in action. Please join me in welcoming the cadets and give them a round of applause.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

HB 2441, AN ACT concerning community historical museums; providing for expanded authority for cities and school districts to operate and finance a museum;

amending K.S.A. 12-1689 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2442**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to individual tax returns; removing the line for reporting compensating use tax; amending K.S.A. 79-32210 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2443**, AN ACT concerning postsecondary educational institutions; relating to the state board of regents; resident tuition rates for certain Native American students; amending K.S.A. 76-731 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Victors.

**HB 2444**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to distinctive license plates; providing for the blackout license plate; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1,141 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives K. Williams and Francis.

**HB 2445**, AN ACT concerning children and minors; relating to the revised Kansas code for care of children; definitions; use of detention facility; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 38-2202 and 38-2260 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Joint Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice Oversight.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was referred to committee as indicated:

Taxation: HB 2440.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 6:00 p.m.

#### EVENING SESSION

The House met pursuat to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

It being the hour in accordance with HCR 5018 to meet in joint session with the Senate to hear the message of the Governor, Reps. Erickson, Lynn and Stogsdill escorted President Wagle and members of the Senate to seats in the House.

Reps. Claeys, Humphries and Xu and Senators Wilborn and Haley escorted the Supreme Court to seats in the House.

Reps. Landwehr, Proehl and Benson and Senators Goddard and Ware escorted the Lt. Governor to a seat in the House.

Reps. Hawkins, Williams and Wolfe Moore and Senators Billinger and Sykes escorted the Governor to the rostrum.

# Governor Laura Kelly's Complete Text of the State of the State

Mr. Speaker, Madam President, Madam Chief Justice, Lt. Governor Rogers, members of the Legislature, Cabinet officers, leaders of the Kansas tribes, honored guests, and fellow Kansans.

It is my high honor to stand before you this evening to report on the progress of my administration, and to share my plans for the year ahead.

We have much to discuss tonight. But before I begin, please welcome back the third

"First Gentleman" in Kansas history, my husband, Dr. Ted Daughety.

Ted still misses his garden and his darkroom, but he's adjusting to our new home by adding some personal touches. He has taken an interest in putting the "Cedar" back in Cedar Crest with the planting of new trees. He also started a vegetable garden. He even has his own compost pile...

In addition to all of that, he continues to practice medicine full time.

So, Ted and I have settled into life at the Governor's Residence...

In fact, it was the backdrop for our family's biggest news of 2019! It was a joy to watch our daughter Kathleen wed our new son-in-law, Mathias, at Cedar Crest earlier this year, with our younger daughter, Molly, standing by her sister's side.

Speaking of siblings - my sister, Kay and my brother Paul are also here tonight from Colorado.

And listening in online from Richmond, Virginia, is my brother, Father Fred.

As everyone here knows, it is not easy to be related to someone who serves in public office. I am grateful to my family for the support they have provided from the very first day of this journey.

Since we're talking about family members, I dare not exclude the four-legged variety. Frances, the First Cat of Kansas, sends her regards...

If there is one thing I didn't expect this past year, it was the widespread interest in my cat. She's made lots of new friends on social media. She gets more news coverage than I do.

Frances asked me to relay a special message to Lt. Governor Lynn Rogers, who is here with his wife. Kris.

Lynn -- Frances said to tell you she's very close to exceeding your following on Twitter.

And that you need to step up your game.

As everyone here has no doubt come to know, Lynn Rogers is an exceptional lieutenant governor. In case you couldn't tell, he's also unfailingly good-natured.

Lynn hit the road almost as soon as we took our oaths of office last year, logging more than 17,000 miles on a statewide listening tour, engaging Kansans in our efforts to establish the Office of Rural Prosperity.

Housing shortages, affordable childcare, revitalizing Main Street corridors, protecting rural hospitals, expanding rural broadband -- these are all concerns that weigh heavily on the minds of Kansans. With the right mix of state support and local ingenuity, I am confident that the Office of Rural Prosperity will serve as an invaluable partner for Kansas communities to sustain and enhance our state's rural heritage.

Thank you, Lynn, for your work on this very important issue.

In fact, thank you to my entire Cabinet - seated in the west gallery, behind me.

No governor can succeed without a strong and supportive team, and I could not have asked for a more qualified group of leaders to help rebuild our state.

I realize, for those who have been around the Kansas Capitol a session or two, these annual messages might sometimes seem a bit....routine. But tonight carries a special distinction.

For the first time in Kansas history, women sit at the helm of all three branches of Kansas government.

It is my privilege to serve as our state's third female governor, alongside the first female Senate President, Susan Wagle. And the second female Chief Justice of the Supreme Court, Marla Luckert.

Kansas reached this milestone at a fitting moment, as 2020 also marks the 100th anniversary of the passage of the 19th Amendment, which granted women the right to vote.

Anniversaries and new years are always important opportunities to reflect on time gone by, and on progress made. We have another such opportunity this evening, as we usher in not just a new legislative session, but a new decade.

So let us go back for just a moment and remember where we've been.

Almost ten years ago -- to the day -- we gathered in this chamber for the 2010 state of the state address. Kansas found itself in the throes of the worst economic downturn in 80 years. The Great Recession had necessitated \$1 billion dollars in spending cuts. Another \$400 million dollar budget gap still loomed before us. It was brutal.

It's probably for the best that we did not realize, in that moment, that this would be the brightest fiscal outlook Kansas would have for another seven years...

Of course, you know what happened next. A new administration was in place one year later, and the saga of the failed tax experiment began soon thereafter. Instead of recovering from the Great Recession alongside every other state in the nation, Kansas settled in for six more years of financial chaos. This time, it was self-inflicted.

By the time I stood before you as governor in 2019, Kansas was on life support. The state had racked up record amounts of debt, schools had been cut to the bone, taxes on groceries had been increased until they were the highest in the nation, agencies had been decimated, and Kansas had generally become a national model for what not to do.

After devastating cuts and relentless crises - a bipartisan coalition of lawmakers demonstrated courage and conviction when they joined forces in the face of adversity to stop the bleeding in 2017.

That bipartisan effort -- one that so many of you helped bring to fruition -- changed everything.

So, although it was a decade in which much went wrong, we rebounded in a way that only Kansas can.

Over the last 12 months, Kansas added 12,400 private sector jobs.

The state not only reached a new employment record, our unemployment rate fell to its lowest point in 40 years.

Since I became governor, we fulfilled our promise to properly fund Kansas schools.

We reinvested in public safety, and worked tirelessly to stabilize our foster care system.

We increased pay and lowered health insurance premiums for thousands of public employees and their families.

We're paying off debt so we can eventually establish a state rainy day fund and better prepare for financial emergencies.

In US News and World Report's "Best States" rankings, Kansas jumped seven spots in 2019. We now rank 15th highest in education. We scored 7th best in infrastructure.

In fact, I'm proud to report that we improved in almost every category, including the economy and fiscal stability.

I'm also proud to report that in CNBC's annual "Top States for Business," Kansas was declared the "comeback state of 2019."

Above all, I am proud to report that Kansas has ended a turbulent decade on a high note. As we look to the future, the state of our state grows stronger every day.

We have so many reasons to be hopeful tonight. But make no mistake: one year of progress cannot erase a decade of damage. Two of the most important sectors of the Kansas economy remain incredibly fragile.

As a major Boeing supplier, Spirit AeroSystems was hit hard by the recent suspension of the 737 Max production. Even as we speak, thousands of Wichita families are suddenly fearful that soon they may be unable to provide for their families.

I've been in constant communication with local, state and federal officials since temporary layoffs were announced late last week. I instructed my Labor Secretary, Delia Garcia, to take an all-hands-on-deck approach to help workers, Spirit and other Kansas businesses that will be negatively impacted.

Unfortunately, Kansas agriculture also finds itself at a precarious moment.

Between historic flooding last spring and escalating trade tensions over the last two years, net farm incomes have dropped 50 percent from their peak in 2013.

Congress could certainly help, and they could start by ratifying the pending USMCA trade agreement.

I have been a vocal proponent of the USMCA agreement from the beginning. I commend the U.S. House of Representatives for passing this agreement, and urge the U.S. Senate to do the same.

It's critical for Kansas. We are indeed an export state. And with us tonight, from our second largest customer, Canada, is Consul General Stephane Lessard.

Thank you for being here, Consul General.

When it comes to the livelihoods of Kansas families and businesses, we won't wait on Washington and the USMCA agreement however. We must take matters into our own hands.

The International Trade Division at the Department of Commerce was dismantled in recent years. I've instructed my Commerce Secretary, David Toland, to focus on rebuilding this division.

As I said before, Kansas is an export state, and we cannot compete in a global economy without strong international trading partners. We must breathe new life into our efforts to increase exports and compel international companies to choose Kansas.

I'm not just focused on convincing companies to choose Kansas. I'm also focused on the people who choose Kansas.

The effort to reconnect people with their state government and to rebuild public trust -- starts at the top.

From day one, I've wanted Kansans to hear from me about what we're doing, and why we're doing it. Kansans deserve to engage directly with their Governor.

That's why I've hosted "Kansan to Kansan" townhall meetings regularly since I took office. This fall, when I was building the state budget, I went on a listening tour to hear directly from the people about their priorities.

I've talked extensively -- and candidly -- with Kansans about what we've accomplished, and where we'd like to go in the year ahead. In turn, they've spoken candidly with me about their concerns, and how state government can better serve them.

I'd like to share their thoughts and concerns with you, and what I think we can do about them, together, in 2020.

I promised Kansans that I would be "the education governor." I consider the progress we've made on public education to be our most important accomplishment to date -- but we have more to do.

Last year I stood here and asked you to put aside partisanship and work with me to finally provide schools with the resources they need to be successful. You did it, and I applaud you.

I was proud to stand with many of you that Saturday morning last April, as hundreds of public school teachers packed into the ceremonial office to witness the signing of legislation that would end a decades-long legal battle over school finance.

It was truly a remarkable moment. Not just because of what we accomplished, but how we accomplished it.

None of the teachers who attended the bill signing cared if it was a "Democrat" plan or a "Republican" plan. They cared only that their schools would be funded. That it might help improve Kansas teacher salaries, which rank 41st in the nation. They cared that it would ensure educators have what they need to serve Kansas children well.

Let's keep that in mind as we forge ahead.

Restoring school funding was a critical first step. But now I challenge us all to engage in a bigger and bolder conversation about "what's next."

Soon after taking office, I established the Council on Education. I asked the Council to re-evaluate every corner of our educational ecosystem -- early childhood, K-12, higher education and workforce development -- and to bring those players to the same table. I also engaged business and industry, labor, and other stakeholders so we may cultivate the workforce that Kansas will need to compete in the years ahead.

It is time to align all of these moving parts so that we can put Kansas at the forefront of growth and innovation. The work of this Council will be essential in helping us shape the future of Kansas education, the Kansas workforce, and Kansas as a state.

I want to recognize the co-chairs of this council - Dr. Cindy Lane, the former KCK Public Schools Superintendent and Dr. Fred Dierksen, current Superintendent of Dodge City Public Schools, who are here tonight in the gallery. Thank you for all your hard work - and the hard work yet to come.

Our progress on education is a valuable reminder to all of us that Kansans do not keep partisan score — even when clever sports analogies are employed. Kansans care about results. That's what we get when we work together.

We can deliver bipartisan results again in 2020.

And we can start with one of the most urgent issues we face.

This must be the year Kansas becomes the 37th state to expand Medicaid.

Apparently, you have heard that Kansas made a little bit of news on this front last week.

After weeks of tough negotiations and lots of give and take, we developed a proposal that will not only expand healthcare to 150,000 Kansans, but also has the potential to lower health insurance premiums in the marketplace.

It was an honor to stand with so many of you -- Republican and Democrat, Representatives and Senators -- who have been committed to getting this done for Kansas.

We have so many reasons to bring this across the finish line.

In July, a study of mortality rates in non-expansion states estimated that 288 Kansans have died prematurely every year from 2014 to 2017 specifically due to our failure to adopt expansion.

Another study, released in November, showed that expansion improves infant and maternal health.

Yet another found the rate of rural hospital closure increases significantly in non-expansion states like Kansas.

Just last week, a study was released that linked Medicaid Expansion to a decline in opioid abuse.

There is a stack of rigorous, nonpartisan evidence to illustrate how critical KanCare

expansion is to the health and welfare of our state. It grows by the day.

So does public support.

The number of expansion states continues to increase. NO state has reversed its decision to expand. And voters across the ideological spectrum continue to reaffirm their support for expansion in election after election.

I'm talking about in states like Kentucky. Louisiana. Virginia. States where access to affordable healthcare drove people to the polls.

I'm talking about Nebraska, where 54% of voters approved Medicaid Expansion by ballot initiative in 2018.

I'm talking about Oklahoma, where in October a record number of petitions were submitted to put Medicaid expansion on the 2020 ballot.

And, yes, I'm even talking about Missouri. Where expansion is well on its way to a statewide vote, with momentum growing by the day.

If nothing else, surely maintaining Kansas' 159-year tradition of beating Missouri is something we can all get behind...

In all seriousness:

As I said last week, compromise is hard. It is messy. It is slow. But it is so worth it.

Now it's up to all of you to finish the task.

When we do add this to our list of bipartisan accomplishments, it will not only save lives, it will close the book on a long, senseless, expensive political fight -- making room to improve access to health care and grow the Kansas economy.

We are so close. Let's get this done.

As we continue our work to rebuild Kansas, there's one area where we mean it... literally. It's time for us to develop a new, comprehensive transportation plan so that we can rebuild roads and bridges across our state.

My Secretary of Transportation, Julie Lorenz, and her team have spent months hosting community meetings to ensure that all Kansans - in communities large and small - have the opportunity to help shape the future of infrastructure in a way that meets local needs.

Infrastructure is about far more than just roads and bridges.

It's the means by which our school buses safely transport our most precious cargo. It's how we make Kansans' daily commutes faster and safer so they can spend more time with their families. It means jobs. Thousands of jobs. It's the gateway to rural broadband. And as an export state, it is how we get Kansas goods to market and keep our economy humming.

This will be the fourth time Kansas has pursued such an endeavor. Each plan has improved upon the plan before, adapting to changing needs throughout the state and

building on lessons learned. Each plan has propelled Kansas into the future, making our transportation system one of the best in the nation.

There's one lesson from the past, in particular, I hope you will keep in mind as we begin this process anew:

Even the best laid infrastructure plan will crumble if we do not maintain the resources we need as a state to see it through.

As promised, last year I officially began "closing down" the "Bank of KDOT." I am fully committed to continuing that phase out throughout my first term so that we can fulfill the promises of the previous transportation plan and invest in the future.

But I've always been clear that this pledge comes with one, critical caveat: stable state revenues.

Rebuilding fiscal stability in Kansas state government has been one of my top priorities as governor. Last January, I presented a balanced budget to the Legislature without raising taxes. A budget that paid down debt. Re-invested in core services like education and healthcare. All while leaving the largest ending balance in more than a decade.

The budget didn't quite return to me with all those features intact....

The budget that came back to my desk in May included \$182 million dollars more in spending than I had recommended. It did not maintain the statutorily-required ending balance we need to cushion state investments in case of an emergency. It also spent more than we were taking in.

The good news is that Kansas' economic outlook has stabilized, and even improved a bit. While the risk of a recession will always remain a possibility, the foreseeable future does not appear as ominous as it did last January.

That is why tomorrow, for the second year in a row, I will submit to you a balanced budget that continues our rebuilding efforts, that continues to pay down debt, and that honors my promise to cut taxes.

Kansas families are taxed more for food than anywhere else in the United States. These families shouldn't have to pay more than their fair share, especially when it comes to the essentials. So my budget will take the first step in lowering taxes on groceries, starting with Kansans who need help the most.

I've always considered lowering the tax on groceries an urgent need. But ultimately we must work our way back to that longstanding notion of the "three-legged stool." We must rebalance all of our revenue streams — income, sales, and property tax.

The Kansas tax structure has become more than a little lopsided in recent years, which is why my budget will also include property tax relief.

As funding for schools, cities and counties was cut over the last decade, local units of government were left with few options to make ends meet. Increasing property taxes was one of them.

This left local communities frustrated, and put a desperate strain on working Kansans

and Kansans living on fixed incomes -- especially our seniors. They need relief, and we can give it to them in 2020.

Together, the food and property tax relief I will offer will take meaningful strides in rebuilding our overall tax structure so that it is more fair and more fiscally responsible.

But it is only the first step of what must be a multi-phased, multi-year process.

I understand that any discussion of taxes is politically charged. But if we ever truly want to move forward, we must confront the stark inequities, outdated inefficiencies, and expensive loopholes riddled throughout our tax code.

To this end, I established a Council on Tax Reform last summer to develop such comprehensive, commonsense reforms.

I'd like to recognize former Democratic Senator Janis Lee, who is here with us in the gallery, and former Republican Senate President Steve Morris, for spearheading this bipartisan effort.

The Tax Council's work will continue into 2020. In the meantime, the Council identified a targeted food sales tax cut through a refundable rebate and broad property tax relief as two initial steps we can and should take as a state to begin the long process of re-balancing our revenue streams.

Before I move on, I ask you to have a little faith.

As governor, I have worked diligently to honor every promise I've made to Kansans. I've also worked to include you as my partner in the governing process every step of the way. My commitment to working with you on tax reform is no different.

I began my remarks this evening with a quick stroll down memory lane —- but not because the last 10 years were filled with such pleasant memories.

I started there because I don't want Kansas to finish there. We simply cannot go back.

So I want to be clear: to protect our recovery, and to ensure Kansas does not repeat the mistakes of the last decade, I will veto any tax bill that comes to my desk that throws our state back into fiscal crisis, or debt, or sends us back to court for underfunding our schools.

I hope you won't stand for it either.

This has been an eventful year.

One year ago, our social safety net was in shreds.

Together, we took action. We hired dozens of new social workers across the state to better support vulnerable families. We created special response teams and amplified collaboration with the KBI to more quickly recover missing foster care youth. We brought nursing homes back from the brink of fiscal ruin without closing a single facility. We bolstered funding for mental health in an effort to confront an alarming increase in suicide. And, as you will hear more about tomorrow... after five years, we have made preparations to lift the Moratorium at Osawatomie State Hospital.

One year ago, our corrections system was in crisis. Prisons were dangerously overcrowded and staff shortages fueled consistently volatile situations.

It led to violent inmate uprisings at multiple facilities. The situation was so dire at El Dorado that I was forced last February to declare a state of emergency.

Together, we acted, investing \$30 million dollars to reduce overcrowding, address staff shortages and enhance safety in our prisons.

Today, the situation has stabilized. The emergency declaration has been lifted.

The Corrections Department, under the leadership of Secretary Jeff Zmuda, is providing more programming to help reduce recidivism – and shift from an approach that's purely punitive to one that emphasizes rehabilitation and workforce training.

By partnering with businesses to train these inmates in badly-needed job skills, we can both help the private sector fill their workforce shortage and set our incarcerated population on a path to success once they leave the corrections system. By expanding and innovating our capacity for substance abuse treatment and mental health treatment, we can bend the curve on our prison population long-term, improve public safety and strengthen Kansas communities.

We have now laid the groundwork for a serious discussion about comprehensive criminal justice reform.

These are the kinds of things we can accomplish when we act together.

The last decade was one of fits and starts, to be sure.

And, yes, there will be challenges in the decade ahead that we cannot foresee at this moment.

But last week, Kansas Republicans and Democrats stood together to announce a bipartisan compromise on an issue that had been mired in gridlock for years.

Kansas proved once more what's "right" with our state. We stunned outsiders who had watched the disastrous policies of the previous decade unfold and had all but written us off.

And, if we're being honest, we may have even stunned each other.

So, my hope is that 10 years from now, when this body convenes the first session of that new decade it will look back and remember this as the Soaring 20s, a decade when we lived up to our motto Ad Astra Per Aspera.

God bless our great and beloved state of Kansas. Thank you and good night.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Thursday, January 16, 2020.

### FOURTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Thursday, January 16, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 119 members present.

Reps. Lynn and Neighbor were excused on verified illness.

Reps. Barker, Helgerson, Ryckman and A. Smith were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Loving and gracious God,
As we come before You today,
we are grateful for the privilege of serving others.
Our leaders serve the people of this great state.
They represent the desires of their constituents.
The dilemma is that there are such a variety of opinions and thoughts on what is important and how things should be done.
This is what makes serving difficult.
So, I ask that You help these leaders keep open communication, mutual respect for one another, a willingness to listen to each other, and open minds to all possibilities.
If their decisions reflect the heart and wisdom of You, then the solutions will be a benefit to all.
In Your Name I pray, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Baker.

#### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Cox are spread upon the Journal:

Today I want to honor Shawnee Mission Northwest Senior Reis Miller. Joining us are his mother Linda Miller and his father Matt Miller, Matt Ziegenhorn, Entrepreneurial Leadership Instructor, and Justin Hoffman, Culinary Director. Reis won the SkillsUSA Culinary National Championship in 2019. That is after having taken 2<sup>nd</sup> place nationally in 2018. He is also our Kansas SkillsUSA State Culinary Champion in both 2018 and 2019. Now, I know lunch is near and everyone is hungry so I will spare the body by not listing the amazing culinary works of art Reis prepared to win these awards.

On top of these honors, Reis has received more than \$500,000 in scholarship offers from the top culinary schools in the country. He has yet to decide where to attend, but I have volunteered to be a test subject for any meals he wants to experiment with before heading off to college.

Reis is a perfect example of the amazing opportunities non-traditional education experiences can provide. Shawnee Mission School District's dedication to building a culinary program has given thousands of students a chance to experience what working in this field would be like. It has helped Reis find this passion and hone his skills to the point where he is the literal best of the best. The program is so successful that the 2019 USA Skills College Champion is a SM East and SMSD culinary school Alumni.

So body please join me in congratulating our State and National Culinary Champion Reis Miller.

Rep. Cox presented Reis Miller with a framed House certificate.

#### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Rahjes are spread upon the Journal:

The Kansas Agriculture and Rural Leadership Program, known as KARL is beginning its third decade of growing leaders in Kansas. By the time this class graduates, there will be nearly 450 Kansans making an impact in their communities from all areas of the state. KARL is a two year program that is more than field trips and speeches, it is an opportunity to explore our great state, make life long connections and learn skills needed to communicate, trust and be prepared for a world that is longing for leaders.

Joining us today are class participants from across Kansas and the remainder are in the gallery. Please join me in recognizing them. You will find graduates of KARL in leadership positions in many agriculture and rural organizations as well as top companies in Johnson and Sedgwick counties, even in this chamber as Representative Concannon was a member of Class 9 and I was a member of Class 3.

Members of KARL Class 15 include: Kim Baldwin, Inman; J.J. Bebb, Mound Valley; Leland Brown, Lenexa; Allison Burenheide, De Soto; Darci Cain, Ellis; Stewart Cauble, Liberal; Amy Doane, Downs; Jessica Ebert, Tescott; Karly Frederick, Pratt; Roy Frey, Sabetha; Sean Gatewood, Topeka; Kayla Jarvis, Phillipsburg; Justin Kaster, Manhattan; Austin Love, Garden City; Leigh Ann Maurath, Oakley; Kyler Millershaski, Lakin; Jesse Muller, Liberty; Jackie Mundt, Preston; Andrew Ochampaugh, Russell; Garrett Reiss, Kinsley; Kendra Riley, Manhattan; JR Robl, Manhattan; Clay Schemm, Sharon Springs; Anthony Sieler, Wichita; Bob Tempel, Wichita; Debra Teufel, Hutchinson; Shawn Thiele, Riley; and Beth Wiebert, Abilene. President of KARL, Jill Zimmerman; and Vice-President, Susan Sankey.

I ask you join me in recognizing 30 years of leadership development from the Kansas Agriculture and Rural Leadership Program.

#### PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Winn are spread upon the Journal:

Rep. Winn encouraged fellow Representatives to join her at the Martin Luther King march today at the Capitol and she read the following Proclamation by the Governor.

#### TO THE PEOPLE OF KANSAS, GREETINGS:

WHEREAS, The Reverend Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. was born on January 15, 1929, and lived his life promoting peace, freedom, equality and justice for all through non-violent means, becoming one of the outstanding civil rights leaders of our time; and

WHEREAS, Dr. King believed that a person's worth should not be measured by his or her color, culture, class, but rather by his or her commitment to creating a better life for all by living a life of service to others; and

WHEREAS, On August 28, 1963, standing on the steps of the Lincoln Memorial in Washington D.C., Dr. King triumphantly declared, "I have a dream that one day this nation will rise up and live out the true meaning of its creed: 'We hold these truths to be self-evident: that all men are created equal; I have a dream that my four children will one day live in a nation where they will not be judged by the color of their skin, but by the content of their character," and

WHEREAS, Dr. King's dream of a world free from prejudice and injustice has remained fixed in the collective consciousness of all Americans well beyond his tragic death on April 4, 1968; and

WHEREAS, We recognize the lasting truth of his works and his legacy, and we renew our commitment to the principles of justice, equality, opportunity and optimism that Dr. King espoused and exemplified;

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Laura Kelly, GOVERNOR OF THE STATE OF KANSAS, do hereby proclaim January 20th, 2020 as

#### Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

in Kansas and I urge all citizens to reflect upon Dr. King's message and celebrate diversity as one world and one community, to further advance the principles of justice and equality.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2446**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to property seized by law enforcement; receipt; return of weapons; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-2512 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2447**, AN ACT concerning courts; relating to use of two-way electronic audiovisual communication; amending K.S.A. 12-4402, 12-4404, 12-4408, 22-2803 and 22-3205 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-4213, 22-2802, 22-3208, 22-3405, 38-2203, 38-2343, 38-2344 and 60-243 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2448**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to fleeing or attempting to elude a police officer; theft; evidence of intent to deprive an owner of possession; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1568, 21-5801 and 21-5804 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2449**, AN ACT concerning the board of indigents' defense services; relating to appointments to the board; amending K.S.A. 22-4519 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2450**, AN ACT concerning cigarettes and tobacco products; relating to the Kansas clean indoor air act; prohibiting the use of electronic cigarettes in certain places;

- amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6109 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.
- **HB 2451**, AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to the Kansas department of agriculture; the division of animal health; license, permit and registration renewal deadlines; calfhood vaccination tag fees; amending K.S.A. 47-1208 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 47-1001e, 47-1002, 47-1503, 47-1805, 47-1831 and 47-2101 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Agriculture.
- **HB 2452**, AN ACT concerning retirement and pensions; relating to the Kansas police and firemen's retirement system; providing certain spousal and children's benefits for death resulting from service-connected disability; amending K.S.A. 74-4960a and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions.
- **HB 2453**, AN ACT concerning labor; relating to licensing of professional occupations; creating the open borders for Kansas jobs act; amending K.S.A. 1-302, 65-152, 65-1505, 65-1663, 65-28a04, 65-28b03, 65-2906, 65-4203, 65-5406, 65-5506, 65-5906, 65-7203, 65-7503, 72-2157 and 75-7b04 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 65-6129 and 65-6306 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Rhiley.
- **HB 2454**, AN ACT concerning self-storage rental units; relating to sales or towing by operators of property due to abandonment or nonpayment of rent; contractual value of property; amending K.S.A. 58-816 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 58-817 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.
- **HB 2455**, AN ACT concerning state contracts; relating to bid preferences for business partnerships with the federal job corps program; amending K.S.A. 75-3740 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

# HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. HCR 5019—

By Committee on Federal and State Affairs

HCR 5019—A PROPOSITION to amend the bill of rights of the constitution of the state of Kansas by adding a new section thereto stating that there is no constitutional right to abortion, and reserving to the people the ability to regulate abortion through the elected members of the legislature of the state of Kansas.

WHEREAS, This proposition to amend the bill of rights of the constitution of the state of Kansas shall be known and may be cited as the Value Them Both Amendment.

Now, therefore:

Be it resolved by the Legislature of the State of Kansas, two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House of Representatives and two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the Senate concurring therein:

- Section 1. The following proposition to amend the constitution of the state of Kansas shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the state for their approval or rejection: The bill of rights of the constitution of the state of Kansas is hereby amended by adding a new section to read as follows:
- "§ 22. Regulation of abortion. Because Kansans value both women and children, the constitution of the state of Kansas does not require government funding of abortion and does not create or secure a right to abortion. To the extent permitted by the constitution of the United States, the people, through their elected state representatives and state senators, may pass laws regarding

abortion, including, but not limited to, in circumstances of pregnancy resulting from rape or incest, or when necessary to save the life of the mother."

Sec. 2. The following statement shall be printed on the ballot with the amendment as a whole:

"Explanatory statement. The Value Them Both Amendment would reserve to the people of Kansas, through their elected state legislators, the right to pass laws to regulate abortion because there is no Kansas constitutional right to abortion or to require the government funding of abortion.

"A vote for the Value Them Both Amendment would reserve to the people of Kansas, through their elected state legislators, the right to pass laws to regulate abortion because there is no Kansas constitutional right to abortion or to require the government funding of abortion.

"A vote against the Value Them Both Amendment would make no changes to the constitution of the state of Kansas and could prevent the people, through their elected state legislators, from regulating abortion in many circumstances. It would leave in place the newly discovered right to abortion first recognized in 2019."

Sec. 3. This resolution, if approved by two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House of Representatives, and two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the Senate shall be entered on the journals, together with the yeas and nays. The secretary of state shall cause this resolution to be published as provided by law and shall cause the proposed amendment to be submitted to the electors of the state at the primary election in August in the year 2020, unless a special election is called at a sooner date by concurrent resolution of the legislature, in which case it shall be submitted to the electors of the state at the special election.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: **HB 2445**. Higher Education Budget: **HB 2443**.

Taxation: **HB 2441**, **HB 2442**. Transportation: **HB 2444**.

#### COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From From Elaine Frisbie, Kansas Board of Regents, in accordance with KSA 75-7226, the annual report on the KAN-ED Fund.

From Elaine Frisbie, Kansas Board of Regents, in accordance with state law, the annual report on several of the student financial aid programs administered by the Kansas Board of Regents.

From Elaine Frisbie, Kansas Board of Regents, in accordance with KSA 74-32,402, the annual report on the Postsecondary Technical Education Authority.

From Jeff Zmuda, Acting Secretary, Kansas Department of Corrections, pursuant to K.S.A. 75-52,148, report of Crimes Committed by Sex Offenders While in Custody.

The complete reports are kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Your Committee on Calendar and Printing recommends on requests for resolutions and certificates that

**Request No. 1**, by Representative Tom Cox, congratulating Reis Miller on 2019 "1<sup>st</sup> place Skills USA Culinary National championship;

**Request No. 2**, by Representative Brenda Dietrich, congratulating Washburn Rural High School Boys Cross country Team, Championship in 2019;

**Request No. 3**, by Representative Owen Donohoe, congratulating Mill Valley High School Girls Cross Country Team on winning the 2019 6A State Championship;

**Request No. 4**, by Representative Brenda Dietrich, congratulating Bruce Graham, CEO Kansas Electric, dedication, Principles of electric cooperatives trade association retirement:

**Request No. 5**, by Representative Fred Patton, congratulating Kelly Lenz, for over four decades, informed Kansas farmers and ranchers;

**Request No. 6**, by Representative Brandon Woodard, congratulating, Ethel June Nielson on her  $100^{th}$  birthday;

be approved and the Chief Clerk of the House be directed to order the printing of said certificates and order drafting of said resolutions.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the committee report was adopted.

#### COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Ward to replace Rep. Hodge on Committee on Elections on January 16, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Wolfe Moore to replace Rep. Pittman on Committee on Transportation and Public Safety Budget on January 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Pittman to replace Rep. Wolfe Moore on Committee on Taxation on January 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Carmichael to replace Rep. Henderson on Committee on Federal and State Affairs on January 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Ohaebosim to replace Rep. Carmichael on Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications on January 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Parker to replace Rep. Carmichael on Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice on January 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Finney to replace Rep. Carmichael on Committee on Judiciary on January 21, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins the House adjourned pro forma until 8:00 a.m. on Friday, January 17, 2020.

### FIFTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Friday, January 17, 2020, 8:00 a.m.

The House met session pro forma pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills and concurrent resolution were referred to committees as indicated:

Agriculture: HB 2451.

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2453, HB 2454, HB 2455.

Federal and State Affairs: HCR 5019.

Financial Institutions and Pensions: HB 2452.

Judiciary: HB 2446, HB 2447, HB 2448, HB 2449, HB 2450.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Tuesday, January 21, 2020.

### SIXTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Tuesday, January 21, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 122 members present. Reps. Alcala and Donohoe were excused on verified illness. Rep. Helgerson was excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Lord God. thank You for this day and the possibilities it holds. We thank you that we can know You lead us by Your hand. Give us Your Spirit of understanding so that we may always see Your mighty and powerful hand guiding us. Help us when we fall short and are weak, for in Your strength and wisdom we are made strong and prudent. This I pray Lord, help us not to dwell on those things upon which we will never agree such as who should win the Sunflower Showdown but to focus on that which we can agree -Go Chiefs! in Your Name and will, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Phillips.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2456**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to definitions in the Kansas criminal code; possession; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5111 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

**HB 2457**, AN ACT concerning family law; relating to the parentage act; amendment of birth certificate; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 23-2223 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2458**, AN ACT regulating traffic; concerning negligent driving infraction; imposing a penalty for violation; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-2118 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Transportation.

HB 2459, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to coverage of mental illness and substance use disorders; limiting utilization review under certain circumstances; enacting the Kristi L. Bennett mental health parity act; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-2,105 and 40-2,105a and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Samsel, Baker, Bishop, Carlson, Collins, Concannon, Dietrich, Finney, Hineman, Hoheisel, Horn, Kessinger, Lusk, Mastroni, Moore, Ohaebosim, Owens, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, S., Schreiber, Smith, A., Thompson, Wolfe Moore and Woodard.

**HB 2460**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to credits; providing a credit for qualified railroad track maintenance expenditures of short line railroads, by Committee on Taxation.

#### COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Rep. Neighbor to replace Rep. Holscher on Committee on K-12 Education Budget on January 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Bishop to replace Rep. Alcala on Committee on Taxation on January 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Hodge to replace Rep. Curtis on Committee on House Judiciary on January 22, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Carmichael to replace Rep. Henderson on Committee on Federal and State Affairs on January 22, 2020.

#### REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HCR 5017, HCR 5018 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on January 21, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, January 22, 2020.

#### SEVENTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 121 members present.

Reps. Alcala and Donohoe were excused on verified illness.

Rep. L. Ruiz was excused on legislative business.

Rep. Holscher was excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Almighty God,
thank You for life anew each and every day.
Today I ask that you lead our members,
renew them and equip them for the work You have called them to do.
May they find new courage to do that which brings help
to the citizens of this great state.
May each one strive to be of open mind,
with listening ears and a willing heart.
The days are filled with anxiety, misunderstanding
and mixed communication.
Help all to seek Your presence, peace and understanding.
May all that is accomplished be done
for Your honor and glory.
This I pray, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Carlin.

### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2461**, AN ACT enacting the public litigation coordination act; relating to contracts by public entities for legal services on a contingent fee basis; powers and duties of the attorney general, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2462**, AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to the Kansas department of agriculture division of conservation; amending K.S.A. 2-1916, 49-605, 49-611, 49-613, 49-618, 49-620, 49-623, 82a-1602, 82a-1603, 82a-1607 and 82a-1702 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-1903, 2-1904, 2-1907, 2-1907c, 2-1908, 2-1915, 2-1930, 2-1931, 2-1933, 49-603, 49-606 and 49-621 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 49-619, by Committee on Agriculture.

- **HB 2463**, AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to pesticides; the licensure of persons applying pesticides; the permitting of persons utilizing chemigation; amending K.S.A. 2-2448, 2-2467a and 2-3310 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-2440, 2-2449 and 2-2450 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Agriculture.
- **HB 2464**, AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to eggs; repacking requirements for retailers; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-2510 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Agriculture.
- **HB 2465**, AN ACT concerning education; relating to the tax credit for low income students scholarship program act; expanding student eligibility for the program; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-4352 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Education.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: **HB 2456**.

Insurance: HB 2459. Judiciary: HB 2457. Taxation: HB 2460. Transportation: HB 2458.

#### MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

January 14, 2020

Message to the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Directive No. 20-511 for your information.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE No. 20-511
Concerning Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds

Laura Kelly Governor

The above Executive Directive is on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hoheisel, **HR 6027**, by Reps. Bishop and Hoheisel, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

**HR 6027**—A RESOLUTION congratulating and commending Wichita as a 2019 All-America City award winner.

A RESOLUTION congratulating and commending the city of Wichita for being named a 2019 All-America City Award winner.

WHEREAS, Since 1949, the National Civic League has recognized and celebrated civically innovative cities with the prestigious All-America City Award; and

WHEREAS, In 2019, all 10 award winners presented on their community-wide work

to successfully create healthy communities and address local issues through civic engagement, collaboration, inclusiveness and innovation; and

WHEREAS, Those selected for the award demonstrated civic engagement practices that are inspirational, inclusive and promising in their ability to unite members of the community to collectively and collaboratively solve pressing and complex issues; and

WHEREAS, Through its award application, the city of Wichita showed it is a shining example of a determined community that can tackle tough issues and create real change; and

WHEREAS, Wichita presented on numerous initiatives to showcase its work and dedication to improving residents' lives such as initiating police department reforms, increasing access to healthy foods and using League 42 to introduce inner-city youth to baseball and mentorship; and

WHEREAS, Wichita also proved to be a leader with its commitment to the perspectives of all community members during decision-making processes by bringing nearly 100 organizations and 14,000 community members together to establish Project Wichita, a 10-year action plan for the city: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That we congratulate and commend the city of Wichita for being named a 2019 All-America City Award winner.

Be it further resolved: That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send five enrolled copies of this resolution to Representative Hoheisel.

#### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Reps. Bishop and Hoheisel are spread upon the Journal:

We have the distinct pleasure of introducing to you the Mayor and Council Members of the Wichita City Council.

We have invited them here this morning—on Local Government Day—to mark a singular accomplishment: Wichita was named an All-America City by the National Civic League.

The theme of the 2019 All-America City Award was: "Creating Healthy Communities Through Inclusive Civic Engagement." The All-America City Award recognized cities that leverage civic engagement, collaboration, inclusiveness and innovation to successfully address local issues.

To illustrate this, the City noted several initiatives.

- The police chief met with community members to create dialogue and relationships and achieve some mutual agreement on police reforms.
- A school-based breakfast program reduced barriers to good nutrition for children.
- The Park Department supported League 42, a baseball league named for the jersey number of Jackie Robinson. League 42 introduces inner-city youth to baseball and mentorship.
- The Park Department started "Open Streets ICT," the total closure of Douglas Street, a main thoroughfare, for an entire day, granting a unique opportunity to walk, run and bicycle in the heart of the city.

• A decision-making process bringing 100 organizations and 14,000 community members together to establish Project Wichita, a 10-year action plan for the city.

As stated in the August/September Kansas Government Journal this city council does not intend to rest on its laurels. While it is nice to win the award and revel in the accomplishment for a short time, they are all ready to keep forging ahead to make even more progress in our community.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2466**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; enacting the Kansas taxpayer protection act; relating to paid tax return preparers; requiring a signature and tax identification number on returns and claims; authorizing actions by the secretary of revenue to enjoin certain conduct, by Committee on Taxation.

#### COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGE

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Rep. Ousley to replace Rep. Alcala on Committee on Taxation on January 22, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Thursday, January 23, 2020.

### EIGHTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Thursday, January 23, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 121members present.

Reps. Alcala and Donohoe were excused on verified illness.

Reps. Finney and Rhiley were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Father Patrick Rutledge, Rector, Assumption Chapel, St. Marys and guest of Rep. Awerkamp:

Let us pray...

Almighty God, you are the Alpha and the Omega, the beginning and the end of all things. You are not only the God of the individual, but also the God who created society and directs its laws. May your wisdom guide all of our deliberations today and may the natural law which you have written on our hearts always echo in our assemblies, so that the people of the state of Kansas may be blessed with the peace and happiness which the world cannot give. Your kingdom is not of this world, but you have prepared a kingdom for your children who inhabit this world and who need your fatherly guidance to lead us there.

Our Father, who art in heaven, hallowed be thy name, thy kingdom come, thy will be done on earth as it is in heaven. Give us this day, our daily bread and forgive us our trespasses, as we forgive those who trespass against us, and lead us not into temptation, but deliver us from evil. Amen.

May almighty God bless this assembly, in the name of the Father and of the Son and of the Holy Ghost. Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Clark.

#### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Dietrich are spread upon the Journal:

It is my distinct pleasure to introduce the players and coaches of the Washburn Rural High School Boys Cross Country Team, who are the 6A State Champions for 2019.

With this championship, Washburn Rural High School captured its FIRST ever Boys Cross Country Title. This team won their 13th straight City title and 2nd straight Centennial League Title.

Their Head Coach said these boys' commitment to not only become the best individual runners they could be, but to become the best TEAM they could be was unwavering. Every runner gave their absolute best effort for themselves, their team and their school every time they competed and from that dedication and hard work they earned every bit of their success as 6A State Champs.

I would like to introduce you to some outstanding young men who are also great athletes:

Senior Caleb Wright who will attend Baker University and plans to run Cross Country and Track.

Senior Rylan Brown who plans to attend Emporia State University and will also continue to run Cross Country and Track.

Senior Wyatt Allen is heading to Highland Community College where he will continue his academic, cross country and track career.

Senior Jordan Tremblay, who is headed to the University of Kansas.

Senior Jordan Munns, who is headed to Colorado School of Mines to study Environmental Engineering.

Juniors Jacob Mitchell and Arrik White.

Sophomores Spencer Haddock, Alexander Holmes, and Ethan Shorb.

The Head Coach of this championship team is Matt Swedlund, who graduated from Washburn Rural in 2002 and was a multi-sport star Cross Country and Track athlete who went on to run for Kansas State. The Assistant Coaches are Jim Wagner and Kathryn Louderback. In the gallery are the School District Superintendent, Dr. Scott McWilliams and the Athletic Director, Penny Lane.

Colleagues, please join me in congratulating the Boys 6A State Cross Country Championship Team from Washburn Rural High School!

Rep. Dietrich presented the team with a framed House certificate in recognition of their championship.

#### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Dietrich, on behalf of Rep. Donohoe, are spread upon the Journal:

It is my pleasure to introduce the players and coaches of the Mill Valley High School Girls Cross Country Team, who are the 6A State Champions for 2019. The Mill Valley High School is in the DeSoto School District.

With this championship, Mill Valley High School captured its 2nd straight Girls Cross Country Title. This team has won the Eastern Kansas League and Regional titles two years in a row, as well. Mill Valley Girls Cross Country team was undefeated

against Kansas schools in 2019 and have an overall record of 148 wins and only 2 losses.

Here is another fun fact......This group boasts 48 State Championship Medals between Cross Country and Track.

These student athletes participate because this is what they love to do. They put in the work and the time to get better because they want to.....and that's what sports teaches you – to give it your all and never give up.

I would like to introduce you to some outstanding young women who just happen to be great athletes:

Senior Morgan Koca who is a 3-time state Cross Country medalist who plans to run Cross Country and Track in college.

Senior Jena Walker who is an Academic All-Stater and will attend Kansas State University in the fall.

Senior Molly Haymaker who is an all-league, all-region and all-state track athlete and will attend Kansas State University in the fall.

Senior Anna Ricker will also attend Kansas State in the fall.

Juniors Molly Ricker, Josie Tayler, Emma Scheiber and Emma Cross.

Sophomore Katie Schwartzkopf is a 2018 state champion.

In the gallery, we have the rest of the team and their coaches. If you would stand and wave. Sophomores, Quincy Huber, tBridget Roy ,Vania Arora and Freshmen, Cree Crawford. The Head Coach of this championship team is Chris McAfee. the assistant coaches are Madeline Byrd, Kati Strickland, and Brian Fitzsimmons.

Colleagues, please join me in congratulating the Girls 6A State Cross Country Championship Team from Mill Valley High School!

Rep. Dietrich presented the team with a framed House certificate in recognition of their championship.

#### PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Ballard are spread upon the Journal:

Those participating with me today are: Rep. Blaine Finch; Rep. Brenda Landwehr; Rep. K.C. Ohaebosim; Rep. Jene Vickrey; Rep. Ponka-We Victors; and Rep. Brandon Woodard. I would also like to thank Bonnie Coverdale, my office assistant for discovering this speech.

Good morning. I am happy to present my annual Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Tribute to the House of Representatives.

I am proud to have my colleague, Rep. Jene Vickrey, stand with me this morning. We came into the House together in 1993, and have remained good friends all these years. He will open our tribute with quotes from Dr. King.

Martin Luther King, Jr., had immense wisdom in his advocacy of nonviolent change. He knew that the most important thing for living a just, peaceful and fulfilled life is love.

"Darkness cannot drive out darkness; only light can do that. Hate cannot drive out hate; only love can do that."

"We must develop and maintain the capacity to forgive. He who is devoid of the

power to forgive is devoid of the power to love. There is some good in the worst of us and some evil in the best of us. When we discover this, we are less prone to hate our enemies."

"Love is the only force capable of transforming an enemy into a friend."

#### HOW LONG, NOT LONG

"How Long, Not Long" is the popular name given to the public speech delivered by Martin Luther King, Jr., on the steps of the State Capitol in Montgomery, Alabama, after the successful completion of the Selma to Montgomery March on March 25, 1965. The speech is also sometimes referred to as "Our God Is Marching On!"

P.S. -- I participated in this March starting at the outskirts of Montgomery to the Capitol. It was my sophomore year at Webster College in St. Louis, Missouri, a Catholic women's college at the time.

#### Key excerpts:

- "Last Sunday, more than eight thousand of us started on a mighty walk from Selma, Alabama. We have walked through desolate valleys and across the trying hills. We have walked on meandering highways and rested our bodies on rocky byways. Some of our faces are burned from the outpourings of the sweltering sun. Some have literally slept in the mud. We have been drenched by the rains. Our bodies are tired and our feet are somewhat sore."
- "Now it is not an accident that one of the great marches of American history should terminate in Montgomery, Alabama. Just ten years ago, in this very city, a new philosophy was born of the Negro struggle. Montgomery was the first city in the South in which the entire Negro community united and squarely faced its age-old oppressors."
- "They told us we wouldn't get here. And there were those who said that we
  would get here only over their dead bodies, but all the world today knows that
  we are here and we are standing before the forces of power in the state of
  Alabama saying, "We ain't goin' let nobody turn us around."
- "The battle is in our hands. And we can answer with creative nonviolence the
  call to higher ground to which the new directions of our struggle summons us.
  The road ahead is not altogether a smooth one. There are no broad highways
  that lead us easily and inevitably to quick solutions. But we must keep
  going."
- "Our aim must never be to defeat or humiliate the white man, but to win his
  friendship and understanding. We must come to see that the end we seek is a
  society at peace with itself, a society that can live with its conscience. And
  that will be a day not of the white man, not of the black man. That will be the
  day of man as man."
- "I know you are asking today, "How long will it take?" Somebody's asking
  "When will the radiant star of hope be plunged against the nocturnal bosom of
  this lonely night, plucked from weary souls with chains of fear and the

manacles of death? How long will justice be crucified and truth bear it? I come to say to you this afternoon, however difficult the moment, however frustrating the hour, it will not be long because "truth crushed to earth will rise again." How long? Not long? Because "you shall reap what you sow."

- How Long? Not long, because the arc of the moral universe is long, but it bends toward justice."
- "How long? Not long, because:

Mine eyes have seen the glory of the coming of the Lord;
He is trampling out the vintage where the grapes of wrath are stored;
He has loosed the fateful lightning of his terrible swift sword;
His truth is marching on.

He has sounded forth the trumpet that shall never call retreat; He is sifting out the hearts of men before His judgment seat. O, be swift, my soul, to answer Him! Be jubilant my feet!

Our God is marching on. Glory, hallelujah! Glory, Hallelujah! Glory, hallelujah! Glory, Hallelujah! His truth is marching on.

Thank you very much for participating in this special tribute.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2467**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to sex offenses; sexual battery; spouses; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5505 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2468**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to abuse of a child; creating the crime of aggravated abuse of a child; criminal penalties; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5602 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2469**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to terminal medical release; criteria for release; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-3729 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

**HB 2470**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to certified drug abuse treatment programs; supervision and jurisdiction; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6610 and 21-6824 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

**HB 2471**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas criminal justice reform commission; reimbursement for mileage for members who are not legislators or public employees; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6902 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

**HB 2472**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to certified drug abuse treatment programs; diversion agreements; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6824 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

- **HB 2473**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to sex offenses; unlawful voluntary sexual relations; Kansas offender registration act; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5507 and 22-4902 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.
- **HB 2474**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas offender registration act; relating to violation of act; penalties; waiver of fees by the court; obstructing apprehension or prosecution; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5913, 21-6804, 22-4903 and 22-4905 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.
- **HB 2475**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas offender registration act; relating to drug offenses; law enforcement access; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-4906 and 22-4909 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.
- **HB 2476**, AN ACT concerning the national motto; relating to the display thereof in public buildings, by Representatives Capps, Bergquist, Blex, Collins, Donohoe, Dove, Garber, Helmer, Houser, Howard, Rhiley, Seiwert and Waggoner.
- **HB 2477**, AN ACT concerning legal public holidays; designating General Election Day as a legal public holiday; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 35-107 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.
- **HB 2478**, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to the third party administrators act; updating certain related definitions and requirements; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-3801, 40-3810, 40-3812, 40-3813, 40-3815 and 40-3821 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Insurance.
- **HB 2479**, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to the corporate governance annual disclosure report; pertaining to filing procedures; required contents; codifying the national association of insurance commissioners corporate governance model regulation into statute; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-2,203 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Insurance.
- **HB 2480**, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to the long-term care insurance act; updating the definition of long-term care insurance; amending K.S.A. 40-2227 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Insurance.
- **HB 2481**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to police vehicles; allowing police vehicles to equip blue-only lights; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1720 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Transportation.
- **HB 2482**, AN ACT concerning salvage vehicles; relating to the cost of repairs; excluding inflatable safety restraints from the definition of cost of repairs; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-197 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Transportation.
- **HB 2483**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to behavioral and mental health; prohibiting certain licensed individuals from using conversion therapy on minors; amending K.S.A. 65-2837 and 74-7507 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 65-1120 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Children and Seniors.
- **HB 2484**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; sentencing; good time credits; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6821 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.
- **HB 2485**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to property crimes; loss values; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5802, 21-5813, 21-5821, 21-5825, 21-5828, 21-5830, 21-5927, 21-6002, 21-6004, 21-6005 and 21-6205 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

- **HB 2486**, AN ACT concerning property taxation; relating to motor vehicles; exemptions; military personnel; amending K.S.A. 79-5107 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Veterans and Military.
- **HB 2487**, AN ACT concerning education; relating to exceptional children and references to emotional disability; amending K.S.A. 72-3404 and 75-5399 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Education.
- **HB 2488**, AN ACT concerning schools; relating to school districts and nonpublic schools; emergency medication kits for certain life threatening conditions; requiring a prescription for distribution of emergency medication to schools; administration of emergency medication by school personnel; training requirements; exempting certain persons from the practice of healing arts and civil liability if acting in good faith; amending K.S.A. 65-1680, 65-2872b and 72-6283 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Education.
- **HB 2489**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to distinctive license plates; providing for the proud educator license plate, by Committee on Transportation.
- **HB 2490**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to corporations; providing for an extension of the net operating loss carryforward period; amending K.S.A. 79-32,143 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2491**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to income tax, rates; sales and compensating use tax, providing for sales tax exemptions for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products, authorizing local sales tax on food and food ingredients; amending K.S.A. 79-32,110, 79-3602 and 79-3606 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-189a and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Highberger, Benson, Clayton, Gartner, Horn, Ruiz, S. and Xu.
- **HB 2492**, AN ACT concerning state officers and employees; relating to the Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan; ending participation of certain employees of the legislative branch; amending K.S.A. 74-4911f and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Appropriations.
- **HB 2493**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas sentencing commission; relating to membership; legislative members; amending K.S.A. 74-9102 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.
- **HB 2494**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to unlawfully tampering with electronic monitoring equipment; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6322 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Agriculture: HB 2462, HB 2463, HB 2464.

Judiciary: HB 2461.

K-12 Education Budget: HB 2465.

Taxation: HB 2466.

### COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Connie Owen, Chair, Kansas Water Authority, 2020 Annual Report to the Governor and Legislature.

From Kirk D. Thompson, Director, Kansas Bureau of Investigation, in compliance with K.S.A. 60-4117, regarding the status of the KBI State Forfeiture Fund.

The complete reports are kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **HB 2431** be passed. Committee on **Federal and State Affairs** recommends **HCR 5019** be adopted.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 9:00 a.m., Friday, January 24, 2020.

### NINTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Friday, January 24, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 99 members present.

Reps. Alcala, Cox, Donohoe and Hodge were excused on verified illness.

Reps. Blex and Murnan were excused on legislative business.

Reps. Baker, Benson, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Delperdang, Frownfelter, Helgerson, Holscher, Neighbor, Phillips, Ralph, Rhiley, L. Ruiz, Tarwater, Thomas, Thompson, Ward, Winn and Xu were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

# Loving God,

thank You for Your faithfulness throughout this week.

For all that has been accomplished, we are grateful.

The days have gone by quickly

which reminds us that we need to be sure

we redeem our time wisely and make the best use of it.

Time is a gift given to us and to waste it

shows a lack of discipline and sensible counsel.

Help each one in the hours ahead to know

when to speak and when to be silent;

when to tear down and when to build up;

when to seek and search and when to make a decision.

In Christ's Name I pray, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Carlson.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2495**, AN ACT concerning the crime victims compensation board; relating to applications for compensation; mental health counseling; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 74-7305 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

**HB 2496**, AN ACT concerning drivers' licenses; relating to replacement drivers' licenses; court services and community corrections agencies; issuance of identification certificate; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-246 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

**HB 2497**, AN ACT concerning traffic regulations; relating to the duty of drivers approaching stationary vehicles; penalty for unlawful passing; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-2118 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Transportation.

**HB 2498**, AN ACT concerning property taxation; relating to valuation of property; excluding hypothetical leased fee in the determination of fair market value; amending K.S.A. 79-503a and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2499**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to tax credits; providing a credit for expenditures for placing into service qualified alternative-fuel fueling stations, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2500**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas power of attorney act; relating to effectiveness of power of attorney; exemption of third persons from liability in certain circumstances; amending K.S.A. 58-658 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 58-652 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Judiciary.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: HB 2492.

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: HB 2469, HB 2470, HB 2471, HB 2472, HB

2473, HB 2474, HB 2475, HB 2484, HB 2485, HB 2493, HB 2494.

Education: HB 2487, HB 2488.

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2476, HB 2477.

Health and Human Services: **HB 2483**. Insurance: **HB 2478**, **HB 2479**, **HB 2480**.

Judiciary: **HB 2467**, **HB 2468**. Taxation: **HB 2490**, **HB 2491**.

Transportation: HB 2481, HB 2482, HB 2486, HB 2489.

# COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Mike Michael, Director, State Employee Health Plan, Division of Health Care Finance, Kansas Department of Health and Environment; in compliance with K.S.A. 75-6509, the Kansas State Employees Health Care Commission 2019 Annual Report.

The complete report is kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing passage of SB 45.

### INTRODUCTION OF SENATE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following Senate bill was thereupon introduced and read by title:

SB 45

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Your Committee on Calendar and Printing recommends on requests for resolutions and certificates that

**Request No. 7**, by Representative Brenda Dietrich, commending, Grant A. Unruh on achieving the rank of Eagle Scout;

**Request No. 8**, by Representative Brenda Dietrich, congratulating, Rigel B. Palmberg on achieving the rank of Eagle Scout;

**Request No. 9**, by Representative Brenda Dietrich, congratulating, Dominic M. D'Altilio on achieving the rank of Eagle Scout;

**Request No. 10**, by Representative Brenda Dietrich, congratulating, Alfred Chew on achieving the rank of Eagle Scout;

**Request No. 11**, by Representative Brenda Dietrich, congratulating, Samuel J. Gatschet on achieving the rank of Eagle Scout;

**Request No. 12**, by Representative Brenda Dietrich, congratulating, Johnathon H. Vincent on achieving the rank of Eagle Scout;

**Request No. 13**, by Representative KC Ohaebosim, commending, Roy'Ale Foundation, for providing mentoring and tutoring services for youth in the Wichita Community.

**Request No. 14**, by Representative Kellie Warren, congratulating, Lakewood Elementary School for earning the U.S. Department of Education's National Blue Ribbon School Award.

**Request No. 15**, by Representative Ponka-We Victors, commending, Claudia Amaro in appreciation for dedication and commitment to the Hispanic community of Wichita.

**Request No. 16**, by Representative Ponka-We Victors, commending, Wichita Hispanic Chamber of Commerce.

**Request No. 17**, by Representative Ponka-We Victors, commending, Angela Martinez in appreciation for dedication and commitment to our community and for coordinating events celebrating our Hispanic culture.

**Request No. 18**, by Representative Ponka-We Victors, commending, Angel Martinez in appreciation for your dedication and commitment to our community. Thank you for going above and beyond serving district 103.

be approved and the Chief Clerk of the House be directed to order the printing of said certificates and order drafting of said resolutions.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the committee report was adopted.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Monday, January 27, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# TENTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Monday, January 27, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 121 members present.

Rep. Victors was excused on verified illness.

Reps. Arnberger, Helgerson and Hoffman were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Rep. Jacobs,

Lord Jesus, You are holy and pure, abundant in grace and mercy. In the beginning, You created the heavens and the earth. You are the Almighty and there is none like You. You know every star and sparrow by name and You love us and knew us before we were in our mother's womb. You displayed Your great passion and love for us that though we have all sinned, You freely gave Your perfect life for our sins. Your Word says "Whosoever calls on the name of the Lord shall be saved." Jesus, You, have good things in store for those who humble themselves before You. So today we submit ourselves before You, we humbly ask for Your mercy, forgiveness, and grace. Help us to be obedient to Your Holy Word, and it's in the Blessed Name of Jesus I pray...Amen

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Eplee.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2501**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to nonhighway and salvage vehicles; allowing salvage vehicle pools to apply to the division of vehicles for ownership documents; providing application and notice requirements; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-198 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Transportation.

**HB 2502**, AN ACT concerning roads and highways; designating a portion of United States highway 77 as the Cpl. Allen E. Oatney and SP4 Gene A. Myers memorial highway; amending K.S.A. 68-1022 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Transportation.

HB 2503, AN ACT concerning retirement and pensions; relating to the Kansas public employees retirement system; amortizing a certain portion of the unfunded actuarial liability of the system for a period of 25 years; eliminating certain level-dollar employer contribution payments; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020; authorizing certain transfers from the state general fund to the Kansas public employees retirement fund; establishing procedures for lapsing and decreasing certain amounts of employer contributions for state agencies for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021; amending K.S.A. 74-4920 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Appropriations.

HB 2504, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to exemptions; child advocacy centers; amending K.S.A. 79-3606 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Neighbor, Ballard, Benson, Carlson, Cox, Delperdang, Gartner, Holscher, Horn, Kessinger, Kuether, Lusk, Lynn, Murnan, Ousley, Resman, Stogsdill, Warren and Winn.

**HB 2505**, AN ACT concerning children and minors; relating to the revised Kansas juvenile justice code; violation of probation; detention; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 38-2361 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Owens and W. Carpenter.

**HB 2506**, AN ACT concerning occupational regulation; relating to occupational licenses for certain applicants; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 48-3406 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Croft.

**HB 2507**, AN ACT concerning high school work-based learning programs; liability for students and businesses; amending K.S.A. 72-18,101 and 72-18,102 and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Tarwater, Blex, W. Carpenter, Corbet, Croft, Delperdang, Dietrich, Dove, Erickson, Esau, Frownfelter, Hineman, Hoheisel, Huebert, Humphries, Mason, Mastroni, Owens, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Samsel, Seiwert, Smith, E., Sutton, Thimesch, Thomas, Warren, Wasinger and K. Williams.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: HB 2495, HB 2496, SB 45.

Judiciary: **HB 2497, HB 2500**. Taxation: **HB 2498, HB 2499**.

#### CHANGE OF REFERENCE

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the withdrawal of **HB 2416** from the Committee on Taxation and referral to the Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

# COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Kansas Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing, Kansas Department for Children and Families, 2019 Annual Report.

The complete report is kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

# REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

**HR 6025, HR 6026** reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on January 27, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Tuesday, January 28, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# ELEVENTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Tuesday, January 28, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 122 members present. Reps. Benson and Warfield were excused on verified illness. Rep. Williams was excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Almighty God,
we praise You for Your greatness and
for Your mercies that are new every morning.
Help our leaders view
the opportunities and difficulties that lie before them
with steadfast determination to collaborate
and work together towards solutions that are beneficial to all.
Grant that they be worthy of the responsibilities
given to them and to be the men and women
You have called them to be.
May any walls of disagreement that could divide them
be put aside and be replaced by a spirit of
respect, dignity, and cooperation.
And, may your Spirit, O Lord, be in all our hearts and minds.
This I pray in Your Name, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Garber.

# INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Collins are spread upon the Journal:

Today, I stand here along with the representative from Pittsburg to congratulate Deputy Kurt Grotheer of the Crawford County Sheriff's Department for being named Deputy Sheriff of the Year by the Kansas Sheriff's Association. Deputy Grotheer was bestowed this honor as a result of his quick response and actions during a domestic call.

Rep. Collins presented Deputy Grotheer with a House certificate in honor of his award.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

- **HB 2508**, AN ACT concerning the secretary of state; requiring nonpartisan elections; requiring resignation before becoming a candidate for another office; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-101 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Elections.
- **HB 2509**, AN ACT concerning cities; dealing with the vacation of certain blocks in the original town plat in the city of Americus, by Committee on Local Government.
- **HB 2510**, AN ACT concerning municipalities; regarding dissolution of special districts and assumption of responsibilities by cities, by Committee on Local Government.
- **HB 2511**, AN ACT concerning the use of public funds and resources; relating to firearms; restricting state and local implementation of federal firearm control measures, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.
- HB 2512, AN ACT concerning elections; authorizing Sedgwick county voters on 2020 election days to vote at any polling place; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-2701 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives B. Carpenter, Bishop, Burris, Capps, Carlin, Carmichael, W. Carpenter, Erickson, Hodge, Hoheisel, Howard, Humphries, Moore, Owens, Resman, Rhiley, Sawyer, Seiwert, Straub, Tarwater, Thimesch, Waggoner, Ward, Woodard, Xu and Yeager.
- **HB 2513**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to marketplace facilitators; requiring the collection and remittance for sales, compensating use and transient guest taxes made on platforms; removing click through nexus provisions; amending K.S.A. 79-3702 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2514**, AN ACT concerning counties; relating to disputes of property valuation; requiring the purchase of certain properties by counties subject to valuation dispute, by Representative Rhiley.
- **HB 2515**, AN ACT concerning postsecondary education; relating to scholarship programs; creating the Kansas promise scholarship act, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2506, HB 2507.

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: **HB 2505**. Financial Institutions and Pensions: **HB 2503**.

Taxation: HB 2504.

Transportation: HB 2501, HB 2502.

# MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

January 28, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed is Executive Order No. 20-01 for your information.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-01
Establishing the Court of Appeals Nominating Commission

Laura Kelly Governor

The above Executive Order is on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

# REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Judiciary recommends HB 2467 be passed.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2426** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

# COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Woodard to replace Rep. Warfield on Committee on Taxation on January 28, 2020.

# REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HR 6027 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on January 28, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, January 29, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# TWELFTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Wednesday, January 29, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 122 members present. Reps. Warfield, Winn and Yeager were excused on verified illness.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Jehovah Jireh. God who provides, we express our gratitude for all You provide for us each and every day. You provide us with patience, when others wish to anger us. You bestow upon us tolerance with those who frustrate us. You encourage us to be accepting of those who disappoint us. You help us remain calm in the midst of provocation. These are attributes we need every day to do the work placed before us. Help us all to be willing to accept these gifts from You. And on this Kansas Day remind us that these are the values and attributes of which have been instilled in us as Midwestern Kansans. I pray this in Christ's Name, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Schreiber.

#### CELEBRATION OF KANSAS DAY

In celebration of the 159<sup>th</sup> birthday of Kansas, Reps. Ballard, Dove, Johnson and Thomas led the members of the House in singing "Home on the Range."

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2516**, AN ACT establishing the first-time home buyer savings account act; relating to financial institutions; income taxation, providing for addition and subtraction modifications for contributions to first-time home buyer savings accounts; amending

- K.S.A. 79-32,117 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Rural Revitalization.
- **HB 2517**, AN ACT concerning property taxation; relating to agricultural improvement destroyed or substantially destroyed by natural disaster; amending K.S.A. 79-1613 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Karleskint, Amyx, Dove and Horn.
- **HB 2518**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to crimes against persons; domestic battery; prior convictions; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5414 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.
- **HB 2519**, AN ACT concerning postsecondary education; creating the students' right to know act; relating to the publication of certain information regarding postsecondary education, by Committee on Education.
- **HB 2520**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to assault and battery of sports officials; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5412 and 21-5413 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.
- **HB 2521**, AN ACT concerning athlete agents; enacting the revised uniform athlete agents act; repealing K.S.A. 44-1516, 44-1517, 44-1518, 44-1519, 44-1520, 44-1521, 44-1522, 44-1523, 44-1524, 44-1525, 44-1526, 44-1527, 44-1528, 44-1529, 44-1530, 44-1531, 44-1532, 44-1533, 44-1534, 44-1535 and 44-1536, by Committee on Judiciary.
- **HB 2522**, AN ACT concerning hospitals; relating to rural hospitals; providing grant assistance to hospitals in certain counties; establishing the rural hospital innovation grant program; rural hospital innovation grant fund, by Committee on Appropriations.
- **HB 2523**, AN ACT concerning housing; relating to assistance animals; enacting the Kansas assistance animals in housing act; creating the crimes of misrepresentation of entitlement to an assistance animal and improper denial of an assistance animal, by Committee on Judiciary.
- **HB 2524**, AN ACT concerning motor carriers; relating to the state corporation commission's regulation of motor carriers; updating and repealing certain procedures for certificates of convenience and necessity and certificates of public service; repealing certain laws to conform to federal regulation; amending K.S.A. 66-1,105, 66-1,108, 66-1,110, 66-1,111, 66-1,112, 66-1,112g, 66-1,112j, 66-1,114, 66-1,114b, 66-1,116, 66-1,119 and 66-1,141 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 66-1,118, 66-1,119a, 66-1,140 and 66-1,142d, by Committee on Transportation.
- **HB 2525**, AN ACT concerning roads and highways; designating a bridge on United States highway 77 as the PFC Loren H. Larson memorial bridge, by Committee on Transportation.
- **HB 2526**, AN ACT concerning education; relating to school district capital improvements state aid determination; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5462 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on K-12 Education Budget.
- **HB 2527**, AN ACT concerning health; relating to the department of health and environment; division of public health; advisory committee on trauma; statewide trauma system regional council; removing the expiration of the authority to conduct closed session meetings and keep records privileged; amending K.S.A. 75-5664 and 75-5665 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Rural Revitalization.

**HB 2528**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to antique vehicles; providing that all vehicles that are more than 35 years old satisfy the definition of antique for registration purposes; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-166 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Hoheisel, Baker, Bergquist, Blex, Claeys, Delperdang, Mason and Owens.

**HB 2529**, AN ACT concerning STAR bonds; relating to STAR bond projects, rural redevelopment projects, financing; eligible areas; major business or medical facility; real estate transfers; visitor number tracking plan; capital investment and annual sales requirements; STAR bond districts; project costs; sunset date; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-17,162, 12-17,166, 12-17,169, 12-17,171 and 12-17,179 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: **HB 2515**.

Elections: **HB 2508, HB 2512**. Federal and State Affairs: **HB 2511**. Local Government: **HB 2509, HB 2510**.

Taxation: HB 2513, HB 2514.

# INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Huebert, HR 6028, by Reps. Huebert, Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, Carpenter, Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, Ruiz, Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, A. Smith, E. Smith, Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu and Yeager, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

**HR 6028**—A RESOLUTION congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.

WHEREAS, The Kansas State Department of Education sponsors the Kansas Teacher of the Year program, which identifies, recognizes, and utilizes representatives of excellent teaching in the elementary and secondary classrooms of the state; and

WHEREAS, The mission of the program is to build and utilize a network of exemplary teachers who are leaders in the improvement of schools, student performance, and the teaching profession; and

WHEREAS, Two teachers – one elementary and one secondary – in each of the state's four United States congressional districts were selected as finalists for

recognition as Kansas Teacher of the Year, with the recipient being chosen from among the eight finalists; and

WHEREAS, The Kansas Teacher of the Year is awarded with the Hubbard Foundation Kansas Teacher of the Year Ambassadorship, which enables the person selected to devote significant time during the second semester to activities supporting the mission of the program. The 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year and the finalists were honored at an awards banquet on November 23, 2019. All members received a cash award as well as mementos of the event; and

WHEREAS, The Kansas Teacher of the Year is nominated to represent Kansas in the National Teacher of the Year program, a project of the Council of Chief State School Officers, presented by Voya Financial. The 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year, Tabatha C. Rosproy, Winfield USD 465, is one of four finalists for the 2020 National Teacher of the Year; and

WHEREAS, The regional finalists are: Kara E. Belew, Andover USD 385; Amy R. Hillman, Olathe USD 233; Shawn Hornung, Wamego USD 320; Stefanie M. Lane, Clay County USD 379; Julie Loevenstein, Basehor-Linwood USD 458; Lara K. McDonald, Auburn-Washburn USD 437; and Melissa K. Molteni, Shawnee Mission USD 512: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That we congratulate and commend the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team and wish Tabatha C. Rosproy success in the national competition; and

*Be it further resolved:* That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send eight enrolled copies of this resolution to Representative Huebert.

#### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Reps. Dietrich and Huebert are spread upon the Journal:

It is my honor, on behalf of the House Education Committee of which the Chair is here with me, and the nearly half-million students in our public school classrooms in this great state of Kansas, to introduce to you some remarkable educators who we know are simply outstanding teachers.

These are deeply caring, committed, and talented educators who believe in the power of public education to make a positive difference in the lives of their students.

They love what they do. They challenge their students to do more, to be more, and to expect more.

This is a group of extraordinary teachers that we honor here today. In the course of their careers, they have left a lasting impact on the lives of the thousands of students they have taught, and on the communities in which they teach.

Mr. Speaker and fellow Representatives, we would like to introduce you to the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year Team. Rep. Huebert introduced the following teachers:

- Kara Belew, a Social Studies teacher from Andover Central High School in Andover, Kansas.
- Amy Hillman, who teaches grades 6 and 8 Project Based Learning at Santa Fe Trail Middle School in the Olathe School District.
- Shawn Hornung, a high school Social Studies teacher at Wamego High School, in the Wamego School District.

- Stefanie Lane, a 4th grade Math and English/Language Arts teacher at Garfield Elementary School in Clay Center, Kansas.
- Julie Loevenstein, who teaches 4th grade at Glenwood Ridge Elementary School in the Basehor-Linwood School District.
- Lara McDonald, who teaches 7th grade Language Arts at Washburn Rural Middle School in the Auburn-Washburn District in Topeka, Kansas.
- Melissa Molteni, who teaches 2nd grade at Corinth Elementary School in the Shawnee Mission School District.

#### AND.....

Lastly, our 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year who has been announced as one of 4 finalists for the National Teacher of the Year.....

 Tabatha Rosproy is a Preschool, Early Childhood Teacher at Winfield Early Learning Center in the Winfield School District and is our 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year!

What a fabulous group of educators we have before us today.

Colleagues, please join me in recognizing these exceptional teachers.

# INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

The following resolution was introduced and read by title:

HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6029—

By Representative S. Ruiz

HR 6029—A RESOLUTION designating January 30, 2020, as Latina Leaders Day at the Capitol.

WHEREAS, Many Latina leaders in the State of Kansas have helped advance civil rights, economic prosperity and equality through their sacrifice, dedication and leadership; and

WHEREAS, We acknowledge the importance of designating a day to celebrate Latina leadership and the contributions made by Latina leaders; and

WHEREAS, "Latina Leaders Day at the Capitol" is a bipartisan effort designated for networking, leadership, civic engagement and to celebrate the importance of Latina leaders to the State of Kansas; and

WHEREAS, Participants from every Kansas Judicial District will be in attendance; and

WHEREAS, Many organizations worked tirelessly to make the day possible, including the Kansas Hispanic & Latino American Affairs Commission, a seven-member body appointed by the Governor; and

WHEREAS, Latina history, culture and traditions are a respected and honored part of a rich legacy of the State of Kansas and the United States: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That we designate January 30, 2020, as "Latina Leaders Day at the Capitol"; and

Be it further resolved: That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send five enrolled copies of this resolution to Representative S. Ruiz.

#### CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to **HB 2426** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the first day.

# REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends HB 2454 be amended on page 1, following line 11, by inserting:

"(b) For purposes of any claim or action against an operator involving a claim of damage to, or the loss of, personal property stored in a leased space pursuant to a rental agreement with the operator, the value of such personal property shall be limited by the maximum value of personal property permitted to be stored in the leased space under the terms of the rental agreement.";

Also on page 1, by striking all in lines 17 and 18; in line 21, after "property" by inserting "; and

(4) of the claim limitation pursuant to subsection (b)"; by striking all in lines 22 through 27;

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

On page 3, by striking all in lines 18 through 29;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking all after "sales"; and the bill be passed as amended.

#### COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Rep. Ousley to replace Rep. Winn on Committee on K-12 Education Budget on January 30, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Neighbor to replace Rep. Finney on Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions on Feb 3, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Thursday, January 30, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# THIRTEENTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Thursday, January 30, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 123 members present. Rep. Winn was excused on legislative business. Rep. Long was excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

thank You for another day to live and enjoy.

As our leaders work together,
help them to work hard and to work together
like in football.

They need to believe – in themselves and in others.
There must be total commitment, hard work,
dedication and self-sacrifice on each part.
It requires a team that beats with one heart,
finding a way to accomplish the one goal—
winning for the home crowd.
May it happen in this chamber...
and may it happen in Miami this weekend.
This I pray, Amen.

Faithful and loving God,

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Awerkamp.

#### PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Waymaster are spread upon the Journal:

I want to take the time to tell you about a famous Russellite that many may not know about. She is a distant cousin to my maternal grandmother. Her name is Marj Dusay. Marj Dusay was born in Russell, Kansas February 20, 1936 and she is well known as being an American actress for her roles on daytime soap operas. She was especially known for her role as Alexandra Spaulding on *Guiding Light*, a role she played on and off, from 1993 through the show's 2009 cancellation, as well as playing the wife of Douglas MacArthur in the 1977 movie *MacArthur*.

Marjorie began her career as a member of the Session, an improvisational comedy group in Los Angeles. Her dramatic debut occurred December 21, 1967, in an episode of television's *Cimarron Strip*. She also appeared in the film *Sweet November*.

Dusay started her career with a small role as a waitress alongside Elvis Presley in the film *Clambake* in 1967. In 1968, Marj played a special agent in the TV series *Hawaii Five-O* in an episode titled "Twenty-Four Karat Kill," as well as appearing three times as a seductive temptress on *Hogan's Heroes*. Also in 1968-1969 she played Gloria in the CBS comedy *Blondie*.

She had numerous guest appearances on popular television shows in the late 1960s and 1970s, and she played Kara, an alien that took Spock's brain, in the first episode of season three of *Star Trek*. In it, Dusay delivered arguably one of the most memorable lines of the original *Stark Trek*: "Brain and brain—what is brain?!"

As I mentioned before she starred as Jean MacArthur in the 1977 film *MacArthur* and guest starred as Blair Warner's mother, Monica Warner, on *The Facts of Life*. In 1982 she appeared as Kate Hanrahan, a madam/con artist, in several episodes of *Bret Mayerick*.

Already an established actress, she began her long career on daytime TV, she made her soap debut in April 1983, as the powerful Washington, D.C. matriarch Myrna Clegg on *Capitol*, which she played through the final episode in March 1987. As the rival of the kindly Clarissa McCandless, she had a part in practically every storyline. Marj received two Supporting Actress Soap Opera Digest nominations for this role.

She then took over for Shirley Ann Field as the troubled Pamela Pepperidge Capwell Conrad on Santa Barbara in 1987, 1988 and 1991. In 1993, she filled in for Louise Sorel as "Vivian Alamain" on *Days of our Lives* while Sorel was on medical leave working with future Guiding Light co-star Crystal Chappell. After a nationwide search for an actress to take over for the enormously popular Beverlee McKinsey, Marj began as Alexandra Spaulding on *Guiding Light* in August 1993, remaining on the show until March 1997. She returned for a brief stint from November 1998 to February 1999 but could not resist the chance to create her own part.

Marj also played the role of the evil Vanessa Bennett on All My Children, from 1999-2002. She came back to Guiding Light on its final episode, which aired on September 18, 2009. Shows and films Marj was in were Guiding Light, All My Children, Days of Our Lives, Murder She Wrote, Dallas, Capitol, Facts of Life and as I mentioned she starred in the film MacArthur.

On a personal note there are two stories I can tell about Marj. First was when I was seven years old. My parents flew to LA and visited Marj. One of the highlights was that *Capitol* was filmed at CBS studios and my parents were able to go backstage and my mom got to see the filming studios of the *Young and the Restless, Capitol and The Price is Right*. The second was in 2000. I went to New York and got together with Marj and went to Madam Tussaud's wax museum, which was kind of interesting because Marj would criticize all the wax models and their likeness to the actors and actresses she knew.

I just found out last night that on Tuesday, January 28, Marj Dusay passed away at the age of 83. So I just wanted to mention the life of Marj Dusay. Marj was also the chairwoman of the Kansas Film Commission for 4 years in the 1980s. She was a Russellite, a Kansan and a prolific actress and I just wanted to honor her life.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

- **HB 2530**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas act against discrimination; relating to race; including hair texture and protective hairstyles in the definition of race; amending K.S.A. 44-1015 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-1002 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.
- **HB 2531**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to distinctive license plates; providing a fee for firefighters license plates; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1,155 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Transportation.
- **HB 2532**, AN ACT concerning school buses; relating to the illegal passing of school buses; authorizing the department of education to contract with private vendors for the installation and operation of stop signal arm video recording devices; procedures; violations; civil penalties; annual report to the legislature, by Committee on Judiciary.
- **HB 2533**, AN ACT concerning family law; relating to arbitration agreements; enacting the uniform family law arbitration act, by Committee on Judiciary.
- **HB 2534**, AN ACT concerning abandoned oil and gas wells; relating to the state corporation commission; abolishing the well plugging assurance fund; transferring assets and liabilities to the abandoned oil and gas well fund; amending K.S.A. 27-118, 55-161, 55-168, 55-179, 55-180, 55-192 and 75-3036 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 55-155 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 55-166 and 55-167 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 55-193, by Committee on Appropriations.
- **HB 2535**, AN ACT repealing K.S.A. 55-163; relating to a requirement that the state corporation commission and the department of health and environment enter into an interagency agreement for integration of certain oil and gas regulatory operations on or before November 1, 1982, by Committee on Appropriations.
- **HB 2536**, AN ACT concerning oil and gas wells; relating to the state corporation commission; abandoned wells; investigations by the commission; determination of responsible persons; plugging of abandoned wells; authorizing payment from the abandoned oil and gas well fund for certain plugging operations; amending K.S.A. 55-150, 55-178, 55-179, 55-180 and 55-192 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Appropriations.
- **HB 2537**, AN ACT concerning sales and compensating use tax; relating to the collection and remittance of tax; retailer doing business in this state; providing gross receipts requirements for nexus; amending K.S.A. 79-3702 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2538**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to deductions; increasing the Kansas standard deduction; amending K.S.A. 79-32,119 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2539**, AN ACT concerning traffic regulations; relating to operating a vehicle while fatigued; creating a traffic infraction thereof; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-2118 and repealing the existing section; also repealing K.S.A. 8-2118c, by Representative Carmichael.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: HB 2522.

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2529.

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: HB 2518.

Education: HB 2519.

Federal and State Affairs: **HB 2520**. Judiciary: **HB 2521**, **HB 2523**. K-12 Education Budget: **HB 2526**. Rural Revitalization: **HB 2516**, **HB 2527**.

Taxation: HB 2517.

Transportation: HB 2524, HB 2525, HB 2528.

# CHANGE OF REFERENCE

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the withdrawal of **HB 2497** from the Committee on **Judiciary** and referral to the Committee on **Transportation**.

# MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

# Executive Reorganization Order No. 44 By Governor Laura Kelly January 30, 2020

Pursuant to Article 1, Section 6, of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, today I transmit Executive Reorganization Order No. 44 to the Kansas Legislature along with this message to the House of Representatives.

Effective July 1, 2020, this reorganization creates the Kansas Department of Human Services ("KDHS"), which will be responsible for all current programs, responsibilities, functions, and duties of the Department for Children and Families ("DCF"), the Department for Aging and Disability Services ("KDADS"), and the juvenile services division of the Department of Corrections. DCF and KDADS will be dissolved, but no current responsibilities, duties, or functions will be abolished.

The creation of this new, combined agency reinforces our commitment to our children, families, and seniors in need and improves their access to critical services. The new KDHS will allow us to focus on prevention, so that we can identify and serve Kansans in need before their situation becomes a crisis that is more costly to both themselves and our communities. Through partnering with communities across the state, KDHS will establish a one-stop-shop for Kansans in need of such services and will ensure that our government delivers those services in the most efficient and effective manner.

I look forward to working with the House of Representatives to improve our ability to serve Kansans in need and to build healthy communities across our State.

# EXECUTIVE REORGANIZATION ORDER NO. 44 By Governor Laura Kelly Transmitted January 30, 2020

Section 1. (a) The Kansas department for children and families is hereby renamed the Kansas department of human services. Except as otherwise provided by this order, whenever the department for children and families, or words of like effect, are referred to or designated by any statute, rule and regulation, contract, or any other document regardless of whether such reference is in regard to any of the powers, duties, or

functions transferred pursuant to this order or not, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the Kansas department of human services. Except as otherwise provided by this order, whenever the secretary for children and families, or words of like effect, are referred to or designated by any statute, rule and regulation, contract, or any other document regardless of whether such reference is in regard to any of the powers, duties, or functions transferred pursuant to this order or not, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the secretary of human services.

- (b) It is intended that the Kansas department of human services and the secretary of human services shall have authority to administer all programs and services which are currently being administered by the Kansas department for children and families when this order becomes effective, including any programs, services and grants for which the Kansas department for children and families is serving as an operating agency or grants manager for another state agency or federal agency at the time this order becomes effective.
- (c) On the effective date of this order, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to whatever right, title or interest the Kansas department for children and families has acquired in any real property in this state, and the Kansas department of human services shall hold the same for and in the name of the state of Kansas. On and after the effective date of this order, whenever any statute, contract, deed or other document concerns the power or authority of the Kansas department for children and families or the secretary for children and families to acquire, hold or dispose of real property or any interest therein, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to such power or authority.
- (d) The Kansas department of human services shall succeed to all property, property rights, and records which were used for or pertain to the performance of powers, duties, and functions transferred to it by this order from the department for children and families and the secretary for children and families. Any conflict as to the proper disposition of property, personnel, or records arising under this order shall be determined by the governor, whose decision shall be final.
- (e) The secretary of human services may adopt rules and regulations for the government, regulation and operation of programs and services administered by the Kansas department of human services.
- Sec. 2. (a) The Kansas department for aging and disability services created by K.S.A. 75-5902 *et seq.* and Executive Reorganization Order No. 41, is hereby abolished.
- (b) Except as otherwise provided by this order, all of the jurisdiction, powers, functions and duties of the Kansas department for aging and disability services and the secretary of the Kansas department for aging and disability services are hereby transferred to and conferred and imposed upon the Kansas department of human services and the secretary of human services.
- (c) Except as otherwise provided by this order, the Kansas department of human services and the secretary of human services shall be the successor in every way to the jurisdiction, powers, duties and functions of the Kansas department for aging and disability services and the secretary for aging and disability services in which the same were vested prior to the effective date of this order. Every act performed in the exercise of such jurisdiction, powers, duties and functions by or under the authority of the Kansas department of human services and the secretary of human services shall be deemed to have the same force and effect as if performed by the Kansas department for

aging and disability services or the secretary for aging and disability services, respectively, in which such jurisdiction, powers, duties and functions were vested prior to the effective date of this order.

- (d) Except as otherwise provided by this order, whenever the department for aging and disability services, or words of like effect, is referred to or designated by a statute, contract or other document, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the Kansas department of human services.
- (e) Except as otherwise provided by this order, whenever the secretary for aging and disability services, or words of like effect, is referred to or designated by a statute, contract or other document, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the secretary of human services.
- (f) All rules and regulations, policies and procedures of the Kansas department for aging and disability services or the secretary for aging and disability services which relate to the functions transferred by this order and which are in effect on the effective date of this order shall continue to be effective and shall be deemed to be rules and regulations, policies and procedures of the Kansas department of human services or the secretary of human services until revised, amended, revoked, or nullified pursuant to law.
- (g) All orders and directives of the Kansas department for aging and disability services or the secretary for aging and disability services in existence on the effective date of this order shall continue to be effective and shall be deemed to be orders and directives of the Kansas department of human services or the secretary of human services until revised, amended or nullified pursuant to law.
- (h) On the effective date of this order, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to whatever right, title or interest the Kansas department for aging and disability services has acquired in any real property in this state, and the Kansas department of human services shall hold the same for and in the name of the state of Kansas. On and after the effective date of this order, whenever any statute, contract, deed or other document concerns the power or authority of the Kansas department for aging and disability services or the secretary for aging and disability services to acquire, hold or dispose of real property or any interest therein, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to such power or authority.
- (i) The Kansas department of human services and the secretary of human services shall be continuations of the Kansas department for aging and disability services and the secretary for aging and disability services.
- (j) The secretary of human services shall determine the manner in which the office of the secretary of aging and disability services is organized within the Kansas department of human services.
- (k) The secretary of human services shall determine the manner in which aging, disability and behavioral health programs are organized within the Kansas department of human services.
- (l) The secretary of human services shall determine the manner in which programs provided by the institutions, as defined by subsection (b) of K.S.A. 76-12a01, and amendments thereto, are organized within the Kansas department of human services.
- (m) The secretary of human services shall determine the manner in which survey, certification and credentialing programs are organized within the Kansas department of human services.

- Sec. 3. (a) The secretary of human services shall appoint such officers and employees as may be needed to carry out the powers and duties which the secretary assigns to the office of the secretary, aging, disability and behavioral health functions, institution functions, survey, certification and credentialing functions, and office of the financial and information services commission of the Kansas department of human services.
- (b) All officers and employees in the Kansas department for aging and disability services who, immediately prior to the effective date of this order, are engaged in the exercise and performance of the powers, duties, and functions transferred by this order, are hereby transferred to the Kansas department of human services unless the secretary of human services determines that some officers or employees are not performing necessary services. All classified employees so transferred shall retain their status as classified employees. Thereafter, the secretary of human services may convert vacant classified positions to positions in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act.
- (c) Officers and employees in the Kansas department for aging and disability services transferred by this order shall retain all retirement benefits and leave balances and rights which had accrued or vested prior to the date of transfer. The service of each such employee so transferred shall be deemed to have been continuous. Any subsequent transfers, layoffs, or abolition of classified service positions under the Kansas civil service act shall be made in accordance with the civil service laws and any rules and regulations adopted thereunder.
- (d) The Memorandum of Agreement between the State of Kansas and the Kansas Organization of State Employees that is in existence on the effective date of this order shall continue to be effective until revised, amended or nullified pursuant to the terms of the Memorandum of Agreement.
- Sec. 4. (a) The aging and disability community services and programs commission and the behavioral health services commission of the Kansas department for aging and disability services is hereby transferred to the Kansas department of human services and shall be a part thereof. The aging and disability community and services programs commission and the behavioral health services commission transferred to the Kansas department of human services by this order shall be administered by the secretary of human services.
- (b) The secretary of human services shall determine the manner in which programs and services provided by the aging and disability community services and programs commission and the behavioral health services commission shall be organized within the Kansas department of human services.
- (c) The programs transferred from the aging and disability community services and programs commission and the behavioral services commission of the Kansas department for aging and disability services are:
  - (1) Mental health and substance abuse;
- (2) serious emotionally disturbed, intellectual and developmental disability, physical disability, brain injury, autism, technology assistance, and frail and elderly Medicaid waivers and programs;
- (3) licensure and regulation of community mental health centers, as defined by K.S.A. 39-2002, and amendments thereto;
- (4) regulation of community developmental disability organizations, as defined by K.S.A. 39-1801 *et seq.*, and amendments thereto;

- (5) licensure of private psychiatric hospitals, as defined by K.S.A. 39-2001 et seq., and amendments thereto:
- (6) licensure of psychiatric residential treatment facilities under subsection (c) of K.S.A. 65-503, and amendments thereto, and subsection (k) of K.A.R. 28-4-1200 on the effective date of this order, and subsection (g)(3) of K.S.A. 72-1173, and amendments thereto:
- (7) licensure and regulation of facilities and providers of residential services, as defined by K.S.A. 39-2001 *et seq.*, and amendments thereto;
- (8) licensure and regulation of providers of addiction and prevention services, as defined by K.S.A. 75-5375, et. seq; and;
- (9) licensure and regulation of providers of services and administration of grants for the older Americans act (OAA), senior care act (SCA), and Medicare programs including the senior health insurance counseling for Kansas (SHICK), the senior Medicare patrol (SMP), and the Medicare improvements for patients and providers act (MIPPA), the client assessment, referral and evaluation program (CARE), the respite for caregivers program, and the program of all-inclusive care for the elderly (PACE);
- (10) any other programs and related grants administered by the aging and disability community services and programs commission and the behavioral health services commission of the Kansas department for aging and disability services prior to the effective date of this order.
- (d) Except as otherwise provided by this order, all powers, duties, and functions of the secretary for aging and disability services pertaining to the aging and disability community services and programs commission and the behavioral health services commission transferred by this order, including that agency's designation as the Medicaid single state authority for substance abuse and for mental health, are hereby transferred to and imposed upon the secretary of human services.
- (e) The Kansas department of human services shall be the successor in every way to the powers, duties, and functions of the Kansas department for aging and disability services pertaining to the aging and disability community services and supports commission and the behavioral health services commission transferred by this order. Every act performed in the exercise of such transferred powers, duties, and functions by or under the authority of the Kansas department of human services shall be deemed to have the same force and effect as if performed by the Kansas department for aging and disability services in which such powers, duties, and functions were vested prior to the effective date of this order.
- Sec. 5. (a) The state hospitals commission of the Kansas department for aging and disability services is hereby transferred to the Kansas department of human services and shall be a part thereof. All institutions, as defined by subsection (b) of K.S.A. 76-12a01, and amendments thereto, and the programs operated by such institutions are hereby transferred from the Kansas department for aging and disability services to the Kansas department of human services. All such institutions shall be administered by the secretary of human services.
- (b) Except as otherwise provided by this order, all powers, duties, and functions of the secretary for aging and disability services pertaining to the programs and operation of the institutions, as defined by subsection (b) of K.S.A. 76-12a01, and amendments thereto, are hereby transferred to and imposed upon the secretary of human services.
  - (c) The secretary of human services shall determine the manner in which programs

and services provided by the state hospitals commission and institutions shall be organized within the Kansas department of human services.

- (d) The Kansas department of human services shall be the successor in every way to the powers, duties, and functions of the Kansas department for aging and disability services pertaining to the programs and operation of the state hospital commission and the institutions that are transferred by this order. Every act performed in the exercise of such transferred powers, duties, and functions by or under the authority of the Kansas department of human services shall be deemed to have the same force and effect as if performed by the Kansas department for aging and disability services in which such powers, duties, and functions were vested prior to the effective date of this order.
- Sec. 6. (a) The survey, certification and credentialing commission of the Kansas department for aging and disability services is hereby transferred to the Kansas department of human services and shall be a part thereof. The survey, certification and credentialing commission transferred to the Kansas department of human services by this order shall be administered by the secretary of human services.
- (b) The secretary of human services shall determine the manner in which programs and services provided by the survey, certification and credentialing commission shall be organized within the Kansas department of human services.
- (c) The programs to be transferred by this commission are the Kansas act on credentialing, K.S.A. 65-5001 through 65-5011, and amendments thereto, including the following programs:
- (1) Licensure of adult care home administrators, as defined by subsection (c) of K.S.A. 65-3501, and amendments thereto;
- (2) licensure of dietitians, as defined by subsection (f) of K.S.A. 65-5902, and amendments thereto;
- (3) certification of residential care facility operators, as defined by subsection (a)(21) of K.S.A. 39-923, and amendments thereto;
- (4) certification of activity directors, as defined by subsection (a) of K.A.R. 26-39-100 on the effective date of this order;
- (5) certification of social service designees, as defined by subsection (sss) of K.A.R. 26-39-100 on the effective date of this order;
- (6) certification of nurse aides, as defined by subsection (qq) of K.A.R. 26-39-100 on the effective date of this order;
- (7) certification of medication aides as defined by subsection (nn) of K.A.R. 26-39-100 on the effective date of this order;
- (8) certification of home health aides as defined by subsection (e) of K.S.A. 65-5101, and amendments thereto; and
- (9) maintenance of the Kansas nurse aide registry under subsection (c) of K.S.A. 39-936, and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 39-1411, and amendments thereto;
- (10) survey and licensure of adult care home facilities under the adult care home licensure act under K.S.A. 39-923 *et seq.*, and amendments thereto.
- (d) The criminal history record check program, as authorized by individual credentialing statutes or rules and regulations, K.S.A. 39-969, and amendments thereto, K.S.A. 39-970, and amendments thereto, K.S.A. 39-2009, and amendments thereto, and subsection (b) of K.S.A. 22-4707, and amendments thereto, is hereby transferred from the Kansas department of aging and disability services to the Kansas department of human services and shall be a part thereof.

- (e) The licensure of adult care home administrators, the licensure of dieticians, the certification of residential care facility operators, the certification of activity directors, the certification of social service designees, the certification of nurse aides, the certification of medication aides, the certification of home health aides, the board of adult care home administrators, the maintenance of the Kansas nurse aide registry, the survey and licensure of adult care home facilities, and the criminal history record check program shall be administered by the secretary of human services. Nothing in this order shall change or diminish the authority of the board of adult care home administrators established by K.S.A. 65-3506, and amendments thereto.
- (f) Except as otherwise provided by this order, all powers, duties, and functions of the secretary of aging and disability services pertaining to the licensure of adult care home administrators, the licensure of dieticians, the certification of residential care facility operators, the certification of
- activity directors, the certification of social service designees, the certification of nurse aides, the certification of medication aides, the certification of home health aides, the board of adult care home administrators, the Kansas nurse aide registry, the survey and licensure of adult care home facilities, and the criminal record check program transferred by this order are hereby transferred to and imposed upon the secretary of human services.
- (g) The Kansas department of human services shall be the successor in every way to the powers, duties, and functions of the Kansas department of aging and disability services pertaining to those portions of the survey, certification and credentialing program transferred by this order. Every act performed in the exercise of such transferred powers, duties, and functions by or under the authority of the Kansas department of human services shall be deemed to have the same force and effect as if performed by the Kansas department of aging and disability services in which such powers, duties, and functions were vested prior to the effective date of this order.
- Sec. 7. (a) The financial and information services commission of the Kansas department for aging and disability services, including agency-specific information technology and financial oversight programs and services, is hereby transferred to the Kansas department of human services and shall be a part thereof. The financial and information services commission transferred to the Kansas department of human services by this order shall be administered by the secretary of human services.
- (b) The secretary of human services shall determine the manner in which programs and services provided by the financial and information services commission shall be organized within the Kansas department of human services.
- (c) Except as otherwise provided by this order, all powers, duties, and functions of the secretary of aging and disability services pertaining to the programs and services administered by the financial and information services commission transferred by this order are hereby transferred to and imposed upon the secretary of human services.
- (d) The Kansas department human services shall be the successor in every way to the powers, duties, and functions of the Kansas department of aging and disability services pertaining to those portions of the financial and information services programs transferred by this order. Every act performed in the exercise of such transferred powers, duties, and functions by or under the authority of the Kansas department of human services shall be deemed to have the same force and effect as if performed by the Kansas department of aging and disability services in which such powers, duties,

and functions were vested prior to the effective date of this order.

- Sec. 8. (a) The powers, duties, and functions of the Kansas department for aging and disability services and the secretary for aging and disability services pertaining to any and all receiverships of adult care homes filed pursuant to K.S.A. 39-954 *et seq.*, amendments thereto, is hereby transferred to the Kansas department of human services and shall be a part thereof. The powers, duties, and functions of the receiver transferred to the Kansas department of human services by this order shall be administered by the secretary of human services.
- (b) The secretary of human services shall determine the manner in which the receivership program administered under K.S.A. 39-954 *et seq.*, and amendments thereto, shall be organized within the Kansas department of human services.
- (c) The Kansas department of human services and the secretary of human services shall be the successor in every way to the receiver's powers, duties, and functions of the Kansas department for aging and disability services and the secretary for aging and disability services pertaining to any and all receiverships of adult care homes filed pursuant to K.S.A. 39-954 *et seq.*, and amendments thereto, pending on the effective date of this order.
- (d) Whenever the Kansas department for aging and disability services, the secretary for aging and disability services, or words of like effect, is referred to or designated by a statute, contract, order or other document and such reference is in regard to any of the powers, duties, or functions of the receiver under K.S.A. 39-954 *et seq.*, and amendments thereto, transferred to the Kansas department of human services from the Kansas department for aging and disability services by this order, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the Kansas department of human services or the secretary of human services.
- (e) All rules and regulations, orders, and directives of the Kansas department for aging and disability services and the secretary for aging and disability services, or words of like effect, which relate to the powers, duties and functions of the receiver under K.S.A. 39-954 *et seq.*, and amendments thereto, on the effective date of this order, shall be effective and shall be deemed to be rules and regulations, orders, and directives of the Kansas department of human services and the secretary of human services until revised, amended, revoked, or nullified pursuant to law.
- Sec. 9. (a) The balances of all funds or accounts thereof appropriated or reappropriated for the Kansas department for aging and disability services relating to the powers, duties, and functions transferred by this order are hereby transferred within the state treasury to the Kansas department of human services and shall be used only for the purpose for which the appropriation was originally made.
- (b) Liability for all accrued compensation or salaries of officers and employees who are transferred to the Kansas department of human services under this order shall be assumed and paid by the Kansas department of human services.
- (c) Subject to the acts of the legislature, all fees, grant funds, and loan repayment funds of the Kansas department for aging and disability services dedicated to programs transferred by this order shall be transferred to the Kansas department of human services
- Sec. 10. (a) The Kansas department of human services shall succeed to all property, property rights, and records which were used for or pertain to the performance of powers, duties, and functions transferred to it by this order from the department of

- aging and disability services and the secretary of aging and disability services. Any conflict as to the proper disposition of property, personnel, or records arising under this order shall be determined by the governor, whose decision shall be final.
- (b) When any conflict arises as to any power, duty, or function transferred from the department of aging and disability services and the secretary of aging and disability services resulting from any transfer made by or under the authority of this order, such conflict shall be resolved by the governor, whose decision shall be final.
- Sec. 11. (a) Except as otherwise provided by this order, whenever the department of social and rehabilitation services, which was the predecessor to the department for children and families under Executive Reorganization No. 41, or words of like effect, is referred to or designated by any statute, rule and regulation, contract, internal policy or procedure, order or any other document regardless of whether such reference is in regard to any of the powers, duties, or functions transferred pursuant to this order or not, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the Kansas department of human services. Except as otherwise provided by this order, whenever the secretary of social and rehabilitation services, or words of like effect, are referred to or designated by any statute, rule and regulation, contract, internal policy or procedure, order or any other document regardless of whether such reference is in regard to any of the powers, duties, or functions transferred pursuant to this order or not, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the secretary of human services.
- (b) On the effective date of this order, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to whatever right, title or interest the department of social and rehabilitation services has acquired in any real property in this state, and the Kansas department of human services shall hold the same for and in the name of the state of Kansas. On and after the effective date of this order, whenever any statute, contract, deed or other document concerns the power or authority of the department of social and rehabilitation services to acquire, hold or dispose of real property or any interest therein, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to such power or authority.
- Sec. 12. (a) Except as otherwise provided by this order, whenever the department aging, which was the predecessor to the department for aging and disability services under Executive Reorganization No. 41, or words of like effect, are referred to or designated by any statute, rule and regulation, contract, internal policy or procedure, order or any other document regardless of whether such reference is in regard to any of the powers, duties, or functions transferred pursuant to this order or not, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the Kansas department of human services. Except as otherwise provided by this order, whenever the secretary of aging, or words of like effect, are referred to or designated by any statute, rule and regulation, contract, internal policy or procedure, order or any other document regardless of whether such reference is in regard to any of the powers, duties, or functions transferred pursuant to this order or not, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the secretary of human services.
- (b) On the effective date of this order, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to whatever right, title or interest the department on aging has acquired in any real property in this state, and the Kansas department of human services shall hold the same for and in the name of the state of Kansas. On and after the effective date of this order, whenever any statute, contract, deed or other document concerns the power or authority of the department on aging to acquire, hold or dispose of real property or any

interest therein, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to such power or authority.

- Sec. 13. The Kansas department of human services and the secretary of human services shall have authority to administer all programs and services previously administered by the Kansas department for social and rehabilitation services, the Kansas department on aging, and the Kansas department for aging and disability services regardless of whether such programs and services are specifically mentioned in this order as being transferred to the Kansas department of human services. For purposes of this order, all programs and services intended to be transferred to the Kansas department of human services is intended to include all programs and services for which the Kansas department for aging and disability services or the secretary for aging and disability services provides administration services, serves as the operating agency or serves as the manager of grant funds pursuant to an existing delegation of authority or memorandum of understanding between a predecessor of the Kansas department of human services and another state or federal agency on the effective date of this order.
- Sec. 14. The secretary of human services may adopt rules and regulations for the government, regulation and operation of and all programs and services previously administered by the Kansas department for children and families, the Kansas department of social and rehabilitation services, the Kansas department for aging and disability services and the Kansas department on aging.
- Sec. 15. (a) Except as otherwise provided by this order, all of the jurisdiction, powers, functions and duties for the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions administered by the department of corrections and the secretary of corrections pursuant to Executive Reorganization Order No. 42 and K.S.A. 38-2301 *et seq.*, are hereby transferred to and conferred and imposed upon the Kansas department of human services and the secretary of human services.
- (b) Except as otherwise provided by this order, the Kansas department of human services and the secretary of human services shall be the successor in every way to the jurisdiction, powers, duties and functions of the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions of the department of corrections and the secretary of corrections in which the same were vested prior to the effective date of this order. Every act performed in the exercise of such jurisdiction, powers, duties and functions by or under the authority of the Kansas department of human services and the secretary of human services for the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions shall be deemed to have the same force and effect as if performed by the department of corrections or the secretary of corrections, in which such jurisdiction, powers, duties and functions were vested prior to the effective date of this order.
- (c) Except as otherwise provided by this order, whenever the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions operated under the jurisdiction, powers, duties and functions of the department of corrections or words of like effect, is referred to or designated by a statute, contract or other document, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the Kansas department of human services.
- (d) Except as otherwise provided by this order, whenever the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions operated under the jurisdiction, powers, duties and functions of the secretary of corrections, or words of like effect, is referred to or designated by a statute, contract or other document, such reference or designation

shall be deemed to apply to the secretary of human services.

- (e) The secretary of human services may adopt rules and regulations for the government, regulation and operation of juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions.
- (f) All rules and regulations, internal management policies and procedures (IMPP), standards, facility orders and post orders of the department of corrections which relate to the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions transferred by this order and which are in effect on the effective date of this order shall continue to be effective and shall be deemed to be rules and regulations, internal management policies and procedures (IMPP), standards, facility orders and post orders of the Kansas department of human services until revised, amended, revoked, or nullified pursuant to law
- (g) All orders and directives for the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions of the department of corrections or the secretary of corrections in existence on the effective date of this order shall continue to be effective and shall be deemed to be orders and directives of the Kansas department of human services or secretary of human services until revised, amended or nullified pursuant to law.
- (h) Except as provided further, on the effective date of this order, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to whatever right, title or interest the department of corrections has acquired in any real property in this state for juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions, and the Kansas department of human services shall hold the same for and in the name of the state of Kansas. On and after the effective date of this order, whenever any statute, contract, deed or other document concerns the power or authority of the department of corrections or the secretary of corrections to acquire, hold or dispose of real property or any interest therein for juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to such power or authority. The right, title or interest of Larned Juvenile Correctional Facility shall not be transferred to the department of human services and shall remain with the department of corrections.
- (i) Whenever a statute, contract or other document, rules and regulations, internal management policies and procedures (IMPP), standards, facility orders and post orders, and orders and directives for the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions transferred by this order refers in any way to the juvenile justice authority, which was the predecessor to the department of corrections or the secretary of corrections under Executive Reorganization No. 42, such references which are in effect on the effective date of this order shall continue to be effective and shall be deemed to be the statute, contract or other document, rules and regulations, internal management policies and procedures (IMPP), standards, facility orders and post orders, and orders and directives of the Kansas department of human services until revised, amended, revoked, or nullified pursuant to law.
- (j) Except as provided further, on the effective date of this order, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to whatever right, title or interest the juvenile justice authority, which was the predecessor to the department of corrections under Executive Reorganization No. 42, has acquired in any real property in this state for juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions, and the Kansas department of human services shall hold the same for and in the name of the state of Kansas. On and after the effective date of this order, whenever any statute, contract,

deed or other document concerns the power or authority of the juvenile justice authority to acquire, hold or dispose of real property or any interest therein for juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions, the Kansas department of human services shall succeed to such power or authority. The right, title or interest of Larned Juvenile Correctional Facility shall not be transferred to the department of human services and shall remain with the department of corrections.

- Sec. 16. (a) All officers and employees in the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions administered by the department of corrections and the secretary of corrections who, immediately prior to the effective date of this order, are engaged in the exercise and performance of the powers, duties, and functions transferred by this order, are hereby transferred to the Kansas department of human services unless the secretary of human services determines that some officers or employees are not performing necessary services. All classified employees so transferred shall retain their status as classified employees. Thereafter, the secretary of human services may convert vacant classified positions to positions in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act.
- (b) Officers and employees in the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions administered by the department of corrections and the secretary of corrections transferred by this order shall retain all retirement benefits and leave balances and rights which had accrued or vested prior to the date of transfer. The service of each such employee so transferred shall be deemed to have been continuous. Any subsequent transfers, layoffs, or abolition of classified service positions under the Kansas civil service act shall be made in accordance with the civil service laws and any rules and regulations adopted thereunder.
- (c) The Memorandum of Agreement between the department of corrections and Kansas Department of Administration and Teamsters Union Local #696 that is in existence on the effective date of this order shall continue to be effective until revised, amended or nullified pursuant to the terms of the Memorandum of Agreement.
- (d) The Memorandum of Agreement between the State of Kansas and the Kansas Organization of State Employees that is in existence on the effective date of this order shall continue to be effective until revised, amended or nullified pursuant to the terms of the Memorandum of Agreement.
- Sec. 17. (a) When any conflict arises as to the disposition of any jurisdiction, power, function or duty or the unexpended balance of any appropriation from the department of corrections to the Kansas department of human services as a result of any transfer of the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions made by or under authority of this order, such conflict shall be resolved by the governor, whose decision shall be final.
- (b) The Kansas department of human services shall succeed to all property and records which were used for or pertain to the performance of the powers, duties and functions of the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions transferred to the Kansas department of human services from the department of corrections. Any conflict as to the proper disposition of property or records arising under this section, and resulting from the transfer of the powers, duties and functions of the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions, shall be determined by the governor, whose decision shall be final.
  - Sec. 18. The Kansas department of human services shall have the legal custody of all

records, memoranda, writings, entries, prints, representations or combinations thereof of any act, transaction, occurrence or event of the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions and any agency or office transferred thereto under this order or previous law with the exception of records relating to the maintenance and management of the Larned Juvenile Correctional Facility which shall remain with the Kansas department of corrections.

- Sec. 19. (a) On and after the effective date of this order, the balance of all funds appropriated and reappropriated to the department of corrections for juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions, is hereby transferred to the Kansas department of human services and shall be used only for the purpose for which the appropriation was originally made with the exception of funds related to the maintenance and management of the Larned Juvenile Correctional Facility which shall remain with the Kansas department of corrections.
- (b) Subject to the acts of the legislature, all fees, grant funds, advisory group funds, and loan repayment funds in the department of corrections dedicated to the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions affected by this order shall be transferred to the Kansas department of human services.
- (c) On and after the effective date of this order, the liability for all accrued compensation or salaries of officers and employees from the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions who are transferred to the Kansas department of human services under this order shall be assumed and paid by the Kansas department of human services.
- Sec. 20. (a) All jurisdiction, powers, functions and duties relating to all juvenile facilities and institutions defined in K.S.A. 38-2302, and amendments thereto, are transferred from the department of corrections to the Kansas department of human services and shall be under the supervision and control of the secretary of human services as provided by this order.
- (b) The secretary of human services may adopt rules and regulations relating to all persons admitted to juvenile facilities and institutions and the safe and secure operations of such facilities and institutions.
- Sec. 21. The secretary of human services shall administer all grants under K.S.A. 75-7038 through 75-7053, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 22. The secretary of human services shall administer community graduated sanctions and prevention programs and the community advisory committee in accordance with K.S.A. 75-7056, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 23. The Kansas advisory group on juvenile justice and delinquency prevention will report to the secretary of human services in accordance with K.S.A. 75-7007, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 24. After the effective date of this order, the Kansas Correctional Industries is authorized to continue to provide canteen services to the juvenile facilities and institutions administered by the Kansas department of human services or the secretary of human services. Commencing on the effective date of this order, the Kansas Correctional Industries is authorized to provide canteen services to the institutions, as defined by subsection (b) of K.S.A. 76-12a01, and amendments thereto, administered by the Kansas department of human services or the secretary of human services.
- Sec. 25. The Kansas department of human services shall participate in the Interstate Compact for Juveniles. The secretary of human services and the secretary of corrections

shall execute a memorandum of understanding for transferring representation on the Interstate Compact for Juveniles and to share staffing and other agency resources for the administration of interstate compacts to economically meet the needs of juvenile services programs administered by the Kansas department of human services and the needs of adult services programs administered by the department of corrections subsequent to the effective date of this order.

- Sec. 26. (a) No suit, action, or other proceeding, judicial or administrative, lawfully commenced, or which could have been commenced, by or against any state agency or program mentioned in this order, or by or against any officer of the state in such officer's official duties, shall abate by reason of the governmental reorganization effected under the provisions of this order. The court may allow any such suit, action, or other proceeding to be maintained by or against the successor of any such state agency or any officer affected.
- (b) No criminal action commenced, or which could have been commenced, by the state shall abate by the taking effect of this order.

Sec. 27. Except as otherwise provided by this order, all of the provisions of this order shall take effect and have the force of general law on July 1, 2020, unless disapproved by either house of the Kansas legislature as provided by subsection (c) of section 6 of article 1 of the constitution of Kansas, and unless so disapproved, this order is to be published as and with the acts of the legislature and the statutes of this state.

DONE AT the Capitol in Topeka Under the Great Seal of the State of Kansas this 30<sup>th</sup> day of January, 2020.

BY THE GOVERNOR:

LAURA KELLY

Scott Schwab
Secretary of State of Kansas

Sandy Tompkins
Assistant Secretary of State of Kansas

#### MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

# Executive Reorganization Order No. 45 By Governor Laura Kelly January 30, 2020

Pursuant to Article 1, Section 6, of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, today I transmit Executive Reorganization Order No. 45 to the Kansas Legislature along with this message to the House of Representatives.

Effective July 1, 2020, this reorganization moves the State Employee Health Plan ("SEHP") and the State Self Insurance Fund ("SSIF") from the Department of Health and Environment to the Department of Administration. The new reporting structure will align the office with other employee-focused services and will improve administrative efficiencies and support. Current management at the SEHP and SSIF will continue to

manage those programs under the leadership of the Secretary of Administration. None of the responsibilities, duties, or functions of the SEHP or SSIF will be abolished.

Through this reorganization we can better coordinate and support the missions of SEHP and SSIF, which will allow us to focus on delivering more affordable, higher quality health care for employees across the state and will also increase our ability to effectively manage and deliver workers compensation benefits for state employees.

I look forward to working with the House of Representatives to continue to improve important benefits and support for our state employees.

# EXECUTIVE REORGANIZATION ORDER NO. 45 By Governor Laura Kelly Transmitted January 30, 2020

- Section 1. (a) There is hereby established, within the department of administration, the division of the state employee health benefits plan. The head of the division shall be the director of the state employee health benefits plan, who shall be appointed by and serve under the direction of the secretary of administration. The director shall be in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act and shall receive an annual salary fixed by the secretary of administration and approved by the governor.
- (b)(1) The secretary of administration shall appoint, in accordance with the provisions of the Kansas civil service act, such employees as maybe needed, in the judgment of the secretary and director, to carry out the powers and duties of the state employee health benefits plan.
- (2) All officers and employees of the division of the state employee health benefits plan shall act for and exercise the powers of the director of the state employee health benefits plan to the extent that authority to do so is delegated by the secretary and director. Subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3702j, and amendments thereto, the secretary and director may organize the division of the state employee health benefits plan in the manner deemed most efficient.
- Sec. 2. All powers, duties and functions of the staff of the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment established in K.S.A. 65-1,252 through 65-1,258, and amendments thereto, K.S.A. 75-7405(c)(7) and (8), and K.S.A. 75-6501 through 75-6523 and amendments thereto involving the administration of the state employee health benefits plan are hereby transferred to and imposed upon the department of administration, under the direction of the secretary of administration, and its division of the state employee health benefits plan, under the direction of the director of the state employee health benefits plan.
- Sec. 3. (a) The department of administration and the division of the state employee health benefits plan shall be the successor in every way to the powers, duties and functions of the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment involving the administration of the state employee health benefits plan in which the same were vested pursuant to K.S.A. 65-1,252 through 65-1,258, and amendments thereto, and that are transferred pursuant to this order.
- (b) Every act performed in the exercise of such transferred powers, duties and functions by or under the authority of the department of administration and the division of the state employee health benefits plan, the secretary of administration or the director of the state employee health benefits plan, involving the administration of the state employee health benefits plan, shall be deemed to have the same force and effect as if

- performed by the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment in which the same were vested pursuant to K.S.A. 65-1,252 through 65-1,258, and amendments thereto, in which such powers, duties and functions were vested prior to the effective date of this order.
- (c) Whenever the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment or words of like effect are referred to or designated by a statute, contract, memorandum of agreement or other document and such reference is in regard to any of the powers, duties or functions transferred to the department of administration and its division of the state employee health benefits plan, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the department of administration and the division of the state employee health benefits plan.
- (d) All rules and regulations, orders and directives of the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment that relate to the functions transferred by this order and that are in effect on the effective date of this order, shall continue to be effective and shall be deemed to be rules and regulations, orders and directives of the secretary of administration until revised, amended, repealed or nullified pursuant to law.
- Sec. 4. (a) The balances of all funds or accounts thereof appropriated or reappropriated for the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment or any state agency, department, board, commission or council, relating to the powers, duties and functions involving the administration of the state employee health benefits plan by K.S.A. 65-1,252 through 65-1,258, and amendments thereto, are hereby transferred within the state treasury to the department of administration for the division of the state employee health benefits plan and shall be used only for the purpose for which the appropriation was originally made.
- (b) Liability for all accrued compensation or salaries of officers and employees who are transferred to the department of administration and the division of the state employee health benefits plan pursuant to this order shall be assumed and paid by the division of the state employee health benefits plan of the department of administration.
- Sec. 5. (a) When any conflict arises as to the disposition of any property, power, duty or function or the unexpended balance of any appropriation as a result of any abolition or transfer made by or under this order, such conflict shall be resolved by the governor, whose decision shall be final.
- (b) The division of the state employee health benefits plan in the department of administration shall succeed to all property, property rights, contracts and records that were used for or pertain to the performance of powers, duties and functions involving the administration of the state employee health benefits plan that were transferred to the division of health care finance in the department of health and environment pursuant to K.S.A. 65-1,252 through 65-1,258, and amendments thereto. Any conflict as to the proper disposition of property, personnel or records arising under the provisions of this order, shall be determined by the governor, whose decision shall be final.
- Sec. 6. (a) No suit, action or other proceeding, judicial or administrative, lawfully commenced, or that could have been commenced, by or against any state agency or program mentioned in K.S.A. 65-1,252 through 65-1,258, and amendments thereto, or by or against any officer of the state in such officer's official duties, shall abate by reason of the governmental reorganization effected under the provisions of this order. The court may allow any such suit, action or other proceeding to be maintained by or

against the successor of any such state agency or any officer affected.

- (b) No criminal action commenced or that could have been commenced by the state shall abate by the taking effect of this order.
- Sec. 7. (a) All officers and employees of the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment who, immediately prior to the effective date of this order, are engaged in the exercise and performance of the powers, duties and functions involving the administration of the state employee health benefits plan and transferred by this order, as well as all officers and employees of the department of health and environment who are determined by the secretary of administration to be engaged in providing administrative, technical or other support services that are essential to the exercise and performance of the powers, duties and functions transferred by this order, are hereby transferred to the division of the state employee health benefits plan of the department of administration. All classified officers and employees so transferred shall retain their status as classified employees.
- (b) Officers and employees of the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment transferred by this order shall retain all retirement benefits and leave balances and rights that had accrued or vested prior to the date of transfer. The service of each such officer employee so transferred shall be deemed to have been continuous. Any subsequent transfers, layoffs or abolition of classified service positions under the Kansas civil service act shall be made in accordance with the civil service laws and any rules and regulations adopted thereunder. Nothing in this order shall affect the classified status of any transferred person employed by the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment prior to the date of transfer.
- (c) Notwithstanding the effective date of this order, the provisions of this order prescribing the transfer of officers and employees from the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment to the division of the state employee health benefits plan of the department of administration shall commence at the start of a payroll period.
- Sec. 8. (a) All powers, duties and functions of the staff of the department of health and environment established in K.S.A. 44-575 through 44-580, and amendments thereto, involving the administration of the state workers compensation self-insurance fund are hereby transferred to and imposed upon the department of administration, under the direction of the secretary of administration, and its division of the state employee health benefits plan, under the direction of the director of the state employee health benefits plan.
- (b) The secretary of administration shall administer the state workers compensation self-insurance fund and all payments from such fund shall be upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the secretary of administration or a person or persons designated by the secretary. The director of accounts and reports may issue warrants pursuant to vouchers approved by the secretary for payments from the state workers compensation self-insurance fund not-withstanding the fact that claims for such payments were not submitted or processed for payment from money appropriated for the fiscal year in which the state workers compensation self-insurance fund first became liable to make such payments.
- (c) The secretary of administration shall remit all moneys received by or for the secretary in the capacity as administrator of the state workers compensation self-insurance fund, to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-

- 4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the state workers compensation self-insurance fund.
- (d) The balances of all funds or accounts thereof appropriated or re-appropriated for the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment or any state agency, department, board, commission or council, relating to the powers, duties and functions involving the administration of the state workers compensation self-insurance fund are hereby transferred within the state treasury to the department of administration for the division of the state employee health benefits plan and shall be used only for the purpose for which the appropriation was originally made. Liability for all accrued compensation or salaries of officers and employees who are transferred to the department of administration and the division of the state employee health benefits plan pursuant to this order shall be assumed and paid by the division of the state employee health benefits plan of the department of administration.
- (e) There is hereby established the state workplace health and safety program within the state workers compensation self-insurance program of the department of administration. The secretary of administration shall implement and the division of industrial health and safety of the Kansas department of labor shall assist in administering the state workplace health and safety program for state agencies. The state workplace health and safety program shall include, but not be limited to:
- (1) Workplace health and safety hazard surveys in all state agencies, including onsite interviews with employees;
- (2) workplace health and safety hazard prevention services, including inspection and consultation services;
  - (3) procedures for identifying and controlling workplace hazards:
- (4) development and dissemination of health and safety informational materials, plans, rules and work procedures; and
  - (5) training for supervisors and employees in healthful and safe work practices.
- (f) Except as provided in this order, the secretary of administration shall be the successor in every way to the powers, duties and functions of the secretary of health and environment that relate to the state workers compensation self-insurance fund, in which the same were vested prior to the effective date of this order.
- (g) All orders and directives of the secretary of health and environment that relate to the state workers compensation self-insurance fund in existence immediately prior to the effective date of this order shall continue to be effective and shall be deemed to be the orders or directives of the secretary of administration, until revised, amended, repealed or nullified pursuant to law.
- (h) The secretary of administration shall succeed to all property, property rights, contracts and records that were used for or pertain to the performance of the powers, duties and functions transferred to the secretary of administration from the division of the state workers compensation self-insurance fund of the department of health and environment pursuant to this order. Any conflicts as to the proper disposition of property, property rights, contracts and records arising under this section shall be resolved by the governor, whose decision shall be final.
- (i) All officers and employees of the division of the state workers compensation selfinsurance fund of the department of health and environment who, immediately prior to the effective date of this order, are engaged in the exercise and performance of the

powers, duties and functions involving the administration of the state workers compensation self-insurance fund and transferred by this order, as well as all officers and employees of the department of health and environment who are determined by the secretary of administration to be engaged in providing administrative, technical or other support services that are essential to the exercise and performance of the powers, duties and functions transferred by this order, are hereby transferred to the department of administration, under the direction of the secretary of administration, and its division of the state employee health benefits plan. All classified officers and employees so transferred shall retain their status as classified employees.

- (j) Officers and employees of the division of the state workers compensation self-insurance fund of the department of health and environment transferred by this order shall retain all retirement benefits and leave balances and rights that had accrued or vested prior to the date of transfer. The service of each such officer or employee so transferred shall be deemed to have been continuous. Any subsequent transfers, layoffs or abolition of classified service positions under the Kansas civil service act shall be made in accordance with the civil service laws and any rules and regulations adopted thereunder. Nothing in this order shall affect the classified status of any transferred person employed by the division of the state workers compensation self-insurance fund of the department of health and environment prior to the date of transfer.
- Sec. 9. (a) All claims for compensation under the workers compensation act against any state agency for claims arising on and after July 1, 1974, and claims for compensation remaining from the self-insurance program which existed prior to July 1, 1974, for institutional employees of the commission of community services and programs of the Kansas department for aging and disability services shall be made against the state workers compensation self-insurance fund. Such claims shall be served upon the secretary of administration in the secretary's capacity as administrator of the state workers compensation self-insurance fund in the manner provided for claims against other employers under the workers compensation act. The chief attorney for the department administration, or another attorney of the department of administration designated by the chief attorney, shall represent and defend the state workers compensation self-insurance fund in all proceedings under the workers compensation act.
- (b) The secretary of administration shall investigate, or cause to be investigated, each claim for compensation against the state workers compensation self-insurance fund. For the purposes of such investigations, the secretary of administration is authorized to obtain expert medical advice regarding the injuries, occupational diseases and disabilities involved in such claims. If ,based upon such investigation and any other available information, the secretary of administration finds that there is no material dispute as to any issue involved in the claim, that the claim is valid and that the claim should be settled by agreement, the secretary of administration may proceed to enter into such an agreement with the claimant, for the state workers compensation self-insurance fund. Any such agreement may provide for lump-sum settlements subject to approval by the director and all such agreements shall be filed in the office of the director for approval as provided in K.S.A. 44-527, and amendments thereto. All other claims for compensation against such fund shall be paid in accordance with the workers compensation act pursuant to final awards or orders of an administrative law judge or the board or pursuant to orders and findings of the director under the workers

compensation act.

- (c) For purposes of the workers compensation act, a volunteer member of a regional emergency medical response team as provided in K.S.A. 48-928, and amendments thereto, shall be considered a person in the service of the state in connection with authorized training and upon activation for emergency response, except when such duties arise in the course of employment or as a volunteer for an employer other than the state.
- Sec. 10. The secretary of administration may adopt rules and regulations necessary for the administration of the state workers compensation self-insurance fund, including the processing and settling of claims for compensation made against such fund.
- Sec. 11. All provisions of this order shall take effect and have force of general law on July 1, 2020, unless disapproved by either house of the Kansas legislature as provided by subsection (c) of section 6 of article 1 of the constitution of Kansas, and unless so disapproved, this order is to be published as and with the acts of the legislature and statutes of this state.

DONE AT the Capitol in Topeka Under the Great Seal of the State of Kansas this 30<sup>th</sup> day of January, 2020.

BY THE GOVERNOR: Laura Kelly

Scott Schwab
Secretary of State of Kansas

Sandy Tompkins
Assistant Secretary of State of Kansas

# MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

# Executive Reorganization Order No. 46 By Governor Laura Kelly January 30, 2020

Pursuant to Article 1, Section 6, of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, today I transmit Executive Reorganization Order No. 46 to the Kansas Legislature along with this message to the House of Representatives.

Effective July 1, 2020, this reorganization moves the Energy Office out of the Kansas Corporation Commission and establishes it as a separate, independent entity. This reorganization will preserve the Energy Office's existing programs while expanding its scope to include energy planning, policy development, and stakeholder outreach. None of the Energy Office's current responsibilities, duties, or functions will be abolished.

I am committed to unlocking the potential of Kansas' diverse energy landscape. The first step toward a comprehensive energy plan is building an infrastructure for energy policy discussions. An independent Energy Office will provide that infrastructure and facilitate an inclusive, data-driven vision for the energy future of our state.

I look forward to working with the House of Representatives to build on Kansas' nation-leading successes in renewable energy and energy efficiency, and together we can chart a path to a sustainable and balanced energy future.

# EXECUTIVE REORGANIZATION ORDER NO. 46 By Governor Laura Kelly Transmitted January 30, 2020

Section 1.

- (a) There is hereby established the Kansas energy office, which shall be administered under the direction and supervision of the director of the Kansas energy office, who shall be appointed by and serve under the direction of the governor. The director shall be in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act and shall receive an annual salary fixed by the governor.
- (b) The balances of all funds or accounts thereof appropriated or re-appropriated to the state corporation commission for operations and activities in execution of the commission's powers, duties, and functions as described in K.S.A. 74-616(a)-(d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125, or 75-37,129 are hereby transferred to the Kansas energy office to be used for the purpose of implementing the provisions of this order and shall be used only for the purpose for which the appropriation was originally made .
- (c) All records and property of the state corporation commission regarding the commission's powers, duties, and functions as described in K.S.A. 74-616(a)-(d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125, or 75-37,129 are hereby transferred to and conferred and imposed upon the Kansas energy office.
- Whenever the state corporation commission, or words of like effect, is referred to or designated by a contract, grant or other document regarding the commission's powers, duties, and functions as described in K.S.A. 74-616(a)-(d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125, or 75-37,129 such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the Kansas energy office. Whenever the energy program director or the energy division of the state corporation commission, or words of like effect, is referred to or designated by a contract, grant or other document, such reference or designation shall be deemed to apply to the director of the Kansas energy office. All awards or grants made by the state corporation commission regarding the commission's powers, duties, and functions as described in K.S.A. 74-616(a)-(d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125, or 75-37,129 which are in effect on July 1, 2020, shall continue to be effective for the duration of the period for which they were made, unless revised or nullified in accordance with law. All contracts entered into prior to July 1, 2020, by the state corporation commission in execution of the commission's powers, duties, and functions as described in K.S.A. 74-616(a)-(d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125, or 75-37,129 and not fully executed on such date, shall remain in full force and effect until fully executed or until terminated or revoked in the manner provided in such contract or as is otherwise provided by law on the date of such contract.
- (e) All rules and regulations and all orders and directives of the state corporation commission in execution of the commission's powers, duties, and functions as described in K.S.A. 74-616(a)-(d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125, or 75-37,129 in existence immediately prior to the effective date of this order shall continue to be effective and shall be deemed to be the rules and regulations and orders or directives of the Kansas energy office, until revised, amended, repealed or nullified pursuant to law.
- (f) Subject to the provisions of appropriations acts, officers and employees who were officers and employees of the state corporation commission engaged in the execution of the commission's powers, duties, and functions as described in K.S.A. 74-

- 616(a)-(d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125, or 75-37,129, and who, in the opinion of the director of the Kansas energy office, are necessary to perform such powers, duties, and functions, shall become officers and employees of the Kansas energy office, and shall retain all retirement benefits and leave balances and rights which had accrued or vested prior to the date of transfer and their services shall be deemed to have been continuous. All such officers and employees who become officers and employees of the Kansas energy office under this section shall retain their status as either unclassified or classified under the Kansas civil service act.
- (g) The director of the Kansas energy office shall appoint, in accordance with the provisions of the Kansas civil service act, such employees as may be needed, in the judgment of the director, to carry out the power, duties, and functions of the Kansas energy office.
- (h) The Kansas energy office shall be the successor in every way to the powers, duties, and functions of the state corporation commission's powers, duties, and functions as described in K.S.A. 74-616(a)-(d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125, or 75-37,129.
- (i) Liability for all accrued compensation or salaries of officers and employees who are transferred to the Kansas energy office pursuant to this order shall be assumed and paid by the Kansas energy office.
- (j) When any conflict arises as to the disposition of any property, power, duty or function or the unexpended balance of any appropriation as a result of any abolition or transfer made by or under this order, such conflict shall be resolved by the governor, whose decision shall be final.
- (k) No suit, action or other proceeding, judicial or administrative, lawfully commenced, or that could have been commenced, by or against any state agency or program or by or against any officer of the state in such officer's official duties, shall abate by reason of the governmental reorganization effected under the provisions of this order. The court may allow any such suit, action or other proceeding to be maintained by or against the successor of any such state agency or any officer affected.
- (l) No criminal action commenced or that could have been commenced by the state shall abate by the taking effect of this order.
- (m) Notwithstanding the effective date of this order, the provisions of this order prescribing the transfer of officers and employees from the state corporation commission to the Kansas energy office shall commence at the start of a payroll period.
- (n) All provisions of this order shall take effect and have force of general law on July 1, 2020, unless disapproved by either house of the Kansas legislature as provided by subsection (c) of section 6 of article 1 of the constitution of Kansas, and unless so disapproved, this order is to be published as and with the acts of the legislature and statutes of this state.

DONE AT the Capitol in Topeka Under the Great Seal of the State of Kansas this 30<sup>th</sup> day of January, 2020.

BY THE GOVERNOR: Laura Kelly Scott Schwab
Secretary of State of Kansas
Sandy Tompkins
Assistant Secretary of State of Kansas

# COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Jake LaTurner, Kansas State Treasurer; 2019 Annual Report to the Kansas Legislature.

The complete report is kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

# MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing adoption of SCR 1613.

# INTRODUCTION OF SENATE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following Senate bills were thereupon introduced and read by title: SCR 1613

# MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OFFERED ON A PREVIOUS DAY

On motion of Rep. S. Ruiz, **HR 6029**, A RESOLUTION designating January 30, 2020, as Latina Leaders Day at the Capitol, was adopted.

# INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Susan Ruiz are spread upon the Journal:

Today we celebrate Latina Leaders Day at the Capitol. We have Latina leader participants from every Kansas Judicial District in attendance. Today, we celebrate the women who paved the way for us while we also celebrate our future leaders.

I would like to introduce two of the women who made this day possible:

Delia Garcia, Secretary of Labor and who was also the first Latina elected to the Kansas House of Representatives.

Aude Negrete, Director of the Kansas Hispanic & Latino American Affairs Commission.

I also want to acknowledge the Latinas that traveled across the state from every Judicial District and who are in the gallery. We are especially honored to have Delores Huerta present today. Delores is the co-founder of the United Farm Workers of America. She received the Presidential Medal of Freedom for community service and advocacy for workers; immigrants; and women's rights. We thank her for being a leader in the fight against discrimination, and being a defender of civil rights; equal rights, and dignity for all.

# CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to **HB 2426** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the second day.

# REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice recommends HB 2429 be amended on page 1, following line 5, by inserting:

"Section 1. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6901 is hereby amended to read as follows: 21-6901. (a) There is hereby established the Kansas closed case task force. The task force shall be composed of 15 voting members, as follows:

- (1) The chairperson of the standing senate committee on judiciary;
- (2) the ranking minority member of the standing senate committee on judiciary;
- (3) the chairperson of the standing house committee on judiciary;
- (4) the ranking minority member of the standing house committee on judiciary;
- (5) the governor or the governor's designee;
- (6) the attorney general or the attorney general's designee;
- (7) the director of the Kansas bureau of investigation or the director's designee;
- (8) the state combined DNA index system (CODIS) administrator as designated by the director of the Kansas bureau of investigation forensic science laboratory;
  - (9) a sheriff as designated by the Kansas sheriff's association;
  - (10) a chief of police as designated by the Kansas association of chiefs of police;
- (11) a prosecutor as designated by the Kansas county and district attorneys association:
- (12) the executive director of the state board of indigents' defense services or the executive director's designee;
  - (13) the president of the Kansas bar association or the president's designee;
- (14) the director of victim services of the department of corrections or the director's designee; and
- (15) one member designated by the governor who represents an organization that litigates claims of innocence.
- (b) (1) Members shall be appointed to the task force on or before September 1, 2019. The initial meeting of the task force shall be convened on or before October 1, 2019.
- (2) The chairperson of the standing senate committee on judiciary and the chairperson of the standing house committee on judiciary shall serve as co-chairs of the task force.
- (3) The task force shall meet in an open meeting at any time and at any place within the state of Kansas upon the call of either co-chairperson of the task force. A majority of the voting members of the task force constitutes a quorum. Any action by the task force shall be by motion adopted by a majority of the voting members present when there is a quorum.
- (c) The task force, in consultation with practitioners and experts, shall develop a plan to ensure uniform statewide policies and procedures that address, at a minimum:
- (1) Timely receipt of the data relating to hits to the combined DNA index system (CODIS) from the forensic laboratory;
- (2) directly connecting the data relating to hits to the combined DNA index system (CODIS) to the relevant case file;
- (3) proper policies and procedures to ensure all hits are accounted for and followed up;
- (4) procedures to address how the key parties can conduct a reasonable and timely investigation into the significance of the hit; and

- (5) sharing the hits in data from both solved and unsolved cases with other key parties, including the relevant prosecutors' offices, the original defense attorney and the last known attorney of record, crime victims and surviving relatives, and a local organization that litigates claims of innocence.
- (d) The task force shall complete a plan for implementation of a protocol relating to hits to closed cases by October 1, 2020. The plan shall include a mechanism to ensure uniform compliance at the local law enforcement agency level.
- (e) On or before December 1, 2020, the task force shall submit a report containing a plan for uniform implementation of the protocol throughout the state, including articulated benchmarks to facilitate and measure adoption. This report shall be posted on a public website maintained by the Kansas bureau of investigation and presented to the governor, the speaker of the house of representatives and the president of the senate.
- (f) Legislative members of the task force attending meetings authorized by the task force shall be paid amounts provided in K.S.A. 75-3223(e), and amendments thereto. Non-legislative members of the task force may be reimbursed by their appointing authority.
- (g) Staff of the office of revisor of statutes, the legislative research department and the division of legislative administrative services shall provide assistance to the Kansas closed case task force as may be requested by the co-chairs of the task force.
  - (h) The provisions of this section shall expire on December 30, 2020.";

On page 2, in line 13, by striking all after "(6)"; in line 14, by striking all before "appointed" and inserting "one criminal defense attorney or public defender"; in line 16, after "(7)" by inserting "one public defender appointed by the executive director of the board of indigents' defense services;

(8)":

On page 3, in line 7, after "(f)" by inserting "(1)";

Also on page 3, following line 10, by inserting:

"(2) Members of the commission who are not legislators or public employees shall receive mileage, tolls and parking as provided in K.S.A. 75-3223, and amendments thereto, for attendance at any meeting of the commission or any subcommittee meeting authorized by the commission.";

Also on page 3, following line 34, by inserting:

"(1) For the purposes of this section, "public employee" means any employee of the state of Kansas, any employee of a city incorporated under the laws of the state of Kansas or any employee of a county, township, school district or other political subdivision of the state of Kansas.";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

Also on page 3, in line 35, after "Supp." by inserting "21-6901 and"; also in line 35, by striking "is" and inserting "are";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, after "concerning" by inserting "task forces and commissions; relating to the Kansas closed case task force; staff assistance;"; in line 2, by striking all before "membership"; also in line 2, after "Supp." by inserting "21-6901 and"; in line 3, by striking "section" and inserting "sections"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Federal and State Affairs recommends HB 2401 be amended on

page 5, in line 10, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register"; and the bill be passed as amended.

# REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Your Committee on Calendar and Printing recommends on requests for resolutions and certificates that

**Request No. 19**, by Representative Ponka-We Victors and Representative John Carmichael, congratulating, Diane Wahto for dedication and commitment to the State of Kansas and for going above and beyond serving our community.

**Request No. 20**, by Representative Doug Blex, congratulating, Bill and Gerie Kolb on their 50th wedding anniversary.

**Request No. 21**, by Representative Doug Blex, congratulating, Bill and Caryl Barnaby on their 60<sup>th</sup> wedding anniversary.

**Request No. 22**, by Representative Doug Blex, congratulating, Tony and Mickie Fowler on their 50<sup>th</sup> wedding anniversary.

**Request No. 23**, by Representative Ken Collins, congratulating, Deputy Kurt Grotheen on being named the Deputy of the Year, 2019.

**Request No. 24**, by Representative Willie Dove, congratulating, Julie Loevenstein on being named the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year, Regional Teacher of the Year.

**Request No. 25**, by Representative Mike Amyx, congratulating, Emma Katherine Milburn, on receiving the Girl Scout Gold Award.

be approved and the Chief Clerk of the House be directed to order the printing of said certificates and order drafting of said resolutions.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the committee report was adopted.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins the House adjourned pro forma until 9:00 a.m. on Friday, January 31, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# FOURTEENTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Friday, January 31, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

The House met session pro forma pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2540**, AN ACT concerning school districts; relating to the Kansas school equity and enhancement act; requiring certain expenditures from school district at-risk education funds; amending K.S.A. 72-5151 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5153 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on K-12 Education Budget.

**HB 2541**, AN ACT concerning postsecondary education; relating to certain private postsecondary educational institutions; acceptable methods of payment, credit card surcharges; amending K.S.A. 75-30,100 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2542**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to the determination of Kansas adjusted gross income; increasing the subtraction modification for social security income; amending K.S.A. 79-32,117 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2543**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to the alternative-fuel motor vehicle property expenditure credit; clarifying types of fuels to be included under the definition of alternative fuel; amending K.S.A. 79-32,201 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2544**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to jailhouse witness testimony, by Committee on Judiciary.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills, concurrent resolution and Executive Reorganization Orders were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: HB 2534, HB 2535, HB 2536, ERO 44.

Committee of the Whole: SCR 1613.

Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications: ERO 46.

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2530.

General Government Budget: ERO 45.

Judiciary: HB 2532, HB 2533. Taxation: HB 2537, HB 2538. Transportation: HB 2531, HB 2539.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Monday, February 3,2020.

# Journal of the House

# FIFTEENTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Monday, February 3, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 114 members present.

Reps. Barker, Donohoe, Highland and Huebert were excused on verified illness.

Reps. Burris, Carmichael, Claeys, Delperdang, Finney, Sutton and Ward were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Present later: Rep. Sutton.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Rev. Richard Sundermeyer, Pastor, Family Life Church of The Nazarene, Topeka:

Let us pray.

Father, it is with joyful hearts that we gather together to do the vital work of the State of Kansas. Our hearts still glean with celebration in witnessing the Kansas City Chiefs winning the Super Bowl last night.

We mention it in our prayer because the team...from the owners...to the coaches...to the players...to the staff...all showed us what real commitment, stamina, and passion can accomplish.

So, we ask that this great body of legislators and staff will seek to incorporate each of these traits in everything they consider today.

May there be an overriding commitment to seek truth, justice and righteousness at all times.

May there be a stamina that equips us with the ability to stand strong and steady no matter the issue being considered.

And may love, acceptance and understanding flow out of the passions You've given to us.

You said in Your Word that if we lack wisdom to ask You for it:

"If you are in need of wisdom, ask our generous God, and he will give it to you. He will not rebuke you for asking." James 1:5 (NLT)

We therefore ask you, God...

- To bring agreement when great opposition confronts us
- To inform us of the most crucial concerns in each issue
- To cause us to act so that righteousness undergirds all we say and do
- To insure justice always prevails
- · To protect the innocent, vulnerable, and outcast
- To value all human life as made in Your divine image

We also pray for our esteemed chaplain, Rev. Eunice Brubaker, that the healing blood of Jesus would renew and heal her physical body.

It is in the name of Jesus the Christ that I pray these things...AMEN.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Warfield.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2545**, AN ACT concerning townships; relating to the purchase of property and construction of buildings; amending K.S.A. 80-104 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Amyx.

**HB 2546**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to sex offenses; creating the crime of sexual extortion; offender registration; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-4902 and 22-4906 and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Owens, Croft, Erickson, Lynn, Waggoner, Warren and Wasinger.

**HB 2547**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to driving privileges; revocation, suspension or restrictions; fines; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-262 and 8-2110 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-2110b, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

HB 2548, AN ACT concerning certain claims against the state; making appropriations; authorizing certain transfers; imposing certain restrictions and limitations; directing or authorizing certain disbursements, procedures and acts incidental to the foregoing, by Committee on Joint Committee on Special Claims Against the State.

**HB 2549**, AN ACT concerning home and community-based services; relating to the client obligation to pay for such services; setting the protected income level, by Committee on Social Services Budget.

HB 2550, AN ACT concerning home and community-based services; increasing provider reimbursement rates; relating to the intellectual or developmentally disabled waiver; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021, June 30, 2022, and June 30, 2023, for the Kansas department for aging and disability services; directing the Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight to study the waiting list for such services, by Committee on Social Services Budget.

**HB 2551**, AN ACT concerning the care and treatment act for mentally ill persons; relating to temporary custody orders; possession of a firearm; amending K.S.A. 59-2959 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 59-2966 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2552**, AN ACT concerning education; creating the Kansas reading readiness act; amending K.S.A. 79-32,117 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Erickson and K. Williams.

**HB 2553**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to the determination of income subject to tax; providing for addition and subtraction modifications for the treatment of global intangible low-taxed income, business interest, capital contributions and FDIC premiums; amending K.S.A. 79-32,117 and 79-32,138 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB** 2554, AN ACT enacting the uniform fiduciary income and principal act; repealing the uniform principal and income act (1997); amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 58a-103 and repealing the existing section; also repealing K.S.A. 58-9-101, 58-9-102, 58-9-103, 58-9-104, 58-9-201, 58-9-202, 58-9-301, 58-9-302, 58-9-303, 58-9-401, 58-9-402, 58-9-403, 58-9-404, 58-9-405, 58-9-406, 58-9-407, 58-9-408, 58-9-410, 58-9-411, 58-9-412, 58-9-413, 58-9-414, 58-9-415, 58-9-501, 58-9-502, 58-9-503, 58-9-504, 58-9-506, 58-9-601, 58-9-602 and 58-9-603 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 58-9-105, 58-9-106, 58-9-409, 58-9-505 and 58-9-606, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2555**, AN ACT concerning retirement and pensions; relating to the Kansas public employees retirement system; eliminating certain level-dollar employer contribution payments; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020; authorizing certain transfers from the state general fund to the Kansas public employees retirement fund; amending K.S.A. 74-4920 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Appropriations.

**HB 2556**, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to health benefits coverage; establishing insurance coverage parity for orthotic devices and prosthetic devices; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-2,103 and 40-19c09 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Insurance.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Judiciary: HB 2544.

K-12 Education Budget: **HB 2540**. Taxation: **HB 2541**, **HB 2542**, **HB 2543**.

# CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to **HB 2426** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the third day. The bill was advanced to Final Action on Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

# FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

**HB 2426**, AN ACT concerning civil procedure; relating to the code of civil procedure; small claims procedure act; code of civil procedure for limited actions; amending K.S.A. 60-467 and 61-2706 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 61-2709 and 61-3105 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 114; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 11.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Barker, Burris, Carmichael, Claeys, Delperdang, Donohoe, Finney, Highland, Huebert, Sutton, Ward.

The bill passed.

#### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Transportation and Public Safety Budget recommends HB 2428 be passed.

# COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Rep. Parker to replace Rep. Finney on Committee on Insurance on February 3, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Tuesday, February 4, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# SIXTEENTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Tuesday, February 4, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 119 members present.

Reps. Donohoe and L. Ruiz were excused on verified illness.

Rep. Croft was excused on legislative business.

Reps. Burris, Highland and Straub were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Rev. Doyle Pryor, Pastor, First Southern Baptist Church, Topeka:

Our Father.

We thank you for creating us and giving us a beautiful world to live in. You are the one who legislates the universe, yet has personally overseen the creation to the most minute detail, fearfully and wonderfully weaving each individual together in their mother's womb.

We thank you for the incredible resources you have entrusted to us as individuals and as a government to improve the lives of those who live in this great state. Father, we cry out to you today because we need you. You invited us in your word that, "if any of you lacks wisdom, he should ask of God, who gives to all generously and without criticizing, and it will be given to him." (James 1:5, HCSB).

The decisions that are placed before this body today require the wisdom beyond our own wiles, not from our halls of higher learning, but from the wisdom that is generously shared from your throne. Give us the wisdom to ask before anything else, "what do You, our Father, want." Knowing that you know the plans you have for us, "plans for our welfare, not for disaster, to give us a future and a hope," (Jeremiah 29:11, HCSB). And our Father we learn in your Holy Scriptures that you are eternal. Without beginning and without end. That you see tomorrow as if it were yesterday and you see yesterday as if it were now. So give us your wisdom, because we are convinced that if we were to know what you know, we would want what you want.

Please remove anything in our lives that prohibit us from hearing your wisdom today. Your holy scripture says that failing to regard you and love you is sin and that sin plugs our spiritual ears so we are deaf to your wisdom.

Please bring a prayer of confession to our lips quickly, and a surrender of our lives to King Jesus to live in and through us, so that your wisdom and desire for the people of Kansas may come to fruition through the governing of this body. That we would desire the prayer of Jesus, "Your will be done, on earth as it is in Heaven." Our Father, the stakes are too high, our children too precious, our future too bright and the needs too many for this body to listen to anyone but you during this time.

And Father, I pray that we who live under such governing would rejoice, realizing that we have been placed under this authority by you. That we would live peacefully, honorably, and justly. Desiring to serve King Jesus first, and live peaceably with everyone.

In name of Jesus we bring these requests before you, Amen

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Alcala.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

- **HB 2557**, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to certain health benefit plans; certain prescription drug benefits; establishing a \$100 maximum out-of-pocket cost-share per month per covered person for prescription insulin, by Committee on Insurance.
- **HB 2558**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas uniform securities act; relating to victims of securities violations, powers of the administrator; establishing the securities act victim restitution program; securities act victim restitution fund; amending K.S.A. 75-3036 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-12a601 and 17-12a609 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Insurance.
- **HB 2559**, AN ACT concerning late filing of lobbyist reports; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 46-280 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Elections.
- **HB 2560**, AN ACT concerning campaign finance; requiring electronic filing of reports for state offices; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-4148 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Elections.
- **HB 2561**, AN ACT concerning ethics; authorizing legislative assistants and committee assistants to accept a gift of not to exceed \$100 per session; amending K.S.A. 46-235 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Elections.
- **HB 2562**, AN ACT concerning campaign finance; relating to political ads; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-4156 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Elections.
- HB 2563, AN ACT concerning cigarettes and tobacco products; increasing the minimum age to purchase or possess such products; prohibiting cigarette vending machines and self-service displays; amending K.S.A. 72-6285, 79-3301, 79-3302, 79-3303, 79-3304, 79-3309, 79-3316, 79-3321, 79-3322, 79-3323, 79-3326, 79-3334, 79-3355, 79-3388, 79-3391, 79-3394, 79-3396 and 79-3399 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5102, 21-6109, 21-6110 and 50-6a14 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 79-3310c, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.
- **HB 2564**, AN ACT concerning the legislature; relating to legislative meetings; requiring certain duties of the committee chairperson regarding written testimony in certain circumstances; providing an exception for citizens presenting testimony, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

**HB 2565**, AN ACT concerning employment security law; relating to the number of weeks a claimant is eligible for benefits; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-704 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Ward, Bishop and Yeager.

**HB 2566**, AN ACT concerning employment security law; relating to compensation of the pre-payment waiting period; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-705 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Ward.

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, HCR 5020, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

# HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. HCR 5020 --

by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins and Sawyer

**HCR 5020--** A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION relating to the adjournment of the house of representatives and senate for a period of time during the 2020 regular session of the legislature.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas, the Senate concurring therein: That the legislature shall adjourn at the close of business of the daily session convened on February 4, 2020, and shall reconvene on February 6, 2020, pursuant to adjournment of the daily session convened on February 4, 2020.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: HB 2548, HB 2555.

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2545.

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: HB 2547.

Insurance: HB 2556.

Judiciary: **HB 2546**, **HB 2551**, **HB 2554**. K-12 Education Budget: **HB 2552**.

Social Services Budget: HB 2549, HB 2550.

Taxation: HB 2553.

# COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Laura Howard, Secretary, Kansas Department for Children and Families; pursuant to K.S.A. 65-176, results of DCF's inspections of state children's institutions, and recommendations for insuring proper sanitary conditions and adequate health supervision at those facilities.

The complete report is kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

# REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **HB 2466** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2567**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to the determination of Kansas adjusted gross income; increasing the income limit to qualify for the subtraction modification for social security income; amending K.S.A. 79-32,117 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 9:00 a.m., Thursday, February 6, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# SEVENTEENTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Thursday, February 6, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 122 members present. Reps. Alcala and Victors were excused on legislative business. Rep. Neighbor was excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Almighty God, thank You for this day and the pleasure of being back here with our leaders. Thank you for handling well the pressure the Body put on You and me to represent them at the Super Bowl and to bring a victory back home! There were a few lessons I was reminded of at the game that can be applied here as our leaders work together. Never give up and quit. When things are not going well, it is essential to assess, adapt and overcome. Perseverance always pays off. So, it is imperative to get up whenever knocked down and try again. To reach the end goal, one must keep focused on that goal. Two people can be on opposite sides and understand they will never change. Yet, when all is said and done, they can shake hands and have mutual respect for each other. Teach us these lessons, O Lord, I pray, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Kuether.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

- **HB 2568**, AN ACT concerning traffic regulations; relating to speed limits; allowing local authorities to decrease speed limits without an engineering and traffic investigation; decreasing limits allowed in certain districts; amending K.S.A. 8-1560 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Transportation.
- **HB 2569**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to antique vehicles; allowing model year vehicle dealer license plates to be displayed on antique vehicles; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-172 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Transportation.
- **HB 2570**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to certain prescribers; limiting certain prescriptions to a seven-day supply; exceptions, by Committee on Health and Human Services.
- **HB 2571**, AN ACT concerning licensure under the club and drinking establishment act; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-311 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.
- **HB 2572**, AN ACT concerning teachers; creating the educator protection act; relating to excess professional liability insurance coverage for teachers; amending K.S.A. 75-4101 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Education.
- **HB 2573**, AN ACT concerning education; relating to curriculum for civics; requiring students to pass a civics examination for high school graduation; amending K.S.A. 72-3217 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Education.
- **HB 2574**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to the school sports head injury prevention act; requiring schools to establish concussion management teams; standards of care protocols; required biennial education; amending K.S.A. 72-7119 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Education.
- **HB 2575**, AN ACT concerning public health; relating to the Kansas drycleaner environmental response act; the payment of certain costs of remediation of pollution from drycleaning activities; deductible amount; penalties for violations; amending K.S.A. 65-34,142, 65-34,147, 65-34,148, 65-34,149, 65-34,150, 65-34,151 and 65-34,154 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Agriculture.
- **HB 2576**, AN ACT concerning property taxes; requiring tax bills be mailed before December 10 each year; amending K.S.A. 79-2001 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Smith, A..
- **HB 2577**, AN ACT relating to the taxation of motor vehicle fuels; providing for a county option; amending K.S.A. 79-3424 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-194 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Rhiley.
- **HB 2578**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to exemptions; farm products sold at farmers' markets; amending K.S.A. 79-3606 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Capps, Blex, Dove, Ellis, Erickson, Helmer, Hineman, Hoheisel, Horn, Houser, Howard, Moore, Newland, Pittman, Rhiley and Xu.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2565, HB 2566.

Elections: HB 2559, HB 2560, HB 2561, HB 2562.

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2563, HB 2564.

Insurance: HB 2557, HB 2558.

Taxation: HB 2567.

# MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing passage of SB 157, SB 258.

#### INTRODUCTION OF SENATE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following Senate bills were thereupon introduced and read by title:

SB 157, SB 258.

# INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Concannon, **HR 6030**, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6030-

By Representative Concannon

**HR 6030**—A RESOLUTION recognizing February 6, 2020, as Wear Red Day at the Capitol.

WHEREAS, Heart disease and stroke kill one in three women in the United States, yet 80% of cardiac events may be prevented through education and lifestyle changes such as moving more, eating smart, and managing blood pressure; and

WHEREAS, Cardiovascular disease and stroke kill one woman every 80 seconds in the United States, and cardiovascular disease kills more women than the total combined deaths from cancer, accidents, and diabetes; and

WHEREAS, Nearly 45% of women aged 20 and older live with some form of cardiovascular disease. Women having heart attacks wait 30% longer than men from the moment they begin experiencing symptoms to the time they arrive at a hospital. From arrival at the hospital to the moment women start receiving care, women experience a 20% longer wait time than men, and women are also less likely than men to receive bystander cardiopulmonary resuscitation; and

WHEREAS, 57% of African-American women and 40% of Hispanic women aged 20 and older have cardiovascular disease; and

WHEREAS, For Caucasian women, cardiovascular disease claims the lives of more women than all forms of cancer – including breast cancer – Alzheimer's disease, Parkinson's disease, motor vehicle accidents, and unintentional injuries combined; and

WHEREAS, Heart disease and stroke can affect a woman at any age, and new research shows heart attacks are on the rise among younger women, which serves to emphasize the importance for women to take charge of their heart health: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That we recognize February 6, 2020, as Wear Red Day at the Capitol by wearing the color red to raise awareness of the importance of the ongoing fight against heart disease and stroke, and we urge all citizens to show their support for women by commemorating this day;

*Be it further resolved:* That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send an enrolled copy of this resolution to Representative Concannon.

#### CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to **HB 2466** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the first day.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Proehl in the chair.

#### COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. Proehl, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that SB 155 be passed.

On motion of Rep. Garber to amend SCR 1613, Rep. Humphries requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the concurrent resolution. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment not germane.

Also, roll call was demanded on motion to reommend SCR 1613 favorably for adoption.

On roll call the vote was: Yeas 80; Nays 41; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 4.

Yeas: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Newland, Orr, Owens, F. Patton, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Nays: Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Finney, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hineman, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Kessinger, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Pannbacker, Parker, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Alcala, Frownfelter, Neighbor, Victors.

The motion prevailed, and the concurrent resolution be adopted.

On motion of Rep. Holscher, **HB 2467** be amended on page 1, following line 5, by inserting:

"Section 1. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5414 is hereby amended to read as follows: 21-5414. (a) Domestic battery is:

- (1) Knowingly or recklessly causing bodily harm to a person with whom the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating relationship or a family or household member; or
- (2) knowingly causing physical contact with a person with whom the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating relationship or a family or household member, when done in a rude, insulting or angry manner.
  - (b) Aggravated domestic battery is:

- (1) Knowingly impeding the normal breathing or circulation of the blood by applying pressure on the throat, neck or chest of a person with whom the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating relationship or a family or household member, when done in a rude, insulting or angry manner; or
- (2) knowingly impeding the normal breathing or circulation of the blood by blocking the nose or mouth of a person with whom the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating relationship or a family or household member, when done in a rude, insulting or angry manner.
  - (c) (1) Domestic battery is:
- (A) Except as provided in subsection (c)(1)(B) or (c)(1)(C), a class B person misdemeanor and the offender shall be sentenced to not less than 48 consecutive hours nor more than six months' imprisonment and fined not less than \$200, nor more than \$500 or in the court's discretion, and the court may shall enter an order—which that requires the offender to undergo a domestic violence offender assessment conducted by a certified batterer intervention program and follow all recommendations made by such program;
- (B) except as provided in subsection (c)(1)(C), a class A person misdemeanor, if, within five years immediately preceding commission of the crime, an offender is convicted of domestic battery a second time and the offender shall be sentenced to not less than 90 days nor more than one year's imprisonment and fined not less than \$500 nor more than \$1,000. The five days' imprisonment mandated by this paragraph may be served in a work release program only after such offender has served 48 consecutive hours' imprisonment, provided such work release program requires such offender to return to confinement at the end of each day in the work release program. The offender shall serve at least five consecutive days' imprisonment before the offender is granted probation, suspension or reduction of sentence or parole or is otherwise released. As a condition of any grant of probation, suspension of sentence or parole or of any other release, the offender shall be required to undergo a domestic violence offender assessment conducted by a certified batterer intervention program and follow all recommendations made by such program, unless otherwise ordered by the court; and
- (C) a person felony, if, within five years immediately preceding commission of the crime, an offender is convicted of domestic battery a third or subsequent time, and the offender shall be sentenced to not less than 90 days nor more than one year's imprisonment and fined not less than \$1,000 nor more than \$7,500. The offender convicted shall not be eligible for release on probation, suspension or reduction of sentence or parole until the offender has served at least 90 days' imprisonment. As a condition of any grant of probation, suspension of sentence or parole or of any other release, the offender shall be required to undergo a domestic violence offender assessment conducted by a certified batterer intervention program and follow all recommendations made by such program, unless otherwise ordered by the court. If the offender does not undergo a domestic violence offender assessment conducted by a certified batterer intervention program and follow all recommendations made by such program, the offender shall serve not less than 180 days nor more than one year's imprisonment. The 90 days' imprisonment mandated by this paragraph may be served in a work release program only after such offender has served 48 consecutive hours imprisonment, provided such work release program requires such offender to return to confinement at the end of each day in the work release program.

- (2) Aggravated domestic battery is a severity level 7, person felony.
- (d) In determining the sentence to be imposed within the limits provided for a first, second, third or subsequent offense under this section, a court shall consider information presented to the court relating to any current or prior protective order issued against such person.
  - (e) As used in this section:
- (1) "Dating relationship" means a social relationship of a romantic nature. In addition to any other factors the court deems relevant, the trier of fact may consider the following when making a determination of whether a relationship exists or existed: Nature of the relationship, length of time the relationship existed, frequency of interaction between the parties and time since the termination of the relationship, if applicable;
- (2) "family or household member" means persons 18 years of age or older who are spouses, former spouses, parents or stepparents and children or stepchildren, and persons who are presently residing together or who have resided together in the past, and persons who have a child in common regardless of whether they have been married or who have lived together at any time. "Family or household member" also includes a man and woman if the woman is pregnant and the man is alleged to be the father, regardless of whether they have been married or have lived together at any time; and
  - (3) "protective order" means:
- (A) A protection from abuse order issued pursuant to K.S.A. 60-3105, 60-3106 or 60-3107, and amendments thereto:
- (B) a protective order issued by a court or tribunal of any state or Indian tribe that is consistent with the provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 2265;
- (C) a restraining order issued pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 23-2707, 38-2243, 38-2244 or 38-2255, and amendments thereto, or K.S.A. 60-1607, prior to its transfer;
- (D) an order issued in this or any other state as a condition of pretrial release, diversion, probation, suspended sentence, postrelease supervision or at any other time during the criminal case or upon appeal that orders the person to refrain from having any direct or indirect contact with a family or household member;
- (E) an order issued in this or any other state as a condition of release after conviction or as a condition of a supersedeas bond pending disposition of an appeal, that orders the person to refrain from having any direct or indirect contact with another person; or
- (F) a protection from stalking order issued pursuant to K.S.A. 60-31a05 or 60-31a06, and amendments thereto.
- (f) For the purpose of determining whether a conviction is a first, second, third or subsequent conviction in sentencing under subsection (c)(1):
- (1) "Conviction" includes being convicted of a violation of K.S.A. 21-3412a, prior to its repeal, this section or entering into a diversion or deferred judgment agreement in lieu of further criminal proceedings on a complaint alleging a violation of this section;
- (2) "conviction" includes being convicted of a violation of a law of another state, or an ordinance of any city, or resolution of any county, which prohibits the acts that this section prohibits or entering into a diversion or deferred judgment agreement in lieu of further criminal proceedings in a case alleging a violation of such law, ordinance or resolution;
  - (3) only convictions occurring in the immediately preceding five years including

prior to July 1, 2001, shall be taken into account, but the court may consider other prior convictions in determining the sentence to be imposed within the limits provided for a first, second, third or subsequent offender, whichever is applicable; and

- (4) it is irrelevant whether an offense occurred before or after conviction for a previous offense.
- (g) A person may enter into a diversion agreement in lieu of further criminal proceedings for a violation of subsection (a) or (b) or an ordinance of any city or resolution of any county which prohibits the acts that subsection (a) or (b) prohibits only twice during any five-year period.";

Also on page 1, in line 28, after "Supp." by inserting "21-5414 and"; also in line 28, by striking "is" and inserting "are";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

Also on page 1, in the title, in line 2, after "to" by inserting "domestic battery; batterer intervention programs;"; also in line 2, after "Supp." by inserting "21-5414 and"; in line 3, by striking "section" and inserting "sections" and **HB 2467** be passed as amended.

# REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Agriculture** recommends **HB 2437** be amended on page 7, in line 1, by striking all after "labeling"; in line 2, by striking all after "labeling"; in line 4, after "stating" by inserting "one of the following: (A)"; in line 5, after "meat" by inserting ""; (B) "meatless"; or (C) "meat-free"; also in line 5, after "a" by inserting "menu or menu board or to":

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking all after "labels"; in line 3, by striking "advertisements"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2579**, AN ACT concerning health professions and practices; relating to the board of pharmacy; prescription monitoring program act; pertaining to persons permitted to receive program data; data security; user and delegate access; increasing the number of members of the prescription monitoring program advisory committee; amending K.S.A. 65-1682, 65-1683, 65-1685, 65-1687 and 65-1689 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Health and Human Services.

**HB 2580**, AN ACT concerning cities; relating to annexation of territory; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-520 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Dove.

**HB 2581**, AN ACT concerning zoning and subdivision regulations; requiring an election in certain instances; amending K.S.A. 12-715b, 12-749, 12-750 and 12-754 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Dove.

**HB 2582**, AN ACT concerning education; relating to the Kansas school equity and enhancement act; creating the behavioral health intervention weighting; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5131, 72-5132 and 72-5171 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on K-12 Education Budget.

- **HB 2583**, AN ACT concerning cities; relating to the vacation of territory or easements; amending K.S.A. 12-504 and 12-505 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Local Government.
- **HB 2584**, AN ACT concerning minimum wage laws; permitting cities, counties and local governments to set the minimum wage above federal or state levels by ordinance, resolution or law; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-16,130 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Local Government.
- **HB 2585**, AN ACT concerning electric public utilities; relating to the state corporation commission; exempting retail sales of electricity through electric vehicle charging stations from commission jurisdiction; amending K.S.A. 66-104 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications.
- **HB** 2586, AN ACT concerning public employee and professional employees' organizations; relating to dues; commencement and cessation of withholding of dues; procedure; providing certain rights to employees; amending K.S.A. 72-2219, 72-2241, 75-4324, 75-4327 and 75-5501 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-319 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.
- **HB 2587**, AN ACT concerning the probate code; relating to adoption; venue; agency adoptions; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 59-2126 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.
- **HB 2588**, AN ACT concerning transportation; providing for the FORWARD transportation program; amending K.S.A. 68-416, 68-2315, 68-2316, 75-5035, 75-5048, 75-5061, 79-3603 and 79-3703 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Appropriations.

# COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Woodard to replace Rep. Alcala on Committee on Taxation on Feb 6, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Parker to replace Rep. Victors on Committee on Transportation on Feb 6, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Finney to replace Rep. Victors on Committee on Transportation and Public Safety Budget on Feb 6, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Gartner to replace Rep. Horn on Joint Committee on State Building Construction on Feb 10, 2020.

#### REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

**HR 6028, HR 6029** reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on February 6, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 9:00 a.m., Friday, February 7, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# EIGHTEENTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Friday, February 7, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 123 members present. Reps. Alcala and Victors were excused on legislative business.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Almighty God,
You have created all of us in Your image,
we ask that you give grace to each of us.
Remove our pride and make us humble.
Help us to listen more than we speak.
Adjust our hearts from self-preservation
to others-centered love.
Fill us with your grace so that we will reflect Your kingdom.
Bestow upon us a spirit of unity
and endow us with Your mercy and wisdom.
In Christ's Name I pray, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Corbet.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 10:00 a.m.

#### LATE MORNING SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2589**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas state high school activities association; relating to member schools; student athletes; requiring participation to be based upon a student's biological gender at birth, by Representatives Capps, Blex, French, Garber, Helmer, Howard and Newland.

**HB 2590**, AN ACT concerning children and minors; relating to the revised Kansas code for the care of children; access to information by law enforcement; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 38-2210, 38-2211 and 38-2212 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Capps.

**HB 2591**, AN ACT concerning courts; relating to closed courtrooms; members of the legislature, by Representative Capps.

**HB 2592**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to distinctive license plates; providing for the American legion, knights of Columbus and proud educator license plates; providing for lowered license plate commitments and costs prior to production of plates; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1,141 and 8-1,142 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Transportation.

**HB 2593**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to income, premiums and privilege tax; providing a credit for contributions to technical colleges; amending K.S.A. 79-32,261 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2594**, AN ACT making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2021, for state agencies; authorizing certain transfers, capital improvement projects and fees, imposing certain restrictions and limitations, and directing or authorizing certain receipts, disbursements, procedures and acts incidental to the foregoing, by Committee on Appropriations.

**HB 2595**, AN ACT concerning state surplus property; eliminating a 30-day waiting period before sale thereof to the general public; amending K.S.A. 75-6602 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on General Government Budget.

**HB 2596**, AN ACT concerning alcoholic beverages; relating to the club and drinking establishment act; authorizing the issuance of drinking establishment licenses to licensed manufacturers; amending K.S.A. 41-2632 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2623 and 41-2642 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Agriculture: HB 2575.

Appropriations: HB 2588, SB 258.

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2584, HB 2586.

Education: HB 2572, HB 2573.

Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications: **HB 2585**.

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2571.

Health and Human Services: HB 2570, HB 2574, HB 2579.

Judiciary: **HB 2587, SB 157**. K-12 Education Budget: **HB 2582**.

Local Government: HB 2580, HB 2581, HB 2583.

Taxation: **HB 2576**, **HB 2577**, **HB 2578**. Transportation: **HB 2568**, **HB 2569**.

#### MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

February 6, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed is Executive Order No. 20-02 for your information.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-02 Reorganizing the Kansas Early Childhood Advisory Council

> Laura Kelly Governor

The above Executive Order is on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

# COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Derek Schmidt, Kansas Attorney General, as required by K.S.A. 60-4117(d)(1); Annual Report for Attorney General's State Medicaid Fraud Forfeiture Fund.

From Earl Lewis, Director, as per K.S.A. 82a-1307; Kansas Water Marketing Program water supply contracts.

From Dave Heinemann, Chair, Board of Directors, Kansas Guardianship Program; 2019 Annual Report.

The complete reports are kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

# CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to  $HB\ 2466$  appearing on the Consent Calendar for the second day.

#### FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

SCR 1613, A PROPOSITION to amend the bill of rights of the constitution of the state of Kansas by adding a new section thereto stating that there is no constitutional right to abortion, and reserving to the people the ability to regulate abortion through the elected members of the legislature of the state of Kansas, was considered on final action.

Call of the House was demanded.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 80; Nays 43; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 2.

Yeas: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Newland, Orr, Owens, F. Patton, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Nays: Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hineman, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Kessinger, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Pannbacker, Parker, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Alcala, Victors.

The resolution was not adopted.

# EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: I vote yes on **SCR 1613**. Today's vote was about saving 15 Kansas lives a day by giving Kansas voters a chance to keep the regulations currently in place. The fate of the pro-life movement in Kansas has never rested on a single vote, and I am confident the battle for the sanctity of life will continue far into the future. Today is not the end. As an unapologetically pro-life legislator, I am dedicated to ensuring that we do not return to a time when "self-policing" abortion clinics did everything in their power to avoid complying with the most reasonable restrictions and medical standards. — Dan Hawkins, Ron Highland, John E. Barker, Stephen Owens, Blake Carpenter, Susan Humphries

Mr. Speaker: I vote no on **SCR 1613** because of my opposition to placing the constitutional amendment on the primary ballot. When the legislature decides to place a change to our state constitution before the electorate, I believe we must ensure an electoral process that guarantees the largest voter turnout. — Tom Phillips

Mr. Speaker: We live in divided times and no topic is more divisive than abortion. This amendment, especially with its August primary date serves to solidify the divide among Kansas citizens. The number of abortions in Kansas is too high. Even if this resolution leads to a complete ban on abortion, it will not stop abortion. There is a better way to reduce the number of abortions.

The better solution is to provide low cost/no cost birth control in order to reduce the large number of abortions used to end unplanned pregnancy. I respect the rights of women and I vote no on SCR 1613. — JAN KESSINGER

Mr. Speaker: I am voting "Yes" on SCR 1613 because I believe the Kansas Supreme Court failed to identify a right to an abortion in our Kansas Constitution last April. The primary right of all Kansans is Life and all life must be protected by our ultimate efforts.

Some say abortion is a fundamental right in our country. How can the murder of 62 million innocent babies in this country be a fundamental right? How can the murder of 15 babies today, and who knows how many a day after this court decision is put into action. How can that be justified? I vote YES on **SCR 1613.** – David French

Mr. Speaker: I am voting No on this proposed Constitutional Amendment, SCR 1613. When modifying the constitution, it should be absolutely clear. I find it unfair to women to alter our bedrock constitutional laws on abortion without protecting, at a minimum, the life of an endangered mother, and victims of rape or incest in any future abortion regulations. – Jeff Pittman

Mr. Speaker: I vote in favor of **SCR 1613.** A poll of Kansans in 2017 was reported in the Wichita Eagle stating that 81% of Kansans favor some level of regulation on abortion, including only 16% who favor a ban on abortion. Conversely, 19% favor no regulation on abortion. Saying this could result in a total ban is fear-mongering when faced with this poll.

When the people of Kansas are divided on an issue of values, they should be allowed to decide how their state constitution reflects those values. 81% say this amendment is necessary so that their elected representatives can represent their values. God is in control. — ERIC L. SMITH

Mr. Speaker: The representative from the 57<sup>th</sup> district could not be here today. He's attending a NCSL conference on prison reform that was scheduled back in January. By not being present today, he will become a NO vote on **SCR 1613** and he stated that's the vote he would've cast. – TIM HODGE

Mr. Speaker: This amendment creates a double standard. We value the right to self-defense in the U.S. in regard to firearms and protect it with the Second Amendment.

But this amendment makes no exception for the life of a woman who has a life-threatening pregnancy complication. This amendment will permanently strip away a Kansas pregnant woman's right to choose to save her own life, if need be. Once Roe v. Wade is reversed, it will be the will of government that will dominate, and not the will of the individual. I cannot in good conscience support SCR 1613. – Nancy Lusk

Mr. Speaker: I vote yes on SCR 1613. There have been times throughout the history of this nation where people have not been bestowed their basic human rights. Slaves were considered property with no more rights than common livestock, and native Americans were slaughtered with savage intentions of eradication. Thankfully, we have progressed beyond these barbaric and unconscionable ways...almost. I believe that every person has authority over their own medical choices, however, once a pregnancy begins, there is another body and life to consider. One that has no voice. I long for the day we view abortion with the sam vilification as other societal abominations. – Adam Smith

Mr. Speaker: For my wife, Teresa, and our family, I vote yes on SCR 1613. We are forever thankful that because of the selfless love and courage of 3 birth mothers we have 4 children, 5 granddaughters. It is right to give Kansans the opportunity to vote and decide if current laws protecting life should be kept or made void. Lawmakers must have that same courage and give young women like our three birth mothers the ability to know their options. They deserve the benefit of debated, carefully constructed Kansas laws when the are facing extremely difficult life decisions. – Jene Vickrey

Mr. Speaker: I have had the privilege of witnessing the incredible beauty and intricacies of fetal development as a former developmental biologist. I stand in constant awe at how our bodies are created, and how much value there is in life from its early beginnings. I recognize there is concern and fear on both sides - this is an emotional and personal issue. But having borne witness to the forming vasculature, the blood cells pumping throughout an embryo, the development of the head, organs, and limbs, I have greater respect for the beauty and wonder of all life. Therefore, Mr. Speaker, I vote yes on SCR 1613. – MEGAN LYNN

Mr. Speaker: I stand in support of **SCR 1613** because life is a gift from out creator and is protected by the oath I took to uphold the Constitution of the State of Kansas and the United States. I represent those who are not yet born, and all Kansans. — Emil Bergouist

Mr. Speaker: If there is a question of right or wrong, life or death, I choose the pathway which offers the greatest opportunity for life and transparency to women. If there's a question of whether or not our Legislature maintains the ability to reasonably regulate abortions, I choose allowing Kansans the opportunity to vote on maintaining this regulatory authority by elected officials. If over 6,000 babies lose their lives in Kansas every year, in some cases out of fear or inconvenience — I choose providing mothers with valuable protections such as informed consent, clean health clinics, and a waiting period. I choose life, Mr. Speaker, I vote yes on SCR 1613. — Kristey Williams

Mr. Speaker: Our support for SCR 1613 sits entirely in our trust for the legislative process. This language will allow our previous laws to remain relevant. It allows the legislature to pass laws, regulate and exercise oversight of abortion. A constitutional right to an abortion, will compel us to spend Medicaid dollars on the procedure – something we have clearly stated would never happen. This amendment does not ban abortion. It allows this new language to be on the ballot for the people of Kansas to have a voice. I trust the people of our state to make the decision on what is right for Kansas. – Susan Concannon, Troy L. Waymaster, Suzi Carlson

Mr. Speaker: I voted yes in support of **SCR 1613**. My yes is to protect the women of our state from unregulated clinics and our unborn children from being dismembered. This amendment gives women autonomy and the respect due to them to make their choice with safeguards in place for their health. The voters deserve to be heard and I believe that Kansans have asked each of us to trust us with that right. — Barb Wasinger

Mr. Speaker: I voted YES on SCR 1613. The solemn duty of each of us is to be representative of the people we are elected to serve. If you're like me, you have heard from voters on both sides of the question now before us. The message is: everyone wants to be heard. And they're right. Our State Constitution wisely allows the people to be the final arbiter in deciding changes to it. Regardless of my personal position on this question, I am faithful to the spirit of our framers by sending this choice to the people of Kansas. – Kellie Warren, Bill Sutton

Mr. Speaker: I vote yes on **SCR 1613**. Some 53 years ago a young 14 year old carried a little boy to birth. I thank my biological mother for that. I thank my adoptive parents who gave me a family and loved me as one of their own since day 1. I vote yes for my wife and our children. I vote yes to give the citizens a voice on Life in Kansas. I would do it again given the opportunity. – Ken Rahjes

MR SPEAKER: I vote no on **SCR 1613**. Throughout my legislative career I have maintained a staunch pro-life record. My no vote today doesn't contradict that. It is a recognition that amending the constitution is a matter of utmost importance. Maximum citizen input must be achieved and is best attained in the November general election. To do otherwise raises questions about the sincerity of the call to let people decide. This shouldn't and cannot be the end of discussion. Options remain. We can regroup and place the measure on the November ballot. I will trust the good citizens of this great state to pass the measure at that time. – Don Hineman

Mr. Speaker: I vote yes on **SCR 1613**. I believe we are called to protect the lives of innocent babies in their mother's womb from being murdered. I stand with Kansans for the Kansas Bill of Rights, and its original intent of "Life, Liberty and the Pursuit of Happiness." There is not a right given by the God of the Bible for an abortion, but there is healing and forgiveness in the Name of Jesus for one. "A government that cannot or does not protect the humblest citizen in his right to Life, Liberty and the pursuit of happiness, should be reformed or overthrown without delay." Fredrick Douglass. – Trevor Jacobs

Mr. Speaker: The people of Kansas lost today. They lost their right to vote on the direction of our state's future. They lost their ability to exercise the state's system of judicial checks and balances. Today's vote sets our state down a disappointing path — one where the people have no say in whether Kansans will be a pro-life or pro-choice state; and one where the state may no longer have the authority to implement commonsense regulations, such as parental notification for minors, limitations on late-term/partial birth abortions, or health & safety precautions for clinics. I stand with Kansans. I stand for life. I vote Yes on SCR 1613. — Ron Ryckman, Brenda Landwehr, Sean Tarwater, Kyle D. Hoffman, Blaine Finch, Adam Thomas

Mr. Speaker: I vote NO on SCR 1613. Our job as legislators is to protect and preserve the constitutional rights of the citizens that we represent. SCR 1613 strips Kansans who can get pregnant of their constitutional rights and puts their rights in the hands of legislators. Big government intrusion into the private lives of Kansans is wrong. I vote NO. – Stephanie Clayton

Mr. Speaker: As written, **SCR 1613** opens the door to a future outright ban on abortion, even "in circumstances of pregnancy resulting from rape or incest, or when necessary to save the life of the mother." Otherwise put, we are amending the Bill of Rights to allow a future revocation of the rights of people who can become pregnant. I swore an oath to support the constitution of the State of Kansas, not to rewrite it when I disagree with a co-equal branch of government. I vote no on **SCR 1613**. — Brandon Woodard

Mr. Speaker: In addition to the reasons stated by my colleagues, I vote NO on SCR 1613 because the explanation of the amendment includes what I think is clearly an incorrect statement of law and therefore I do not believe I could vote to place this statement on an election ballot without violating the rules of professional ethics for Kansas attorneys. – Dennis "Boog" Highberger

Mr. Speaker: I vote "YES" on SCR 1613. The right to life is the preeminent of all rights. Without life, no other right can be exercised or enjoyed. Section 1 of the Bill of Rights of the Kansas Constitution, in which "life" is the first of the expressly enumerated "equal and inalienable natural rights," arguably recognizes this. Unlike Kansas courts, I will support the "natural right" to "life" which Section 1 of our Bill of Rights broadly protects. – Jesse Burris

Mr. Speaker: I proudly vote "Yes" for SCR 1613. The Kansas Supreme Court does not have the final say on any issue. The legislature and the people ultimately define the reality of the Kansas Constitution. That reality includes the "right to life" and the duty to protect the unborn and defenseless. Crisis pregnancy centers flourish across this state because Kansans care about women and they care about the unborn. The real tragedy today is not allowing those Kansans a voice in this matter. – Paul Waggoner

MR. SPEAKER: The vote today was to correct an error made by 6 of 7 judges on our Supreme Court. Those judges destroyed the meaning of the Right to Life guaranteed by our Constitution. They replaced it with an absolute right to destroy life through abortion, all the way up to the baby's birth. The vote today was to allow the people to override the Court by voting in an election. I voted Yes on **SCR 1613** to allow Kansans to overturn the Court's terrible decision. — John Toplikar

**SB 155**, AN ACT concerning certain cemetery districts and the deannexation of territory located within a city, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 119; Nays 1; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 5.

Yeas: Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Hodge.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Alcala, Ballard, Finney, Mason, Victors.

The bill passed.

**HB 2467**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to domestic battery; batterer intervention programs; sex offenses; sexual battery; spouses; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5414 and 21-5505 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 105; Nays 15; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 5.

Yeas: Amyx, Arnberger, Baker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Awerkamp, Barker, Blex, Burris, Dove, Garber, Highland, Huebert, Jacobs, Mastroni, Samsel, Smith, A., Smith, E., Vickrey, Wheeler.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Alcala, Ballard, Finney, Mason, Victors.

The bill passed, as amended.

# REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Education recommends HB 2487, HB 2488 be passed.

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **HB 2501** be amended on page 6, in line 28, by striking "paragraph" and inserting "subsection"; in line 31, by striking "or" and inserting "and";

On page 7, in line 4, by striking "paragraph" and inserting "subsection"; and the bill be passed as amended.

# REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Your Committee on Calendar and Printing recommends on requests for resolutions and certificates that

**Request No. 26**, by Representative Ken Collins, congratulating, Jake Holmes, for participation in the Junior World Finals Rodeo 12 & under.

**Request No. 27**, by Representative Will Carpenter, congratulating, Goodwill, for their mission work, such as career-oriented adult programs, statewide digital skills training and working with individuals with disabilities.

be approved and the Chief Clerk of the House be directed to order the printing of said certificates and order drafting of said resolutions.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the committee report was adopted.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2597**, AN ACT making and concerning appropriations for fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022, for state agencies; authorizing certain transfers, capital improvement projects and fees, imposing certain restrictions and limitations, and directing or authorizing certain receipts, disbursements, procedures and acts incidental to the foregoing; amending K.S.A. 75-2263, 75-4209, 75-6707, 76-775, 76-7,107, 79-2959, 79-2964, 79-3425i, 79-34,171, 79-4804 and 82a-953a and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-223, 12-1775a, 12-5256, 55-193, 74-50,107 and 74-99b34 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Appropriations.

# REPORT ON ENGROSSED BILLS

**HB 2467** reported correctly engrossed February 6, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Monday, February 10, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# NINETEENTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Monday, February 10, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 119 members present.

Reps. E. Smith and Yeager were excused on verified illness.

Reps. Arnberger, Carmichael, Hodge and Hoffman were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Present later: Rep. Hoffman.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Gracious and Loving Father,
for this new day that You have created,
may our gratitude not be abated.
With matters that could lead to despair,
may we be steadfast with our prayer.
Help our fears and doubt to decrease
as our hope and reliance on You increase.
Help us be a light to those in need,
and may our disagreements not impede.
Please show us Your will and way,
this in Your Name I pray,
Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Gartner.

# INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Highland are spread upon the Journal:

I am honored to bring before you today the Wabaunsee Lady Chargers Volleyball State 2A Champions for 2019. They had a goal from the very beginning of the season to win state after placing second the year before. They were determined to be back in that championship game again. The team kept calm and confident when they were down 8 points in the very final set and came back scoring 17 points to be named the champions. This was a great achievement and we look forward to many more for the Lady Chargers.

Sen. Jeff Longbine joined Rep. Highland in recognizing the following guests: Coach Tracy Capoun and players: Laurel Barber, Alexis Hafenstine, Megan Strait, Macy Falk, Madisyn Wertzberger, Jordan Magette, Kara Hafenstine, Lauren Schutter. Also in the gallery are players: Kaelyn Conrad, Madisyn Havenstein, Sydney Holthaus; and Cathy Smart, Assistant Coach; Karen Wright, Assistant Coach; Cara Miller, Assistant Coach; Jeron Weisharr, Athletic Director; Jan Hutley, Principal and Brad Starnes, Superintendent.

Rep. Highland presented the team with a framed House certificate.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

HB 2598, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to the oversight and regulation of pharmacy benefits managers; the pharmacy benefits managers licensure act; amending K.S.A. 65-16,123, 65-16,124, 65-16,125 and 65-16,126 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-3821, 40-3822, 40-3823, 40-3824, 40-3825, 40-3826, 40-3827, 40-3829 and 40-3830 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Insurance.

**HB 2599**, AN ACT repealing K.S.A. 79-3612; concerning retailers' sales taxes; relating to the sale of a business; purchaser's obligations for unpaid taxes, by Representative Capps.

**HB 2600**, AN ACT concerning contracts for deeds; requiring recording of an affidavit of interest with the register of deeds, by Representative Probst.

**HB 2601**, AN ACT concerning education; relating to childhood immunizations required for child care facility and school attendance; amending K.S.A. 65-508 and 72-6262 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Education.

**HB 2602**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to newborn screening; reimbursement of treatment services; authorizing the secretary of health and environment to specify conditions included in screenings; increasing transfers to the Kansas newborn screening fund; amending K.S.A. 65-180, 65-181 and 65-183 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Health and Human Services.

**HB 2603**, AN ACT concerning behavioral sciences; relating to the behavioral sciences regulatory board; professions regulated thereby; changing licensing requirements; fees; discipline; amending K.S.A. 65-5804a, 65-5809, 65-6311, 65-6404, 65-6408, 65-6610, 65-6615, 74-5324, 74-5363 and 74-5369 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 65-6306 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Health and Human Services.

**HB 2604**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to the Kansas offender registration act; child abuse; aggravated child abandonment; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-4902 and 22-4906 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Helmer.

**HB 2605**, AN ACT enacting the fairness in condemnation act; imposing certain duties on the plaintiff condemning authority; notice and opportunity for negotiation, by Representative Warren.

**HB 2606**, AN ACT concerning the offices of the state treasurer and the commissioner of insurance; relating to the filling of a vacancy; amending K.S.A. 25-101b and 40-106 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Elections.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: **HB 2594, HB 2597**. Federal and State Affairs: **HB 2596**. General Government Budget: **HB 2595**. Judiciary: **HB 2589, HB 2590, HB 2591**.

Taxation: **HB 2593**. Transportation: **HB 2592**.

# MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

February 6, 2020

Message to the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Directive No. 20-512 for your information.

# **EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE No. 20-512**

Concerning Authorizing Personnel Transactions

Laura Kelly Governor

The above Executive Directive is on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

# CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to **HB 2466** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the third day. The bill was advanced to Final Action on Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

# FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

**HB 2466**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; enacting the Kansas taxpayer protection act; relating to paid tax return preparers; requiring a signature and tax identification number on returns and claims; authorizing actions by the secretary of revenue to enjoin certain conduct, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 118; Nays 1; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 6.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes,

Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu.

Nays: Rhiley.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Arnberger, Carmichael, Hodge, Hoffman, Smith, E., Yeager. The bill passed.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2607**, AN ACT concerning property taxation; relating to primary residential property; providing for a property tax installment payment plan; amending K.S.A. 79-2004 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

# **COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES**

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Rep. Carpenter to replace Rep. Sutton on Committee on Appropriations on Feb 11, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Tuesday, February 11, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# TWENTIETH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 122 members present.

Rep. E. Smith was excused on verified illness.

Reps. Claeys and Winn were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

All-loving God,
we come before You this morning
once again requesting Your mercy, grace, wisdom and guidance.
I ask that You grant Your spirit of peace, integrity and justice
as they debate and vote to make decisions.
Keep their ears and hearts open to what the people
they represent express as their hope and desire.
Give each one added strength and good health
as the days tend to get busier and longer.
Encourage their hearts as they faithfully
fulfill the great responsibility given to them.
May all that is said and done in the course of this day
bring glory and honor to You.
In Your Name I pray, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Dietrich.

# INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Humphries and Rep. Ballard are spread upon the Journal:

I am pleased to co-sponsor this recognition today, February 11, 2020, as JAG-K Day at the Capitol with Representative Barbara Ballard, who is a member of the JAG-K Board of Directors along with Senator Bud Estes.

Most of the members of this body are familiar with Jobs for America's Graduates-Kansas and their remarkable outcomes.

- JAG-K focuses on student success. Following graduation, 90% of our JAG-K students are in post-secondary education, training, military service, in the workforce with marketable skills or a combination of all of those. They are 230% more likely to have a full-time job compared to other graduates. JAG-K graduation rate is 97% in Kansas.
- JAG-K teaches students skills they need to be successful regardless of their chosen career path. They gain confidence by learning leadership and career development skills through the required JAG competencies.
- JAG-K provides accountability. They report their performance measures quarterly and their expenses monthly.

JAG-K is an outstanding program, and it is an honor to recognize Chuck Knapp, President and CEO of JAG-K, and students from across the state. Students on the floor include: Ken Smith, Marshall Perryman, Kenny Sanders, Eduardo Picaso, Grant Cornell, Armando Felipe, Melanie Sotelo, Aalana Samuels and Alejandra Quinones. Other students to be recognized are in the East Gallery. Also joining us on the Floor this morning is JAG-K Senior Vice President Bev Mortimer.

This year marks the 40th Anniversary of JAG nationally, so we are also pleased to recognize JAG National President and co-founder Ken Smith.

Thank you for joining us in recognizing JAG-K Day at the Capitol.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2608**, AN ACT concerning funeral processions; relating to the regulation thereof; violations for not yielding the right-of-way to funeral processions; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-2118 and repealing the existing section; also repealing K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-2118c, by Representative Pittman.

**HB 2609**, AN ACT concerning veterans; relating to the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office; requiring the director to submit an initial application for a state veterans home construction grant to the United States department of veterans affairs, by Representatives Pittman, Croft, Ellis and Weigel.

**HB 2610**, AN ACT concerning the issuance of certain bonds; relating to the construction of a state veterans home; providing for the powers, duties and functions of the Kansas development finance authority and the department of administration, by Representatives Pittman, Croft, Ellis and Weigel.

HB 2611, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to expungement; automatically expunging certain convictions; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-4516 and 21-6614 and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Cox, Curtis, Finney, Hoheisel, Samsel and Stogsdill.

**HB 2612**, AN ACT concerning political advertising; relating to endorsement of candidates and office holders; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-4156 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Holscher, Finney, Gartner, Henderson, Kuether, Lusk, Neighbor, Samsel, Winn and Woodard.

**HB 2613**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to sports officials; creating the crime of harassment of a sports official and providing penalties therefor, by Representatives Samsel and Lynn.

- **HB 2614**, AN ACT concerning transportation network companies; requiring transportation network drivers to display official trade dress in vehicles; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-2702 and 8-2712 and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Holscher, Barker, Delperdang, Finney, Gartner, Henderson, Kuether, Neighbor, Samsel, Winn and Woodard.
- **HB 2615**, AN ACT concerning the state board of tax appeals; relating to appeals; creating a mediation process; removing the small claims and expedited hearings division process; amending K.S.A. 74-2433f, 74-2433g and 79-1448 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Croft.
- **HB 2616**, AN ACT concerning sales and compensating use tax; relating to food and food ingredients; definitions; implementing a formulaic adjustment to rate of tax; amending K.S.A. 79-3602, 79-3603, 79-3620, 79-3703 and 79-3710 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Croft.
- **HB 2617**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to income tax, rates; sales and compensating use tax, providing for sales tax exemptions for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products, authorizing local sales tax on food and food ingredients; amending K.S.A. 79-32,110, 79-3602 and 79-3606 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-189a and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Highberger and Horn.
- HB 2618, AN ACT concerning broadband deployment; relating to the department of commerce, office of broadband deployment; establishing the state broadband deployment grant program, by Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications.
- **HB 2619**, AN ACT concerning retirement and pensions; relating to the Kansas public employees retirement system; adjusting the frequency of the actuarial experience study; amending K.S.A. 74-4908 and 74-4908a and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions.
- **HB 2620**, AN ACT concerning consumer protection; relating to telecommunications spoofing; prohibiting the use or offering of technology that transmits inaccurate caller identification information, by Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications.
- **HB 2621**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism; authorizing the purchase of land in Kingman county, by Committee on Agriculture.
- **HB 2622**, AN ACT relating to wildlife; concerning poaching of certain animals; penalties, by Committee on Agriculture.
- **HB 2623**, AN ACT concerning energy; relating to electric generation; solar power; state biological survey; establishing requirements for pollinator-friendly solar sites; amending K.S.A. 74-6607 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Agriculture.
- **HB 2624**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to distinctive license plates; allowing distinctive license plates to be personalized license plates; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1,141 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Transportation.
- **HB 2625**, AN ACT concerning paper or plastic carryout bags and other single-use plastic items; prohibiting the regulation of such items by municipalities, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2599, HB 2605.

Education: **HB 2601**. Elections: **HB 2606**.

Health and Human Services: HB 2602, HB 2603.

Insurance: HB 2598. Judiciary: HB 2604.

Local Government: HB 2600.

Taxation: HB 2607.

# REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice recommends HB 2456, HB 2493 be passed.

Committee on **Corrections and Juvenile Justice** recommends **HB 2469** be amended on page 1, in line 11, by striking "90" and inserting "120"; in line 17, by striking "90" and inserting "120"; in line 26, by striking "90" and inserting "120"; in line 36, by striking "90" and inserting "120";

On page 2, in line 22, by striking "90" and inserting "120"; and the bill be passed as amended

Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice recommends HB 2484 be amended on page 1, in line 31, by striking "50% of the prison part of the sentence" and inserting ":

- (i) 25% of the prison part of the sentence for a person felony; and
- (ii) 40% of the prison part of the sentence for a nonperson felony";

On page 2, in line 41, by striking "120" and inserting "150";

On page 3, in line 26, by striking "or wrongful";

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, after the second semicolon by inserting "program credits;"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions recommends HB 2452 be passed.

Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions recommends HB 2503 be reported without recommendation.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2626**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to the determination of Kansas taxable income; providing for an increase in the Kansas standard deduction and personal exemption; amending K.S.A. 79-32,119 and 79-32,121 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Toplikar.

**HB 2627**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to credits; expenditures to make principal dwelling accessible to persons with a disability; amending K.S.A. 79-32.176a and repealing the existing section, by Representative Toplikar.

- **HB 2628**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to deductions; providing that individuals may elect the Kansas itemized deduction; amending K.S.A. 79-32,120 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Toplikar.
- **HB 2629**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to the Kansas department for aging and disability services; regulation of supplemental nursing services agencies, by Committee on Children and Seniors.
- **HB 2630**, AN ACT concerning health professions and practices; relating to the regulation of dentists; Kansas dental board; disciplinary action; licensure; updating certain provisions of the Kansas dental practices act; amending K.S.A. 65-1430 and 65-1467 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Health and Human Services.
- **HB 2631**, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to pharmacy benefits managers; the federal 340B drug pricing program; prohibiting disparate treatment of certain pharmacies and pharmaceutical services providers, by Committee on Health and Human Services.
- **HB 2632**, AN ACT concerning smoking cessation aids; authorizing the sale thereof to certain individuals, by Committee on Health and Human Services.
- **HB 2633**, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to health benefit plans that provide dental services; health insurers that directly offer dental services; establishing requirements relating to information disclosure, claims processing and reimbursement, by Committee on Health and Human Services.

#### COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Sutton to replace Rep. Claeys on Committee on Appropriations on Feb 11, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Parker to replace Rep. Carlin on Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources Budget on Feb 11, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Resman to replace Rep. Highland on Committee on Rural Revitalization on Feb 12, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Highland to replace Rep. Resman on Committee on Federal and State Affairs on February 12, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, February 12, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# TWENTY-FIRST DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 123 members present.

Rep. Corbet was excused on verified illness.

Rep. Wasinger was excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Almighty God in heaven,
please look down upon us today with favor.
There are many paradoxes in Your Word
that can give insight for our leaders.
When they are weak, they gain strength.
When they are foolish for Your sake,
they become wise.
To be victorious, they must first surrender.
To become leaders, they must be followers.
To become the greatest, they must first become the least.
They can find rest being under Your yoke.
And help them to understand that by giving, they will receive.
I pray that we all may learn these truths.
Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Highland.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills and concurrent resolutions were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2634**, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to motor vehicle liability insurance coverage; removing minimum fine requirement; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-3104 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Hodge.

**HB 2635**, AN ACT concerning firearms; relating to the sale of firearms and ammunition; imposing a privilege tax on the sale thereof, by Representative Stogsdill.

**HB 2636**, AN ACT concerning firearms; relating to criminal possession, manufacturing or selling of large capacity ammunition magazines and criminal carrying of handguns with large capacity ammunition magazines; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6301 and 21-6302 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Stogsdill.

- **HB 2637**, AN ACT concerning employment practices; prohibiting employers and employment agencies from requiring or using compensation history of job applicants; amending K.S.A. 44-1009 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Neighbor.
- **HB 2638**, AN ACT concerning the university of Kansas school of medicine; relating to the medical student loan program; medical residency bridging program; loan assistance; promoting the practice of obstetrics and gynecology in medically underserved areas; amending K.S.A. 76-381, 76-383 and 76-387 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 76-386a, by Representatives Xu and Lynn.
- **HB 2639**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to exemptions; crisis pregnancy centers; amending K.S.A. 79-3606 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Waggoner.
- **HB 2640**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to credits; establishing a credit for the practice of carbon farming; prescribing certain duties on the secretary of agriculture, by Representative Xu.
- **HB 2641**, AN ACT concerning marriage; relating to the recognition of marriages; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 23-2501, 23-2504 and 23-2508 and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Ruiz, S. and Woodard.
- HB 2642, AN ACT concerning employment security law; relating to the maximum benefit eligibility period; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-704 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Hoheisel, Bergquist, Bishop, Burris, Capps, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Delperdang, Erickson, Finney, Helgerson, Helmer, Hodge, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Landwehr, Moore, Ohaebosim, Owens, Probst, Rhiley, Sawyer, Seiwert, Victors, Ward, K. Williams and Yeager.
- **HB 2643**, AN ACT concerning employment; relating to unlawful employment practices; discussion or disclosure of wages; civil action, by Representative Ruiz, S..
- **HB 2644**, AN ACT enacting the Kansas paid family leave act; concerning paid family leave for covered individuals; notice required by employers; establishing the family and medical leave insurance fund, by Representative Horn.
- **HB 2645**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to healing arts licensees; unprofessional conduct; pelvic, rectal or prostate exams; amending K.S.A. 65-2837 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Xu.
- **HB 2646**, AN ACT concerning the attorney general; requiring coordination of training on missing and murdered indigenous people, by Representative Victors.
- **HB 2647**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas sexually violent predator act; relating to notice of release of a person who may be a sexually violent predator to the attorney general and multidisciplinary team; time; detention during proceedings; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 59-29a03 and 59-29a05 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Judiciary.
- **HB 2648**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to credits; adjusting the credit and income amounts for the income tax credit for purchases of food in this state; amending K.S.A. 79-32,271 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Toplikar.
- **HB 2649**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to personalized license plates; providing for the availability and use of the wheelchair emblem decal; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1,125 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Warren.

- **HB 2650**, AN ACT concerning days of commemoration; designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas, by Representatives Pittman, Arnberger, Croft, French, Gartner, Lynn, Neighbor, Ruiz, S., Warfield, Wasinger, Weigel and Xu.
- **HB 2651**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to abuse of a child; aggravated abuse of a child; penalties; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5602 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Pittman.
- **HB 2652**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to criminal possession of a weapon by a convicted felon; definition of knife; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6304 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.
- **HB 2653**, AN ACT concerning amusement rides; relating to the Kansas amusement ride act; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-1601, 44-1602, 44-1603, 44-1605, 44-1610, 44-1616, 44-1618 and 44-1620 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-1609, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.
- **HB 2654**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to exemptions; SOAR special needs; amending K.S.A. 79-3606 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2655**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to exemptions; friends of hospice of Jefferson county; amending K.S.A. 79-3606 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2656**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to countywide retailers' sales tax; discontinuing apportionment of revenue received for general purposes between the county and cities located therein; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-192 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2657**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to sales and compensating use taxes; requiring collection and remittance by marketplace facilitators; nexus; amending K.S.A. 79-3702 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2658**, AN ACT concerning health and welfare; relating to prescription medication; establishing the affordable prescription drug importation program, by Representative Ward.
- **HB 2659**, AN ACT concerning elections; amending the mail ballot election act; concerning time frame for counting ballots; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-433 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Elections.
- **HB 2660**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to family planning; requiring the department of health and environment to make long-acting reversible contraceptives more accessible, by Representative Parker.
- **HB 2661**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to pharmacies; requiring pharmacies to make contraceptives available to customers, by Representative Parker.
- **HB 2662**, AN ACT concerning energy efficiency; creating the energy efficiency benchmark act; relating to state-owned buildings and privately owned buildings; relating to the department of health and environment; establishing state energy reduction targets, by Representative Parker.

- **HB 2663**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to the practice of medicine and surgery; allowing physicians to decide whether to provide patients with certain information based on the physician's medical judgment; enacting the protect physician integrity from political interference act, by Representative Parker.
- **HB 2664**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to sexual assault survivors; requiring certain entities to provide information to sexual assault survivors, by Representative Parker.
- **HB 2665**, AN ACT establishing the Kansas paid sick leave act; concerning employer obligation to pay sick leave; relating to employee or employee's family member's illness; sick leave carryover. , by Representative Parker.
- **HB 2666**, AN ACT concerning employment practices; prohibiting employers from taking adverse employment action against an employee based on employee's reproductive medical history; medical decisions; amending K.S.A. 44-1009 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-1002 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Parker.
- **HB 2667**, AN ACT concerning law enforcement agencies; relating to officer-involved deaths; adoption of policies requiring investigations and reports of officer-involved deaths, by Representatives Croft and Resman.
- **HB 2668**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to income tax; establishing the property tax relief act, residential property tax refunds; providing for an expiration of the selective assistance for effective senior relief credit and homestead property tax refund; amending K.S.A. 79-32,263 and 79-4508 and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Croft, Esau, Lynn, Tarwater and Warren.
- **HB 2669**, AN ACT concerning animals; relating to threatened and endangered species; the listing of such species; amending K.S.A. 32-960 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Agriculture.
- **HB 2670**, AN ACT concerning health professions and practices; relating to audiologists and speech-language pathologists; licensure; enacting the audiology and speech-language pathology interstate compact, by Representative Concannon.

# HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. HCR 5021-

By Representatives S. Ruiz and Woodard

HCR 5021—A PROPOSITION to repeal section 16 of article 15 of the constitution of the state of Kansas; relating to marriage.

Be it resolved by the Legislature of the State of Kansas, two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House of Representatives and two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the Senate concurring therein:

- Section 1. The following proposition to amend the constitution of the state of Kansas shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the state for their approval or rejection: Section 16 of article 15 of the constitution of the state of Kansas is hereby repealed.
- Sec. 2. The following statement shall be printed on the ballot with the amendment as a whole:
- "Explanatory statement. This amendment would repeal section 16 of article 15 of the constitution of the state of Kansas in its entirety. This section currently provides that marriage is constituted by one man and one woman only.
- "A vote for this proposition would repeal section 16 of article 15 of the constitution of the state of Kansas in its entirety.

"A vote against this proposition would leave section 16 of article 15 of the constitution of the state of Kansas as it currently exists."

Sec. 3. This resolution, if approved by two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House of Representatives, and two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the Senate shall be entered on the journals, together with the yeas and nays. The secretary of state shall cause this resolution to be published as provided by law and shall cause the proposed amendment to be submitted to the electors of the state at the general election in November in the year 2020, unless a special election is called at a sooner date by concurrent resolution of the legislature, in which case it shall be submitted to the electors of the state at the special election.

# HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. HCR 5022—

By Representatives Xu, Ballard, Bishop, Clayton, Finney, Gartner, Highberger, Holscher, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, S. Ruiz, Stogsdill, Victors, Warfield, Winn and Woodard

HCR 5022—A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION recognizing that the current global climate crisis demands a massive mobilization to address, halt and reverse its causes and prevent its consequences.

WHEREAS, 2019 was the second hottest year on record according to the National Aeronautics and Space Administration and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration; and

WHEREAS, The preceding years, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, are the four other hottest years to date, and the 20 warmest years on record have occurred within the past 22 years. Additionally, 2010 through 2019 was the hottest decade ever recorded; and

WHEREAS, Global atmospheric concentrations of the primary heat-trapping gas, carbon dioxide, have increased by 40% since pre-industrial times, primarily due to human activity such as the burning of fossil fuels and deforestation; and

WHEREAS, Current climate science and real-world observations of climate change impacts, including ocean warming, ocean acidification, floods, droughts, wildfires and extreme weather, demonstrate that a global rise in temperature is now dangerously affecting human populations and the environment; and

WHEREAS, The 2018 National Climate Assessment reported that climate change has caused and is expected to cause additional, substantial interference with infrastructure, property, industry, recreation, natural resources, agricultural systems, health, safety and the quality of life; and

WHEREAS, The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration has determined that climate change is already increasing the frequency of extreme weather and other climate-related disasters including drought, wildfire and storms; and

WHEREAS, Climate change is also a significant threat to health, causing temperature-related

deaths and illnesses, air quality impacts, extreme weather events, vector-borne diseases, waterborne illnesses, food safety, nutrition and distribution complications, and behavioral and mental health

concerns: and

WHEREAS, Climate change holds grave and immediate consequences not just for Kansans but for communities across the world; and

WHEREAS, Communities in rural, urban and suburban areas are all dramatically affected by

climate change, although the specific economic, health, social and environmental impacts may vary; and

WHEREAS, Consequences of climate change disproportionately impact already vulnerable

communities, such as children, the elderly and individuals with pre-existing disabilities and health conditions; and

WHEREAS, Individuals and families experiencing income inequality and poverty, institutional racism, gender and sexual orientation inequity, poor infrastructure, lack of access to healthcare, housing, clean water and food security, particularly communities of color, indigenous communities and low-income communities, are often closest in proximity to environmental stressors or sources of pollution; and

WHEREAS, These communities experience immense risk due to their proximity to environmental hazards and stressors, waste and other sources of pollution, are often the first exposed to the impacts of climate change, and have the fewest resources to mitigate those impacts or to relocate; and

WHEREAS, A response to the climate crisis requires just, fair and equitable community transition policies and processes that should be available to all communities, and should be rooted in principles of racial equity, self-determination and democracy, as well as in the fundamental human right to clean air and water, healthy food, adequate land, education and shelter; and

WHEREAS, The Department of State and the Department of Defense have identified climate change as a threat to national security, and the Department of Homeland Security views climate change as a top homeland security risk; and

WHEREAS, Climate change exacerbates many of the challenges Kansas and the United States face; and

WHEREAS, In Kansas and across the United States, massive, comprehensive and urgent governmental action is needed to respond to the severe existing and projected economic, social, public health and national security threats posed by the climate crisis; and

WHEREAS, Stabilizing the climate will require a massive scope and scale of action involving unprecedented levels of public awareness, unwaivering support and engagement, and focused deliberation that will ensure the development and implementation of effective, just, fair and equitable policies; and

WHEREAS, There is a great opportunity to create jobs in Kansas and across the United States that will address the climate crisis and will redound to a strong and viable economic future; and

WHEREAS, A number of local jurisdictions and governments in the United States and across the world have already declared a climate crisis, while some state and local governments are considering declaring a climate crisis; and

WHEREAS, Individuals in vulnerable communities must be equitably and actively engaged and prioritized in local climate mitigation planning, policy and program; and

WHEREAS, State, local, and tribal governments must be supported in their efforts to address the climate crisis, to develop a fossil fuel-free economy and to make accountable those whose activities have accelerated the climate crisis and who have benefited from delayed action; and

WHEREAS, Reversing the impacts of the climate crisis requires a collaborative response among federal, state and local governments; and

WHEREAS, As a driver of accelerated climate change, Kansas has an obligation to mobilize at crisis speed its government and citizenry to restore a safe climate and environment not just for our state but for communities across the United States and the globe, particularly for the young who have contributed the least to the crisis: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas, the Senate concurring therein: That we recognize that the current global climate crisis demands a massive mobilization to address, halt and reverse its causes and prevent its consequences; and

Be it further resolved: That the Secretary of the State of Kansas shall send an enrolled copy of this resolution to Representative Xu.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Agriculture: HB 2621, HB 2622, HB 2623.

Children and Seniors: HB 2629.

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2625.

Elections: HB 2612.

Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications: HB 2618, HB 2620.

Financial Institutions and Pensions: HB 2619.

Health and Human Services: HB 2630, HB 2631, HB 2632, HB 2633.

Judiciary: HB 2611, HB 2613.

Social Services Budget: HB 2609, HB 2610.

Taxation: HB 2615, HB 2616, HB 2617, HB 2626, HB 2627, HB 2628.

Transportation: HB 2608, HB 2614, HB 2624.

# REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends HB 2507 be amended on page 1, in line 6, after "(1)" by inserting "If a school district has purchased applicable insurance coverage pursuant to K.S.A. 72-18,101 or 72-18,102, and amendments thereto, then"; in line 11, after "(2)" by inserting "If a school district has purchased applicable insurance coverage pursuant to K.S.A. 72-18,101 or 72-18,102, and amendments thereto, then"; by striking all in lines 17 through 21; in line 25, by striking "student" and inserting "school district"; in line 26, after "program" by inserting "at the business or worksite"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends HB 2515 be amended on page 1, in line 11, by striking "or"; in line 12, by striking "a" and inserting "any"; also in line 12, after "state" by inserting ";

- (C) the Washburn institute of technology; or
- (D) any two-year associate degree program or career and technical education program offered by a private postsecondary educational institution accredited by the higher learning commission with its primary location in Kansas.
- (2) "Military servicemember" means the same as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 48-3406, and amendments thereto";

Also on page 1, in line 23, after the second "a" by inserting "career and"; in line 24, by striking "certificate"; also in line 24, after "or" by inserting "transfer"; in line 26, after the second comma by inserting "or municipal university"; in line 27, after "institution" by inserting "or municipal university";

On page 2, in line 10, after "(1)" by inserting "Work with community partners, such as community foundations, school districts, postsecondary educational institutions, Kansas business and industry and Kansas economic development organizations to"; in line 19, after "fields" by inserting "and pathways"; in line 21, after "scholarshipeligible" by inserting "career and technical programs and transfer"; in line 22, after "fields" by inserting "and pathways"; in line 30, before "Subject" by inserting "(a)"; in line 36, after the period by inserting "Aid includes any grant, scholarship or financial assistance awards that do not require repayment. During any fiscal year, the appropriation pursuant to this section shall not exceed \$10,000,000.

(b) If a student is enrolled in an eligible postsecondary education program offered by a four-year eligible postsecondary educational institution, the aggregate amount of tuition, mandatory fees and the cost of books and materials for such eligible postsecondary education program shall be the average cost of tuition, mandatory fees and the cost of books and materials for such eligible postsecondary education program when offered by an eligible public postsecondary educational institution that is not a four-year institution.";

Also on page 2, in line 41, after "certificate" by inserting "within the preceding 12 months. This paragraph shall not apply to a student who is a dependent child of a military servicemember permanently stationed in another state who graduates from a postsecondary school or obtains a high school equivalency certificate within the preceding 12 months";

On page 3, in line 7, after "scholarship-eligible" by inserting "career and"; in line 8, after "program" by inserting "with coursework in an identified job field that corresponds to a baccalaureate degree program"; in line 12, by striking all before "throughout" and inserting "verified by the eligible postsecondary educational institution to be employed part-time"; in line 25, by striking "Engage" and inserting "Enroll"; also in line 25, after "student" by inserting "at the eligible postsecondary educational institution for which the student is receiving a Kansas promise scholarship and engage"; also in line 25, after "required" by inserting "career and"; in line 26, by striking "certificate"; also in line 26, by striking "of the"; by striking all in line 27; in line 28, by striking all before the semicolon and inserting "with coursework in an identified job field that corresponds to a baccalaureate degree program"; in line 29, after "the" by inserting "career and"; in line 30, by striking "certificate"; also in line 30, after the second "program" by inserting "with coursework in an identified job field that corresponds to a baccalaureate degree program"; in line 34, after "Kansas" by inserting "and upon graduation or failure to re-enroll as a full-time student at such institution, commence work in Kansas for at least two consecutive years following the completion of such program";

On page 4, following line 35, by inserting:

"Sec. 6. On and after July 1, 2025, no Kansas promise scholarship shall be awarded to any student who has not previously been awarded a Kansas promise scholarship prior to July 1, 2025.";

And by renumbering sections accordingly; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **K-12 Education Budget** recommends **HB 2465** be amended on page 1, in line 27, by striking "in effect on January 1, 2020";

On page 2, following line 31, by inserting:

- "Sec. 2. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-4354 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-4354. (a) To be eligible to participate in the program, a scholarship granting organization shall comply with the following:
- (1) The scholarship granting organization shall notify the secretary and the state board of the scholarship granting organization's intent to provide educational scholarships;
- (2) upon granting an educational scholarship, the scholarship granting organization shall report such information to the state board;
- (3) the scholarship granting organization shall provide verification to the secretary that the scholarship granting organization is exempt from federal income taxation pursuant to section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986;
- (4) upon receipt of contributions in an aggregate amount or value in excess of \$50,000 during a school year, a scholarship granting organization shall file with the state board either:
- (A) A surety bond payable to the state in an amount equal to the aggregate amount of contributions expected to be received during the school year; or
- (B) financial information demonstrating the scholarship granting organization's ability to pay an aggregate amount equal to the amount of the contributions expected to be received during the school year, which must be reviewed and approved of in writing by the state board:
- (5) scholarship granting organizations that provide other nonprofit services in addition to providing educational scholarships shall not commingle contributions made under the program with other contributions made to such organization. A scholarship granting organization under this subsection shall also file with the state board, prior to the commencement of each school year, either:
- (A) A surety bond payable to the state in an amount equal to the aggregate amount of contributions expected to be received during the school year; or
- (B) financial information demonstrating the nonprofit organization's ability to pay an aggregate amount equal to the amount of the contributions expected to be received during the school year, which must be reviewed and approved of in writing by the state board;
- (6) each qualified school receiving educational scholarships from the scholarship granting organization shall annually certify to the scholarship granting organization its compliance with the requirements of the program;
- (7) at the end of the calendar year, the scholarship granting organization shall have its accounts examined and audited by a certified public accountant. Such audit shall include, but not be limited to, information verifying that the educational scholarships awarded by the scholarship granting organization were distributed to qualified schools

with respect to eligible students determined by the state board under K.S.A. 72-4353(c), and amendments thereto, and information specified in this section. Prior to filing a copy of the audit with the state board, such audit shall be duly verified and certified by a certified public accountant; and

- (8) if a scholarship granting organization decides to limit the number or type of qualified schools who will receive educational scholarships, the scholarship granting organization shall provide, in writing, the name or names of those qualified schools to any contributor and the state board.
- (b) No scholarship granting organization shall provide an educational scholarship with respect to any eligible student to attend any qualified school with paid staff or paid board members, or relatives thereof, in common with the scholarship granting organization.
- (c) The scholarship granting organization shall disburse not less than 90% of contributions received pursuant to the program in the form of educational scholarships within 36 months of receipt of such contributions. If such contributions have not been disbursed within the applicable 36-month time period, then the scholarship granting organization shall not accept new contributions until 90% of the received contributions have been disbursed in the form of educational scholarships. Any income earned from contributions must be disbursed in the form of educational scholarships.
- (d) A scholarship granting organization may continue to provide an educational scholarship with respect to a student who was an eligible student in the year immediately preceding the current school year.
- (e)—(1) A scholarship granting organization shall direct payments of educational scholarships to the qualified school attended by the eligible student or in which the eligible student is enrolled. Payment may be made by check made payable to both the parent and the qualified school or to only the qualified school. If an eligible student transfers to a new qualified school during a school year, the scholarship granting organization shall direct payment in a prorated amount to the original qualified school and the new qualified school based on the eligible student's attendance. If the eligible student transfers to a public school and enrolls in such public school after September 20 of the current school year, the scholarship granting organization shall direct payment in a prorated amount to the original qualified school and the public school based on the eligible student's attendance. The prorated amount to the public school shall be considered a donation and shall be paid to the school district of such public school in accordance with K.S.A. 72-1142, and amendments thereto.
- (2) As used in this subsection, the term "public school" means any school operated by a school district.
- (f) Each qualified school shall provide a link to the state department of education's webpage where the reports prepared pursuant to K.S.A. 72-5170, and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5178, and amendments thereto, for such school are published. The link shall be prominently displayed on the school's accountability reports webpage.
- (g) By June 1 of each year, a scholarship granting organization shall submit a report to the state board for the educational scholarships provided in the immediately preceding 12 months. Such report shall be in a form and manner as prescribed by the state board, approved and signed by a certified public accountant, and shall contain the following information:

- (1) The name and address of the scholarship granting organization;
- (2) the name and address of each eligible student with respect to whom an educational scholarship was awarded by the scholarship granting organization;
- (3) the total number and total dollar amount of contributions received during the 12-month reporting period; and
- (4) the total number and total dollar amount of educational scholarships awarded during the 12-month reporting period and the total number and total dollar amount of educational scholarships awarded during the 12-month reporting period with respect to eligible students who qualified under K.S.A. 72-4352(d), and amendments thereto.

(g)(h) No scholarship granting organization shall:

- (1) Provide an educational scholarship with respect to an eligible student that is established by funding from any contributions made by any relative of such eligible student; or
- (2) accept a contribution from any source with the express or implied condition that such contribution be directed toward an educational scholarship for a particular eligible student.
- Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5178 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-5178. (a) On or before January 15 of each year, the state department of education shall prepare and submit a performance accountability report and a longitudinal achievement report for all students enrolled in public school or accredited nonpublic school in the state, each school district—and, each school operated by a school district\_and each accredited nonpublic school to the governor and to the legislature.
- (b) Each performance accountability report shall be prepared in a single-page format containing the information that is required to be reported under the federal elementary and secondary education act, as amended by the federal every student succeeds act, public law 114-95, or any successor federal acts, and the college and career readiness metrics developed and implemented by the state board. The report shall use the categories for achievement identified under the federal every student succeeds act, public law 114-95, or any successor achievement categories. All categories and metrics included in the report shall be clearly defined.
- (c) Each longitudinal achievement report shall provide the achievement rates on the state assessments for English language arts, math and science for all students and each student subgroup and the change in achievement rate year-over-year starting with the school year in which the state board first implemented new achievement standards on such state assessments.
- (d) All reports prepared pursuant to this section shall be published in accordance with K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-1181, and amendments thereto.";

Also on page 2, in line 32, by striking "is" and inserting ", 72-4354 and 72-5178 are"; And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, after "72-4352" by inserting ", 72-4354 and 72-5178"; in line 4, by striking "section" and inserting "sections"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Rural Revitalization** recommends **HB 2527** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **HB 2524** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

The Committee on **Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications** recommends to the House the disapproval of **ERO 46** and the introduction and adoption of the House resolution that accompanies this report.

HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6031-

By Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

**HR 6031**—A RESOLUTION disapproving executive reorganization order no. 46 that establishes the Kansas energy office.

A RESOLUTION disapproving Executive Reorganization Order No. 46, establishing the Kansas energy office and transferring the powers, duties and functions of the energy division of the state corporation commission as described in K.S.A. 74-616(a) through (d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125 and 75-37,129 to the Kansas energy office.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the state of Kansas: That Executive Reorganization Order No. 46 is hereby disapproved in accordance with Section 6 of Article 1 of the Constitution of the State of Kansas; and

Be it further resolved: That the chief clerk of the house of representatives shall transmit a copy of this resolution to the governor and the secretary of state; and

*Be it further resolved:* That the secretary of state shall cause this resolution to be published in the session laws to show permanently the disapproval of Executive Reorganization Order No. 46 by the House of Representatives.

HR 6031 was introduced and read by title.

The Committee on **Appropriations** recommends to the House the disapproval of **ERO No. 44** and the introduction and adoption of the House resolution that accompanies this report.

HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6032-

By Committee on Appropriations

**HR 6032**—A RESOLUTION disapproving executive reorganization order no. 44 that relates to the newly named Kansas department of human services.

A RESOLUTION disapproving Executive Reorganization Order No. 44, renaming the Kansas department for children and families the Kansas department of human services; abolishing the Kansas department for aging and disability services and transferring powers, duties and functions to the Kansas department of human services; and transferring the powers, duties and functions of the department of corrections regarding the juvenile services program and certain juvenile facilities and institutions to the Kansas department of human services.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That Executive Reorganization Order No. 44 is hereby disapproved in accordance with Section 6 of Article 1 of the Constitution of the State of Kansas; and

Be it further resolved: That the chief clerk of the house of representatives shall transmit a copy of this resolution to the governor and the secretary of state; and

*Be it further resolved:* That the secretary of state shall cause this resolution to be published in the session laws to show permanently the disapproval of Executive Reorganization Order No. 44 by the House of Representatives.

HR 6032 was introduced and read by title.

#### COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Parker to replace Rep. Carmichael on Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice on February 13, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Carmichael to replace Rep. Murnan on Committee on Health and Human Services on February 13, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Ward to replace Rep. Henderson on Health and Human Services on February 13, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Henderson to replace Rep. Ward on Committee on Education on February 13, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Bishop to replace Rep. Lusk on Committee on Federal and State Affairs on February 13, 2020.

# REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HR 6030 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on February 12, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Thursday, February 13, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# TWENTY-SECOND DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Thursday, February 13, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 123 members present.

Rep. Corbet was excused on verified illness.

Rep. Neighbor was excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Rev. Marsha Haney, Pastor, Bethany United Methodist Church and Cedar Chapel United Methodist Church, Wichita, and guest of Rep. Finney:

Almighty Creator, eternal gift to all creation, we welcome your presence in this meeting today.

Lord we thank you, and we pray for all persons who serve and lead our country and State as government leaders, along with their families. We thank you for all government staff and all government workers throughout this building. Thank you for their hard work and dedication to their calling and purpose in life. We ask for your divine peace, protection, wisdom, brilliant strategy, and cutting-edge vision as we move forward in making Kansas one of the leading states in the Union: a state people want to call home. Lord, we ask your guidance for all government leaders as they make major decisions that will affect all families across the State of Kansas in a negative or positive way. Lord, help our leaders to do no harm to families, and to each other. Help our elected leaders to do good for all humankind, and most of all, help our leadership to stay in love with God. We ask these blessings in the name of Jehovah-Shalom.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Patton.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2671**, AN ACT concerning gaming; relating to the Kansas expanded lottery act; authorizing sports wagering; amending K.S.A. 46-2301, 74-8702, 74-8710, 74-8711, 74-8716, 74-8718, 74-8733, 74-8734, 74-8741, 74-8751, 74-8752, 74-8757, 74-8760, 74-8761, 75-6202, 75-6204, 75-6217 and 79-4806 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6403 and 21-6507 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

**HB 2672**, AN ACT concerning alcoholic beverages; relating to the club and drinking establishment act; authorizing licensees to sell and serve cereal malt beverages; amending K.S.A. 41-2604 and 41-2619 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-1201, 41-1202, 41-1203, 41-1204, 41-2601, 41-2608, 41-2610, 41-2611, 41-2613, 41-2614, 41-2623, 41-2637, 41-2641, 41-2642, 41-2643, 41-2653, 41-2655, 41-2658 and 41-2659 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

**HB 2673**, AN ACT concerning the supreme court; relating to original jurisdiction; certain actions related to the health care provider insurance availability act, the healthcare stabilization fund and claims for noneconomic loss in medical malpractice liability actions, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2674**, AN ACT concerning coroners; relating to child death investigations; autopsies; amending K.S.A. 22a-242 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2675**, AN ACT concerning civil actions; relating to the protection from abuse act; extension of orders; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 60-3107 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2676**, AN ACT concerning education; relating to school districts; requiring publication of bullying policies; report on bullying incidents at each attendance center; amending K.S.A. 72-6147 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Education.

**HB 2677**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to hospitals and healthcare-related facilities; establishing primary health centers as a rural healthcare provider type and enacting the primary health center pilot program act contingent upon state acceptance into a demonstration program under the centers for medicare and medicaid innovation; amending K.S.A. 65-425 and 65-431 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Rural Revitalization.

**HB 2678**, AN ACT concerning retirement and pensions; relating to the Kansas police and firemen's retirement system; affiliation of the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism; membership of certain law enforcement officers and employees; employee and employer contributions, by Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills and concurrent resolutions were referred to committees as indicated:

Agriculture: HB 2669.

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2637, HB 2642, HB 2643, HB 2644, HB 2653, HB 2665, HB 2666.

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: HB 2651.

Elections: HB 2659.

Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications: HB 2662.

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2635, HB 2636, HB 2641, HB 2650, HCR 5021, HCR 5022.

Health and Human Services: HB 2638, HB 2645, HB 2658, HB 2660, HB 2661, HB 2663, HB 2664, HB 2670.

Insurance: HB 2634.

Judiciary: HB 2646, HB 2647, HB 2652, HB 2667.

Taxation: HB 2639, HB 2640, HB 2648, HB 2654, HB 2655, HB 2656, HB 2657, HB 2668.

Transportation: HB 2649.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Highberger, **HR 6033**, by Reps. Highberger and Horn, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6033-

by Representatives Highberger and Horn

HR 6033—A RESOLUTION recognizing the  $100^{th}$  Anniversary of the League of Women Voters of the United States.

WHEREAS, On February 14, 1920, the League of Women Voters was founded as a forward-thinking experiment by the foremothers of the suffragist movement at the National American Women Suffrage Association; and

WHEREAS, The League's goal was to help the 20 million women who were granted the right to vote by the 19<sup>th</sup> Amendment understand and carry out their new responsibility as voters; and

WHEREAS, The success of its mission to empower voters and defend democracy, sustained by its tireless work over the last 100 years to uphold and further strengthen the mission, has made the League a trusted nonpartisan, grassroots organization; and

WHEREAS, The League has promoted legislation and fought in court to protect and strengthen voting rights for all Americans. Throughout its 100-year history, it has supported free and fair elections, civil rights, community health, and education; and

WHEREAS, The League has been recognized for providing nonpartisan election information, including sponsorship of candidate forums, for providing information on state and local ballot issues, and for continually reaffirming its commitment to register, educate, and mobilize voters; and

WHEREAS, The League continues to champion government systems that are open, transparent, inclusive, and equitable; and

WHEREAS, The League believes that active and engaged citizens, irrespective of gender, ethnicity, or political affiliation, are the hallmark of democracy: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That we recognize February 14, 2020, as League of Women Voters Day in honor of its 100<sup>th</sup> Anniversary and in recognition of its significant contributions to empowering voters and making democracy work; and

*Be it further resolved:* That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send two enrolled copies of this resolution to Representative Highberger.

# INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Highberger are spread upon the Journal:

Thank you for the opportunity to speak to House Resolution 6033 and to help commemorate the 100th anniversary of the founding of the League of Women Voters. I think it is appropriate that we celebrate the 100th Anniversary of the League as we also celebrate the 100th anniversary of the adoption of the 19th Amendment to the United

States Constitution, which granted women the right to vote, because the founders of the League were women who worked hard to achieve the right for women to vote, and then banded together to make sure that women's votes served to make our democracy work better

I am joined here today by the co-presidents of the League of Women Voters Kansas, Teresa Briggs and Cille King. I would also like to recognize all of the League members in the gallery.

Today the League is having a Day of Action at the statehouse, so when you see league members from your district, please thank them for all that they do to promote democracy, educate voters, and protect the right to vote.

As you can see, you don't have to be a woman to be a member of the League of Women Voters - you just have to be interested in fostering a well-informed electorate and a transparent and responsible government.

In my community, the League is probably the most visible and active organization working towards government transparency and encouraging civic engagement. Our local chapter is so dedicated to registering citizens to vote that I am almost surprised to go to a public event where the League volunteers AREN'T registering to people to vote, and they are certainly present at every naturalization ceremony held in my community, to register new citizens on the day that they become eligible to vote. The League hosts regular legislative forums that are well-attended by people who ask lots of tough questions. The League has been a lead partner in the local Voter Education Coalition, which sponsors candidate forums at election times, and the League actively works to make information about candidates available to voters. League members are engaged at every level of government, from the local zoning board to the US Congress. They work to ensure that open records and meeting acts are followed, that voting is encouraged, not discouraged, and that elected officials are accountable to their constituents.

To all the League members who are here today, I would like to thank you for all your efforts to promote and improve our democratic institutions, and I look forward to continue to work with you towards those goals.

And so, in honor of the 100th anniversary of the League of Women Voters, I would like to present you with this certificate on behalf of the Kansas House of Representatives.

### CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to **HB 2524, HB 2527** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the first day.

# REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Agriculture recommends HB 2432, HB 2451 be passed.

Committee on Children and Seniors recommends HB 2438 be passed.

Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice recommends HB 2473 be passed.

Committee on **General Government Budget** recommends **HB 2595** be amended on page 1, in line 10, after "program" by inserting "and to the general public"; in line 15, by striking all after "(b)"; by striking all in lines 16 and 17; in line 18, by striking "auction"; also in line 18, by striking ", advertised sealed bids or"; in line 21, by striking "at fixed or negotiated prices."; in line 22, by striking "(c)";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Judiciary recommends HB 2449 be passed.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2447** be amended on page 9, in line 15, after "child" by inserting "or parent"; in line 17, after "child" by inserting "or parent";

On page 12, in line 26, after the period by inserting "The court may modify the notice period upon a showing of good cause. The supreme court may adopt rules to govern the administration of an oath to a witness who testifies by two-way electronic audio-visual communication pursuant to this subsection."; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2448** be amended on page 2, by striking all in lines 2 through 5; following line 5, by inserting:

"(3) In addition to the penalty described in paragraph (2), the court shall impose a fine of not less than \$500 when the driver is operating a stolen motor vehicle during the commission of the offense.";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

Also on page 2, by striking all in lines 33 through 43;

On page 3, by striking all in lines 1 through 39;

On page 6, in line 22, by striking ", 21-5801";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, by striking ", 21-5801"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2450** be amended on page 1, in line 19, after "(c)" by inserting ""E-liquid" means a substance that may or may not contain nicotine and is intended to be aerosolized or vaporized and inhaled using an electronic cigarette.

(d)";

On page 3, in line 25, by striking the first "or" and inserting a comma; in line 26, after "accessories" by inserting ", electronic cigarettes or e-liquids"; in line 27, after "tobacco" by inserting ", tobacco products, smoking devices or accessories, electronic cigarettes or e-liquids";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **HB 2490** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **HB 2420** be amended on page 1, in line 6, by striking the comma; in line 7, by striking all before "that"; also in line 7, after "that" by inserting "meets the legal size and weight limits set forth in K.S.A. 8-1902(a), 8-1904(a) and (b), 8-1908 and 8-1909, and amendments thereto, and"; in line 28, by striking ", regardless of the"; in line 29, by striking all before "that"; also in line 29, after "that" by inserting "meets the legal size and weight limits set forth in K.S.A. 8-1902(a), 8-1904(a) and (b), 8-1908 and 8-1909, and amendments thereto, and";

On page 2, in line 13, by striking ", nor" and inserting ". Special interest vehicles including street rod vehicles shall not"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

- **HB 2679**, AN ACT concerning public utilities; relating to the Kansas energy efficiency investments act; demand-side programs; amending K.S.A. 66-1283 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications.
- **HB 2680**, AN ACT concerning health professions and practices; relating to optometrists; optometry law; board of examiners in optometry for the state of Kansas; interprofessional advisory committee; updating the scope of practice and certain related requirements and definitions; amending K.S.A. 65-1501, 65-1501a, 65-1509a, 74-1504 and 74-1505 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Health and Human Services.
- **HB 2681**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to the department of health and environment; establishing the advisory committee on harm reduction, by Committee on Health and Human Services.
- **HB 2682**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas false claims act; relating to private plaintiffs maintaining actions; amending K.S.A. 75-7502, 75-7503, 75-7504, 75-7505, 75-7506, 75-7507 and 75-7508 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Appropriations.
- **HB 2683**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to exemptions; sent, inc.; amending K.S.A. 79-3606 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2684**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to the financing of education; decreasing the required mill levy; extending the property tax exemption for residential property from the statewide school levy; amending K.S.A. 79-201x and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5142 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2685**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to imposition of tax; digital property and subscription services; amending K.S.A. 79-3602 and 79-3603 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2686**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to possession of marijuana; removing felony violation; releasing people from custody for such violations; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5706 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.
- **HB 2687**, AN ACT concerning advance ballots; relating to limitations on persons returning such advance ballots; establishing criminal penalties related thereto; amending K.S.A. 25-1130 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-1124 and 25-1128 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Elections.
- **HB 2688**, AN ACT concerning the state board of veterinary examiners; relating to administrative proceedings; collected moneys; the veterinary examiners fee fund; amending K.S.A. 47-844 and 75-3170a and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 47-820 and 47-842 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources Budget.

**HB 2689**, AN ACT concerning economic development; relating to angel investor tax credits; qualified securities; credit limitations and amounts; investor requirements; amending K.S.A. 74-8132 and 74-8133 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

**HB 2690**, AN ACT concerning education; relating to the student data privacy act; requirements for administering certain tests, questionnaires, surveys and examinations; amending K.S.A. 72-6316 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Education.

#### COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Vickrey to replace Rep. French on Committee on General Government Budget on February 13, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Humphries to replace Rep. Howard on Committee on Health and Human Services on February 13, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Woodard to replace Rep. Burroughs on Committee on General Government Budget on February 13, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 8:30 a.m., Friday, February 14, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# TWENTY-THIRD DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Friday, February 14, 2020, 8:30 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 104 members present.

Reps. Corbet, Lusk, Neighbor and Ousley were excused on verified illness.

Rep. Blex was excused on legislative business.

Reps. B. Carpenter, Delperdang, Donohoe, Eplee, Frownfelter, Hodge, Holscher, Mason, Phillips, L. Ruiz, Samsel, Seiwert, Straub, Thimesch, Ward and Yeager were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

All merciful and loving God, thank You for this new day. Today is Valentine's Day and it behooves us to remember that You are the very definition of love. You give Your love to each and every one of us even when we are not deserving nor worthy of it. May we have the power to understand, as all God's people should, how wide, how long, how high, and how deep Your love is. May we be filled with that kind of love that we may share it with others even to those we may not "like" at times. So much more could be accomplished if we would only show that love, kindness and grace to one another in every aspect of our lives. Your love endures forever, and for that we are grateful! This I pray in Your loving Name, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Lynn.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

- **HB 2691**, AN ACT concerning electric utilities; relating to the state corporation commission; authorizing the approval and issuance of K-EBRA bonds; financing costs of electric utility property, by Committee on Taxation.
- HB 2692, AN ACT concerning emergency medical services; relating to the emergency medical services board; transferring the powers, duties and functions of the board to the secretary of health and environment; making the board advisory to the secretary; establishing the division of emergency medical services within the department of health and environment; amending K.S.A. 65-4941, 65-4946, 65-5733, 65-6103, 65-6113, 65-6121, 65-6128, 65-6132, 65-6134, 65-6136, 65-6138, 65-6139, 65-6140, 65-6144, 65-6149a, 65-6151, 65-6153, 65-6154, 65-6155, 65-6157, 74-120, 75-1508, 75-1514, 75-3036, 75-37,121 and 75-5664 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1404, 8-2010, 12-5364, 21-6324, 65-4915, 65-6102, 65-6110, 65-6111, 65-6112, 65-6120, 65-6126, 65-6127, 65-6129, 65-6129a, 65-6129b, 65-6129d, 65-6130, 65-6133 and 65-6135 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Health and Human Services.
- **HB 2693**, AN ACT concerning civil actions; relating to victims of certain alcohol-related incidents; creating a civil cause of action, by Committee on Judiciary.
- **HB 2694**, AN ACT concerning sales and compensating use tax; relating to exemptions; animal shelters; amending K.S.A. 79-3606 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2695**, AN ACT concerning law enforcement; relating to the commission on peace officers' standards and training; Kansas law enforcement training act; definitions; lapsing certification; amending K.S.A. 74-5602 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.
- **HB 2696**, AN ACT concerning property tax; relating to cities and counties; approval of budgets, transportation construction projects; election; exception; amending K.S.A. 79-2925c and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2697**, AN ACT concerning postsecondary educational institutions; creating the campus intellectual diversity act; requiring an office of public policy events at each postsecondary educational institution, by Committee on Education.
- **HB 2698**, AN ACT concerning taxation; authorizing counties to impose an earnings tax; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 19-101a and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.
- **HB 2699**, AN ACT concerning children and minors; relating to the revised Kansas code for care of children; children in state custody; court services officer assistance; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 38-2255 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.
- **HB 2700**, AN ACT concerning dependent persons; relating to the reporting of abuse, neglect or financial exploitation of such persons; amending K.S.A. 39-1438 and 39-1441 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 39-1430, 39-1431, 39-1433 and 39-1443 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 39-1431b, by Committee on Children and Seniors.
- **HB 2701**, AN ACT concerning public employees; relating to hiring and promotion preferences; providing for a preference for persons with a disability, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

HB 2702, AN ACT concerning economic development; relating to the high performance incentive fund; workforce training program participation requirements; workforce training tax credit; amending K.S.A. 74-50,133 and 79-32,160a and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

**HB 2703**, AN ACT concerning building, construction and related standards and codes; relating to preemption of local codes more stringent than national model codes; exceptions, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

HB 2704, AN ACT concerning employment security law; relating to disqualification for benefits; disqualification begin dates, illness or injury, receipt of pension or retirement pay, part-time employment for an educational institution; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-706 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

**HB 2705**, AN ACT concerning employment security law; relating to employers and employees subject to the law; petroleum landmen; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-703 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Agriculture and Natural Resources Budget: HB 2688.

Appropriations: HB 2673, HB 2682.

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2689.

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: HB 2686.

Education: HB 2676, HB 2690.

Elections: HB 2687.

Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications: HB 2679.

Federal and State Affairs: **HB 2671**, **HB 2672**. Financial Institutions and Pensions: **HB 2678**. Health and Human Services: **HB 2680**, **HB 2681**.

Judiciary: **HB 2674**, **HB 2675**. Rural Revitalization: **HB 2677**.

Taxation: HB 2683, HB 2684, HB 2685.

#### COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Martha K. Gabehart, Executive Director, Kansas Commission on Disability Concerns, Annual Report FY 2019.

The complete report is kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

# CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to **HB 2490** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the first day.

No objection was made to **HB 2524**, **HB 2527** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the second day.

# REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice recommends HB 2485 be passed.

Committee on **Federal and State Affairs** recommends **HB 2411** be amended on page 1, in line 6, by striking "2018 Supp.";

On page 2, in line 17, by striking ", expressed as a single dollar figure,";

On page 3, following line 5, by inserting:

"(4) The implementation and compliance costs determined under subsection (b)(1) (C)(vi) shall be those additional costs reasonably expected to be incurred and shall be separately identified for the affected businesses, local governmental units and members of the public. In determining total additional costs of such proposed rules and regulations, the state agency shall not account for any actual or estimated cost savings that may be realized by the implementing state agency or by members of the public.";

On page 4, in line 30, by striking "2018 Supp."; in line 33, by striking "before" and inserting "after";

On page 5, in line 37, by striking all after "regulation"; by striking all in line 38; in line 39, by striking all before the period;

On page 6, in line 13, by striking "that has"; in line 14, by striking all before the comma; in line 15, after "general" by inserting "and the director of the budget as required"; in line 26, by striking all before "been"; in line 28, after "(c)" by inserting a comma; also in line 28, by striking "adopted or filed" and inserting "submitted to the director of the budget as required under this section.";

On page 7, following line 18, by inserting:

- "Sec. 3. K.S.A. 77-420a is hereby amended to read as follows: 77-420a. No rule and regulation shall be adopted prior to the effective date of the statute authorizing its adoption, but prior to the effective date of such statute, the proposed rule and regulation may be submitted to the director of the budget, the secretary of administration and to the attorney general and to the director of the budget for approval as required by K.S.A. 77-420, and amendments thereto, and notice of the proposed rule and regulation may be given and a hearing held thereon in the manner provided by K.S.A. 77-421, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 4. K.S.A. 77-421 is hereby amended to read as follows: 77-421. (a) (1) Except as provided by subsection (a)(2), subsection (a)(3) or subsection (a)(4), prior to the adoption of any permanent rule and regulation or any temporary rule and regulation which is required to be adopted as a temporary rule and regulation in order to comply with the requirements of the statute authorizing the same and after any such rule and regulation has been approved by the director of the budget, the secretary of administration-and, the attorney general and the director of the budget, the adopting state agency shall give at least 60 days' notice of its intended action in the Kansas register and to the secretary of state and to the joint committee on administrative rules and regulations established by K.S.A. 77-436, and amendments thereto. The notice shall be provided to the secretary of state and to the chairperson, vice chairperson, ranking minority member of the joint committee and legislative research department and shall be published in the Kansas register. A complete copy of all proposed rules and regulations and the complete economic impact statement required by K.S.A. 77-416, and amendments thereto, shall accompany the notice sent to the secretary of state. The notice shall contain:

- (A) A summary of the substance of the proposed rules and regulations;
- (B) a summary of the economic impact statement indicating the estimated economic impact on governmental agencies or units, persons subject to the proposed rules and regulations and the general public;
- (C) a summary of the environmental benefit statement, if applicable, indicating the need for the proposed rules and regulations;
- (D) the address where a complete copy of the proposed rules and regulations, the complete economic impact statement, the environmental benefit statement, if applicable, required by K.S.A. 77-416, and amendments thereto, may be obtained;
- (E) the time and place of the public hearing to be held; the manner in which interested parties may present their views; and
- (F) a specific statement that the period of 60 days' notice constitutes a public comment period for the purpose of receiving written public comments on the proposed rules and regulations and the address where such comments may be submitted to the state agency. Publication of such notice in the Kansas register shall constitute notice to all parties affected by the rules and regulations.
- (2) Prior to adopting any rule and regulation which establishes seasons and fixes bag, creel, possession, size or length limits for the taking or possession of wildlife and after such rule and regulation has been approved by the secretary of administration and the attorney general, the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism shall give at least 30 days' notice of its intended action in the Kansas register and to the secretary of state and to the joint committee on administrative rules and regulations created pursuant to K.S.A. 77-436, and amendments thereto. All other provisions of subsection (a)(1) shall apply to such rules and regulations, except that the statement required by subsection (a) (1)(E) shall state that the period of 30 days' notice constitutes a public comment period on such rules and regulations.
- (3) Prior to adopting any rule and regulation which establishes any permanent prior authorization on a prescription-only drug pursuant to K.S.A. 39-7,120, and amendments thereto, or which concerns coverage or reimbursement for pharmaceuticals under the pharmacy program of the state medicaid plan, and after such rule and regulation has been approved by the director of the budget, the secretary of administration and the attorney general, the secretary of health and environment shall give at least 30 days' notice of its intended action in the Kansas register and to the secretary of state and to the joint committee on administrative rules and regulations created pursuant to K.S.A. 77-436, and amendments thereto. All other provisions of subsection (a)(1) shall apply to such rules and regulations, except that the statement required by subsection (a)(1)(E) shall state that the period of 30 days' notice constitutes a public comment period on such rules and regulations.
- (4) Prior to adopting any rule and regulation pursuant to subsection (c), the state agency shall give at least 60 days' notice of its intended action in the Kansas register and to the secretary of state and to the joint committee on administrative rules and regulations created pursuant to K.S.A. 77-436, and amendments thereto. All other provisions of subsection (a)(1) shall apply to such rules and regulations, except that the statement required by subsection (a)(1)(E) shall state that the period of notice constitutes a public comment period on such rules and regulations.
- (b) (1) On the date of the hearing, all interested parties shall be given reasonable opportunity to present their views or arguments on adoption of the rule and regulation,

either orally or in writing. At the time it adopts or amends a rule and regulation, the state agency shall prepare a concise statement of the principal reasons for adopting the rule and regulation or amendment thereto, including:

- (A) The agency's reasons for not accepting substantial arguments made in testimony and comments; and
- (B) the reasons for any substantial change between the text of the proposed adopted or amended rule and regulation contained in the published notice of the proposed adoption or amendment of the rule and regulation and the text of the rule and regulation as finally adopted.
- (2) Whenever a state agency is required by any other statute to give notice and hold a hearing before adopting, amending, reviving or revoking a rule and regulation, the state agency, in lieu of following the requirements or statutory procedure set out in such other law, may give notice and hold hearings on proposed rules and regulations in the manner prescribed by this section.
- (3) Notwithstanding the other provisions of this section, the secretary of corrections may give notice or an opportunity to be heard to any inmate in the custody of the secretary with regard to the adoption of any rule and regulation.
- (c) (1) The agency shall initiate new rulemaking proceedings under this act, if a state agency proposes to adopt a final rule and regulation that:
- (A) Differs in subject matter or effect in any material respect from the rule and regulation as originally proposed; and
  - (B) is not a logical outgrowth of the rule and regulation as originally proposed.
- (2) For the purposes of this provision, a rule and regulation is not the logical outgrowth of the rule and regulation as originally proposed if a person affected by the final rule and regulation was not put on notice that such person's interests were affected in the rule making.
- (d) When, pursuant to this or any other statute, a state agency holds a hearing on the adoption of a proposed rule and regulation, the agency shall cause written minutes or other records, including a record maintained on sound recording tape or on any electronically accessed media or any combination of written or electronically accessed media records of the hearing to be made. If the proposed rule and regulation is adopted and becomes effective, the state agency shall maintain, for not less than three years after its effective date, such minutes or other records, together with any recording, transcript or other record made of the hearing and a list of all persons who appeared at the hearing and who they represented, any written testimony presented at the hearing and any written comments submitted during the public comment period.
- (e) No rule and regulation shall be adopted by a board, commission, authority or other similar body except at a meeting which is open to the public and notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, no rule and regulation shall be adopted by a board, commission, authority or other similar body unless it receives approval by roll call vote of a majority of the total membership thereof.
- Sec. 5. K.S.A. 77-422 is hereby amended to read as follows: 77-422. (a) A rule and regulation may be adopted by a state agency as a temporary rule and regulation if the state agency and the state rules and regulations board finds that the preservation of the public peace, health, safety or welfare necessitates or makes desirable putting such rule and regulation into effect prior to the time it could be put into effect if the agency were to comply with the notice, hearing and publication requirements of this act or prior to

the effective date prescribed by K.S.A. 77-426, and amendments thereto.

- (b) Temporary rules and regulations may be adopted without the giving of notice and the holding of a hearing thereon.
  - (c) (1) A temporary rule and regulation shall take effect:
- (A) After approval by the director of the budget, the secretary of administration and, the attorney general and the director of the budget as provided by K.S.A. 77-420, and amendments thereto;
- (B) after approval by the state rules and regulations board as provided by K.S.A. 77-423, and amendments thereto; and
  - (C) upon filing with the secretary of state.
- (2) The effective date of all or specific parts of a temporary rule and regulation may be delayed to a date later than its filing date if the delayed effective date of such rule and regulation, or specific parts thereof, is clearly expressed in the body of such rule and regulation.
- (3) A temporary rule and regulation shall be effective for a period not to exceed 120 days except that, for good cause, a state agency may request that a temporary rule and regulation may be renewed one time for an additional period not to exceed 120 days.
- (d) A temporary rule and regulation which amends an existing rule and regulation shall have the effect of suspending the force and effect of the existing rule and regulation until such time as the temporary rule and regulation is no longer effective. In such case, at the time the temporary rule and regulation ceases to be effective, the existing permanent rule and regulation which was amended by the temporary rule and regulation shall be in full force and effect unless such existing rule and regulation is otherwise amended, revoked or suspended as provided by law.
- (e) Temporary rules and regulations shall be numbered in accordance with the numbering arrangement approved by the secretary of state and otherwise shall conform to the approval, adoption and filing requirements of this act, insofar as the same can be made applicable.";

Also on page 7, in line 19, by striking "2018 Supp."; also in line 19, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 19, after "77-420" by inserting ", 77-420a, 77-421 and 77-422"; in line 21, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking "2018 Supp."; in line 3, by striking the first "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 3, after "77-420" by inserting ", 77-420a, 77-421 and 77-422"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **HB 2528** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

The Committee on **General Government Budget** recommends to the House of Representatives the approval of **ERO 45** and the introduction and adoption of the House resolution that accompanies this report.

# HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6034-

By Committee on General Government Budget

**HR 6034**—A RESOLUTION approving executive reorganization order No. 45 that transfers certain powers, duties and functions to the division of the state employee health benefits plan within the department of administration.

A RESOLUTION approving Executive Reorganization Order No. 45, transferring the powers, duties and functions of the state employee health benefits plan and the state workers compensation self-insurance fund from the department of health and environment to the division of the state employee health benefits plan within the department of administration.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That Executive Reorganization Order No. 45 is hereby approved; and

Be it further resolved: That the chief clerk of the house of representatives shall transmit a copy of this resolution to the governor and the secretary of state; and

*Be it further resolved:* That the secretary of state shall cause this resolution to be published in the session laws to show permanently the approval of Executive Reorganization Order No. 45 by the House of Representatives.

HR 6034 was introduced and read by title.

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Your Committee on Calendar and Printing recommends on requests for resolutions and certificates that

**Request No. 28**, by Representative Cindy Neighbor, congratulating, Becky Tate, on being named 2019 National Yearbook Advisor of the Year.

**Request No. 29**, by Representative Cindy Neighbor, congratulating, Jack Eaton, on  $2^{nd}$  place entry in the Student Photo Contest for the Happy Birthday Kansas Competition.

**Request No. 30**, by Representative Ron Highland, congratulating, 2019 Wabaunsee High School Women's Volleyball Team, for winning the State Championship.

**Request No. 31**, by Representative Barb Wasinger, congratulating, Shaun and Heather Musil, Paisley Pear Wine Bar, Bistro and Market for receiving the 2020 FHSU Existing Business of the Year.

**Request No. 32**, by Representative Dennis "Boog" Highberger, congratulating, 100<sup>th</sup> Anniversary League of Women Voters.

**Request No. 33**, by Representative Kellie Warren, congratulating, Neeka Morelli on receiving the Girl Scout Gold Award.

**Request No. 34**, by Representative Ken Collins, congratulating, Frontenac High School Softball Team, for winning the 2019 KSHSAA Class 3A Championship.

be approved and the Chief Clerk of the House be directed to order the printing of said certificates and order drafting of said resolutions.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the committee report was adopted.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 12:00 p.m.

\_\_\_\_

### NOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2706**, AN ACT concerning labor; relating to the department of labor industrial safety and health program; public employee safety and health; establishing the public safety and health program; investigation of public employee deaths or serious injury; discrimination against employees who report dangerous conditions; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-636 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

**HB 2707**, AN ACT concerning military service members; relating to termination of rental and lease agreements; specifying when effective; prohibiting fees; amending K.S.A. 58-2570 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2708**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to diversion agreements; creating a certified drug abuse treatment program for people on diversion; supervision by court services or community corrections; amending K.S.A. 22-2907, 75-5291 and 75-52,144 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-2909 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

**HB 2709**, AN ACT concerning controlled substances; relating to cannabis; removing certain products that contain a delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol concentration of up to 0.3% on a dry weight basis from the list of controlled substances listed in schedule I of the uniform controlled substances act; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5701, 65-4101 and 65-4105 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Agriculture.

**HB 2710**, AN ACT concerning labor; relating to petrochemical manufacturing facilities and petroleum refineries; requiring a skilled and trained workforce; contracting requirements, exceptions; legislative findings; unlawful act and penalty, by Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications.

HB 2711, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to health insurance coverage; expanding medical assistance eligibility; implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program; directing the department of health and environment to study certain medicaid expansion topics; adding meeting days to the Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight to monitor implementation; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022; amending K.S.A. 65-6207, 65-6208, 65-6209, 65-6210, 65-6211, 65-6212, 65-6217 and 65-6218 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 39-7,160 and 40-3213 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Health and Human Services.

**HB 2712**, AN ACT concerning the state board of pharmacy; relating to powers, duties and functions thereof; investigations; inspections and audits; telepharmacy; amending K.S.A. 65-1627, 65-1631, 65-1643, 65-1657, 65-1658, 65-1663 and 65-1676 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 65-1626 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Health and Human Services.

**HB 2713**, AN ACT enacting the revised uniform law on notarial acts; amending K.S.A. 16-1611, 58-2209 and 58-2211 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 49-512 and 58-4403 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 53-101, 53-102, 53-103, 53-104, 53-105, 53-106, 53-107, 53-109, 53-113, 53-114, 53-115, 53-116, 53-117, 53-118, 53-119, 53-120, 53-121, 53-501, 53-502, 53-503, 53-504, 53-505, 53-506, 53-507, 53-508, 53-509, 53-510 and 53-511, by Committee on Judiciary.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Monday, February 17, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# TWENTY-FOURTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Monday, February 17, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 118 members present.

Reps. Awerkamp, Carmichael and Corbet were excused on verified illness.

Reps. Baker, Hodge, Ralph and Wheeler were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Dear God. at the start of this week, help us to recognize You above all else. Direct the actions of our leaders and keep them holy. Guide and govern their hearts to make the best decisions and carry out their work with Your grace and favor. Keep their minds clear and focused on all they need to achieve and give them the wisdom to overcome difficulties and find solutions. May everything they do begin with Your inspiration and continue with Your saving help. May their work always find its origin and completion in and through You. Lord, please be with Susan and the Lewis family in the passing of our dear friend and colleague, Greg Lewis. What a great witness and example of a true man full of Your grace, compassion, mercy and salvation. He is now totally healed and has heard the words, "well done, good and faithful servant, welcome home." In Your Son's Name I pray, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Benson.

## Speaker Ryckman addressed the House:

Today we pause for a moment of silence to honor our friend and colleague Greg Lewis who passed away earlier this morning after a courageous battle with cancer. We offer our condolences to his wife Susan and the entire family. Let us pause now and remember him and his parting advice to us last February, "Enjoy each day, enjoy your family, your friends, your fellow legislators, but do not take yourself too seriously. Serve your District with a servant's heart.

- This is the House of Representatives.
- This is not. . .this is not the house of self interest.
- This is not the house of special interest.
- This is the People's House; long may it serve the People and this Great State of Kansas"

Please join in a moment of silence.

## INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Carlson are spread upon the Journal:

Recognized by the NAAE for his efforts as an outstanding agricultural educator, Anthony Meals, agriculture teacher at USD 384 – Blue Valley in Randolph, Kansas, is one of only six individuals nationwide to receive the National Association of Agricultural Educators Outstanding Early Career Teacher Award, presented at the 2019 NAAE annual convention in Anaheim. California.

In his five years at Blue Valley, Anthony has increased his program participation from 27% of the student body to 96%. Blue Valley, a rural, remote school district of 59 students boasts an FFA chapter ranked as the 20th largest in a state of over 200 chapters. Anthony incorporates the three circle model into his classroom, but he presents it to his students in a single package with various layers to personalize and deepen their agricultural experience.

There are four principles that guide Anthony's teaching philosophy: he is not the teacher, he wants to continue learning, he sees greatness and he builds community.

"If I don't help students begin the process of relying on themselves to learn and selfteach then I am not setting them up for future success," Meals said. "By engaging students in experiences that force reflection and deeper-level thinking, my hope is that students will create lasting connections between their heart, mind and hands."

Students enrolled in Anthony's classes are able to choose a career pathway to follow, including Power, Structural and Technical Systems, Plant Systems, Animal Systems and Natural Resources. Experiential learning is involved both in and outside of the classroom through supervised agricultural experiences, service-learning projects and school-based enterprises. One school-based enterprise is the greenhouse, with three plant sales annually.

"Our recent partnership with the Blue Valley Art Club was to sell succulents in student made pottery," Meals said. "It was a huge success and has opened the door to future innovative selling partnerships."

Blue Valley produces excellent leaders and professionals. As is often the case, the success of this program would not be possible without community partnerships. Recently, a new \$1.8 million agricultural education center was built thanks to a community supported bond.

## INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Pittman are spread upon the Journal:

Leavenworth High School's Jr. ROTC program founded by Captain Huston in 1897, was one of the first in the nation. At that time, students were trained using broomsticks for guns, and drills were conducted in an old courthouse. Times have certainly changed.

Today the program is approaching 400 active cadets in a school of about 1200 students and regularly sends 2-3 and often more students to our esteemed military academies.

In 1961, Leavenworth High School established the first Ranger unit in the nation. Modeled after the elite Ranger units, this platoon performs missions with tactical objectives and seeks to train the most dedicated and elite cadets to do their best. The unit still exists today, called the Raiders, participating in many challenging activities.

Every year, Raider teams compete regionally and then come together at the National level in Molena, Georgia to determine the best of the best. In a field of 92 teams in the national competition, today I am honored to have with me the number one Raider team in the nation from Leavenworth High School.

It is unusual to have a public school like LHS which only has 1200 kids win this national championship. Part of the secret was having two of the individual winners. Cadet Captain Kanya Halle has won back-to-back top Female Raider nationally and Cadet Joseph Pervis won the top Male. I have certificates for them both.

I would be remiss if I didn't also introduce one of the big reasons that the Leavenworth High Raider team went from national champion runners-up for two years in a row to the number one team nationally: First Sergeant Codgil and female coach Ms. Mary Schwarz.

The Ranger Creed contains the statement "I accept the fact that as a Ranger my country expects me to move further, faster and fight harder than any other Soldier," and these young cadets have proven that they can indeed go faster, farther and harder than all other teams in the United States.

Please join me in congratulating them on this massive accomplishment.

Rep. Pittman presented framed House certificates to his guests.

### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Helmer are spread upon the Journal:

I am proud to introduce the Winfield High School 2019 National Champions for Skills USA in Engineering, Technology & Design. The same team competed with their design in Entrepreneurship and took 2nd place in the nation. The students competed at Nationals in Urban Search and Rescue, placing 7th in the nation and are competing again this year.

At the Skills USA State Level they have placed 10 times which includes 3 first place finishes in Engineering projects.

They compete at the KU Engineering Design Challenge and last year won the Biomedical Engineering competition and received a \$3000 scholarship to the KU Engineering school.

The students also get the opportunity to work with business and industry through a \$600,000 Winfield Economic Development Grant received 5 years ago which enabled placement of a 5D printer for the classroom. A retired Aerospace Engineer works with the students 20 hours per week.

Congratulations to Allie BroadBeck, Lexi Wilson, Ashley Jarvis, Ciara Adams, Peter Stout, Nathan Seidel, Chris Norton, Barryck Heisler, Garrett James, Cameron Ferraro, Danny Ball and instructor Carey Keller.

Rep. Helmer presented her guests with a framed House certificate in honor of their accomplishments.

## REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Agriculture: HB 2709.

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2701, HB 2702, HB 2703, HB

2704, HB 2705, HB 2706.

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: HB 2695, HB 2708.

Education: HB 2697.

Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications: **HB 2710**.

Health and Human Services: **HB 2692**, **HB 2711**, **HB 2712**. Judiciary: **HB 2693**, **HB 2699**, **HB 2700**, **HB 2707**, **HB 2713**.

Taxation: HB 2691, HB 2694, HB 2696, HB 2698.

## CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to **HB 2524** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the third day. The bill was advanced to Final Action on Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

Objection was made to **HB 2490**, **HB 2527**, **HB 2528** appearing on the Consent Calendar; the bills were placed on the Calendar under the heading General Orders.

# FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

**HB 2524**, AN ACT concerning motor carriers; relating to the state corporation commission's regulation of motor carriers; updating and repealing certain procedures for certificates of convenience and necessity and certificates of public service; repealing certain laws to conform to federal regulation; amending K.S.A. 66-1,105, 66-1,108, 66-1,110, 66-1,111, 66-1,112, 66-1,112g, 66-1,112j, 66-1,114, 66-1,114b, 66-1,116, 66-1,119 and 66-1,141 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 66-1,118, 66-1,119a, 66-1,140 and 66-1,142d, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 118; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 7.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland,

Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Awerkamp, Baker, Carmichael, Corbet, Hodge, Ralph, Wheeler.

The bill passed.

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice recommends HB 2470, HB 2494, HB 2495 be passed.

Committee on Judiciary recommends HB 2533 be passed.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2500** be amended on page 2, in line 33, after "attorney" by inserting "executed on or after July 1, 2020,";

Also on page 2, following line 35, by inserting:

"(g) The amendments made to this section by this act apply prospectively and shall not affect the validity of a power of attorney executed prior to July 1, 2020.";

Also on page 2, in line 39, after "principal" by inserting "and acknowledged in the manner prescribed by K.S.A. 53-501 et seq., and amendments thereto";

On page 3, in line 8, by striking all after "(4)"; by striking all in line 9; in line 10, by striking "(5)";

On page 4, in line 10, after "K.S.A." by inserting "39-1402 or"; in line 33, by striking "require" and inserting "request and rely upon a certification by"; also in line 33, by striking "to provide a certification" and inserting ", provided"; in line 34, after "perjury" by inserting a comma; in line 36, after "(3)" by inserting "request and rely upon an opinion of the third person's counsel as to any matter of law concerning the power of attorney if the third person provides in a writing or other record the reason for the request;

(4)";

On page 5, in line 8, after "attorney" by inserting "acknowledged in the manner prescribed by K.S.A. 53-501 et seq., and amendments thereto,"; in line 16, after "certification" by inserting ", an opinion of counsel"; in line 20, after "certification" by inserting "or an opinion of counsel"; in line 23, after "K.S.A." by inserting "39-1402 or"; in line 27, after "attorney" by inserting "acknowledged in the manner prescribed by K.S.A. 53-501 et seq., and amendments thereto,"; in line 31, after the second "attorney" by inserting "if the court determines the third person did not act in good faith";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2521** be amended on page 3, in line 37, by striking "athlete":

On page 8, in line 42, after the first "the" by inserting "student"; also in line 42, by striking "agent";

On page 9, in line 20, by striking "CALCELLTION" and inserting "CANCELLATION";

On page 10, in line 41, after "registered" by inserting "with";

On page 11, in line 7, after "athlete" by inserting "agent";

On page 12, by striking all in lines 32 through 34; and the bill be passed as amended.

## COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Rep. Parker to replace Rep. Carmichael on Committee on Judiciary on February 17, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Finney to replace Rep. Carmichael on Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice on February 17, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Tuesday, February 18, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## TWENTY-FIFTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 124 members present. Rep. Corbet was excused on verified illness. Excused later: Rep. Landwehr.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Heavenly Father, We read in Your Word that, "where there is no vision the people perish – but blessed is the one that heeds instruction." Forgive us when we seek after our own limited human vision, rather than seeking after Yours. Only when we come to an understanding of Your purposes and vision for our state, can we in honesty and humility seek Godly wisdom and vision. Give each one a new vision for what You want to see in this legislative body and for the people of this great state of Kansas. Give each one a vision of the person You want them to be and guide them in working as a body of one. This I pray in Your Son's Name,

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Clayton.

### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Schreiber, **HR 6035**, by Reps. Schreiber and Highland, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

Amen.

HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6035-

By Representatives Schreiber and Highland

**HR 6035**—A RESOLUTION recognizing September as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month.

WHEREAS, In 1990, President George H.W. Bush initially proclaimed October as National Awareness Month for Children with Cancer; and

WHEREAS, In 2010, President Barack Obama proclaimed September as National Childhood Cancer Awareness Month, and in 2019, President Donald Trump proclaimed September as National Childhood Cancer Awareness Month; and

WHEREAS, September 9, 2020, is All-Gold Day, a day to wear gold to bring awareness to childhood cancer; and

WHEREAS, Childhood cancer remains the leading cause of death by disease for children under the age of 15; and

WHEREAS, Every day, 46 children are diagnosed with cancer, and every day, seven of these children die; and

WHEREAS, One child in 330 children will develop cancer by age 20, and for these children, the side effects of cancer treatment can last a lifetime; and

WHEREAS, Childhood cancer kills more children than do cystic fibrosis, pediatric acquired immunodeficiency syndrome and asthma, combined; and

WHEREAS, Many children battle cancer on a daily basis, yet most people are unaware of this reality or that September is childhood cancer awareness month; and

WHEREAS, Americus school's eighth grade class is dedicated to bringing awareness to childhood cancer and supports those affected by childhood cancer; and

WHEREAS, In 2014, the Never Let Go Foundation was established to provide financial assistance to Lyon County families affected by childhood cancer; and

WHEREAS, In 2016, following the success in Lyon County, the Never Let Go Foundation expanded its program to the counties of Chase, Morris, Wabaunsee, Osage, Coffey and Greenwood; and

WHEREAS, Like the Never Let Go Foundation, there are other organizations committed to raising public awareness, providing aid and empowering individuals and families impacted by childhood cancer: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That we recognize September as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month; and

*Be it further resolved:* That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send five enrolled copies of this resolution to Representative Schreiber.

## INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Schreiber are spread upon the Journal:

Colleagues, today I want to introduce you to members of the 8th grade class in Americus, USD 251 North Lyon County, their teacher J.D. Chanley, Sadie Bathurst, Bethany DeDonder, Lilly Parks, Preston Patton and Austin Woodrow...and two people who initiated a charitable fund called the Never Let Go Fund, Sandy Knight and Krystee Pearson.

These students and their classmates demonstrated a real community spirit when it decided to raise funds for children with cancer in the Lyon County area. As seventh graders they raised about \$900 and now as 8th graders they raised more than \$2000 which they give to the Never Let Go fund.

This fund was started by Sandy Knight after her son, Adrian, passed away from childhood cancer...9 years ago today. The fund has grown tremendously over those years and now supports many families who must travel with their sick children to distant medical centers for treatment.

One quick story about the class's efforts in raising money. They held penny wars in their school whereby students would place pennies in a jar at the school for whichever class they wanted to win the contest for raising the most money. The local bank in Americus soon called the school to politely ask the students to start using nickels, dimes or quarters as they were running out of pennies!

So please help me recognize this 8th grade class and Sandy Knight and her sister Krystee Pearson for their vision and commitment to raising awareness and support for those with childhood cancer.

On motion of Rep. Ryckman, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Kelly in the chair.

## COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. Kelly, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that committee report to HB 2420 be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to HB 2454 be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Probst to amend **HB 2454**, the motion did not prevail and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to HB 2448 be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **HB 2448**, Rep. Jennings requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment not germane.

Rep. Hodge challenged the ruling of the Rules Chair.

Roll call was demanded on Rep. Hodge's challenge of the ruling of the Rules Chair, the question being "Shall the Rules Chair be sustained?"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 82; Nays 40; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams

Nays: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Finney, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Corbet, Landwehr, Samsel.

The Rules chair was sustained and the bill be passed as amended.

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Agriculture recommends HB 2462 be passed.

Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice recommends HB 2496, HB 2518 be passed.

Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice recommends HB 2474 be amended on page 13, in line 6, by striking all after "reside"; in line 7, by striking all before the period; in line 18, by striking the comma; in line 19, by striking all before the semicolon; in line 22, by striking "maintains employment or is attending a school,";

On page 15, in line 7, by striking all after "resides"; in line 8, by striking all before the period; in line 13, by striking ", maintains employment or is attending school";

On page 16, following line 13, by inserting:

- "Sec. 6. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-4907 is hereby amended to read as follows: 22-4907. (a) Registration as required by the Kansas offender registration act shall consist of a form approved by the Kansas bureau of investigation, which shall include a statement that the requirements provided in this section have been reviewed and explained to the offender, and shall be signed by the offender and, except when such reporting is conducted by certified letter as provided in—subsection (b) of K.S.A. 22-4905(b), and amendments thereto, witnessed by the person registering the offender. Such registration form shall include the following offender information:
  - (1) Name and all alias names:
  - (2) date and city, state and country of birth, and any alias dates or places of birth;
- (3) title and statute number of each offense or offenses committed, date of each conviction or adjudication and court case numbers for each conviction or adjudication;
  - (4) city, county, state or country of conviction or adjudication;
- (5) sex and date of birth or purported age of each victim of all offenses requiring registration;
- (6) current residential address, any anticipated future residence and any temporary lodging information including, but not limited to, address, telephone number and dates of travel for any place in which the offender is staying for seven or more days; and, if transient, the locations where the offender has stayed and frequented since last reporting for registration;
- (7) all telephone numbers at which the offender may be contacted including, but not limited to, all mobile telephone numbers;
  - (8) social security number, and all alias social security numbers;
- (9) identifying characteristics such as race, ethnicity, skin tone, sex, age, height, weight, hair and eye color, scars, tattoos and blood type;
- (10) occupation and name, address or addresses and telephone number of employer or employers, and name of any anticipated employer and place of employment;
- (11) all current driver's licenses or identification cards, including a photocopy of all such driver's licenses or identification cards and their numbers, states of issuance and expiration dates;
- (12) all vehicle information, including the license plate number, registration number and any other identifier and description of any vehicle owned or operated by the offender, or any vehicle the offender regularly drives, either for personal use or in the course of employment, and information concerning the location or locations such vehicle or vehicles are habitually parked or otherwise kept;
  - (13) license plate number, registration number or other identifier and description of

any aircraft or watercraft owned or operated by the offender, and information concerning the location or locations such aircraft or watercraft are habitually parked, docked or otherwise kept;

- (14) all professional licenses, designations and certifications;
- (15) documentation of any treatment received for a mental abnormality or personality disorder of the offender; for purposes of documenting the treatment received, registering law enforcement agencies, correctional facility officials, treatment facility officials and courts may rely on information that is readily available to them from existing records and the offender;
  - (16) a photograph or photographs;
  - (17) fingerprints and palm prints;
- (18) any and all schools and satellite schools attended or expected to be attended and the locations of attendance and telephone number;
- (19) any and all: E-mail addresses; online identities used by the offender on the internet; information relating to membership in any and all personal web pages or online social networks; and internet screen names:
  - (20) all travel and immigration documents; and
- (21) name and telephone number of the offender's probation, parole or community corrections officer.
- (b) The offender shall provide biological samples for DNA analysis to the registering law enforcement agency as required by K.S.A. 21-2511, and amendments thereto. The biological samples shall be in the form using a DNA databank kit authorized by the Kansas bureau of investigation. The registering law enforcement agency shall forward such biological samples to the Kansas bureau of investigation. Prior to taking such sample, the registering law enforcement agency shall search the Kansas criminal justice information system to determine if such person's DNA profile is currently on file. If such person's DNA profile is on file with the Kansas bureau of investigation, the registering law enforcement agency is not required to take biological samples.
- (c) If an offender reports an employer pursuant to subsection (a)(10) or a school pursuant to subsection (a)(18) that is in a county other than the county in which the offender resides or intends to reside, the Kansas bureau of investigation shall notify the sheriff of the county in which the employer or school is located of the registration information for such offender.";

Also on page 16, in line 14, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 14, after "22-4905" by inserting "and 22-4907";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, after the semicolon by inserting "registration locations; information required to register;"; in line 4, by striking the first "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 4, after "22-4905" by inserting "and 22-4907"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice recommends HB 2475 be amended on page 7, by striking all in lines 19 through 43;

By striking all on page 8;

On page 9, by striking all in lines 1 through 16; in line 17, by striking "and 22-4909 are" and inserting "is";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking "law enforcement access" and inserting "length of registration"; in line 3, by striking "and 22-4909"; also in line 3, by striking "sections" and inserting "section"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice recommends HB 2547 be amended on page 2, in line 1, after "(b)" by inserting "(1) Except as provided by paragraph (2),";

Also on page 2, following line 6, by inserting:

"(2) For any person found guilty of driving a vehicle while the license of such person is suspended for violating K.S.A. 8-2110, and amendments thereto, the suspension or revocation shall not be extended for any additional time pursuant to paragraph (1)."; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Insurance** recommends **HB 2479** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on **Insurance** recommends **HB 2480** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **HB 2441** be amended on page 1, following line 13, by inserting:

- "Sec. 2. K.S.A. 12-1684 is hereby amended to read as follows: 12-1684. Except as otherwise provided in-subsection (b) of K.S.A. 12-1688(b), and amendments thereto, and before a community historical museum may be established and operated as provided by K.S.A. 12-1681 and 12-1682, and amendments thereto, a petition signed by at least five percent (5%) of the qualified and registered voters of the city or school district shall be filed with the clerk thereof, requesting the governing body of the city or school district to provide, establish, maintain and conduct a community historical museum and to levy an annual tax therefor not to exceed one-(1) mill, whereupon it shall be the duty of the governing body of the city or school district to-eause such question to be submitted to the qualified voters thereof to be voted upon at the nextregular or special election of the city or school district to be held more than thirty (30) days after the filing of such petition evaluate the sustainability of the proposed museum. Upon a finding that the proposed funding is sufficient to meet the requirements and purpose of K.S.A. 12-1681 through 12-1691, and amendments thereto, and that the proposed museum is in the best interest of the city or school board, the governing body of the city or school board shall cause such question to be submitted to the qualified voters thereof to be voted upon at the next regular or special election of the city or school district to be held more than 30 days after the filing of such petition.
- Sec. 3. K.S.A. 12-1688 is hereby amended to read as follows: 12-1688. (a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (b) of this section, when the provisions of this act shall have been adopted by an election, the commission shall annually, and not later than 20 days prior to the date for the publishing of the budget of such city or school district, certify its budget to such city or school district, which shall levy a tax sufficient to raise the amount required by such budget, but in no event more than one mill or the amount set out in the petition provided for in K.S.A. 12-1684, and amendments thereto, except that, when such petition shall have been submitted to a city and school district jointly such budget shall be certified to the city or school district, whichever shall be the larger in population, and the tax levied by such city or school district. After three years'

operation the authority to levy the tax provided for in this section may be revoked by a majority of the electors voting at an election called in the same manner as the election authorizing the same. Upon such revocation all property and money belonging to such commission shall become the property of the city or school district levying the tax under this section.

- (b) After any city or school district has begun to operate such a museum, it appearing to the satisfaction of the museum commission of a particular school district or city or of a city and school district jointly, that the budget should be increased so as to adequately meet the needs of the city or school district, such museum commission may submit a proposed program with the budget for carrying out the same to the levying authority—which that may then levy a tax sufficient to raise the amount required by the expanded budget, but not to exceed one mill, which levy shall be in addition to the one mill authorized by subsection (a) of this section.
- (c) No city or school district authorized to increase its levy under subsection (b)-of this section shall make such increased levy until the question of making such tax levy is submitted to the qualified electors of the city or school district at the next general election or at a special election called for such purpose. Any special election held under the provisions of subsection (b)-of this section shall be called and held in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 10-120, and amendments thereto. If a majority of the votes cast and counted on the question submitted at such election are in favor of such tax, the same such tax may be made; levied, but if a majority of the votes cast and counted on the question submitted at such election are not in favor thereof, such tax may not be levied.
- (d) (1) In lieu of forming a new museum, when presented with a petition for the formation of a museum pursuant to K.S.A. 12-1681 through 12-1691, and amendments thereto, the governing body of the city or school district may evaluate if there are any local museums that would serve the purposed function.
- (2) If there is an existing local museum that would fulfill the purpose of K.S.A. 12-1681 through 12-1691, and amendments thereto, and the governing body finds it would be in the best interest of the city or school district to not form a new museum but rather to cooperate with such existing museum, the governing body shall cause such question to be submitted to the qualified voters thereof to be voted upon at the next regular or special election of the city or school district to be held more than 30 days after the filing of such petition.
- (3) If the election question passes, the governing body of the city or school district respectively, shall annually audit the use of the funds. If the governing body finds that the funds are not being used for such purpose, the governing body can immediately terminate the levy for the following year upon a majority vote of the governing body. Any museum found to be using public funds in bad faith shall be required to reimburse the respective city or school district. These funds shall be used by the governing body in furtherance of service of the taxpayers.":

Also on page 1, in line 14, after "K.S.A." by inserting "12-1684, 12-1688 and"; also in line 14, by striking "is" and inserting "are";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

Also on page 1, in the title, in line 3, after "K.S.A." by inserting "12-1684, 12-1688 and"; in line 4, by striking "section" and inserting "sections"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2714**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to local health departments; increasing state financial assistance to such departments under specified circumstances; amending K.S.A. 65-242 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Appropriations.

**HB 2715**, AN ACT concerning the department of health and environment; relating to air quality control; Kansas air quality act; fees imposed pursuant to rules and regulations; prohibiting fee increases and the imposition of new fees; amending K.S.A. 65-3001, 65-3005, 65-3006, 65-3007, 65-3008, 65-3022, 65-3024 and 65-3028 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Appropriations.

**HB 2716**, AN ACT concerning state agencies; requiring information technology security training; cybersecurity status reports; amending K.S.A. 75-7239, 75-7240 and 75-7242 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Appropriations.

**HB 2717**, AN ACT concerning firearms; creating the Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

**HB 2718**, AN ACT concerning planning and zoning; relating to firearms manufacturers, importers and dealers, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

#### COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Rep. Erickson to replace Rep. Corbet on Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development on February 18, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Thomas to replace Rep. E. Smith on Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice on February 18, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Woodard to replace Rep. Wolfe Moore on Committee on Taxation February 18, 2020.

### REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HR 6033 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on February 18, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, February 19, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# TWENTY-SIXTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 123 members present. Rep. Corbet was excused on verified illness. Rep. E. Smith was excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Lord our God,
Thank You for all that our hearts
and spirits receive from You daily.
Thank You for the community You have given us.
Thank You for the strength You give to face
the struggles each day.
Thank You for the courage You give to stand up
for what is right in Your eyes.
Help us to not grow faint or weary
but to continue forward in Your confidence.
This I pray, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Ellis.

## INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Collins are spread upon the Journal:

Today, I am pleased to host the Lady Raiders of the 2019 KSHSAA Class 3A Champion Frontenac High School Softball Team. This team, under the leadership of Head Coach Cassie Rhuems and Assistant Coaches Francis Buche and Scott Fields, defeated Silver Lake by the score of 7 to 5 in Emporia last year on May 27th to claim the title. Standing on the floor with me today are Head Coach Rhuems along with Assistant Coaches Buche and Fields and players - Madison Davis, Karma Fields, Bailey Rhuems, Jayden Wilderman, Raven Warren, Heather Arnett and Bria Ginavan . The rest of the team is seated in the gallery so please join me in congratulating the 2019 KSHSAA Class 3A Softball Champion Frontenac Raiders.

I also find it worth noting that this team is a father/daughter operation, not only is player Karma Fields the daughter of Assistant Coach Fields but Coach Rhuems is the daughter of Assistant Coach Buche. I wonder if that leads to some awkward moments having your daughter as a boss.

Rep. Collins presented the team with a framed House certificate in honor of their championship.

## INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2719**, AN ACT concerning courts; relating to district court trustees collecting debts owed to courts; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 20-169, 20-376, 20-379 and 20-380 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: **HB 2714**, **HB 2715**, **HB 2716**. Federal and State Affairs: **HB 2717**, **HB 2718**.

### COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Kansas Department for Aging and Disability Services, Care Annual Report for State Fiscal Year 2019.

The complete report is kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

# MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing passage of SB 277, SB 288, SB 302, SB 304, SB 315, and SB 326.

## INTRODUCTION OF SENATE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following Senate bills were thereupon introduced and read by title:

SB 277, SB 288, SB 302, SB 304, SB 315, SB 326.

## CONSENT CALENDAR

Objection was made to **HB 2479**, **HB 2480** appearing on the Consent Calendar; the bills were placed on the Calendar under the heading General Orders.

# FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

**HB 2420**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to military surplus vehicles, registration and regulation; amending K.S.A. 8-194, 8-195 and 8-196 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1486 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 122; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau,

Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Corbet, Huebert, Smith, E..

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2448**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to fleeing or attempting to elude a police officer; theft; evidence of intent to deprive an owner of possession; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1568 and 21-5804 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 98; Nays 25; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 2.

Yeas: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Ward, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: Alcala, Amyx, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Finney, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Houser, Kuether, Lusk, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Victors, Warfield, Winn, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2454**, AN ACT concerning self-storage rental units; relating to sales by operators of property due to abandonment or nonpayment of rent; contractual value of property; amending K.S.A. 58-816 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 58-817 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 114; Nays 9; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 2.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang,

Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Finch, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Carlin, Carmichael, Esau, Finney, Hodge, Jacobs, Ousley, Rhiley, Ward.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed, as amended.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Concannon in the chair.

## COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. Concannon, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that HB 2449, HB 2451 be passed.

Committee report to **HB 2501** be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

On motion of Rep. Highland, **HB 2432** be amended on page 1, in line 29, after "Kansas" by inserting "agricultural"; in line 30, after "the" by inserting "Kansas" and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to **HB 2595** be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to **HB 2429** be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to HB 2447 be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Warren to amend **HB 2447**, the motion did not prevail and the bill be passed as amended.

### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Elections recommends HB 2559, HB 2560, HB 2562 be passed.

Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions recommends HB 2619 be passed.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **HB 2538** be amended on page 1, by striking all in lines 29 through 33; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **HB 2005** be amended on page 1, in line 6, by striking "2018 Supp."; in line 7, by striking "2018" and inserting "2020"; in line 11, by striking "2018" and inserting "2020";

On page 3, in line 1, by striking "2018"; in line 2 by striking "Supp."; by striking all in lines 4 through 7; in line 8, by striking "2018 Supp.";

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking "2018 Supp."; and the bill be passed as amended.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

## INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2720**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to income tax; providing a refundable food sales tax credit; discontinuing the nonrefundable food sales tax credit; amending K.S.A. 79-32,271 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2721**, AN ACT concerning economic development; relating to rural opportunity zones; extending the time period for eligibility in the loan repayment program and the income tax credit; amending K.S.A. 74-50,223 and 79-32,267 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2722**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to withholding taxes; establishing withholding requirements for certain employees who work in multiple states; determination of employer penalties, by Committee on Taxation.

# COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Toplikar to replace Rep. Corbet on Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications on February 20, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Xu to replace Rep. Clayton on Committee on Federal and State Affairs on February 20, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Thursday, February 20, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# TWENTY-SEVENTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Thursday, February 20, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 122 members present.

Rep. Corbet was excused on verified illness.

Reps. Clayton and E. Smith were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Rev. Zane Brooks, Pastor, Free Will Baptist Church, Wellington, and guest of Rep. Rhiley:

Oh gracious and Heavenly Father.

In the book of James, Chapter 1 Verse 22 it says "Be ye doers of the Word, as well as hearers of the Word." I once heard of your mercy, I accepted your mercy and now I extend your mercy.

God grant this great State of Kansas the divine intervention it needs. Please give these men and women truth as they endeavor to lead the wonderful, but judgement bound people of Kansas in a righteous approach to Christ. For what we do in moderation our children will do in excess. Let us do well for future generations.

Oh God, help us in our deliberations that we will hold the standard of "A Heaven to Gain and a Hell to Shun." This will aid all here today in governing in a way which would not only please our constituents back home, but first and foremost, please the King of Kings and Lord of Lords.

Noah Webster once said "Education is useless without the Bible." So, Lord with no excuse of inadequate examples, inadequate education, or inadequate support can we complain. For with the Holy Bible in our hand and in our hearts, we have no exemption. The Bible is enough to lead us safely through.

In addition, God we beg of you to teach us these biblical values that we may apply them in each vote we cast. We know our Nation is only as strong as our states. I seek your forgiveness on behalf of our State for the sins we have committed. I know you are a loving and gracious God, those who repent will find salvation. Please Lord, allow the great State of Kansas to lead - lead in repentance, lead in forgiveness, and lead in mercy.

Yes Lord, your Word tells us: "Where there is no vision the people perish." God Bless these visionaries with the gift of virtue and humility, so that Kansas may be a state that leads a Nation because it follows God the Father, God the Son, and God the Holy Spirit.

In Jesus' Holy Name. Amen

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Highberger.

### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Education: SB 277.

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2719.

Insurance: SB 304.

Taxation: HB 2720, HB 2721, HB 2722.

Transportation: SB 288, SB 302, SB 315, SB 326.

### FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

**HB 2429**, AN ACT concerning task forces and commissions; relating to the Kansas closed case task force; staff assistance; the Kansas criminal justice reform commission; membership; public defender; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6901 and 21-6902 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 121; Nays 1; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Jacobs.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Clayton, Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2432**, AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to environmental remediation; establishing the Kansas pesticide waste disposal program and the Kansas pesticide waste disposal fund; allowing annual transfers from the Kansas agricultural remediation fund to the Kansas pesticide waste disposal fund; amending K.S.A. 2-3702 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-3708 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 122; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Clayton, Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2447**, AN ACT concerning courts; relating to use of two-way electronic audiovisual communication; amending K.S.A. 12-4402, 12-4404, 12-4408, 22-2803 and 22-3205 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-4213, 22-2802, 22-3208, 22-3405, 38-2203, 38-2343, 38-2344 and 60-243 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 83; Nays 39; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Baker, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, Claeys, Concannon, Cox, Curtis, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Eplee, Finch, Finney, Francis, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hineman, Hodge, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Long, Lusk, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Tarwater, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Awerkamp, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, W. Carpenter, Clark, Collins, Croft, Delperdang, Dove, Ellis, Erickson, Esau, French, Garber, Helmer, Highland, Hoffman, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Jacobs, Landwehr, Lynn, Mason, Owens, Resman, Rhiley, Samsel, Seiwert, Straub, Sutton, Thimesch, Thomas, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Clayton, Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed, as amended.

## EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: This bill as written allows a person standing trial for sexual harassment to appear by video conference. It allows a drunk driver accused of wrongful death of a child to appear by video conference. It allows an adult falsely accusing a teacher of civil misconduct to appear by video conference. The witnesses in these examples could be coached from off camera. Is that what we want for our civil justice system in Kansas? This is not a trivial matter. We need due process, not a cheap process. I vote No on **HB 2447**. – Kellie Warren, Ron Ellis, Lonnie Clark, Bill Sutton, Trevor Jacobs, Charlotte J. Esau, Willie Dove, Randy Garber

Mr. Speaker: I vote No on **HB 2447**. Verbal communication makes up a mere 10% of how we communicate. While video does increase this factor, it does not and cannot replace an in-person testimony. When this comes to court proceedings, it is no trivial matter. Civil proceedings impact all Kansans. This bill removes important, statutory safeguards that were put in place for a reason. Evidence should be presented in an open court. Not a court where testimony can be coached or altered without the knowledge of those whom it can have long-term effects. This bill, as written, does not get it right, and stands to degrade due process. – Leo Delperdang, Ron Howard

Mr. Speaker: I vote "no" on **HB 2447**. A witness's credibility can be significantly impacted by his eye contact with the jury. A witness who never or rarely looks at the jury may be lying. As written, Section 13 of this bill would alter K.S.A. 60-243 to allow unscrupulous lawyers or litigants to shield untruthful witnesses from the crucible of trial, over the objection of a party and without good cause. A jury's ability to fully assess non-verbal conduct should not be taken away lightly. While some trial judges would mitigate against these concerns, an amendment is needed to statutorily provide such safeguards and guidance for the court. – Mark Samsel

Mr. Speaker: I vote No on **HB 2447**. How Kansas conducts its court proceedings is no trivial matter. Civil proceedings impact all Kansans, regardless of where one sits on the political spectrum. This bill removes important, fundamental statutory safeguards. It eviscerates the constitutional principle that evidence should be presented in open court. It's unwise for this body to set up a two-tiered system of justice, when prudence dictates that constitutional ideals should remain consistent across both criminal and civil matters. This bill, as written, does not get it right and will usher in a cheapened process, rather than due process.— Barb Wasinger, Renee Erickson, Alicia Straub, Paul Waggoner

Mr. Speaker: This bill, from the Kansas Supreme Courts' Blue Ribbon Commission, was broadly supported in testimony before the Committee, without any opposition. In conjunction with Court rules and judicial discretion, **HB 2447** allows videoconferencing in select court proceedings when there is a recognizable benefit and when safeguards and technology exist for its effective use. **HB 2447** creates efficiencies, saving time and money, while also increasing access to justice. The bill is good for our state, for business, and, most importantly, for justice. Justice is best served by permitting Kansans to use secure technology to allow full and fair consideration of all admissible evidence. I vote AYE on **HB 2447**. – Fred C. Patton, Russell Jennings

Mr. Speaker: I fully support and endorse Representative Patton's explanation comments. Further, I must point out that this legislation does not provide any litigants

the opportunity to avoid their presence in a courtroom. Every citizen of this State remains subject to the subpoena power of the Courts of this State. We have always allowed witnesses to appear in Court by use of written transcripts or videotaped testimony when they are not subject to subpoena. We have now simply provided juries additional opportunities to actually view witnesses while they testify. I vote "AYE" on HB 2447. – Bradley C. Ralph, John Carmichael

**HB 2449**, AN ACT concerning the board of indigents' defense services; relating to appointments to the board; amending K.S.A. 22-4519 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 99; Nays 23; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Baker, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burris, Burroughs, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Eplee, Finch, Finney, Francis, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Awerkamp, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Capps, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Delperdang, Dove, Ellis, Erickson, Esau, French, Garber, Jacobs, Landwehr, Mason, Rahjes, Rhiley, Straub, Sutton, Thomas, Waggoner.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Clayton, Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed.

**HB 2451**, AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to the Kansas department of agriculture; the division of animal health; license, permit and registration renewal deadlines; calfhood vaccination tag fees; amending K.S.A. 47-1208 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 47-1001e, 47-1002, 47-1503, 47-1805, 47-1831 and 47-2101 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 122; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz,

S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Clayton, Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed.

**HB 2501**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to nonhighway and salvage vehicles; allowing salvage vehicle pools to apply to the division of vehicles for ownership documents; providing application and notice requirements; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-198 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 119; Nays 3; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Carmichael, Ousley, Waymaster.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Clayton, Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2595**, AN ACT concerning state surplus property; eliminating a 30-day waiting period before sale thereof to the general public; amending K.S.A. 75-6602 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 118; Nays 3; Present but not voting: 1; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel,

Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Jacobs, Pittman, Toplikar.

Present but not voting: Cox.

Absent or not voting: Clayton, Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed, as amended.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Highland in the chair.

# COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. Highland, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that committee report to **HB 2515** be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to HB 2500 be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to HB 2521 be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, pursuant to House Rule 2311, **HB 2515**, **HB 2500**, **HB 2521** were advanced to Final Action on Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

# FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

**HB 2515**, AN ACT concerning postsecondary education; relating to scholarship programs; creating the Kansas promise scholarship act, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 116; Nays 6; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu.

Nays: Awerkamp, Garber, Helgerson, Jacobs, Orr, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Clayton, Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed, as amended.

#### EXPLANATION OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: It is not the state's responsibility to force taxpayers to pay even more taxes for "free scholarships" for college education. I also believe that it is irresponsible to only expect a student to work 15 hours a week or 100 hours of community service annually and maintain only a 2.0 grade average. This has a potential cost to the taxpayers of over 50 million plus in the next 5 years. If the state continues giving "free money" away the taxpayers will have no more money for the state to confiscate. I vote "No" on HB 2515. – Trevor Jacobs

**HB 2500**, AN ACT concerning the Kansas power of attorney act; relating to effectiveness of power of attorney; exemption of third persons from liability in certain circumstances; amending K.S.A. 58-658 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 58-652 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 122; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Clayton, Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2521**, AN ACT concerning athlete agents; enacting the revised uniform athlete agents act; repealing K.S.A. 44-1516, 44-1517, 44-1518, 44-1519, 44-1520, 44-1521, 44-1522, 44-1523, 44-1524, 44-1525, 44-1526, 44-1527, 44-1528, 44-1529, 44-1530, 44-1531, 44-1532, 44-1533, 44-1534, 44-1535 and 44-1536, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 122; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, Carpenter, B., Carpenter, W., Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer,

Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: none.

Absent or not voting: Clayton, Corbet, Smith, E..

The bill passed, as amended.

### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Agriculture** recommends **HB 2463** be amended on page 2, in line 20, before "certificate" by inserting "surety bond or";

On page 4, in line 11, by striking "providing" and inserting "one of the following:

(1) A surety bond in an amount not less than \$6,000 per year. The bond shall be executed by a corporate surety and shall state the effective date and the expiration date. The bond shall be executed on a form approved by the secretary. The applicant shall be named as the principal in the bond. Such bond shall be to the state of Kansas and shall be conditioned upon compliance by the principal and by the principal's officers, agents, representatives and employees, with the provisions of this act and acts amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto. It shall be unlawful for any licensed person to use the words "bond" or "bonded" in advertising or in publicizing such person's operations in connection with the application of pesticides unless such bond is a performance bond and that fact and the amount of such bond are specified.

(2) "

Also on page 4, in line 19, by striking "(1)" and inserting "(A)"; in line 21, by striking "(2)" and inserting "(B)";

On page 5, in line 27, after "a" by inserting "surety bond or";

On page 6, in line 8, before "certificate" by inserting "surety bond or"; in line 12, after "a" by inserting "substitute surety bond or"; in line 41, by striking "certificate" and inserting "acceptable surety bonds and certificates"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Agriculture** recommends **HB 2464** be amended on page 1, in line 9, after "if" by inserting "the following standards are met"; in line 10, after "repacking" by inserting "may"; in line 15, after "(3)" by inserting "the"; in line 34, after "(7)" by inserting "the"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Appropriations recommends HB 2439 be passed.

Committee on **Elections** recommends **HB 2561** be amended on page 1, in line 16, by striking "one"; in line 17, by striking "gift" and inserting "gifts"; also in line 17, by striking "legislative session" and inserting "fiscal year"; also in line 17, after "legislator" by inserting "for whom they work"; in line 18, by striking "member" and inserting "chairperson or vice-chairperson"; also in line 18, by striking "\$100" and inserting "a total of \$120"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Insurance** recommends **HB 2478** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on Judiciary recommends HB 2546, HB 2587, HB 2675 be passed.

Committee on Local Government recommends HB 2509 be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on Local Government recommends HB 2510 be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on Local Government recommends HB 2583 be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on K-12 Education Budget recommends HB 2526 be passed.

Committee on Transportation recommends HB 2531 be passed.

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **HB 2502** be amended on page 1, in line 8, by striking "eastern" and inserting "western"; also in line 8, by striking "junction of"; in line 9, by striking all before "in" and inserting "eastern city limits of the city of Waterville"; following line 14, by inserting:

"New Sec. 2. Bridge no. 0081-B0058 located on United States highway 77 in Riley county is hereby designated as the PFC Loren H. Larson memorial bridge. Upon compliance with K.S.A. 68-10,114, and amendments thereto, the secretary of transportation shall place suitable signs to indicate that the bridge is the PFC Loren H. Larson memorial bridge.";

Also on page 1, in line 26, by striking "eastern" and inserting "western";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

Also on page 1, in the title, in line 3, after the semicolon by inserting "designating a bridge on United States highway 77 as the PFC Loren H. Larson memorial bridge;"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **HB 2608** be amended on page 1, in line 10, after the second "the" by inserting "cemetery,"; and the bill be passed as amended.

## COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Bergquist to replace Rep. Eric Smith on Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice on February 20, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Karleskint to replace Rep. Jennings on Committee on Judiciary on February 20, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Lusk to replace Rep. Holscher on Committee on K-12 Education Budget on February 20, 2020.

# REPORT ON ENGROSSED BILLS

**HB 2420, HB 2429, HB 2432, HB 2448, HB 2454** reported correctly engrossed February 19, 2020.

HB 2447, HB 2501, HB 2595 reported correctly engrossed February 20, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 8:30 a.m., Friday, February 21, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## TWENTY-EIGHTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Friday, February 21, 2020, 8:30 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 100 members present.

Reps. Capps and Samsel were excused on legislative business.

Reps. Concannon, Cox, Delperdang, Donohoe, Francis, Henderson, Hineman, Holscher, Jennings, Mason, Mastroni, Neighbor, Orr, Ousley, Phillips, Schreiber, Seiwert, E. Smith, Straub, Thimesch, Thompson, Victors and Wasinger were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Gracious God,
thank You for this week
and all that was accomplished.
As our leaders return home for the weekend,
watch over them and may they have quality time with family
and get caught up on their work.
For those traveling to the funeral,
grant them safe travels.
Be with the Lewis family today
as they say their "see ya laters"
to Representative Lewis.
Refuel, replenish, and rejuvenate each one
so that when they return on Monday,
they are ready to tackle the issues of the week.
This I pray in Your Name, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Waggoner.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2723**, AN ACT concerning emergency medical services; relating to medical directors; requiring provision of medical oversight; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 65-6112, 65-6124 and 65-6126 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

**HB 2724**, AN ACT concerning education; creating the Kansas student academic improvement act; amending K.S.A. 79-32,117 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

**HB 2725**, AN ACT concerning education; creating the Kansas exceptional child academic improvement act; amending K.S.A. 79-32,117 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

## CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to HB 2478, HB 2509, HB 2510, HB 2583 appearing on the Consent Calendar for the first day.

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Agriculture recommends HB 2621 be passed.

Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources Budget recommends HB 2688 be passed.

Committee on **Elections** recommends **HB 2687** be amended on page 1, in line 11, by striking all after "(b)"; by striking all in line 12; in line 13, by striking "(c)"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Federal and State Affairs** recommends **HB 2563** be amended on page 2, in line 3, after "(c)" by inserting ""E-liquid" means a substance that may or may not contain nicotine and is intended to be aerosolized or vaporized and inhaled using an electronic eigarette.

(d) ";

Also on page 2, by striking all in lines 32 through 40;

On page 4, in line 2, by striking the first "or" and inserting a comma; also in line 2, after "devices" by inserting ", electronic cigarettes, e-liquids"; in line 3, after "from" by inserting "any combination of"; in line 4, by striking "the sale" and inserting "sales"; also in line 4, after "tobacco" by inserting ", tobacco products, smoking devices, electronic cigarettes or e-liquids";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

On page 5, in line 7, by striking all after "(4)"; by striking all in lines 8 and 9; in line 10, by striking "(5)";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

On page 6, in line 31, after "material" by inserting ", alternative nicotine product"; in line 34, after "material" by inserting ", alternative nicotine product"; in line 37, before "and" by inserting ""alternative nicotine product"";

On page 7, in line 5, after "(b)" by inserting ""Alternative nicotine product" means any noncombustible product containing nicotine without the presence of tobacco leaf that is intended to be placed in the oral or nasal cavity, whether chewed, absorbed, dissolved or ingested by any other means. The term "alternative nicotine product" does not include cigarettes, electronic cigarettes, consumable material, tobacco products or any product regulated as a drug or device by the United States food and drug administration under chapter V of the federal food, drug and cosmetic act.

(c) ";

Also on page 7, in line 21, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 27, by striking all after "of"; in line 28, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 31, by striking "cigarettes,"; in line 32, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated";

On page 8, in line 7, by striking "cigarettes,"; in line 8, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 20, after the semicolon by inserting "or"; following line 30, by inserting "(x) "Regulated products" means cigarettes, electronic cigarettes, consumable materials, alternative nicotine products and tobacco products."; in line 32, by striking all after "of"; in line 33, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 36, by striking all after "of"; in line 37, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 40, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 42, by striking "cigarettes,"; in line 43, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 43, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated";

On page 9, in line 2, by striking all after "access"; in line 3, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 5, by striking all after "sell"; in line 6, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; also in line 6, by striking "cigarettes,"; in line 7, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 19, before "Tobacco" by inserting a quotation mark; also in line 19, after "products" by inserting a quotation mark;

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

On page 10, in line 13, after "material" by inserting ", alternative nicotine products"; in line 14, after "and" by inserting ", where applicable,"; in line 16, by striking all after "selling"; in line 17, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated";

On page 12, in line 5, by striking "\$100" and inserting "\$25";

On page 13, in line 6, by striking "cigarettes or tobacco" and inserting "regulated";

On page 14, in line 5, by striking "cigarettes or tobacco" and inserting "regulated";

On page 17, in line 9, by striking all after "distribute"; in line 10, by striking all before "products" and inserting "any regulated"; in line 11, by striking all after "buy"; in line 12, by striking "tobacco" and inserting "any regulated"; in line 19, by striking all after "sell"; in line 20, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 26, after "material" by inserting ", alternative nicotine products"; in line 30, by striking all after "where"; in line 31, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 38, by striking all after "where"; in line 39, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 43, by striking all after "sell";

On page 18, in line 1, by striking "tobacco" and inserting "regulated"; in line 13, by striking all after "sell"; in line 14, by striking "tobacco" and inserting "regulated";

On page 19, in line 2, by striking "U.S." and inserting "United States"; in line 6, by striking all after "any"; in line 7, by striking all before the first comma and inserting "regulated products"; in line 26, after "that" by inserting "has not obtained a tobacco product clearance order from the United States food and drug administration pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 387j"; in line 27, after "except" by inserting "tobacco- or"; in line 28, after "material" by inserting "that has not obtained a tobacco product clearance order from the United States food and drug administration pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 387j"; also in line 28, after "except" by inserting "tobacco- or";

On page 20, in line 27, by striking "cigarettes,"; in line 28, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 30, by striking all after "receive"; in line 31, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 32, by striking all after "the"; in line 33, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 37, by striking all after "receive"; in line 38, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 41, by striking all after "of"; in line 42, by striking "tobacco" and inserting "regulated"; in line 43, by striking "cigarettes,";

On page 21, in line 1, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 7, by striking all after "the"; in line 8, by striking "tobacco" and inserting "regulated"; in line 9, by striking all after "buying" and inserting "regulated";

On page 22, in line 1, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 18, by striking all after "all"; in line 19, by striking "tobacco" and inserting "regulated"; in line 29, by striking all after "Any"; in line 30, by striking "tobacco" and inserting "regulated";

On page 23, in line 18, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 32, by striking all after "Counterfeit"; in line 33, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 34, by striking all after "counterfeit"; in line 35, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; also in line 35, by striking all after "include"; in line 36, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 39, by striking all after "include"; in line 40, by striking "tobacco" and inserting "regulated"; in line 43, by striking all after "counterfeit";

On page 24, in line 1, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 36, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated";

On page 25, in line 4, by striking all after "any"; in line 5, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 6, by striking all after "any" and inserting "regulated"; in line 10, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 15, by striking all after "of"; in line 16, by striking "tobacco" and inserting "regulated";

On page 26, in line 37, by striking all after "Any"; in line 38, by striking "tobacco" and inserting "regulated";

On page 27, in line 2, by striking "cigarettes,"; in line 3, by striking all before "products" and inserting "regulated"; in line 26, after "after" by inserting "July 1, 2021, and"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Insurance** recommends **HB 2053** be amended on page 1, in line 6, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019";

On page 2, in line 13, after "materials" by inserting "for policies having a coverage start date on or after January 1, 2019"; in line 25, by striking all after the period; by striking all in lines 26 through 28; in line 29 by striking "health coverage for that month."; in line 30, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019";

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Judiciary recommends HB 2554, HB 2646, HB 2699 be passed.

Committee on Rural Revitalization recommends HB 2677 be passed.

Committee on **Rural Revitalization** recommends **HB 2516** be amended on page 2, in line 7, by striking "January" and inserting "July";

On page 3, by striking all in lines 23 through 27;

On page 4, in line 20, by striking "January" and inserting "July"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **HB 2576** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Your Committee on Calendar and Printing recommends on requests for resolutions and certificates that

Request No. 35, by Representative Jarrod Ousley, congratulating, Brain Injury Association of Kansas and Greater Kansas City.

**Request No. 36**, by Representative Lonnie G. Clark, congratulating, Peter "Pete" Paras, for his exemplary community volunteer work as Scoutmaster for Boy Scout Troop 41 in Junction City.

**Request No. 37**, by Representative Cheryl Helmer, congratulating, Winfield High School, Lexi Wilson, Ashley Jarvis, and Michael Endicott, being named National Champions in Engineering Technology\Design, first Kansas team to win this title.

**Request No. 38**, by Representative Jeff Pittman, congratulating, Leavenworth High School JROTC Raider Team, for winning the 2019 Raider National Championship.

Request No. 39, by Representative Jeff Pittman, congratulating, Joseph Purvis, for winning the 2019 Male Ultimate Raider National Championship.

**Request No. 40**, by Representative Jeff Pittman, congratulating, Konya Halle, for winning the 2019 Female Ultimate Raider National Championship.

**Request No. 41**, by Representative Kellie Warren, congratulating, Paige Lankford, for winning the 2020 Kansas Horizon Award, for Being an Exemplary First-Year Teacher.

**Request No. 42**, by Representative Kellie Warren, congratulating, Emily Moore, for winning the 2020 Kansas Horizon Award, for Being an Exemplary First-Year Teacher.

**Request No. 43**, by Representative Suzi Carlson, congratulating, Anthony R. Meals, for winning the 2019 National Association of Agriculture Educators Outstanding Early Career Teacher Award.

**Request No. 44**, by Representative Bill Sutton, congratulating, Levi Benjamin Foland on Achieving the rank of Eagle Scout, Troop 88.

**Request No. 45**, by Representative Bill Sutton, congratulating, Kaidyn Davis Manifold on Achieving the rank of Eagle Scout, Troop 888.

**Request No. 46**, by Representatives Barbara W. Ballard and Broderick Henderson, congratulating, KAPPA ALPHA PSI FRATERNITY, Mu Chapter, University of Kansas, on their 100<sup>th</sup> Anniversary.

**Request No. 47**, by Representative Susan Concannon, congratulating, Chad Lorenz for being named the 2018 Sunflower State Games Male Athlete and National Congress State Games Male Athlete of the Year.

be approved and the Chief Clerk of the House be directed to order the printing of said certificates and order drafting of said resolutions.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the committee report was adopted.

## COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Humphries to replace Rep. Francis on Committee on Appropriations on February 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Adam Smith to replace Rep. Concannon on Committee on Appropriations on February 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Thomas to replace Rep. Mason on Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development on February 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Resman to replace Rep. Kessinger on Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development on February 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Sutton to replace Rep. Hineman on Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development on February 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Owens to replace Rep. Highland on Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development on February 21, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Gartner to replace Rep. Henderson on Committee on Federal State Affairs on February 24, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Parker to replace Rep. Henderson on Committee on General Government Budget on February 24, 2020.

## REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HR 6035 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on February 21, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Monday, February 24, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## TWENTY-NINTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Monday, February 24, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 120 members present.

Rep. Thimesch was excused on verified illness.

Reps. Carlin, Henderson, Hodge and Horn were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Almighty God,
we lift up our hearts and minds to You
as we begin this week.

Thank You for the blessings You have given each of us.
I ask for Your grace and favor upon each member.
May unity among them be realized
even in the midst of diversity and controversy.
May all their work contribute to the ways of
justice for all and peace that is lasting.
Be with them as they assemble today
and may Your spirit prevail,
resulting in what is good for all people.
This I pray in Your Name,
Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Amyx.

## INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Thompson are spread upon the Journal:

Kansas FFA Association was chartered by the National FFA Organization in 1928. The current membership in Kansas is more than 9,600 members and 211 chapters. Kansas has chartered more than 30 new chapters within the last four years. With over 250 careers in agriculture, the opportunities are abundant for students and within our states largest industry.

Rep. Thompson introduced the following FFA Officers:

- President: Logan Elliott Riverton FFA Chapter
- Vice President: Abby Goins Labette County FFA Chapter
- Secretary: Elizabeth Wright Blue Valley FFA Chapter
- Treasurer: Lukas Sebesta Ellsworth FFA Chapter
- Reporter: JW Wells Sedan FFA Chapter
- Sentinel: Mason Prester Wilson FFA Chapter

All FFA state officers are attending Kansas State University and have recently returned from a study abroad trip to Spain and Portugal.

Members of the House joined Rep. Thompson in welcoming his guests.

## INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2726**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to corporate tax returns; extending the dates when tax returns are required to be filed; amending K.S.A. 79-3221 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2727**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to exemptions; requirements of new exemptions; exemption for envision, inc. and friends of hospice of Jefferson county; imposing sales tax on certain services; amending K.S.A. 79-3603 and 79-3606 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Taxation.

## REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2723, HB 2724, HB 2725.

## MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing passage of SB 58, SB 270, SB 285, SB 286, SB 287, SB 305, SB 306, and SB 342.

## INTRODUCTION OF SENATE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following Senate bills were thereupon introduced and read by title:

SB 58, SB 270, SB 285, SB 286, SB 287, SB 305, SB 306, SB 342.

## CONSENT CALENDAR

Objection was made to **HB 2478**, **HB 2509**, **HB 2510**, **HB 2576**, **HB 2583** appearing on the Consent Calendar; the bills were placed on the Calendar under the heading General Orders.

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Agriculture** recommends **HB 2575** be amended on page 1, in line 14, by striking "subsection"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications recommends HB 2585 be passed.

Committee on **Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications** recommends **HB 2618** be amended on page 4, following line 3, by inserting:

"(i) On or before June 30 of each year, the department of commerce shall publish on its website and provide to the legislature a report with information pertaining to applications, challenges and any other pertinent project or application activity."; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Federal and State Affairs** recommends **HB 2400** be amended by substituting a new bill to be designated as "Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2400," as follows:

"Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2400

By Committee on Federal and State Affairs

"AN ACT concerning food products; relating to the Kansas food, drug and cosmetic act; regulating the sale and distribution of kratom products; amending K.S.A. 65-656 and repealing the existing section.";

And the substitute bill be passed.

(Sub HB 2400 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on K-12 Education Budget recommends HB 2540 be amended on page 2, in line 28, by striking "2020" and inserting "2025";

On page 3, in line 9, after "At-risk" by inserting "and provisional at-risk"; in line 35, after "programs" by inserting ", unless such program is a provisional at-risk educational program. Expenditures shall only be made for a provisional at-risk educational program for the first year such program is implemented by a school district. The state board shall review any such provisional at-risk educational program, and if such program satisfies the state board's requirements as an evidence-based best practice, then such program shall be included in the list of approved at-risk educational programs";

Also on page 3, in line 39, after "at-risk" by inserting "and provisional at-risk"; in line 43, after "at-risk" by inserting "or provisional at-risk";

On page 4, in line 2, after "at-risk" by inserting "and provisional at-risk"; in line 7, after "assistance" by inserting "by a comparison of students receiving such service or assistance with all other students"; in line 8, by striking all after "progress"; in line 9, by striking "provided" and inserting ", attendance and, if applicable, state assessment score, four-year graduation rate and average ACT composite score"; in line 18, by striking "and"; in line 22, after "services" by inserting "; and

(3) "provisional at-risk educational program" means an evidence-based at-risk program or service identified by a school district as producing or likely to produce measurable success that has been submitted to the state board for review pursuant to subsection (d)"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Social Services Budget recommends HB 2549 be passed.

Committee on **Social Services Budget** recommends **HB 2550** be amended on page 2, by striking all in line 1 and inserting:

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **HB 2180** be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2180," as follows:

## "Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2180 By Committee on Transportation

"AN ACT concerning vehicles; relating to registration and titles; fees, disposition; amending K.S.A. 8-195, 74-2013 and 79-3604 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-132, 8-135, 8-135a, 8-135c, 8-139, 8-143, 8-143j, 8-145d, 8-145d, 8-167, 8-170, 8-172, 8-198 and 58-4204 and repealing the existing sections.";

And the substitute bill be passed.

(Sub HB 2180 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **HB 2592** be amended on page 5, following line 34, by inserting:

"New Sec. 4. (a) On and after January 1, 2021, any owner or lessee of one or more passenger vehicles or trucks registered for a gross weight of 20,000 pounds or less, who is a resident of Kansas, upon compliance with the provisions of this section, may be issued one alpha kappa alpha license plate for each such passenger vehicle or truck. Such license plates shall be issued for the same time as other license plates upon proper registration and payment of the regular license fee as provided in K.S.A. 8-143, and amendments thereto, and either the payment to the county treasurer of the logo use royalty payment or the presentation of the annual logo use authorization statement provided for in subsection (b).

- (b) Alpha kappa alpha may authorize the use of the organization's logo to be affixed on license plates as provided by this section. Any motor vehicle owner or lessee may apply annually to alpha kappa alpha for the use of such logo. Such owner or lessee shall pay an amount of not less than \$25 nor more than \$100 as a logo use royalty payment for each such license plate to be issued. The logo use royalty payment shall be paid to either:
- (1) Alpha kappa alpha, who shall issue to the motor vehicle owner or lessee, without further charge, a logo use authorization statement that shall be presented by the motor vehicle owner or lessee at the time of registration; or
  - (2) the county treasurer.
- (c) Any applicant for a license plate authorized by this section may make application for such license plate not less than 60 days prior to such person's renewal of registration date, on a form prescribed and furnished by the director of vehicles, and any applicant for such license plate shall either provide the annual logo use authorization statement provided for in subsection (b) or pay to the county treasurer the logo use royalty payment. Application for registration of a passenger vehicle or truck and issuance of the license plate under this section shall be made by the owner or lessee in a manner prescribed by the director of vehicles upon forms furnished by the director.
- (d) No registration or license plate issued under this section shall be transferable to any other person.
- (e) The director of vehicles may transfer an alpha kappa alpha license plate from a leased vehicle to a purchased vehicle.
- (f) Renewals of registration under this section shall be made annually, upon payment of the fee prescribed in subsection (a), in the manner prescribed in K.S.A. 8-

- 132(b), and amendments thereto. No renewal of registration shall be made to any applicant until such applicant provides to the county treasurer either the annual logo use authorization statement provided for in subsection (b) or the payment of the annual royalty payment. If such statement is not presented at the time of registration or faxed by alpha kappa alpha, or the annual royalty payment is not made to the county treasurer, the applicant shall be required to comply with the provisions of K.S.A. 8-143, and amendments thereto, and return the license plate to the county treasurer of such person's residence.
- (g) Alpha kappa alpha shall provide to all county treasurers an electronic mail address where applicants can contact alpha kappa alpha for information concerning the application process or the status of such applicant's license plate application.
- (h) Alpha kappa alpha, with the approval of the director of vehicles, shall design a license plate to be issued under the provisions of this section.
- (i) As a condition of receiving the alpha kappa alpha license plate and any subsequent registration renewal of such license plate, the applicant shall consent to the division authorizing the division's release of motor vehicle record information, including the applicant's name, address, royalty payment amount, license plate number and vehicle type to alpha kappa alpha and the state treasurer.
- (j) The collection and remittance of annual royalty payments by the county treasurer shall be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 8-1,141(h), and amendments thereto.
- New Sec. 5. (a) On and after January 1, 2021, any owner or lessee of one or more passenger vehicles or trucks registered for a gross weight of 20,000 pounds or less, who is a resident of Kansas, upon compliance with the provisions of this section, may be issued one back the badge license plate for each such passenger vehicle or truck. Such license plates shall be issued for the same time as other license plates upon proper registration and payment of the regular license fee as provided in K.S.A. 8-143, and amendments thereto, and payment to the county treasurer of the law enforcement memorial fee as provided for in subsection (b).
- (b) Any applicant for a back the badge license plate authorized by this section shall make an annual payment of a law enforcement memorial fee to the county treasurer of \$50 for each license plate to be issued. Any law enforcement memorial fee payment received pursuant to this section shall be used to support the memorial to law enforcement officers that is located on the grounds of the state capitol established by K.S.A. 75-2250, and amendments thereto.
- (c) Any applicant for a license plate authorized by this section may make application for such license plate not less than 60 days prior to such person's renewal of registration date, on a form prescribed and furnished by the director of vehicles, and any applicant for such license plate shall pay to the county treasurer the law enforcement memorial fee as provided for in subsection (b). Application for registration of a passenger vehicle or truck and issuance of the license plate under this section shall be made by the owner or lessee in a manner prescribed by the director of vehicles upon forms furnished by the director.
- (d) No registration or license plate issued under this section shall be transferable to any other person.
- (e) The director of vehicles may transfer a back the badge license plate from a leased vehicle to a purchased vehicle.

- (f) Renewals of registration under this section shall be made annually, upon payment of the fee prescribed in subsection (a), in the manner prescribed in K.S.A. 8-132(b), and amendments thereto. No renewal of registration shall be made to any applicant until such applicant pays the law enforcement memorial fee to the county treasurer as provided for in subsection (b). If the annual law enforcement memorial fee payment is not made to the county treasurer at the time of registration, the applicant shall be required to comply with K.S.A. 8-143, and amendments thereto, and return the license plate to the county treasurer of such person's residence.
- (g) The back the badge license plate shall have a background design, an emblem or colors that designate the license plate as a back the badge license plate.
- (h) As a condition of receiving the back the badge license plate and any subsequent registration renewal of such license plate, the applicant shall provide consent to the division authorizing the division's release of motor vehicle record information to the state treasurer, including the applicant's name, address, law enforcement memorial fee payment amount, license plate number and vehicle type.
- (i) Annual law enforcement memorial fee payments collected by county treasurers under this section shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the law enforcement memorial fund created by K.S.A. 75-2250, and amendments thereto. All expenditures from the law enforcement memorial fund shall be made in accordance with K.S.A. 75-2250, and amendments thereto.
- New Sec. 6. (a) On and after January 1, 2021, any owner or lessee of one or more passenger vehicles or trucks registered for a gross weight of 20,000 pounds or less, who is a resident of Kansas, upon compliance with the provisions of this section, may be issued one blackout license plate for each such passenger vehicle or truck. This license plate shall be issued for the same time as other license plates upon proper registration and payment of the regular license fee as provided in K.S.A. 8-143, and amendments thereto, and payment to the county treasurer of the local roads improvement fee as provided for in subsection (b).
- (b) Any applicant or renewal for a blackout license plate authorized by this section shall make an annual payment of a local roads improvement fee of \$35 to the county treasurer for each license plate to be issued.
- (c) Any applicant for a license plate authorized by this section may make application for such license plate not less than 60 days prior to such person's renewal of registration date, on a form prescribed and furnished by the director of vehicles, and any applicant for such license plate shall pay to the county treasurer the local roads improvement fee as provided for in subsection (b). Application for registration of a passenger vehicle or truck and issuance of the license plate under this section shall be made by the owner or lessee in a manner prescribed by the director of vehicles upon forms furnished by the director.
- (d) No registration or license plate issued under this section shall be transferable to any other person.
- (e) The director of vehicles may transfer a blackout license plate from a leased vehicle to a purchased vehicle.
- (f) Renewals of registration under this section shall be made annually, upon payment of the fee prescribed in subsection (a), in the manner prescribed in K.S.A. 8-

132(b), and amendments thereto. No renewal of registration shall be made to any applicant until such applicant pays the local roads improvement fee to the county treasurer as provided for in subsection (b). If the annual local roads improvement fee payment is not made to the county treasurer at the time of registration, the applicant shall be required to comply with K.S.A. 8-143, and amendments thereto, and return the license plate to the county treasurer of such person's residence.

- (g) The blackout license plate shall have a background design, an emblem or colors that designate the license plate as a blackout license plate.
- (h) As a condition of receiving the blackout license plate and any subsequent registration renewal of such license plate, the applicant shall provide consent to the division authorizing the division's release of motor vehicle record information to the state treasurer, including the applicant's name, address, local roads improvement fee amount, license plate number and vehicle type.
- (i) Annual local roads improvement fee payments collected by county treasurers under this section shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the local roads improvement fund. The local roads improvement fund is hereby created in the state treasury and shall be administered by the secretary of transportation. Expenditures from the local roads improvement fund may be made for the purposes of providing state moneys for a cost-share program between the department of transportation and participating cities and counties for modernization and expansion projects in such cities and counties. Participating cities and counties shall provide local moneys to match expenditures of state moneys from the local roads improvement fund on a minimum of \$1 of local moneys to a maximum of \$3 of state moneys basis. All expenditures from the local roads improvement fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the secretary of transportation or the secretary's designee.";

Also on page 5, in line 43, by striking "500" and inserting "250";

On page 6, in line 4, by striking "or" and inserting a comma; also in line 4, after "8-1,188" by inserting "or section 6"; in line 11, by striking the first "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 11, after "8-1,183" by inserting "and section 5";

On page 7, in line 1, by striking "250" and inserting "125"; in line 6, by striking "500" and inserting "250"; in line 8, by striking "250" and inserting "125";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; in line 3, after "educator" by inserting ", alpha kappa alpha, back the badge and blackout"; and the bill be passed as amended.

## COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Rep. Seiwert to replace Rep. Thimesch on Taxation on February 24, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Amyx to replace Rep. Horn on Joint Committee on Building Construction on February 24, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Woodard to replace Rep. Carlin on Committee on Appropriations on February 24, 2020.

## REPORT ON ENGROSSED BILLS

HB 2500, HB 2515, HB 2521 reported correctly engrossed February 21, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until  $9:00\ a.m.$ , Tuesday, February  $25,\,2020.$ 

## Journal of the House

## THIRTIETH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Tuesday, February 25, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 122 members present.

Reps. B. Carpenter and Kuether were excused on verified illness.

Rep. S. Ruiz was excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Patient and Merciful God, we stand before You today so grateful for Your patience and mercy.

The word for our legislators this week is "trust."

No doubt minds immediately went to all the sarcastic and humorous

jokes about trusting politicians. I know mine did.

However, we are reminded just how serious this word is.

There was a time when a person's word was all one needed to have trust. Over the years as belief that there are no absolute truths

to have trust. Over the years as belief that there are no absolute truths has grown, it would appear that trust has diminished.

Learning to trust others starts with being trustworthy ourselves which involves honesty, integrity, keeping our word, not belittling others, admitting when we are wrong,

seeking forgiveness and giving forgiveness.

In order for us to trust one another and present an element of trustworthiness to the people of this great state,

we desperately need Your help in sharpening these traits in each of us.

May it be so in Your Name, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Weigel.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Agriculture: SB 270.

Appropriations: SB 285, SB 286, SB 287.

Judiciary: SB 58.

Taxation: HB 2726, HB 2727.

Transportation: SB 305, SB 306, SB 342.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Seiwert, HR 6036, by Representatives Seiwert, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Barker, Bergquist, Burris, Capps, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Collins, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dove, Ellis, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Johnson, Landwehr, Long, Mason, Owens, Patton, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, A. Smith, E. Smith, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger and Waymaster, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

**HR 6036--** A RESOLUTION honoring United States servicemembers who were exposed and fell victim to Agent Orange during and after the Vietnam War.

WHEREAS, Our nation was built by individuals who were willing to sacrifice their personal safety and concerns to ensure our individual and collective freedom; and

WHEREAS, Kansas is proud to be the home of many men and women who have performed above and beyond the call of duty; and

WHEREAS, Throughout the years, citizens of the United States have been called to take up arms against the enemies of our great nation, risking their lives and leaving their loved ones behind, to honorably safeguard the freedoms and liberties guaranteed to all Americans; and

WHEREAS, When an estimated 20 million gallons of Agent Orange were sprayed across Vietnam from U.S. aircrafts, destroying vegetation and crops that provided the enemy's food supply and cover that concealed enemy forces, millions of American soldiers were exposed to the chemical; and

WHEREAS, Agent Orange is a blend of poisonous herbicides, including dioxin, that, through physical contact or ingestion, causes a number of serious illnesses, including leukemia, myeloma, Hodgkin's and non-Hodgkin's lymphoma, ischemic heart disease, soft tissue sarcomas, amyloidosis, diabetes, Parkinson's disease and cancers of the throat, prostate and lung; and

WHEREAS, Agent Orange also causes genetic damage and birth defects, as some children and grandchildren of veterans exposed to Agent Orange have been born with spina bifida and other defects; and

WHEREAS, The Wall at the Vietnam Veterans Memorial in Washington, D.C., memorializes those who died overseas, but it does not include those veterans who were exposed and fell victim to Agent Orange years after the war; and

WHEREAS, Agent Orange continues to affect American heroes who served on the ground, in the air and on the waterways in Vietnam and who have developed these serious illnesses or passed away years after leaving battle; and

WHEREAS, We should honor these veterans as they have made untold and innumerable sacrifices to preserve the liberties we enjoy today and that generations to come will continue to cherish: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That we honor United States servicemembers who were exposed and fell victim to Agent Orange during and after the Vietnam War; and

*Be it further resolved:* That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send an enrolled copy of this resolution to Representative Seiwert.

#### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Seiwert are spread upon the Journal:

I have with me today Mrs. Barbara Osborn and her granddaughter, Amber Kerschen from Wichita, Kansas. Mrs. Osborn's husband, Edwin, fell victim to the effects of Agent Orange as a result of his service during the Vietnam War.

I also have with me Mr. Dale Anderson, my college roommate and high school best friend, and a survivor of the devastation of Agent Orange. He has undergone numerous treatments for agent orange-related illnesses and is writing a book on his experience.

Many of the victims who died overseas during the Vietnam War are memorialized on the Vietnam Veterans Memorial in Washington D.C.. Agent Orange continues to affect American heroes who served on the ground, in the air, and on the waterways in Vietnam. Many have developed serious illnesses or passed away years after leaving battle.

Please stand and give recognition to all the brave men and women who have suffered from this weapon of war.

Rep. Seiwert presented his guests with a framed House certificate in recognition of their sacrifices.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Hoffman in the chair.

## COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. Hoffman, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that HB 2554, HB 2452, HB 2479, HB 2428, HB 2470, HB 2646, HB 2496 be passed.

**HB 2487** be passed over and retain a place on the calendar.

Committee report to **HB 2464** be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to HB 2547 be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

Roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Kelly, to amend **HB 2503** on page 1, by striking all in lines 23 through 36;

On page 2, by striking all in lines 1 through 15; in line 32, by striking all after "system"; by striking all in lines 33 through 43;

On page 3, by striking all in lines 1 and 2; in line 3, by striking all before the period; And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking all after the semicolon; by striking all in line 3; in line 7, by striking all after the semicolon; by striking all in line 8; in line 9, by striking all before "amending"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 122; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis,

Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: B. Carpenter, Kuether, Ruiz, S..

The motion of Rep. Kelly to amend HB 2503 prevailed.

Also, roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Frownfelter to amend **HB 2503** on page 1, following line 22, by inserting:

"New Sec. 2. (a) The retirement benefit, pension or annuity payments accruing after June 30, 2020, to each retirant shall be increased by a cost-of-living adjustment in an amount as provided in subsection (b). Such payments shall be paid by the retirement system to the retirant.

- (b) Each retirant who is entitled to receive a retirement benefit, pension or annuity payment from the retirement system on July 1, 2020, shall have such retirement benefit, pension or annuity payment increased by 1% of the retirement benefit, pension or annuity payment in effect on July 1, 2020.
  - (c) As used in this section:
- (1) "Retirement system" means the Kansas public employees retirement system, the Kansas police and firemen's retirement system, the state school retirement system and the retirement system for judges; and
- (2) "retirant" means: (A) Any person who is a member or special member of the retirement system pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 74-4901 et seq., and amendments thereto, and who retired on or before July 1, 2020; and (B) any person who is a joint annuitant or beneficiary of any member described in subsection (c)(2)(A).
- (d) The retirement benefit, pension or annuity payment increase provided by this section shall be implemented only if 2020 House Bill No. 2671 or any other legislation that authorizes sports wagering under the Kansas expanded lottery act is passed by the legislature during the 2020 regular session and enacted into law. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the executive director of the Kansas lottery shall certify to the director of accounts and reports when the sports wagering receipts fund of the Kansas lottery has a balance of \$18,000,000 or more, and upon receipt of such certification, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$18,000,000 from the sports wagering receipts fund of the Kansas lottery to the Kansas public employees retirement fund of the Kansas public employees retirement system for payment of the cost-of-living adjustment provided by this section.";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

Also on page 1, in the title, in line 2, after the semicolon by inserting "providing a cost-of-living adjustment for certain retirants;"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 45; Nays 76; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 4.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Corbet, Cox, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Sawyer, Smith, E., Stogsdill, Thomas, Toplikar, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Carlson, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Smith, A., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thompson, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: B. Carpenter, Kuether, Ruiz, S., Seiwert.

The motion of Rep. Frownfelter to amend HB 2503 did not prevail.

Also, roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Benson to amend **HB 2503** on page 1, in line 22, after "2020" by inserting ", and for payment of the cost-of-living adjustment provided by section 2":

Also on page 1, following line 22, by inserting:

"New Sec. 2. (a) The retirement benefit, pension or annuity payments accruing after June 30, 2020, to each retirant shall be increased by a cost-of-living adjustment in an amount as provided in subsection (b). Such payments shall be paid by the retirement system to the retirant.

- (b) Each retirant who is entitled to receive a retirement benefit, pension or annuity payment from the retirement system on July 1, 2020, shall have such retirement benefit, pension or annuity payment increased by 3% of the retirement benefit, pension or annuity payment in effect on July 1, 2020, or \$200 per month, whichever is less.
  - (c) As used in this section:
- (1) "Retirement system" means the Kansas public employees retirement system, the Kansas police and firemen's retirement system, the state school retirement system and the retirement system for judges; and
- (2) "retirant" means: (A) Any person who is a member or special member of the retirement system pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 74-4901 et seq., and amendments thereto, and who retired on or before July 1, 2005; and (B) any person who is a joint annuitant or beneficiary of any member described in subsection (c)(2)(A).";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

Also on page 1, in the title, in line 2, after the semicolon by inserting "providing a cost-of-living adjustment for certain retirants;",

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 48; Nays 74; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Collins, Corbet, Cox, Curtis, Dietrich, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor,

Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Toplikar, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Concannon, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, Proehl, Rahjes, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: B. Carpenter, Kuether, Ruiz, S..

The motion of Rep. Benson to amend **HB 2503** did not prevail and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to HB 2516 be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Horn, **HB 2516** be amended on page 4, following line 22, by inserting:

"(c) On or before the first day of each regular session of the legislature, beginning with the 2022 regular session, the secretary of the department of revenue shall submit a report to the legislature on the implementation and use of the tax credit provided by this act."

Also, on motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **HB 2516**, Rep. A. Smith, requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment was germane.

Roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **HB 2516** on page 1, in line 25, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; in line 29, after "residence" by inserting ", and any costs and fees associated with adoption and child care for a qualifying child as defined by the federal internal revenue code of 1986"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 46; Nays 76; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Delperdang, Finney, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Landwehr, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Owens, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Toplikar, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Newland, Orr, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: B. Carpenter, Kuether, Ruiz, S..

The motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **HB 2516** did not prevail and the bill be passed as amended.

On motion of Rep. Ward to amend **HB 2480**, Rep. Cox requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment not germane; and the bill be passed.

Roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Xu to amend **HB 2619** on page 2, in line 2, after the comma by inserting "including current returns and projections of fossil fuel-based investments.".

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 38; Nays 81; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 6.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Lusk, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlson, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Ward, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: B. Carpenter, Dietrich, Hoheisel, Kuether, Ruiz, S., Waggoner. The motion of Rep. Xu to amend **HB 2619** did not prevail.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, rose and reported progress.

#### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Appropriations** recommends **HB 2548** be amended on page 1, in line 13, after "account" by inserting "of the state general fund"; in line 18, by striking "Kansas"; also in line 18, after "environment" by inserting " – division of public health"; in line 19, after "operating" by inserting "expenditures (including official hospitality) account of the state general"; in line 27, after "operating" by inserting "expenditures account of the state general"; in line 33, after "operating" by inserting "expenditures account of the state general";

On page 2, in line 4, after "operating" by inserting "expenditures (including official hospitality) account of the state general";

On page 3, following line 29, by inserting:

"Sec. 8. The adjutant general is hereby authorized and directed to pay the following amount from the disaster relief account of the state general fund for property damage to the following claimant:

Louis Keefover

3770 SW Stonybrook Drive

Topeka, KS 66610 \$1,817.82";

On page 4, in line 1, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register"; And by renumbering sections accordingly; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends HB 2586, HB 2702, HB 2705 be passed.

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends **HB 2625** be amended on page 2, following line 33, by inserting:

"(d) The provisions of this section shall expire on July 1, 2025."; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice recommends HB 2695, HB 2708 be passed.

Committee on Education recommends HB 2690 be passed.

Committee on **Federal and State Affairs** recommends **HB 2571** be amended on page 2, in line 11, after "requirements" by inserting ", employment as a law enforcement official"; in line 13, by striking all after "license"; by striking all in line 14; in line 15, by striking all before the semicolon; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Federal and State Affairs** recommends **HB 2596** be amended on page 4, in line 31, by striking "1.2" and inserting "two"; also in line 31, after "miles" by inserting "by the usually traveled road";

On page 5, in line 15, after "retailer" by inserting "or farm winery"; in line 16, after "act" by inserting "and"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2333** be amended on page 1, in line 6, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019"; in line 13, after "(2)" by inserting "(A) Except as provided in subparagraph (B),"; in line 14, by striking all after "judgment"; by striking all in line 15; in line 16, by striking all before the period; also in line 16, after the period by inserting:

"(B) If the child to be adopted is 16 or 17 years of age, the court may order a final decree of adoption to take effect at an earlier date.";

Also on page 1, also in line 16, after "effect" by inserting "more than two years earlier than the filing of the judgment or"; in line 23, by striking "2019" and inserting "2020"; in line 35, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019";

Also on page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2468** be amended on page 1, in line 8, after "is" by inserting "committing any of the following acts against a child under 18 years of age"; by striking all in lines 13 through 30; in line 31, by striking all before the period and inserting "(A) Knowingly torturing, cruelly beating, cruelly striking or cruelly kicking;

(B) knowingly inflicting cruel and inhuman corporal punishment; or

- (C) knowingly using cruel and inhuman physical restraint, including caging or confining the child in a space not designated for human habitation or binding the child in a way that is not medically necessary:
- (2) recklessly causing great bodily harm, abusive head trauma, permanent disability or disfigurement; or
- (3)(A) knowingly causing great bodily harm, abusive head trauma, permanent disability or disfigurement;
- (B) knowingly inflicting cruel and inhuman corporal punishment with a deadly weapon; or
- (C) knowingly impeding the normal breathing or circulation of the blood by applying pressure on the throat, neck or chest of the child or by blocking the nose or mouth of the child in a manner whereby death or great bodily harm could be inflicted";

On page 1, by striking all in line 36;

On page 2, by striking all in lines 1 through 7; in line 8, by striking all before the period and inserting: "Subsection (a)(1) is a:

- (i) Severity level 5, person felony if the child is at least six years of age but less than 18 years of age; and
  - (ii) severity level 3, person felony if the child is under six years of age;
  - (B) subsection (a)(2) is a severity level 4, person felony; and
  - (C) subsection (a)(3) is a severity level 3, person felony";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking all after the first semicolon; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2713** be amended on page 19, following line 9, by inserting:

- "Sec. 33. On and after January 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-3602 is hereby amended to read as follows: 25-3602. (a) Each petition shall consist of one or more documents pertaining to a single issue or proposition under one distinctive title. The documents shall be filed with the county election officer or other official, if another official is designated in the applicable statutes. The filing shall be made at one time all in one group. Later or successive filings of documents relating to the same issue or proposition shall be deemed to be separate petitions and not a part of any earlier or later filing.
  - (b) Unless otherwise specifically required, each petition shall:
- (1) State the question which petitioners seek to bring to an election in the form of a question as it should appear upon the ballot in accordance with the requirements of K.S.A. 25-620 and K.S.A. 25-3601, and amendments thereto;
- (2) name the taxing subdivision or other political subdivision in which an election is sought to be held;
- (3) contain the following recital above the spaces provided for signatures: "I have personally signed this petition. I am a registered elector of the state of Kansas and of

(here insert name of political or taxing subdivision) and my residence address is correctly written after my name."

The recital shall be followed by blank spaces for the signature, residence address and

date of signing for each person signing the petition.

When petitioners are required by law to possess qualifications in addition to being registered electors, the form of the petition shall be amended to contain a recital specifying the additional qualifications required and stating that the petitioners possess the qualifications; and

(4) contain a recital in substance as follows, at the end of each set of documents carried by each petition circulator as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-3608, and amendments thereto: "I am the circulator of this petition and I am qualified to circulate this petition and I personally witnessed the signing of the petition by each person whose name appears thereon.

(Signature of circulator)

(Circulator's residence address)

The recital of the circulator of each petition shall be verified upon oath or affirmation before a notarial officer in the manner prescribed by—K.S.A. 53-501 et seq., and amendments thereto the revised uniform law on notarial acts.

- (c) Any person who has signed a petition who desires to withdraw such person's name may do so by giving written notice to the county election officer or other designated official not later than the third day following the date upon which the petition is filed.
- (d) Any petition shall be null and void unless submitted to the county election officer or other designated official within 180 days of the date of the first signature on the petition.
- (e) Unless the governing body of the political or taxing subdivision in which the election is sought to be held authorizes a special election, all elections which are called as a result of the filing of a sufficient petition shall be held at the next succeeding primary or general election as defined by K.S.A. 25-2502, and amendments thereto, in which the political or taxing subdivision is participating.
- (f) When a petition requires signatures equal in number to a percentage of the total number of registered voters, such percentage shall be based on the most recent number of registered voters as certified to the office of the secretary of state pursuant to subsection (g) of K.S.A. 25-2311(g), and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 34. On and after January 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-3902 is hereby amended to read as follows: 25-3902. (a) Except as provided in K.S.A. 25-312a, and amendments thereto, when a district convention is provided by law to be held to elect a person to be appointed to fill a vacancy in a district office, the county chairperson designated in subsection (b) or (c), within 21 days of receipt of notice that a vacancy has occurred or will occur, shall call and convene a convention of all committeemen and committeewomen of the party of the precincts in such district for the purpose of electing a person to be appointed by the governor to fill the vacancy. If such county chairperson is absent or for any reason is unable to call, or refuses to call such convention, then the county vice-chairperson shall call the convention and perform the other duties under this section required of such chairperson.
- (b) If the district lies within a single county, the county chairperson of such county shall call the convention by mailing a notice, at least seven days before the date of the convention, to each precinct committeeman and committeewoman who is entitled to

vote at the convention pursuant to subsection (e).

- (c) If all or part of more than one county lies within the district, the county chairperson of the county in which the greatest number of qualified voters of the district reside shall call the convention by mailing a notice of the convention to each county chairperson of the party in each such county at least 10 days before the date of the convention. Such convention shall be held at a location within the district selected by the chairperson calling the convention. Such county chairperson, within three days after receipt of such notice, shall mail notice of the convention to the committeemen and committeewomen in their counties who are entitled to vote at the convention pursuant to subsection (e).
  - (d) The notice of such convention shall state:
  - (1) The place where the convention is to be held;
  - (2) the time when the convention will convene; and
  - (3) the purpose for which the convention is to be held.
- (e) At the time and place fixed for holding the convention, the county chairperson who called the convention shall act as temporary chairperson and shall call the convention to order. One-third of the eligible members of the convention shall constitute a quorum for such election. In the event a quorum is not present at the time and place that such convention is called, the members present shall adjourn the convention to a day and time certain, which shall be not later than 14 days after such adjournment of such convention, and provide for notification of the time and place of such adjourned convention to be given to the eligible members not present. The convention shall organize by electing a permanent chairperson and such other officers as necessary. After the convention is organized, it shall elect a person to be appointed by the governor to fill the vacancy. Such election shall be by secret ballot and the person elected shall be the one who receives the majority of all the votes cast. If no person receives a majority of all votes cast on any ballot, the balloting shall continue until some person receives a majority of all the votes cast. Each committeeman and committeewoman of the party of the precincts in such district shall be entitled to vote. Except as provided in subsection (f), no precinct committeeman or committeewoman shall be represented or shall vote by proxy. The convention may adopt such rules necessary to govern its procedure in making nominations, voting, counting, and canvassing votes and for the conduct of any business which may properly be brought before the convention, but such rules shall not be in conflict with the provisions of this section.
- (f) (1) A precinct committeeman or committeewoman may vote by proxy at a convention called pursuant to this section whenever such precinct committeeman or committeewoman is unable to attend the convention and cast such precinct committeeman's or committeewoman's ballot.
- (2) A precinct committeeman or committeewoman may designate another precinct committeeman or committeewoman to cast such precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's ballot at such convention by proxy. Any proxy authorized by this subsection shall:
- (A) Designate the precinct committeeman or committeewoman who shall cast the precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's vote by proxy;
- (B) be signed by the precinct committeeman or precinct committeewoman authorizing the proxy; and

- (C) contain an acknowledgment of such precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's signature which complies with <u>K.S.A. 53-509</u> section 17, and amendments thereto.
- (g) After a person has been elected to be appointed to fill a vacancy in a district office, the chairperson or vice-chairperson of the convention shall execute a certificate, under oath, stating that such person has been duly elected to be appointed to fill such vacancy and shall transmit such certificate either by hand delivery by a person designated by such chairperson or vice-chairperson or by registered mail, return receipt requested, to the governor and a copy thereof to the secretary of state. If transmitted by registered mail, such certificate and the copy thereof shall be mailed within 24 hours of such election, unless the day following such election is a Sunday or legal holiday, in which case it shall be mailed by the next regular business day. Thereupon, and not later than seven days after such certificate is received in the office of the governor, the governor, or in the governor's absence the lieutenant governor, shall fill such vacancy by appointing to such district office the person so elected. In the event the governor or lieutenant governor fails to appoint any person as required by this subsection after receiving a lawfully executed certificate hereunder, such person shall be deemed to have been so appointed notwithstanding such failure. The person so appointed may qualify and enter upon the duties of the district office immediately after appointment.
- Sec. 35. On and after January 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-3902a is hereby amended to read as follows: 25-3902a. (a) When a vacancy occurs in the office of member of the state board of education, the county chairperson designated in subsection (b), (c) or (d), within 21 days of receipt of notice that a vacancy has occurred or will occur shall call and convene a district convention for the purpose of electing a person to be appointed by the governor to fill the vacancy. Such person shall be an elector of the same political party as that of the board member vacating such position and shall reside in the board member district corresponding to such board member position. If such county chairperson is absent or for any reason is unable to call or refuses to call such convention, then the county vice-chairperson shall call the convention and perform the other duties required of such chairperson under this section.
- (b) If the board member district lies within a single county, the county chairperson of such county shall call a convention of all precinct committeemen and committeewomen of the party of the precincts in such district in the manner provided by subsections (b) and (d) of K.S.A. 25-3902(b) and (d), and amendments thereto, and such convention shall be conducted as provided in subsection (e).
- (c) If all or part of more than one and less than five counties lie within the board member district, the county chairperson of the county in which the greatest number of qualified voters of the district reside shall call a convention of all precinct committeemen and committeewomen of the party of the precincts in such district in the manner provided by—subsections—(c) and (d) of K.S.A. 25-3902(c) and (d), and amendments thereto, and such convention shall be conducted as provided in subsection (e). Such convention shall be held at a location within the district selected by the chairperson calling the convention.
- (d) If all or part of five or more counties lie within the board member district, the county chairperson of the county in which the greatest number of qualified voters of the district reside shall call a convention of all county chairpersons and vice-chairpersons of the party of the counties in such district. Such convention shall be held at a location

within the district selected by the chairperson calling the convention. Such county chairperson shall call the convention by mailing a notice to each such county chairperson and vice-chairperson, at least seven days before the date of the convention. Such notice shall state: (1) The place where the convention is to be held; (2) the time when the convention will convene; and (3) the purpose for which the convention is to be held, and such convention shall be conducted as provided in subsection (e).

- (e) At the time and place fixed for holding the convention, the county chairperson who called the convention shall act as temporary chairperson and shall call the convention to order. One-third of the eligible members of the convention shall constitute a quorum for such election. In the event a quorum is not present at the time and place that such convention is called, the members present shall adjourn the convention to a day and time certain, which shall be not later than 14 days after adjournment of such convention, and provide for notification of the time and place of such adjourned convention to be given to the eligible members not present. The convention shall proceed to organize by electing a permanent chairperson and such other officers as necessary. After the convention is organized, it shall proceed to elect a person to be appointed by the governor to fill the vacancy. Such election shall be by secret ballot and the person elected shall be the one who shall receive the majority of all the votes cast. If no person receives a majority of all votes cast on any ballot, the balloting shall continue until some person receives a majority of all the votes cast. Each county chairperson and vice-chairperson of the party of the counties in such district shall be entitled to vote. Except as provided in subsection (f), no county chairperson or vice-chairperson shall be represented or shall vote by proxy. The convention may adopt such rules as necessary to govern its procedure in making nominations, voting, counting and canvassing votes and for the conduct of any business which may properly be brought before the convention, but such rules shall not be in conflict with the provisions of this section.
- (f) (1) A precinct committeeman or committeewoman who serves as county chairperson or vice-chairperson may vote by proxy at a convention called pursuant to this section whenever such precinct committeeman or committeewoman is unable to attend the convention and cast such precinct committeeman's or committeewoman's ballot.
- (2) A precinct committeeman or committeewoman may designate another precinct committeeman or committeewoman to cast such precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's ballot at such convention by proxy. Any proxy authorized by this subsection shall:
- (A) Designate the precinct committeeman or committeewoman who shall cast the precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's vote by proxy;
- (B) be signed by the precinct committeeman or precinct committeewoman authorizing the proxy; and
- (C) contain an acknowledgment of such precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's signature which complies with—K.S.A. 53-509\_section\_17, and amendments thereto.
- (g) After a person has been elected to be appointed to fill a vacancy in the office of member of the state board of education, the chairperson or vice-chairperson of the convention shall execute a certificate, under oath, stating that such person has been duly elected to be appointed to fill such vacancy and shall transmit such certificate to the

- governor. Thereupon, and not later than seven days after such certificate is received in the office of the governor, the governor, or in the governor's absence the lieutenant governor, shall fill such vacancy by appointing to the office of member of the state board of education the person so elected. In the event the governor or lieutenant governor fails to appoint any person as required by this subsection after receiving a lawfully executed certificate hereunder, such person shall be deemed to have been so appointed notwithstanding such failure. The person so appointed may qualify and enter upon the duties of office immediately after appointment.
- (h) A person shall be elected to be appointed to fill a vacancy in the office of member of the state board of education within 35 days after such vacancy occurs. If no person is so elected within the 35-day period, the governor shall fill such vacancy by appointment of an elector of the same political party as that of the board member vacating such position and who resides in the board member district corresponding to such board member position. The person so appointed may qualify and enter upon the duties of office immediately after appointment.
- Sec. 36. On and after January 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-3904 is hereby amended to read as follows: 25-3904. (a) When a district convention is provided by law to be held to elect a person to fill a vacancy in a party candidacy for a district office, the county chairperson designated in subsection (b) or (c), within 14 days of the receipt of the notice that the vacancy has occurred or will occur shall call and convene a convention of all committeemen and committeewomen of the political party from the precincts in such district. If such county chairperson is absent or for any reason is unable to call, or refuses to call such convention, then the corresponding county vice-chairperson shall call the convention and perform the other duties under this section required of such chairperson.
- (b) If the district lies within a single county, the county chairperson of such county shall call the convention by mailing a notice at least seven days before the date of the convention to the committeemen and committeewomen in such county who are entitled to vote at such convention pursuant to subsection (e).
- (c) If all or part of more than one county lies within the district, the county chairperson of the county in which the greatest number of qualified voters of the district reside shall call the convention by mailing a notice of such convention to each county chairperson of the party in each such county, at least 10 days before the date of the convention. Such convention shall be held at a location within the district selected by the chairperson calling the convention. Such county chairpersons shall, within three days after receipt of such notice, mail notice of such convention to the committeemen and committeewomen in their counties who are entitled to vote at such convention pursuant to subsection (e).
- (d) The notice of such convention shall state: (1) The place where the convention is to be held; (2) the time when the convention will convene; and (3) the purpose for which the convention is to be held.
- (e) At the time and place fixed for holding the convention, the county chairperson who called the convention shall act as temporary chairperson and shall call the convention to order. One-third of the eligible members of the convention shall constitute a quorum for such election. In the event a quorum is not present at the time and place that such convention is called, the members present shall adjourn the convention to a day and time certain, which shall not be later than six days after such

adjournment of such convention, and provide for notification of the time and place of such adjourned convention to be given to the eligible members not present. The convention shall organize by electing a permanent chairperson and such other officers as necessary. After the convention is organized, it shall elect a person to fill such vacancy in the party candidacy. Such election shall be by secret ballot and the person elected shall be the one who receives the majority of all the votes cast. If no person receives a majority of all votes cast on any ballot, the balloting shall continue until some person receives a majority of all the votes cast. Each committeeman and committeewoman of the party of the precincts in such district shall be entitled to vote. Except as provided in subsection (f), no precinct committeeman or committeewoman shall be represented or shall vote by proxy. The convention may adopt rules as necessary to govern its procedure in making nominations, voting, counting and canvassing votes and for the conduct of any business which may properly be brought before the convention, but such rules shall not be in conflict with the provisions of this section.

- (f) (1) A precinct committeeman or committeewoman may vote by proxy at a convention called pursuant to this section whenever such precinct committeeman or committeewoman is unable to attend the convention and cast such precinct committeeman's or committeewoman's ballot.
- (2) A precinct committeeman or committeewoman may designate another precinct committeeman or committeewoman to cast such precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's ballot at such convention by proxy. Any proxy authorized by this subsection shall:
- (A) Designate the precinct committeeman or committeewoman who shall cast the precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's vote by proxy;
- (B) be signed by the precinct committeeman or precinct committeewoman authorizing the proxy; and
- (C) contain an acknowledgment of such precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's signature which complies with <u>K.S.A. 53-509</u> section 17, and amendments thereto.
- (g) After a person has been elected to fill a vacancy in a party candidacy for a district office, the chairperson or vice-chairperson of the convention shall execute a certificate, under oath, stating that such person has been duly elected to fill such vacancy and that such person has agreed to accept the nomination. The person elected to fill such vacancy shall execute a notarized written statement stating that such person agrees to accept the nomination. The chairperson or vice-chairperson shall transmit such certificate to the secretary of state or appropriate county election officer, as the case may be, within 21 days of receipt of the notice that the vacancy has occurred or will occur.
- (h) For the purposes of this section, the word "shall" imposes a mandatory duty and no court may construe that word in any other way.
- Sec. 37. On and after January 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-3904a is hereby amended to read as follows: 25-3904a. (a) When a vacancy occurs in a party candidacy for the office of member of the state board of education, the county chairperson designated in subsection (b), (c) or (d), within 10 days of receipt of notice that the vacancy has occurred or will occur, shall call and convene a district convention for the purpose of electing a person to fill such vacancy. If such county chairperson is absent or

for any reason is unable to call or refuses to call such convention, then the county vicechairperson shall call the convention and perform the other duties required of such chairperson under this section.

- (b) If the board member district lies within a single county, the county chairperson of such county shall call a convention of all precinct committeemen and committeewomen of the party of the precincts in such district in the manner provided by K.S.A. 25-3904(b) and (d), and amendments thereto, and such convention shall be conducted in the manner provided in K.S.A. 25-3904(e), and amendments thereto.
- (c) If all or part of more than one and less than five counties lie within the board member district, the county chairperson of the county in which the greatest number of qualified voters of the district reside shall call a convention of all precinct committeemen and committeewomen of the party of the precincts in such district in the manner provided by K.S.A. 25-3904(c) and (d), and amendments thereto, and such convention shall be conducted as provided in K.S.A. 25-3904(e), and amendments thereto. Such convention shall be held at a location within the district selected by the chairperson calling the convention.
- (d) If all or part of five or more counties lie within the board member district, the county chairperson of the county in which the greatest number of qualified voters of the district reside shall call a convention of all county chairpersons and vice-chairpersons of the party of the counties in such district. Such convention shall be held at a location within the district selected by the chairperson calling the convention. Such county chairperson shall call the convention by mailing a notice to each such county chairperson and vice-chairperson at least seven days before the date of the convention. Such notice shall state: (1) The place where the convention is to be held; (2) the time when the convention will convene; and (3) the purpose for which the convention is to be held.
- (e) At the time and place fixed for holding the convention, the county chairperson who called the convention shall act as temporary chairperson and shall call the convention to order. One-third of the eligible members of the convention shall constitute a quorum for such election. In the event a quorum is not present at the time and place that such convention is called, the members present shall adjourn the convention to a day and time certain, which shall be not later than three days after such adjournment of such convention and provide for notification of the time and place of such adjourned convention to be given to the eligible members not present. The convention shall proceed to organize by electing a permanent chairperson and such other officers as necessary. After the convention is organized, it shall proceed to elect a person to fill the vacancy in the party candidacy. Such election shall be by secret ballot and the person elected shall be the one who shall receive the majority of all the votes cast. If no person receives a majority of all votes cast on any ballot, the balloting shall continue until some person receives a majority of all the votes cast. Each county chairperson and vice-chairperson of the party of the counties in such district shall be entitled to vote. Except as provided in subsection (f), no county chairperson or vicechairperson shall be represented or shall vote by proxy. The convention may adopt rules necessary to govern its procedure in making nominations, voting, counting and canvassing votes and for the conduct of any business which may properly be brought before the convention, but such rules shall not be in conflict with the provisions of this section.

- (f) (1) A precinct committeeman or committeewoman who serves as county chairperson or vice-chairperson may vote by proxy at a convention called pursuant to this section whenever such precinct committeeman or committeewoman is unable to attend the convention and cast such precinct committeeman's or committeewoman's ballot.
- (2) A precinct committeeman or committeewoman may designate another precinct committeeman or committeewoman to cast such precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's ballot at such convention by proxy. Any proxy authorized by this subsection shall:
- (A) Designate the precinct committeeman or committeewoman who shall cast the precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's vote by proxy;
- (B) be signed by the precinct committeeman or precinct committeewoman authorizing the proxy; and
- (C) contain an acknowledgment of such precinct committeeman's or precinct committeewoman's signature which complies with—K.S.A. 53-509\_section 17, and amendments thereto.
- (g) After a person has been elected to fill a vacancy in a party candidacy for the office of member of the state board of education, the chairperson or vice-chairperson of the convention shall execute a certificate, under oath, stating that such person has been duly elected to fill such vacancy and that such person has agreed to accept the nomination. The person elected to fill such vacancy shall execute a notarized written statement stating that such person agrees to accept the nomination. The chairperson or vice-chairperson shall transmit such certificate to the secretary of state, within 14 days of receipt of the notice that the vacancy has occurred or will occur.
- (h) For the purposes of this section, the word "shall" imposes a mandatory duty and no court may construe that word in any other way.";

On page 21, following line 14, by inserting:

- "Sec. 39. On and after January 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 58-652 is hereby amended to read as follows: 58-652. (a) The authority granted by a principal to an attorney in fact in a written power of attorney is not terminated in the event the principal becomes wholly or partially disabled or in the event of later uncertainty as to whether the principal is dead or alive if:
  - (1) The power of attorney is denominated a "durable power of attorney";
- (2) the power of attorney includes a provision that states in substance one of the following:
- (A) "This is a durable power of attorney and the authority of my attorney in fact shall not terminate if I become disabled or in the event of later uncertainty as to whether I am dead or alive"; or
- (B) "This is a durable power of attorney and the authority of my attorney in fact, when effective, shall not terminate or be void or voidable if I am or become disabled or in the event of later uncertainty as to whether I am dead or alive"; and
- (3) the power of attorney is signed by the principal, and dated and acknowledged in the manner prescribed by K.S.A. 53-501 et seq., and amendments thereto the revised uniform law on notarial acts. If the principal is physically unable to sign the power of attorney but otherwise competent and conscious, the power of attorney may be signed by an adult designee of the principal in the presence of the principal and at the specific direction of the principal expressed in the presence of a notary public. The designee

shall sign the principal's name to the power of attorney in the presence of a notary public, following which the document shall be acknowledged in the manner prescribed by K.S.A. 53-501 et seq., and amendments thereto the revised uniform law on notarial acts, to the same extent and effect as if physically signed by the principal.

- (b) All acts done by an attorney in fact pursuant to a durable power of attorney shall inure to the benefit of and bind the principal and the principal's successors in interest, notwithstanding any disability of the principal.
- (c) (1) A power of attorney does not have to be recorded to be valid and binding between the principal and attorney in fact or between the principal and third persons.
- (2) A power of attorney may be recorded in the same manner as a conveyance of land is recorded. A certified copy of a recorded power of attorney may be admitted into evidence.
- (3) If a power of attorney is recorded any revocation of that power of attorney must be recorded in the same manner for the revocation to be effective. If a power of attorney is not recorded it may be revoked by a recorded revocation or in any other appropriate manner.
- (4) If a power of attorney requires notice of revocation be given to named persons, those persons may continue to rely on the authority set forth in the power of attorney until such notice is received.
- (d) A person who is appointed an attorney in fact under a durable power of attorney has no duty to exercise the authority conferred in the power of attorney, unless the attorney in fact has agreed expressly in writing to act for the principal in such circumstances. An agreement to act on behalf of the principal is enforceable against the attorney in fact as a fiduciary without regard to whether there is any consideration to support a contractual obligation to do so. Acting for the principal in one or more transactions does not obligate an attorney in fact to act for the principal in subsequent transactions.
- (e) The grant of power or authority conferred by a power of attorney in which any principal shall vest any power or authority in an attorney in fact, if such writing expressly so provides, shall be effective only upon: (1) A specified future date; (2) the occurrence of a specified future event; or (3) the existence of a specified condition which may occur in the future. In the absence of actual knowledge to the contrary, any person to whom such writing is presented shall be entitled to rely on an affidavit, executed by the attorney in fact, setting forth that such event has occurred or condition exists.":

On page 22, in line 3, after "Supp." by inserting "25-3602, 25-3902, 25-3904, 25-3904,,"; also in line 3, after "49-512" by inserting ", 58-652";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, after "Supp." by inserting "25-3602, 25-3902, 25-3902a, 25-3904, 25-3904a,"; also in line 2, after "49-512" by inserting ", 58-652"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **HB 2541** be passed.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

## INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2728**, AN ACT concerning the Docking state office building; requiring the department of administration to raze the building and preserve the existing energy center of the Docking state office building, by Committee on Appropriations.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 2:00 p.m.

## AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

## INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

In accordance with subsection (b) of House Rule 1309, Rep. Parker moved that **HB 2148** be withdrawn from Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development and be placed on the calendar under the order of business General Orders.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Landwehr in the chair.

## **COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE**

On motion of Rep. Landwehr, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that **HB 2699**, **HB 2495**, **HB 2518**, **HB 2587**, **HB 2462**, **HB 2546** be passed.

HB 2526 be passed over and retain a place on the calendar.

HB 2619 continued from morning session:

Also, on motion of Rep. Xu to amend **HB 2619**, the motion was withdrawn and the bill be passed.

On motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **HB 2456**, Rep. Jennings requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment not germane; and the bill be passed.

Committee report to HB 2507 be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Stogsdill to amend **HB 2507**, the motion was withdrawn and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to HB 2463 be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

On motion of Rep. Pittman to amend **HB 2528**, the motion did not prevail and the bill be passed.

On motion of Rep. Rhiley to amend **HB 2438**, the motion did not prevail and the bill be passed.

Committee report to HB 2469 be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends HB 2506 be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2506," as follows:

"Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2506

By Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

"AN ACT concerning occupational regulation; relating to occupational licenses for certain applicants; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 48-3406 and repealing the existing section.";

And the substitute bill be passed.

(Sub HB 2506 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends HB 2689 be amended on page 2, in line 29, after the period by inserting "For tax year 2020 and all tax years thereafter,"; in line 41, after "(b)" by inserting "For tax year 2020 and all tax years thereafter,";

On page 3, in line 30, after "limited" by inserting ", for tax year 2020 and all tax years thereafter,"; in line 32, by striking all after "person"; in line 33, by striking all before "whether";

On page 4, following line 6, by inserting:

- "Sec. 3. K.S.A. 74-8136 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-8136. (a) Tax credits for qualified Kansas businesses are a limited resource of the state for which the secretary is designated as the administrator. The purpose of such tax credits is to facilitate the availability of equity investment in businesses in the early stages of commercial development and to assist in the creation and expansion of Kansas businesses-which that are job and wealth creating enterprises. To achieve this purpose and to optimize the use of the limited resources of the state, the secretary is authorized to issue tax credits to qualified investors in qualified Kansas businesses. Such tax credits shall be awarded to those qualified Kansas businesses which that, as determined by the secretary, are most likely to provide the greatest economic benefit to the state. The secretary may issue whole or partial tax credits based on an assessment of the qualified businesses. The secretary may consider numerous factors in such assessment, including, but not limited to, the quality and experience of the management team, the size of the estimated market opportunity, the risk from current or future competition, the ability to defend intellectual property, the quality and utility of the business model and the quality and reasonableness of financial projections for the business.
- (b) Each qualified Kansas business for which tax credits have been issued pursuant to this act shall report to the department on an annual basis, the following: (1) The name, address and taxpayer identification number of each angel investor who has made cash investment in the qualified securities of a qualified Kansas business and has received tax credits for this investment during the preceding year and all other preceding years; (2) the amounts of these cash investments by each angel investor and a description of the qualified securities issued in consideration of such cash investments;

- (3) the name, address and taxpayer identification number of each investor to which tax credits issued pursuant to this act have been transferred by the original angel investor; and (4) any additional information as the secretary may require pursuant to this act.
- (c) The secretary shall transmit annually to the governor, the standing committee on commerce of the senate and the standing committee on commerce, labor and economic development of the house of representatives a report, based upon information received from each qualified Kansas business for which tax credits have been issued during the preceding year, describing the following: (1) The manner in which the purpose, as described in this act, has been carried out; (2) the total cash investments made for the purchase of qualified securities of qualified Kansas businesses during the preceding year and cumulatively since the inception of this act; (3) an estimate of jobs created and jobs preserved by cash investments made in qualified securities of qualified Kansas businesses; and (4) an estimate of the multiplier effect on the Kansas economy of the cash investments made pursuant to this act.
- (d) The secretary shall provide the information specified in subsection (c) to the department of revenue on an annual basis. The secretary shall conduct an annual review of the activities undertaken pursuant to this act to ensure that tax credits issued pursuant to this act are issued in compliance with the provisions of this act or rules and regulations promulgated by the department with respect to this act.
- (e) Any violation of the reporting requirements set forth in this section shall be grounds for undesignation of a qualified Kansas business under this section.
- (f) If the secretary determines that a business is not in substantial compliance with the requirements of this act to maintain its designation, the secretary, by written notice, shall inform the officers of the qualified Kansas business and the business that such business will lose designation as a qualified Kansas business in 120 days from the date of mailing of the notice unless such business corrects the deficiencies and is once again in compliance with the requirements for designation.
- (g) At the end of the 120-day period, if the qualified Kansas business is still not in substantial compliance, the secretary shall send a notice of loss of designation to the business, the secretary of the department of revenue and to all known investors in the business. Loss of designation of a qualified Kansas business shall preclude the issuance of any additional tax credits with respect to this business and the secretary shall not approve the application of such business as a qualified Kansas business. Upon loss of the designation as a qualified Kansas business or if a bioscience business loses its designation as a qualified Kansas business under this act by moving its operations outside Kansas within 10 years after receiving financial assistance under this act or a qualified Kansas business that is not a bioscience business loses its designation as a qualified Kansas business under this act by moving its operations outside Kansas within 5 years after receiving financial assistance under this act, such business shall repay such financial assistance to the department, in an amount determined by the secretary. Each qualified Kansas business that loses such designation shall enter into a repayment agreement with the secretary specifying the terms of such repayment obligation.
- (h) Angel investors in a qualified Kansas business shall be entitled to keep all of the tax credits claimed under this act.
- (i) The secretary shall adopt rules and regulations in accordance with the rules and regulations filing act necessary to implement the provisions of K.S.A. 74-8131 through 74-8136, and amendments thereto.";

Also on page 4, in line 7, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 7, after "74-8133" by inserting "and 74-8136";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, by striking the first "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 3, after "74-8133" by inserting "and 74-8136"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Education** recommends **HB 2519** be amended on page 1, by striking all in lines 8 through 36;

By striking all on page 2;

On page 3, by striking all in lines 1 through 40; following line 40 by inserting:

"(b) On or before October 15, 2021, and each year thereafter, the state department of education shall ensure the distribution, including by electronic communication, to each student or each student's parents the degree prospectus information published by the state board of regents in accordance with K.S.A. 74-32,303, and amendments thereto, the Kansas training information program report published in accordance with K.S.A. 74-32,418, and amendments thereto, any other information relevant to students' understanding of potential earnings as determined by the department of labor and the potential earnings published by each branch of the armed services of the United States military.";

Also on page 3, in line 41, before "The" by inserting "To the extent permitted by law,";

On page 4, in line 1, by striking "compile the information to be included in the report" and inserting "implement the provisions of this section"; by striking all in lines 2 through 14; following line 14, by and inserting:

"(d) As used in this section, the term "student" means any person enrolled in any of the grades seven through 12 in a school district.";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Insurance** recommends **HB 2598** be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2598," as follows:

"Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2598

By Committee on Insurance

"AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to the oversight and regulation of pharmacy benefits managers; the pharmacy benefits managers licensure act; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-3821, 40-3822, 40-3823, 40-3824, 40-3825, 40-3826, 40-3827, 40-3829 and 40-3830 and repealing the existing sections.";

And the substitute bill be passed.

(Sub HB 2598 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on K-12 Education Budget recommends HB 2552 be amended on page 1, in line 23, by striking "an accredited" and inserting "a"; in line 29, after "(3)" by inserting "is accredited by the state board of education or a national or regional accrediting agency that is recognized by the state board of education for the purpose of satisfying the teaching performance assessment for professional licensure;

(4) ";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

On page 3, in line 25, by striking "31" and inserting "1"; in line 27, by striking "August 1" and inserting "July 15";

On page 5, in line 11, after "reports" by inserting "and the state board of education"; also in line 11, by striking "Such certified amount shall"; in line 12, by striking all before the period and inserting "Upon receipt of such certification, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer such certified amount to the state foundation aid account of the state general fund. The state board of education shall distribute such certified amount to the resident school district of such student in the immediately succeeding school year"; in line 32, by striking ". A school district also may recommend" and inserting ", or such other"; in line 37, after "(a)" by inserting "On or before July 1 of"; in line 41, after the period by inserting "On or before July 15 of each year, the treasurer shall notify each resident school district as to the names of the students residing in such school district who are participating in the Kansas reading readiness program in the current school year."; and the bill be passed as amended.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2729**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to exemptions; storytime village, inc.; amending K.S.A. 79-3606 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 9:00 a.m., Wednesday, February 26, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## THIRTY-FIRST DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Wednesday, February 26, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 125 members present.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Almighty God
thank You for this day —
Ash Wednesday and the beginning of
a period of repentance, fasting,
reflection and ultimately celebration.
Be with our leaders today as they continue to discuss
and decide on several different resolutions or bills.
As they work together in a spirit of bipartisanship,
enable each one to differentiate
strength from power;
growth from greed;
leadership from dominance;
and real greatness from the trappings of grandeur.
Continue to give them wisdom and clarity.
In Christ's Name I pray, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Ballard.

## INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Concannon are spread upon the Journal:

Today I want to introduce you to a medical miracle. This is Chad Lorenz, along with his wife Laura and daughter, Autumn. Chad was born with a congenital heart defect, bicuspid aortic stenosis, which was diagnosed when he was in junior high. He was cleared to participate in cross country in high school at which time he fell in love with running. After high school, college, getting married, a baby, and several moves, he started competitive running, biking, and adventure races. His heart checked out regularly in Dept. of Transportation physicals required for his job. That all changed in the summer of 2015 when his heart valve declined. He was referred to a cardiologist who was astonished to learn the speed and distance Chad was running. After evaluation

at KU Hospital, at the age of 33, he underwent open heart surgery to replace his aortic valve with a mechanical valve, along with correcting an aortic aneurysm.

Chad recovered from surgery and started running again. He was monitored closely by his local physician and his cardiologist, and he was doing phenomenally. That all changed on March 5, 2017, as he was out for his normal morning long run, he suddenly collapsed into the ditch. A passing car, witnessing the collapse, stopped to find him unresponsive — without a heartbeat and he wasn't breathing. They started CPR and when the ambulance arrived it took 3 shocks to restart his heart. He was taken to the local hospital and then a life-flight to KU Hospital. He had suffered a widow-maker heart attack and full on cardiac arrest. Following a stent procedure he began the tough work of recovery. Six days later, Chad and his family were on the way back home.

A few weeks later, Chad and his family got to meet the complete strangers who happened to be driving by and became a major part of Chad's story. They are like family today.

To everyone's amazement, Chad started running again during his cardiac rehab. A little over a year later he competed in the 2018 Sunflower State Games where he competed in the 800m and 1500m, winning 1st in both for his age group. A short time later he was named the Sunflower State Games Athlete of the Year. He was later honored by the national organization as the National Congress of State Games Adult Male Athlete of the Year. Chad continues to run today, competing in various events throughout the state, along with coaching his daughter and other youth in track and field.

This shortened version of Chad's life story is an inspiration to us all. Please join me in congratulating Chad, Laura and Autumn for winning at life. We wish you much happiness with your beautiful beating heart.

Rep. Concannon presented her guests with a framed House certificate in recognition of their accomplishments.

## INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2730**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to exemptions; registered charitable organizations; amending K.S.A. 79-3606 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: **HB 2728**. Taxation: **HB 2729**.

## INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Williams, HR 6037, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

By Representative Williams

**HR 6037**—A RESOLUTION recognizing the week of February 24, 2020, as National Public Schools Week.

WHEREAS, National Public Schools Week honors the 50.8 million students, 3.2 million teachers and hundreds of thousands of specialists, administrators and support staff working in public schools today; and

WHEREAS, Nine out of ten American children attend public schools. Public schools must provide an environment where all students can succeed in their earliest years, regardless of their background; and

WHEREAS, Great public schools are necessary to ensure that students have inviting classrooms, school libraries with up-to-date resources and well-prepared educators. Educators include teachers, paraprofessionals and principals who provide a well-rounded curriculum and foster a joy for learning in their students; and

WHEREAS, The nation's public schools should maintain class sizes that allow students to have one-on-one attention and access to support services such as healthcare, nutrition and after-school programs; and

WHEREAS, Local, state and federal lawmakers should prioritize support for strengthening the nation's public schools and empower local education leaders to manage and lead school districts in partnership with educators, parents and other local education stakeholders and learning communities; and

WHEREAS, Every child has the right to receive an education that helps them reach their full potential and attend schools that offer a high-quality educational experience; and

WHEREAS, Students, teachers and professionals continue to make public schools a vital part of the nation's success. Nationwide, parents and communities are working hard every day to improve educational outcomes for public school students: Now, therefore.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That the House of Representatives recognizes the week of February 24, 2020, as National Public Schools Week; and

Be it further resolved: That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send an enrolled copy of this resolution to Representative Williams.

## POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Williams are spread upon the Journal:

I will begin by inviting any of our members who have served in public schools as teachers, counselors, administrators, or other support services, to join me at the well.

In honor of National Public Schools Week, we are happy to recognize our public schools and their teachers and staff that make a positive impact on so many of our student's lives.

In Kansas, we have 286 school districts, 1300 schools or attendance centers, 475,000 students, over 26,000 teachers, and approximately 43,000 employees. For each life that is represented – from the teacher that stays late creating inspiring lesson plans to support staff providing much-needed hugs, high-fives, and kind words – we thank you. Your passion for kids and your profession is to be commended and honored today and every day.

#### MOTIONS OFFERED ON A PREVIOUS DAY

The motion of Rep. Parker, in accordance with subsection (b) of House Rule 1309, that **HB 2148** be withdrawn from Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development, and placed on the calendar under the order of business General Orders, was considered.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 44; Nays 81; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Collins, Cox, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Toplikar, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Concannon, Corbet, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The motion did not prevail and the bill remains in committee.

## FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

**HB 2428**, AN ACT concerning the board of technical professions; relating to license fees; promulgation of rules and regulations; amending K.S.A. 74-7009 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 120; Nays 5; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu.

Nays: Carmichael, Helgerson, Pittman, Ward, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2438**, AN ACT concerning the state child death review board; relating to confidentiality of records; exceptions; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22a-243 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Navs: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2452**, AN ACT concerning retirement and pensions; relating to the Kansas police and firemen's retirement system; providing certain spousal and children's benefits for death resulting from service-connected disability; amending K.S.A. 74-4960a and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None. Absent or not voting: None. The bill passed.

**HB 2456**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to definitions in the Kansas criminal code; possession; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5111 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 124; Nays 1; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Carmichael.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2462**, AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to the Kansas department of agriculture division of conservation; amending K.S.A. 2-1916, 49-605, 49-611, 49-613, 49-618, 49-620, 49-623, 82a-1602, 82a-1603, 82a-1607 and 82a-1702 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-1903, 2-1904, 2-1907, 2-1907c, 2-1908, 2-1915, 2-1930, 2-1931, 2-1933, 49-603, 49-606 and 49-621 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 49-619, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar,

Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None. Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2463**, AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to pesticides; the licensure of persons applying pesticides; the permitting of persons utilizing chemigation; amending K.S.A. 2-2448, 2-2467a and 2-3310 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-2440, 2-2449 and 2-2450 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Navs: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None. The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2464**, AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to eggs; repacking requirements for retailers; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-2510 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 121; Nays 4; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton,

Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Carmichael, Hodge, Rhiley, Ward.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2469**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to terminal medical release; criteria for release; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-3729 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 120; Nays 5; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Curtis, Frownfelter, Mason, Seiwert, Thimesch.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2470**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to certified drug abuse treatment programs; supervision and jurisdiction; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6610 and 21-6824 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman,

Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None. Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2479**, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to the corporate governance annual disclosure report; pertaining to filing procedures; required contents; codifying the national association of insurance commissioners corporate governance model regulation into statute; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-2,203 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Navs: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2480**, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to the long-term care insurance act; updating the definition of long-term care insurance; amending K.S.A. 40-2227 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason,

Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2495**, AN ACT concerning the crime victims compensation board; relating to applications for compensation; mental health counseling; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 74-7305 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Navs: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2496**, AN ACT concerning drivers' licenses; relating to replacement drivers' licenses; court services and community corrections agencies; issuance of identification certificate; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-246 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings,

Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None. Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2503**, AN ACT concerning retirement and pensions; relating to the Kansas public employees retirement system; eliminating certain level-dollar employer contribution payments; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020; authorizing certain transfers from the state general fund to the Kansas public employees retirement fund; amending K.S.A. 74-4920 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2507**, AN ACT concerning high school work-based learning programs; liability for students and businesses; amending K.S.A. 72-18,101 and 72-18,102 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 97; Nays 27; Present but not voting: 1; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer,

Highberger, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Woodard.

Nays: Alcala, Barker, Burroughs, Carmichael, Clayton, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highland, Hodge, Houser, Kuether, Lusk, Neighbor, Pittman, Ruiz, L., Sawyer, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: Ousley.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2516**, AN ACT establishing the first-time home buyer savings account act; relating to financial institutions; income taxation, providing for addition and subtraction modifications for contributions to first-time home buyer savings accounts; amending K.S.A. 79-32,117 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 123; Nays 2; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Helgerson, Rhiley.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2518**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to crimes against persons; domestic battery; prior convictions; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5414 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox,

Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2528**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to antique vehicles; providing that all vehicles that are more than 35 years old satisfy the definition of antique for registration purposes; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-166 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 124; Nays 1; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Parker.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2546**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to sex offenses; creating the crime of sexual extortion; offender registration; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-4902 and 22-4906 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson,

Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2547**, AN ACT concerning motor vehicles; relating to driving privileges; revocation, suspension or restrictions; fines; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-262 and 8-2110 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-2110b, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB** 2554, AN ACT enacting the uniform fiduciary income and principal act; repealing the uniform principal and income act (1997); amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 58a-103 and repealing the existing section; also repealing K.S.A. 58-9-101, 58-9-102, 58-9-103, 58-9-104, 58-9-201, 58-9-202, 58-9-301, 58-9-302, 58-9-303, 58-9-401, 58-9-402, 58-9-403, 58-9-404, 58-9-405, 58-9-406, 58-9-407, 58-9-408, 58-9-410, 58-9-409, 58-

411, 58-9-412, 58-9-413, 58-9-414, 58-9-415, 58-9-501, 58-9-502, 58-9-503, 58-9-504, 58-9-506, 58-9-601, 58-9-602 and 58-9-603 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 58-9-105, 58-9-106, 58-9-409, 58-9-505 and 58-9-606, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2587**, AN ACT concerning the probate code; relating to adoption; venue; agency adoptions; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 59-2126 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 124; Nays 1; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Helmer.

Present but not voting: None. Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2619**, AN ACT concerning retirement and pensions; relating to the Kansas public employees retirement system; adjusting the frequency of the actuarial experience study; amending K.S.A. 74-4908 and 74-4908a and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 118; Nays 7; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Awerkamp, Burris, Eplee, Helgerson, Hodge, Parker, Ward.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2646**, AN ACT concerning the attorney general; requiring coordination of training on missing and murdered indigenous people, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2699**, AN ACT concerning children and minors; relating to the revised Kansas code for care of children; children in state custody; court services officer assistance; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 38-2255 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 105; Nays 20; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: Alcala, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hodge, Houser, Kuether, Lusk, Neighbor, Parker, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Barker in the chair.

## COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. Barker, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that HB 2487, HB 2509, HB 2708 be passed.

Committee report recommending a substitute bill to **HB 2506** be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Benson, **Sub HB 2506** be amended on page 1, in line 18, after "section" by inserting "including proof that the applicant has established or intends to establish residency"; in line 24, after "(3)" by inserting ""Established or intends to establish residency" means the applicant has provided the licensing body with:

- (A) Military orders to a post in this state;
- (B) an executed mortgage or documentary proof of the closing of a real estate purchase agreement for the applicant's residence in this state; or
- (C) an executed lease for the rental of a residence or apartment for the applicant in this state.

(4)":

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly

Also, on further motion of Rep. Benson to amend HB 2506, the motion was withdrawn.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, rose and reported progress.

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **HB 2607** be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2607," as follows:

"Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2607

By Committee on Taxation

"AN ACT concerning property taxation; relating to payment of delinquent or nondelinquent taxes; providing for county treasurers to establish a payment plan; amending K.S.A. 79-2024 and repealing the existing section.";

And the substitute bill be passed.

(Sub HB 2607 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 1:30 p.m.

## AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

## INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2731**, AN ACT establishing the wartime veteran and first responder survivors' grant program and fund; relating to the state board of regents; Kansas commission on veterans affairs office, by Committee on Appropriations.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Patton in the chair.

## COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. Patton, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that HB 2510, HB 2695, HB 2583 be passed.

Discussion on Sub HB 2506 continued from morning session.

Sub HB 2506 be passed as amended.

On motion of Rep. Finney to amend **HB 2585** on page 2, following line 42, by inserting:

- "Sec. 2. K.S.A. 66-1,177 is hereby amended to read as follows: 66-1,177. As used in this act, the following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them herein:
- (a) "Electric utility" means every public utility, as defined by K.S.A. 66-104, which and amendments thereto, that owns, controls, operates or manages any equipment, plant or generating machinery for the production, transmission, delivery or furnishing, of electricity or electric power;
- (b) "electric transmission lines" means any line or extension of a line-which that is at least five-(5) miles in length and which that is used for the bulk transfer of two hundred

thirty (230) 230 kilovolts or more of electricity;

- (c) "urban electric transmission line" means any line or extension of a line that is located within the corporate limits of a city and that is at least ¼ mile in length and designed for the transfer of 69 kilovolts or more of electricity; and
- (d) "commission" means the state corporation commission.
- Sec. 3. K.S.A. 66-1,178 is hereby amended to read as follows: 66-1,178. (a) No-An electric utility-may begin shall acquire a siting permit from the commission prior to beginning site preparation for or construction of an electric transmission line, or exercise or an urban electric transmission line or exercising the right of eminent domain to acquire any interest in land in connection with the site preparation for—a the construction of any such—line without first acquiring a siting permit from the commission lines.
- (2) Whenever any electric utility desires to obtain—such a siting permit, the utility shall file an application with the commission setting forth therein that the utility proposes to construct an electric transmission line or an urban electric transmission line and specifying:
- (1)(A) The proposed location thereof;
- (2)(B) the names and addresses of the landowners of record whose land or interest therein is proposed to be acquired in connection with the construction of or is located within 660 feet of the center line of the easement where-the such line is proposed to be located; and
- (3)(C) such other information as may be required by the commission.
- (b) Upon the filing of an application pursuant to subsection (a), the commission shall fix a time for a public hearing on such application, which shall be not more than 90 days after the date the application was filed, to determine the necessity for and the reasonableness of the location of the proposed electric transmission line or urban electric transmission line. The commission shall fix the place for hearing, which shall be in one of the counties through which the electric transmission line or in the city through which the urban electric transmission line is proposed to traverse.
- (c) The commission may conduct an evidentiary hearing on an application filed pursuant to this section at such time and place as the commission deems appropriate.
- (d) The commission shall issue a final order on the application within 120 days after the date the application was filed.
- Sec. 4. K.S.A. 66-1,179 is hereby amended to read as follows: 66-1,179. The commission shall publish notice of the time, place and subject matter of the public hearing provided for by K.S.A. 66-1,178, and amendments thereto, in newspapers having general circulation in every county through which the electric transmission line or in the city through which the urban electric transmission line is proposed to traverse once each week for two consecutive weeks, the last publication to be not less than five days before such hearing date. The commission may order the applicant to publish such notice and submit an affidavit of publication, evidencing the dates of publication and the newspapers in which the notice appeared, to the commission prior to the hearing. Written notice by certified mail of such hearing and a copy of the application shall be served not less than 20 days prior to the hearing date upon all landowners described in subsection (a)(2) of K.S.A. 66-1,178, and amendments thereto, as shown by the application.
- Sec. 5. K.S.A. 66-1,180 is hereby amended to read as follows: 66-1,180. All hearings

conducted pursuant to this act shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Kansas administrative procedure act. All such hearings shall be completed within 30 days after the commencement thereof, unless the electric utility requests a continuance of any such hearing. All costs of any hearing pursuant to this act shall be taxed against the electric utility. The commission shall make its decision with respect to the necessity for and the reasonableness of the location of the proposed electric transmission line or urban electric transmission line, taking into consideration: (1) The benefit to both consumers in Kansas and consumers outside the state—and; (2) the economic development benefits in Kansas; and (3) the local aesthetics, location, environment and population density. The commission shall issue or withhold the permit applied for and may condition such permit as the commission may deem just and reasonable and as may, in its judgment, best protect the rights of all interested parties and those of the general public.

Sec. 6. K.S.A. 66-1,183 is hereby amended to read as follows: 66-1,183. It shall be the duty of every electric utility which constructs an electric transmission line or an urban electric transmission line to restore the land upon which such line is constructed to its condition which existed prior to such construction.";

Also on page 2, in line 43, by striking "is" and inserting ", 66-1,177, 66-1,178, 66-1,179, 66-1,180 and 66-1,183 are";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, after the semicolon by inserting "relating to electric transmission lines; definitions; siting permits;"; in line 4, after "66-104" by inserting ", 66-1,177, 66-1,178, 66-1,179, 66-1,180 and 66-1,183"; also in line 4, by striking "section" and inserting "sections"

Rep. Cox requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment was germane, and **HB 2585** be passed as amended.

Committee report to **HB 2713** be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to **HB 2575** be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

Roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **HB 2702**, on page 1, following line 24, by inserting:

- "Sec. 2. K.S.A. 79-32,111c is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-32,111c. (a) There shall be allowed as a credit against the tax liability of a resident individual imposed under the Kansas income tax act an amount equal to 12.5% 25% for tax year 2018 2020; an amount equal to 18.75% 37.5% for tax year 2019 2021; and an amount equal to 25% 50% for tax year 2020 2022, and all tax years thereafter, of the amount of the credit allowed against such taxpayer's federal income tax liability pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 21 for the taxable year in which such credit was claimed against the taxpayer's federal income tax liability.
- (b) The credit allowed by subsection (a) shall not exceed the amount of the tax imposed by K.S.A. 79-32,110, and amendments thereto, reduced by the sum of any other credits allowable pursuant to law.
- (c) No credit provided under this section shall be allowed to any individual who fails to provide a valid social security number issued by the social security administration, to such individual, the individual's spouse and every dependent of the individual.":

On page 5, in line 28, after "74-50,133" by inserting ", 79-32,111c"; And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, after the second semicolon by inserting "household and dependent care expenses credit;"; in line 4, after "50,133" by inserting ", 79-32,111c"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 44; Nays 80; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 1.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Esau, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Toplikar, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Johnson.

The motion did not prevail.

Also, roll call was demanded on further motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **HB 2702**, on page 5, following line 27, by inserting:

"New Sec. 3. (a) As used in the section:

- (1) "Kansas employees" means persons who are employed in Kansas by the taxpayer and who perform duties for the taxpayer. "Kansas employees" does not include independent contractors or any person to the extent such person's compensation is based on commission.
- (2) "Salaries" means gross compensation paid to Kansas employees as reported to the state of Kansas for income tax purposes for the calendar year for which a tax on income is imposed under the provisions of the Kansas income tax act, but only to the extent compensation is paid for business operations performed in Kansas for a business subject to the Kansas income tax. "Salaries" does not include compensation based on commissions.
- (b) (1) For all taxable years commencing after December 31, 2019, a credit shall be allowed against the income, privilege or premium tax liability imposed upon a taxpayer pursuant to the Kansas income tax act, the privilege tax imposed upon any national banking association, state bank, trust company or savings and loan association pursuant to article 11 of chapter 79 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, or the premiums tax and privilege fees imposed upon an insurance company pursuant to K.S.A. 40-252, and amendments thereto, in an amount equal to 20% of the increase of total salaries paid to Kansas employees from the next preceding year. In any one taxable year, the amount of such credit allowable for deduction from the taxpayer's tax liability shall not exceed \$4,000.
- (c) Any person, hereinafter designated the assignor, may sell, assign, convey or otherwise transfer tax credits allowed and earned pursuant to subsection (a). The taxpayer acquiring credits, hereinafter designated the assignee, may use the amount of

the acquired credits to offset up to 100% of its income, privilege or premiums tax liability for the taxable year. The assignor shall enter into a written agreement with the assignee establishing the terms and conditions of the agreement and shall perfect such transfer by notifying the director of taxation within 90 calendar days following the effective date of the transfer and shall provide any information as may be required by the director to administer and carry out the provisions of this section. The amount received by the assignor of such tax credit shall be taxable as income of the assignor, and the excess of the value of such credit over the amount paid by the assignee for such credit shall be taxable as income of the assignee.

- (d) The computation of salaries shall be made on forms supplied by the secretary of revenue.
- (e) The secretary of revenue may adopt rules and regulations necessary to administer the provisions of this section.";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, after the second semicolon by inserting "creating the salary increases to Kansas employees tax credit;"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 40; Nays 80; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 5.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Cox, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Ballard, Dove, Helgerson, Johnson, Sutton.

The motion did not prevail and HB 2702 be passed.

Committee report to **HB 2618** be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to HB 2540 be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Erickson, **HB 2540** be amended on page 4, following line 39, by inserting:

- "Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5173 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-5173. The legislative post audit committee shall direct the legislative division of post audit to conduct the following performance audits in the fiscal year specified:
- (a) A performance audit of transportation services funding. The audit should include a comparison of the amount of transportation services funding school districts receive to the cost of providing transportation services. This performance audit shall be conducted during fiscal year 2018, and the final audit report shall be submitted to the legislature on

or before January 15, 2018.

- (b) A performance audit of at-risk education funding. The audit should evaluate the method of counting students for at-risk education funding, the level of the at-risk student weighting and high-density at-risk student weighting under the act and how school districts are expending moneys provided for at-risk education. This performance audit shall be conducted during fiscal year 2020, and the final audit report shall be submitted to the legislature on or before January 15, 2020.
- (c) A performance audit of bilingual education funding. The audit should evaluate the method of counting students for bilingual education funding, the level of the bilingual weighting under the act and how school districts are expending moneys provided for bilingual education. This performance audit shall be conducted during fiscal year 2021, and the final audit report shall be submitted to the legislature on or before January 15, 2021.
- (d) A study of statewide virtual school programs administered in other states. The study shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
- (1) The aggregate cost incurred by each state administering a virtual school program, and the cost incurred by individual school districts or schools within each state;
- (2) the resources necessary for the implementation of each virtual school program, including, but not limited to, personnel, equipment, software and facility usage;
- (3) the scope of each virtual school program; and
- (4) the effectiveness of each virtual school program with respect to student performance and outcomes.

The study shall be conducted during fiscal year 2023, and the final study report shall be submitted to the legislature on or before January 15, 2023.

- (e) A performance audit of the unencumbered cash balances held in all funds by each school district. The audit should evaluate the annual accumulations of unencumbered cash balances for the preceding 10 years, the annual expenditures of such moneys and how school districts are expending such moneys. This performance audit shall be conducted no later than fiscal year 2021, and the final audit report shall be submitted to the legislature on or before January 15, 2021.
- (f) (1) A performance audit to provide a reasonable estimate of the cost of providing educational opportunities for every public school student in Kansas to achieve the performance outcome standards adopted by the state board of education. This performance audit shall be conducted during fiscal year 2024, and the final report submitted to the legislature on or before January 15, 2024.
- (2) The performance audit required under this subsection shall:
- (A) Include reasonable estimates of the costs of providing specialized education services as required by law, including, but not limited to, bilingual education and at-risk programs; and
- (B) account for other factors which may contribute to variations in costs incurred by school districts, including, but not limited to, total district enrollment and geographic location within the state.
- (3) In conducting the performance audit required under this subsection:
- (A) Any examination of historical data and expenditures shall correct any recognized inadequacy of such data or expenditure through a statistically valid method of extrapolation; and
- (B) subject to the limitations of the division of legislative post audit budget and

appropriations therefor, the legislative post auditor may enter into contracts with consultants as the post auditor deems necessary.

- (g) A performance audit to provide a reasonable estimate of the costs of providing special education and related services, including, but not limited to, other factors which may contribute to variations in costs incurred by school districts. This performance audit shall be conducted during fiscal year 2019, and the final audit report shall be submitted to the legislature on or before January 15, 2019.
- (h) A performance audit of at-risk education expenditures. The audit should evaluate how school districts are expending moneys provided for at-risk education, whether those expenditures comply with statutory provisions and whether the state board of education and the department of education are acting in accordance with statutory provisions related to at-risk expenditures and programs. This audit should also evaluate the trends in the academic outcomes of students receiving at-risk education program services. This performance audit shall be conducted during calendar year 2022, and the final audit report shall be submitted to the legislature on or before January 15, 2023.";

Also on page 4, in line 40, after "72-5153" by inserting "and 72-5173";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 4, after "72-5153" by inserting "and 72-5173"

Also, roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Winn to amend **HB 2540**, on page 3, in line 8, by striking "shall only" and inserting "may"; in line 33, by striking all after the period; by striking all in lines 34 through 38; in line 39, by striking all before "The"; also in line 39, by striking "such";

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking "requiring certain" and inserting "specifying"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 44; Nays 80; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 1.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Carmichael, Clayton, Cox, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Karleskint, Kessinger, Kuether, Lusk, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Kelly, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Carlin.

The motion did not prevail and the bill be passed as amended.

### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, pursuant to House Rule 2311, HB 2487, HB 2509, HB 2708, HB 2506, HB 2585, HB 2510, HB 2713, HB 2575, HB 2702, HB 2618, HB 2695, HB 2583, HB 2540 were advanced to Final Action on Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

#### FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

**HB 2487**, AN ACT concerning education; relating to exceptional children and references to emotional disability; amending K.S.A. 72-3404 and 75-5399 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 118; Nays 7; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bishop, Blex, Burroughs, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Bergquist, Burris, Capps, Garber, Helmer, Houser, Rhiley.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

## EXPLANATION OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: I vote NO on **HB 2487.** I do not agree with changing Emotional Disturbance to Emotional Disability. Both of these words imply a permanent disability. I know this is not true. These students can improve through therapy, behavior modification and maturity. I think this should be changed to Emotional Challenged which implies a future for the student. In addition, this will have a financial impact with every paper form and software program in Kansas Special Education and Mental Health having to be changed. — BILL RHILEY

**HB 2509**, AN ACT concerning cities; dealing with the vacation of certain blocks in the original town plat in the city of Americus, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 122; Nays 3; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis,

Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Carmichael, Hodge, Winn.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2708**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to diversion agreements; creating a certified drug abuse treatment program for people on diversion; supervision by court services or community corrections; amending K.S.A. 22-2907, 75-5291 and 75-52,144 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-2909 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2506**, AN ACT concerning occupational regulation; relating to occupational licenses for certain applicants; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 48-3406 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 123; Nays 2; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson,

Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Carmichael, Highberger. Present but not voting: None. Absent or not voting: None. The substitute bill passed, as amended.

## EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: I vote No on **Sub HB 2506.** I appreciate all the hard work that went into this bill. I could support this bill if it just improved procedures and made the current law more effective for military service members and their spouses. However, it also implements the agenda of a group that is ideologically opposed to occupational licensure and was voted out by a packed committee, so I cannot. – "Boog" Highberger

Mr. Speaker: I vote "No" on **Sub HB 2506**. We all agree family members of our armed forces should be permitted to practice their professions in Kansas without delay. To that end, we passed legislation providing for expedited licensing of military dependents. Proponents of this bill believe the law is not being followed. If so, the answer is not another law, but enforcement of the existing law. Waving careful investigation of the qualifications of other professionals claiming an intention to move to Kansas endangers the public health and welfare. I therefore vote no on **Sub HB 2506** – John Carmichael.

**HB** 2585, AN ACT concerning electric public utilities; relating to the state corporation commission; exempting retail sales of electricity through electric vehicle charging stations from commission jurisdiction; relating to electric transmission lines; definitions; siting permits; amending K.S.A. 66-104, 66-1,177, 66-1,178, 66-1,179, 66-1,180 and 66-1,183 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 123; Nays 2; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson,

Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Highland, Rhiley.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2510**, AN ACT concerning municipalities; regarding dissolution of special districts and assumption of responsibilities by cities, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 122; Nays 3; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Carmichael, Hodge, Rhiley.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2713**, AN ACT enacting the revised uniform law on notarial acts; amending K.S.A. 16-1611, 58-2209 and 58-2211 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-3602, 25-3902, 25-3902a, 25-3904a, 49-512, 58-652 and 58-4403 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 53-101, 53-102, 53-103, 53-104, 53-105, 53-105a, 53-106, 53-107, 53-109, 53-113, 53-114, 53-115, 53-116, 53-117, 53-118, 53-119, 53-120, 53-121, 53-501, 53-502, 53-503, 53-504, 53-505, 53-506, 53-507, 53-508, 53-509, 53-510 and 53-511, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 122; Nays 3; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson,

Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Rhiley, Waggoner, Ward. Present but not voting: None. Absent or not voting: None. The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2575**, AN ACT concerning public health; relating to the Kansas drycleaner environmental response act; the payment of certain costs of remediation of pollution from drycleaning activities; deductible amount; penalties for violations; amending K.S.A. 65-34,142, 65-34,147, 65-34,148, 65-34,149, 65-34,150, 65-34,151 and 65-34,154 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 95; Nays 29; Present but not voting: 1; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bishop, Carlin, Carlson, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Probst, Proehl, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu.

Nays: Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Corbet, Delperdang, Erickson, Garber, Hodge, Hoffman, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Landwehr, Mason, Owens, Pittman, Rahjes, Rhiley, Samsel, Sutton, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Yeager.

Present but not voting: French.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2702**, AN ACT concerning economic development; relating to the high performance incentive fund; workforce training program participation requirements; workforce training tax credit; amending K.S.A. 74-50,133 and 79-32,160a and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson,

Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2618**, AN ACT concerning broadband deployment; relating to the department of commerce, office of broadband deployment; establishing the state broadband deployment grant program, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 120; Nays 5; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Awerkamp, Burroughs, Helgerson, Hodge, Pittman.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2695**, AN ACT concerning law enforcement; relating to the commission on peace officers' standards and training; Kansas law enforcement training act; definitions; lapsing certification; amending K.S.A. 74-5602 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 125; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson,

Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2583**, AN ACT concerning cities; relating to the vacation of territory or easements; amending K.S.A. 12-504 and 12-505 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 124; Nays 1; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Carmichael.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed.

**HB 2540**, AN ACT concerning school districts; relating to the Kansas school equity and enhancement act; requiring certain expenditures from school district at-risk education funds; amending K.S.A. 72-5151 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5153 and 72-5173 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 111; Nays 14; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 0.

Yeas: Alcala, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Ward, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu.

Nays: Amyx, Ballard, Burroughs, Carmichael, Garber, Gartner, Highberger, Holscher, Kuether, Moore, Rhiley, Victors, Warfield, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: None.

The bill passed, as amended.

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Insurance** recommends **HB 2558** be passed.

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Your Committee on Calendar and Printing recommends on requests for resolutions and certificates that

**Request No. 48**, by Representative John Acala, commending, Officer Lamont Jackson, Capitol Police for his dedicated service in Law Enforcement and commitment to connecting with the community through song and music.

**Request No. 49**, by Representative Ponka-We Victors, honoring, Juan Victors, on his 70<sup>th</sup> Birthday and for being a valuable community member.

**Request No. 50**, by Representative Ponka-We Victors, commending, Ken E. Squires, for his dedication and commitment to our community and for donating backpacks to the back to school supplies drive.

**Request No. 51**, by Representative Delperdang, commending, Michael O'Brian, and honoring United States Service Members who were exposed and are victims to Agent Orange during and after the Vietnam War, under House Resolution – 6036.

**Request No. 52**, by Representative Holscher, congratulating, Blue Valley Northwest High School, for their outstanding work in the area of promoting civic competence and responsibility.

be approved and the Chief Clerk of the House be directed to order the printing of said certificates and order drafting of said resolutions.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the committee report was adopted.

### CHANGE OF REFERENCE

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the withdrawal of **HB 2673** from Committee on Appropriations and referral to Committee on Judiciary.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2295** from Committee on Appropriations and referral to Committee on Health and Human Services.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2187**, **HB 2229** from Committee on Children and Seniors and referral to Committee on Appropriations.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2416**, **HB 2529**, **HB 2642**, **HB 2701** from Committee on Commerce Labor and Economic Development and referral to Committee on Appropriations.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2606** from the Committee on Elections and referral to Committee on Appropriations.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2573** from Committee on Education and referral to Committee on Appropriation

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2520** the Committee on Federal and State Affairs and referral to Committee on Appropriations.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2719** the Committee on Federal and State Affairs and referral to Committee on Judiciary.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2570**, **HB 2603**, **HB 2630**, **HB 2631**, **HB 2680** from the Committee on Health and Human Services and referral to Committee on Appropriations.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2461, HB 2613, HB 2700** from the Committee on Judiciary and referral to Committee on Appropriations.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2582** from the Committee on K-12 Education Budget and referral to the Committee on Appropriations.

Also, the withdrawal of HB 2180, HB 2437, HB 2465, HB 2478, HB 2502, HB 2519, HB 2527, HB 2552, HB 2558, HB 2586, HB 2625, HB 2677, HB 2687, HB 2689, HB 2705 from Calendar and referral to Committee on Appropriations.

Also, the withdrawal of HB 2401 from Calendar and referral to Judiciary.

## INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, HCR 5023, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. HCR 5023--

by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins and Sawyer

HCR 5023-- A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION relating to the adjournment of the senate and house of representatives for a period of time during the 2020 regular session of the legislature.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas, the Senate concurring therein: That the legislature shall adjourn at the close of business of the daily session convened on February 27, 2020, and shall reconvene on March 4, 2020, pursuant to adjournment of the daily session convened on February 27, 2020; and

Be it further resolved: That the chief clerk of the house of representatives and the secretary of the senate and employees specified by the director of legislative administrative services for such purpose shall attend to their duties each day during periods of adjournment, Sundays excepted, for the purpose of receiving messages from

the governor and conducting such other business as may be required; and

Be it further resolved: That members of the legislature shall not receive the per diem compensation and subsistence allowances provided for in K.S.A. 46-137a(a) and (b), and amendments thereto, for any day within a period in which both houses of the legislature are adjourned for more than two days, Sundays excepted; and

Be it further resolved: That members of the legislature attending a legislative meeting of whatever nature when authorized pursuant to law, or by the legislative coordinating council, the president of the senate or the speaker of the house of representatives, and members of a conference committee attending a meeting of the conference committee authorized by the president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives during any period of adjournment for which members are not authorized compensation and allowances pursuant to K.S.A. 46-137a, and amendments thereto, shall receive compensation, subsistence allowances, mileage and other expenses in amounts prescribed under K.S.A. 75-3212, and amendments thereto.

## COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Hawkins to replace Rep. W. Carpenter on Robert G. Bethell Joint Committee on Home and Community Based Services on February 28, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Hawkins to replace Rep. W. Carpenter on Committee on KanCare Oversight on February 28, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Highberger to replace Rep. Kuether on Joint Committee on Administrative Rules and Regulations on March 3, 2020.

#### REPORT ON ENGROSSED BILLS

**HB 2463, HB 2464, HB 2469, HB 2503, HB 2507** reported correctly engrossed February 26, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Finch, the House adjourned pro forma until 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, February 27, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## THIRTY-SECOND DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Thursday, February 27, 2020, 10:00 a.m.

The House met session pro forma pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

## REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: **HB 2731**. Taxation: **HB 2730**.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, March 4, 2020.

## BILLS STRICKEN FROM CALENDAR

In accordance with House Rule 1507, the following bills were stricken from the calendar for March 4, 2020: HB 2053, HB 2333, HB 2431, HB 2450, HB 2468, HB 2473, HB 2474, HB 2475, HB 2484, HB 2485, HB 2488, HB 2493, HB 2494, HB 2526, HB 2531, HB 2533, HB 2549, HB 2550, HB 2559, HB 2560, HB 2561, HB 2562, HB 2592, HB 2598, HB 2608, HB 2621, HB 2675, HB 2688, HB 2690.

# Journal of the House

## THIRTY-THIRD DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Wednesday, March 4, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 117 members present.

Reps. Benson, Kuether, Mason and Warfield were excused on verified illness.

Rep. B. Carpenter was excused on legislative business.

Reps. Bishop, Carmichael and Frownfelter were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Gracious and merciful God of all creation, You have created us to live together in community. Thank You for the brief break and hopefully our leaders have been renewed and rejuvenated. As they continue their work, help them to seek understanding and good in one another. Grant each one the empathy to understand each other's life situations; to identify with and feel each other's concerns; and to respect one another enough to extend loving support and dignity. If we lack empathy and compassion, please heal our hearts. I pray this in Your Name, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Sutton.

## INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Holscher are spread upon the Journal:

This morning it is with great pleasure that we welcome the Blue Valley Northwest High School Civics "We the People" team to the House floor. This group, led by instructor Ken Thomas, focuses on promoting civic competence and responsibility among upper elementary and secondary students. Since its inception in 1987, more than 28 million students and 75,000 educators have participated in the "We the People"

program sponsored by the Center for Civic Education. Of important note, this particular group, from Blue Valley is an award-winning organization, having won the state competition this past January and they have represented the State of Kansas at the national competition 11 of the past 12 years! Under Mr. Thomas' guidance, these students have mastered an understanding of our constitution, U.S. History and government functions to an unparalleled level. Joining us today to celebrate their achievements are:

- John Chen
- Travis King
- Cannon Gage
- Julia Boepple
- River Peer
- Connor Simeon
- Emma Kingston
- And their instructor, Mr. Ken Thomas

Mr. Speaker, with your permission, I ask to recognize the additional guests from "We the People" in the gallery. We have several more students along with proud parents and family members joining us to celebrate today.

Rep. Holscher presented the team with a framed House certificate in recognition of their efforts and wished them luck in their next competition.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2732**, AN ACT concerning postsecondary educational institutions; relating to student safety; requiring postsecondary educational institutions to implement sexual violence policies and protocols in order to receive certain state appropriations, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

### COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Laura N. Jurgensen, JD, Assistant Director, Special Education and Title Services, Kansas State Department of Education; pursuant to K.S.A. 72-6143(g), information relating to School Safety and Security; and 2020 Memo based on 2018 -2019 Data.pdf; Memo Based on 2017-18 Data.pdf.

The complete report is kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

## MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing passage of SB 153, SB 256, SB 290, SB 297, SB 307, SB 331, SB 334, SB 354, and SB 390.

Announcing passage of SB 42, SB 254, SB 264, SB 265, SB 266, SB 272, SB 294, SB 295, SB 339, SB 358, SB 377; and Sub SB 126.

Announcing passage of SB 221, SB 262, SB 271, SB 283, SB 284, SB 289, SB 308, SB 337, SB 373, SB 381, SB 382, SB 383, SB 404, SB 420, and SB 427.

Announcing adoption of SCR 1614.

Announcing passage of SB 152, SB 230, SB 251, SB 253, SB 267, SB 275, SB 292, SB 293, SB 319, SB 345, SB 355, SB 371, SB 374, SB 380, SB 384, SB 402, SB 405, SB 424, and Sub SB 335.

Announcing adoption of HCR 5023.

## INTRODUCTION OF SENATE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following Senate bills and concurrent resolution were thereupon introduced and read by title:

SB 42, Sub SB 126, SB 152, SB 153, SB 221, SB 230, SB 251, SB 253, SB 254, SB 256, SB 262, SB 264, SB 265, SB 266, SB 267, SB 271, SB 272, SB 275, SB 283, SB 284, SB 289, SB 290, SB 292, SB 293, SB 294, SB 295, SB 297, SB 307, SB 308, SB 319, SB 331, SB 334, Sub SB 335, SB 337, SB 339, SB 345, SB 354, SB 355, SB 358, SB 371, SB 373, SB 374, SB 377, SB 380, SB 381, SB 382, SB 383, SB 384, SB 390, SB 402, SB 404, SB 405, SB 420, SB 424, SB 427, SCR 1614.

### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Dietrich, HR 6038, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

By Representative Dietrich

**HR 6038**—A RESOLUTION honoring the 30th anniversary of the Parents as Teachers program in Kansas.

WHEREAS, Over the past 30 years, Parents as Teachers has provided support, information and resources to families with young children in Kansas; and

WHEREAS, Parents as Teachers' mission is to build strong communities, thriving families and children that are healthy, safe and ready to learn; and

WHEREAS, The program accomplishes its mission by matching parents and caregivers with trained professionals who make regular, personal home visits during a child's earliest years of life; and

WHEREAS, Parents as Teachers uses a research-based curriculum to provide parents with the skills and knowledge they need to help make the best decisions for their child's education and healthy development; and

WHEREAS, Parents as Teachers also includes personal visits, group connections, health, vision, hearing and developmental screenings and supportive community services for family connections; and

WHEREAS, Children whose families participated in the Parents as Teachers program score higher in symbolic development, math concepts, written language and communication and are more likely to be identified at an earlier age for health or developmental concerns resulting in referrals to school and community services for early intervention; and

WHEREAS, Parents as Teachers embraces learning experiences that are relevant and customized for the individual needs of each family and child; and

WHEREAS, Individuals and organizations that use the Parents as Teachers curriculum benefit from understanding the evolving needs of today's families and children: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That we honor Parents as Teachers for its 30 years of service and dedication to Kansas families; and

*Be it further resolved:* That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send an enrolled copy of this resolution to Representative Dietrich.

### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Dietrich are spread upon the Journal:

March 4th is Parents as Teachers Day at the Capitol! The concept for Parents as Teachers was developed in the 1970's when educators noted that children were coming to kindergarten with varying levels of school readiness. They knew that greater parent involvement is a critical link in a child's development of learning skills, including reading and writing...and they also knew that kids do not come with an Instruction Manual! Those facts were the foundation of the Parents as Teachers Program as we know it today.

Early childhood professionals suggested that parent education was key to helping parents understand their role in their child's development from the very beginning (like birth!) .....and that a program to provide early detection of developmental delays and health issues could also help improve school readiness.

That is just what the Parents as Teacher program does....it includes personal home visits, group connections, parenting classes, health, vision, hearing and developmental screenings, and supports family connections with other community services. What a blessing for our young families.

This is a voluntary program in our state offered by 165 school districts working with children from birth to 5 years old. These educators are awesome and they make a positive difference every single day.

The Parents as Teachers program has been in Kansas for 30 years and that's what we are celebrating today!

I would like to introduce you to the Parents As Teachers Educators and family members who are here with me today and to say "Thank you" for doing such good work for the youngest children in Kansas.

- Callie Peace, KPATA Executive Director
- Jacki Himpel, KPATA President
- Michelle Kelly, KPATA President Elect
- Cammie Braden, KPATA board member and Keystone Parents as Teachers Coordinator
- Julie McGinley, Auburn-Washburn Parents as Teachers Coordinator
- Brandi Eckhardt, Parents as Teachers Mom from Auburn-Washburn
- Finn Eckhardt, her child from Auburn-Washburn's Parents as Teacher Program
- Joan Dunn, Retired, KS PAT pilot program in Hays
- Pam May, North East Kansas Service Center Parents as Teachers Coordinator and;
- Becky Peters, Family First Prevention Services Act PAT Program Director

Please join me in recognizing the 30th Anniversary of the Parents as Teachers program in Kansas.

#### CHANGE OF REFERENCE

Speaker Ryckman announced the withdrawal of **HB 2187** from Committee on Appropriations and rereferral to Committee on Children and Seniors.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2416**, **HB 2529**, **HB 2586**, **HB 2689**, **HB 2642**, **HB 2701** from the Committee on Appropriations and referral to the Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2519** from Committee on Appropriations and rereferral to Committee on Education.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2606**, **HB 2687** from Committee on Appropriations and rereferral to Committee on Elections.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2603, HB 2630, HB 2680** from Committee on Appropriations and rereferral to Committee on Health and Human Services.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2558** from Committee on Appropriations and rereferral to Committee on Insurance.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2229**, **HB 2461**, **HB 2700**, **HB 2520**, **HB 2613** from the Committee on Appropriations and referral to the Committee on Judiciary.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2582, HB 2465, HB 2552** from Committee on Appropriations and rereferral to Committee on K-12 Education Budget.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2527** from Committee on Appropriations and rereferral to Committee on Rural Revitalization.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2180**, **HB 2502** from the Committee on Appropriations and referral to the Committee on Transportation.

## COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Rep. Claeys to replace Rep. Thimesch on Committee on Taxation on March 4, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Hodge to replace Rep. Carmichael on Committee on Judiciary on March 4, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Finney to replace Rep. Warfield on Committee on Taxation on March 4, 2020.

#### REPORT ON ENGROSSED BILLS

HB 2516, HB 2547 reported correctly engrossed February 26, 2020.

HB 2575 reported correctly engrossed February 27, 2020.

**Sub HB 2506, HB 2540, HB 2585, HB 2618, HB 2713** reported correctly engrossed February 28, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Thursday, March 5, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## THIRTY-FOURTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Thursday, March 5, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 115 members present.

Reps. Benson, Kuether and Mason were excused on verified illness.

Rep. B. Carpenter was excused on legislative business.

Reps. Alcala, Bishop, Fownfelter, Pittman, Thimesch and Wolfe Moore were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Dr. Kent Duncan, Pastor, Jefferson Assembly of God, Meriden, and guest of Rep. Ellis:

Heavenly Father...

We begin this day with thanksgiving. We agree with your word – "This is the day the Lord has made. We will rejoice and be glad in it." And so...

We declare our gratitude – for the breath of life that fills our lungs... the strength you give these sometimes frail bodies ... the purposeful calling that marks our days. Thank you for filling our days with purpose ... and for graciously granting us the capacity to do those things you've called us to do.

We are aware of the responsibilities our callings bring. So, today, we humbly ask for wisdom. We acknowledge that, in ourselves, we are not enough to accomplish the tasks at hand. The challenges are too complex ... the differences between us too great.

But we are aware, as well, that you have promised – your word will be "a lamp unto our feet, a light unto our path" ... and we are reminded that you have shown us what is required of us – to "do justly, and to love mercy, and to walk humbly before our God."

So we submit ourselves to you ... and to the tasks you've given us ... asking that by your power – on us, in us, and through us – your compassionate and purposeful plan would be accomplished – that your kingdom would come, your will would be done – on earth as it is in heaven.

And as your purpose is accomplished in us today, may you receive the praise ... for yours is the Kingdom, and the power, and the glory forever, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Karleskint.

### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2733**, AN ACT concerning firearms; relinquishment thereof pursuant to certain court orders; criminal penalties; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-3426, 60-3107 and 60-31a06 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills and concurrent resolution were referred to committees as indicated:

Agriculture: SB 152, SB 153, SB 307, SB 308, SB 345, SCR 1614.

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: SB 42, SB 251, SB 424.

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: SB 358.

Education: SB 230, SB 271, SB 284, SB 335, SB 337, SB 354, SB 381, SB 384.

Elections: SB 256.

Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications: SB 126, SB 339, SB 380.

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2732, SB 221, SB 254, SB 283.

Financial Institutions and Pensions: SB 289.

Insurance: SB 290, SB 292, SB 402.

Judiciary: SB 253, SB 293, SB 319, SB 331, SB 334, SB 355, SB 371, SB 373, SB

**404**, **SB 405**, **SB 420**, **SB 427**. K-12 Education Budget: **SB 382**.

Taxation: SB 262, SB 264, SB 265, SB 266, SB 272, SB 294, SB 295, SB 297.

Transportation: SB 267, SB 275, SB 374, SB 377, SB 383, SB 390.

### CHANGE OF REFERENCE

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the withdrawal of **HB 2437** from Committee on Appropriations and rereferral to Committee on Agriculture.

Also, the withdrawal of SB 285, SB 286, SB 287 from Committee on Appropriations and referral to Committee on Agriculture.

### COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Delia Garcia, Secretary, Kansas Department of Labor, 2019 Annual Report.

The complete report is kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Schreiber, HR 6039, by Reps. Schreiber, Amyx, Ballard, Capps, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Cox, Croft, Dietrich, Ellis, Esau, Finney, French, Garber, Gartner, Highberger, Hoheisel, Howard, Jacobs, Jennings, Karleskint, Kessinger, Kuether, Long, Mastroni, Murnan, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Pittman, Resman, Rhiley, Samsel, Sawyer, Smith, Smith, Stogsdill, Straub, Tarwater, Thompson, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Woodard, Xu and Yeager, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

**HR 6039**—A RESOLUTION recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.

WHEREAS, The mission of the Kansas Small Business Development Center (SBDC), an accredited member of the national organization, America's SBDC, is to increase economic prosperity in Kansas by helping entrepreneurs and small business owners start and grow their businesses through professional consulting, training and the identification of appropriate resources; and

WHEREAS, The Kansas SBDC regional directors and staff selected eight Emerging Business of the Year award recipients, eight Existing Business of the Year award recipients and two Exporting Business of the Year award recipients; and

WHEREAS, The Kansas SBDC's Business of the Year awards are designed to recognize Kansas SBDC clients for superior performance; and

WHEREAS, Business of the Year award recipients have achieved major accomplishments, overcome significant obstacles, shown growth and positive economic impact, which is based on a record of profitability and the Kansas SBDC Economic Impact Tracking spreadsheet, and demonstrated good corporate citizenship through community contributions; and

WHEREAS, The 2020 Kansas SBDC Emerging Businesses of the Year are: EMP Shield in Burlington, Kansas, owned by Timothy Carty and Peter Keegan; Mind Sculpt Games, LLC, in Great Bend, Kansas, owned by Darcy Leech and Daniel Leech; LC BioPlastics, LLC, in Prairie Village, Kansas, owned by Paul Black; Julie Bear Don't Walk Acupuncture & Integrative Health in Lawrence, Kansas, owned by Julie Bear Don't Walk; Smallville CrossFit in Fort Scott, Kansas, owned by Lindsey and Aaron Watts; The Red Rock Experience & Venue in Ulysses, Kansas, owned by Tammy Lane-Reese; Ember Technology, LLC, in Wichita, Kansas, owned by Jonathan Sanchez and Tariq Azmi; and Anneal Initiative, Inc., in Topeka, Kansas, owned by Amy Billinger, Jeremy Jackson and Jennie Jackson; and

WHEREAS, The 2020 Kansas SBDC Existing Businesses of the Year are: The Sweet Granada in Emporia, Kansas, owned by Kim Redeker; Paisley Pear Wine Bar, Bistro & Market in Hays, Kansas, owned by Shaun and Heather Musil; Blue Valley Physical Therapy in Overland Park, Kansas, owned by Ann Todd-Cooper and Ryan Klusman; Young Sign Co., in Leavenworth, Kansas, owned by Ann and John Hoins; ADI, Inc., in Chanute, Kansas, owned by Merrill and Wendy Cunningham; Dodge City Brewing Company, LLC, in Dodge City, Kansas, owned by Larry and Sheri Cook; Connie's Mexico Café in Wichita, Kansas, owned by Carmen Rosales, Adele Jordan, Carla Rosales-Banuelos and Carmen Renteria; and The Marie Antoinette Gluten Free Baking Co., in Wathena, Kansas, owned by Rani Navarro-Force and Shawn Force; and

WHEREAS, The 2020 Kansas SBDC Exporting Businesses of the Year are: SkuTouch Solutions, LLC, in Lenexa, Kansas, owned by Doug Obershaw and Terry Obershaw; and Progressive Products, Inc., in Pittsburg, Kansas, owned by Todd Allison; and

WHEREAS, The Kansas SBDC Businesses of the Year serve as examples of the success that the Kansas SBDC and small business owners across Kansas can achieve: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That we recognize the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Emerging, Existing and Exporting Businesses of the Year and wish the Kansas SBDC and America's SBDC continued success in the future; and

*Be it further resolved:* That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send 19 enrolled copies of this resolution to Representative Schreiber.

### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Schreiber are spread upon the Journal:

It is an honor to present the 2020 winners of the Kansas Small Business Development Center existing, emerging and exporting businesses of the year.

The Kansas Small Business Development Centers (KSBDCs) work with small businesses, start-ups and entrepreneurs to help them compete in today's highly competitive global economy. Eight regional centers and two outreach centers combine the resources of a professional staff, the state's best educational institutions, the private sector and government.

The mission of these centers is to help new entrepreneurs realize the dream of business ownership, and to assist existing businesses to remain competitive in the complex marketplace of a global economy.

Small business owners and aspiring entrepreneurs can go to their local center for free face-to-face business consulting and at-cost training, on topics including:

- Writing business plans
- Accessing capital
- Marketing
- Regulatory compliance
- Technology development
- · International trade

They can also meet with people on the phone, or online no matter where they are located in the state.

In 2018, the impact of the Kansas SBDCs was:

- 3,834 jobs created/retained
- \$183.3M new business sales
- \$78.3M new business capital

The awards ceremony for this year's winners will be from 4-6 pm in the 2nd floor Rotunda. The businesses being recognized today are:

2020 Kansas SBDC Emerging Businesses of the Year are:

- EMP Shield in Burlington, Timothy Carty, owner, Peter Keegan, General Manager
- · Mind Sculpt Games, LLC in Great Bend, Darcy and Daniel Leech, owner
- LC BioPlastics, LLC in Prairie Village, Paul Black, Owner
- Julie Bear Don't Walk Acupuncture & Integrative Health in Lawrence, Julie Bear Don't Walk, Owner
- Smallville CrossFit in Fort Scott, Lindsay and Aaron Watts, Owners
- The Red Rock Experience & Venue in Ulysses, Tammy Lane-Reese, Owner
- Ember Technology, LLC in Wichita, Jonathan Sanchez and Tariq Azmi, Owners
- Anneal Initiative, Inc. in Topeka, Amy Billinger, Jeremy Jackson and Jennie Jackson, Owners

## 2020 Kansas SBDC Existing Businesses of the Year are:

- The Sweet Granada, Emporia, Kim Redeker, Owner
- Paisley Pear Wine Bar, Bistro and Market in Hays, Shaun and Heather Musil, Owners
- Blue Valley Physical Therapy in Overland Park, Ann Todd-Cooper and Ryan Klusman, Owners
- Young Sign Co. in Leavenworth, Ann and John Hoins, Owners
- ADI, Inc. in Chanute, Merrill Cunningham and Scott Cunningham, Owners
- Dodge City Brewing Company, LLC in Dodge City, Larry and Sheri Cook, Owners
- Connie's Mexico Café in Wichita, Carmen Rosales, Adele Jordan, Carla Rosales-Banuelos, Carmen Renteria, Owners
- The Marie Antoinette Gluten Free Baking Co. in Wathena, Rani Navarro-Force and Shawn Force, Owners

# 2020 Kansas SBDC Exporting Businesses of the Year are:

- SkuTouch Solutions, LLC in Lenexa, Doug Obershaw and Terry Obershaw, Owners
- Progressive Products, Inc. in Pittsburg, Todd Allison, President

Please help me congratulate these outstanding owners who are seated in the center and the south end of the gallery.

#### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Federal and State Affairs** recommends **HB 2385** be amended on page 1, in line 5, by striking "is" and inserting "and the square dance, a dance that is a popular tradition enjoyed by diverse groups of people across the state, are"; in line 6, by striking "dance" and inserting "dances";

Also on page 1, in the title, in line 1, after "polka" by inserting "and the square dance"; also in line 1, by striking "dance" and inserting "dances"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on K-12 Education Budget recommends HB 2465 be amended by adoption of the amendments recommended by the House Committee on K-12 Education Budget, as reported in the Journal of the House on February 12, 2020; the bill, as printed with House Committee amendments, be further amended on page 6, following

line 11, by inserting:

- "Sec. 4. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5462 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-5462. (a) There is hereby established in the state treasury the school district capital improvements fund. The fund shall consist of all amounts transferred thereto under the provisions of subsection (c).
- (b) In each school year, each school district which is obligated to make payments from its capital improvements fund shall be entitled to receive payment from the school district capital improvements fund in an amount determined by the state board of education as provided in this subsection.
- (1) For general obligation bonds approved for issuance at an election held prior to July 1, 2015, the state board of education shall:
- (A) Determine the amount of the assessed valuation per pupil (AVPP) of each school district in the state for the preceding school year and round such amount to the nearest \$1,000. The rounded amount is the AVPP of a school district for the purposes of this subsection (b)(1);
  - (B) determine the median AVPP of all school districts;
- (C) prepare a schedule of dollar amounts using the amount of the median AVPP of all school districts as the point of beginning. The schedule of dollar amounts shall range upward in equal \$1,000 intervals from the point of beginning to and including an amount that is equal to the amount of the AVPP of the school district with the highest AVPP of all school districts and shall range downward in equal \$1,000 intervals from the point of beginning to and including an amount that is equal to the amount of the AVPP of the school district with the lowest AVPP of all school districts;
- (D) determine a state aid percentage factor for each school district by assigning a state aid computation percentage to the amount of the median AVPP shown on the schedule, decreasing the state aid computation percentage assigned to the amount of the median AVPP by one percentage point for each \$1,000 interval above the amount of the median AVPP, and increasing the state aid computation percentage assigned to the amount of the median AVPP by one percentage point for each \$1,000 interval below the amount of the median AVPP. Except as provided by K.S.A. 72-5463, and amendments thereto, the state aid percentage factor of a school district is the percentage assigned to the schedule amount that is equal to the amount of the AVPP of the school district. The state aid percentage factor of a school district shall not exceed 100%. The state aid computation percentage is 25%:
- (E) determine the amount of payments that a school district is obligated to make from its bond and interest fund attributable to general obligation bonds approved for issuance at an election held prior to July 1, 2015; and
- (F) multiply the amount determined under subsection (b)(1)(E) by the applicable state aid percentage factor.
- (2) For general obligation bonds approved for issuance at an election held on or after July 1, 2015, the state board of education shall:
- (A) Determine the amount of the AVPP of each school district in the state for the preceding school year and round such amount to the nearest \$1,000. The rounded amount is the AVPP of a school district for the purposes of this subsection (b)(2);
- (B) except as provided in subsection (b)(8), prepare a schedule of dollar amounts using the amount of the AVPP of the school district with the lowest AVPP of all school districts as the point of beginning. The schedule of dollar amounts shall range upward in

- equal \$1,000 intervals from the point of beginning to and including an amount that is equal to the amount of the AVPP of the school district with the highest AVPP of all school districts;
- (C) determine a state aid percentage factor for each school district by assigning a state aid computation percentage to the amount of the lowest AVPP shown on the schedule and decreasing the state aid computation percentage assigned to the amount of the lowest AVPP by one percentage point for each \$1,000 interval above the amount of the lowest AVPP. Except as provided by K.S.A. 72-5463, and amendments thereto, the state aid percentage factor of a school district is the percentage assigned to the schedule amount that is equal to the amount of the AVPP of the school district. The state aid computation percentage is 75%;
- (D) determine the amount of payments that a school district is obligated to make from its bond and interest fund attributable to general obligation bonds approved for issuance at an election held on or after July 1, 2015; and
- (E) multiply the amount determined under subsection (b)(2)(D) by the applicable state aid percentage factor.
- (3) For general obligation bonds approved for issuance at an election held on or before June 30, 2016, the sum of the amount determined under subsection (b)(1)(F) and the amount determined under subsection (b)(2)(E) is the amount of payment the school district is entitled to receive from the school district capital improvements fund in the school year.
- (4)(A) For general obligation bonds approved for issuance at an election held on or after July 1, 2016, the amount determined under subsection (b)(2)(E) is the amount of payment the school district shall receive from the school district capital improvements fund in the school year, except the total amount of payments school districts receive from the school district capital improvements fund in the school year for such bonds shall not exceed the six-year average amount of capital improvement state aid as determined by the state board of education.
- (A)(B) The state board of education shall determine the six-year average amount of capital improvement state aid by calculating the average of the total amount of moneys expended per year from the school district capital improvements fund in the immediately preceding six fiscal years, not to include the current fiscal year.
- (B)(C) (i) Subject to clause (ii), the state board of education shall prioritize the allocations to school districts from the school district capital improvements fund in accordance with the priorities set forth as follows in order of highest priority to lowest priority:
- (a) Safety of the current facility and disability access to such facility as demonstrated by a state fire marshal report, an inspection under the Americans with disabilities act, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., or other similar evaluation;
- (b) enrollment growth and imminent overcrowding as demonstrated by successive increases in enrollment of the school district in the immediately preceding three school years;
- (c) impact on the delivery of educational services as demonstrated by restrictive inflexible design or limitations on installation of technology; and
- (d) energy usage and other operational inefficiencies as demonstrated by a district-wide energy usage analysis, district-wide architectural analysis or other similar evaluation.

- (ii) In allocating capital improvement state aid, the state board shall give higher priority to those school districts with a lower AVPP compared to the other school districts that are to receive capital improvement state aid under this section.
- (C)(D) On and after July 1, 2016, the state board of education shall approve the amount of state aid payments a school district shall receive from the school district capital improvements fund pursuant to subsection (b)(5) prior to an election to approve the issuance of general obligation bonds.
- (5) Except as provided in subsections (b)(6)-and (b)(7) through (b)(8), the sum of the amounts determined under subsection (b)(3) and the amount determined or allocated to the district by the state board of education pursuant to subsection (b)(4), is the amount of payment the school district is entitled to receive from the school district capital improvements fund in the school year.
- (6) A school district that had an enrollment of less than 260 students in the school year immediately preceding the school year in which an election is held to approve the issuance of general obligation bonds shall not be entitled to receive payments from the school district capital improvements fund unless such school district applied for and received approval from the state board of education to issue such bonds prior to holding an election to approve such bond issuance. The provisions of this paragraph shall apply to general obligation bonds approved for issuance at an election held on or after July 1, 2017, that are issued for the purpose of financing the construction of new school facilities.
- (7) For general obligation bonds approved for issuance at an election held on or after July 1, 2017, in determining the amount under subsection (b)(2)(D), the state board shall exclude payments for any capital improvement project, or portion thereof, that proposes to construct, reconstruct or remodel a facility that would be used primarily for extracurricular activities, unless the construction, reconstruction or remodeling of such facility is necessary due to concerns relating to the safety of the current facility or disability access to such facility as demonstrated by a state fire marshal report, an inspection under the Americans with disabilities act, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., or other similar evaluation.
- (8) For general obligation bonds approved for issuance at an election held on or after July 1, 2020, in preparing the schedule of dollar amounts under subsection (b)(2) (B), the state board shall exclude unified school district No. 207, Fort Leavenworth, from such schedule, and the amount of the AVPP of the school district with the lowest AVPP of all remaining school districts shall be the point of beginning.
- (c) The state board of education shall certify to the director of accounts and reports the entitlements of school districts determined under the provisions of subsection (b), and an amount equal thereto shall be transferred by the director from the state general fund to the school district capital improvements fund for distribution to school districts. All transfers made in accordance with the provisions of this subsection shall be considered to be demand transfers from the state general fund, except that all such transfers during the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022, shall be considered to be revenue transfers from the state general fund.
- (d) Payments from the school district capital improvements fund shall be distributed to school districts at times determined by the state board of education to be necessary to assist school districts in making scheduled payments pursuant to contractual bond obligations. The state board of education shall certify to the director of

accounts and reports the amount due each school district entitled to payment from the fund, and the director of accounts and reports shall draw a warrant on the state treasurer payable to the treasurer of the school district. Upon receipt of the warrant, the treasurer of the school district shall credit the amount thereof to the bond and interest fund of the school district to be used for the purposes of such fund.

- (e) The provisions of this section apply only to contractual obligations incurred by school districts pursuant to general obligation bonds issued upon approval of a majority of the qualified electors of the school district voting at an election upon the question of the issuance of such bonds.
- (f) On or before the first day of the legislative session in 2017, and each year thereafter, the state board of education shall prepare and submit a report to the legislature that includes information on school district elections held on or after July 1, 2016, to approve the issuance of general obligation bonds and the amount of payments school districts were approved to receive from the school district capital improvements fund pursuant to subsection  $\frac{(b)(4)(C)}{(b)(4)(D)}$ .";

Also on page 6, in line 12, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 12, after "72-5178" by inserting "and 72-5462";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, after the semicolon by inserting "adjusting the schedule for determining school district capital improvements state aid;"; also in line 3, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 3, after "72-5178" by inserting "and 72-5462"; and the bill be passed as further amended.

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Your Committee on Calendar and Printing recommends on requests for resolutions and certificates that

**Request No. 48**, by Representative John Alcala, commending, Officer Lamont Jackson, Capitol Police for his dedicated service in Law Enforcement and commitment to connecting with the community through song and music.

**Request No. 49**, by Representative Ponka-We Victors, honoring, Juan Victors, on his 70<sup>th</sup> Birthday and for being a valuable community member.

**Request No. 50**, by Representative Ponka-We Victors, commending, Ken E. Squires, for his dedication and commitment to our community and for donating backpacks to the back to school supplies drive.

**Request No. 51**, by Representative Delperdang, commending, Michael O'Brian, and honoring United States Service Members who were exposed and are victims to Agent Orange during and after the Vietnam War, under House Resolution – 6036.

**Request No. 52**, by Representative Holscher, congratulating, Blue Valley Northwest High School, for their outstanding work in the area of promoting civic competence and responsibility.

**Request No. 53**, by Representative Pittman, congratulating, Maralis Self on being named 2020 Fort Leavenworth Armed Forces Insurance Military Spouse of the Year.

be approved and the Chief Clerk of the House be directed to order the printing of said certificates and order drafting of said resolutions.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the committee report was adopted.

# COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Adam Smith to replace Rep. Thimesch on Committee on Taxation on March 5, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Francis to replace Rep. Mason on Committee on Taxation on March 5, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Woodard to replace Rep. Wolfe Moore on Committee on Taxation on March 5, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Amyx to replace Rep. Alcala on Committee on Taxation on March 5, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Woodard to replace Rep. Carlin on Committee on Appropriations on March 9, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins the House adjourned pro forma until 9:00 a.m. on Friday, March 6, 2020.

# Journal of the House

### THIRTY-FIFTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Friday, March 6, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

The House met session pro forma pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2734**, AN ACT concerning financial institutions; relating to credit unions, field of membership; banks, trust companies and savings and loan associations, privilege tax, deduction of net interest received from certain business and single family residence loans; amending K.S.A. 79-1109 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-2205 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Taxation.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was referred to committee as indicated:

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2733.

### REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

**HR 6036**, **HR 6037** reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on March 06, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Monday, March 9, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## THIRTY-SIXTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Monday, March 9, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 119 members present.

Reps. Benson, Carlin and Wheeler were excused on verified illness.

Rep. Samsel was excused on legislative business.

Reps. Bishop and Donohoe were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Almighty and loving God,
for this new day and week,
thank You for the hope and promise
of Your presence and guidance.
Lead each one in Your ways and fill their hearts
with Your love and joy.
Guide every decision, response, effort
and conversation that happens this week.
When they get overwhelmed, help them to turn to You.
Remind them often that You desire to be
their rock, shield and fortress.
This I pray in Christ's Name,
Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Pittman.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2735**, AN ACT concerning children and families; preserving families that include a parent who is blind; providing for certain considerations relating to cases involving legal custody, residency, parenting time and children in need of care, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

## REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was referred to committee as indicated:

Taxation: HB 2734.

### CHANGE OF REFERENCE

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the withdrawal of SB 289 from the Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions and referral to the Committee on Insurance.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing passage of SB 140, SB 225, SB 255, and SB 409.

# INTRODUCTION OF SENATE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following Senate bills were thereupon introduced and read by title:

SB 140, SB 225, SB 255, SB 409.

### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Appropriations** recommends **HB 2536** be amended by substituting a new bill to be designated as "Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2536," as follows:

"Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2536

By Committee on Appropriations

"AN ACT concerning oil and gas wells; relating to the state corporation commission; investigation and determination of legally responsible persons for abandoned wells; plugging abandoned wells; authorizing reimbursements for certain plugging operations; abolishing the well plugging assurance fund and transferring all assets and liabilities to the abandoned oil and gas well fund; amending K.S.A. 55-150, 55-161, 55-168, 55-178, 55-179, 55-180, 55-192 and 75-3036 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 55-155 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 55-163, 55-166 and 55-167 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 55-193.";

and the substitute bill be passed.

(HB 2536 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends HB 2689 be amended by adoption of the amendments recommended by the House Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development as reported in the Journal of the House on February 25, 2020, and the bill, as printed with amendments by House Committee, be passed as amended.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

HB 2736, AN ACT concerning the department of health and environment laboratory on parking lot No. 4 of the capitol complex in Topeka, Kansas; authorizing the department of administration to issue bonds to construct and equip such laboratory; identifying the laboratory at Forbes Field as state surplus real estate, sale thereof, by Committee on Appropriations.

# REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HR 6038 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on March 9, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Tuesday, March 10, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## THIRTY-SEVENTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 122 members present.

Rep. Benson was excused on verified illness.

Reps. Bishop and Wasinger were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Rev. Doreen Rice, Pastor, Episcopal Church of the Covenant, Junction City, and guest of Rep. Clark:

Let us pray.

Creator and sustainer God, we thank you for your good creation and all that it provides us. We especially thank you for the beauty and richness of the state of Kansas, including its land, its animals, and its people.

We ask that you provide guidance to those assembled here who care for all that is Kansas, helping ensure their work is marked by collegiality, creative thinking, and compassion. They have committed their lives to public service, carrying both the worries and fears and the hopes and dreams of their fellow Kansans on their shoulders. For this we are most grateful.

May their efforts support your creation now and forever.

Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. French.

## INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills and concurrent resolution were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2737**, AN ACT concerning school buses; authorizing school districts to install and operate school bus cameras; providing enhanced criminal penalties for vehicles improperly passing school buses; establishing the bus camera reimbursement fund and the school bus safety zone fund; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-285, 8-1556, 8-2118, 21-5405 and 21-5413 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

**HB 2738**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to restitution; time of payment; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6604 and 21-6607 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. HCR 5024—

## By Committee on Federal and State Affairs

- HCR 5024—A PROPOSITION to amend the bill of rights of the constitution of the state of Kansas by adding a new section thereto stating that there is no constitutional right to abortion and reserving to the legislature the power to regulate abortion.
- Be it resolved by the Legislature of the State of Kansas, two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House of Representatives and two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the Senate concurring therein:
- Section 1. The following proposition to amend the constitution of the state of Kansas shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the state for their approval or rejection: The bill of rights of the constitution of the state of Kansas is hereby amended by adding a new section to read as follows:
  - "§ 22. Regulation of abortion. The constitution of the state of Kansas does not create or secure a right to abortion or the right to require government funding of abortion. Except as limited by the constitution of the United States, the legislature may pass laws allowing, limiting or otherwise regulating abortion."
- Sec. 2. The following statement shall be printed on the ballot with the amendment as a whole:
  - "Explanatory statement. This amendment would reserve to the legislature the power to allow, limit or otherwise regulate abortion in this state because there is no right to abortion or to require government funding of abortion under the state constitution.
  - "A vote for this proposition would reserve to the legislature the power to allow, limit or otherwise regulate abortion in this state because there is no right to abortion or to require government funding of abortion under the state constitution.
  - "A vote against this proposition would make no changes to the state constitution regarding the right to abortion or to require government funding of abortion."
- Sec. 3. This resolution, if approved by two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House of Representatives, and two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the Senate shall be entered on the journals, together with the yeas and nays. The secretary of state shall cause this resolution to be published as provided by law and shall cause the proposed amendment to be submitted to the electors of the state at the general election in November in the year 2020.

### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: HB 2736, SB 225, SB 255, SB 409.

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2735.

Taxation: SB 140.

### CHANGE OF REFERENCE

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the withdrawal of **HB 2700** from the Committee on Judiciary and referral to the Committee on Children and Seniors.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2613** from the Committee on Judiciary and referral to the Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

Also, the withdrawal of **HB 2520** from the Committee on Judiciary and rereferral to the Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Federal and State Affairs** recommends **HB 2650** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

#### COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Francis to replace Rep. Wasinger on Committee on Taxation on March 10, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Neighbor to replace Rep. Winn on Committee on K-12 Education Budget on March 10, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Ousley to replace Rep. Benson on Committee on K-12 Education Budget on March 10, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Frownfelter to replace Rep. Clayton on Committee on Federal and State Affairs on March 11, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Ward to replace Rep. Bishop on Committee on Health and Human Services until further notice.

Also, Rep. Clayton will serve as the ranking democrat on Committee on Education until further notice.

#### REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HCR 5023 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on March 10, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, March 11, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# THIRTY-EIGHTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 122 members present.

Rep. Concannon was excused on verified illness.

Reps. Bishop and Wasinger were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Rep. Vickrey,

Lord, here we are. It is a whirlwind of activities.

It's clear that you know where we are.

You know what we need.

We are calling to you to help us.

Help us not to be partisan, not to be divided,
but to be together and working together for the best of Kansas.

Please, help us today in Jesus' name.

Amen

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Donohoe.

### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Pittman are spread upon the Journal:

The Governor has declared today as Theater in our Schools Advocacy Day. We have gathered among us students from schools across our state who have come together to advocate for the many benefits theater programs provide for our students. As our School Board Association moves forward with priorities to increase the social, emotional and other non-traditional academic aspects of our students, theater stands as an excellent medium in alignment with our Kansas schools' 21st century goals.

I'm here today to recognize the great things our Kansas theater programs have achieved. With 105 active thespian chapters and over 15,000 students involved in theater each year, our students have gone on to national and international levels.

Two of the six student officers of the International Thespians are Kansas students. Spencer Angell of Olathe and Anna Hastings of Olathe South, are here with me today. I also have with me: Sara Holscher, Addison Landes, Emma Noonoo, Ann Stegman,

Thomas Yambo Rios, Haley Bell, Haly Mathis and Faith Lopez who are all officers on the State Steering Committee.

We also have two Kansas Theater Directors who have been elected to the National Education Theater Association. David Tate Hastings serves on the National Board and Jennifer Morgan-Beuchat serves on the National Advocacy Board.

And finally, I want to recognize my own district's theater program which was selected as one of the top National programs garnering the Outstanding School Award nationally as well as the National Theater Impact Award of 2019.

These students, as well as the students from districts including Wichita, Olathe, Topeka and more, are here to talk with their representatives and are set up on the first floor. Please help me congratulate all of our top tier theater program students in Kansas that are here with me and in the gallery.

Rep. Pittman presented his guests with framed House certificates in recognition of their accomplishments.

### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2739**, AN ACT concerning property taxation; relating to valuation of real property; land devoted to agricultural use; amending K.S.A. 79-1476 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2740**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; enacting the Kansas medical marijuana regulation act; relating to medical cannabis; providing for the licensure and regulation of the manufacture, transportation and sale of medical cannabis; providing certain fines and penalties for violations of the act; amending K.S.A. 44-1009, 44-1015, 65-28b08, 79-5201 and 79-5210 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5703, 21-5705, 21-5706, 21-5707, 21-5709, 21-5710, 23-3201, 38-2269, 44-501, 44-706 and 65-1120 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills and concurrent resolution were referred to committees as indicated:

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2737, HB 2738, HCR 5024.

#### CHANGE OF REFERENCE

Speaker Ryckman announced the withdrawal of **HB 2404** from Calendar and rereferral to Committee on Children and Seniors.

### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The Senate announces the appointment of Senator McGinn to replace Senator Olson and Senator Hawk to replace Senator Ware as conferees on **SB 66**.

#### CONSENT CALENDAR

Objection was made to **HB 2650** appearing on the Consent Calendar; the bill was placed on the Calendar under the heading General Orders.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. B. Carpenter in the chair.

### COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. B. Carpenter, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that HB 2490 be passed.

Committee report to HB 2571 be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **HB 2571**, Rep. Awerkamp requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment not germane.

Rep. Hodge challenged the ruling of the Rules Chair.

Roll call was demanded on Rep. Hodge's challenge of the ruling of the Rules Chair, the question being "Shall the Rules Chair be sustained?"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 82; Nays 39; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 4.

Yeas: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Nays: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Burroughs, Carlin, Clayton, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Concannon, Rahjes, Wasinger.

The Rules Chair was sustained, and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to HB 2596 be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Agriculture** recommends **SCR 1614** be adopted and, because the committee is of the opinion that the concurrent resolution is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on **Agriculture** recommends **HB 2437** be amended by adoption of the amendments recommended by the House Committee on Agriculture as reported in the Journal of the House on February 6, 2020, and the bill, as printed with amendments by House Committee, be passed as amended.

Committee on Education recommends SB 277 be passed.

Committee on **Education** recommends **SB 354**, as amended by Senate Committee, be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on Taxation recommends HB 2722, HB 2726 be passed.

#### CHANGE OF CONFEREES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Reps. Waymaster, Hoffman and Wolfe Moore to replace Reps. Vickrey, Cox and Neighbor as conferees on **SB 66**.

# COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Claeys to replace Rep. Wasinger on Committee on Taxation on March 11, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Delperdang to replace Rep. Concannon on Committee on Taxation on March 11, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Arnberger to replace Rep. Huebert on Committee on K-12 Education Budget on March 11, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Frownfelter to replace Rep. Henderson on Committee on Federal and State Affairs on March 12, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Thursday, March 12, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## THIRTY-NINTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, ТОРЕКА, KS, Thursday, March 12, 2020, 11:00 а.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 121 members present.

Rep. Donohoe was excused on verified illness.

Reps. Bishop, Huebert and Wasinger were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Rev. Sandra Brown, Pastor, First Presbyterian Church, Topeka:

Gracious God, we gather this day in gratitude that you are the God who said: "Fear not, for I am with you; be not dismayed, for I am your God; I will strengthen you, I will help you, I will hold you up with my victorious right hand" (Isaiah 41:10). We lean on your strength today, O God, as we prepare to do the work that is uniquely ours to do for our neighbors, especially the neighbors who need us most. Help us to remember first the vulnerable people that others often think of last. Make our hearts and minds as open as the wide-open spaces of this beautiful state we call home. Flavor our discussion and decisions with a supersize portion of your grace today. Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Dove.

#### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Neighbor are spread upon the Journal:

It is my honor to stand before you today and introduce to you Mrs. Becky Tate. Mrs. Tate is the newspaper and yearbook adviser at Shawnee Mission North High School where she has taught for the past 30 years. She also was my daughter's yearbook advisor when she attended Shawnee Mission North. Mrs. Tate is the 2019 National Yearbook Advisor of the Year. Becky is an exemplary Yearbook Advisor who has won many awards, including the Engel Award for the Outstanding Kansas Journalism Teacher of the Year in 2001 from the Kansas Associated Collegiate Press. She received

her undergraduate degree from K-State. While at K-State, she was the assistant editor of the Royal Purple yearbook and Editor of the Collegian newspaper. She received her Master's Degree from the University of Kansas. While teaching high school, her staffs consistently earn All-American and Medalist ratings along with Crown and Pacemaker Finalist awards. One of her students was named runner-up in the JEA's National School Journalist of the Year Competition.

Today, she is accompanied by her parents Luke Lucas, 90, and Marilyn Lucas, 84, her husband, Dow Tate, journalism teacher at Shawnee Mission East. Her daughter, Morgan Tate who attends Shawnee Mission Northwest was unable to attend.

Please join me in congratulating this award-winning journalism teacher and her wonderful family. Rep. Neighbor presented Mrs. Tate with a framed House certificate in recognition of her accomplishments.

# INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Newland are spread upon the Journal:

Today it is my pleasure to recognize a gentleman for his outstanding gift to my hometown, the small, rural community of Neodesha, Kansas.

Effective this May, and for the next 25 years that follow, graduating Seniors from Neodesha High School that are in good standing and who meet the necessary requirements will be able to attend any post graduate institution of their choice, thanks to the Marilyn Cram Cutler Foundation. The scholarship award will cover tuition and mandatory fees for up to 120 credit hours of study for a bachelor's degree and up to 60 credit hours of study for an associate's degree or technical certification. Awards will be capped at the highest tuition at a Kansas public college for in-state students, which is currently the University of Kansas. Students will have 6 years to access the Neodesha Promise for a Bachelor program and 4 years for an Associate degree or Technical certification.

There is an expectation for many additional benefits to impact our community as a result of this very positive gift. From small business start-ups, renewed housing development, and an increase in jobs to a revitalized Main Street – just to name a few of these impactful possibilities. The excitement and enthusiasm from the community is incredible and it's all because of one man and his dream to give back to the place where he grew up and to the school from which he graduated.

I would like to introduce the team responsible for putting the program into place:

Dennis Depew Neodesha Promise' Founder and Benefactor

Don Adams Advisory Board Member Juanita Erickson USD 461 Superintendent Nathan West High School Principal

Pattie Bailey Neodesha Promise' Administrator

Valon Jones Scholarship Committee Member, CTE Coordinator

Devin Johnson Neodesha Mayor

Erica Johnson Public Relations Coordinator Becky Ordway Cutler Scholarship Committee Member

Ben Cutler The Gentleman behind the Neodesha Promise'

Scholarship Program

In recognition of his tremendous donation to the Neodesha High School and Neodesha Community, I would like to present a House Certificate to Mr. Ben Cutler. I would also like to present a House Certificate to the Neodesha School District, USD 461. Thank you, Mr. Cutler, for all you have done, not only for our students but for the entire Neodesha Community.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2741**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to exemptions; area agencies on aging; amending K.S.A. 79-3606 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

HB 2742, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; enacting the Kansas equal access act; relating to medical cannabis; providing for the licensure and regulation of the manufacture, transportation and sale of medical cannabis; amending K.S.A. 44-1009, 44-1015, 79-5201 and 79-5210 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1567, 21-5703, 21-5705, 21-5706, 21-5707, 21-5709, 21-5710, 21-6109, 23-3201, 38-2269, 44-501, 44-706 and 65-1120 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2740.

Taxation: HB 2739.

### CHANGE OF REFERENCE

Speaker Ryckman announced the withdrawal of **HB 2738** from the Committee on Federal and State Affairs and referral to the Committee on Judiciary.

### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

The following resolution was introduced and read by title:

### HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6040-

By Representatives Mason, Amyx, Barker, Capps, Carlson, Carpenter, Carpenter, Collins, Croft, Dietrich, Ellis, Eplee, Esau, French, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hoheisel, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Kelly, Kessinger, Mastroni, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Resman, Rhiley, Schreiber, Seiwert, Tarwater, Waggoner, Waymaster and Yeager

**HR 6040**—A RESOLUTION recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.

WHEREAS, On November 14, 1989, the state of Kansas and Taiwan entered into a sister-state relationship of enduring friendship and international cooperation; and

WHEREAS, Taiwan shares the values of freedom, democracy, rule of law and respect for human rights with the state of Kansas; and

WHEREAS, On January 11, 2020, Taiwan held its seventh direct presidential election, demonstrating the strength and vitality of its democratic system and that Taiwan is a beacon of democracy in Asia; and

WHEREAS, The state of Kansas and Taiwan have enjoyed a mutually beneficial bilateral trade relationship, with Taiwan ranking as Kansas' 3<sup>rd</sup> largest import country and 10<sup>th</sup> largest export destination in 2019; and

WHEREAS, Taiwan sent an Agricultural Trade Goodwill Mission to the state of Kansas in September, 2019, for meat purchase, which has further promoted the bilateral trade relationship between Kansas and Taiwan; and

WHEREAS, Negotiations for a fair and reciprocal bilateral trade agreement between Taiwan and the United States are an important step toward strengthening bilateral trade, increasing Kansas' exports to Taiwan; and

WHEREAS, The state of Kansas supports the signing of a free trade agreement and bilateral investment agreement with Taiwan and reaffirms support for increasing Taiwan's international profile; and

WHEREAS, Taiwan, as a responsible stakeholder in the international community, is seeking to meaningfully participate in the World Health Organization and International Civil Aviation Organization to help support the health, safety and well-being of its people; and

WHEREAS, For the past 31 years, Taiwan and the state of Kansas have enjoyed forging a relationship, and the state of Kansas looks forward to strengthening and expanding its sister-state ties with Taiwan: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That we recognize the 31<sup>st</sup> anniversary of sister-state relations between the state of Kansas and Taiwan; and

*Be it further resolved:* That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send five enrolled copies of this resolution to Representative Mason.

### CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to SB 354, SCR 1614 appearing on the Consent Calendar for the first day.

# FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

**HB 2490**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to corporations; providing for an extension of the net operating loss carryforward period; amending K.S.A. 79-32,143 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 118; Nays 2; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 5.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield,

Warren, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Highberger, Hodge. Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Huebert, Wasinger.

The bill passed.

**HB 2571**, AN ACT concerning licensure under the club and drinking establishment act; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-311 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 108; Nays 12; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 5.

Yeas: Alcala, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warren, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Amyx, Frownfelter, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Jacobs, Lusk, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Warfield, Weigel, Winn.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Huebert, Wasinger.

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2596**, AN ACT concerning alcoholic beverages; relating to the club and drinking establishment act; authorizing the issuance of drinking establishment licenses to licensed manufacturers; amending K.S.A. 41-2632 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2623 and 41-2642 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 113; Nays 7; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 5.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Warfield, Warren, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn,

Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Curtis, Frownfelter, Hodge, Jacobs, Rhiley, Ward, Weigel.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Huebert, Wasinger.

The bill passed, as amended.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Vickrey in the chair.

### COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. Vickrey, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that committee report to HB 2689 be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Toplikar, **HB 2689** be amended on page 6, following line 12, by inserting:

"Sec. 4. K.S.A. 79-32,176a is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-32,176a. (a) Any resident individual taxpayer who makes expenditures for the purpose of making all or any portion of an existing facility accessible to individuals with a disability, which facility is used as, or in connection with, such taxpayer's principal dwelling or the principal dwelling of a lineal ascendant or descendant, including construction of a small barrier-free living unit attached to such principal dwelling, shall be entitled to claim a tax credit in an amount equal to the applicable percentage of such expenditures or \$9,000 \$15,000, whichever is less, against the income tax liability imposed against such taxpayer pursuant to article 32 of chapter 79 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto. Nothing in this subsection shall be deemed to prevent any such taxpayer from claiming such credit: (1) For each principal dwelling in which the taxpayer or lineal ascendant or descendant may reside, or facility used in connection therewith; or (2) more than once, but not more often than once every four-year period of time. The applicable percentage of such expenditures eligible for credit shall be as set forth in the following schedule schedules:

Married individuals filing joint returns.

	% of
Taxpayers	expenditures
Federal Adjusted	eligible for
Gross Income	credit
\$0 to \$25,000 \$60,000	100%
Over \$25,000 \$60,000 but not over \$30,000 \$70,000	90%
Over \$30,000 \$70,000 but not over \$35,000 \$80,000	80%
Over \$35,000 \$80,000 but not over \$40,000 \$90,000	70%
Over \$40,000 \$90,000 but not over \$45,000 \$100,000	60%
Over \$45,000 \$100,000 but not over \$55,000 \$110,000	50%
Over \$55,000 \$110,000 but not over \$120,000	<u>040%</u>
Over \$120,000 but not over \$130,000	30%
Over \$130,000 but not over \$140,000	20%
Over \$140,000 but not over \$150,000	10%
Over \$150,000.	0%

All other individuals.

	% of
Taxpayers	expenditures
Federal Adjusted	eligible for
Gross Income	credit
\$0 to \$40,000	100%
Over \$40,000 but not over \$50,000	90%
Over \$50,000 but not over \$60,000	80%
Over \$60,000 but not over \$70,000	70%
Over \$70,000 but not over \$80,000	60%
Over \$80,000 but not over \$90,000	50%
Over \$90,000 but not over \$100,000	40%
Over \$100,000 but not over \$110,000	30%
Over \$110,000 but not over \$120,000	20%
Over \$120,000 but not over \$130,000	10%
Over \$130,000	

Such tax credit shall be deducted from the taxpayer's income tax liability for the taxable year in which the expenditures are made by the taxpayer. If the amount of such tax credit exceeds the taxpayer's income tax liability for such taxable year, the amount thereof which exceeds such tax liability may be carried over for deduction from the taxpayer's income tax liability in the next succeeding taxable year or years until the total amount of the tax credit has been deducted from tax liability, except that no such tax credit shall be carried over for deduction after the fourth taxable year succeeding the taxable year in which the expenditures are made.

- Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a), if the amount of the taxpayer's tax liability is less than \$2,250 \$3,750 in the first year in which the credit is claimed under this section, an amount equal to the amount by which <sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub> of the credit allowable under this section exceeds such tax liability shall be refunded to the taxpayer and the amount by which such credit exceeds such tax liability less the amount of such refund may be carried over for the next three succeeding taxable years. If the amount of the taxpayer's tax liability is less than \$2,250 \$3,750 in the second year in which the credit is claimed under this section, an amount equal to the amount by which <sup>1</sup>/<sub>3</sub> of the amount of the credit carried over from the first taxable year exceeds such tax liability shall be refunded to the taxpayer and the amount by which the amount of the credit carried over from the first taxable year exceeds such tax liability less the amount of such refund may be carried over for the next two succeeding taxable years. If the amount of the taxpayer's tax liability is less than \$2.250 \$3,750 in the third year in which the credit is claimed under this section, an amount equal to the amount by which ½ of the amount carried over from the second taxable year exceeds such tax liability shall be refunded to the taxpayer and the amount by which the amount of the credit carried over from the second taxable year exceeds such tax liability less the amount of such refund may be carried over to the next succeeding taxable year. If the amount of the credit carried over from the third taxable year exceeds the taxpayer's income tax liability for such year, the amount thereof which exceeds such tax liability shall be refunded to the taxpayer.
- (c) In the case of all tax years commencing after December 31, 2020, the maximum tax credit amount, as prescribed in subsection (a), and the tax liability threshold amount in the first, second and third years, as prescribed in subsection (b), shall be increased by

an amount equal to such maximum tax credit amount and tax liability threshold amount multiplied by the cost-of-living adjustment determined under section 1(f)(3) of the federal internal revenue code for the calendar year in which the taxable year commences.

(e)(d) The provisions of this section are applicable to tax year-2013 2020, and all tax years thereafter.":

Also on page 6, in line 13, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 13, after "74-8136" by inserting "and 79-32,176a";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking "economic development" and inserting "income taxation"; in line 3, after the semicolon by inserting "expenditures to make principal dwelling accessible to persons with a disability;"; also in line 3, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 3, after "74-8136" by inserting "and 79-32.176a"

Also, roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Ward to amend **HB 2689**, on page 6, following line 12, by inserting:

"New Sec. 4. Providing a tax incentive for household and dependent care expenses provides for the economic development of this state and the credit allowed pursuant to K.S.A. 79-32,111c, and amendments thereto, institutes this objective.

- Sec. 5. K.S.A. 79-32,111c is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-32,111c. (a) There shall be allowed as a credit against the tax liability of a resident individual imposed under the Kansas income tax act an amount equal to 12.5% for tax year 2018; an amount equal to 18.75% for tax year 2019; and an amount equal to 25% 50% for tax year 2020, and all tax years thereafter, of the amount of the credit allowed against such taxpayer's federal income tax liability pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 21 for the taxable year in which such credit was claimed against the taxpayer's federal income tax liability.
- (b) The credit allowed by subsection (a) shall not exceed the amount of the tax imposed by K.S.A. 79-32,110, and amendments thereto, reduced by the sum of any other credits allowable pursuant to law.
- (c) No credit provided under this section shall be allowed to any individual who fails to provide a valid social security number issued by the social security administration, to such individual, the individual's spouse and every dependent of the individual.":

Also on page 6, in line 13, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 13, after "74-8136" by inserting "and 79-32,111c";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, after the semicolon by inserting "increasing the household and dependent care expenses credit;"; also in line 3, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 3, after "74-8136" by inserting "and 79-32,111c"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 48; Nays 69; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 8.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Burroughs, Carmichael, Clayton, Cox, Curtis, Delperdang, Finney, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hodge, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Owens, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Toplikar, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Croft, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, Hawkins, Helmer, Hineman, Hoffman, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Newland, Orr, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Burris, Carlin, Donohoe, Garber, Huebert, Jacobs, Wasinger.

The motion of Rep. Ward to amend HB 2689 did not prevail.

Also, roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **HB 2689** on page 6, following line 12, by inserting:

"New Sec. 4. (a) As used in this section:

- (1) "Kansas employees" means persons who are employed in Kansas by the taxpayer and who perform duties for the taxpayer. "Kansas employees" does not include independent contractors or any person to the extent such person's compensation is based on commission.
- (2) "Salaries" means gross compensation paid to Kansas employees as reported to the state of Kansas for income tax purposes for the calendar year for which a tax on income is imposed under the provisions of the Kansas income tax act, but only to the extent compensation is paid for business operations performed in Kansas for a business subject to the Kansas income tax. "Salaries" does not include compensation based on commissions.
- (b) (1) For all taxable years commencing after December 21, 2019, a credit shall be allowed against the income, privilege or premium tax liability imposed upon a taxpayer pursuant to the Kansas income tax act, the privilege tax imposed upon any national banking association, state bank, trust company or savings and loan association pursuant to article 11 of chapter 79 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, or the premiums tax and privilege fees imposed upon an insurance company pursuant to K.S.A. 40-252, and amendments thereto, in an amount equal to 20% of the increase of total salaries paid to Kansas employees from the next preceding year. In any one taxable year, the amount of such credit allowable for deduction from the taxpayer's tax liability shall not exceed \$2,000.
- (c) Any person, hereinafter designated the assignor, may sell, assign, convey or otherwise transfer tax credits allowed and earned pursuant to subsection (a). The taxpayer acquiring credits, hereinafter designated the assignee, may use the amount of the acquired credits to offset up to 100% of its income, privilege or premiums tax liability for the taxable year. The assignor shall enter into a written agreement with the assignee establishing the terms and conditions of the agreement and shall perfect such transfer by notifying the director of taxation within 90 calendar days following the effective date of the transfer and shall provide any information as may be required by the director to administer and carry out the provisions of this section. The amount received by the assignor of such tax credit shall be taxable as income of the assignor, and the excess of the value of such credit over the amount paid by the assignee for such credit shall be taxable as income of the assignee.

- (d) The computation of salaries shall be made on forms supplied by the secretary of revenue.
- (e) The secretary of revenue may adopt rules and regulations necessary to administer the provisions of this section.";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking "economic development" and inserting "taxation"; in line 3, after the semicolon by inserting "credit for salary increases to Kansas employees;"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 38; Nays 82; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 5.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Burroughs, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Dierks, Finney, Frownfelter, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Murnan, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Toplikar, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Neighbor, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Huebert, Wasinger.

The motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **HB 2689** did not prevail; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to HB 2548 be adopted;

On motion of Rep. Hodge to amend HB 2548, Rep. B. Carpenter requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment not germane.

Rep. Hodge challenged the ruling of the Rules Chair.

Roll call was demanded on Rep. Hodge's challenge of the ruling of the Rules Chair, the question being "Shall the Rules Chair be sustained?"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 81; Nays 38; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 6.

Yeas: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Nays: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Burroughs, Clayton, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Huebert, Smith, E., Wasinger.

The ruling of the Rules Chair was sustained and the bill be passed as amended.

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends HB 2416 be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2416," as follows:

"Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2416

By Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

"AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to credits; creating the Kansas targeted employment act."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(Sub HB 2416 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on **Rural Revitalization** recommends **HB 2527**, as recommended by the House Committee on Rural Revitalization as reported in the Journal of the House on February 12, 2020, and the bill as printed, be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **HB 2517** be amended on page 2, in line 20, after "improvement" by inserting "or commercial real property"; in line 29, after "improvement" by inserting "or commercial real property"; in line 32, after "improvement" by inserting "or commercial real property"; in line 35, after "improvement" by inserting "or commercial real property"; in line 37, after "improvement" by inserting "or commercial real property"; in line 39, after "improvement" by inserting "or commercial real property"; in line 43, after "improvement" by inserting "or commercial real property";

On page 3, in line 3, after "improvement" by inserting "or commercial real property"; in line 7, after "(c)" by inserting "(1) As used in this subsection:

- (A) "Destroyed or substantially destroyed" means damage sustained by a public grain warehouse as the direct result of an earthquake, flood, tornado, fire, storm or other natural disaster event or occurrence that the governor of the state of Kansas has declared a disaster, whereby the cost of restoring the building or structure to its beforedamaged condition would equal or exceed 50% of the market value of the building or structure before the damage occurred. For purposes of this subsection, such earthquake, flood, tornado, fire, storm or other natural disaster event or occurrence must be declared a disaster by the governor of the state of Kansas.
- (B) "Public grain warehouse" means any grain bin, head house, storage facility or other structure located at a public grain warehouse location licensed pursuant to K.S.A. 34-228, and amendments thereto, or the United States warehouse act, 7 U.S.C. § 241 et seq. and utilized for the storage or handling of grain that is classified as real property for ad valorem tax purposes.

- (2) The owner of any public grain warehouse that was destroyed or substantially destroyed may make application to the board of county commissioners of the county in which such property is located for the abatement of property taxes levied upon such public grain warehouse or for a credit against property taxes payable by such owner, as permitted by this section.
- (A) If such public grain warehouse has been so destroyed or substantially destroyed after January 1 of a particular year but prior to August 15 of such year, the owner of such public grain warehouse may make application to such board of county commissioners for the abatement of property taxes levied upon such public grain warehouse, or if such property taxes have been paid or partially paid, may make application for the granting of a credit against property taxes payable by such owner during any or all of the next succeeding three taxable years.
- (B) If such public grain warehouse has been so destroyed or substantially destroyed on or after August 15 of a particular year but prior to January 1 of the next succeeding year, the owner of such public grain warehouse may make application to such board of county commissioners for the granting of a credit against property taxes payable by such owner during any or all of the next succeeding three taxable years.

  (d)":

Also on page 3, in line 8, by striking "and" and inserting a comma; also in line 8, after "(b)" by inserting "and (c)"; in line 18, after "is" by inserting "a commercial real property or"; in line 19, after "the" by inserting "commercial real property or"; in line 21, after "(b)" by inserting ", whether the property is a public grain warehouse, as defined in subsection (c), whether the public grain warehouse was destroyed or substantially destroyed, as defined in subsection (c)"; in line 22, by striking "or" and inserting ", commercial real property,"; also in line 22, after "improvement" by inserting "or public grain warehouse"; in line 24, by striking the first "or" and inserting ", commercial real property,"; also in line 24, after "improvement" by inserting "or public grain warehouse"; in line 26, after the period by inserting "The board of county commissioners, at the option of the board, may provide the abatement of property taxes for any property or class of properties seeking such abatement.";

Also on page 3, following line 26, by inserting:

"(f) For any city, taxing unit located within a city, school district or community junior college district that has 25% or more of the total parcels of property damaged, such entity may object by passage of a resolution and retain its portion of the abated taxes. An entity may object by resolution within 14 days after notification by the county commission that the county has decided to abate such taxes. The entity's portion of property taxes shall be abated if the entity fails to object within 14 days.";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, after "improvement" by inserting ", public grain warehouse and commercial real property"; and the bill be passed as amended.

# COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Rep. Francis to replace Rep. Wasinger on Committee on Taxation on March 12, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Woodard to replace Rep. Probst on Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development on March 12, 2020.

# REPORT ON ENGROSSED BILLS

HB 2571, HB 2596 reported correctly engrossed March 11, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 8:00 a.m., Friday, March 13, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## FORTIETH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Friday, March 13, 2020, 8:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 116 members present.

Reps. Neighbor and Yeager were excused on verified illness.

Reps. Bishop, Garber, Hineman, Holscher, Huebert, Phillips and Wasinger were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Father Joshua Lollar, Pastor, St. Nicholas Orthodox Christian Church, Lawrence, and guest of Rep. Highberger:

Creator of all, maker of heaven and earth, of all things visible and invisible, God of spirit and flesh who has granted life to the world:

We praise you for the earth, which nourishes us in life and receives us again in death.

May we learn again to live in agreement with its rhythm.

May we see it with eyes of reverence and not of greed.

May our deeds upon the earth be worthy of the place we have been given.

We praise you for you have made us to seek understanding.

May our knowledge become wisdom in governing on behalf of all your people.

May our wisdom become goodness in providing for all your people.

May our goodness become love in living for all your people.

Great healer of soul and body, we humbly ask in this time of spreading disease that we be protected from harm and that comfort be granted to those who are afflicted and to those who care for them.

For you are the hope of the hopeless, the defender of the poor, the help of those who call upon you and the salvation of all. And to you we ascribe glory, always now and ever and unto the ages of ages. Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Frownfelter.

### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2743**, AN ACT concerning courts; relating to alteration or suspension of deadlines to secure the health and safety of court users, staff and judicial officers; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-3402 and 60-206 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Taxation.

### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Federal and State Affairs: **HB 2742**.

Taxation: HB 2741.

#### CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to **SB 354** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the second day.

Objection was made to **HB 2527**, **SCR 1614** appearing on the Consent Calendar; the bill was placed on the Calendar under the heading General Orders.

#### FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

HB 2548, AN ACT concerning certain claims against the state; making appropriations; authorizing certain transfers; imposing certain restrictions and limitations; directing or authorizing certain disbursements, procedures and acts incidental to the foregoing, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 115; Nays 1; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 9.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Horn, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu.

Nays: Carmichael.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Garber, Hineman, Holscher, Huebert, Neighbor, Phillips, Wasinger, Yeager.

The bill passed, as amended.

**HB 2689**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to angel investor tax credits; qualified securities; credit limitations and amounts; investor requirements; expenditures to make principal dwelling accessible to persons with a disability; amending K.S.A. 74-8132, 74-8133, 74-8136 and 79-32,176a and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 103; Nays 12; Present but not voting: 1; Absent or not voting: 9.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Horn, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Parker, F. Patton, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Waymaster, Weigel, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu.

Nays: Baker, Carmichael, Hodge, Jacobs, Jennings, Lusk, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Pannbacker, Stogsdill, Wheeler.

Present but not voting: Helgerson.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Garber, Hineman, Holscher, Huebert, Neighbor, Phillips, Wasinger, Yeager.

The bill passed, as amended.

#### EXPLANATION OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: I vote no on **HB 2689.** Our nation and state are facing economic uncertainty because of the developing public health challenge. Both short and long term implications are unknown. I believe we should exercise discipline and resist the temptation to increase tax credits today to lesson the challenges we will certainly face in the furture. I believe a conservative, disciplined and measured approach is prudent at this point. A week ago, this would have been an easy yes vote. Today, not so much. – J. Russell Jennings, John Carmichael.

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Agriculture recommends SB 307 be passed.

Committee on **Agriculture** recommends **SB 285** be amended by substituting a new bill to be designated as "House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 285," as follows:

"House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 285

# By Committee on Agriculture

"AN ACT concerning health and environment; relating to the Kansas storage tank act; reimbursements; extending the existence of the underground fund, aboveground fund, UST redevelopment fund and the UST redevelopment fund compensation

advisory board; amending K.S.A. 65-34,118, 65-34,119, 65-34,120, 65-34,123, 65-34,134 and 65-34,139 and repealing the existing sections."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(SB 285 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on **Appropriations** recommends **HB 2522** be amended on page 2, in line 4, after the period by inserting "A private stakeholder may certify to the secretary of health and environment that an amount of money is dedicated to the rural hospital innovation grant program. Such certified dedicated moneys shall remain with the private stakeholder until such time as the grant is awarded, and the secretary shall count such certified dedicated moneys to fulfill the public-private match required under this paragraph.";

Also on page 2, in line 5, after "(3)" by inserting "A private stakeholder who has contributed moneys or certified dedicated moneys to the secretary of health and environment may specify a county to receive a grant using such private stakeholder's moneys. If the secretary does not award a grant to the specified county in the same fiscal year as such request, the secretary shall return the amount of contributed moneys to the private stakeholder and any such certification shall lapse.

(4) Prior to applying for a rural hospital innovation grant, any eligible county may enter into memorandums of understanding and other necessary agreements with private stakeholders and other eligible counties.

(5)";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **K-12 Education Budget** recommends **SB 382**, as amended by Senate Committee, be amended on page 1, following line 5, by inserting:

"Section 1. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-4352 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-4352. As used in the tax credit for low income students scholarship program act:

- (a) "Contributions" means monetary gifts or donations and in-kind contributions, gifts or donations that have an established market value.
  - (b) "Department" means the Kansas department of revenue.
- (c) "Educational scholarship" means an amount not to exceed \$8,000 per school year provided to an eligible student, or to a qualified school with respect to an eligible student, to cover all or a portion of the costs of education including tuition, fees and expenses of a qualified school and, if applicable, the costs of transportation to a qualified school if provided by such qualified school.
  - (d) "Eligible student" means a child who:
- (1) (A) Is an at-risk student, as defined in K.S.A. 72-5132, and amendments-thereto, and who is attending a public school; or (B) has been eligible to receive an educational scholarship under this program and has not graduated from high school or reached 21 years of age;
  - (2) Resides in Kansas while eligible for an educational scholarship; and
- (3) (A)(2) (A) (i) is eligible for free or reduced-priced meals under the national school lunch act; and
- (ii) (a) was enrolled in any public school in the previous school year in which an educational scholarship is first sought for the child; or
  - (B)(b) is eligible to be enrolled in any public school in the school year in which an

educational scholarship is first sought for the child and the child is under the age of six years; or

- (B) has received an educational scholarship under the program and has not graduated from high school or reached the age of 21 years.
- (e) "Parent" includes a guardian, custodian or other person with authority to act on behalf of the child.
- (f) "Program" means the tax credit for low income students scholarship program established in K.S.A. 72-4351 through 72-4357, and amendments thereto.
- (g) "Public school" means—an elementary school that is operated by a school-district, and identified by the state board as one of the lowest 100 performing-elementary schools with respect to student achievement among all elementary schools operated by school districts for the current school year any school operated by a unified school district organized under the laws of this state.
  - (h) "Qualified school" means any nonpublic school that:
  - (1) Provides education to elementary or secondary students;
- (2) is accredited by the state board or a national or regional accrediting agency that is recognized by the state board for the purpose of satisfying the teaching performance assessment for professional licensure;
  - (3) has notified the state board of its intention to participate in the program; and
- (4) complies with the requirements of the program. On and after July 1, 2020, a qualified school shall be accredited by the state board or a national or regional accrediting agency that is recognized by the state board for the purpose of satisfying the teaching performance assessment for professional licensure.
- (i) "Scholarship granting organization" means an organization that complies with the requirements of this program and provides educational scholarships to eligible students or to qualified schools in which parents have enrolled eligible students.
- (j) "School district" or "district" means any unified school district organized and operating under the laws of this state.
- (k) "School year"—shall have the meaning ascribed thereto means the same as in K.S.A. 72-5132, and amendments thereto.
  - (1) "Secretary" means the secretary of revenue.
  - (m) "State board" means the state board of education.
- Sec. 2. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-4354 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-4354. (a) To be eligible to participate in the program, a scholarship granting organization shall comply with the following:
- (1) The scholarship granting organization shall notify the secretary and the state board of the scholarship granting organization's intent to provide educational scholarships;
- (2) upon granting an educational scholarship, the scholarship granting organization shall report such information to the state board;
- (3) the scholarship granting organization shall provide verification to the secretary that the scholarship granting organization is exempt from federal income taxation pursuant to section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986;
- (4) upon receipt of contributions in an aggregate amount or value in excess of \$50,000 during a school year, a scholarship granting organization shall file with the state board either:
  - (A) A surety bond payable to the state in an amount equal to the aggregate amount

of contributions expected to be received during the school year; or

- (B) financial information demonstrating the scholarship granting organization's ability to pay an aggregate amount equal to the amount of the contributions expected to be received during the school year, which must be reviewed and approved of in writing by the state board:
- (5) scholarship granting organizations that provide other nonprofit services in addition to providing educational scholarships shall not commingle contributions made under the program with other contributions made to such organization. A scholarship granting organization under this subsection shall also file with the state board, prior to the commencement of each school year, either:
- (A) A surety bond payable to the state in an amount equal to the aggregate amount of contributions expected to be received during the school year; or
- (B) financial information demonstrating the nonprofit organization's ability to pay an aggregate amount equal to the amount of the contributions expected to be received during the school year, which must be reviewed and approved of in writing by the state board:
- (6) each qualified school receiving educational scholarships from the scholarship granting organization shall annually certify to the scholarship granting organization its compliance with the requirements of the program;
- (7) at the end of the calendar year, the scholarship granting organization shall have its accounts examined and audited by a certified public accountant. Such audit shall include, but not be limited to, information verifying that the educational scholarships awarded by the scholarship granting organization were distributed to qualified schools with respect to eligible students determined by the state board under K.S.A. 72-4353(c), and amendments thereto, and information specified in this section. Prior to filing a copy of the audit with the state board, such audit shall be duly verified and certified by a certified public accountant; and
- (8) if a scholarship granting organization decides to limit the number or type of qualified schools who will receive educational scholarships, the scholarship granting organization shall provide, in writing, the name or names of those qualified schools to any contributor and the state board.
- (b) No scholarship granting organization shall provide an educational scholarship with respect to any eligible student to attend any qualified school with paid staff or paid board members, or relatives thereof, in common with the scholarship granting organization.
- (c) The scholarship granting organization shall disburse not less than 90% of contributions received pursuant to the program in the form of educational scholarships within 36 months of receipt of such contributions. If such contributions have not been disbursed within the applicable 36-month time period, then the scholarship granting organization shall not accept new contributions until 90% of the received contributions have been disbursed in the form of educational scholarships. Any income earned from contributions must be disbursed in the form of educational scholarships.
- (d) A scholarship granting organization may continue to provide an educational scholarship with respect to a student who was an eligible student in the year immediately preceding the current school year.
- (e)—(1) A scholarship granting organization shall direct payments of educational scholarships to the qualified school attended by the eligible student or in which the

eligible student is enrolled. Payment may be made by check made payable to both the parent and the qualified school or to only the qualified school. If an eligible student transfers to a new qualified school during a school year, the scholarship granting organization shall direct payment in a prorated amount to the original qualified school and the new qualified school based on the eligible student's attendance. If the eligible student transfers to a public school and enrolls in such public school after September 20 of the current school year, the scholarship granting organization shall direct payment in a prorated amount to the original qualified school and the public school based on the eligible student's attendance. The prorated amount to the public school shall be considered a donation and shall be paid to the school district of such public school in accordance with K.S.A. 72-1142, and amendments thereto.

- (2) As used in this subsection, the term "public school" means any school operated by a school district.
- (f) Each qualified school shall provide a link to the state department of education's webpage where the reports prepared pursuant to K.S.A. 72-5170, and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5178, and amendments thereto, for such school are published. The link shall be prominently displayed on the school's accountability reports webpage.
- (g) By June 1 of each year, a scholarship granting organization shall submit a report to the state board for the educational scholarships provided in the immediately preceding 12 months. Such report shall be in a form and manner as prescribed by the state board, approved and signed by a certified public accountant, and shall contain the following information:
  - (1) The name and address of the scholarship granting organization;
- (2) the name and address of each eligible student with respect to whom an educational scholarship was awarded by the scholarship granting organization;
- (3) the total number and total dollar amount of contributions received during the 12-month reporting period; and
- (4) the total number and total dollar amount of educational scholarships awarded during the 12-month reporting period and the total number and total dollar amount of educational scholarships awarded during the 12-month reporting period with respect to eligible students who qualified under K.S.A. 72-4352(d), and amendments thereto.
  - (g)(h) No scholarship granting organization shall:
- (1) Provide an educational scholarship with respect to an eligible student that is established by funding from any contributions made by any relative of such eligible student; or
- (2) accept a contribution from any source with the express or implied condition that such contribution be directed toward an educational scholarship for a particular eligible student.
- Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5178 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-5178. (a) On or before January 15 of each year, the state department of education shall prepare and submit a performance accountability report and a longitudinal achievement report for all students enrolled in public school or accredited nonpublic school in the state, each school district and, each school operated by a school district and each accredited nonpublic school to the governor and to the legislature.
- (b) Each performance accountability report shall be prepared in a single-page format containing the information that is required to be reported under the federal

elementary and secondary education act, as amended by the federal every student succeeds act, public law 114-95, or any successor federal acts, and the college and career readiness metrics developed and implemented by the state board. The report shall use the categories for achievement identified under the federal every student succeeds act, public law 114-95, or any successor achievement categories. All categories and metrics included in the report shall be clearly defined.

- (c) Each longitudinal achievement report shall provide the achievement rates on the state assessments for English language arts, math and science for all students and each student subgroup and the change in achievement rate year-over-year starting with the school year in which the state board first implemented new achievement standards on such state assessments.
- (d) All reports prepared pursuant to this section shall be published in accordance with K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-1181, and amendments thereto.";

On page 2, in line 16, after "(A)" by inserting "Except as provided in subsection (b) (8),"; in line 18, by striking all after the period; by striking all in lines 19 and 20; in line 21, by striking "such district.";

On page 4, in line 31, by striking "2015," and inserting "2020:

(A)";

Also on page 4, in line 35, before the period by inserting "; and

(B) in determining the amount of the AVPP of a school district, the state board shall exclude the number of students enrolled in a virtual school offered by such school district from the calculation of the AVPP of such school district";

On page 5, in line 26, after "Supp." by inserting "72-4352, 72-4354, 72-5178 and"; also in line 26, by striking "is" and inserting "are";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, after "to" by inserting "the tax credit for low income students scholarship program act; expanding student eligibility for the program; adjusting the calculation of"; in line 2, by striking "determination"; also in line 2, after "Supp." by inserting "72-4352, 72-4354, 72-5178 and"; in line 3, by striking "section" and inserting "sections"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **SB 305**, as amended by Senate Committee, be passed.

Committee on Transportation recommends SB 306 be passed.

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Your Committee on Calendar and Printing recommends on requests for resolutions and certificates that

**Request No. 54**, by Representative Ralph, congratulating Joann Knight on the 2019 Rural Economic Development Leadership Award.

**Request No. 55**, by Representative Francis, congratulating Whitney Hay, winner of the 2020 International Pancake Day Race in Liberal, Kansas.

**Request No. 56**, by Representative Francis, commending the Meadowlark Elementary School 4th Grade for their role in RS 3067, designating the Black-Tailed Prairie Dog and the official Rodent of the state of Kansas.

**Request No. 57**, by Representative Pittman, congratulating Spencer Angell and Anna Hastings, elected International Thespian Officers 2019-2020.

**Request No. 58**, by Representative Pittman, congratulating David Tate Hastings and Jennifer Morgan-Beuchat for their work with Kansas Thespians.

**Request No. 59**, by Representative Pittman, congratulating Leavenworth High School on Kansas Thespians Outstanding School 2019 and Theatre Impact Award 2019.

**Request No. 60**, by Representative Woodard, congratulating Doug and Terry Obershaw for JCCC Exporting Business of the Year.

**Request No. 61**, by Representative Newland, commending Ben Cutler for his Monumental Scholarship Gift that will forever change the lives of the Neodesha High School graduates and the community.

**Request No. 62**, by Representative Ohaebosim, in memory of Mrs. Rose Enwerem Duruoshimiri.

Request No. 63, by Representative Ohaebosim, in memory of Florence Nwosu.

**Request No. 64**, by Representative Barker, congratulating Abilene Middle School Boys Basketball team the Longhorns on winning the 2020 NCKL Championship.

**Request No. 65**, by Representative Concannon, congratulating Landon Eilert for receiving the 2020 President's Volunteer Service Award.

Request No. 66, by Representative Karleskint, congratulating Katie Cooke for earning the Patriot's Pen National Award.

**Request No. 67**, by Representative Karleskint, congratulating Brianna Ball for earning the Voice of Democracy National Scholarship Award.

**Request No. 68**, by Representative Susan Humphries, congratulating Carly Bowden Seventh Grade Math Teacher at Andover on receiving the 2019-2020 Milken Educator Award.

**Request No. 69**, by Representative Louis Ruiz, congratulating Susan Crain Lewis, CEO and President of Mental Health America of the Heartland on her exemplary health services for over 20 years.

**Request No. 70**, by Representative Barb Wasinger, congratulating Kathy Wagoner, 2020 Kansas Master Teacher of the Year.

**Request No. 71**, by Representative's Jim Kelly and Doug Blex, congratulating Alexis Allen, Independence High School Lady Bulldogs on first ever title of Girls All-Class State Champion KSHSAA Girls Wrestling.

be approved and the Chief Clerk of the House be directed to order the printing of said certificates and order drafting of said resolutions.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the committee report was adopted.

#### COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker pro tem Finch announced the appointment of Rep. Frownfelter to replace Rep. Henderson on Committee on Federal and State Affairs on March 16 and 17, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 11:00 a.m.

#### LATE MORNING SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following concurrent resolution was introduced and read by title:

## HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. HCR 5025—

By Representatives Ryckman, Sawyer, Finch, Hawkins and Winn

HCR 5025—A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION ratifying the March 12, 2020, State of Disaster Emergency declaration issued by Governor Laura Kelly and providing for the continuation thereof for the entire 105 counties of Kansas through January 25, 2021.

WHEREAS, On March 12, 2020, Governor Laura Kelly issued a State of Disaster Emergency declaration in response to confirmed cases of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) in the state of Kansas and considers that a public health emergency exists within the state of Kansas. The United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) identifies the potential public health threat posed by COVID-19 both globally and in the United States as "high," and the United States Department of Health & Human Services declared a public health emergency for COVID-19 beginning January 27, 2020. The World Health Organization (WHO) declared a global pandemic on March 11, 2020: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas, the Senate concurring therein: That the State of Disaster Emergency declaration issued on March 12, 2020, for the entire 105 counties of Kansas in accordance with K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto, is hereby ratified and continued in force and effect on and after March 12, 2020, through January 25, 2021, subject to extension by the State Finance Council in accordance with K.S.A. 48-924(b)(3), and amendments thereto.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

Speaker Ryckman announced the referral of HCR 5025 to Committee of the Whole.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, pursuant to House Rule 2311, HCR 5025 was advanced to Final Action on Bills and Concurrent Resolutions, subject to amendment, debate and roll call.

# FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

HCR 5025, A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION ratifying the March 12, 2020, State of Disaster Emergency declaration issued by Governor Laura Kelly and providing for the continuation thereof for the entire 105 counties of Kansas through January 25, 2021, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 116; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 9.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Horn, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Garber, Hineman, Holscher, Huebert, Neighbor, Phillips, Wasinger, Yeager.

The resolution was adopted.

## REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was referred to committee as indicated:

Judiciary: HB 2743

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 2:00 p.m.

### AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recesss with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends  $SB\ 102$  be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 102," as follows:

"House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 102

By Committee on Judiciary

"AN ACT concerning courts; relating to extension or suspension of deadlines or time limitations to secure the health and safety of court users, staff and judicial officers; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-3402 and 60-206 and repealing the existing sections."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(H Sub for SB 102 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **SB 275**, as amended by Senate Committee, be amended on page 3, in line 43, by striking all after "privileges";

On page 4, by striking all in lines 1 through 5; in line 6, by striking all before the period; also in line 6, after the period by inserting "No application fee shall be collected

in connection with such written request."; in line 9, by striking all after "citations"; by striking all in lines 10 through 16; in line 17 by striking all before the period; also in line 17, after the period by inserting "No application fee shall be collected in connection with such written request.

(C)";

Also on page 4, in line 18, by striking "this section" and inserting "subsection (b)(2) (A) or (b)(2)(B)"; in line 19, by striking "that expired"; in line 22, after "(b)(1)" by inserting "and there is no other basis for the license suspension or cancellation except for violations of this section"; in line 26, by striking "(C)" and inserting "(D)";

On page 5, in line 21, by striking "On and after July 1, 2018,"; in line 23, after "citation" by inserting "issued on and after July 1, 2020,"; in line 24, by striking all after "\$100"; by striking all in lines 25 and 26; in line 27, by striking all before the period and inserting "for each case"; in line 28, by striking all after the first comma; in line 29, after "penalties" by inserting "and shall only be collected after a person has been determined to be eligible for reinstatement";

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, after the second semicolon by inserting "removing and changing certain fees that apply to individuals for failure to comply with a traffic citation;"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **SB 326** be amended on page 1, following line 6, by inserting:

- "Section 1. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-234b is hereby amended to read as follows: 8-234b. (a) Every original driver's license issued by the division shall indicate the class or classes of motor vehicles—which that the licensee is entitled to drive. For this purpose the following classes are established:
- (1) Commercial class A motor vehicles include any combination of vehicles with a gross combination weight rating or gross combination weight of 26,001 pounds or more, providing the gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight of the vehicle or vehicles being towed is in excess of 10,000 pounds;
- (2) commercial class B motor vehicles include any single vehicle with a gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight of 26,001 pounds or more, or any such vehicle towing a vehicle not in excess of 10,000 pounds gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight;
- (3) commercial class C motor vehicles include any single vehicle less than 26,001 pounds gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight, or any such vehicle towing a vehicle not in excess of 10,000 pounds, or any vehicle less than 26,001 pounds gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight towing a vehicle in excess of 10,000 pounds gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight, provided the gross combination weight rating or gross combination weight of the combination is less than 26,001 pounds comprising:
  - (A) Vehicles designed to transport 16 or more passengers, including the driver; or
- (B) vehicles used in the transportation of hazardous materials—which that requires the vehicle to be placarded;
- (4) class A motor vehicles include any combination of vehicles with a gross combination weight rating or gross combination weight of 26,001 pounds or more, provided the gross combination weight rating or gross combination weight of the vehicle or vehicles being towed is in excess of 10,000 pounds, and all other lawful

combinations of vehicles with a gross combination weight rating or gross combination weight of 26,001 pounds, or more; except that, Class A-does motor vehicles do not include a combination of vehicles that has a truck registered as a farm truck under K.S.A. 8-143, and amendments thereto;

- (5) class B motor vehicles include any single vehicle with a gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight of 26,001 pounds or more, or any such vehicle towing a vehicle not in excess of 10,000 pounds gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight. Class B motor vehicles do not include a single vehicle registered as a farm truck under K.S.A. 8-143, and amendments thereto, when such farm truck has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight of 26,001 pounds; or more; or any fire truck operated by a volunteer fire department;
- (6) class C motor vehicles include any single vehicle with a gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight less than 26,001 pounds, or any such vehicle towing a vehicle not in excess of 10,000 pounds gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight, or any vehicle with—a less than 26,001 gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight towing a vehicle in excess of 10,000 pounds gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight, provided the gross combination weight rating or gross vehicle weight of the combination is less than 26,001 pounds, or any single vehicle registered as a farm truck under K.S.A. 8-143, and amendments thereto, when such farm truck has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight of 26,001 pounds, or more, or any fire truck operated by a volunteer fire department or any autocycle; and
- (7) class M motor vehicles includes motorcycles, but does not include autocycles. As used in this subsection, "gross vehicle weight rating" means the value specified by the manufacturer as the maximum loaded weight of a single or a combination (articulated) vehicle. The gross vehicle weight rating of a combination (articulated) vehicle, commonly referred to as the gross combination weight rating, is the gross vehicle weight rating of the power unit plus the gross vehicle weight rating of the towed unit or units.
- (b) Every applicant for an original driver's license shall indicate on such person's application the class or classes of motor vehicles—for which that the applicant desires a license to drive, and the division shall not issue a driver's license to any person unless such person has demonstrated satisfactorily ability to exercise ordinary and reasonable control in the operation of motor vehicles in the class or classes—for which that the applicant desires a license to drive. The division shall administer an appropriate examination of each applicant's ability to drive such motor vehicles. Except as provided in K.S.A. 8-2,125 through 8-2,142, and amendments thereto, the director of vehicles may accept a copy of the certificate of a person's road test issued to an individual under the regulatory requirements of the United States department of transportation, in lieu of requiring the person to demonstrate ability to operate any motor vehicle or combination of vehicles, if such certificate was issued not more than three years prior to the person's application for a driver's license.
- (c) Any person who is the holder of a valid driver's license—which that entitles the person to drive class A motor vehicles may also drive class B and C motor vehicles. Any person who is the holder of a valid driver's license—which that entitles the person to drive class B motor vehicles may also drive class C motor vehicles.
- (d) The secretary of revenue shall adopt rules and regulations establishing qualifications for the safe operation of the various types, sizes and combinations of

vehicles in each class of motor vehicles established in subsection (a). Such rules and regulations shall include the adoption of at least the minimum qualifications for commercial drivers' licenses contained in the commercial motor vehicle safety act of 1986

- (e) Any reference in the motor vehicle drivers' license act to a class or classes of motor vehicles is a reference to the classes of motor vehicles established in subsection (a), and any reference in the motor vehicle drivers' license act to a classified driver's license or a class of driver's license means a driver's license—which\_that restricts the holder thereof to driving one or more of such classes of motor vehicles.
- (f) The secretary of revenue may enter into a contract with any person, who meets the qualifications imposed on persons regularly employed by the division as drivers' license examiners, to accept applications for drivers' licenses and to administer the examinations required for the issuance of drivers' licenses.
- (g) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a), any person employed as an automotive mechanic who possesses a valid class C driver's license may drive any class A or class B motor vehicle on the highways for the purpose of determining the proper performance of the vehicle, except that this does not include commercial class A, B or C vehicles.":

On page 6, following line 14, by inserting:

- "Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-247 is hereby amended to read as follows: 8-247. (a) (1) All original licenses issued on and after July 1, 2018, shall expire as follows:
- (A) Licenses issued to persons who are at least 21 years of age; but less than 65 years of age shall expire on the sixth anniversary of the date of birth of the licensee which that is nearest the date of application;
- (B) licenses issued to persons who are 65 years of age or older shall expire on the fourth anniversary of the date of birth of the licensee—which that is nearest the date of application;
- (C) any commercial driver's license shall expire on the fifth anniversary of the date of birth of the licensee which that is nearest the date of application;
- (D) licenses issued to an offender, as defined in K.S.A. 22-4902, and amendments thereto, who is required to register pursuant to the Kansas offender registration act, K.S.A. 22-4901 et seq., and amendments thereto, shall expire every year on the date of birth of the licensee; or
- (E) licenses issued to persons who are less than 21 years of age shall expire on the licensee's 21st birthday.
- (2) All renewals under: (A) Paragraph (1)(A) shall expire on every sixth anniversary of the date of birth of the licensee; (B) paragraph (1)(B) shall expire on every fourth anniversary of the date of birth of the licensee; (C) paragraph (1)(C) shall expire on every fifth anniversary of the date of birth of the licensee; (D) paragraph (1) (D) shall expire every year on the date of birth of the licensee; and (E) paragraph (1)(E), if a renewal license is issued, shall expire on the licensee's 21st birthday. No driver's license shall expire in the same calendar year—in which when the original license or renewal license is issued, except that if the foregoing provisions of this section shall require the issuance of a renewal license or an original license for a period of less than six calendar months, the license issued to the applicant shall expire in accordance with the provisions of this subsection.
  - (b) If the driver's license of any person expires while such person is outside of the

state of Kansas and such person is on active duty in the armed forces of the United States, or is the spouse or a person who is residing with and is a dependent of such person on active duty, the license of such person shall be renewable, without examination, at any time prior to the end of the sixth month following the discharge of such person from the armed forces, or within 90 days after residence within the state is reestablished, whichever time is sooner. If the driver's license of any person under this subsection expires while such person is outside the United States, the division shall provide for renewal by mail, as long as the division has a photograph or digital image of such person maintained in the division's records. A driver's license renewed under the provisions of this subsection shall be renewed by mail only once.

- (c) At least 30 days prior to the expiration of a person's license, the division shall mail, or send electronically if authorized by the person, a notice of expiration or renewal application to such person at the address shown on the license or the electronic mail address provided to the division. A person may at any time revoke the authorization to receive the notice electronically provided by this subsection, and any notice sent by the division after the date of the revocation shall be mailed to such person. The division shall include with such notice a written explanation of substantial changes to traffic regulations enacted by the legislature.
- (d) (1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), every driver's license shall be renewable on or before its expiration upon application and payment of the required fee and successful completion of the examinations required by subsection (e). Application for renewal of a valid driver's license shall be made to the division in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary of revenue. Such application shall contain all the requirements of K.S.A. 8-240(b), and amendments thereto. Such notice shall also include a question asking if the applicant is willing to give such applicant's authorization to be listed as an organ, eye and tissue donor in the Kansas donor registry in accordance with the revised uniform anatomical gift act, K.S.A. 65-3220 through 65-3244, and amendments thereto. Upon satisfying the foregoing requirements of this subsection, and if the division makes the findings required by K.S.A. 8-235b, and amendments thereto, for the issuance of an original license, the license shall be renewed without examination of the applicant's driving ability. If the division finds that any of the statements relating to revocation, suspension or refusal of licenses required under K.S.A. 8-240(b), and amendments thereto, are in the affirmative, or if it finds that the license held by the applicant is not a valid one, or if the applicant has failed to make application for renewal of such person's license on or before the expiration date thereof, the division may require the applicant to take an examination of ability to exercise ordinary and reasonable control in the operation of a motor vehicle as provided in K.S.A. 8-235d, and amendments thereto.
- (2) Any licensee, whose driver's license expires on the licensee's 21<sup>st</sup> birthday, shall have 45 days from the date of expiration of such license to make application to renew such licensee's license. Such license shall continue to be valid for such 45 days or until such license is renewed, whichever occurs sooner. A licensee who renews under the provisions of this paragraph shall not be required by the division to take an examination of ability to exercise ordinary and reasonable control in the operation of a motor vehicle as provided in K.S.A. 8-235d, and amendments thereto.
- (e) (1) Prior to renewal of a driver's license, the applicant shall pass an examination of eyesight. Such examination shall be equivalent to the test required for an original

driver's license under K.S.A. 8-235d, and amendments thereto. A driver's license examiner shall administer the examination without charge and shall report the results of the examination on a form provided by the division.

- (2) In lieu of the examination of the applicant's eyesight by the examiner, the applicant may submit a report on the examination of eyesight by a physician licensed to practice medicine and surgery or by a licensed optometrist. The report shall be based on an examination of the applicant's eyesight not more than three months prior to the date the report is submitted, and it shall be made on a form furnished by the division to the applicant.
- (3) The division shall determine whether the results of the eyesight examination or report is sufficient for renewal of the license and, if the results of the eyesight examination or report is insufficient, the division shall notify the applicant of such fact and return the license fee. In determining the sufficiency of an applicant's eyesight, the division may request an advisory opinion of the medical advisory board,—which and the board is hereby authorized to render such opinions.
- (4) An applicant who is denied a license under this subsection—(e) may reapply for renewal of such person's driver's license, except that if such application is not made within 90 days of the date the division sent notice to the applicant that the license would not be renewed, the applicant shall proceed as if applying for an original driver's license.
- (5) When the division has good cause to believe that an applicant for renewal of a driver's license is incompetent or otherwise not qualified to operate a motor vehicle in accord with the public safety and welfare, the division may require such applicant to submit to such additional examinations as are necessary to determine that the applicant is qualified to receive the license applied for. Subject to paragraph (6), in so evaluating such qualifications, the division may request an advisory opinion of the medical advisory board—which, and the board is hereby authorized to render such opinions in addition to its duties prescribed by K.S.A. 8-255b(b), and amendments thereto. Any such applicant who is denied the renewal of such a driver's license because of a mental or physical disability shall be afforded a hearing in the manner prescribed by K.S.A. 8-255(c), and amendments thereto.
- (6) Seizure disorders which that are controlled shall not be considered a disability. In cases where such seizure disorders are not controlled, the director or the medical advisory board may recommend that such person be issued a driver's license to drive class C or M vehicles and restricted to operating such vehicles as the division determines to be appropriate to assure the safe operation of a motor vehicle by the licensee. Restricted licenses issued pursuant to this paragraph shall be subject to suspension or revocation. For the purpose of this paragraph, seizure disorders-which that are controlled means that the licensee has not sustained a seizure involving a loss of consciousness in the waking state within six months preceding the application or renewal of a driver's license and whenever a person licensed to practice medicine and surgery makes a written report to the division stating that the licensee's seizures are controlled. The report shall be based on an examination of the applicant's medical condition not more than three months prior to the date the report is submitted. Such report shall be made on a form furnished to the applicant by the division. Any physician who makes such report shall not be liable for any damages-which that may be attributable to the issuance or renewal of a driver's license and subsequent operation of

a motor vehicle by the licensee.

- (f) If the driver's license of any person expires while such person is outside the state of Kansas, the license of such person shall be extended for a period not to exceed six months and shall be renewable, without a driving examination, at any time prior to the end of the sixth month following the original expiration date of such license or within 10 days after such person returns to the state, whichever time is sooner. This subsection shall not apply to temporary drivers' licenses issued pursuant to K.S.A. 8-240(b)(3), and amendments thereto.
- (g) (1) The division shall reference the website of the agency in a person's notice of expiration or renewal under subsection (c). The division shall provide the following information on the website of the agency:
- (1)(A) Information explaining the person's right to make an anatomical gift in accordance with K.S.A. 8-243, and amendments thereto, and the revised uniform anatomical gift act, K.S.A. 65-3220 through 65-3244, and amendments thereto;
- (2)(B) information describing the organ donation registry program maintained by the Kansas federally designated organ procurement organization. The information required under this paragraph shall include, in a type, size and format that is conspicuous in relation to the surrounding material, the address and telephone number of Kansas' federally designated organ procurement organization, along with an advisory to call such designated organ procurement organization with questions about the organ donor registry program;
- (3)(C) information giving the applicant the opportunity to be placed on the organ donation registry described in paragraph (2) subparagraph (B); and
- (4) inform the applicant (D) information that, if the applicant indicates under this subsection a willingness to have such applicant's name placed on the organ donor registry described in—paragraph (2) subparagraph (B), the division will forward the applicant's name, gender, date of birth and most recent address to the organ donation registry maintained by the Kansas federally designated organ procurement organization, as required by paragraph (6); (3).
- $\frac{(5)(2)}{(2)}$  The division may fulfill the requirements of paragraph- $\frac{(4)}{(1)(D)}$  by one or more of the following methods:
  - (A) Providing such information on the website of the agency; or
- (B) providing printed material to an applicant who personally appears at an examining station; and.
- (6)(3) If an applicant indicates a willingness under this subsection to have such applicant's name placed on the organ donor registry, the division shall within 10 days forward the applicant's name, gender, date of birth and most recent address to the organ donor registry maintained by the Kansas federally designated organ procurement organization. The division may forward information under this subsection by mail or by electronic means. The division shall not maintain a record of the name or address of an individual who indicates a willingness to have such person's name placed on the organ donor registry after forwarding that information to the organ donor registry under this subsection. Information about an applicant's indication of a willingness to have such applicant's name placed on the organ donor registry that is obtained by the division and forwarded under this paragraph shall be confidential and not disclosed.
- (h) Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, any offender under subsection (a) (1)(D) who held a valid driver's license on the effective date of this act may continue to

operate motor vehicles until the next anniversary of the date of birth of such offender. Upon such date, such driver's license shall expire, and the offender shall be subject to the provisions of this section.

(i) The director of the division of vehicles shall submit a report to the legislature at the beginning of the regular session in 2012 regarding the impact of not requiring a written test for the renewal of a driver's license, including any cost savings to the division.";

Also on page 6, in line 15, after "Supp." by inserting "8-234b,"; also in line 15, by striking "is" and inserting "and 8-247 are";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, after the semicolon by inserting "providing for drivers' license renewal notices to be delivered electronically; clarifying the weight restrictions for certain classes of drivers' licenses;"; also in line 3, after "Supp." by inserting "8-234b,"; also in line 3, after "8-240" by inserting "and 8-247"; in line 4, by striking "section" and inserting "sections"; and the bill be passed as amended.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until the sound of the gavel.

### LATE AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recesss with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

### REPORT ON ENGROSSED BILLS

HB 2548, HB 2689 reported correctly engrossed March 12, 2020.

### REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HR 6039 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on March 13, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Monday, March 16, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# FORTY-FIRST DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Monday, March 16, 2020, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 118 members present.

Reps. Carlin, Probst and Yeager were excused on verified illness.

Reps. Bishop, Carmicael, Kuether and Ousley were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Present later: Reps. Carmichael and Probst.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Rev. Juliet Kent-Hemphill, Pastor, St. John A.M.E. Church, Topeka:

Father God.

I pray for these who serve this nation, for they serve you.

There is no authority except from God, and these gathered here, whether they realize it or not, are your servant for the good of the people of the United States of America.

I pray for the men and women in this room and those who are yet to come. Help them to recognize you, come to trust in you, look to you and live in the fear of you and not of men.

Father, help them to make good and godly decisions that are right, based on the authority of Your Holy Spirit and motivated by your Word.

I pray for the many representatives who are your children by faith in Jesus Christ. Grant them your favor and blessing, raise them up to do your will and help them to stand on the reality that no matter what the challenge your truth will prevail.

Father, I pray you give them godly strength for the work that they do. Give them great wisdom for the decisions they make and lead them by the Holy Spirit for direction in which they lead this nation.

God, cleanse their motives, and protect them from pride, help them to bow to your will and not break under the weight of adversity, and may they never forget your promise "He who honors me I will honor, and I will despise those who think lightly of me." We thank you for all you will do through them, in them, and with them.

In Jesus' name, the one and only name by which we have a way into heaven, I pray. Amen

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Wolfe Moore.

### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Humphries are spread upon the Journal:

It is my great privilege to introduce you today to Carly Bowden, a recipient of the prestigious 2019-2020 Milken Educator Award. I'll tell you more about the award in a minute, but first I want to tell you about Carly.

First, she is BRAVE...Brave to come to the capitol today and meet in this large group And brave because she teaches math to middle schoolers!

Carly grew up in Topeka, and graduated from Emporia State in 2015. She teaches 7th grade math at Andover Central middle school. Her philosophy of teaching is all about relationships! She teaches her students through being interested in their activities, and creating learning experiences for them - when they don't even know they are learning! Some recent examples ... instead of a paper math test, she took her class to Dillons with real dollars and learned math. She has also transformed her room into an escape room...landing a spaceship.

And about the award . . . only 40 educators nationwide receive the Milken Educator Award. Get this . . . there are over 3.2 million public school teachers in the U.S. WOW... such an honor for Carly...and also for us to recognize her here today. Please join me in celebrating Carly Bowden!

Rep. Humphries presented Ms. Bowden with a framed House certificate in recognition of her accomplishment.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 11:35 a.m.

## LATE MORNING SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2744**, AN ACT concerning children and minors; relating to risk and needs assessment for certain children in need of care; overall case length limits for juvenile offenders; requiring the department of corrections to create juvenile justice data systems; increasing use of evidence-based programs account money; amending K.S.A. 75-52,162 and 75-52,164 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 38-2203, 38-2304 and 38-2391 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

**HB 2745**, AN ACT concerning energy policy; relating to the state corporation commission; development of a state energy plan, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

# CONSENT CALENDAR

Objection was made to  ${\bf SB~354}$  appearing on the Consent Calendar; the bill was placed on the Calendar under the heading General Orders.

#### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Appropriations** recommends **HB 2588** be amended on page 1, in line 10, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 12, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; by striking all in lines 20 through 22; in line 23, by striking all before the period and inserting "The secretary shall establish targets for the state highway system condition that reflect the reasonable, realistic expectations that have historically existed in providing a safe and efficient state highway system. The secretary shall utilize reasonable, sound and accepted methods to determine the annual preservation investment needed to achieve the state targets and provide optimum cost effectiveness in keeping the long-term state highway system condition meeting such targets";

Also on page 1, in line 24, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 27, before the semicolon by inserting ". The secretary shall manage cash-flow and project lettings such that there is reasonable assurance that preservation projects shall be fully funded each year. Pursuant to this subparagraph, preservation projects refer to maintenance, repairs or replacement of existing infrastructure";

On page 2, in line 19, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 23, by striking "2023" and inserting "2022"; also in line 23, before "A" by inserting "The secretary shall let to construction contract the remaining transportation works for Kansas program projects before any new modernization or expansion project, or both, under the Eisenhower legacy transportation program are let to construction."; in line 30, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy";

On page 3, in line 12, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 16, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 20, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 24, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 28, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 32, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 36, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 39, by striking "Motor fuel taxes and vehicle registration revenues" and inserting "State highway fund revenues that include, but are not limited to, motor fuel taxes, vehicle registrations, sales and compensating use taxes and eligible federal aid";

On page 4, following line 6, by inserting:

"(3) All new bonds issued for the purposes of the Eisenhower legacy transportation program shall be paid using revenue collected or received pursuant to K.S.A. 79-3620(c) and 79-3710(c), and amendments thereto.";

Also on page 4, in line 9, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 17, after "(2)" by inserting "(A) It is the intent of the legislature that the secretary shall develop a metric-driven process that determines a reasonable and fair minimum amount of state highway fund moneys to be spent on new modernization and expansion projects in each of the Kansas department of transportation's six districts over the duration of the Eisenhower legacy transportation program.

- (B) The process for determining the minimum amount of modernization and expansion project moneys shall be subject to the following:
- (i) Adding together the minimum moneys set for each of the Kansas department of transportation's six districts pursuant to paragraph (2)(A), the total shall be at least 50% of the estimated cost of constructing all modernization and expansion projects let to contract in the Eisenhower legacy transportation program.

- (ii) If the estimated cost of constructing all modernization and expansion projects in the Eisenhower legacy transportation program increases or decreases by more than 10%, then the minimum amounts will be adjusted accordingly while still satisfying paragraph (2)(B)(i).
- (iii) For each of the Kansas department of transportation's six districts, at least 40% of the minimum amounts determined in paragraph (2)(A), or adjusted amounts according to paragraph (2)(B)(ii), shall be let to construction contract by year five of the Eisenhower legacy transportation program, and 100% of the minimum amounts determined in paragraph (2)(A), or adjusted amounts according to paragraph (2)(B)(ii), shall be let to construction contract by year 10 of the Eisenhower legacy transportation program.
- (iv) Any modernization or expansion projects remaining from the transportation works for Kansas program pursuant to K.S.A. 68-2314b, and amendments thereto, shall not be considered when determining the minimum amounts in paragraph (2)(A) or (2) (B)(i).

(3)":

Also on page 4, by striking all in lines 22 through 24; in line 25, after "(n)" by inserting "It is the intent of the legislature that the secretary take the actions necessary to have transportation improvement projects ready to let to construction as cash-flow management allows.

(o)";

Also on page 4, in line 28, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 29, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy";

On page 6, in line 4, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; in line 8, by striking all after "thereto"; by striking all in lines 9 through 15; in line 16, by striking all before the period; also in line 16, after the period by inserting "Alternative delivery procurement methods shall only be used when such methods are a condition of projects obtained through federal grants."; in line 18, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy";

On page 7, following line 39, by inserting:

- "New Sec. 5. (a) There is hereby established in the state treasury the short line rail improvement fund. The short line rail improvement fund shall be administered by the secretary of transportation. Expenditures from the short line rail improvement fund may be made for any qualified railroad track maintenance expenditure constructed by an eligible entity. Qualified railroad track maintenance expenditures shall be matched on a 70% state moneys to 30% eligible entity moneys basis. All expenditures from the short line rail improvement fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the secretary of transportation or the secretary's designee.
- (b) On July 1, 2020, and each July 1 thereafter through July 1, 2022, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$5,000,000 from the state highway fund to the short line rail improvement fund.
  - (c) For purposes of this section:
  - (1) "Eligible entity" means:
- (A) Class II or class III railroad as defined in 49 C.F.R. § 1201.1-1(a), as in effect on January 1, 2020; or
  - (B) any owner or lessee industry track located on or adjacent to a class II or class

III railroad in the state of Kansas; and

(2) "qualified railroad track maintenance expenditure" means gross expenditures for maintenance, reconstruction or replacement of railroad track, including roadbed, bridges, industrial leads and side track, and related track structures to the extent the expenditures are on track located in the state of Kansas, and the track was owned or leased by an eligible entity as of January 1, 2020.";

On page 9, by striking all in lines 10 through 14 and inserting "(4) anticipated annual payouts of construction projects already under contract and any proposed construction projects for the next three fiscal years. Such payouts shall be listed separately for those payouts for preservation projects from payouts for modernization and expansion projects;

- (5) proposed construction projects to be let to contract in the current fiscal year and anticipated breakdowns of anticipated annual payouts for the next three fiscal years for those projects;
- (6) a detailed breakdown of anticipated annual expenditures for the next three fiscal years on remaining agency debt service, programs and operations;
  - (7) annual expenditures from paragraphs (4) through (6);
- (8) a comparison of annual revenue expected into the state highway fund, including state highway fund ending balance carryovers, for the next three fiscal years;
- (9) for any construction project let in the Eisenhower legacy transportation program that is more than \$5,000,000, an explanation of all initial bids submitted for such project and the actual final cost of construction for such project:":

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

On page 10, in line 23, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy transportation";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking "FORWARD" and inserting "Eisenhower legacy"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Appropriations** recommends **HB 2597** be amended by substituting a new bill to be designated as "Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2597," as follows:

"Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2597

# By Committee on Appropriations

"AN ACT making and concerning appropriations for fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022, for state agencies; authorizing certain transfers, capital improvement projects and fees, imposing certain restrictions and limitations, and directing or authorizing certain receipts, disbursements, procedures and acts incidental to the foregoing; amending K.S.A. 75-2263, 75-6707, 76-775, 76-7,107, 79-2959, 79-2964, 79-3425i, 79-34,171, 79-4804 and 82a-953a and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-223, 12-1775a, 12-5256, 55-193, 74-50,107 and 74-99b34 and repealing the existing sections."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(Sub HB 2597 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on Elections recommends HB 2606 be passed.

Committee on **Elections** recommends **HB 2687**, be amended by adoption of the amendments recommended by the House Committee on Elections as reported in the Journal of the House on February 21, 2020, and the bill, as printed with amendments by House Committee, be passed as amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2401** be amended by adoption of the amendments recommended by the House Committee on Federal and State Affairs, as reported in the Journal of the House on January 30, 2020; the bill, as printed with House Committee amendments, be further amended on page 1, in line 7, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019";

On page 2, in line 9, after the period by inserting "The provisions of this subsection shall expire on July 1, 2023."; in line 10, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019";

On page 3, in line 35, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019"; in line 40, after the period by inserting "The provisions of this subparagraph shall expire on July 1, 2023.";

On page 4, in line 24, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019"; in line 35, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019";

On page 5, in line 8, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019";

On page 1, in the title, in line 3, by striking "2018" and inserting "2019"; and the bill be passed as further amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **SB 373** be amended on page 1, following line 9, by inserting:

"New Section 1. (a) The provisions of this section shall apply only in a prosecution for:

- (1) Rape, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5503, and amendments thereto;
- (2) indecent liberties with a child, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5506(a), and amendments thereto;
- (3) aggravated indecent liberties with a child, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5506(b), and amendments thereto;
- (4) criminal sodomy, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5504(a)(3) and (4), and amendments thereto;
- (5) aggravated criminal sodomy, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5504(b), and amendments thereto:
- (6) aggravated indecent solicitation of a child, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5508(b), and amendments thereto;
- (7) sexual exploitation of a child, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5510, and amendments thereto;
- (8) aggravated sexual battery, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5505(b), and amendments thereto;
  - (9) incest, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5604(a), and amendments thereto;
- (10) aggravated incest, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5604(b), and amendments thereto;
- (11) indecent solicitation of a child, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5508(a), and amendments thereto;
- (12) aggravated assault, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5412(b), and amendments thereto, with intent to commit any crime specified above;
- (13) sexual battery, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5505(a), and amendments thereto;

- (14) unlawful voluntary sexual relations, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5507, and amendments thereto;
- (15) aggravated human trafficking, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5426(b)(2), (4) and (5), and amendments thereto;
- (16) commercial sexual exploitation of a child, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6422, and amendments thereto;
- (17) electronic solicitation, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5509, and amendments thereto;
- (18) internet trading in child pornography, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5514(a), and amendments thereto;
- (19) aggravated internet trading in child pornography, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5514(b), and amendments thereto; or
- (20) attempt, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5301, and amendments thereto, or conspiracy, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5302, and amendments thereto, to commit any crime specified above.
- (b) In any prosecution for a crime designated in subsection (a), a court shall not require or order a complaining witness to submit to or undergo either a psychiatric or psychological examination.
- (c) As used in this section, "complaining witness" means an alleged victim of any crime designated in subsection (a), the prosecution of which is subject to this section.
  - (d) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the Kansas criminal code."; On page 2, following line 31, by inserting:
- "Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5507 is hereby amended to read as follows: 21-5507. (a) Unlawful voluntary sexual relations is:
- (1) Engaging in any of the following acts with a child who is <u>14\_10</u> or more years of age but less than 16 years of age:
  - (A) Voluntary sexual intercourse or voluntary sodomy; or
  - (B) voluntary sodomy; or
  - (C)(B) voluntary lewd fondling or touching;
  - (2) (A) when the offender is less than 19 13 years of age; or
- (3)(B) when the offender is less than four years of age older than the child 13 years of age or older but less than 19 years of age, and the offender and the child are less than 48 months apart in age; and
  - (4)(3) when the child and the offender are the only parties involved; and
  - (5) when the child and the offender are members of the opposite sex.
  - (b) Unlawful voluntary sexual relations as defined in:
  - (1) Subsection (a)(1)(A) is a severity level 8, person felony;
  - (A) Class A person misdemeanor, except as provided in subsection (b)(1)(B); and
- (B) severity level 9, person felony if the offender and the child are 24 or more months but less than 48 months apart in age, and the offender is 13 or more years of age; and
  - (2) subsection (a)(1)(B) is a severity level 9, person felony; and:
  - (A) Class A person misdemeanor, except as provided in subsection (b)(2)(B); and
- (B) severity level 10, person felony if the offender and the child are 24 or more months but less than 48 months apart in age, and the offender is 13 or more years of age
  - (3) subsection (a)(1)(C) is a severity level 10, person felony.";
  - On page 19, in line 5, after "(t)(1)(A)" by inserting "; or

(C) convicted of unlawful voluntary sexual relations, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5507, and amendments thereto, or adjudicated as a juvenile offender for an act which, if committed by an adult, would constitute a violation of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5507, and amendments thereto":

On page 37, in line 26, by striking "incldes" and inserting "includes";

On page 41, in line 17, after the first comma by inserting "21-5507,";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, after the first semicolon by inserting "unlawful voluntary sexual relations;"; in line 3, after the second semicolon by inserting "offender registration;"; in line 4, after the first comma by inserting "21-5507,"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **SB 405** be amended on page 3, in line 3, by striking all after the second comma; in line 4, by striking "suspension,"; in line 12, by striking all before the second "such"; in line 21, by striking "after 45 days of such suspension,"; in line 30, by striking all before the second "such"; in line 37, after "(5)" by inserting "Whenever a person's driving privileges have been suspended for 30 days as provided in K.S.A. 8-1014(b)(1)(A), and amendments thereto, such person may apply to the division for such person's driving privileges to be restricted for the remainder of the 30-day suspension period to driving only a motor vehicle equipped with an ignition interlock device.

(6) ";

On page 8, in line 10, by striking "300%" and inserting "150%"; in line 18, by striking all after "(A)"; by striking all in lines 19 through 23; in line 24 by striking "(C)"; in line 25, by striking "100%" and inserting "125%"; also in line 25, by striking "50%" and inserting "75%"; following line 26, by inserting:

"(B) for a person whose household income is less than or equal to 125% but greater than 100% of the federal poverty level, 50% of the program costs plus any additional costs due to non-compliance;";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **SB 420**, as amended by Senate Committee, be amended on page 1, following line 6, by inserting:

"New Section 1. (a) A person required to register as an offender pursuant to the Kansas offender registration act may petition the district court in the county where the offender resides to waive payment of the registration fee required by K.S.A. 22-4905, and amendments thereto. Such offender shall submit an affidavit to the court in the form prescribed by the judicial council. There shall be no docket fee required.

- (b) The court may:
- (1) Question the offender under oath concerning the contents of the affidavit; and
- (2) require the offender to produce evidence on the issue of the offender's financial inability to make the payment required by K.S.A. 22-4905, and amendments thereto.
- (c) If it appears to the satisfaction of the court that requiring the payment will impose manifest hardship on the offender or the offender's immediate family, the court may:
  - (1) Waive the current payment owed by the offender;
  - (2) extend the time in which the offender has to make the payment; or

- (3) waive the payment for a specified period of time, not to exceed three years.
- (d) If the court issues an order modifying an offender's obligation to pay the registration fee required by K.S.A. 22-4905, and amendments thereto, the court shall provide the offender with a copy of the order. Such order shall be effective to modify the offender's obligation to pay the registration fee in any county where the offender is required to register.
- Sec. 2. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5913 is hereby amended to read as follows: 21-5913. (a) Obstructing apprehension or prosecution is knowingly harboring, concealing or aiding any person who:
- (1) Has committed or who has been charged with committing a felony or misdemeanor under the laws of this state, other than a violation of K.S.A. 22-4903, and amendments thereto, or another state or the United States with intent that such person shall avoid or escape from arrest, trial, conviction or punishment for such felony or misdemeanor; or
- (2) is required to register under the Kansas offender registration act, K.S.A. 22-4901 et seq., and amendments thereto, and who is not in compliance with the requirements of such act with intent that such person shall avoid or escape from registration, arrest, trial, conviction, punishment or any criminal charges arising from the person's failure to comply with the requirements of such act.
  - (b) Obstructing apprehension or prosecution-as defined in:
  - (1) Subsection (a)(1) is a:
- (A)(1) Severity level 8, nonperson felony if the person who is harbored, concealed or aided has committed or has been charged with committing a felony; and
- (B)(2) class C misdemeanor if the person who is aided has committed or has been charged with committing a misdemeanor; and
  - (2) subsection (a)(2) is a severity level 5, person felony.
- Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6804 is hereby amended to read as follows: 21-6804. (a) The provisions of this section shall be applicable to the sentencing guidelines grid for nondrug crimes. The following sentencing guidelines grid shall be applicable to nondrug felony crimes:

SENTENCING RANGE - NONDRUG OFFENSES	I	1 Misdemeanor No Record	147	109	55	38	/7	17	11	7	5	5
			155	117	65	41		18	12	∞	9	9
		Misde No F		123								
			165	123	61	43		61 61	13	6 6	7	5
	Н	2 + Misdemeanors										
			176	131	99	45		20	13	10	7	9
	F G	Nonperson Nonperson Nethonics Felonics Nonperson Nonperson Relong	186	138	71	48		21	14	11	∞	r
			184	138	89	47	38		15	6	7	5
			195	146	72	50	41	//	16	10	∞	9
			203	154	77	52	43		17	11	6	7
			203	152	7.4	52	41	25	17	11	80	9
			214	160	79	99	44	27	18	12	6	r~
	Е	3+ Nonperson Non Felonies Fe	226	891	83	65	47	29	61	13	10	00
			221	165	82	57	46	28	19	13	9	8 -
			234	174	88	09	49	30	21	14	10	∞
	D 1	1 Person Non Felony Fel										
			246	184	92	62 64	50	32	23	15	11	o/
			240	181								
			253	190	94	99	52	34	24	16	12	6
	С	1 Person & 1 Nonperson Felonies	267	200	100	69	55	36	26	17	13	10
			258	194	96	89	53	34	25	17	11	0
SE			272	205	102	7.1	57	36	27	18	12	10
			285	216	107	75	09	38	53	19	13	=
	В	2 Person Felonies	554	416	206	144	114	37	27	18	13	10
			586	438	216	154	120	39	29	61	14	Ξ
	A	3 + Person Felonies F	618	460	228	162	128	41	31	20	15	12
			592	442	221	154	122	40	30	19	15	=
			620	467	233	162	130	43	32	21	16	12
			,	493	247	172	136	46	34	23	17	13
			9	4	2	1	-	4	3	2	1	_
	gory	rity			1	,	_	1	ш	п		
	Category	Severity Level	I	п	Ш	IV	Λ	IA	ПЛ	VIII	IX	X



- (b) Sentences expressed in the sentencing guidelines grid for nondrug crimes represent months of imprisonment.
- (c) The sentencing guidelines grid is a two-dimensional crime severity and criminal history classification tool. The grid's vertical axis is the crime severity scale which classifies current crimes of conviction. The grid's horizontal axis is the criminal history scale which classifies criminal histories.
- (d) The sentencing guidelines grid for nondrug crimes as provided in this section defines presumptive punishments for felony convictions, subject to the sentencing court's discretion to enter a departure sentence. The appropriate punishment for a felony conviction should depend on the severity of the crime of conviction when compared to all other crimes and the offender's criminal history.
- (e) (1) The sentencing court has discretion to sentence at any place within the sentencing range. In the usual case it is recommended that the sentencing judge select the center of the range and reserve the upper and lower limits for aggravating and mitigating factors insufficient to warrant a departure.
- (2) In presumptive imprisonment cases, the sentencing court shall pronounce the complete sentence which shall include the:
  - (A) Prison sentence;
  - (B) maximum potential reduction to such sentence as a result of good time; and
- (C) period of postrelease supervision at the sentencing hearing. Failure to pronounce the period of postrelease supervision shall not negate the existence of such period of postrelease supervision.
  - (3) In presumptive nonprison cases, the sentencing court shall pronounce the:
  - (A) Prison sentence; and
  - (B) duration of the nonprison sanction at the sentencing hearing.
- (f) Each grid block states the presumptive sentencing range for an offender whose crime of conviction and criminal history place such offender in that grid block. If an offense is classified in a grid block below the dispositional line, the presumptive disposition shall be nonimprisonment. If an offense is classified in a grid block above the dispositional line, the presumptive disposition shall be imprisonment. If an offense is classified in grid blocks 5-H, 5-I or 6-G, the court may impose an optional nonprison sentence as provided in subsection (q).
- (g) The sentence for a violation of K.S.A. 21-3415, prior to its repeal, aggravated battery against a law enforcement officer committed prior to July 1, 2006, or a violation of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5412(d), and amendments thereto, aggravated assault against a law enforcement officer, which places the defendant's sentence in grid block 6-H or 6-I shall be presumed imprisonment. The court may impose an optional nonprison sentence as provided in subsection (q).
- (h) When a firearm is used to commit any person felony, the offender's sentence shall be presumed imprisonment. The court may impose an optional nonprison sentence as provided in subsection (q).
- (i) (1) The sentence for the violation of the felony provision of K.S.A. 8-2,144 and 8-1567 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5414(b)(3), 21-5823(b)(3) and (b)(4), 21-6412 and 21-6416, and amendments thereto, shall be as provided by the specific mandatory sentencing requirements of that section and shall not be subject to the provisions of this section or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6807, and amendments thereto.
  - (2) If because of the offender's criminal history classification the offender is subject

to presumptive imprisonment or if the judge departs from a presumptive probation sentence and the offender is subject to imprisonment, the provisions of this section and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6807, and amendments thereto, shall apply and the offender shall not be subject to the mandatory sentence as provided in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5823, and amendments thereto.

- (3) Notwithstanding the provisions of any other section, the term of imprisonment imposed for the violation of the felony provision of K.S.A. 8-2,144, and 8-1567 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5414(b)(3), 21-5823(b)(3) and (b)(4), 21-6412 and 21-6416, and amendments thereto, shall not be served in a state facility in the custody of the secretary of corrections, except that the term of imprisonment for felony violations of K.S.A. 8-2,144 or 8-1567, and amendments thereto, may be served in a state correctional facility designated by the secretary of corrections if the secretary determines that substance abuse treatment resources and facility capacity is available. The secretary's determination regarding the availability of treatment resources and facility capacity shall not be subject to review. Prior to imposing any sentence pursuant to this subsection, the court may consider assigning the defendant to a house arrest program pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6609, and amendments thereto.
- (j) (1) The sentence for any persistent sex offender whose current convicted crime carries a presumptive term of imprisonment shall be double the maximum duration of the presumptive imprisonment term. The sentence for any persistent sex offender whose current conviction carries a presumptive nonprison term shall be presumed imprisonment and shall be double the maximum duration of the presumptive imprisonment term.
- (2) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, as used in this subsection, "persistent sex offender" means a person who:
- (A) (i) Has been convicted in this state of a sexually violent crime, as defined in K.S.A. 22-3717, and amendments thereto; and
- (ii) at the time of the conviction under subsection (j)(2)(A)(i) has at least one conviction for a sexually violent crime, as defined in K.S.A. 22-3717, and amendments thereto, in this state or comparable felony under the laws of another state, the federal government or a foreign government; or
- (B) (i) has been convicted of rape, as defined in K.S.A. 21-3502, prior to its repeal, or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5503, and amendments thereto; and
- (ii) at the time of the conviction under subsection (j)(2)(B)(i) has at least one conviction for rape in this state or comparable felony under the laws of another state, the federal government or a foreign government.
- (3) Except as provided in subsection (j)(2)(B), the provisions of this subsection shall not apply to any person whose current convicted crime is a severity level 1 or 2 felony.
- (k) (1) If it is shown at sentencing that the offender committed any felony violation for the benefit of, at the direction of, or in association with any criminal street gang, with the specific intent to promote, further or assist in any criminal conduct by gang members, the offender's sentence shall be presumed imprisonment. The court may impose an optional nonprison sentence as provided in subsection (q).
- (2) As used in this subsection, "criminal street gang" means any organization, association or group of three or more persons, whether formal or informal, having as one of its primary activities:

- (A) The commission of one or more person felonies; or
- (B) the commission of felony violations of article 57 of chapter 21 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 21-36a01 through 21-36a17, prior to their transfer, or any felony violation of any provision of the uniform controlled substances act prior to July 1, 2009; and
  - (C) its members have a common name or common identifying sign or symbol; and
- (D) its members, individually or collectively, engage in or have engaged in the commission, attempted commission, conspiracy to commit or solicitation of two or more person felonies or felony violations of article 57 of chapter 21 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 21-36a01 through 21-36a17, prior to their transfer, any felony violation of any provision of the uniform controlled substances act prior to July 1, 2009, or any substantially similar offense from another jurisdiction.
- (l) Except as provided in subsection (o), the sentence for a violation of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5807(a)(1), and amendments thereto, or any attempt or conspiracy, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5301 and 21-5302, and amendments thereto, to commit such offense, when such person being sentenced has a prior conviction for a violation of K.S.A. 21-3715(a) or (b), prior to its repeal, 21-3716, prior to its repeal, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5807(a)(1) or (a)(2) or 21-5807(b), and amendments thereto, or any attempt or conspiracy to commit such offense, shall be presumptive imprisonment.
- (m) The sentence for a violation of K.S.A. 22-4903 or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5913(a)(2), and amendments thereto, shall be presumptive imprisonment. If an offense under such sections is classified in grid blocks 5-E, 5-F, 5-G, 5-H or 5-I, the court may impose an optional nonprison sentence as provided in subsection (q).
- (n) The sentence for a violation of criminal deprivation of property, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5803, and amendments thereto, when such property is a motor vehicle, and when such person being sentenced has any combination of two or more prior convictions of K.S.A. 21-3705(b), prior to its repeal, or of criminal deprivation of property, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5803, and amendments thereto, when such property is a motor vehicle, shall be presumptive imprisonment. Such sentence shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.
- The sentence for a felony violation of theft of property as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5801, and amendments thereto, or burglary as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5807(a), and amendments thereto, when such person being sentenced has no prior convictions for a violation of K.S.A. 21-3701 or 21-3715, prior to their repeal, or theft of property as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5801, and amendments thereto, or burglary as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5807(a), and amendments thereto; or the sentence for a felony violation of theft of property as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5801, and amendments thereto, when such person being sentenced has one or two prior felony convictions for a violation of K.S.A. 21-3701, 21-3715 or 21-3716, prior to their repeal, or theft of property as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5801, and amendments thereto, or burglary or aggravated burglary as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5807, and amendments thereto; or the sentence for a felony violation of burglary as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5807(a), and amendments thereto, when such person being sentenced has one prior felony conviction for a violation of K.S.A. 21-3701, 21-3715 or 21-3716, prior to their repeal, or theft of property as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5801, and amendments thereto, or burglary or aggravated burglary as defined in K.S.A.

2019 Supp. 21-5807, and amendments thereto, shall be the sentence as provided by this section, except that the court may order an optional nonprison sentence for a defendant to participate in a drug treatment program, including, but not limited to, an approved after-care plan, if the court makes the following findings on the record:

- (1) Substance abuse was an underlying factor in the commission of the crime;
- (2) substance abuse treatment in the community is likely to be more effective than a prison term in reducing the risk of offender recidivism; and
- (3) participation in an intensive substance abuse treatment program will serve community safety interests.

A defendant sentenced to an optional nonprison sentence under this subsection shall be supervised by community correctional services. The provisions of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6824(f)(1), and amendments thereto, shall apply to a defendant sentenced under this subsection. The sentence under this subsection shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.

- (p) The sentence for a felony violation of theft of property as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5801, and amendments thereto, when such person being sentenced has any combination of three or more prior felony convictions for violations of K.S.A. 21-3701, 21-3715 or 21-3716, prior to their repeal, or theft of property as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5801, and amendments thereto, or burglary or aggravated burglary as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5807, and amendments thereto; or the sentence for a violation of burglary as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5807(a), and amendments thereto, when such person being sentenced has any combination of two or more prior convictions for violations of K.S.A. 21-3701, 21-3715 and 21-3716, prior to their repeal, or theft of property as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5801, and amendments thereto, or burglary or aggravated burglary as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5807, and amendments thereto, shall be presumed imprisonment and the defendant shall be sentenced to prison as provided by this section, except that the court may recommend that an offender be placed in the custody of the secretary of corrections, in a facility designated by the secretary to participate in an intensive substance abuse treatment program, upon making the following findings on the record:
  - (1) Substance abuse was an underlying factor in the commission of the crime;
- (2) substance abuse treatment with a possibility of an early release from imprisonment is likely to be more effective than a prison term in reducing the risk of offender recidivism; and
- (3) participation in an intensive substance abuse treatment program with the possibility of an early release from imprisonment will serve community safety interests by promoting offender reformation.

The intensive substance abuse treatment program shall be determined by the secretary of corrections, but shall be for a period of at least four months. Upon the successful completion of such intensive treatment program, the offender shall be returned to the court and the court may modify the sentence by directing that a less severe penalty be imposed in lieu of that originally adjudged within statutory limits. If the offender's term of imprisonment expires, the offender shall be placed under the applicable period of postrelease supervision. The sentence under this subsection shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.

(q) As used in this section, an "optional nonprison sentence" is a sentence which the court may impose, in lieu of the presumptive sentence, upon making the following

findings on the record:

- (1) An appropriate treatment program exists which is likely to be more effective than the presumptive prison term in reducing the risk of offender recidivism; and
- (2) the recommended treatment program is available and the offender can be admitted to such program within a reasonable period of time; or
- (3) the nonprison sanction will serve community safety interests by promoting offender reformation.

Any decision made by the court regarding the imposition of an optional nonprison sentence shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.

- (r) The sentence for a violation of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5413(c)(2), and amendments thereto, shall be presumptive imprisonment and shall be served consecutively to any other term or terms of imprisonment imposed. Such sentence shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.
- (s) The sentence for a violation of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5512, and amendments thereto, shall be presumptive imprisonment. Such sentence shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.
- (t) (1) If the trier of fact makes a finding beyond a reasonable doubt that an offender wore or used ballistic resistant material in the commission of, or attempt to commit, or flight from any felony, in addition to the sentence imposed pursuant to the Kansas sentencing guidelines act, the offender shall be sentenced to an additional 30 months' imprisonment.
- (2) The sentence imposed pursuant to subsection (t)(1) shall be presumptive imprisonment and shall be served consecutively to any other term or terms of imprisonment imposed. Such sentence shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.
- (3) As used in this subsection, "ballistic resistant material" means: (A) Any commercially produced material designed with the purpose of providing ballistic and trauma protection, including, but not limited to, bulletproof vests and kevlar vests; and (B) any homemade or fabricated substance or item designed with the purpose of providing ballistic and trauma protection.
- (u) The sentence for a violation of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6107, and amendments thereto, or any attempt or conspiracy, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5301 and 21-5302, and amendments thereto, to commit such offense, when such person being sentenced has a prior conviction for a violation of K.S.A. 21-4018, prior to its repeal, or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6107, and amendments thereto, or any attempt or conspiracy to commit such offense, shall be presumptive imprisonment. Such sentence shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.
- (v) The sentence for a third or subsequent violation of K.S.A. 8-1568, and amendments thereto, shall be presumptive imprisonment and shall be served consecutively to any other term or terms of imprisonment imposed. Such sentence shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.
- (w) The sentence for aggravated criminal damage to property as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5813(b), and amendments thereto, when such person being sentenced has a prior conviction for any nonperson felony shall be presumptive imprisonment. Such sentence shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.
- (x) The sentence for a violation of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5807(a)(1), and amendments thereto, shall be presumptive imprisonment if the offense under such

paragraph is classified in grid blocks 7-C, 7-D or 7-E. Such sentence shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.

- (y) (1) Except as provided in subsection (y)(3), if the trier of fact makes a finding beyond a reasonable doubt that an offender committed a nondrug felony offense, or any attempt or conspiracy, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5301 and 21-5302, and amendments thereto, to commit a nondrug felony offense, against a law enforcement officer, as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5111(p)(1) and (3), and amendments thereto, while such officer was engaged in the performance of such officer's duty, or in whole or in any part because of such officer's status as a law enforcement officer, the sentence for such offense shall be:
- (A) If such offense is classified in severity level 2 through 10, one severity level above the appropriate level for such offense; and
- (B) (i) if such offense is classified in severity level 1, except as otherwise provided in subsection (y)(1)(B)(ii), imprisonment for life, and such offender shall not be eligible for probation or suspension, modification or reduction of sentence. In addition, such offender shall not be eligible for parole prior to serving 25 years' imprisonment, and such 25 years' imprisonment shall not be reduced by the application of good time credits. No other sentence shall be permitted.
- (ii) The provisions of subsection (y)(1)(B)(i) requiring the court to impose a mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 25 years shall not apply if the court finds the offender, because of the offender's criminal history classification, is subject to presumptive imprisonment and the sentencing range exceeds 300 months. In such case, the offender is required to serve a mandatory minimum term equal to the sentence established pursuant to the sentencing range.
- (2) The sentence imposed pursuant to subsection (y)(1) shall not be considered a departure and shall not be subject to appeal.
- (3) The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to an offense described in subsection (y)(1) if the factual aspect concerning a law enforcement officer is a statutory element of such offense.
- (z) The sentence for a violation of K.S.A. 22-4903(b), and amendments thereto, shall be presumptive imprisonment.";

On page 2, in line 8, after "(6)" by inserting "on and after July 1, 2020,";

On page 6, in line 22, after "(A)" by inserting "(i)"; in line 28, by striking "(B)" and inserting "(ii)"; in line 30, after "(t)(1)(A)" by inserting "(i); or

(B) adjudicated as a juvenile offender for an act which, if committed by an adult, would constitute a violation of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6101(a)(6), (a)(7) or (a)(8), and amendments thereto";

Also, on page 6, following line 33, by inserting:

"Sec. 5. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-4903 is hereby amended to read as follows: 22-4903. (a) Violation of the Kansas offender registration act is the failure by an offender, as defined in K.S.A. 22-4902, and amendments thereto, to comply with any and all provisions of such act, including any and all duties set forth in K.S.A. 22-4905 through 22-4907, and amendments thereto. Any violation of the Kansas offender registration act which continues for more than 30\_90 consecutive days shall, upon the 31\*\* 91\*\* consecutive day, constitute a new and separate offense, and shall continue to constitute a new and separate offense every 30 days thereafter for as long as the violation continues.

- (b) Aggravated violation of the Kansas offender registration act is violation of the Kansas offender registration act which continues for more than 180 consecutive days. Any aggravated violation of the Kansas offender registration act which continues for more than 180 consecutive days shall, upon the 181\* consecutive day, constitute a new and separate offense, and shall continue to constitute a new and separate violation of the Kansas offender registration act every 30 days thereafter, or a new and separate aggravated violation of the Kansas offender registration act every 180 days thereafter, for as long as the violation continues:
  - (1) That continues for one year or more; or
- (2) committed by a person with two or more prior convictions of violations of this section.
- (c) (1) Except as provided in-subsection subsections (c)(3) and (c)(4), violation of the Kansas offender registration act is:
- (A) Upon a first conviction, a severity level 6 felony class B nonperson misdemeanor; and
- (B) upon a second conviction, a-severity level 5 felony; and class A nonperson misdemeanor
  - (C) upon a third or subsequent conviction, a severity level 3 felony.

Such violation shall be designated as a person or nonperson crime in accordance with the designation assigned to the underlying crime for which the offender is required to be registered under the Kansas offender registration act. If the offender is required to be registered under both a person and nonperson underlying crime, the violation shall be designated as a person crime.

(2) Except as provided in <u>subsection subsections</u> (c)(3) <u>and (c)(4)</u>, aggravated violation of the Kansas offender registration act is a severity level <u>3 8, nonperson</u> felony.

Such violation shall be designated as a person or nonperson crime in accordance with the designation assigned to the underlying crime for which the offender is required to be registered under the Kansas offender registration act. If the offender is required to be registered under both a person and nonperson underlying crime, the violation shall be designated as a person crime.

- (3) Violation of the Kansas offender registration act or aggravated violation of the Kansas offender registration act consisting only of failing to remit payment to the sheriff's office as required in K.S.A. 22-4905(1), and amendments thereto, is:
- (A) Except as provided in subsection (e)(3)(B), a class—A C nonperson misdemeanor—if, within 15 days of registration, full payment is not remitted to the sheriff's office;
- (B) a severity level 9 felony if, within 15 days of the most recent registration, two or more full payments have not been remitted to the sheriff's office.

Such violation shall be designated as a person or nonperson crime in accordance with the designation assigned to the underlying crime for which the offender is required to be registered under the Kansas offender registration act. If the offender is required to be registered under both a person and nonperson underlying crime, the violation shall be designated as a person crime.

(4) Aggravated violation of the Kansas offender registration act is a class A nonperson misdemeanor when the underlying crime for which the offender is required to be registered under the Kansas offender registration act is a misdemeanor.

- (d) Prosecution of violations of this section may be held:
- (1) In any county in which the offender resides;
- (2) in any county in which the offender is required to be registered under the Kansas offender registration act;
- (3) in any county in which the offender is located during which time the offender is not in compliance with the Kansas offender registration act; or
- (4) in the county in which any conviction or adjudication occurred for which the offender is required to be registered under the Kansas offender registration act.
- Sec. 6. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-4905 is hereby amended to read as follows: 22-4905. Any offender required to register as provided in the Kansas offender registration act shall:
- (a) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, register in person with the registering law enforcement agency within three business days of coming into any county or location of jurisdiction in which the offender resides or intends to reside; maintains employment or intends to maintain employment, or attends school or intends to attend school. Any such offender who cannot physically register in person with the registering law enforcement agency for such reasons including, but not limited to, incapacitation or hospitalization, as determined by a person licensed to practice medicine or surgery, or involuntarily committed pursuant to the Kansas sexually violent predator act, shall be subject to verification requirements other than in-person registration, as determined by the registering law enforcement agency having jurisdiction:
- (b) except as provided further, for any: (1) Sex offender, including a violent offender or drug offender who is also a sex offender, report in person four times each year to the registering law enforcement agency in the county or location of jurisdiction in which the offender resides, maintains employment or is attending a school; and (2) violent offender or drug offender, report in person four times each year to the registering law enforcement agency in the county or location of jurisdiction in which the offender resides, maintains employment or is attending a school, except that, at the discretion of the registering law enforcement agency, one of the four required reports may be conducted by certified letter. When utilized, the certified letter for reporting shall be sent by the registering law enforcement agency to the reported residence of the offender. The offender shall indicate any changes in information as required for reporting in person. The offender shall respond by returning the certified letter to the registering law enforcement agency within 10 business days by certified mail. The offender shall be required to report to the registering law enforcement agency once during the month of the offender's birthday and every third, sixth and ninth month occurring before and after the month of the offender's birthday. The registering law enforcement agency may determine the appropriate times and days for reporting by the offender, consistent with this subsection. Nothing contained in this subsection shall be construed to alleviate any offender from meeting the requirements prescribed in the Kansas offender registration act;
- (c) provide the information required for registration as provided in K.S.A. 22-4907, and amendments thereto, and verify all information previously provided is accurate;
- (d) if in the custody of a correctional facility, register with the correctional facility within three business days of initial custody and shall not be required to update such registration until discharged, paroled, furloughed or released on work or school release

from a correctional facility. A copy of the registration form and any updated registrations for an offender released on work or school release shall be sent, within three business days, to the registering law enforcement agency where the offender is incarcerated, maintains employment or attends school, and to the Kansas bureau of investigation;

- (e) if involuntarily committed pursuant to the Kansas sexually violent predator act, register within three business days of arrival in the county where the offender resides during commitment. The offender shall not be required to update such registration until placed in a reintegration facility, on transitional release or on conditional release. Upon placement in a reintegration facility, on transitional release or on conditional release, the offender shall be personally responsible for complying with the provisions of the Kansas offender registration act;
- (f) notwithstanding subsections (a) and (b), if the offender is transient, report in person to the registering law enforcement agency of such county or location of jurisdiction in which the offender is physically present within three business days of arrival in the county or location of jurisdiction. Such offender shall be required to register in person with the registering law enforcement agency every 30 days, or more often at the discretion of the registering law enforcement agency. Such offender shall comply with the provisions of the Kansas offender registration act and, in addition, shall:
- (1) Provide a list of places where the offender has slept and otherwise frequented during the period of time since the last date of registration; and
- (2) provide a list of places where the offender may be contacted and where the offender intends to sleep and otherwise frequent during the period of time prior to the next required date of registration;
- (g) if required by out-of-state law, register in any out-of-state jurisdiction, where the offender resides, maintains employment or attends school;
- (h) register in person upon any commencement, change or termination of residence location, employment status, school attendance or other information as provided in K.S.A. 22-4907, and amendments thereto, within three business days of such commencement, change or termination, to the registering law enforcement agency or agencies where last registered and provide written notice to the Kansas bureau of investigation;
- (i) report in person to the registering law enforcement agency or agencies within three business days of any change in name;
- (j) if receiving inpatient treatment at any treatment facility, inform the treatment facility of the offender's status as an offender and inform the registering law enforcement agency of the county or location of jurisdiction in which the treatment facility is located of the offender's presence at the treatment facility and the expected duration of the treatment:
- (k) submit to the taking of an updated photograph by the registering law enforcement agency on each occasion when the offender registers with or reports to the registering law enforcement agency in the county or location of jurisdiction in which the offender resides, maintains employment or attends school. In addition, such offender shall submit to the taking of a photograph to document any changes in identifying characteristics, including, but not limited to, scars, marks and tattoos;
  - (1) remit payment to the sheriff's office in the amount of \$20 as part of the reporting

process required pursuant to subsection (b) in each county in which the offender resides, maintains employment or is attending school. Registration will be completed regardless of whether or not the offender remits payment. Failure of the offender to remit full payment within 15 days of registration is a violation of the Kansas offender registration act and is subject to prosecution pursuant to K.S.A. 22-4903, and amendments thereto. Notwithstanding other provisions herein of this section, payment of this fee is not required:

- (1) When the offender is under 18 years of age;
- (2) when an offender provides updates or changes in information or during an initial registration unless such updates, changes or initial registration is during the month of such offender's birthday and every third, sixth and ninth month occurring before and after the month of the offender's birthday;
- (2)(3) when an offender is transient and is required to register every 30 days, or more frequently as ordered by the registering law enforcement agency, except during the month of the offender's birthday and every third, sixth and ninth month occurring before and after the month of the offender's birthday; or
- (3)(4) if an offender has, prior to the required reporting and within the last three years, been determined to be indigent by a court of law in the criminal case for which the offender is required to register, and the basis for that finding is recorded by the court; or
- (5) if the court has determined that requiring payment of the fee would impose manifest hardship on the offender or the offender's immediate family pursuant to section 1, and amendments thereto;
- (m) annually renew any driver's license pursuant to K.S.A. 8-247, and amendments thereto, and annually renew any identification card pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1325a, and amendments thereto;
- (n) if maintaining primary residence in this state, surrender all driver's licenses and identification cards from other states, territories and the District of Columbia, except if the offender is presently serving and maintaining active duty in any branch of the United States military or the offender is an immediate family member of a person presently serving and maintaining active duty in any branch of the United States military;
- (o) read and sign the registration form noting whether the requirements provided in this section have been explained to the offender; and
- (p) report in person to the registering law enforcement agency in the jurisdiction of the offender's residence and provide written notice to the Kansas bureau of investigation 21 days prior to any travel outside of the United States, and provide an itinerary including, but not limited to, destination, means of transport and duration of travel, or if under emergency circumstances, within three business days of making travel arrangements.";

On page 12, following line 15, by inserting:

"Sec. 8. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-4907 is hereby amended to read as follows: 22-4907. (a) Registration as required by the Kansas offender registration act shall consist of a form approved by the Kansas bureau of investigation, which shall include a statement that the requirements provided in this section have been reviewed and explained to the offender, and shall be signed by the offender and, except when such reporting is conducted by certified letter as provided in-subsection (b) of K.S.A. 22-4905(b), and

amendments thereto, witnessed by the person registering the offender. Such registration form shall include the following offender information:

- (1) Name and all alias names;
- (2) date and city, state and country of birth, and any alias dates or places of birth;
- (3) title and statute number of each offense or offenses committed, date of each conviction or adjudication and court case numbers for each conviction or adjudication;
  - (4) city, county, state or country of conviction or adjudication;
- (5) sex and date of birth or purported age of each victim of all offenses requiring registration;
- (6) current residential address, any anticipated future residence and any temporary lodging information including, but not limited to, address, telephone number and dates of travel for any place in which the offender is staying for seven or more days; and, if transient, the locations where the offender has stayed and frequented since last reporting for registration;
- (7) all telephone numbers at which the offender may be contacted including, but not limited to, all mobile telephone numbers;
  - (8) social security number, and all alias social security numbers;
- (9) identifying characteristics such as race, ethnicity, skin tone, sex, age, height, weight, hair and eye color, scars, tattoos and blood type;
- (10) occupation and name, address or addresses and telephone number of employer or employers, and name of any anticipated employer and place of employment;
- (11) all current driver's licenses or identification cards, including a photocopy of all such driver's licenses or identification cards and their numbers, states of issuance and expiration dates;
- (12) all vehicle information, including the license plate number, registration number and any other identifier and description of any vehicle owned or operated by the offender, or any vehicle the offender regularly drives, either for personal use or in the course of employment, and information concerning the location or locations such vehicle or vehicles are habitually parked or otherwise kept;
- (13) license plate number, registration number or other identifier and description of any aircraft or watercraft owned or operated by the offender, and information concerning the location or locations such aircraft or watercraft are habitually parked, docked or otherwise kept;
  - (14) all professional licenses, designations and certifications;
- (15) documentation of any treatment received for a mental abnormality or personality disorder of the offender; for purposes of documenting the treatment received, registering law enforcement agencies, correctional facility officials, treatment facility officials and courts may rely on information that is readily available to them from existing records and the offender;
  - (16) a photograph or photographs;
  - (17) fingerprints and palm prints;
- (18) any and all schools and satellite schools attended or expected to be attended and the locations of attendance and telephone number;
- (19) any and all: E-mail addresses; online identities used by the offender on the internet; information relating to membership in any and all personal web pages or online social networks; and internet screen names;
  - (20) all travel and immigration documents; and

- (21) name and telephone number of the offender's probation, parole or community corrections officer.
- (b) The offender shall provide biological samples for DNA analysis to the registering law enforcement agency as required by K.S.A. 21-2511, and amendments thereto. The biological samples shall be in the form using a DNA databank kit authorized by the Kansas bureau of investigation. The registering law enforcement agency shall forward such biological samples to the Kansas bureau of investigation. Prior to taking such sample, the registering law enforcement agency shall search the Kansas criminal justice information system to determine if such person's DNA profile is currently on file. If such person's DNA profile is on file with the Kansas bureau of investigation, the registering law enforcement agency is not required to take biological samples.
- (c) If an offender reports an employer pursuant to subsection (a)(10) or a school pursuant to subsection (a)(18) that is in a county other than the county in which the offender resides or intends to reside, the Kansas bureau of investigation shall notify the sheriff of the county in which the employer or school is located of the registration information for such offender.";

Also on page 12, in line 16, after "Supp." by inserting "21-5913, 21-6804,"; also in line 16, by striking "and" and inserting ", 22-4903, 22-4905,"; also in line 16, after "22-4906" by inserting "and 22-4907";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, after the semicolon by inserting "violation of act; penalties; waiver of fees by the court; obstructing apprehension or prosecution; registration locations; information required to register;"; in line 3, after "Supp." by inserting "21-5913, 21-6804,"; also in line 3, by striking the first "and" and inserting ", 22-4903, 22-4905,"; also in line 3, after "22-4906" by inserting "and 22-4907"; and the bill be passed as amended.

### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, pursuant to House Rule 2311, **SB 102** was advanced to Final Action on Bills and Concurrent Resolutions, subject to amendment, debate and roll call.

# FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

Committee report recommending a substitute bill to SB 102 be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Patton, **H Sub SB 102** be amended on page 1, in line 7, after the comma by inserting "during any state of disaster emergency pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto,"; in line 12, after the comma by inserting "during any state of disaster emergency pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto,"; in line 17, after "(c)" by inserting "Any order issued pursuant to this section may remain in effect for up to 150 days after a state of disaster emergency is terminated pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto. Any order in violation of this section shall be void.

(d)";

On page 3, in line 25, by striking all after "section"; by striking all in line 26; in line 27, by striking all before the period and inserting "pursuant to section 1, and

amendments thereto. When an order issued pursuant to section 1, and amendments thereto, is terminated, any trial scheduled to occur during the time such order was in effect shall be placed back on the court schedule within 150 days";

On page 5, in line 16, by striking all after "section"; by striking all in line 17; in line 18, by striking all before the period and inserting "pursuant to section 1, and amendments thereto"

**H Sub SB 102**, AN ACT concerning courts; relating to extension or suspension of deadlines or time limitations to secure the health and safety of court users, staff and judicial officers; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-3402 and 60-206 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 113; Nays 5; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 7.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Blex, Burroughs, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu.

Nays: Burris, Garber, Houser, Jacobs, Rhiley.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Carlin, Carmichael, Kuether, Ousley, Probst, Yeager. The substitute bill passed, as amended.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

## INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2746**, AN ACT concerning municipalities; relating to bonding authority; providing for a temporary higher maximum interest rate; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 10-1009 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

## COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGES

Speaker Ryckman announced the appointment of Rep. Woodard to replace Rep. Probst on Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Developement on March 16, 2020.

Also, the appointment of Rep. Xu to replace Rep. Carlin on Committee on Appropriations on March 16, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 3:00 p.m.

# AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 3:40 p.m.

## LATE AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

# INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2747**, AN ACT concerning education; relating to the duration of the school term; authorizing the grant of a waiver from school term requirements; amending K.S.A. 72-3117 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

# REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Appropriations** recommends **SB 173** be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 173," as follows:

"House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 173

By Committee on Appropriations

"AN ACT concerning transportation; providing for the Eisenhower legacy transportation program; amending K.S.A. 68-416, 68-2315, 68-2316, 75-5035, 75-5048, 75-5061, 79-3603 and 79-3703 and repealing the existing sections."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(H Sub for SB 173 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

## INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, pursuant to House Rule 2311, **H Sub for SB** 173 was advanced to Final Action on Bills and Concurrent Resolutions, subject to amendment, debate and roll call.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 6:00 p.m.

# **EVENING SESSION**

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

#### FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

Committee report recommending a substitute bill to SB 173 be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Francis, **H Sub for SB 173** be amended on page 4, in line 20, after "using" by inserting "all state highway fund revenue, including"

Also, on motion of Rep. Ward to amend H Sub for SB 173, the motion did not prevail.

Also, on motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **H Sub for SB 173**, Rep. Waymaster requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment not germane.

Also, on motion of Rep. Benson to amend, the motion did not prevail, and **H Sub for SB 173** be passed as amended.

**H Sub for SB 173**, AN ACT concerning transportation; providing for the Eisenhower legacy transportation program; amending K.S.A. 68-416, 68-2315, 68-2316, 75-5035, 75-5048, 75-5061, 79-3603 and 79-3703 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 103; Nays 16; Present but not voting: 1; Absent or not voting: 5.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Blex, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Wolfe Moore, Woodard.

Nays: Burris, Burroughs, Carmichael, Clayton, Frownfelter, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Lusk, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Parker, Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Winn, Xu.

Present but not voting: French.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Carlin, Kuether, Ousley, Yeager.

The substitute bill passed, as amended.

## EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: I vote "No" on **House Sub. For SB 173.** All of us realize the vital importance of properly funding construction and maintenance of our highways which were treated as a piggy bank for the failed tax experiment of our prior governors; but voting for a highway plan which favors rural over urban highways, is not good for anyone. There is a better way to do this. This is not the last train out of the station. I therefore vote "No" on **House Sub for SB 173.** – John Carmichael.

Mr. Speaker: While I am in support of a robust transportation plan, the language within this bill will reduce the flexibility to meet transportation need in communities. SB 375 is a more comprehensive and fiscally responsible plan. I hope to see a more favorable bill from the conference committee. Therefore, I vote no on **H Sub for SB** 173. Thank you, Mr. Speaker. – Valdenia Winn, Brett Parker, Nancy Lusk, Cindy Neighbor, Susan Ruiz, Rui Xu, Stephanie Clayton, Jerry Stogsdill, Broderick Henderson, KC Ohaebosim, Dennis "Boog" Highberger

Mr. Speaker: I vote yes on **H Sub for SB 173**, with the hope that it is made better in conference committee. There is language within this bill that I do not like, but I realize the need for a solid transportation plan, and I believe this is a first step towards that. Thank you Mr. Speaker — EILEEN HORN, CINDY HOLSCHER, MIKE AMYX, FREDA WARFIELD, VIRGIL WEIGEL, MONICA MURNAN, BARBARA BALLARD, GAIL FINNEY, JOHN ALCALA, PAM CURTIS, TOM SAWYER

Mr. Speaker: The 30th District is home to the Johnson County Gateway Project, the convergence of Interstate 35, Interstate-435, and Kansas Highway 10. This Kansas Department of Transportation realignment and construction project was transformative for the people of my district, and projects like this are an example of why a statewide comprehensive transportation plan is incredibly important for the future of our state. This plan, as written, is not perfect, but it enables us to move toward ironing out its differences with our colleagues in the Senate. I vote YES on **House Substitute for Senate Bill 173.** – Brandon Woodard

Mr. Speaker: While I support the expansion and repair of our highways this bill is financially flawed. It guarantees the reopening of the Bank of KDOT or a tax increase.

— Henry Helgerson

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Agriculture recommends SB 270 be passed.

Committee on **Education** recommends **SB 284**, as amended by Senate Committee, be amended on page 3, in line 16, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Insurance recommends SB 304 be passed.

Committee on **Insurance** recommends **SB 289** be amended on page 2, in line 32, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Insurance** recommends **SB 290** be amended on page 2, in line 28, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Insurance** recommends **SB 292** be amended on page 1, in line 29, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on K-12 Education Budget recommends SB 142 be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 142," as follows:

"House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 142 By Committee on K-12 Education Budget

"AN ACT concerning education; relating to the duration of the school term; authorizing the grant of a waiver from school term requirements; amending K.S.A. 72-3117 and repealing the existing section."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(H Sub for SB 142 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 9:00 a.m., Tuesday, March 17, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## FORTY-SECOND DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 119 members present.

Reps. Carlin and Kuether were excused on verified illness.

Reps. Bishop, Donohoe, Holscher and Ousley were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Rep. Sawyer,

Thank you for this day.

Bless our gathering
and guide us through our proceedings.

Grant us the wisdom we need
as we work towards shutting down this part of the session.

Please nudge the Senate —
help them work with a little more urgency.

And please, help us get home soon and safely,
to be with our families and friends.
In your great name we pray,

Amen

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Henderson.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications: HB 2745.

Judiciary: HB 2744.

K-12 Education Budget: HB 2747.

Taxation: HB 2746.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 9:40 a.m.

## LATE MORNING SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

## MESSAGES FROM THE GOVERNOR

March 16, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-03 for your information.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-03

Extending states of local disaster emergency relating to COVID-19

Laura Kelly Governor

March 17, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-04 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-04** 

Temporarily prohibiting mass gatherings to limit the spread of COVID-19

Laura Kelly Governor

March 17, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-05 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-05** 

Temporarily prohibiting utility and internet disconnects

Laura Kelly Governor

March 17, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-06 for your information.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-06

Temporarily prohibiting evictions and foreclosures

Laura Kelly Governor

The above Executive Orders are on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

# MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing passage of HB 2054, as amended by Senate Substitute for HB 2054.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Francis in the chair.

## COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. Francis, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that Committee report recommending a substitute bill to SB 142 be adopted.

Also, on motion of Rep. Tarwater to amend H Sub for SB 142, the motion was withdrawn.

Also, on further motion of Rep. Tarwater, **H Sub for SB 142** be amended on page 1, following line 3, by inserting:

"WHEREAS, It is the intent of the legislature that any school district applying for a waiver under K.S.A. 72-3117, and amendments thereto, shall continue to pay all current hourly employees, including, but not limited to, paras, maintenance and custodial employees.

Now, therefore:"

and the substitute bill be passed as amended.

#### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends SB 27 be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 27," as follows:

"House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 27

By Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

"AN ACT concerning employment security law; relating to the maximum benefit eligibility period; compensation for the pre-payment waiting period; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-704 and 44-705 and repealing the existing sections."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(H Sub for SB 27 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

## INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins pursuant to House Rule 2311, **H Sub for SB 142** was advanced to Final Action on Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

## FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

**H Sub for SB 142**, AN ACT concerning education; relating to the duration of the school term; authorizing the grant of a waiver from school term requirements; amending K.S.A. 72-3117 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 117; Nays 2; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 6.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger,

Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Horn, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Capps, Houser.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Holscher, Kuether, Ousley.

The substitute bill passed, as amended.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until the sound of the gavel.

#### NOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

#### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Education** recommends **SB 230**, as amended by Senate Committee of the Whole, be amended on page 9, in line 33, by striking all after "commission"; in line 34, by striking all before the period; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Education** recommends **SB 271**, as amended by Senate Committee, be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 271," as follows:

"House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 271

By Committee on Education

"AN ACT concerning education; creating the students' right to know act; relating to dissemination of certain postsecondary education information to secondary students; providing specific curriculum guidance for civics instruction; amending K.S.A. 72-3217 and repealing the existing section."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(H Sub for SB 271 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on **Education** recommends **SB 384**, as amended by Senate Committee, be amended on page 1, in line 27, after "(7)" by inserting "the number and percentage of foster care students that participated in the mental health intervention team pilot program or a similar mental health program;

(8) ";

Also on page 1, in line 32, by striking "(7)" and inserting "(8)";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Federal and State Affairs** recommends **SB 221**, as amended by Senate Committee of the Whole, be amended on page 1, in line 19, by striking "and"; in line 24, after "caterer" by inserting "; and

(3) sell and deliver cereal malt beverage and beer containing not more than 6%

alcohol by volume to the licensed premises of a cereal malt beverage retailer, as defined in K.S.A. 41-2701, and amendments thereto, who is licensed for on-premises consumption, if such cereal malt beverage premises are in the county where the retailer's premises are located or in an adjacent county, for resale by such cereal malt beverage retailer";

Also on page 1, in line 28, after "(b)" by inserting "(2)"; in line 29, after "(2)" by inserting "charge a delivery fee for delivery of cereal malt beverage and beer containing not more than 6% alcohol by volume to a cereal malt beverage retailer pursuant to subsection (b)(3);

(3) ";

On page 2, in line 8, after the semicolon by inserting "and"; in line 12, by striking the semicolon; by striking all in lines 13 through 20; in line 21, by striking all before the period;

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

Also on page 2, following line 24, by inserting:

- "Sec. 2. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-308d is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-308d. (a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Kansas liquor control act to the contrary, any person or entity who is licensed to sell alcoholic liquor in the original package at retail may conduct wine, beer and distilled spirit tastings on the licensed premises, or adjacent premises, monitored and regulated by the division of alcoholic beverage control, as follows:
- (1) Wine, beer and spirits for the tastings shall come from the inventory of the licensee. Except as provided by paragraph (2), a person other than the licensee or the licensee's agent or employee may not dispense or participate in the dispensing of alcoholic beverages under this section.
- (2) The holder of a supplier's permit or Kansas farm winery license or such permit holder's or licensee's agent or employee may participate in and conduct product tastings of alcoholic beverages at a retail licensee's premises, or adjacent premises, monitored and regulated by the division of alcoholic beverage control, and may open, touch, or pour alcoholic beverages, make a presentation, or answer questions at the tasting. Any alcoholic beverage tasted under this subsection must be purchased from the retailer on whose premises the tasting is held. The retailer may not require the purchase of more alcoholic beverages than are necessary for the tasting. This section does not authorize the supplier, farm winery licensee or the supplier's or licensee's agent to withdraw or purchase an alcoholic beverage from the holder of a distributor's permit or provide an alcoholic beverage for tasting on a retailer's premises that is not purchased from the retailer.
  - (3) No charge of any sort may be made for a sample serving.
- (4) A person may be served more than one sample. Samples may not be served to a minor. No samples may be removed from the licensed premises.
- (5) The act of providing samples to consumers shall be exempt from the requirement of holding a Kansas food service dealer license from the department of agriculture under the provisions of chapter 65 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto.
- (b) <u>Notwithstanding any other provision of the Kansas liquor control act, any</u> person or entity who is licensed to sell alcoholic liquor in the original package at retail

may sell containers of beer, domestic beer and cereal malt beverage that are sold on the licensed premises to consumers and served in refillable and sealable containers for consumption off the licensed premises if such containers:

- (1) Contain between 32 and 64 fluid ounces; and
- (2) have a label affixed that clearly indicates the licensee's name and the type of alcoholic beverage contained in such container.
- (c) Nothing in this section shall be construed to permit the licensee to sell wine, malt beverages or distilled spirits for on-premises consumption.
- (e) The provisions of this section shall take effect and be in force from and after July 1, 2012.
- (d) All rules and regulations adopted on and after July 1, 2012, and prior to July 1, 2013, to implement this section shall continue to be effective and shall be deemed to be duly adopted rules and regulations of the secretary until revised, amended, revoked or nullified pursuant to law.
  - (e) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the Kansas liquor control act.
- Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-1201 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-1201. (a) A temporary permit shall allow the permit holder to offer for sale, sell and serve alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage for consumption on licensed or unlicensed premises, or on premises that are otherwise subject to a separate temporary permit, that may be open to the public, subject to the terms of such permit. A temporary permit shall also authorize the permit holder to sell, in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary, alcoholic liquor at a charitable auction, or one or more limited issue porcelain containers containing alcoholic liquor.
- (b) A temporary permit holder may charge a fee for entrance into the premises described in the permit, or any portion thereof.
- (c) The director may issue a temporary permit to any one or more persons or organizations applying for such a permit, in accordance with rules and regulations of the secretary. The permit shall be issued in the names of the persons or organizations to which it is issued.
- (d) Applications for temporary permits shall be required to be filed with the director not less than 14 days before the event for which the permit is sought, unless the director waives such requirement for good cause. The application shall be upon a form prescribed by the director. Each application shall be electronically submitted and accompanied by a non-refundable permit fee of \$25 for each day for which the permit is issued, and such fee shall be paid by a check or credit card in the full amount thereof. All permit fees collected by the director pursuant to this section shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the state general fund.
- (e) Each application for a temporary permit shall specify the premises for which they are issued, including a diagram of the premises covered by the temporary permit. The diagram shall clearly show the boundaries of the premises, entrances to and exits from the premises and the area in which the service of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage would take place. A temporary permit shall be issued only for premises where the city, county or township zoning code allows the use for which the permit is issued. No temporary permit shall be issued for premises that are not located in a county where the qualified electors of the county:

- (1) (A) Approved, by a majority vote of those voting thereon, to adopt the proposition amending section 10 of article 15 of the constitution of the state of Kansas at the general election in November, 1986; or
- (B) have approved a proposition to allow the sale of liquor by the individual drink in public places within the county at an election pursuant to K.S.A. 41-2646, and amendments thereto; and
- (2) have not approved a proposition to prohibit such sales of alcoholic liquor in such places at a subsequent election pursuant to K.S.A. 41-2646, and amendments thereto
- (f) (1) A temporary permit may be issued for the consumption of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage on a city, county or township street, alley, road, sidewalk or highway for an event if: (A) Such street, alley, road, sidewalk or highway is closed to motor vehicle traffic by the governing body of such city, county or township for such event; (B) a written request for such consumption and possession of such alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage has been made to the local governing body; and (C) the event has been approved by the governing body of such city, county or township by ordinance or resolution.

The boundaries of any such event shall be clearly marked by signs, a posted map or other means which reasonably identify the area in which alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt</u> beverage may be possessed or consumed at such event.

- (2) Drinking establishments that are immediately adjacent to, or located within the licensed premises of an event, for which a temporary permit has been issued and the consumption of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> on public property has been approved, may request that the drinking establishment's licensed premises be extended into and made a part of the licensed premises of the event, for the duration of the temporary permit issued for such event.
- (3) Each licensee selling alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> for consumption on the premises of an event for which a temporary permit has been issued shall be liable for violations of all laws governing the sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor<u>and</u> cereal malt beverage.
- (4) Each temporary permit holder selling alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> for consumption on the permit premises shall be liable for all violations of laws governing the sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor<u>and cereal malt beverage</u> that occur in areas covered by multiple temporary permits.
- (g) (1) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, a temporary permit shall be issued for a period of time not to exceed three consecutive days, the dates and hours of which shall be specified in the permit. An applicant may not be issued more than four temporary permits in a calendar year.
- (2) The director may issue a sufficient number of temporary permits as required by the state fair board, valid for the entire period of time of the Kansas state fair, which that authorizes the sale of wine in its original, unopened container and the serving by the drink of wine—or, beer; or—both cereal malt beverage, or any combination thereof, on the state fairgrounds on premises specified in the temporary permit, by a person who has entered into an agreement with the state fair board for that purpose subject to the conditions imposed by the state fair board. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to limit the number of temporary permits the director may issue for the sale of wine—or, beer; or—both cereal malt beverage, or any combination thereof, on the state fairgrounds

consistent with the requirements of the state fair board.

- (3) For an event approved by the governing body of a city, county or township pursuant to subsection (e)(1), the director may issue a temporary permit, which that may, at the director's discretion, be valid for the entire period of such event, but in no event shall such permit be issued for a period of time that exceeds 30 consecutive days.
  - (h) An application for a temporary permit may be rejected by the director if:
  - (1) The applicant has been granted four permits in the current calendar year;
  - (2) the application was not filed with the director at least 14 days prior to the event;
- (3) the applicant, or any officer, director, partner, registered agent, trustee, manager or owner of the applicant has previously owned or operated any entity holding a temporary permit, club, drinking establishment or caterer's license, had such permit or license surrendered, and at the time such permit or license was surrendered had been ordered to appear and show cause why the permit or license should not be revoked or suspended;
- (4) the applicant has designated an area for an event that was the subject of the order to appear and show cause as set forth in paragraph (3), and it appears that the new application for a temporary permit covering the premises is an attempt to avoid any possible remedial action taken by the director against the former permit or license holder; or
- (5) the applicant has had a license or permit revoked under the club and drinking establishment act, or has been convicted of a violation of the Kansas liquor control act, the club and drinking establishment act, the Kansas cereal malt beverage act or the provisions of K.S.A. 79-41a01 et seq., and amendments thereto.
- (i) (1) A temporary permit holder may purchase and possess alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> for resale for a period of three days prior to the first day of sale of such alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u>. A distributor may, without any further permission from the director, deliver such alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> to the permit premises.
- (2) If a licensee has sold alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage to a temporary permit holder, and a distributor directly delivers such alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage to such temporary permit holder, but such licensee's normal hours of operation make immediate payment to the distributor impossible, the licensee may pay the retailer and the retailer may pay the distributor for such alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage within 48 hours of the sale.
- (3) Within three business days after the end of an event conducted pursuant to a temporary permit, the temporary permit holder may sell back to the retailer or farm winery from whom alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> was purchased any alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> sold to the temporary permit holder for such event.
- (4) Upon written permission from the director and after four business days after the end of an event conducted pursuant to a temporary permit, the temporary permit holder may sell back to the licensee from whom alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> was purchased any alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> sold to the temporary permit holder for such event.
  - (i) A temporary permit shall not be transferable or assignable.
- (k) Each temporary permit holder shall not employ or use the services of any person:

- (1) Who is under the age of 18 years to serve alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt</u> beverage;
- (2) who is under the age of 21 years to mix or dispense drinks containing alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage;
- (3) who is under the age of 21 and not supervised by the temporary permit holder or an employee who is at least 21 years of age;
- (4) who has been convicted of a felony or of any crime involving a morals charge to dispense, mix or serve alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage; or
- (5) who has been convicted within the previous two years of a violation of any intoxicating liquor law of this state, any other state or the United States, to dispense, mix or serve alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage.
- Sec. 4. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-1202 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-1202. (a) A temporary permit holder shall only purchase alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> from a retailer or a farm winery and may receive delivery of such alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage from a distributor.
- (b) Temporary permit holders shall only purchase alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> from a retailer who possesses a federal wholesaler's basic permit and who has a sign on display at the licensed premises that states that the licensee is a "Wholesale Liquor Dealer Under Federal Law." All alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> purchased on any one day shall be removed from the licensed premises of the retailer or farm winery within 48 hours. Temporary permit holders shall not warehouse any alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> on the licensed premises of any retailer or farm winery for more than 48 hours.
- (c) Each temporary permit holder, when purchasing alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> from a retailer or farm winery, shall obtain and keep for at least one year from the date of purchase a sales receipt that contains the following information:
  - (1) The date of purchase;
  - (2) the name and address of the retailer or farm winery;
- (3) the name and address of the temporary permit holder as it appears on the temporary permit;
- (4) the brand, size, proof and amount of all alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage purchased; and
- (5) the subtotal of the cost of all alcoholic liquor <u>or cereal malt beverage</u> purchased, and the total cost of such purchase, including enforcement tax.
- (d) Each temporary permit holder shall be responsible for all violations of the club and drinking establishment act by the following people while on the permit premises:
- (1) An employee of the temporary permit holder, or of any person contracting with the temporary permit holder to provide services or food in connection with an event; or
- (2) any individual dispensing, mixing or serving alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal maltbeverage</u> at an event.
- (e) Except for a temporary permit holder who has obtained such permit for the sale of alcoholic liquor at a charitable auction or for the sale of one or more limited issue porcelain containers containing alcoholic liquor, no temporary permit holder shall sell alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> for removal from or consumption off the licensed premises, except that alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> may be removed to a drinking establishment that has extended its premises into the event area in accordance with K.S.A. 41-2608, and amendments thereto.

- (f) The boundary of any premises covered by a temporary permit shall be marked by a line of demarcation.
- Sec. 5. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-1203 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-1203. (a) All alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> sold at an event covered by a temporary permit shall be dispensed only from original containers.
- (b) An individual may carry an original container of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> onto the event premises with the approval of the temporary permit holder and under the following conditions:
- (1) The temporary permit holder shall not store any such containers of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage on the event premises; and
- (2) each individual carrying any such container onto the event premises shall remove such container when the individual exits the event premises.
- Sec. 6. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-1204 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-1204. Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Kansas liquor control act or the club and drinking establishment act to the contrary, any person or entity who is issued a temporary permit may provide samples of wine, beer, cereal malt beverage and distilled spirits on the permit premises as follows:
- (a) All wine, beer, cereal malt beverage and spirits sampled shall come from the inventory of the temporary permit holder. Except as provided by paragraph (2)-subsection (b), a person other than the temporary permit holder, or such permit holder's agent or employee, may not dispense or participate in the dispensing of alcoholic beverages liquor or cereal malt beverage under this section.
- (b) A supplier's permit holder, or such permit holder's agent or employee, may provide samples of wine, beer, cereal malt beverage and distilled spirits on the permit premises, and may open, touch or pour such alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage, make a presentation, or answer questions at such sampling events. Any alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage sampled under this subsection must be purchased from a retailer or the temporary permit holder on whose premises the sampling event is held.
  - (c) No charge of any sort may be made for a sample serving.
- (d) A person may be served more than one sample. Samples may not be served to a minor. No samples may be removed from the permit premises.
- (e) The act of providing samples to consumers shall be exempt from the requirement of holding a Kansas food service dealer license from the department of agriculture under the provisions of chapter 65 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 7. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2601 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2601. As used in the club and drinking establishment act:
- (a) The following terms—shall have the meanings mean the same as provided by K.S.A. 41-102, and amendments thereto: (1) "Alcoholic liquor"; (2) "director"; (3) "original package"; (4) "person"; (5) "sale"; and (6) "to sell."
- (b) "Beneficial interest" shall not include any interest a person may have as owner, operator, lessee or franchise holder of a licensed hotel or motel on the premises of which a club or drinking establishment is located.
- (c) "Caterer" means an individual, partnership or corporation—which that sells alcoholic liquor\_or cereal malt beverage by the individual drink, and provides services related to the serving thereof, on unlicensed premises—which that may be open to the public, but does not include a holder of a temporary permit, selling alcoholic liquor in

accordance with the terms of such permit.

- (d) "Cereal malt beverage" has the meaning means the same as provided by K.S.A. 41-2701, and amendments thereto.
- (e) "Class A club" means a premises—which that is owned or leased by a corporation, partnership, business trust or association and-which that is operated thereby as a bona fide nonprofit social, fraternal or war veterans' club, as determined by the director, for the exclusive use of the corporate stockholders, partners, trust beneficiaries or associates (hereinafter referred to as members) and their families and guests accompanying them.
- (f) "Class B club" means a premises operated for profit by a corporation, partnership or individual, to which members of such club may resort for the consumption of food or alcoholic beverages and for entertainment.
  - (g) "Club" means a class A or class B club.
- (h) "Drinking establishment" means premises—which that may be open to the general public, where alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage by the individual drink is sold. "Drinking establishment" includes a railway car.
- (i) "Food" means any raw, cooked or processed edible substance or ingredient, other than alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage, used or intended for use or for sale, in whole or in part, for human consumption.
- (j) "Food service establishment" has the meaning means the same as provided by K.S.A. 36-501, and amendments thereto.
- (k) "Hotel"—has the meaning means the same as provided by K.S.A. 36-501, and amendments thereto.
- (l) "Individual drink" means a beverage containing alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage served to an individual for consumption by such individual or another individual, but which is not intended to be consumed by two or more individuals. The term "individual drink" includes beverages containing not more than: (1) Eight ounces of wine; (2) thirty-two ounces of beer or cereal malt beverage; or (3) four ounces of a single spirit or a combination of spirits.
- (m) "Minibar" means a closed cabinet, whether nonrefrigerated or wholly or partially refrigerated, access to the interior of which is restricted by means of a locking device which requires the use of a key, magnetic card or similar device.
  - (n) "Minor" means a person under 21 years of age.
- (o) "Morals charge" means a charge involving the sale of sexual relations; procuring any person; soliciting of a child under 18 years of age for any immoral act involving sex; possession or sale of narcotics, marijuana, amphetamines or barbiturates; rape; incest; gambling; illegal cohabitation; adultery; bigamy; or a crime against nature.
  - (p) "Municipal corporation" means the governing body of any county or city.
- (q) "Public venue" means an arena, stadium, hall or theater, used primarily for athletic or sporting events, live concerts, live theatrical productions or similar seasonal entertainment events, not operated on a daily basis, and containing:
  - (1) Not less than 4,000 permanent seats; and
- (2) not less than two private suites, which that are enclosed or semi-enclosed seating areas, having controlled access and separated from the general admission areas by a permanent barrier.
- (r) "Railway car" means a locomotive drawn conveyance used for the transportation and accommodation of human passengers that is confined to a fixed rail

route and which derives from sales of food for consumption on the railway car not less than 30% of its gross receipts from all sales of food and beverages in a 12-month period.

- (s) "Restaurant" means:
- (1) In the case of a club, a licensed food service establishment—which that, as determined by the director, derives from sales of food for consumption on the licensed club premises not less than 50% of its gross receipts from all sales of food and beverages on such premises in a 12-month period;
- (2) in the case of a drinking establishment subject to a food sales requirement under K.S.A. 41-2642, and amendments thereto, a licensed food service establishment—which that, as determined by the director, derives from sales of food for consumption on the licensed drinking establishment premises not less than 30% of its gross receipts from all sales of food and beverages on such premises in a 12-month period; and
- (3) in the case of a drinking establishment subject to no food sales requirement under K.S.A. 41-2642, and amendments thereto, a licensed food service establishment.
- (t) "RV resort" means premises where a place to park recreational vehicles, as defined in K.S.A. 75-1212, and amendments thereto, is offered for pay, primarily to transient guests, for overnight or longer use while such recreational vehicles are used as sleeping or living accommodations.
- (u) "Sample" means a serving of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> that contains not more than: (1) One-half ounce of distilled spirits; (2) one ounce of wine; or (3) two ounces of beer or cereal malt beverage. A sample of a mixed alcoholic beverage shall contain not more than ½ ounce of distilled spirits.
  - (v) "Secretary" means the secretary of revenue.
- (w) "Temporary permit" means a temporary permit issued pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-1201, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 8. K.S.A. 41-2604 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2604. Any person allowing consumption of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage in violation of this act on any property owned, leased or otherwise under—his\_such person's control shall thereby subject—himself\_such\_person and the property on which—said\_such\_illegal consumption takes place to the penalties—hereinafter provided in this section.
- (a) The person allowing such consumption shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be subject to a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars (\$500) \$500 or confinement in the county jail not to exceed six (6) months, or both such fine and imprisonment.
- (b) The property on which the violation takes place is declared to be a public nuisance and as such is subject to abatement as provided for any other liquor nuisance in K.S.A. 41-805, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 9. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2608 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2608. (a) Any public venue, club or drinking establishment license issued pursuant to this act shall be for one particular premises—which that shall be stated in the application and in the license. Not more than one premises licensed under the club and drinking establishment act shall exist at a single legal address.
- (b) No license shall be issued for a public venue, club or drinking establishment unless the city, township or county zoning code allows a club or drinking establishment at that location.
  - (c) The licensed premises of a license may be extended into a city, county or

township street, alley, road, sidewalk or highway if: (1) Such street, alley, road, sidewalk or highway is closed to motor vehicle traffic by the governing body of such city, county or township at any time during which alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal maltbeverage</u> is to be sold or consumed; and (2) such extension has been approved by the city, county or township by ordinance or resolution that specifies the exact times during which alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal maltbeverage</u> may be sold or consumed on the street, alley, road, sidewalk or highway.

- Sec. 10. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2610 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2610. It shall be unlawful for any licensee or holder of a temporary permit under this act to:
- (a) Employ any person under the age of 18 years in connection with the serving of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage.
- (b) Employ knowingly or continue in employment any person in connection with the dispensing or serving of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage or the mixing of drinks containing alcoholic liquor who has been adjudged guilty of a felony or of any crime involving a morals charge in this or any other state, or of the United States.
- (c) Knowingly employ or continue to employ any person in connection with the dispensing or serving of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u>, or the mixing of drinks containing alcoholic liquor, who has been adjudged guilty of two or more violations of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5607, and amendments thereto, furnishing alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> to minors or a similar law of any other state, or of the United States, pertaining to furnishing alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> to minors within the immediately preceding five years, or who has been adjudged guilty of three or more violations of any intoxicating liquor law of this or any other state, or of the United States, not involving the furnishing of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> to minors within the immediately preceding five years.
- (d) In the case of a club, fail to maintain at the licensed premises a current list of all members and their residence addresses or refuse to allow the director, any of the director's authorized agents or any law enforcement officer to inspect such list.
- (e) Purchase alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> from any person except from a person authorized by law to sell such alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> to such licensee or permit holder.
- (f) Permit any employee of the licensee or permit holder who is under the age of 21 years to work on premises where alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> is sold by such licensee or permit holder at any time when not under the on-premises supervision of either the licensee or permit holder, or an employee who is 21 years of age or over.
- (g) Employ any person under 21 years of age in connection with the mixing or dispensing of drinks containing alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage.
- Sec. 11. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2611 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2611. The director may suspend, involuntarily cancel or revoke any license issued pursuant to the club and drinking establishment act for any one or more of the following reasons:
- (a) The licensee has fraudulently obtained the license by giving false information in the application therefor or any hearing thereon.
- (b) The licensee has violated any of the provisions of this act or any rules or regulations adopted hereunder.
  - (c) The licensee has become ineligible to obtain a license or permit under this act.

- (d) The licensee's manager or employee has been intoxicated while on duty.
- (e) The licensee, or its manager or employee, has permitted any disorderly person to remain on premises where alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage is sold by such licensee.
- (f) There has been a violation of a provision of the laws of this state, or of the United States, pertaining to the sale of intoxicating or alcoholic liquors or cereal malt beverages, or any crime involving a morals charge, on premises where alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage is sold by such licensee.
- (g) The licensee, or its managing officers or any employee, has purchased and displayed, on premises where alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage is sold by such licensee, a federal wagering occupational stamp issued by the United States treasury department.
- (h) The licensee, or its managing officers or any employee, has purchased and displayed, on premises where alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage is sold by such licensee, a federal coin operated gambling device stamp for the premises issued by the United States treasury department.
- (i) The licensee holds a license as a class B club, drinking establishment or caterer and has been found guilty of a violation of article 10 of chapter 44 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, under a decision or order of the Kansas human rights commission—which that has become final, or such licensee has been found guilty of a violation of K.S.A. 21-4003, prior to its repeal, or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6102, and amendments thereto.
- (j) There has been a violation of K.S.A. 21-4106 or 21-4107, prior to their repeal, or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6204, and amendments thereto, on premises where alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage is sold by such licensee.
- Sec. 12. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2613 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2613. The right of immediate entry to and inspection of any premises licensed as a public venue, club or drinking establishment or any premises where alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage is sold by a holder of a temporary permit, or any premises subject to the control of any licensee or temporary permit holder, by any duly authorized officer or agent of the director, or by any law enforcement officer, shall be a condition on which every license or temporary permit is issued, and the application for, and acceptance of, any license or temporary permit shall conclusively be deemed to be the consent of the applicant and licensee or permit holder to such immediate entry and inspection. Such right of immediate entry and inspection shall be at any time when the premises are occupied and is not limited to hours when the club or drinking establishment is open for business. Such consent shall not be revocable during the term of the license or temporary permit. Refusal of such entry shall be grounds for revocation of the license or temporary permit.
- Sec. 13. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2614 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2614. (a) Except as provided by subsection (c), no public venue, club or drinking establishment shall allow the serving, mixing or consumption of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> on its premises between the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. on any day.
- (b) No caterer shall allow the serving, mixing or consumption of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage between the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. on any day at an event catered by such caterer.

- (c) A hotel of which the entire premises are licensed as a drinking establishment or as a drinking establishment caterer may allow at any time the serving, mixing and consumption of alcoholic liquor and cereal malt beverage from a minibar in a guest room by guests registered to stay in such room, and guests of guests registered to stay in such room.
- Sec. 14. K.S.A. 41-2619 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2619. The existence of any place for which a license or temporary permit has not been issued pursuant to this act and which purports, or is held out to the public or to any person by the proprietors or their agents or employees, to be a place where alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage is sold by the individual drink, shall be deemed to be sufficient probable cause for any judge of the district court to issue a search warrant to any law enforcement officer of the state or a subdivision of the state for the purpose of searching such place for alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage being sold, possessed or consumed in violation of this act, any other law of the state or any ordinance of a municipal subdivision of the state.
- Sec. 15. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2623 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2623. (a) No license shall be issued under the provisions of this act to:
- (1) Any person described in K.S.A. 41-311(a)(1), (2), (4), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9), (12), (13) or (15), and amendments thereto, except that the provisions of subsection K.S.A. 41-311(a)(7) of such section, and amendments thereto, shall not apply to nor prohibit the issuance of a license for a class A club to an officer of a post home of a congressionally chartered service or fraternal organization, or a benevolent association or society thereof.
- (2) A person who has had the person's license revoked for cause under the provisions of this act.
- (3) A person who has not been a resident of this state for a period of at least one year immediately preceding the date of application.
- (4) A person who has a beneficial interest in the manufacture, preparation or wholesaling or the retail sale of alcoholic—liquors liquor or cereal malt beverage or a beneficial interest in any other club, drinking establishment or caterer licensed hereunder, except that:
- (A) A license for premises located in a hotel may be granted to a person who has a beneficial interest in one or more other clubs or drinking establishments licensed hereunder if such other clubs or establishments are located in hotels.
- (B) A license for a club or drinking establishment—which that is a restaurant may be issued to a person who has a beneficial interest in other clubs or drinking establishments which that are restaurants.
- (C) A caterer's license may be issued to a person who has a beneficial interest in a club or drinking establishment and a license for a club or drinking establishment may be issued to a person who has a beneficial interest in a caterer.
- (D) A license for a class A club may be granted to an organization of which an officer, director or board member is a distributor or retailer licensed under the liquor control act if such distributor or retailer sells no alcoholic liquor to such club.
- (E) Any person who has a beneficial interest in a microbrewery, microdistillery or farm winery licensed pursuant to the Kansas liquor control act may be issued any or all of the following: (1) Class B club license; (2) drinking establishment license; and (3) caterer's license.

- (5) A copartnership, unless all of the copartners are qualified to obtain a license.
- (6) A corporation, if any officer, manager or director thereof, or any stockholder owning in the aggregate more than 5% of the common or preferred stock of such corporation would be ineligible to receive a license hereunder for any reason other than citizenship and residence requirements.
- (7) A corporation, if any officer, manager or director thereof, or any stockholder owning in the aggregate more than 5% of the common or preferred stock of such corporation, has been an officer, manager or director, or a stockholder owning in the aggregate more than 5% of the common or preferred stock, of a corporation which that:
- (A) Has had a license revoked under the provisions of the club and drinking establishment act; or
- (B) has been convicted of a violation of the club and drinking establishment act or the cereal malt beverage laws of this state.
  - (8) A corporation organized under the laws of any state other than this state.
- (9) A trust, if any grantor, beneficiary or trustee would be ineligible to receive a license under this act for any reason, except that the provisions of K.S.A. 41-311(a)(6), and amendments thereto, shall not apply in determining whether a beneficiary would be eligible for a license.
- (b) No club or drinking establishment license shall be issued under the provisions of the club and drinking establishment act to:
- (1) A person who does not own the premises for which a license is sought, or does not, at the time the application is submitted, have a written lease thereon, except that an applicant seeking a license for a premises—which that is owned by a city or county, or is a stadium, arena, convention center, theater, museum, amphitheater or other similar premises may submit an executed agreement to provide alcoholic beverage services at the premises listed in the application in lieu of a lease.
- (2) A person who is not a resident of the county in which the premises sought to be licensed are located.
- Sec. 16. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2637 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2637. (a) A license for a class A club shall allow the licensee to: (1) Offer for sale, sell and serve alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> for consumption on the licensed premises by members and their families, and guests accompanying them; and (2) serve samples of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> free of charge for consumption by members and their families and guests accompanying them.

No charge of any sort may be made for a sample serving. Samples may not be served to a minor. No samples may be removed from the licensed premises. No consideration shall be requested or required for entry onto the premises, participation in any event taking place on the premises or to remain on the premises.

(b) (1) Subject to the provisions of subsection (b)(2), any two or more class A or class B clubs may permit, by an agreement filed with and approved by the director, the members of each such club to have access to all other clubs—which that are parties to such agreement. The privileges extended to the visiting members of other clubs under such an agreement shall be determined by the agreement and, if the agreement so provides, any club—which that is a party to such agreement may sell, offer for sale and serve, to any person who is a member of another club—which that is a party to such agreement, alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage for consumption on the licensed premises by such person and such person's family, and guests accompanying them.

- (2) A class B club may enter into a reciprocal agreement authorized by subsection (b)(1) only if the class B club is a restaurant.
- (c) A licensee may store on its premises wine sold to a customer for consumption at a later date on its premises in the unopened container. Such wine must be kept separate from all other alcohol stock and in a secure locked area separated by customer. Such wine shall not be removed from the licensed premises in its unopened condition.
- Sec. 17. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2641 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2641. (a) A license for a class B club shall allow the licensee to: (1) Offer for sale, sell and serve alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> for consumption on the licensed premises by members of such club and guests accompanying them; and (2) serve samples of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> free of charge on the licensed premises for consumption by such members and their families and guests accompanying them.

No charge of any sort may be made for a sample serving. Samples may not be served to a minor. No samples may be removed from the licensed premises. Providing samples is prohibited for any licensee who charges a cover charge or entry fee at any time during the business day. No consideration shall be requested or required for entry onto the premises, participation in any event taking place on the premises or to remain on the premises.

- (b) (1) Subject to the provisions of subsection (b)(2), any two or more class A or class B clubs may permit, by an agreement filed with and approved by the director, the members of each such club to have access to all other clubs which that are parties to such agreement. The privileges extended to the visiting members of other clubs under such an agreement shall be determined by the agreement and, if the agreement so provides, any club-which that is a party to such agreement may sell, offer for sale and serve, to any person who is a member of another club-which that is a party to such agreement, alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage for consumption on the licensed premises by such person and such person's family, and guests accompanying them.
- (2) A class B club may enter into a reciprocal agreement authorized by subsection (b)(1) only if the class B club is a restaurant.
- (c) Except as provided by subsection (d), an applicant for membership in a class B club shall, before becoming a member of such club:
  - (1) Be screened by the club for good moral character; and
  - (2) pay an annual membership fee of not less than \$10.
  - (d) Notwithstanding the membership fee requirement of subsection (c):
- (1) Any class B club located on the premises of a hotel or RV resort may establish rules whereby a guest, who registered at the hotel or RV resort and who is not a resident of the county in which the club is located, may file application for temporary membership in such club. The membership, if granted, shall be valid only for the period of time that the guest is a bona fide registered guest at the hotel or RV resort and such temporary membership shall not be subject to the fee requirement of this section.
- (2) Any class B club located on property which is owned or operated by a municipal airport authority and upon which consumption of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage is authorized by law may establish rules whereby an air traveler who is a holder of a current airline ticket may file application for temporary membership in such club for the day such air traveler's ticket is valid, and such temporary membership shall not be subject to the fee requirement of this section.

- (3) Any class B club may establish rules whereby military personnel of the armed forces of the United States on temporary duty and housed at or near any military installation located within the exterior boundaries of the state of Kansas may file application for temporary membership in such club. The membership, if granted, shall be valid only for the period of the training, not to exceed 20 weeks. Any person wishing to make application for temporary membership in a class B club under this-subsection (d)(3) paragraph shall present the temporary duty orders to the club. Temporary membership issued under this-subsection (d)(3) paragraph shall not be subject to the fee requirements of this section.
- (4) Any class B club may enter into a written agreement with a hotel or RV resort whereby a guest who is registered at the hotel or RV resort and who is not a resident of the county in which the club is located may file application for temporary membership in such club. The temporary membership, if granted, shall be valid only for the period of time that the guest is a bona fide registered guest at the hotel or RV resort and shall not be subject to the fee requirement of this section. A club may enter into a written agreement with a hotel or RV resort pursuant to this provision only if: (A) The hotel or RV resort is located in the same county as the club; (B) there is no class B club located on the premises of the hotel or RV resort; and (C) no other club has entered into a written agreement with the hotel or RV resort pursuant to this section.
- (5) Any class B club located in a racetrack facility where races with parimutuel wagering are conducted under the Kansas parimutuel racing act may establish rules whereby persons attending such races may file an application for temporary membership in such club for the day such person is attending such races, and such temporary membership shall not be subject to the fee requirement of this section.
- (e) A licensee may store on its premises wine sold to a customer for consumption at a later date on its premises in the unopened container. Such wine must be kept separate from all other alcohol stock and in a secure locked area separated by customer. Such wine shall not be removed from the licensed premises in its unopened condition.
- Sec. 18. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2642 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2642. (a) A license for a drinking establishment shall allow the licensee to offer for sale, sell and serve alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> for consumption on the licensed premises which may be open to the public, and to serve samples of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> free of charge on licensed premises subject to the requirements of subsection (c), but only if such premises are located in a county where the qualified electors of the county:
- (1) (A) Approved, by a majority vote of those voting thereon, the proposition to amend section 10 of article 15 of the constitution of the state of Kansas at the general election in November 1986; or (B) have approved a proposition to allow sales of alcoholic liquor by the individual drink in public places within the county at an election pursuant to K.S.A. 41-2646, and amendments thereto; and
- (2) have not approved a proposition to prohibit such sales of alcoholic liquor in such places at a subsequent election pursuant to K.S.A. 41-2646, and amendments thereto.
- (b) A drinking establishment shall be required to derive from sales of food for consumption on the licensed premises not less than 30% of all the establishment's gross receipts from sales of food and beverages on such premises unless the licensed premises are located in a county where the qualified electors of the county:

- (1) Have approved, at an election pursuant to K.S.A. 41-2646, and amendments thereto, a proposition to allow sales of alcoholic liquor by the individual drink in public places within the county without a requirement that any portion of their gross receipts be derived from the sale of food; and
- (2) have not approved a proposition to prohibit such sales of alcoholic liquor in such places at a subsequent election pursuant to K.S.A. 41-2646, and amendments thereto.
- (c) No charge of any sort may be made for a sample serving. Samples may not be served to a minor. No samples may be removed from the licensed premises. Providing samples is prohibited for any licensee who charges a cover charge or entry fee at any time during the business day. No consideration shall be requested or required for entry onto the premises, participation in any event taking place on the premises or to remain on the premises.
- (d) A drinking establishment shall specify in the application for a license or renewal of a license the premises to be licensed, which may include all premises which are in close proximity and are under the control of the applicant or licensee.
- (e) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, any hotel of which the entire premises are licensed as a drinking establishment or as a drinking establishment caterer may sell alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage by means of minibars located in guest rooms of such hotel, subject to the following:
- (1) The key, magnetic card or other device required to attain access to a minibar in a guest room shall be provided only to guests who are registered to stay in such room and who are 21 or more years of age;
- (2) containers or packages of spirits or wine sold by means of a minibar shall hold not less than 50 nor more than 200 milliliters; and
- (3) a minibar shall be restocked with alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage only during hours when the hotel is permitted to sell alcoholic liquor and cereal malt beverage as a drinking establishment.
- (f) A drinking establishment may store on its premises wine sold to a customer for consumption at a later date on its premises in the unopened container. Such wine must be kept separate from all other alcohol stock and in a secure locked area separated by customer. Such wine shall not be removed from the licensed premises in its unopened condition.
- Sec. 19. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2643 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2643. (a) A caterer's license shall allow the licensee to offer for sale, sell and serve alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage for consumption on unlicensed premises, which that may be open to the public, but only if such premises are located in a county where the qualified electors of the county:
- (1) (A) Approved, by a majority vote of those voting thereon, the proposition to amend section 10 of article 15 of the constitution of the state of Kansas at the general election in November, 1986; or (B) have approved a proposition to allow sales of alcoholic liquor by the individual drink in public places within the county at an election pursuant to K.S.A. 41-2646, and amendments thereto; and
- (2) have not approved a proposition to prohibit such sales of alcoholic liquor in such places at a subsequent election pursuant to K.S.A. 41-2646, and amendments thereto.
  - (b) A caterer shall be required to derive from sales of food at catered events not less

than 30% of the caterer's gross receipts from all sales of food and beverages at catered events in a 12-month period unless the caterer offers for sale, sells and serves alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage only in counties where the qualified electors of the county:

- (1) Have approved, at an election pursuant to K.S.A. 41-2646, and amendments thereto, a proposition to allow sales of alcoholic liquor by the individual drink in public places within the county without a requirement that any portion of their gross receipts be derived from the sale of food; and
- (2) have not approved a proposition to prohibit such sales of alcoholic liquor in such places at a subsequent election pursuant to K.S.A. 41-2646, and amendments thereto.
- (c) Each caterer shall maintain the caterer's principal place of business in a county in this state where the caterer is authorized by this section to sell alcoholic liquor by the individual drink in a public place. All records of the caterer relating to the caterer's licensed business and the caterer's license shall be kept at such place of business. The caterer's principal place of business shall be stated in the application for a caterer's license and the caterer shall notify the director of any change in its location within 10 days after such change.
- (d) Except as otherwise provided herein, a caterer shall provide electronic notification to the director at least 48 hours prior to any event at which the caterer will sell alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage by the individual drink. The director shall make the electronic notification available to local law enforcement. Notice shall consist of the time, location and the names of the contracting parties of the event. For events where-alcohol alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage is served, a licensee shall retain all documents for a period of three years for inspection by the director. The documents retained shall include agreements, receipts, employees assigned to the event and records of-alcohol alcoholic liquor and cereal malt beverage purchased. Notification shall not be required for weddings, funerals, events sponsored by religious institutions, or for business, industry or trade sponsored meetings, including, but not limited to, awards presentations and retirement celebrations.
- (e) A caterer may rebate a portion of the caterer's receipts from the sale of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> at an event to the person or organization contracting with the caterer to sell alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> at such event.";

Also on page 2, in line 30, after "liquor" by inserting "or cereal malt beverage"; in line 33, after "liquor" by inserting "or cereal malt beverage"; in line 34, after "liquor" by inserting "or cereal malt beverage"; in line 36, after "liquor" by inserting "or cereal malt beverage"; in line 37, after "liquor" by inserting "or cereal malt beverage"; in line 38, after "liquor" by inserting "or cereal malt beverage"; in line 42, after "liquor" by inserting "or cereal malt beverage"; in line 43, after "liquor" by inserting "or cereal malt beverage";

On page 3, in line 3, by striking "which" and inserting "that"; following line 18, by inserting:

- "Sec. 21. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2655 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2655. (a) A license for a public venue shall allow the licensee to:
- (1) Offer for sale, sell and serve alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage by the individual drink for consumption on the licensed premises;
  - (2) offer for sale, sell and serve unlimited drinks for a fixed price in designated

areas of the licensed premises;

- (3) offer for sale and sell-<u>all inclusive all-inclusive</u> packages-<u>which that</u> include unlimited drinks in designated areas of the licensed premises;
- (4) offer for sale, sell and serve alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage in the original container for consumption on the licensed premises in private suites, which that are enclosed or semi-enclosed seating areas, having controlled access and separated from the general admission areas by a permanent barrier;
- (5) store, in each private suite, which that is an enclosed or semi-enclosed seating area, having controlled access and separated from the general admission areas by a permanent barrier, alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage sold in the original container to a customer in that private suite; and
- (6) with the approval of the retailer or distributor, return for a full refund of the original purchase price unopened containers of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage to the retailer or distributor from whom such items were purchased upon the conclusion of an event if the next scheduled event for that premises is more than 90 days from the date of the concluded event.
- (b) An applicant or public venue licensee shall specify in the application for a license, or renewal of a license, the premises to be licensed. No public venue licensee may offer for sale, sell or serve any alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage in any area not included in the licensed premises.
- (c) The term "designated areas" for purposes of this section shall mean means an area identified in the license application, which may include suites, that has controlled access and is separated from the general admission by a barrier.
- (d) The provisions of this section shall take effect and be in force from and after July 1, 2012.
- (e)(d) All rules and regulations adopted on and after July 1, 2012, and prior to July 1, 2013, to implement this section shall continue to be effective and shall be deemed to be duly adopted rules and regulations of the secretary until revised, amended, revoked or nullified pursuant to law.
- (f)(e) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the club and drinking establishment act.
- Sec. 22. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2658 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2658. (a) Alcoholic liquor and cereal malt beverage shall be dispensed only from original containers, except any drinking establishment licensee or its agent or employee, may dispense:
- (1) Alcoholic liquor <u>or cereal malt beverage</u> from a machine or container used to mix alcoholic liquor with other liquids or solids intended for human consumption;
- (2) alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> from a machine or container used to chill alcoholic liquor, which may contain additional liquids or solids intended for human consumption; or
- (3) infused alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> from a container used to infuse alcoholic liquor with other substances intended for human consumption.
- (b) A drinking establishment licensee, or its agent or employee, shall not refill any original container with any alcoholic liquor, cereal malt beverage or any other substance.
- (c) Any drinking establishment licensee, or its agent or employee, may infuse alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage with spices, herbs, fruits, vegetables, candy or

other substances intended for human consumption if no additional fermentation occurs during the process.

- (d) As used in this section:
- (1) "Dispense" means to portion out servings of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> for consumption. This term<u>shall include</u> includes the pouring of drinks of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> and opening original containers of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> by the licensee or licensee's employee for consumption by customers, and shall not include any self-dispensing by a customer.
- (2) "Infuse" means to add flavor or scent to a liquid by steeping additional ingredients in the liquid.
- (e) This section shall be <u>a</u> part of and supplemental to the club and drinking establishment act.
- Sec. 23. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2659 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2659. (a) (1) A city or a county may establish one or more common consumption areas within the limits of the city or within the unincorporated portion of the county, as applicable, by ordinance or resolution, respectively, and authorize the possession and consumption of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage within the common consumption area. The ordinance or resolution shall designate the boundaries of any common consumption area and prescribe the times during which alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage may be consumed therein. The ordinance or resolution shall require that any public street or roadway that lies within a common consumption area shall be blocked from motorized traffic during the hours in which—alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage is consumed.
- (2) The city or county shall immediately notify the director of the division of alcoholic beverage control of the establishment of a common consumption area and submit a copy of the ordinance or resolution along with such notice.
- (b) A common consumption area permit shall allow the consumption of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage in any area designated by such permit. The director may issue common consumption area permits to the city or county or any one person who shall be a resident of Kansas or an organization that has its principal place of business in Kansas and that has been approved by the respective city or county, in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary of revenue.
- (c) Applications for common consumption area permits shall be submitted to the director, subject to the following:
- (1) A copy of any ordinance or resolution promulgated in accordance with subsection (a) shall accompany any application for a common consumption area permit.
- (2) Each application shall be accompanied by a non-refundable permit fee of \$100. All permit fees collected by the director pursuant to this section shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the state general fund.
- (3) A common consumption area permit shall be issued for a period of not to exceed one year. A common consumption area permit shall not be transferable or assignable.
- (d) Any licensee immediately adjacent to, or located within a common consumption area may request that the licensee's licensed premises participate in the common consumption area for the duration of the common consumption area permit.

Such a request shall be made upon forms prescribed by the director.

- (e) (1) Any licensee who has requested and received permission to participate in the common consumption area may allow its legal patrons to remove alcoholic liquor<u>or</u> cereal malt beverage purchased from the licensee into the premises described by the common consumption area permit. All alcoholic<u>beverages liquor</u> and cereal malt beverage removed from a licensed premises in such fashion shall be served in a container that displays the licensee's trade name or logo or other identifying mark that is unique to the licensee.
- (2) In addition to their licensed premises, one or more licensees that have requested and received permission to participate in a common consumption area may offer for sale, sell and serve alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage for consumption from one non-contiguous service area within the common consumption area, as designated and approved by the common consumption area permit holder. The licensee shall prominently display a copy of its drinking establishment license and the approval of the common consumption area permit holder at its non-contiguous service area.
- (f) (1) Each licensee within a common consumption area shall be liable for violations of all liquor laws governing the sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor and cereal malt beverage that occur on the licensee's premises.
- (2) Each common consumption area permit holder shall be liable for violations that occur off the licensee's premises, but within the common consumption area identified in the permit. No permit holder shall permit any person to remove any open container of alcoholic liquor<u>or cereal malt beverage</u> from the boundaries of the common consumption area.
- (g) For the purposes of this section, "common consumption area" shall mean means a defined indoor or outdoor area not otherwise subject to a license issued pursuant to the Kansas liquor control act or the club and drinking establishment act where the possession and consumption of alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage is allowed pursuant to a common consumption area permit. The boundaries of any common consumption area must be clearly marked using a physical barrier or any apparent line of demarcation.
  - (h) The secretary shall adopt rules and regulations to implement this section.
- (i) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the club and drinking establishment act.";

Also on page 3, in line 19, before "K.S.A" by inserting "K.S.A. 41-2604 and 41-2619 and"; also in line 19, by striking "and" and inserting ", 41-308d, 41-1201, 41-1202, 41-1203, 41-1204, 41-2601, 41-2608, 41-2610, 41-2611, 41-2613, 41-2614, 41-2623, 41-2637, 41-2641, 41-2642, 41-2643,"; also in line 19, before "are" by inserting ", 41-2655, 41-2658 and 41-2659";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking all after "alcoholic"; by striking all in line 2; in line 3, by striking all before the semicolon and inserting "beverages; authorizing licensees to sell cereal malt beverage and beer and cereal malt beverage in certain containers"; also in line 3, after "amending" by inserting "K.S.A. 41-2604 and 41-2619 and"; in line 4, by striking the first "and" and inserting ", 41-308d, 41-1201, 41-1202, 41-1203, 41-1204, 41-2601, 41-2608, 41-2610, 41-2611, 41-2613, 41-2614, 41-2623, 41-2637, 41-2641, 41-2642, 41-2643,"; also in line 4, after "41-2653" by inserting ", 41-2655, 41-2658 and 41-2659"; and the bill be passed as amended.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 12:45 p.m.

## EARLY AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing passage of SB 309, SB 322, SB 375, SB 406, SB 417, SB 432, SB 433, SB 454, SB 474, and SB 491.

# INTRODUCTION OF SENATE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following Senate bills were thereupon introduced and read by title:

SB 309, SB 322, SB 375, SB 406, SB 417, SB 432, SB 433, SB 454, SB 474, SB 491.

## INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, pursuant to House Rule 2311, **H Sub for SB** 27 was advanced to Final Action on Bills and Concurrent Resolutions, subject to amendment, debate and roll call.

## FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

H Sub for SB 27, AN ACT concerning employment security law; relating to the maximum benefit eligibility period; compensation for the pre-payment waiting period; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-704 and 44-705 and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 119; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 6.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Holscher, Kuether, Ousley.

The substitute bill passed.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until the sound of the gavel.

# AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The Senate nonconcurs in House amendments to SB 173, requests a conference and has appointed Senators McGinn, Billinger and Hawk as conferees on the part of the Senate.

## INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House acceded to the request of the Senate for a conference on **H Sub for SB 173**.

Speaker Ryckman thereupon appointed Reps. Waymaster, Proehl and Wolfe Moore as conferees on the part of the House.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until the sound of the gavel.

## **EVENING SESSION**

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 9:00 a.m., Wednesday, March 18, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## FORTY-THIRD DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, TOPEKA, KS, Wednesday, March 18, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 117 members present.

Reps. Kuether and Winn were excused on verified illness.

Reps. Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Holscher, Ousley and L. Ruiz were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Present later: Rep. Donohoe.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Rev. Rob Self, Pastor, Lakeview Church of the Nazarene, Topeka:

Sovereign Lord,
We beseech thee, to lead us as a people submissive to Your will, and purposes.
Guide the decisions made this day that govern this land to further Your plans.
May this day the Coronavirus be eradicated from this land; and from those around the world who are vulnerable to this illness.
May Your grace and mercy be upon us, and keep us healthy, O Lord!

Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Curtis.

## REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: SB 375.

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: SB 474.

Elections: SB 454.

Federal and State Affairs: SB 417, SB 432, SB 433.

Health and Human Services: SB 491.

Local Government: SB 406. Taxation: SB 309, SB 322.

#### MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

March 17, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-07 for your information.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-07

Temporarily closing K-12 schools to slow the spread of COVID-19

Laura Kelly Governor

The above Executive Order is on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The Senate concurs in House amendments to **SB 27**.

The Senate concurs in House amendments to **SB 102**.

The Senate concurs in House amendments to SB 142.

Announcing passage of HB 2510, as amended, HB 2702, as amended.

Announcing passage of HB 2595.

The Senate announced the appointment of Senators McGinn, Billinger, and Hawk to replace Senators Baumgardner, Alley, and Hawk as conferees on **HB 2168**.

# INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Humphries, **HR 6041**, by Reps. Humphries, Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, Carpenter, Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, Ruiz, Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, Smith, Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu and Yeager, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

**HR 6041**—A RESOLUTION recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

WHEREAS, August 26, 2020, signifies the 100<sup>th</sup> anniversary of the ratification of the 19<sup>th</sup> Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America; and

WHEREAS, The ratification of this amendment not only allowed women the right to vote, but it also allowed women to achieve successes in every industry; and

WHEREAS, Women play a critical leadership role in our country, and there are numerous former, current and future women leaders from the state of Kansas who should be recognized; and

WHEREAS, The 100<sup>th</sup> of the 19<sup>th</sup> Foundation will host a statewide, three-day event on August 13, 14 and 15, 2020, to foster unity, provide training and promote women's leadership throughout the state of Kansas: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That we recognize August 13 through 15, 2020, as Kansas' celebration of the 100<sup>th</sup> anniversary of the ratification of the 19<sup>th</sup> Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America and call upon the people of Kansas to unite as we support the success of women and recognize Kansas women in leadership roles with the appropriate activities, events and programs; and

*Be it further resolved*: That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives shall send two enrolled copies of this resolution to Representative Humphries.

## PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

Rep. Humphries thanked her co-sponsors and recognized the 100<sup>th</sup> anniversary of the ratification of the 19<sup>th</sup> Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 10:00 a.m.

#### LATE MORNING SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

## SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS

The time now having arrived for the Special Order of Business, **Executive Reorganization Order No. 44**, an order renaming the Kansas department for children and families the Kansas department of human services; abolishing the Kansas department for aging and disability services and transferring powers, duties and functions to the Kansas department of human services; and transferring the powers, duties and functions of the department of corrections regarding the juvenile services program and certain juvenile facilities and institutions to the Kansas department of human services, and **HR 6032**, Disapproving **Executive Reorganization Order No. 44** that relates to the newly named Kansas department of human services, were considered on motion of Rep. W. Carpenter to adopt **HR 6032**.

HR 6032, A RESOLUTION disapproving Executive Reorganization Order No. 44, renaming the Kansas department for children and families the Kansas department of human services; abolishing the Kansas department for aging and disability services and transferring powers, duties and functions to the Kansas department of human services; and transferring the powers, duties and functions of the department of corrections regarding the juvenile services program and certain juvenile facilities and institutions to the Kansas department of human services, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 82; Nays 35; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 8.

Yeas: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Nays: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Burroughs, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Horn, Lusk, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Holscher, Kuether, Ousley, Ruiz, L., Winn.

The resolution was adopted.

#### EXPLANATION OF VOTE

Mr Speaker: I vote No on **HR 6032**. At a time of crisis, this is not a good time to stop a reorganization that is designed to streamline the system and improve the delivery of needed services. — Tom Sawyer, Eileen Horn, Stephanie Yeager, Gail Finney, John Alcala, David Benson, Mike Amyx, Jason Probst, John Carmichael, Monica Murnan, Jerry Stogsdill, Stephanie Clayton, Brandon Woodard, Rui Xu, Susan Ruiz, Virgil Weigel, Freda Warfield, Jim Gartner, Cindy Neighbor, Nancy Lusk, Jeff Pittman, Tom Burroughs, Brett Parker, Tim Hodge, Broderick Henderson, Barbara Ballard

The time now having arrived for the Special Order of Business, **Executive Reorganization Order No. 46**, establishing the Kansas energy office and transferring the powers, duties and functions of the energy division of the state corporation commission as described in K.S.A. 74-616(a) through (d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125 and 75-37,129 to the Kansas energy office, a resolution disapproving **Executive Reorganization Order No. 46** that establishes the Kansas energy office, were considered on motion of Rep. Delperdang to adopt **HR 6031**.

**HR 6031**, A RESOLUTION disapproving Executive Reorganization Order No. 46, establishing the Kansas energy office and transferring the powers, duties and functions of the energy division of the state corporation commission as described in K.S.A. 74-616(a) through (d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125 and 75-37,129 to the Kansas energy office, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 74; Nays 44; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 7.

Yeas: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Croft,

Delperdang, Dierks, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Kelly, Landwehr, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, K. Williams.

Nays: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Burroughs, Carmichael, Clayton, Cox, Curtis, Dietrich, Eplee, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hineman, Hodge, Horn, Karleskint, Kessinger, Long, Lusk, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Parker, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Wheeler, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Carlin, Holscher, Kuether, Ousley, Ruiz, L., Winn. The resolution was adopted.

## EXPLANATION OF VOTE

MR SPEAKER: I vote No on **HR 6031**. In a time of great anxiety for our state, where a global pandemic has fueled uncertainty for parents across the state about paying for the most basic necessities for their families, our job as legislators is to help families keep the lights on. This was a vote to help lower utility rates. It was a vote to help unlock thousands of jobs in our energy industry. It was a vote to make sure our state and our workforce are prepared for the state's energy needs for decades to come. We are deeply disapponted in the outcome of today's vote.— Tom Sawyer, Eileen Horn, Mike Amyx, Jason Probst, John Carmichael, Monica Murnan, Jerry Stogsdill, Stephanie Clayton, Brandon Woodard, Rui Xu, Susan Ruiz, Freda Warfield, Jim Gatner, Cindy Neighbor, Jeff Pittman, Stan Frownfelter, Barbara Ballard, Dennis "Boog" Highberger, Ponka We-Victors, Broderick Henderson, John Alcala, Brett Parker, Nancy Lusk, Tim Hodge, Stephanie Yeager, David Benson

## MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing passage of SB 346, SB 423, and Substitute for SB 386.

# INTRODUCTION OF SENATE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following Senate bills were thereupon introduced and read by title:

SB 346, Sub SB 386, SB 423.

#### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends **HB 2642** be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2642," as follows:

"Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2642

By Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development "AN ACT concerning employment security law; relating to lessor employment units

and lessee clients; restrictions on leasing certain employees; amending K.S.A. 44-758 and repealing the existing section."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(Sub HB 2642 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Your Committee on Calendar and Printing recommends on requests for resolutions and certificates that

Request No. 72, by Representative Megan Lynn, congratulating Abby Martin, Preteen Representative, 2020 Kansas Miss Amazing.

**Request No. 73**, by Representative Megan Lynn, congratulating Journey Sanders, Jr Teen Representative, 2020 Kansas Miss Amazing.

**Request No. 74**, by Representative Megan Lynn, congratulating Kirstianna Guerrero, Teen Representative, 2020 Kansas Miss Amazing.

**Request No. 75**, by Representative Megan Lynn, congratulating Megan Mesias, Jr. Miss Representative, 2020 Kansas Miss Amazing.

**Request No. 76**, by Representative Megan Lynn, congratulating Tiara Hensley, Sr. Miss Representative, 2020 Kansas Miss Amazing.

**Request No. 77**, by Representative Megan Lynn, congratulating Michelle Roberts, State Director, 2020 Kansas Miss Amazing.

**Request No. 78**, by Representative Megan Lynn, congratulating Sarah Putman, Miss Representative, 2020 Kansas Miss Amazing.

**Request No. 79**, by Representative's Broderick Henderson and Valdenia C. Winn, congratulating Wanda Dyson on her retirement June 1, 2020 for 31 yrs of service with USD 500 Food Service Department at Wyandotte High School.

**Request No. 80**, by Representative Barbara Wasinger, congratulating Jeffrey Thomas Heimann on achieving rank of Eagle Scout Troop 101.

be approved and the Chief Clerk of the House be directed to order the printing of said certificates and order drafting of said resolutions.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the committee report was adopted.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 2:00 p.m.

#### EARLY AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing adoption of HCR 5025, as amended.

# MOTIONS TO CONCUR AND NONCONCUR

On motion of Rep. Finch, the House nonconcurred in Senate amendments to **HCR 5025**, and asked for a conference.

Speaker Ryckman thereupon appointed Reps. Finch, Mason and Sawyer as conferees on the part of the House.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until the sound of the gavel.

# LATE AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

## MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The Senate accedes to the request of the House for a conference on HCR 5025 and has appointed Senators Wilborn, Rucker and Hensley as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 8:30 p.m.

# **EVENING SESSION**

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

On motion of Rep. Mason, the House adjourned until 9:00 a.m., Thursday, March 19, 2020.

# Journal of the House

# FORTY-FOURTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Thursday, March 19, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

The roll was called with 115 members present.

Reps. Benson, Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Finney, Holscher, Kuether, Mastroni, Ousley and L. Ruiz, were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Mr. Yosief Gebremichael, Pastor, Central Chriastian Church, Wichita and guest of Rep. Humphries:

Holy Father, I thank you for this day, for The Kansas House of Representatives, for Senators and for all who serve within Congress who are working for your good and for the good of the people of Kansas. Bring a spirit of unity to our Congress. Let your peace and wisdom reign upon their lives.

I pray for President Trump, Vice President Mike Pence, their families and all the leadership. Let your wisdom, guidance and protection be on their lives. Bring the spirit of unity in Washington. Protect this nation from the coronavirus. This virus has shown us how weak and powerless we are. Teach us to walk like you so we may care, and support each other at this challenging time. Let our faith be uplifted and seek your face so we may walk with faith trusting you as you are powerful enough to keep us safe. Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Winn.

# INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

Rep. Alcala introduced and thanked Officer Lamont Jackson and his fellow Capitol Police officers. He recognized their dedicated service to the state of Kansas. Rep. Alcala presented Officer Jackson a framed House certificate in recognition of his extraordinary ability to connect to our community and state through song and music.

# REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: **SB 346, SB 386**. Local Government: **SB 423**.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 10:15 a.m.

# LATE MORNING SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

# CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MADAM PRESIDENT and MR. SPEAKER: Your committee on conference on House amendments to **SB 173** submits the following report:

The Senate accedes to all House amendments to the bill, and your committee on conference further agrees to amend the bill as printed as Amended by House on Final Action, as follows:

On page 1, in line 34, before the semicolon by inserting ". Federal funding from federal grants or federal stimulus may be used for preservation projects";

On page 2, in line 7, before the semicolon by inserting ". Federal funding from federal grants or federal stimulus may be used for preservation plus projects"; in line 31, by striking "2022" and inserting "2023"; in line 32, by striking "the" and inserting "at least one phase of each"; in line 33, by striking "projects" and inserting "project";

On page 4, in line 38, by striking "six";

On page 5, in line 1, by striking "six"; in line 9, by striking "six"; in line 12, after "by" by inserting "the end of";

On page 7, in line 12, by striking all after "thereto"; by striking all in lines 13 and 14 and inserting ", subject to the following:

- (1) Projects selected for alternative delivery shall not include preservation projects as described in section 1, and amendments thereto;
- (2) alternative delivery may be used on three projects utilizing toll revenues for construction and maintenance of the project. One project utilizing toll revenues may be let to construction once every three years;
- (3) not more than 3% of dollars spent in the Eisenhower legacy transportation program shall be used on alternative delivery. An additional 2% of dollars spent in the Eisenhower legacy transportation program shall be available for use on alternative delivery starting in fiscal year 2023. The dollar value of the three projects utilizing toll revenues referenced in paragraph (2) and projects obtained through federal grants or federal stimulus shall not be considered in determining the limits set forth in this paragraph; and
- (4) any project utilizing alternative delivery shall equal or exceed \$100,000,000 in costs.";

On page 9, following line 20, by inserting:

"New Sec. 6. (a) The secretary of transportation is directed to develop a driver's education scholarship grant program to assist qualified individuals to become safe drivers. Subject to the limitations of appropriations therefor, any entity that desires to provide a driver's education program may submit an application for a competitive grant of moneys in an amount to be determined by the secretary for the purpose of paying the costs of scholarships to attend a driver's education program. A scholarship for a qualified individual shall not exceed \$200 and shall be awarded upon completion of the driver's education program. The secretary shall administer the provisions of this section and may adopt rules and regulations establishing additional criteria for qualification for

a grant and such other matters deemed necessary by the secretary for the administration of this section.

- (b) The provisions of this section shall expire on June 30, 2023. On or before January 9, 2023, the secretary shall provide a report to the house of representatives appropriations and transportation committees and the senate ways and means and transportation committees on the driver's education scholarship grant program.
  - (c) As used in this section:
- (1) "Federal poverty level" means the most recent poverty income guidelines published in the calendar year by the United States department of health and human services.
- (2) "Qualified individual" means an individual who resides within the state of Kansas, is under 30 years of age and whose household income is positive and not more than 200% of the federal poverty level for the tax year prior to the year in which the application is submitted.";

On page 11, following line 13, by inserting:

- "(10) all revenue available for the state highway fund, including, but not limited to, the state highway fund balance from the previous year, motor fuel taxes, registration fees, sales and compensating use taxes and bond proceeds;
- (11) all committed expenditures identified by the program, including, but not limited to, debt service payments, agency operations, aviation, transit, rail, cost-share, innovative technology, local bridge, project development costs by category, including, but not limited to, right-of-way purchases, engineering and utility relocation costs and construction payouts by program category, including, but not limited to, preservation, modernization and expansion;
- (12) a report of remaining outstanding projects that have been let but have not been paid out and how those projects have been identified to achieve state highway system condition targets. If such targets are not achieved with current projects or identified future projects, a report on additional funding necessary to achieve state highway system condition targets:":

Also on page 11, in line 36, by striking "(a)(7)" and inserting "(a)(14)"; also in line 36, by striking "(a)(10)" and inserting "(a)(17)";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

On page 13, in line 2, after "projects" by inserting "for public transportation"; And by renumbering sections accordingly;

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

Troy Waymaster Richard Proehl Kathy Wolfe Moore Conferees on part of House

CAROLYN McGINN
RICK BILLINGER
TOM HAWK
Conferees on part of Senate

On motion of Rep. Proehl, the conference committee report on **H Sub for SB 173** was adopted.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 112; Nays 3; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 10.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burroughs, Capps, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Burris, Garber, Helgerson.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Benson, Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Finney, Holscher, Kuether, Mastroni, Ousley, Ruiz, L.

#### EXPLANATION OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: I vote no on **H Sub for SB 173**. While I support the expansion and repair of our highways, this bill is financially flawed. It guarantees the reopening of the Bank of KDOT or a tax increase. -- Henry Heigerson

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 2:30 p.m.

#### AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

## MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The Senate adopts the Conference Committee report on **HB 2168**. The Senate adopts the Conference Committee report on **HCR 5025**.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 3:00 p.m.

#### MID - AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The Senate adopts the Conference Committee report on H Sub SB 173.

## CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MADAM PRESIDENT and MR. SPEAKER: Your committee on conference on House amendments to **SB** 66 submits the following report: The Senate accedes to all House amendments to the bill, and your committee on conference further agrees to amend the bill, as printed with House Committee amendments, as follows

On page 1, by striking all in lines 8 through 36;

By striking all on pages 2 through 5;

On page 6, by striking all in lines 1 through 5, and inserting the following:

- "Section 1. (a) For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022, appropriations are hereby made, restrictions and limitations are hereby imposed, and transfers, capital improvement projects, fees, receipts, disbursements and acts incidental to the foregoing are hereby directed or authorized as provided in this act.
- (b) The agencies named in this act are hereby authorized to initiate and complete the capital improvement projects specified and authorized by this act or for which appropriations are made by this act, subject to the restrictions and limitations imposed by this act.
- (c) This act shall not be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-6702(a), and amendments thereto.
- (d) The appropriations made by this act shall not be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 46-155, and amendments thereto.

Sec. 2.

## BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 8(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the board of accountancy fee fund (028-00-2701-0100) of the board of accountancy is hereby increased from \$416,663 to \$420,478.

Sec. 3.

#### STATE BANK COMMISSIONER

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 10(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the bank commissioner fee fund (094-00-2811) of the state bank commissioner is hereby increased from \$11,662,597 to \$11,762,186.

Sec. 4.

# KANSAS BOARD OF BARBERING

(a) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by the state finance council by section 132(e) of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the board of barbering fee fund (100-00-2704-0100) of the Kansas board of barbering is hereby decreased from \$159,647 to \$138,424.

Sec. 5.

#### KANSAS BOARD OF BARBERING

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 12(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the board of barbering fee fund (100-00-2704-0100) of the Kansas board of barbering is hereby decreased from \$157,501 to \$141,042.

Sec. 6.

#### BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES REGULATORY BOARD

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 13(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the behavioral sciences regulatory board fee fund (102-00-2730-0100) of the behavioral sciences regulatory board is hereby increased from \$947,220 to \$959,271.

Sec. 7.

## KANSAS STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY

(a) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by the state finance council by section 132(e) of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the cosmetology fee fund (149-00-2706-0100) of the Kansas board of cosmetology is hereby increased from \$1,141,846 to \$1,151,079.

Sec. 8.

# KANSAS STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 16(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the cosmetology fee fund (149-00-2706-0100) of the Kansas state board of cosmetology is hereby increased from \$1,144,609 to \$1,164,966.

Sec. 9.

#### STATE BOARD OF HEALING ARTS

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 14(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the healing arts fee fund (105-00-2705-0100) of the state board of healing arts is hereby increased from \$6.331,086 to \$6.419,900.

Sec. 10.

#### STATE DEPARTMENT OF CREDIT UNIONS

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 17(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the credit union fee fund (159-00-2026-0100) of the state department of credit unions is hereby increased from \$1,269,934 to \$1,284,202.

Sec. 11.

#### KANSAS DENTAL BOARD

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending

June 30, 2021, by section 19(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the dental board fee fund (167-00-2708-0100) of the Kansas dental board is hereby increased from \$420,600 to \$425,814.

Sec. 12.

#### BOARD OF NURSING

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 24(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the board of nursing fee fund (482-00-2716-0200) of the state board of nursing is hereby increased from \$2,747,110 to \$2,795,009.

Sec. 13.

#### BOARD OF EXAMINERS IN OPTOMETRY

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 25(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the optometry fee fund (488-00-2717-0100) of the board of examiners in optometry is hereby increased from \$161,435 to \$164,097.

Sec. 14.

#### STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY

- (a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 27(c) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the state board of pharmacy fee fund (531-00-2718-0100) of the above agency is hereby decreased from \$2,959,371 to \$2,472,475.
- (b) On the effective date of this act, the provisions of sections 27(b), (g), (i), (k) and (m) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas are hereby declared to be null and void and shall have no force and effect.

Sec. 15.

## REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL BOARD

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 28(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the appraiser fee fund (543-00-2732-0100) of the real estate appraisal board is hereby increased from \$334,160 to \$337,930.

Sec. 16.

## KANSAS REAL ESTATE COMMISSION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That no expenditures shall be made from the special litigation reserve fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, except upon the approval of the director of the

budget acting after ascertaining that: (1) Unforeseeable occurrence or unascertainable effects of a foreseeable occurrence characterize the need for the requested expenditure, and delay until the next legislative session on the requested action would be contrary to clause (3) of this proviso; (2) the requested expenditure is not one that was rejected in the next preceding session of the legislature and is not contrary to known legislative policy; and (3) the requested action will assist the above agency in attaining an objective or goal that bears a valid relationship to powers and functions of the above agency.

(b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the executive director of the Kansas real estate commission, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer moneys from the real estate fee fund (549-00-2721-0100) to the special litigation reserve fund of the Kansas real estate commission: *Provided*, That the aggregate of such transfers for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, shall not exceed \$20,000: *Provided further*; That the executive director of the Kansas real estate commission shall certify each such transfer of moneys to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of the budget and the director of legislative research.

Sec. 17.

## KANSAS REAL ESTATE COMMISSION

- (a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 30(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the real estate fee fund (549-00-2721-0100) of the Kansas real estate commission is hereby increased from \$1,169,916 to \$1,185,799.
- (b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That no expenditures shall be made from the special litigation reserve fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, except upon the approval of the director of the budget acting after ascertaining that: (1) Unforeseeable occurrence or unascertainable effects of a foreseeable occurrence characterize the need for the requested expenditure, and delay until the next legislative session on the requested action would be contrary to clause (3) of this proviso; (2) the requested expenditure is not one that was rejected in the next preceding session of the legislature and is not contrary to known legislative policy; and (3) the requested action will assist the above agency in attaining an objective or goal that bears a valid relationship to powers and functions of the above agency.

(c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the executive director of the Kansas real estate commission, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer moneys from the real estate fee fund (549-00-2721-0100) to the special litigation reserve fund of the Kansas real estate commission: *Provided*, That the

aggregate of such transfers for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, shall not exceed \$20,000: *Provided further,* That the executive director of the Kansas real estate commission shall certify each such transfer of moneys to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of the budget and the director of legislative research.

Sec. 18.

# STATE BOARD OF TECHNICAL PROFESSIONS

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 32(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the technical professions fee fund (663-00-2729-0100) of the state board of technical professions is hereby increased from \$775,111 to \$780,918.

Sec. 19.

## STATE BOARD OF VETERINARY EXAMINERS

(a) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by the state finance council by section 132(e) of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the veterinary examiners fee fund (700-00-2727-1100) of the state board of veterinary examiners is hereby increased from \$368,974 to \$374.294.

Sec. 20.

## STATE BOARD OF VETERINARY EXAMINERS

(a) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 34(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the veterinary examiners fee fund (700-00-2727-1100) of the state board of veterinary examiners is hereby decreased from \$367,017 to \$355,328.

Sec. 21.

## GOVERNMENTAL ETHICS COMMISSION

(a) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 35(b) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the governmental ethics commission fee fund (247-00-2188-2000) of the governmental ethics commission is hereby decreased from \$296,551 to \$288,443. Sec. 22.

## GOVERNMENTAL ETHICS COMMISSION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (247-00-1000-0103)......\$29,455

(b) On July 1, 2020, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 35(b) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the governmental ethics commission fee fund (247-00-2188-2000) of the governmental ethics commission is hereby increased from \$248,530 to \$264,197.

Sec. 23.

#### LEGISLATIVE COORDINATING COUNCIL

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

Coronavirus response.....\$50,000,000

Provided, That the director of the budget shall submit each request of a state agency for expenditures from the coronavirus response account to respond to the coronavirus pandemic during the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2021, to the legislative budget committee: Provided further, That the legislative budget committee shall meet and review each such request of the director of the budget and shall report such committee's recommendation to the legislative coordinating council: And provided further, That, after receiving recommendations from the legislative budget committee, expenditures may be made from the coronavirus response account upon a vote of a majority of the members of the legislative coordinating council.

(b) On the effective date of this act, of the \$3,976,120 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 36(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the office of revisor of statutes – operations account (579-00-1000-0103), the sum of \$348,898 is hereby lapsed.

Sec. 24.

# LEGISLATIVE COORDINATING COUNCIL

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the legislative coordinating council – operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the legislative research department – operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Office of revisor of statutes – operations (579-00-1000-0103)......\$4,121,467

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the office of revisor of statutes – operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Any unencumbered balance in the coronavirus response account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Sec. 25.

## LEGISLATURE

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

Jordan – legislative claim (428-00-1000-0520)......\$90

(b) On the effective date of this act, of the \$15,018,014 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 37(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the operations (including official hospitality) account (428-00-1000-0103), the sum of \$90 is hereby lapsed. Sec. 26.

#### LEGISLATURE

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the operations (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further; That expenditures may be made from this account, pursuant to vouchers approved by the chairperson or vice-chairperson of the legislative coordinating council, to pay compensation and travel expenses and subsistence expenses or allowances as authorized by K.S.A. 75-3212, and amendments thereto, for members and associate members of the advisory committee to the Kansas commission on interstate cooperation established under K.S.A. 46-407a, and amendments thereto, for attendance at meetings of the advisory committee that are authorized by the legislative coordinating council, except that: (1) The legislative coordinating council may establish restrictions or limitations, or both, on travel expenses, subsistence expenses or allowances, or any combination thereof, paid to members and associate members of such advisory committee; and (2) any person who is an associate member

of such advisory committee, by reason of such person having been accredited by the national conference of commissioners on uniform state laws as a life member of that organization, shall receive the same travel expenses and subsistence expenses for attendance at meetings of the advisory committee as a regular member, but shall receive no per diem compensation: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from this account for services, facilities and supplies provided for legislators in addition to those provided under the approved budget and for related copying, facsimile transmission and other services provided to persons other than legislators, in accordance with policies and any restrictions or limitations prescribed by the legislative coordinating council: And provided further, That no expenditures shall be made from this account for any meeting of any joint committee, or of any subcommittee of any joint committee, chargeable to fiscal year 2021 unless such meeting is approved by the legislative coordinating council: And provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 45-116, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, no expenditures shall be made from this account for the printing and distribution of copies of the permanent journals of the senate or house of representatives to each member of the legislature during fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 77-138, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, no expenditures shall be made from this account for the printing and distribution of complete sets of the Kansas Statutes Annotated to each member of the legislature in excess of one complete set of the Kansas Statutes Annotated to each member at the commencement of the member's first term as legislator during fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 77-138, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, no expenditures shall be made from this account for the legislator's name to be printed on one complete set of the Kansas Statutes Annotated during fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 77-165, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, no expenditures shall be made from this account for the printing and delivering of a set of the cumulative supplements of the Kansas Statutes Annotated to each member of the legislature in excess of one cumulative supplement set of the Kansas Statutes Annotated to each member of the legislature during fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-1005, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, expenditures may be made from this account to reimburse members of the legislature for expenses incurred in printing correspondence with constituents: And provided further. That no expenses shall be reimbursed unless a legislator has first obtained approval for such printing by the director of legislative administrative services: And provided further, That such reimbursements shall only be issued after a legislator provides written receipts showing such expense to the director of legislative administrative services: And provided further. That the maximum amount reimbursed to any legislator shall be equal to or less than the maximum amount allotted to any legislator for constituent correspondence pursuant to policies adopted by the legislative coordinating council: And provided further, That in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the operations (including official hospitality) account of the state general fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from the operations (including official hospitality) account of the state general fund for fiscal year 2021 for the director of legislative administrative services, under the direction of the legislative coordinating council, to

administer and supervise the live streaming of legislative proceedings in an amount not to exceed \$247,399: *And provided further*, That in providing such live streaming, the director shall work in cooperation with the information network of Kansas, inc., created by K.S.A. 74-9303, and amendments thereto, which shall provide any services and equipment that the director and the board of the information network of Kansas, inc., have agreed upon and that the director determines to be necessary for the provision of such live streaming.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the legislative Information system account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Jordan – legislative claim (428-00-1000-0520)......\$27,768

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the legislative special revenue fund, pursuant to vouchers approved by the chairperson or the vice-chairperson of the legislative coordinating council, to pay compensation and travel expenses and subsistence expenses or allowances as authorized by K.S.A. 75-3212, and amendments thereto, for members and associate members of the advisory committee to the Kansas commission on interstate cooperation established under K.S.A. 46-407a, and amendments thereto, for attendance at meetings of the advisory committee which are authorized by the legislative coordinating council, except that: (1) The legislative coordinating council may establish restrictions or limitations, or both, on travel expenses, subsistence expenses or allowances, or any combination thereof, paid to members and associate members of such advisory committee; and (2) any person who is an associate member of such advisory committee, by reason of such person having been accredited by the national conference of commissioners on uniform state laws as a life member of that organization, shall receive the same travel expenses and subsistence expenses for attendance at meetings of the advisory committee as a regular member, but shall receive no per diem compensation: Provided further, That expenditures may be made from this fund for services, facilities and supplies provided for legislators in addition to those provided under the approved budget and for related copying, facsimile transmission and other services provided to persons other than legislators, in accordance with policies and any restrictions or limitations prescribed by the legislative

coordinating council: And provided further, That amounts are hereby authorized to be collected for such services, facilities and supplies in accordance with policies of the council: And provided further. That such amounts shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the expenses incurred for providing such services, facilities and supplies and shall be consistent with policies and fees established in accordance with K.S.A. 46-1207a, and amendments thereto: And provided further, That all such amounts received shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the legislative special revenue fund: And provided further, That all donations, gifts or bequests of money for the legislative branch of government which are received and accepted by the legislative coordinating council shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to an account of the legislative special revenue fund: And provided further, That no expenditures shall be made from this fund for any meeting of any joint committee, or of any subcommittee of any joint committee, during fiscal year 2021 unless such meeting is approved by the legislative coordinating council: And provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 45-116, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, no expenditures shall be made from this fund for the printing and distribution of copies of the permanent journals of the senate or house of representatives to each member of the legislature during fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 77-138, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, no expenditures shall be made from this fund for the printing and distribution of complete sets of the Kansas Statutes Annotated to each member of the legislature in excess of one complete set of the Kansas Statutes Annotated to each member at the commencement of the member's first term as legislator during fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 77-138, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, no expenditures shall be made from this fund for the legislator's name to be printed on one complete set of the Kansas Statutes Annotated during fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 77-165, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, no expenditures shall be made from this fund for the printing and delivering of a set of the cumulative supplements of the Kansas Statutes Annotated to each member of the legislature in excess of one cumulative supplement set of the Kansas Statutes Annotated to each member of the legislature during fiscal year 2021.

(c) As used in this section, "joint committee" includes the joint committee on administrative rules and regulations, health care stabilization fund oversight committee, joint committee on special claims against the state, legislative budget committee, joint committee on state building construction, joint committee on information technology, joint committee on pensions, investments and benefits, joint committee on state-tribal relations, confirmation oversight committee, joint committee on corrections and juvenile justice oversight, compensation commission, joint committee on Kansas security, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, capitol restoration commission, capitol preservation committee and any other committee, commission or other body for which expenditures are to be paid from moneys appropriated for the legislature for the expenses of any

meeting of any such body or for the expenses of any member thereof. Sec. 27.

## DIVISION OF POST AUDIT

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operations (including legislative post audit committee) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Sec. 28.

## GOVERNOR'S DEPARTMENT

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Governor's department (252-00-1000-0503).....\$2,753,099

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the governor's department account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures may be made from this account for official hospitality and contingencies without limitation at the discretion of the governor.

Domestic violence prevention grants (252-00-1000-0600)......\$4,639,941

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the domestic violence prevention grants account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That expenditures may be made from the domestic violence prevention grants account for official hospitality and contingencies without limitation at the discretion of the governor.

Child advocacy centers (252-00-1000-0610).....\$804,948

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the child advocacy centers account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further; That expenditures may be made from the child advocacy centers account for official hospitality and contingencies without limitation at the discretion of the governor.

(b) Expenditures may be made by the above agency for travel expenses of the governor's spouse when accompanying the governor or when representing the governor

on official state business, for travel and subsistence expenditures for security personnel when traveling with the governor and for entertainment of officials and other persons as guests from the amount appropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by subsection (a) from the state general fund in the governor's department account (252-00-1000-0503).

- (c) Expenditures may be made by the above agency for travel expenses of the lieutenant governor's spouse when accompanying the lieutenant governor or when representing the lieutenant governor on official state business, for travel and subsistence expenditures for security personnel when traveling with the lieutenant governor and for entertainment of officials and other persons as guests from the amount appropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by subsection (a) from the state general fund in the governor's department account (252-00-1000-0503).
- (d) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the special programs fund for operating expenditures for the governor's department, including conferences and official hospitality: Provided further, That the governor is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for such conferences: And provided further, That fees for such conferences shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenses incurred for such conferences, including official hospitality: And provided further, That all fees received for such conferences shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the special programs fund.

Conversion of materials and equipment fund (252-00-2409-0400)	No limit
Hispanic and Latino American affairs commission – donations fund (252-00-7236-7200)	No limit
Advisory commission on African-American affairs – donations fund (252-00-7242-7210)	No limit
Kansas commission on disability concerns fee fund (252-00-2767-2705)	No limit
Domestic violence grants fund (252-00-2014-2014)	No limit

Provided, That grants made for domestic violence prevention shall be made after

consideration of the recommendation of an entity that has been designated by the United States department of health and human services and by the centers for disease control and prevention as the official domestic violence or sexual assault coalition.

Child advocacy centers grant fund (252-00-2024-2024)No limit
Residential substance abuse – federal fund (252-00-3006-3013)
Arrest grant – federal fund (252-00-3082-3040)No limit
National criminal history improvement program – federal fund (252-00-3189-3195)
Violence against women grant – federal fund (252-00-3214-3211)
Project safe neighborhood grant federal fund (252-00-3252-3252)
Coverdell forensic science improvement – federal fund (252-00-3227-3234)
State victim assistance – federal fund (252-00-3250-3250)
Crime victim assistance – federal fund (252-00-3260-3260)
Access visitation grant – federal fund (252-00-3460-3460)
Battered women/family violence prevention – federal fund (252-00-3461-3461)
Sexual assault services program – federal fund (252-00-3465-3465)
Edward Byrne justice assistance grants – federal fund (252-00-3757-3763)

Prison rape elimination act – federal fund (252-00-3758-3755)
John R Justice grant – federal fund (252-00-3802-3802)
Sec. 29. ATTORNEY GENERAL
(a) On the effective date of this act, of the \$4,913,613 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 41(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in operating expenditures account (082-00-1000-0103), the sum of \$160,472 is hereby lapsed.  Sec. 30.
ATTORNEY GENERAL
(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:  Operating expenditures (082-00-1000-0103)\$4,880,302
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: <i>Provided, however,</i> That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,000.
Litigation costs (082-00-1000-0040)
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the litigation costs account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Abuse, neglect and exploitation unit (082-00-1000-0500)\$349,999
<i>Provided</i> , That any unencumbered balance in the abuse, neglect and exploitation unit account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: <i>Provided further</i> , That expenditures may be made by the attorney general from the abuse, neglect and exploitation unit account pursuant to contracts with other agencies or organizations to provide services related to the investigation or litigation of findings related to abuse, neglect or exploitation.
Child abuse grants (082-00-1000-0400)\$75,000

Child exchange and

visitation centers (082-00-1000-0450)\$1	28,000
<i>Provided,</i> That notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 74-7334, and amends thereto, or any other statute, during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the above agency may use moneys in the child exchange and visitation centers account for matching funds.	
Protection from abuse (082-00-1000-0900)\$5	19,000
Office of inspector general (082-00-1000-0300)\$4	64,282
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the office of inspector general ac in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2020.	
(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special rev fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereaft lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:	er
Private detective fee fund (082-00-2029-2029)N	o limit
Court cost fund (082-00-2012-2000)N	o limit
Bond transcript review fee fund (082-00-2254-2300)N	o limit
Conversion of materials and equipment fund (082-00-2405-2040)N	o limit
Attorney general's antitrust special revenue fund (082-00-2506-2050)	o limit
Private gifts fund (082-00-7300-7000)N	o limit
Medicaid fraud reimbursement fund (082-00-9034-9040)N	o limit
Medicaid fraud control unit (082-00-3060-3080)N	o limit
Attorney general's antitrust suspense fund (082-00-9002-9000)	o limit

Attorney general's consumer protection clearing fund (082-00-9003-9010)
Attorney general's committee on crime prevention fee fund (082-00-2113-2090)
Provided, That expenditures may be made from the attorney general's committee on crime prevention fee fund for operating expenditures directly or indirectly related to conducting training seminars organized by the attorney general's committee on crime prevention, including official hospitality: Provided further, That the attorney general is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for conducting training seminars organized by the attorney general's committee on crime prevention: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the direct and indirect operating expenses incurred for conducting such seminars, including official hospitality: And provided further, That all fees received for conducting such seminars shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the attorney general's committee on crime prevention fee fund.
Tort claims fund (082-00-2613-2080)
Crime victims compensation fund (082-00-2563-2060)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the crime victims compensation fund for state operations shall not exceed \$497,246: <i>Provided further,</i> That any expenditures for payment of compensation to crime victims are authorized to be made from this fund regardless of when the claim was awarded.
Crime victims assistance fund (082-00-2598-2070)No limit
Protection from abuse fund (082-00-2239-2030)
Crime victims grants and gifts fund (082-00-7340-7010)
<i>Provided</i> , That all private grants and gifts received by the crime victims compensation board shall be deposited to the credit of the crime victims grants and gifts fund.
Kansas attorney general batterer intervention program certification fund (082-00-2103-2103)

*Provided,* That the attorney general shall deposit in the state treasury to the credit of the debt collection administration cost recovery fund all moneys remitted to the attorney general as administrative costs under contracts entered into pursuant to K.S.A. 75-719, and amendments thereto.

Provided, That all moneys recovered by the medicaid fraud and abuse division of the attorney general's office in the enforcement of state and federal law which are in excess of any restitution for overcharges and interest, including all moneys recovered as recoupment of expenses of investigation and prosecution, shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the medicaid fraud prosecution revolving fund: Provided further; That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-5933, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, expenditures may be made from the medicaid fraud prosecution revolving fund for other operating expenditures of the attorney general's office other than for medicaid fraud prosecution costs.

Provided, That, in addition to the other purposes authorized by K.S.A. 82a-1802, and amendments thereto, expenditures may be made from the interstate water litigation fund for: (1) Litigation costs for the case of Kansas v. Colorado No. 105, Original in the Supreme Court of the United States, including repayment of past contributions; (2) expenses related to the appointment of a river master or such other official as may be appointed by the Supreme Court to administer, implement or enforce its decree or other orders of the Supreme Court related to this case; and (3) expenses incurred by agencies of the state of Kansas to monitor actions of the state of Colorado and its water users and to enforce any settlement, decree or order of the Supreme Court related to this case.

Concealed weapon

licensure fund (082-00-2450-2400)	No limit
Tobacco master settlement agreement compliance fund (082-00-2383-2320)	No limit
Sexually violent predator expense fund (082-00-2379-2310)	No limit
County law enforcement equipment fund (082-00-2470-2470)	No limit
Child exchange and visiting centers fund (082-00-2579-2250)	No limit
Roofing contractor registration fund (082-00-2774-2774)	No limit
State medicaid fraud control unit – federal fund (082-00-3060-3060)	No limit
Com def sol – violence against women federal fund (082-00-3082-3082)	No limit
Crime victims compensation federal fund (082-00-3133-3020)	No limit
Ed Byrne state/local law enforcement federal fund (082-00-3213-3213)	No limit
Violence against women – ARRA federal fund (082-00-3214-3212)	No limit
Comm prsct/project safe neighborhood federal fund (082-00-3217-3217)	No limit
Public safety prtnt/comm pol fund (082-00-3218-3218)	No limit
Anti-gang initiative federal fund (082-00-3229-3229)	No limit

Alcohol impaired driving entrmsr

federal fund (082-00-3247-3247)
Children's justice grant federal fund (082-00-3381-3381)
Sexual assault kit initiative federal fund (082-00-3416-3416)
Ed Byrne memorial JAG – ARRA federal fund (082-00-3455-3455)
Medicaid indirect cost federal fund (082-00-3919-3919)
Federal forfeiture fund (082-00-3940-3940)No limit
SSA fraud prevention federal fund (082-00-2174-2175)
False claims litigation revolving fund (082-00-2650-2600)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures may be made from the false claims litigation revolving fund for costs associated with litigation under the Kansas false claims act, K.S.A. 75-7501 et seq., and amendments thereto.
Ed Byrne memorial justice assistance grant federal fund (082-00-3057-3057)
911 state maintenance fund (082-00-2747-2447)No limit
DOT prohibit racial profiling (082-00-3566-3566)
Human trafficking victim assistance fund (082-00-2775-2775)
Criminal appeals cost fund (082-00-2779-2779)No limit
Attorney general's open government fund (082-00-2497-2497)

Scrap metal theft reduction fee fund (082-00-2085-2100)	No limit
Bail enforcement agents fee fund (082-00-2259-2259)	No limit
Fraud and abuse criminal prosecution fund (082-00-2262-2262)	No limit
Attorney general's state agency representation fund	No limit
State medicaid fraud forfeiture fund	No limit

- (c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, grants made pursuant to K.S.A. 74-7325, and amendments thereto, from the protection from abuse fund (082-00-2239-2030) and grants made pursuant to K.S.A. 74-7334, and amendments thereto, from the crime victims assistance fund (082-00-2598-2070) shall be made after consideration of the recommendation of an entity that has been designated by the United States department of health and human services and by the centers for disease control as the official domestic violence or sexual assault coalition.
- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the attorney general, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the attorney general to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the attorney general. The attorney general shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (e) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$460,593 from the Kansas endowment for youth fund to the tobacco master settlement agreement compliance fund (082-00-2383-2320) of the attorney general.
- (f) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$50,000 from the state general fund to the sexually violent predator expense fund (082-00-2379-2310) of the attorney general.

Sec. 31.

# SECRETARY OF STATE

- (a) On the effective date of this act, of the moneys appropriated and reappropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 43(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the help America vote act matching funds account, the sum of \$219,180 is hereby lapsed.
- (b) On the effective date of this act, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$222,075 from the state general fund to the democracy fund (622-00-2702-2400) of the secretary of state.

- (c) On or before the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month commencing on the effective date of this act during fiscal year 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the democracy fund interest earnings based on:
- (1) The average daily balance of moneys in the democracy fund for the preceding month; and
- (2) the net earnings rate of the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month.

Sec. 32.

#### SECRETARY OF STATE

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following: Cemetery and funeral audit Conversion of materials and Information and services Provided. That expenditures from the information and services fee fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,533. Uniform commercial code Secretary of state fee Electronic voting machine 

Suspense fund (622-00-9046-9000)
Prepaid services fund (622-00-9114-9300)No limit
Athlete agent registration fee fund (622-00-2674-2700)
Democracy fund (622-00-2702-2400)
<i>Provided</i> , That all expenditures from the democracy fund shall be to provide matching funds to implement title II of the federal help America vote act of 2002, public law 107-252, as prescribed under that act.
Technology communication fee fund (622-00-2672-2900)
Help America vote act federal fund (622-00-3091)
HAVA title I federal fund (622-00-3283-3283)No limit
HAVA election security fraud 2018 (622-00-3956-3956)No limit

- (b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by the above agency by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such special revenue fund or funds to provide a report to the house appropriations committee and the senate ways and means committee detailing the costs of publication in a newspaper in each county pursuant to K.S.A. 64-103, and amendments thereto, of any constitutional amendment that is introduced by the legislature during the 2021 regular session of the legislature and detailing costs to local units of governments for conducting elections that include proposed constitutional amendments.
- (c) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$981,899 from the state general fund to the democracy fund (622-00-2702-2400) of the secretary of state.
- (d) On or before the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month commencing July 1, 2020, during fiscal year 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the democracy fund interest earnings based on:
- (1) The average daily balance of moneys in the democracy fund for the preceding month; and
- (2) the net earnings rate of the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month.

Sec. 33.

#### STATE TREASURER

(a) On the effective date of this act, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$907,652 from the state treasurer operating fund (670-00-2374-2300) of the state treasurer, to the state general fund. Sec. 34.

#### STATE TREASURER

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That, notwithstanding the provisions of the uniform unclaimed property act, K.S.A. 58-3934 et seq., and amendments thereto, or any other statute, of all the moneys received under the uniform unclaimed property act, K.S.A. 58-3934 et seq., and amendments thereto, during fiscal year 2021, the state treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to credit the first amount equal to the expenditure limitation approved by this or other appropriation act of the legislature received and deposited in the state treasury to the state treasurer operating fund: Provided further, That, after such aggregate amount has been credited to the state treasurer operating fund, then all of the moneys received under the uniform unclaimed property act during fiscal year 2021 shall be credited as prescribed under the unclaimed property act, K.S.A. 58-3934 et seg., and amendments thereto: And provided further, That all moneys credited to the state treasurer operating fund during fiscal year 2021 are to reimburse the state treasurer for accounting, auditing, budgeting, legal, payroll, personnel and purchasing services and any other governmental services which are performed to administer the provisions of the uniform unclaimed property act, K.S.A. 58-3934 et seq., and amendments thereto, that are not otherwise reimbursed under any other provision of law.

Fiscal agency fund (670-00-7754-6400)	No limit
Bond services fee fund (670-00-2061-2500)	No limit
City bond finance fund (670-00-7654)	No limit
Local ad valorem tax reduction fund (670-00-7394-4800)	No limit
County and city revenue sharing fund (670-00-7395-4900)	No limit

Suspense fund (670-00-9054-9000)	.No limit
County and city retailers' sales tax fund (670-00-7608-6000)	.No limit
County and city compensating use tax fund (670-00-7667-6200)	.No limit
Local alcoholic liquor fund (670-00-7665-6100)	.No limit
Local alcoholic liquor equalization fund (670-00-7759-6500)	.No limit
Unclaimed property claims fund (670-00-7758-7700)	.No limit
Unclaimed property expense fund (670-00-2362-2200)	.No limit
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the unclaimed property expense fund for o hospitality shall not exceed \$2,000.	official
County and city transient guest tax fund (670-00-7602-6600)	.No limit
Racing admissions tax fund (670-00-7670-6300)	.No limit
Rental motor vehicle excise tax fund (670-00-7681-6800)	.No limit
Transportation development district sales tax fund (670-00-7601-7000)	.No limit
Redevelopment bond fund (670-00-7683-6900)	.No limit
Special qualified industrial manufacturer fund (670-00-9525-9525)	.No limit
Kansas postsecondary education savings program trust fund (670-00-7241-7100)	.No limit
Kansas postsecondary education savings	

expense fund (670-00-2096-2000)	No limit
Conversion of materials and equipment fund (670-00-2461-2700)	No limit
Tax increment financing revenue replacement fund (670-00-7391-4700)	No limit
Spirit bonds fund (670-00-9515-9515)	No limit

*Provided.* That, on the 15<sup>th</sup> day of each month that commences during fiscal year 2021, the secretary of revenue shall determine the amount of revenue received by the state during the preceding month from withholding taxes paid with respect to an eligible project by each taxpayer that is an eligible business for which bonds have been issued under K.S.A. 74-50,136, and amendments thereto, and for which the Spirit bonds fund was created, and shall certify the amount so determined to the director of accounts and reports and, at the same time as such certification is transmitted to the director of accounts and reports, shall transmit a copy of such certification to the director of the budget and the director of legislative research: Provided further, That, upon receipt of each such certification, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount certified from the state general fund to the Spirit bonds fund: And provided further, That, on or before the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month commencing during fiscal year 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the Spirit bonds fund interest earnings based on: (1) The average daily balance of moneys in the Spirit bonds fund for the preceding month; and (2) the net earnings rate of the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month: And provided further, That the moneys credited to the Spirit bonds fund from the withholding taxes paid by an eligible business and the interest earnings thereon shall be transferred by the state treasurer from the Spirit bonds fund to the special economic revitalization fund administered by the state treasurer in accordance with K.S.A. 74-50,136, and amendments thereto.

Provided, That, on the 15<sup>th</sup> day of each month that commences during fiscal year 2021, the secretary of revenue shall determine the amount of revenue received by the state during the preceding month from withholding taxes paid with respect to an eligible project by each taxpayer that is an eligible business for which bonds have been issued under K.S.A. 74-50,136, and amendments thereto, and for which the Siemens bond fund was created, and shall certify the amount so determined to the director of accounts and reports and, at the same time as such certification is transmitted to the director of accounts and reports, shall transmit a copy of such certification to the director of the budget and the director of legislative research: Provided further, That, upon receipt of each such certification, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount certified from the state general fund to the Siemens bond fund: And provided further, That, on or before the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month commencing during fiscal year 2021, the

director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the Siemens bond fund interest earnings based on: (1) The average daily balance of moneys in the Siemens bond fund for the preceding month; and (2) the net earnings rate of the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month: *And provided further*; That the moneys credited to the Siemens bond fund from the withholding taxes paid by an eligible business and the interest earnings thereon shall be transferred by the state treasurer from the Siemens bond fund to the appropriate account of the special economic revitalization fund administered by the state treasurer in accordance with K.S.A. 74-50,136, and amendments thereto.

Business machinery and equipment tax reduction assistance fund (670-00-7684-7680)\$0
Telecommunications and railroad machinery and equipment tax reduction assistance fund (670-00-7685-7690)\$0
Community improvement district sales tax fund (670-00-7610-7650)
Special economic revitalization fund (670-00-9520-9520)
Bioscience development and investment fund (670-00-9510-9510)
KS ABLE savings expense fund (670-00-2177-2177)

(b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-1514, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the commissioner of insurance shall remit all moneys received by the commissioner under K.S.A. 75-1508, and amendments thereto, to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto: Provided, That, upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury: Provided, however, That, for each such remittance deposited in the state treasury during fiscal year 2021, the state treasurer shall not credit such deposit pursuant to K.S.A. 75-1514, and amendments thereto, but shall credit such deposit in accordance with the provisions of this subsection: Provided further, That the state treasurer shall credit 10% of each such deposit to the state general fund and the state treasurer shall credit the remainder of each such deposit as follows: (1) The amount equal to 64% of the remainder of such deposit shall be credited to the fire marshal fee fund (234-00-2330-2000) of the state fire marshal: (2) the amount equal to 20% of the remainder of such deposit shall be credited to the emergency medical services board operating fund (206-00-2326-4000) of the emergency medical services board; and (3) the amount equal to

16% of the remainder of such deposit shall be credited to the fire service training program fund (682-00-2123-2170) of the university of Kansas: And provided further, That the amount of each such deposit that is credited to the state general fund pursuant to this subsection is to reimburse the state general fund for accounting, auditing, budgeting, legal, payroll, personnel and purchasing services and any other governmental services which are performed on behalf of the state fire marshal, the emergency medical services board, and the fire service training program of the university of Kansas by other state agencies which receive appropriations from the state general fund to provide such services: And provided further, That, whenever in fiscal year 2021 the aggregate amount that the 10% credit to the state general fund prescribed by this subsection is equal to \$100,000, then: (1) The provisions of this subsection prescribing the 10% credit to the state general fund no longer shall apply to moneys received pursuant to K.S.A. 75-1508, and amendments thereto; and (2) for the remainder of fiscal year 2021, the state treasurer shall credit the full 100% so received of each such deposit as follows: (A) The amount equal to 64% of such deposit shall be credited to the fire marshal fee fund of the state fire marshal; (B) the amount equal to 20% of such deposit shall be credited to the emergency medical services board operating fund of the emergency medical services board; and (C) the amount equal to 16% of such deposit shall be credited to the fire service training program fund of the university of Kansas.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-648, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, on July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$50,000 from the Kansas postsecondary education savings expense fund (670-00-2096-2000) of the state treasurer to the KS ABLE savings expense fund (670-00-2177-2177) of the state treasurer.

Sec. 35.

## INSURANCE DEPARTMENT

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

Privilege fee refund.....\$976,666

(b) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by the state finance council by section 132(e) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the securities act fee fund (331-00-2162-0100) of the insurance department is hereby increased from \$3,109,856 to \$3,661.842.

Sec. 36.

# INSURANCE DEPARTMENT

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

 *Provided,* That expenditures from the insurance department service regulation fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,500: *Provided further,* That transfers may be made from this fund to the insurance department rehabilitation and repair fund of the insurance department.

Insurance company examination fund (331-00-2055-2000)
<i>Provided</i> , That transfers may be made from the insurance company examination fund to the insurance department rehabilitation and repair fund of the insurance department.
Insurance company annual statement examination fund (331-00-2056-2100)
Insurance company examiner training fund (331-00-2057-2200)
Workers compensation fund (331-00-7354-7000)No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures from the workers compensation fund for attorney fees and other costs and benefit payments may be made regardless of when services were rendered or when the initial award of benefits was made.
State firefighters relief fund (331-00-7652-7130)No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 40-1706, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, transfers may be made from the state firefighters relief fund to the insurance department rehabilitation and repair fund of the insurance department.
Insurance company tax and fee refund fund (331-00-9017-9100)
Group-funded workers' compensation pools fee fund (331-00-7374-7120)
<i>Provided</i> , That transfers may be made from the group-funded workers' compensation pools fee fund to the insurance department rehabilitation and repair fund of the insurance department.
Municipal group-funded pools fee fund (331-00-7356-7100)

*Provided,* That transfers may be made from the municipal group-funded pools fee fund to the insurance department rehabilitation and repair fund of the insurance department.

Uninsurable health insurance plan fund (331-00-2328-2500)	No limit
Private grants and gifts fund (331-00-7301-7301)	No limit
Insurance education and training fund (331-00-2367-2600)	No limit

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the insurance education and training fund for training programs and official hospitality: Provided further, That the insurance commissioner is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for such training programs: And provided further, That fees for such training programs shall be fixed in order to collect all or part of the operating expenses incurred for such training programs, including official hospitality: And provided further, That all fees received for such training programs shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the insurance education and training fund.

Monumental life	
settlement fund (331-00-7360-7360)	No limit

*Provided,* That all expenditures from the monumental life settlement fund shall be made for scholarship purposes: *Provided further,* That the scholarship recipients shall be African-American students who are currently enrolled and are attending an accredited higher education institution in the state of Kansas and who have designated a major in mathematics, computer science or business.

*Provided,* That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 40-2606, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, all moneys received during fiscal year 2021 for penalties imposed pursuant to K.S.A. 40-2606, and amendments thereto, shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the fines and penalties fund.

*Provided,* That moneys may be transferred or otherwise credited to the settlements fund as the result of or pursuant to court orders under K.S.A. 40-3644, and amendments

thereto, court-ordered settlements, or legislative authority: *Provided further,* That expenditures from the settlements fund shall be made for the purpose of providing consumer education and outreach or for costs that the insurance department may incur in closeout of any troubled insurance company matters.

HHS consumer assistance grant -

federal fund (331-00-3555-3555)
HHS exchange planning & establishment grant – federal fund (331-00-3556-3556)
HHS rate review grant – federal fund (331-00-3505-3505)
Professional employer organization fee fund (331-00-2678-2678)
Pharmacy benefit manager registration fund (331-00-2665-2665)
Securities act fee fund (331-00-2162-0100)\$3,215,574
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the securities act fee fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,000.
Investor education and protection fund (331-00-2242-2240)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the investor education and protection fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for official hospitality shall not exceed \$5,000.
Captive insurance regulatory and supervision fund
(b) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the insurance department from the insurance company examination fund (331-00-2055-

2000) for fiscal year 2021 as authorized by K.S.A. 40-223, and amendments thereto, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 40-223, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, expenditures may be made by the insurance department from the insurance company examination fund for fiscal year 2021 for the examination of annual statements filed with the commissioner of insurance, regardless of when the services were rendered, when the expenses were incurred or when any claim was submitted or processed for payment and regardless of whether or not the services were rendered or

not exceed the following:

the expenses were incurred prior to the effective date of this act. Sec. 37.

# HEALTH CARE STABILIZATION FUND BOARD OF GOVERNORS

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following: (b) Expenditures from the health care stabilization fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, other than refunds authorized by law for the following specified purposes shall not exceed the limitations prescribed therefor as follows: Provided, That expenditures may be made from the operating expenditures account for official hospitality. Legal services and other Sec. 38. POOLED MONEY INVESTMENT BOARD (a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall

*Provided,* That, on or before the fifth day of each month of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the state treasurer shall certify to the pooled money investment board an accounting of the banking fees incurred by the state treasurer during the second preceding month that are attributable to the investment of the pooled money investment portfolio during such month: *Provided further,* That, prior to the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the pooled money investment board shall

review the certification from the state treasurer and shall make expenditures from the pooled money investment portfolio fee fund (671-00-2319-2000) to pay the amount of banking fees incurred by the state treasurer during the second preceding month that are attributable to the investment of the pooled money investment portfolio during the second preceding month, as determined by the pooled money investment board: *And provided further,* That expenditures from the pooled money investment portfolio fee fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$800.

Sec. 39.

### JUDICIAL COUNCIL

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following: Provided, That all private grants and gifts received by the judicial council, other than moneys received as grants, gifts or donations for the preparation, publication or distribution of legal publications, shall be deposited to the credit of the grants and gifts fund. Sec. 40. STATE BOARD OF INDIGENTS' DEFENSE SERVICES There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following: Assigned counsel expenditures (328-00-1000-0700)......\$600,000 Sec. 41.

#### STATE BOARD OF INDIGENTS' DEFENSE SERVICES

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures for indigents' defense services are authorized to be made from the operating expenditures account regardless of when services were

rendered: *Provided further*; That expenditures may be made from the operating expenditures account for negotiated contracts for malpractice insurance for public defenders and deputy or assistant public defenders: *And provided further*; That all contracts for malpractice insurance for public defenders and deputy or assistant public defenders shall be negotiated and purchased by the state board of indigents' defense services, shall not be subject to approval or purchase by the committee on surety bonds and insurance under K.S.A. 75-4114 and 75-6111, and amendments thereto, and shall not be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3739, and amendments thereto.

Assigned counsel	
expenditures (328-00-1000-0700)	)\$14,639,335

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the assigned counsel expenditures account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That expenditures for indigents' defense services are authorized to be made from the assigned counsel expenditures account regardless of when services were rendered.

Capital defense operations (328-00-1000-0800)......\$3,104,114

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the capital defense operations account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures for indigents' defense services are authorized to be made from the capital defense operations account regardless of when services were rendered.

Legal services for prisoners (328-00-1000-0500).....\$289,592

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the indigents' defense services operations account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures may be made from the indigents' defense services operations account for the purpose of assigned counsel and other professional services related to contract cases.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the litigation support account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter

lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the indigents' defense services fund for the purpose of assigned counsel and other professional services related to contract cases.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the inservice education workshop fee fund for operating expenditures, including official hospitality, incurred for inservice workshops and conferences: Provided further, That the state board of indigents' defense services is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for inservice workshops and conferences: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of such operating expenditures incurred for inservice workshops and conferences: And provided further, That all fees received for inservice workshops and conferences shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the inservice education workshop fee fund.

- (c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the executive director of the state board of indigents' defense services, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from the state general fund for the state board of indigents' defense services to any other item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the state board of indigents' defense services. The executive director shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (d) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the state board of indigents' defense services from the moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 as authorized by this act or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 to classify public defenders based on the level of cases such public defenders are assigned.
- (e) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the operating expenditures account for fiscal year 2021 as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the

legislature, expenditures shall be made from such account for fiscal year 2021 to submit a report to the legislative budget committee on or before September 30, 2020, detailing the status of staff vacancies and retention and detailing a strategy to address such staffing concerns.

Sec. 42.

### JUDICIAL BRANCH

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Judiciary operations (677-00-1000)......\$112,056,817

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the judiciary operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That contracts for computer input of judicial opinions and all purchases thereunder shall not be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3739, and amendments thereto: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from the judiciary operations account for contingencies without limitation at the discretion of the chief justice: And provided further, That expenditures from the judiciary operations account for such contingencies shall not exceed \$25,000: And provided further, That expenditures from the judiciary operations account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$4,000: And provided further, That expenditures shall be made from the judiciary operations account for the travel expenses of panels of the court of appeals for travel to cities across the state to hear appealed cases.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Library report fee fu	and (677-00-2106-2000)	No limit
Judiciary technology	y fund (677-00-2272-1800)	No limit
Dispute resolution for	rund (677-00-2126-3500)	No limit
Judicial branch education fund (677-00	0-2324-1900)	No limit

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the judicial branch education fund to provide services and programs for the purpose of educating and training judicial branch officers and employees, administering the training, testing and education of municipal judges as provided in K.S.A. 12-4114, and amendments thereto, educating and training municipal judges and municipal court support staff, and for the planning and implementation of a family court system, as provided by law, including official hospitality: Provided further, That the judicial administrator is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for such services and programs: And provided further, That such

fees may be fixed to cover all or part of the operating expenditures incurred in providing such services and programs, including official hospitality: *And provided further*; That all fees received for such services and programs, including official hospitality, shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the judicial branch education fund.

Child welfare federal grant fund (677-00-3942-3300)
Child support enforcement contractual agreement fund (677-00-2681-2400)
SJI grant fund (677-00-2714-2714)
Bar admission fee fund (677-00-2724-2500)
Permanent families account – family and children investment fund (677-00-7317-7000)
Duplicate law book fund (677-00-2543-2300)No limit
Court reporter fund (677-00-2725-2600)
Access to justice fund (677-00-2169-2100)No limit
Judicial branch nonjudicial salary initiative fund (677-00-2229-2800)
Judicial branch nonjudicial salary adjustment fund (677-00-2389-3200)
Federal grants fund (677-00-3082-3100)
District magistrate judge supplemental compensation fund (677-00-2398-2390)
Correctional supervision fund (677-00-2465-2465)
Violence against women grant fund – ARRA (677-00-3214-3214)

- (c) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$200,000 from the Kansas endowment for youth fund to the permanent families account family and children investment fund (677-00-7317-7000) of the judicial branch.
- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to provide a report to the house of representatives committee on appropriations and the senate committee on ways and means on or before January 11, 2021, detailing the operations of the Kansas institute for peace and conflict resolution dispute resolution triage program.

Sec. 43.

# KANSAS PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

(a) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by the state finance council by section 132(e) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the Kansas public employees retirement fund – agency operations account (365-00-7002-7400) of the Kansas public employees retirement system is hereby increased from \$12,839,877 to \$14,089,877.

Sec. 44.

# KANSAS PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That no expenditures may be made from the Kansas public employees retirement fund other than for benefits, investments, refunds authorized by law, and other purposes specifically authorized by this or other appropriation act.

Group insurance reserve fund (365-00-7358-9200)No	limit
Optional death benefit plan reserve fund (365-00-7357-9100)	limit
Kansas endowment for youth fund (365-00-7000-2000)No	limit
Senior services trust fund (365-00-7550-7600)No	limit
Family and children endowment account – family and children investment fund (365-00-7010-4000)	limit
Non-retirement administration fund (365-00-2277)	limit

Provided, That the executive officer of the Kansas public employees retirement system shall certify to the director of accounts and reports the amount of moneys to transfer from the Kansas endowment for youth fund (365-00-7000-2000), the senior services trust fund (365-00-7550-7600), the family and children endowment account – family and children investment fund (365-00-7010-4000) and the unclaimed property account (670-00-7758-7700) of the state general fund for the purpose of reimbursing the costs of non-retirement-related administrative activities and investment-related expenses for managing such funds in accordance with K.S.A. 74-4909b, and amendments thereto.

Provided, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 74-4921 et seq., and amendments thereto, any employer contributions remitted in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 20-2605, and amendments thereto, K.S.A. 74-4920, and amendments thereto, K.S.A. 74-4939, and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 74-4967, and amendments thereto, for the purpose of paying the actuarial cost of the provisions of K.S.A. 74-49,109 et seq., and amendments thereto, shall be credited in the KDFA series 2003H bond debt service fund: Provided further, That the executive director of the Kansas public employees retirement system shall certify to the director of accounts and reports an amount to reimburse the state general fund for bond debt service payments authorized in fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That the director of accounts and reports shall transfer to the state general fund such amount certified as provided by the executive director no later than June 30, 2021.

(b) Expenditures may be made from the expense reserve of the Kansas public

employees retirement fund (365-00-7002-7000) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the following specified purposes:

Agency operations (365-00-7002-7400)......\$15,764,877

*Provided,* That expenditures from the agency operations account may be made for official hospitality.

Investment-related expenses (365-00-7002-8000)......No limit

KPERS technology project (365-00-7002-7800)......No limit

(c) On July 1, 2020, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 38-2102, and amendments thereto, the amount prescribed by K.S.A. 38-2102(d)(4), and amendments thereto, to be transferred on July 1, 2020, by the director of accounts and reports from the Kansas endowment for youth fund to the children's initiatives fund is hereby increased to \$50,402,827.

Sec. 45.

#### KANSAS HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (058-00-1000-0103).....\$1,104,781

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$200: Provided further, That expenditures for mediation services contracted with Kansas legal services shall be made only upon certification by the executive director of the human rights commission to the director of accounts and reports that private moneys are available to match the expenditure of state moneys on a \$1 of private moneys to \$3 of state moneys basis.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

 Education and training fund (058-00-2282-2000)......No limit

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the education and training fund for operating expenditures for the commission's education and training programs for the general public, including official hospitality: Provided further, That the executive director is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for such programs: And provided further. That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenses incurred for such training programs, including official hospitality: And provided further. That all fees received for such programs shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the education and training fund.

Sec. 46.

#### STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Public service 

Motor carrier license 

Provided, That any expenditure made from the conservation fee fund for plugging abandoned wells, cleanup of pollution from oil and gas activities and testing of wells shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on this fund: Provided further, That expenditures may be made from this fund for debt collection and set-off administration: And provided further. That a percentage of the fees collected, not to exceed 27%, shall be transferred from the conservation fee fund to the accounting services recovery fund (173-00-6105-4010) of the department of administration for services rendered in collection efforts: And provided further, That all expenditures made from the conservation fee fund for debt collection and set-off administration shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on this fund: And provided further, That the state corporation commission shall include as part of the fiscal year 2021 budget estimates for the state corporation commission submitted pursuant to K.S.A. 75-3717, and amendments thereto, a three-year projection of receipts to and expenditures from the conservation fee fund for fiscal years 2021, 2022 and 2023.

Natural gas underground storage 

Gas pipeline inspection fee fund (143-00-2023-1100)
Special one-call – federal fund (143-00-3477-3477)
Compressed air energy storage fee fund (143-00-2454-2410)
Abandoned oil and gas well fund (143-00-2143-2100)
Gas pipeline safety program – federal fund (143-00-3632-3000)
Carbon dioxide injection well and underground storage fund (143-00-2358-2500)
Vehicle information systems network – federal fund (143-00-3244-3244)
Underground injection control class II – federal fund (143-00-3768-3700)
One call – federal fund (143-00-3633-3120)
Inservice education workshop fee fund (143-00-2316-2300)

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the inservice education workshop fee fund for operating expenditures, including official hospitality, incurred for inservice workshops and conferences conducted by the state corporation commission for staff and members of the state corporation commission: Provided further, That the state corporation commission is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for such inservice workshops and conferences: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenditures incurred for conducting such inservice workshops and conferences: And provided further, That all moneys received for such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the inservice education workshop fee fund.

Unified carrier registration	
clearing fund (143-00-9062-9100)	)No limit

1 (1 42 00 0401 0400)

Credit card clearing fund (143-00-9401-9400)	No limit
Suspense fund (143-00-9007-9000)	No limit
Well plugging assurance fund (143-00-2180-2110)	No limit
Facility conservation improvement program fund (000-00-2432-2400)	No limit
Energy grants management fund (000-00-2667-4000)	No limit
Energy grant management – federal fund (000-00-3157-3150)	No limit
Energy efficiency/renewable energy – federal fund (000-00-3029-3400)	No limit
Energy conservation plan – federal fund (000-00-3682-3500)	No limit
Energy efficiency revolving loan program – ARRA federal fund (000-00-3161-3160)	No limit

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the energy efficiency revolving loan program - ARRA federal fund for the energy efficiency revolving loan program pursuant to vouchers approved by the chairperson of the state corporation commission or by a person or persons designated by the chairperson: Provided further, That the state corporation commission is hereby authorized to establish the energy efficiency revolving loan program for the purpose of making loans for energy conservation and other energy-related activities: And provided further, That loans under such program shall be made at an interest rate established by the state corporation commission: And provided further. That the state corporation commission is hereby authorized to enter into contracts with other state agencies and with persons, as may be necessary, to administer the energy efficiency revolving loan program: And provided further, That any person who agrees to receive money from the energy efficiency revolving loan program - ARRA federal fund shall enter into an agreement requiring such person to submit a written report to the state corporation commission detailing and accounting for all expenditures and receipts related to the use of the moneys received from the energy efficiency revolving loan program - ARRA federal fund: And provided further, That moneys repaid to the energy efficiency revolving loan program shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the energy efficiency revolving loan program - ARRA

federal fund: And provided further, That, on or before the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the energy efficiency revolving loan program – ARRA federal fund interest earnings based on: (1) The average daily balance of repaid moneys in the energy efficiency revolving loan program – ARRA federal fund for the preceding month; and (2) the net earnings rate for the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month.

- (b) Expenditures for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by the state corporation commission from the conservation fee fund (143-00-2130-2000) or the abandoned oil and gas well fund (143-00-2143-2100) may be made for the service of independent onsite supervision of well plugging contracts: *Provided*, That all such expenditures from the conservation fee fund or the abandoned oil and gas well fund for the purpose of plugging of abandoned oil and gas wells during fiscal year 2021 shall be subject to the competitive bidding requirements of K.S.A. 75-3739, and amendments thereto, and shall not be exempt from such competitive bidding requirements on the basis of the estimated amount of such purchases.
- (c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the chairperson of the state corporation commission, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer additional moneys from the conservation fee fund (143-00-2130-2000) of the state corporation commission that are in excess of \$800,000 as prescribed by K.S.A. 55-193, and amendments thereto, to the abandoned oil and gas well plugging fund (143-00-2143-2100) of the state corporation commission: *Provided*, That the chairperson of the state corporation commission shall certify each such transfer of additional moneys to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, the chairperson of the state corporation commission, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer funds from any special revenue fund or funds of the state corporation commission to any other special revenue fund or funds of the state corporation commission. The chairperson of the state corporation commission shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (e) Expenditures for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by the state corporation commission from the public service regulation fund (143-00-2019-0100), the motor carrier license fees fund (143-00-2812-5500) and the conservation fee fund (143-00-2130-2000) for official hospitality shall not exceed, in the aggregate, \$2,500.
- (f) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 55-164, 66-138 or 66-1,142b, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, all moneys received from civil fines and penalties charged and collected by the state corporation commission under K.S.A. 55-164, 66-138 or 66-1,142b, and amendments thereto, in the conservation fee fund (143-00-2130-2000), the public service regulation fund (143-00-2019-0100) and the motor carrier license fees fund (143-00-2812-5500) shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and deposited in the state treasury and credited to the state general fund.
- (g) On July 1, 2020, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 55-166, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall

transfer \$500,000 from the well plugging assurance fund (143-00-2180-2110) of the state corporation commission to the abandoned oil and gas well fund (143-00-2143-2100) of the state corporation commission.

(h) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$100,000 from the public service regulation fund (143-00-2019-0100) of the state corporation commission to the state general fund.

Sec. 47.

### CITIZENS' UTILITY RATEPAYER BOARD

(a) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by the state finance council by section 132(e) of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the utility regulatory fee fund (122-00-2030-2000) of the citizens' utility ratepayer board is hereby decreased from \$1,028,913 to \$1,015,913.

Sec. 48.

#### CITIZENS' UTILITY RATEPAYER BOARD

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Utility regulatory fee fund (122-00-2030-2000)......\$999,659

- (b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the citizens' utility ratepayer board from the utility regulatory fee fund (122-00-2030-2000) for fiscal year 2021 for the citizens' utility ratepayer board as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute to the contrary, if the total expenditures authorized to be expended on contracts for professional services by the citizens' utility ratepayer board by the expenditure limitation prescribed by subsection (a) are not expended or encumbered for fiscal year 2020, then the amount equal to the remaining amount of such expenditure authority for fiscal year 2020 may be expended from the utility regulatory fee fund for fiscal year 2021 pursuant to contracts for professional services and any such expenditure for fiscal year 2021 shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on the utility regulatory fee fund for fiscal year 2021.
- (c) On and after the effective date of this act, during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, no expenditures shall be made by the above agency from the utility regulatory fee fund (122-00-2030-2000) for the review or other oversight of proposed administrative rules and regulations or any other duties pursuant to executive order no. 11-02.

Sec. 49.

#### DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

Rehabilitation and repair for state facilities (173-00-1000-8500)......\$626,399

- (b) On the effective date of this act, of the \$3,424,074 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 141(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the restructuring debt service account (173-00-1000-0450), the sum of \$120,404 is hereby lapsed.
- (c) On the effective date of this act, of the \$1,546,035 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 62(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the budget analysis account (173-00-1000-0520), the sum of \$34,608 is hereby lapsed.
- (d) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Department of administration audit

Sec. 50.

### DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (173-00-1000-0200).....\$4,667,826

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,000: Provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-2935, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, in addition to other positions within the department of administration in the unclassified service as prescribed by law, expenditures may be made from the operating expenditures account for three employees in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act.

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the budget analysis account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further; That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-2935, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, in addition to other positions within the department of administration in the unclassified service as prescribed by law, expenditures may be made from the budget analysis account for eight employees in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act: And provided further, That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,000.

Long-term care ombudsman (173-00-1000-0580).....\$293,866

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the long-term care ombudsman account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,000.

KPERS bonds debt service (173-00-1000-0440)\$64,004,622
(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the expanded lottery act revenues fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:  KPERS bond debt service (173-00-1700-1704)\$36,119,102
Public broadcasting digital conversion debt service (173-00-1700-1703)
(c) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds or indirect cost recoveries authorized by law shall not exceed the following:
Department of administration audit services fund
Federal cash management fund (173-00-2001-2200)
State leave payment reserve fund (173-00-7730-7350)
Building and ground fund (173-00-2028-2000)
General fees fund (173-00-2197-2020)

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund for operating expenditures for the division of personnel services, including human resources programs and official hospitality: Provided further, That the director of personnel services is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees: And provided further, That fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenses incurred, including official hospitality: And provided further, That all fees received, including fees received under the open records act for providing access to or furnishing copies of public records, shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the general fees fund.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the budget fees fund for operating expenditures for the division of the budget, including training programs, special projects and official hospitality: Provided further, That the director of the budget is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for such training programs: And provided further, That fees for such training programs and special projects shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenses incurred for such training programs and special projects, including official hospitality: And provided further, That all fees received for such training programs and special projects and all fees received by the division of the budget under the open records act for providing access to or furnishing copies of public records shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the budget fees fund.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the purchasing fees fund for operating expenditures of the division of purchases, including training seminars and official hospitality: Provided further, That the director of purchases is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for operating expenditures incurred to reproduce and disseminate purchasing information, administer vendor applications, administer state contracts and conduct training seminars, including official hospitality: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of such operating expenses: And provided further, That all fees received for such operating expenses shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the purchasing fees fund.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the architectural services fee fund for operating expenditures for distribution of architectural information: Provided further, That the director of facilities management is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for reproduction and distribution of architectural information: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenses incurred for reproducing and distributing architectural information: And provided further, That all fees received for such reproduction and distribution of architectural information shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the architectural services fee fund.

conversion fund (173-00-2434-2090)
Conversion of materials and equipment fund (173-00-2408-2030)
Architectural services equipment conversion fund (173-00-2401-2170)
Property contingency fund (173-00-2640-2060)No limit
Flood control emergency – federal fund (173-00-3024-3020)
INK special revenue fund (173-00-2764-2702)No limit
FICA reimbursements medical residents fund (173-00-7599-7500)
State buildings operating fund (173-00-6148-4100)

Provided. That the secretary of administration is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect a real estate property leasing services fee at a reasonable rate per square foot of space leased by state agencies as approved by the secretary of administration under K.S.A. 75-3765, and amendments thereto, to recover the costs incurred by the department of administration in providing services to state agencies relating to leases of real property: Provided further, That each state agency that is party to a lease of real property that is approved by the secretary of administration under K.S.A. 75-3765, and amendments thereto, shall remit to the secretary of administration the real estate property leasing services fee upon receipt of the billing therefor: And provided further, That all moneys received for real estate property leasing services fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the state buildings operating fund or the building and ground fund (173-00-2028-2000), as determined and directed by the secretary of administration: And provided further, That the net proceeds from the sale of all or any part of the Topeka state hospital property, as defined by K.S.A. 75-37,123(a), and amendments thereto, shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the state buildings operating fund or the building and ground fund, as determined and directed by the secretary of administration: And provided further, That the secretary of administration is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect a surcharge against all state agency leased square footage in Shawnee county, including both state-owned and privately owned buildings: And provided further, That all moneys received for such surcharge shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the state buildings

operating fund or the building and ground fund, as determined and directed by the secretary of administration.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the accounting services recovery fund for the operating expenditures, including official hospitality, of the department of administration: Provided further, That the secretary of administration is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for services or sales provided by the department of administration that are not specifically authorized by any other statute: And provided further, That all fees received for such services or sales shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the accounting services recovery fund.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the architectural services recovery fund for operating expenditures for the division of facilities management: Provided further; That the director of facilities management is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for services provided to other state agencies not directly related to the construction of a capital improvement project: And provided further; That all fees received for all such services shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the architectural services recovery fund.

Intragovernmental printing service depreciation reserve fund (173-00-6167-9810)......No limit

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the municipal accounting and training services recovery fund to provide general ledger, payroll reporting, utilities billing, data processing, and accounting services to municipalities and to provide training programs conducted for municipal government personnel, including official hospitality: Provided further, That the director of accounts and reports is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for such services and programs: And provided

further, That such fees shall be fixed to cover all or part of the operating expenditures incurred in providing such services and programs, including official hospitality: *And provided further*, That all fees received for such services and programs, including official hospitality, shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the municipal accounting and training services recovery fund.

Canceled warrants payment fund (173-00-2645-2070)
State emergency fund (173-00-2581-2150)No limit
Bid and contract deposit fund (173-00-7609-7060)
Federal withholding tax clearing fund (173-00-7701-7080)
Financial management system development fund (173-00-6135-6130)
<i>Provided,</i> That the secretary of administration may establish fees and make special assessments in order to finance the costs of developing the financial management system: <i>Provided further,</i> That all moneys received for such fees and special assessments shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the financial management system development fund.
State gaming revenues fund (173-00-9011-9100)No limit
Financial management system development fund – on budget (173-00-2689-2689)
Construction defects recovery fund (173-00-2632-2615)
Facilities conservation improvement fund (173-00-8745-4912)
State revolving fund services fee fund (173-00-2038-2700)

Conversion of materials and equipment – recycling

program fund (173-00-2435-2031)	No limit
Curtis office building maintenance reserve fund (173-00-2010-2190)	No limit
Equipment lease purchase program administration clearing fund (173-00-8701-8000)	No limit
Suspense fund (173-00-9075-9220)	No limit
Electronic funds transfer suspense fund (173-00-9175-9490)	No limit
Surplus property program fund – on budget (173-00-2323-2300)	No limit
Surplus property program fund – off budget (173-00-6150-6150)	No limit
Older Americans act title IIIB long-term care ombudsman federal fund (173-00-3287-3287)	No limit
Older Americans act title VII long-term care ombudsman federal fund (173-00-3358-3140)	No limit
Long-term care ombudsman gift and grant fund (173-00-7258-7280)	No limit
Title XIX – long-term care ombudsman medical assistance program federal fund (173-00-3414-3414)	No limit
Wireless enhanced 911 grant fund (173-00-2577-2570)	No limit
Bioscience development fund (173-00-2765-2703)	No limit
Dwight D Eisenhower statue fund	No limit

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the digital imaging program fund for grants to state agencies for digital document imaging projects.

- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for the above agency for fiscal year 2021 by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, for the secretary of administration, as part of the system of payroll accounting formulated under K.S.A. 75-5501, and amendments thereto, to establish a payroll deduction plan, for the purpose of allowing insurers, who are authorized to do business in the state of Kansas, to offer to state employees accident, disability, specified disease and hospital indemnity products, which may be purchased by such employees: Provided, however. That any such insurer and indemnity product shall be approved by the Kansas state employees health care commission prior to the establishment of such payroll deduction: *Provided*, That upon notification of an employing agency's receipt of written authorization by any state employee, the director of accounts and reports shall make periodic deductions of amounts as specified in such authorization from the salary or wages of such state employee for the purpose of purchasing such indemnity products: Provided further, That, subject to the approval of the secretary of administration, the director of accounts and reports may prescribe procedures, limitations and conditions for making payroll deductions pursuant to this section.
- (e) On July 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$210,000 from the state highway fund to the state general fund for the purpose of reimbursing the state general fund for the cost of providing purchasing services to the department of transportation.
- (f) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary of administration is hereby authorized to approve refinancing of equipment being financed by state agencies through the department's equipment financing program. Such refinancing project is hereby approved for the purposes of K.S.A. 74-8905(b), and amendments thereto.
- (g) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated in any capital improvement account of any special revenue fund or funds or in any capital improvement account of the state general fund for the above agency for fiscal year 2021 by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from any such capital improvement account of any special revenue fund or funds or any such capital improvement account of the state general fund for fiscal year 2021 for the purpose of making emergency repairs to any facility that is under the charge, care, management or control of the department of administration as provided by law: *Provided*, That the secretary of administration shall make a full report on such repairs and expenditures to the director of the budget and the director of legislative research.
- (h) (1) On July 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall record a debit to the state treasurer's receivables for the state economic development initiatives fund and

shall record a corresponding credit to the state economic development initiatives fund in an amount certified by the director of the budget that shall be equal to 75% of the amount estimated by the director of the budget to be transferred and credited to the state economic development initiatives fund during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, except that such amount shall be proportionally adjusted during fiscal year 2021 with respect to any change in the moneys to be transferred and credited to the state economic development initiatives fund during fiscal year 2021. All moneys transferred and credited to the state economic development initiatives fund during fiscal year 2021 shall reduce the amount debited and credited to the state economic development initiatives fund under this subsection.

- (2) On June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall adjust the amounts debited and credited to the state treasurer's receivables and to the state economic development initiatives fund pursuant to this subsection, to reflect all moneys actually transferred and credited to the state economic development initiatives fund during fiscal year 2021.
- (3) The director of accounts and reports shall notify the state treasurer of all amounts debited and credited to the state economic development initiatives fund pursuant to this subsection and all reductions and adjustments thereto made pursuant to this subsection. The state treasurer shall enter all such amounts debited and credited and shall make reductions and adjustments thereto on the books and records kept and maintained for the state economic development initiatives fund by the state treasurer in accordance with the notice thereof.
- (i) (1) On July 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall record a debit to the state treasurer's receivables for the correctional institutions building fund and shall record a corresponding credit to the correctional institutions building fund in an amount certified by the director of the budget that shall be equal to 80% of the amount estimated by the director of the budget to be transferred and credited to the correctional institutions building fund during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, except that such amount shall be proportionally adjusted during fiscal year 2021 with respect to any change in the moneys to be transferred and credited to the correctional institutions building fund during fiscal year 2021. All moneys transferred and credited to the correctional institutions building fund during fiscal year 2021 shall reduce the amount debited and credited to the correctional institutions building fund under this subsection.
- (2) On June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall adjust the amounts debited and credited to the state treasurer's receivables and to the correctional institutions building fund pursuant to this subsection, to reflect all moneys actually transferred and credited to the correctional institutions building fund during fiscal year 2021.
- (3) The director of accounts and reports shall notify the state treasurer of all amounts debited and credited to the correctional institutions building fund pursuant to this subsection and all reductions and adjustments thereto made pursuant to this subsection. The state treasurer shall enter all such amounts debited and credited and shall make reductions and adjustments thereto on the books and records kept and maintained for the correctional institutions building fund by the state treasurer in accordance with the notice thereof.
- (j) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary of administration, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of

appropriation for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from the state general fund for the department of administration to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the department of administration. The secretary of administration shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.

(k) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state institutions building fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

SIBF - state

building insurance (173-00-8100-8920).....\$190,000

*Provided,* That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 76-6b05, and amendments thereto, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the SIBF – state building insurance account of the state institutions building fund for state building insurance premiums.

(l) There is appropriated for the above agency from the correctional institutions building fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

CIBF – state building insurance (173-00-8600-8930).....\$210,000

*Provided,* That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 76-6b09, and amendments thereto, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the CIBF – state building insurance account of the correctional institutions building fund for state building insurance premiums.

- (m) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer an amount or amounts from the appropriate federal fund or funds of the Kansas department for aging and disability services to the older Americans act title IIIB long-term care ombudsman federal fund (173-00-3287-3287) of the department of administration: *Provided*, That the aggregate of such amount or amounts transferred during fiscal year 2021 shall be equal to and shall not exceed the older Americans act title VII: ombudsman award and 4.38% of the Kansas older Americans act title III: part B supportive services award.
- (n) (1) (A) Prior to August 15, 2020, the state board of regents shall determine and certify to the director of the budget each of the specific amounts from the amounts appropriated from the state general fund or from the moneys appropriated and available in the special revenue funds for each of the regents agencies to be transferred to and debited to the 27th payroll adjustment account of the state general fund by the director of accounts and reports pursuant to this subsection: *Provided*, That the aggregate of all such amounts certified to the director of the budget shall be an amount that is equal to or more than \$1,184,054. The certification by the state board of regents shall specify the amount in each account of the state general fund or in each special revenue fund, or account thereof, that is designated by the state board of regents pursuant to this

subsection for each of the regents agencies to be transferred to and debited to the 27<sup>th</sup> payroll adjustment account in the state general fund by the director of accounts and reports pursuant to this subsection. At the same time as such certification is transmitted to the director of the budget, the state board of regents shall transmit a copy of such certification to the director of legislative research.

- (B) The director of the budget shall review each such certification from the state board of regents and shall certify a copy of each such certification from the state board of regents to the director of accounts and reports. At the same time as such certification is transmitted to the director of accounts and reports, the director of the budget shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (C) On August 15, 2020, in accordance with the certification by the director of the budget that is submitted to the director of accounts and reports under this subsection, the appropriation for fiscal year 2021 for each account of the state general fund, state economic development initiatives fund, state water plan fund and children's initiatives fund that is appropriated or reappropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature is hereby respectively lapsed by the amount equal to the amount certified under this subsection.
- (2) In determining the amounts to be certified to the director of accounts and reports in accordance with this subsection, the director of the budget and the state board of regents shall consider any changed circumstances and unanticipated reductions in expenditures or unanticipated and required expenditures by the regents agencies for fiscal year 2021.
- (3) As used in this subsection, "regents agency" means the state board of regents, Fort Hays state university, Kansas state university, Kansas state university extension systems and agriculture research programs, Kansas state university veterinary medical center, Emporia state university, Pittsburg state university, the university of Kansas, the university of Kansas medical center and Wichita state university.
  - (4) The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to:
- (A) Any money held in trust in a trust fund or held in trust in any other special revenue fund or funds of any regents agency;
- (B) any moneys received from any agency or authority of the federal government or from any other federal source, other than any such federal moneys that are credited to or may be received and credited to special revenue funds of a regents agency and that are determined by the state board of regents to be federal moneys that may be transferred to and debited to the 27<sup>th</sup> payroll adjustment account of the state general fund by the director of accounts and reports pursuant to this subsection;
  - (C) any account of the Kansas educational building fund; or
- (D) any fund of any regents agency in the state treasury, as determined by the director of the budget, that would experience financial or administrative difficulties as a result of executing the provisions of this subsection, including, but not limited to, cashflow problems, the inability to meet ordinary expenditure obligations, or any conflicts with prevailing contracts, compacts or other provisions of law.
- (5) Each amount transferred from any special revenue fund of any regents agency to the state general fund pursuant to this subsection is transferred to reimburse the state general fund for accounting, auditing, budgeting, legal, payroll, personnel and purchasing services and any other governmental services that are performed on behalf

of the regents agency involved by other state agencies that receive appropriations from the state general fund to provide such services.

- (o) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for the above agency for fiscal year 2021 by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, for the secretary of administration to fix, charge and collect fees for architectural, engineering and management services provided for capital improvement projects of the state board of regents or any state educational institution, as defined by K.S.A. 76-711, and amendments thereto, for which the department of administration provides such services and which are financed in whole or in part by gifts, bequests or donations made by one or more private individuals or other private entities: Provided, That such fees for such services are hereby authorized to be fixed, charged and collected in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-1269, and amendments thereto, notwithstanding any provisions of K.S.A. 75-1269, and amendments thereto, to the contrary: Provided further, That all such fees received shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the architectural services recovery fund.
- (p) (1) On July 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall record a debit to the state treasurer's receivables for the expanded lottery act revenues fund and shall record a corresponding credit to the expanded lottery act revenues fund in an amount certified by the director of the budget that shall be equal to the amount estimated by the director of the budget to be transferred and credited to the expanded lottery act revenues fund during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, except that such amount shall be proportionally adjusted during fiscal year 2021 with respect to any change in the moneys to be transferred and credited to the expanded lottery act revenues fund during fiscal year 2021. All moneys transferred and credited to the expanded lottery act revenues fund during fiscal year 2021 shall reduce the amount debited and credited to the expanded lottery act revenues fund under this subsection.
- (2) On June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall adjust the amounts debited and credited to the state treasurer's receivables and to the expanded lottery act revenues fund pursuant to this subsection, to reflect all moneys actually transferred and credited to the expanded lottery act revenues fund during fiscal year 2021.
- (3) The director of accounts and reports shall notify the state treasurer of all amounts debited and credited to the expanded lottery act revenues fund pursuant to this subsection and all reductions and adjustments thereto made pursuant to this subsection. The state treasurer shall enter all such amounts debited and credited and shall make reductions and adjustments thereto on the books and records kept and maintained for the expanded lottery act revenues fund by the state treasurer in accordance with the notice thereof.
- (q) (1) On July 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall record a debit to the state treasurer's receivables for the children's initiatives fund and shall record a corresponding credit to the children's initiatives fund in an amount certified by the director of the budget that shall be equal to 50% of the amount estimated by the director of the budget to be transferred and credited to the children's initiatives fund during the

fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, except that such amount shall be proportionally adjusted during fiscal year 2021 with respect to any change in the moneys to be transferred and credited to the children's initiatives fund during fiscal year 2021. Among other appropriate factors, the director of the budget shall take into consideration the estimated and actual receipts and interest earnings of the Kansas endowment for youth fund for fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2021 in determining the amount to be certified under this subsection. All moneys transferred and credited to the children's initiatives fund during fiscal year 2021 shall reduce the amount debited and credited to the children's initiatives fund under this subsection.

- (2) On June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall adjust the amounts debited and credited to the state treasurer's receivables and to the children's initiatives fund pursuant to this subsection to reflect all moneys actually transferred and credited to the children's initiatives fund during fiscal year 2021.
- (3) The director of accounts and reports shall notify the state treasurer of all amounts debited and credited to the children's initiatives fund pursuant to this subsection and all reductions and adjustments thereto made pursuant to this subsection. The state treasurer shall enter all such amounts debited and credited and shall make reductions and adjustments thereto on the books and records kept and maintained for the children's initiatives fund by the state treasurer in accordance with the notice thereof.
- (4) The reductions and adjustments prescribed to be made by the director of accounts and reports and the state treasurer pursuant to this subsection for the children's initiatives fund to account for moneys actually received that are to be transferred and credited to the children's initiatives fund shall be made after the reductions and adjustments prescribed to be made by the director of accounts and reports and the state treasurer pursuant to subsection (r) for the Kansas endowment for youth fund to account for moneys actually received that are to be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the Kansas endowment for youth fund.
- (r) (1) On July 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall record a debit to the state treasurer's receivables for the Kansas endowment for youth fund and shall record a corresponding credit to the Kansas endowment for youth fund in an amount certified by the director of the budget that shall be equal to 75% of the amount approved for expenditure by the children's cabinet during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, as certified by the director of the budget. All moneys received and credited to the Kansas endowment for youth fund during fiscal year 2021 shall reduce the amount debited and credited to the Kansas endowment for youth fund under this subsection.
- (2) On June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall adjust the amounts debited and credited to the state treasurer's receivables and to the Kansas endowment for youth fund pursuant to this subsection to reflect all moneys actually transferred and credited to the Kansas endowment for youth fund during fiscal year 2021.
- (3) The director of accounts and reports shall notify the state treasurer of all amounts debited and credited to the Kansas endowment for youth fund pursuant to this subsection and all reductions and adjustments thereto made pursuant to this subsection. The state treasurer shall enter all such amounts debited and credited and shall make reductions and adjustments thereto on the books and records kept and maintained for the Kansas endowment for youth fund by the state treasurer in accordance with the notice thereof.

- (4) The reductions and adjustments prescribed to be made by the director of accounts and reports and the state treasurer pursuant to this subsection for the Kansas endowment for youth fund to account for moneys actually received that are to be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the Kansas endowment for youth fund shall be made before the reductions and adjustments prescribed to be made by the director of accounts and reports and the state treasurer pursuant to subsection (q) for the children's initiatives fund to account for moneys actually received that are to be transferred and credited to the children's initiatives fund.
- (s) On July 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer all moneys in the FICA reimbursements medical residents fund (173-00-7599-7500) to the accounting services recovery fund (173-00-6105-4010). On July 1, 2020, all liabilities of the FICA reimbursements medical residents fund are hereby transferred to and imposed on the accounting services recovery fund, and the FICA reimbursements medical residents fund is hereby abolished.

Sec. 51.

OFFICE OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

Data center migration (335-00-1000)......\$9,000,000

Rehabilitation and repair (335-00-1000).....\$4,500,000

Sec. 52.

OFFICE OF INFORMATION

TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Data center migration (335-00-1000)......\$2,000,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the data center migration account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Network remediation (335-00-1000)......\$3,400,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the network remediation account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Rehabilitation and repair (335-00-1000)......\$4,500,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the rehabilitation and repair account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Information technology fund (335-00-6110-4030)......No limit

*Provided,* That any moneys collected from a fee increase for information services recommended by the governor shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the information technology fund.

# Sec. 53. KANSAS INFORMATION SECURITY OFFICE

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That any moneys collected from a fee increase for information services recommended by the governor shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the information technology fund.

Information technology Sec. 54. OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATVE HEARINGS (a) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation for official hospitality established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 65(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the administrative hearings office fund (178-00-2582-2584) of the office of administrative hearings is hereby decreased from \$100 to \$50. Sec. 55. OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS (a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following: Administrative hearings Provided, That expenditures from the administrative hearings office fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$50. Sec. 56. STATE BOARD OF TAX APPEALS (a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following: Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021. (b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following: Duplicating fees fund (562-00-2219-2200)......\$3,000

(c) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 for the above agency as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 74-2433, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 for a member to continue to serve for a period of 180 days after the expiration of the member's term during fiscal year 2021.

Sec. 57.

### DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Sec. 58.

### DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (565-00-1000-0303)......\$16,027,478

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided, however,* That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,500.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Division of vehicles operating fund (565-00-2089-2020)......\$50,768,614

*Provided,* That all receipts collected under authority of K.S.A. 74-2012, and amendments thereto, shall be credited to the division of vehicles operating fund: *Provided further,* That any expenditure from the division of vehicles operating fund of

the department of revenue to reimburse the audit services fund (540-00-9204-9000) of the division of post audit for a financial-compliance audit in an amount certified by the legislative post auditor shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on the division of vehicles operating fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021: *And provided further*, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 68-416, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, expenditures may be made from this fund for the administration and operation of the department of revenue.

Vehicle dealers and manufacturers fee fund (565-00-2189-2030)
Kansas qualified agricultural ethyl alcohol producer incentive fund (565-00-2215)
Division of vehicles modernization fund (565-00-2390-2390)
Kansas retail dealer incentive fund (565-00-2387-2380)
Local report fee fund (565-00-2249-2160)
Conversion of materials and equipment fund (565-00-2417-2050)
Forfeited property fee fund (565-00-2428-2200)No limit
Setoff services revenue fund (565-00-2617-2080)No limit
Publications fee fund (565-00-2663-2090)
Child support enforcement contractual agreement fund (565-00-2683-2110)
County treasurers' vehicle licensing fee fund (565-00-2687-2120)
Tax amnesty recovery fund (565-00-2462-2462)No limit
Reappraisal reimbursement fund (565-00-2693-2130)

*Provided,* That all moneys received for the costs incurred for conducting appraisals for any county shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the reappraisal reimbursement fund: *Provided further,* That expenditures may be made from this fund for the purpose of conducting appraisals pursuant to orders of the state board of tax appeals under K.S.A. 79-1479, and amendments thereto.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the special training fund for operating expenditures, including official hospitality, incurred for conferences, training seminars, workshops and examinations: Provided further, That the secretary of revenue is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for conferences, training seminars, workshops and examinations sponsored or cosponsored by the department of revenue: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenditures incurred for such conferences, training seminars, workshops and examinations or for qualifying applicants for such conferences, training seminars, workshops and examinations: And provided further, That all fees received for conferences, training seminars, workshops and examinations shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the special training fund.

Recovery fund for enforcement actions and attorney fees (565-00-2021-2060)
Earned income tax credits – TANF – federal fund (565-00-3345-3340)No limit
Commercial vehicle information systems/network federal fund (565-00-3244-3244)
Temporary assistance – needy families federal fund (565-00-3323-3323)
Highway planning construction federal fund (565-00-3333-3333)
Immigration MOU federal fund (565-00-3497-3497)
Commercial drivers licensing state program federal fund (565-00-3515-3515)
DL security grant program fund (565-00-3780-3150)

State and community highway safety fund (565-00-3815-3815)
Microfilming fund (565-00-2281-2270)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures may be made from the microfilming fund to operate and maintain a microfilming activity to sell microfilming services to other state agencies: <i>Provided further</i> , That all moneys received for such services shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the microfilming fund.
Miscellaneous trust bonds fund (565-00-7556-5180)
Liquor excise tax guarantee bond fund (565-00-7604-5190)
Non-resident contractors cash bond fund (565-00-7605-5200)
Bond guaranty fund (565-00-7606-5210)No limit
Interstate motor fuel user cash bond fund (565-00-7616-5220)
Motor fuel distributor cash bond fund (565-00-7617-5230)
Special county mineral production tax fund (565-00-7668-5280)
County drug tax fund (565-00-7680-5310)
Escheat proceeds suspense fund (565-00-7753-5290)
Privilege tax refund fund (565-00-9031-9300)No limit
Suspense fund (565-00-9032-9310)
Cigarette tax refund fund (565-00-9033-9330)No limit

Motor-vehicle fuel tax refund fund (565-00-9035-9350)
Cereal malt beverage tax refund fund (565-00-9036-9360)
Income tax refund fund (565-00-9038-9370)No limit
Sales tax refund fund (565-00-9039-9380)No limit
Compensating tax refund fund (565-00-9040-9390)
Alcoholic liquor tax refund fund (565-00-9041-9400)
Cigarette/tobacco products regulation fund (565-00-2294-2190)
Motor carrier tax refund fund (565-00-9042-9410)
Car company tax fund (565-00-9043-9420)No limit
Protested motor carrier taxes fund (565-00-9044-9430)No limit
Tobacco products refund fund (565-00-9045-9440)
Transient guest tax refund fund (established by K.S.A. 12-1694a) (565-00-9066-9450)
Interstate motor fuel taxes clearing fund (565-00-9070-9710)
Motor carrier permits escrow clearing fund (565-00-7581-5400)
Transient guest tax refund fund established by K.S.A. 12-16,100 (565-00-9074-9480)

Interstate motor fuel taxes refund fund (565-00-9069-9010)
Interfund clearing fund (565-00-9096-9510)No limit
Local alcoholic liquor clearing fund (565-00-9100-9700)
International registration plan distribution clearing fund (565-00-9103-9520)
Rental motor vehicle excise tax refund fund (565-00-9106-9730)
International fuel tax agreement clearing fund (565-00-9072-9015)
Mineral production tax refund fund (565-00-9121-9540)
Special fuels tax refund fund (565-00-9122-9550)No limit
LP-gas motor fuels refund fund (565-00-9123-9560)No limit
Local alcoholic liquor refund fund (565-00-9124-9570)
Sales tax clearing fund (565-00-9148-9580)No limit
Rental motor vehicle excise tax clearing fund (565-00-9187-9640)
VIPS/CAMA technology hardware fund (565-00-2244-2170)

*Provided,* That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 74-2021, and amendments thereto, or of any other statute, expenditures may be made from the VIPS/CAMA technology hardware fund (565-00-2244-2170) for the purposes of upgrading the VIPS/CAMA computer hardware and software for the state or for the counties and for administration and operation of the department of revenue.

County and city retailers sales tax clearing fund – county and city sales tax (565-00-9190-9610)
City and county compensating use tax clearing fund (565-00-9191-9620)
County and city transient guest tax clearing fund (565-00-9192-9630)
Automated tax systems fund (565-00-2265-2265)No limit
Dyed diesel fuel fee fund (565-00-2286-2280)No limit
Electronic databases fee fund (565-00-2287-2180)No limit
Provided, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 74-2022, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, expenditures may be made from the electronic databases fee fund (565-00-2287-2180) for the purposes of operating expenditures, including expenditures for capital outlay; of operating, maintaining or improving the vehicle information processing system (VIPS), the Kansas computer assisted mass appraisal system (CAMA) and other electronic database systems of the department of revenue, including the costs incurred to provide access to or to furnish copies of public records in such database systems and for the administration and operation of the department of revenue.
Photo fee fund (565-00-2084-2140)
<i>Provided,</i> That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-299, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, expenditures may be made from the photo fee fund for administration and operation of the driver license program and related support operations in the division of administration of the department of revenue, including costs of administering the provisions of K.S.A. 8-240, 8-243, 8-267, 8-1324 and 8-1325, and amendments thereto, relating to drivers licenses, instruction permits and identification cards.
Estate tax abatement refund fund (565-00-9082-9501)
Distinctive license plate fund (565-00-2232-2230)
Repossessed certificates of title fee fund (565-00-2015-2070)

Hazmat fee fund (565-00-2365-2300)
Intra-governmental service fund (565-00-6132-6101)
Community improvement district sales tax administration fund (565-00-7675-5300)
Community improvement district sales tax refund fund (565-00-9049-9455)
Community improvement district sales tax clearing fund (565-00-9189-9655)
Drivers license first responders indicator federal fund (565-00-3179-3179)
Enforcing underage drinking federal fund (565-00-3219-3219)
FDA tobacco program federal fund (565-00-3330-3330)
Commercial vehicle administrative system fund (565-00-2098-2098)
State charitable gaming regulation fund (565-00-2381-2385)
Charitable gaming refund fund (565-00-9001-9001)
Commercial driver's license drive test fee fund (565-00-2816-2816)
DUI-IID designation fund (565-00-2380-2370)No limit
MSA compliance fund (565-00-2274-2274)No limit
Alcoholic beverage control modernization fund (565-00-2299-2299)

- (c) On July 1, 2020, October 1, 2020, January 1, 2021, and April 1, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$12,050,132 from the state highway fund (276-00-4100-4100) of the department of transportation to the division of vehicles operating fund (565-00-2089-2020) of the department of revenue for the purpose of financing the cost of operation and general expense of the division of vehicles and related operations of the department of revenue.
- (d) On August 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$77,250 from the accounting services recovery fund (173-00-6105-4010) of the department of administration to the setoff services revenue fund (565-00-2617-2080) of the department of revenue for reimbursing costs of recovering amounts owed to state agencies under K.S.A. 75-6201 et seq., and amendments thereto.
- (e) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 8-145, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the state treasurer shall credit \$1 of each division of vehicles modernization surcharge collected and remitted to the secretary of revenue in an amount not to exceed \$500,000 to the digital imaging program fund (173-00-6121-6121) of the department of administration.
- (f) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 8-145, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the state treasurer shall credit \$1 of each division of vehicles modernization surcharge collected and remitted to the secretary of revenue in an amount not to exceed \$1,000,000 to the criminal justice information system line fund (083-00-2457-2400) of the attorney general Kansas bureau of investigation.
- (g) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 8-145, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the state treasurer shall credit \$1 of each division of vehicles modernization surcharge collected and remitted to the secretary of revenue in an amount not to exceed \$1,000,000 to the division of vehicles modernization fund (565-00-2390-2390) of the department of revenue.
- (h) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$1,220,688 from the Kansas endowment for youth fund (365-00-7000-2000) to the MSA compliance fund (565-00-2274-2274) of the department of revenue.

Sec. 59.

#### KANSAS LOTTERY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Lottery prize payment fund (450-00-7381)......No limit

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 74-8711, and amendments thereto, and subject to the provisions of this subsection: (1) An amount of not less than \$2,300,000 shall be certified by the executive director of the Kansas lottery to the director of accounts and reports on or before July 15, 2020; and (2) an amount of not less than \$4,700,000 shall be certified by the executive director of the Kansas lottery to the director of accounts and reports on or before August 15, 2020, and on or before the 15th of each month thereafter through June 15, 2021: Provided, That, upon receipt of each such certification, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount certified from the lottery operating fund (450-00-5123-5100) to the state gaming revenues fund (173-00-9011-9100) and shall credit such amount to the state gaming revenues fund (173-00-9011-9100) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021: Provided, however, That, after the date that an amount of \$54,000,000 has been transferred from the lottery operating fund to the state gaming revenues fund for fiscal year 2021 pursuant to this subsection, the executive director of the Kansas lottery shall continue to certify amounts to the director of accounts and reports on or before the 15th of each month through June 15, 2021, except that the amounts certified after such date shall not be subject to the minimum amount of \$4,700,000: Provided further, That the amounts certified by the executive director of the Kansas lottery to the director of accounts and reports, after the date an amount of \$54,000,000 has been transferred from the lottery operating fund to the state gaming revenues fund for fiscal year 2021 pursuant to this subsection, shall be determined by the executive director so that an aggregate of all amounts certified pursuant to this subsection for fiscal year 2021 is equal to or more than \$76,900,000: And provided further. That the aggregate of all amounts transferred from the lottery operating fund to the state gaming revenues fund for fiscal year 2021 pursuant to this subsection shall be equal to or more than \$76,900,000: And provided further. That the transfers prescribed by this subsection shall be the maximum amount possible while maintaining an adequate cash balance necessary to make expenditures for prize payments and operating costs: And provided further, That the transfers prescribed in this subsection shall include the total profit attributed to the special veterans benefit game under K.S.A. 74-8724, and amendments thereto: And provided further, That the transfers prescribed by this subsection shall be made in lieu of transfers under K.S.A. 74-8711(d), and amendments thereto, for fiscal year 2021.

- (c) In addition to the purposes for which expenditures of moneys in the lottery operating fund (450-00-5123-5100) may be made, as authorized by provisions of K.S.A. 74-8711, and amendments thereto, in fiscal year 2021, moneys in the lottery operating fund may be used for payment of all costs incurred in the operation and administration of the Kansas lottery, the Kansas lottery act and the Kansas expanded lottery act.
- (d) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 74-8724, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the lottery operating fund (450-00-5123-5100) to the state gaming revenues fund (173-00-9011-9100) the amount of total profit attributed to the veterans benefits game pursuant to K.S.A. 74-8724, and amendments thereto, during fiscal year 2021: *Provided*, That, the transfer to the veterans benefit lottery game fund (694-00-2303-2303) of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, authorized by section 66(f) represents the total profits derived from the veterans benefits game pursuant to K.S.A. 74-8724, and amendments thereto: *Provided further*, That on or before August 1, 2021, the executive director of the lottery shall report the amount of total profit attributed to the veterans benefits game pursuant to K.S.A. 74-8724, and amendments thereto, during fiscal year 2021 to the director of the budget and the director of legislative research.

Sec. 60.

## KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures from the state racing fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,500.

Provided, That notwithstanding K.S.A. 74-8831, and amendments thereto, all

moneys transferred into this fund pursuant to K.S.A. 74-8767(b), and amendments thereto, shall be deposited to a separate account established for the purpose described in this proviso and moneys in this account shall be expended only to supplement special stake races and to enhance the amount per point paid to owners of Kansas-whelped greyhounds that win live races at Kansas greyhound tracks and pursuant to rules and regulations adopted by the Kansas racing and gaming commission: *Provided further*, That transfers from this account to the live greyhound racing purse supplement fund may be made in accordance with K.S.A. 74-8767(b), and amendments thereto.

Racing investigative expense fund (553-00-2570-2400)
Horse fair racing benefit fund (553-00-2296-3000)
Tribal gaming fund (553-00-2320-3700)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the tribal gaming fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,000.
Expanded lottery regulation fund (553-00-2535)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the expanded lottery regulation fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,500.
Live horse racing purse supplement fund (553-00-2546-2800)
Live greyhound racing purse supplement fund (553-00-2557-2900)
Greyhound promotion and development fund (553-00-2561-3100)
Gaming background investigation fund (553-00-2682-2680)
Gaming machine examination fund (553-00-2998-2990)
Education and training fund (553-00-2459-2450)No limit
Provided, That expenditures may be made from the education and training fund for

operating expenditures, including official hospitality, incurred for hosting or providing training, in-service workshops and conferences: *Provided further*, That the Kansas racing and gaming commission is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for hosting or providing training, in-service workshops and conferences: *And provided further*, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenditures incurred for hosting or providing such training, in-service workshops and conferences: *And provided further*, That all fees received for hosting or providing such training, in-service workshops and conferences shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the education and training fund.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the illegal gambling enforcement fund for direct or indirect operating expenditures incurred for investigatory seizure and forfeiture activities, including, but not limited to: (1) Conducting investigations of illegal gambling operations or activities; (2) participating in illegal gaming in order to collect or purchase evidence as part of an undercover investigation into illegal gambling operations; and (3) acquiring information or making contacts leading to illegal gaming activities: Provided, however, That all moneys that are expended for any such evidence purchase, information acquisition or similar investigatory purpose or activity from whatever funding source and that are recovered shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the illegal gambling enforcement fund: Provided further, That any moneys received or awarded to the Kansas racing and gaming commission for such enforcement activities shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the illegal gambling enforcement fund.

- (b) On July 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$450,000 from the state general fund to the tribal gaming fund (553-00-2320-3700) of the Kansas racing and gaming commission.
- (c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer one or more amounts certified by the executive director of the state gaming agency from the tribal gaming fund to the state general fund: *Provided*, That all such transfers shall be for the purpose of reimbursing the state general fund for the amount equal to the net amount obtained by subtracting (1) the aggregate of any costs incurred by the state gaming agency during fiscal year 2021 for any arbitration or litigation in connection with the administration and enforcement of tribal-state gaming compacts or the provisions of the tribal gaming oversight act, from (2) the aggregate of the amounts transferred to the tribal gaming fund (553-00-2320-3700) of the Kansas racing and gaming commission during fiscal year 2021 for the operating expenditures for the state gaming agency and any other expenses incurred in connection with the administration and enforcement of tribal-state gaming compacts or the provisions of the tribal gaming oversight act.

- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all payments for services provided by the Kansas bureau of investigation shall be paid by the Kansas racing and gaming commission in accordance with K.S.A. 75-5516(b), and amendments thereto, pursuant to bills that are presented in a timely manner by the Kansas bureau of investigation for services rendered.
- (e) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from the moneys appropriated in the tribal gaming fund (553-00-2320-3700) for fiscal year 2021 for the Kansas racing and gaming commission by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures, which are hereby authorized, may be made from the tribal gaming fund for fiscal year 2021 for the state gaming agency regulatory oversight of class III gaming, including, but not limited to, the regulatory oversight and law enforcement activities of monitoring compliance with tribal-state gaming compacts and conducting investigations of violations of tribal-state gaming compacts, investigations of criminal violations of the laws of this state at tribal gaming facilities, criminal violations of the tribal gaming oversight act, background investigations of applicants and vendors and investigations of other criminal activities related to tribal gaming.
- (f) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 74-8831, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall not make the transfer from the Kansas greyhound breeding development fund (553-00-2601-2500) of the Kansas racing and gaming commission to the greyhound tourism fund of the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism that is directed to be made on or before June 30, 2021, by K.S.A. 74-8831(b)(1), and amendments thereto, and shall transfer on or before June 30, 2021, the amount equal to 15% of all moneys credited to the Kansas greyhound breeding development fund during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from the Kansas greyhound breeding development fund to the greyhound promotion and development fund (553-00-2561-3100) of the Kansas racing and gaming commission.
- (g) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, the Kansas racing and gaming commission is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect additional fees to recover all or part of the direct and indirect costs or operating expenses incurred or expected to be incurred by the Kansas racing and gaming commission for the regulation of racing activities that are not otherwise recovered from a parimutuel facility licensee under authority of any other statute: Provided, That such fees shall be in addition to all taxes and other fees otherwise authorized by law: Provided further, That such costs or operating expenses shall include all or part of any auditing, drug testing, accounting, security and law enforcement, licensing of any office or other facility for use by a parimutual facility licensee or projects to update and upgrade information technology software or facilities of the commission and shall specifically include any general operating expenses that are associated with regulatory activities attributable to the entity upon which any such fee is imposed and all expenses related to reopening any race track or other racing facility: And provided further, That all moneys received for such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the state racing fund (553-00-5131-5000).

Sec. 61.

- (a) Any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the KBA grant commitments account of the state general fund is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
- (b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state economic development initiatives fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Main street program (300-00-1900-1175)......\$825,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the main street program account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Older Kansans employment program (300-00-1900-1140)......\$503,164

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the older Kansans employment program account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the rural opportunity zones program account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the senior community service employment program account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the strong military bases program account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided*, That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the governor's council of economic advisors account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Creative arts industries commission (300-00-1900-1188)\$502,084
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the creative arts industries commission account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Operating grant (including official hospitality) (300-00-1900-1110)\$8,383,532
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the operating grant (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: <i>Provided further,</i> That expenditures may be made from the operating grant (including official hospitality) account for certified development companies that have been determined to be qualified for grants by the secretary of commerce, except that expenditures for such grants shall not be made for grants to more than 10 certified development companies that have been determined to be qualified for grants by the secretary of commerce.
Public broadcasting grants (300-00-1900-1190)\$500,000
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the public broadcasting grants account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Build up Kansas (300-00-1900-1230)\$125,000
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the build up Kansas account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Community development (300-00-1900)\$644,061
International trade (300-00-1900)\$203,771
(c) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:  Job creation program fund (300-00-2467-2467)
Kan-grow engineering fund – KU (300-00-2494-2494)\$3,500,000

Kan-grow engineering

fund – KSU (300-00-2494-2495)\$3,500,000
Kan-grow engineering fund – WSU (300-00-2494-2496)\$3,500,000
Kansas creative arts industries commission special gifts fund (300-00-7004-7004)
Governor's council of economic advisors private operations fund (300-00-2761-2701)
Publication and other sales fund (300-00-2048)No limit
Conversion of equipment and materials fund (300-00-2411-2220)
Conference registration and disbursement fund (300-00-2049)
Reimbursement and recovery fund (300-00-2275)No limit
Community development block grant – federal fund (300-00-3669)
National main street center fund (300-00-7325-7000)
IMPACT program services fund (300-00-2176)
IMPACT program repayment fund (300-00-7388)No limit
Kansas partnership fund (300-00-7525-7020)No limit
General fees fund (300-00-2310)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund for loans pursuant to loan agreements, which are hereby authorized to be entered into by the secretary of commerce in accordance with repayment provisions and other terms and conditions as may be prescribed by the secretary therefor under programs of the department.
Athletic fee fund (300-00-2599-2500)

WIOA adult – federal fund (300-00-3270)	No limit
WIOA youth activities – federal fund (300-00-3039)	No limit
WIOA dislocated workers – federal fund (300-00-3428)	No limit
Trade adjustment assistance – federal fund (300-00-3273)	No limit
Disabled veterans outreach program – federal fund (300-00-3274-3242)	No limit
Local veterans employment representative program – federal fund (300-00-3274-3240)	No limit
Wagner Peyser employment services – federal fund (300-00-3275)	No limit
Senior community service employment program – federal fund (300-00-3100-3510)	No limit
Indirect cost – federal fund (300-00-2340-2300)	No limit
Temporary labor certification foreign workers – federal fund (300-00-3448)	No limit
Work opportunity tax credit – federal fund (300-00-3447-3447)	No limit
American job link alliance – federal fund (300-00-3100-3516)	No limit
American job link alliance job corps – federal fund (300-00-3100-3512)	No limit
Child care/development block grant – federal fund (300-00-3028-3028)	No limit
Enterprise facilitation fund (300-00-2378-2710)	No limit

Unemployment insurance – federal fund (300-00-3335)
State small business credit initiative – federal fund (300-00-3567)
Creative arts industries commission gifts, grants and bequests – federal fund (300-00-3210-3218)
Kansas creative arts industries commission checkoff fund (300-00-2031-2031)
Workforce data quality initiative – federal fund (300-00-3237-3237)
AJLA special revenue fund (300-00-2190-2190)No limit
Workforce innovation – federal fund (300-00-3581)
Reemployment connections initiative – federal fund (300-00-3585)
SBA STEP grant – federal fund (300-00-3573-3573)
Apprenticeship USA state – federal fund (300-00-3949)
Kansas health profession opportunity project – federal fund (300-00-3951)
Second chance grant – federal fund (300-00-3895)
H-1B technical skills training grant – federal fund (300-00-3400)
State broadband data development grant – federal fund (300-00-3782-3700)

- The secretary of commerce is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for: (1) The provision and administration of conferences held for the purposes of programs and activities of the department of commerce and for which fees are not specifically prescribed by statute; (2) sale of publications of the department of commerce and for sale of educational and other promotional items and for which fees are not specifically prescribed by statute; and (3) promotional and other advertising and related economic development activities and services provided under economic development programs and activities of the department of commerce: Provided, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenses incurred in providing such services, conferences, publications and items, advertising and other economic development activities and services provided under economic development programs and activities of the department of commerce for which fees are not specifically prescribed by statute: Provided further, That all such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to one or more special revenue fund or funds of the department of commerce as specified by the secretary of commerce: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from such special revenue fund or funds of the department of commerce for fiscal year 2021, in accordance with the provisions of this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, for operating expenses incurred in providing such services, conferences, publications and items, advertising, programs and activities and for operating expenses incurred in providing similar economic development activities and services provided under economic development programs and activities of the department of commerce.
- (e) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of commerce from moneys appropriated in any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 for the department of commerce as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, expenditures may be made by the department of commerce from moneys appropriated in any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 for official hospitality.
- (f) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary of commerce, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from the state economic development initiatives fund for the department of commerce to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state economic development initiatives fund for the department of commerce. The secretary of commerce shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (g) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A., 79-4804, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, on July 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$16,241,441 from the state economic development initiatives fund (300-00-1900-1100) to the state general fund.
  - (h) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the

above agency during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, if 2020 House Bill No. 2529 or any other legislation that extends the expiration date of the star bonds financing act, K.S.A. 12-17,161 et seq., and amendments thereto, is not passed by the legislature during the 2020 regular session and enacted into law, then on July 1, 2020, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-17,179(b), and amendments thereto, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 for the above agency by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency for the purposes of extending the star bonds financing act until June 30, 2021.

Sec. 62.

### KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That all expenditures from the state housing trust fund shall be made by the Kansas housing resources corporation for the purposes of administering and supporting housing programs of the Kansas housing resources corporation.

Sec. 63.

### DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

(a) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 145(d) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the workmen's compensation fee fund (296-00-2124-2228) of the department of labor is hereby increased from \$680,000 to \$750,000.

Sec. 64.

### DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from this account for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, expenditures may be made from this account for the costs incurred for court reporting under K.S.A. 72-2218 et seq. and 75-4321 et seq., and amendments thereto: And provided further, That expenditures from this account for official hospitality by the secretary of labor shall not exceed \$2,000.

Amusement ride safety (296-00-1000-0513).....\$257,985

7 midsement ride safety (250 00 1000 0515)	
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the amusement ride safety account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.	
(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:  Workmen's compensation	
fee fund (296-00-2124-2220)	
Occupational health and safety – federal fund (296-00-3339-3210)	
Employment security interest assessment fund (296-00-2771-2700)	
Special employment security fund (296-00-2120-2080)	
Employment security administration fund (296-00-3335-3100)	
Wage claims assignment fee fund (296-00-2204-2240)	
Department of labor special projects fund (296-00-2041-2105)	
Federal indirect cost offset fund (296-00-2302-2280)	
Provided, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 44-716a, and amendments thereto, or any statute to the contrary, during fiscal year 2021, the secretary of labor, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer from the special employment security fund of the Kansas department of labor to the department of labor federal indirect cost offset fund the portion of such amount that is determined necessary to be in compliance with the employment security law: Provided further, That, upon approval of any such transfer by the director of the budget, notification will be provided to the Kansas legislative research department.	
Employment security fund (296-00-7056-7200)No limit	

Labor force statistics federal fund (296-00-3742-3742)
Compensation and working conditions federal fund (296-00-3743-3743)
Employment services Wagner-Peyser funded activities federal fund (296-00-3275-3275)
Dispute resolution fund (296-00-2587-2270)
<i>Provided</i> , That all moneys received by the secretary of labor for reimbursement of expenditures for the costs incurred for mediation under K.S.A. 72-2232, and amendments thereto, and for fact-finding under K.S.A. 72-2233, and amendments thereto, shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the dispute resolution fund: <i>Provided further</i> , That expenditures may be made from this fund to pay the costs incurred for mediation under K.S.A. 72-2232, and amendments thereto, and for fact-finding under K.S.A. 72-2233, and amendments thereto, subject to full reimbursement therefor by the board of education and the professional employees' organization involved in such mediation and fact-finding procedures.
Indirect cost fund (296-00-2781-2781)
Workforce data quality initiative – federal fund (296-00-3237-3237)No limit
Employment security fund clearing account (296-00-7055-7100)
Employment security fund benefit account (296-00-7054-7000)
Employment security fund – special suspense account (296-00-7057-7300)
Special wage payment clearing trust fund (296-00-7362-7500)
Economic adjustment assistance – federal fund (296-00-3415-3415)
Social security administration disability – federal fund (296-00-3309-3309)

Amusement ride safety fund (296-00-2224-2250)	No limit
KDOL off-budget fund (296-00-6112-6100)	No limit
Renovation bond fund (296-00-8432-8411)	No limit
SNAP employment and training pilot – federal fund (296-00-3321-3350)	No limit
Anti-human trafficking – federal fund	No limit
Sec. 65.  KANSAS COMMISSION ON	

(a) On the effective date of this act, any unencumbered balance in each of the following accounts of the state institutions building fund is hereby lapsed: KSH Halsey hall covered entrance project (694-00-8100-8280); KSH Lincoln and Grant hall ADA access upgrades (694-00-8100-8282); KSH Pershing barracks access renovation (694-00-8100-8284); KVH Bleckley hall window replacement (694-00-8100-8286); KVH Triplett hall flooring replacement (694-00-8100-8287); and waste disposal (694-00-8100-8289).

VETERANS AFFAIRS OFFICE

Sec. 66.

### KANSAS COMMISSION ON VETERANS AFFAIRS OFFICE

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures –	
administration (694-00-1000-0103)	\$573,481

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures – administration account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures – veteran services account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided, however,* That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,500.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operations – state veterans cemeteries account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,200.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures – Kansas soldiers' home account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Operating expenditures – Kansas veterans' home (694-00-1000-0503)......\$542,843

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures – Kansas veterans' home account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Veterans claim assistance program – service grants (694-00-1000-0903)......\$700,000

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the veterans claim assistance program – service grants account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures from the veterans claim assistance program – service grants account shall be made only for the purpose of awarding service grants to veterans service organizations for the purpose of aiding veterans in obtaining federal benefits: Provided, however, That no expenditures shall be made by the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office from the veterans claim assistance program – service grants account for operating expenditures or overhead for administering the grants in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 73-1234, and amendments thereto.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Soldiers' home work therapy fund (694-00-7951-5600)
Soldiers' home medicare fund (694-00-3168-3100)
Soldiers' home medicaid fund (694-00-2464-2464)
Veterans' home medicare fund (694-00-3893-3893)
Veterans' home medicaid fund (694-00-2469-2469)
Veterans' home fee fund (694-00-2236-2200)
Veterans' home canteen fund (694-00-7809-5300)
Veterans' home benefit fund (694-00-7904-5500)
Soldiam! hama outnationt
Soldiers' home outpatient clinic fund (694-00-2258-2300)
Soldiers nome outpatient clinic fund (694-00-2258-2300)
clinic fund (694-00-2258-2300)
clinic fund (694-00-2258-2300)
clinic fund (694-00-2258-2300)
clinic fund (694-00-2258-2300)

Commission on veterans affairs

federal fund (694-00-3241-3340)
Kansas veterans memorials fund (694-00-7332-5210)
Vietnam war era veterans' recognition award fund (694-00-7017-7000)
Kansas hometown heroes fund (694-00-7003-7001)
Persian gulf war veterans health initiatives fund (694-00-2304-2500)
Construction state home facilities fund (694-00-3018-3000)
State cemetery grants fund (694-00-3048-3200)No limit
Kansas soldier home construction grant fund (694-00-3075-3400)
Winfield veterans home acquisition construction fund (694-00-8806-8200)
Veterans benefit lottery game fund (694-00-2303)

*Provided,* That expenditures from the veterans benefit lottery game fund shall be in an amount equal to 50% for operating expenditures and capital improvements of the above agency, or for the use and benefit of the Kansas veterans' home, the Kansas soldiers' home and the state veterans cemetery system; and 50% for the veterans enhanced service delivery program.

(c) (1) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 73-1231, 73-1233, 75-3728g, 76-1906 or 76-1953, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer moneys that are credited to a special revenue fund of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office to another special revenue fund of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office. The director of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.

- (2) As used in this subsection, "special revenue fund" means the soldiers' home fee fund (694-00-2241-2100), veterans' home fee fund (694-00-2236-2200), soldiers' home outpatient clinic fund (694-00-2258-2300), soldiers' home benefit fund (694-00-7903-5400), soldiers' home work therapy fund (694-00-7951-5600), veterans' home canteen fund (694-00-7809-5300), veterans' home benefit fund (694-00-7904-5500), Persian Gulf War veterans health initiative fund (694-00-2304-2500), state veterans cemeteries fee fund (694-00-2332-2600), state veterans cemeteries donations and contributions fund (694-00-7308-5200) and Kansas veterans memorials fund (694-00-7332-5210).
- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from the state general fund for the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office or any institution or facility under the general supervision and management of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office or any institution or facility under the general supervision and management of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office. The director of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (e) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from the state general fund for the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office to the Vietnam war era veterans' recognition award fund (694-00-7017-7000). The director of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (f) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$1,260,000 from the lottery operating fund (450-00-5123-5100) of the Kansas lottery to the veterans benefit lottery game fund (694-00-2303-2303) of the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office.

Sec. 67.

## DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT – DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

Operating expenditures (including official

hospitality) – health (264-00-1000-0270)......\$374,263

Sec. 68.

## DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT – DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Operating expenditures (including official hospitality) – health (264-00-1000-0270)......\$3,394,066

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) – health account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the vaccine purchases account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Aid to local units (264-00-1000-0350).....\$5,705,709

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the aid to local units account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That, except as provided in subsection (k), all expenditures from this account for state financial assistance to local health departments shall be in accordance with the formula prescribed by K.S.A. 65-241 through 65-246, and amendments thereto.

Aid to local units – primary health projects (264-00-1000-0460)......\$12,570,690

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the aid to local units – primary health projects account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That prescription support expenditures shall be made from the aid to local units – primary health projects account for: (1) Purchasing drug inventory under section 340B of the federal public health service act for community health center grantees and federally qualified health center look-alikes who qualify; (2) increasing access to prescription drugs by subsidizing a portion of the costs for the benefit of patients at section 340B participating clinics on a sliding fee scale; and (3) expanding access to prescription medication assistance programs by making expenditures to support operating costs of assistance programs: And provided further, That funded clinics shall be not-for-profit or publicly funded primary care clinics or dental clinics, including federally qualified community health centers and federally qualified community health center look-alikes, as defined by 42 U.S.C. § 330, that

provide comprehensive primary health care or dental services, offer sliding fee discounts based upon household income and serve any person regardless of ability to pay and have a unique patient panel that, at a minimum, represents the income-based disparities of the community: And provided further, That policies determining patient eligibility due to income or insurance status may be determined by each community but must be clearly documented and posted: And provided further, That of the moneys appropriated in the aid to local units - primary health projects account, not less than \$10,420,690 shall be distributed for community-based primary care grants and services provided by the community care network of Kansas: Provided, however, That, if 2020 Senate Bill No. 363 or other legislation that appropriates additional moneys to the above account for the purpose of funding primary care clinics or dental clinics is passed by the legislature during the 2020 regular session and enacted into law, or if legislation that expressly consents to expand eligibility for the receipt of medical assistance benefits under title XIX of the federal social security act, commonly known as medicaid, is passed by the legislature during the 2020 regular session and enacted into law, then, of the amount appropriated by this section from the state general fund in the above account, the sum of \$2,000,000 is hereby lapsed.

Infant and toddler program (264-00-1000-0570)	\$4,000,000
Aid to local units –	
women's wellness (264-00-1000-0610)	\$94,296

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the aid to local units – women's wellness account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That all expenditures from the aid to local units – women's wellness account shall be in accordance with grant agreements entered into by the secretary of health and environment and grant recipients.

Brain injury registry (264-00-1000-0660)	\$75,000
Lyme disease prevention and research (264-00-1000-0670)	\$140,000
Immunization programs (264-00-1000-1400)	\$397,418

*Provided*, That any unencumbered balance in the immunization programs account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Breast cancer	
screening program (264-00-1000-130	0)\$219,336

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the breast cancer screening program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year

2021.

Pregnancy maintenance initiative (264-00-1000-1100)\$338,846
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the pregnancy maintenance initiative account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Cerebral palsy posture seating (264-00-1000-1500)\$303,537
<i>Provided</i> , That any unencumbered balance in the cerebral palsy posture seating account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: <i>Provided further</i> , That expenditures may be made by the above agency from the cerebral palsy posture seating account for posture seating for adults.
PKU treatment (264-00-1000-1710)\$199,274
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the PKU treatment account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Teen pregnancy prevention activities (264-00-1000-0650)\$338,846
<i>Provided</i> , That any unencumbered balance in the teen pregnancy prevention activities account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
State trauma fund (264-00-1000-1720)\$150,000
(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:  Breast and cervical cancer program and detection — federal fund (264-00-3150-3350)
Health and environment training
fee fund – health (264-00-2183-2160)

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the health and environment training fee fund – health for acquisition and distribution of division of public health program

literature and films and for participation in or conducting training seminars for training employees of the division of public health of the department of health and environment, for training recipients of state aid from the division of public health of the department of health and environment and for training representatives of industries affected by rules and regulations of the department of health and environment relating to the division of public health: Provided further, That the secretary of health and environment is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees in order to recover costs incurred for such acquisition and distribution of literature and films and for the operation of such seminars: And provided further, That such fees may be fixed in order to recover all or part of such costs: And provided further, That all moneys received from such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215. and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the health and environment training fee fund - health: And provided further, That, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment for the division of public health from moneys appropriated from the health and environment training fee fund - health for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment from the health and environment training fee fund - health for fiscal year 2021 for agency operations for the division of public health.

Health facilities review fund (264-00-2505-2250)No limit
Insurance statistical plan fund (264-00-2243-2840)
Health and environment publication fee fund – health (264-00-2541-2190)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the health and environment publication fee fund – health shall be made only for the purpose of paying the expenses of publishing documents as required by K.S.A. 75-5662, and amendments thereto.
District coroners fund (264-00-2653-2320)
Sponsored project overhead fund – health (264-00-2912-2710)
Tuberculosis elimination and laboratory – federal fund (264-00-17-3559-3559)
Maternity centers and child care facilities licensing fee fund (264-00-2731-2731)
Child care and development block grant – federal fund (264-00-3028-3450)

Federal supplemental funding for tobacco prevention and control – federal fund (264-00-3574-3574)
Coordinated chronic disease prevention and health promotion program – federal fund (264-00-3575-3575)
Office of rural health – federal fund (264-00-3031-3640)
Emergency medical services for children – federal fund (264-00-3292-3292)
Primary care offices – federal fund (264-00-3293-3293)
Injury intervention – federal fund (264-00-3294-3294)
Oral health workforce activities – federal fund (264-00-3297-3297)
Rural hospital flex program – federal fund (264-00-3298-3298)
Hospital bioterrorism preparedness – federal fund (264-00-3398-3398)
Kansas coalition against sexual and domestic violence – federal fund (264-00-17-3907-3907)
ARRA collaborative component I – federal fund (264-00-3890-3891)No limit
ARRA collaborative component III – federal fund (264-00-17-3890-3892)
ARRA ambulatory surgical center ASC/HAI medicare – federal fund (264-00-3486-3486)
Medicare – federal fund (264-00-3064-3062)No limit

*Provided,* That transfers of moneys from the medicare – federal fund to the state fire marshal may be made during fiscal year 2021 pursuant to a contract, which is hereby authorized to be entered into by the secretary of health and environment and the state fire marshal to provide fire and safety inspections for hospitals.

Migrant health program – federal fund (264-00-3069-3070)
Tuberculosis prevention – federal fund (264-00-3071-4610)
Strengthen public health immunization infrastructure – federal fund (264-00-3568-3568)
Healthy homes and lead poisoning prevention – federal fund (264-00-3572-3572)
Children's mercy hospital lead program – federal fund (264-00-3152-3154)
Women, infants and children health program – federal fund (264-00-3077-3103)
Immunization and vaccines for children grants – federal fund (264-00-3747-3741)
Home visiting grant – federal fund (264-00-3503-3503)
Preventive health block grant – federal fund (264-00-3614-3200)
Maternal and child health block grant – federal fund (264-00-3616-3210)
National center for health statistics – federal fund (264-00-3617-3220)
Title X family planning services program – federal fund (264-00-3622-3270)
Comprehensive STD prevention systems – federal fund (264-00-3070-3080)

Make a difference information network – federal fund (264-00-3234-3234)
Ryan White title II – federal fund (264-00-3328-3310)No limit
Bicycle helmet distribution – federal fund (264-00-3815-3815)
Bicycle helmet revolving fund (264-00-2575-2630)No limit
SSA fee fund (264-00-2269-2030)
Childhood lead poisoning prevention program – federal fund (264-00-3296-3296)
State implementation projects for prevention of secondary conditions –
federal fund (264-00-3087-4405)
Title IV-E – federal fund (264-00-3326-3900)
HIV prevention projects – federal fund (264-00-3740-3521)
HIV/AIDS surveillance – federal fund (264-00-3399-3399)
Infants & toddlers Prt C – federal fund (264-00-3516-3171)
Universal newborn hearing screening – federal fund (264-00-3459-3459)
State loan repayment program – federal fund (264-00-3760-3755)
Opt-out testing initiative – federal fund (264-00-3801-3801)
Adult lead surveillance data – federal fund (264-00-3496-3496)

Medical reserve corps contract – federal fund (264-00-3502-3502)
Trauma fund (264-00-2513-2230)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment for fiscal year 2021 from the trauma fund of the department of health and environment – division of public health for the stroke prevention project: <i>Provided further</i> ; That expenditures from the trauma fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$3,000.
Homeland security – federal fund (264-00-3329-3319)
Refugee assistance – federal fund (264-00-3378-3346)
Personal responsibility education program – federal fund (264-00-3494-3494)
Kansas vital records for quality improvement – federal fund (264-00-3098-3098)
Kansas early detection works breast & cervical cancer screening services – federal fund (264-00-3099-3099)
Kansas public health approaches for ensuring quitline capacity – federal fund (264-00-3097-3097)
Diagnostic x-ray program – federal fund (264-00-3511-3160)
HRSA small hospital improvement grant program – federal fund (264-00-3371-3371)
State indoor radon grant – federal fund (264-00-3884-3930)
Gifts, grants and donations fund – health (264-00-7311-7090)

Special bequest fund – health (264-00-7366-7050)No limit
Civil registration and health statistics fee fund (264-00-2291-2295)
Power generating facility fee fund (264-00-2131-2130)
Nuclear safety emergency preparedness special revenue fund (264-00-2415-2280)
Provided, That all moneys received by the department of health and environment – division of public health from the nuclear safety emergency management fee fund (034-00-2081-2200) of the adjutant general shall be credited to the nuclear safety emergency preparedness special revenue fund of the department of health and environment – division of public health: Provided further, That expenditures from the nuclear safety emergency preparedness special revenue fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,500.
Radiation control operations fee fund (264-00-2531-2530)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures from the radiation control operations fee fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,000.
Lead-based paint hazard fee fund (264-00-2289-2140)
Strengthening public health infrastructure – federal fund (264-00-3547-3547)
Improving minority health – federal fund (264-00-3548-3548)
Abstinence education – federal fund (264-00-3549-3549)
Affordable care act – federal fund (264-00-3546-3546)No limit
Carbon monoxide detector/fire injury prevention – federal fund (264-00-3508-3508)
Health information exchange –

federal fund (264-00-3493-3493)
Kansas newborn screening fund (264-00-2027-2027)
Actions to prevent and control diabetes, heart disease, and obesity – federal fund (264-00-3749-3742)
Healthy start initiative – federal fund (264-00-3751-3751)
Immunization capacity building assistance – federal fund (264-00-3744-3744)
Hospital preparedness and response program for Ebola – federal fund (264-00-3033-3033)
CDC multipurpose grant federal fund (264-00-3243-3243)
Kansas newborn screening information system maintenance and enhancement federal fund (264-00-3612-3612)
Lifting young families toward excellence federal fund (264-00-3627-3627)
Cancer registry federal fund (264-00-3008-3040)No limit
Hospital preparedness ebola – federal fund (264-00-3093-3093)
Kansas survivor care quality initiative – federal fund (264-00-3101-3610)
Zika birth defects surveillance & referral – federal fund (264-00-3102-3620)
IDEA infant toddler-part C-ARRA – federal fund (264-00-3282-3282)

Immunization grant – federal fund (264-00-3372-3150)
Small hospital improvement program – federal fund (264-00-3392-3392)
Cardiovascular health program – federal fund (264-00-3401-3407)
Kansas senior farmers market nutrition program – federal fund (264-00-3406-3406)
Lead poisoning preventive health – federal fund (264-00-3626-4132)
ARRA – WIC grants to states – federal fund (264-00-3750-3750)
Census of trauma occp fatal. – federal fund (264-00-3797-3670)
Homeland security grant-KHP – federal fund (264-00-3199-3199)
Refugee health – federal fund (264-00-3393-3393)No limit
ARRA – migrant – federal fund (264-00-3396-3396)
ARRA – transfer from SRS – federal fund (264-00-3471-3471)
Public health crisis response – federal fund (264-00-3602-3602)
Diabetes & heart disease & stroke prevention programs – federal fund (264-00-3603-3603)

Innovative state & local public health

strategies to prevent & manage	c nearth
diabetes and heart disease and st	troke _
	-)
100101 10110 (201 00 200 1 200 1	)
Kansas actions to improve ora	al health outcomes –
	)No limit
(_0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0	,
ARRA – survey, licensure and	d enidemiology –
	o)No limit
`	,
Campus sexual assault preven	ntion grant –
	i)No limit
`	,
Alzheimer's association inclusion	sion –
	')No limit
( 1 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	,
ESSA preschool development	grants birth through
	8-3608)No limit
`	,
Preventing maternal deaths –	
	No limit
	,
Right-to-know	
	No limit
,	
Child care criminal backgroun	nd and
S	No limit
	,

- (c) On July 1, 2020, and on other occasions during fiscal year 2021, when necessary as determined by the secretary of health and environment, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer amounts specified by the secretary of health and environment that constitute reimbursements, credits and other amounts received by the department of health and environment for activities related to federal programs from specified special revenue funds of the department of health and environment division of public health or of the department of health and environment division of environment to the sponsored project overhead fund health (264-00-2912-2715) of the department of health and environment division of public health.
- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer an amount or amounts specified by the secretary of health and environment from any one or more special revenue funds of the department of health and environment division of public health that have available moneys to the sponsored project overhead fund health (264-00-2912-2710) of the department of health and environment division of public health for expenditures, as the case may be,

for administrative expenses.

- (e) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the amounts transferred by the director of accounts and reports from each of the special revenue funds of the department of health and environment division of public health to the sponsored project overhead fund health (264-00-2912-2710) of the department of health and environment division of public health pursuant to this section may include amounts not to exceed 25% of the expenditures from such special revenue fund or funds, excepting expenditures for contractual services.
- (f) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary of health and environment, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the department of health and environment division of public health or the department of health and environment division of environment to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the department of health and environment division of public health or the department of health and environment division of environment. The secretary of health and environment shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (g) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of public health from moneys appropriated from the district coroners fund for fiscal year 2021, as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, and notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 22a-245, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of public health from such moneys appropriated from the district coroners fund (264-00-2653-2320) of the department of health and environment division of public health for fiscal year 2021 pursuant to K.S.A. 22a-242, and amendments thereto.
- (h) On July 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$200,000 from the health care stabilization fund (270-00-7404-2100) of the health care stabilization fund board of governors to the health facilities review fund (264-00-2505-2250) of the department of health and environment division of public health for the purpose of financing a review of records of licensed medical care facilities and an analysis of quality of health care services provided to assist in correcting substandard services and to reduce the incidence of liability resulting from the rendering of health care services and implementing the risk management provisions of K.S.A. 65-4922 et seq., and amendments thereto.
- (i) There is appropriated for the above agency from the children's initiatives fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Healthy start (264-00-2000-2105)......\$250,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the healthy start account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Infants and toddlers program (264-00-2000-2107).....\$5,800,000

*Provided*, That any unencumbered balance in the infants and toddlers program

account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Smoking prevention (264-00-2000-2109)......\$1,001,960

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the smoking prevention account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Newborn hearing aid loaner program (264-00-2000-2113)......\$50,773

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the newborn hearing aid loaner program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

SIDS network grant (264-00-2000-2115)......\$96,374

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the SIDS network grant account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

- (j) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of public health during fiscal year 2021 from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made from such moneys to contract for the services of one or more persons to survey and certify dialysis treatment facilities located in the state of Kansas: *Provided*, That, if the above agency has not surveyed a newly constructed dialysis treatment facility within one year after the operator of the facility notifies the above agency that the facility is operational, then the above agency may charge the cost of any survey performed on the facility to the operator of such facility: *Provided further*, That any expenditure of moneys and any survey conducted pursuant to this subsection shall comply with requirements imposed by federal law.
- (k) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-242, and amendments thereto, or any other statute to the contrary, during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to distribute to each local health department, upon application therefor in accordance with K.S.A. 65-242, and amendments thereto, an amount not less than \$12,000: *Provided*, That any remaining moneys appropriated for such purpose, if any, after making distributions in accordance with this subsection shall be distributed in accordance with K.S.A. 65-242, and amendments thereto: *Provided*, *however*, That, if sufficient funds are not available to make a minimum distribution of \$12,000, then the provisions of K.S.A. 65-242, and amendments thereto, shall control.

Sec. 69.

## DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT – DIVISION OF HEALTH CARE FINANCE

(a) On the effective date of this act, of the \$691,755,078 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 81(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the other medical assistance account (264-00-1000-3026), the sum of \$37,041,169 is hereby lapsed.

Sec. 70.

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT – DIVISION OF HEALTH CARE FINANCE

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Health policy operating

expenditures (264-00-1000-0010)......\$22,185,505

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the health policy operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures shall be made from the health policy operating expenditures account of the above agency for the drug utilization review board to perform an annual review of the approved exemptions to the current single source limit by program: *Provided, however*, That, if 2020 Senate Bill No. 252, or any other legislation in which the legislature expressly consents to expand eligibility for the receipt of medical assistance benefits under title XIX of the social security act, commonly known as medicaid, is not passed by the legislature during the 2020 regular session of the legislature and enacted into law, then, of the moneys appropriated by this section from the state general fund in the health policy operating expenditures account, the sum of \$6,500,000 is hereby lapsed: *And provided, however*, That, if such \$6,500,000 is lapsed, then the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$6,500,000 from the state general fund to the coronavirus prevention fund of the state finance council.

Children's health insurance program (264-00-1000-0060)......\$22,388,662

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the children's health insurance program in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the other medical assistance account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures may be made from the other medical assistance account by the above agency for the purpose of implementing or expanding any prior authorization project: And provided further, That an evaluation of the automated

implementation, savings obtained from implementation, and other outcomes of the implementation or expansion shall be submitted to the Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight prior to the start of the regular session of the legislature in 2021: *Provided, however*, That, if 2020 Senate Bill No. 252, or any other legislation in which the legislature expressly consents to expand eligibility for the receipt of medical assistance benefits under title XIX of the social security act, commonly known as medicaid, is not passed by the legislature during the 2020 regular session of the legislature and enacted into law, then, of the moneys appropriated by this section from the state general fund in the other medical assistance account, the sum of \$11,000,000 is hereby lapsed: *And provided, however*, That, if such \$11,000,000 is lapsed, then the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$11,000,000 from the state general fund to the coronavirus prevention fund of the state finance council

Wichita center for graduate medical education (264-00-1000-3027).....\$2,950,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the Wichita center for graduate medical education account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Graduated medical education (264-00-1000-3028).....\$1,300,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the graduated medical education account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures from the cafeteria benefits fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for salaries and wages and other operating expenditures shall not exceed \$2,570.698.

Provided, That expenditures from the state workers compensation self-insurance fund

for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for salaries and wages and other operating expenditures shall not exceed \$4,745,908.

Dependent care assistance program fund (264-00-7740-7799)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the dependent care assistance program fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for salaries and wages and other operating expenditures shall not exceed \$629,413.
Non-state employer group benefit fund (264-00-7707-7710)\$146,244
Division of health care finance special revenue fund (264-00-2360-2350)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the division of health care finance special revenue fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,000.
Health committee insurance fund (264-00-2569-2500)
Health care database fee fund (264-00-2578-2570)
Association assistance plan fund (264-00-2391-2391)
Medical programs fee fund (264-00-2395-0110)\$100,362,668
Medical assistance fee fund (264-00-2185-2185)No limit
Health benefits administration clearing fund – remit admin service org (264-00-7746-7746)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures from the health benefits administration clearing fund – remit admin service org for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for salaries and wages and other operating expenditures shall not exceed \$11,005,000.
Health insurance premium reserve fund (264-00-7350-7350)

Other state fees fund (264-00-2440-0100)	No limit
Health care access improvement fund (264-00-2443-2215)	No limit
Children's health insurance program federal fund (264-00-3424-0540)	No limit
State planning – health care – uninsured fund (264-00-3483-3483)	No limit
HIV care formula grant federal fund (264-00-3328-3311)	No limit
Medical assistance program federal fund (264-00-3414-0440)	No limit
Quality based community assessment fund (264-00-2760-2760)	No limit
KEES interagency transfer fund (264-00-17-6001-6001)	No limit
Energy assistance block grant (264-00-3305-3305)	No limit
Temporary assistance for needy families (264-00-3323-3530)	No limit
Title IV-E – adoption assistance (264-00-3357-3357)	No limit

(c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, any moneys donated or granted to the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment and any federal funds received as match to such donations or grants by the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, shall only be expended by the division of health care finance of the department of health and environment to assist the clearinghouse in reducing any backlogs or waiting lists, unless otherwise specified by the donor or grantor: *Provided*, That any donated or granted moneys, and the matching moneys received therefor from the federal centers for medicare and medicaid services, shall not be used to supplant or replace funds already budgeted for the clearinghouse or to restore any other reductions in funding to the clearinghouse or the agency, unless otherwise specified by the donor

or grantor.

- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of health care finance from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to implement and require any managed care organization providing state medicaid services under the Kansas medical assistance program to implement a policy to provide at least a 60-day admission for individuals requiring inpatient treatment in a psychiatric residential treatment facility, as determined by a managed care organization providing state medicaid services under the Kansas medical assistance program, without imposing any prior authorization requirements to receive such admission or treatment.
- (e) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of health care finance from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to report to the Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight the details of a contract or contract amendment with Maximus or any other eligibility processing contractor during fiscal year 2021.
- (f) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of health care finance from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to provide a quarterly report to the Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight at each committee meeting during fiscal year 2021 on the progress by the agency on the eligibility backlog processing.
- (g) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of health care finance from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to set the monthly protected income level for purposes of determining the person's client obligation at an amount of \$1,177 per month in fiscal year 2021 for any person in Kansas receiving home and community-based services administered under section 1915(c) of the federal social security act and any person in Kansas receiving services from a program of all-inclusive care for the elderly administered by the Kansas department for aging and disability services.
- (h) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of health care finance from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be

made by the above agency from such moneys to provide a quarterly report to the Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight at each committee meeting during fiscal year 2021, detailing the following: (1) The total number of members waiting for a psychiatric residential treatment facility (PRTF) placement; (2) the average, minimum, and maximum number of days MCO members have been waiting for the PRTF placement; (3) the average, minimum, and maximum information regarding the length of stay for MCO members in PRTF placements; and (4) the number and reasons for denials of PRTF placement in fiscal year 2021: *Provided*, That such quarterly report shall be provided to the house of representatives committee on appropriations and the senate committee on ways and means.

- (i) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of health care finance from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to implement analytical and publicly available reporting that is compliant with the privacy rule of the administrative simplification subtitle of the health insurance portability and accountability act of 1996 (Pub. L. No. 104-191), and any federal regulations adopted thereunder, to measure outcomes and effectiveness of the health homes program known as onecare Kansas and to assist providers with the provisions of the health homes program.
- (j) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of health care finance from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to facilitate a detailed review of the costs and reimbursement rates for behavioral health services in the state of Kansas, including mental health and substance use disorder treatment, during fiscal year 2021: *Provided*, That the above agency shall submit a report of such review, including review of fiscal years 2020 and 2021, to the house of representatives committee on social services budget and the social services subcommittee of the senate committee on ways and means during January 2021.
- (k) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of health care finance from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to submit to the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services a waiver request to allow for medicaid reimbursement for inpatient psychiatric acute care.
- (l) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-6208, and amendments thereto, or any other statute to the contrary, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of health care finance from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year

2021 as authorized by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by such agency from such moneys during fiscal year 2021 to submit to the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services an approval request to increase the hospital provider assessment rate to 3%, to include hospital outpatient operating revenue in the hospital provider assessment and to base such assessment on each hospital's fiscal year 2016; Provided. That the above agency may modify or continue such a request made pursuant to section 80(1) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas to satisfy the requirement to make such request under this subsection: Provided further. That the department of health and environment shall cause notice of such approval by the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services to be published in the Kansas register: And provided further. That the changes to the hospital provider assessment described in this subsection shall take effect on and after January 1 or July 1 immediately following such publication: And provided further, That, after such date, no additional moneys appropriated from the state general fund shall be expended to support rate enhancements under the hospital provider assessment: Provided, however, That the provisions of this subsection shall be null and void and shall have no force and effect if 2020 Senate Bill No. 225, or any other legislation that increases the hospital provider assessment rate to 3% and includes inpatient and outpatient operating revenue in the hospital provider assessment, is passed by the legislature during the 2020 regular session and enacted into law.

- (m) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment division of health care finance from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to pay hospitals and physicians at the medicaid rate established in fiscal year 2020: *Provided*, That such rate shall not be adjusted prior to January 1 or July 1 following the publication in the Kansas register of the hospital provider assessment rate adjustments described in section 80(1) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, subsection (1) or, if passed by the legislature during the 2020 regular session and enacted into law, 2020 Senate Bill No. 225 or any other legislation that increases the hospital provider assessment to 3% and includes inpatient and outpatient operating revenue in the hospital provider assessment.
- (n) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, to suspend, and not terminate medicaid coverage of inmates in the custody of the department of corrections during the period of such inmate's incarceration for the purposes of reinstating coverage for such inmate during any period of time during fiscal year 2021 that such inmate is eligible for coverage.

Sec. 71.

- (a) On the effective date of this act, of the \$1,093,131 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 132(c) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state water plan fund in the contamination remediation account (264-00-1800-1802), the sum of \$4,850 is hereby lapsed.
- (b) On the effective date of this act, of the \$307,059 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 132(c) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state water plan fund in the nonpoint source program account (264-00-1800-1804), the sum of \$3.851 is hereby lapsed.
- (c) On the effective date of this act, of the \$280,738 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 132(c) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state water plan fund in the TMDL initiatives and use account (264-00-1800-1805), the sum of \$2,709 is hereby lapsed.
- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-3005, 65-3006, 65-3007, 65-3008, 65-3022, 65-3024 or 65-3028, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the above agency shall not expend any moneys appropriated for fiscal year 2020 from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for such agency by chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature to: (1) Amend or modify any rule and regulation adopted pursuant to the Kansas air quality act or K.S.A. 65-3022, and amendments thereto, if such amendment or modification would increase any fee imposed pursuant the rules and regulations adopted on or before July 1, 2020, pursuant to such act or such section; or (2) adopt, create or impose any new fee through rules and regulations adopted pursuant to the Kansas air quality act or K.S.A. 65-3022, and amendments thereto, if such fee was not imposed pursuant to the rules and regulations adopted on or before July 1, 2020, pursuant to such act or such section: Provided, That all rules and regulations of the secretary of health and environment in effect on July 1, 2020, that impose fees pursuant to the Kansas air quality act or K.S.A. 65-3022, and amendments thereto, shall be the only fees imposed by the secretary pursuant to such act and such section: Provided further, That any fees imposed by the secretary that do not comply with this subsection shall be declared null and void: Provided, however, That the above agency shall collaborate and work with affected stakeholders to develop a fee schedule for the purpose of proposing such fee schedule in legislation during the legislative session beginning January 11, 2021.

Sec. 72.

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT – DIVISION OF ENVIRONMENT

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:  Mined-land conservation and reclamation	
fee fund (264-00-2233-2220)	
Solid waste management fund (264-00-2271-2075)No limit	
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures may be made from the solid waste management fund during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for official hospitality: <i>Provided further,</i> That such expenditures for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,500.	
Public water supply fee fund (264-00-2284-2085)No limit	
Voluntary cleanup fund (264-00-2288-2120)No limit	
Storage tank fee fund (264-00-2293-2090)No limit	
Air quality fee fund (264-00-2020-2830)	
Hazardous waste collection fund (264-00-2099-2010)	
Health and environment training fee fund –	

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the health and environment training fee fund - environment for acquisition and distribution of division of environment program literature and films and for participation in or conducting training seminars for training employees of the division of environment of the department of health and environment, for training recipients of state aid from the division of environment of the department of health and environment and for training representatives of industries affected by rules and regulations of the department of health and environment relating to the division of environment: Provided further, That the secretary of health and environment is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees in order to recover costs incurred for such acquisition and distribution of literature and films and for the operation of such seminars: And provided further, That such fees may be fixed in order to recover all or part of such costs: And provided further, That all moneys received from such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the health and environment training fee fund – environment: And provided further, That, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment for the division of environment from moneys appropriated from the health

and environment training fee fund – environment for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment from the health and environment training fee fund – environment for fiscal year 2021 for agency operations for the division of environment.

Driving under the influence fund (264-00-2101-2020)
Waste tire management fund (264-00-2635-2820)No limit
Health and environment publication fee fund – environment (264-00-2544-2195)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures from the health and environment publication fee fund – environment shall be made only for the purpose of paying the expenses of publishing documents as required by K.S.A. 75-5662, and amendments thereto.
Local air quality control authority regulation services fund (264-00-2657-2330)
Environmental response fund (264-00-2662-2400)
Sponsored project overhead fund – environment (264-00-2911-2720)
Chemical control fee fund (264-00-2212-2360)No limit
QuantiFERON TB laboratory fund (264-00-2458-2460)
Resource conservation and recovery act – federal fund (264-00-3586-3190)
Water supply – federal fund (264-00-3295-3130)No limit
Air quality section 103 – federal fund (264-00-3248-3246)
EPA – core support – federal fund (264-00-3040-3000)
Network exchange grant –

federal fund (264-00-3267-3267)
Kansas clean diesel grant – federal fund (264-00-3249-3250)
Air quality program – federal fund (264-00-3072-3090)
Sec. 106 monitoring initiative – federal fund (264-00-3619-3240)
Air quality section 105 – federal fund (264-00-3249-3249)
Leaking underground storage tank trust – federal fund (264-00-3812-3700)
Surface mining control and reclamation act – federal fund (264-00-3820-3760)
Abandoned mined-land – federal fund (264-00-3821-3770)
Department of defense and state cooperative agreement – federal fund (264-00-3067-3031)
EPA non-point source – federal fund (264-00-3889-3940)
Pollution prevention program – federal fund (264-00-3908-3990)
EPA water monitoring – federal fund (264-00-3086-4200)
Gifts, grants and donations fund – environment (264-00-7314-7095)
Special bequest fund – environment (264-00-7367-7040)

Aboveground petroleum storage tank release

trust fund (264-00-7398-7070)
Underground petroleum storage tank release trust fund (264-00-7399-7060)
Drycleaning facility release trust fund (264-00-7407-7250)
Public water supply loan fund (264-00-7539-7800)
Public water supply loan operations fund (264-00-3295-3295)
Kansas water pollution control revolving fund (264-00-7530-7400)
<i>Provided</i> , That the proceeds from revenue bonds issued by the Kansas development finance authority to provide matching grant payments under the federal clean water act of 1987 (P.L. 92-500) shall be credited to the Kansas water pollution control revolving fund: <i>Provided further</i> ; That expenditures from this fund shall be made to provide for the payment of such matching grants.
Kansas water pollution control operations fund (264-00-7960-8300)
Cost of issuance fund for Kansas water pollution control revolving fund revenue bonds (264-00-7531-7600)
Surcharge fund for Kansas water pollution control revolving fund revenue bonds (264-00-7539-7805)
Surcharge operations fund for Kansas water pollution control revolving fund revenue bonds (264-00-7531-7620)
Subsurface hydrocarbon storage fund (264-00-2228-2380)
Natural resources damages trust fund (264-00-7265-7265)

Salt solution mining well

Hazardous waste management fund (264-00-2519-2290)	No limit
Brownfields revolving loan program – federal fund (264-00-3278-3278)	No limit
Mined-land reclamation fund (264-00-2685-2560)	No limit
Operator outreach training program – federal fund (264-00-3259-3259)	No limit
Underground storage tank – federal fund (264-00-3732-3510)	No limit
EPA underground injection control – federal fund (264-00-3295-3288)	No limit
Laboratory medicaid cost recovery fund – environment (264-00-2092-2060)	No limit
EPA state response program – federal fund (264-00-3370-3915)	No limit
Environmental use control fund (264-00-2292-2310)	No limit
Environmental response remedial activity specific sites – federal fund (264-00-3040-3003)	No limit
Emergency environmental response – nonspecific sites federal fund (264-00-3067-3030)	No limit
Medicare program – environment – federal fund (264-00-3096-3050)	Io limit
EPA pollution prevention – federal fund (264-00-3619-3240)	No limit
Inspections Kansas infrastructure projects – federal fund (264-00-3910-3950)	No limit

plugging fund (264-00-2247-2390)
Water program management fund (264-00-2798-2798)
UST redevelopment fund (264-00-7397-7080)No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That, in addition to the other purposes authorized by K.S.A. 65-34,132, and amendments thereto, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-34,139(a)(3), and amendments thereto, expenditures shall be made from the above fund for fiscal year 2021 for the purposes of reimbursing eligible owners of underground storage tanks, if, pursuant to K.S.A. 65-34,139, and amendments thereto, the owner replaces all components of a single-wall storage tank system with a secondary containment system that complies with K.S.A. 65-34,138, and amendments thereto, after August 8, 2005.
Office of laboratory services operating fund (264-00-2161-2161)
Risk management fund (264-00-7402-7402)No limit
Intoxilyzer replacement – federal fund (264-00-3092-3092)
Environmental stewardship fund (264-00-17-7396-7096)
EPA multi-purpose grant – federal fund (264-00-3103-3630)
Volkswagen environmental fund (264-00-7269-7269)No limit
USDA conservation partnership – federal fund (264-00-3022-3022)
Environmental response – federal fund (264-00-3066-3010)
Other federal grants – federal fund (264-00-3095-5450)
Alcohol impaired driving countermeasures incentive grants – federal fund (264-00-3247-3247)

Air quality program – federal fund (264-00-3253-3253)
Water related grants – federal fund (264-00-3254-3260)
EPA nonpoint source implementation – federal fund (264-00-3915-3915)
Water protection state grants – federal fund (264-00-3264-3264)
Multi-media capacity building – federal fund (264-00-3277-3277)
Health watershed initiative – federal fund (264-00-3558-3558)
Small employer cafeteria plan development program (264-00-2386-2382)
Environmental response RMDL act – federal fund (264-00-3005-3010)
Ticket to work grant – federal fund (264-00-3417-4367)
Demo to maintenance-indep. employer – federal fund (264-00-3419-3419)
EPA underground injection control – federal fund (264-00-3618-3230)
104G outreach training program – federal fund (264-00-3722-3500)
Drinking water lead testing in school and child care programs – federal fund
Brownfields revolving loan program fund (264-00-7526-7103)

Certification of environmental liability fund (264-00-7527-7230)
P/C safety net clinic loan guarantee fund (264-00-7551-7595)
KWPC surcharge services fees (264-00-7961-8400)
KPWS revolving fund (264-00-7968-8500)No limit
KPWS surcharge service fees (264-00-7969-8600)No limit
Asbestos remediation fund
<i>Provided,</i> That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-5309, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, all fees or other moneys collected by the above agency during fiscal year 2021 related to asbestos remediation, as certified by the secretary of health and environment, shall be credited to the asbestos remediation fund.
(c) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state water plan fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the state water plan project or projects specified as follows:  Contamination remediation (264-00-1800-1802)\$1,088,301
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the contamination remediation account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
TMDL initiatives and use attainability analysis (264-00-1800-1805)\$280,738
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the TMDL initiatives and use attainability analysis account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Watershed restoration and protection plan (264-00-1800-1808)
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the watershed restoration and protection plan account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Nonpoint source program (264-00-1800-1804)\$303,208

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the nonpoint source program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Milford and Marion reservoirs harmful algae bloom pilot (264-00-1800-1810)......\$450,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the Milford and Marion reservoirs harmful algae bloom pilot account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Drinking water protection (264-00-1800-1806).....\$350,000

- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary of health and environment, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state water plan fund for the department of health and environment division of environment to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state water plan fund for the department of health and environment division of environment: *Provided*, That the secretary of health and environment shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research, the chairperson of the house of representatives agriculture and natural resources budget committee and the chairperson of the subcommittee on health and environment/human resources of the senate committee on ways and means.
- (e) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-3024, and amendments thereto, the director of accounts and reports shall not make the transfers of amounts of interest earnings from the state general fund to the air quality fee fund (264-00-2020-2830) of the department of health and environment, which are directed to be made on or before the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month by K.S.A. 65-3024, and amendments thereto.
- (f) On July 1, 2020, and on other occasions during fiscal year 2021 when necessary, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer amounts specified by the secretary of health and environment that constitute reimbursements, credits and other amounts received by the department of health and environment for activities related to federal programs, from specified special revenue fund or funds of the department of health and environment division of public health or of the department of health and environment division of environment, to the sponsored project overhead fund environment (264-00-2911-2720) of the department of health and environment division of environment.
- (g) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer an amount or amounts specified by the secretary of health and environment from any one or more special revenue fund or funds of the department of health and environment division of environment that have available moneys to the sponsored project overhead fund environment (264-00-2911-2720) of the department of health and environment division of environment or to the sponsored project overhead fund health (264-00-2912-2710) of the department of health and environment division of public health, as the case may be, for expenditures for administrative expenses.

- (h) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary of health and environment, with approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the department of health and environment division of public health or the department of health and environment division of environment to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the department of health and environment division of public health or the department of health and environment division of environment. The secretary of health and environment shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (i) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the amounts transferred by the director of accounts and reports from each of the special revenue funds of the department of health and environment division of environment to the sponsored project overhead fund environment (264-00-2911-2720) of the department of health and environment division of environment pursuant to this section may include amounts equal to not more than 25% of the expenditures from such special revenue fund, excepting expenditures for contractual services.
- (j) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-3005, 65-3006, 65-3007, 65-3008, 65-3022, 65-3024 or 65-3028, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the above agency shall not expend any moneys appropriated for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for such agency by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature to: (1) Amend or modify any rule and regulation adopted pursuant to the Kansas air quality act or K.S.A. 65-3022, and amendments thereto, if such amendment or modification would increase any fee imposed pursuant the rules and regulations adopted on or before July 1, 2020, pursuant to such act or such section; or (2) adopt, create or impose any new fee through rules and regulations adopted pursuant to the Kansas air quality act or K.S.A. 65-3022, and amendments thereto, if such fee was not imposed pursuant to the rules and regulations adopted on or before July 1, 2020, pursuant to such act or such section: Provided, That all rules and regulations of the secretary of health and environment in effect on July 1, 2020, that impose fees pursuant to the Kansas air quality act or K.S.A. 65-3022, and amendments thereto, shall be the only fees imposed by the secretary pursuant to such act and such section: Provided, further, That any fees imposed by the secretary that do not comply with this subsection shall be declared null and void: Provided, however, That the above agency shall collaborate and work with affected stakeholders to develop a fee schedule for the purpose of proposing such fee schedule in legislation during the legislative session beginning January 11, 2021.

Sec. 73.

### KANSAS DEPARTMENT FOR AGING AND DISABLITY SERVICES

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

KanCare caseloads (629-00-1000-0610).....\$21,692,610

(b) On the effective date of this act, of the \$309,211,233 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 85(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the KanCare non-caseloads account (039-00-1000-0612), the sum of \$10,677,095 is hereby lapsed.

Sec. 74.

# KANSAS DEPARTMENT

FOR

AGING AND DISABILITY SERVICES

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

RSI crisis center base services (039-00-1000-0110)......\$3,576,100

Comcare crisis center

base services (039-00-1000-0120).....\$1,300,000

Valeo crisis center base services (039-00-1000-0130)......\$500,000

Salina crisis center base services (039-00-1000-0140)......\$85,000

Douglas county crisis center base services.......\$750,000

Administration official hospitality (039-00-1000-0204)......\$1,748

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the administration official hospitality account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Administration – assessments (039-00-1000-0210).....\$459,471

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the administration – assessments account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Senior care act (039-00-1000-0260).....\$5,515,000

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the senior care act account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That each grant agreement with an area agency on aging for a grant from the senior care act account shall require the area agency on aging to submit to the secretary for aging and disability services a report for fiscal year 2020 by the area agency on aging, which shall include information about the kinds of services provided and the number of persons receiving each kind of service during fiscal year 2020: And provided further, That the secretary for aging and disability services shall submit to the senate

committee on ways and means and the house of representatives committee on appropriations at the beginning of the 2021 regular session of the legislature a report of the information contained in such reports from the area agencies on aging on expenditures for fiscal year 2020: *And provided further*, That all people receiving or applying for services that are funded, either partially or entirely, through expenditures from this account shall be placed in appropriate services that are determined to be the most economical services available with regard to state general fund expenditures.

Program grants – nutrition –	
state match (039-00-1000-0280)	\$4,045,725

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the program grants – nutrition – state match account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That each grant agreement with an area agency on aging for a grant from the program grants - nutrition - state match account shall require the area agency on aging to submit to the secretary for aging and disability services a report for federal fiscal year 2020 by the area agency on aging, which shall include information about the kinds of services provided and the number of persons receiving each kind of service during federal fiscal year 2020: And provided further, That the secretary for aging and disability services shall submit to the senate committee on ways and means and the house of representatives committee on appropriations at the beginning of the 2021 regular session of the legislature a report of the information contained in such reports from the area agencies on aging on expenditures for federal fiscal year 2020: And provided further. That all people receiving or applying for services that are funded, either partially or entirely, through expenditures from this account shall be placed in appropriate services that are determined to be the most economical services available with regard to state general fund expenditures.

LTC – medicaid assistance –	
NF (039-00-1000-0520)	\$8,290,926

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the LTC – medicaid assistance – NF account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

```
Nursing facilities regulation (039-00-1000-0710)......$1,175,584
```

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the nursing facilities regulation account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the nursing facilities regulation – title

XIX account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided*, That any unencumbered balance in the state operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further*, That expenditures may be made from this account for the purchase of professional liability insurance for physicians and dentists at any institution, as defined by K.S.A. 76-12a01, and amendments thereto.

Alcohol and drug abuse services grants (039-00-1000-1010).........\$2,695,622

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the alcohol and drug abuse services grants account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Mental health and intellectual disabilities aid and assistance (039-00-1000-4001)......\$13,474,925

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the mental health and intellectual disabilities aid and assistance account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Community mental health centers supplemental funding (039-00-1000-3001).....\$30,995,993

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the community mental health centers supplemental funding account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Community aid (039-00-1000-3004).....\$20,906,993

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the community aid account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

KanCare caseloads (039-00-1000-0610).....\$410,661,520

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the KanCare caseloads account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Non-KanCare caseloads (039-00-1000-0611).....\$35,500,000

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the non-KanCare caseloads account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That all people receiving or applying for services that are funded, either partially or entirely, from the non-KanCare caseloads account shall be placed in appropriate services that are determined to be the most economical services available with regard to state general fund expenditures.

KanCare non-caseloads (039-00-1000-0612).....\$315,698,398

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the KanCare non-caseloads account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures shall be made from the KanCare non-caseloads account of the above agency for the Kansas department for aging and disability services and the department of health and environment to make applications and modifications, no later than July 1, 2020, to the current traumatic brain injury home and communitybased services medicaid waiver program in accordance with the provisions of section 117 of chapter 109 of the 2018 Session Laws of Kansas and also to restore the unduplicated waiver slot count to 723 and lower such waiver's entry age to birth and add acquired brain injuries to such waiver while setting the financial eligibility requirements for children under 18 to be the same as the Kansas serious emotional disturbance waiver: And provided further, That the above agency shall make expenditures from the KanCare non-caseloads account during fiscal year 2021 in an amount not less than \$2,557,443 to increase provider reimbursement rates for the specialized medical care services code (T1000) under the home and community-based services technology assisted waiver to \$37 per hour for in-home registered nurse and licensed practical nurse nursing services under such waiver.

Kansas neurological institute – operating expenditures (363-00-1000-0303)......\$11,297,103

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Kansas neurological institute – operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the Kansas neurological institute – operating expenditures account for official hospitality by the superintendent shall not exceed \$150: Provided further, That expenditures shall be made from this account to assist residents of the institution to take personally used items that are constructed for use by such residents and which are hereby authorized to be transferred to such residents from the institution to communities when such residents leave the institution to reside in the communities.

Larned state hospital – operating expenditures (410-00-1000-0103)......\$41,487,497

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Larned state hospital – operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for

fiscal year 2021: *Provided, however,* That expenditures from the Larned state hospital – operating expenditures account for official hospitality by the superintendent shall not exceed \$150: *Provided further,* That expenditures may be made from this account for educational services contracts, which are hereby authorized to be negotiated and entered into by Larned state hospital with unified school districts or other public educational services providers: *And provided further,* That such educational services contracts shall not be subject to the competitive bidding requirements of K.S.A. 75-3739, and amendments thereto.

Larned state hospital – sex	xual predator treatment	
program (410-00-1000-0200)	)	\$22,858,937

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the Larned state hospital – sexual predator treatment program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Osawatomie state hospital – operating expenditures (494-00-1000-0100)......\$29,208,011

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Osawatomie state hospital – operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the Osawatomie state hospital – operating expenditures account for official hospitality by the superintendent shall not exceed \$150.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the Osawatomie state hospital – certified care expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Osawatomie state hospital – SPTP MiCo.....\$1,195,924

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Parsons state hospital and training center – operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the Parsons state hospital and training center – operating expenditures account for official hospitality by the superintendent shall not exceed \$150: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from this account for educational services contracts, which

are hereby authorized to be negotiated and entered into by Parsons state hospital and training center with unified school districts or other public educational services providers: *And provided further*, That such educational services contracts shall not be subject to the competitive bidding requirements of K.S.A. 75-3739, and amendments thereto: *And provided further*, That expenditures shall be made from this account to assist residents of the institution to take personally used items that are constructed for use by such residents and which are hereby authorized to be transferred to such residents from the institution to communities when such residents leave the institution to reside in the communities.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the Parsons state hospital and training center – sexual predator treatment program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Larned state hospital – SPTP new crimes reimbursement (410-00-1000-0110)......\$250,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the Larned state hospital – SPTP new crimes reimbursement account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That all receipts resulting from payments under title XIX of the federal social security act to any of the institutions under mental health and intellectual disabilities may be credited to the title XIX fund: Provided further, That moneys in the title XIX fund may be used for expenditures for contractual services to provide for collecting additional payments under title XVIII and title XIX of the federal social security act and for expenditures for premiums and surcharges required to be paid for physicians' malpractice insurance.

Larned state hospital title XIX

reimbursements fund (410-00-2074-2200)
Osawatomie state hospital title XIX reimbursements fund (494-00-2080-4300)
Osawatomie state hospital certified care title XIX reimbursements fund (494-00-2080-4301)
Parsons state hospital title XIX reimbursements fund (507-00-2083-2300)
Kansas neurological institute fee fund (363-00-2059-2000)\$1,324,436
Kansas neurological institute –
foster grandparents program – federal fund (363-00-3115-3200)
Kansas neurological institute – FGP gifts, grants, donations fund (363-00-7125-7400)
Kansas neurological institute – patient benefit fund (363-00-7910-7100)
Kansas neurological institute – work therapy patient benefit fund (363-00-7940-7200)
Larned state hospital fee fund (410-00-2073-2100)\$4,746,563
Larned state hospital – work therapy patient benefit fund (410-00-7938-7200)
Larned state hospital – canteen fund (410-00-7806-7000)
Larned state hospital – patient benefit fund (410-00-7912-7100)
Osawatomie state hospital – canteen fund (494-00-7807-5600)

Osawatomie state hospital – patient benefit fund (494-00-7914-5700)No li	imit
Osawatomie state hospital – work therapy patient benefit fund (494-00-7939-5800)	imit
Osawatomie state hospital – motor pool revolving fund (494-00-6164-5200)	imit
Osawatomie state hospital – cottage revenue and expenditures fund (494-00-2159-2159)	imit
Osawatomie state hospital – training fee revolving fund (494-00-2602-2000)	imit

Provided, That all moneys received as fees for training activities for Osawatomie state hospital shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the Osawatomie state hospital – training fee revolving fund: Provided further, That the superintendent of Osawatomie state hospital is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for training activities at Osawatomie state hospital: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the expenses of such training activities for Osawatomie state hospital.

Osawatomie state hospital	
fee fund (494-00-2079-4200)	)\$1,324,899

Provided, That all moneys received as fees for the use of video teleconferencing equipment at Osawatomie state hospital shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the video teleconferencing fee account of the Osawatomie state hospital fee fund: Provided further, That all moneys credited to the video teleconferencing fee account shall be used solely for the servicing, technical and program support, maintenance and replacement of associated equipment at Osawatomie state hospital: And provided further, That any expenditures from the video teleconferencing fee account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on the Osawatomie state hospital fee fund.

care fund (494-00-2079-4201)	\$2,731,096
Parsons state hospital and training center –	
canteen fund (507-00-7808-5500)	No limit

Osawatomie state hospital certified

Parsons state hospital and training center – patient benefit fund (507-00-7916-5600)
Parsons state hospital and training center – work therapy patient benefit fund (507-00-7941-5700)
Parsons state hospital and training center fee fund (507-00-2082-2200)\$1,150,000
Provided, That all moneys received as fees for the use of video teleconferencing equipment at Parsons state hospital and training center shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the video teleconferencing fee account of the Parsons state hospital and training center fee fund: Provided further, That all moneys credited to the video teleconferencing fee account shall be used solely for the servicing, maintenance and replacement of video teleconferencing equipment at Parsons state hospital and training center: And provided further, That any expenditures from the video teleconferencing fee account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on the Parsons state hospital and training center fee fund.
Special program for aging IIIB – federal fund (039-00-3287-3281)
Special program for aging IIIC – federal fund (039-00-3425-3423)
Special program for aging IIID – federal fund (039-00-3286-3285)
National family caregiver support program IIIE – federal fund (039-00-3289-3201)
Special program for aging IV & II – federal fund (039-00-3288-3297)
Special program for aging VII-2 – federal fund (039-00-3358-3072)
Special program for aging VII-3 – federal fund (039-00-3402-3000)
Survey & certification –

federal fund (039	39-00-3064-3064	)Nc	limit
-------------------	-----------------	-----	-------

Provided, That transfers of moneys from the survey & certification – federal fund to the state fire marshal may be made during fiscal year 2021 pursuant to a contract, which is hereby authorized to be entered into by the secretary for aging and disability services with the state fire marshal to provide fire and safety inspections for adult care homes and hospitals.

Center for medicare/medicaid service –	
federal fund (039-00-3408-3300)	No limit
Money follows the person grant –	
federal fund (039-00-3054-4000)	No limit
Medicaid assistance program –	
federal fund (039-00-1000-0500)	No limit
Social service block	
grant fund (039-00-3307-3371)	\$4,590,000

Provided, That each grant agreement with an area agency on aging for a grant from the social service block grant fund shall require the area agency on aging to submit to the secretary for aging and disability services a report for fiscal year 2020 by the area agency on aging, which shall include information about the kinds of services provided and the number of persons receiving each kind of service during fiscal year 2020: Provided further, That the secretary for aging and disability services shall submit to the senate committee on ways and means and the house of representatives committee on appropriations at the beginning of the 2021 regular session of the legislature a report of the information contained in such reports from the area agencies on aging on expenditures for fiscal year 2020: And provided further, That all people receiving or applying for services that are funded, either partially or entirely, through expenditures from this fund shall be placed in appropriate services that are determined to be the most economical services available.

Nutrition service incentive program fund – federal (039-00-3552-3552)	No limit
National bioterrorism hospital preparedness program – federal fund (039-00-3398-4386)	No limit
Senior citizen nutrition check-off fund (039-00-2660-2610)	No limit
Quality care services fund (039-00-2999-2902)	No limit

Provided, That the secretary for aging and disability services, acting as the agent of the secretary of health and environment, is hereby authorized to collect the quality care assessment under K.S.A. 75-7435, and amendments thereto, and notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-7435, and amendments thereto, all moneys received for such quality care assessments shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the quality care services fund: Provided further, That all moneys in the quality care services fund shall be used to finance initiatives to maintain or improve the quantity and quality of skilled nursing care in skilled nursing care facilities in Kansas in accordance with K.S.A. 75-7435, and amendments thereto.

Provided, That the secretary for aging and disability services is hereby authorized to collect: (1) Fees from the sale of surplus property; (2) fees charged for searching, copying and transmitting copies of public records; (3) fees paid by employees for personal long distance calls, postage, faxed messages, copies and other authorized uses of state property; and (4) other miscellaneous fees: Provided further, That such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the general fees fund: And provided further, That expenditures shall be made from this fund to meet the obligations of the Kansas department for aging and disability services or to benefit and meet the mission of the Kansas department for aging and disability services.

*Provided,* That the secretary for aging and disability services is hereby authorized to receive gifts and donations of money for services to senior citizens or purposes related thereto: *Provided further,* That such gifts and donations of money shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the gifts and donations fund.

Provided, That all moneys received or collected by the secretary for aging and disability services due to medicaid overpayments shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the medical resources and collection fund: Provided further, That expenditures from such fund shall be made for medicaid program-related expenses and used to reduce state general fund outlays for the medicaid program: And provided further, That all moneys received or collected by the secretary for aging and disability services due to civil monetary penalty assessments against adult care homes shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and

amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the medical resources and collection fund: *And provided further*; That expenditures from such fund shall be made to protect the health or property of adult care home residents as required by federal law.

SHICK fund – grants – federal (039-00-3913-3800)
Long-term care loan and grant fund (039-00-5110-5100)
Health facilities review fund (039-00-2308-2400)
Medicare enrollment assistance program fund – federal (039-00-3468-3450)
Medical assistance program – federal fund (039-00-3414-0442)
DADS social welfare fund (039-00-2141-2195)No limit
Other state fees fund – community alcohol treatment (039-00-2661-0000)
Substance abuse/mental health services – partnership for success – federal fund (039-00-3284-1327)
Substance abuse/mental health supported employment – federal fund (039-00-3284-1329)
Community mental health block grant federal fund (039-00-3310-0460)
Prevention/treatment substance abuse federal fund (039-00-3301-0310)
Problem gambling and addictions grant fund (039-00-2371-2371)\$7,108,000

Alternatives to psych. resid. treatment facilities for children

federal fund (039-00-3384-4495)
Substance abuse performance outcome grant federal fund (039-00-3881-3881)
ADAS data collection grant federal fund (039-00-3887-3887)
Money follows the person rebalancing demonstration federal fund (039-00-3054-4041)
Temporary assistance for needy families – fed funds (039-00-3323-3323)
Coop agreement to benefit homeless – federal fund (039-00-3284-1321)No limit
Assistance in transition from homelessness federal fund (039-00-3347-4316)
Developmental disabilities basic support federal fund (039-00-3380-3380)
Olmstead fellowship program (039-00-3885-3885)
Medicare fund – SHICK (039-00-3408-3400)No limit
Medicare fund – oasis (039-00-3408-3350)
<i>Provided,</i> That all nonfederal reimbursements received by the Kansas department for aging and disability services shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and credited to the nonfederal reimbursements fund.
Mental health grants – state

Provided, That on July 1, 2020, October 1, 2020, January 1, 2021, and April 1, 2021, or as soon after each date as moneys are available, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 68-416, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$2,437,500 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the mental health grants – state highway fund of the Kansas

highway fund (039-00-2160-2160).....\$9,750,000

department for aging and disability services.

Indirect cost fund (039-00-2193-2193)
Kansas national background check program – federal fund (039-00-3032-3132)
Systems of care grant – federal fund (039-00-3595-3595)
Community mental health center improvement fund (039-00-2336-2336)
Community crisis stabilization centers fund (039-00-2337-2337)
Clubhouse model program fund (039-00-2338-2338)
Opioid abuse treatment & prevention federal fund (039-00-3023-3024)
Health occupations credentialing fee fund (039-00-2315-2315)
TBI partnership program fund (039-00-3376-3376)No limit
Non-government grant fund (039-00-2740-2740)No limit
Safe and supportive schools fund (039-00-2788-2788)
Nutrition services incentives federal fund (039-00-3291-3305)
Assist transition from homelessness federal fund (039-00-3347-4316)
Mental health research grant federal fund (039-00-3377-4321)
Senior farmer market nutrition program federal fund (039-00-3406-3205)

Children's health insurance federal fund (039-00-3424-3420)
Home delivery nutrition services federal fund (039-00-3469-3309)
Congregate nutrition federal fund (039-00-3470-3311)
Communities putting prevention to work federal fund (039-00-3488-3488)
Mental health client level reporting federal fund (039-00-3882-3882)
Transformation transfer initiatives federal fund (039-00-3888-3888)
KDFA refunding revenue bond 2013B fund (039-00-7111)
Trust fund (039-00-7299)
Larned state security hospital KDFA 02N-1 fund (039-00-8703)
SRS state of Kansas KDFA 04A-1 project fund (039-00-8704)
State of Kansas projects KDFA 2010E-F fund (039-00-8705)
Parking deduction clearing fund (039-00-9233-9200)No limit
Medical assistance recovery clearing fund (039-00-9300)
Credit card clearing fund (039-00-9400)
(c) On July 1, 2020, and on other occasions during fiscal year 2021, when necessary as determined by the secretary for aging and disability services, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer amounts specified by the secretary for aging and

disability services, which amounts constitute reimbursements, credits and other amounts received by the Kansas department for aging and disability services for activities related to federal programs from specified special revenue funds of the Kansas department for aging and disability services to the indirect cost fund of the Kansas department for aging and disability services.

- (d) On July 1, 2020, the superintendent of Osawatomie state hospital, upon the approval of the director of accounts and reports, shall transfer an amount specified by the superintendent from the Osawatomie state hospital canteen fund (494-00-7807-5600) to the Osawatomie state hospital patient benefit fund (494-00-7914-5700).
- (e) On July 1, 2020, the superintendent of Parsons state hospital, upon approval from the director of accounts and reports, shall transfer an amount specified by the superintendent from the Parsons state hospital and training center canteen fund (507-00-7808-5500) to the Parsons state hospital and training center patient benefit fund (507-00-7916-5600).
- (f) On July 1, 2020, the superintendent of Larned state hospital, upon approval of the director of accounts and reports, shall transfer an amount specified by the superintendent from the Larned state hospital canteen fund (410-00-7806-7000) to the Larned state hospital patient benefit fund (410-00-7912-7100).
- (g) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, no moneys paid by the Kansas department for aging and disability services from the mental health and intellectual disabilities aid and assistance account (039-00-1000-4001) of the state general fund shall be expended by the entity receiving such moneys to pay membership dues and fees to any entity that does not provide the Kansas department for aging and disability services, the legislative division of post audit, or another state agency, access to its financial records upon request for such access.
- (h) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary for aging and disability services, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the Kansas department for aging and disability services or any institution or facility under the general supervision and management of the secretary for aging and disability services to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the Kansas department for aging and disability services or any institution or facility under the general supervision and management of the secretary for aging and disability services. The secretary for aging and disability services shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (i) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary for aging and disability services, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state institutions building fund for the Kansas department for aging and disability services or any institution or facility under the general supervision and management of the secretary for aging and disability services to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state institutions building fund for the Kansas department for aging and disability services or any institution or facility under the general supervision and management of the secretary for aging and disability services. The secretary for aging and disability services shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.

- In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the Kansas department for children and families from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 for the Kansas department for children and families and in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of health and environment – division of public health from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 for the department of health and environment - division of public health, as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the secretary for children and families and the secretary of health and environment for fiscal year 2021 to enter into a contract with the secretary for aging and disability services, which is hereby authorized and directed to be entered into by such secretaries, to provide for the secretary for aging and disability services to perform the powers, duties, functions and responsibilities prescribed by and to conduct investigations pursuant to K.S.A. 39-1404, and amendments thereto, in conjunction with the performance of such powers, duties, functions, responsibilities and investigations by the secretary for children and families and the secretary of health and environment under such statute, with respect to reports of abuse, neglect or exploitation of residents or reports of residents in need of protective services on behalf of the secretary for children and families or the secretary of health and environment, as the case may be, in accordance with and pursuant to K.S.A. 39-1404, and amendments thereto, during fiscal year 2021: Provided, That, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the Kansas department for aging and disability services from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 for the Kansas department for aging and disability services, as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the secretary for aging and disability services for fiscal year 2021 to provide for the performance of such powers, duties, functions and responsibilities and to conduct such investigations: Provided further. That, the words and phrases used in this subsection shall have the meanings respectively ascribed thereto by K.S.A. 39-1401, and amendments thereto.
- (k) On October 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$550,000 from the problem gambling and addictions grant fund (039-00-2371-2371) of the Kansas department for aging and disability services to the domestic violence grant fund (252-00-2014-2014) of the governor's department.
- (l) On October 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$150,000 from the problem gambling and addictions grant fund (039-00-2371-2371) of the Kansas department for aging and disability services to the child advocacy center grants fund (252-00-2024-2024) of the governor's department.
- (m) On October 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 79-4805, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$500,000 from the problem gambling and addictions grant fund (039-00-2371-2371) of the Kansas department for aging and disability services to the community corrections special revenue fund (521-00-2447-2447) of the department of corrections.
  - (n) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of

any other statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by the above agency by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 to prepare and submit reports concerning medicaid home and community based services waivers on or before July 1, 2020, October 1, 2020, January 1, 2021, and April 1, 2021, to the director of legislative research and the director of the budget: *Provided*, That the above agency shall submit a separate report for each home and community based services waiver: *Provided further*, That such reports shall include the actual and projected expenditures for such waiver, actual and projected numbers of individuals provided services under such waiver and average cost per individual served: *And provided further*, That such reports shall include summarized encounter data by waiver population or comparable data to allow for review of such data at the program level.

(o) There is appropriated for the above agency from the children's initiatives fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Children's mental health waiver (039-00-2000-2403)......\$3,800,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the children's mental health waiver account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

- (p) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary for aging and disability services, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the title XIX fund (039-00-2595-4130) of the Kansas department for aging and disability services to any institution or facility under the general supervision and management of the secretary for aging and disability services. The secretary for aging and disability services shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (q) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-5958, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, and subject to appropriations, the secretary for aging and disability services may provide rate increases for nursing facilities for fiscal year 2021.
- (r) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by such agency from such moneys to operate, or contract for the operation of, eight acute inpatient psychiatric care beds for children in the city of Hays, Kansas, or the surrounding area: *Provided, however*, That expenditures for such purposes during fiscal year 2021 shall not exceed \$4,000,000.

Sec. 75.

#### FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

- (c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 39-709, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2020 by section 87 of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to apply for a waiver from the United States department of agriculture for the time-limited assistance provisions for ablebodied adults between 18 and 49 years of age without dependents in the household under the food assistance program if the secretary can establish that there are insufficient jobs for the employment for such individuals using criteria that is not less restrictive than the criteria established under 7 C.F.R. § 273.24.
- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 39-709, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2020 by section 87 of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to allow any single parent of a child who is between three months and one year of age to fulfill work participation requirements under the cash assistance program by engaging in in-home parenting skills training.

Sec. 76.

## KANSAS DEPARTMENT FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

 *Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the state operations (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Youth services aid and assistance (629-00-1000-7020).....\$218,083,623

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the youth services aid and assistance account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Vocational rehabilitation aid and assistance (629-00-1000-5010)......\$4,702,746

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the vocational rehabilitation aid and assistance account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures may be made from this account for the acquisition of durable medical equipment and assistive technology devices: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from this account by the secretary for children and families for the purchase of worker's compensation insurance for consumers of vocational rehabilitation services and assessments at work sites and job tryout sites throughout the state.

Cash assistance (629-00-1000-2010)......\$10,476,147

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the cash assistance account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Temporary assistance to needy families

federal fund (629-00-3323-0530)
Title IV-B promoting safe/stable families federal fund (629-00-3302)
Title IV-E foster care federal fund (629-00-3337-0419)
Medical assistance program federal fund (629-00-3414)
Rehabilitation services – vocational rehabilitation federal fund (629-00-3315)
SRS enterprise fund (629-00-5105)
Child support enforcement federal fund (629-00-3316)
Low-income home energy assistance federal fund (629-00-3305-0350)
Children's health insurance program federal fund (629-00-3424-0541)
SNAP employment and training exchange federal fund (629-00-3452-3452)
Commodity supp food program federal fund (629-00-3308-3215)
Social security – disability insurance federal fund (629-00-3309-0390)
Supplemental nutrition assistance program federal fund (629-00-3311)
Emergency food assistance program federal fund (629-00-3313-2310)
Child care and development mandatory and matching

federal fund (629-00-3318-0523)
Chafee education and training vouchers program federal fund (629-00-3338-0425)
Adoption incentive payments federal fund (629-00-3343-0426)
Adoption assistance federal fund (629-00-3357-0418)
Chafee foster care independence program federal fund (629-00-3365-0417)
Refugee and entrant assistance federal fund (629-00-3378)
Headstart federal fund (629-00-3379-6323)No limit
Developmental disabilities basic support federal fund (629-00-3380-4360)
Children's justice grants to states federal fund (629-00-3381-7320)
Child abuse and neglect state grants federal fund (629-00-3382-7210)
Independent living state grants federal fund (629-00-3387)
Independent living services for older blind federal fund (629-00-3388-5313)
Supported employment for individuals with severe disabilities federal fund (629-00-3389)
Child care discretionary federal fund (629-00-3028-0522)

SNAP employment and training

pilot federal fund (629-00-3321-3321)
SNAP technology project for success federal fund (629-00-3327-3327)
Project maintenance reserve fund (629-00-2214-0150)
Receipt suspense clearing fund (629-00-9212-0910)
Client assistance payment clearing fund (629-00-9214-0930)
Child support collections clearing fund (629-00-9218-0970)
EBT settlement fund (629-00-9219-0980)No limit
CAP settlement fund (629-00-9219-0990)No limit
Credit card clearing fund (629-00-9405-9400)No limit
TEFAP trade mitigation program (629-00-3409-2315)
ESSA preschool develop grant federal fund (629-00-3608-0525)

- (c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary for children and families, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from the state general fund for the Kansas department for children and families to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the Kansas department for children and families. The secretary for children and families shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary for children and families, with the approval of the director of the budget and subject to the provisions of federal grant agreements, may transfer moneys received under a federal grant that are credited to a federal fund of the Kansas department for children and families to another federal fund of the Kansas department for children and families. The secretary for

children and families shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.

(e) There is appropriated for the above agency from the children's initiatives fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Child care (629-00-2000-2406)......\$5,033,679

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the child care account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Family preservation (629-00-2000-2413)......\$3,241,062

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the family preservation account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

- (f) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the Kansas department for children and families from moneys appropriated from the temporary assistance to needy families federal fund (629-00-3323-0530) for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the Kansas department for children and families from such moneys appropriated for fiscal year 2021 in an amount not to exceed \$3,000,000 for the purpose of funding early childhood home visitation programs provided by any organization that promotes child wellbeing and prevents the abuse and neglect of children through intensive home visits: *Provided, however*; That any such program shall: (1) Be offered to families whose income is less than 200% of the federal poverty level; (2) comply with requirements of the temporary assistance to needy families block grant; and (3) meet any other programmatic requirements of the federal guidelines for the temporary assistance to needy families program.
- (g) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the Kansas department for children and families from moneys appropriated from the temporary assistance for needy families federal fund (629-00-3323-0530) for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the Kansas department for children and families from such moneys appropriated for fiscal year 2021 in an amount not to exceed \$2,600,000 for the purpose of funding the alliance of boys and girls clubs smartmoves and kidzlit programs and out of school programming: *Provided, however*; That no moneys shall be distributed by the Kansas department for children and families to the alliance of boys and girls clubs if the alliance of boys and girls clubs does not provide the Kansas department for children and families, the legislative division of post audit or another state agency access to its financial records upon request for such access.
- (h) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the Kansas department for children and families from moneys appropriated from the temporary assistance to needy families federal fund (629-00-3323-0530) for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the Kansas department for children and families from such moneys appropriated for fiscal year 2021 for the purpose of packaging, storing and

distributing excess foods from school lunches for the purposes of sending such excess food home with students in school districts that have completed an application process as established by the secretary of the above agency: *Provided, however,* That any such program shall: (1) Be offered to families whose income is less than 200% of the federal poverty level; (2) comply with requirements of the temporary assistance to needy families block grant; (3) meet any other programmatic requirements of the federal guidelines for the temporary assistance to needy families program; and (4) certify to the secretary for children and families that food packaged and distributed through such program meets the health and safety requirements set forth by the national school lunch program.

- (i) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 39-709, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to apply for a waiver from the United States department of agriculture for the time-limited assistance provisions for able-bodied adults between 18 and 49 years of age without dependents in the household under the food assistance program if the secretary can establish that there are insufficient jobs for the employment for such individuals using criteria that is not less restrictive than the criteria established under 7 C.F.R. § 273.24.
- (j) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 39-709, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to allow any single parent of a child who is between three months and one year of age to fulfill work participation requirements under the cash assistance program by engaging in inhome parenting skills training.

Sec. 77.

## KANSAS GUARDIANSHIP PROGRAM

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Kansas guardianship

program (261-00-1000-0300)......\$1,314,717

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the Kansas guardianship program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Sec. 78.

#### DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the

fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

Education commission of the states.....\$67,700

- (b) On the effective date of this act, of the \$1,597,147 appropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 1(a) of chapter 19 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the KPERS employer contributions non-USDs account (652-00-1000-0100), the sum of \$950,493 is hereby lapsed.
- (c) On the effective date of this act, of the \$10,261,604 appropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 1(a) of chapter 19 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the KPERS employer contributions USDs account (652-00-1000-0110), the sum of \$1,762,628 is hereby lapsed.
- (d) On the effective date of this act, any unencumbered balance in the MHIT pilot program online database account (652-00-1000-0160) of the state general fund is hereby lapsed.
- (e) On the effective date of this act, of the \$2,225,115,906 appropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 90(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the state foundation account (652-00-1000-820), the sum of \$35,626,052 is hereby lapsed.
- (f) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2020, as authorized by section 90 of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2020, for the state board of education to require that any school district that receives a waiver from the requirements of K.S.A. 72-3115, and amendments thereto, relating to the duration of the school term for school year 2019-2020 pursuant to K.S.A. 72-3117, and amendments thereto, develop and implement a continuous learning plan so the school district continues to provide instruction to each student enrolled in such school district during the period of time described in the waiver: Provided further, That on or before April 15, 2020, each such school district shall submit its continuous learning plan to the state board of education: And provided further, That on or before January 15, 2021, the state board of education shall prepare and submit a report on the implementation of such continuous learning plans across the state to the standing committees on education in the house of representatives and the senate.

Sec. 79.

#### DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (including official hospitality) (652-00-1000-0053).....\$14,087,648

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby

reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Special education	
services aid (652-00-1000-0700)	\$505,380,818

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the special education services aid account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures shall not be made from the special education services aid account for the provision of instruction for any homebound or hospitalized child, unless the categorization of such child as exceptional is conjoined with the categorization of the child within one or more of the other categories of exceptionality: And provided further, That expenditures shall be made from this account for grants to school districts in amounts determined pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 72-3425, and amendments thereto: And provided further, That expenditures shall be made from the amount remaining in this account, after deduction of the expenditures specified in the foregoing provisos, for payments to school districts in amounts determined pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 72-3422, and amendments thereto.

KPERS layering payment (651-00-1000-0120)	0
KPERS layering payment #2 (651-00-1000-0121)\$19,400,000	0
Mentor teacher (652-00-1000-0440)\$1,300,000	0
Professional development (652-00-1000-0860)\$1,700,000	0
Information technology education opportunities (652-00-1000-0600)\$500,000	0
Discretionary grants (652-00-1000-0400)\$322,45	7

Provided, That the above agency shall make expenditures from the discretionary grants account during the fiscal year 2021, in the amount not less than \$125,000 for after school programs for middle school students in the sixth, seventh and eighth grades: Provided further, That the after school programs may also include fifth and ninth grade students, if they attend a junior high: And provided further, That such discretionary grants shall be awarded to after school programs that operate for a minimum of two hours a day, every day that school is in session, and a minimum of six hours a day for a minimum of five weeks during the summer: And provided further, That the discretionary grants awarded to after school programs shall require a \$1 for \$1 local match: And provided further, That the aggregate amount of discretionary grants awarded to any one after school program shall not exceed \$25,000.

School food assistance (652-00-1000-0320)\$2,510,486
School safety hotline (652-00-1000-0230)\$10,000
Career and technical education transportation (652-00-1000-0190)\$1,042,882
Education super highway (652-00-1000-0180)\$120,000
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the education super highway account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Juvenile transitional crisis center

Provided, That expenditures from the juvenile transitional crisis center pilot project account shall be used by the above agency during fiscal year 2021 to develop a regional crisis center pilot project at the Beloit special education cooperative, founded on research and evidence-based practices designed to meet the unique social and emotional needs of students identified as at-risk or with disabilities: Provided further, That such project shall provide individualized programming to attain such student's high school diploma and job skills while working through the social skills program: And provided further, That the commissioner of education shall provide an update on the implementation of the pilot project developed by this proviso to the legislature on or before the first day of the 2021 regular legislative session.

ACT and workkeys assessments

pilot project (652-00-1000-0210).....\$300,000

program (652-00-1000-0140)	\$2,800,000
Mental health intervention team pilot (651-00-1000-0150)	\$12,673,886
Educable deaf-blind and severely handicapped children's programs aid (652-00-1000-0630)	\$110,000
School district juvenile detention facilities and Flint Hills job corps center grants (652-00-1000-0290)	\$5,060,528

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the school district juvenile detention facilities and Flint Hills job corps center grants account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That expenditures

shall be made from the school district juvenile detention facilities and Flint Hills job corps center grants account for grants to school districts in amounts determined pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 72-1173, and amendments thereto.

Governor's teaching excellence scholarships and awards (652-00-1000-0770)......\$360,693

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the governor's teaching excellence scholarships and awards account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That all expenditures from the governor's teaching excellence scholarships and awards account for teaching excellence scholarships shall be made in accordance with K.S.A. 72-2166, and amendments thereto: And provided further, That each such grant shall be required to be matched on a \$1 for \$1 basis from nonstate sources: And provided further, That award of each such grant shall be conditioned upon the recipient entering into an agreement requiring the grant to be repaid if the recipient fails to complete the course of training under the national board for professional teaching standards certification program: And provided further, That all moneys received by the department of education for repayment of grants for governor's teaching excellence scholarships shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the governor's teaching excellence scholarships program repayment fund (652-00-7221-7200).

Education commission of the states.....\$67,700

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the education commission of the states account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

School safety and security grants (652-00-1000-0235)......\$5,000,000

Provided, That all moneys in the school safety and security grants account expended for fiscal year 2021 shall be matched by the receiving school district on a \$1-for-\$1 basis from other moneys of the district: Provided further, That expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such account for fiscal year 2021 for disbursements of grant moneys approved by the state board of education for the acquisition and installation of security cameras and any other systems, equipment and services necessary for security monitoring of facilities operated by a school district, and for securing doors, windows and any entrances to such facilities.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law and transfers to other state agencies shall not exceed the following:

School district capital improvements fund (652-00-2880-2880)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures from the school district capital improvements fund shall be made only for the payment of general obligation bonds approved by voters under the authority of K.S.A. 72-5457, and amendments thereto.
School district capital outlay state aid fund
Conversion of materials and equipment fund (652-00-2420-2020)
State safety fund (652-00-2538-2030)No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 8-272, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, funds shall be distributed during fiscal year 2021 as soon as moneys are available.
School bus safety fund (652-00-2532-2300)
Motorcycle safety fund (652-00-2633-2050)No limit
Federal indirect cost reimbursement fund (652-00-2312-2200)
Teacher and administrator fee fund (652-00-2723-2060)
Food assistance – federal fund (652-00-3230-3020)
Food assistance – school breakfast program – federal fund (652-00-3529-3490)
Food assistance – national school lunch program – federal fund (652-00-3530-3500)
Food assistance – child and adult care food program – federal fund (652-00-3531-3510)

Community-based child abuse prevention – federal fund (652-00-3319-7400)
Family and children investment fund (652-00-7375)
Elementary and secondary school aid – federal fund (652-00-3233-3040)
Educationally deprived children – state operations – federal fund (652-00-3131-3130)
Elementary and secondary school – educationally deprived children – LEA's fund (652-00-3532-3520)
Education of handicapped children fund – federal (652-00-3234-3050)
Education of handicapped children fund – state operations – federal fund (652-00-3534-3540)
Education of handicapped children fund – preschool – federal fund (652-00-3535-3550)
Education of handicapped children fund – preschool state operations – federal (652-00-3536-3560)
Elementary and secondary school aid – federal fund – migrant education fund (652-00-3537-3570)
Elementary and secondary school aid – federal fund – migrant education – state operations (652-00-3538-3580)
Vocational education title I – federal fund (652-00-3539-3590)

Vocational education title I – federal fund – state operations (652-00-3540-3600)	No limit
Educational research grants and projects fund (652-00-3592-3070)	No limit
Inservice education workshop fee fund (652-00-2230-2010)	No limit

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the inservice education workshop fee fund for operating expenditures, including official hospitality, incurred for inservice workshops and conferences: Provided further, That the state board of education is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for inservice workshops and conferences: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of such operating expenditures incurred for inservice workshops and conferences: And provided further, That all fees received for inservice workshops and conferences shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the inservice education workshop fee fund.

Private donations, gifts, grants and bequests fund (652-00-7307-5000)	No limit
Reimbursement for services fund (652-00-3056-3200)	No limit
Communities in schools program fund (652-00-2221-2400)	No limit
Governor's teaching excellence scholarships program repayment fund (652-00-7221-7200)	No limit

Provided, That all expenditures from the governor's teaching excellence scholarships program repayment fund shall be made in accordance with K.S.A. 72-2166, and amendments thereto: Provided further, That each such grant shall be required to be matched on a \$1 for \$1 basis from nonstate sources: And provided further, That award of each such grant shall be conditioned upon the recipient entering into an agreement requiring the grant to be repaid if the recipient fails to complete the course of training under the national board for professional teaching standards certification program: And provided further, That all moneys received by the department of education for repayment of grants made under the governor's teaching excellence scholarships program shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the governor's

teaching excellence scholarships program repayment fund.

State grants for improving teacher quality – federal fund (652-00-3526-3860)No limit
State grants for improving teacher quality – federal fund – state operations (652-00-3527-3870)
21st century community learning centers – federal fund (652-00-3519-3890)
State assessments – federal fund (652-00-3520-3800)
Rural and low-income schools program – federal fund (652-00-3521-3810)No limit
TANF children's programs – federal fund (652-00-3323-0531)
ESSA – student support academic enrichment – federal fund (652-00-3113-3113)No limit
Language assistance state grants – federal fund (652-00-3522-3820)No limit
Service clearing fund (652-00-2869-2800)No limit
Local school district contribution program checkoff fund (652-00-7005-7005)
Educational technology coordinator fund (652-00-2157-2157)

*Provided,* That expenditures shall be made by the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from the educational technology coordinator fund of the department of education to provide data on the number of school districts served and cost savings for those districts in fiscal year 2021 in order to assess the cost effectiveness of the position of educational technology coordinator.

(c) There is appropriated for the above agency from the children's initiatives fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Parent education program (652-00-2000-2510).....\$8,437,635

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the parent education program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That expenditures from the parent education program account for each such grant shall be matched by the school district in an amount that is equal to not less than 50% of the grant.

Children's cabinet accountability fund (652-00-2000-2402)......\$375,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the children's cabinet accountability fund account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the CIF grants account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Quality initiative infants and toddlers (652-00-2000-2420)......\$500,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the quality initiative infants and toddlers account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Early childhood block grant autism diagnosis (652-00-2000-2422).....\$50,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the early childhood block grant autism diagnosis account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Communities aligned in early development and education (652-00-2000-2550)......\$1,000,000

Pre-K pilot (652-00-2000-2535).....\$4,200,000

(d) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 8-1,148 or 38-1808, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$50,000 from the family and children trust account of the family and children investment fund (652-00-7375-7900)

of the department of education to the communities in schools program fund (652-00-2221-2400) of the department of education.

- (e) On March 30, 2021, and June 30, 2021, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 8-267 or 8-272, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$550,000 from the state safety fund (652-00-2538-2030) to the state general fund: *Provided*, That the transfer of such amount shall be in addition to any other transfer from the state safety fund to the state general fund as prescribed by law: *Provided further*, That the amount transferred from the state safety fund to the state general fund pursuant to this subsection is to reimburse the state general fund for accounting, auditing, budgeting, legal, payroll, personnel and purchasing services and any other governmental services that are performed on behalf of the department of education by other state agencies that receive appropriations from the state general fund to provide such services.
- (f) On July 1, 2020, and quarterly thereafter, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$68,750 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the school bus safety fund (652-00-2532-2300) of the department of education.
- (g) On July 1, 2020, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer an amount certified by the commissioner of education from the motorcycle safety fund (652-00-2633-2050) of the department of education to the motorcycle safety fund (561-00-2366-2360) of the state board of regents: *Provided*, That the amount to be transferred shall be determined by the commissioner of education based on the amounts required to be paid pursuant to K.S.A. 8-272(b)(2), and amendments thereto.
- (h) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$85,000 from the USAC E-rate program federal fund (561-00-3920-3920) of the state board of regents to the education technology coordinator fund (652-00-2157-2157) of the department of education.
- (i) There is appropriated for the above agency from the Kansas endowment for youth fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Children's cabinet administration (652-00-7000-7001).....\$260,535

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the children's cabinet administration account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

- (j) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the commissioner of education, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the department of education to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the department of education. The commissioner of education shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (k) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the purposes for which expenditures may be made from the state foundation aid account (652-00-1000-0820) of the state general fund for the department of education for fiscal year 2021 by section 91(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be

made from the state foundation aid account of the state general fund for the department of education to distribute the high-density at-risk student weighting to qualifying school districts: Provided, That the high-density at-risk student weighting of a school district shall be the greater of the amounts calculated for such school district pursuant to the following two paragraphs: (1) (A) for a school district with an enrollment of at least 35% at-risk students but less than 50% at-risk students: (i) Subtract 35% from the percentage of at-risk students included in the enrollment of the school district; (ii) multiply such difference by 0.7; and (iii) multiply such product by the number of at-risk students included in the enrollment of the school district; or (B) for a school district with an enrollment of 50% or more at-risk students, multiply the number of at-risk students included in the enrollment of the school district by 0.105; or (2) (A) for any school in a school district with an enrollment of at least 35%, but less than 50% at-risk students: (i) Subtract 35% from the percentage of at-risk students included in the enrollment of such school; (ii) multiply such difference by 0.7; and (iii) multiply such product by the number of at-risk students included in the enrollment of such school; or (B) for any school in a school district with an enrollment of 50% or more at-risk students, multiply the number of at-risk students included in the enrollment of such school by 0.105; and (C) add the amounts determined pursuant to this paragraph for each such school in the school district: Provided further, That any school district that qualifies to receive the high-density at-risk student weighting shall spend any moneys attributable to such school district's high-density at-risk student weighting on the at-risk best practices developed by the state board pursuant to K.S.A. 72-5153(d), and amendments thereto: And provided further, That if a school district that qualifies for the high-density at-risk student weighting does not spend such moneys on such best practices, the state board shall notify the school district that it shall either spend such moneys on such best practices or shall show improvement within five years of notification: And provided further. That improvement shall include, but not be limited to, the following: The percentage of students at grade level on state math and English language arts assessments; the percentage of students that are college and career ready on state math and English language arts assessments; the average composite ACT score; or the four-year graduation rate: And provided further, That if a school district does not spend such moneys on such best practices and does not show improvement within five years, the school district shall not qualify to receive the high-density at-risk student weighting in the succeeding school year.

- (I) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the amount appropriated from the expanded lottery act revenues fund in the KPERS school employer contribution account (652-00-1700-1700) for the department of education by section 90(h) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas shall be for the purpose of reducing the unfunded actuarial liability of the Kansas public employees retirement system attributable to the state of Kansas and participating employers under K.S.A. 74-4931, and amendments thereto, in accordance with K.S.A. 74-8768, and amendments thereto.
- (m) On July 1, 2020, of the \$38,417,749 appropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 91(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the KPERS employer contributions non-USDs account (652-00-1000-0100), the sum of \$976,965 is hereby lapsed.
- (n) On July 1, 2020, of the \$514,524,907 appropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 91(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from

the state general fund in the KPERS – employer contributions – USDs account (652-00-1000-0110), the sum of \$5,002,745 is hereby lapsed.

- (o) On July 1, 2020, of the \$2,305,700,929 appropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 91(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the state foundation aid account (652-00-1000-0820), the sum of \$32,524,169 is hereby lapsed.
- (p) On July 1, 2020, of the \$519,300,000 appropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 91(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the supplemental general state aid account (652-00-1000-0840), the sum of \$5,900,000 is hereby lapsed.

Sec. 80.

### DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, the following:

State foundation aid (652-00-1000-0820).....\$2,440,966,522

Provided. That any unencumbered balance in the state foundation aid account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2021, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2022: Provided further, That expenditures shall be made by the above agency from the state foundation aid account to distribute the high-density at-risk student weighting to qualifying school districts: And provided further, That the high-density at-risk student weighting of a school district shall be the greater of the amounts calculated for such school district pursuant to the following two paragraphs: (1) (A) For a school district with an enrollment of at least 35% at-risk students but less than 50% at-risk students: (i) Subtract 35% from the percentage of at-risk students included in the enrollment of the school district; (ii) multiply such difference by 0.7; and (iii) multiply such product by the number of at-risk students included in the enrollment of the school district; or (B) for a school district with an enrollment of 50% or more at-risk students, multiply the number of at-risk students included in the enrollment of the school district by 0.105; or (2) (A) for any school in a school district with an enrollment of at least 35%, but less than 50% at-risk students: (i) Subtract 35% from the percentage of at-risk students included in the enrollment of such school; (ii) multiply such difference by 0.7; and (iii) multiply such product by the number of at-risk students included in the enrollment of such school; or (B) for any school in a school district with an enrollment of 50% or more at-risk students, multiply the number of at-risk students included in the enrollment of such school by 0.105; and (C) add the amounts determined pursuant to this paragraph for each such school in the school district: And provided further, That any school district that qualifies to receive the high-density at-risk student weighting shall spend any moneys attributable to such school district's high-density at-risk student weighting on the at-risk best practices developed by the state board pursuant to K.S.A. 72-5153(d), and amendments thereto: And provided further, That if a school district that qualifies for the high-density at-risk student weighting does not spend such moneys on such best practices, the state board shall notify the school district that it shall either spend such moneys on such best practices or shall show improvement within five years of notification: And provided further, That improvement shall include, but not be limited

to, the following: The percentage of students at grade level on state math and English language arts assessments; the percentage of students that are college and career ready on state math and English language arts assessments; the average composite ACT score; or the four-year graduation rate: *And provided further*, That if a school district does not spend such moneys on such best practices and does not show improvement within five years, the school district shall not qualify to receive the high-density at-risk student weighting in the succeeding school year.

Supplemental state aid (652-00-1000-0840).....\$521,200,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the supplemental state aid account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2021, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2022.

Sec. 81.

### STATE LIBRARY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (434-00-1000-0300).....\$1,295,118

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided, however,* That expenditures from the operating expenditures account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$755.

Grants to libraries and library systems – grants in aid (434-00-1000-0410)......\$1,067,914

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the grants to libraries and library systems – grants in aid account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Grants to libraries and library systems – interlibrary loan development (434-00-1000-0420).....\$1,135,467

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the grants to libraries and library systems – interlibrary loan development account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Grants to libraries and library systems – talking book services (434-00-1000-0430)......\$430,402

Provided. That any unencumbered balance in the grants to libraries and library

systems – talking book services account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:
State library fund (434-00-2076-2500)
Federal library services and technology act – fund (434-00-3257-3000)
Grants and gifts fund (434-00-7304-7000)
Statewide database contribution (434-00-7304-7003)
Sec. 82.  KANSAS STATE SCHOOL FOR THE BLIND
(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:  Operating expenditures (604-00-1000-0303)
Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the operating expenditures for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,000.
Arts for the handicapped (604-00-1000-0502)\$133,847
(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:
General fees fund (604-00-2093-2000)
Local services reimbursement fund (604-00-2088-2500)

*Provided,* That the Kansas state school for the blind is hereby authorized to assess and collect a fee of 20% of the total cost of services provided to local school districts:

*Provided further,* That all moneys received from such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the local services reimbursement fund.

Student activity fees fund (604-00-2146-2100)	mit
Special bequest fund (604-00-7333-5001)	mit
Gift fund (604-00-7329-5100)	mit
Nine month payroll clearing fund (604-00-7714-5200)No lin	mit
Education improvement – federal fund (604-00-3898-3750)	mit
Preparation and mentoring of teachers of the	
blind and visually impaired – federal fund (604-00-3184-3180)	mit
Special education state grants – federal fund (604-00-3234-3234)	mit
Federal school lunch – federal fund (604-00-3530-3528)	mit
School breakfast program – federal fund (604-00-3529-3529)	mit
Deaf-blind project – federal fund (604-00-3583-3583)	mit
Safe schools – federal fund (604-00-3569-3569)No lin	mit
Child and adult care food program – federal fund (604-00-3531-3531)No lin	mit
Summer food service program – federal fund (604-00-3591-3591)	mit

# KANSAS STATE SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:  Operating expenditures (610-00-1000-0303)\$9,519,915
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: <i>Provided, however,</i> That expenditures from the operating expenditures account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,000.
(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:  General fees fund (610-00-2094-2000)
Local services reimbursement fund (610-00-2091-2200)
<i>Provided,</i> That the Kansas state school for the deaf is hereby authorized to assess and collect a fee of 20% of the total cost of services provided to local school districts: <i>Provided further,</i> That all moneys received from such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the local services reimbursement fund.
Student activity fees fund (610-00-2147-2100)No limit
Special bequest fund (610-00-7321-5500)
Special workshop fund (610-00-7504-5800)No limit
Gift fund (610-00-7330-5600)
Nine month payroll clearing fund (610-00-7715-5700)
Special education state grants – federal fund (610-00-3234-3234)
School breakfast program – federal fund (610-00-3529-3529)

School lunch program

School lunch program federal fund (610-00-3530-3528)
Special education preschool grants – federal fund (610-00-3535-3535)
Universal newborn screening – federal fund (610-00-3459-3459)
Summer food service program – federal fund (610-00-3591-3591)
Early hearing detection and intervention – federal fund (610-00-3612-3612)
Sec. 84. STATE HISTORICAL SOCIETY
(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:  Operating expenditures (288-00-1000-0083)\$4,233,171
<i>Provided</i> , That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Humanities Kansas (288-00-1000-0600)\$50,501
(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:
Vehicle repair and replacement fund (288-00-6116-6000)
General fees fund (288-00-2047-2300)
Archeology fee fund (288-00-2638-2350)

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the archeology fee fund for operating expenses for providing archeological services by contract: Provided further, That the state historical society is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for the sale of such services: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all

or part of the operating expenses incurred in providing archeological services by contract: *And provided further*. That all fees received for such services shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the archeology fee fund.

Conversion of materials and equipment fund (288-00-2436-2700)
Soil/water conservation fund (288-00-3083-3110)
Microfilm fees fund (288-00-2246-2370)
Provided, That expenditures may be made from the microfilm fees fund for operating expenses for providing imaging services: Provided further, That the state historical society is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for the sale of such services: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenses incurred in providing imaging services: And provided further, That all fees received for such services shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the microfilm fees fund.
Records center fee fund (288-00-2132-2100)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures may be made from the records center fee fund for operating expenses for state records and for the trusted digital repository for electronic government records.
Historic properties fee fund (288-00-2164-2310)No limit
Historic preservation grants in aid fund (288-00-3089-3700)
Historic preservation overhead fees fund (288-00-2916-2380)
National historic preservation act fund – local (288-00-3089-3000)
Private gifts, grants and bequests fund (288-00-7302-7000)
Museum and historic sites visitor donation fund (288-00-2142-2250)

Insurance collection replacement/ reimbursement fund (288-00-2182-2320)
Heritage trust fund (288-00-7379-7600)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the heritage trust fund for state operations shall not exceed \$81,843.
Land survey fee fund (288-00-2234-2330)
<i>Provided</i> , That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 58-2011, and amendments thereto, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the land survey fee fund for the fiscal year 2021 for operating expenditures that are not related to administering the land survey program.
National trails fund (288-00-3553-3353)
State historical society facilities fund (288-00-2192-2420)
Historic properties fund (288-00-2144-2400)
Law enforcement memorial fund (288-00-7344-7300)
Highway planning/ construction fund (288-00-3333-3333)
Save America's treasures fund (288-00-3923-4000)
Archeology federal fund (288-00-3083-3110)No limit
Property sale proceeds fund (288-00-2414-2500)No limit
<i>Provided,</i> That proceeds from the sale of property pursuant to K.S.A. 75-2701, and amendments thereto, shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the property sale proceeds fund.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-2721, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the state

general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 to fix admission fees at constitution hall in Lecompton, Kansas, at \$3 per adult single admission, \$1 per student single admission, \$2 per student for guided tours and \$3 per adult for guided tours: *Provided, however,* That such admission fees may be increased by the above agency during fiscal year 2021 if all moneys from such admission fees are invested in constitution hall and the total amount of such admission fees exceeds the amount of the Lecompton historical society's constitution hall promotional expenses as determined by the average of such promotional expenses for the preceding three calendar years: *Provided further,* That the state historical society may request annual financial statements from the Lecompton historical society for the purpose of calculating such three-year average of promotional expenses.

- (d) On July 1, 2020, the Kansas humanities council account (288-00-1000-0600) of the state general fund of the state historical society is hereby redesignated as the Humanities Kansas account (288-00-1000-0600) of the state general fund of the state historical society.
- (e) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state economic development initiatives fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Humanities Kansas – crossroads conversations (288-00-1900)......\$20,000

Sec. 85.

### FORT HAYS STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (including official hospitality) (246-00-1000-0013).....\$34,696,517

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Master's-level nursing capacity (246-00-1000-0100)......\$136,148

Kansas wetlands education center at Cheyenne bottoms (246-00-1000-0200)......\$257,224

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the Kansas wetlands education center at Cheyenne bottoms account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Kansas academy of math

and science (246-00-1000-0300)......\$737,152

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the Kansas academy of math and science account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the parking fees fund for a capital improvement project for parking lot improvements.

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund to match federal grant moneys: *Provided further,* That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund for official hospitality.

*Provided.* That restricted fees shall be limited to receipts for the following accounts: Special events; technology equipment; Gross coliseum services; capital improvements; performing arts center services; farm income; choral music clinic; yearbook; offcampus tours; memorial union activities; student activity (unallocated); tiger media; conferences, clinics and workshops – noncredit; summer laboratory school; little theater; library services; student affairs; speech and debate; student government; counseling center services; interest on local funds; student identification cards; nurse education programs; athletics; placement fees; virtual college classes; speech and hearing; child care services for dependent students; computer services; interactive television contributions; midwestern student exchange; departmental receipts for all sales, refunds and other collections not specifically enumerated above: Provided, however. That the state board of regents, with the approval of the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, may amend or change this list of restricted fees: Provided further. That all restricted fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the appropriate account of the restricted fees fund and shall be used solely for the specific purpose or purposes for which collected: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from this fund to purchase insurance for equipment purchased through research and training grants only if such grants include money for and authorize the purchase of such insurance: And provided further, That all amounts of tuition received from students

participating in the midwestern student exchange program shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the midwestern student exchange account of the restricted fees fund: *And provided further*; That expenditures may be made from the restricted fees fund for official hospitality.

Education opportunity act – federal fund (246-00-3394-3500)
Service clearing fund (246-00-6000)
<i>Provided,</i> That the service clearing fund shall be used for the following service activities: Computer services, storeroom for official supplies including office supplies, paper products, janitorial supplies, printing and duplicating, car pool, postage, copy center, and telecommunications and such other internal service activities as are authorized by the state board of regents under K.S.A. 76-755, and amendments thereto.
Commencement fees fund (246-00-2511-2050)No limit
Health fees fund (246-00-5101-5000)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the health fees fund may be made for the purchase of medical malpractice liability coverage for individuals employed on the medical staff, including pharmacists and physical therapists, at the student health center.
Student union fees fund (246-00-5102-5010)No limit
Provided, That expenditures may be made from the student union fees fund for official hospitality.
Kansas career work study program fund (246-00-2548-2060)
Economic opportunity act – federal fund (246-00-3034-3000)
Faculty of distinction matching fund (246-00-2471-2400)
Nine month payroll clearing

Federal Perkins student

loan fund (246-00-7501-7050)
Housing system revenue fund (246-00-5103-5020)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures may be made from the housing system revenue fund for official hospitality.
Institutional overhead fund (246-00-2900-2070)No limit
Oil and gas royalties fund (246-00-2036-2010)No limit
Housing system suspense fund (246-00-5707-5090)
Sponsored research overhead fund (246-00-2914-2080)
Kansas distinguished scholarship fund (246-00-7204-7000)
Temporary deposit fund (246-00-9013-9400)No limit
Federal receipts suspense fund (246-00-9105-9410)
Suspense fund (246-00-9134-9420)
Mandatory retirement annuity clearing fund (246-00-9136-9430)
Voluntary tax shelter annuity clearing fund (246-00-9163-9440)
Agency payroll deduction clearing fund (246-00-9197-9450)
Pre-tax parking clearing fund (246-00-9220-9200)
University payroll fund (246-00-9800)

Provided, That expenditures may be made by the above agency from the university federal fund to purchase insurance for equipment purchased through research and training grants only if such grants include money for and authorize the purchase of such insurance: Provided further, That expenditures may be made by the above agency from this fund to procure a policy of accident, personal liability and excess automobile liability insurance insuring volunteers participating in the senior companion program against loss in accordance with specifications of federal grant guidelines as provided in K.S.A. 75-4101, and amendments thereto.

(c) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer an amount specified by the president of Fort Hays state university of not to exceed \$125,000 from the general fees fund (246-00-2035-2000) to the federal Perkins student loan fund (246-00-7501-7050).

Sec. 86.

### KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

Operating expenditures (including official hospitality) (367-00-1000-0003)......\$101,280

Kansas state university polytechnic campus (including official hospitality) (367-00-1000-0150)......\$190,390

(b) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, as authorized by chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from any special revenue fund or funds during fiscal year 2020 for the following capital improvement project or projects:

 Sec. 87.

### KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (including official hospitality) (367-00-1000-0003)......\$98,988,889

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Midwest institute for comparative stem cell biology (367-00-1000-0170)......\$129,833

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the midwest institute for comparative stem cell biology account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Global food systems (367-00-1000-0190)......\$5,000,000

Provided, That unencumbered balance in the global food systems account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That all moneys in the global food systems account expended for fiscal year 2021 shall be matched by Kansas state university on a \$1 for \$1 basis from other moneys of Kansas state university: And provided further, That Kansas state university shall submit a plan to the house committee on appropriations, the senate committee on ways and means and the governor as to how the global food systems-related activities create additional jobs in the state and other economic value, particularly for and with the private sector, for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the Kansas state university polytechnic campus (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall

not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the parking fees fund for capital improvement projects for parking improvements.

Faculty of distinction matching fund (367-00-2472-2500)	No limit
matering rund (507-00-2472-2500)	

*Provided*, That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund to match federal grant moneys: *Provided further*, That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund for official hospitality.

Provided, That restricted fees shall be limited to receipts for the following accounts: Technology equipment; flight services; communications and marketing; computer services; copy centers; standardized test fees; placement center; recreational services; polytechnic campus; motor pool; music; professorships; student activities fees; biology sales and services; chemistry; field camps; physics storeroom; sponsored research, sponsored instruction, sponsored public service, equipment and facility grants; contractpost office; library collections; sponsored construction or improvement projects; attorney, educational and personal development, human capital services; student financial assistance; application for undergraduate programs; speech and hearing; gifts; human development and family research and training; college of education publications and services; guaranteed student loan application processing; auditorium receipts; catalog sales; interagency consulting; sales and services of educational programs; transcript fees; facility use fees; college of health and human sciences storeroom; college of health and human sciences sales; application for post baccalaureate programs; art exhibit fees; college of education - Kansas careers; foreign student application fee; student union repair and replacement reserve; departmental receipts for all sales, refunds and other collections; institutional support fee; miscellaneous renovations - construction; speech receipts; art museum; exchange program; flight training lab fees; administrative reimbursements; parking fees; printing; short courses and conferences; student government association receipts; late registration fee; engineering equipment fee; architecture equipment fee; biotechnology facility; English language program; international programs; Bramlage coliseum; planning and analysis; telecommunications; comparative medicine; Marlatt memorial park; departmental student organization receipts; other specifically designated receipts not

available for general operations of the university: *Provided, however,* That the state board of regents, with the approval of the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, may amend or change this list of restricted fees: *Provided further,* That all restricted fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the appropriate account of the restricted fees fund and shall be used solely for the specific purpose or purposes for which collected: *And provided further,* That expenditures from the restricted fees fund may be made for the purchase of insurance for operation and testing of completed project aircraft and for operation of aircraft used in professional pilot training, including coverage for public liability, physical damage, medical payments and voluntary settlement coverages: *And provided further,* That expenditures may be made from this fund for official hospitality.

Kansas career work study

program fund (367-00-2540-2090)
Service clearing fund (367-00-6003-7000)
<i>Provided,</i> That the service clearing fund shall be used for the following service activities: Supplies stores; telecommunications services; photographic services; K-State printing services; postage; facilities services; facilities carpool; public safety services; facility planning services; facilities storeroom; computing services; and such other internal service activities as are authorized by the state board of regents under K.S.A. 76-755, and amendments thereto.
Sponsored research overhead fund (367-00-2901-2160)
Provided, That expenditures may be made from the sponsored research overhead fund for official hospitality.
Housing system suspense fund (367-00-5708-4830)
Housing system operations fund (367-00-5163)No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures may be made from the housing system operations fund for official hospitality.
State emergency fund –

Housing system repair, equipment and improvement fund (367-00-5641-4740)
Coliseum system repair, equipment and improvement fund (367-00-5642-4750)
Mandatory retirement annuity clearing fund (367-00-9137-9310)
Student health fees fund (367-00-5109-4410)No limit
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the student health fees fund may be made for the purchase of medical malpractice liability coverage for individuals employed on the medical staff, including pharmacists and physical therapists, at the student health center.
Scholarship funds fund (367-00-7201-7210)
Perkins student loan fund (367-00-7506-7260)No limit
Federal award advance payment – U.S. department of education awards fund (367-00-3855-3350)
State agricultural university fund (367-00-7400-7250)
Salina – student union fees fund (367-00-5114-4420)
Salina – housing system revenue fund (367-00-5117-4430)
Salina – housing system suspense fund (367-00-5724-4890)
Kansas comprehensive grant fund (367-00-7223-7300)
Temporary deposit fund (367-00-9020-9300)
Business procurement card clearing fund (367-00-9102-9400)

Suspense fund (367-00-9146-9320)
Voluntary tax shelter annuity clearing fund (367-00-9164-9330)
Agency payroll deduction clearing fund (367-00-9186-9360)
Pre-tax parking clearing fund (367-00-9221-9200)
Salina student life center revenue fund (367-00-5111-5120)
Child care facility revenue fund (367-00-5125-5101)
University federal fund (367-00-3142)
Animal health research fund (367-00-2053-2053)
National bio agro-defense facility fund (367-00-2058-2058)
<i>Provided,</i> That all expenditures from the national bio agro-defense facility fund shall be approved by the president of Kansas state university.
Kan-grow engineering fund – KSU (367-00-2154-2154)
Payroll clearing fund (367-00-9801-9000)
Fed ext emp clearing fund – employee deduct (367-00-9182-9340)
Fed ext emp clearing fund – employer deduct (367-00-9183-9350)
Temp dep fund external source (367-00-9065-9305)

*Provided,* That, on or before the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month commencing during fiscal year 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the interest bearing grants fund interest earnings based on: (1) The average daily balance in the interest bearing grants fund for the preceding month; and (2) the net earnings rate for the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month.

(c) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer an amount specified by the president of Kansas state university of not to exceed \$100,000 from the general fees fund (367-00-2062-2000) to the Perkins student loan fund (367-00-7506-7260).

Sec. 88.

# KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY EXTENSION SYSTEMS AND AGRICULTURE RESEARCH PROGRAMS

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

Cooperative extension service (including official hospitality) (369-00-1000-1020)......\$405,408

(b) On the effective date of this act, of the \$30,945,559 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 132(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the agricultural experiment stations (including official hospitality) account (369-00-1000-1030), the sum of \$405,408 is hereby lapsed.

Sec. 89.

# KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY EXTENSION SYSTEMS AND AGRICULTURE RESEARCH PROGRAMS

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Cooperative extension service (including official hospitality) (369-00-1000-1020)......\$19,149,964

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the cooperative extension service (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Agricultural experiment stations (including official hospitality) (369-00-1000-1030)......\$30,637,117

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the agricultural experiment stations (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Wildfire suppression/state forest service (369-00-1000-1040)......\$650,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the wildfire suppression/state forest service account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

*Provided.* That restricted fees shall be limited to receipts for the following accounts: Plant pathology; Kansas artificial breeding service unit; technology equipment; professorships; agricultural experiment station, director's office; agronomy - Ashland farm; KSU agricultural research center - Hays; KSU southeast agricultural research center; KSU southwest research extension center; agronomy – general; agronomy – experimental field crop sales; entomology sales; grain science and industry - Kansas state university; food and nutrition research; extension services and publication; sponsored construction or improvement projects; gifts; comparative medicine; sales and services of educational programs; animal sciences and industry livestock and product sales; horticulture greenhouse and farm products sales; Konza prairie operations; departmental receipts for all sales, refunds and other collections; institutional support fee; KSU northwest research extension center operations; sponsored research, public service, equipment and facility grants; statistical laboratory; equipment/pesticide storage building; miscellaneous renovation - construction; other specifically designated receipts not available for general operations of the university: Provided, however, That the state board of regents, with the approval of the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, may amend or change this list of restricted fees: Provided further, That all restricted fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the appropriate account of the restricted fees fund and shall be used solely for the specific purpose or purposes for which collected: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from the Kansas agricultural mediation service account of the restricted fees fund during fiscal year 2021: And provided further. That expenditures may be made from this fund for official hospitality.

Fertilizer research fund (369-00-2263-1150)
Sponsored research overhead fund (369-00-2921-1200)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures may be made from the sponsored research overhead fund for official hospitality.
Federal awards – advance payment fund (369-00-3872-1360)
Smith-Lever special program grant – federal fund (369-00-3047-1330)
Faculty of distinction matching fund (369-00-2479-1190)
Agricultural land use-value fund (369-00-2364-1180)
University federal fund (369-00-3144)
(c) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state economic development initiatives fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:  Agricultural experiment stations (369-00-1900-1900)
Sec. 90.  KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY  VETERINARY MEDICAL CENTER
(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the

(b) On the effective date of this act, of the \$5,036,233 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 132(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the operating enhancement account (368-00-1000-5023), the sum of \$36,233 is hereby lapsed.

Operating expenditures (368-00-1000-5003)......\$36,233

fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

(c) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, as authorized by chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the

legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from any special revenue fund or funds during fiscal year 2020 for the following capital improvement project or projects:

Sec. 91.

### KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY VETERINARY MEDICAL CENTER

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (including official hospitality) (368-00-1000-5003)......\$10,189,790

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Operating enhancement (368-00-1000-5023).....\$5,000,000

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the operating enhancement account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That all expenditures from the operating enhancement account shall be expended in accordance with the plan submitted by the board of regents for improving the rankings of the Kansas state university veterinary medical center and shall be approved by the president of Kansas state university.

Veterinary training program for rural Kansas (368-00-1000-5013).....\$400,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the veterinary training program for rural Kansas account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund to match federal grant moneys: *Provided further,* That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund for official hospitality.

Vet health center revenue fund (including official hospitality) (368-00-5160-5300)	No limit
Faculty of distinction matching fund (368-00-2478-5220)	No limit
Restricted fees fund (368-00-2590-5530)	No limit

*Provided,* That restricted fees shall be limited to receipts for the following accounts: Sponsored research, instruction, public service, equipment and facility grants; sponsored construction or improvement projects; technology equipment; pathology fees; laboratory test fees; miscellaneous renovations or construction; dean of veterinary medicine receipts; gifts; application for postbaccalaureate programs; professorship; embryo transfer unit; swine serology; rapid focal fluorescent inhibition test; comparative medicine; storerooms; departmental receipts for all sales, refunds and other collections; departmental student organization receipts; other specifically designated receipts not available for general operation of the Kansas state university veterinary medical center: Provided, however, That the state board of regents, with the approval of the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, may amend or change this list of restricted fees: Provided further, That all restricted fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the appropriate account of the restricted fees fund and shall be used solely for the specific purpose or purposes for which collected: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from this fund for official hospitality.

Health professions student	
loan fund (368-00-7521-5710)	No limit
University federal fund (368-00-3143-5140)	No limit

(c) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer an amount specified by the president of Kansas state university of not to exceed a total of \$15,000 from the general fees fund (368-00-2129-5500) to the health professions student loan fund (368-00-7521-5710).

Sec. 92.

# EMPORIA STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (including official hospitality) (379-00-1000-0083)......\$33,433,103

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Reading recovery program (379-00-1000-0100).....\$212,552

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the reading recovery program account for official hospitality.

Nat'l board cert/future teacher academy (379-00-1000-0200).......\$129,050

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the nat'l board cert/future teacher academy account for official hospitality.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the parking fees fund for a capital improvement project for parking lot improvements.

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund to match federal grant moneys: *Provided further,* That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund for official hospitality.

Provided, That restricted fees shall be limited to receipts for the following accounts: Computer services, student activity; technology equipment; student union; sponsored research; computer services; extension classes; gifts and grants (for teaching, research and capital improvements); capital improvements; business school contributions; state department of education (vocational); library services; library collections; interest on local funds; receipts from conferences, clinics, and workshops held on campus for which no college credit is given; physical plant reimbursements from auxiliary

enterprises; midwestern student exchange; departmental receipts - for all sales, refunds and other collections or receipts not specifically enumerated above: Provided, however, That the state board of regents, with the approval of the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, may amend or change this list of restricted fees; Provided further. That all restricted fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the appropriate account of the restricted fees fund and shall be used solely for the specific purpose or purposes for which collected: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from this fund to purchase insurance for equipment purchased through research and training grants only if such grants include money for and authorize the purchase of such insurance: And provided further, That all amounts of tuition received from students participating in the midwestern student exchange program shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the midwestern student exchange account of the restricted fees fund: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from the restricted fees fund for official hospitality.

*Provided,* That the service clearing fund shall be used for the following service activities: Telecommunications services; state car operation; ESU press including duplicating and reproducing; postage; physical plant storeroom including motor fuel inventory; and such other internal service activities as are authorized by the state board of regents under K.S.A. 76-755, and amendments thereto.

Commencement fees fund (379-00-2527-2050)......No limit

*Provided,* That expenditures from the student health fees fund may be made for the purchase of medical malpractice liability coverage for individuals employed on the medical staff, including pharmacists and physical therapists, at the student health center.

National direct student loan fund (379-00-7507-7040)
Economic opportunity act – work study – federal fund (379-00-3128-3000)
Educational opportunity grants – federal fund (379-00-3129-3010)
Basic opportunity grant program – federal fund (379-00-3130-3020)
Research and institutional overhead fund (379-00-2902-2070)
Kansas comprehensive grant fund (379-00-7224-7060)
Housing system suspense fund (379-00-5701-5130)
Housing system operations fund (379-00-5169-5050)
Kansas distinguished scholarship fund (379-00-2762-2700)
University federal fund (379-00-3145)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures may be made by the above agency from the university federal fund to purchase insurance for equipment purchased through research and training grants only if such grants include money for and authorize the purchase of such insurance.
Twin towers project revenue fund (379-00-5120-5030)
Nine month payroll clearing fund (379-00-7712-7050)
Temporary deposit fund (379-00-9022-9510)No limit

Federal receipts
suspense fund (379-00-9085-9520)
Suspense fund (379-00-9021)
Mandatory retirement annuity
clearing fund (379-00-9138-9530)
Voluntary tax shelter annuity
clearing fund (379-00-9165-9540)
Agency payroll deduction
clearing fund (379-00-9196-9550)
Pre-tax parking
clearing fund (379-00-9222-9200)
University payroll fund (379-00-9802)
Leveraging educational assistance partnership
federal fund (379-00-3224-3200)
National direct student
loan fund (379-00-7507-7040)
Student union refurbishing fund (379-00-5161-5040)No limit
Housing system repairs, equipment and
improvement fund (379-00-5650-5120)
Sec. 93.
PITTSBURG STATE UNIVERSITY
(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following: Operating expenditures (385-00-1000-0063)\$22,025

- (b) On the effective date of this act, of the \$1,019,003 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 132(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the school of construction account (385-00-1000-0200), the sum of \$17,906 is hereby lapsed.
- (c) On the effective date of this act, of the \$1,220,004 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 132(a) of chapter 68 of the

2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the polymer science program account (385-00-1000-0300), the sum of \$4,119 is hereby lapsed.

(d) On the effective date of this act, the total amount of \$125,000, authorized by section 104(c) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas to be transferred by the director of accounts and reports from the general fees fund (385-00-2070-2010) to the following specified funds and accounts of funds: Perkins student loan fund (385-00-7509-7020); nursing student loan fund (385-00-7508-7010); and nurse faculty loan program federal fund (385-00-3596-3596), is hereby increased to \$145,000.

Sec. 94.

## PITTSBURG STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (including official hospitality) (385-00-1000-0063)......\$35,898,847

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the school of construction account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Polymer science program (385-00-1000-0300).....\$1,009,386

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the polymer science program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the parking fees fund for capital improvement projects for parking lot improvements.

*Provided,* That all moneys received for tuition received from students participating in the gorilla advantage program or the midwestern student exchange program shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the general fees fund: *Provided further*;

That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund to match federal grant moneys: *And provided further*; That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund for official hospitality.

*Provided,* That restricted fees shall be limited to receipts for the following accounts: Computer services; capital improvements; instructional technology fee; technology equipment; student activity fee accounts; commencement fees; ROTC activities; continuing education receipts; vocational auto parts and service fees; receipts from camps, conferences and meetings held on campus; library service collections and fines; grants from other state agencies; Midwest Ouarterly; chamber music series; contract – post office; gifts and grants; intensive English program; business and technology institute; public sector radio station activities; economic opportunity - state match; Kansas career work study; regents supplemental grants; departmental receipts, and other specifically designated receipts not available for general operations of the university: Provided, however, That the state board of regents, with the approval of the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, may amend or change this list of restricted fees: Provided further, That all restricted fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the appropriate account of the restricted fees fund and shall be used solely for the specific purpose or purposes for which collected: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from this fund to purchase insurance for equipment purchased through research and training grants only if such grants include money for and authorize the purchase of such insurance: And provided further, That surplus restricted fees moneys generated by the music department may be transferred to the Pittsburg state university foundation, inc., for the express purpose of awarding music scholarships: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from this fund for official hospitality.

*Provided,* That the service clearing fund shall be used for the following service activities: Duplicating and printing services; instructional media division; office stationery and supplies; motor carpool; postage services; photo services; telephone services; and such other internal service activities as are authorized by the state board of regents under K.S.A. 76-755, and amendments thereto.

Provided, That expenditures from the hospital and student health fees fund may be made for the purchase of medical malpractice liability coverage for individuals employed on the medical staff, including pharmacists and physical therapists, at the

student health center: *Provided further*, That expenditures may be made from this fund for capital improvement projects for hospital and student health center improvements.

Suspense fund (385-00-9024-9510)
Faculty of distinction matching fund (385-00-2474-2400)
Perkins student loan fund (385-00-7509-7020)No limit
Sponsored research overhead fund (385-00-2903-2903)
College work study federal fund (385-00-3498-3030)
Nursing student loan fund (385-00-7508-7010)No limit
Housing system suspense fund (385-00-5703-5170)
Housing system operations fund (385-00-5165-5050)
Housing system repairs, equipment and improvement fund (385-00-5646-5160)
Kansas comprehensive grant fund (385-00-7227-7200)
Kansas career work study program fund (385-00-2552-2060)
Nine month payroll clearing fund (385-00-7713-7030)
Payroll clearing fund (385-00-9023-9500)
Temporary deposit fund (385-00-9025-9520)No limit
Federal receipts suspense fund (385-00-9104-9530)

BPC clearing fund (385-00-9109-9570)
Mandatory retirement annuity clearing fund (385-00-9139-9540)
Voluntary tax shelter annuity clearing fund (385-00-9166-9550)
Agency payroll deduction clearing fund (385-00-9195-9560)
Pre-tax parking clearing fund (385-00-9223-9200)
University payroll fund (385-00-9803)No limit
University federal fund (385-00-3146)No limit
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures may be made by the above agency from the university federal fund to purchase insurance for equipment purchased through research and training grants only if such grants include money for and authorize the purchase of such insurance.
Overman student center renovation fund (385-00-2820-2820)
Student health center revenue fund (385-00-2828-2851)
Horace Mann building renovation fund (385-00-2833)
Revenue 2014A fund (385-00-5106-5105)
Nurse faculty loan program federal fund (385-00-3596-3596)No limit
(c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer amounts specified by the president of Pittsburg state university of not to exceed a total of \$145,000 for all such amounts, from the general fees fund (385-00-2070-2010) to the following specified funds and accounts of funds: Perkins student loan for the control of

fund (385-00-7509-7020); nursing student loan fund (385-00-7508-7010); and nurse

faculty loan program federal fund (385-00-3596-3596).

Sec. 95.

## UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS

ONIVERSITT OF KANSAS
(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:  Geological survey (682-00-1000-0170)\$280,550
Umbilical cord matrix project (682-00-1000-0370)\$1,843
(b) On the effective date of this act, of the \$134,939,821 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 132(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account (682-00-1000-0023), the sum of \$282,393 is hereby lapsed.
(c) On the effective date of this act, of the \$2,494,307 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 155(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the school of pharmacy debt service account (682-00-1000-0400), the sum of \$916,342 is hereby lapsed.  (d) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, as authorized by chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from any special revenue fund or funds during fiscal year 2020 for the following capital improvement project or
projects: CIC integrated science building renovationsNo limit
CIC stauffer remodel
CIC daisy hill piping project
Sponsored research projects
Sec. 96.
UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS
(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:  Operating expenditures (including
official hospitality) (682-00-1000-0023)\$135,068,390

*Provided*, That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Geological survey (682-00-1000-0170)......\$6,263,606

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the geological survey account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the geological survey account of the state general fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from the geological survey account of the state general fund for fiscal year 2021 for seismic surveys in an amount not less than \$100,000.

Umbilical cord matrix project (682-00-1000-0370)......\$135,899

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the umbilical cord matrix project account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the parking facilities revenue fund for capital improvement projects for parking improvements.

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund to match federal grant moneys.

 *Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the law enforcement training center fund to cover the costs of tuition for students enrolled in the law enforcement training program in addition to the costs of salaries and wages and other operating expenditures for the program: *Provided further,* That expenditures may be made from the law enforcement training center fund for the acquisition of tracts of land.

*Provided,* That all moneys received for tuition from students enrolling in the basic law enforcement training program for undergraduate or graduate credit shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the law enforcement training center fees fund.

*Provided.* That restricted fees shall be limited to receipts for the following accounts: Institute for policy and social research; technology equipment; capital improvements; concert course; speech, language and hearing clinic; perceptual motor clinic; application for admission fees; named professorships; summer institutes and workshops; dramatics; economic opportunity act; executive management; continuing education programs; geology field trips; gifts and grants; extension services; counseling center; investment income from bequests; reimbursable salaries; music and art camp; child development lab preschools; orientation center; educational placement; press publications; Rice estate educational project; sponsored research; student activities; sale of surplus books and art objects; building use charges; Kansas applied remote sensing program; executive master's degree in business administration; applied English center; cartographic services; economic education; study abroad programs; computer services; recreational activities; animal care activities; geological survey; midwestern student exchange; department commercial receipts for all sales, refunds, and all other collections or receipts not specifically enumerated above: Provided, however. That the state board of regents, with the approval of the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, may amend or change this list of restricted fees: Provided further, That all restricted fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the appropriate account of the restricted fees fund and shall be used solely for the specific purpose or purposes for which collected: And provided further, That moneys received for student fees in any account of the restricted fees fund may be transferred to one or more other accounts of the restricted fees fund.

Provided, That the service clearing fund shall be used for the following service

activities: Residence hall food stores; university motor pool; military uniforms; telecommunications service; and such other internal service activities as are authorized by the state board of regents under K.S.A. 76-755, and amendments thereto.

Health service fund (682-00-5136-5030)
Kansas career work study program fund (682-00-2534-2050)
Student union fund (682-00-5137-5040)
Federal Perkins loan fund (682-00-7512-7040)No limit
Health professions student loan fund (682-00-7513-7050)
Housing system suspense fund (682-00-5704-5150)
Housing system operations fund (682-00-5142-5050)
Housing system repairs, equipment and improvement fund (682-00-5621-5110)
Educational opportunity act – federal fund (682-00-3842-3020)
Loans for disadvantaged students fund (682-00-7510-7100)
Prepaid tuition fees clearing fund (682-00-7765)
Kansas comprehensive grant fund (682-00-7226-7110)
Fire service training fund (682-00-2123-2170)No limit
University federal fund (682-00-3147)No limit
Johnson county education research

triangle fund (682-00-2393-2390)
Temporary deposit fund (682-00-9061-9020)
Suspense fund (682-00-9060-9010)
BPC clearing fund (682-00-9119-9050)
Mandatory retirement annuity clearing fund (682-00-9142-9030)
Voluntary tax shelter annuity clearing fund (682-00-9167-9040)
Agency payroll deduction clearing fund (682-00-9193-9060)
Pre-tax parking clearing fund (682-00-9224-9200)No limit
University payroll fund (682-00-9806)No limit
GTA/GRA emp health insurance clearing fund (682-00-9063-9070)
Standard water data repository fund (682-00-2463-2463)
Multicultural rescr center construction fund (682-00-2890-2890)
Kan-grow engineering fund – KU (682-00-2153-2153)No limit
Child care facility revenue bond fund (682-00-2372)
Student recreation fitness center KDFA fund (682-00-2864-2860)
Student union renovation revenue fund (682-00-5171-5060)

- (c) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer amounts specified by the chancellor of the university of Kansas of not to exceed a total of \$325,000 for all such amounts, from the general fees fund (682-00-2107-2000) to the following specified funds and accounts of funds: Federal Perkins loan fund (682-00-7512-7040); educational opportunity act federal fund (682-00-3842-3020); university federal fund (682-00-3147-3140); health professions student loan fund (682-00-7513-7050); loans for disadvantaged students fund (682-00-7510-7100).
- (d) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state water plan fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the water plan project or projects specified, the following:

Geological survey (682-00-1800-1810).....\$26,841

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the geological survey account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Sec. 97.

## UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS MEDICAL CENTER

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (including official hospitality) (683-00-1000-0503)......\$105,117,642

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures from this account may be used to reimburse medical residents in residency programs located in Kansas City at the university of Kansas medical center for the purchase of health insurance for residents' dependents.

Medical scholarships and loans (683-00-1000-0600)......\$4,488,171

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the medical scholarships and loans account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Midwest stem cell	
therapy center (683-00-1000-0800)	)\$749,822

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the midwest stem cell therapy center account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Rural health bridging (683-00-1000-1010)\$140,000

Cancer center research (683-00-1000-0700).....\$9,959,597

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the cancer center research account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That the first \$5,000,000 of expenditures from the cancer center research account for fiscal year 2021 shall be matched by the university of Kansas medical center on a \$1 for \$1 basis from other moneys of the university of Kansas medical center: And provided further, That the university of Kansas medical center shall submit a plan to the house committee on appropriations, the senate committee on ways and means and the governor as to how cancer center research-related activities create additional jobs in the state and other economic value, particularly for and with the private sector, for fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That if 2020 Senate Bill No. 255 or any other legislation that appropriates \$5,000,001 or more to the university of Kansas medical center for the purposes of cancer research is passed by the legislature during the 2020 regular session and enacted into law, then on July 1, 2020, of the amount appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by this section from the state general fund in the cancer center research account, the sum of \$4,959,597 is hereby lapsed.

Medical scholarships and	
loans psychiatry (683-00-1000-0610).	\$970,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the medical scholarships and loans psychiatry account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the rural health bridging psychiatry account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall

not exceed the following:

General fees fund (683-00-2108-2500)	No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures may be made from the general fe federal grant moneys.	es fund to match
Midwest stem cell therapy center fund (683-00-2072-2072)	\$0
Faculty of distinction matching fund (683-00-2476-2400)	No limit

Provided, That restricted fees shall be limited to the following accounts: Technology

equipment; capital improvements; computer services; expenses reimbursed by the Kansas university endowment association; postgraduate fees; pathology fees; student health insurance premiums; gift receipts; designated research collaboration; facilities use; photography; continuing education; student activity fees; student application fees; department duplicating; student health services; student identification badges; student transcript fees; loan administration fees; fitness center fees; occupational health fees; employee health; telekid care fees; area outreach fees; police fees; endowment payroll reimbursement; rental property; e-learning fees; surplus property sales; outreach air travel; student loan legal fees; hospital authority salary reimbursements; graduate medical education contracts: Kansas university physicians inc., salaries reimbursements; housestaff activity fees; anatomy cadavers; biotechnology services; energy center funded depreciation; biostatistics; electron microscope services; Wichita faculty contracts; physical therapy services; legal fee reimbursements; sponsored research; departmental commercial receipts for all sales, refunds and all other collections of receipts not specifically enumerated above; Kansas department for children and families cost-sharing: Provided, however, That the state board of regents, with the approval of the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, may amend or change this list of restricted fees: Provided further, That all restricted fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the appropriate account of the restricted fees fund and shall be used solely for the specific purpose or purposes for which collected: And provided further. That expenditures may be made from this fund to purchase health insurance coverage for all students enrolled in the school of allied health, school of nursing and school of medicine.

Kansas breast cancer research fund (683-00-2671-2660)
Sponsored research overhead fund (683-00-2907-2800)
Parking facility revenue fund – KC campus (683-00-5176-5550)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures may be made from the parking facility revenue fund – KC campus for capital improvement projects for parking improvements.
Parking fee fund – Wichita campus (683-00-5180-5590)No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures may be made from the parking fee fund – Wichita campus for capital improvement projects for parking improvements.
Services to hospital authority fund (683-00-2915-2900)
Direct medical education reimbursement fund (683-00-2918-3000)
Service clearing fund (683-00-6007)
<i>Provided,</i> That the service clearing fund shall be used for the following service activities: Printing services; purchasing storeroom; university motor pool; physical plant storeroom; photo services; telecommunications services; facilities operations discretionary repairs; animal care; instructional services; and such other internal service activities as are authorized by the state board of regents under K.S.A. 76-755, and amendments thereto.
Educational nurse faculty loan program fund (683-00-7505-7540)
Federal college work study fund (683-00-3256-3520)
AMA education and research grant fund (683-00-7207-7500)

Federal health professions/

primary care student loan fund (683-00-7516-7560)
Federal nursing student loan fund (683-00-7517-7570)
Suspense fund (683-00-9057-9500)
Federal student educational opportunity grant fund (683-00-3255-3510)
Federal Pell grant fund (683-00-3252-3500)No limit
Federal Perkins student loan fund (683-00-7515-7550)
Medical loan repayment fund (683-00-7214-7520)No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures from the medical loan repayment fund for attorney fees and litigation costs associated with the administration of the medical scholarship and loan program shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on the
operating expenditures account of the medical loan repayment fund.
operating expenditures account of the medical loan repayment fund.  Medical student loan programs provider
operating expenditures account of the medical loan repayment fund.  Medical student loan programs provider assessment fund (683-00-2625-2650)
operating expenditures account of the medical loan repayment fund.  Medical student loan programs provider assessment fund (683-00-2625-2650)
operating expenditures account of the medical loan repayment fund.  Medical student loan programs provider assessment fund (683-00-2625-2650)
operating expenditures account of the medical loan repayment fund.  Medical student loan programs provider assessment fund (683-00-2625-2650)

clearing fund (683-00-9143-9520)
Voluntary tax shelter annuity clearing fund (683-00-9168-9530)
Agency payroll deduction clearing fund (683-00-9194-9600)
Pre-tax parking clearing fund (683-00-9225-9200)No limit
University payroll fund (683-00-9807)No limit
University federal fund (683-00-3148)
Leveraging educational assistance partnership federal fund (683-00-3223-3200)
Johnson county education research triangle fund (683-00-2394-2390)
Psychiatry medical loan repayment fund (683-00-7233-7233)
Rural health bridging psychiatry fund (683-00-2218-2218)
Cancer center research (683-00-2551-2700)No limit
Graduate medical education reimbursement fund (683-00-2918-3050)

- (c) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer amounts specified by the chancellor of the university of Kansas of not to exceed a total of \$125,000 for all such amounts, from the general fees fund (683-00-2108-2500) to the following funds: Federal nursing student loan fund (683-00-7517-7570); federal student education opportunity grant fund (683-00-3255-3510); federal college work study fund (683-00-3256-3520); educational nurse faculty loan program fund (683-00-7505-7540); federal health professions/primary care student loan fund (683-00-7516-7560).
- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, and within the limits of appropriations therefor, the university of Kansas medical center may enter into contracts to purchase additional malpractice insurance for medical students enrolled at the university of Kansas medical center while in clinical training at the university of Kansas

medical center or at other health care institutions.

Sec. 98.

### WICHITA STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, as authorized by chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from any special revenue fund or funds during fiscal year 2020 for the following capital improvement project or projects:

 Črash dynamics laboratory.
 No limit

 Henrion hall renovations.
 No limit

 Jabara hall UPS replacement.
 No limit

 Hubbard hall biology lab replacement.
 No limit

 NIAR building improvements.
 No limit

 Shocker hall improvements.
 No limit

(b) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by Wichita state university from the moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2020, as authorized by chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by Wichita state university from the moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2020 to provide for the issuance of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with K.S.A. 74-8905, and amendments thereto, for a capital improvement project for the construction and equipment of a new school of business building on the innovation campus of Wichita state university: Provided, That such capital improvement project is hereby approved for Wichita state university for the purposes of K.S.A. 74-8905(b), and amendments thereto, and the authorization of the issuance of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with that statute: Provided further, That Wichita state university may make expenditures from the money received from the issuance of any such bonds for such capital improvement project: Provided, however, That expenditures from the moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds for such capital improvement project shall not exceed \$25,000,000, plus all amounts required for costs of bond issuance, costs of interest on the bonds issued for such capital improvement project during the construction of such project, credit enhancement costs and any required reserves for payment of principal and interest on the bonds: And provided further, That all moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds shall be deposited and accounted for as

prescribed by applicable bond covenants: *And provided further*, That debt service for any such bonds for such capital improvement project shall be financed by appropriations from any appropriate special revenue fund or funds: *And provided further*, That any such bonds and interest thereon shall be an obligation only of the Kansas development finance authority, shall not constitute a debt of the state of Kansas within the meaning of section 6 or 7 of article 11 of the constitution of the state of Kansas and shall not pledge the full faith and credit or the taxing power of the state of Kansas: *And provided further*, That Wichita state university shall make provisions for the maintenance of the building.

Sec. 99.

#### WICHITA STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Aviation research (715-00-1000-0015)......\$10,000,000

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the aviation research account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That all moneys in the aviation research account expended for fiscal year 2021 shall be matched by Wichita state university on a \$1 for \$1 basis from other moneys of Wichita state university: And provided further, That Wichita state university shall submit a plan to the house committee on appropriations, the senate committee on ways and means and the governor as to how aviation research-related activities create additional jobs in the state and other economic value, particularly for and with the private sector, for fiscal year 2021.

Technology transfer facility (715-00-1000-0005).....\$2,000,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the technology transfer account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Aviation infrastructure (715-00-1000-0010).....\$5,200,000

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the aviation infrastructure account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures

may be made from the aviation infrastructure account for fiscal year 2021 by Wichita state university by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, the moneys appropriated in the aviation infrastructure account for fiscal year 2021 may only be expended for training and equipment expenditures of the national center for aviation training.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund to match federal grant moneys: *Provided further,* That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund for official hospitality.

Provided, That restricted fees shall be limited to receipts for the following accounts: Summer school workshops; technology equipment; concert course; dramatics; continuing education; flight training; gifts and grants (for teaching, research, and capital improvements); capital improvements; testing service; state department of education (vocational); investment income from bequests; sale of surplus books and art objects; public service; veterans counseling and educational benefits; sponsored research; campus privilege fee; student activities; national defense education programs; engineering equipment fee: midwestern student exchange; departmental receipts – for all sales, refunds and other collections or receipts not specifically enumerated above: Provided, however. That the state board of regents, with the approval of the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, may amend or change this list of restricted fees: Provided further, That all restricted fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the appropriate account of the restricted fees fund and shall be used solely for the specific purpose or purposes for which collected: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from this fund to purchase insurance for equipment purchased through research and training grants only if such grants include money for and authorize the purchase of such insurance: And provided further, That expenditures from this fund may be made for the purchase of medical malpractice liability coverage for individuals employed on the medical staff at the student health center: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from this fund for official hospitality.

Provided, That the service clearing fund shall be used for the following service

activities: Central service duplicating and reproducing bureau; automobiles; furniture stores; postal clearing; telecommunications; computer services; and such other internal service activities as are authorized by the state board of regents under K.S.A. 76-755, and amendments thereto.

Faculty of distinction matching fund (715-00-2477-2400)
Kansas career work study program fund (715-00-2536-2020)
Scholarship funds fund (715-00-7211-7000)
Sponsored research overhead fund (715-00-2908-2080)
Economic opportunity act – federal fund (715-00-3265-3100)
Educational opportunity grant – federal fund (715-00-3266-3110)
Nine month payroll clearing account fund (715-00-7717-7030)
Pell grants federal fund (715-00-3366-3120)
Housing system suspense fund (715-00-5705-5160)
WSU housing system depreciation and replacement fund (715-00-5800-5260)
National direct student loan fund (715-00-7519-7010)
WSU housing systems revenue fund (715-00-5100-5250)
WSU housing system surplus fund (715-00-5620-5270)

University federal fund (715-00-3149-3140)No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures may be made by the above agency from the university federal fund to purchase insurance for equipment purchased through research and training grants only if such grants include money for and authorize the purchase of such insurance.
Center of innovation for biomaterials in orthopaedic research – Wichita state university fund (715-00-2750-2700)
Kan-grow engineering fund – WSU (715-00-2155-2155)
Aviation research fund (715-00-2052-2052)No limit
Temporary deposit fund (715-00-9059-9500)No limit
Suspense fund (715-00-9077)
Mandatory retirement annuity clearing fund (715-00-9144-9520)
Voluntary tax shelter annuity clearing fund (715-00-9169-9530)
Agency payroll deduction clearing fund (715-00-9198-9400)
Pre-tax parking clearing fund (715-00-9226-9200)
Parking system project KDFA bond revenue fund (715-00-5148-5000)
Parking system project maintenance KDFA revenue bond fund (715-00-5159-5040)
Sec. 100.

STATE BOARD OF REGENTS

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

Tuition for technical education (561-00-1000-0120).....\$4,500,000

Sec. 101.

#### STATE BOARD OF REGENTS

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (including official hospitality) (561-00-1000-0103)......\$4,547,083

Provided. That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That, during fiscal year 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account for fiscal year 2021 by the state board of regents as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, the state board of regents is hereby authorized to make expenditures from the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account for fiscal year 2021 for attendance at an in-state meeting by members of the state board of regents for participation in matters of educational interest to the state of Kansas, upon approval of such attendance and participation by the state board of regents: And provided further, That each member of the state board of regents attending an in-state meeting so authorized shall be paid compensation, subsistence allowances, mileage and other expenses as provided in K.S.A. 75-3212, and amendments thereto, for members of the legislature: And provided further, That, during fiscal year 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute and in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account for fiscal year 2021 by the state board of regents as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, the state board of regents is hereby authorized to make expenditures from the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account for fiscal year 2021 for attendance at an out-of-state meeting by members of the state board of regents whenever under any provision of law such members of the state board of regents are authorized to attend the out-of-state meeting or whenever the state board of regents authorizes such members to attend the out-of-state meeting for participation in matters of educational interest to the state of Kansas: And provided further. That each member of the state board of regents attending an out-of-state meeting so authorized shall be paid compensation, subsistence allowances, mileage and other expenses as provided in K.S.A. 75-3212, and amendments thereto, for members of the legislature.

 State scholarship program (561-00-1000-4300).....\$1,035,919

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the state scholarship program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures may be made from the state scholarship program account for the state scholarship program under K.S.A. 74-32,239, and amendments thereto, and for the Kansas distinguished scholarship program under K.S.A. 74-3278 through 74-3283, and amendments thereto: And provided further, That, of the total amount appropriated in the state scholarship program account, the amount dedicated for the Kansas distinguished scholarship program shall not exceed \$25,000.

Postsecondary education operating......\$11,893,156

Comprehensive grant program (561-00-1000-4500)......\$18,758,338

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the comprehensive grant program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That \$2,500,000 of such moneys shall be matched on a \$1-for-\$1 basis by the university receiving such moneys.

Ethnic minority scholarship program (561-00-1000-2410)......\$296.498

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the ethnic minority scholarship program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Kansas work-study program (561-00-1000-2000)......\$546,813

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Kansas work-study program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That the state board of regents is hereby authorized to transfer moneys from the Kansas work-study program account to the Kansas career work-study program fund of any institution under its jurisdiction participating in the Kansas work-study program established by K.S.A. 74-3274 et seq., and amendments thereto: And provided further, That all moneys transferred from this account to the Kansas career work-study program fund of any such institution shall be expended for and in accordance with the Kansas work-study program.

ROTC service scholarships (561-00-1000-4600)......\$175,335

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the ROTC service scholarships account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Military service scholarships (561-00-1000-1310)......\$500,314

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the military service scholarships account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That all expenditures from the military service scholarships account shall be made for scholarships awarded under the military service scholarship program act, K.S.A. 74-32,227 through 74-32,232, and amendments thereto.

Teachers scholarship program (561-00-1000-0800)......\$1,547,023

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the teachers scholarship program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

National guard educational assistance (561-00-1000-1300).........\$3,000,434

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the national guard educational assistance account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That moneys in the national guard educational assistance account represent and include the profits derived from the veterans benefit game pursuant to K.S.A. 74-8724, and amendments thereto.

Career technical workforce grant (561-00-1000-2200)......\$114,075

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the career technical workforce grant account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Nursing student scholarship program (561-00-1000-4100).....\$417,255

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the nursing student scholarship program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Optometry education program (561-00-1000-1100)......\$107,089

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the optometry education program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Municipal university operating grant (561-00-1000-1010)	\$12,445,987
Adult basic education (561-00-1000-0900).	\$1,457,031
Postsecondary tiered technical education state aid (561-00-1000-0760)	\$60,967,448

Provided, That if the amount of moneys appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, in the postsecondary tiered technical education state aid account (561-00-1000-0760) is \$58,300,000 or greater, then the difference between the amount of moneys appropriated for the fiscal year 2021 and \$58,300,000 shall be distributed based on each eligible institution's calculated gap, according to the postsecondary tiered technical education state aid act, K.S.A. 71-1801 through 71-1810, and amendments thereto, as determined by the state board of regents: Provided further, That if the amount of moneys appropriated for the above agency for fiscal year 2021 is less than \$58,300,000, then each eligible institution shall receive an amount of moneys proportionally adjusted to equal the amount of moneys such eligible institution received in fiscal year 2016.

*Provided,* That if the amount of moneys appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, in the non-tiered course credit hour grant account is \$76,496,329 or greater, then the difference between the amount of moneys appropriated for the fiscal year 2021 and \$76,496,329 shall be distributed based on each eligible institution's calculated gap, as determined by the state board of regents.

Technology equipment at community colleges and Washburn university (561-00-1000-0500)......\$398,475

*Provided,* That the state board of regents is hereby authorized to make expenditures from the technology equipment at community colleges and Washburn university account for grants to community colleges and Washburn university pursuant to grant applications for the purchase of technology equipment, in accordance with guidelines established by the state board of regents.

 Nurse educator grant program (561-00-1000-4120)......\$188,126

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the nurse educator grant program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That all expenditures from the nurse educator grant program account shall be made for scholarships awarded under the nurse educator service scholarship program act.

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the nursing faculty and supplies grant program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That the state board of regents is hereby authorized to make grants to Kansas postsecondary educational institutions with accredited nursing programs from the nursing faculty and supplies grant program account for expansion of nursing faculty and laboratory supplies: And provided further, That such grants shall be either need-based or competitive and shall be matched on the basis of \$1 from the nursing faculty and supplies grant program account for \$1 from the postsecondary educational institution receiving the grant.

Tuition for technical education (561-00-1000-0120)......\$37,550,000

Provided, That, any unencumbered balance in the tuition for technical education account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the tuition for technical education account of the state general fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from the tuition for technical education account of the state general fund for fiscal year 2021 for the payment of technical education tuition for adult students who are enrolled in technical education classes while obtaining a GED using the accelerating opportunity program and for the postsecondary education institution to provide a transcript to each student who completes such technical education course: And provided further, That, such expenditures shall be in an amount not less than \$500,000.

Governor's scholars program.....\$20,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the governor's scholars program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue

fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

not exceed the following: Osteopathic medical service scholarship repayment fund (561-00-7216-6300)
KAN-ED services fee fund (561-00-2814-2814)No limit
Earned indirect costs fund – federal (561-00-3642-3600)
Faculty of distinction program fund (561-00-7200-7050)
Paul Douglas teacher scholarship fund – federal (561-00-3879-3950)
GED credentials processing fees fund (561-00-2151-2100)
Tuition waiver gifts, grants and reimbursements fund (561-00-7230-7230)
Adult basic education – federal fund (561-00-3042-3000)
federal fund (561-00-3042-3000)

Nursing service scholarship program fund (561-00-7220-6800)
Clearing fund (561-00-9029-9100)
Conversion of materials and equipment fund (561-00-2433-3200)
Motorcycle safety fund (561-00-2366-2360)No limit
Financial aid services fee fund (561-00-2280-2800)
Provided, That expenditures may be made from the financial aid services fee fund for operating expenditures directly or indirectly related to the operating costs associated with student financial assistance programs administered by the state board of regents: Provided further, That the chief executive officer of the state board of regents is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for the processing of applications and other activities related to student financial assistance programs administered by the state board of regents: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or a part of the direct and indirect operating expenses incurred for administering such programs: And provided further, That all moneys received for such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the financial aid services fee fund.
Inservice education workshop fee fund (561-00-2266)
Optometry education repayment fund (561-00-7203-7100)
Teacher scholarship repayment fund (561-00-7205-7200)
Nursing service scholarship repayment fund (561-00-7210-7400)
Nurse educator service scholarship repayment fund (561-00-7231-7300)
ROTC service scholarship repayment fund (561-00-7232-7232)

Carl D. Perkins vocational and technical education – federal fund (561-00-3539-3539)
College access challenge grant program (561-00-3880-3955)
Kansas national guard educational assistance program repayment fund (561-00-7228-7000)
Grants fund (561-00-2525-2500)
Workforce development loan fund (561-00-7518-7900)
Regents clearing fund (561-00-9052-9200)
Private and out-of-state postsecondary educational institution fee fund (561-00-2614-2610)
KanTRAIN federal fund (561-00-3578-3578)No limit
USAC E-rate program federal fund (561-00-3920-3920)
WIOA youth activities federal fund (561-00-3039)No limit
WIOA adult set-aside federal fund (561-00-3270)No limit
WIOA dislocated workers set-aside federal fund (561-00-3428)
Temporary assistance for needy families federal fund (561-00-3323-3323)
Workforce data quality initiative federal fund (561-00-3237-3237)
Postsecondary education performance-based incentives fund (561-00-2777-2777)\$125,000

- (c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the chief executive officer of the state board of regents, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation in an account of the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, to another item of appropriation in an account of the state general fund for fiscal year 2021. The chief executive officer of the state board of regents shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research. As used in this subsection, "account": (1) Means the operating expenditures (including official hospitality) account of the state board of regents (561-00-1000-0103), the university of Kansas (682-00-1000-0023), the university of Kansas medical center (683-00-1000-0503), Kansas state university (367-00-1000-0003), Kansas state university polytechnic campus (367-00-1000-0150), Kansas state university veterinary medical center (368-00-1000-5003), Kansas state university extension systems and agriculture research programs (369-00-1000-1020) and (369-00-1000-1030), Wichita state university (715-00-1000-0003), Emporia state university (379-00-1000-0083), Pittsburg state university (385-00-1000-0063) and Fort Hays state university (246-00-1000-0013); and (2) includes each other account of the state general fund of the state board of regents.
- (d) (1) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by any state educational institution from the moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 for such state educational institution as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by such state educational institution from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 for the purposes of capital improvement projects making energy and other conservation improvements: Provided, That such capital improvement projects are hereby approved for such state educational institution for the purposes of K.S.A. 74-8905(b), and amendments thereto, and the authorization of issuance of one or more series of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with that statute from time to time during fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That no such bonds shall be issued until the state board of regents has first advised and consulted on any such project with the joint committee on state building construction: Provided further, That the amount of the bond proceeds that may be utilized for any such capital improvement project shall be subject to approval by the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, except that such approval also may be given while the legislature is in session: And provided further, That, in addition to such project costs, any such amount of bond proceeds may include costs of issuance, capitalized interest and any required reserves for the payment of principal and interest on such bonds: And provided further, That all moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds shall be

deposited and accounted for as prescribed by applicable bond covenants: *And provided further*; That payments relating to principal and interest on such bonds shall be subject to and dependent upon annual appropriations therefor to the state educational institution for which the bonds are issued: *And provided further*; That each energy conservation capital improvement project for which bonds are issued for financing under this subsection shall be designed and completed in order to have cost savings sufficient to be equal to or greater than the cost of debt service on such bonds: *And provided further*; That the state board of regents shall prepare and submit a report to the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives and the committee on ways and means of the senate on the savings attributable to energy conservation capital improvements for which bonds are issued for financing under this subsection (d)(1) at the beginning of the 2021 regular session of the legislature.

- (2) As used in this subsection, "state educational institution" includes each state educational institution as defined in K.S.A. 76-711, and amendments thereto.
- (e) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state economic development initiatives fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

SEDIF – career technical education capital outlay aid (561-00-1900-1950)......\$2,547,726

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the SEDIF – career technical education capital outlay aid account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That expenditures from the SEDIF – career technical education capital outlay aid account for each grant of career technical education capital outlay aid shall be matched by the postsecondary institution awarded such grant in an amount which is equal to 50% of the grant.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in the SEDIF – technology innovation and internship program account is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Community and technical college competitive grants (561-00-1900-1980)......\$500,000

Provided, That all moneys in the community and technical college competitive grants account shall be for grants awarded to community and technical colleges under a competitive grant program administered by the secretary of commerce: Provided further; That all expenditures from such account shall be for competitive grants to community and technical colleges that require a local match of nonstate moneys on a \$1 for \$1 basis, from either the college or private industry partner, and that will develop innovative programs with private companies needing specific job skills or will meet

other industry needs that cannot be addressed with current funding streams.

- (f) On July 1, 2020, the vocational education capital outlay aid account (561-00-1000-0310) of the state general fund of the state board of regents is hereby redesignated as the career technical education capital outlay aid account (561-00-1000-0310) of the state general fund of the state board of regents.
- (g) On July 1, 2020, the SEDIF vocational education capital outlay aid account (561-00-1900-1950) of the economic development initiatives fund of the state board of regents is hereby redesignated as the SEDIF career technical education capital outlay aid account (561-00-1900-1950) of the economic development initiatives fund of the state board of regents.
- (h) (1) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by any postsecondary educational institution from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 for such postsecondary educational institution as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by such postsecondary educational institution from such moneys for fiscal year 2021 for the purpose of deeming any person who is enrolled as a member of the Kickapoo Tribe of Indians of the Kickapoo Reservation in Kansas, the Prairie Band Potawatomi Nation, the Iowa Tribe of Kansas or the Sac and Fox Nation of Missouri in Kansas and Nebraska, regardless of the residence of such person prior to admission at a postsecondary educational institution, as a resident of this state for the purpose of tuition and fees for attendance at any postsecondary educational institution.
- (2) As used in this subsection, "postsecondary educational institution" means the same as such term is defined in K.S.A. 74-3201b, and amendments thereto.
- (i) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to create a comprehensive three-year, five-year and 10-year plan to examine declining enrollment, changes over time for the state institutions and deferred maintenance for fiscal year 2021 and to provide such plan on or before January 11, 2021, to the senate standing committee on ways and means and the house of representatives standing committee on appropriations.

Sec. 102.

### DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

- (a) On the effective date of this act, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$6,089,218 from the department of corrections outsourcing male offenders account (521-00-1000-0606) of the state general fund of the department of corrections to the operating expenditures account (521-00-1000-0603) of the state general fund of the department of corrections.
- (b) On the effective date of this act, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$250,000 from the department of corrections outsourcing male offenders account (521-00-1000-0606) of the state general

fund of the department of corrections to the local jail payments account (521-00-1000-0510) of the state general fund of the department of corrections. Sec. 103.

#### DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (521-00-1000-0603).....\$51,052,857

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided, however,* That expenditures from the operating expenditures account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,000.

Community corrections (521-00-1000-0220).....\$20,192,277

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the community corrections account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That no expenditures may be made by any county from any grant made to such county from the community corrections account for either half of state fiscal year 2021 that supplant any amount of local public or private funding of existing programs as determined in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary of corrections.

Local jail payments (521-00-1000-0510)......\$1,550,000

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the local jail payments account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 19-1930, and amendments thereto, payments by the department of corrections under K.S.A. 19-1930(b), and amendments thereto, for the cost of maintenance of prisoners shall not exceed the per capita daily operating cost, not including inmate programs, for the department of corrections.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the treatment and programs – offender programs account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

 *Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the treatment and programs – medical and mental account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Department of corrections hepatitis C treatment (521-00-1000-0153)......\$4,500,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the department of corrections hepatitis C treatment account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the treatment and programs – KUMC contract account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures – juvenile services account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Evidence-based programs (521-00-1000-0050)......\$14,321,500

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the evidence-based programs account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-52,164, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, expenditures may be made from this account to conduct research into, and development of, evidence-based practices to reduce offender behavior and recidivism among juveniles: *Provided, however,* That the expenditures for such research and development shall not exceed \$1,000,000.

Prevention and graduated sanctions community grants (521-00-1000-0221)......\$19,311,197

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the prevention and graduated sanctions community grants account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That moneys awarded as grants from the prevention and graduated sanctions community grants account is not an entitlement to communities, but a grant that must meet conditions prescribed by the above agency for appropriate outcomes.

Purchase of services (521-00-1000-0300)......\$906,795

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the purchase of services account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Department of corrections outsourcing male offenders (521-00-1000-0606)......\$10,640,884

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the department of corrections outsourcing male offenders account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Topeka correctional facility – facilities operations (660-00-1000-0303).....\$17,806,740

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Topeka correctional facility – facilities operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the Topeka correctional facility – facilities operations account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$500.

Hutchinson correctional facility – facilities operations (313-00-1000-0303)......\$36,586,671

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Hutchinson correctional facility – facilities operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the Hutchinson correctional facility – facilities operations account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$500.

Lansing correctional facility – facilities operations (400-00-1000-0303).....\$31,862,653

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Lansing correctional facility – facilities operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the Lansing correctional facility – facilities operations account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$500.

Ellsworth correctional facility – facilities operations (177-00-1000-0303)......\$16,858,892

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Ellsworth correctional facility –

facilities operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided, however,* That expenditures from the Ellsworth correctional facility – facilities operations account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$500.

Winfield correctional facility – facilities operations (712-00-1000-0303)......\$15,183,968

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Winfield correctional facility – facilities operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the Winfield correctional facility – facilities operations account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$500.

Norton correctional facility – facilities operations (581-00-1000-0303)......\$18,472,944

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Norton correctional facility – facilities operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the Norton correctional facility – facilities operations account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$500.

El Dorado correctional facility – facilities operations (195-00-1000-0303)......\$33,963,579

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the El Dorado correctional facility – facilities operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the El Dorado correctional facility – facilities operations account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$500.

Larned correctional mental health facility – facilities operations (408-00-1000-0303)......\$12,998,466

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Larned correctional mental health facility – facilities operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the Larned correctional mental health facility – facilities operations account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$500.

Kansas juvenile correctional complex – facilities operations (352-00-1000-0303).....\$20,642,421

Ed Byrne memorial justice assistance grants –

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Kansas juvenile correctional complex –facilities operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the Kansas juvenile correctional complex – facilities operations account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$500: Provided further, That expenditures may be made from this account for educational services contracts, which are hereby authorized to be negotiated and entered into by the above agency with unified school districts or other accredited educational services providers.

Facilities operations (521-00-1000-0303)\$15,866,555
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the facilities operations account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Facilities shrinkage (521-00-1000-0304)\$5,000,000
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the facilities shrinkage account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:
Supervision fees fund (521-00-2116-2100)
Justice reinvestment technical assistance for state governments project – federal fund (521-00-3758-3758)
Residential substance abuse treatment – federal fund (521-00-3006)
Department of corrections forensic psychologist fund (521-00-2492-2492)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures may be made from the department of corrections forensic psychologist fund for general health care contract expenses.

Violence against women – federal fund (521-00-3214)
Sex offender management grant – federal fund (521-00-3206-3206)
Department of corrections state asset forfeiture fund (521-00-2460-2400)
Prisoner reentry intv demo – federal fund (521-00-3063)
Victims of crime act – federal fund (521-00-3260)
Correctional industries fund (522-00-6126-7300)No limit
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures may be made from the correctional industries fund for official hospitality.
Ed Byrne state and local law assistance – federal fund (521-00-3213-3213)
Bulletproof vest partnership – federal fund (521-00-3216-3216)
Safeguard community grants – federal fund (521-00-3225)
Workforce investment act – federal fund (521-00-3237-3237)
Workplace and community transition training – federal fund (521-00-3281-3281)
USMS reimbursement – federal fund (521-00-3562-3562)
Community awareness project – federal fund (521-00-3250-3250)

Corrections training and staff development –

federal fund (521-00-3413-3413)
Second chance act – federal fund (521-00-3895-3895)
Alcohol and drug abuse treatment fund (521-00-2339-2110)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures may be made from the alcohol and drug abuse treatment fund for payments associated with providing treatment services to offenders who were driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs regardless of when the services were rendered.
State of Kansas – department of corrections inmate benefit fund (521-00-7950-5350)
Department of corrections –
alien incarceration grant fund – federal (521-00-3943-3800)

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the department of corrections – general fees fund for operating expenditures for training programs for correctional personnel, including official hospitality: Provided further, That the secretary of corrections is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for such programs: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenses incurred for such training programs, including official hospitality: And provided further, That all fees received for such programs shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the department of corrections – general fees fund.

Juvenile justice delinquency prevention	
federal fund (521-00-3351)	No limit
,	
Juvenile alternatives to detention fund (521-00-2250)	No limit

Provided, That notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 79-4803, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the juvenile alternatives to detention fund for per diem payments to detention centers: Provided, however, That expenditures from the juvenile alternatives to detention fund for per diem payments to detention centers shall not exceed \$97,396: And provided

*further,* That the department of corrections is hereby authorized and directed to make expenditures from the juvenile alternatives to detention fund for fiscal year 2021 for purchase of services.

Juvenile justice fee fund central office (521-00-2257)	No limit
Title IV-E fund (521-00-3337)	No limit
Juvenile delinquency preservation trust fund (521-00-7322-7000)	No limit
Title I program for neglected and delinquent children – federal fund (521-00-3009)	No limit
Topeka correctional facility – community development block grant – federal fund (660-00-3669-3669)	No limit
Topeka correctional facility – bureau of prisons contract – federal fund (660-00-3582-3200)	No limit
Topeka correctional facility – general fees fund (660-00-2090-2090)	No limit
Hutchinson correctional facility – general fees fund (313-00-2051-2000)	No limit
Lansing correctional facility – general fees fund (400-00-2040-2040)	No limit
Ellsworth correctional facility – general fees fund (177-00-2227-2000)	No limit
Winfield correctional facility – general fees fund (712-00-2237-2000)	No limit
Norton correctional facility – general fees fund (581-00-2238-2000)	No limit
El Dorado correctional facility – general fees fund (195-00-2252-2000)	No limit

Larned correctional mental health facility – general fees fund (408-00-2145-2000)
Kansas juvenile correctional complex – fee fund (352-00-2321-2300)
Kansas juvenile correctional complex – gifts, grants and donations fund (352-00-7016-7000)
Kansas juvenile correctional complex – title I neglected and delinquent children – federal fund (352-00-3009)
Byrne grant – federal fund – Kansas juvenile correctional complex (352-00-3057-3057)
National school breakfast program – federal fund – Kansas juvenile correctional complex (352-00-3529-3529)
National school lunch program – federal fund – Kansas juvenile correctional complex (352-00-3530-3530)
Community corrections supervision fund (521-00-2748-2748)
Community corrections special revenue fund (521-00-2447-2447)
Medical assistance program – federal fund (521-00-3414)
Byrne grant – federal fund (521-00-3353-3200)No limit
(c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary of corrections, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from the state general fund for the department of corrections or any correctional institution or correctional facility

under the general supervision and management of the secretary of corrections to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the department

- of corrections or any correctional institution or correctional facility under the general supervision and management of the secretary of corrections. The secretary of corrections shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (d) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3731, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall accept for payment from the secretary of corrections any duly authorized claim to be paid from the local jail payments account (521-00-1000-0510) of the state general fund during fiscal year 2021 for costs pursuant to K.S.A. 19-1930(b), and amendments thereto, even though such claim is not submitted or processed for payment within the fiscal year in which the service is rendered and whether or not the services were rendered prior to the effective date of this act.
- (e) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3731, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall accept for payment from the director of Kansas correctional industries any duly authorized claim to be paid from the correctional industries fund (522-00-6126-7300) during fiscal year 2021 for operating or manufacturing costs even though such claim is not submitted or processed for payment within the fiscal year in which the service is rendered and whether or not the services were rendered prior to the effective date of this act. The director of Kansas correctional industries shall provide to the director of the budget on or before September 15, 2020, a detailed accounting of all such payments made from the correctional industries fund during fiscal year 2020.
- (f) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary of corrections, with the approval of the director of the budget, may make transfers from the correctional industries fund (522-00-6126-7300) to the department of corrections general fees fund (521-00-2427-2450). The secretary of corrections shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (g) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all expenditures made by the department of corrections from the correctional industries fund (522-00-6126-7300) shall be made on budget for all purposes of state accounting and budgeting for the department of corrections.
- (h) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-52,164, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, during fiscal year 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount certified pursuant to K.S.A. 75-52,164(b), and amendments thereto, from each account of the state general fund of a state agency that has been determined by the secretary of corrections to be actual or projected cost savings to the evidence-based programs account of the state general fund of the department of corrections: *Provided*, That the secretary of corrections shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (i) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$1,352,358 from the court cost fund (082-00-2012-2000) of the attorney general to the department of corrections general fees fund (521-00-2427-2450) of the department of corrections.

Sec. 104.

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:  Force protection (034-00-1000-0500)\$40,000
Rehabilitation and repair (034-00-1000-8000)\$125,000
Deferred maintenance\$216,115
Emergency management\$15,000,000
Sec. 105.
ADJUTANT GENERAL
(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:
Operating expenditures (034-00-1000-0053)\$5,622,549
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: <i>Provided, however,</i> That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,500.
Incident management team (034-00-1000-0105)\$15,554
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the incident management team account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Civil air patrol – operating expenditures (034-00-1000-0103)\$42,403
Disaster relief (034-00-1000-0200)\$1,319,554
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the disaster relief account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Military activation payments (034-00-1000-0300)\$6,000
Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the military activation payments account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That all expenditures from the military activation payments

account shall be for military activation payments authorized by and subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3228, and amendments thereto.

Kansas military emergency relief (034-00-1000-0400)......\$9,881

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the Kansas military emergency relief account for grants and interest-free loans, which are hereby authorized to be entered into by the adjutant general with repayment provisions and other terms and conditions including eligibility as may be prescribed by the adjutant general therefor, to members and families of the Kansas army and air national guard and members and families of the reserve forces of the United States of America who are Kansas residents, during the period preceding, during and after mobilization to provide assistance to eligible family members experiencing financial emergencies: Provided further, That such assistance may include, but shall not be limited to, medical, funeral, emergency travel, rent, utilities, child care, food expenses and other unanticipated emergencies: And provided further, That any moneys received by the adjutant general in repayment of any grants or interest-free loans made from the Kansas military emergency relief account shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the Kansas military emergency relief account.

Any unencumbered balance in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, in each of the following accounts is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Force protection, calibrators decommission and replacement, environmental clean-up projects, emergency management.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That the adjutant general is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees agreed upon in memorandums of understanding with other state agencies, local government agencies, for-profit organizations and not-for-profit organizations: Provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the expenses incurred under the provisions of the memorandums of understanding with other state agencies, local government agencies, for-profit organizations and not-for-profit organizations: And provided further, That all fees received pursuant to such memorandums of understanding shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the general fees fund.

Office of emergency communications fund (034-00-2496-2496)
Provided, That the adjutant general is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for recovery of costs associated with the use of the above agency's communication equipment by other state agencies, local government agencies, for-profit organizations and not-for-profit organizations: Provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the expenses incurred in providing for the use of the above agency's communication equipment by other state agencies, local government agencies, for-profit organizations and not-for-profit organizations: And provided further, That all fees received for use of the above agency's communication equipment by other state agencies, local government agencies, for-profit organizations or not-for-profit organizations shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the office of emergency communications fund.
Conversion of materials and equipment fund – military division (034-00-2400-2030)
Adjutant general expense fund (034-00-2357)No limit
State asset forfeiture fund (034-00-2498-2498)No limit
State emergency fund (034-00-2437)No limit
State emergency fund weather disasters 5/4/2007 (034-00-2441)
State emergency fund weather disasters 12/06, 7/07 (034-00-2445)
Disaster grants – public assistance federal fund (034-00-3005)
National guard military operations/maintenance federal fund (034-00-3055-3300)
Econ adjustment/military installation federal fund (034-00-3196-3196)
Disaster assistance to individual/household federal fund (034-00-3405-3405)

Interoperability communication equipment fund (034-00-3449-3449)
Pre-disaster mitigation – federal fund (034-00-3268-3269)
Hazard material training and planning – federal fund (034-00-3121-3310)
State homeland security program federal fund (034-00-3629-3629)
Nuclear safety emergency management fee fund (034-00-2081-2200)
<i>Provided</i> , That, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, the adjutant general may make transfers of moneys from the nuclear safety emergency management fee fund to other state agencies for fiscal year 2021 pursuant to agreements, which are hereby authorized to be entered into by the adjutant general with other state agencies to provide appropriate emergency management plans to administer the Kansas nuclear safety emergency management act, K.S.A. 48-940 et seq., and amendments thereto.
Military fees fund – federal (034-00-2152)No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That all moneys received by the adjutant general from the federal government for reimbursement for expenditures made under agreements with the federal government shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the military fees fund – federal.
Armories and units general fees fund (034-00-2171-2010)
Emergency systems for advanced registration for volunteer health professionals – federal fund (034-00-3748-3748)
Civil air patrol – grants and contributions – federal fund (034-00-7315-7000)
Emergency management performance grant – federal fund (034-00-3342-3342)

NG – federal	forfeiture fund (034-00-2184-2100)	No limit
Inaugural exp	pense fund (034-00-2003-2300)	No limit
	ary emergency -00-2658-2650)	No limit

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the Kansas military emergency relief fund for grants and interest-free loans, which are hereby authorized to be entered into by the adjutant general with repayment provisions and other terms and conditions including eligibility as may be prescribed by the adjutant general therefor, to members and families of the Kansas army and air national guard and members and families of the reserve forces of the United States of America who are Kansas residents, during the period preceding, during and after mobilization to provide assistance to eligible family members experiencing financial emergencies: Provided further, That such assistance may include, but shall not be limited to, medical, funeral, emergency travel, rent, utilities, child care, food expenses and other unanticipated emergencies: And provided further, That any moneys received by the adjutant general in repayment of any grants or interest-free loans made from the Kansas military emergency relief fund shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the Kansas military emergency relief fund.

Emergency management assistance compact	
federal fund (034-00-3609-3605)	No limit
Public safety interoperable	
communications grant program	
federal fund (034-00-3340-3340)	No limit
Military construction national guard	
federal fund (034-00-3192-3192)	No limit
(11 11 1 1 1 )	
National around similar results amounts mitiga	
National guard civilian youth opportunities federal fund (034-00-3193-3193)	No limit
reaerai fulia (034-00-3193-3193)	NO IIIIII
Hazard mitigation grant	
federal fund (034-00-3019)	No limit
Citizen corps federal fund (034-00-3341-3341)	No limit
Law enforcement terrorism prevention program	
	No limit
federal fund (034-00-3613-3600)	INO IIMII

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the great plains joint regional training center fee fund for use of the great plains joint regional training center by other state agencies, local government agencies, for-profit organizations and not-for-profit organizations: Provided further, That the adjutant general is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for recovery of costs associated with the use of the great plains joint regional training center by other state agencies, local government agencies, for-profit organizations and not-for-profit organizations: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the expenses incurred in providing for the use of the great plains joint regional training center by other state agencies, local government agencies, for-profit organizations and not-for-profit organizations: And provided further, That all fees received for use of the great plains joint regional training center by other state agencies, local government agencies, for-profit organizations or not-for-profit organizations shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the great plains joint regional training center fee fund.

State and local implementation grant program – federal fund (034-00-3576-3576)	No limit
Tederal Turid (054-00-5570-5570)	
Military honors funeral fund (034-00-2789-2789)	No limit

*Provided,* That the adjutant general is hereby authorized to accept gifts and donations of money during fiscal year 2021 for military funeral honors or purposes related thereto: *Provided further,* That such gifts and donations of money shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the military honors funeral fund.

- In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the adjutant general from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 and from which expenditures may be made for salaries and wages, as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the adjutant general from such moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 48-205, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, in addition to other positions within the adjutant general's department in the unclassified service as prescribed by law for additional positions in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act: Provided, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-2935, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the adjutant general may appoint a deputy adjutant general, who shall have no military command authority, and who may be a civilian and shall have served at least five years as a commissioned officer with the Kansas national guard, who will perform such duties as the adjutant general shall assign, and who will serve in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act: Provided further, That the position of such deputy adjutant general in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act shall be established by the adjutant general within the position limitation established for the adjutant general on the number of full-time and regular part-time positions equated to full-time, excluding seasonal and temporary positions. paid from appropriations for fiscal year 2021 made by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature.
- (d) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$320,000 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the office of emergency communications fund (034-00-2496-2496) of the adjutant general.
- (e) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the adjutant general, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021, from the state general fund for the adjutant general to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state general fund for the adjutant general: *Provided*, That the adjutant general shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.

Sec. 106.

## STATE FIRE MARSHAL

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures, other than refunds authorized by law, purchases of nationally recognized adopted codes for resale and federally reimbursed overtime, shall not exceed the following:

Fire marshal fee fund (234-00-2330-2000).....\$5,740,379

*Provided,* That expenditures from the fire marshal fee fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,000.

*Provided,* That, during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of any statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from the boiler inspection fee fund for fiscal year 2021 by the above agency by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from the boiler inspection fee fund for operating expenses of the above agency.

Provided, That expenditures may be made by the state fire marshal from the emergency response fund for fiscal year 2021 for the purposes of responding to specific incidences of emergencies related to hazardous materials or search and rescue incidents without prior approval of the state finance council: Provided, however, That expenditures from the emergency response fund during fiscal year 2021 for the purposes of responding to any specific incidence of an emergency related to hazardous materials or search and rescue incidents without prior approval by the state finance council shall not exceed \$25,000, except upon approval by the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, except that such approval also may be given while the legislature is in session.

Cigarette fire safety standard and firefighter protection

- (b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, the state fire marshal, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer funds from the fire marshal fee fund (234-00-2330-2000) to the emergency response fund (234-00-2589) of the state fire marshal. The state fire marshal shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research and the director of the budget: *Provided*, That the aggregate amount of such transfers for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, shall not exceed \$500,000.
- During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of the budget and the director of legislative research shall consult periodically and review the balance credited to and the estimated receipts to be credited to the fire marshal fee fund (234-00-2330-2000) during fiscal year 2021, and, upon a finding by the director of the budget in consultation with the director of legislative research that the total of the unencumbered balance and estimated receipts to be credited to the fire marshal fee fund during fiscal year 2021 are insufficient to fund the budgeted expenditures and transfers from the fire marshal fee fund for fiscal year 2021 in accordance with the provisions of appropriation acts, the director of the budget shall certify such finding to the director of accounts and reports. Upon receipt of any such certification, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount of moneys from the emergency response fund (234-00-2589) to the fire marshal fee fund that is required, in accordance with the certification by the director of the budget under this subsection, to fund the budgeted expenditures and transfers from the fire marshal fee fund for the remainder of fiscal year 2021 in accordance with the provisions of appropriation acts, as specified by the director of the budget pursuant to such certification.
- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of the budget and the director of legislative research shall consult periodically and review the balance credited to and the estimated receipts to be credited to the fire marshal fee fund (234-00-2330-2000) and any other resources available to the fire marshal fee fund during the fiscal year 2021, and, upon a finding by the director of the budget in consultation with the director of legislative research that the total of the unencumbered balance and estimated receipts to be credited to the fire marshal fee fund during fiscal year 2021 are

insufficient to meet in full the estimated expenditures for fiscal year 2021 as they become due to meet the financial obligations imposed by law on the fire marshal fee fund as a result of a cash flow shortfall, within the authorized budgeted expenditures in accordance with the provisions of appropriation acts, the director of the budget is authorized and directed to certify such finding to the director of accounts and reports. Upon receipt of any such certification, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount of money specified in such certification from the state general fund to the fire marshal fee fund in order to maintain the cash flow of the fire marshal fee fund for such purposes for fiscal year 2021: Provided, That the aggregate amount of such transfers during fiscal year 2021 pursuant to this subsection shall not exceed \$500,000. Within one year from the date of each such transfer to the fire marshal fee fund pursuant to this subsection, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount equal to the amount transferred from the state general fund to the fire marshal fee fund from the fire marshal fee fund to the state general fund in accordance with a certification for such purpose by the director of the budget. At the same time as the director of the budget transmits any certification under this subsection to the director of accounts and reports during fiscal year 2021, the director of the budget shall transmit a copy of such certification to the director of legislative research.

- (e) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, the state fire marshal, may transfer funds from the contract inspections fund (234-00-6122-6122) of the state fire marshal to the fire marshal fee fund (234-00-2330-2000) of the state fire marshal. The state fire marshal shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research and the director of the budget.
- (f) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 2-3907, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the state fire marshal from moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the state fire marshal from such moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 to enter into a memorandum of understanding with the Kansas department of agriculture for the state fire marshal to assume the authority, powers and duties granted to the Kansas department of agriculture regarding the regulation of hemp processors during fiscal year 2021: Provided, That the state fire marshal shall adopt any rules and regulations relating to the regulation of hemp processors necessary for the health, welfare and safety of the public: Provided further, That the state fire marshal shall require, as a qualification for all individuals seeking to engage in the extraction of cannabinoids, including the disposal of such cannabinoids, from industrial hemp to be fingerprinted and to submit to a state and national criminal history record check in conformity with all state and federal requirements: And provided further, That the state fire marshal is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees agreed upon in the memorandum of understanding with the Kansas department of agriculture to recover all or part of the expenses incurred under the provisions of the memorandum of understanding with the department for the regulation of hemp processors: And provided further, That all fees received pursuant to such memorandum of understanding shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the fire marshal fee fund: And provided,

however, That, such fee shall not exceed \$1,000.

Sec. 107.

# KANSAS HIGHWAY PATROL

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That all moneys received from the sale of used equipment, recovery of and reimbursements for expenditures and any other source of revenue shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the general fees fund, except as otherwise provided by law: Provided further, That notwithstanding the provisions of article 66 of chapter 75 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the general fees fund, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such fund to sell the personal sidearm, with a trigger lock, of a part-time state law enforcement officer to such officer, subject to the following: (1) Such officer is resigning; (2) the sale of such personal sidearm shall be for the amount equal to the total of the fair market value of the sidearm, as fixed by the superintendent, plus the cost of the trigger lock; and (3) no sale of a personal sidearm shall be made to any resigning officer unless the superintendent determines that the employment record and performance evaluations of each such officer are satisfactory: And provided further, That all proceeds from the sale of personal sidearms and trigger locks shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the general fees fund.

For patrol of Kansas	
turnpike fund (280-00-2514-2500)	No limit

*Provided,* That expenditures shall be made from the for patrol of Kansas turnpike fund for necessary moving expenses in accordance with K.S.A. 75-3225, and amendments thereto.

Highway patrol motor vehicle fund (280-00-2317-2800)	No limit
State forfeiture fund – pending (280-00-2264-2264)	No limit
Kansas highway patrol state forfeiture fund (280-00-2413-2100)	No limit

*Provided,* That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 60-4117, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, expenditures may be made from the Kansas highway patrol state forfeiture fund for salaries and wages, and associated fringe benefits of non-supervisory personnel.

Disaster grants – public assistance – federal fund (280-00-3005-3005)
Edward Byrne memorial assistance grant – state and local law enforcement – federal fund (280-00-3213-3213)
Bulletproof vest partner – federal fund (280-00-3216-3216)
Performance registration information system management – federal fund (280-00-3239-3239)
Commercial vehicle information system network – federal fund (280-00-3244-3244)
Highway planning and construction – federal fund (280-00-3333-3333)
KHP federal forfeiture – federal fund (280-00-3545)
Provided, That expenditures may be made from the KHP federal forfeiture – fund by the above agency for the capital improvement project or projects for troop F headquarters.
High intensity drug trafficking areas – federal fund (280-00-3615-3000)
Homeland security program – federal fund (280-00-3629)
Edward Byrne memorial justice assistance grant – federal fund (280-00-3057)

Emergency ops cntr – federal fund (280-00-3808-3808)
State and community highway safety – federal fund (280-00-3815-3815)
Gifts and donations fund (280-00-7331)
Provided, That expenditures from the gifts and donations fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,000.
Motor carrier safety assistance program state fund (280-00-2208)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures shall be made from the motor carrier safety assistance program state fund for necessary moving expenses in accordance with K.S.A. 75-3225, and amendments thereto.
National motor carrier safety assistance program – federal fund (280-00-3073)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures shall be made from the national motor carrier safety assistance program – federal fund for necessary moving expenses in accordance with K.S.A. 75-3225, and amendments thereto.
Aircraft fund – on budget (280-00-2368-2360)No limit
Highway safety fund (280-00-2217-2250)
Capitol area security fund (280-00-6143-6100)No limit
Vehicle identification number fee fund (280-00-2213)
Motor vehicle fuel and storeroom sales fund (280-00-6155-6200)

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the motor vehicle fuel and storeroom sales fund to acquire and sell commodities and to provide services to local governments and other state agencies: Provided further, That the superintendent of the Kansas highway patrol is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for such commodities and services: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the expenses incurred in acquiring or providing and selling such commodities

and services: *And provided further,* That all fees received for such commodities and services shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the motor vehicle fuel and storeroom sales fund.

*Provided,* That expenditures from the Kansas highway patrol operations fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$3,000: *Provided further,* That expenditures may be made from the Kansas highway patrol operations fund for the purchase of civilian clothing for members of the Kansas highway patrol assigned to duties pursuant to K.S.A. 74-2105, and amendments thereto: *And provided further,* That the superintendent shall make expenditures from the Kansas highway patrol operations fund for necessary moving expenses in accordance with K.S.A. 75-3225, and amendments thereto.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the highway patrol training center fund for use of the highway patrol training center by other state agencies, local government agencies and not-for-profit organizations: Provided further, That the superintendent of the Kansas highway patrol is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for recovery of costs associated with use of the highway patrol training center by other state agencies, local government agencies and not-for-profit organizations: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the expenses incurred in providing for the use of the highway patrol training center by other state or local government agencies: And provided further, That all fees received for use of the highway patrol training center by other state agencies, local government agencies or not-for-profit organizations shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the highway patrol training center fund.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the executive aircraft fund to provide aircraft services to other state agencies and to purchase liability and property damage insurance for state aircraft: Provided further, That the superintendent of the highway patrol is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for such aircraft services to other state agencies: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenses incurred in providing such services: And provided further, That all fees received for such services shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the executive aircraft fund.

- (b) On or before the  $10^{\text{th}}$  of each month during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the 1122 program clearing fund (280-00-7280-7280) interest earnings based on: (1) The average daily balance of moneys in the 1122 program clearing fund for the preceding month; and (2) the net earnings rate for the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month.
- (c) On July 1, 2020, and January 1, 2021, or as soon thereafter each such date as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer an amount specified by the executive director of the state corporation commission, with the approval of the director of the budget, of not more than \$650,000 from the motor carrier license fees fund (143-00-2812-5500) of the state corporation commission to the motor carrier safety assistance program state fund (280-00-2208) of the Kansas highway patrol.
- (d) On July 1, 2020, October 1, 2020, January 1, 2021, and April 1, 2021, or as soon thereafter each such date as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$13,332,354 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the Kansas highway patrol operations fund (280-00-2034-1100) of the Kansas highway patrol for the purpose of financing the Kansas highway patrol operations. In addition to other purposes for which expenditures may be made from the state highway fund during fiscal year 2021 and notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 68-416, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, transfers and expenditures may be made from the state highway fund during fiscal year 2021 for support and maintenance of the Kansas highway patrol.
- (e) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 68-416, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$295,000 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the highway safety fund (280-00-2217-2250) of the Kansas highway patrol for the purpose of financing the motorist assistance program of the Kansas highway patrol.
- (f) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 68-416, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$250,000 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the general fees fund (280-00-2179-2200) of the Kansas highway patrol for the purpose of financing operating expenditures of the Kansas highway patrol.
- (g) On July 1, 2020, and January 1, 2021, or as soon thereafter each such date as moneys are available, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 74-2136, and

amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$300,000 from the highway patrol motor vehicle fund (280-00-2317-2800) of the Kansas highway patrol to the aircraft fund – on budget (280-00-2368-2360) of the Kansas highway patrol.

(h) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to sell the agency's 1978 Cessna R182 aircraft: *Provided*, That the proceeds from such sale shall be credited to the state highway fund.

Sec. 108.

# ATTORNEY GENERAL – KANSAS BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (083-00-1000-0083).....\$23,159,639

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated to the operating expenditures account for fiscal year 2021: *Provided, however,* That expenditures from the operating expenditures account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$750.

Meth lab cleanup (083-00-1000-0200)......\$50,000

*Provided*, That any unencumbered balance in the meth lab cleanup account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further*, That the above agency is hereby authorized to make expenditures from the meth lab cleanup account to contract for services for remediation of sites determined by law enforcement as hazardous resulting from the production of methamphetamine.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures made from the Kansas bureau of investigation state forfeiture fund shall not be considered a source of revenue to meet normal operating expenses, but for such special, additional law enforcement purposes including direct or indirect operating expenditures incurred for conducting educational classes and training

for special agents and other personnel, including official hospitality.

*Provided,* That expenditures made from the federal forfeiture fund shall not be considered a source of revenue to meet normal operating expenses, but for such special, additional law enforcement purposes including direct or indirect operating expenditures incurred for conducting educational classes and training for special agents and other personnel, including official hospitality.

*Provided,* That in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from the criminal justice information system line fund pursuant to K.S.A. 74-5707, and amendments thereto, expenditures may be made from the criminal justice information system line fund for salaries and wages, contractual services, commodities and capital outlay for the maintenance and support of the Kansas criminal justice information system.

*Provided,* That expenditures may be made from the Kansas bureau of investigation motor vehicle fund to acquire and sell motor vehicles for the Kansas bureau of investigation: *Provided further,* That all moneys received for sale of motor vehicles of the Kansas bureau of investigation shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the Kansas bureau of investigation motor vehicle fund.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the forensic laboratory and materials fee fund for the acquisition of laboratory equipment and materials and for other direct or indirect operating expenditures for the forensic laboratory of the Kansas bureau of investigation: Provided, however, That all expenditures from this fund of moneys received as Kansas bureau of investigation laboratory analysis fees pursuant to K.S.A. 28-176, and amendments thereto, shall be for the purposes authorized by K.S.A. 28-176(e), and amendments thereto: Provided further, That all fees received for such laboratory tests, including all moneys received pursuant to K.S.A. 28-176(a), and amendments thereto, shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the forensic laboratory and materials fee fund.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund for direct or indirect operating expenditures incurred for the following activities: (1) Conducting education and training classes for special agents and other personnel, including official hospitality; (2) purchasing illegal drugs, making contacts and acquiring information leading to illegal drug outlets, contraband and stolen property, and conducting other activities for similar investigatory purposes; (3) conducting investigations and related activities for the Kansas lottery or the Kansas racing and gaming commission; (4) conducting DNA forensic laboratory tests and related activities; (5) preparing, publishing and distributing crime prevention materials; and (6) conducting agency operations: Provided, however, That the director of the Kansas bureau of investigation is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees in order to recover all or part of the direct and indirect operating expenses incurred, except as otherwise hereinafter provided, for the following: (1) Education and training services made available to local law enforcement personnel in classes conducted for special agents and other personnel of the Kansas bureau of investigation; (2) investigations and related activities conducted for the Kansas lottery or the Kansas racing and gaming commission, except that the fees fixed for these activities shall be fixed in order to recover all of the direct and indirect expenses incurred for such investigations and related activities; (3) DNA forensic laboratory tests and related activities; and (4) sale and distribution of crime prevention materials: Provided further, That all fees received for such activities shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the general fees fund: And provided further. That all moneys that are expended for any such evidence purchase, information acquisition or similar investigatory purpose or activity from whatever funding source and that are recovered shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the general fees fund: And provided further, That all moneys received as gifts, grants or donations for the preparation, publication or distribution of crime prevention materials shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 754215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the general fees fund: *And provided further*. That expenditures from any moneys received from the division of alcoholic beverage control and credited to the general fees fund may be made by the Kansas bureau of investigation for all purposes for which expenditures may be made for operating expenditures: *And provided further*, That expenditures from any moneys received from the Kansas criminal justice information system committee and credited to the general fees fund may be made by the Kansas bureau of investigation for all purposes for which expenditures may be made for training activities and official hospitality.

Provided, That the director of the Kansas bureau of investigation is authorized to fix, charge and collect fees in order to recover all or part of the direct and indirect operating expenses for criminal history record checks conducted for noncriminal justice entities including government agencies and private organizations: Provided, however, That all moneys received for such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the record check fee fund: Provided further, That expenditures may be made from the record check fee fund for operating expenditures of the Kansas bureau of investigation.

Intergovernmental service fund (083-00-6119-6100)
Service failed (002 00 011) 0100)
Agency motor pool fund (083-00-6117)
National criminal history improvement program federal fund (083-00-3189-3189)
Public safety partnership and community policing federal fund (083-00-3218-3218)
Forensic DNA backlog reduction
federal fund (083-00-3226-3226)
Coverdell forensic sciences improvement federal fund (083-00-3227-3227)
Anti-gang initiative federal fund (083-00-3229-3229)
Homeland security federal fund (083-00-3199)No limit

State homeland security program federal fund (083-00-3629-3629)
Convicted/arrestee DNA backlog reduction federal fund (083-00-3489-3489)
Disaster grants – public assistance federal fund (083-00-3005-3005)
Ed Byrne memorial justice assistance federal fund (083-00-3057)
Ed Byrne state/local law enforcement federal fund (083-00-3213-3213)
Violence against women – ARRA federal fund (083-00-3214)
AWA implementation grant program federal fund (083-00-3228-3228)
Ed Byrne memorial JAG – ARRA federal fund (083-00-3455-3455)
Convicted offender/arrestee DNA backlog reduction federal fund (083-00-3489-3489)
Convicted offender/arrestee DNA backlog reduction
Convicted offender/arrestee DNA backlog reduction federal fund (083-00-3489-3489)
Convicted offender/arrestee DNA backlog reduction federal fund (083-00-3489-3489)
Convicted offender/arrestee DNA backlog reduction federal fund (083-00-3489-3489)

(c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the attorney general may authorize full-time non-FTE unclassified permanent positions and regular part-time non-FTE unclassified permanent positions for the Kansas bureau of investigation that are paid from appropriations for the attorney general – Kansas bureau of investigation for fiscal year 2021 made by this act or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, which shall be in addition to the number of full-time and regular part-time positions equated to full-time, excluding seasonal and temporary positions, authorized for fiscal year 2021 for the attorney general – Kansas bureau of investigation. The attorney general shall certify each such authorization for non-FTE unclassified permanent positions for the Kansas bureau of investigation to the director of personnel services of the department of administration and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research and the director of the budget.

Sec. 109.

Rural health options

## EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES BOARD

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That the emergency medical services board is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees in order to recover costs incurred for distributing educational videos, replacing lost educational materials and mailing labels of those licensed by the board: Provided further, That such fees may be fixed in order to recover all or part of such costs: And provided further, That all moneys received from such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the emergency medical services operating fund: And provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-6128 or 65-6129b, and amendments thereto, or of any other statute, all moneys received by the emergency medical services board for fees authorized by law for licensure or the issuance of permits, or for any other regulatory duties and functions prescribed by law in the field of emergency medical services, shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the emergency medical services operating fund of the emergency medical services board: And provided further, That expenditures from the emergency medical services operating fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$2,000.

Education incentive grant	
payment fund (206-00-2396-2510)	No limit

*Provided*, That the priority for award of education incentive grants shall be to award such grants to rural areas.

Provided, That, if an organization agrees to receive money from the EMS revolving fund, the organization shall enter into a grant agreement requiring such organization to submit a written report to the emergency medical services board detailing and accounting for all expenditures and receipts related to the use of the moneys received from the EMS revolving fund: Provided further, That the emergency medical services board shall prepare a written report specifying and accounting for all moneys allocated to and expended from the EMS revolving fund: And provided further, That such report shall be submitted to the house of representatives committee on appropriations and the senate committee on ways and means on or before February 1, 2021.

EMS criminal history and fingerprinting fund (206-00-2806-2806)	No limit
National bioterrorism hospital preparedness – federal fund (206-00-3398-3398)	No limit
Highway safety – federal fund (206-00-3815)	No limit
DHH-medicare rural hospital FLEX project – federal fund (206-00-3293)	No limit

(b) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the emergency medical services board from the emergency medical services operating fund (206-00-2326-4000) for fiscal year 2021 by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the emergency medical services board from the emergency medical services operating fund for fiscal year 2021 for the purpose of implementing a grant program for emergency medical services training and educational assistance for persons in underserved areas: *Provided*, That when issuing such grants, first priority shall be given to ambulance services submitting applications seeking grants to pay the cost of recruiting volunteers and cost of the initial courses of training for attendants and instructor-coordinators: *Provided further*, That the second priority shall be given to ambulance services submitting applications seeking grants to pay the cost of continuing education for attendants and instructor-coordinators: *And provided further*, That the third priority shall be given to ambulance services submitting applications seeking grants to pay the cost of education for attendants and instructor-coordinators who are obtaining a postsecondary education degree.

- (c) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the emergency medical services board from the moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for the emergency medical services board for fiscal year 2021, as authorized by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the emergency medical services board from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for the emergency medical services board for fiscal year 2021 to require emergency medical services agencies in each of the six EMS regions of the state to prepare and submit a report of the expenditures made and moneys received in each of the EMS regions that are related to the operation and administration of the Kansas emergency medical services regional operations to the emergency medical services board: *Provided*, That the report for each EMS region shall specify and account for all moneys appropriated from the state treasury for the emergency medical services board and disbursed to each such EMS region for the operation of the education and training of emergency medical attendants in each such EMS region.
- (d) On July 1, 2020, and January 1, 2021, or as soon thereafter each such date as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$150,000 from the emergency medical services operating fund (206-00-2326-4000) to the educational incentive grant payment fund (206-00-2396-2510) of the emergency medical services board.
- (e) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of the budget and the director of legislative research shall consult periodically and review the balance credited to and the estimated receipts to be credited to the emergency medical services operating fund (206-00-2326-4000) during fiscal year 2021, and, upon a finding by the director of the budget in consultation with the director of legislative research that the total of the unencumbered balance and estimated receipts to be credited to the emergency medical services operating fund during fiscal year 2021 are insufficient to fund the budgeted expenditures and transfers from the emergency medical services operating fund for fiscal year 2021 in accordance with the provisions of appropriation acts, the director of the budget shall certify such funding to the director of accounts and reports. Upon receipt of any such certification, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount of moneys from the education incentive grant payment fund (206-00-2396-2510) to the emergency medical services operating fund that is required, in accordance with the certification by the director of the budget under this subsection, to fund the budgeted expenditures and transfers from the emergency medical services operating fund for the remainder of fiscal year 2021 in accordance with the provisions of appropriation acts, as specified by the director of the budget pursuant to such certification.
- (f) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, if any EMS regional council enters into a grant agreement with the emergency medical services board, such council shall be required to submit pursuant to such grant agreement a written report detailing and accounting for all expenditures and receipts of such council during such fiscal year. The emergency medical services board shall prepare a written report specifying and accounting for all moneys received by and expended by each individual council that has reported to the emergency medical services board pursuant to such grant agreement and submit such report to the house of representatives committee on appropriations and the senate committee on ways and means on or before February 1, 2021.

Sec. 110.

#### KANSAS SENTENCING COMMISSION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (626-00-1000-0303)......\$928,345

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from the operating expenditures account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$900.

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the substance abuse treatment programs account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6824, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, in addition to other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the substance abuse treatment program account of the state general fund during fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made from such account for operating costs.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Sec. 111.

## KANSAS COMMISSION ON PEACE OFFICERS' STANDARDS AND TRAINING

(a) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 132(e) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the Kansas commission of peace officers' standards and training fund (529-00-2583-2580) of the Kansas commission on peace officers' standards and training is hereby increased from \$682,467 to \$694,917.

Sec. 112.

# KANSAS COMMISSION ON PEACE OFFICERS' STANDARDS AND TRAINING

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That expenditures from the Kansas commission on peace officers' standards and training fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,000.

Sec. 113.

## KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (046-00-1000-0053).....\$9,890,108

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated to the operating expenditures account for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$10,000.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Water structures – state highway fund (046-00-2043-1080)
Soil amendment fee fund (046-00-2117-1100)No limit
Agricultural liming materials fee fund (046-00-2118-1200)
Weights and measures fee fund (046-00-2165-1500)
Water appropriation certification fund (046-00-2168-1600)
Water resources cost fund (046-00-2110-1020)No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That all moneys received by the secretary of agriculture from any governmental or nongovernmental source to implement the provisions of the Kansas water banking act, K.S.A. 82a-761 through 82a-773, and amendments thereto, which are hereby authorized to be applied for and received, shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the water resources cost fund.
Agriculture seed fee fund (046-00-2187-2720)
Chemigation fee fund (046-00-2194-1800)No limit
Petroleum inspection fee fund (046-00-2550-2550)
Kansas agricultural remediation fund (046-00-2095-1090)
Warehouse fee fund (046-00-2809-4700)
U.S. geological survey cooperative gauge agreement grants fund (046-00-2629-2800)

Provided, That the secretary of agriculture is hereby authorized to enter into a cooperative gauge agreement with the United States geological survey: Provided

Water structures USGS

*further,* That all moneys collected for the construction or operation of river water intake gauges shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the U.S. geological survey cooperative gauge agreement grants fund: *And provided further,* That expenditures may be made from this fund to pay the costs incurred in the construction or operation of river water intake gauges.

Agricultural chemical fee fund (046-00-2800-2900)	limit
Feeding stuffs fee fund (046-00-2801-4000)No	limit
Fertilizer fee fund (046-00-2802-4100)No	limit
Plant pest emergency response fund (046-00-2210-1805)No	limit
Pesticide use fee fund (046-00-2804-4300)No	limit
Egg fee fund (046-00-2808-4600)No	limit
Water structures fund (046-00-2037-1075)No	limit
Meat and poultry inspection fund – federal (046-00-3013)	limit
EPA pesticide performance partnership grant – federal fund (046-00-3295-3290)No	limit
FEMA dam safety – federal fund (046-00-3362-3353)No	limit
State trade and export promotion – federal fund (046-00-3573-3576)No	limit
Conversion of materials and equipment fund (046-00-2402-2200)	limit
Trademark fund (046-00-2333-2360)No	limit

LIDAR grant (046-00-3080-3080)
Water structures NRCS LIDAR grant (046-00-3081-3081)No limit
Specialty crop block grant fund (046-00-3463-3300)
Market development fund (046-00-2331-2351)
<i>Provided</i> , That expenditures may be made from the market development fund for official hospitality: <i>Provided further</i> , That expenditures may be made from the market development fund for loans pursuant to loan agreements, which are hereby authorized to be entered into by the secretary of agriculture: <i>And provided further</i> , That all moneys received by the department of agriculture for repayment of loans made under the agricultural value added center program shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the market development fund.
Reimbursement and recovery fund (046-00-2773-2294)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures may be made from the reimbursement and recovery fund for official hospitality.
Conference registration and disbursement fund (046-00-2772-2101)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures may be made from the conference registration and disbursement fund for official hospitality.
Buffer participation incentive fund (046-00-2517-2510)
Land reclamation fee fund (046-00-2542-2090)
Livestock brand fee fund (046-00-2011-2030)
Livestock market brand inspection fee fund (046-00-2007-2010)

Veterinary inspection	
fee fund (046-00-2009-2020)	No limit
, ,	
Animal dealers	
fee fund (046-00-2207-2050)	No limit

Provided, That expenditures from the animal dealers fee fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$300: Provided further, That expenditures shall be made from the animal dealers fee fund by the livestock commissioner for operating expenditures for an educational course regarding animals and their care and treatment as authorized by K.S.A. 47-1707, and amendments thereto, to be provided through the internet or printed booklets.

Provided, That expenditures from the animal disease control fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$450: Provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of any statute to the contrary, during fiscal year 2021 the Kansas department of agriculture may prorate license fees and alter license due dates as needed in order to transition to online license applications and renewals for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

Provided. That expenditures may be made from the publications fee fund for operating expenditures related to preparation and publication of informational or educational materials related to the programs or functions of the Kansas department of agriculture: Provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-1005, and amendments thereto, to the contrary, the secretary of agriculture is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with a commercial publisher for the printing, distribution and sale of such materials: And provided further, That the secretary of agriculture is hereby authorized to collect fees from such commercial publisher pursuant to contract with the publisher for the sale of such materials: And provided further. That the secretary of agriculture is hereby authorized to receive and accept grants, gifts, donations or funds from any non-federal source for the printing, publication and distribution of such materials: And provided further, That all moneys received from such fees or for such grants, gifts, donations or other funds received for such purpose shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the publications fee fund.

Homeland security grant – federal fund (046-00-3199-3436)
National floodplain insurance assistance (CAP) – federal fund (046-00-3445-3330)
Cooperating technical partners – federal fund (046-00-3203-3210)
Plant and animal disease & pest control – federal fund (046-00-3360)
Market protection/ promotion fund (046-00-3104-3315)
USDA Kansas forestry service – federal fund (046-00-3426-3380)
Food safety fee fund (046-00-2813-4805)
Gifts and donations fund (046-00-7305-7000)No limit
<i>Provided,</i> That the secretary of agriculture is hereby authorized to receive gifts and donations of resources and money for services for the benefit and support of agriculture and purposes related thereto: <i>Provided further,</i> That such gifts and donations of money shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the gifts and donations fund.
General fees fund (046-00-2346-2100)
Provided, That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund for operating expenditures for the regulatory programs of the Kansas department of agriculture and for official hospitality: Provided further, That the director of accounts and reports shall transfer an amount or amounts specified by the secretary of agriculture from any special revenue fund or funds of the department of agriculture that have available moneys to the general fees fund: And provided further, That the director of accounts and reports shall transmit a copy of such transfer request to the director of legislative research.
Lodging fee fund (046-00-2456-2400)
Watershed protect approach/WTR RSRCE MGT fund (046-00-3889)

NRCS contribution agreement farm bill – federal fund (046-00-3917-3800)
Compliance education fee fund (046-00-2757-2757)
Provided, That all expenditures from the compliance education fee fund shall be for the purposes of compliance education: Provided further, That, notwithstanding the provisions of any statute to the contrary, during fiscal year 2021, the secretary of agriculture is hereby authorized to remit and designate amounts of moneys collected for civil fines and penalties by the department of agriculture to the state treasurer for deposit in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, to the credit of the compliance education fee fund: And provided further, That, upon receipt of each such remittance and designation, the state treasurer shall credit the entire amount of such remittance to the compliance education fee fund.
Laboratory testing services fee fund (046-00-2752-2752)
Provided, That expenditures may be made from the laboratory testing services fee fund for administrative operating expenditures of the agriculture laboratory of the Kansas department of agriculture: Provided further, That the director of accounts and reports shall transfer an amount or amounts specified by the secretary of agriculture from any special revenue fund or funds of the department of agriculture that have available moneys to the laboratory testing services fee fund: And provided further, That the director of accounts and reports shall transmit a copy of such transfer request to the director of legislative research.
Arkansas river gaging fund (046-00-2751-2751)No limit
Food/drug administration/research (046-00-3462)
Biofuel infrastructure program (046-00-3579-3579)
AMS farmers market promotion program (046-00-3588-3588)
Grain commodity commission services fund (046-00-2018-1070)
Commercial industrial hemp act licensing fee fund (046-00-2343-2343)

Plant/animal disease and nest control (046-00-3360)

No limit

1 faits animal disease and pest control (040-00-3300)
Service member ag grant (046-00-3185-3185)No limit
(c) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state water plan fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the water plan project or projects specified, the following:
Water resources cost share (046-00-1800-1205)\$2,698,289
Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the water resources cost share account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That the initial allocation for grants to conservation districts for fiscal year 2021 shall be made on a priority basis as determined by the secretary of

in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That the initial allocation for grants to conservation districts for fiscal year 2021 shall be made on a priority basis, as determined by the secretary of agriculture and the provisions of the state water plan: *And provided further,* That expenditures from this account for contractual technical expertise and/or non-salary administration expenditures for the division of conservation of the Kansas department of agriculture shall not exceed the amount equal to 6.0% of the budget amount for fiscal year 2021 for the water resources cost share account.

Nonpoint source	
pollution assistance (046-00-1800-1210)	\$1,857,836

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the nonpoint source pollution assistance account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

```
Conservation district aid (046-00-1800-1220).....$2,342,637
```

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the conservation district aid account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

```
Watershed dam construction (046-00-1800-1240)......$750,000
```

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the watershed dam construction account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: *Provided further,* That expenditures from the watershed dam construction account are hereby authorized for engineering contracts for watershed planning as determined by the secretary of agriculture.

Kansas water quality	
buffer initiatives (046-00-1800-1250)	\$200,000

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Kansas water quality buffer initiatives account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further; That all expenditures from the Kansas water quality buffer initiatives account shall be for grants or incentives to install water quality best management practices: And provided further; That such expenditures may be made from this account from the approved budget amount for fiscal year 2021 in accordance with contracts, which are hereby authorized to be entered into by the secretary of agriculture, for such grants or incentives.

Riparian and wetland program (046-00-1800-1260)
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the riparian and wetland program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Basin management (046-00-1800-0080)\$608,949
Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the basin management account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Water use (046-00-1800-0075)\$72,600
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the water use account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Interstate water issues (046-00-1800-0070)\$490,007
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the interstate water issues account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Kansas conservation reserve enhancement program fund (046-00-1800-1225)
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the Kansas conservation reserve enhancement program fund account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the streambank stabilization projects account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year

Streambank stabilization

2021.

Irrigation technology (046-00-1800-0088)......\$100,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the irrigation technology account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Crop and livestock research (046-00-1800)......\$350,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the crop and livestock research account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary of agriculture, with the approval of the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, or upon specific authorization in an appropriation act of the legislature, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state water plan fund for the Kansas department of agriculture to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state water plan fund for the Kansas department of agriculture: *Provided*, That the secretary of agriculture shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to: (1) The director of legislative research; (2) the chairperson of the house of representatives agriculture and natural resources budget committee; and (3) the appropriate chairperson of the subcommittee on agriculture of the senate committee on ways and means.
- (e) On July 1, 2020, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 68-416, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$128,379 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the water structures state highway fund (046-00-2043-1080) of the Kansas department of agriculture.
- (f) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state economic development initiatives fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Agriculture marketing program (046-00-1900-1110).....\$1,035,436

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the agriculture marketing program account for loans pursuant to loan agreements, which are hereby authorized to be entered into by the secretary of agriculture in accordance with repayment provisions and other terms and conditions as may be prescribed by the secretary of agriculture therefor under the agricultural value added center program.

Sec. 114.

(a) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds of the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from such moneys to provide for the issuance of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with K.S.A. 74-8905, and amendments thereto, for a capital improvement project to renovate the expo center on the state fairgrounds: Provided, That such capital improvement project is hereby approved for the state fair board for the purposes of K.S.A. 74-8905(b), and amendments thereto, and the authorization of the issuance of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with that statute: Provided further, That the state fair board may make expenditures from the moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds for such capital improvement project: And provided further. That expenditures from the moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds for such capital improvement project shall not exceed \$1,247,519 plus all amounts required for costs of bond issuance, costs of interest on the bonds issued for such capital improvement project, credit enhancement costs and any required reserves for the payment of principal and interest on the bonds: And provided further. That all moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds shall be deposited and accounted for as prescribed by applicable bond covenants: And provided further, That debt service for any such bonds for such capital improvement project shall be financed by appropriations from the state fair capital improvements fund (373-00-2533-2500): And provided further, That any such bonds and interest thereon shall be an obligation only of the Kansas development finance authority, shall not constitute a debt of the state of Kansas within the meaning of section 6 or 7 of article 11 of the constitution of the state of Kansas and shall not pledge the full faith and credit or the taxing power of the state of Kansas.

Sec. 115.

#### STATE FAIR BOARD

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Operating expenditures (373-00-1000-0103)......\$150,000

*Provided,* That the above agency shall make expenditures from the operating expenditures account during the fiscal year 2021 to request assistance from other state agencies to negotiate with the city of Hutchinson on the increase of storm water charges and the electric company on how electricity is calculated.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures, other than refunds authorized by law and remittances of sales tax to the department of revenue, shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That expenditures from the state fair fee fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$10,000.

State fair debt service special 

Sec. 116.

### KANSAS WATER OFFICE

- (a) On the effective date of this act, of the \$896,522 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 126(c) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state water plan fund in the assessment and evaluation account (709-00-1800-1110), the sum of \$100,000 is hereby lapsed.
- (b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state water plan fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, for the state water plan project or projects specified, the following:

Flood study (709-00-1800)......\$100,000

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the flood study account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(c) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state water plan fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, for the state water plan project or projects specified, the following:

Arbuckle study (709-00-1800)......\$68,000

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the Arbuckle study account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Sec. 117.

## KANSAS WATER OFFICE

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Water resources operating expenditures (709-00-1000-0303).....\$1,023,178

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the water resources operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,500.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Local water project match fund (709-00-2620-3200)......No limit

*Provided,* That all moneys received from local government entities and instrumentalities to be used to match funds for water projects shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the local water project match fund: *Provided further,* That all moneys credited to this fund shall be used to match state funds or federal funds, or both, for water projects.

*Provided,* That no additional water supply storage space shall be purchased in Milford, Perry, Big Hill or Hillsdale reservoirs during fiscal year 2021, unless a contract is entered into under the state water plan storage act, K.S.A. 82a-1301 et seq., and amendments thereto, to supply water to users that is not held under contract in such reservoirs.

*Provided*, That expenditures may be made from the water marketing fund for the purchase of vessel liability insurance.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the general fees fund for operating expenditures for the Kansas water office, including training and informational programs and official hospitality: Provided further, That the director of the Kansas water office is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for such programs: And provided further, That fees for such programs shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the operating expenses incurred for such programs, including official hospitality: And provided further, That all fees received for such programs and all fees received for providing access to or for furnishing copies of public records shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the general fees fund.

Indirect cost fund (709-00-2419-2419)No limit
Motor pool vehicle replacement fund (709-00-6120-6100)
Reservoir storage beneficial use fund (709-00-2673-2630)
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures may be made by the above agency from the reservoir storage beneficial use fund to call water into service for beneficial uses or to complete studies or take actions necessary to ensure reservoir storage sustainability, subject to the availability of moneys credited to the reservoir storage beneficial use fund.
Republican river water conservation projects – Nebraska moneys fund (709-00-2690-2640)
Republican river water conservation projects – Colorado moneys fund (709-00-2691-2680)
Lower Smoky Hill water supply access fund (709-00-2772-2700)
Milford RCPP federal fund (709-00-3022-3022)No limit
Lower Smoky Hill water supply access fund (709-00-2203-2203)
EPA wetland development grant fund (709-00-3914-3990)
Distribution management plan – CDFA 97.042No limit
Emergency management performance grant (709-00-3342-3342)
HHPD rehabilitation – CDFA 97.041 (709-00-0000-0000)
South fork Republican river water conservation projects fundNo limit

Provided, That during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the above agency shall pay an amount equal to the amount certified pursuant to subsection (b) in one payment from the south fork Republican river water conservation projects fund as a grant pursuant to a grant agreement entered into by the Kansas water office and the Cheyenne county conservation district, which grant agreement is hereby authorized to be entered into by such entities: Provided further. That in accordance with the grant agreement, such moneys shall be used exclusively for the purposes of paying all or a portion of the costs of the projects specified in K.S.A. 82a-1804(g), and amendments thereto, in the area lying in the south fork of the upper Republican river basin in northwest Kansas in all or parts of Cheyenne and Sherman counties: And provided further, That in accordance with the grant agreement, all expenditures of such moneys shall be approved by the Cheyenne county conservation district and the Kansas water office: And provided further, That, in accordance with the grant agreement, such moneys shall be administered by the Cheyenne county conservation district and any interest earned on such moneys shall be used for the purposes prescribed by this subsection: And provided further, That in accordance with the grant agreement, all expenditures and the status of new projects approved by the Cheyenne county conservation district shall be reported not later than November 1 of each calendar year to the Kansas water office.

(c) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state water plan fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the state water plan project or projects specified, the following:

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the assessment and evaluation account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

MOU – storage operations and maintenance (709-00-1800-1150)......\$480,100

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the MOU – storage operations and maintenance account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Stream gaging (709-00-1800-1190)......\$423,130

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the stream gaging account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Technical assistance to water users (709-00-1800-1200)......\$325,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the technical assistance to water users account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year

2021.

Milford lake watershed regional conservation partnership program (709-00-1800-1280)\$200,000
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the Milford lake watershed regional conservation partnership program account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Best management practices implementation (709-00-1800-1286)\$1,000,000
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the best management practices implementation account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Water vision education (709-00-1800-1281)\$100,000
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the water vision education account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Reservoir bathymetric surveys and biological research (709-00-1800-1275)\$350,000
<i>Provided,</i> That any unencumbered balance in the reservoir bathymetric surveys and biological research account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Water technology farms (709-00-1800-1282)\$75,000
<i>Provided</i> , That any unencumbered balance in the water technology farms account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Equus Beds aquifer chloride plume pilot (709-00-1800-1287)
<i>Provided</i> , That any unencumbered balance in the equus beds aquifer chloride plume pilot account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.
Water injection dredging\$660,000

- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of the Kansas water office, with approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state water plan fund for the Kansas water office to another item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state water plan fund for the Kansas water office: *Provided*, That the director of the Kansas water office shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to: (1) The director of legislative research; (2) the chairperson of the house of representatives agriculture and natural resources budget committee; and (3) the appropriate chairperson of the subcommittee on natural resources of the senate committee on ways and means.
- (e) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, if it appears that the resources are insufficient to meet in full the estimated expenditures as they become due to meet the financial obligations imposed by law on the water marketing fund (709-00-2255-2100) of the Kansas water office as a result of a cash flow shortfall, the pooled money investment board is authorized and directed to loan to the director of the Kansas water office a sufficient amount or amounts of moneys to maintain the cash flow of the water marketing fund upon approval of each such loan by the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto. No such loan shall be made unless the terms have been approved by the director of the budget. A copy of the terms of each such loan shall be submitted to the director of legislative research. The pooled money investment board is authorized and directed to use any moneys in the operating accounts, investment accounts or other investments of the state of Kansas to provide the funds for each such loan. Each such loan shall be repaid without interest within one year from the date of the loan.
- (f) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, if it appears that the resources are insufficient to meet in full the estimated expenditures as they become due to meet the financial obligations imposed by law on the water marketing fund (709-00-2255-2100) of the Kansas water office as a result of increases in water rates, fees or charges imposed by the federal government, the pooled money investment board is authorized and directed to loan to the director of the Kansas water office a sufficient amount or amounts of moneys to reimburse the water marketing fund for increases in water rates, fees or charges imposed by the federal government and to allow the Kansas water office to spread such increases to consumers over a longer period, except that no such loan shall be made unless the terms thereof have been approved by the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto. The pooled money investment board is authorized and directed to use any moneys in the operating accounts, investment accounts or other investments of the state of Kansas to provide the funds for each such loan. Each such loan shall bear interest at a rate equal to the net earnings rate for the pooled money investment portfolio at the time of the making of such loan. Such loan shall not be deemed to be an indebtedness or debt of the state of Kansas within the meaning of section 6 of article 11 of the constitution of the state of Kansas. Upon certification to the pooled money investment board by the director of the Kansas water office of the amount of each loan authorized pursuant to this subsection, the pooled money investment board shall transfer each such amount certified by the director of the Kansas water office from the state bank account or

accounts to the water marketing fund of the Kansas water office. The principal and interest of each loan authorized pursuant to this subsection shall be repaid in payments payable at least annually for a period of not more than five years.

- (g) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer an amount or amounts specified by the director of the Kansas water office prior to April 1, 2021, from the water marketing fund (709-00-2255-2100) to the state general fund, in accordance with the provisions of the state water plan storage act, K.S.A. 82a-1301 et seq., and amendments thereto, and rules and regulations adopted thereunder, for the purposes of making repayments to the state general fund for moneys advanced for annual capital cost payments for water supply storage space in reservoirs.
- (h) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the Kansas water office from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or any special revenue fund or funds for the above agency for fiscal year 2021 by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the Kansas water office from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 to provide for the Kansas water office to lead database coordination of water quality and quantity data for all state water agencies and cooperating federal agencies to facilitate policy-making and such other matters relating thereto.
- (i) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 82a-1315c, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, on July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$410,574 from the water marketing fund (709-00-2255-2100) of the Kansas water office to the state general fund.
- (j) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$1,260,426 from the state water plan fund to the state general fund: *Provided*, That the amount transferred from the state water plan fund to the state general fund pursuant to this subsection is to reimburse the state general fund for bond payments for the John Redmond reservoir dredging project.
- (k) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of the Kansas water office shall certify to the director of accounts and reports the amount of moneys expended by the Kansas department of agriculture from the state general fund that is attributable to the administration of the state water plan storage act, K.S.A. 82a-1301 et seq., and amendments thereto, or the water assurance program act, K.S.A. 82a-1330 et seq., and amendments thereto: *Provided*, That upon receipt of such certification, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount certified from the water marketing fund (709-00-2255-2100) of the Kansas water office to the state general fund: *Provided further*, That the director of the Kansas water office shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of the budget and the director of legislative research.
- (I) On October 1, 2020, the director of the Kansas water office shall certify the amount of moneys in the Republican river water conservation projects Colorado moneys fund and shall transmit such certification, along with the amount to be transferred, to the director of accounts and reports. Upon receipt of such certification, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount specified by the director of the Kansas water office, but not less than \$500,000, from the Republican river water conservation projects Colorado moneys fund to the south fork Republican river water conservation projects fund:

Provided, That the director of the Kansas water office shall transmit a copy of such certification to the director of the budget and to the director of legislative research. Sec. 118.

## KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE, PARKS AND TOURISM

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the following:

Emergency flood damage repair....\$2,000,000

- (b) On the effective date of this act, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$45,167 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the department access roads fund (710-00-2178-2760) of the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism.
- (c) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by section 164(j) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas on the wildlife restoration fund (710-00-3418-3422) of the Kansas wildlife, parks and tourism is hereby increased from \$4,504,250 to \$4,729,250.

Sec. 119.

## KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE, PARKS AND TOURISM

Provided. That any unencumbered balance in the operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided, however, That expenditures from this account for official hospitality shall not exceed \$1,000: Provided further, That, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the operating expenditures account for fiscal year 2021, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from the operating expenditures account for fiscal year 2021 to include a provision on the calendar year 2021 applications for hunting licenses, fishing licenses and annual park permits for the applicant to make a voluntary contribution of \$2 or more to support the annual licenses issued to Kansas disabled veterans, annual licenses issued to Kansas national guard members, and annual park permits issued to Kansas national guard members: And provided further, That all moneys received as voluntary contributions to support the annual licenses issued to Kansas disabled veterans, annual licenses issued to Kansas national guard members, and annual park permits issued to Kansas national guard members shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, to the credit of the free licenses and permits fund.

State parks operating

expenditures (710-00-1900-1920).....\$1,598,719

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the state parks operating expenditures account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

*Provided,* That expenditures from the travel and tourism operating expenditures fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$4,000.

Reimbursement for annual licenses issued to national guard members (710-00-1900-1930)......\$36,342

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the reimbursement for annual licenses issued to national guard members account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That all moneys in the reimbursement for annual licenses issued to national guard members account shall be expended to pay the wildlife fee fund for the cost of fees for annual hunting and annual fishing licenses issued for the calendar year 2021 to Kansas army or air national guard members, which licenses are hereby authorized to be issued without charge to such members in accordance with policies and procedures prescribed by the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism therefor and subject to the limitation of the moneys appropriated and available in the reimbursement for annual licenses issued to national guard members account to pay the wildlife fee fund for such licenses.

Reimbursement for annual park permits issued to national guard members (710-00-1900-1940)......\$17,922

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the reimbursement for annual park permits issued to national guard members account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That all moneys in the reimbursement for annual park permits issued to national guard members account shall be expended to pay the parks fee fund for the cost of fees for annual park vehicle permits issued for the calendar year 2021 to Kansas army or air national guard members, which annual park vehicle permits are hereby authorized to be issued without charge to such members in accordance with policies and procedures prescribed by the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism therefor and subject to the limitation of the moneys appropriated and available in the reimbursement for annual park permits issued to national guard members account to pay the parks fee fund for such permits: Provided further, That not more than one annual park vehicle permit per family shall be eligible to be paid from this account.

Provided, That any unencumbered balance in the reimbursement for annual licenses issued to Kansas disabled veterans account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021: Provided further, That all moneys in the reimbursement for annual licenses issued to Kansas disabled veterans account shall be expended to pay the wildlife fee fund for the cost of fees for annual hunting and annual fishing licenses issued for the calendar year 2021 to Kansas disabled veterans, which licenses are hereby authorized to be issued without charge to such veterans in accordance with policies and procedures prescribed by the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism therefor and subject to the limitation of the moneys appropriated and available in the reimbursement for annual licenses issued to Kansas disabled veterans account to pay the wildlife fee fund for such licenses: Provided, however, That to qualify for such license without charge, the resident disabled veteran shall have been separated from the armed services under honorable conditions, have a disability certified by the Kansas commission on veterans affairs as being service connected and such service-connected disability is equal to or greater than 30%: And provided further, That no other hunting or fishing licenses or permits shall be eligible to be paid from this account.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Wildlife fee fund (710-00-2300-2890)......\$34,581,488

Provided, That additional expenditures may be made from the wildlife fee fund for fiscal year 2021 for the purposes of compensating federal aid program expenditures, if necessary, in order to comply with requirements established by the United States fish and wildlife service for the utilization of federal aid funds: Provided further, That all such expenditures shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed upon the wildlife fee fund for fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism shall report all such expenditures to the governor and the legislature as appropriate: And provided further, That expenditures from the wildlife fee fund for official hospitality shall not exceed \$4,000.

*Provided,* That additional expenditures may be made from the parks fee fund for fiscal year 2021 for the purposes of compensating federal aid program expenditures, if necessary, in order to comply with requirements established by the United States fish and wildlife service for the utilization of federal aid funds: *Provided further,* That all such expenditures shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed upon the

parks fee fund for fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism shall report all such expenditures to the governor and the legislature as appropriate.

Boating fee fund (710-00-2245-2813).....\$1,194,340

Provided, That additional expenditures may be made from the boating fee fund for fiscal year 2021 for the purposes of compensating federal aid program expenditures, if necessary, in order to comply with requirements established by the United States fish and wildlife service for the utilization of federal aid funds: Provided further, That all such expenditures shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed upon the boating fee fund for fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism shall report all such expenditures to the governor and the legislature as appropriate.

Provided, That expenditures may be made by the above agency from the central aircraft fund for aircraft operating expenditures, for aircraft maintenance and repair, to provide aircraft services to other state agencies and for the purchase of state aircraft insurance: Provided further, That the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for the provision of aircraft services to other state agencies: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed to recover all or part of the operating expenditures incurred in providing such services: And provided further, That all fees received for such services shall be credited to the central aircraft fund.

Department access

roads fund (710-00-2178-2761)
Wildlife, parks and tourism nonrestricted fund (710-00-2065-2120)
Prairie spirit rails-to-trails fee fund (710-00-2025-2030)
Plant and animal disease and pest control fund (710-00-3360-3361)
Nongame wildlife improvement fund (710-00-2593-3300)
Wildlife conservation fund (710-00-2100-2020)

Federally licensed wildlife areas fund (710-00-2670-3400)
State agricultural production fund (710-00-2050-5100)
Land and water conservation fund – state (710-00-3794-3920)
Land and water conservation fund – local (710-00-3794-3795)
Development and promotions fund (710-00-2097-2010)
Department of wildlife
and parks private gifts and donations fund (710-00-7335-7000)
Fish and wildlife restitution fund (710-00-2166-2750)
Parks restitution fund (710-00-2156-2100)No limit
Nonfederal grants fund (710-00-2063-2090)No limit
Disaster grants – public assistance fund (710-00-3005-3005)
Soil/water conservation fund (710-00-3083-3083)
Navigation projects fund (710-00-3191-3191)No limit
Recreation resource management fund (710-00-3197-3197)
Cooperative endangered species conservation fund (710-00-3198-3198)
Landowner incentive program fund (710-00-3200-3210)

Bulletproof vest partnership fund (710-00-3216-3216)
Recreational trails program fund (710-00-3238-3238)
Highway planning/ construction fund (710-00-3333-3333)
Americorps – ARRA fund (710-00-3404-3405)
Cooperative forestry assistance fund (710-00-3426-3426)
North America wetland conservation fund (710-00-3453-3453)
Wildlife services fund (710-00-3485-3485)No limit
Fish/wildlife management assistance fund (710-00-3495-3495)
Fish/wildlife core act fund (710-00-3513-3513)No limit
Great plains LCCNo limit
USDA grant manual update
Watershed protection/flood prevention fund (710-00-3906-3906)
Suspense fund (710-00-9159-9000)
Employee maintenance deduction clearing fund (710-00-9120-9100)
Cabin revenue fund (710-00-2668-2660)
Feed the hungry fund (710-00-2642-2640)No limit
State wildlife grants fund (710-00-3204-3204)No limit

Boating safety financial assistance fund (710-00-3251-3250)
Wildlife restoration fund (710-00-3418-3418)No limit
Sport fish restoration fund (710-00-3490-3490)No limit
Outdoor recreation acquisition, development and planning fund (710-00-3794-3794)
Publication and other sales fund (710-00-2399-2399)No limit
Provided, That in addition to other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from the publication and other sales fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made from such fund for the purpose of compensating federal aid program expenditures, if necessary, in order to comply with the requirements established by the United States fish and wildlife service for utilization of federal aid funds: Provided further, That all such expenditures shall be in addition to any expenditures made from the publication and other sales fund for fiscal year 2021: And provided further, That the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism shall report all such expenditures to the governor and legislature as appropriate.
Free licenses and permits fund (710-00-2493-2493)
permits fund (710-00-2493-2493)

- (c) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, from which expenditures may be made for salaries and wages, as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from such moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, from which expenditures may be made for salaries and wages, for progression within the existing pay structure for natural resource officers of the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism: *Provided, however*, That notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 75-2935, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism shall not require such officer to transfer into the unclassified service in order to progress within the existing pay structure pursuant to this subsection.
- (d) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 32-9,100, and amendments thereto, or any other statute to the contrary, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism from moneys appropriated from the wildlife fee fund (710-00-2300-2880) of the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from such moneys during fiscal year 2021 to issue senior lifetime hunting and fishing licenses to Kansas resident disabled veterans who are 65 years of age or older: Provided, That such licenses are hereby authorized to be issued without charge to such veterans in accordance with policies and procedures prescribed by the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism: Provided further. That to qualify for such license without charge, the resident disabled veteran shall have been separated from the armed services under honorable conditions and have a disability certified by the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office as being service-related and such service-connected disability is equal to or greater than 30%.

Sec. 120.

#### DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That no expenditures may be made from the state highway fund other than for the purposes specifically authorized by this or other appropriation act.

County equalization and adjustment fund (276-00-4210-4210)\$2,500,000
Highway special permits fund (276-00-2576-2576)\$0
Highway bond debt service fund (276-00-4707-9000)
Rail service improvement fund (276-00-2008-2100)
Transportation revolving fund (276-00-7511-1000)
Rail service assistance program loan guarantee fund (276-00-7502-7200)
Railroad rehabilitation loan guarantee fund (276-00-7503-7500)

Provided, That expenditures from the railroad rehabilitation loan guarantee fund shall not exceed the amount that the secretary of transportation is obligated to pay during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in satisfaction of liabilities arising from the unconditional guarantee of payment that was entered into by the secretary of transportation in connection with the mid-states port authority federally taxable revenue refunding bonds, series 1994, dated May 1, 1994, authorized by K.S.A. 12-3420, and amendments thereto, and guaranteed pursuant to K.S.A. 75-5031, and amendments thereto.

Provided, That expenditures may be made from the interagency motor vehicle fuel sales fund to provide and sell motor vehicle fuel to the Kansas highway patrol: Provided further, That the secretary of transportation is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect fees for motor vehicle fuel sold to the Kansas highway patrol: And provided further, That such fees shall be fixed in order to recover all or part of the expenses incurred in providing motor vehicle fuel to the Kansas highway patrol: And provided further, That all fees received for such sales of motor vehicle fuel shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the interagency motor vehicle fuel sales fund.

Coordinated public transportation assistance fund (276-00-2572-0300)
Public use general aviation airport development fund (276-00-4140-4140)
Highway bond proceeds fund (276-00-4109-4110)No limit
Communication system revolving fund (276-00-7524-7700)
Traffic records enhancement fund (276-00-2356-2000)
Other federal grants fund (276-00-3122-3100)No limit
Kansas intermodal transportation revolving fund (276-00-7552-7551)
Conversion of materials and equipment fund (276-00-2256-2256)
Seat belt safety fund (276-00-2216-2216)
(b) Expenditures may be made by the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from the state highway fund (276-00-4100-4100) for the following specified purposes: <i>Provided</i> , That expenditures from the state highway fund for fiscal year 2021, other than refunds authorized by law for the following specified purposes, shall not exceed the limitations prescribed therefor as follows:
Agency operations (276-00-4100-0403)\$279,364,045
<i>Provided,</i> That expenditures from the agency operations account of the state highway fund for official hospitality by the secretary of transportation shall not exceed \$5,000: <i>Provided further,</i> That expenditures may be made from this account for engineering services furnished to counties for road and bridge projects under K.S.A. 68-402e, and amendments thereto.
Conference fees (276-00-4100-2200)
Provided, That the secretary of transportation is hereby authorized to fix, charge and collect conference, training and workshop attendance and registration fees for

conferences, training seminars and workshops sponsored or cosponsored by the department: Provided further, That such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the conference fees account of the state highway fund: And provided further, That expenditures may be made from this account to defray all or part of the costs of the conferences, training seminars and workshops.

Substantial maintenance (276-00-4100-0700)No limit
Claims (276-00-4100-1150)
Payments for city connecting links (276-00-4100-6200)
Federal local aid programs (276-00-4100-3000)No limit
Bond services fees (276-00-4100-0580)
Other capital improvements (276-00-4100-8075)No limit
<i>Provided</i> , That the secretary of transportation is authorized to make expenditures from the other capital improvements account to undertake a program to assist cities and counties with railroad crossings of roads not on the state highway system.
(c) (1) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the state highway fund (276-00-4100-4100) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the state highway fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:  Buildings – rehabilitation
and repair (276-00-4100-8005)\$4,000,000
Buildings – reroofing (276-00-4100-8010)\$877,435
Buildings – other construction, renovation and repair (276-00-4100-8070)

(2) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the state highway fund (276-00-4100-4100) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the state highway fund for fiscal

Buildings – purchase land (276-00-4100-8065)......\$75,000

- year 2021 from the unencumbered balance as of June 30, 2020, in each capital improvement project account for a building or buildings in the state highway fund for one or more projects approved for prior fiscal years: *Provided*, That all expenditures from the unencumbered balance in any such project account of the state highway fund for fiscal year 2021 shall not exceed the amount of the unencumbered balance in such project account on June 30, 2020, subject to the provisions of subsection (d): *Provided further*; That all expenditures from any such project account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on the state highway fund for fiscal year 2021.
- (d) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary of transportation, with the approval of the director of the budget, may transfer any part of any item of appropriation in a capital improvement project account for a building or buildings for fiscal year 2021 from the state highway fund (276-00-4100-4100) for the department of transportation to another item of appropriation in a capital improvement project account for a building or buildings for fiscal year 2021 from the state highway fund for the department of transportation: *Provided*, That the secretary of transportation shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of legislative research.
- (e) On April 1, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the motor pool service fund (173-00-6109-4020) of the department of administration to the state highway fund (276-00-4100-4100) of the department of transportation an amount determined to be equal to the sum of the annual vehicle registration fees for each vehicle owned or leased by the state or any state agencies in accordance with K.S.A. 75-4611, and amendments thereto.
- (f) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, upon notification from the secretary of transportation that an amount is due and payable from the railroad rehabilitation loan guarantee fund (276-00-7503-7500), the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state highway fund (276-00-4100-4100) to the railroad rehabilitation loan guarantee fund the amount certified by the secretary as due and payable.
- (g) Any payment for services during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from the state highway fund (276-00-4100-4100) to other state agencies shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on the state highway fund for fiscal year 2021.
- (h) For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the department of transportation shall prepare and submit along with the documents required under K.S.A. 75-3717, and amendments thereto, additional documents that present the revenues, transfers and expenditures that are considered to be in support of the transportation works for Kansas program (T-WORKS) authorized by K.S.A. 68-2314b et seq., and amendments thereto: *Provided*, That documents shall include both reportable as well as nonreportable and off-budget items that reflect the revenues, transfers and expenditures associated with the comprehensive transportation program.
- (i) On July 1, 2020, October 1, 2020, January 1, 2021, and April 1, 2021, or as soon thereafter each such date as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$33,425,000.00 from the state highway fund (276-00-4100-4100) of the department of transportation to the state general fund: *Provided*, That the transfer of each such amount shall be in addition to any other transfer from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the state general fund as prescribed by law: *Provided further*, That, in addition to other purposes for which transfers and

expenditures may be made from the state highway fund during fiscal year 2021 and notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 68-416, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, transfers may be made from the state highway fund to the state general fund under this subsection during fiscal year 2021.

- (j) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 68-416, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the secretary of transportation shall apportion and distribute quarterly, on the first day of January, April, July and October, to cities on the state highway system from the state highway fund moneys at the rate of \$5,000 per year per lane per mile for the maintenance of streets and highways in cities designated by the secretary as city connecting links: *Provided*, That all moneys so distributed shall be used solely for the maintenance of city connecting links: *Provided further*, That such apportionment shall apply only to those city connecting link lanes maintained by the city, and shall not apply to city connecting link lanes maintained by the secretary pursuant to agreement with the city: *And provided further*, That, as used in this subsection, "lane" means the portion of the roadway for use of moving traffic of a standard width prescribed by the secretary.
- (k) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the state highway fund (276-00-4100-4100) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures shall be made by the above agency from the state highway fund for fiscal year 2021 for the placement of a state capitol visitors center sign at the 8th avenue exit on Interstate 70 in Topeka and to replace the state capitol sign at the 10th avenue exit on Interstate 70 in Topeka with a sign for the Kansas judicial center: *Provided*, That such signs shall be in place on or before January 1, 2021.
- Sec. 121. In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the legislature from the operations (including official hospitality) account of the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, expenditures shall be made by the legislature from the operations (including official hospitality) account of the state general fund for fiscal year 2021 for an additional amount of allowance equal to the amount required to provide, along with the amount of allowance otherwise payable from appropriations for the legislature to each member of the legislature at the rate prescribed by K.S.A. 46-137a(c), and amendments thereto, an aggregate amount of allowance: (a) Equal to \$354.15 for the two-week period that coincides with the first biweekly payroll period, which is chargeable to fiscal year 2021 and for each of the 14 ensuing two-week periods thereafter; and (b) equal to \$354.15 for the two-week period that coincides with the biweekly payroll period, which includes March 21, 2021, which is chargeable to fiscal year 2021 and for each of the four ensuing two-week periods thereafter, for each member of the legislature to defray expenses incurred between sessions of the legislature for postage, telephone, office and other incidental expenses, which are chargeable to fiscal year 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 46-137a, and amendments thereto: Provided, That all expenditures under this section for such purposes shall be made otherwise in the same manner that such allowance is payable to such members of the legislature for such two-week periods, for which such allowance is payable in accordance with this section and which are chargeable to fiscal vear 2021.
- Sec. 122. (a) On June 30, 2021, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 74-8768, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount of any unencumbered balance in the expanded lottery act revenues

fund to the state general fund: *Provided*, That the transfer of such amount shall be in addition to any other transfer from the expanded lottery act revenues fund to the state general fund as prescribed by law.

- (b) On June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall determine and notify the director of the budget if the amount of revenue collected in the expanded lottery act revenues fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, is insufficient to fund the appropriations and transfers that are authorized from the expanded lottery act revenues fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in accordance with the provisions of appropriation acts. The director of the budget shall certify to the director of accounts and reports the amount necessary to be transferred from the state general fund to the expanded lottery act revenues fund in order to fund all such appropriations and transfers that are authorized from the expanded lottery act revenues fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. Upon receipt of such certification, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer the amount of moneys from the state general fund to the expanded lottery act revenues fund that is required in accordance with the certification by the director of the budget under this section. At the same time as the director of the budget transmits this certification to the director of accounts and reports, the director of the budget shall transmit a copy of such certification to the director of legislative research.
- Sec. 123. During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of the Kansas water office may transfer any part of any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state water plan fund for the Kansas water office to any item of appropriation for fiscal year 2021 from the state water plan fund for the Kansas department of agriculture or the department of health and environment division of environment: *Provided*, That the director of the Kansas water office shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and upon receipt of such certification, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer such certified amount to the certified item of appropriation: *Provided further*; That when the director of the Kansas water office provides certification to the director of accounts and reports under this section, the director shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of the budget and the director of legislative research.
- Sec. 124. On the effective date of this act, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer all moneys in the home inspectors registration fee fund (195-00-2666-2600) to the state general fund. On the effective date of this act, all liabilities of the home inspectors registration fee fund are hereby transferred to and imposed on the state general fund and the home inspectors registration fee fund is hereby abolished.
- Sec. 125. Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 10-1009, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of administration from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made from such moneys for fiscal year 2021 for the secretary of administration, in consultation with the Kansas development finance authority, to ensure that the maximum stated rate of interest that may be fixed on fixed-rate or variable-rate bonds issued by a municipality or taxing subdivision of the state of Kansas shall be determined on the day the bonds are sold and shall not exceed the daily yield for the 10-

year treasury bonds published by the bond buyer in New York, New York, on the Monday next preceding the day on which the bonds are sold, plus: (a) 6%, if the interest on the bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes; or (b) 7%, if the interest on the bonds is included in the gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Sec. 126. During the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2021, no state agency shall expend any moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal years 2020 and 2021 as authorized by chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature to expand eligibility for the receipt of medical assistance benefits under title XIX of the social security act, commonly known as medicaid, as provided for in the patient protection and affordable care act, public law 111-148, 124 stat. 119, and the health care and education reconciliation act of 2010, public law 111-152, 124 stat. 1029, unless the legislature expressly consents to such expansion by an act of the legislature.

Sec. 127.

#### STATE FINANCE COUNCIL

- (a) On the effective date of this act, of the \$21,960,192 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 132(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the state employee pay increase account, the sum of \$230,948 is hereby lapsed.
- (b) On the effective date of this act, of the \$206,866 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 132(b) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state economic development initiatives fund in the state employee pay increase account, the sum of \$17,438 is hereby lapsed.
- (c) On the effective date of this act, the \$3,036,261 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 133(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the Kansas juvenile correctional complex facilities renovations account is hereby lapsed.
- (d) On the effective date of this act, of the \$10,950,000 appropriated for the above agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, by section 133(a) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the department of corrections outsourcing male offenders account, the sum of \$6,570,000 is hereby lapsed.

Sec. 128.

#### STATE FINANCE COUNCIL

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That all moneys in the coronavirus prevention fund shall be used for the purposes of coronavirus treatment and prevention in the state of Kansas: Provided

*further*, That the state finance council is hereby authorized to approve the disbursement and expenditure of moneys from the coronavirus prevention fund for such purposes: *And provided further*, That the state finance council acting on such matter is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto.

- Sec. 129. (a) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the state board of regents from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for the state board of regents for fiscal year 2021 by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures shall be made by the state board of regents from such moneys, for and on behalf of the university of Kansas, to sell and convey all of the rights, title and interest, subject to all easements and appurtenances, in the following described real estate located in Douglas county, Kansas: Hillcrest Third Addition Lot 23 also 36-12-19 beginning at point on Cl Warren St (now 9th St) produced from city of Lawrence 15 chs 84 lks W of E bndry of NW 1/4 36-12-19th S08.5degW 5 chs 5 lks th E 2 chs 38 lks th N 5 chs th W 1 ch 62 lks to point beginning 1a (u09706 & u10483 combined 1992).
- (b) Conveyance of such rights, title and interest in such real estate shall be executed in the name of the state board of regents by its chairperson and executive officer. All proceeds from the sale and conveyance thereof shall be deposited in the restricted fees account of the university of Kansas.
- (c) No conveyance of real estate authorized by this section shall be made or accepted by the state board of regents until the deeds, titles and conveyances have been reviewed and approved by the attorney general. In the event that the state board of regents determines that the legal description of the real estate described in this section is incorrect, the state board of regents may convey the property utilizing the correct legal description, but the deed conveying the property shall be subject to the approval of the attorney general. The conveyance authorized by this section shall not be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-6609, and amendments thereto.

Sec. 130.

#### DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the capital improvement project or projects specified, the following:

Rehabilitation and repair for state facilities (173-00-1000-8500)......\$3,450,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the rehabilitation and repair for state facilities account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

National bio and agro-defense facility -

debt service (173-00-1000-0460)\$23,410,439
Restructuring debt service (173-00-1000-0450)\$1,119,618
John Redmond reservoir debt service (173-00-1000-0461)\$1,671,000
University of Kansas medical education building debt service (173-00-1000-0462)\$1,862,500
Debt service refunding – 2015A (173-00-1000-0463)\$24,477,050
Debt service refunding – 2016H (173-00-1000-0464)\$6,288,750
Debt service refunding – 2019F/G (173-00-1000)\$3,814,629
(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:  Veterans memorial fund (173-00-7253-7250)
State facilities gift fund (173-00-7263-7290)No limit
Master lease program fund (173-00-8732)
State buildings depreciation fund (173-00-6149-4500)
Executive mansion gifts fund (173-00-7257-7270)
Topeka state hospital cemetery memorial gift fund (173-00-7337-7240)
Capitol area plaza authority planning fund (173-00-7121-7035)

*Provided*, That the secretary of administration may accept gifts, donations and grants of money, including payments from local units of city and county government, for the development of a new master plan for the capitol plaza and the state zoning area described in K.S.A. 75-3619, and amendments thereto: *Provided further*, That all such

gifts, donations and grants shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, to the credit of the capitol area plaza authority planning fund.

Provided, That on September 1, 2020, and February 1, 2021, or as soon thereafter each such date as moneys are available, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 68-416, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$5,685,374 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the statehouse debt service – state highway fund of the department of administration.

*Provided,* That on September 1, 2020, and February 1, 2021, or as soon thereafter each such date as moneys are available, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 68-416, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer 1,654,961 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the debt service refunding -2019F/G – state highway fund of the department of administration.

(c) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the building and ground fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the building and ground fund (173-00-2028) for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

(d) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the state buildings depreciation fund (173-00-6149) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the state buildings depreciation fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the state buildings depreciation fund for fiscal year 2021.

(e) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the state buildings operating fund (173-00-6148) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the state buildings operating fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

(f) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the building and ground fund (173-00-2028), the state buildings depreciation fund (173-00-6149), and the state buildings operating fund (173-00-6148) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from each such special revenue fund for fiscal year 2021 from the unencumbered balance as of June 30, 2020, in each existing capital improvement account of each such special revenue fund: *Provided*, That expenditures from the unencumbered balance of any such existing capital improvement account shall not exceed the amount of the unencumbered balance in such account on June 30, 2020: *Provided further*, That all expenditures from the unencumbered balance of any such account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on each such special revenue fund for fiscal year 2021 and shall be in addition to any other expenditure limitation imposed on any such account of each such special revenue fund for fiscal year 2021.

Sec. 131.

## DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

(a) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the reimbursement and recovery fund (300-00-2275) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the reimbursement and recovery fund during the fiscal year 2021, for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

(b) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the Wagner Peyser employment services – federal fund (300-00-3275) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the Wagner Peyser employment services – federal fund during the fiscal year 2021, for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

Sec. 132.

### INSURANCE DEPARTMENT

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Sec. 133.

# KANSAS DEPARTMENT FOR AGING AND DISABILITY SERVICES

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state institutions building fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the capital improvement project or projects specified, the following:

Provided, That the secretary for aging and disability services is hereby authorized to transfer moneys during fiscal year 2021 from the rehabilitation and repair projects account to a rehabilitation and repair account for any institution, as defined by K.S.A. 76-12a01, and amendments thereto, for projects approved by the secretary for aging and disability services: Provided further, That expenditures also may be made from this account during fiscal year 2021 for the purposes of rehabilitation and repair for facilities of the Kansas department for aging and disability services other than any institution, as defined by K.S.A. 76-12a01, and amendments thereto.

Debt service – new state security hospital (039-00-8100-8320)	\$3,846,900
Debt service – state hospitals rehabilitation and repair (039-00-8100-8325)	\$2,585,450
Larned state hospital – city of Larned wastewater treatment (410-00-8100-8300)	\$129,620

Provided, That notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 76-6b05, and amendments thereto, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the Larned state hospital – city of Larned wastewater treatment account of the state institutions building fund for payment of Larned state hospital's portion of the city of Larned's wastewater treatment system.

Larned state hospital isaac ray doors......\$250,000

Osawatomie state hospital – certified beds.....\$500,000

EMR infrastructure fund.....\$2,771,500

*Provided,* That, notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 76-6b05, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, in addition to other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the EMR infrastructure account of the state institutions building fund during fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made from such account for the emergency medical records information technology project.

Sec. 134.

### DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That the secretary of labor is hereby authorized to make expenditures from the employment security administration property sale fund during fiscal year 2021 for the unemployment insurance program: Provided, however; That no expenditures shall be made from this fund for the proposed purchase or other acquisition of additional real estate to provide space for the unemployment insurance program of the department of labor until such proposed purchase or other acquisition, including the preliminary plans and program statement for any capital improvement project that is proposed to be initiated and completed by or for the department of labor have been reviewed by the joint committee on state building construction.

(b) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of labor from moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the department of labor for fiscal year 2021 from the moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund for the expenses of the sale, exchange or other disposition conveying title for any portion or all of the real estate of the department of labor: *Provided*, That such expenditures may be made and such sale, exchange or other disposition conveying title for any portion or all of the real estate of the department of labor may be executed or otherwise effectuated only upon specific authorization by the state finance council acting on this matter, which is hereby characterized as a matter of legislative delegation and subject to the guidelines prescribed in K.S.A. 75-3711c(c), and amendments thereto, and acting after receiving the recommendations of the joint committee on state building construction:

Provided, however, That no such sale, exchange or other disposition conveying title for any portion of the real estate of the department of labor shall be executed until the proposed sale, exchange or other disposition conveying title for such real estate has been reviewed by the joint committee on state building construction: Provided further, That the net proceeds from the sale of any of the real estate of the department of labor shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the employment security administration property sale fund of the department of labor: And provided further, That expenditures from the employment security administration property sale fund shall not exceed the limitation established for fiscal year 2021 by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature except upon approval of the state finance council.

- (c) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the special employment security fund (296-00-2120) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the special employment security fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement projects: Payment of debt service on revenue bonds issued to finance remodeling of the 401 S. Topeka building: *Provided*, That expenditures from the special employment security fund (296-00-2120-2020) for fiscal year 2021 for such capital improvement purposes shall not exceed \$178,224: *Provided further*. That all expenditures from this fund for any such capital improvement purpose shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the special employment security fund for fiscal year 2021.
- (d) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the workmen's compensation fee fund (296-00-2124) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the workmen's compensation fee fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement projects: (1) Payment of debt service on revenue bonds issued to finance remodeling of the 401 S. Topeka building: *Provided*, That expenditures from the workmen's compensation fee fund (296-00-2124-2227) for fiscal year 2021 for such capital improvement purposes shall not exceed \$95,966; and (2) payment of rehabilitation and repair projects: *Provided*, That expenditures from the workmen's compensation fee fund (296-00-2124-2228) for fiscal year 2021 for such capital improvement purposes shall not exceed \$885,000.

Sec. 135.

# KANSAS COMMISSION ON VETERANS AFFAIRS OFFICE

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the capital improvement project or projects specified, the following:

Veterans cemetery program rehabilitation and repair projects (694-00-1000-0904)......\$80,884

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the veterans cemetery program rehabilitation and repair projects account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state institutions building
fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the capital improvement project or
projects specified, the following:

Sec. 136.

### KANSAS STATE SCHOOL FOR THE BLIND

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state institutions building fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the capital improvement project or projects specified, the following:

Rehabilitation and repair projects (604-00-8100-8108)......\$431,508

Security system

upgrade project (604-00-8100-8130).....\$280,035

Campus boilers and HVAC upgrades (604-00-8100-8145)......\$228,900

Sec. 137.

## KANSAS STATE SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state institutions building fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the capital improvement project or projects specified, the following:

Rehabilitation and repair projects (610-00-8100-8108).....\$400,250

Campus boilers and

Campus life safety and security (610-00-8100-8130)......\$303,900

Sec. 138.

### STATE HISTORICAL SOCIETY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Rehabilitation and repair

projects (288-00-1000-8088).....\$900,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the rehabilitation and repair projects account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

(b) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the private gifts, grants and bequests fund (288-00-7302) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the private gifts, grants and bequests fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the private gifts, grants and bequests fund for fiscal year 2021.

(c) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the historical preservation grant in aid fund (288-00-3089) for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the historical preservation grant in aid fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the historical preservation grant in aid fund for fiscal year 2021.

(d) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the private gifts, grants and bequests fund, historic properties fee fund, state historical facilities fund, save America's treasures fund, historical society capital improvement fund, law enforcement memorial fund and historical preservation grant in aid fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from each such special revenue fund for fiscal year 2021 from the unencumbered balance as of June 30, 2020, in each existing capital improvement account of each such special revenue fund: *Provided*, That expenditures from the unencumbered balance of any such existing capital improvement account shall not exceed the amount of the unencumbered balance in such account on June 30, 2020: *Provided further*, That all expenditures from the unencumbered balance of any such account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on each such special revenue fund for fiscal year 2021 and shall be in addition to any other expenditure limitation imposed on any such account of each such special revenue fund for fiscal year 2021.

Sec. 139.

### EMPORIA STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Memorial union project –	
debt service 2010J (379-00-5161-5040)	.No limit
Student recreation center project – debt service	
refunding 2017D (379-00-2526-2040)	.No limit
Student housing projects – debt service	
refunding 2017D (379-00-5169-5050)	.No limit
Twin towers housing project – debt service	
refunding 2017D (379-00-5120-5030)	.No limit
Parking maintenance projects (379-00-5186-5060)	.No limit
Rehabilitation and	
repairs projects (379-00-2526-2040)	.No limit
Deferred maintenance projects (379-00-2485-2485)	.No limit

(b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the above agency may make expenditures from the rehabilitation and repair projects, Americans with disabilities act compliance projects, state fire marshal code compliance projects, and improvements to classroom projects for institutions of higher education account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency of moneys transferred to such account by the state board of regents by any provision of this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature: *Provided*, That this subsection shall not apply to the unencumbered balance in any account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency that was first appropriated for any fiscal year commencing prior to July 1, 2019.

Sec. 140.

### FORT HAYS STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds during

the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, as authorized by chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from any special revenue fund or funds during fiscal year 2020 for the following capital improvement project or projects:

Akers boiler replacement......No limit

Sec. 141.

## FORT HAYS STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:
Lewis field renovation – debt service refunding 2016B (246-00-5150-5180)
Memorial union renovation – debt service refunding 2016B (246-00-5102-5010)
Energy conservation – debt service (246-00-2035-2000)
Wiest hall replacement – debt service 2016B (246-00-5103-5020)
Deferred maintenance projects (246-00-2483-2483)
Forsyth library renovation (246-00-2510-2040)No limit
South campus drive project (246-00-2035-2000)No limit
Rarick hall renovation (246-00-2035-2000)
Student union rehabilitation and repair projects (246-00-5102-5010)
Rehabilitation and repair projects (246-00-2035-2000)
Rehabilitation and repair projects (246-00-2510-2040)

- (b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the above agency may make expenditures from the rehabilitation and repair projects, Americans with disabilities act compliance projects, state fire marshal code compliance projects, and improvements to classroom projects for institutions of higher education account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency of moneys transferred to such account by the state board of regents by any provision of this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature: *Provided*, That this subsection shall not apply to the unencumbered balance in any account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency that was first appropriated for any fiscal year commencing prior to July 1, 2019.
- (c) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by Fort Hays state university from the moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by Fort Hays state university from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, to provide for the issuance of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with K.S.A. 74-8905, and amendments thereto, for a capital improvement project to construct and equip an addition to the memorial union on the campus of Fort Hays state university: Provided, That such capital improvement project is hereby approved for Fort Havs state university for the purposes of K.S.A. 74-8905(b), and amendments thereto. and the authorization of the issuance of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with that statute: Provided further, That Fort Hays state university may make expenditures from the moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds for such capital improvement project: Provided, however, That expenditures from the moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds for such capital improvement project shall not exceed \$15,250,000 plus all amounts required for costs of bond issuance, costs of interest on the bonds issued for such capital improvement project during the construction of such project, credit enhancement costs and any required reserves for the payment of principal and interest on the bonds: And provided further, That all moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds shall be deposited and accounted for as prescribed by applicable bond covenants: And provided further. That debt service for any such bonds for such capital improvement project shall be financed by appropriations from any appropriate special revenue fund or funds: And provided further. That any such bonds and interest thereon shall be an obligation only of the Kansas development finance authority, shall not constitute a debt of the state of Kansas within the meaning of section 6 or 7 of article 11 of the constitution of the state of Kansas and shall not pledge the full faith and credit or the taxing power of the state of Kansas: And provided further, That Fort Hays state university shall make provisions for the maintenance of the memorial union addition.
  - (d) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the

above agency from moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from any special revenue fund or funds during fiscal year 2021 for a capital improvement project to construct an addition to the memorial union.

Sec. 142.

# KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Energy conservation projects – debt service 2003J1, 2010U1/2, Research initiative debt service Chiller plant project – Engineering complex project – Recreation complex project -Student union renovation project – debt service Electrical upgrade project – Salina student life center project – debt service Childcare development center project – debt service Jardine housing project – debt service 

Wefald dining and residence hall project – debt service 2014D (367-00-5163-4500)
Student union parking – debt service refunding 2016A (367-00-5181-4630)
Seaton hall renovation – debt service 2016A (367-00-2520-2080)
Chemical landfill – debt service refunding 2019C (367-00-2901-2160)
Jardine housing project – debt service 2005A, 2007A (367-00-5163-4500)
Derby dining center project – debt service 2019C (367-00-5163-4500)
Capital lease – debt service (367-00-2062-2000)No limit
Capital lease – debt service (367-00-2520-2080)No limit
Deferred maintenance projects (367-00-2484-2484)No limit
Parking maintenance projects (367-00-5181-4638)
Campus infrastructure HVAC projects (367-00-2484-2484)
Willard hall renovation (367-00-2520-2080)No limit

(b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the above agency may make expenditures from the rehabilitation and repair projects, Americans with disabilities act compliance projects, state fire marshal code compliance projects, and improvements to classroom projects for institutions of higher education account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency of moneys transferred to such account by the state board of regents by any provision of this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature: *Provided*, That this subsection shall not apply to the unencumbered balance in any account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency that was first appropriated for any fiscal year commencing prior to July 1, 2019.

Sec. 143.

# AND AGRICULTURE RESEARCH PROGRAMS

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:
Capital lease – debt service (369-00-2697-1100)No limit
Capital lease – debt service (369-00-2921-1200)No limit
Sec. 144.
KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY
VETERINARY MEDICAL CENTER
(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:  Capital lease – debt service (368-00-5160-5300)
Sec. 145.
PITTSBURG STATE UNIVERSITY
(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:  Student housing and building renovations —  debt service 2014A1 (385-00-5106-5105)
Overman student center and
student housing – debt service refunding 2014A2 (385-00-2820-2820)
Deferred maintenance projects (385-00-2486-2486)No limit
Student health center – debt service 2009G (385-00-2828-2851)
Overman student center project (385-00-2820-2820)No limit
Rehabilitation and repair projects (385-00-2833-2831)

Housing maintenance projects (385-00-5645-5160)No limit
Parking maintenance projects (385-00-5187-5060)No limit
Energy conservation projects – debt
service 2011D/D3, 2015MNo limit
Student housing project – debt
service 2011D2 (385-00-2833-2830)
Student housing projects – debt
service 2009H1/2 (385-00-5165-5050)
Student housing projects – debt
service 2011D1 (385-00-5646-5160)
Parking facility – debt
service 2009J1/2 (385-00-5187-5060)
Tyler scientific research center – debt
service 2015K (385-00-2903-2903)

(b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the above agency may make expenditures from the rehabilitation and repair projects, Americans with disabilities act compliance projects, state fire marshal code compliance projects, and improvements to classroom projects for institutions of higher education account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency of moneys transferred to such account by the state board of regents by any provision of this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature: *Provided*, That this subsection shall not apply to the unencumbered balance in any account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency that was first appropriated for any fiscal year commencing prior to July 1, 2019.

Sec. 146.

## UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Templinger/Hashinger hall renovation – debt service refunding 2014C (682-00-5142-5050)
Engineering facility – debt service 2013G1 (682-00-2545-2080)
Engineering facility – debt service 2013G1 (682-00-2153-2153)
Student recreation center – debt service 2017A refunding (682-00-2864-2860)
Parking facility – debt service 2017A refunding (682-00-5175-5070)
McCollum hall parking – debt service 2014C (682-00-5142-5050)
McCollum hall parking – debt service 2014C (682-00-5175-5070)
Energy conservation projects – debt service 2010B (682-00-2107-2000)
Energy conservation projects – debt service (682-00-2545-2080)
Earth, energy and environment center – debt service 2017A (682-00-2545-2080)
Corbin hall project 2017A (682-00-5142-5050)
Parking maintenance projects (682-00-5175-5070)No limit
Student housing maintenance projects (682-00-5621-5110)
Rehabilitation and repair projects (682-00-2107-2000)

Kansas law enforcement training

(b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the above agency may make expenditures from the rehabilitation and repair projects, Americans with disabilities act compliance projects, state fire marshal code compliance projects, and improvements to classroom projects for institutions of higher education account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency of moneys transferred to such account by the state board of regents by any provision of this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature: *Provided*, That this subsection shall not apply to the unencumbered balance in any account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency that was first appropriated for any fiscal year commencing prior to July 1, 2019.

Sec. 147.

### UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS MEDICAL CENTER

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

 Parking maintenance projects (683-00-5176-5550)......No limit

(b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the above agency may make expenditures from the rehabilitation and repair projects, Americans with disabilities act compliance projects, state fire marshal code compliance projects, and improvements to classroom projects for institutions of higher education account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency of moneys transferred to such account by the state board of regents by any provision of this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature: *Provided*, That this subsection shall not apply to the unencumbered balance in any account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency that was first appropriated for any fiscal year commencing prior to July 1, 2019.

Sec. 148.

# WICHITA STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

Energy conservation – debt service (715-00-2112-2000)
Rhatigan student center – debt service 2012A1 (715-00-2558-2030)
Engineering research lab – debt service 2005D/2003C (715-00-2558-2030)
Shocker residence hall – debt service 2013F (715-00-5100-5250)
Parking garage – debt service 2016J (715-00-5148-5000)
Fairmont towers – debt service 2012A2 (715-00-5620-5670)
Innovation campus – school of business debt service (715-00-2112-2000)
Deferred maintenance projects (715-00-2489-2489)No limit
NIAR building improvement (715-00-2558-2030)

- (b) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the above agency may make expenditures from the rehabilitation and repair projects, Americans with disabilities act compliance projects, state fire marshal code compliance projects, and improvements to classroom projects for institutions of higher education account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency of moneys transferred to such account by the state board of regents by any provision of this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature: *Provided*, That this subsection shall not apply to the unencumbered balance in any account of the Kansas educational building fund of the above agency that was first appropriated for any fiscal year commencing prior to July 1, 2019.
- (c) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from moneys appropriated from any special revenue fund or funds during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the above agency from any special revenue fund or funds during fiscal year 2021 for a capital improvement project for the new school of business building on the innovation campus.
- (d) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by Wichita state university from the moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by Wichita state university from moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021, to provide for the issuance of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with K.S.A. 74-8905, and amendments thereto, for a capital improvement project to purchase the student housing units commonly known as the flats and the suites on the campus of Wichita state university: Provided, That such capital improvement project is hereby approved for Wichita state university for the purposes of K.S.A. 74-8905(b), and amendments thereto, and the authorization of the issuance of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with that statute: Provided further, That Wichita state university may make expenditures from the moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds for such capital improvement project: Provided, however, That expenditures from the moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds for such capital improvement project shall not exceed \$49,000,000 plus all amounts required for costs of bond issuance, costs of interest on the bonds issued for such capital improvement project during the construction of such project, credit enhancement costs and any required reserves for the payment of principal and interest on the bonds: And provided further, That all moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds shall be deposited and accounted for as prescribed by applicable bond covenants: And provided, however, That the state board of regents shall approve such capital improvement project prior to any action by Wichita state university to purchase such property: And provided further. That debt service for any such bonds for such capital improvement project shall be financed by appropriations from any appropriate special revenue fund or funds: And

provided further, That any such bonds and interest thereon shall be an obligation only of the Kansas development finance authority, shall not constitute a debt of the state of Kansas within the meaning of section 6 or 7 of article 11 of the constitution of the state of Kansas and shall not pledge the full faith and credit or the taxing power of the state of Kansas: *And provided further*, That Wichita state university shall make provisions for the maintenance of the flats and the suites.

Sec. 149.

### STATE BOARD OF REGENTS

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Provided, That the state board of regents is hereby authorized to transfer moneys from the Kansas educational building fund to an account or accounts of the Kansas educational building fund of any institution under the control and supervision of the state board of regents to be expended by the institution for projects, including planning and new construction, approved by the state board of regents: Provided, however, That no expenditures shall be made from any such account until the proposed projects have been reviewed by the joint committee on state building construction: Provided further, That the state board of regents shall certify to the director of accounts and reports each such transfer of moneys from the Kansas educational building fund: And provided further, That the state board of regents shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of the budget and to the director of legislative research: And provided, however, That the state board of regents shall allocate the amount of money of each such transfer to be expended by the institution using the adjusted gross square footage calculation of mission critical buildings for fiscal year 2021.

Sec. 150.

## DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the correctional institutions building fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the capital improvement project or projects specified, the following:

Capital improvements – rehabilitation and repair of correctional institutions (521-00-8600-8240)......\$5,782,000

Provided, That the secretary of corrections is hereby authorized to transfer moneys during fiscal year 2021 from the capital improvements – rehabilitation and repair of correctional institutions account of the correctional institutions building fund to an account or accounts of the correctional institutions building fund of any institution or facility under the jurisdiction of the secretary of corrections to be expended during fiscal year 2021 by the institution or facility for capital improvement projects and for

security improvement projects including acquisition of security equipment.

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state institutions building fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the capital improvement project or projects specified, the following:

Provided, That the secretary of corrections is hereby authorized to transfer moneys during fiscal year 2021 from the capital improvements – rehabilitation and repair account of the state institutions building fund to any account or accounts of the state institutions building fund of any juvenile correctional facility or institution under the general supervision and management of the secretary of corrections to be expended during fiscal year 2021 for capital improvement projects approved by the secretary: Provided further, That the secretary of corrections shall certify each such transfer to the director of accounts and reports and shall transmit a copy of each such certification to the director of the budget and the director of legislative research.

(c) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

(d) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the department of corrections from moneys appropriated from the correctional institutions building fund for fiscal year 2021 as authorized by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by the department of corrections from moneys appropriated from the correctional institutions building fund for fiscal year 2021 to raze building 41, building 42, building 43 and the staff development building at El Dorado correctional facility.

Sec. 151.

# ATTORNEY GENERAL – KANSAS BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

(a) There is hereby appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the capital improvement project or projects specified, the following:

Rehabilitation and repair projects (083-00-1000-0100)......\$100,000

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the rehabilitation and repair projects account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

KBI lab – debt service (083-00-1000-0820)......\$4,322,925

Sec. 152.

### KANSAS HIGHWAY PATROL

(a) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from the highway patrol training center fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the highway patrol training center fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the highway patrol training center fund for fiscal year 2021.

(b) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from the vehicle identification number fee fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the vehicle identification number fee fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the vehicle identification number fee fund for fiscal year 2021.

(c) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from the Kansas highway patrol operations fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the Kansas highway patrol operations fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

Scale replacement and rehabilitation and repair of buildings (280-00-2034-1115)......\$407,915

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the Kansas highway patrol operations fund for fiscal year 2021.

- (d) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$407,135 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the Kansas highway patrol operations fund (280-00-2034-1115). In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made from the state highway fund during fiscal year 2021 and notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 68-416, and amendments thereto, or any other statute, transfers and expenditures may be made from the state highway fund during fiscal year 2021 for support and maintenance of the Kansas highway patrol.
- (e) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the KHP federal forfeiture federal fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following account or accounts of the KHP federal forfeiture federal fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the KHP federal forfeiture – federal fund for fiscal year 2021.

Sec. 153.

## ADJUTANT GENERAL

(a) There is hereby appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the capital improvement project or projects specified, the following:

Debt service – rehabilitation and repair of the statewide armories (034-00-1000-8010).....\$266,275

Rehabilitation and repair projects (034-00-1000-8000)......\$666,431

*Provided,* That any unencumbered balance in the rehabilitation and repair projects account in excess of \$100 as of June 30, 2020, is hereby reappropriated for fiscal year 2021.

Deferred maintenance......\$1,000,000

Sec. 154.

#### STATE FAIR BOARD

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

- (b) On or before the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the state fair capital improvements fund interest earnings based on: (1) The average daily balance of moneys in the state fair capital improvements fund for the preceding month; and (2) the net earnings rate for the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month.
- (c) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state general fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the capital improvement project or projects specified, the following:

State fair debt service (373-00-1000-0700)......\$850,500

Sec. 155.

# KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE, PARKS AND TOURISM

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the state economic development initiatives fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the following:

Debt service – Kansas City

district office (710-00-1900-1960).....\$10,603

(b) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures shall not exceed the following:

*Provided,* That, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the department access road fund, expenditures may be made from this fund for road improvement projects administered by the department of transportation in state parks and on public lands.

- (c) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$3,402,545 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the department access road fund of the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism.
- (d) On July 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$200,000 from the state highway fund of the department of transportation to the bridge maintenance fund of the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism.
- (e) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the state agricultural production fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the state agricultural production fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the state agricultural production fund for fiscal year 2021.

(f) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the parks fee fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the parks fee fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the parks fee fund for fiscal year 2021.

(g) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the boating fee fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the boating fee fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

Coast guard boating projects (710-00-2245-2840)......\$75,000

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the boating fee fund for fiscal year 2021.

(h) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the wildlife fee fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the wildlife fee fund during fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

Shooting range development (710-00-2300-2301).....\$300,000

Land acquisition (710-00-2300-3040).....\$400,000

Federally mandated

boating access (710-00-2300-4360).....\$241,750

Debt service - Kansas

Rehabilitation and repair (710-00-2300-3262).....\$2,420,725

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the wildlife fee fund for fiscal year 2021.

(i) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the cabin revenue fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the cabin revenue fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

Cabin site preparation (710-00-2668-2670)......\$300,000

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the cabin revenue fund for fiscal year 2021.

(j) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the wildlife restoration fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the wildlife restoration fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

ds acquisition	
opment (710-00-3418-3420)	\$0
litation and repair (710-00-3418-3422)\$3.8	40 000

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the wildlife restoration fund for fiscal year 2021.

(k) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the sport fish restoration program fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the sport fish restoration program fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

Rehabilitation and repair (710-00-3490-3491).....\$1,920,500

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the sport fish restoration program fund for fiscal year 2021.

(l) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the migratory waterfowl propagation and protection fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the migratory waterfowl propagation and protection fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

Wetlands acquisition (710-00-2600-3330).....\$387,500

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the migratory waterfowl propagation and protection fund for fiscal year 2021.

(m) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the outdoor recreation acquisition, development and planning fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the outdoor recreation acquisition, development and planning fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

Land and water conservation development (710-00-3794-3794).......\$840,000

Provided, That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be

in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on the outdoor recreation acquisition, development and planning fund for fiscal year 2021.

(n) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the recreational trails program fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the recreational trails program fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

Recreational trails program (710-00-3238-3238)......\$700,000

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the recreational trails program fund for fiscal year 2021.

(o) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the federally licensed wildlife areas fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the federally licensed wildlife areas fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

FLW-AG land capital improvements.....\$42,500

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the federally licensed wildlife areas fund for fiscal year 2021.

(p) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the other federal grants fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the other federal grants fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

Other federal grants (710-00-3846).....\$45,000

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the other federal grants fund for fiscal year 2021.

(q) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the boating safety and financial assistance fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from the following capital improvement account or accounts of the boating safety and financial assistance fund for fiscal year 2021 for the following capital improvement project or projects, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed therefor:

*Provided,* That all expenditures from each such capital improvement account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitations imposed on the boating safety and financial assistance fund for fiscal year 2021.

- In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by the above agency from the parks fee fund, boating fee fund, boating safety and financial assistance fund, wildlife fee fund, wildlife conservation fund, cabin revenue fund, wildlife restoration fund, sport fish restoration program fund, migratory waterfowl propagation and protection fund, nongame wildlife improvement fund, plant and animal disease and pest control fund, land and water conservation fund - local, outdoor recreation acquisition, development and planning fund, recreational trails program fund, federally licensed wildlife areas fund, department of wildlife and parks gifts and donations fund, highway planning/construction fund, state wildlife grants fund, disaster grants - public assistance, nonfederal grants fund, bridge maintenance fund, state agricultural production fund, department access road fund, navigation projects fund, other federal grants fund and recreation resource management fund for fiscal year 2021, expenditures may be made by the above agency from each such special revenue fund for fiscal year 2021 from the unencumbered balance as of June 30, 2020, in each existing capital improvement account of each such special revenue fund: Provided. That expenditures from the unencumbered balance of any such existing capital improvement account shall not exceed the amount of the unencumbered balance in such account on June 30, 2020: Provided further. That all expenditures from the unencumbered balance of any such account shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on each such special revenue fund for fiscal year 2021 and shall be in addition to any other expenditure limitation imposed on any such account of each such special revenue fund for fiscal year 2021.
- Sec. 156. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-223 is hereby amended to read as follows: 2-223. (a) There is hereby established in the state treasury the state fair capital improvements fund. All expenditures of moneys in the state fair capital improvements fund shall be used for the payment of capital improvements and maintenance for the state fairgrounds and the payment of capital improvement obligations that have been financed. Capital improvement projects for the Kansas state fairgrounds are hereby approved for the purposes of K.S.A. 74-8905(b), and amendments thereto, and the authorization of the issuance of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with that statute.
- (b) On each June 30, the state fair board shall certify to the director of accounts and reports an amount to be transferred from the state fair fee fund to the state fair capital improvements fund, which amount shall be not less than the amount equal to 5% of the total gross receipts during the current fiscal year from state fair activities and non-fair days activities, except that for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 2021, notwithstanding the other provisions of this section, on March 1, 2020 2021, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available therefor, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state fair fee fund to the state fair capital improvements fund the amount equal to the greater of \$300,000 or the amount equal to 5% of the total gross

receipts during fiscal year 2020 2021 from state fair activities and non-fair days activities through March 1, 2020 2021, except that, subject to approval by the director of the budget prior to March 1, 2020 2021, after reviewing the amounts credited to the state fair fee fund and the state fair capital improvements fund, cash flow considerations for the state fair fee fund, and the amount required to be credited to the state fair capital improvements fund pursuant to this subsection to pay the bonded debt service payment due on April 1,<del>2020</del> 2021, the state fair board may certify an amount on March 1,<del>2020</del> 2021, to the director of accounts and reports to be transferred from the state fair fee fund to the state fair capital improvements fund that is equal to the amount required to be credited to the state fair capital improvements fund pursuant to this subsection to pay the bonded debt service payment due on April 1, 2020 2021, and shall certify to the director of accounts and reports on the date specified by the director of the budget the amount equal to the balance of the aggregate amount that is required to be transferred from the state fair fee fund to the state fair capital improvements fund for fiscal year 2020 2021. Upon receipt of any such certification, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer moneys from the state fair fee fund to the state fair capital improvements fund in accordance with such certification.

Sec. 157. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-1775a is hereby amended to read as follows: 12-1775a. (a) Prior to December 31, 1996, the governing body of each city that, pursuant to K.S.A. 12-1771, and amendments thereto, has established a redevelopment district prior to July 1, 1996, shall certify to the director of accounts and reports the amount equal to the amount of revenue realized from ad valorem taxes imposed pursuant to K.S.A. 72-5142, and amendments thereto, within such redevelopment district. Except as provided further, to February 1, 1997, and annually on that date thereafter, the governing body of each such city shall certify to the director of accounts and reports an amount equal to the amount by which revenues realized from such ad valorem taxes imposed in such redevelopment district are estimated to be reduced for the ensuing calendar year due to legislative changes in the statewide school finance formula. Prior to March 1 of each year, the director of accounts and reports shall certify to the state treasurer each amount certified by the governing bodies of cities under this section for the ensuing calendar year and shall transfer from the state general fund to the city tax increment financing revenue replacementfund the aggregate of all amounts so certified. Prior to April 15 of each year, the state treasurer shall pay from the city tax increment financing revenue replacementfund to each city certifying an amount to the director of accounts and reports under this section for the ensuing calendar year the amount so certified. During fiscal years-2019, 2020-and, 2021 and 2022, no moneys shall be transferred from the state general fund to the city tax increment financing revenue replacement fund pursuant to this subsection.

(b) There is hereby created the tax increment financing revenue replacement fund, which shall be administered by the state treasurer. All expenditures from the tax increment financing revenue replacement fund shall be made in accordance with appropriations acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the state treasurer or a person or persons designated by the state treasurer.

Sec. 158. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-5256 is hereby amended to read as follows: 12-5256. (a) All expenditures from the state housing trust fund made for the purposes of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-5253 through 12-5255, and amendments thereto, shall be made

in accordance with appropriation acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the president of the Kansas housing resources corporation.

- (b) (1) On—July 1, 2018, July 1, 2019,—and July 1, 2020, and July 1, 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$2,000,000 from the state economic development initiatives fund to the state housing trust fund established by K.S.A. 74-8959, and amendments thereto.
- (2) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 74-8959, and amendments thereto, to the contrary, during fiscal year 2019, fiscal year 2020, and fiscal year 2021 and fiscal year 2022, moneys in the state housing trust fund shall be used solely for the purpose of loans or grants to cities or counties for infrastructure or housing development in rural areas. During such fiscal years, on or before January 13, 2020, January 11, 2021, and January 10, 2022, and January 9, 2023, the president of the Kansas housing resources corporation shall submit a report concerning the activities of the state housing trust fund to the house of representatives committee on appropriations and the senate committee on ways and means.
- Sec. 159. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 55-193 is hereby amended to read as follows: 55-193. On July 15, 1996, and on the 15<sup>th</sup> day of each calendar quarter thereafter before July 1, 2021 2022, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$100,000 from the state general fund and \$200,000 from the conservation fee fund established by K.S.A. 55-143, and amendments thereto, to the abandoned oil and gas well fund established by K.S.A. 55-192, and amendments thereto, except that no transfer shall be made pursuant to this section from the state general fund to the abandoned oil and gas well fund during state fiscal year-2019 2020, state fiscal year-2021 2021, or state fiscal year-2021 2022.
- Sec. 160. K.S.A. 65-180 is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-180. The secretary of health and environment shall:
- (a) Institute and carry on an intensive educational program among physicians, hospitals, public health nurses and the public concerning congenital hypothyroidism, galactosemia, phenylketonuria and other genetic diseases detectable with the same specimen. This educational program shall include information about the nature of such conditions and examinations for the detection thereof in early infancy in order that measures may be taken to prevent intellectual disability or morbidity resulting from such conditions.
- (b) Provide recognized screening tests for phenylketonuria, galactosemia, hypothyroidism and such other diseases as may be appropriately detected with the same specimen. The initial laboratory screening tests for these diseases shall be performed by the department of health and environment or its designee for all infants born in the state. Such services shall be performed without charge.
- (c) Provide a follow-up program by providing test results and other information to identified physicians; locate infants with abnormal newborn screening test results; with parental consent, monitor infants to assure appropriate testing to either confirm or not confirm the disease suggested by the screening test results; with parental consent, monitor therapy and treatment for infants with confirmed diagnosis of congenital hypothyroidism, galactosemia, phenylketonuria or other genetic diseases being screened under this statute; and establish ongoing education and support activities for individuals with confirmed diagnosis of congenital hypothyroidism, galactosemia, phenylketonuria and other genetic diseases being screened under this statute and for the families of such

individuals.

- (d) Maintain a registry of cases including information of importance for the purpose of follow-up services to prevent intellectual disability or morbidity.
- (e) Provide, within the limits of appropriations available therefor, the necessary treatment product for diagnosed cases for as long as medically indicated, when the product is not available through other state agencies. In addition to diagnosed cases under this section, diagnosed cases of maple syrup urine disease shall be included as a diagnosed case under this subsection. Where the applicable income of the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed individual meets medicaid eligibility, such individuals' needs shall be covered under the medicaid state plan. Where the applicable income of the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed individual is not medicaid eligible, but is below 300% of the federal poverty level established under the most recent poverty guidelines issued by the United States department of health and human services, the department of health and environment shall provide reimbursement of between 50% to 100% of the product cost in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary of health and environment. Where the applicable income of the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed individual exceeds 300% of the federal poverty level established under the most recent poverty guidelines issued by the United States department of health and human services, the department of health and environment shall provide reimbursement of an amount not to exceed 50% of the product cost in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary of health and environment.
- (f) Provide state assistance to an applicant pursuant to subsection (e) only after it has been shown that the applicant has exhausted all benefits from private third-party payers, medicare, medicaid and other government assistance programs and after consideration of the applicant's income and assets. The secretary of health and environment shall adopt rules and regulations establishing standards for determining eligibility for state assistance under this section.
- (g) (1) Except for treatment products provided under subsection (e), if the medically necessary food treatment product for diagnosed cases must be purchased, the purchaser shall be reimbursed by the department of health and environment for costs incurred up to \$1,500 per year per diagnosed child age 18 or younger at 100% of the product cost upon submission of a receipt of purchase identifying the company from which the product was purchased. For a purchaser to be eligible for reimbursement under this subsection, the applicable income of the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed child shall not exceed 300% of the poverty level established under the most recent poverty guidelines issued by the federal department of health and human services.
- (2) As an option to reimbursement authorized under subsection (g)(1), the department of health and environment may purchase food treatment products for distribution to diagnosed children in an amount not to exceed \$1,500 per year per diagnosed child age 18 or younger. For a diagnosed child to be eligible for the distribution of food treatment products under this subsection, the applicable income of the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed child shall not exceed 300% of the poverty level established under the most recent poverty guidelines issued by the federal department of health and human services.

- (3) In addition to diagnosed cases under this section, diagnosed cases of maple syrup urine disease shall be included as a diagnosed case under this subsection.
- (h) The department of health and environment shall continue to receive orders for both necessary treatment products and necessary food treatment products, purchase such products, and shall deliver the products to an address prescribed by the diagnosed individual. The department of health and environment shall bill the person or persons who have legal responsibility for the diagnosed patient for a pro-rata share of the total costs, in accordance with the rules and regulations adopted pursuant to this section.
- (i) The secretary of health and environment shall adopt rules and regulations as needed to require, to the extent of available funding, newborn screening tests to screen for treatable disorders listed in the core uniform panel of newborn screening conditions recommended in the 2005 report by the American college of medical genetics entitled "Newborn Screening: Toward a Uniform Screening Panel and System" or another report determined by the department of health and environment to provide more appropriate newborn screening guidelines to protect the health and welfare of newborns for treatable disorders.
- (j) In performing the duties under subsection (i), the secretary of health and environment shall appoint an advisory council to advise the department of health and environment on implementation of subsection (i).
- (k) The department of health and environment shall periodically review the newborn screening program to determine the efficacy and cost effectiveness of the program and determine whether adjustments to the program are necessary to protect the health and welfare of newborns and to maximize the number of newborn screenings that may be conducted with the funding available for the screening program.
- (I) There is hereby established in the state treasury the Kansas newborn screening fund that shall be administered by the secretary of health and environment. All expenditures from the fund shall be for the newborn screening program. All expenditures from the fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the secretary of health and environment or the secretary's designee. On July 1 of each year, the director of accounts and reports shall determine the amount credited to the medical assistance fee fund pursuant to K.S.A. 40-3213, and amendments thereto, and shall transfer the estimated portion of such amount that is necessary to fund the newborn screening program for the ensuing fiscal year as certified by the secretary of health and environment or the secretary's designee to the Kansas newborn screening fund, except that. Such amount shall not exceed \$2,500,000 in any one fiscal year, except that such amount shall not exceed \$5,000,000 in fiscal year 2021.
- Sec. 161. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 74-50,107 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-50,107. (a) Commencing July 1, 2018 2019, and on the first day of each month thereafter during fiscal year 2019, fiscal year 2020, and fiscal year 2021 and fiscal year 2022, the secretary of revenue shall apply a rate of 2% to that portion of moneys withheld from the wages of individuals and collected under the Kansas withholding and declaration of estimated tax act, K.S.A. 79-3294 et seq., and amendments thereto. The amount so determined shall be credited on a monthly basis as follows: (1) An amount necessary to meet obligations of the debt services for the IMPACT program repayment fund; and (2) an amount to the IMPACT program services fund as needed for program administration; and (3) any remaining amounts to the job creation program fund created

- pursuant to K.S.A. 74-50,224, and amendments thereto. During fiscal year 2019, fiscal year 2020, and fiscal year 2021 and fiscal year 2022, the aggregate amount that is credited to the job creation program fund pursuant to this subsection shall not exceed \$3,500,000 for each such fiscal year.
- (b) Commencing July 1,—2021\_2022, and on an annual basis thereafter, the secretary of revenue shall estimate the amount equal to the amount of net savings realized from the elimination, modification or limitation of any credit, deduction or program pursuant to the provisions of this act as compared to the expense deduction provided for in K.S.A. 79-32,143a, and amendments thereto. Whereupon such amount of savings in accordance with appropriation acts shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount to the credit of the job creation program fund created pursuant to K.S.A. 74-50,224, and amendments thereto. In addition, such other amount or amounts of money may be transferred from the state general fund or any other fund or funds in the state treasury to the job creation program fund in accordance with appropriation acts.
- Sec. 162. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 74-99b34 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-99b34. (a) The bioscience development and investment fund is hereby created. The bioscience development and investment fund shall not be a part of the state treasury and the funds in the bioscience development and investment fund shall belong exclusively to the authority.
- (b) Distributions from the bioscience development and investment fund shall be for the exclusive benefit of the authority, under the control of the board and used to fulfill the purpose, powers and duties of the authority pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 74-99b01 et seq., and amendments thereto.
- (c) The secretary of revenue and the authority shall establish the base year taxation for all bioscience companies and state universities. The secretary of revenue, the authority and the board of regents shall establish the number of bioscience employees associated with state universities and report annually and determine the increase from the taxation base annually. The secretary of revenue and the authority may consider any verifiable evidence, including, but not limited to, the NAICS code assigned or recorded by the department of labor for companies with employees in Kansas, when determining which companies should be classified as bioscience companies.
- (d) (1) Except as provided in subsection (h), for a period of 15 years from the effective date of this act, the state treasurer shall pay annually 95% of withholding above the base, as certified by the secretary of revenue, upon Kansas wages paid by bioscience employees to the bioscience development and investment fund. Such payments shall be reconciled annually. On or before the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the bioscience development and investment fund interest earnings based on:
- (A) The average daily balance of moneys in the bioscience development and investment fund for the preceding month; and
- (B) the net earnings rate of the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month.
- (2) There is hereby established in the state treasury the center of innovation for biomaterials in orthopaedic research Wichita state university fund, which shall be administered by Wichita state university. All moneys credited to the fund shall be used

for research and development. All expenditures from the center of innovation for biomaterials in orthopaedic research – Wichita state university fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts and upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to expenditures approved by the president of Wichita state university or by the person or persons designated by the president of Wichita state university.

- (3) There is hereby established in the state treasury the national bio agro-defense facility fund, which shall be administered by Kansas state university in accordance with the strategic plan adopted by the governor's national bio agro-defense facility steering committee. All moneys credited to the fund shall be used in accordance with the governor's national bio agro-defense facility steering committee's plan with the approval of the president of Kansas state university. All expenditures from the national bio agro-defense facility fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts and upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to expenditures approved by the steering committee and the president of Kansas state university or by the person or persons designated by the president of Kansas state university.
- (e) The cumulative amounts of funds paid by the state treasurer to the bioscience development and investment fund shall not exceed \$581,800,000.
- (f) The division of post audit is hereby authorized to conduct a post audit in accordance with the provisions of the legislative post audit act, K.S.A. 46-1106 et seq., and amendments thereto.
- (g) At the direction of the authority, the fund may be held in the custody of and invested by the state treasurer, provided that the bioscience development and investment fund shall at all times be accounted for in a separate report from all other funds of the authority and the state.
- (h) During fiscal years—2019, 2020—and, 2021\_and 2022, no moneys shall be transferred from the state general fund to the bioscience development and investment fund pursuant to subsection (d)(1).
- Sec. 163. K.S.A. 75-2263 is hereby amended to read as follows: 75-2263. (a) Subject to the provisions of subsection (j), the board of trustees is responsible for the management and investment of that portion of state moneys available for investment by the pooled money investment board that is certified by the state treasurer to the board of trustees as being equivalent to the aggregate net amount received for unclaimed property and shall discharge the board's duties with respect to such moneys solely in the interests of the state general fund and shall invest and reinvest such moneys and acquire, retain, manage, including the exercise of any voting rights and disposal of investments of such moneys within the limitations and according to the powers, duties and purposes as prescribed by this section.
- (b) Moneys specified in subsection (a) shall be invested and reinvested to achieve the investment objective, which is preservation of such moneys and accordingly providing that the moneys are as productive as possible, subject to the standards set forth in this section. No such moneys shall be invested or reinvested if the sole or primary investment objective is for economic development or social purposes or objectives.
- (c) In investing and reinvesting moneys specified in subsection (a) and in acquiring, retaining, managing and disposing of investments of the moneys, the board of trustees shall exercise the judgment, care, skill, prudence and diligence under the

circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of like character and with like aims by diversifying the investments of the moneys so as to minimize the risk of large losses, unless under the circumstances it is clearly prudent not to do so, and not in regard to speculation but in regard to the permanent disposition of similar moneys, considering the probable income as well as the probable safety of their capital.

- (d) In the discharge of such management and investment responsibilities the board of trustees may contract for the services of one or more professional investment advisors or other consultants in the management and investment of such moneys and otherwise in the performance of the duties of the board of trustees under this section.
- (e) The board of trustees shall require that each person contracted with under subsection (d) to provide services shall obtain commercial insurance that provides for errors and omissions coverage for such person in an amount to be specified by the board of trustees. The amount of such coverage specified by the board of trustees shall be at least the greater of \$500,000 or 1% of the funds entrusted to such person up to a maximum of \$10,000,000. The board of trustees shall require a person contracted with under subsection (d) to provide services to give a fidelity bond in a penal sum as may be fixed by law or, if not so fixed, as may be fixed by the board of trustees, with corporate surety authorized to do business in this state. Such persons contracted with the board of trustees pursuant to subsection (d) and any persons contracted with such persons to perform the functions specified in subsection (b) shall be deemed to be fiduciary agents of the board of trustees in the performance of contractual obligations.
- (f) (1) Subject to the objective set forth in subsection (b) and the standards set forth in subsection (c), the board of trustees shall formulate and adopt policies and objectives for the investment and reinvestment of such moneys and the acquisition, retention, management and disposition of investments of the moneys. Such policies and objectives shall be in writing and shall include:
  - (A) Specific asset allocation standards and objectives;
- (B) establishment of criteria for evaluating the risk versus the potential return on a particular investment; and
- (C) a requirement that all investment advisors, and any managers or others with similar duties and responsibilities as investment advisors, shall immediately report all instances of default on investments to the board of trustees and provide such board of trustees with recommendations and options, including, but not limited to, curing the default or withdrawal from the investment.
- (2) The board of trustees shall review such policies and objectives, make changes considered necessary or desirable and readopt such policies and objectives on an annual basis.
- (g) Except as provided in subsection (d) and this subsection, the custody of such moneys shall remain in the custody of the state treasurer, except that the board of trustees may arrange for the custody of such moneys as it considers advisable with one or more member banks or trust companies of the federal reserve system or with one or more banks in the state of Kansas, or both, to be held in safekeeping by the banks or trust companies for the collection of the principal and interest or other income or of the proceeds of sale. All such moneys shall be considered moneys in the state treasury for purposes of K.S.A. 75-6704, and amendments thereto.

- (h) All interest or other income of the investments of the moneys invested under this section, after payment of any management fees, shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the state general fund.
- (i) Subject to the provisions of subsection (j), The state treasurer shall certify to the board of trustees a portion of state moneys available for investment by the pooled money investment board that is equivalent to the aggregate net amount received for unclaimed property. The state treasurer shall transfer the amount certified to the board of trustees. During fiscal years 2019, 2020 and, 2021 and 2022, the state treasurer shall not certify or transfer any state moneys available for investment pursuant to this subsection.
- (j) (1) During fiscal year 2017, the board of trustees shall liquidate all investments and reinvestments of state moneys certified by the state treasurer to the board of trustees pursuant to subsection (a).
- (2) Upon receiving any such amounts from any such liquidation, the state treasurer shall remit the entire amount in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury and credit any earnings from the liquidation to the state general fund and credit the principal that had been invested and reinvested to the pooled money investment portfolio.
  - (k) As used in this section:
- (1) "Board of trustees" means the board of trustees of the Kansas public employees retirement system established by K.S.A. 74-4905, and amendments thereto.
- (2) "Fiduciary" means a person who, with respect to the moneys invested under this section:
- (A) Exercises any discretionary authority with respect to administration of the moneys;
- (B) exercises any authority to invest or manage such moneys or has any authority or responsibility to do so;
- (C) provides investment advice for a fee or other direct or indirect compensation with respect to such moneys or has any authority or responsibility to do so;
- (D) provides actuarial, accounting, auditing, consulting, legal or other professional services for a fee or other direct or indirect compensation with respect to such moneys or has any authority or responsibility to do so; or
  - (E) is a member of the board of trustees or of the staff of the board of trustees.
- Sec. 164. K.S.A. 75-6707 is hereby amended to read as follows: 75-6707. (a) For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022, the director of the budget, in consultation with the director of legislative research, shall certify, at the end of each such fiscal year, the amount of actual tax receipt revenues to the state general fund that is in excess of, or is less than, the amount of estimated tax receipt revenues to the state general fund pursuant to the most recent joint estimate of revenue under K.S.A. 75-6701, and amendments thereto, for such fiscal year, and shall transmit such certification to the director of accounts and reports.
- (b) Upon receipt of such certification, or as soon thereafter as moneys are available, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer 50% of such certified excess amount from the state general fund as follows:
  - (1) for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2021:
  - (A) 50%, and June 30, 2022, to the budget stabilization fund established by K.S.A.

- 75-6706, and amendments thereto; and
- (B) 50% to the pooled money investment portfolio pursuant to K.S.A. 75-4209(m) (2) and (m)(4), and amendments thereto, to pay in full or in part the amounts to be transferred. Any moneys transferred to the pooled money investment portfolio pursuant to this section shall be credited to the final payment to be made in fiscal year 2021, and each next preceding fiscal year thereafter as moneys are available; and
  - (2) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022:
  - (A) 50% to the budget stabilization fund; and
- (B) 50% to the Kansas public employees retirement fund to be applied to the payment, in full or in part, of the unfunded actuarial pension liability as directed by the Kansas public employees retirement system.
- (c) If the amount of actual tax receipt revenues to the state general fund is less than the amount of estimated tax receipt revenues to the state general fund, then no transfers shall be made pursuant to this section.
- Sec. 165. K.S.A. 76-775 is hereby amended to read as follows: 76-775. (a) Subject to the other provisions of this act, on the first day of the first state fiscal year commencing after receiving a certification of receipt of a qualifying gift under K.S.A. 76-774, and amendments thereto, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund the amount determined by the director of accounts and reports to be the earnings equivalent award for such qualifying gift for the period of time between the date of certification of the qualifying gift and the first day of the ensuing state fiscal year to either: (1) The endowed professorship account of the faculty of distinction matching fund of the eligible educational institution, in the case of a certification of a qualifying gift to an eligible educational institution that is a state educational institution; or (2) the faculty of distinction program fund of the state board of regents, in the case of a certification of a qualifying gift to an eligible institution that is not a state educational institution. Subject to the other provisions of this act, on each July 1 thereafter, the director of accounts and reports shall make such transfer from the state general fund of the earnings equivalent award for such qualifying gift for the period of the preceding state fiscal year. All transfers made in accordance with the provisions of this subsection shall be considered demand transfers from the state general fund, except that all such transfers during the fiscal years ending June 30, 2019, June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022, shall be considered to be revenue transfers from the state general fund.
- (b) There is hereby established in the state treasury the faculty of distinction program fund, which shall be administered by the state board of regents. All moneys transferred under this section to the faculty of distinction program fund of the state board of regents shall be paid to eligible educational institutions that are not state educational institutions for earnings equivalent awards for qualifying gifts to such eligible educational institutions. The state board of regents shall pay from the faculty of distinction program fund the amount of each such transfer to the eligible educational institution for the earnings equivalent award for which such transfer was made under this section.
- (c) The earnings equivalent award for an endowed professorship shall be determined by the director of accounts and reports and shall be the amount of interest earnings that the amount of the qualifying gift certified by the state board of regents would have earned at the average net earnings rate of the pooled money investment

board portfolio for the period for which the determination is being made.

- (d) The total amount of new qualifying gifts that may be certified to the director of accounts and reports under this act during any state fiscal year for all eligible educational institutions shall not exceed \$30,000,000. The total amount of new qualifying gifts that may be certified to the director of accounts and reports under this act during any state fiscal year for any individual eligible educational institution shall not exceed \$10,000,000. No additional qualifying gifts shall be certified by the state board of regents under this act when the total of all transfers from the state general fund for earnings equivalent awards for qualifying gifts pursuant to this section, and amendments thereto, for a fiscal year is equal to or greater than \$8,000,000 in fiscal year 2011 and in each fiscal year thereafter.
- Sec. 166. K.S.A. 76-7,107 is hereby amended to read as follows: 76-7,107. (a) (1) On July 1, 2008, or as soon thereafter as sufficient moneys are available, \$7,000,000 shall be transferred by the director of accounts and reports from the state general fund to the infrastructure maintenance fund established by K.S.A. 76-7,104, and amendments thereto.
- (2) No moneys shall be transferred by the director of accounts and reports from the state general fund to the infrastructure maintenance fund established by K.S.A. 76-7,104, and amendments thereto, during the fiscal years ending—June 30, 2019, June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022, pursuant to this section.
- (b) All transfers made in accordance with the provisions of this section shall be considered to be demand transfers from the state general fund.
- (c) All moneys credited to the infrastructure maintenance fund shall be expended or transferred only for the purpose of paying the cost of projects approved by the state board pursuant to the state educational institution long-term infrastructure maintenance program.
- Sec. 167. K.S.A. 79-2959 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-2959. (a) There is hereby created the local ad valorem tax reduction fund. All moneys transferred or credited to such fund under the provisions of this act or any other law shall be apportioned and distributed in the manner provided herein.
- (b) On January 15 and on July 15 of each year, the director of accounts and reports shall make transfers in equal amounts that in the aggregate equal 3.63% of the total retail sales and compensating taxes credited to the state general fund pursuant to articles 36 and 37 of chapter 79 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, during the preceding calendar year from the state general fund to the local ad valorem tax reduction fund, except that: (1) No moneys shall be transferred from the state general fund to the local ad valorem tax reduction fund during state fiscal years—2019, 2020 and 2021; and (2) the amount of the transfer on each such date shall be \$27,000,000 during fiscal year 2022 and all fiscal years thereafter. All such transfers are subject to reduction under K.S.A. 75-6704, and amendments thereto. All transfers made in accordance with the provisions of this section—shall be considered to be demand transfers from the state general fund, except that all such transfers during fiscal year 2022 shall be considered to be revenue transfers from the state general fund.
- (c) The state treasurer shall apportion and pay the amounts transferred under subsection (b) to the several county treasurers on January 15 and on July 15 in each year as follows: (1) 65% of the amount to be distributed shall be apportioned on the basis of the population figures of the counties certified to the secretary of state pursuant

to K.S.A. 11-201, and amendments thereto, on July 1 of the preceding year; and (2) 35% of such amount shall be apportioned on the basis of the equalized assessed tangible valuations on the tax rolls of the counties on November 1 of the preceding year as certified by the director of property valuation.

Sec. 168. K.S.A. 79-2964 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-2964. There is hereby created the county and city revenue sharing fund. All moneys transferred or credited to such fund under the provisions of this act or any other law shall be allocated and distributed in the manner provided herein. The director of accounts and reports in each year on July 15 and December 10, shall make transfers in equal amounts that in the aggregate equal 2.823% of the total retail sales and compensating taxes credited to the state general fund pursuant to articles 36 and 37 of chapter 79 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, during the preceding calendar year from the state general fund to the county and city revenue sharing fund, except that no moneys shall be transferred from the state general fund to the county and city revenue sharing fund during state fiscal years-2019, 2020-and, 2021 and 2022. All such transfers are subject to reduction under K.S.A. 75-6704, and amendments thereto. All transfers made in accordance with the provisions of this section shall be considered to be demand transfers from the state general fund.

Sec. 169. K.S.A. 79-3425i is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-3425i. On January 15 and July 15 of each year, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer a sum equal to the total taxes collected under the provisions of K.S.A. 79-6a04 and 79-6a10, and amendments thereto, and annual commercial vehicle fees collected pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-143m, and amendments thereto, and credited to the state general fund during the six months next preceding the date of transfer, from the state general fund to the special city and county highway fund, created by K.S.A. 79-3425, and amendments thereto, except that: (1) Such transfers are subject to reduction under K.S.A. 75-6704, and amendments thereto; (2) no moneys shall be transferred from the state general fund to the special city and county highway fund during state fiscal year 2019, state fiscal year 2020; and (3) all transfers under this section shall be considered to be demand transfers from the state general fund.

Sec. 170. K.S.A. 79-34,171 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-34,171. (a) On January 1, 2009, and quarterly thereafter, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$400,000 from the state general fund to the Kansas retail dealer incentive fund, except that no moneys shall be transferred pursuant to this section from the state general fund to the Kansas retail dealer incentive fund during the fiscal years ending June 30, 2019, June 30, 2021, or June 30, 2022. On and after July 1, 2009, the unobligated balance in the Kansas retail dealer incentive fund shall not exceed \$1.5 million. If the unobligated balance of the fund exceeds \$1.1 million at the time of a quarterly transfer, the transfer shall be limited to the amount necessary for the fund to reach a total of \$1.5 million.

(b) There is hereby created in the state treasury the Kansas retail dealer incentive fund. All moneys in the Kansas retail dealer incentive fund shall be expended by the secretary of the department of revenue for the payment of incentives to Kansas retail dealers who sell and dispense renewable fuels or biodiesel through a motor fuel pump in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 79-34,170 through 79-34,175, and amendments thereto.

- (c) All moneys remaining in the Kansas retail dealer incentive fund upon the expiration of K.S.A. 79-34,170 through 79-34,175, and amendments thereto, shall be credited by the state treasurer to the state general fund.
- Sec. 171. K.S.A. 79-4804 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-4804. (a) After the transfer of moneys pursuant to K.S.A. 79-4806, and amendments thereto, an amount equal to 85% of the balance of all moneys credited to the state gaming revenues fund shall be transferred and credited to the state economic development initiatives fund. Expenditures from the state economic development initiatives fund shall be made in accordance with appropriations acts for the financing of such programs supporting and enhancing the existing economic foundation of the state and fostering growth through the expansion of current, and the establishment and attraction of new, commercial and industrial enterprises as provided by this section and as may be authorized by law and not less than ½ of such money shall be distributed equally among the congressional districts of the state. Except as provided by subsection (g), all moneys credited to the state economic development initiatives fund shall be credited within the fund, as provided by law, to an account or accounts of the fund, which are created by this section.
- (b) There is hereby created the Kansas capital formation account in the state economic development initiatives fund. All moneys credited to the Kansas capital formation account shall be used to provide, encourage and implement capital development and formation in Kansas.
- (c) There is hereby created the Kansas economic development research and development account in the state economic development initiatives fund. All moneys credited to the Kansas economic development research and development account shall be used to promote, encourage and implement research and development programs and activities in Kansas and technical assistance funded through state educational institutions under the supervision and control of the state board of regents or other Kansas colleges and universities.
- (d) There is hereby created the Kansas economic development endowment account in the state economic development initiatives fund. All moneys credited to the Kansas economic development endowment account shall be accumulated and invested as provided in this section to provide an ongoing source of funds, which shall be used for economic development activities in Kansas, including, but not limited to, continuing appropriations or demand transfers for programs and projects, which shall include, but are not limited to, specific community infrastructure projects in Kansas that stimulate economic growth.
- (e) Except as provided in subsection (f), the director of investments may invest and reinvest moneys credited to the state economic development initiatives fund in accordance with investment policies established by the pooled money investment board under K.S.A. 75-4232, and amendments thereto, in the pooled money investment portfolio. All moneys received as interest earned by the investment of the moneys credited to the state economic development initiatives fund shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the Kansas economic development endowment account of such fund.
- (f) Moneys credited to the Kansas economic development endowment account of the state economic development initiatives fund may be invested in government guaranteed loans and debentures as provided by law in addition to the investments

authorized by subsection (e) or in lieu of such investments. All moneys received as interest earned by the investment under this subsection of the moneys credited to the Kansas economic development endowment account shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the Kansas economic development endowment account of the state economic development initiatives fund.

- (g) Except as provided further, in each fiscal year, the director of accounts and reports shall make transfers in equal amounts on July 15 and January 15 that in the aggregate equal \$2,000,000 from the state economic development initiatives fund to the state water plan fund created by K.S.A. 82a-951, and amendments thereto. In state fiscal year 2019, fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall make transfers in equal amounts on July 15 and January 15 that in the aggregate equal \$500,000 from the state economic development initiatives fund to the state water plan fund. In state fiscal year 2021, the director of accounts and reports shall make transfers in equal amounts on July 15 and January 15 that in the aggregate equal \$913,325 from the state economic development initiatives fund to the state water plan fund. In state fiscal year 2022, the director of accounts and reports shall make transfers in equal amounts on July 15 and January 15 that in the aggregate equal \$500,000 from the state economic development initiatives fund to the state water plan fund. No other moneys credited to the state economic development initiatives fund shall be used for: (1) Water-related projects or programs, or related technical assistance; or (2) any other projects or programs, or related technical assistance that meet one or more of the longrange goals, objectives and considerations set forth in the state water resource planning act.
- Sec. 172. K.S.A. 82a-953a is hereby amended to read as follows: 82a-953a. During each fiscal year, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$6,000,000 from the state general fund to the state water plan fund created by K.S.A. 82a-951, and amendments thereto, one-half of such amount to be transferred on July 15 and one-half to be transferred on January 15.—During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, the transfer shall not exceed \$2,750,000. During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the transfer shall not exceed \$4,005,632.—During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the transfer shall not exceed \$2,750,000.
- Sec. 173. K.S.A. 65-180, 75-2263, 75-6707, 76-775, 76-7,107, 79-2959, 79-2964, 79-3425i, 79-34,171, 79-4804 and 82a-953a and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-223, 12-1775a, 12-5256, 55-193, 74-50,107 and 74-99b34 are hereby repealed.
- Sec. 174. If any fund or account name described by words and the numerical accounting code that follows such fund or account name do not match, it shall be conclusively presumed that the legislature intended that the fund or account name described by words is the correct fund or account name, and such fund or account name described by words shall control over a contradictory or incorrect numerical accounting code.
- Sec. 175. Severability. If any provision or clause of this act or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this act that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this act are declared to be severable.
- Sec. 176. Appeals to exceed expenditure limitations. (a) Upon written application to the governor and approval of the state finance council, expenditures from special

revenue funds may exceed the amounts specified in this act.

- (b) This section shall not apply to the expanded lottery act revenues fund, the state economic development initiatives fund, the children's initiative fund, the state water plan fund or the Kansas endowment for youth fund, or to any account of any such funds.
- Sec. 177. Savings. (a) Any unencumbered balance as of June 30, 2020, in any special revenue fund, or account thereof, of any state agency named in this act that is not otherwise specifically appropriated or limited for fiscal year 2021 by this or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, is hereby appropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the same use and purpose as the same was heretofore appropriated.
- (b) This section shall not apply to the expanded lottery act revenues fund, the state economic development initiatives fund, the children's initiatives fund, the state water plan fund, the Kansas endowment for youth fund, the Kansas educational building fund, the state institutions building fund, or to any account of any of such funds.
- Sec. 178. During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys that are lawfully credited to and available in any bond special revenue fund and that are not otherwise specifically appropriated or limited by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, are hereby appropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the state agency for which the bond special revenue fund was established for the purposes authorized by law for expenditures from such bond special revenue fund. As used in this section, "bond special revenue fund" means any special revenue fund or account thereof established in the state treasury prior to or on or after the effective date of this act for the deposit of the proceeds of bonds issued by the Kansas development finance authority, for the payment of debt service for bonds issued by the Kansas development finance authority, or for any related purpose in accordance with applicable bond covenants.
- Sec. 179. Federal grants. (a) During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, each federal grant or other federal receipt that is received by a state agency named in this act and that is not otherwise appropriated to that state agency for fiscal year 2021 by this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, is hereby appropriated for fiscal year 2021, for that state agency for the purpose set forth in such federal grant or receipt, except that no expenditure shall be made from and no obligation shall be incurred against any such federal grant or other federal receipt that has not been previously appropriated or reappropriated or approved for expenditure by the governor, until the governor has authorized the state agency to make expenditures therefrom.
- (b) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by any state agency that is named in this act and that is not otherwise authorized by law to apply for and receive federal grants, expenditures may be made by such state agency from moneys appropriated for fiscal year 2021 by this act or any other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature to apply for and receive federal grants during fiscal year 2021, which federal grants are hereby authorized to be applied for and received by such state agencies: *Provided*, That no expenditure shall be made from and no obligation shall be incurred against any such federal grant or other federal receipt that has not been previously appropriated or reappropriated or approved for expenditure

by the governor, until the governor has authorized the state agency to make expenditures therefrom.

- Sec. 180. (a) Any correctional institutions building fund appropriation heretofore appropriated to any state agency named in this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, and having an unencumbered balance as of June 30, 2020, in excess of \$100 is hereby reappropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the same uses and purposes as originally appropriated unless specific provision is made for lapsing such appropriation.
- (b) This subsection shall not apply to the unencumbered balance in any account of the correctional institutions building fund that was encumbered for any fiscal year commencing prior to July 1, 2019.
- Sec. 181. (a) Any Kansas educational building fund appropriation heretofore appropriated to any institution named in this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature and having an unencumbered balance as of June 30, 2020, in excess of \$100 is hereby reappropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the same use and purpose as originally appropriated, unless specific provision is made for lapsing such appropriation.
- (b) This subsection shall not apply to the unencumbered balance in any account of the Kansas educational building fund that was encumbered for any fiscal year commencing prior to July 1, 2019.
- Sec. 182. (a) Any state institutions building fund appropriation heretofore appropriated to any state agency named in this or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature and having an unencumbered balance as of June 30, 2020, in excess of \$100 is hereby reappropriated for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the same use and purpose as originally appropriated, unless specific provision is made for lapsing such appropriation.
- (b) This subsection shall not apply to the unencumbered balance in any account of the state institutions building fund that was encumbered for any fiscal year commencing prior to July 1, 2019.
- Sec. 183. Any transfers of moneys during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, from any special revenue fund of any state agency named in this act to the audit services fund of the division of post audit under K.S.A. 46-1121, and amendments thereto, shall be in addition to any expenditure limitation imposed on any such fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.
- Sec. 184. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the Kansas register.";

On page 1, in the title, by striking all in lines 1 through 5, and inserting "AN ACT making and concerning appropriations for fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022, for state agencies; authorizing certain transfers, capital improvement projects and fees, imposing certain restrictions and limitations, and directing or authorizing certain receipts, disbursements, procedures and acts incidental to the foregoing; amending K.S.A. 65-180, 75-2263, 75-6707, 76-775, 76-7,107, 79-2959, 79-2964, 79-3425i, 79-34,171, 79-4804 and 82a-953a and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 2-223, 12-1775a, 12-5256, 55-193, 74-50,107 and 74-99b34 and repealing the existing sections.":

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

Troy Waymaster
Kyle Hoffman
Kathy Wolfe Moore
Conferees on part of House

CAROLYN McGINN
RICK BILLINGER
TOM HAWK
Conferees on part of Senate

On motion of Rep. Waymaster, the conference committee report on  ${\bf SB}$  66 was adopted.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 99; Nays 16; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 10.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burroughs, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Horn, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Awerkamp, Burris, Capps, Delperdang, Erickson, Garber, Helgerson, Highland, Houser, Jacobs, Landwehr, Owens, Rhiley, Straub, Waggoner, Wasinger.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Benson, Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Finney, Holscher, Kuether, Mastroni, Ousley, Ruiz, L.

## EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: I voted "No" on **SB 66** because I believe the additional spending in this budget far exceeds the State's capability to fund it without new taxes. With the foreseeable downturn in the economy, now is not the time to be spending more money but cutting down to the priorities we must fund.

This budget was put together under crisis and without the proper vetting required to ensure the budget can be paid for. I would have rather come back and do it right and not under pressure. Knowing that is not going to happen, I change my vote to "Yes" – David French

Mr. Speaker: The world has changed since we arrived in Topeka on January 12<sup>th</sup>. The coronavirus and resulting economic disruptions will be far reaching. It will effect FY 2021 Kansas tax revenue. We will easily see a 5% drop in revenue. This involves hundreds of millions of dollars.

To raise the state budget to over \$8.0 billion is neither wise nor sustainable. Tax

revenue will be \$500 million to \$1.0 billion less than that. Let's start closing that gap now. We respect the taxpayers hard-earned dollars. They will be tightening their belts going forward. The state of Kansas needs to do so as well. I vote No on **SB 66**. – Paul Waggoner, Alicia Straub, Trevor Jacobs, Bill Rhiley

#### CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MR. SPEAKER and MADAM PRESIDENT: Your committee on conference on Senate amendments to **HCR 5025** submits the following report:

The House accedes to all Senate amendments to the resolution, and your committee on conference further agrees to amend the bill as printed as Amended by Senate on Final Action, as follows:

On page 1, in line 21, by striking ", and amendments thereto,"; in line 27, by striking all after "session"; by striking all in lines 28 through 30; in line 31, by striking all before the semicolon and inserting ":

- (1) As described in K.S.A. 48-924(b)(3), upon specific application by the Governor to the State Finance Council, the State Finance Council may authorize once an extension of such state of disaster emergency by affirmative vote of a majority of the legislative members thereof for a specified period not to exceed 30 days; and
- (2) following such State Finance Council action, the Legislative Coordinating Council, representing the Legislature when the Legislature is not in session pursuant to K.S.A. 46-1202:
- (A) Is authorized to ratify a declaration, terminate a state of disaster emergency, revoke an order or proclamation or assume any other power granted to the legislature pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924 or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 48-925;
- (B) may authorize additional extensions of such state of disaster emergency by a majority vote of five members thereof for specified periods not to exceed 30 days each;
  - (C) shall meet not less than every 30 days to:
  - (i) Review the state of disaster emergency;
- (ii) consider any orders or proclamations issued since the last Legislative Coordinating Council meeting; and
- (iii) consider whether such orders or proclamations, if any, are an exercise of any power listed in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 48-925(c)(2), (c)(4), (c)(7), (c)(8) or (c)(11); and
- (D) shall have the authority to review and revoke all orders and proclamations issued by the governor pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 48-925(b). The chairperson of the Legislative Coordinating Council, in consultation with the attorney general, adjutant general and any other parties the chairperson deems necessary, shall determine if an order or proclamation that is an exercise of a power listed in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 48-925(c)(2), (c)(4), (c)(7), (c)(8) or (c)(11) has been issued. If the chairperson determines that the order or proclamation is an exercise of such power, the Legislative Coordinating Council shall meet to consider such order or proclamation within three calendar days. At such meeting, the Legislative Coordinating Council may revoke such order or proclamation";

On page 2, in line 2, by striking "; and"; by striking all in lines 4 through 22; in line 23, by striking all before the period;

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

RICHARD WILBORN
ERIC RUCKER
ANTHONY HENSLEY
Conferees on part of Senate

BLAINE FINCH
LES MASON
TOM SAWYER
Conferees on part of House

On motion of Rep. Finch, the conference committee report on HCR 5025 was adopted.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 115; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 10.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Benson, Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Finney, Holscher, Kuether, Mastroni, Ousley, Ruiz, L.

#### EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: I reluctantly vote Yes on HCR 5025. It is an extreme situation we find ourselves in due to the Coronavirus pandemic. The possibility of governmental overreach is always great in times of emergency. But this bill keeps the executive branch on a short enough leash with legislative accountability, that I find it acceptable and in the public interest. In other states, during this crisis, we have seen shocking examples of executive power being used. I would never want that for Kansas and I think HCR 5025 helps keep that from happening in the end. – Paul Waggoner

Mr. Speaker: I vote Yes on HCR 5025, I do believe Kansans in this time will need some extra governmental resources and services to be made available to them as we face uncertain times. I am also thankful for the wisdom of our Founding Fathers giving us a government of checks and balances for the process of limited government and limited powers. We as legislators must always be vigilant to protect the people's liberties above

all causes. Remember, "They who can give up essential liberty to obtain a little temporary safety deserve neither liberty nor safety." Benjamin Franklin – Trevor Jacobs, Randy Garber, Alcia Straub, David W. French

#### CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MR. SPEAKER and MADAM PRESIDENT: Your committee on conference on Senate amendments to **HB 2168** submits the following report:

The House accedes to all Senate amendments to the bill, and your committee on conference further agrees to amend the bill, as printed with Senate Committee amendments, as follows:

On page 1, by striking all in lines 7 through 34;

By striking all on pages 2 and 3;

On page 4, by striking all in lines 1 through 8; following line 8, by inserting:

- "Section 1. K.S.A. 65-6208 is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-6208. (a) Subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 65-6209, and amendments thereto, an annual assessment on—inpatient services is imposed on each hospital provider in an amount equal to—1.83% 3% of each hospital's net inpatient and outpatient operating revenue for the hospital's fiscal year—2010 three years prior to the assessment year. In the event that a hospital does not have a complete—twelve—month—2010—12-month fiscal year in such third prior fiscal year, the assessment under this section shall be \$200,000 until such date that such hospital has completed the hospital's first—twelve—month—12-month fiscal year. Upon completing such first twelve—month fiscal year, such hospital's assessment under this section shall be the amount equal to—1.83% 3% of such hospital's net operating revenue for such first completed—twelve—month—12-month fiscal year.
- (b) Nothing in this act shall be construed to authorize any home rule unit or other unit of local government to license for revenue or impose a tax or assessment upon hospital providers or a tax or assessment measured by the income or earnings of a hospital provider.
- (c) (1) The department of health and environment shall submit to the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services any approval request necessary to implement the amendments made to subsection (a) by this act. If the department has submitted such a request pursuant to section 80(1) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, then the department may continue such request, or modify such request to conform to the amendments made to subsection (a) by this act, to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph.
- (2) The secretary of health and environment shall certify to the secretary of state the receipt of such approval and cause notice of such approval to be published in the Kansas register.
- (3) The amendments made to subsection (a) by this act shall take effect on and after January 1 or July 1 immediately following such publication of such approval.
- Sec. 2. K.S.A. 65-6218 is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-6218. (a) (1) Assessment revenues generated from the hospital provider assessments shall be disbursed as follows:
- (1)(A) Not less than 80% of assessment revenues shall be disbursed to hospital providers through a combination of medicaid access improvement payments and increased medicaid rates on designated diagnostic related groupings, procedures or codes;

- (2)(B) not more than 20% of assessment revenues shall be disbursed to providers who are persons licensed to practice medicine and surgery or dentistry through increased medicaid rates on designated procedures and codes; and
- (3)(C) not more than 3.2% of hospital provider assessment revenues shall be used to fund healthcare access improvement programs in undergraduate, graduate or continuing medical education, including the medical student loan act.
- (b) Assessment revenues generated from the health maintenance organization-assessment shall be disbursed as follows:
- (1) Not less than 53% of health maintenance organization assessment revenues shall be disbursed to health maintenance organizations that have a contract with the department through increased medicaid capitation payments;
- (2) not more than 30% of health maintenance organization assessment revenues shall be disbursed to fund activities to increase access to dental care, primary care safety net clinics, increased medicaid rates on designated procedures and codes for providers who are persons licensed to practice dentistry, and home and community-based-services:
- (3) not more than 17% of health maintenance organization assessment revenues shall be disbursed to pharmacy providers through increased medicaid rates.
- (2) On July 1 of each year, the department of health and environment, with approval of the healthcare access improvement panel, shall make adjustments to the disbursement of moneys in accordance with this subsection to cause such disbursements to be paid solely from moneys appropriated from the healthcare access improvement fund. The healthcare access improvement fund shall not be supplemented by appropriations from the state general fund for the purpose of making disbursements under this subsection.
- (e)(b) For the purposes of administering and selecting the disbursements described in subsections (a) and (b) of this section, the healthcare access improvement panel is hereby established. The panel shall consist of the following: Three members appointed by the Kansas hospital association, two members who are persons licensed to practice medicine and surgery appointed by the Kansas medical society, one member appointed by each health maintenance organization that has a medicaid managed care contract with the Kansas department for aging and disability services of health and environment, one member appointed by the community care network of Kansas-association for the medically underserved, one member appointed by the president of the senate, one member appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives, one member from the office of the medicaid inspector general appointed by the attorney general and one representative of the department of health and environment appointed by the governor. The panel-shall meet as soon as possible subsequent to the effective date of this act and shall elect a chairperson from among the members appointed by the Kansas hospital association. A representative of the panel shall be required to make an annual report to the legislature regarding the collection and distribution of all funds received and distributed under this act, and such report shall include analysis demonstrating that disbursements made in accordance with subsection (a) are budget neutral to the state general fund.
- (c) (1) The department of health and environment shall submit to the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services any approval request necessary to implement the amendments made to this section by this act. If the department has

- submitted such a request pursuant to section 80(1) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, then the department may continue such request, or modify such request to conform to the amendments made to subsections (a) and (b) by this act, to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph.
- (2) The secretary of health and environment shall certify to the secretary of state the receipt of such approval and cause notice of such approval to be published in the Kansas register.
- (3) The amendments made to subsections (a) and (b) by this act shall take effect on and after January 1 or July 1 immediately following such publication of such approval.
- Sec. 3. K.S.A. 75-7435 is hereby amended to read as follows: 75-7435. (a) As used in this section unless the context requires otherwise:
- (1) Words and phrases—have the meanings respectively ascribed thereto\_mean the same as defined by K.S.A. 39-923, and amendments thereto.
- (2) "Skilled nursing care facility" means a licensed nursing facility, nursing facility for mental health as defined in K.S.A. 39-923, and amendments thereto, or a hospital long-term care unit licensed by the department of health and environment, providing skilled nursing care, but shall not include the Kansas soldiers' home or the Kansas veterans' home.
- (3) "Licensed bed" means those beds within a skilled nursing care facility—which that the facility is licensed to operate.
  - (4) "Agent" means the Kansas department for aging and disability services.
- (5) "Continuing care retirement facility" means a facility holding a certificate of registration issued by the commissioner of insurance pursuant to K.S.A. 40-2235, and amendments thereto.
- (b) (1) Except as otherwise provided in this section—and in subsection (f), there is hereby imposed and the secretary of health and environment shall assess an annual assessment per licensed bed, hereinafter called a quality care assessment, on each skilled nursing care facility. The assessment on all facilities in the aggregate shall be an amount fixed by rules and regulations of the secretary of health and environment, shall not exceed \$4,908 annually per licensed bed, shall be imposed as an amount per licensed bed and shall be imposed uniformly on all skilled nursing care facilities except that the assessment rate for skilled nursing care facilities that are part of a continuing care retirement facility, small skilled nursing care facilities and high medicaid volume skilled nursing care facilities shall not exceed <sup>1</sup>/<sub>6</sub> of the actual amount assessed all other skilled nursing care facilities. No rules and regulations of the secretary of health and environment shall grant any exception to or exemption from the quality care assessment. The assessment shall be paid quarterly, with one fourth of the annual amount due by the 30th day after the end of the month of each calendar quarter. The secretary of health and environment is authorized to establish delayed payment schedules for skilled nursing care facilities—which that are unable to make quarterly payments when due under this section due to financial difficulties, as determined by the secretary of health and environment. As used in this paragraph, the terms "small skilled nursing care facilities" and "high medicaid volume skilled nursing care facilities" shall have the meanings ascribed thereto be defined by the secretary of health and environment by rules and regulations, except that the definition of "small skilled nursing care facility" shall not be lower fewer than 40 beds.
  - (2) Beds licensed after July 1 each year shall pay a prorated amount of the

applicable annual assessment so that the assessment applies only for the days such new beds are licensed. The proration shall be calculated by multiplying the applicable assessment by the percentage of days the beds are licensed during the year. Any change which that reduces the number of licensed beds in a facility shall not result in a refund being issued to the skilled nursing care facility.

- (3) If an entity conducts, operates or maintains more than one licensed skilled nursing care facility, the entity shall pay the nursing facility assessment for each facility separately. No skilled nursing care facility shall create a separate line-item charge for the purpose of passing through the quality care assessment to residents. No skilled nursing care facility shall be guaranteed, expressly or otherwise, that any additional moneys paid to the facility under this section will equal or exceed the amount of its quality care assessment.
- (4) The payment of the quality care assessment to the secretary of health and environment shall be an allowable cost for medicaid reimbursement purposes. A rate adjustment pursuant to subsection (d)(5) shall be made effective on the date of imposition of the assessment, to reimburse the portion of this cost imposed on medicaid days.
- (5) The secretary of health and environment shall seek a waiver from the United States department of health and human services to allow the state to impose varying levels of assessments on skilled nursing care facilities based on specified criteria. It is the intent of the legislature that the waiver sought by the secretary of health and environment be structured to minimize the negative fiscal impact on certain classes of skilled nursing care facilities.
- (c) Each skilled nursing care facility shall prepare and submit to the secretary of health and environment any additional information required and requested by the secretary of health and environment to implement or administer the provisions of this section. Each skilled nursing care facility shall prepare and submit quarterly to the secretary for aging and disability services the rate the facility charges to private pay residents, and the secretary shall cause this information to be posted on the web site of the department for aging and disability services.
- (d) (1) There is hereby created in the state treasury the quality care fund, which shall to be administered by the secretary of health and environment. All moneys received for the assessments imposed pursuant to subsection (b), including any penalty assessments imposed thereon pursuant to subsection (e), shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the quality care fund. All expenditures from the quality care fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the secretary of health and environment or the secretary's agent.
- (2) All moneys in the quality care fund shall be used to finance initiatives to maintain or improve the quantity and quality of skilled nursing care in skilled nursing care facilities in Kansas. No moneys credited to the quality care fund shall be transferred to or otherwise revert to the state general fund at any time. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law to the contrary, if any moneys credited to the quality care fund are transferred or otherwise revert to the state general fund, 30 days following the transfer or reversion the quality care assessment shall terminate and the secretary of

health and environment shall discontinue the imposition, assessment and collection of the assessment. Upon termination of the assessment, all collected assessment revenues, including the moneys inappropriately transferred or reverting to the state general fund, less any amounts expended by the secretary of health and environment, shall be returned on a pro rata basis to skilled nursing care facilities that paid the assessment.

- (3) Any moneys received by the state of Kansas from the federal government as a result of federal financial participation in the state medicaid program that are derived from the quality care assessment shall be deposited in the quality care fund and used to finance actions to maintain or increase healthcare in skilled nursing care facilities.
  - (4) Moneys in the fund shall be used exclusively for the following purposes:
- (A) To pay administrative expenses incurred by the secretary of health and environment or the agent in performing the activities authorized by this section, except that such expenses shall not exceed a total of 1% of the aggregate assessment funds collected pursuant to subsection (b) for the prior fiscal year;
- (B) to increase nursing facility payments to fund covered services to medicaid beneficiaries within medicare upper payment limits, as may be negotiated;
- (C) to reimburse the medicaid share of the quality care assessment as a pass-through medicaid allowable cost;
  - (D) to restore the medicaid rate reductions implemented January 1, 2010;
- (E) to restore funding for fiscal year 2010, including rebasing and inflation to be applied to rates in fiscal year 2011; and
- (F) the remaining amount, if any, shall be expended first to increase the direct health care costs center limitation up to 150% of the case mix adjusted median, and then, if there are remaining amounts, for other quality care enhancement of skilled nursing care facilities as approved by the quality care improvement panel but shall not be used directly or indirectly to replace existing state expenditures for payments to skilled nursing care facilities for providing services pursuant to the state medicaid program.
- (5) Any moneys received by a skilled nursing care facility from the quality care fund shall not be expended by any skilled nursing care facility to provide for bonuses or profit-sharing for any officer, employee or parent corporation but may be used to pay to employees who are providing direct care to a resident of such facility.
- (6) Adjustment payments may be paid quarterly or within the daily medicaid rate to reimburse covered medicaid expenditures in the aggregate within the upper payment limits.
- (7) On or before the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the quality care fund interest earnings based on:
- (A) The average daily balance of moneys in the quality care fund for the preceding month; and
- (B) the net earnings rate of the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month.
- (e) If a skilled nursing care facility fails to pay the full amount of the quality care assessment imposed pursuant to subsection (b), when due and payable, including any extensions of time granted under that subsection, the secretary of health and environment shall assess a penalty in the amount of the lesser of \$500 per day or 2% of the quality care assessment owed for each day the assessment is delinquent. The

secretary of health and environment is authorized to establish delayed payment schedules for skilled nursing care facilities that are unable to make installment payments when due under this section because of financial difficulties, as determined by the secretary of health and environment.

- (f) (1) The secretary of health and environment shall assess and collect quality care assessments imposed pursuant to subsection (b), including any penalty assessments imposed thereon pursuant to subsection (e), from skilled nursing care facilities on and after July 1, 2010, except that no assessments or penalties shall be assessed under subsections (a) through (h) until:
- (A) An amendment to the state plan for medicaid, which that increases the rates of payments made to skilled nursing care facilities for providing services pursuant to the federal medicaid program and—which\_that is proposed for approval for purposes of subsections (a) through (h) is approved by the federal government, in which case the initial assessment is due no not earlier than 60 days after state plan approval; and
- (B) the skilled nursing care facilities have been compensated retroactively within 60 days after state plan approval at the increased rate for services provided pursuant to the federal medicaid program for the period commencing on and after July 1, 2010.
- (2) The secretary of health and environment shall implement and administer the provisions of subsections (a) through (h) in a manner consistent with applicable federal medicaid laws and regulations. The secretary of health and environment shall seek any necessary approvals by the federal government that are required for the implementation of subsections (a) through (h).
- (3) The provisions of subsections (a) through (h) shall be null and void and shall have no force and effect if one of the following occur:
- (A) The medicaid plan amendment, which that increases the rates of payments made to skilled nursing care facilities for providing services pursuant to the federal medicaid program and which that is proposed for approval for purposes of subsections (a) through (h) is not approved by the federal United States centers for medicare and medicaid services;
- (B) the rates of payments made to skilled nursing care facilities for providing services pursuant to the federal medicaid program are reduced below the rates calculated on December 31, 2009, increased by revenues in the quality care fund and matched by federal financial participation and rebasing as provided for in K.S.A. 75-5958, and amendments thereto;
- (C) any funds are utilized to supplant funding for skilled nursing care facilities as required by subsection (g);
  - (D) any funds are diverted from those purposes set forth in subsection (d)(4); or
- (E) upon the governor signing, or allowing to become law without signature, legislation—which\_that, by proviso or otherwise, directs any funds from those purposes set forth in subsection (d)(4) or—which\_that would propose to suspend the operation of this section.
- (g) On and after July 1, 2010, reimbursement rates for skilled nursing care facilities shall be restored to those in effect during December 2009. No funds generated by the assessments or federal funds generated therefrom shall be utilized for such restoration, but such funds may be used to restore the rate reduction in effect from January 1, 2010, to June 30, 2010.
  - (h) Rates of reimbursement shall not be limited by private pay charges.

- (i) If the provisions of subsections (a) through (h) are repealed, expire or become null and void and have no further force and effect, all moneys in the quality care fund which that were paid under the provisions of subsections (a) through (h) shall be returned to the skilled nursing care facilities—which that paid such moneys on the basis on which such payments were assessed and paid pursuant to subsections (a) through (h).
- (j) The department of health and environment may adopt rules and regulations necessary to implement the provisions of this section.
- (k) For purposes of administering and selecting the reimbursements of moneys in the quality care assessment fund, the quality care improvement panel is hereby established. The panel shall consist of the following members: Two persons appointed by leadingage Kansas; two persons appointed by the Kansas health care association; one person appointed by Kansas advocates for better care; one person appointed by the Kansas hospital association; one person appointed by the governor who is a member of the Kansas adult care executives association; one person appointed by the governor who is a skilled nursing care facility resident or the family member of such a resident; one person appointed by the Kansas foundation for medical care; one person appointed by the governor from the department for aging and disability services; one person appointed by the governor from the department of health and environment; one person appointed by the president of the senate who is affiliated with an organization representing and advocating the interests of retired persons in Kansas; and one person appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives who is a volunteer with the office of the state long-term care ombudsman established by the long-term care ombudsman act. The person appointed by the governor from the department for aging and disability services and the person appointed by the governor from the department of health and environment shall be nonvoting members of the panel. The panel shall meet as soon as possible subsequent to the effective date of this act and shall elect a chairperson from among the members appointed by the trade organizations specified in this subsection. The members of the quality care improvement panel shall serve without compensation or expenses. The quality care improvement panel shall report annually on or before January 10 to the senate committees on public health and welfare and ways and means, the house committees on appropriations and health and human services and the Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight concerning the progress to reduce the incidence of antipsychotic drug use in elders with dementia, participation in the nursing facility quality and efficiency outcome incentive factor, participation in the culture change and personcentered care incentive program, annual resident satisfaction ratings for Kansas skilled nursing care facilities and the activities of the panel during the preceding calendar year and any recommendations-which that the panel may have concerning the administration of and expenditures from the quality care assessment fund.
  - (1) The provisions of this section shall expire on July 1, <del>2020</del> 2030.
  - Sec. 4. K.S.A. 65-6208, 65-6218 and 75-7435 are hereby repealed.";

Also on page 4, in line 10, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register"; And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking all after "concerning"; by striking all in lines 2 and 3; in line 4, by striking all before the period and inserting "health provider assessments; relating to the hospital provider assessment and the quality care assessment; increasing the rate and expanding the base of the hospital provider

assessment; amending membership on the healthcare access improvement panel; extending the quality care assessment; amending K.S.A. 65-6208, 65-6218 and 75-7435 and repealing the existing sections";

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

Carolyn McGinn Rick Billinger Tom Hawk Conferees on part of Senate

Troy Waymaster
Kyle Hoffman
Kathy Wolfe Moore
Conferees on part of House

On motion of Rep. Carpenter, W., the conference committee report on HB 2168 was adopted.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 91; Nays 24; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 10.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Burroughs, Carlson, Carmichael, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Curtis, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Horn, Howard, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thompson, Toplikar, Victors, Warfield, Warren, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Awerkamp, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, B. Carpenter, Croft, Delperdang, Erickson, Garber, Helmer, Houser, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Owens, Smith, E., Straub, Thomas, Vickrey, Waggoner, Ward, Wasinger, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Benson, Bishop, Carlin, Donohoe, Finney, Holscher, Kuether, Mastroni, Ousley, Ruiz, L..

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 5:00 p.m.

#### LATE AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 6:10 p.m.

,

#### EVENING SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

## MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The Senate adopts the Conference Committee report on SB 66. Announcing adoption of SCR 1615.

## INTRODUCTION OF SENATE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following Senate concurrrent resolution was thereupon introduced and read by title:

## SCR 1615

## FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

**SCR 1615**, A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION relating to the adjournment of the senate and the house of representatives for a period during the 2020 regular session of the legislature; extending such session beyond 90 calendar days, was considered on final action.

A two-thirds majority of the members elected to the House having voted in the affirmative, the resolution was adopted.

## REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HR 6031, HR 6032, HR 6041 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on March 19, 2020.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Monday, April 27, 2020.

# Journal of the House

## FORTY-FIFTH DAY

Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Thursday, May 21, 2020, 8:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

#### LETTER OF RESIGNATION

To: The Honorable Scott Schwab, Secretary of State 15 May, 2020

Effective May 15, 2020, I, David L. Benson, hereby resign my position as Representative of the  $48^{th}$  District of the Kansas House of Representatives.

David L. Benson

The House is temporarily organized with 124 members.

The roll was called with 121 members present.

Reps. Kuether, Mastroni and Moore were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Excused later: Reps. Bishop, Finney, Frownfelter, Horn, Murnan, Neighbor, Phillips, L. Ruiz.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Almighty Loving & Creator God, thank you for this day and bringing us together, albeit a different type of togetherness.

Wowzers, Lord – how things have changed since we all met together as a whole. What unprecedented and uncharted waters our leaders – well, all of us – have been wading through. We are reminded of the finiteness of our wisdom and the all-surpassing omniscience of You in this whole situation.

As our leaders meet today for the last day of this session, at least that's what we plan, to address the social, economic and financial issues of this pandemic, I pray that their decisions will be not be based upon fear, but upon boldness; not with control and manipulation but with openness and willingness; not with deception but with integrity and transparency; not with selfish ambition, but by being selfless. Most of all, may their decisions be based upon Your wisdom, not upon theirs.

And may we all be encouraged by your promise in Joshua 1:9: "...Be strong and courageous. Do not be afraid; do not be discouraged, for the Lord your God will be with you wherever you go."

This I pray in Christ's Name, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Croft.

## MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

**HB 2168, HB 2595** approved on April 2, 2020.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE GOVERNOR

March 20, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-08 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-08** 

Temporarily expanding telemedicine and addressing certain licensing requirements to combat the effects of COVID-19

Laura Kelly
Governor

March 20, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-09 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-09** 

Conditional and temporary relief from certain motor carrier rules and regulations in response to the COVID-19 pandemic

Laura Kelly

Governor

March 23, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-10 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-10** 

Rescinding Executive Order 20-06 and temporarily prohibiting certain foreclosures and evictions

Laura Kelly

Governor

March 23, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-11 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-11** 

Temporarily requiring continuation of waste removal and recycling services

Laura Kelly

Governor

March 23, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-12 for your information.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-12

Drivers' license and vehicle registration and regulation during public health emergency

Laura Kelly

Governor

March 23, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-13 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-13** 

Allowing certain deferred tax deadlines and payments during the COVID-19 pandemic

Laura Kelly

Governor

March 24, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-14 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-14** 

Temporarily prohibiting mass gatherings of 10 or more people to limit the spread of COVID-19 and rescinding Executive Order 20-04

Laura Kelly

Governor

March 24, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-15 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-15** 

Establishing the Kansas Essential Function Framework for COVID-19 response efforts

Laura Kelly

Governor

March 28, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-16 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-16** 

Establishing a statewide "stay home" order in conjunction with the Kansas

Essential Function Framework for COVID-19 response efforts

Laura Kelly

Governor

March 31, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-17 for your information.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-17

Temporary relief from certain unemployment insurance requirements in response to the COVID-19 pandemic

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 7, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-18 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-18** 

Temporarily prohibiting mass gatherings of more than 10 people to limit the spread of COVID-19 and rescinding Executive Order 20-14

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 9, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-19 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-19** 

Extending professional and occupational licenses during the COVID-19 pandemic

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 9, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-20 for your information.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-20

Temporarily allowing notaries and witnesses to act via audio-video communication technology

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 9, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-21 for your information.

## **EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-21**

Suspending the issuance of general nonresident spring 2020 turkey permits

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 13, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-22 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-22** 

Extending conditional and temporary relief from certain motor carrier rules and regulations in response to the COVID-19 pandemic

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 15, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-23 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-23** 

Licensure, Certification, and Registration for persons and Licensure of "Adult Care Homes" during public health emergency

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 16, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-24 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-24** 

Extending Executive Order 20-16 to May 3, 2020

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 17, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-25 for your information.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-25

Temporarily prohibiting mass gatherings of more than 10 people to limit the spread of COVID-19 and rescinding Executive Order 20-18

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 22, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-26 for your information.

## **EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-26**

Temporary relief from certain restrictions and requirements governing the provision of medical services

Laura Kelly
Governor

April 22, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-27 for your information.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-27

Temporarily suspending certain rules relating to the sale of alcoholic beverages

Laura Kelly
Governor

April 30, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-28 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-28** 

Reissuing and extending certain Executive Orders relating to the COVID-19 pandemic

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 30, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-29 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-29** 

Implementing Phase One of "Ad Astra: A Plan to Reopen KANSAS"

Laura Kelly

Governor

May 6, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-30 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-30** 

Displaying the flag at half-staff

Laura Kelly

Governor

May 14, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-31 for your information.

## **EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-31**

Implementing Phase 1.5 of "Ad Astra: A Plan to Reopen KANSAS"

Laura Kelly

Governor

May 14, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-32 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-32** 

Temporary relief from certain restrictions concerning shared work programs

Laura Kelly

Governor

May 14, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-33 for your information.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-33

Extending conditional and temporary relief from certain motor carrier rules and regulations in response to the COVID-19 pandemic

Laura Kelly

Governor

May 19, 2020

Message to the Kansas House of Representatives:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Order No. 20-34 for your information.

**EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 20-34** 

Implementing Phase 2 of "Ad Astra: A Plan to Reopen KANSAS"

Laura Kelly

Governor

The above Executive Orders are on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

## MESSAGES FROM THE GOVERNOR

March 19, 2020

Message to the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Directive No. 20-513 for your information.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE No. 20-513
Concerning Authorizing Personnel Transactions
and
Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 16, 2020

Message to the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Directive No. 20-514 for your information.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE No. 20-514 Concerning Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds

Laura Kelly

Governor

April 27, 2020

Message to the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Directive No. 20-515 for your information.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE No. 20-515 Concerning Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds

Laura Kelly
Governor

May 20, 2020

Message to the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas:

Enclosed herewith is Executive Directive No. 20-516 for your information.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE No. 20-516 Concerning Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds

Laura Kelly Governor

The above Executive Directives are on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

## COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Randy Cason, Chair and Adam Profitt, Medicaid Director, Kansas Department of Health and Environment; Report from the Health Care Access Improvement Panel for May 2019

The complete report is kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development recommends SB 251, as amended by Senate Committee, be amended on page 1, in line 17, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; in line 22, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; in line 29, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 3, in line 14, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; On page 4, following line 3, by inserting:

"Sec. 5. K.S.A. 17-2711 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-2711. The corporate name of a corporation organized and operating hereunder may be any name not contrary to law or the ethics of the profession involved. Such name may include any name set forth in K.S.A. 17-6002, but in all cases the corporate name shall end with the word "chartered" or "professional association" or the abbreviation "P.A." or "PA". The abbreviations "P.A." and "PA." shall be considered to be identical."

Also on page 4, in line 4, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 5, in line 11, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 6, in line 10, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 7, in line 10, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; by striking all in lines 33 through 43;

By striking all on page 8 and inserting:

- "Sec. 10. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-6014 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-6014. (a) Except as otherwise provided in subsections (b) and (c), the provisions of the Kansas general corporation code shall apply to nonstock corporations in the manner specified in this subsection:
- (1) All references to stockholders of the corporation shall be deemed to refer to members of the corporation;
- (2) all references to the board of directors of the corporation shall be deemed to refer to the governing body of the corporation;
- (3) all references to directors or to members of the board of directors of the corporation shall be deemed to refer to members of the governing body of the corporation; and
- (4) all references to stock, capital stock, or shares thereof of a corporation authorized to issue capital stock shall be deemed to refer to memberships of a nonprofit nonstock corporation and to membership interests of any other nonstock corporation.
  - (b) Subsection (a) shall not apply to:
- (1) K.S.A. 17-6002(a)(4), (b)(1) and (b)(2), 17-6009(a), 17-6301, 17-6404, 17-6505, 17-6518, 17-6520(b), 17-6601, 17-6602, 17-6703, 17-6705, 17-6706, 17-6707, 17-6708, 17-6801, 17-6805, 17-6805a, 17-7001, 17-7002, 17-7503(a)(4) and (b)(4), 17-7504, 17-7505(a)(4) and (b)(4) and 17-7514(c), and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-6014, and amendments thereto, which—that\_apply to nonstock corporations by their terms;
- (2) K.S.A. 17-6002(e), the last sentence of 17-6009(b), 17-6401, 17-6402, 17-6403, 17-6405, 17-6406, 17-6407(d), 17-6408, 17-6411, 17-6412, 17-6413, 17-6414, 17-6415, 17-6416, 17-6417, 17-6418, 17-6501, 17-6502, 17-6503, 17-6504, 17-6506, 17-6509, 17-6512, 17-6521, 17-6603, 17-6604, 17-6701, 17-6702, 17-6803 and 17-6804, and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-6427, 17-6428, 17-6429 and 17-72a04, and amendments thereto: and
- (3) article 72 and article 73 of chapter 17 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto.
- (c) In the case of a nonprofit nonstock corporation, subsection (a) shall not apply to:
  - (1) The sections and articles listed in subsection (b);
  - (2) K.S.A. 17-6002(b)(3), 17-6304(a)(2), 17-6507, 17-6508, 17-6712, 17-7503, 17-

- 7505, 17-7509; and 17-7511-and 17-7514, and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-6011(a)(2) and (a)(3), and amendments thereto; and
- (3) article 64 of chapter 17 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-72a01 through 17-72a09, and amendments thereto.
  - (d) For purposes of the Kansas general corporation code:
- (1) A "charitable nonstock corporation" is any nonprofit nonstock corporation that is exempt from taxation under § 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, 26 U.S.C. § 501(c)(3);
- (2) a "membership interest" is, unless otherwise provided in a nonstock corporation's articles of incorporation, a member's share of the profits and losses of a nonstock corporation, or a member's right to receive distributions of the nonstock corporation's assets, or both;
- (3) a "nonprofit nonstock corporation" is a nonstock corporation that does not have membership interests; and
- (4) a "nonstock corporation" is any corporation organized under the Kansas general corporation code that is not authorized to issue capital stock.
- Sec. 11. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-6014, as amended by section 10 of this act, is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-6014. (a) Except as otherwise provided in subsections (b) and (c), the provisions of the Kansas general corporation code shall apply to nonstock corporations in the manner specified in this subsection:
- (1) All references to stockholders of the corporation shall be deemed to refer to members of the corporation;
- (2) all references to the board of directors of the corporation shall be deemed to refer to the governing body of the corporation;
- (3) all references to directors or to members of the board of directors of the corporation shall be deemed to refer to members of the governing body of the corporation; and
- (4) all references to stock, capital stock, or shares thereof of a corporation authorized to issue capital stock shall be deemed to refer to memberships of a nonprofit nonstock corporation and to membership interests of any other nonstock corporation.
  - (b) Subsection (a) shall not apply to:
- (1) K.S.A. 17-6002(a)(4), (b)(1) and (b)(2), 17-6009(a), 17-6301, 17-6404, 17-6505, 17-6518, 17-6520(b), 17-6601, 17-6602, 17-6703, 17-6705, 17-6706, 17-6707, 17-6708, 17-6801, 17-6805, 17-6805a, 17-7001, 17-7002, 17-7503(a)(4) and (b)(4)(c)(4) and (d)(4), 17-7504, 17-7505(a)(4) and (b)(4)(c)(4) and (d)(4) and 17-7514(c), and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-6014, and amendments thereto, that apply to nonstock corporations by their terms;
- (2) K.S.A. 17-6002(e), the last sentence of 17-6009(b), 17-6401, 17-6402, 17-6403, 17-6405, 17-6406, 17-6407(d), 17-6408, 17-6411, 17-6412, 17-6413, 17-6414, 17-6415, 17-6416, 17-6417, 17-6418, 17-6501, 17-6502, 17-6503, 17-6504, 17-6509, 17-6512, 17-6521, 17-6603, 17-6604, 17-6701, 17-6702, 17-6803 and 17-6804, and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-6427, 17-6428, 17-6429 and 17-72a04, and amendments thereto; and
- (3) article 72 and article 73 of chapter 17 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto.
  - (c) In the case of a nonprofit nonstock corporation, subsection (a) shall not apply

to:

- (1) The sections and articles listed in subsection (b);
- (2) K.S.A. 17-6002(b)(3), 17-6304(a)(2), 17-6507, 17-6508, 17-6712, 17-7503, 17-7505, 17-7509 and 17-7511, and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-6011(a)(2) and (a)(3), and amendments thereto; and
- (3) article 64 of chapter 17 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-72a01 through 17-72a09, and amendments thereto.
  - (d) For purposes of the Kansas general corporation code:
- (1) A "charitable nonstock corporation" is any nonprofit nonstock corporation that is exempt from taxation under § 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, 26 U.S.C. § 501(c)(3);
- (2) a "membership interest" is, unless otherwise provided in a nonstock corporation's articles of incorporation, a member's share of the profits and losses of a nonstock corporation, or a member's right to receive distributions of the nonstock corporation's assets, or both;
- (3) a "nonprofit nonstock corporation" is a nonstock corporation that does not have membership interests; and
- (4) a "nonstock corporation" is any corporation organized under the Kansas general corporation code that is not authorized to issue capital stock.";

On page 9, in line 1, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 12, in line 22, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 14, in line 7, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 15, in line 33, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 17, in line 23, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 18, in line 35, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 19, in line 9, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 20, in line 3, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; in line 17, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; following line 25, by inserting:

- "Sec. 21. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7675 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-7675. (a) Articles of organization shall be canceled upon the dissolution and the completion of winding up of a limited liability company, or as provided in K.S.A. 17-76,117 or 17-76,139, and amendments thereto, or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b) or 17-7929(b), and amendments thereto, or upon the filing of a certificate of merger or consolidation if the limited liability company is not the surviving or resulting entity in a merger or consolidation, or upon the future effective date of a certificate of merger or consolidation if the limited liability company is not the surviving or resulting entity in a merger or consolidation, or upon the filing of a certificate of division if the limited liability company is a dividing company that is not a surviving company, or upon the future effective date of a certificate of division if the limited liability company is a dividing company that is not a surviving company. A certificate of cancellation shall be filed with the secretary of state to accomplish the cancellation of articles of organization upon the dissolution and the completion of winding up of a limited liability company. The certificate shall set forth:
  - (1) The name of the limited liability company;
  - (2) the reason for filing the certificate of cancellation;
  - (3) if the limited liability company has formed one or more series and the

- certificate of designation has not been canceled for such series prior to the filing of the certificate of cancellation, the name of each such series;
- (4) the future effective date or time of cancellation if it is not to be effective upon the filing of the certificate; and
- (4)(5) any other information the person filing the certificate of cancellation determines.
- (b) A certificate of cancellation that is filed with the secretary of state prior to the dissolution or the completion of winding up of a limited liability company may be corrected as an erroneously executed certificate of cancellation by filing with the secretary of state a certificate of correction of such certificate of cancellation in accordance with K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7912, and amendments thereto.
- (c) The secretary of state shall not issue a certificate of good standing with respect to a limited liability company, or any series thereof, if its articles of organization are canceled.
- Sec. 22. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7679 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-7679. The fact that articles of organization, or amendments thereto, are on file with the secretary of state is notice that the entity formed in connection with the filing of the articles of organization is a limited liability company formed under the laws of the state of Kansas and is notice of all other facts set forth therein which are required to be set forth in articles of organization by K.S.A. 17-7673(a)(1), (a)(2), (a)(4) and (a)(5), and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,149, and amendments thereto. The fact that a certificate of designation is on file in the office of the secretary of state is notice that the series named in such certificate of designation has been formed pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,143, and amendments thereto, and is notice of all other facts set forth therein that are required to be set forth in a certificate of designation by K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,143(d), and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 23. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7680 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-7680. (a) <u>Restated articles of organization.</u>
- (1) A limited liability company may, whenever desired, integrate into a single instrument all of the provisions of its articles of organization which are then in effect and operative as a result of there having previously been filed with the secretary of state one or more certificates or other instruments pursuant to K.S.A. 17-7673 through 17-7683, and amendments thereto, the business entity standard treatment act, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7901 et seq., and amendments thereto, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7685a and 17-76,143a, and amendments thereto, and it may at the same time also further amend its articles of organization by adopting restated articles of organization.
- (b)(2) If restated articles of organization merely restate and integrate but do not further amend the initial articles of organization, as previously amended or supplemented by any certificate or instrument that was executed and filed pursuant to K.S.A. 17-7673 through 17-7683, and amendments thereto, and the business entity standard treatment act, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7901 et seq., and amendments thereto, they shall be specifically designated in their heading as "restated articles of organization" together with such other words as the limited liability company may deem appropriate and shall be executed by an authorized person and filed with the secretary of state as provided in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7910, and amendments thereto. If restated articles of organization restate and integrate and also further amend in any respect the

- articles of organization, as previously amended or supplemented, they shall be specifically designated in their heading as "amended and restated articles of organization" together with such other words as the limited liability company may deem appropriate and shall be executed by at least one authorized person and filed as provided in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7910, and amendments thereto.
- (e)(3) Restated articles of organization shall state, either in their heading or in an introductory paragraph, the limited liability company's present name; if it has been changed, the name under which it was originally filed; the date of filing of its original articles of organization with the secretary of state; and the future effective date, which shall be a date certain, of the restated articles of organization if they are not to be effective upon the filing of the restated articles of organization with the secretary of state. Restated articles of organization shall also state that they were duly executed and are being filed in accordance with this section. If restated articles of organization only restate and integrate and do not further amend a limited liability company's articles of organization as previously amended or supplemented and there is no discrepancy between those provisions and the restated articles of organization, they shall state that fact as well.
- (d)(4) Upon the filing of restated articles of organization with the secretary of state, or upon the future effective date of restated articles of organization as provided for therein, the initial articles of organization, as previously amended or supplemented, shall be superseded. Thereafter the restated articles of organization, including any further amendment or changes made thereby, shall be the articles of organization of the limited liability company, but the original effective date of formation shall remain unchanged.
- (e)(5) Any amendment or change effected in connection with the restatement and integration of the articles of organization shall be subject to any other provision of the Kansas revised limited liability company act, not inconsistent with this section, which would apply if a separate certificate of amendment were filed to effect such amendment or change.
  - (b) Restated certificate of designation.
- (1) A series of a limited liability company may, whenever desired, integrate into a single instrument all of the provisions of its certificate of designation that are then in effect and operative as a result of there having previously been filed with the secretary of state one or more certificates or other instruments pursuant to K.S.A. 17-7673 through 17-7681, and amendments thereto, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7685a, 17-76,143a and the business entity standard treatment act, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7901 et seq., and amendments thereto, and it may at the same time further amend its certificate of designation by adopting a restated certificate of designation.
- (2) If a restated certificate of designation merely restates and integrates but does not further amend the initial certificate of designation, as previously amended or supplemented by any instrument that was executed and filed pursuant to K.S.A. 17-7673 through 17-7681, and amendments thereto, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7685a, 17-76,143a and the business entity standard treatment act, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7901 et seq., and amendments thereto, it shall be specifically designated in its heading as a "restated certificate of designation" together with such other words as the series may deem appropriate and shall be executed by an authorized person and filed as provided in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7910, and amendments thereto. If a restated certificate restates

and integrates and also further amends in any respect the certificate of designation as previously amended or supplemented, it shall be specifically designated in its heading as an "amended and restated certificate of designation" together with such other words as the series may deem appropriate and shall be executed by at least one authorized person and filed as provided in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7910, and amendments thereto.

- (3) A restated certificate of designation shall state, either in its heading or in an introductory paragraph, the name of the limited liability company, the present name of the series, and, if the name of the series has been changed, the name under which it was originally filed, and the future effective date or time, which shall be a date or time certain, of the restated certificate of designation if it is not to be effective upon the filing of the restated certificate of designation. A restated certificate shall also state that it was duly executed and is being filed in accordance with this section. If a restated certificate only restates and integrates and does not further amend a certificate of designation, as previously amended or supplemented and there is no discrepancy between those provisions and the restated certificate, it shall state that fact as well.
- (4) Upon the filing of a restated certificate of designation with the secretary of state, or upon the future effective date or time of a restated certificate of designation as provided for therein, the initial certificate of designation, as theretofore amended or supplemented, shall be superseded. Thereafter, the restated certificate of designation, including any further amendment or changes made thereby, shall be the certificate of designation of such series, but the original effective date of formation of the series, as applicable, shall remain unchanged.
- (5) Any amendment or change effected in connection with the restatement and integration of a certificate of designation shall be subject to any other provision of the Kansas revised limited liability company act, not inconsistent with this section, that would apply if a separate certificate of amendment were filed to effect such amendment or change."

Also on page 20, in line 26, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; On page 21, by striking all in lines 28 through 43;

By striking all on pages 22 through 26;

On page 27, by striking all in lines 1 through 13 and inserting:

- "Sec. 25. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,139 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-76,139. (a) Every limited liability company organized under the laws of this state shall make an annual report in writing to the secretary of state, stating the prescribed information concerning the limited liability company at the close of business on the last day of its tax period next preceding the date of filing. If the limited liability company's tax period is other than the calendar year, it shall give notice of its different tax period in writing to the secretary of state prior to December 31 of the year it commences the different tax period. The annual report shall be filed at the time prescribed by law for filing the limited liability company's annual Kansas income tax return. The annual report shall be made on a form prescribed by the secretary of state. The report shall contain the following information:
  - (1) The name of the limited liability company; and
- (2) a list of the members owning at least 5% of the capital of the limited liability company, with the post office address of each.
- (b) Every foreign limited liability company shall make an annual report in writing to the secretary of state, stating the prescribed information concerning the limited

liability company at the close of business on the last day of its tax period next preceding the date of filing. If the limited liability company's tax period is other than the calendar year, it shall give notice in writing of its different tax period to the secretary of state prior to December 31 of the year it commences the different tax period. The annual report shall be filed at the time prescribed by law for filing the limited liability company's annual Kansas income tax return. The annual report shall be made on a form prescribed by the secretary of state. The report shall contain the name of the limited liability company.

- (c) The annual report required by this section shall be executed by one or more authorized persons, and filed with the secretary of state. The execution of such annual report by a person who is authorized by this act to execute such annual report, upon filing such annual report with the secretary of state, constitutes an oath or affirmation, under penalties of perjury that, to the best of such person's knowledge and belief, the facts stated therein are true. At the time of filing the report, the limited liability company shall pay to the secretary of state an annual report fee in an amount equal to \$40.
- The provisions of K.S.A. 17-7509, and amendments thereto, relating to (d) penalties for failure of a corporation to file an annual report or pay the required annual report fee, and the provisions of K.S.A. 17-7510(a), and amendments thereto, relating to penalties for failure of a corporation to file an annual report or pay the required annual report fee, shall be applicable to the articles of organization of any domestic limited liability company or to the authority of any foreign limited liability company which fails to file its annual report or pay the annual report fee within 90 days of the time prescribed in this section for filing and paying the same or, in the case of an annual report filing and fee received by mail, postmarked within 90 days of the time for filing and paying the same. Whenever the articles of organization of a domestic limited liability company or the authority of any foreign limited liability company are forfeited for failure to file an annual report or to pay the required annual report fee, the domestic limited liability company or the authority of a foreign limited liability company may be reinstated by filing a certificate of reinstatement, pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,146, and amendments thereto, and paying to the secretary of state all fees, including any penalties thereon, due to the state.
- (e) No limited liability company shall be required to file its first annual report under this act, or pay any annual report fee required to accompany such report, unless such limited liability company has filed its articles of organization or application for authority at least six months prior to the last day of its tax period.
- (f) All copies of applications for extension of the time for filing income tax returns submitted to the secretary of state pursuant to law shall be maintained by the secretary of state in a confidential file and shall not be disclosed to any person except as authorized pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 79-3234, and amendments thereto, a proper judicial order, or subsection (g). All copies of such applications shall bepreserved for one year and thereafter until the secretary of state orders that they be destroyed.
- (g) A copy of such application shall be open to inspection by or disclosure to any person who was a member of such limited liability company during any part of the period covered by the extension.
  - Sec. 26. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,139, as amended by

- section 25 of this act, is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-76,139. (a) Every limited liability company organized, and on and after July 1, 2022, each series thereof formed or in existence, under the laws of this state shall make—an annual a written business entity information report in writing to the secretary of state, stating the prescribed information concerning the limited liability company or series, as applicable, at the close of business on the last day of its tax period next preceding the date of filing. If the limited liability company's or series' tax period is other than the calendar year, it shall give notice of its different tax period in writing to the secretary of state prior to December 31 of the year it commences the different tax period.
- (b) The annual report shall be filed biennially, as determined by the year that the limited liability company filed its formation documents. A limited liability company that filed formation documents in an even-numbered year shall file a report in each even-numbered year. A limited liability company that filed formation documents in an odd-numbered year shall file a report in each odd-numbered year. The report shall be filed after the close of the limited liability company's tax period but not later than at the time prescribed by law for filing the limited liability company's or series' annual Kansas income tax return, or if applicable law does not prescribe a time for filing an annual Kansas income tax return for a series, the report for the series shall be filed at, and for purposes of this section its tax period shall be deemed to be, the time prescribed by law for filing the annual Kansas income tax return for the limited liability company to which the series is associated.
- (c) The annual report shall be made on a form prescribed by the secretary of state— The report and shall contain the following information:
  - (1) The name of the limited liability company or series, as applicable; and
- (2) a list of the members owning at least 5% of the capital of the limited liability company or series, as applicable, with the post office address of each.
- (b)(d)(1) Every foreign limited liability company shall make an annual a written business entity information report—in writing to the secretary of state, stating the prescribed information concerning the limited liability company at the close of business on the last day of its tax period next preceding the date of filing. If the limited liability company's tax period is other than the calendar year, it shall give notice in writing of its different tax period to the secretary of state prior to December 31 of the year it commences the different tax period.
- (2) The annual report shall be filed biennially, as determined by the year that the foreign limited liability company filed its foreign limited liability company application. A foreign limited liability company that filed its application in an even-numbered year shall file a report in each even-numbered year. A foreign limited liability company that filed its application in an odd-numbered year shall file a report in each odd-numbered year. The report shall be filed after the close of the foreign limited liability company's tax period but not later than at the time prescribed by law for filing the limited liability company's annual Kansas income tax return.
- (3) The annual report shall be made on a form prescribed by the secretary of state. The report and shall contain the name of the limited liability company.
- (e)(e) The annual business entity information report required by this section shall be executed by one or more authorized persons, and filed with the secretary of state. The execution of such annual report by a person who is authorized by this the Kansas revised limited liability company act to execute such annual report, upon filing such

<del>annual</del> report with the secretary of state, constitutes an oath or affirmation, under penalties of perjury that, to the best of such person's knowledge and belief, the facts stated therein are true.

(f) At the time of filing—the\_its business entity information report, the limited liability company or series shall pay to the secretary of state an annual report a fee in an amount equal to—\$40\_\$80, plus the amount specified in rules and regulations of the secretary multiplied by the number of tax periods included in the report.

The provisions of K.S.A. 17-7509, and amendments thereto, relating to penalties for failure of a corporation to file an annual a business entity information report or pay the required-annual report fee, and the provisions of K.S.A. 17-7510(a), and amendments thereto, relating to penalties for failure of a corporation to file-anannual a business entity information report or pay the required annual report fee, shall be applicable to the articles of organization of any domestic limited liability company, or the certificate of designation of any series thereof, or to the authority of any foreign limited liability company-which that fails to file its-annual business entity information report or pay the annual report fee within 90 days of the time prescribed in this section for filing and paying the same or, in the case of an annual a report filing and fee received by mail, postmarked within 90 days of the time for filing and paying the same. Whenever the articles of organization of a domestic limited liability company, or the certificate of designation of any series thereof, or the authority of any foreign limited liability company are forfeited or canceled for failure to file an annual a business entity information report or to pay the required annual report fee, the domestic limited liability company or the authority of a foreign limited liability company may be reinstated by filing a certificate of reinstatement, pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,146, and amendments thereto, and the certificate of designation may be reinstated by filing a certificate of reinstatement, pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,147, and amendments thereto, and in each case paying to the secretary of state all fees, including any penalties thereon, due to the state.

(e)(h) No limited liability company or series shall be required to file its first-annual business entity information report under—this the Kansas revised limited liability company act, or pay any annual report fee required to accompany such report, unless such limited liability company has filed its articles of organization or application for authority or the certificate of designation of such series has been filed at least six months prior to the last day of its tax period.

Sec. 27. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,143 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-76,143. (a) An operating agreement may establish or provide for the establishment of one or more designated series of members, managers or, limited liability company interests—having or assets. If an operating agreement so provides for the establishment or formation of one or more series, then a series may be formed by complying with this section. Any such series may have separate rights, powers or duties with respect to specified property or obligations of the limited liability company or profits and losses associated with specified property or obligations, and to the extent provided in the operating agreement, any such series may have a separate business purpose or investment objective. A series is formed by the filing of a certificate of designation in the office of the secretary of state. Other than pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,143a, and amendments thereto, a series may not merge, convert, or consolidate pursuant to any section of the Kansas revised limited liability company act,

the business entity transactions act, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-78-101 et seq., and amendments thereto, or any other statute of this state.

- (b) Notice of the limitation on liabilities of a series as referenced in subsection (c) shall be set forth in the articles of organization of the limited liability company. Notice in articles of organization of the limitation on liabilities of a series as referenced in subsection (c) shall be sufficient for all purposes of this subsection whether or not the limited liability company has formed any series when such notice is included in the articles of organization, and there shall be no requirement that any specific series of the limited liability company be referenced in such notice. The fact that articles of organization that contain the foregoing notice of the limitation on liabilities of a series is on file in the office of the secretary of state shall constitute notice of such limitation on liabilities of a series.
- (b)(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this section the Kansas revised limited liability act or under other applicable law, in the event that an operating agreement establishes or provides for the establishment of one or more series, and if to the extent the records maintained for any-such series account for the assets associated with such series separately from the other assets of the limited liability company, or any other series thereof, and if the operating agreement so provides, and if notice of the limitation on liabilities of a series as referenced in this subsection is set forth in the articles of organization of the limited liability company and if the limited liability company has filed a certificate of designation for each series which is to have limited liability under this section, then the debts, liabilities, obligations and expenses incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing with respect to-a particular such series shall be enforceable against the assets of such series only, and not against the assets of the limited liability company generally or any other series thereof, and, unless otherwise provided in the operating agreement, none of the debts, liabilities, obligations and expenses incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing with respect to the limited liability company generally or any other series thereof shall be enforceable against the assets of such series. The fact that the articles of organization contain the foregoing notice of the limitation on liabilities of a series and a certificate of designation for a series is on file in the office of the secretary of state shall constitute notice of suchlimitation on liabilities of a series. A series with limited liability shall be treated as a separate entity to the extent set forth in the articles of organization. Each series with limited liability may, in its own name, contract, hold title to assets, grant securityinterests, sue and be sued and otherwise conduct business and exercise the powers of a limited liability company under this act. The limited liability company and any of its series may elect to consolidate their operations as a single taxpayer to the extentpermitted under applicable law, elect to work cooperatively, elect to contract jointly or elect to be treated as a single business for purposes of qualification to do business in this or any other state. Such elections shall not affect the limitation of liability set forth in this section except to the extent that the series have specifically accepted jointliability by contract.
- (e) Except in the case of a foreign limited liability company that has adopted an assumed name pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7933, and amendments thereto, the name of the series with limited liability must contain the entire name of the limited liability company and be distinguishable from the names of the other series set forth in the articles of organization. In the case of a foreign limited liability company that has

adopted an assumed name pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7933, and amendments thereto, the name of the series with limited liability must contain the entire name under which the foreign limited liability company has been admitted to transact business in this state.

- (d) Upon the filing of the certificate of designation with the secretary of statesetting forth the name of each series with limited liability, the series' existence shall begin, and copies of the filed certificate of designation marked with the filing date shall be conclusive evidence, except as against the state, that all conditions precedentrequired to be performed have been complied with and that the series has been or shall be legally organized and formed under this act. If different from the limited liability company, the certificate of designation for each series shall list the names of the members if the series is member managed or the names of the managers if the series is manager managed. The name of a series with limited liability under subsection (b) may be changed by filing with the secretary of state a certificate of designation identifying the series whose name is being changed and the new name of such series. If not the same as the limited liability company, the names of the members of a member managed series or of the managers of a manager managed series may be changed by filing a new certificate of designation with the secretary of state. A series with limited liability under subsection (b) may be dissolved by filing with the secretary of state a certificate of designation identifying the series being dissolved or by the dissolution of the limited liability company as provided in subsection (m). Certificates of designation may be executed by the limited liability company or any manager, person or entity designated in the operating agreement for the limited liability company.
- (e) A series of a limited liability company will be deemed to be in good standing as long as the limited liability company is in good standing.
- (f) The resident agent and registered office for the limited liability company in Kansas shall serve as the agent and office for service of process in Kansas for each series.
- (g) An operating agreement may provide for classes or groups of members or managers associated with a series having such relative rights, powers and duties as the operating agreement may provide, and may make provision for the future creation of additional classes or groups of members or managers associated with the series having such relative rights, powers and duties as may from time to time be established, including rights, powers and duties senior to existing classes and groups of members or managers associated with the series.
- (h) A series may be managed by either the member or members associated with the series or by a manager or managers chosen by the members of such series, as provided in the operating agreement. Unless otherwise provided in an operating agreement, the management of a series shall be vested in the members associated with such series.
- (i) An operating agreement may grant to all or certain identified members or managers or a specified class or group of the members or managers associated with a series the right to vote separately or with all or any class or group of the members or managers associated with the series, on any matter. An operating agreement may provide that any member or class or group of members associated with a series shall have no voting rights.
- (j) Except to the extent modified in this section, the provisions of this act which are generally applicable to limited liability companies, their managers, members and

transferees shall be applicable to each particular series with respect to the operation of such series.

- (k) Except as otherwise provided in an operating agreement, any event under this act or in an operating agreement that causes a manager to cease to be a manager with respect to a series shall not, in itself, cause such manager to cease to be a manager of the limited liability company or with respect to any other series thereof.
- (l) Except as otherwise provided in an operating agreement, any event under this act or an operating agreement that causes a member to cease to be associated with a series shall not, in itself, cause such member to cease to be associated with any other series or terminate the continued membership of a member in the limited liability company or cause the termination of the series, regardless of whether such member was the last remaining member associated with such series.
- (m) Except to the extent otherwise provided in the operating agreement, a series may be dissolved and its affairs wound up without causing the dissolution of the limited liability company. The dissolution of a series established in accordance with subsection (b) shall not affect the limitation on liabilities of such series provided by subsection (b). A series is terminated and its affairs shall be wound up upon the dissolution of the limited liability company under article 76 of chapter 17 of the Kansas Statutes-Annotated, and amendments thereto.
- (n) If a limited liability company with the ability to establish a series does not register to do business in a foreign jurisdiction for itself and certain of its series, a series of a limited liability company may itself register to do business as a limited liability company in the foreign jurisdiction in accordance with the laws of the foreign-<del>jurisdiction.</del> Neither the preceding sentences nor any provision pursuant thereto in an operating agreement, articles of organization or certificate of designation shall: Restrict a series or limited liability company on behalf of a series from agreeing in the operating agreement or otherwise that any or all of the debts, liabilities, obligations, and expenses incurred, contracted for, or otherwise existing with respect to the limited liability company generally or any other series thereof shall be enforceable against the assets of such series; or restrict a limited liability company from agreeing in the operating agreement or otherwise that any or all of the debts, liabilities, obligations, and expenses incurred, contracted for, or otherwise existing with respect to a series shall be enforceable against the assets of the limited liability company generally. Assets associated with a series may be held directly or indirectly, including in the name of such series, in the name of the limited liability company, through a nominee or otherwise. Records maintained for a series that reasonably identify its assets, including by specific listing, category, type, quantity, computational, or allocational formula or procedure, including a percentage or share of any asset or assets, or by any other method where the identity of such assets is objectively determinable, will be deemed to account for the assets associated with such series separately from the other assets of the limited liability company, or any other series thereof. As used in the Kansas revised limited liability company act, a reference to assets of a series includes assets associated with such series. a reference to assets associated with a series includes assets of such series, a reference to members or managers of a series includes members or managers associated with such series, and a reference to members or managers associated with a series includes members or managers of such series. The following shall apply to a series:
  - (1) A series may carry on any lawful business, purpose or activity, whether or not

- for profit, with the exception of the business of granting policies of insurance, assuming insurance risks, or banking as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 9-701, and amendments thereto. Unless otherwise provided in an operating agreement, a series shall have the power and capacity to, in its own name, contract, hold title to assets, including real, personal, and intangible property, grant liens and security interests, and sue and be sued.
- (2) Except as otherwise provided by the Kansas revised limited liability company act, no member or manager of a series shall be obligated personally for any debt, obligation or liability of such series, whether arising in contract, tort or otherwise, solely by reason of being a member or acting as manager of such series. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, under an operating agreement or under another agreement, a member or manager may agree to be obligated personally for any or all of the debts, obligations and liabilities of one or more series.
- (3) An operating agreement may provide for classes or groups of members or managers associated with a series having such relative rights, powers and duties as the operating agreement may provide, and may make provision for the future creation in the manner provided in the operating agreement of additional classes or groups of members or managers associated with such series having such relative rights, powers and duties as may from time to time be established, including rights, powers and duties senior to existing classes and groups of members or managers associated with such series. An operating agreement may provide for the taking of an action, including the amendment of the operating agreement, without the vote, consent or approval of any member or manager or class or group of members or managers, including an action to create under the provisions of the operating agreement a class or group of a series of limited liability company interests that was not previously outstanding. An operating agreement may provide that any member or class or group of members associated with a series shall have no voting rights.
- (4) An operating agreement may grant to all or certain identified members or managers or a specified class or group of the members or managers associated with a series the right to vote separately or with all or any class or group of the members or managers associated with such series, on any matter. Voting by members or managers associated with a series may be on a per capita, number, financial interest, class, group or any other basis.
- (5) Unless otherwise provided in an operating agreement, the management of a series shall be vested in the members associated with such series in proportion to the then-current percentage or other interest of members in the profits of such series owned by all of the members associated with such series, the decision of members owning more than 50% of such percentage or other interest in the profits controlling, except that if an operating agreement provides for the management of a series, in whole or in part, by a manager, the management of such series, to the extent so provided, shall be vested in the manager who shall be chosen in the manner provided in the operating agreement. The manager of a series shall also hold the offices and have the responsibilities accorded to the manager as set forth in an operating agreement. A series may have more than one manager. Subject to K.S.A. 17-76,105, and amendments thereto, a manager shall cease to be a manager with respect to a series as provided in an operating agreement. Except as otherwise provided in an operating agreement, any event under the Kansas revised limited liability company act or in an operating agreement that causes a manager to cease to be a manager with respect to a series shall not, in itself,

cause such manager to cease to be a manager of the limited liability company or with respect to any other series thereof.

- (6) Notwithstanding K.S.A. 17-76,109, and amendments thereto, but subject to subsections (c)(7) and (c)(10), and unless otherwise provided in an operating agreement, at the time a member of a series becomes entitled to receive a distribution with respect to such series, the member has the status of, and is entitled to all remedies available to, a creditor of such series, with respect to the distribution. An operating agreement may provide for the establishment of a record date with respect to allocations and distributions with respect to a series.
- (7) Notwithstanding K.S.A. 17-76,110(a), and amendments thereto, a limited liability company may make a distribution with respect to a series. A limited liability company shall not make a distribution with respect to a series to a member to the extent that at the time of the distribution, after giving effect to the distribution, all liabilities of such series, other than liabilities to members on account of their limited liability company interests with respect to such series and liabilities for which the recourse of creditors is limited to specified property of such series, exceed the fair value of the assets associated with such series, except that the fair value of property of such series that is subject to a liability for which the recourse of creditors is limited shall be included in the assets associated with such series only to the extent that the fair value of that property exceeds that liability. For purposes of the immediately preceding sentence, the term "distribution" shall not include amounts constituting reasonable compensation for present or past services or reasonable payments made in the ordinary course of business pursuant to a bona fide retirement plan or other benefits program. A member who receives a distribution in violation of this subsection, and who knew at the time of the distribution that the distribution violated this subsection, shall be liable to the series for the amount of the distribution. A member who receives a distribution in violation of this subsection, and who did not know at the time of the distribution that the distribution violated this subsection, shall not be liable for the amount of the distribution. Subject to K.S.A. 17-76,110(c), and amendments thereto, which shall apply to any distribution made with respect to a series under this subsection, this subsection shall not affect any obligation or liability of a member under an agreement or other applicable law for the amount of a distribution.
- (8) Unless otherwise provided in the operating agreement, a member shall cease to be associated with a series and to have the power to exercise any rights or powers of a member with respect to such series upon the assignment of all of the member's limited liability company interest with respect to such series. Except as otherwise provided in an operating agreement, any event under the Kansas revised limited liability company act or an operating agreement that causes a member to cease to be associated with a series shall not, in itself, cause such member to cease to be associated with any other series or terminate the continued membership of a member in the limited liability company or cause the dissolution of the series, regardless of whether such member was the last remaining member associated with such series.
- (9) Subject to K.S.A. 17-76,116, and amendments thereto, except to the extent otherwise provided in the operating agreement, a series may be dissolved and its affairs wound up without causing the dissolution of the limited liability company. The dissolution of a series shall not affect the limitation on liabilities of such series provided by this subsection (c). A series is dissolved and its affairs shall be wound up upon the

dissolution of the limited liability company under K.S.A. 17-76,116, and amendments thereto, or otherwise upon the first to occur of the following:

- (A) At the time specified in the operating agreement;
- (B) upon the happening of events specified in the operating agreement;
- (C) unless otherwise provided in the operating agreement, upon the vote, consent or approval of members associated with such series who own <sup>2</sup>/<sub>3</sub> or more of the thencurrent percentage or other interest in the profits of such series of the limited liability company owned by all of the members associated with such series; or
  - (D) the dissolution of such series under subsection (c)(11).
- (10) Notwithstanding K.S.A. 17-76,118(a), and amendments thereto, unless otherwise provided in the operating agreement, a manager associated with a series who has not wrongfully dissolved such series or, if none, the members associated with such series or a person consented to or approved by the members associated with such series, in either case, by members who own more than 50% of the then-current percentage or other interest in the profits of such series owned by all of the members associated with such series, may wind up the affairs of such series, but the district court, upon cause shown, may wind up the affairs of a series upon application of any member or manager associated with such series, or the member's personal representative or assignee, and in connection therewith, may appoint a liquidating trustee. The persons winding up the affairs of a series may, in the name of the limited liability company and for and on behalf of the limited liability company and such series, take all actions with respect to such series as are permitted under K.S.A. 17-76,118(b), and amendments thereto. The persons winding up the affairs of a series shall provide for the claims and obligations of such series and distribute the assets of such series as provided in K.S.A. 17-76,119, and amendments thereto, which section shall apply to the winding up and distribution of assets of a series. Actions taken in accordance with this subsection shall not affect the liability of members and shall not impose liability on a liquidating trustee.
- (11) On application by or for a member or manager associated with a series, the district court may decree dissolution of such series whenever it is not reasonably practicable to carry on the business of such series in conformity with an operating agreement.
- (12) For all purposes of the laws of the state of Kansas, a series is an association, regardless of the number of members or managers, if any, of such series.
- (d) In order to form a series of a limited liability company, a certificate of designation must be filed in accordance with this subsection.
  - (1) (A) A certificate of designation shall set forth:
  - (i) The name of the limited liability company; and
  - (ii) the name of the series.
- (B) A certificate of designation may include any other matter that the members of such series determine to include therein.
- (C) A certificate of designation properly filed with the secretary of state prior to July 1, 2022, shall be deemed to comply with the requirements of this paragraph.
- (2) A certificate of designation shall be executed in accordance with K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7908(b), and amendments thereto, and shall be filed in the office of the secretary of state in accordance with K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7910, and amendments thereto. A certificate of designation is not an amendment to the articles of organization of the limited liability company.

- (3) A certificate of designation may be amended by filing a certificate of amendment thereto in the office of the secretary of state.
  - (A) The certificate of amendment shall set forth:
  - (i) The name of the limited liability company;
  - (ii) the name of the series; and
  - (iii) the amendment to the certificate of designation.
- (B) A certificate of designation properly filed with the secretary of state prior to July 1, 2022, that changed a previously filed certificate of designation shall be deemed to be a certificate of amendment thereto for purposes of this paragraph.
- (4) A manager of a series or, if there is no manager, then any member of a series who becomes aware that any statement in a certificate of designation filed with respect to such series was false when made, or that any matter described therein has changed making the certificate of designation false in any material respect, shall promptly amend the certificate of designation.
- (5) A certificate of designation may be amended at any time for any other proper purpose.
- (6) Unless otherwise provided in the Kansas revised limited liability company act or unless a later effective date or time, which shall be a date or time certain, is provided for in the certificate of amendment, a certificate of amendment shall be effective at the time of its filing with the secretary of state.
- (7) A certificate of designation shall be canceled upon the cancellation of the articles of organization of the limited liability company named in the certificate of designation, or upon the filing of a certificate of cancellation of the certificate of designation, or upon the future effective date or time of a certificate of cancellation of the certificate of designation, or as provided in K.S.A. 17-76,139(d), and amendments thereto, or upon the filing of a certificate of merger or consolidation if the series is not the surviving or resulting series in a merger or consolidation or upon the future effective date or time of a certificate of merger or consolidation if the series is not the surviving or resulting series in a merger or consolidation. A certificate of cancellation of the certificate of designation may be filed at any time, and shall be filed, in the office of the secretary of state to accomplish the cancellation of a certificate of designation upon the dissolution of a series for which a certificate of designation was filed and completion of the winding up of such series.
  - (A) A certificate of cancellation of the certificate of designation shall set forth:
  - (i) The name of the limited liability company;
  - (ii) the name of the series:
- (iii) the future effective date or time, which shall be a date or time certain, of cancellation if it is not to be effective upon the filing of the certificate of cancellation; and
- (iv) any other information the person filing the certificate of cancellation of the certificate of designation determines.
- (B) A certificate of designation properly filed with the secretary of state prior to July 1, 2022, that dissolved a series shall be deemed to be a certificate of cancellation thereto for purposes of this paragraph.
- (8) A certificate of cancellation of the certificate of designation that is filed in the office of the secretary of state prior to the dissolution or the completion of winding up of a series may be corrected as an erroneously executed certificate of cancellation of the

- certificate of designation by filing with the office of the secretary of state a certificate of correction of such certificate of cancellation of the certificate of designation in accordance with K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7912, and amendments thereto.
- (9) The secretary of state shall not issue a certificate of good standing with respect to a series if the certificate of designation is canceled or the limited liability company has ceased to be in good standing.
  - (e) The name of each series as set forth in its certificate of designation:
- (1) Shall include the name of the limited liability company, including any word, abbreviation or designation required by K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7920, and amendments thereto;
  - (2) may contain the name of a member or manager;
- (3) must comply with the requirements of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7918, and amendments thereto, to the same extent as a covered entity; and
- (4) may contain any word permitted by K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7920, and amendments thereto, and may not contain any word prohibited to be included in the name of a limited liability company under Kansas law.
- If a foreign limited liability company, as permitted in the jurisdiction of its organization, has established a series having separate rights, powers or duties and has limited the liabilities of such series so that is registered to do business in this state in accordance with K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7931, and amendments thereto, is governed by an operating agreement that establishes or provides for the establishment of a series of members, managers, limited liability company interests or assets having separate rights, powers or duties with respect to specified property or obligations of the foreign limited liability company or profits and losses associated with specified property or obligations, that fact shall be so stated on the application for registration as a foreign limited liability company. In addition, the foreign limited liability company shall state on such application whether the debts, liabilities and obligations incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing with respect to a particular series, if any are enforceable against the assets of such series only, and not against the assets of the foreign limited liability company generally or any other series thereof, or so that and whether any of the debts, liabilities, obligations and expenses incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing with respect to the limited liability company generally or any other series thereof-are not shall be enforceable against the assets of such series, then the limited liability company, on behalf of itself or any of its series, or any of its series on their own behalf may register to do business in the state in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7931, and amendments thereto. The limitation of liability shall be so stated on the application for admission as a foreign limited liability company and a certificate of designation shall be filed for each series being registered to do business in the state by the limited liability company. Unless otherwise provided in the operating agreement, the debts, liabilities and obligations incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing withrespect to a particular series of such a foreign limited liability company shall beenforceable against the assets of such series only, and not against the assets of the foreign limited liability company generally or any other series thereof and none of the debts, liabilities, obligations and expenses incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing with respect to such a foreign limited liability company generally or any other series thereof shall be enforceable against the assets of such series.

- Sec. 28. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,143a is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-76,143a. (a) Pursuant to an agreement of merger or consolidation, one or more series may merge or consolidate with or into one or more other series of the same limited liability company with such series as the agreement shall provide being the surviving or resulting series. Unless otherwise provided in the operating agreement, an agreement of merger or consolidation shall be consented to or approved by each series that is to merge or consolidate by members of such series who own more than 50% of the thencurrent percentage or other interest in the profits of such series owned by all of the members of such series. In connection with a merger or consolidation hereunder, rights or securities of, or interests in, a series which is a constituent party to the merger or consolidation may be exchanged for or converted into cash, property, rights, or securities of, or interests in, the surviving or resulting series or, in addition to or in lieu thereof, may be exchanged for or converted into cash, property, rights, or securities of, or interests in, an entity as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-78-102, and amendments thereto, that is not the surviving or resulting series in the merger or consolidation, may remain outstanding or may be canceled. Notwithstanding prior consent or approval, an agreement of merger or consolidation may be terminated or amended pursuant to a provision for such termination or amendment contained in the agreement of merger or
- (b) If a series is merging or consolidating under this section, the series surviving or resulting in or from the merger or consolidation shall file a certificate of merger or consolidation executed by one or more authorized persons on behalf of the series when it is the surviving or resulting series in the office of the secretary of state. The certificate of merger or consolidation shall state:
- (1) The name of each series that is to merge or consolidate and the name of the limited liability company that formed such series;
- (2) that an agreement of merger or consolidation has been consented to or approved and executed by or on behalf of each series that is to merge or consolidate;
  - (3) the name of the surviving or resulting series;
- (4) such amendment, if any, to the certificate of designation of the series that is the surviving or resulting series to change the name of the surviving series, as is desired to be effected by the merger;
- (5) the future effective date or time, which shall be a date or time certain, of the merger or consolidation if it is not to be effective upon the filing of the certificate of merger or consolidation;
- (6) that the agreement of merger or consolidation is on file at a place of business of the surviving or resulting series or the limited liability company that formed such series and shall state the address thereof; and
- (7) that a copy of the agreement of merger or consolidation will be furnished by the surviving or resulting series, upon request and without cost, to any member of any series that is to merge or consolidate.
- (c) Unless a future effective date or time is provided in a certificate of merger or consolidation, a merger or consolidation pursuant to this section shall be effective upon the filing of a certificate of merger or consolidation in the office of the secretary of state.
- (d) A certificate of merger or consolidation shall act as a certificate of cancellation of the certificate of designation of the series that is not the surviving or resulting series

in the merger or consolidation. A certificate of merger or consolidation that sets forth any amendment in accordance with subsection (b)(4) shall be deemed to be an amendment to the certificate of designation of the surviving or resulting series, and no further action shall be required to amend the certificate of designation of the surviving or resulting series under K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,143, and amendments thereto, with respect to such amendments set forth in the certificate of merger or consolidation. Whenever this section requires the filing of a certificate of merger or consolidation, such requirement shall be deemed satisfied by the filing of an agreement of merger or consolidation containing the information required by this section to be set forth in the certificate of merger or consolidation.

- (e) An agreement of merger or consolidation consented to or approved in accordance with subsection (a) may effect any amendment to the operating agreement relating solely to the series that are constituent parties to the merger or consolidation. Any amendment to an operating agreement relating solely to the series that are constituent parties to the merger or consolidation made pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be effective at the effective time or date of the merger or consolidation and shall be effective notwithstanding any provision of the operating agreement relating to amendment of the operating agreement, other than a provision that by its terms applies to an amendment to the operating agreement in connection with a merger or consolidation. The provisions of this subsection shall not be construed to limit the accomplishment of a merger or of any of the matters referred to herein by any other means provided for in an operating agreement or other agreement or as otherwise permitted by law, including that the operating agreement relating to any constituent series to the merger or consolidation, including a series formed for the purpose of consummating a merger or consolidation, shall be the operating agreement of the surviving or resulting series.
- (f) (1) (A) When any merger or consolidation shall have become effective under this section, for all purposes of the laws of the state of Kansas, all of the rights, privileges and powers of each of the series that have merged or consolidated, and all property, real, personal and mixed, and all debts due to any of such series, as well as all other things and causes of action belonging to each of such series, shall be vested in the surviving or resulting series, and shall thereafter be the property of the surviving or resulting series as they were of each of the series that have merged or consolidated, and the title to any real property vested by deed or otherwise, under the laws of the state of Kansas, in any of such series, shall not revert or be in any way impaired by reason of the Kansas revised limited liability company act.
- (B) All rights of creditors and all liens upon any property of any of the series that have merged or consolidated shall be preserved unimpaired, and all debts, liabilities and duties of each of such series that have merged or consolidated shall thereafter attach to the surviving or resulting series, and may be enforced against it to the same extent as if such debts, liabilities and duties had been incurred or contracted by it.
- (2) Unless otherwise agreed, a merger or consolidation of a series that is not the surviving or resulting series in the merger or consolidation, shall not require such series to wind up its affairs under K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,143, and amendments thereto, or pay its liabilities and distribute its assets under K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,143, and amendments thereto, and the merger or consolidation shall not constitute a dissolution of such series.

- (g) An operating agreement may provide that a series of such limited liability company shall not have the power to merge or consolidate as set forth in this section.
  - (h) This section shall take effect on and after July 1, 2020 2022.
- Sec. 29. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,146 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-76,146. (a) A domestic limited liability company whose articles of organization or a foreign limited liability company whose authority to do business has been canceled or forfeited pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(f)(d), and amendments thereto, or whose articles of organization or authority to do business has been forfeited pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139(d), and amendments thereto, may be reinstated by filing with the secretary of state a certificate of reinstatement accompanied by the payment of the fee required by K.S.A. 17-76,136(d), and amendments thereto, and payment of the annual report fees due under K.S.A. 17-76,139(c), and amendments thereto, and all penalties and interest thereon due at the time of the cancellation or forfeiture of its articles of organization or authority to do business. The certificate of reinstatement shall set forth:
- (1) The name of the limited liability company at the time its articles of organization or authority to do business was canceled or forfeited and, if such name is not available at the time of reinstatement, the name under which the limited liability company is to be reinstated:
- (2) the address of the limited liability company's registered office in the state of Kansas and the name and address of the limited liability company's resident agent in the state of Kansas:
- (3) a statement that the certificate of reinstatement is filed by one or more persons authorized to execute and file the certificate of reinstatement to reinstate the limited liability company; and
- (4) any other matters the persons executing the certificate of reinstatement determine to include therein.
- (b) The certificate of reinstatement shall be deemed to be an amendment to the articles of organization or application for registration of the limited liability company, and the limited liability company shall not be required to take any further action to amend its articles of organization or application for registration under K.S.A. 17-7674 or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7935, and amendments thereto, with respect to the matters set forth in the certificate of reinstatement.
- (c) Upon the filing of a certificate of reinstatement, a limited liability company shall be reinstated with the same force and effect as if its articles of organization or authority to do business had not been canceled or forfeited pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139(d) or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(f)(d), and amendments thereto. Such reinstatement shall validate all contracts, acts, matters and things made, done and performed by the limited liability company, its members, managers, employees and agents during the time when its articles of organization or authority to do business was canceled or forfeited pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139(d) or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(f)(d), and amendments thereto, with the same force and effect and to all intents and purposes as if the articles of organization or authority to do business had remained in full force and effect. All real and personal property, and all rights and interests, which belonged to the limited liability company at the time its articles of organization or authority to do business was canceled or forfeited pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139(d) or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-

7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(f)(d), and amendments thereto, or which were acquired by the limited liability company following the cancellation or forfeiture of its articles of organization or authority to do business pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139(d) or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(f)(d), and amendments thereto, and which were not disposed of prior to the time of its reinstatement, shall be vested in the limited liability company after its reinstatement as fully as they were held by the limited liability company at, and after, as the case may be, the time its articles of organization or authority to do business was canceled or forfeited pursuant to K.S.A 17-76,139(d) or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(f)(d), and amendments thereto. After its reinstatement, the limited liability company shall be as exclusively liable for all contracts, acts, matters and things made, done or performed in its name and on its behalf by its members, managers, employees and agents prior to its reinstatement as if its articles of organization or authority to do business had at all times remained in full force and effect.

- Sec. 30. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,146, as amended by section 29 of this act, is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-76,146. (a) A domestic limited liability company whose articles of organization or a foreign limited liability company whose authority to do business has been canceled or forfeited pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(d), and amendments thereto, or whose articles of organization or authority to do business has been forfeited pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139(d)(g), and amendments thereto, may be reinstated by filing with the secretary of state a certificate of reinstatement accompanied by the payment of the fee required by K.S.A. 17-76,136(d), and amendments thereto, and payment of the annual report fees due under K.S.A. 17-76,139(e)(f), and amendments thereto, and all penalties and interest thereon due at the time of the cancellation or forfeiture of its articles of organization or authority to do business. The certificate of reinstatement shall set forth:
- (1) The name of the limited liability company at the time its articles of organization or authority to do business was canceled or forfeited and, if such name is not available at the time of reinstatement, the name under which the limited liability company is to be reinstated:
- (2) the address of the limited liability company's registered office in the state of Kansas and the name and address of the limited liability company's resident agent in the state of Kansas;
- (3) a statement that the certificate of reinstatement is filed by one or more persons authorized to execute and file the certificate of reinstatement to reinstate the limited liability company; and
- (4) any other matters the persons executing the certificate of reinstatement determine to include therein.
- (b) The certificate of reinstatement shall be deemed to be an amendment to the articles of organization or application for registration of the limited liability company, and the limited liability company shall not be required to take any further action to amend its articles of organization or application for registration under K.S.A. 17-7674 or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7935, and amendments thereto, with respect to the matters set forth in the certificate of reinstatement.
- (c) Upon the filing of a certificate of reinstatement, a limited liability company, and all series thereof that have been formed and whose certificate of designation has not been cancelled prior to the cancellation of the articles of organization, shall be reinstated

with the same force and effect as if its articles of organization or authority to do business had not been canceled or forfeited pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139(d)(g) or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(d), and amendments thereto. Such reinstatement shall validate all contracts, acts, matters and things made, done and performed by the limited liability company, its members, managers, employees and agents during the time when its articles of organization or authority to do business was canceled or forfeited pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139(d)(g) or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(d), and amendments thereto, with the same force and effect and to all intents and purposes as if the articles of organization or authority to do business had remained in full force and effect. All real and personal property, and all rights and interests, which that belonged to the limited liability company at the time its articles of organization or authority to do business was canceled or forfeited pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139(d)(g) or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(d), and amendments thereto, or-which that were acquired by the limited liability company following the cancellation or forfeiture of its articles of organization or authority to do business pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139(d)(g) or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(d), and amendments thereto, and which that were not disposed of prior to the time of its reinstatement, shall be vested in the limited liability company after its reinstatement as fully as they were held by the limited liability company at, and after, as the case may be, the time its articles of organization or authority to do business was canceled or forfeited pursuant to K.S.A 17-76,139(d)(g) or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7926(b), 17-7929(b) or 17-7934(d), and amendments thereto. After its reinstatement, the limited liability company shall be as exclusively liable for all contracts, acts, matters and things made, done or performed in its name and on its behalf by its members, managers, employees and agents prior to its reinstatement as if its articles of organization or authority to do business had at all times remained in full force and effect.

- Sec. 31. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,147 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-76,147. (a) A series whose certificate of designation has been canceled pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto, may be reinstated by filing in the office of the secretary of state a certificate of reinstatement accompanied by the payment of the fee required by K.S.A. 17-76,136(d), and amendments thereto, and payment of the annual report fee due under K.S.A. 17-76,139(c), and amendments thereto, and all penalties and interest thereon due at the time of the cancellation of its certificate of designation. The certificate of reinstatement shall set forth:
- (1) The name of the limited liability company at the time the certificate of designation was canceled and, if such name has changed, the name of the limited liability company at the time of reinstatement of the series;
- (2) the name of the series at the time the certificate of designation was canceled and, if such name is not available at the time of reinstatement, the name under which the series is to be reinstated;
- (3) a statement that the certificate of reinstatement is filed by one or more persons authorized to execute and file the certificate of reinstatement to reinstate the series; and
- (4) any other matters the persons executing the certificate of reinstatement determine to include therein.
- (b) The certificate of reinstatement shall be deemed to be an amendment to the certificate of designation, and no further actions shall be required to amend its

certificate of designation under K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,143(d)(3), and amendments thereto, with respect to the matters set forth in the certificate of reinstatement.

- (c) Upon the filing of a certificate of reinstatement, a series shall be reinstated with the same force and effect as if its certificate of designation had not been canceled pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto. Such reinstatement shall validate all contracts, acts, matters and things made, done and performed by the series, its members, managers, employees and agents during the time when its certificate of designation was canceled pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto, with the same force and effect and to all intents and purposes as if the certificate of designation had remained in full force and effect. All real and personal property, and all rights and interests, that belonged to the series at the time its certificate of designation was canceled pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto, or were acquired by the series following the cancellation of its certificate of designation pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto, and were not disposed of prior to the time of its reinstatement, shall be vested in the series after its reinstatement as fully as they were held by the series at, and after, as the case may be, the time its certificate of designation was canceled pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto. After its reinstatement, the series shall be as exclusively liable for all contracts, acts, matters and things made, done or performed in its name and on its behalf by its members, managers, employees and agents prior to its reinstatement as if its certificate of designation had at all times remained in full force and effect.
  - (d) This section shall take effect on and after July 1. 2020 2022.
- Sec. 32. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,147, as amended by section 31 of this act, is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-76,147. (a) A series whose certificate of designation has been canceled pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto, may be reinstated by filing in the office of the secretary of state a certificate of reinstatement accompanied by the payment of the fee required by K.S.A. 17-76,136(d), and amendments thereto, and payment of the annual report fee due under K.S.A. 17-76,139(e)(f), and amendments thereto, and all penalties and interest thereon due at the time of the cancellation of its certificate of designation. The certificate of reinstatement shall set forth:
- (1) The name of the limited liability company at the time the certificate of designation was canceled and, if such name has changed, the name of the limited liability company at the time of reinstatement of the series;
- (2) the name of the series at the time the certificate of designation was canceled and, if such name is not available at the time of reinstatement, the name under which the series is to be reinstated;
- (3) a statement that the certificate of reinstatement is filed by one or more persons authorized to execute and file the certificate of reinstatement to reinstate the series; and
- (4) any other matters the persons executing the certificate of reinstatement determine to include therein.
- (b) The certificate of reinstatement shall be deemed to be an amendment to the certificate of designation, and no further actions shall be required to amend its certificate of designation under K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-76,143(d)(3), and amendments thereto, with respect to the matters set forth in the certificate of reinstatement.
- (c) Upon the filing of a certificate of reinstatement, a series shall be reinstated with the same force and effect as if its certificate of designation had not been canceled

pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto. Such reinstatement shall validate all contracts, acts, matters and things made, done and performed by the series, its members, managers, employees and agents during the time when its certificate of designation was canceled pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto, with the same force and effect and to all intents and purposes as if the certificate of designation had remained in full force and effect. All real and personal property, and all rights and interests, that belonged to the series at the time its certificate of designation was canceled pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto, or were acquired by the series following the cancellation of its certificate of designation pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto, and were not disposed of prior to the time of its reinstatement, shall be vested in the series after its reinstatement as fully as they were held by the series at, and after, as the case may be, the time its certificate of designation was canceled pursuant to K.S.A. 17-76,139, and amendments thereto. After its reinstatement, the series shall be as exclusively liable for all contracts, acts, matters and things made, done or performed in its name and on its behalf by its members, managers, employees and agents prior to its reinstatement as if its certificate of designation had at all times remained in full force and effect.

- (d) This section shall take effect on and after July 1, 2022.
- Sec. 33. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-78-601 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-78-601. (a) When any provision of this act requires any instrument to be filed with the secretary of state, such instrument shall be filed in accordance with this section:
  - (1) The document shall contain the information required by this act;
  - (2) the document shall be in a record;
- (3) the document shall be in the English language, but the name of an entity need not be in English if written in English letters or Arabic or Roman numerals;
  - (4) the document shall be signed:
  - (A) By an officer of a domestic or foreign corporation;
- (B) by a person authorized by a domestic or foreign entity that is not a corporation; or
- (C) if the entity is in the hands of a receiver, trustee or other court-appointed fiduciary, by that person;
  - (5) the instrument shall state the name and capacity of the person that signed it;
- (6) any signature on instruments authorized to be filed with the secretary of state under this act may be a facsimile, an electronic signature, a conformed signature or an electronically transmitted signature. The execution of any instrument required to be filed with the secretary of state shall constitute an oath or affirmation, under the penalties of perjury, that the facts stated in the instrument are true; and
- (7) the instrument shall be delivered to the office of the secretary of state for filing. Delivery may be made by electronic transmission if and to the extent permitted by the secretary of state.
- (b) When a document is delivered to the office of the secretary of state for filing, the correct filing fee and any tax, fee or penalty required to be paid by this act or other law shall be paid. The secretary of state shall establish by rule and regulation the filing fees for instruments filed pursuant to this act.
- (c) Upon delivery of the instrument and upon tender of the required fees and any taxes:
  - (1) The secretary of state shall certify that the instrument has been filed in the

office of secretary of state by endorsing upon the original signed instrument the word "Filed" and the date and hour of its filing. This endorsement is the "filing date" of the instrument and is conclusive of the date and time of its filing in the absence of actual fraud. The secretary of state shall thereupon record the endorsed instrument in an electronic medium; and

- (2) the secretary of state shall return a certified copy of the recorded instrument.
- (d) Any instrument filed in accordance with this section shall be effective upon its filing date unless a later effective date, not to exceed 90 days from the date of filing, was specified in the instrument.
- (e) If any instrument authorized to be filed with the secretary of state is filed and is inaccurately, defectively or erroneously executed or otherwise defective in any respect, the secretary of state shall not be liable to any person for the preclearance for filing, the acceptance for filing or the filing and indexing such instrument.
- (f) Whenever a provision of this act permits any of the terms of an agreement or a filed document to be dependent on facts objectively ascertainable outside the agreement or filed document, the following rules apply:
- (1) The manner in which the facts will operate upon the terms of the agreement or filed document must be set forth in the agreement or filed document;
  - (2) the facts may include, but are not limited to:
- (A) Any of the following that is available in a nationally recognized news or information medium either in print or electronically, statistical or market indices, market prices of any security or group of securities, interest rates, currency exchange rates or similar economic or financial data:
- (B) a determination or action by any person or body, including the entity or any other party to an agreement or filed document; or
- (C) the terms of, or actions taken under, an agreement to which the entity is a party or any other agreement or document;
- (3) in this subsection, "filed document" means a document filed with the secretary of state under this act. The following provisions of an agreement or filed document may not be made dependent on facts outside the agreement or filed document:
  - (A) The name and address of any person required in a filed document;
  - (B) the registered office of any entity required in a filed document;
  - (C) the resident agent of any entity required in a filed document;
- (D) the number of authorized shares and designation of each class or series of shares of a corporation;
  - (E) the effective date of a filed document; and
- (F) any required statement in a filed document of the manner in which that approval was given;
- (4) if a provision of a filed document is made dependent on a fact ascertainable outside of the filed document and that fact is not ascertainable by reference to a source described in subsection (c)(2)(A) or a document that is a matter of public record, or if the affected interest holders have not received notice of the fact from the entity, the entity shall file with the secretary of state a certificate of amendment setting forth the fact promptly after the fact referred to is first ascertainable or thereafter changes.";

Also on page 27, in line 14, before "K.S.A." by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022," On page 28, in line 43, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 30, in line 1, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; in

line 28, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 31, by striking all in lines 12 through 41 and inserting:

- "Sec. 38. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7910 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-7910. When any document is required by this act to be filed with the secretary of state, such requirement means that:
- (a) The original signed document shall be delivered to the office of the secretary of state, where the document shall be recorded in an electronic medium. Any signature on documents authorized to be filed with the secretary of state under the provisions of this act may be a facsimile, a conformed signature, an electronic signature or an electronically transmitted signature;
- (b) all taxes and fees authorized by law to be collected by the secretary of state in connection with the filing of the document shall be tendered to the secretary of state;
- (c) upon delivery of the document, and upon tender of the required taxes and fees, the secretary of state shall, if the secretary of state finds that the document conforms to law, certify that the document has been filed in the office of the secretary of state by endorsing upon the electronically recorded electronically recorded document the word "Filed" and the date and hour of its filing. This endorsement is the "filing date" of the document and is conclusive of the date and time of its filing in the absence of actual fraud. The secretary of state shall thereupon record the endorsed document in an electronic medium and that electronic document shall become the original document; and
- (d) the secretary of state shall return a certified copy of the recorded document to the person who filed the document or that person's representative, except this provision shall not apply to annual reports.
- (e) A person who executes any document required by this act to be filed with the secretary of state, including a person who executes such document as an agent or fiduciary, shall not be required to exhibit evidence of the person's authority as a prerequisite to filing such documents with the secretary of state.
- Sec. 39. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7910, as amended by section 38 of this act, is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-7910. When any document is required by this act to be filed with the secretary of state, such requirement means that:
- (a) The original signed document shall be delivered to the office of the secretary of state, where the document shall be recorded in an electronic medium. Any signature on documents authorized to be filed with the secretary of state under the provisions of this act may be a facsimile, a conformed signature, an electronic signature or an electronically transmitted signature;
- (b) all taxes and fees authorized by law to be collected by the secretary of state in connection with the filing of the document shall be tendered to the secretary of state;
- (c) upon delivery of the document, and upon tender of the required taxes and fees, the secretary of state shall, if the secretary of state finds that the document conforms to law, certify that the document has been filed in the office of the secretary of state by endorsing upon the electronically recorded document the word "Filed" and the date and hour of its filing. This endorsement is the "filing date" of the document and is conclusive of the date and time of its filing in the absence of actual fraud. The secretary of state shall thereupon record the endorsed document in an electronic medium and that electronic document shall become the original document; and

- (d) the secretary of state shall return a certified copy of the recorded document to the person who filed the document or that person's representative, except this provision shall not apply to annual business entity information reports.
- (e) A person who executes any document required by this act to be filed with the secretary of state, including a person who executes such document as an agent or fiduciary, shall not be required to exhibit evidence of the person's authority as a prerequisite to filing such documents with the secretary of state.
- Sec. 40. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7918 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-7918. (a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (b), the names of all covered entities, except for banks, savings and loan associations and savings banks, must be distinguishable on the records of the office of the secretary of state from:
  - (1) The name of any other covered entity or foreign covered entity;
- (2) the name of any non-covered entity, other than a general partnership, that has filed with the office of the secretary of state, including a series of a limited liability company for which a certificate of designation has been filed;
- (3) any entity name reserved pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7923, and amendments thereto; and
- (4) the name of any other covered entity, series of a limited liability company or foreign covered entity whose public organic documents, certificate of designation or foreign registration has been canceled or forfeited for any reason within the previous one year.
- (b) A covered entity may register under any name that is not distinguishable on the records of the office of the secretary of state from the name of any other covered entity or non-covered entity that has filed with the office of the secretary of state with the written consent of the other entity, which written consent shall be filed with the secretary of state.
- (c) A covered entity may use a name that is not distinguishable from a name described in subsection (a)(1) through (3) if the entity delivers to the secretary of state a certified copy of a final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction establishing the right of the entity to use the name in this state.
- Sec. 41. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7923 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-7923. (a) The exclusive right to the use of an entity name or, as applicable, the name of a series of a limited liability company, may be reserved by:
  - (1) Any person intending to organize a covered entity under the laws of this state;
- (2) any domestic limited liability company or any person intending to organize a domestic limited liability company, intending to file a certificate of designation to form a series of any such limited liability company;
- (3) any domestic covered entity intending to change its name or intending to change the name of a series for which a certificate of designation has been filed;
- (3)(4) any foreign covered entity intending to make application for a certificate of authority to transact business in this state;
- (4)(5) any foreign covered entity authorized to transact business in this state, and intending to change its name; and
- (5)(6) any person intending to organize a foreign covered entity, and intending to have such entity make application for a certificate of authority to transact business in this state.

- (b) The reservation shall be made by filing with the secretary of state an application to reserve a specific covered entity name or the name of a series of a domestic limited liability company, executed by the applicant. The reservation may be filed by telefacsimile communication as prescribed by K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7914, and amendments thereto. If the secretary of state finds that the name is available, the secretary of state shall reserve the same for the exclusive use of the applicant for a period of 120 days.
- (c) The right to exclusive use of a specified entity name or the name of a series of a domestic limited liability company, reserved pursuant to this section, may be transferred to any other person or covered entity by filing in the office of the secretary of state, a notice of such transfer, executed by the applicant for whom the name was reserved, and specifying the name and address of the transferee.
  - (d) This section shall take effect on and after January 1, 2015.
- Sec. 42. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7933 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-7933. (a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (b), the names of all foreign covered entities must be distinguishable on the records of the office of the secretary of state from:
  - (1) The name of any covered entity or foreign covered entity;
- (2) the name of any non-covered entity, other than a general partnership, that has filed with the secretary of state, including a series of a limited liability company for which a certificate of designation has been filed;
- (3) any entity name reserved pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7923, and amendments thereto; and
- (4) the name of any other covered entity, series of a limited liability company or foreign covered entity whose public organic document, certificate of designation or foreign registration has been canceled or forfeited for any reason within the previous one year.
- (b) A foreign covered entity may register under any name that is not distinguishable on the records of the office of the secretary of state from the name of any other covered entity or non-covered entity that has filed with the office of the secretary of state:
- (1) With the written consent of the other entity, which written consent shall be filed with the secretary of state; or
- (2) if the foreign covered entity indicates, as a means of identification and in its advertising within this state, the state in which the foreign covered entity was formed, and the application sets forth this condition."

Also on page 31, in line 42, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; On page 32, following line 19, by inserting:

- "Sec. 44. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 45-229 is hereby amended to read as follows: 45-229. (a) It is the intent of the legislature that exceptions to disclosure under the open records act shall be created or maintained only if:
  - (1) The public record is of a sensitive or personal nature concerning individuals;
- (2) the public record is necessary for the effective and efficient administration of a governmental program; or
  - (3) the public record affects confidential information.

The maintenance or creation of an exception to disclosure must be compelled as measured by these criteria. Further, the legislature finds that the public has a right to have access to public records unless the criteria in this section for restricting such access to a public record are met and the criteria are considered during legislative review in connection with the particular exception to disclosure to be significant enough to override the strong public policy of open government. To strengthen the policy of open government, the legislature shall consider the criteria in this section before enacting an exception to disclosure.

- (b) Subject to the provisions of subsections (g) and (h), any new exception to disclosure or substantial amendment of an existing exception shall expire on July 1 of the fifth year after enactment of the new exception or substantial amendment, unless the legislature acts to continue the exception. A law that enacts a new exception or substantially amends an existing exception shall state that the exception expires at the end of five years and that the exception shall be reviewed by the legislature before the scheduled date.
- (c) For purposes of this section, an exception is substantially amended if the amendment expands the scope of the exception to include more records or information. An exception is not substantially amended if the amendment narrows the scope of the exception.
- (d) This section is not intended to repeal an exception that has been amended following legislative review before the scheduled repeal of the exception if the exception is not substantially amended as a result of the review.
- (e) In the year before the expiration of an exception, the revisor of statutes shall certify to the president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives, by July 15, the language and statutory citation of each exception that will expire in the following year that meets the criteria of an exception as defined in this section. Any exception that is not identified and certified to the president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives is not subject to legislative review and shall not expire. If the revisor of statutes fails to certify an exception that the revisor subsequently determines should have been certified, the revisor shall include the exception in the following year's certification after that determination.
- (f) "Exception" means any provision of law that creates an exception to disclosure or limits disclosure under the open records act pursuant to K.S.A. 45-221, and amendments thereto, or pursuant to any other provision of law.
- (g) A provision of law that creates or amends an exception to disclosure under the open records law shall not be subject to review and expiration under this act if such provision:
  - (1) Is required by federal law;
  - (2) applies solely to the legislature or to the state court system;
  - (3) has been reviewed and continued in existence twice by the legislature; or
- (4) has been reviewed and continued in existence by the legislature during the 2013 legislative session and thereafter.
- (h) (1) The legislature shall review the exception before its scheduled expiration and consider as part of the review process the following:
  - (A) What specific records are affected by the exception;
  - (B) whom does the exception uniquely affect, as opposed to the general public;
  - (C) what is the identifiable public purpose or goal of the exception;
- (D) whether the information contained in the records may be obtained readily by alternative means and how it may be obtained;
  - (2) an exception may be created or maintained only if it serves an identifiable

public purpose and may be no broader than is necessary to meet the public purpose it serves. An identifiable public purpose is served if the legislature finds that the purpose is sufficiently compelling to override the strong public policy of open government and cannot be accomplished without the exception and if the exception:

- (A) Allows the effective and efficient administration of a governmental program that would be significantly impaired without the exception;
- (B) protects information of a sensitive personal nature concerning individuals, the release of such information would be defamatory to such individuals or cause unwarranted damage to the good name or reputation of such individuals or would jeopardize the safety of such individuals. Only information that would identify the individuals may be excepted under this paragraph; or
- (C) protects information of a confidential nature concerning entities, including, but not limited to, a formula, pattern, device, combination of devices, or compilation of information that is used to protect or further a business advantage over those who do not know or use it, if the disclosure of such information would injure the affected entity in the marketplace.
- (3) Records made before the date of the expiration of an exception shall be subject to disclosure as otherwise provided by law. In deciding whether the records shall be made public, the legislature shall consider whether the damage or loss to persons or entities uniquely affected by the exception of the type specified in paragraph (2)(B) or (2)(C) would occur if the records were made public.
- (i) (1) Exceptions contained in the following statutes as continued in existence in section 2 of chapter 126 of the 2005 Session Laws of Kansas and that have been reviewed and continued in existence twice by the legislature as provided in subsection (g) are hereby continued in existence: 1-401, 2-1202, 5-512, 9-1137, 9-1712, 9-2217, 10-630, 11-306, 12-189, 12-1,108, 12-1694, 12-1698, 12-2819, 12-4516, 16-715, 16a-2-304, 17-1312e, 17-2227, 17-5832, 17-7511, <del>17-7514,</del> 17-76,139, 19-4321, 21-2511, 22-3711, 22-4707, 22-4909, 22a-243, 22a-244, 23-605, 23-9,312, 25-4161, 25-4165, 31-405, 34-251, 38-2212, 39-709b, 39-719e, 39-934, 39-1434, 39-1704, 40-222, 40-2,156, 40-2c20, 40-2c21, 40-2d20, 40-2d21, 40-409, 40-956, 40-1128, 40-2807, 40-3012, 40-3304, 40-3308, 40-3403b, 40-3421, 40-3613, 40-3805, 40-4205, 44-510j, 44-550b, 44-594, 44-635, 44-714, 44-817, 44-1005, 44-1019, 45-221(a)(1) through (43), 46-256, 46-259, 46-2201, 47-839, 47-844, 47-849, 47-1709, 48-1614, 49-406, 49-427, 55-1,102, 58-4114, 59-2135, 59-2802, 59-2979, 59-29679, 60-3333, 60-3336, 65-1026, 65-118, 65-119, 65-153f, 65-170g, 65-177, 65-1,106, 65-1,113, 65-1,116, 65-1,157a, 65-1,163, 65-1,165, 65-1,168, 65-1,169, 65-1,171, 65-1,172, 65-436, 65-445, 65-507, 65-525, 65-531, 65-657, 65-1135, 65-1467, 65-1627, 65-1831, 65-2422d, 65-2438, 65-2836, 65-2839a, 65-2898a, 65-3015, 65-3447, 65-34,108, 65-34,126, 65-4019, 65-4922, 65-4925, 65-5602, 65-5603, 65-6002, 65-6003, 65-6004, 65-6010, 65-67a05, 65-6803, 65-6804, 66-101c, 66-117, 66-151, 66-1,190, 66-1,203, 66-1220a, 66-2010, 72-996, 72-4311, 72-4452, 72-5214, 72-53,106, 72-5427, 72-8903, 73-1228, 74-2424, 74-2433f, 74-4905, 74-4909, 74-50,131, 74-5515, 74-7308, 74-7338, 74-8104, 74-8307, 74-8705, 74-8804, 74-9805, 75-104, 75-712, 75-7b15, 75-1267, 75-2943, 75-4332, 75-4362, 75-5133, 75-5266, 75-5665, 75-5666, 75-7310, 76-355, 76-359, 76-493, 76-12b11, 76-3305, 79-1119, 79-1437f, 79-3234, 79-3395, 79-3420, 79-3499, 79-34,113, 79-3614, 79-3657, 79-4301 and 79-5206.
  - (2) Exceptions contained in the following statutes as certified by the revisor of

- statutes to the president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives pursuant to subsection (e) and that have been reviewed during the 2015 legislative session and continued in existence by the legislature as provided in subsection (g) are hereby continued in existence: 17-2036, 40-5301, 45-221(a)(45), (46) and (49), 48-16a10, 58-4616, 60-3351, 72-972a, 74-50,217 and 75-53,105.
- (j) (1) Exceptions contained in the following statutes as continued in existence in section 1 of chapter 87 of the 2006 Session Laws of Kansas and that have been reviewed and continued in existence twice by the legislature as provided in subsection (g) are hereby continued in existence: 1-501, 9-1303, 12-4516a, 39-970, 65-525, 65-5117, 65-6016, 65-6017 and 74-7508.
- (2) Exceptions contained in the following statutes as certified by the revisor of statutes to the president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives pursuant to subsection (e) during 2015 and that have been reviewed during the 2016 legislative session are hereby continued in existence: 12-5611, 22-4906, 22-4909, 38-2310, 38-2311, 38-2326, 40-955, 44-1132, 45-221(a)(10)(F) and (a)(50), 60-3333, 65-4a05, 65-445(g), 65-6154, 71-218, 75-457, 75-712c, 75-723 and 75-7c06.
- (k) Exceptions contained in the following statutes as certified by the revisor of statutes to the president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives pursuant to subsection (e) and that have been reviewed during the 2014 legislative session and continued in existence by the legislature as provided in subsection (g) are hereby continued in existence: 1-205, 2-2204, 8-240, 8-247, 8-255c, 8-1324, 8-1325, 12-17,150, 12-2001, 17-12a607, 38-1008, 38-2209, 40-5006, 40-5108, 41-2905, 41-2906, 44-706, 44-1518, 45-221(a)(44), (45), (46), (47) and (48), 50-6a11, -56-1a610, 56a-1204, 65-1,243, 65-16,104, 65-3239, 74-50,184, 74-8134, 74-99b06, 77-503a and 82a-2210.
- (l) Exceptions contained in the following statutes as certified by the revisor of statutes to the president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives pursuant to subsection (e) during 2016 and that have been reviewed during the 2017 legislative session are hereby continued in existence: 12-5711, 21-2511, 22-4909, 38-2313, 45-221(a)(51) and (52), 65-516, 65-1505, 74-2012, 74-5607, 74-8745, 74-8752, 74-8772, 75-7d01, 75-7d05, 75-5133, 75-7427 and 79-3234.
- (m) Exceptions contained in the following statutes as certified by the revisor of statutes to the president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives pursuant to subsection (e) during 2012 and that have been reviewed during the 2013 legislative session and continued in existence by the legislature as provided in subsection (g) are hereby continued in existence: 12-5811, 40-222, 40-223j, 40-5007a, 40-5009a, 40-5012a, 65-1685, 65-1695, 65-2838a, 66-1251, 66-1805, 72-60c01, 75-712 and 75-5366.
- (n) Exceptions contained in the following statutes as certified by the revisor of statutes to the president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives pursuant to subsection (e) and that have been reviewed during the 2018 legislative session are hereby continued in existence: 9-513c(c)(2), 39-709, 45-221(a)(26), (53) and (54), 65-6832, 65-6834, 75-7c06 and 75-7c20.
- (o) Exceptions contained in the following statutes as certified by the revisor of statutes to the president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives pursuant to subsection (e) that have been reviewed during the 2019 legislative session are hereby continued in existence: 21-2511(h)(2), 21-5905(a)(7), 22-2302(b) and (c),

22-2502(d) and (e), 40-222(k)(7), 44-714(e), 45-221(a)(55), 46-1106(g) regarding 46-1106(i), 65-2836(i), 65-2839a(c), 65-2842(d), 65-28a05(n), article 6(d) of 65-6230, 72-6314(a) and 74-7047(b).";

Also on page 32, in line 20, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; On page 33, following line 16, by inserting:

"Sec. 46. K.S.A. 56-1a151 is hereby amended to read as follows: 56-1a151. (a) In order to form a limited partnership, a certificate of limited partnership must be executed and filed in the office of the secretary of state. Such certificate shall set forth:

- (1) The name of the limited partnership;
- (2) the address of the registered office and the name and address of the resident agent for service of process required to be maintained by K.S.A. <u>56-1a104\_2019\_Supp.</u> 17-7925, and amendments thereto:
  - (3) the name and the business or residence address of each general partner;
  - (4) the latest date upon which the limited partnership is to dissolve; and
  - (5) any other matters the general partners determine to include in the certificate.
- (b) A limited partnership is formed at the time of the filing of the initial certificate of limited partnership in the office of the secretary of state or at any later time specified in the certificate of limited partnership if, in either case, there has been substantial compliance with the requirements of this section.";

Also on page 33, in line 17, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; On page 34, in line 14, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 35, in line 42, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 37, following line 26, by inserting:

"Sec. 50. K.S.A. 56a-101 is hereby amended to read as follows: 56a-101. In this act:

- (a) "Business" includes every trade, occupation, and profession.
- (b) "Debtor in bankruptcy" means a person who is the subject of:
- (1) An order for relief under title 11 of the United States code or a comparable order under a successor statute of general application; or
  - (2) a comparable order under federal, state, or foreign law governing insolvency.
- (c) "Distribution" means a transfer of money or other property from a partnership to a partner in the partner's capacity as a partner or to the partner's transferee.
  - (d) "Foreign limited liability partnership" means a partnership that:
  - (1) Is formed under laws other than the laws of this state; and
  - (2) has the status of a limited liability partnership under those laws.
- (e) "Limited liability partnership" means a partnership that has filed a statement of qualification under K.S.A. 56a-1001, and amendments thereto, and does not have a similar statement in effect in any other jurisdiction.
- (f) "Partnership" means an association of two or more persons to carry on as coowners a business for profit formed under K.S.A. 56a-202, and amendments thereto, predecessor law, or comparable law of another jurisdiction.
- (g) "Partnership agreement" means the agreement, whether written, oral, or implied, among the partners concerning the partnership, including amendments to the partnership agreement.
- (h) "Partnership at will" means a partnership in which the partners have not agreed to remain partners until the expiration of a definite term or the completion of a particular undertaking.

- (i) "Partnership interest" or "partner's interest in the partnership" means all of a partner's interests in the partnership, including the partner's transferable interest and all management and other rights.
- (j) "Person" means an individual, corporation, business trust, estate, trust, partnership, association, joint venture, government, governmental subdivision, agency, or instrumentality, or any other legal or commercial entity.
- (k) "Property" means all property, real, personal, or mixed, tangible or intangible, or any interest therein.
- (l) "State" means a state of the United States, the District of Columbia, the commonwealth of Puerto Rico, or any territory or insular possession subject to the jurisdiction of the United States.
- (m) "Statement" means a statement of partnership authority under K.S.A. 56a-303, and amendments thereto, a statement of denial under K.S.A. 56a-304, and amendments thereto, a statement of dissolution under K.S.A. 56a-704, and amendments thereto, a statement of dissolution under K.S.A. 56a-805, and amendments thereto, a statement of merger under K.S.A. 56a-907, and amendments thereto, a statement of qualification under K.S.A. 56a-1001, and amendments thereto, a statement of foreign qualification under K.S.A. 56a-1102, and amendments thereto, or an amendment or cancellation of any of the foregoing.
- (n) "Street address" means the location with the number, street, city, state and postal code.
- (o)\_\_"Transfer" includes an assignment, conveyance, lease, mortgage, deed, and encumbrance.
- Sec. 51. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 56a-1001 is hereby amended to read as follows: 56a-1001. (a) A partnership may become a limited liability partnership pursuant to this section.
- (b) The terms and conditions on which a partnership becomes a limited liability partnership must be approved by the vote necessary to amend the partnership agreement except, in the case of a partnership agreement that expressly considers contribution obligations, the vote necessary to amend those provisions.
- (c) After the approval required by subsection (b), a partnership may become a limited liability partnership by filing a statement of qualification. The statement must contain:
  - (1) The name of the partnership;
- (2) the address of the registered office and the name of the resident agent for service of process required to be maintained pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp.-56a-1005-17-7925, and amendments thereto;
  - (3) a statement that the partnership elects to be a limited liability partnership; and
  - (4) a deferred effective date, if any.
- (d) The status of a partnership as a limited liability partnership is effective on the later of the filing of the statement or a date specified in the statement. The status remains effective, regardless of changes in the partnership, until it is canceled pursuant to subsection (d) of K.S.A. 56a-105(d), and amendments thereto, or revoked pursuant to K.S.A. 56a-1201, and amendments thereto.
- (e) The status of a partnership as a limited liability partnership and the liability of its partners is not affected by errors or later changes in the information required to be contained in the statement of qualification under subsection (c).

- (f) The filing of a statement of qualification establishes that a partnership has satisfied all conditions precedent to the qualification of the partnership as a limited liability partnership.
- (g) An amendment or cancellation of a statement of qualification is effective when it is filed or on a deferred effective date specified in the amendment or cancellation.";

Also on page 37, in line 27, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 39, in line 3, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,";

On page 40, in line 21, before "K.S.A" by inserting "On and after July 1, 2022,"; by striking all in lines 32 through 43 and inserting:

- "Sec. 55. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-1-201 is hereby amended to read as follows: 84-1-201. (a) Unless the context otherwise requires, words or phrases defined in this section, or in the additional definitions contained in other articles of the uniform commercial code that apply to particular articles or parts thereof, have the meanings stated.
- (b) Subject to definitions contained in other articles of the uniform commercial code that apply to particular articles or parts thereof:
- (1) "Action," in the sense of a judicial proceeding, includes recoupment, counterclaim, set-off, suit in equity, and any other proceeding in which rights are determined.
  - (2) "Aggrieved party" means a party entitled to pursue a remedy.
- (3) "Agreement," as distinguished from "contract," means the bargain of the parties in fact, as found in their language or inferred from other circumstances, including course of performance, course of dealing, or usage of trade as provided in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-1-303, and amendments thereto.
- (4) "Bank" means a person engaged in the business of banking and includes a savings bank, savings and loan association, credit union, and trust company.
- (5) "Bearer" means a person in control of a negotiable electronic document of title or a person in possession of a negotiable instrument, negotiable tangible document of title, or certificated security that is payable to bearer or indorsed in blank.
- (6) "Bill of lading" means a document of title evidencing the receipt of goods for shipment issued by a person engaged in the business of directly or indirectly transporting or forwarding goods. The term does not include a warehouse receipt.
  - (7) "Branch" includes a separately incorporated foreign branch of a bank.
- (8) "Burden of establishing" a fact means the burden of persuading the trier of fact that the existence of the fact is more probable than its nonexistence.
- (9) "Buyer in ordinary course of business" means a person that buys goods in good faith, without knowledge that the sale violates the rights of another person in the goods, and in the ordinary course from a person, other than a pawnbroker, in the business of selling goods of that kind. A person buys goods in the ordinary course if the sale to the person comports with the usual or customary practices in the kind of business in which the seller is engaged or with the seller's own usual or customary practices. A person that sells oil, gas, or other minerals at the wellhead or minehead is a person in the business of selling goods of that kind. A buyer in ordinary course of business may buy for cash, by exchange of other property, or on secured or unsecured credit, and may acquire goods or documents of title under a preexisting contract for sale. Only a buyer that takes possession of the goods or has a right to recover the goods from the seller under article

- 2 of chapter 84 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, may be a buyer in ordinary course of business. "Buyer in ordinary course of business" does not include a person that acquires goods in a transfer in bulk or as security for or in total or partial satisfaction of a money debt.
- (10) "Conspicuous," with reference to a term, means so written, displayed, or presented that a reasonable person against which it is to operate ought to have noticed it. Whether a term is "conspicuous" or not is a decision for the court. Conspicuous terms include the following:
- (A) A heading in capitals equal to or greater in size than the surrounding text, or in contrasting type, font, or color to the surrounding text of the same or lesser size; and
- (B) language in the body of a record or display in larger type than the surrounding text, or in contrasting type, font, or color to the surrounding text of the same size, or set off from surrounding text of the same size by symbols or other marks that call attention to the language.
- (11) "Consumer" means an individual who enters into a transaction primarily for personal, family, or household purposes.
- (12) "Contract," as distinguished from "agreement," means the total legal obligation that results from the parties' agreement as determined by the uniform commercial code as supplemented by any other applicable laws.
- (13) "Creditor" includes a general creditor, a secured creditor, a lien creditor, and any representative of creditors, including an assignee for the benefit of creditors, a trustee in bankruptcy, a receiver in equity, and an executor or administrator of an insolvent debtor's or assignor's estate.
- (14) "Defendant" includes a person in the position of defendant in a counterclaim, cross-claim, or third-party claim.
- (15) "Delivery," with respect to an electronic document of title means voluntary transfer of control and with respect to an instrument, a tangible document of title, or chattel paper, means voluntary transfer of possession.
- (16) "Document of title" means a record—(i): (A) That in the regular course of business or financing is treated as adequately evidencing that the person in possession or control of the record is entitled to receive, control, hold, and dispose of the record and the goods the record covers; and—(ii) (B) that purports to be issued by or addressed to a bailee and to cover goods in the bailee's possession which are either identified or are fungible portions of an identified mass. The term includes a bill of lading, transport document, dock warrant, dock receipt, warehouse receipt and order for delivery of goods. An electronic document of title means a document of title evidenced by a record consisting of information stored in an electronic medium. A tangible document of title means a document of title evidenced by a record consisting of information that is inscribed on a tangible medium.
  - (17) "Fault" means a default, breach, or wrongful act or omission.
  - (18) "Fungible goods" means:
- (A) Goods of which any unit, by nature or usage of trade, is the equivalent of any other like unit; or
  - (B) goods that by agreement are treated as equivalent.
  - (19) "Genuine" means free of forgery or counterfeiting.
- (20) "Good faith," except as otherwise provided in article 5 of chapter 84 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, means honesty in fact and the

observance of reasonable commercial standards of fair dealing.

- (21) "Holder" means:
- (A) The person in possession of a negotiable instrument that is payable either to bearer or to an identified person that is the person in possession; or
- (B) the person in possession of a negotiable tangible document of title if the goods are deliverable either to bearer or to the order of the person in possession; or
  - (C) the person in control of a negotiable electronic document of title.
- (22) "Insolvency proceeding" includes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or other proceeding intended to liquidate or rehabilitate the estate of the person involved.
  - (23) "Insolvent" means:
- (A) Having generally ceased to pay debts in the ordinary course of business other than as a result of bona fide dispute;
  - (B) being unable to pay debts as they become due; or
  - (C) being insolvent within the meaning of federal bankruptcy law.
- (24) "Money" means a medium of exchange currently authorized or adopted by a domestic or foreign government. The term includes a monetary unit of account established by an intergovernmental organization or by agreement between two or more countries.
  - (25) "Organization" means a person other than an individual.
- (26) "Party," as distinguished from "third party," means a person that has engaged in a transaction or made an agreement subject to the uniform commercial code.
- (27) "Person" means an individual, corporation, business trust, estate, trust, partnership, limited liability company, association, joint venture, government, governmental subdivision, agency, or instrumentality, public corporation, or any other legal or commercial entity, or any series of any of the foregoing.
- (28) "Present value" means the amount as of a date certain of one or more sums payable in the future, discounted to the date certain by use of either an interest rate specified by the parties if that rate is not manifestly unreasonable at the time the transaction is entered into or, if an interest rate is not so specified, a commercially reasonable rate that takes into account the facts and circumstances at the time the transaction is entered into.
- (29) "Purchase" means taking by sale, lease, discount, negotiation, mortgage, pledge, lien, security interest, issue or reissue, gift, or any other voluntary transaction creating an interest in property.
  - (30) "Purchaser" means a person that takes by purchase.
- (31) "Record" means information that is inscribed on a tangible medium or that is stored in an electronic or other medium and is retrievable in perceivable form.
- (32) "Remedy" means any remedial right to which an aggrieved party is entitled with or without resort to a tribunal.
- (33) "Representative" means a person empowered to act for another, including an agent, an officer of a corporation or association, and a trustee, executor, or administrator of an estate.
  - (34) "Right" includes remedy.
- (35) "Security interest" means an interest in personal property or fixtures which secures payment or performance of an obligation. "Security interest" includes any interest of a consignor and a buyer of accounts, chattel paper, a payment intangible, or a promissory note in a transaction that is subject to article 9 of chapter 84 of the Kansas

Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto. "Security interest" does not include the special property interest of a buyer of goods on identification of those goods to a contract for sale under K.S.A. 84-2-401 and amendments thereto, but a buyer may also acquire a "security interest" by complying with article 9 of chapter 84 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto. Except as otherwise provided in K.S.A. 84-2-505, and amendments thereto, the right of a seller or lessor of goods under article 2 or 2a of chapter 84 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, to retain or acquire possession of the goods is not a "security interest," but a seller or lessor may also acquire a "security interest" by complying with article 9 of chapter 84 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto. The retention or reservation of title by a seller of goods notwithstanding shipment or delivery to the buyer under K.S.A. 84-2-401, and amendments thereto, is limited in effect to a reservation of a "security interest." Whether a transaction in the form of a lease creates a "security interest" is determined pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-1-203, and amendments thereto.

- (36) "Send" in connection with a writing, record, or notice means:
- (A) To deposit in the mail or deliver for transmission by any other usual means of communication with postage or cost of transmission provided for and properly addressed and, in the case of an instrument, to an address specified thereon or otherwise agreed, or if there be none to any address reasonable under the circumstances; or
- (B) in any other way to cause to be received any record or notice within the time it would have arrived if properly sent.
- (37) "Signed" includes using any symbol executed or adopted with present intention to adopt or accept a writing.
- (38) "State" means a state of the United States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the United States Virgin Islands, or any territory or insular possession subject to the jurisdiction of the United States.
  - (39) "Surety" includes a guarantor or other secondary obligor.
  - (40) "Term" means a portion of an agreement that relates to a particular matter.
- (41) "Unauthorized signature" means a signature made without actual, implied, or apparent authority. The term includes a forgery.
- (42) "Warehouse receipt" means a document of title issued by a person engaged in the business of storing goods for hire.
- (43) "Writing" includes printing, typewriting, or any other intentional reduction to tangible form. "Written" has a corresponding meaning.
- Sec. 56. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-9-102 is hereby amended to read as follows: 84-9-102. (a) **Article 9 definitions.** In this article:
- (1) "Accession" means goods that are physically united with other goods in such a manner that the identity of the original goods is not lost.
- (2) "Account," except as used in "account for," means a right to payment of a monetary obligation, whether or not earned by performance, (A) for property that has been or is to be sold, leased, licensed, assigned, or otherwise disposed of, (B) for services rendered or to be rendered, (C) for a policy of insurance issued or to be issued, (D) for a secondary obligation incurred or to be incurred, (E) for energy provided or to be provided, (F) for the use or hire of a vessel under a charter or other contract, (G) arising out of the use of a credit or charge card or information contained on or for use with the card, or (H) as winnings in a lottery or other game of chance operated or

sponsored by a state, governmental unit of a state, or person licensed or authorized to operate the game by a state or governmental unit of a state. The term includes health-care-insurance receivables. The term does not include: (A) rights to payment evidenced by chattel paper or an instrument, (B) commercial tort claims, (C) deposit accounts, (D) investment property, (E) letter-of-credit rights or letters of credit, or (F) rights to payment for money or funds advanced or sold, other than rights arising out of the use of a credit or charge card or information contained on or for use with the card.

- (3) "Account debtor" means a person obligated on an account, chattel paper, or general intangible. The term does not include persons obligated to pay a negotiable instrument, even if the instrument constitutes part of chattel paper.
  - (4) "Accounting," except as used in "accounting for," means a record:
  - (A) Authenticated by a secured party;
- (B) indicating the aggregate unpaid secured obligations as of a date not more than 35 days earlier or 35 days later than the date of the record; and
  - (C) identifying the components of the obligations in reasonable detail.
- (5) "Agricultural lien" means an interest, other than a security interest, in farm products: (A) Which secures payment or performance of an obligation for:
  - (i) Goods or services furnished in connection with a debtor's farming operation; or
- (ii) rent on real property leased by a debtor in connection with its farming operation;
  - (B) which is created by statute in favor of a person that:
- (i) In the ordinary course of its business furnished goods or services to a debtor in connection with a debtor's farming operation; or
- (ii) leased real property to a debtor in connection with the debtor's farming operation; and
- (C) whose effectiveness does not depend on the person's possession of the personal property. Agricultural liens shall not include statutory liens.
- (6) "As-extracted collateral" means: (A) Oil, gas, or other minerals that are subject to a security interest that:
  - (i) Is created by a debtor having an interest in the minerals before extraction; and
  - (ii) attaches to the minerals as extracted; or
- (B) accounts arising out of the sale at the wellhead or minehead of oil, gas, or other minerals in which the debtor had an interest before extraction.
  - (7) "Authenticate" means:
  - (A) To sign; or
- (B) with present intent to adopt or accept a record, to attach to or logically associate with the record an electronic sound, symbol or process.
- (8) "Bank" means an organization that is engaged in the business of banking. The term includes savings banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions, and trust companies.
- (9) "Cash proceeds" means proceeds that are money, checks, deposit accounts, or the like.
- (10) "Certificate of title" means a certificate of title with respect to which a statute provides for the security interest in question to be indicated on the certificate as a condition or result of the security interest's obtaining priority over the rights of a lien creditor with respect to the collateral. The term includes another record maintained as an alternative to a certificate of title by the governmental unit that issues certificates of

title if a statute permits the security interest in question to be indicated on the record as a condition or result of the security interest's obtaining priority over the rights of a lien creditor with respect to the collateral.

- (11) "Chattel paper" means a record or records that evidence both a monetary obligation and a security interest in specific goods, a security interest in specific goods and software used in the goods, a security interest in specific goods and license of software used in the goods, a lease of specific goods, or a lease of specific goods and license of software used in the goods. In this subsection, "monetary obligation" means a monetary obligation secured by the goods or owed under a lease of the goods and includes a monetary obligation with respect to software used in the goods. The term does not include (i) charters or other contracts involving the use or hire of a vessel or (ii) records that evidence a right to payment arising out of the use of a credit or charge card or information contained on or for use with the card. If a transaction is evidenced by records that include an instrument or series of instruments, the group of records taken together constitutes chattel paper.
- (12) "Collateral" means the property subject to a security interest or agricultural lien. The term includes:
  - (A) Proceeds to which a security interest attaches;
- (B) accounts, chattel paper, payment intangibles, and promissory notes that have been sold; and
  - (C) goods that are the subject of a consignment.
  - (13) "Commercial tort claim" means a claim arising in tort with respect to which:
  - (A) The claimant is an organization; or
  - (B) the claimant is an individual and the claim:
  - (i) Arose in the course of the claimant's business or profession; and
- (ii) does not include damages arising out of personal injury to or the death of an individual.
- (14) "Commodity account" means an account maintained by a commodity intermediary in which a commodity contract is carried for a commodity customer.
- (15) "Commodity contract" means a commodity futures contract, an option on a commodity futures contract, a commodity option, or another contract if the contract or option is:
- (A) Traded on or subject to the rules of a board of trade that has been designated as a contract market for such a contract pursuant to federal commodities laws; or
- (B) traded on a foreign commodity board of trade, exchange, or market, and is carried on the books of a commodity intermediary for a commodity customer.
- (16) "Commodity customer" means a person for which a commodity intermediary carries a commodity contract on its books.
  - (17) "Commodity intermediary" means a person that:
- (A) Is registered as a futures commission merchant under federal commodities law; or
- (B) in the ordinary course of its business provides clearance or settlement services for a board of trade that has been designated as a contract market pursuant to federal commodities law.
  - (18) "Communicate" means:
  - (A) To send a written or other tangible record;
  - (B) to transmit a record by any means agreed upon by the persons sending and

receiving the record; or

- (C) in the case of transmission of a record to or by a filing office, to transmit a record by any means prescribed by filing-office rule.
  - (19) "Consignee" means a merchant to which goods are delivered in a consignment.
- (20) "Consignment" means a transaction, regardless of its form, in which a person delivers goods to a merchant for the purpose of sale and: (A) The merchant:
- (i) Deals in goods of that kind under a name other than the name of the person making delivery;
  - (ii) is not an auctioneer; and
- (iii) is not generally known by its creditors to be substantially engaged in selling the goods of others;
- (B) with respect to each delivery, the aggregate value of the goods is \$1,000 or more at the time of delivery;
  - (C) the goods are not consumer goods immediately before delivery; and
  - (D) the transaction does not create a security interest that secures an obligation.
- (21) "Consignor" means a person that delivers goods to a consignee in a consignment.
  - (22) "Consumer debtor" means a debtor in a consumer transaction.
- (23) "Consumer goods" means goods that are used or bought for use primarily for personal, family, or household purposes.
  - (24) "Consumer-goods transaction" means a consumer transaction in which:
- (A) An individual incurs an obligation primarily for personal, family, or household purposes; and
  - (B) a security interest in consumer goods secures the obligation.
- (25) "Consumer obligor" means an obligor who is an individual and who incurred the obligation as part of a transaction entered into primarily for personal, family, or household purposes.
- (26) "Consumer transaction" means a transaction in which—(i)\_(A) an individual incurs an obligation primarily for personal, family, or household purposes,—(ii)\_(B) a security interest secures the obligation, and—(iii)\_(C) the collateral is held or acquired primarily for personal, family, or household purposes. The term includes consumergoods transactions.
- (27) "Continuation statement" means an amendment of a financing statement which:
- (A) Identifies, by its file number, the initial financing statement to which it relates; and
- (B) indicates that it is a continuation statement for, or that it is filed to continue the effectiveness of, the identified financing statement.
  - (28) "Debtor" means:
- (A) A person having an interest, other than a security interest or other lien, in the collateral, whether or not the person is an obligor;
  - (B) a seller of accounts, chattel paper, payment intangibles, or promissory notes; or
  - (C) a consignee.
- (29) "Deposit account" means a demand, time, savings, passbook, or similar account maintained with a bank. The term does not include investment property or accounts evidenced by an instrument.
  - (30) "Document" means a document of title or a receipt of the type described in

subsection (b) of K.S.A. 84-7-201(b), and amendments thereto.

- (31) "Electronic chattel paper" means chattel paper evidenced by a record or records consisting of information stored in an electronic medium.
- (32) "Encumbrance" means a right, other than an ownership interest, in real property. The term includes mortgages and other liens on real property.
- (33) "Equipment" means goods other than inventory, farm products, or consumer goods.
- (34) "Farm products" means goods, other than standing timber, with respect to which the debtor is engaged in a farming operation and which are: (A) Crops grown, growing, or to be grown, including:
  - (i) Crops produced on trees, vines, and bushes; and
  - (ii) aquatic goods produced in aquacultural operations;
- (B) livestock, born or unborn, including aquatic goods produced in aquacultural operations;
  - (C) supplies used or produced in a farming operation; or
  - (D) products of crops or livestock in their unmanufactured states.
- (35) "Farming operation" means raising, cultivating, propagating, fattening, grazing, or any other farming, livestock, or aquacultural operation.
- (36) "File number" means the number assigned to an initial financing statement pursuant to-subsection (a) of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-9-519(a), and amendments thereto.
- (37) "Filing office" means an office designated in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-9-501, and amendments thereto, as the place to file a financing statement.
- (38) "Filing-office rule" means a rule adopted pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-9-526, and amendments thereto.
- (39) "Financing statement" means a record or records composed of an initial financing statement and any filed record relating to the initial financing statement.
- (40) "Fixture filing" means the filing of a financing statement covering goods that are or are to become fixtures and satisfying—subsections (a) and (b) of K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-9-502(a) and (b), and amendments thereto. The term includes the filing of a financing statement covering goods of a transmitting utility which are or are to become fixtures.
- (41) "Fixtures" means goods that have become so related to particular real property that an interest in them arises under real property law.
- (42) "General intangible" means any personal property, including things in action, other than accounts, chattel paper, commercial tort claims, deposit accounts, documents, goods, instruments, investment property, letter-of-credit rights, letters of credit, money, and oil, gas, or other minerals before extraction. The term includes payment intangibles and software.
  - (43) Reserved
- (44) "Goods" means all things that are movable when a security interest attaches. The term includes (A) fixtures, (B) standing timber that is to be cut and removed under a conveyance or contract for sale, (C) the unborn young of animals, (D) crops grown, growing, or to be grown, even if the crops are produced on trees, vines, or bushes, and (E) manufactured homes. The term also includes a computer program embedded in goods and any supporting information provided in connection with a transaction relating to the program if (A) the program is associated with the goods in such a manner that it customarily is considered part of the goods, or (B) by becoming the owner of the

goods, a person acquires a right to use the program in connection with the goods. The term does not include a computer program embedded in goods that consist solely of the medium in which the program is embedded. The term also does not include accounts, chattel paper, commercial tort claims, deposit accounts, documents, general intangibles, instruments, investment property, letter-of-credit rights, letters of credit, money, or oil, gas, or other minerals before extraction.

- (45) "Governmental unit" means a subdivision, agency, department, county, parish, municipality, or other unit of the government of the United States, a state, or a foreign country. The term includes an organization having a separate corporate existence if the organization is eligible to issue debt on which interest is exempt from income taxation under the laws of the United States.
- (46) "Health-care-insurance receivable" means an interest in or claim under a policy of insurance which is a right to payment of a monetary obligation for health-care goods or services provided.
- (47) "Instrument" means a negotiable instrument, a writing that would otherwise qualify as a certificate of deposit as defined by K.S.A. 84-3-104(j), and amendments thereto, but for the fact that the writing contains a limitation on transfer, or any other writing that evidences a right to the payment of a monetary obligation, is not itself a security agreement or lease, and is of a type that in ordinary course of business is transferred by delivery with any necessary indorsement or assignment. The term does not include (i) (A) investment property, (ii) (B) letters of credit, or (iii) (C) writings that evidence a right to payment arising out of the use of a credit or charge card or information contained on or for use with the card.
  - (48) "Inventory" means goods, other than farm products, which:
  - (A) Are leased by a person as lessor;
- (B) are held by a person for sale or lease or to be furnished under a contract of service;
  - (C) are furnished by a person under a contract of service; or
- (D) consist of raw materials, work in process, or materials used or consumed in a business.
- (49) "Investment property" means a security, whether certificated or uncertificated, security entitlement, securities account, commodity contract, or commodity account.
- (50) "Jurisdiction of organization," with respect to a registered organization, means the jurisdiction under whose law the organization is formed or organized.
- (51) "Letter-of-credit right" means a right to payment or performance under a letter of credit, whether or not the beneficiary has demanded or is at the time entitled to demand payment or performance. The term does not include the right of a beneficiary to demand payment or performance under a letter of credit.
  - (52) "Lien creditor" means:
- (A) A creditor that has acquired a lien on the property involved by attachment, levy, or the like:
  - (B) an assignee for benefit of creditors from the time of assignment;
  - (C) a trustee in bankruptcy from the date of the filing of the petition; or
  - (D) a receiver in equity from the time of appointment.
- (53) "Manufactured home" means a structure, transportable in one or more sections, which, in the traveling mode, is eight body feet or more in width or 40 body feet or more in length, or, when erected on site, is 320 or more square feet, and which is

built on a permanent chassis and designed to be used as a dwelling with or without a permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities, and includes the plumbing, heating, air conditioning, and electrical systems contained therein. The term includes any structure that meets all of the requirements of this paragraph except the size requirements and with respect to which the manufacturer voluntarily files a certification required by the United States secretary of housing and urban development and complies with the standards established under title 42 of the United States code.

- (54) "Manufactured-home transaction" means a secured transaction:
- (A) That creates a purchase-money security interest in a manufactured home, other than a manufactured home held as inventory; or
- (B) in which a manufactured home, other than a manufactured home held as inventory, is the primary collateral.
- (55) "Mortgage" means a consensual interest in real property, including fixtures, which secures payment or performance of an obligation.
- (56) "New debtor" means a person that becomes bound as a debtor under K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-9-203(d), and amendments thereto, by a security agreement previously entered into by another person.
- (57) "New value" means (A) money, (B) money's worth in property, services, or new credit, or (C) release by a transferee of an interest in property previously transferred to the transferee. The term does not include an obligation substituted for another obligation.
  - (58) "Noncash proceeds" means proceeds other than cash proceeds.
- (59) "Obligor" means a person that, with respect to an obligation secured by a security interest in or an agricultural lien on the collateral, (A) owes payment or other performance of the obligation, (B) has provided property other than the collateral to secure payment or other performance of the obligation, or (C) is otherwise accountable in whole or in part for payment or other performance of the obligation. The term does not include issuers or nominated persons under a letter of credit.
- (60) "Original debtor" except as used in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-9-310(c), and amendments thereto, means a person that, as debtor, entered into a security agreement to which a new debtor has become bound under K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-9-203(d), and amendments thereto.
- (61) "Payment intangible" means a general intangible under which the account debtor's principal obligation is a monetary obligation.
  - (62) "Person related to," with respect to an individual, means:
  - (A) The spouse of the individual:
  - (B) a brother, brother-in-law, sister or sister-in-law of the individual;
  - (C) an ancestor or lineal descendant of the individual or the individual's spouse; or
- (D) any other relative, by blood or marriage, of the individual or the individual's spouse who shares the same home with the individual.
  - (63) "Person related to," with respect to an organization, means:
- (A) A person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by or under common control with the organization;
- (B) an officer or director of, or a person performing similar functions with respect to, the organization;
- (C) an officer or director of, or a person performing similar functions with respect to, a person described in subparagraph (A);

- (D) the spouse of an individual described in subparagraph (A), (B) or (C); or
- (E) an individual who is related by blood or marriage to an individual described in subparagraph (A), (B), (C) or (D) and shares the same home with the individual.
- (64) "Proceeds" except as used in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-9-609(b), and amendments thereto, means the following property:
- (A) Whatever is acquired upon the sale, lease, license, exchange or other disposition of collateral;
  - (B) whatever is collected on, or distributed on account of, collateral;
  - (C) rights arising out of collateral;
- (D) to the extent of the value of collateral, claims arising out of the loss, nonconformity, or interference with the use of, defects or infringement of rights in, or damage to, the collateral; or
- (E) to the extent of the value of collateral and to the extent payable to the debtor or the secured party, insurance payable by reason of the loss or nonconformity of, defects or infringement of rights in, or damage to, the collateral.
- (65) "Promissory note" means an instrument that evidences a promise to pay a monetary obligation, does not evidence an order to pay, and does not contain an acknowledgment by a bank that the bank has received for deposit a sum of money or funds
- (66) "Proposal" means a record authenticated by a secured party which includes the terms on which the secured party is willing to accept collateral in full or partial satisfaction of the obligation it secures pursuant to K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-9-620, 84-9-621 and 84-9-622, and amendments thereto.
- (67) "Public organic record" means a record that is available to the public for inspection and is:
- (A) A record consisting of the record initially filed with or issued by a state or the United States to form or organize an organization and any record filed with or issued by the state or the United States which amends or restates the initial record;
- (B) an organic record of a business trust consisting of the record initially filed with a state and any record filed with the state which amends or restates the initial record, if a statute of the state governing business trusts requires that the record be filed with the state; or
- (C) a record consisting of legislation enacted by the legislature of a state or the congress of the United States which forms or organizes an organization, any record amending the legislation and any record filed with or issued by the state or the United States which amends or restates the name of the organization.
- (68) "Pursuant to commitment," with respect to an advance made or other value given by a secured party, means pursuant to the secured party's obligation, whether or not a subsequent event of default or other event not within the secured party's control has relieved or may relieve the secured party from its obligation.
- (69) "Record," except as used in "for record," "of record," "record or legal title," and "record owner," means information that is inscribed on a tangible medium or which is stored in an electronic or other medium and is retrievable in perceivable form.
- (70) "Registered organization" means an organization formed or organized solely under the law of a single state or the United States by the filing of a public organic record with, the issuance of a public organic record by, or the enactment of legislation by, the state or the United States. The term includes a business trust that is formed or

organized under the law of a single state if a law of the state governing business trusts requires that the business trust's organic record be filed with the state. The term also includes a series of a registered organization if the series is an organization formed or organized under the law of a single state and the statute of the state governing the series requires that the public organic record of the series be filed with the state.

- (71) "Secondary obligor" means an obligor to the extent that:
- (A) The obligor's obligation is secondary; or
- (B) the obligor has a right of recourse with respect to an obligation secured by collateral against the debtor, another obligor, or property of either.
  - (72) "Secured party" means:
- (A) A person in whose favor a security interest is created or provided for under a security agreement, whether or not any obligation to be secured is outstanding;
  - (B) a person that holds an agricultural lien;
  - (C) a consignor;
- (D) a person to which accounts, chattel paper, payment intangibles, or promissory notes have been sold:
- (E) a trustee, indenture trustee, agent, collateral agent, or other representative in whose favor a security interest or agricultural lien is created or provided for; or
- (F) a person that holds a security interest arising under K.S.A. 84-2-401, 84-2-505, 84-2-711(3), 84-2a-508(5), 84-4-210 and 84-5-118, and amendments thereto.
- (73) "Security agreement" means an agreement that creates or provides for a security interest.
  - (74) "Send," in connection with a record or notification, means:
- (A) To deposit in the mail, deliver for transmission, or transmit by any other usual means of communication, with postage or cost of transmission provided for, addressed to any address reasonable under the circumstances; or
- (B) to cause the record or notification to be received within the time that it would have been received if properly sent under subparagraph (A).
- (75) "Software" means a computer program and any supporting information provided in connection with a transaction relating to the program. The term does not include a computer program that is included in the definition of goods.
- (76) "State" means a state of the United States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the United States Virgin Islands or any territory or insular possession subject to the jurisdiction of the United States.
- (77) "Statutory lien" means liens created by K.S.A. 2-1319, 2-2608, 2-3007, 34-239, 47-836, 58-201, 58-203, 58-204, 58-207, 58-218, 58-220, 58-221, 58-241, 58-242, 58-2524, 58-2525, 58-2526, 58-2527 and 58-2528, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-7-209, and amendments thereto.
- (78) "Supporting obligation" means a letter-of-credit right or secondary obligation that supports the payment or performance of an account, chattel paper, a document, a general intangible, an instrument, or investment property.
- (79) "Tangible chattel paper" means chattel paper evidenced by a record or records consisting of information that is inscribed on a tangible medium.
  - (80) "Termination statement" means an amendment of a financing statement which:
- (A) Identifies, by its file number, the initial financing statement to which it relates; and
  - (B) indicates either that it is a termination statement or that the identified financing

and amendments thereto

statement is no longer effective.

- (81) "Transmitting utility" means a person primarily engaged in the business of:
- (A) Operating a railroad, subway, street railway, or trolley bus;
- (B) transmitting communications electrically, electromagnetically, or by light;
- (C) transmitting goods by pipeline or sewer; or
- (D) transmitting or producing and transmitting electricity, steam, gas, or water.
- (b) **Definitions in other articles.** The following definitions in other articles apply to this article:

"Applicant"	K.S.A. 84-5-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Beneficiary"	K.S.A. 84-5-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Broker"	K.S.A. 84-8-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Certificated security"	K.S.A. 84-8-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Check"	K.S.A. 84-3-104,
	and amendments thereto
"Clearing corporation"	K.S.A. 84-8-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Contract for sale"	K.S.A. 84-2-106,
	and amendments thereto
"Customer"	K.S.A. 84-4-104,
	and amendments thereto
"Entitlement holder"	K.S.A. 84-8-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Financial asset"	K.S.A. 84-8-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Holder in due course"	K.S.A. 84-3-302,
	and amendments thereto
"Issuer" (with respect to a letter	
of credit or letter-of-credit	
right)	K.S.A. 84-5-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Issuer" (with respect to	
a security)	K.S.A. 84-8-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Issuer" (with respect to	
documents of title)	K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 84-7-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Lease"	K.S.A. 84-2a-103,
	and amendments thereto
"Lease agreement"	K.S.A. 84-2a-103,

"Lease contract"	K.S.A. 84-2a-103,
	and amendments thereto
"Leasehold interest"	K.S.A. 84-2a-103,
	and amendments thereto
"Lessee"	K.S.A. 84-2a-103,
	and amendments thereto
"Lessee in ordinary	
course of business"	K.S.A. 84-2a-103,
	and amendments thereto
"Lessor"	K.S.A. 84-2a-103,
	and amendments thereto
"Lessor's residual interest"	K.S.A. 84-2a-103,
	and amendments thereto
"Letter of credit"	K.S.A. 84-5-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Merchant"	K.S.A. 84-2-104,
	and amendments thereto
"Negotiable instrument"	K.S.A. 84-3-104,
	and amendments thereto
"Nominated person"	K.S.A. 84-5-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Note"	K.S.A. 84-3-104,
	and amendments thereto
"Proceeds of a letter of credit"	K.S.A. 84-5-114,
	and amendments thereto
"Prove"	K.S.A. 84-3-103,
	and amendments thereto
"Sale"	K.S.A. 84-2-106,
	and amendments thereto
"Securities account"	K.S.A. 84-8-501,
	and amendments thereto
"Securities intermediary"	K.S.A. 84-8-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Security"	K.S.A. 84-8-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Security certificate"	K.S.A. 84-8-102,
	and amendments thereto
"Security entitlement"	K.S.A. 84-8-102,
	and amendments thereto

"Uncertificated security"

K.S.A. 84-8-102,

and amendments thereto

(c) Article 1 of chapter 84 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, definitions and principles. Article 1 of chapter 84 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, contains general definitions and principles of construction and interpretation applicable throughout this article.

Sec. 57. K.S.A. 17-2711, 56-1a151, 56a-101, 57-205, 57-206, 57-207, and K.S.A. 2018 Supp. 17-7675, as amended by section 17 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-7679, as amended by section 19 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-7680, as amended by section 21 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-76,136, as amended by section 36 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-76,139, as amended by section 38 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-76,143, as amended by section 39 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-76,146, as amended by section 41 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-7904, as amended by section 43 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-7918, as amended by section 46 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-7923, as amended by section 49 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, and 17-7933, as amended by section 49 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-6014, 17-76,136, 17-76,139, 17-76,143a, 17-76,146, 17-76,147, 17-78-601, 17-7910, 45-229, and 56a-1001 are hereby repealed.

Sec. 58. On and after July 1, 2022, K.S.A. 17-1513, 17-1618, 17-2037, 17-4677, 17-5902, 17-7507, 17-7509, 17-7511, 53-601, 56-1a605, 75-446 and 75-447 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-2036, 17-2718, 17-4634, 17-6014, as amended by section 10 of this act, 17-7002, 17-7503, 17-7504, 17-7505, 17-7506, 17-7510, 17-7512, 17-7675, 17-7679, 17-7680, 17-76,136, 17-76,139, as amended by section 25 of this act, 17-76,143, 17-76,146, as amended by section 29 of this act, 17-76,147, as amended by section 31 of this act, 17-7903, 17-7904, 17-7905, 17-7906, 17-7910, as amended by section 38 of this act, 17-7918, 17-7923, 17-7933, 17-7936, 56-1a606, 56-1a607, 56a-1201, 56a-1202, 56a-1203, 84-1-201 and 84-9-102 are hereby repealed.";

On page 41, in line 2, by striking "July 1, 2022, and";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, after "requirements" by inserting "; series of a limited liability company; certain business filing provisions and requirements; business name, electronic signature, addresses for partnerships; statutory citation revisions; blanket music licenses;"; also in line 2, by striking all after "amending" by striking all in lines 3 through 13; in line 14, by striking all before the period and inserting "K.S.A. 17-1513, 17-1618, 17-2037, 17-2711, 17-4677, 17-5902, 17-7509, 17-7511, 53-601, 56-1a151, 56-1a605, 56a-101 and 75-446 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-2036, 17-2718, 17-7504, 17-6014, as amended by section 10 of this act, 17-7002, 17-7503, 17-7504, 17-7505, 17-7506, 17-7510, 17-7512, 17-7675, 17-7679, 17-7680, 17-76,136, 17-76,146, 17-76,146 as amended by section 25 of this act, 17-76,147, 17-76,147, as amended by section 31 of this act, 17-78-601, 17-7903, 17-7904, 17-7905, 17-7906, 17-7910, 17-7910, as amended by section 38 of this act, 17-7918, 17-7923, 17-7933, 17-7936, 45-229, 56-1a606, 56-1a607, 56a-1001, 56a-1201, 56a-1202, 84-1-201 and 84-9-102 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 17-7507, 56a-1203, 57-

205, 57-206, 57-207, 75-447 and K.S.A. 2018 Supp. 17-7675, as amended by section 17 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-7679, as amended by section 19 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-7680, as amended by section 21 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-76,136, as amended by section 36 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-76,139, as amended by section 38 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-76,143, as amended by section 39 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-76,146, as amended by section 41 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-7918, as amended by section 43 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-7918, as amended by section 46 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 17-7933, as amended by section 49 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, and 17-7933, as amended by section 51 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, and 84-9-102, as amended by section 52 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, and 84-9-102, as amended by section 52 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, and 84-9-102, as amended by section 52 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, and 84-9-102, as amended by section 52 of chapter 47 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, and

and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on Judiciary recommends SB 427 be passed.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **SB 262**, as amended by Senate Committee, be passed.

Committee on Taxation recommends SB 265 be passed.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **SB 125** be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 125," as follows:

"House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 125

## By Committee on Taxation

"AN ACT concerning property taxation; relating to payment of delinquent or nondelinquent taxes, providing for county treasurers to establish a payment plan, allowing county treasurers to waive interest and penalties for late tax payments; abatement of property taxes for agricultural improvement, public grain warehouse and commercial real property destroyed or substantially destroyed by natural disaster; amending K.S.A. 79-1613, 79-2024, 79-2302 and 79-2303 and repealing the existing sections."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(H Sub for SB 125 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **SB 235** be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 235," as follows:

"House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 235

## By Committee on Taxation

"AN ACT concerning state finances; relating to bonding authority; municipal interest rate limitations; short term no-fund warrant financing during emergency; development finance authority bond issuance; amending K.S.A. 74-8905and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 10-1009 and 10-1116a and repealing the existing sections."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(H Sub for SB 235 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **SB 266** be amended by substituting with a new bill to be designated as "House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 266," as follows:

"House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 266

## By Committee on Taxation

"AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to sales and compensating use taxes; requiring collection and remittance by marketplace facilitators; nexus; amending K.S.A. 79-3702 and repealing the existing section."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(H Sub for SB 266 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **SB 294**, as amended by Senate Committee of the Whole, CORRECTED, be amended on page 2, in line 30, by striking all before "rate" and inserting "revenue neutral";

On page 4, in line 20, by striking "2021" and inserting "2022"; in line 23, by striking "2021" and inserting "2022"; and the bill be passed as amended.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, pursuant to subsection (k) of Joint Rule 4 of the Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives, the rules were suspended for the purpose of considering HB 2054, HB 2510, HB 2702, HB 2160, HB 2246.

# MOTIONS TO CONCUR AND NONCONCUR

On motion of Rep. Patton, the House nonconcurred in Senate amendments to **S. Sub** for **HB 2054** and asked for a conference.

Speaker Ryckman thereupon appointed Reps. Patton, Ralph and Carmichael as conferees on the part of the House.

On motion of Rep. Waymaster, the House nonconcurred in Senate amendments to **HB 2510** and asked for a conference.

Speaker Ryckman thereupon appointed Reps. Waymaster, Hoffman and Wolfe Moore as conferees on the part of the House.

On motion of Rep. Tarwater, the House nonconcurred in Senate amendments to **HB 2702** and asked for a conference.

Speaker Ryckman thereupon appointed Reps. Tarwater, Corbet and Frownfelter as conferees on the part of the House.

The House stood at ease until the sound of the gavel
--

Speaker Ryckman called the House to order.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing passage of HB 2118, as amended by Senate Substitute for HB 2118. Announcing passage of HB 2137, as amended by Senate Substitute for HB 2137.

Announcing passage of HB 2466, as amended.

Announcing passage of HB 2619, as amended by Senate Substitute for HB 2619.

Announcing passage of HB 2585, as amended by Senate Substitute for HB 2585.

Announcing passage of Sub HB 2018, as amended by Senate Substitute for Substitute for HB 2018.

#### CHANGE OF CONFEREES

Reps. Waymaster, Hoffman, and Wolfe Moore are appointed to replace Reps. Proehl, Thimesch, and Helgerson as members of the conference committee on **HB 2246**.

Reps. Tarwater, Corbet, and Frownfelter are appointed to replace Reps. Waymaster, Hoffman, and Wolfe Moore as members of the conference committee on **HB 2510**.

Reps. Johnson, Mason, and Gartner are appointed to replace Reps. Tarwater, Corbet, and Frownfelter as members of the conference committee on **HB 2702**.

The House stood at ease until the sound of the gavel.

Speaker Ryckman called the House to order.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, pursuant to subsection (k) of Joint Rule 4 of the Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives, the rules were suspended for the purpose of considering HB 2466, HB 2137, HB 2585.

### MOTIONS TO CONCUR AND NONCONCUR

On motion of Rep. Johnson, the House nonconcurred in Senate amendments to **HB 2466** and asked for a conference.

Speaker Ryckman thereupon appointed Reps. Patton, Ralph and Carmichael as conferees on the part of the House.

On motion of Rep. Patton, the House concurred in Senate amendments to **S Sub HB 2137**, AN ACT concerning open records; relating to the open records act, exceptions to the disclosure of public records; legislative review of expiring sections, continuing such exceptions; eliminating a photograph record requirement in the scrap metal theft reduction act; amending K.S.A. 2018 Supp. 50-6,110, as amended by section 6 of chapter 66 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 9-1810, 40-223j, 45-229 and 50-6a11 and repealing the existing sections.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 121; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater,

Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Kuether, Mastroni, Moore.

On motion of Rep. Hoheisel, to concur in Senate amedments to **S Sub HB 2585**, Rep. Carmichael offered a substitute motion to non-concur and that a conference committee be appointed. The motion of Rep. Carmichael did not prevail.

The question reverted back to the motion of Rep. Hoheisel and the House concurred to Senate amendments to S Sub HB 2585, AN ACT concerning utilities; relating to the state corporation commission; approval of certain contract and reduced electric rates; approval of cost recovery from rate classes; report to the legislature; income taxation; exemption from income taxation, certain public utilities; income tax expenses, exclusion from retail electric rates; amending K.S.A. 79-32,113 and repealing the existing section.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 75; Nays 45; Present but not voting: 1; Absent or not voting: 3.

Yeas: Arnberger, Baker, Bergquist, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Neighbor, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Ward, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: Alcala, Amyx, Awerkamp, Ballard, Barker, Bishop, Blex, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Donohoe, Dove, Finney, French, Garber, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Karleskint, Lusk, Murnan, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Victors, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: Samsel.

Absent or not voting: Kuether, Mastroni, Moore.

#### EXPLANATION OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: I vote "Present" on **S Sub for HB 2585**. This bill now includes the content of **SB 339**, which I cannot support at present. In 2019, in **Substitute for SB 69**, the Legislature voted to spend over \$1 million on experts for the London Economics International (LEI) study.

Now, according to the Kansas Corporation Commission's opposition testimony dated March 10, 2020 and submitted to the House Committee on Energy, Utilities, and Telecommunications, we are NOT following the recommendations of the LEI study.

Our Committee did not get to hear from opponent or neutral conferees, nor did we have the opportunity to work or vote on the bill. – Mark Samsel

The House stood at ease until the sound of the gavel.

Speaker pro tem Finch called the House to order.

### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The Senate announced the appointment of Senators McGinn, Billinger, and Hawk as conferees on HB 2246

The Senate accedes to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2702** and has appointed Senators Tyson, Kerschen and Holland as conferees on the part of the Senate.

The Senate accedes to the request of the House for a conference on HB 2510 and has appointed Senators Baumgardner, Alley and Sykes as conferees on the part of the Senate.

The Senate accedes to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2054** and has appointed Senators Wilborn, Rucker and Miller as conferees on the part of the Senate.

The Senate accedes to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2466** and has appointed Senators Wilborn, Rucker and Miller as conferees on the part of the Senate.

The Senate adopts the Conference Committee report to agree to disagree on **HB 2054**, and has appointed Senators Wilborn, Rucker and Miller as Second conferees on the part of the Senate.

The Senate adopts the Conference Committee report to agree to disagree on **HB 2702**, and has appointed Senators Tyson, Kerschen and Holland as Second conferees on the part of the Senate.

#### CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MR. SPEAKER and MADAM PRESIDENT: Your committee on conference on Senate amendments to **HB 2054** submits the following report:

Your committee on conference agrees to disagree and recommends that a new conference committee be appointed;

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

RICHARD WILBORN
ERIC RUCKER
Conferees on part of Senate

Fred Patton
Bradley Ralph
John Carmichael
Conferees on part of House

On motion of Rep. Patton the conference committee report on HB 2054 to agree to disagree, was adopted.

Speaker pro tem Finch thereupon appointed Reps. Patton, Ralph and Ward as second conferees on the part of the House.

## CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MR. SPEAKER and MADAM PRESIDENT: Your committee on conference on Senate amendments to **HB 2702** submits the following report:

Your committee on conference agrees to disagree and recommends that a new

conference committee be appointed;

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

Caryn Tyson Dan Kerschen Conferees on part of Senate

Steven Johnson Les Mason Conferees on part of House

On motion of Rep. Johnson the conference committee report on **HB 2702** to agree to disagree, was adopted.

Speaker pro tem Finch thereupon appointed Reps. Johnson, Mason and Gartner as second conferees on the part of the House.

# INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

Rep. Hawkins moved pursuant to House Rule 2311, House Rule 101 be suspended for the purpose of working between the hours of 12 midnight and 8 a.m. The motion prevailed.

# MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The Senate adopts the Conference Committee report on HB 2702.

Announcing passage of HB 2034, as amended by Senate Substitute for HB 2034.

### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, pursuant to subsection (k) of Joint Rule 4 of the Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives, the rules were suspended for the purpose of considering **HB 2034**, **HB 2619**.

## MOTIONS TO CONCUR AND NONCONCUR

On motion of Rep. Patton, the House concurred in Senate amendments to **S Sub for HB 2034**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to restitution; time of payment; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6604 and 21-6607 and repealing the existing sections.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 114; Nays 3; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 7.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Pittman, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton,

Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Bishop, Probst, Samsel. Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Finney, Frownfelter, Kuether, Mastroni, Moore, Phillips, Ruiz, L..

### EXPLANATION OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: I vote "no" on **HB 2034**. By delaying legislative business, we imperiled the constitutionality of today's bills. I have sworn to uphold the Kansas Constitution.

Article 2, Section 8 states that this "regular session" "shall not exceed ninety calendar days." Now past 12:00 A.M. on May 22, 2020, we're beyond that.

That time frame can be extended only "by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the members elected to each house." Art. 2, Sec. 8.

That never occurred. Perhaps SCR 1615 attempted it. But it lacks an *affirmative* two-thirds vote by the Senate. See Bill History.

Today's bills subject Kansans to expensive lawsuits. I vote NO. - MARK SAMSEL

On motion of Rep. Kelly, the House concurred in Senate amendments to **S Sub for HB 2619**, AN ACT concerning financial institutions; enacting the Kansas economic recovery loan deposit program; relating to credit unions, field of membership; banks, trust companies and savings and loan institutions, privilege tax, deduction of net interest received from certain agricultural real estate loans and single family residence loans; amending K.S.A. 75-4237 and 79-1109 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-2205 and repealing the existing sections.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 114; Nays 3; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 7.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Helgerson, Lusk, Samsel.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Finney, Frownfelter, Kuether, Mastroni, Moore, Phillips, Ruiz, L..

## CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MR. SPEAKER and MADAM PRESIDENT: Your committee on conference on Senate amendments to **HB 2702** submits the following report:

The House accedes to all Senate amendments to the bill, and your committee on conference further agrees to amend the bill as printed with Senate Committee amendments, as follows:

On page 1, by striking all in lines 7 through 36;

By striking all on pages 2 through 4;

On page 5, by striking all in lines 1 through 28; following line 28, by inserting:

"New Section 1. The provisions of sections 1 through 6, and amendments thereto, shall be known and may be cited as the Kansas taxpayer protection act.

New Sec. 2. As used in this act:

- (a) (1) "Paid tax return preparer" means any person who prepares or substantially prepares for compensation, or who employs one or more persons who prepare or substantially prepare for compensation, any income tax return or claim for refund, required to be filed pursuant to K.S.A. 79-3201 et seq., and amendments thereto.
  - (2) "Paid tax return preparer" does not include the following:
- (A) An individual licensed as a certified public accountant in this state under K.S.A. 1-302b or 1-322, and amendments thereto:
- (B) an individual licensed as a certified public accountant in another licensing jurisdiction and practicing in this state under K.S.A. 1-302b or 1-322, and amendments thereto: or
- (C) an individual employed by a firm licensed in this state under K.S.A. 1-308, and amendments thereto, and preparing a return under the supervision of an individual described in subparagraph (A) or (B).
  - (b) "Secretary" means secretary of the Kansas department of revenue.
- New Sec. 3. (a) On and after January 1, 2021, any income tax return or claim for refund prepared or substantially prepared by a paid tax return preparer shall be signed by the paid tax return preparer and shall bear the paid tax return preparer's federal internal revenue service preparer tax identification number. Any paid tax return preparer who fails to sign the income tax return or claim for refund or who fails to provide the preparer's federal internal revenue service preparer tax identification number shall pay a civil penalty of \$50 for each such failure to the Kansas department of revenue, unless it can be shown that the failure was due to reasonable cause and not willful or reckless conduct. The penalty imposed on any paid tax return preparer with respect to returns or claims for refund filed during any calendar year shall not exceed \$25,000 per paid tax return preparer.
- (b) The penalty shall be imposed pursuant to this section upon the written order of the secretary or the secretary's designee to the paid tax return preparer who committed the violation. Such order shall state the violation, the penalty to be imposed and the right of the paid tax return preparer to appeal the order. Such order shall be subject to appeal and review in the manner provided by the Kansas administrative procedure act.
- (c) Any penalty collected pursuant to this section shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the state general fund.

- New Sec. 4. (a) The secretary or the secretary's designee is hereby authorized to enjoin any person from engaging in conduct described in subsection (b) or from further action as a paid tax return preparer under the provisions of the Kansas taxpayer protection act who is found to be in violation of this act. The secretary or the secretary's designee shall be entitled in any proceeding brought for such purpose to have an order restraining such person from engaging in conduct in violation of the provisions of this act. No bond shall be required for any such restraining order or for any temporary or permanent injunction issued in such proceedings. The secretary may commence suit in a court of competent jurisdiction to enjoin any paid tax return preparer from further engaging in any conduct described in subsection (b) or from further action as a paid tax return preparer in this state. The secretary may request the assistance of the attorney general or the attorney general's duly authorized designee to enforce provisions of this section.
- (b) In an action pursuant to subsection (a), the court may enjoin the paid tax return preparer from further engaging in any conduct described in this subsection, if the court finds that injunctive relief is appropriate to prevent the occurrence of such conduct. The court may issue an injunction when the paid tax return preparer has engaged in any of the following conduct:
- (1) Prepared any income tax return or claim for refund that includes an understatement of a taxpayer's liability due to an unreasonable position. As used in this subsection, "unreasonable position" means the same as defined by section 6694(a)(2) of the federal internal revenue code:
- (2) prepared any income tax return or claim for refund that includes an understatement of a taxpayer's liability due to the paid tax return preparer's willful or reckless conduct. As used in this subsection, "willful or reckless conduct" means the same as defined by section 6694(b)(2) of the federal internal revenue code;
  - (3) where required, failed to do any of the following:
  - (A) Furnish a copy of the income tax return or claim for refund;
  - (B) sign the income tax return or claim for refund;
  - (C) furnish an identifying number;
  - (D) retain a copy of the income tax return or claim for refund; or
  - (E) be diligent in determining eligibility for tax benefits;
- (4) negotiated a check issued to the taxpayer by the department of revenue without the permission of the taxpayer;
- (5) engaged in any conduct subject to any criminal penalty provided for in chapter 79 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto;
- (6) misrepresented the paid tax return preparer's eligibility to practice before the department of revenue or otherwise misrepresented the paid tax return preparer's experience or education;
- (7) guaranteed the payment of any income tax refund or the allowance of any income tax credit; or
- (8) engaged in any other fraudulent or deceptive conduct that substantially interferes with the proper administration of the tax laws of the state of Kansas.
- (c) If the court finds that a paid tax return preparer has continually or repeatedly engaged in any conduct described in subsection (b) and that an injunction prohibiting the conduct would not be sufficient to prevent the person's interference with the proper administration of the tax laws of the state of Kansas, the court may enjoin the person

from acting as a paid tax return preparer in the state of Kansas. The fact that the person has been enjoined from preparing tax returns or claims for refund for the United States or any other state in the five years preceding the petition for an injunction shall establish a prima facie case for an injunction to be issued pursuant to this section. For purposes of this subsection, "state" means a state of the United States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the United States Virgin Islands or any territory or insular possession subject to the jurisdiction of the United States.

- (d) The secretary or the secretary's designee shall annually report a summary of the secretary's enjoinment actions on the department of revenue's website.
- New Sec. 5. (a) Preparation or substantial preparation of any income tax return or claim for refund filed pursuant to K.S.A. 79-3201 et seq., and amendments thereto, by a paid tax return preparer, whether or not a resident or citizen of this state, thereby submits the preparer to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state as to any cause of action arising from the provisions of this act.
- (b) Every action pursuant to this act shall be brought in the district court of Shawnee county.
- (c) In lieu of initiating or continuing an action or proceeding, the secretary or the secretary's designee may accept a consent judgment with respect to any act or practice declared to be a violation of this act. A consent judgment shall provide for the discontinuance by the paid tax return preparer entering the same of any act or practice declared to be a violation of this act. Any consent judgment entered into pursuant to this section shall not be deemed to admit the violation, unless it does so by its terms. Before any consent judgment entered into pursuant to this section shall be effective, it shall be approved by the district court and an entry made in the manner required for making an entry of judgment. Once such approval is received, any breach of the conditions of such consent judgment shall be treated as a violation of a court order and shall be subject to all the penalties provided by law.
- New Sec. 6. The secretary may adopt rules and regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of the Kansas taxpayer protection act.
- Sec. 7. K.S.A. 79-1110 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-1110. (a) Every national banking association, bank, trust company, and savings and loan association subject to taxation under this act shall make its return and pay the tax imposed to the director of taxation on or before the 15th day of the fourth month following the close of its federal taxable year, in the same manner, except for computing the net income subject to tax, as corporations are required to make their returns and pay their taxes under the Kansas income tax act. Every such national banking association, bank, trust company and savings and loan association shall be subject to other provisions of the Kansas income tax act applicable to other corporations and shall be subject to the penalties imposed on corporations by K.S.A. 79-3222, 79-3228 and 79-3234 insofar as the same can be made applicable.
- (b) With respect to tax year 2019, the deadline for filing returns shall be extended to July 15, 2020, for returns with original due dates of April 15, 2020, through July 15, 2020. With respect to tax year 2019, no penalty or interest authorized pursuant to K.S.A. 79-3228, and amendments thereto, shall be imposed if such tax liability is paid on or before July 15, 2020.
- Sec. 8. K.S.A. 79-3221 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-3221. (a) All returns required by this act shall be made as nearly as practical in the same form as the

- corresponding form of income tax return by the United States. Unless another identifying number has been assigned to an individual by the internal revenue service for purposes of filing such individual's federal income tax return, the social security number issued to an individual, the individual's spouse, and all dependents of such individual for purposes of section 205 (c)(2)(A) of the social security act shall be used as the identifying number and included on the return when filing such return.
- (b) All returns shall be filed in the office of the director of taxation on or before the 15th day of the fourth month following the close of the taxable year, except as provided in subsection (c)—hereof. Tentative returns may be filed before the close of the taxable year and the estimated tax computed on such return, paid, but no interest will be paid on any overpayment of tax liability, computed on such tentative return.
- (c) (1) The director of taxation may grant a reasonable extension of time for filing returns in accordance with rules and regulations of the secretary of revenue. Whenever any such extension of time to file is requested by a taxpayer and granted by the director with respect to any tax year commencing after December 31, 1992, no penalty authorized by K.S.A. 79-3228, and amendments thereto, shall be imposed if 90% of the liability is paid on or before the original due date.
- (2) With respect to tax year 2019, the deadline for filing returns shall be extended to July 15, 2020, for returns with original due dates of April 15, 2020, through July 15, 2020. With respect to tax year 2019, no penalty or interest authorized pursuant to K.S.A. 79-3228, and amendments thereto, shall be imposed if such tax liability is paid on or before July 15, 2020.
- (d) In the case of an individual serving in the armed forces of the United States, or serving in support of such armed forces, in an area designated by the president of the United States by executive order as a "combat zone" as defined under 26 U.S.C. § 112 at any time during the period designated by the president by executive order as the period of combatant activities in such zone for the purposes of such section, or hospitalized as a result of injury received or sickness incurred while serving in such an area during such time, the period of service in such area, plus the period of continuous qualified hospitalization attributable to such injury or sickness, and the next 180 days thereafter, shall be disregarded in determining, under article 32 of chapter 79 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, in respect to any tax liability, including any interest, penalty, additional amount, or addition to the tax, of such individual:
- (1) Whether any of the following acts was performed within the time prescribed therefor: (A) Filing any return of income tax; (B) payment of any income tax or installment thereof; (C) filing a notice of appeal with the director of taxation or the state board of tax appeals for redetermination of a deficiency or for a review of a decision rendered by either the director or the state board of tax appeals; (D) allowance of a credit or refund of any income tax; (E) filing a claim for credit or refund of any income tax; (F) bringing suit upon any such claim for credit or refund; (G) assessment of any income tax; (H) giving or making any notice or demand for the payment of any income tax, or with respect to any liability to the state of Kansas in respect of any income tax; (I) collection, by the director of taxation or the director's agent, by warrant, levy or otherwise, of the amount of any liability in respect to any income tax; (J) bringing suit by the state of Kansas, or any officer on its behalf, in respect to any liability in respect of any income tax; and (K) any other act required or permitted under the Kansas income

tax act specified in rules and regulations adopted by the secretary of revenue under this section:

- (2) the amount of any credit or refund.
- (e) (1) Subsection (d) shall not apply for purposes of determining the amount of interest on any overpayment of tax.
- (2) If an individual is entitled to the benefits of subsection (d) with respect to any return and such return is timely filed, determined after the application of subsection (d), subsections (e)(5) and (e)(7) of K.S.A. 79-32,105(d), (e)(5) and (e)(7), and amendments thereto, shall not apply.
- (f) The provisions of subsections (d) through (j) shall apply to the spouse of any individual entitled to the benefits of subsection (d). Except in the case of the combat zone designated for purposes of the Vietnam conflict, this subsection shall not cause subsections (d) through (j) to apply for any spouse for any taxable year beginning more than two years after the date designated under 26 U.S.C. § 112, and amendments thereto, as the date of termination of combatant activities in a combat zone.
- (g) The period of service in the area referred to in subsection (d) shall include the period during which an individual entitled to benefits under subsection (d) is in a missing status, within the meaning of 26 U.S.C. § 6013(f)(3).
- (h) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (d), any action or proceeding authorized by K.S.A. 79-3229, and amendments thereto, as well as any other action or proceeding authorized by law in connection therewith, may be taken, begun or prosecuted. In any other case in which the secretary determines that collection of the amount of any assessment would be jeopardized by delay, the provisions of subsection (d) shall not operate to stay collection of such amount by levy or otherwise as authorized by law. There shall be excluded from any amount assessed or collected pursuant to this subsection the amount of interest, penalty, additional amount, and addition to the tax, if any, in respect of the period disregarded under subsection (d). In any case to which this subsections subsection relates, if the secretary is required to give any notice to or make any demand upon any person, such requirement shall be deemed to be satisfied if the notice or demand is prepared and signed, in any case in which the address of such person last known to the secretary is in an area for which United States post offices under instructions of the postmaster general are not, by reason of the combatant activities, accepting mail for delivery at the time the notice or demand is signed. In such case the notice or demand shall be deemed to have been given or made upon the date it is signed.
- (2) The assessment or collection of any tax under the provisions of article 32 of chapter 79 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, or any action or proceeding by or on behalf of the state in connection therewith, may be made, taken, begun or prosecuted in accordance with law, without regard to the provisions of subsection (d), unless prior to such assessment, collection, action or proceeding it is ascertained that the person concerned is entitled to the benefits of subsection (d).
- (i) (1) Any individual who performed Desert Shield services, and the spouse of such individual, shall be entitled to the benefits of subsections (d) through (j) in the same manner as if such services were services referred to in subsection (d).
- (2) For purposes of this subsection, the term "Desert Shield services" means any services in the armed forces of the United States or in support of such armed forces if:
  - (A) Such services are performed in the area designated by the president as the

"Persian Gulf Desert Shield area": and

- (B) such services are performed during the period beginning on August 2, 1990, and ending on the date on which any portion of the area referred to in subsection (i)(2) (A) is designated by the president as a combat zone pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 112.
  - (j) For purposes of subsection (d), the term "qualified hospitalization" means:
  - (1) Any hospitalization outside the United States; and
- (2) any hospitalization inside the United States, except that not more than five years of hospitalization may be taken into account under this subsection. This subsection shall not apply for purposes of applying subsections (d) through (j) with respect to the spouse of an individual entitled to the benefits of subsection (d).
- Sec. 9. K.S.A. 79-3225 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-3225. (a) All taxes imposed under the provisions of the "Kansas income tax act" shall be paid on the 15<sup>th</sup> day of the fourth month following the close of the taxable year, except with respect to tax year 2019, such taxes shall be paid on or before July 15, 2020, if the return was due on or before July 15, 2020. When the tax as shown to be due on a return is less than \$5, such tax shall be canceled and no payment need be remitted by the taxpayer.
- (b) The director of taxation may extend the time for payment of the tax, or any installment thereof, for a reasonable period of time not to exceed six months from the date fixed for payment thereof. Such extension may exceed six months in the case of a taxpayer who is abroad. Interest shall be charged at the rate prescribed by K.S.A. 79-2968(a) and amendments thereto for the period of such extension.
- New Sec. 10. (a) On or before June 15 each year, the county clerk shall calculate the revenue neutral rate for each taxing subdivision and include such revenue neutral rate on the notice of the estimated assessed valuation provided to each taxing subdivision for budget purposes. The director of accounts and reports shall modify the prescribed budget information form to show the revenue neutral rate.
- (b) No tax rate in excess of the revenue neutral rate shall be levied by the governing body of any taxing subdivision unless a resolution or ordinance has been approved by the governing body according to the following procedure:
- (1) The governing body shall publish notice of its proposed intent to exceed the revenue neutral rate on the website of the governing body, if the governing body maintains a website, at least 10 days in advance of the public hearing. The notice shall include, but not be limited to, its proposed tax rate, its revenue neutral rate and the date, time and location of the public hearing.
- (2) On or before July 15, the governing body shall notify the county clerk of its proposed intent to exceed the revenue neutral rate and provide the date, time and location of the public hearing and its proposed tax rate. The county clerk shall notify each taxpayer with property in the taxing subdivision, by mail directed to the taxpayer's last known address, of the proposed intent to exceed the revenue neutral rate at least 10 days in advance of the public hearing. Alternatively, the county clerk may transmit the notice to the taxpayer by electronic means at least 10 days in advance of the public hearing, if such taxpayer and county clerk have consented in writing to service by electronic means. Costs associated with the notice shall be borne by the taxing subdivision with payment due to the county clerk by December 31. The county clerk shall consolidate the required information for all taxing subdivisions relevant to the taxpayer's property on one notice. The notice shall include, but not be limited to:
  - (A) The revenue neutral rate;

- (B) the proposed property tax revenue needed to fund the proposed budget;
- (C) the proposed tax rate based upon the proposed budget and the current year's total assessed valuation;
- (D) the tax rate and property tax of the taxing subdivision on the taxpayer's property from the previous year's tax statement;
- (E) the proposed percent change in the tax rate between the previous year's tax rate and the proposed tax rate for the current year;
- (F) the appraised value and assessed value of the taxpayer's property for the current year;
- (G) the estimates of the tax for the current tax year on the taxpayer's property based on the revenue neutral rate and the proposed tax rate; and
  - (H) the date, time and location of the public hearing.
- (3) The public hearing to consider exceeding the revenue neutral rate shall be held on or before September 10. The governing body shall provide interested taxpayers desiring to be heard an opportunity to present oral testimony within reasonable time limits and without unreasonable restriction on the number of individuals allowed to make public comment. The public hearing may be conducted in conjunction with the proposed budget hearing pursuant to K.S.A. 79-2929, and amendments thereto, if the governing body otherwise complies with all requirements of this section.
- (4) A majority vote of the governing body, by the adoption of a resolution or ordinance to approve exceeding the revenue neutral rate, shall be required prior to adoption of a proposed budget that will result in a tax rate in excess of the revenue neutral rate. Such vote of the governing body shall be conducted at the public hearing after the governing body has heard from interested taxpayers.
- (c) Any governing body subject to the provisions of this section that does not comply with subsection (b) shall refund to taxpayers any property taxes over-collected based on the amount of the levy that was in excess of the revenue neutral rate. The provisions of this subsection shall not be construed as prohibiting any other remedies available under the law.
- (d) The provisions of this section shall not apply to school districts organized and operating under the laws of this state.
- (e) If the governing body of a taxing subdivision must conduct a public hearing to approve exceeding the revenue neutral rate under this section, the governing body of the taxing subdivision shall certify, on or before September 20, to the proper county clerk the amount of ad valorem tax to be levied.
  - (f) As used in this section:
- (1) "Taxing subdivision" means any political subdivision of the state that levies an ad valorem tax on property.
- (2) "Revenue neutral rate" means the tax rate for the current tax year that would generate the same property tax revenue as levied the previous tax year using the current tax year's total assessed valuation. To calculate the revenue neutral rate, the county clerk shall divide the property tax revenue for such taxing subdivision levied for the previous tax year by the total of all taxable assessed valuation in such taxing subdivision for the current tax year, and then multiply the quotient by 1,000 to express the rate in mills. The revenue neutral rate shall be expressed to the third decimal place.
- (g) The provisions of this section shall take effect and be in force from and after January 1, 2021.

- New Sec. 11. (a) Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, no interest shall accrue on any unpaid property tax for tax year 2019 pursuant to K.S.A. 79-2004 and 79-2004a, and amendments thereto, from May 10, 2020, through August 10, 2020, nor shall the unpaid tax for tax year 2019 be considered delinquent during this period.
- (b) With respect to any unpaid property tax for tax year 2019 due pursuant to K.S.A. 79-2004 and 79-2004a, and amendments thereto, the county shall waive any fees, expenses and costs relating to delinquent property tax collection procedures that the county charged to the taxpayer prior to August 11, 2020.
- (c) The county may refund, credit or retain any interest, fees, expenses or costs collected prior to the effective date of this act if the total amount collected is equal to or less than \$25 for each delinquent property.
- Sec. 12. K.S.A. 79-1460 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-1460. (a) The county appraiser shall notify each taxpayer in the county annually on or before March 1 for real property and May 1 for personal property, by mail directed to the taxpayer's last known address, of the classification and appraised valuation of the taxpayer's property, except that, the valuation for all real property shall not be increased unless the record of the latest physical inspection was reviewed by the county or district appraiser, and documentation exists to support such increase in valuation in compliance with the directives and specifications of the director of property valuation, and such record and documentation is available to the affected taxpaver. The valuation for all real property also shall not be increased solely as the result of normal repair, replacement or maintenance of existing structures, equipment or improvements on the property. For purposes of this section, "normal repair, replacement or maintenance" does not include new construction as defined in this section. For the next two taxable years following the taxable year that the valuation for commercial real property has been reduced due to a final determination made pursuant to the valuation appeals process, the county appraiser shall review the computer-assisted mass-appraisal of the property and if the valuation in either of those two years exceeds the value of the previous year by more than 5%, excluding new construction, change in use or change in classification, the county appraiser shall either: (1) Adjust the valuation of the property based on the information provided in the previous appeal; or (2) order an independent fee simple appraisal of the property to be performed by a Kansas certified real property appraiser. As used in this section, "new construction" means the construction of any new structure or improvements or the remodeling or renovation of any existing structures or improvements on real property. When the valuation for real property has been reduced due to a final determination made pursuant to the valuation appeals process for the prior year, and the county appraiser has already certified the appraisal rolls for the current year to the county clerk pursuant to K.S.A. 79-1466, and amendments thereto, the county appraiser may amend the appraisal rolls and certify the changes to the county clerk to implement the provisions of this subsection and reduce the valuation of the real property to the prior year's final determination, except that such changes shall not be made after October 31 of the current year. For the purposes of this section and in the case of real property, the term "taxpayer" shall be deemed to be the person in ownership of the property as indicated on the records of the office of register of deeds or county clerk and, in the case where the real property or improvement thereon is the subject of a lease agreement, such term shall also be deemed to include the lessee of such property if the lease agreement has been recorded or filed in the office of the register of deeds.

Such notice shall specify separately both the previous and current appraised and assessed values for each property class identified on the parcel. Such notice shall also contain the uniform parcel identification number prescribed by the director of property valuation. Such notice shall also contain a statement of the taxpayer's right to appeal, the procedure to be followed in making such appeal and the availability without charge of the guide devised pursuant to subsection (b). Such notice may, and if the board of county commissioners so require, shall provide the parcel identification number, address and the sale date and amount of any or all sales utilized in the determination of appraised value of residential real property. In any year in which no change in appraised valuation of any real property from its appraised valuation in the next preceding year is determined, an alternative form of notification which has been approved by the director of property valuation may be utilized by a county. Failure to timely mail or receive such notice shall in no way invalidate the classification or appraised valuation as changed. The secretary of revenue shall adopt rules and regulations necessary to implement the provisions of this section.

- (b) For all taxable years commencing after December 31, 1999, there shall be provided to each taxpayer, upon request, a guide to the property tax appeals process. The director of the division of property valuation shall devise and publish such guide, and shall provide sufficient copies thereof to all county appraisers. Such guide shall include but not be limited to: (1) A restatement of the law which pertains to the process and practice of property appraisal methodology, including the contents of K.S.A. 79-503a and 79-1460, and amendments thereto; (2) the procedures of the appeals process, including the order and burden of proof of each party and time frames required by law; and (3) such other information deemed necessary to educate and enable a taxpayer to properly and competently pursue an appraisal appeal.
- Sec. 13. K.S.A. 79-1801 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-1801. (a) Except as provided by subsection (b), each year the governing body of any city, the trustees of any township, the board of education of any school district and the governing bodies of all other taxing subdivisions shall certify, on or before August 25, to the proper county clerk the amount of ad valorem tax to be levied. Thereupon, the county clerk shall place the tax upon the tax roll of the county, in the manner prescribed by law, and the tax shall be collected by the county treasurer. The county treasurer shall distribute the proceeds of the taxes levied by each taxing subdivision in the manner provided by K.S.A. 12-1678a, and amendments thereto.
- (b) Prior to January 1, 2021, if the governing body of a city or county must conduct an election for an increase in property tax to fund any appropriation or budget under K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-433a, and amendments thereto, the governing body of the city or county shall certify, on or before October 1, to the proper county clerk the amount of ad valorem tax to be levied. On and after January 1, 2021, if the governing body of a taxing subdivision must conduct a public hearing to approve exceeding the revenue neutral rate under section 10, and amendments thereto, the governing body of the taxing subdivision shall certify, on or before September 20, to the proper county clerk the amount of ad valorem tax to be levied.
- Sec. 14. K.S.A. 79-2302 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-2302. (a) Except as provided in subsection (b), between July 1 and July 10 of each year, the county treasurer shall prepare a list of all real estate subject to sale, describing the real estate in the same manner as described of record in the office of the county clerk or the register

of deeds of the county in which the real estate is located. The county treasurer also shall prepare an accompanying notice stating that the county treasurer will sell the real estate described in the list to the county for the amount of the delinquent taxes and legal charges due on the real estate and that the sale will be on or after the first Tuesday of September following publication of the notice under K.S.A. 79-2303, and amendments thereto. The list shall show the names of the owners of the real estate, as shown of record in the office of the county clerk or the register of deeds of the county in which the real estate is located, the description and address, if available, of each tract or parcel of land and the total of the amount of unpaid taxes upon each tract or parcel. If any county treasurer at any time discovers that any tract or lot of real estate has not been put on the list of delinquent taxes and not sold for any preceding year, the treasurer shall be required to place the omitted tract or lot on the list of delinquent taxes for the current year, and sell the tract or lot as directed by this act in other cases.

- (b) For tax year 2019, between August 11, 2020, and August 21, 2020, the county treasurer shall prepare such list of all real estate subject to sale that lists all real estate for which the 2019 taxes have not been paid in full on or before August 10, 2020.
- Sec. 15. K.S.A. 79-2303 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-2303. (a) The county treasurer shall cause the notice and list prepared under K.S.A. 79-2302, and amendments thereto, to be published in the official county newspaper or in a newspaper of general circulation in the county in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 64-101, and amendments thereto. Except as provided in subsection (b), the notice and list shall be submitted to the newspaper on or before August 1 of each year and shall be published once each week for three consecutive weeks immediately prior to the week when the day of sale will occur. The county treasurer also shall cause a copy of the list and notice to be posted in some conspicuous place in the county treasurer's office. The cost of publication of the notice and list shall be paid from the general fund of the county, and a \$15 fee for each tract or lot shall be added to the tax due for the tract or lot as part of the costs of collection. The fee shall be collected in the manner provided for the collection of the unpaid taxes.
- (b) With respect to tax year 2019, the notice and list shall be submitted to the newspaper on or before September 1, 2020, and shall be published once each week for three consecutive weeks immediately prior to the week when the day of sale will occur. The county treasurer shall advertise and sell such real estate on or before the fourth Monday of October 2020, and such advertisement and sale shall conform in all respects to the provisions of this act and shall be as binding and valid as if such sale had been made on the first Tuesday of September.
- Sec. 16. K.S.A. 79-2925c is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-2925c. (a) (1) On and after January 1, 2017, and prior to January 1, 2021, the governing body of any city or county shall not approve any appropriation or budget which provides for funding by property tax revenues in an amount exceeding that of the next preceding year as adjusted to reflect the average changes in the consumer price index for all urban consumers as published by the United States department of labor for the preceding five calendar years, which shall not be less than zero, unless the city or county approves the appropriation or budget with the adoption of a resolution and such resolution has been submitted to and approved by a majority of the qualified electors of the city or county voting at an election called and held thereon, except as otherwise provided.
  - (2) The election shall be called and held in the manner provided by K.S.A. 10-120,

and amendments thereto, and may be:

- (A) Held at the next regularly scheduled election to be held in August or November;
- (B) may be a mail ballot election, conducted in accordance with K.S.A. 25-431 et seq., and amendments thereto; or
- (C) may be a special election called by the city or county. Nothing in this subsection shall prevent any city or county from holding more than one election in any year. The city or county requesting the election shall be responsible for paying all costs associated with conducting the election.
- (b) A resolution by the governing body of a city or county otherwise required by the provisions of this section shall not be required to be approved by an election required by subsection (a) under the following circumstances:
- (1) Increased property tax revenues that, in the current year, are produced and attributable to the taxation of:
- (A) The construction of any new structures or improvements or the remodeling or renovation of any existing structures or improvements on real property, which shall not include any ordinary maintenance or repair of any existing structures or improvements on the property;
  - (B) increased personal property valuation;
  - (C) real property located within added jurisdictional territory;
  - (D) real property which has changed in use;
  - (E) expiration of any abatement of property from property tax; or
- (F) expiration of a tax increment financing district, rural housing incentive district, neighborhood revitalization area or any other similar property tax rebate or redirection program.
  - (2) Increased property tax revenues that will be spent on:
- (A) Bond, temporary notes, no fund warrants, state infrastructure loans and interest payments not exceeding the amount of ad valorem property taxes levied in support of such payments, and payments made to a public building commission and lease payments but only to the extent such payments were obligations that existed prior to July 1, 2016;
- (B) payment of special assessments not exceeding the amount of ad valorem property taxes levied in support of such payments;
- (C) court judgments or settlements of legal actions against the city or county and legal costs directly related to such judgments or settlements;
- (D) expenditures of city or county funds that are specifically mandated by federal or state law with such mandates becoming effective on or after July 1, 2015, and loss of funds from federal sources after January 1, 2017, where the city or county is contractually obligated to provide a service;
- (E) expenses relating to a federal, state or local disaster or federal, state or local emergency, including, but not limited to, a financial emergency, declared by a federal or state official. The board of county commissioners may request the governor to declare such disaster or emergency; or
- (F) increased costs above the consumer price index for law enforcement, fire protection or emergency medical services.
- (3) Any increased property tax revenues generated for law enforcement, fire protection or emergency medical services shall be expended exclusively for these

purposes but shall not be used for the construction or remodeling of buildings.

- (4) The property tax revenues levied by the city or county have declined:
- (A) In one or more of the next preceding three calendar years and the increase in the amount of funding for the budget or appropriation from revenue produced from property taxes does not exceed the average amount of funding from such revenue of the next preceding three calendar years, adjusted to reflect changes in the consumer price index for all urban consumers as published by the United States department of labor for the preceding calendar year; or
- (B) the increase in the amount of ad valorem tax to be levied is less than the change in the consumer price index plus the loss of assessed property valuation that has occurred as the result of legislative action, judicial action or a ruling by the board of tax appeals.
- (5) Whenever a city or county is required by law to levy taxes for the financing of the budget of any political or governmental subdivision of this state that is not authorized by law to levy taxes on its own behalf, and the governing body of such city or county is not authorized or empowered to modify or reduce the amount of taxes levied therefore, the tax levies of the political or governmental subdivision shall not be included in or considered in computing the aggregate limitation upon the property tax levies of the city or county.
- (6) Any tax levy increase as a result of another taxing entity being dissolved and all powers, responsibilities, duties and liabilities of the taxing entity have been transferred to a city located in the county in which the taxing entity is located, or to the county in which the taxing entity is located, to carry on the function and responsibilities of the dissolved taxing entity, so long as the levy increase does not exceed the levy of the dissolved taxing entity.
- Sec. 17. K.S.A. 79-2024 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-2024. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, the county treasurer of every county may accept partial payment—of or establish a payment plan for delinquent or nondelinquent real property tax or personal property tax in accordance with payment guidelines established therefor by the county treasurer. Nothing in this section shall be construed to modify any consequences of untimely payment.
- Sec. 18. K.S.A. 79-1110, 79-1460, 79-1801, 79-2024, 79-2302, 79-2303, 79-2925c, 79-3221 and 79-3225 are hereby repealed.";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking all after "concerning"; by striking lines 2 and 3; in line 4, by striking all before the second "and" and inserting "taxation; relating to income tax, enacting the Kansas taxpayer protection act regulating paid tax return preparers, extending certain return filing and tax payment deadlines; property taxation, rates, truth in taxation and establishing notice and public hearing requirements prior to approval to exceed revenue neutral rate, discontinuing the city and county tax lid, time for payment of real property and personal property taxes, providing for waiver of interest and fees for late property tax payments for a certain period of time, extending the time for listing and publication of delinquent real estate subject to sale, prohibiting valuation increase of real property solely as the result of normal repair, replacement or maintenance, establishment of a payment plan for the payment of delinquent or nondelinquent taxes; amending K.S.A. 79-1110, 79-1460, 79-1801, 79-2024, 79-2302, 79-2303, 79-2925c, 79-3221 and 79-3225";

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

Caryn Tyson
Dan Kerschen
Tom Holland
Conferees on part of Senate

Steven Johnson Les Mason Conferees on part of House

On motion of Rep. Johnson, to adopt the conference committee report on **HB 2702**, Rep. Gartner offered a substitute motion to not adopt the conference committee report and that a new conference committee be appointed.

The substitute motion of Rep. Gartner did not prevail and the question reverted back to the original motion of Rep. Johnson to adopt the conference committee report.

On motion of Rep. Johnson, the conference committee report on  ${\bf HB}$  2702 was adopted.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 89; Nays 28; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 7.

Yeas: Alcala, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Pittman, Proehl, Rahjes, Resman, Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Nays: Amyx, Ballard, Bishop, Clayton, Concannon, Curtis, Gartner, Henderson, Highberger, Holscher, Horn, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ousley, Parker, Probst, Ralph, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Samsel, Stogsdill, Vickrey, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager. Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Finney, Frownfelter, Kuether, Mastroni, Moore, Phillips, Ruiz, L..

### MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The Senate adopts the Conference Committee report on **HB 2246**. The Senate adopts the Conference Committee report on **HB 2510**.

### CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MR. SPEAKER and MADAM PRESIDENT: Your committee on conference on Senate amendments to **HB 2510** submits the following report: The House accedes to all Senate amendments to the bill, and your committee on conference further agrees to amend the bill as printed with Senate Committee amendments, as follows:

On page 1, by striking all in lines 5 through 36;

On page 2, by striking all in lines 1 through 31; following line 31, by inserting:

"New Section 1. (a) The provisions of section 1 et seq., and amendments thereto,

shall be known and may be cited as the Kansas promise scholarship act.

- (b) As used in the Kansas promise scholarship act:
- (1) "Eligible postsecondary educational institution" means:
- (A) Any community college established pursuant to chapter 71 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto;
  - (B) any technical college established under the laws of this state;
  - (C) the Washburn institute of technology; or
- (D) any two-year associate degree program or career and technical education program offered by a private postsecondary educational institution accredited by the higher learning commission with its primary location in Kansas.
- (2) "Military servicemember" means the same as defined in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 48-3406, and amendments thereto.
- New Sec. 2. (a) There is hereby established the Kansas promise scholarship program. The state board of regents shall administer the program.
- (b) On or before March 1, 2021, the state board of regents shall adopt rules and regulations to implement and administer the Kansas promise scholarship program. Such rules and regulations shall establish:
  - (1) Scholarship application deadlines;
  - (2) appeal procedures for denial or revocation of a Kansas promise scholarship;
- (3) guidelines to ensure as much as is practicable that, if a student who received a Kansas promise scholarship graduates from a career and technical education program or transfer associate degree program pursuant to this act and subsequently enrolls in a state educational institution, as defined in K.S.A. 76-711, and amendments thereto, or municipal university any courses taken by such student shall be transferred to the state educational institution or municipal university and qualify toward the student's baccalaureate degree;
- (4) procedures for a student who receives a Kansas promise scholarship to record and report proof of community service and community service hours;
- (5) the terms, conditions and requirements that shall be incorporated into each Kansas promise scholarship agreement;
- (6) procedures for requesting and approving medical, military and personal absences from an eligible postsecondary educational institution while receiving a Kansas promise scholarship;
- (7) criteria for determining whether any student who received a Kansas promise scholarship fulfilled the employment and repayment requirements included in a Kansas promise scholarship agreement as provided in section 5, and amendments thereto; and
- (8) criteria for determining when a student who received a Kansas promise scholarship may be released from the requirements of a Kansas promise scholarship, if there are special circumstances that caused such student to be unable to complete such requirements.
  - (c) The state board of regents shall:
- (1) Work with community partners, such as community foundations, school districts, postsecondary educational institutions, Kansas business and industry and Kansas economic development organizations to publicize Kansas promise scholarships, including, but not limited to, publicizing eligible postsecondary educational institutions, approved scholarship-eligible educational programs, application procedures and application deadlines;

- (2) allocate funds to each eligible postsecondary educational institution for the purpose of awarding Kansas promise scholarships;
- (3) request information from eligible postsecondary educational institutions necessary for the administration of this act;
- (4) annually collaborate with the department of commerce and Kansas business and industry to identify up to 10 job fields and pathways that currently have the highest need for skilled employees;
- (5) designate scholarship-eligible career and technical programs and transfer education programs that correspond to the job fields and pathways identified in paragraph (4);
- (6) ensure that any student who received a Kansas promise scholarship fulfills the employment or repayment requirements provided in section 5, and amendments thereto; and
- (7) beginning January 2021, annually evaluate the Kansas promise scholarship program and prepare and submit a report to the senate standing committee on education and the house of representatives standing committee on education.
- New Sec. 3. (a) Subject to appropriations, the amount of a Kansas promise scholarship for a student for each semester shall be the aggregate amount of tuition, required fees and the cost of books and required materials for the educational program at the eligible postsecondary educational institution for the academic year in which the student is enrolled and receiving the scholarship minus the aggregate amount of all other aid awarded to such student for such semester. Aid includes any grant, scholarship or financial assistance awards that do not require repayment. During any fiscal year, the appropriation pursuant to this section shall not exceed \$10,000,000.
- (b) If a student is enrolled in an eligible postsecondary education program offered by a four-year eligible postsecondary educational institution, the aggregate amount of tuition, mandatory fees and the cost of books and materials for such eligible postsecondary education program shall be the average cost of tuition, mandatory fees and the cost of books and materials for such eligible postsecondary education program when offered by an eligible public postsecondary educational institution that is not a four-year institution.

New Sec. 4. (a) To be eligible for a Kansas promise scholarship, a student shall:

- (1) Be a Kansas resident;
- (2) be enrolled in grade 12 in an eligible high school, be a graduate of a Kansas public or private secondary school, have been in the custody of the secretary for children and families as a minor pursuant to the revised Kansas code for care of children at any time while enrolled in any of the grades six through 12 or have obtained a high school equivalency certificate within the preceding 12 months. This paragraph shall not apply to a student who is a dependent child of a military servicemember permanently stationed in another state who graduates from a postsecondary school or obtains a high school equivalency certificate within the preceding 12 months;
- (3) complete the required scholarship application on such forms and in such manner as established by the state board of regents;
- (4) enter into a Kansas promise scholarship agreement pursuant to section 5, and amendments thereto;
- (5) complete the free application for federal student aid for the academic year in which the student applies to receive a Kansas promise scholarship; and

- (6) enroll in an eligible postsecondary educational institution in a scholarshipeligible career and technical education program or associate degree program with coursework in an identified job field that corresponds to a baccalaureate degree program.
  - (b) To continue to receive a Kansas promise scholarship, a student shall:
- (1) Annually complete 100 hours of community service or be verified by the eligible postsecondary educational institution to be employed part-time throughout the time period in which the student is receiving a Kansas promise scholarship;
  - (2) maintain a minimum cumulative grade point average of 2.0; and
- (3) satisfy any other requirements of a Kansas promise scholarship agreement as provided in section 5, and amendments thereto.
- (c) Nothing in this act shall prohibit a student who received postsecondary course credit while enrolled in high school from qualifying for a Kansas promise scholarship.
- New Sec. 5. (a) As a condition to receiving a Kansas promise scholarship, an eligible student shall enter into a Kansas promise scholarship agreement with the eligible postsecondary educational institution making the scholarship award to such student. Such agreement shall require such student who receives a Kansas promise scholarship to:
- (1) Enroll as a full-time student at the eligible postsecondary educational institution for which the student is receiving a Kansas promise scholarship and engage in and complete the required career and technical education program or associate degree program with coursework in an identified job field that corresponds to a baccalaureate degree program;
- (2) within six months after graduation from the career and technical education program or associate degree program with coursework in an identified job field that corresponds to a baccalaureate degree program:
- (A) Commence work in the state of Kansas for at least two consecutive years following completion of such program; or
- (B) enroll as a full-time student in any public or private postsecondary educational institution with its primary location in Kansas and upon graduation or failure to reenroll as a full-time student at such institution, commence work in Kansas for at least two consecutive years following the completion of such program;
- (3) maintain records and make reports to the state board of regents on such forms and in such manner as required by the state board of regents to document the satisfaction of the requirements of this act; and
- (4) upon failure to satisfy the requirements of a Kansas promise scholarship agreement, repay the amount of the Kansas promise scholarship the student received under the program as provided in subsection (b).
- (b) (1) Except as provided in subsection (c), if any student who receives a Kansas promise scholarship fails to satisfy the requirements of a Kansas promise scholarship agreement entered into pursuant to this section, such student shall pay an amount equal to the total amount of money received by such student pursuant to such agreement that is financed by the state of Kansas plus accrued interest at a rate equivalent to the interest rate applicable to loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such person first entered into an agreement. Installment payments of such amounts may be made in accordance with rules and regulations of the state board of regents. Such installment payments shall begin six months after the date of the action or

circumstances that cause such student to fail to satisfy the requirements of a Kansas promise scholarship agreement, as determined by the state board of regents upon the circumstances of each individual case. All moneys received pursuant to this subsection shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the state general fund.

- (2) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any repayment account arising under this act to a designated loan servicer or collection agency, the state not being involved other than to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate prescribed under this subsection.
- (c) Any requirement under a Kansas promise scholarship agreement entered into pursuant to this section may be postponed for good cause in accordance with rules and regulations of the state board of regents.
- (d) A student who received a Kansas promise scholarship and entered into a Kansas promise scholarship agreement satisfies the requirements under such agreement when such student:
  - (1) Completes the requirements in accordance with such agreement;
- (2) fails to satisfy the requirements for completion of the educational requirements after making the best effort possible to do so;
- (3) is unable to obtain employment and continue in such employment after making the best effort possible to do so;
  - (4) is unable to satisfy the requirements due to permanent physical disability; or
  - (5) dies.
- New Sec. 6. On and after July 1, 2025, no Kansas promise scholarship shall be awarded to any student who has not previously been awarded a Kansas promise scholarship prior to July 1, 2025.
- New Sec. 7. (a) The state department of education and the department for children and families shall collaborate to prepare a Kansas foster care children annual academic report card. The annual report card shall include the following data for the preceding school year:
  - (1) The graduation rate of foster care students;
- (2) the number and percentage of foster care students that were promoted to the next grade level;
- (3) the number and percentage of foster care students that were suspended during the school year;
- (4) the number and percentage of foster care students that were expelled during the school year;
- (5) state standardized assessment scores for foster care students, including the number and percentage of students meeting academic standards as determined by the state board of education:
- (6) the number and percentage of foster care students enrolled in any preschoolaged at-risk program, Kansas preschool pilot program or early childhood special education program under section 619 of part B of the individuals with disabilities act;
- (7) the number and percentage of foster care students that participated in the mental health intervention team pilot program or a similar mental health program;
  - (8) the total number of foster care students enrolled in a school district or nonpublic

school and the disaggregated number and percentage of foster care students enrolled in school districts and accredited nonpublic schools; and

- (9) de-identified disaggregated race and ethnicity data for each data set required in paragraphs (1) through (8).
- (b) On or before January 15 of each year, the state department of education and the department for children and families shall prepare and submit the Kansas foster care children annual academic report card to the senate committee on education and the house committee on education.
  - (c) As used in this section:
- (1) "Foster care student" means any individual who was in the custody of the Kansas department for children and families at any time when such student attended a school during the school year for which the report required pursuant to this section is to be completed.
- (2) "School" means any school of a school district or any nonpublic school accredited by the state board of education.
- New Sec. 8. (a) The state board of regents is hereby authorized and empowered, for and on behalf of Kansas state university, to sell and convey all of the rights, title and interest subject to all easements and appurtenances in the following described real estate located in Saline county, Kansas: Lot Eleven (11), less West 100' feet, Block Twelve (12), Schilling Subdivision No. 5, to the City of Salina, Saline County, Kansas. Formerly a tract of land in Block Two (2) Schilling Subdivision Lying in the Northeast Quarter (NE/4) of Section Three (3), Township Fifteen (15) South, Range Three (3) West of the Sixth (6th) P.M. as shown in Deed recorded November 18, 1966, in Book 268, pages 476 through 503 and legal found on page 485.
- (b) Conveyance of such rights, title and interest in such real estate shall be executed in the name of the state board of regents by its chairperson and executive officer. All proceeds from the sale and conveyance thereof shall be deposited in the restricted fees account of Kansas state university.
- (c) No conveyance of real estate authorized by this section shall be made or accepted by the state board of regents until the deeds, titles and conveyances have been reviewed and approved by the attorney general. In the event that the state board of regents determines that the legal description of the real estate described in this section is incorrect, the state board of regents may convey the property utilizing the correct legal description, but the deed conveying the property shall be subject to the approval of the attorney general. The conveyance authorized by this section shall not be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3043a or 75-6609, and amendments thereto.
- New Sec. 9. (a) Each eligible postsecondary educational institution that accepts students for enrollment pursuant to the Kansas challenge to secondary school students act shall submit a report annually to the state board of regents. Such report shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
- (1) The number of students from each school district enrolled in the eligible postsecondary educational institution, including the number of students in the custody of the secretary for children and families;
- (2) the number of students who successfully complete the courses in which such students are enrolled at the eligible postsecondary educational institution;
- (3) the tuition rate charged for students compared to the tuition rate charged to individuals who are regularly enrolled and attending the eligible postsecondary

educational institution; and

- (4) the amount and percentage of tuition each school district is paying pursuant to K.S.A. 72-3223, and amendments thereto.
- (b) The state board of regents shall compile and prepare a summary report of the reports submitted pursuant to subsection (a) and shall submit such report to the house standing committee on education and the senate standing committee on education on or before February 15 of each year commencing in 2021.
- Sec. 10. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-2707 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-2707. As used in this act, unless the context clearly indicates that a different meaning is intended:
  - (a) "Professional corporation" means a corporation organized under this act.
- (b) "Professional service" means the type of personal service rendered by a person duly licensed, registered or certified by this state as a member of any of the following professions, each paragraph constituting one type:
  - (1) A certified public accountant;
  - (2) an architect;
  - (3) an attorney-at-law;
  - (4) a chiropractor;
  - (5) a dentist;
  - (6) an engineer;
  - (7) an optometrist;
  - (8) an osteopathic physician or surgeon;
  - (9) a physician, surgeon or doctor of medicine;
  - (10) a veterinarian;
  - (11) a podiatrist;
  - (12) a pharmacist;
  - (13) a land surveyor;
  - (14) a licensed psychologist;
  - (15) a specialist in clinical social work;
  - (16) a licensed physical therapist;
  - (17) a landscape architect;
  - (18) a registered professional nurse;
  - (19) a real estate broker or salesperson;
  - (20) a clinical professional counselor;
  - (21) a geologist;
  - (22) a clinical psychotherapist;
  - (23) a clinical marriage and family therapist;
  - (24) a licensed physician assistant;
  - (25) a licensed occupational therapist;
  - (26) a licensed audiologist;
  - (27) a licensed speech-pathologist; and
  - (28) a licensed naturopathic doctor.
- (c) "Regulating board" means the court, board or state agency—which that is charged with the licensing, registering or certifying and regulation of the practice of the profession—which that the professional corporation is organized to render.
  - (d) "Qualified person" means:
  - (1) Any natural person licensed, registered or certified to practice the same type of

profession which that any professional corporation is authorized to practice;

- (2) the trustee of a trust—which that is a qualified trust under—subsection (a) of section 401(a) of the federal internal revenue code, as in effect on January 1, 2004, or of a contribution plan—which that is a qualified employee stock ownership plan under subsection (a) of section 409A(a) of the federal internal revenue code, as in effect on January 1, 2004; or
- (3) the trustee of a revocable living trust established by a natural person who is licensed, registered or certified to practice the type of profession—which that any professional corporation is authorized to practice, if the terms of such trust provide that such natural person is the principal beneficiary and sole trustee of such trust and such trust does not continue to hold title to professional corporation stock following such natural person's death for more than a reasonable period of time necessary to dispose of such stock; or
- (4) a healing arts school clinic authorized to perform professional services in accordance with K.S.A. 65-2877a, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 11. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-7668 is hereby amended to read as follows: 17-7668. (a) Unless otherwise specifically prohibited by law, a limited liability company may carry on any lawful business, purpose or activity, whether or not for profit with the exception of the business of granting policies of insurance, or assuming insurance risks or banking as defined in K.S.A. 9-702, and amendments thereto.
- (b) A limited liability company shall possess and may exercise all the powers and privileges granted by this act or by any other law or by its operating agreement, together with any powers incidental thereto, including such powers and privileges as are necessary or convenient to the conduct, promotion or attainment of the business, purposes or activities of the limited liability company.
- (c) A limited liability company organized and existing under the Kansas revised limited liability company act or otherwise qualified to do business in Kansas may have and exercise all powers—which that may be exercised by a Kansas professional association or professional corporation under the professional corporation law of Kansas, including employment of professionals to practice a profession, which shall be limited to the practice of one profession, except as provided in K.S.A. 17-2710, and amendments thereto.
- (d) Only a qualified person may be a member of a limited liability company organized to exercise powers of a professional association or professional corporation. No membership may be transferred to another person until there is presented to such limited liability company a certificate by the licensing body, as defined in K.S.A. 74-146, and amendments thereto, stating that the person to whom the transfer is made or the membership issued is duly licensed to render the same type of professional services as that for which the limited liability company was organized.
  - (e) As used in the section, "qualified person" means:
- (1) Any natural person licensed to practice the same type of profession-which that any professional association or professional corporation is authorized to practice;
- (2) the trustee of a trust—which that is a qualified trust under—subsection (a) of section 401(a) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, as in effect, on July 1, 1999, or of a contribution plan—which that is a qualified employee stock ownership plan under subsection (a) of section 409A(a) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, as in effect, on July 1, 1999;

- (3) the trustee of a revocable living trust established by a natural person who is licensed to practice the type of profession—which that any professional association or professional corporation is authorized to practice, if the terms of such trust provide that such natural person is the principal beneficiary and sole trustee of such trust and such trust does not continue to hold title to membership in the limited liability company following such natural person's death for more than a reasonable period of time necessary to dispose of such membership;
- (4) a Kansas professional corporation or foreign professional corporation in which at least one member or shareholder is authorized by a licensing body, as defined in K.S.A. 74-146, and amendments thereto, to render in this state a professional service permitted by the articles of organization; or
- (5) a general partnership or limited liability company, if all partners or members thereof are authorized to render the professional services permitted by the articles of organization of the limited liability company formed pursuant to this section and in which at least one partner or member is authorized by a licensing authority of this state to render in this state the professional services permitted by the articles of organization of the limited liability company; or
- (6) a healing arts school clinic authorized to perform professional services in accordance with K.S.A. 65-2877a, and amendments thereto.
- (f) Nothing in this act shall restrict or limit in any manner the authority and duty of any licensing body, as defined in K.S.A. 74-146, and amendments thereto, for the licensing of individual persons rendering a professional service or the practice of the profession—which that is within the jurisdiction of the licensing body, notwithstanding that the person is an officer, manager, member or employee of a limited liability company organized to exercise powers of a professional association or professional corporation. Each licensing body may adopt rules and regulations governing the practice of each profession as are necessary to enforce and comply with this act and the law applicable to each profession.
- (g) A licensing body, as defined in K.S.A. 74-146, and amendments thereto, the attorney general or district or county attorney may bring an action in the name of the state of Kansas in quo warranto or injunction against a limited liability company engaging in the practice of a profession without complying with the provisions of this act.
- (h) Notwithstanding any provision of this act to the contrary, without limiting the general powers enumerated in subsection (b), a limited liability company shall, subject to such standards and restrictions, if any, as are set forth in its operating agreement, have the power and authority to make contracts of guaranty and suretyship and enter into interest rate, basis, currency, hedge or other swap agreements or cap, floor, put, call, option, exchange or collar agreements, derivative agreements, or other agreements similar to any of the foregoing.
- (i) Unless otherwise provided in an operating agreement, a limited liability company has the power and authority to grant, hold or exercise a power of attorney, including an irrevocable power of attorney.
- Sec. 12. K.S.A. 65-2877a, as amended by section 5 of chapter 52 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-2877a. No provision of law prohibiting practice of the healing arts by a <u>general corporation</u> business <u>organization</u> shall apply to a healing arts school <u>clinic under the supervision of a person</u>

licensed to practice the same branch of the healing arts if such healing arts school is:

- (a) Approved by the board if the healing arts school is;
- (b) a non-profit entity under section 501(c)(3) of the internal revenue code of 1986; is; and
- (c) approved by the state board of regents, and as part of its academic requirements provides clinical training to its students under the supervision of persons who are licensed to practice a branch of the healing arts in this state or exempt from such approval under K.S.A. 74-32,164, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 13. K.S.A. 72-3220 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-3220. (a)-K.S.A. 72-3220 through 72-3224, and amendments thereto, and section 9, and amendments thereto, shall be known and may be cited as the Kansas challenge to secondary school pupils students act.
- (b) The provisions of this section shall take effect and be in force from and after July 1, 1993.
- Sec. 14. K.S.A. 72-3221 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-3221. (a)—The legislature hereby declares that secondary school—pupils students should be challenged continuously in order to maintain their interests in the pursuit of education and skills critical to success in the modern world. Therefore, it is the purpose and intention of the Kansas challenge to secondary school—pupils students act to provide a means—whereby that school districts, in cooperation with institutions of postsecondary education, may provide new and exciting challenges to secondary school—pupils\_students by encouraging—them\_such\_students to take full advantage of the wealth of postsecondary education educational opportunities available in this state.
- (b) The provisions of this section shall take effect and be in force from and after July 1, 1993.
- Sec. 15. K.S.A. 72-3222 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-3222. As used in the Kansas challenge to secondary school-pupils students act:
- (a) "Concurrent enrollment pupil" "Student" means a person who: (1) Is enrolled in grades 10, 11 or 12 maintained by a school district, or a gifted child who is enrolled in any of the grades 9 through 12 maintained by a school district; (2) has an individualized plan of study or an individualized education program; (3) has demonstrated the ability to benefit from participation in the regular curricula of eligible postsecondary—education\_educational institutions; (4) has been authorized by the principal of the school attended to apply for enrollment at an eligible postsecondary educational institution; and (5) is acceptable or has been accepted for enrollment at an eligible postsecondary—education educational institution.
- (b) "Eligible postsecondary—education educational institution" means any state educational institution, community college, municipal university, technical college or accredited independent institution.
- (c) "State educational institution"—has the meaning ascribed thereto means the same as defined in K.S.A. 76-711, and amendments thereto.
- (d) "Community college" means any community college organized and operating under the laws of this state.
- (e) "Municipal university" means a municipal university established under the provisions of article 13a of chapter 13 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto.
  - (f) "Accredited independent institution" means-an a not-for-profit institution of

- postsecondary education the main campus of which is located in Kansas and-which that: (1) Is operated independently and not controlled or administered by any state agency or any subdivision of the state; (2) maintains open enrollment; and (3) is accredited by the north central association of colleges and secondary schools accrediting agency-based on its requirements as of April 1, 1985 a nationally recognized accrediting agency for higher education in the United States.
- (g) "Technical college" has the meaning ascribed thereto means the same as defined in K.S.A. 74-32,407, and amendments thereto.
- (h) "Gifted child"—has the meaning ascribed thereto means the same as defined in K.S.A. 72-3404, and amendments thereto, or in rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto.
- Sec. 16. K.S.A. 72-3223 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-3223. (a) The board of education of any school district and any eligible postsecondary—education—educational institution may enter into a cooperative agreement regarding the dual or concurrent enrollment of—concurrent enrollment pupils students in courses of instruction for college credit at the eligible postsecondary—education—educational institution. The agreement shall include, but need not be limited to, the following:
- (1) The academic credit to be granted for course work successfully completed by the <u>pupil student</u> at the institution, which credit shall qualify as college credit and may qualify as both high school and college credit;
- (2) the requirement that such course work qualify as credit applicable toward the award of a degree or certificate at the institution;
- (3) <u>except as otherwise provided in subsection (b)</u>, the requirement that the pupil shall pay to the institution the student shall pay the negotiated amount of tuition and related costs charged by the institution for the student's enrollment of the pupil; and
- (4) the requirement that the eligible postsecondary educational institution shall notify the student or the student's parent or guardian if the course the student enrolled in at the eligible postsecondary educational institution is not a systemwide transfer course approved by the state board of regents and, as a result, the student may not receive credit for such course if the student transfers to or attends another postsecondary educational institution.
- (b) The provisions of this section shall take effect and be in force from and after July 1, 1993 The board of education of a school district, in its discretion, may pay all or a portion of the negotiated amount of tuition and related costs, including fees, books, materials and equipment, charged by an eligible postsecondary educational institution for a student's enrollment in such institution. As part of any agreement entered into pursuant to this section, the board of education of a school district shall not be required to pay any amount of tuition and required fees that are waived for an eligible foster child pursuant to the foster child educational assistance act, K.S.A. 75-53,111 et seq., and amendments thereto, except that the board, in its discretion, may pay any related costs that are not waived pursuant to such act, including fees, books, materials and equipment, charged by an eligible postsecondary educational institution for the student's enrollment in such institution. Any such payment shall be paid directly to the eligible postsecondary educational institution and shall be credited to such student's account.
- Sec. 17. K.S.A. 72-3224 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-3224. (a) No school district shall be responsible for the payment of tuition charged to concurrent enrollment pupils by eligible education institutions or for the provision of transportation

- for such pupils Except as otherwise provided in K.S.A. 72-3223(b), and amendments thereto, each student dually or concurrently enrolled in an eligible postsecondary educational institution pursuant to K.S.A. 72-3220 et seq., and amendments thereto, shall be responsible for the payment of the negotiated tuition and related costs, including fees, books, materials and equipment, charged by such institution for the student's enrollment.
- (b) The board of education of a school district, in its discretion, may provide for the transportation of a student to or from any eligible postsecondary-educational institution
- (b) Each concurrent enrollment pupil shall be responsible for payment of tuition for enrollment at an eligible postsecondary education institution and for payment of the eosts of books and equipment and any other costs of enrollment.
- (c) Each-concurrent enrollment pupil student dually or concurrently enrolled in an eligible postsecondary educational institution pursuant to K.S.A. 72-3220 et seq., and amendments thereto, who satisfactorily completes course work at an eligible-postsecondary education such institution shall be granted appropriate credit toward fulfillment of the requirements for graduation from high school unless such credit is denied by the school district in which the pupil is enrolled on the basis that high school credit is inappropriate for such course work.
- (d) The provisions of this section shall take effect and be in force from and after July 1, 1993 In order to remain eligible for participation in the program, a student shall remain in good standing at the eligible postsecondary educational institution or shall show satisfactory progress as determined by the school district.
- (e) The provisions of the Kansas challenge to secondary school students act shall not apply to any enrollment in career technical education courses or programs pursuant to K.S.A. 72-3810 et seq., and amendments thereto, or the career technical education incentive program established pursuant to K.S.A. 72-3819, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 18. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 72-5179 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-5179. (a) The state board of education shall provide the ACT college entrance exam and the three ACT workkeys assessments that are required to earn a national career readiness certificate to each student enrolled in grades 11 and 12, and the pre-ACT college entrance exam to each student enrolled in grade nine. No student shall be required to pay any fees or costs to take any such exam or assessments. The state board shall not be required to provide more than one exam and three assessments for each student. The state board of education may enter into any contracts that are necessary to promote statewide cost savings to administer such exams and assessments.
- (b) On or before the first day of the regular legislative session in 2021, and each year thereafter, the state board of education shall prepare and submit a report to the senate standing committee on education and the house standing committee on education that includes aggregate exam and assessment data for all students who were provided the exams and assessments pursuant to this section.
- (c) As used in this section, "student" means any person who is regularly enrolled in any public or accredited nonpublic school located in Kansas.
- Sec. 19. K.S.A. 75-53,112 is hereby amended to read as follows: 75-53,112. As used in the Kansas foster child educational assistance act:
- (a) "Kansas educational institution" means and includes any community college, the municipal university, state educational institution, the institute of technology at

Washburn university or technical college.

- (b) "Eligible foster child" means anyone who:
- (1) (A) (i) Is in the custody of the secretary and in a foster care placement on the date such child attained 18 years of age; (B) (ii) has been released from the custody of the secretary prior to attaining 18 years of age, after having graduated from a high school or fulfilled the requirements for a general educational development (GED) certificate while in foster care placement and the custody of the secretary; (C) (iii) is adopted from a foster care placement on or after such child's 16<sup>th</sup> birthday; or (D) (iv) left a foster care placement subject to a guardianship under chapter 38 or 59 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, on or after such child's 16<sup>th</sup> birthday; or
- (B) is a student as defined under the Kansas challenge to secondary school students act, K.S.A. 72-3220 et seq., and amendments thereto, and was in the custody of the secretary and in foster care placement at any time such child was enrolled in grades nine through 12 at a school of a school district; and
  - (2) enrolls in a Kansas educational institution on or after July 1, 2006.
- (c) "Kansas foster child educational assistance program" or "program" means the program established pursuant to the provisions of the Kansas foster child educational assistance act, which shall provide for: (1) Undergraduate enrollment of eligible foster children pursuant to subsection (b)(1)(A) through the semester the eligible foster child attains 23 years of age; or (2) undergraduate enrollment of eligible foster children pursuant to subsection (b)(1)(B) through the Kansas challenge to secondary schools act, K.S.A. 72-3220 et seq., and amendments thereto.
- (d) "Educational program" means a program—which that is offered and maintained by a Kansas educational institution and leads to the award of a certificate, diploma or degree upon satisfactory completion of course work requirements.
  - (e) "Secretary" means the secretary for children and families.
- Sec. 20. K.S.A. 65-2877a, as amended by section 5 of chapter 52 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 72-3220, 72-3221, 72-3222, 72-3223, 72-3224 and 75-53,112 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-2707, 17-7668 and 72-5179 are hereby repealed.";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking all after "ACT"; in line 2, by striking all before the period and inserting "concerning education; creating the Kansas promise scholarship act; requiring a Kansas foster care children annual academic report card; authorizing the state board of regents on behalf of Kansas state university to sell certain real property in Saline county; authorizing school districts to pay tuition and fees for concurrent and dual enrollment of students; requiring tuition waiver for dual or concurrently enrolled foster students; authorizing the practice of the healing arts by healing arts school clinics; providing ACT college entrance exams and workkeys assessments to nonpublic school students; amending K.S.A. 65-2877a, as amended by section 5 of chapter 52 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 72-3220, 72-3221, 72-3222, 72-3223, 72-3224 and 75-53,112 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-2707, 17-7668 and 72-5179 and repealing the existing sections";

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

Molly Baumgardner Larry Alley Dinah Sykes Conferees on part of Senate

SEAN TARWATER
KEN CORBET
STAN FROWNFELTER
Conferees on part of House

On motion of Rep. Tarwater, the conference committee report on **HB 2510** was adopted.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 110; Nays 3; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 11.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Awerkamp, Jacobs, Samsel.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Finney, Frownfelter, Helmer, Horn, Kuether, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Phillips, Ruiz, L..

# CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MR. SPEAKER and MADAM PRESIDENT: Your committee on conference on Senate amendments to **HB 2246** submits the following report:

The House accedes to all Senate amendments to the bill, and your committee on conference further agrees to amend the bill as printed with Senate Committee of the Whole amendments, as follows:

On page 1, by striking all in lines 10 through 34;

By striking all on pages 2 through 15;

On page 16, by striking all in lines 1 through 23; following line 23, by inserting:

"New Section 1. (a) A reciprocal may convert to a Kansas mutual insurance company in accordance with the terms of a conversion plan filed with and approved by the commissioner.

- (b) The commissioner may establish reasonable requirements and procedures for the submission and approval of a conversion plan required by subsection (a).
  - (c) No conversion plan shall be approved under this section unless such conversion

plan includes:

- (1) A provision for converting the existing subscriber interests in the reciprocal into policyholder interests in the resulting Kansas mutual insurance company so that each policyholder's interest in the mutual insurance company shall be fairly proportionate to such subscriber's interest in the reciprocal;
- (2) a provision amending the existing subscriber's agreement to articles of incorporation that complies with the provisions of K.S.A. 40-1202, 40-1206 and 40-1215, and amendments thereto;
  - (3) a copy of the proposed articles of incorporation;
- (4) proof of the approval or adoption of the conversion plan by not less than <sup>2</sup>/<sub>3</sub> of the subscriber interests entitled to vote, represented either in person or by proxy, at a duly called regular or special meeting of subscribers of the reciprocal at which a quorum, as determined by the subscriber's agreement or other chartering documents of the reciprocal, is present, or, in the absence of any quorum requirement, 10% of outstanding subscribers;
- (5) a transition plan for the change of governance of the reciprocal from an attorney-in-fact to a board of directors and officers that shall be governed by article 12 of chapter 40 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto; and
  - (6) any other information required by the commissioner.
- (d) The commissioner shall approve the conversion plan if the commissioner finds that the proposed conversion will not:
  - (1) Be detrimental to the interests of subscribers of the reciprocal;
  - (2) be detrimental to the interests of the state of Kansas; and
  - (3) render the insurer incapable of fulfilling the insurer's contractual obligations.
- (e) Upon approval of a conversion plan under this section, the commissioner shall issue a new or amended certificate of authority, which shall be deemed to be the final act of conversion at which time the reciprocal shall concurrently become a mutual insurance company. The mutual insurance company shall be deemed to be a continuation of the reciprocal and deemed to have been organized at the time the converted reciprocal was organized.
- (f) Each mutual insurance company created pursuant to this section shall comply with all provisions of article 12, article 40 and such other articles of chapter 40 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, that are otherwise applicable to mutual insurance companies.
  - (g) As used in this section:
- (1) "Conversion plan" means a document detailing the process and requirements that a reciprocal shall undertake and satisfy to convert from a reciprocal company to a mutual insurance company.
- (2) "Mutual insurance company" means a mutual insurance company that is organized under the provisions of K.S.A. 40-1201, and amendments thereto, except that the provisions of K.S.A. 40-1201(a), and amendments thereto, shall not apply.
- (3) "Reciprocal" has the same meaning as set forth in K.S.A. 40-1623, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 2. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-246c is hereby amended to read as follows: 40-246c. (a) On March 1 of each year, each licensed agent shall collect and pay to the commissioner a tax of 6% on the total gross premiums charged, less any return premiums, for surplus lines insurance transacted by the licensee pursuant to the license

for insureds whose home state is this state.

- (b) The tax on any portion of the premium unearned at termination of insurance, if any, having been credited by the state to the licensee shall be returned to the policyholder directly by the surplus lines licensee or through the producing broker. The surplus lines licensee is prohibited from rebating any part of the tax for any reason.
- (c) The individual responsible for filing the statement shall be the agent who signs the policy or the agent of record with the company. The commissioner of insurance shall collect may assess a penalty up to double the amount of tax-herein provided prescribed in subsection (a) from any licensee or other—responsible individual responsible for filing the statement as-herein described in this subsection who shall fail, refuse or neglect fails, refuses or neglects to transmit the required affidavit or statement or shall fail fails to pay the tax imposed by this section; to the commissioner within the period specified.
- Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-2c01 is hereby amended to read as follows: 40-2c01. As used in this act:
- (a) "Adjusted RBC report" means an RBC report—which that has been adjusted by the commissioner in accordance with K.S.A. 40-2c04, and amendments thereto.
- (b) "Corrective order" means an order issued by the commissioner specifying corrective actions which that the commissioner has determined are required to address an RBC level event.
- (c) "Domestic insurer" means any insurance company or risk retention group which that is licensed and organized in this state.
- (d) "Foreign insurer" means any insurance company or risk retention group not domiciled in this state—which that is licensed or registered to do business in this state pursuant to article 41 of chapter 40 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, or K.S.A. 40-209, and amendments thereto.
  - (e) "NAIC" means the national association of insurance commissioners.
- (f) "Life and health insurer" means any insurance company licensed under article 4 or 5 of chapter 40 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, or a licensed property and casualty insurer writing only accident and health insurance.
- (g) "Property and casualty insurer" means any insurance company licensed under articles 9, 10, 11, 12, 12a, 15 or 16 of chapter 40 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, but shall not include monoline mortgage guaranty insurers, financial guaranty insurers and title insurers.
- (h) "Negative trend" means, with respect to a life and health insurer, a negative trend over a period of time, as determined in accordance with the "trend test calculation" included in the RBC instructions defined in subsection (j).
  - (i) "RBC" means risk-based capital.
- (j) "RBC instructions" means the risk-based capital instructions promulgated by the NAIC, which that are in effect on December 31,—2018\_2019, or any later version promulgated by the NAIC as may be adopted by the commissioner under K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-2c29, and amendments thereto.
- (k) "RBC level" means an insurer's company action level RBC, regulatory action level RBC, authorized control level RBC, or mandatory control level RBC where:
- (1) "Company action level RBC" means, with respect to any insurer, the product of 2.0 and its authorized control level RBC;
  - (2) "regulatory action level RBC" means the product of 1.5 and its authorized

control level RBC;

- (3) "authorized control level RBC" means the number determined under the risk-based capital formula in accordance with the RBC instructions; and
- (4) "mandatory control level RBC" means the product of 0.70 and the authorized control level RBC.
- (l) "RBC plan" means a comprehensive financial plan containing the elements specified in K.S.A. 40-2c06, and amendments thereto. If the commissioner rejects the RBC plan, and it is revised by the insurer, with or without the commissioner's recommendation, the plan shall be called the "revised RBC plan."
- (m) "RBC report" means the report required by K.S.A. 40-2c02, and amendments thereto.
  - (n) "Total adjusted capital" means the sum of:
  - (1) An insurer's capital and surplus or surplus only if a mutual insurer; and
  - (2) such other items, if any, as the RBC instructions may provide.
  - (o) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of insurance.
- Sec. 4. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-1621 is hereby amended to read as follows: 40-1621. Within 15 days of the date of the commissioner's approval or denial of-the\_a conversion plan submitted in accordance with K.S.A. 40-1620, and amendments thereto, or section 1, and amendments thereto, the insurance company or reciprocal shall have the right to request a hearing by filing a written request with the commissioner. The commissioner shall conduct the hearing in accordance with the provisions of the Kansas administrative procedure act within 30 days after such request is filed. Any action of the commissioner pursuant to this section is subject to review in accordance with the provisions of the Kansas judicial review act.
- Sec. 5. K.S.A. 40-1622 is hereby amended to read as follows: 40-1622. The provisions of K.S.A. 40-1620-and 40-1621, and 40-1623, 40-1624, 40-1625, 40-1626, 40-1627, 40-1628, 40-1629 and through 40-1630, and amendments thereto, and section 1, and amendments thereto, shall be a part of and supplemental to article 16 of chapter 40 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto.
- Sec. 6. K.S.A. 40-2227 is hereby amended to read as follows: 40-2227. As used in this act, unless the context requires otherwise:
- (a) "Long-term care insurance" means any insurance policy primarily advertised, marketed, offered or designed to provide coverage for not less than 12 consecutivemonths for each covered person on an expense incurred, indemnity, prepaid, or other basis, for one or more necessary or diagnostic, preventive, therapeutic, rehabilitative, maintenance, custodial, residential or personal care services, provided in a setting other than an acute care unit of a hospital. Such term"Long-term care insurance" includes group and individual policies or riders whether issued by insurers, fraternal benefit societies, nonprofit medical and hospital service corporations, prepaid health plans, health maintenance organizations, or any similar organization. "Long-term care insurance" shall not include any insurance policy-which that is offered primarily to provide basic medicare supplement coverage, basic hospital expense coverage, basic medical-surgical expense coverage, hospital confinement indemnity coverage, major medical expense coverage, disability income protection coverage, accident-only coverage, specified disease or specified accident coverage, or limited benefit health coverage, but the inclusion or attachment of long-term care insurance coverage to one of the foregoing products shall not exempt it from the requirements of this act.

- (b) "Applicant" means:
- (1) In the case of an individual long-term care insurance policy, the person who seeks to contract for such benefits; and
- (2) in the case of a group long-term care insurance policy, the proposed certificateholder.
- (c) "Certificate" means any certificate issued under a group long-term care insurance policy, which policy that has been delivered or issued for delivery in this state.
- (d) "Commissioner" means the <u>insurance commissioner of this state commissioner</u> of insurance.
- (e) "Group long-term care insurance" means a long-term care insurance policy delivered or issued for delivery in this state and issued to a group as defined in K.S.A. 40-2209, and amendments thereto. No group long-term care insurance coverage may be offered to a resident of this state under a group policy issued in another state to a group defined in K.S.A. 40-2209, and amendments thereto, unless this state, or another state having statutory and regulatory long-term care insurance requirements substantially similar to those adopted in this state, has made a determination that such requirements have been met.
- (f) "Policy" means, except as otherwise provided in subsection (e) of this section, any individual or group policy, contract, subscriber agreement, rider or endorsement delivered or issued for delivery in this state by an insurer, fraternal benefit society, nonprofit medical and hospital service corporation, prepaid health plan, health maintenance organization or any similar organization.
- Sec. 7. K.S.A. 75-6301 is hereby amended to read as follows: 75-6301. (a) There is hereby established under the jurisdiction of the commissioner of insurance a division to be known as the office of the securities commissioner of Kansas. The office shall be administered by the securities commissioner of Kansas who shall be in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act. The securities commissioner shall be appointed by the commissioner of insurance; and be subject to confirmation by the senate as provided in K.S.A. 75-4315b, and amendments thereto; The securities commissioner shall have special training and qualifications for such position—and, shall receive such compensation as may be fixed by the commissioner of insurance. The commissioner of insurance may remove the securities commissioner for official—misconduct and shall serve at the pleasure of the commissioner of insurance. Except as provided by—subsection (b)—and K.S.A. 46-2601, and amendments thereto, no person appointed as securities commissioner shall exercise any power, duty or function as securities commissioner until confirmed by the senate.
- (b) (1) The insurance commissioner shall appoint a person as securities-commissioner no later than September 1, 2017, subject to confirmation by the senate as provided in K.S.A. 75-4315b, and amendments thereto, to serve an initial term ending on January 14, 2019. Upon the expiration of the initial term under this section, and upon the expiration of each term thereafter, the commissioner of insurance shall appoint a person as securities commissioner, subject to confirmation by the senate as provided in K.S.A. 75-4315b, and amendments thereto, to serve a four-year term running-concurrently with the term of such commissioner of insurance as provided by K.S.A. 40-106, and amendments thereto. Upon occurrence of a vacancy in the office of-securities commissioner, the commissioner of insurance shall appoint a successor. If the

vacancy occurs before the expiration of a term of office, the appointment shall be for the unexpired term and shall be subject to confirmation by the senate as provided in K.S.A. 75-4315b, and amendments thereto.

- (2) The securities commissioner shall devote full time to the performance of the duties of the office of the securities commissioner.
- (c) The securities commissioner may appoint directors and other employees within the office of the securities commissioner as determined necessary by the securities commissioner to effectively carry out the mission of the office. All directors appointed after the effective date of this act shall be in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act, shall have special training and qualifications for such positions, shall serve at the pleasure of the securities commissioner and shall receive compensation fixed by the securities commissioner and approved by the commissioner of insurance.
- (d) Nothing in subsection (c) shall affect the classified status of any person employed in the office of the securities commissioner on the day immediately preceding the effective date of this act. The provisions of this subsection shall not be construed to limit the powers of the securities commissioner pursuant to K.S.A. 75-2948, and amendments thereto.
- (e) The office of the securities commissioner of Kansas shall cooperate with the insurance department to consolidate administrative functions and cross-appoint such employees as deemed necessary to provide efficiency. The commissioner of insurance and the securities commissioner are hereby authorized to enter into agreements and adopt rules and regulations as necessary to administer the provisions of this subsection.
- New Sec. 8. (a) There is hereby established in the state treasury the cancer research and public information trust fund, to be administered by the university of Kansas medical center. All moneys credited to the fund shall be used to enhance research at the university of Kansas cancer center in the areas of laboratory, clinical and population-based research; and to recruit and retain cancer researchers and clinicians to conduct cancer research, education and outreach programs for Kansans. All expenditures from the cancer research and public information trust fund shall be approved by the director of the university of Kansas cancer center or the director's designee.
- (b) On July 1, 2021, and on July 1 of each year thereafter, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer \$10,000,000 from the state general fund to the cancer research and public information trust fund.
- (c) On January 1, 2022, and on January 1 of each year thereafter, the director of the university of Kansas cancer center shall submit a report to the legislature detailing the manner that such appropriated moneys are used to enhance cancer research, cancer education and outreach programs.
- Sec. 9. K.S.A. 65-6208, as amended by section 1 of 2019 House Bill No. 2168, is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-6208. (a) Subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 65-6209, and amendments thereto, an annual assessment on services is imposed on each hospital provider in an amount—equal to not less than 1.83% of each hospital's net inpatient operating revenue and not greater than 3% of each hospital's net inpatient and outpatient operating revenue, as determined by the healthcare access improvement panel in consultation with the department of health and environment, for the hospital's fiscal year three years prior to the assessment year. In the event that a hospital does not have a complete 12-month fiscal year in such third prior fiscal year, the assessment under this section shall be \$200,000 until such date that such hospital has completed the

hospital's first 12-month fiscal year. Upon completing such first twelve-month 12-month fiscal year, such hospital's assessment under this section shall be the amount equal to not less than 1.83% of each hospital's net inpatient operating revenue and not greater than 3% of such hospital's net inpatient and outpatient operating revenue, as determined by the healthcare access improvement panel in consultation with the department of health and environment, for such first completed 12-month fiscal year.

- (b) Nothing in this act shall be construed to authorize any home rule unit or other unit of local government to license for revenue or impose a tax or assessment upon hospital providers or a tax or assessment measured by the income or earnings of a hospital provider.
- (c) (1) The department of health and environment shall submit to the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services any approval request necessary to implement the amendments made to subsection (a) by section 1 of 2019 House Bill No. 2168 and this act. If the department has submitted such a request pursuant to section 80(1) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas or section 1 of 2019 House Bill No. 2168, then the department may continue such request, or modify such request to conform to the amendments made to subsection (a) by section 1 of 2019 House Bill No. 2168 and this act, to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph.
- (2) The secretary of health and environment shall certify to the secretary of state the receipt of such approval and cause notice of such approval to be published in the Kansas register.
- (3) The amendments made to subsection (a) by section 1 of 2019 House Bill No. 2168 and this act shall take effect on and after January 1 or July 1 immediately following such publication of such approval.

Sec. 10.

### WICHITA STATE UNIVERSITY

(a) In addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by Wichita state university from the moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 as authorized by 2019 Senate Bill No. 66 or other appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, expenditures may be made by Wichita state university from the moneys appropriated from the state general fund or from any special revenue fund or funds for fiscal year 2021 to provide for the issuance of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with K.S.A. 74-8905, and amendments thereto, for a capital improvement project for the construction and equipment of a new school of business building on the innovation campus of Wichita state university: Provided, That such capital improvement project is hereby approved for Wichita state university for the purposes of K.S.A. 74-8905(b), and amendments thereto, and the authorization of the issuance of bonds by the Kansas development finance authority in accordance with that statute: Provided further, That Wichita state university may make expenditures from the moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds for such capital improvement project: Provided, however, That expenditures from the moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds for such capital improvement project shall not exceed \$25,000,000, plus all amounts required for costs of bond issuance, costs of interest on the bonds issued for such capital improvement project during the construction of such project, credit enhancement costs and any required reserves for payment of principal

and interest on the bonds: *And provided further*, That all moneys received from the issuance of any such bonds shall be deposited and accounted for as prescribed by applicable bond covenants: *And provided further*, That debt service for any such bonds for such capital improvement project shall be financed by appropriations from any appropriate special revenue fund or funds: *And provided further*, That any such bonds and interest thereon shall be an obligation only of the Kansas development finance authority, shall not constitute a debt of the state of Kansas within the meaning of section 6 or 7 of article 11 of the constitution of the state of Kansas and shall not pledge the full faith and credit or the taxing power of the state of Kansas: *And provided further*, That Wichita state university shall make provisions for the maintenance of the school of business building on the innovation campus.

Sec. 11. K.S.A. 40-1622, 40-2227, 65-6208, as amended by section 1 of 2019 House Bill No. 2168, and 75-6301 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-246c, 40-2c01 and 40-1621 are hereby repealed.";

Also on page 16, in line 25, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register";

And by renumbering remaining sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, by striking all in lines 1 through 7 and inserting "AN ACT concerning state agencies; relating to the oversight, administration and regulation of certain duties, responsibilities and activities of such state agencies; authorizing the insurance department to approve the conversion plan of a reciprocal to a mutual insurance company; allowing the insurance department flexibility in assessing certain penalties from excess lines; updating the version of risk-based capital instructions adopted by the insurance department; updating the definition of long-term care insurance utilized by the insurance department in the long-term care insurance act; revising the commissioner of insurance's authority concerning the appointment and removal of the securities commissioner; creating the cancer research and public information trust fund for the university of Kansas medical center; authorizing transfers to such fund; changing the rate of the hospital provider assessment subject to approval by the healthcare access improvement panel and imposed by the Kansas department of health and environment; concerning appropriations for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for Wichita state university; granting Wichita state university bonding authority for certain capital improvement projects; amending K.S.A. 40-1622, 40-2227, 65-6208, as amended by section 1 of 2019 House Bill No. 2168, and 75-6301 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-246c, 40-2c01 and 40-1621 and repealing the existing sections.";

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

Carolyn McGinn
Rick Billinger
Tom Hawk
Conferees on part of Senate
Troy Waymaster

Troy Waymaster
Kyle Hoffman
Kathy Wolfe Moore
Conferees on part of House

On motion of Rep. Waymaster, the conference committee report on HB 2246 was adopted.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 112; Nays 2; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 10.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Helgerson, Samsel.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Finney, Frownfelter, Horn, Kuether, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Phillips, Ruiz, L..

# INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, pursuant to subsection (k) of Joint Rule 4 of the Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives, the rules were suspended for the purpose of considering S Sub for Sub HB 2018.

### MOTION TO CONCUR AND NONCONCUR

On motion of Rep. Delperdang, the House concurred in Senate amendments to **S Sub for Sub HB 2018**, AN ACT concerning telecommunications; relating to the video competition act; video service providers; provision of communications service; definitions; restricting cities and counties from imposing certain regulations and fees; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 12-2022 and 12-2023 and repealing the existing sections.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 104; Nays 9; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 11.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, F. Patton, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard.

Nays: Awerkamp, Clayton, Highberger, Johnson, Samsel, Stogsdill, Wheeler, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bishop, Finney, Frownfelter, Horn, Kuether, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Phillips, Ruiz, L..

### MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The Senate adopts the Conference Committee report on HB 2054.

### CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

On motion of Rep. Patton to adopt the Conference Committee Report to S Sub for HB 2054, Rep. Samsel offered a priority motion to adjourn. Roll call was demanded.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 32; Nays 78; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 14.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Lusk, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, S., Samsel, Sawyer, Stogsdill, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Barker, Bishop, Finney, Frownfelter, Hineman, Horn, Kuether, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Phillips, Ruiz, L., Victors.

MR. SPEAKER and MADAM PRESIDENT: Your committee on conference on Senate amendments to **S Sub for HB 2054** submits the following report: The House accedes to all Senate amendments to the bill, and your committee on conference further agrees to amend the bill as printed as Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2054, as follows:

On page 1, by striking all in lines 9 through 36;

By striking all on pages 2 through 7;

On page 8, by striking all in lines 1 through 7; following line 7, by inserting: "Section 1.

#### LEGISLATIVE COORDINATING COUNCIL

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue
fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, all moneys now or hereafter
lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other
than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Provided. That, all moneys in the coronavirus relief fund shall be used for the purposes of relief for the effects of coronavirus in the state of Kansas as set forth in such federal grant or receipt: Provided further, That, the director of the budget shall submit each request of a state agency for expenditures from the coronavirus relief fund during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, to the legislative budget committee: And provided further, That, the legislative budget committee shall meet and review each such request of the director of the budget and shall report such committee's recommendation on each such request to the legislative coordinating council: And provided further. That, after receiving recommendations from the legislative budget committee, expenditures may be made from the coronavirus relief fund upon an affirmative vote of the legislative coordinating council in accordance with K.S.A. 46-1202, and amendments thereto, except that such disbursements and expenditures may be approved while the legislature is in session: And provided further, That, the legislative coordinating council is hereby authorized to approve the disbursement and expenditure of moneys from the coronavirus relief fund for such purposes: And provided further, That, upon receipt of such approval by the legislative coordinating council, the director of accounts and reports is hereby authorized to transfer such moneys from the coronavirus relief fund to a newly created special revenue fund of the requesting state agency: And provided further. That, there is appropriated for such requesting state agency from the newly created special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds.

(b) On the effective date of this act, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer all moneys in the coronavirus relief fund - federal fund (252-00-3753) of the governor's department to the coronavirus relief fund of the legislative coordinating council. On the effective date of this act, all liabilities of the coronavirus relief fund - federal fund are hereby transferred to and imposed on the coronavirus relief fund and the coronavirus relief fund - federal fund is hereby abolished.

Sec. 2.

## LEGISLATIVE COORDINATING COUNCIL

(a) There is appropriated for the above agency from the following special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds, except that expenditures other than refunds authorized by law shall not exceed the following:

Coronavirus relief fund No limit

Provided, That, all moneys in the coronavirus relief fund shall be used for the purposes of relief for the effects of coronavirus in the state of Kansas as set forth in such federal grant or receipt: Provided further, That, the director of the budget shall submit each request of a state agency for expenditures from the coronavirus relief fund during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, to the legislative budget committee: And provided further, That, the legislative budget committee shall meet and review each such request of the director of the budget and shall report such committee's recommendation on each such request to the legislative coordinating council: And

provided further, That, after receiving recommendations from the legislative budget committee, expenditures may be made from the coronavirus relief fund upon an affirmative vote of the legislative coordinating council in accordance with K.S.A. 46-1202, and amendments thereto, except that such disbursements and expenditures may be approved while the legislature is in session: And provided further, That, the legislative coordinating council is hereby authorized to approve the disbursement and expenditure of moneys from the coronavirus relief fund for such purposes: And provided further, That, upon receipt of such approval by the legislative coordinating council, the director of accounts and reports is hereby authorized to transfer such moneys from the coronavirus relief fund to a newly created special revenue fund of the requesting state agency: And provided further, That, there is appropriated for such requesting state agency from the newly created special revenue fund or funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, all moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds.

- Sec. 3. (a) On the effective date of this act, notwithstanding the provisions of section 189 of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas for fiscal year 2020 and section 179 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 66 for fiscal year 2021, for fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2021 concerning each federal grant or other federal receipt that is received by a state agency named in chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas or 2020 Senate Bill No. 66, that concerns moneys from the federal government for aid to the state of Kansas for coronavirus relief as appropriated in section 601(c)(2)(A) of the federal CARES act, public law 116-136, and that is not otherwise appropriated to that state agency for fiscal year 2020 or 2021 by chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 2020 Senate Bill No. 66 or this appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, such federal grant or other federal receipt is hereby appropriated for fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2021 to the coronavirus relief fund of the legislative coordinating council for the purpose set forth in such federal grant or receipt.
- (b) On the effective date of this act, the provisions of section 189 of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas for fiscal year 2020 and section 179 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 66 for fiscal year 2021, for fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2021 concerning federal grants or other federal receipt that are received by a state agency named in chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas or 2020 Senate Bill No. 66 and that concerns moneys from the federal government for aid to the state of Kansas for coronavirus relief as appropriated in section 601(c)(2)(A) of the federal CARES act, public law 116-136, shall be null and void and shall have no force and effect.
- Sec. 4. (a) On the effective date of this act, notwithstanding the provisions of section 189 of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas for fiscal year 2020 and section 179 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 66 for fiscal year 2021, in addition to the other purposes for which expenditures may be made by any state agency that is named in chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas or 2020 Senate Bill No. 66, expenditures may be made by such state agency from moneys appropriated for fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2021 by chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 2020 Senate Bill No. 66, or this appropriation act of the 2020 regular session of the legislature, to apply for and receive federal grants during fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2021, which federal grants are hereby authorized to be applied for and received by such state agencies that concerns moneys from the federal government for aid to the

state of Kansas for coronavirus relief as appropriated in the federal CARES act, public law 116-136, the coronavirus preparedness and response supplemental appropriations act, 2020, public law 116-123, the federal families first coronavirus response act, public law 116-127, the federal paycheck protection program and health care enhancement act, public law 116-139, and any other federal law that appropriates moneys to the state for aid for coronavirus relief, subject to the following provisions: Provided, That, no expenditure shall be made from and no obligation shall be incurred against any such federal grant or other federal receipt that has not been previously appropriated or reappropriated, until the legislative coordinating council has authorized the state agency to make expenditures therefrom: Provided further, That, the director of the budget shall submit each such federal grant expenditure request of a state agency concerning coronavirus relief during fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2021, to the legislative budget committee: And provided further, That, the legislative budget committee shall meet and review each such federal grant expenditure request of the director of the budget and shall report such committee's recommendation on each such federal grant expenditure request to the legislative coordinating council: And provided further, That, after receiving recommendations from the legislative budget committee, such requests may be approved upon an affirmative vote of the legislative coordinating council in accordance with K.S.A. 46-1202, and amendments thereto, except that such requests may be approved while the legislature is in session: And provided further, That the legislative coordinating council is hereby authorized to approve the requests for such purposes: And provided further, That, upon receipt of such approval by the legislative coordinating council, the requesting state agency is authorized to expend all approved moneys now or hereafter lawfully credited to and available in such fund or funds during fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2021.

- (b) On the effective date of this act, the provisions of section 189 of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas for fiscal year 2020 and section 179 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 66, for fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2021 concerning federal grants or other federal receipt that are received by a state agency named in chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas or 2020 Senate Bill No. 66 and that concerns moneys from the federal government for aid to the state of Kansas for coronavirus relief as appropriated in the federal CARES act, public law 116-136, the coronavirus preparedness and response supplemental appropriations act, 2020, public law 116-123, the federal families first coronavirus response act, public law 116-127, the federal paycheck protection program and health care enhancement act, public law 116-139, and any other federal law that appropriates moneys to the state for aid for coronavirus relief, shall be null and void and shall have no force and effect.
- New Sec. 5. (a) The state of disaster emergency that was declared by the governor pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto, by proclamation on March 12, 2020, which was ratified and continued in force and effect through May 1, 2020, by 2020 House Concurrent Resolution No. 5025, adopted by the house of representatives with the senate concurring therein on March 19, 2020, and declared by proclamation on April 30, 2020, which was extended and continued in existence by the state finance council on May 13, 2020, for an additional 12 days through May 26, 2020, for all 105 counties of Kansas, as a result of the COVID-19 health emergency, is hereby ratified and continued in existence from March 12, 2020, through May 31, 2020.
  - (b) The governor shall not proclaim any new state of disaster emergency related to

- the COVID-19 health emergency during 2020, unless the governor makes specific application to the state finance council and an affirmative vote of at least six of the legislative members of the council approve such action by the governor.
- (c) Notwithstanding section 6, and amendments thereto, if the governor proclaims a new state of disaster emergency as described in subsection (b), the governor shall make specific application to the state finance council and an affirmative vote of at least six of the legislative members of the council shall be required to order the closure or cessation of any business or commercial activity.
- New Sec. 6. (a) During any state of disaster emergency declared pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto, the governor may order the closure or cessation of any business or commercial activity, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, in response to any or all conditions necessitating the declared state of disaster emergency for 15 days. Only upon specific application by the governor to the state finance council and an affirmative vote of at least six of the legislative members of the council, the closure or cessation of business or commercial activity may be extended for specified periods not to exceed 30 days each.
- (b) Any order issued that violates or exceeds the restrictions provided in subsection (a) shall not have the force and effect of law during the period of a state of disaster emergency declared under K.S.A. 48-924(b), and amendments thereto, and any such order shall be null and void.
  - (c) The provisions of this section shall expire on January 26, 2021.
- New Sec. 7. Sections 7 through 13, and amendments thereto, shall be known and may be cited as the COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act.
- New Sec. 8. As used in the COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act, unless the context otherwise requires:
- (a) "COVID-19" means the novel coronavirus identified as SARSCoV-2, the disease caused by the novel coronavirus SARS-CoV-2 and conditions associated with such disease.
- (b) "COVID-19 claim" means any claim for damages, losses, indemnification, contribution or other relief arising out of or based on exposure or potential exposure to COVID-19. "COVID-19 claim" includes a claim made by or on behalf of any person who has been exposed or potentially exposed to COVID-19, or any representative, spouse, parent, child or other relative of such person, for injury, including mental or emotional injury, death or loss to person, risk of disease or other injury, costs of medical monitoring or surveillance, or other losses allegedly caused by the person's exposure or potential exposure to COVID-19.
- (c) "COVID-19 public health emergency" means the state of disaster emergency declared for the state of Kansas on March 12, 2020, any subsequent orders or amendments to such orders and any subsequent disaster emergency declared for the state of Kansas regarding the COVID-19 pandemic.
- (d) "Disinfecting or cleaning supplies" includes, but is not limited to, hand sanitizers, disinfectants, sprays and wipes.
- (e) "Healthcare provider" means a person or entity that is licensed, registered, certified or otherwise authorized by the state of Kansas to provide healthcare services in this state, including a hospice certified to participate in the medicare program under 42 C.F.R. § 418 et seq. and any entity licensed under chapter 39 of the Kansas Statutes

Annotated, and amendments thereto.

- (f) "Person" means an individual, association, for-profit or not-for-profit business entity, postsecondary educational institution as defined in K.S.A. 74-3201b, and amendments thereto, nonprofit organization, religious organization or charitable organization.
- (g) "Personal protective equipment" means coveralls, face shields, gloves, gowns, masks, respirators or other equipment designed to protect the wearer from the spread of infection or illness.
- (h) "Product liability claim" means any strict liability, ordinary negligence or implied warranty claim or action brought for harm caused by the manufacture, production, making, construction, fabrication, design, formula, preparation, assembly, installation, testing, warnings, instructions, marketing, packaging, storage or labeling of the relevant product.
- (i) "Public health guidance" means written guidance related to COVID-19 issued by the United States centers for disease control and prevention, the occupational safety and health administration of the United States department of labor, the Kansas department of health and environment, the Kansas department for aging and disability services, the Kansas department of labor, another state agency or a municipality.
- (j) "Qualified product" means: (1) Personal protective equipment used to protect the wearer from COVID-19 or the spread of COVID-19; (2) medical devices, equipment and supplies used to treat COVID-19, including products that are used or modified for an unapproved use to treat COVID-19 or prevent the spread of COVID-19; (3) medical devices, equipment or supplies utilized outside of the product's normal use to treat COVID-19 or to prevent the spread of COVID-19; (4) medications used to treat COVID-19, including medications prescribed or dispensed for offlabel use to attempt to combat COVID-19; (5) tests used to diagnose or determine immunity to COVID-19; (6) disinfecting or cleaning supplies; (7) clinical laboratory services certified under the federal clinical laboratory improvement amendments in section 353 of the public health service act, 42 U.S.C. § 263a; and (8) components of qualified products.
- New Sec. 9. (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, except as provided in subsection (c), a healthcare provider is immune from civil liability for damages, administrative fines or penalties for acts, omissions, healthcare decisions or the rendering of or the failure to render healthcare services, including services that are altered, delayed or withheld, as a direct response to any state of disaster emergency declared pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto, related to the COVID-19 public health emergency.
- (b) The provisions of this section shall apply to any claims for damages or liability that arise out of or relate to acts, omissions or healthcare decisions occurring during any state of disaster emergency declared pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto, related to the COVID-19 public health emergency.
- (c) (1) The provisions of this section shall not apply to civil liability when it is established that the act, omission or healthcare decision constituted gross negligence or willful, wanton or reckless conduct.
- (2) The provisions of this section shall not apply to healthcare services not related to COVID-19 that have not been altered, delayed or withheld as a direct response to the COVID-19 public health emergency.
  - New Sec. 10. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a person, or an agent of

such person, conducting business in this state shall not be held liable for a COVID-19 claim if the act or omission alleged to violate a duty of care was mandated or specifically and affirmatively permitted by a federal or state statute, regulation or executive order passed or issued in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and applicable to the activity at issue at the time of the alleged exposure.

- New Sec. 11. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a person who designs, manufactures, labels, sells, distributes, provides or donates a qualified product in response to the COVID-19 public health emergency shall not be liable in a civil action alleging a product liability claim arising out of such qualified product if:
- (a) The product was manufactured, labeled, sold, distributed, provided or donated at the specific request of or in response to a written order or other directive finding a public need for a qualified product issued by the governor, the adjutant general or the division of emergency management; and
- (b) the damages are not occasioned by willful, wanton or reckless disregard of a known, substantial and unnecessary risk that the product would cause serious injury to others.

New Sec. 12. Nothing in the COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act:

- (a) Creates, recognizes or ratifies a claim or cause of action of any kind;
- (b) eliminates a required element of any claim;
- (c) affects workers' compensation law, including the exclusive application of such law; or
  - (d) amends, repeals, alters or affects any other immunity or limitation of liability.

New Sec. 13. The provisions of sections 10 through 12, and amendments thereto, shall apply retroactively to any cause of action accruing on or after March 12, 2020.

New Sec. 14. All notarial acts performed by a notary public of this state while the requirements that a person must appear before a notary public are suspended pursuant to an executive order or other state law, shall be valid as if the individual had appeared before the notary public, notwithstanding any failure of any individual to appear personally before the notary public, if the notarial act meets all requirements prescribed by such executive order or other state law and all requirements prescribed by law that do not relate to appearance before the notary public.

New Sec. 15. (a) During a state of disaster emergency declared under K.S A. 48-924, and amendments thereto, related to the COVID-19 public health emergency, each county health officer shall work with first responder agencies operating in the county to establish a method to share information indicating where a person testing positive for or under quarantine or isolation due to COVID-19 resides or can be expected to be present. Such information shall:

- (1) Include the address for such person and, as applicable, the duration of the quarantine, isolation or expected recovery period for such person as determined by the county health officer; and
- (2) only be used for the purpose of allowing the first responders to be alert to the need for utilizing appropriate personal protective equipment during the response activity.
- (b) The information described in subsection (a) shall be provided to the 911 call center for the area serving the address provided. The 911 call center shall disseminate the information only to first responders responding to the listed address.

- (c) All information provided or disseminated under this section shall not be a public record and shall not be subject to the Kansas open records act, K.S.A. 45-215 et seq., and amendments thereto. The provisions of this subsection shall expire on July 1, 2025, unless the legislature reviews and reenacts this provision pursuant to K.S.A. 45-229, and amendments thereto.
- New Sec. 16. The Kansas department for aging and disability services shall, for all entities required to be licensed pursuant to article 9 of chapter 39 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto:
- (a) Promptly, and in no case later than 30 days following the effective date of this act, make or cause to be made infection control inspections;
- (b) provide the necessary personal protective equipment, sanitizing supplies and testing kits appropriate to the needs of each facility on an ongoing basis, based upon:
  - (1) The current number of residents;
  - (2) the current number of full-time and part-time staff members;
- (3) the number of residents and staff who have tested positive for COVID-19 in the last 14 days;
  - (4) the ability to separate COVID-19 residents from non-COVID-19 residents; and
  - (5) any other factors deemed relevant by the secretary; and
- (c) ensure that infection prevention and control best practices and recommendations based upon guidance from the United States centers for disease control and prevention and the Kansas department of health and environment are adopted and made available publicly.
- New Sec. 17. (a) A physician may issue a prescription for or order the administration of medication, including a controlled substance, for a patient without conducting an in-person examination of such patient.
- (b) A physician under quarantine, including self-imposed quarantine, may practice telemedicine.
- (c) (1) A physician holding a license issued by the applicable licensing agency of another state may practice telemedicine to treat patients located in the state of Kansas, if such out-of-state physician:
- (A) Advises the state board of healing arts of such practice in writing and in a manner determined by the state board of healing arts; and
- (B) holds an unrestricted license to practice medicine and surgery in the other state and is not the subject of any investigation or disciplinary action by the applicable licensing agency.
- (2) The state board of healing arts may extend the provisions of this subsection to other healthcare professionals licensed and regulated by the board as deemed necessary by the board to address the impacts of COVID-19 and consistent with ensuring patient safety.
- (d) A physician practicing telemedicine in accordance with this section shall conduct an appropriate assessment and evaluation of the patient's current condition and document the appropriate medical indication for any prescription issued.
- (e) Nothing in this section shall supersede or otherwise affect the provisions of K.S.A. 65-4a10, and amendments thereto, or K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 40-2,215, and amendments thereto.
  - (f) As used in this section:
  - (1) "Physician" means a person licensed to practice medicine and surgery.

- (2) "Telemedicine" means the delivery of healthcare services by a healthcare provider while the patient is at a different physical location.
  - (g) This section shall expire on January 26, 2021.
- New Sec. 18. (a) (1) A hospital may admit patients in excess of such hospital's number of licensed beds or inconsistent with the licensed classification of such hospital's beds to the extent that such hospital determines is necessary to treat COVID-19 patients and to separate COVID-19 patients and non-COVID-19 patients.
- (2) A hospital admitting patients in such manner shall notify the department of health and environment as soon as practicable but shall not be required to receive prior authorization to admit patients in such manner.
- (b) (1) A hospital may utilize non-hospital space, including off-campus space, to perform COVID-19 testing, triage, quarantine or patient care to the extent that such hospital determines is necessary to treat COVID-19 patients and to separate COVID-19 patients and non-COVID-19 patients.
- (2) The department of health and environment may impose reasonable safety requirements on such use of non-hospital space to maximize the availability of patient care.
- (3) Non-hospital space used in such manner shall be deemed to meet the requirements of K.S.A. 65-431(d), and amendments thereto.
- (4) A hospital utilizing non-hospital space in such manner shall notify the department of health and environment as soon as practicable but shall not be required to receive prior authorization to utilize non-hospital space in such manner.
- (c) A medical care facility may permit healthcare providers authorized to provide healthcare services in the state of Kansas to provide healthcare services at such medical care facility without becoming a member of the medical care facility's medical staff.
- (d) As used in this section, "hospital" and "medical care facility" mean the same as defined in K.S.A. 65-425, and amendments thereto.
- (e) This section shall expire 120 calendar days after the expiration or termination of the state of disaster emergency proclamation issued by the governor in response to the COVID-19 public health emergency, or any extension thereof.
- New Sec. 19. (a) Notwithstanding any statute to the contrary, the state board of healing arts may grant a temporary emergency license to practice any profession licensed, certified, registered or regulated by the board to an applicant with qualifications the board deems sufficient to protect public safety and welfare within the scope of professional practice authorized by the temporary emergency license for the purpose of preparing for, responding to or mitigating any effect of COVID-19.
  - (b) This section shall expire on January 26, 2021.
- New Sec. 20. (a) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-28a08 and 65-28a09, and amendments thereto, or any other statute to the contrary, a licensed physician assistant may provide healthcare services appropriate to such physician assistant's education, training and experience within a designated healthcare facility at which the physician assistant is employed or contracted to work as necessary to support the facility's response to the COVID-19 pandemic without a written agreement with a supervising physician. Such physician assistant shall not be liable in any criminal prosecution, civil action or administrative proceeding arising out of such physician assistant's lack of written agreement with a supervising physician.
  - (b) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-1130, and amendments thereto, or

any other statute to the contrary, a licensed advanced practice registered nurse may provide healthcare services appropriate to such advanced practice registered nurse's education, training and experience within a designated healthcare facility at which the advanced practice registered nurse is employed or contracted to work as necessary to support the facility's response to the COVID-19 pandemic without direction and supervision from a responsible physician. Such advanced practice registered nurse shall not be liable in any criminal prosecution, civil action or administrative proceeding arising out of such advanced practice registered nurse's lack of direction and supervision from a responsible physician.

- (c) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-1158, and amendments thereto, or any other statute to the contrary, a registered nurse anesthetist may provide healthcare services appropriate to such registered nurse anesthetist's education, training and experience within a designated healthcare facility at which the registered nurse anesthetist is employed or contracted to work as necessary to support the facility's response to the COVID-19 pandemic without direction and supervision from a physician. Such registered nurse anesthetist shall not be liable in any criminal prosecution, civil action or administrative proceeding arising out of such registered nurse anesthetist's lack of direction and supervision from a physician.
- (d) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-1113, and amendments thereto, or any other statute to the contrary:
- (1) A registered professional nurse or licensed practical nurse may order the collection of throat or nasopharyngeal swab specimens from individuals suspected of being infected by COVID-19 for purposes of testing; and
- (2) a licensed practical nurse may provide healthcare services appropriate to such licensed practical nurse's education, training and experience within a designated healthcare facility at which the licensed practical nurse is employed or contracted to work as necessary to support the facility's response to the COVID-19 pandemic without direction from a registered professional nurse. Such licensed practical nurse shall not be liable in any criminal prosecution, civil action or administrative proceeding arising out of such licensed practical nurse's lack of supervision from a registered professional nurse.
- (e) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-1626a, and amendments thereto, or any other statute to the contrary, a licensed pharmacist may provide care for routine health maintenance, chronic disease states or similar conditions appropriate to such pharmacist's education, training and experience within a designated healthcare facility at which the pharmacist is employed or contracted to work as necessary to support the facility's response to the COVID-19 pandemic without a collaborative practice agreement with a physician. Such pharmacist shall not be liable in any criminal prosecution, civil action or administrative proceeding arising out of such pharmacist's lack of collaborative practice agreement with a physician.
- (f) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 65-1115, 65-1116 and 65-1117, and amendments thereto, or any other statute to the contrary, a registered professional nurse or licensed practical nurse who holds a license that is exempt or inactive or whose license has lapsed within the past five years from the effective date of this act may provide healthcare services appropriate to the nurse's education, training and experience. Such registered professional nurse or licensed practical nurse shall not be liable in any criminal prosecution, civil action or administrative proceeding arising out

of such nurse's exempt, inactive or lapsed license.

- (g) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, a designated healthcare facility may, as necessary to support the facility's response to the COVID-19 pandemic:
- (1) Allow a student who is enrolled in a program to become a licensed, registered or certified healthcare professional to volunteer for work within such facility in roles that are appropriate to such student's education, training and experience;
- (2) allow a licensed, registered or certified healthcare professional or emergency medical personnel who is serving in the military in any duty status to volunteer or work within such facility in roles that are appropriate to such military service member's education, training and experience; and
- (3) allow a medical student, physical therapist or emergency medical services provider to volunteer or work within such facility as a respiratory therapist extender under the supervision of a physician, respiratory therapist or advanced practice registered nurse. Such respiratory therapist extender may assist respiratory therapists and other healthcare professionals in the operation of ventilators and related devices and may provide other healthcare services appropriate to such respiratory therapist extender's education, training and experience, as determined by the facility in consultation with such facility's medical leadership.
- (h) Notwithstanding any statute to the contrary, a healthcare professional licensed and in good standing in another state may practice such profession in the state of Kansas. For purposes of this subsection, a license that has been suspended or revoked or a licensee that is subject to pending license-related disciplinary action shall not be considered to be in good standing. Any license that is subject to limitation in another state shall be subject to the same limitation in the state of Kansas. Such healthcare professional shall not be liable in any criminal prosecution, civil action or administrative proceeding arising out of such healthcare professional's lack of licensure in the state of Kansas.
- (i) Notwithstanding any statute to the contrary, a designated healthcare facility may use a qualified volunteer or qualified personnel affiliated with any other designated healthcare facility as if such volunteer or personnel was affiliated with the facility using such volunteer or personnel, subject to any terms and conditions established by the secretary of health and environment.
- (j) Notwithstanding any statute to the contrary, a healthcare professional may be licensed, certified or registered or may have such license, certification or registration reinstated within five years of lapse or renewed by the applicable licensing agency of the state of Kansas without satisfying the following conditions of licensure, certification or registration:
- (1) An examination, if such examination's administration has been canceled while the state of disaster emergency proclamation issued by the governor in response to the COVID-19 pandemic is in effect;
  - (2) fingerprinting;
  - (3) continuing education; and
  - (4) payment of a fee.
- (k) Notwithstanding any statute to the contrary, a professional certification in basic life support, advanced cardiac life support or first aid shall remain valid if such professional certification is due to expire or be canceled while the state of disaster

emergency proclamation issued by the governor in response to the COVID-19 pandemic is in effect.

- (l) Notwithstanding any statute to the contrary, fingerprinting of any individual shall not be required as a condition of licensure and certification for any hospital, as defined in K.S.A. 65-425, and amendments thereto, adult care home, county medical care facility or psychiatric hospital.
  - (m) As used in this section:
- (1) "Appropriate to such professional's education, training and experience," or words of like effect, shall be determined by the designated healthcare facility in consultation with such facility's medical leadership; and
  - (2) "designated healthcare facility" means:
  - (A) Entities listed in K.S.A. 40-3401(f), and amendments thereto;
  - (B) state-owned surgical centers;
  - (C) state-operated hospitals and veterans facilities;
- (D) entities used as surge capacity by any entity described in subparagraphs (A) through (C);
  - (E) adult care homes; and
- (F) any other location specifically designated by the governor or the secretary of health and environment to exclusively treat patients for COVID-19.
  - (n) The provisions of this section shall expire on January 26, 2021.
- Sec. 21. Section 1 of 2020 House Substitute for Senate Bill No. 102 is hereby amended to read as follows: Sec. 1. (a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, during any state of disaster emergency pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto, the chief justice of the Kansas supreme court may issue an order to extend or suspend any deadlines or time limitations established by statute when the chief justice determines such action is necessary to secure the health and safety of court users, staff and judicial officers.
- (b) Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, during any state of disasteremergency pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto, the chief justice of the Kansas supreme court may issue an order to authorize the use of two-way electronic audio-visual communication in any court proceeding when the chief justice determines such action is necessary to secure the health and safety of court users, staff and judicial officers.
- (c) Any order issued pursuant to-this section subsection (a) may remain in effect for up to 150 days after a state of disaster emergency is terminated pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto. Any order in violation of this section shall be void.
  - (d) The provisions of this section shall expire on March 31, 2021.
- Sec. 22. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 19-101a is hereby amended to read as follows: 19-101a.(a) The board of county commissioners may transact all county business and perform all powers of local legislation and administration it deems appropriate, subject only to the following limitations, restrictions or prohibitions:
- (1) Counties shall be subject to all acts of the legislature which apply uniformly to all counties.
  - (2) Counties may not affect the courts located therein.
- (3) Counties shall be subject to acts of the legislature prescribing limits of indebtedness.
  - (4) In the exercise of powers of local legislation and administration authorized

under provisions of this section, the home rule power conferred on cities to determine their local affairs and government shall not be superseded or impaired without the consent of the governing body of each city within a county which may be affected.

- (5) Counties may not legislate on social welfare administered under state law enacted pursuant to or in conformity with public law No.  $271 74^{th}$  congress, or amendments thereof.
- (6) Counties shall be subject to all acts of the legislature concerning elections, election commissioners and officers and their duties as such officers and the election of county officers.
- (7) Counties shall be subject to the limitations and prohibitions imposed under K.S.A. 12-187 through 12-195, and amendments thereto, prescribing limitations upon the levy of retailers' sales taxes by counties.
- (8) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in statutes made nonuniform in application solely by reason of authorizing exceptions for counties having adopted a charter for county government.
- (9) No county may levy ad valorem taxes under the authority of this section upon real property located within any redevelopment project area established under the authority of K.S.A. 12-1772, and amendments thereto, unless the resolution authorizing the same specifically authorized a portion of the proceeds of such levy to be used to pay the principal of and interest upon bonds issued by a city under the authority of K.S.A. 12-1774, and amendments thereto.
- (10) Counties shall have no power under this section to exempt from any statute authorizing or requiring the levy of taxes and providing substitute and additional provisions on the same subject, unless the resolution authorizing the same specifically provides for a portion of the proceeds of such levy to be used to pay a portion of the principal and interest on bonds issued by cities under the authority of K.S.A. 12-1774, and amendments thereto.
- (11) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in the provisions of K.S.A. 19-4601 through 19-4625, and amendments thereto.
- (12) Except as otherwise specifically authorized by K.S.A. 12-1,101 through 12-1,109, and amendments thereto, counties may not levy and collect taxes on incomes from whatever source derived.
- (13) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 19-430, and amendments thereto.
- (14) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 19-302, 19-502b, 19-503, 19-805 or 19-1202, and amendments thereto.
- (15) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 19-15,139, 19-15,140 and 19-15,141, and amendments thereto.
- (16) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1223, 12-1225, 12-1225a, 12-1225b, 12-1225c and 12-1226, and amendments thereto, or the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1260 through 12-1270 and 12-1276, and amendments thereto.
- (17) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in the provisions of K.S.A. 19-211, and amendments thereto.
- (18) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in the provisions of K.S.A. 19-4001 through 19-4015, and amendments thereto.
  - (19) Counties may not regulate the production or drilling of any oil or gas well in

any manner which would result in the duplication of regulation by the state corporation commission and the Kansas department of health and environment pursuant to chapter 55 and chapter 65 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, and any rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto. Counties may not require any license or permit for the drilling or production of oil and gas wells. Counties may not impose any fee or charge for the drilling or production of any oil or gas well.

- (20) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 79-41a04, and amendments thereto.
- (21) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 79-1611, and amendments thereto.
- (22) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 79-1494, and amendments thereto.
- (23) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 19-202(b), and amendments thereto.
- (24) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 19-204(b), and amendments thereto.
- (25) Counties may not levy or impose an excise, severance or any other tax in the nature of an excise tax upon the physical severance and production of any mineral or other material from the earth or water.
- (26) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 79-2017 or 79-2101, and amendments thereto.
- (27) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 2-3302, 2-3305, 2-3307, 2-3318, 17-5904, 17-5908, 47-1219, 65-171d, 65-1,178 through 65-1,199, 65-3001 through 65-3028, and amendments thereto.
- (28) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 80-121, and amendments thereto.
- (29) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 19-228, and amendments thereto.
  - (30) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in the Kansas 911 act.
- (31) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 26-601, and amendments thereto.
- (32) (A) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in the Kansas liquor control act except as provided by paragraph (B).
- (B) Counties may adopt resolutions which are not in conflict with the Kansas liquor control act.
- (33) (A) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in the Kansas cereal malt beverage act except as provided by paragraph (B).
- (B) Counties may adopt resolutions which are not in conflict with the Kansas cereal malt beverage act.
  - (34) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in the Kansas lottery act.
- (35) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in the Kansas expanded lottery act.
- (36) Counties may neither exempt from nor effect changes to the eminent domain procedure act.
- (37) Any county granted authority pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 19-5001 through 19-5005, and amendments thereto, shall be subject to the limitations and prohibitions imposed under K.S.A. 19-5001 through 19-5005, and amendments thereto.

- (38) Except as otherwise specifically authorized by K.S.A. 19-5001 through 19-5005, and amendments thereto, counties may not exercise any authority granted pursuant to K.S.A. 19-5001 through 19-5005, and amendments thereto, including the imposition or levy of any retailers' sales tax.
- (39) Counties may not exempt from or effect changes in K.S.A. 65-201 and 65-202, and amendments thereto.
- (b) Counties shall apply the powers of local legislation granted in subsection (a) by resolution of the board of county commissioners. If no statutory authority exists for such local legislation other than that set forth in subsection (a) and the local legislation proposed under the authority of such subsection is not contrary to any act of the legislature, such local legislation shall become effective upon passage of a resolution of the board and publication in the official county newspaper. If the legislation proposed by the board under authority of subsection (a) is contrary to an act of the legislature which is applicable to the particular county but not uniformly applicable to all counties, such legislation shall become effective by passage of a charter resolution in the manner provided in K.S.A. 19-101b, and amendments thereto.
- (c) Any resolution adopted by a county which conflicts with the restrictions in subsection (a) is null and void.
- Sec. 23. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 41-2653 is hereby amended to read as follows: 41-2653. (a) In addition to the rights of a licensee pursuant to provisions of K.S.A. 41-2637, 41-2641 or 41-2642, and amendments thereto, a class A club license, class B club license or drinking establishment license shall allow the licensee to allow legal patrons of the club or drinking establishment to remove from the licensed premises one or more opened containers of alcoholic liquor, subject to the following conditions:
- (1) It must be legal for the licensee to sell the alcoholic liquor in its original container;
  - (2) the alcoholic liquor must be in its original container;
- (3) each container of alcoholic liquor must have been purchased by a patron and the alcoholic liquor in each container must have been partially consumed on the licensed premises:
- (4) the licensee or the licensee's employee must provide the patron with a dated receipt for the unfinished container or containers of alcoholic liquor; and
- (5) before the container of alcoholic liquor is removed from the licensed premises, the licensee or the licensee's employee must securely reseal each container, place the container in a tamper-proof, transparent bag which is sealed in a manner that makes it visibly apparent if the bag is subsequently tampered with or opened.
- (b) (1) In addition to the rights of a licensee pursuant to provisions of K.S.A. 41-2637, 41-2641 or 41-2642, and amendments thereto, and the provisions of subsection (a), a class A club license, class B club license or drinking establishment license shall allow the licensee to allow legal patrons of the club or drinking establishment to remove from the licensed premises one or more containers of alcoholic liquor that is not in the original container, subject to the following conditions:
  - (A) It must be legal for the licensee to sell the alcoholic liquor;
- (B) each container of alcoholic liquor must have been purchased by a patron on the licensed premises;
- (C) the licensee or the licensee's employee must provide the patron with a dated receipt for the alcoholic liquor; and

- (D) before the container of alcoholic liquor is removed from the licensed premises, the licensee or the licensee's employee must place the container in a transparent bag that is sealed in a manner that makes it visibly apparent if the bag is subsequently tampered with or opened.
  - (2) The provisions of this subsection shall expire on January 26, 2021.
- (c) This section shall be part of and supplemental to the club and drinking establishment act.
- Sec. 24. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-702 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-702. As a guide to the interpretation and application of this act, the public policy of this state is declared to be as follows: Economic insecurity, due to unemployment, is a serious menace to health, morals, and welfare of the people of this state. Involuntary unemployment is therefore a subject of general interest and concern-which that requires appropriate action by the legislature to prevent its spread and to lighten its burden which that now so often falls with crushing force upon the unemployed worker and such worker's family. The achievement of social security requires protection against this greatest hazard of our economic life. This can be provided by encouraging employers to provide more stable employment and by the systematic accumulation of funds during periods of employment to provide benefits for periods of unemployment, thus maintaining purchasing power and limiting the serious social consequences of poorrelief assistance. The legislature, therefore, declares that in its considered judgment the public good and the general welfare of the citizens of this state require the enactment of this measure, under the police powers of the state, for the compulsory setting aside of unemployment reserves to be used for the benefit of persons unemployed. The state of Kansas is committed to maintaining and strengthening access to the unemployment compensation system, including through initial and continuing claims. All persons and employers are entitled to a neutral interpretation of the employment security law.
- Sec. 25. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-705, as amended by section 2 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 27, is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-705. Except as provided by K.S.A. 44-757, and amendments thereto, an unemployed individual shall be eligible to receive benefits with respect to any week only if the secretary, or a person or persons designated by the secretary, finds that:
- (a) The claimant has registered for work at and thereafter continued to report at an employment office in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary, except that, subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 44-704(a), and amendments thereto, the secretary may adopt rules and regulations that waive or alter either or both of the requirements of this subsection.
- (b) The claimant has made a claim for benefits with respect to such week in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary.
- (c) The claimant is able to perform the duties of such claimant's customary occupation or the duties of other occupations that the claimant is reasonably fitted by training or experience, and is available for work, as demonstrated by the claimant's pursuit of the full course of action most reasonably calculated to result in the claimant's reemployment except that, notwithstanding any other provisions of this section, an unemployed claimant otherwise eligible for benefits shall not become ineligible for benefits: (1) Because of the claimant's enrollment in and satisfactory pursuit of approved training, including training approved under section 236(a)(1) of the trade act of 1974;—or (2) solely because such individual is seeking only part-time employment if

the individual is available for a number of hours per week that are comparable to the individual's part-time work experience in the base period; or (3) because a claimant is not actively seeking work: (i) During a state of disaster emergency proclaimed by the governor pursuant to K.S.A. 48-924 and 48-925, and amendments thereto; (ii) in response to the spread of the public health emergency of COVID-19; and (iii) the state's temporary waiver of the work search requirement under the employment security law for such claimant is in compliance with the families first coronavirus response act, public law 116-127.

For the purposes of this subsection, an inmate of a custodial or correctional institution shall be deemed to be unavailable for work and not eligible to receive unemployment compensation while incarcerated.

- (d) (1) Except as provided further, the claimant has been unemployed for a waiting period of one week or the claimant is unemployed and has satisfied the requirement for a waiting period of one week under the shared work unemployment compensation program as provided in K.S.A. 44-757(k)(4), and amendments thereto, and that period of one week, in either case, occurs within the benefit year that includes the week for which the claimant is claiming benefits. No week shall be counted as a week of unemployment for the purposes of this subsection:
  - (A) If benefits have been paid for such week;
- (B) if the individual fails to meet with the other eligibility requirements of this section; or
- (C) if an individual is seeking unemployment benefits under the unemployment compensation law of any other state or of the United States, except that if the appropriate agency of such state or of the United States finally determines that the claimant is not entitled to unemployment benefits under such other law, this subparagraph shall not apply.
  - (2) (A) The waiting week requirement of paragraph (1) shall not apply to:
- (i) New claims by claimants who become unemployed as a result of an employer terminating business operations within this state, declaring bankruptcy or initiating a work force reduction pursuant to public law 100-379, the federal worker adjustment and retraining notification act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 2101 through 2109, as amended; or
- (ii) new claims filed on or after April 5, 2020, through December 26, 2020, in accordance with the families first coronavirus response act, public law 116-127 and the federal CARES act, public law 116-136.
- (B) The secretary shall adopt rules and regulations to administer the provisions of this paragraph.
- (3) If the waiting week requirement of paragraph (1) applies, a claimant shall become eligible to receive compensation for the waiting period of one week, pursuant to paragraph (1), upon completion of three weeks of unemployment consecutive to such waiting period. This paragraph shall not apply to initial claims effective on and after April 1, 2021.
- (e) For benefit years established on and after the effective date of this act, the claimant has been paid total wages for insured work in the claimant's base period of not less than 30 times the claimant's weekly benefit amount and has been paid wages in more than one quarter of the claimant's base period, except that the wage credits of an individual earned during the period commencing with the end of a prior base period and ending on the date that such individual filed a valid initial claim shall not be available

for benefit purposes in a subsequent benefit year unless, in addition thereto, such individual has returned to work and subsequently earned wages for insured work in an amount equal to at least eight times the claimant's current weekly benefit amount.

- (f) The claimant participates in reemployment services, such as job search assistance services, if the individual has been determined to be likely to exhaust regular benefits and needs reemployment services pursuant to a profiling system established by the secretary, unless the secretary determines that: (1) The individual has completed such services; or (2) there is justifiable cause for the claimant's failure to participate in such services.
- (g) The claimant is returning to work after a qualifying injury and has been paid total wages for insured work in the claimant's alternative base period of not less than 30 times the claimant's weekly benefit amount and has been paid wages in more than one quarter of the claimant's alternative base period if:
- (1) The claimant has filed for benefits within four weeks of being released to return to work by a licensed and practicing health care provider;
- (2) the claimant files for benefits within 24 months of the date the qualifying injury occurred; and
- (3) the claimant attempted to return to work with the employer where the qualifying injury occurred, but the individual's regular work or comparable and suitable work was not available.
- Sec. 26. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-709 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-709. (a) *Filing*. Claims for benefits shall be made in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary. The secretary shall furnish a copy of such rules and regulations to any individual requesting them. Each employer shall: (1) Post and maintain printed statements furnished by the secretary without cost to the employer in places readily accessible to individuals in the service of the employer; and (2) provide any other notification to individuals in the service of the employer as required by the secretary pursuant to the families first coronavirus response act, public law 116-127.
- (b) Determination. (1) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, a representative designated by the secretary, and hereinafter referred to as an examiner, shall promptly examine the claim and, on the basis of the facts found by the examiner, shall determine whether or not the claim is valid. If the examiner determines that the claim is valid, the examiner shall determine the first day of the benefit year, the weekly benefit amount and the total amount of benefits payable with respect to the benefit year. If the claim is determined to be valid, the examiner shall send a notice to the last employing unit who shall respond within 10 days by providing the examiner all requested information including all information required for a decision under K.S.A. 44-706, and amendments thereto. The information may be submitted by the employing unit in person at an employment office of the secretary or by mail, by telefacsimile machine or by electronic mail. If the required information is not submitted or postmarked within a response time limit of 10 days after the examiner's notice was sent, the employing unit shall be deemed to have waived its standing as a party to the proceedings arising from the claim and shall be barred from protesting any subsequent decisions about the claim by the secretary, a referee, the employment security board of review or any court, except that the employing unit's response time limit may be waived or extended by the examiner or upon appeal, if timely response was impossible due to excusable neglect. In any case in which the payment or denial of benefits will be

determined by the provisions of K.S.A. 44-706(d), and amendments thereto, the examiner shall promptly transmit the claim to a special examiner designated by the secretary to make a determination on the claim after the investigation as the special examiner deems necessary. The parties shall be promptly notified of the special examiner's decision and any party aggrieved by the decision may appeal to the referee as provided in subsection (c). The claimant and the claimant's most recent employing unit shall be promptly notified of the examiner's or special examiner's decision.

- (2) The examiner may for good cause reconsider the examiner's decision and shall promptly notify the claimant and the most recent employing unit of the claimant, that the decision of the examiner is to be reconsidered, except that no reconsideration shall be made after the termination of the benefit year.
- (3) Notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, a decision of an examiner or special examiner shall be final unless the claimant or the most recent employing unit of the claimant files an appeal from the decision as provided in subsection (c), except that the time limit for appeal may be waived or extended by the referee or board of review if a timely response was impossible due to excusable neglect. The appeal must be filed within 16 calendar days after the mailing of notice to the last known addresses of the claimant and employing unit or, if notice is not by mail, within 16 calendar days after the delivery of the notice to the parties.
- (c) Appeals. Unless the appeal is withdrawn, a referee, after affording the parties reasonable opportunity for fair hearing, shall affirm or modify the findings of fact and decision of the examiner or special examiner. The parties shall be duly notified of the referee's decision, together with the reasons for the decision. The decision shall be final, notwithstanding the provisions of any other statute, unless a further appeal to the employment security board of review is filed within 16 calendar days after the mailing of the decision to the parties' last known addresses or, if notice is not by mail, within 16 calendar days after the delivery of the decision, except that the time limit for appeal may be waived or extended by the referee or board of review if a timely response was impossible due to excusable neglect.
- (d) Referees. The secretary shall appoint, in accordance with K.S.A. 44-714(c), and amendments thereto, one or more referees to hear and decide disputed claims.
- (e) *Time, computation and extension*. In computing the period of time for an employing unit response or for appeals under this section from the examiner's or the special examiner's determination or from the referee's decision, the day of the act, event or default from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not be included. The last day of the period shall be included unless it is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, in which event the period runs until the end of the next day—which that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.
- (f) *Board of review.* (1) There is hereby created an employment security board of review, hereinafter referred to as the board, consisting of three members. Each member of the board shall be appointed for a term of four years as provided in this subsection. Not more than two members of the board shall belong to the same political party.
- (2) When a vacancy on the employment security board of review occurs, the workers compensation and employment security boards nominating committee established under K.S.A. 44-551, and amendments thereto, shall convene and submit a nominee to the governor for appointment to each vacancy on the employment security board of review, subject to confirmation by the senate as provided by K.S.A. 75-4315b,

and amendments thereto. The governor shall either: (A) Accept and submit to the senate for confirmation the person nominated by the nominating committee; or (B) reject the nomination and request the nominating committee to nominate another person for that position. Except as provided by K.S.A. 46-2601, and amendments thereto, no person appointed to the employment security board of review, whose appointment is subject to confirmation by the senate, shall exercise any power, duty or function as a member until confirmed by the senate.

- (3) No member of the employment security board of review shall serve more than two consecutive terms.
- (4) Each member of the employment security board shall serve until a successor has been appointed and confirmed. Any vacancy in the membership of the board occurring prior to expiration of a term shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term in the same manner as provided for original appointment of the member.
- (5) Each member of the employment security board of review shall be entitled to receive as compensation for the member's services at the rate of \$15,000 per year, together with the member's travel and other necessary expenses actually incurred in the performance of the member's official duties in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the secretary. Members' compensation and expenses shall be paid from the employment security administration fund.
- (6) The employment security board of review shall organize annually by the election of a chairperson from among its members. The chairperson shall serve in that capacity for a term of one year and until a successor is elected. The board shall meet on the first Monday of each month or on the call of the chairperson or any two members of the board at the place designated. The secretary of labor shall appoint an executive secretary of the board and the executive secretary shall attend the meetings of the board.
- (7) The employment security board of review, on its own motion, may affirm, modify or set aside any decision of a referee on the basis of the evidence previously submitted in the case; may direct the taking of additional evidence; or may permit any of the parties to initiate further appeal before it. The board shall permit such further appeal by any of the parties interested in a decision of a referee—which that overrules or modifies the decision of an examiner. The board may remove to itself the proceedings on any claim pending before a referee. Any proceedings so removed to the board shall be heard in accordance with the requirements of subsection (c). The board shall promptly notify the interested parties of its findings and decision.
- (8) Two members of the employment security board of review shall constitute a quorum and no action of the board shall be valid unless it has the concurrence of at least two members. A vacancy on the board shall not impair the right of a quorum to exercise all the rights and perform all the duties of the board.
- (g) Procedure. The manner in which that disputed claims are presented, the reports on claims required from the claimant and from employers and the conduct of hearings and appeals shall be in accordance with rules of procedure prescribed by the employment security board of review for determining the rights of the parties, whether or not such rules conform to common law or statutory rules of evidence and other technical rules of procedure. A full and complete record shall be kept of all proceedings and decisions in connection with a disputed claim. All testimony at any hearing upon a disputed claim shall be recorded, but need not be transcribed unless the disputed claim is further appealed. In the performance of its official duties, the board shall have access

to all of the records—which that pertain to the disputed claim and are in the custody of the secretary of labor and shall receive the assistance of the secretary upon request.

- (h) Witness fees. Witnesses subpoenaed pursuant to this section shall be allowed fees and necessary travel expenses at rates fixed by the board. Such fees and expenses shall be deemed a part of the expense of administering this act.
- (i) Review of board action. Any action of the employment security board of review may not be reconsidered after the mailing of the decision. An action of the board shall become final unless a petition for review in accordance with the Kansas judicial review act is filed within 16 calendar days after the date of the mailing of the decision. If an appeal has not been filed within 16 calendar days of the date of the mailing of the decision, the decision becomes final. No bond shall be required for commencing an action for such review. In addition to those persons having standing pursuant to K.S.A. 77-611, and amendments thereto, the examiner shall have standing to obtain judicial review of an action of such board. The review proceeding, and the questions of law certified, shall be heard in a summary manner and shall be given precedence over all other civil cases except cases arising under the workers compensation act.
- (j) Any finding of fact or law, judgment, determination, conclusion or final order made by the employment security board of review or any examiner, special examiner, referee or other person with authority to make findings of fact or law pursuant to the employment security law is not admissible or binding in any separate or subsequent action or proceeding, between a person and a present or previous employer brought before an arbitrator, court or judge of the state or the United States, regardless of whether the prior action was between the same or related parties or involved the same facts.
- (k) In any proceeding or hearing conducted under this section, a party to the proceeding or hearing may appear before a referee or the employment security board of review either personally or by means of a designated representative to present evidence and to state the position of the party. Hearings may be conducted in person, by telephone or other means of electronic communication. The hearing shall be conducted by telephone or other means of electronic communication if none of the parties requests an in-person hearing. If only one party requests an in-person hearing, the referee shall have the discretion of requiring all parties to appear in person or allow the party not requesting an in-person hearing to appear by telephone or other means of electronic communication. The notice of hearing shall include notice to the parties of their right to request an in-person hearing and instructions on how to make the request.
- Sec. 27. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-710 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-710. (a) *Payment*. Contributions shall accrue and become payable by each contributing employer for each calendar year—in—which that the contributing employer is subject to the employment security law with respect to wages paid for employment. Such contributions shall become due and be paid by each contributing employer to the secretary for the employment security fund in accordance with such rules and regulations as the secretary may adopt and shall not be deducted, in whole or in part, from the wages of individuals in such employer's employ. In the payment of any contributions, a fractional part of \$.01 shall be disregarded unless it amounts to \$.005 or more, in which case it shall be increased to \$.01. Should contributions for any calendar quarter be less than \$5, no payment shall be required.
  - (b) Rates and base of contributions. (1) Except as provided in paragraph (2) of this

subsection, each contributing employer shall pay contributions on wages paid by the contributing employer during each calendar year with respect to employment as provided in K.S.A. 44-710a, and amendments thereto. Except that, notwithstanding the federal law requiring the secretary of labor to annually recalculate the contribution rate, for calendar years 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014, the secretary shall charge each contributing employer in rate groups 1 through 32 the contribution rate in the 2010 original tax rate computation table, with contributing employers in rate groups 33 through 51 being capped at a 5.4% contribution rate. For calendar year 2021, unemployment tax rates for eligible employers shall be limited to the standard rate schedule in K.S.A. 44-710a, and amendments thereto. Therefore, no additional solvency adjustment shall be applied.

- (2) (A) If the congress of the United States either amends or repeals the Wagner-Peyser act, the federal unemployment tax act, the federal social security act, or subtitle C of chapter 23 of the federal internal revenue code of 1986, or any act or acts supplemental to or in lieu thereof, or any part or parts of any such law, or if any such law, or any part or parts thereof, are held invalid with the effect that appropriations of funds by congress and grants thereof to the state of Kansas for the payment of costs of administration of the employment security law are no longer available for such purposes; or (B) if employers in Kansas subject to the payment of tax under the federal unemployment tax act are granted full credit against such tax for contributions or taxes paid to the secretary of labor, then, and in either such case, beginning with the year-in which that the unavailability of federal appropriations and grants for such purpose occurs or in which that such change in liability for payment of such federal tax occurs and for each year thereafter, the rate of contributions of each contributing employer shall be equal to the total of 0.5% and the rate of contributions as determined for such contributing employer under K.S.A. 44-710a, and amendments thereto. The amount of contributions—which that each contributing employer becomes liable to pay under this paragraph (2) over the amount of contributions-which that such contributing employer would be otherwise liable to pay shall be credited to the employment security administration fund to be disbursed and paid out under the same conditions and for the same purposes as other moneys are authorized to be paid from the employment security administration fund, except that, if the secretary determines that as of the first day of January of any year there is an excess in the employment security administration fund over the amount required to be disbursed during such year, an amount equal to such excess as determined by the secretary shall be transferred to the employment security fund.
- (c) Charging of benefit payments. (1) The secretary shall maintain a separate account for each contributing employer, and shall credit the contributing employer's account with all the contributions paid on the contributing employer's own behalf. Nothing in the employment security law shall be construed to grant any employer or individuals in such employer's service prior claims or rights to the amounts paid by such employer into the employment security fund either on such employer's own behalf or on behalf of such individuals. Benefits paid shall be charged against the accounts of each base period employer in the proportion that the base period wages paid to an eligible individual by each such employer bears to the total wages in the base period. Benefits shall be charged to contributing employers' accounts and rated governmental employers' accounts upon the basis of benefits paid during each twelve-month period ending on the

computation date.

- (2) (A) Benefits paid in benefit years established by valid new claims shall not be charged to the account of a contributing employer or rated governmental employer who is a base period employer if the examiner finds that claimant was separated from the claimant's most recent employment with such employer under any of the following conditions: (i) Discharged for misconduct or gross misconduct connected with the individual's work; or (ii) leaving work voluntarily without good cause attributable to the claimant's work or the employer; or (iii) discharged from an employer directly impacted by COVID-19 in accordance with the families first coronavirus response act, public law 116-127.
- (B) Where base period wage credits of a contributing employer or rated governmental employer represent part-time employment and the claimant continues in that part-time employment with that employer during the period for which benefits are paid, then that employer's account shall not be charged with any part of the benefits paid if the employer provides the secretary with information as required by rules and regulations. For the purposes of this subsection (c)(2)(B), "part-time employment" means any employment when an individual works less than full-time because the individual's services are not required for the customary, scheduled full-time hours prevailing at the work place or the individual does not customarily work the regularly scheduled full-time hours due to personal choice or circumstances.
- (C) No contributing employer or rated governmental employer's account shall be charged with any extended benefits paid in accordance with the employment security law, except for weeks of unemployment beginning after December 31, 1978, all contributing governmental employers and governmental rated employers shall be charged an amount equal to all extended benefits paid.
- (D) No contributing employer, rated governmental employer or reimbursing employer's account shall be charged for any additional benefits paid during the period July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004.
- (E) No contributing employer or rated governmental employer's account will be charged for benefits paid a claimant while pursuing an approved training course as defined in subsection (s) of K.S.A. 44-703(s), and amendments thereto.
- (F) No contributing employer or rated governmental employer's account shall be charged with respect to the benefits paid to any individual whose base period wages include wages for services not covered by the employment security law prior to January 1, 1978, to the extent that the employment security fund is reimbursed for such benefits pursuant to section 121 of public law 94-566 (90 Stat. 2673).
- (G) With respect to weeks of unemployment beginning after December 31, 1977, wages for insured work shall include wages paid for previously uncovered services. For the purposes of this subsection (c)(2)(G), the term "previously uncovered services" means services—which that were not covered employment, at any time during the one-year period ending December 31, 1975, except to the extent that assistance under title II of the federal emergency jobs and unemployment assistance act of 1974 was paid on the basis of such services, and which that:
- (i) Are agricultural labor as defined in-subsection (w) of K.S.A. 44-703(w), and amendments thereto, or domestic service as defined in-subsection (aa) of K.S.A. 44-703(aa), and amendments thereto;
  - (ii) are services performed by an employee of this state or a political subdivision

thereof, as provided in-subsection (i)(3)(E) of K.S.A. 44-703(i)(3)(E), and amendments thereto; or

- (iii) are services performed by an employee of a nonprofit educational institution which that is not an institution of higher education.
- (H) No contributing employer or rated governmental employer's account shall be charged with respect to their pro rata share of benefit charges if such charges are of \$100 or less.
- (3) An employer's account shall not be relieved of charges relating to a payment that was made erroneously if the secretary determines that:
- (A) The erroneous payment was made because the employer, or the agent of the employer, was at fault for failing to respond timely or adequately to a written request from the secretary for information relating to the claim for unemployment compensation; and
- (B) the employer or agent has established a pattern of failing to respond timely or adequately to requests for information.
  - (C) For purposes of this paragraph:
- (i) "Erroneous payment" means a payment that but for the failure by the employer or the employer's agent with respect to the claim for unemployment compensation, would not have been made; and
- (ii) "pattern of failure" means repeated documented failure on the part of the employer or the agent of the employer to respond, taking into consideration the number of instances of failure in relation to the total volume of requests. An employer or employer's agent failing to respond as described in (c)(3)(A) shall not be determined to have engaged in a "pattern of failure" if the number of such failures during the year prior to such request is fewer than two, or less than 2%, of such requests, whichever is greater.
- (D) Determinations of the secretary prohibiting the relief of charges pursuant to this section shall be subject to appeal or protest as other determinations of the agency with respect to the charging of employer accounts.
- (E) This paragraph shall apply to erroneous payments established on and after the effective date of this act.
- (4) The examiner shall notify any base period employer whose account will be charged with benefits paid following the filing of a valid new claim and a determination by the examiner based on all information relating to the claim contained in the records of the division of employment security. Such notice shall become final and benefits charged to the base period employer's account in accordance with the claim unless within 10 calendar days from the date the notice was sent, the base period employer requests in writing that the examiner reconsider the determination and furnishes any required information in accordance with the secretary's rules and regulations. In a similar manner, a notice of an additional claim followed by the first payment of benefits with respect to the benefit year, filed by an individual during a benefit year after a period in such year during which such individual was employed, shall be given to any base period employer of the individual who has requested such a notice within 10 calendar days from the date the notice of the valid new claim was sent to such base period employer. For purposes of this subsection (c)(3), if the required information is not submitted or postmarked within a response time limit of 10 days after the base period employer notice was sent, the base period employer shall be deemed to have

waived its standing as a party to the proceedings arising from the claim and shall be barred from protesting any subsequent decisions about the claim by the secretary, a referee, the board of review or any court, except that the base period employer's response time limit may be waived or extended by the examiner or upon appeal, if timely response was impossible due to excusable neglect. The examiner shall notify the employer of the reconsidered determination, which shall be subject to appeal; or further reconsideration, in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 44-709, and amendments thereto.

- (5) *Time, computation and extension.* In computing the period of time for a base period employer response or appeals under this section from the examiner's or the special examiner's determination or from the referee's decision, the day of the act, event or default from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not be included. The last day of the period shall be included unless it is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, in which event the period runs until the end of the next day—which that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.
- (d) Pooled fund. All contributions and payments in lieu of contributions and benefit cost payments to the employment security fund shall be pooled and available to pay benefits to any individual entitled thereto under the employment security law, regardless of the source of such contributions or payments in lieu of contributions or benefit cost payments.
- (e) Election to become reimbursing employer; payment in lieu of contributions. (1) Any governmental entity, Indian tribes or tribal units, (subdivisions, subsidiaries or business enterprises wholly owned by such Indian tribes), for which services are performed as described in subsection (i)(3)(E) of K.S.A. 44-703(i)(3)(E), and amendments thereto, or any nonprofit organization or group of nonprofit organizations described in section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986-which that is exempt from income tax under section 501(a) of such code, that becomes subject to the employment security law may elect to become a reimbursing employer under this subsection (e)(1) and agree to pay the secretary for the employment security fund an amount equal to the amount of regular benefits and ½ of the extended benefits paid that are attributable to service in the employ of such reimbursing employer, except that each reimbursing governmental employer, Indian tribes or tribal units shall pay an amount equal to the amount of regular benefits and extended benefits paid for weeks of unemployment beginning after December 31, 1978, for governmental employers and December 21, 2000, for Indian tribes or tribal units to individuals for weeks of unemployment-which that begin during the effective period of such election.
- (A) Any employer identified in this subsection (e)(1) may elect to become a reimbursing employer for a period encompassing not less than four complete calendar years if such employer files with the secretary a written notice of such election within the 30-day period immediately following January 1 of any calendar year or within the 30-day period immediately following the date—on—which\_when a determination of subjectivity to the employment security law is issued, whichever occurs later.
- (B) Any employer-which that makes an election to become a reimbursing employer in accordance with subparagraph (A)-of this subsection (e)(1) will continue to be liable for payments in lieu of contributions until such employer files with the secretary a written notice terminating its election not later than 30 days prior to the beginning of the calendar year for which such termination shall first be effective.

- (C) Any employer identified in this subsection (e)(1)—which that has remained a contributing employer and has been paying contributions under the employment security law for a period subsequent to January 1, 1972, may change to a reimbursing employer by filing with the secretary not later than 30 days prior to the beginning of any calendar year a written notice of election to become a reimbursing employer. Such election shall not be terminable by the employer for four complete calendar years.
- (D) The secretary may for good cause extend the period within which a notice of election, or a notice of termination, must be filed and may permit an election to be retroactive but not any earlier than with respect to benefits paid after January 1 of the year such election is received.
- (E) The secretary, in accordance with such rules and regulations as the secretary may adopt, shall notify each employer identified in subsection (e)(1) of any determination—which that the secretary may make of its status as an employer and of the effective date of any election—which that it makes to become a reimbursing employer and of any termination of such election. Such determinations shall be subject to reconsideration, appeal and review in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 44-710b, and amendments thereto.
- (2) Reimbursement reports and payments. Payments in lieu of contributions shall be made in accordance with the provisions of paragraph subparagraph (A) of this subsection (e)(2) by all reimbursing employers except the state of Kansas. Each reimbursing employer shall report total wages paid during each calendar quarter by filing quarterly wage reports with the secretary which that shall be filed by the last day of the month following the close of each calendar quarter. Wage reports are deemed filed as of the date they are placed in the United States mail.
- (A) At the end of each calendar quarter, or at the end of any other period as determined by the secretary, the secretary shall bill each reimbursing employer, except the state of Kansas: (i) An amount to be paid—which that is equal to the full amount of regular benefits plus ½ of the amount of extended benefits paid during such quarter or other prescribed period that is attributable to service in the employ of such reimbursing employer; and (ii) for weeks of unemployment beginning after December 31, 1978, each reimbursing governmental employer and December 21, 2000, for Indian tribes or tribal units shall be certified an amount to be paid—which that is equal to the full amount of regular benefits and extended benefits paid during such quarter or other prescribed period that is attributable to service in the employ of such reimbursing governmental employer.
- (B) Payment of any bill rendered under—paragraph\_subparagraph (A)—of this-subsection (e)(2) shall be made not later than 30 days after such bill was mailed to the last known address of the reimbursing employer, or otherwise was delivered to such reimbursing employer, unless there has been an application for review and redetermination in accordance with—paragraph\_subparagraph (D)—of this subsection (e) (2).
- (C) Payments made by any reimbursing employer under the provisions of this subsection (e)(2) shall not be deducted or deductible, in whole or in part, from the remuneration of individuals in the employ of such employer.
- (D) The amount due specified in any bill from the secretary shall be conclusive on the reimbursing employer, unless, not later than 15 days after the bill was mailed to the last known address of such employer, or was otherwise delivered to such employer, the

reimbursing employer files an application for redetermination in accordance with K.S.A. 44-710b, and amendments thereto.

- (E) Past due payments of amounts certified by the secretary under this section shall be subject to the same interest, penalties and actions required by K.S.A. 44-717, and amendments thereto. (1) If any nonprofit organization or group of nonprofit organizations described in section 501(c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 or governmental reimbursing employer is delinquent in making payments of amounts certified by the secretary under this section, the secretary may terminate such employer's election to make payments in lieu of contributions as of the beginning of the next calendar year and such termination shall be effective for such next calendar year and the calendar year thereafter so that the termination is effective for two complete calendar years. (2) Failure of the Indian tribe or tribal unit to make required payments, including assessment of interest and penalty within 90 days of receipt of the bill will cause the Indian tribe to lose the option to make payments in lieu of contributions as described pursuant to paragraph (e)(1) for the following tax year unless payment in full is received before contribution rates for the next tax year are calculated. (3) Any Indian tribe that loses the option to make payments in lieu of contributions due to late payment or nonpayment, as described in paragraph (2), shall have such option reinstated, if after a period of one year, all contributions have been made on time and no contributions, payments in lieu of contributions for benefits paid, penalties or interest remain outstanding.
- (F) Failure of the Indian tribe or any tribal unit thereof to make required payments, including assessments of interest and penalties, after all collection activities deemed necessary by the secretary have been exhausted, will cause services performed by such tribe to not be treated as employment for purposes of subsection (i)(3)(E) of K.S.A. 44-703(i)(3)(E), and amendments thereto. If an Indian tribe fails to make payments required under this section, including assessments of interest and penalties, within 90 days of a final notice of delinquency, the secretary shall immediately notify the United States internal revenue service and the United States department of labor. The secretary may determine that any Indian tribe that loses coverage pursuant to this paragraph may have services performed on behalf of such tribe again deemed "employment" if all contributions, payments in lieu of contributions, penalties and interest have been paid.
- (G) In the discretion of the secretary, any employer who elects to become liable for payments in lieu of contributions and any nonprofit organization or group of nonprofit organizations described in section 501 (c)(3) of the federal internal revenue code of 1986 or governmental reimbursing employer or Indian tribe or tribal unit who is delinquent in filing reports or in making payments of amounts certified by the secretary under this section shall be required within 60 days after the effective date of such election, in the case of an eligible employer so electing, or after the date of notification to the delinquent employer under this subsection (e)(2)(G), in the case of a delinquent employer, to execute and file with the secretary a surety bond, except that the employer may elect, in lieu of a surety bond, to deposit with the secretary money or securities as approved by the secretary or to purchase and deliver to an escrow agent a certificate of deposit to guarantee payment. The amount of the bond, deposit or escrow agreement required by this subsection (e)(2)(G) shall not exceed 5.4% of the organization's taxable wages paid for employment by the eligible employer during the four calendar quarters immediately preceding the effective date of the election or the date of notification, in

the case of a delinquent employer. If the employer did not pay wages in each of such four calendar quarters, the amount of the bond or deposit shall be as determined by the secretary. Upon the failure of an employer to comply with this subsection (e)(2)(G) within the time limits imposed or to maintain the required bond or deposit, the secretary may terminate the election of such eligible employer or delinquent employer, as the case may be, to make payments in lieu of contributions, and such termination shall be effective for the current and next calendar year.

- (H) The state of Kansas shall make reimbursement payments quarterly at a fiscal year rate—which that shall be based upon: (i) The available balance in the state's reimbursing account as of December 31 of each calendar year; (ii) the historical unemployment experience of all covered state agencies during prior years; (iii) the estimate of total covered wages to be paid during the ensuing calendar year; (iv) the applicable fiscal year rate of the claims processing and auditing fee under K.S.A. 75-3798, and amendments thereto; and (v) actuarial and other information furnished to the secretary by the secretary of administration. In accordance with K.S.A. 75-3798, and amendments thereto, the claims processing and auditing fees charged to state agencies shall be deducted from the amounts collected for the reimbursement payments under this paragraph (H) prior to making the quarterly reimbursement payments for the state of Kansas. The fiscal year rate shall be expressed as a percentage of covered total wages and shall be the same for all covered state agencies. The fiscal year rate for each fiscal year will be certified in writing by the secretary to the secretary of administration on July 15 of each year and such certified rate shall become effective on the July 1 immediately following the date of certification. A detailed listing of benefit charges applicable to the state's reimbursing account shall be furnished quarterly by the secretary to the secretary of administration and the total amount of charges deducted from previous reimbursing payments made by the state. On January 1 of each year, if it is determined that benefit charges exceed the amount of prior reimbursing payments, an upward adjustment shall be made therefor in the fiscal year rate-which will to be certified on the ensuing July 15. If total payments exceed benefit charges, all or part of the excess may be refunded, at the discretion of the secretary, from the fund or retained in the fund as part of the payments which that may be required for the next fiscal year.
- Allocation of benefit costs. The reimbursing account of each reimbursing employer shall be charged the full amount of regular benefits and ½ of the amount of extended benefits paid except that each reimbursing governmental employer's account shall be charged the full amount of regular benefits and extended benefits paid for weeks of unemployment beginning after December 31, 1978, to individuals whose entire base period wage credits are from such employer. When benefits received by an individual are based upon base period wage credits from more than one employer then the reimbursing employer's or reimbursing governmental employer's account shall be charged in the same ratio as base period wage credits from such employer bear to the individual's total base period wage credits. Notwithstanding any other provision of the employment security law, no reimbursing employer's or reimbursing governmental employer's account shall be charged for payments of extended benefits-which that are wholly reimbursed to the state by the federal government. Payments of unemployment compensation that are wholly reimbursed to the reimbursing employer by the federal government shall be charged for the purpose of such reimbursement under the federal CARES act, public law 116-136.

- (A) Proportionate allocation (when fewer than all reimbursing base period employers are liable). If benefits paid to an individual are based on wages paid by one or more reimbursing employers and on wages paid by one or more contributing employers or rated governmental employers, the amount of benefits payable by each reimbursing employer shall be an amount—which that bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid to the individual as the total base period wages paid to the individual by such employer bears to the total base period wages paid to the individual by all of such individual's base period employers.
- (B) Proportionate allocation (when all base period employers are reimbursing employers). If benefits paid to an individual are based on wages paid by two or more reimbursing employers, the amount of benefits payable by each such employer shall be an amount—which that bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid to the individual as the total base period wages paid to the individual by such employer bear to the total base period wages paid to the individual by all of such individual's base period employers.
- (4) Group accounts. Two or more reimbursing employers may file a joint application to the secretary for the establishment of a group account for the purpose of sharing the cost of benefits paid that are attributable to service in the employment of such reimbursing employers. Each such application shall identify and authorize a group representative to act as the group's agent for the purposes of this subsection (e)(4). Upon approval of the application, the secretary shall establish a group account for such employers effective as of the beginning of the calendar quarter in which the secretary receives the application and shall notify the group's representative of the effective date of the account. Such account shall remain in effect for not less than four years and thereafter such account shall remain in effect until terminated at the discretion of the secretary or upon application by the group. Upon establishment of the account, each member of the group shall be liable for payments in lieu of contributions with respect to each calendar quarter in the amount that bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid in such quarter that are attributable to service performed in the employ of all members of the group as the total wages paid for service in employment by such member in such quarter bear to the total wages paid during such quarter for service performed in the employ of all members of the group. The secretary shall adopt such rules and regulations as the secretary deems necessary with respect to applications for establishment, maintenance and termination of group accounts that are authorized by this subsection (e)(4), for addition of new members to, and withdrawal of active members from such accounts, and for the determination of the amounts that are payable under this subsection (e)(4) by members of the group and the time and manner of such payments.
- Sec. 28. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-757 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-757. *Shared work unemployment compensation program.* (a) As used in this section:
- (1) "Affected unit" means a specified department, shift or other unit of two or more employees that is designated by an employer to participate in a shared work plan.
- (2) "Fringe benefit" means health insurance, a retirement benefit received under a pension plan, a paid vacation day, a paid holiday, sick leave, and any other analogous employee benefit that is provided by an employer.
- (3) "Fund" has the meaning ascribed thereto by K.S.A. 44-703(k), and amendments thereto.

- (4) "Normal weekly hours of work" means the lesser of 40 hours or the average obtained by dividing the total number of hours worked per week during the preceding twelve-week period by the number 12.
- (5) "Participating employee" means an employee who works a reduced number of hours under a shared work plan.
- (6) "Participating employer" means an employer who has a shared work plan in effect.
  - (7) "Secretary" means the secretary of labor or the secretary's designee.
- (8) "Shared work benefit" means an unemployment compensation benefit that is payable to an individual in an affected unit because the individual works reduced hours under an approved shared work plan.
- (9) "Shared work plan" means a program for reducing unemployment under which employees who are members of an affected unit share the work remaining after a reduction in their normal weekly hours of work.
- (10) "Shared work unemployment compensation program" means a program designed to reduce unemployment and stabilize the work force by allowing certain employees to collect unemployment compensation benefits if the employees share the work remaining after a reduction in the total number of hours of work and a corresponding reduction in wages.
- (b) The secretary shall establish a voluntary shared work unemployment compensation program as provided by this section. The secretary may adopt rules and regulations and establish procedures necessary to administer the shared work unemployment compensation program.
- (c) An employer who wishes to participate in the shared work unemployment compensation program must submit a written shared work plan to the secretary for the secretary's approval. As a condition for approval, a participating employer must agree to furnish the secretary with reports relating to the operation of the shared work plan as requested by the secretary. The employer shall monitor and evaluate the operation of the established shared work plan as requested by the secretary and shall report the findings to the secretary.
  - (d) The secretary may approve a shared work plan if:
  - (1) The shared work plan applies to and identifies a specific affected unit;
- (2) the employees in the affected unit are identified by name and social security number;
- (3) the shared work plan reduces the normal weekly hours of work for an employee, including regular part-time employees, in the affected unit by not less than 20% and not more than 40%;
- (4) the shared work plan applies to at least 10% of the employees in the affected unit:
- (5) the shared work plan describes the manner—in—whieh\_that the participating employer treats the fringe benefits of each employee in the affected unit and the employer certifies that if the employer provides health benefits and retirement benefits under a defined benefit plan, as defined in 26 U.S.C. § 414(j), or contributions under a defined contribution plan, as defined in 26 U.S.C. § 414(i), to any employee whose workweek is reduced under the program that such benefits will continue to be provided to employees participating in the shared work compensation program under the same terms and conditions as though the workweek of such employee had not been reduced

or to the same extent as other employees not participating in the shared work program;

- (6) the employer certifies that the implementation of a shared work plan and the resulting reduction in work hours is in lieu of layoffs that would affect at least 10% of the employees in the affected unit and that would result in an equivalent reduction in work hours:
- (7) the employer has filed all reports required to be filed under the employment security law for all past and current periods and has paid all contributions, benefit cost payments, or if a reimbursing employer has made all payments in lieu of contributions due for all past and current periods;
- (8) (A) a contributing employer must be eligible for a rate computation under K.S.A. 44-710a(a)(2), and amendments thereto, and is not a negative account employer as defined by K.S.A. 44-710a(d), and amendments thereto and the contributing employer, as determined by the secretary, does not adversely impact the state's eligibility under section 2108 of the federal CARES act, public law 116-136; (B) a rated governmental employer must be eligible for a rate computation under K.S.A. 44-710d(g), and amendments thereto;
- (9) eligible employees may participate, as appropriate, in training, including without limitation, employer-sponsored training or worker training funded under the workforce investment act of 1998, to enhance job skills if such program has been approved by the state of Kansas;
- (10) the employer includes a plan for giving advance notice, where feasible, to an employee whose workweek is to be reduced together with an estimate of the number of layoffs that would have occurred absent the ability to participate in shared work compensation and such other information as the secretary of labor determines is appropriate; and
- (11) the terms of the employer's written plan and implementation are consistent with employer obligations under applicable federal and Kansas laws.
- (e) If any of the employees who participate in a shared work plan under this section are covered by a collective bargaining agreement, the shared work plan must be approved in writing by the collective bargaining agent.
- (f) A shared work plan may not be implemented to subsidize seasonal employers during the off-season.
- (g) The secretary shall approve or deny a shared work plan no later than the 30<sup>th</sup> day after the day the shared work plan is received by the secretary. The secretary shall approve or deny a shared work plan in writing. If the secretary denies a shared work plan, the secretary shall notify the employer of the reasons for the denial.
- (h) A shared work plan is effective on the date it is approved by the secretary, except for good cause a shared work plan may be effective at any time within a period of 14 days prior to the date such plan is approved by the secretary. The shared work plan expires on the last day of the 12<sup>th</sup> full calendar month after the effective date of the shared work plan.
- (i) An employer may modify a shared work plan created under this section to meet changed conditions if the modification conforms to the basic provisions of the shared work plan as approved by the secretary. The employer must report the changes made to the shared work plan in writing to the secretary before implementing the changes. If the original shared work plan is substantially modified, the secretary shall reevaluate the shared work plan and may approve the modified shared work plan if it meets the

requirements for approval under subsection (d). The approval of a modified shared work plan does not affect the expiration date originally set for that shared work plan. If substantial modifications cause the shared work plan to fail to meet the requirements for approval, the secretary shall deny approval to the modifications as provided by subsection (g).

- (j) Notwithstanding any other provisions of the employment security law, an individual is unemployed and is eligible for shared work benefits in any week in which the individual, as an employee in an affected unit, works for less than the individual's normal weekly hours of work in accordance with an approved shared work plan in effect for that week. The secretary may not deny shared work benefits for any week to an otherwise eligible individual by reason of the application of any provision of the employment security law that relates to availability for work, active search for work or refusal to apply for or accept work with an employer other than the participating employer.
- (k) An individual is eligible to receive shared work benefits with respect to any week in which the secretary finds that:
- (1) The individual is employed as a member of an affected unit subject to a shared work plan that was approved before the week in question and is in effect for that week;
- (2) the individual is able to work and is available for additional hours of work or full-time work with the participating employer;
- (3) the individual's normal weekly hours of work have been reduced by at least 20% but not more than 40%, with a corresponding reduction in wages; and
- (4) the individual's normal weekly hours of work and wages have been reduced as described in subsection (k)(3) for a waiting period of one week which that occurs within the period the shared work plan is in effect, which period includes the week for which the individual is claiming shared work benefits.
- (l) The secretary shall pay an individual who is eligible for shared work benefits under this section a weekly shared work benefit amount equal to the individual's regular weekly benefit amount for a period of total unemployment multiplied by the nearest full percentage of reduction of the individual's hours as set forth in the employer's shared work plan. If the shared benefit amount is not a multiple of \$1, the secretary shall reduce the amount to the next lowest multiple of \$1. All shared work benefits under this section shall be payable from the fund.
- (m) An individual may not receive shared work benefits and regular unemployment compensation benefits in an amount that exceeds the maximum total amount of benefits payable to that individual in a benefit year as provided by K.S.A. 44-704(g), and amendments thereto.
- (n) An individual who has received all of the shared work benefits and regular unemployment compensation benefits available in a benefit year is an exhaustee under K.S.A. 44-704a and 44-704b, and amendments thereto, and is entitled to receive extended benefits under such statutes if the individual is otherwise eligible under such statutes.
- (o) The secretary may terminate a shared work plan for good cause if the secretary determines that the shared work plan is not being executed according to the terms and intent of the shared work unemployment compensation program.
- (p) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this section, an individual shall not be eligible to receive shared work benefits for more than 26 calendar weeks during the 12-

month period of the shared work plan, except that two weeks of additional benefits shall be payable to claimants who exhaust regular benefits and any benefits under any other federal or state extended benefits program during the period July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004. No week shall be counted as a week for which an individual is eligible for shared work benefits for the purposes of this section unless the week occurs within the 12-month period of the shared work plan.

- (q) No shared work benefit payment shall be made under any shared work plan or this section for any week-which that commences before April 1, 1989.
  - (r) This section shall be construed as part of the employment security law.
- Sec. 29. K.S.A. 48-924 is hereby amended to read as follows: 48-924. (a) The governor shall be responsible for meeting the dangers to the state and people presented by disasters.
- (b) (1) <u>Subject to the provisions of section 5, and amendments thereto,</u> the governor, upon finding that a disaster has occurred or that occurrence or the threat thereof is imminent, shall issue a proclamation declaring a state of disaster emergency.
- (2) In addition to or instead of the proclamation authorized by K.S.A. 47-611, and amendments thereto, the governor, upon a finding or when notified pursuant to K.S.A. 47-611, and amendments thereto, that a quarantine or other regulations are necessary to prevent the spread among domestic animals of any contagious or infectious disease, may issue a proclamation declaring a state of disaster emergency. In addition to or instead of any actions pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 2-2114, and amendments thereto, the governor, upon a finding or when notified pursuant to K.S.A. 2-2112 et seq., and amendments thereto, that a quarantine or other regulations are necessary to prevent the spread among plants, raw agricultural commodities, animal feed or processed food of any contagious or infectious disease, may issue a proclamation declaring a state of disaster emergency.
- (3) The state of disaster emergency so declared shall continue until the governor finds that the threat or danger of disaster has passed, or the disaster has been dealt with to the extent that emergency conditions no longer exist. Upon making such findings the governor shall terminate the state of disaster emergency by proclamation, but except as provided in paragraph (4), no state of disaster emergency may continue for longer than 15 days unless ratified by concurrent resolution of the legislature, with the single exception that upon specific application by the governor to the state finance council and an affirmative vote of a majority of the legislative members thereof, a state of disaster emergency may be extended once for a specified period not to exceed 30 days beyond such 15-day period.
- (4) If the state of disaster emergency is proclaimed pursuant to paragraph (2), the governor shall terminate the state of disaster emergency by proclamation within 15 days, unless ratified by concurrent resolution of the legislature, except that when the legislature is not in session and upon specific application by the governor to the state finance council and an affirmative vote of a majority of the legislative members thereof, a state of disaster emergency may be extended for a specified period not to exceed 30 days. The state finance council may authorize additional extensions of the state of disaster emergency by a unanimous vote of the legislative members thereof for specified periods not to exceed 30 days each. Such state of disaster emergency shall be terminated on the 15<sup>th</sup> day of the next regular legislative session following the initial date of the state of disaster emergency unless ratified by concurrent resolution of the

legislature.

- (5) The state of disaster emergency described in section 5, and amendments thereto, shall terminate on May 31, 2020, as provided in section 5, and amendments thereto, except that when the legislature is not in session and upon specific application by the governor to the state finance council and an affirmative vote of at least six of the legislative members of the council, this state of disaster emergency may be extended for specified periods not to exceed 30 days each. No such extension granted by the state finance council shall continue past January 26, 2021.
- (6) At any time, the legislature by concurrent resolution may require the governor to terminate a state of disaster emergency. Upon such action by the legislature, the governor shall issue a proclamation terminating the state of disaster emergency.
- (6)(7) Any proclamation declaring or terminating a state of disaster emergency which is issued under this subsection shall indicate the nature of the disaster, the area or areas threatened or affected by the disaster and the conditions which have brought about, or which make possible the termination of, the state of disaster emergency. Each such proclamation shall be disseminated promptly by means calculated to bring its contents to the attention of the general public and, unless the circumstances attendant upon the disaster prevent the same, each such proclamation shall be filed promptly with the division of emergency management, the office of the secretary of state and each city clerk or county clerk, as the case may be, in the area to which such proclamation applies.
- (c) In the event of the absence of the governor from the state or the existence of any constitutional disability of the governor, an officer specified in K.S.A. 48-1204, and amendments thereto, in the order of succession provided by that section, may issue a proclamation declaring a state of disaster emergency in the manner provided in and subject to the provisions of subsection (a). During a state of disaster emergency declared pursuant to this subsection, such officer may exercise the powers conferred upon the governor by K.S.A. 48-925, and amendments thereto. If a preceding officer in the order of succession becomes able and available, the authority of the officer exercising such powers shall terminate and such powers shall be conferred upon the preceding officer. Upon the return of the governor to the state or the removal of any constitutional disability of the governor, the authority of an officer to exercise the powers conferred by this section shall terminate immediately and the governor shall resume the full powers of the office. Any state of disaster emergency and any actions taken by an officer under this subsection shall continue and shall have full force and effect as authorized by law unless modified or terminated by the governor in the manner prescribed by law.
- (d) A proclamation declaring a state of disaster emergency shall activate the disaster response and recovery aspects of the state disaster emergency plan and of any local and interjurisdictional disaster plans applicable to the political subdivisions or areas affected by the proclamation. Such proclamation shall be authority for the deployment and use of any forces to which the plan or plans apply and for use or distribution of any supplies, equipment, materials or facilities assembled, stockpiled or arranged to be made available pursuant to this act during a disaster.
- (e) The governor, when advised pursuant to K.S.A. 74-2608, and amendments thereto, that conditions indicative of drought exist, shall be authorized to declare by proclamation that a state of drought exists. This declaration of a state of drought can be

for specific areas or communities, can be statewide or for specific water sources and shall effect immediate implementation of drought contingency plans contained in state approved conservation plans, including those for state facilities.

- Sec. 30. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 48-925 is hereby amended to read as follows: 48-925. (a) During any state of disaster emergency declared under K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto, the governor shall be commander-in-chief of the organized and unorganized militia and of all other forces available for emergency duty. To the greatest extent practicable, the governor shall delegate or assign command authority by prior arrangement, embodied in appropriate executive orders or in rules and regulations of the adjutant general, but nothing herein shall restrict the authority of the governor to do so by orders issued at the time of a disaster.
- (b) Under the provisions of this act and for the implementation-thereof of this act, the governor may issue orders-and proclamations which shall to exercise the powers conferred by subsection (c) that have the force and effect of law during the period of a state of disaster emergency declared under-subsection (b) of K.S.A. 48-924(b), and amendments thereto, and which, or as provided in section 5, and amendments thereto. Within 24 hours of the issuance of any such order, the governor shall call a meeting of the state finance council for the purposes of reviewing such order. Such orders-and proclamations shall be null and void thereafter unless ratified by concurrent resolution of the legislature after the period of a state of disaster emergency has ended. Such orders-and proclamations may be revoked at any time by concurrent resolution of the legislature.
- (c) During a state of disaster emergency declared under K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto, and in addition to any other powers conferred upon the governor by law and subject to the provisions of subsections (d) and (e), the governor may:
- (1) Suspend the provisions of any regulatory statute prescribing the procedures for conduct of state business, or the orders or rules and regulations of any state agency which implements such statute, if strict compliance with the provisions of such statute, order or rule and regulation would prevent, hinder or delay in any way necessary action in coping with the disaster;
- (2) utilize all available resources of the state government and of each political subdivision as reasonably necessary to cope with the disaster;
- (3) transfer the supervision, personnel or functions of state departments and agencies or units thereof for the purpose of performing or facilitating emergency management activities;
- (4) subject to any applicable requirements for compensation under K.S.A. 48-933, and amendments thereto, commandeer or utilize any private property if the governor finds such action necessary to cope with the disaster;
- (5) direct and compel the evacuation of all or part of the population from any area of the state stricken or threatened by a disaster, if the governor deems this action necessary for the preservation of life or other disaster mitigation, response or recovery;
- (6) prescribe routes, modes of transportation and destinations in connection with such evacuation;
- (7) control ingress and egress of persons and animals to and from a disaster area, the movement of persons and animals within the area and the occupancy by persons and animals of premises therein;
  - (8) suspend or limit the sale, dispensing or transportation of alcoholic beverages,

explosives and combustibles;

- (9) make provision for the availability and use of temporary emergency housing;
- (10) require and direct the cooperation and assistance of state and local governmental agencies and officials; and
- (11) perform and exercise such other functions, powers and duties in conformity with the constitution and the bill of rights of the state of Kansas and with the statutes of the state of Kansas, except any regulatory statute specifically suspended under the authority of subsection (c)(1), as are necessary to promote and secure the safety and protection of the civilian population.
- (d) The governor shall not have the power or authority to temporarily or permanently seize, or authorize seizure of, any ammunition or to suspend or limit the sale, dispensing or transportation of firearms or ammunition pursuant to subsection (c) (8) or any other executive authority.
- (e) The governor shall exercise the powers conferred by subsection (c) by issuance of orders under subsection (b). Each order issued pursuant to the authority granted by subsection (b) shall specify the provision or provisions of subsection (c) by specific reference to each paragraph of subsection (c) that confers the power under which the order was issued. The adjutant general, subject to the direction of the governor, shall administer such orders.
- (f) The board of county commissioners of any county may issue an order relating to public health that includes provisions that are less stringent than the provisions of an executive order effective statewide issued by the governor. Any board of county commissioners issuing such an order must make a finding based upon advice from the local health officer or other local health officials that the scope of the provisions in the governor's executive order are not necessary to protect the public health and safety of the county to be implemented in the county.
- Sec. 31. K.S.A. 48-932 is hereby amended to read as follows: 48-932. (a) A state of local disaster emergency may be declared by the chairman of the board of county commissioners of any county, or by the mayor or other principal executive officer of each city of this state having a disaster emergency plan, upon a finding by such officer that a disaster has occurred or the threat thereof is imminent within such county or city. No state of local disaster emergency shall be continued for a period in excess of seven (7) days or renewed, except with the consent of the board of county commissioners of such county or the governing body of such city, as the case may be. Any order or proclamation declaring, continuing or terminating a local disaster emergency shall be given prompt and general publicity and shall be filed promptly with the county clerk or city clerk, as the case may be. Any such declaration must be approved by the board of county commissioners or the governing body of the city, respectively, at the next meeting of such governing body.
- (b) In the event of the absence of the chairman of the board of county commissioners from the county or the incapacity of such chairman, the board of county commissioners, by majority action of the remaining members thereof, may declare a state of local disaster emergency in the manner provided in and subject to the provisions of subsection (a). In the event of the absence of the mayor or other principal executive officer of a city from the city or the incapacity of such mayor or officer, the governing body of the city, by majority action of the remaining members thereof, may declare a state of local disaster emergency in the manner provided in and subject to the provisions

- of subsection (a). Any state of local disaster emergency and any actions taken pursuant to applicable local and interjurisdictional disaster emergency plans, under this subsection shall continue and have full force and effect as authorized by law unless modified or terminated in the manner prescribed by law.
- (c) The declaration of a local disaster emergency shall activate the response and recovery aspects of any and all local and interjurisdictional disaster emergency plans which are applicable to such county or city, and shall initiate the rendering of aid and assistance thereunder.
- (d) No interjurisdictional disaster agency or any official thereof may declare a local disaster emergency, unless expressly authorized by the agreement pursuant to which the agency functions. However, an interjurisdictional disaster agency shall provide aid and services in accordance with the agreement pursuant to which it functions in the case of a state of local disaster emergency declared under subsection (a).
- Sec. 32. K.S.A. 48-939 is hereby amended to read as follows: 48-939. The knowing and willful violation of(a) A person who violates any provision of this act—or, any rule and regulation adopted by the adjutant general under this act or any lawful order or proclamation issued under authority of this act whether pursuant to a proclamation declaring a state of disaster emergency under K.S.A. 48-924, and amendments thereto, or a declaration of a state of local disaster emergency under K.S.A. 48-932,—shall-constitute a class A misdemeanor and any person convicted of such violation shall be punished as provided by law therefor and amendments thereto, may incur a civil penalty in an amount not to exceed \$2,500 per violation. Each penalty may be assessed in addition to any other penalty provided by law.
- (b) Violations of this section shall be enforced through an action brought under chapter 60 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, by the attorney general or the county or district attorney in the county in which the violation took place. Civil penalties sued for and recovered by the county or district attorney shall be paid into the general fund of the county where the proceedings were instigated.
- (c) The attorney general or any county or district attorney may bring an action to enjoin, or to obtain a restraining order, against a person who has violated, is violating or is otherwise likely to violate this act.
- Sec. 33. K.S.A. 65-201 is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-201. (a) The board of county commissioners of the several counties of this state each county shall act as the county-boards board of health for their respective counties the county. Each county board-thus created shall appoint a person licensed to practice medicine and surgery, preference being given to persons who have training in public health, who shall serve as the local health officer and who shall act in an advisory capacity to the county board of health and as the local health officer, except that. The appointing authority of city-county, county or multicounty health units with less than one hundred thousand (100,000) 100,000 population may appoint a qualified local health program administrator as the local health officer if a person licensed to practice medicine and surgery or person licensed to practice dentistry is designated as a consultant to direct the administrator on program and related medical and professional matters. The local health officer or local health program administrator shall hold office at the pleasure of the board.
- (b) Any order issued by the county health officer, including orders issued as a result of an executive order of the governor, must be approved by the board of county

commissioners of the county affected by such order at the next meeting of the board. Any such approval of the order shall include an expiration date set by the board of county commissioners and may be revoked at an earlier date by a majority vote of the board.

(c) The board of county commissioners in any county having a population of less than—fifteen thousand (15,000) 15,000 may contract with the governing body of any hospital located in such county for the purpose of authorizing such governing body of the hospital to supply services to a county board of health.

Sec. 34. K.S.A. 65-202 is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-202. (a) The local health officer in each county throughout the state, immediately after—his or her such officer's appointment, shall take the same oath of office prescribed by law for the county officers, shall give bond of five hundred dollars (\$500) \$500 conditioned for the faithful performance of—his or her the officer's duties, shall keep an accurate record of all the transactions of his or her such office, shall turn over to—his or her the successor in office or to the county or joint board of health selecting such officer, on the expiration of—his or—her\_such officer's term of office, all records, documents and other articles belonging to the office and shall faithfully account to—said board of county commissioners and to the county and state for all moneys coming into—his or her hands by virtue of the office. Such officer shall notify the secretary of health and environment of—his or her\_such officer's appointment and qualification,—as herein provided for, and provide the secretary with—his or her post-office address\_such officer's contact information.

Such officer shall receive and distribute without delay in the county-for which he or she is appointed all forms from the secretary of health and environment to the rightful persons, all returns from persons licensed to practice medicine and surgery, assessors and local boards to said secretary, shall keep an accurate record of all of the transactions of his or her such office and shall turn over all records and documents kept by such officer, as herein provided, and all other articles belonging to the office to his or her the successor in office, or to the county or joint board electing such officer, on the expiration of his or her the term of office.

Such The local health officer shall upon the opening of the fall term of school, make or have made a sanitary inspection of each school building and grounds, and shall make or have made such additional inspections-thereof as are necessary to protect the public health of the students of the school.

- (c) (1) Such officer shall make—or have made an investigation of each case of smallpox, diphtheria, typhoid fever, scarlet fever, acute anterior poliomyelitis (infantile paralysis), epidemic cerebro-spinal meningitis and such other acute infectious, contagious or communicable diseases as may be required, and shall use all known measures to prevent the spread of any such infectious, contagious or communicable disease, and shall perform such other duties as this act, his or her the county or joint board, board of health or the secretary of health and environment may require.
- (2) Any order issued by the county health officer, including orders issued as a result of an executive order of the governor, on behalf of a county regarding the remediation of any infectious disease must be approved by the board of county commissioners of any county affected by such order in the manner provided by K.S.A. 65-201(b), and amendments thereto.

Such officer shall receive for his or her services such reasonable compensation as his

or her set by the board may allow and with the approval of his or her the board of health may employ a skilled professional nurse and other additional personnel whenever deemed necessary for the protection of the public health.

All of said several sums allowed shall be paid out of the county treasury. For Any failure or neglect of said the local health officer to perform any of the duties prescribed in this act, he or she the officer may be removed from office by the secretary of health and environment, as well as in the manner prescribed by the preceding section county board of health. In addition to removal from office-as provided herein, for any failure or neglect to perform any of the duties prescribed by this act, said the local health officer shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, be fined not less than ten dollars (\$10) \$10 nor more than one hundred dollars (\$100) \$100 for each and every offense.

- Sec. 35. K.S.A. 65-468 is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-468. As used in K.S.A. 65-468 to through 65-474, inclusive, and amendments thereto:
- (a) "Health eare Healthcare provider" means any person licensed or otherwise authorized by law to provide health care services in this state or a professional corporation organized pursuant to the professional corporation law of Kansas by persons who are authorized by law to form such corporation and who are health care providers as defined by this subsection, or an officer, employee or agent thereof, acting in the course and scope of employment or agency.
- (b) "Member" means any hospital, emergency medical service, local health department, home health agency, adult care home, medical clinic, mental health center or clinic or nonemergency transportation system.
- (c) "Mid-level practitioner" means a physician assistant or advanced practice registered nurse who has entered into a written protocol with a rural health network physician.
  - (d) "Physician" means a person licensed to practice medicine and surgery.
- (e) "Rural health network" means an alliance of members, including at least one critical access hospital and at least one other hospital—which, that has developed a comprehensive plan submitted to and approved by the secretary of health and environment regarding. Patient referral and transfer; the provision of emergency and nonemergency transportation among members; the development of a network-wide emergency services plan; and the development of a plan for sharing patient information and services between hospital members concerning medical staff credentialing, risk management, quality assurance and peer review.
- (f) (1) "Critical access hospital" means a member of a rural health network—which that: Makes available—twenty—four hour 24-hour emergency care services; provides not more than 25 acute care inpatient beds or in the case of a facility with an approved swing-bed agreement a combined total of extended care and acute care beds that does not exceed 25 beds; provides acute inpatient care for a period that does not exceed, on an annual average basis, 96 hours per patient; and provides nursing services under the direction of a licensed professional nurse and continuous licensed professional nursing services for not less than 24 hours of every day when any bed is occupied or the facility is open to provide services for patients unless an exemption is granted by the licensing agency pursuant to rules and regulations. The critical access hospital may provide any services otherwise required to be provided by a full-time, on-site dietician, pharmacist, laboratory technician, medical technologist and radiological technologist on a part-time,

off-site basis under written agreements or arrangements with one or more providers or suppliers recognized under medicare. The critical access hospital may provide inpatient services by a physician assistant, advanced practice registered nurse or a clinical nurse specialist subject to the oversight of a physician who need not be present in the facility. In addition to the facility's 25 acute beds or swing beds, or both, the critical access hospital may have a psychiatric unit or a rehabilitation unit, or both. Each unit shall not exceed 10 beds and neither unit—will shall count toward the 25-bed limit, nor—will these units or be subject to the average 96-hour length of stay restriction.

- (2) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (1), prior to June 30, 2021, to the extent that a critical access hospital determines it is necessary to treat COVID-19 patients or to separate COVID-19 patients and non-COVID-19 patients, such critical access hospital shall not be limited to 25 beds or, in the case of a facility with an approved swing bed agreement, to a combined total of 25 extended care and acute care beds, and shall not be limited to providing acute inpatient care for a period of time that does not exceed, on an annual average basis, 96 hours per patient.
- (g) "Hospital" means a hospital other than a critical access hospital—which that has entered into a written agreement with at least one critical access hospital to form a rural health network and to provide medical or administrative supporting services within the limit of the hospital's capabilities.

New Sec. 36. The provisions of this act are severable. If any portion of the act is declared unconstitutional or invalid, or the application of any portion of the act to any person or circumstance is held unconstitutional or invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other portions of the act that can be given effect without the invalid portion or application, and the applicability of such other portions of the act to any person or circumstance shall remain valid and enforceable.

Sec. 37. Section 1 of 2020 House Substitute for Senate Bill No. 102, K.S.A. 48-924, 48-932, 48-939, 65-201, 65-202 and 65-468 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 19-101a, 41-2653, 44-702, 44-705, as amended by section 2 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 27, 44-709, 44-710, 44-757 and 48-925 are hereby repealed.";

Also on page 8, in line 9, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register"; And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking all after "concerning"; by striking all in lines 2 through 6 and inserting "governmental response to the 2020 COVID-19 pandemic in Kansas; providing certain relief related to health, welfare, property and economic security during this public health emergency; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2021, for the legislative coordinating council and the governor's department; relating to the state of disaster emergency; powers of the governor and executive officers; providing certain limitations and restrictions; business and commercial activities, local health officials; violations of the emergency management act; enacting the COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act; relating to limitations on liability associated with the COVID-19 public health emergency; providing immunity from civil liability for healthcare providers during the COVID-19 public health emergency; validating certain notarial acts performed while the requirements that a person must appear before a notary public are suspended; requiring county health officers to share certain information with first responder agencies and 911 call centers; imposing requirements on the Kansas department for aging and disability services related to

infection prevention and control practices and recommendations, infection control inspections and providing personal protective equipment; authorizing the expanded use of telemedicine in response to the COVID-19 public health emergency and imposing requirements related thereto; suspending certain requirements related to medical care facilities and expiring such provisions; providing for temporary suspension of certain healthcare professional licensing and practice requirements; delegation and supervision requirements; conditions of licensure and renewal and reinstatement of licensure; relating to authorized use of two-way electronic audio-visual communication by courts to secure the health and safety of court users, staff and judicial officers; authorizing the temporary sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption off of certain licensed premises; relating to changes in the employment security law in response to the COVID-19 public health emergency; eligibility for benefits; contribution rates; federal reimbursement; employer notifications; shared work plan eligibility; authorizing counties to adopt orders relating to public health that are less stringent than statewide executive orders; requiring the board of county commissioners to approve orders of a local health officer; requiring city governing bodies to approve local disaster orders of the mayor; providing for severability of this act; amending Section 1 of 2020 House Substitute for Senate Bill No. 102, K.S.A. 48-924, 48-932, 48-939, 65-201, 65-202 and 65-468 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 19-101a, 41-2653, 44-702, 44-705, as amended by section 2 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 27, 44-709, 44-710, 44-757 and 48-925 and repealing the existing sections.";

And your committee on conference recommends the adoption of this report.

RICHARD WILBORN
ERIC RUCKER

Conferees on part of Senate
FRED PATTON
BRADLEY RALPH

Conferees on part of House

On motion of Rep. Patton, the conference committee report on S Sub for HB 2054 was adopted.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 76; Nays 34; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 14.

Yeas: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, Carpenter, B., Carpenter, W., Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, Patton, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, Williams.

Nays: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Dierks, French, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Lusk, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, S., Samsel, Sawyer, Stogsdill, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: none.

Absent or not voting: Barker, Bishop, Finney, Frownfelter, Hineman, Horn, Kuether, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Phillips, Ruiz, L., Victors.

#### EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: When you give power away, you rarely get it back. The Kansas Emergency Management Act gave power to the Governor. The COVID-19 pandemic teaches that it is too much power for one person without adequate legislative oversight.

It further teaches that such legislative oversight in the hands of just seven or eight members of the Legislative Coordinating Council or State Finance Council, respectively, is too much power in too few hands.

As a result, our government became dysfunctional during a time of emergency. We must do better for Kansas.

The *entire* Legislature must retain such oversight. I vote NO on S Sub for HB 2054.

- Mark Samsel

Mr. Speaker: I vote Yes today on the Conference Committee Report on S Sub for HB 2054. Since we left the Capitol in March the people of Kansas have suffered greatly. Not only those who were afflicted by the Coronavirus, but by those afflicted by the Incompetent policies of the Kelly Administration. We have learned that "power corrupts and Absolute power corrupts absolutely." The assault on small business, the first amendment, And common sense these last eight weeks is unprecedented in Kansas history. The bill restores Some balance in governmental powers and I predict, will restore the faith of the people of Kansas that their government listens to their voice. – Paul Waggoner

### REPORT ON ENROLLED BILLS

**HB 2168**, **HB 2595** reported correctly enrolled, properly signed and presented to the Governor on March 24, 2020.

#### REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HCR 5025 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on March 20, 2020.

#### BILLS STRICKEN FROM THE CALENDAR

In accordance with House Rule 1507, the following bills were stricken from the calendar for May 1, 2020: SB 270, H Sub SB 271, SB 275, SB 277, SB 284, H Sub SB 285, SB 289, SB 290, SB 292, SB 304, SB 305, SB 306, SB 307, SB 326, SB 354, SB 373, SB 382, SB 384, SB 405, SB 420.

The hour for final adjournment having arrived, Speaker pro tem Finch announced, "By virtue of the authority vested in me, as Speaker pro tem of the House Representatives of the 2020 session, I do now declare the House adjourned sine die."

JENNY HAUGH, JULIA WERNER, *Journal Clerks*. SUSAN W. KANNARR, *Chief Clerk*.

#### REPORT ON ENROLLED BILLS

**HB 2054** reported correctly enrolled, properly signed and presented to the Governor on May 22, 2020.

HB 2018, HB 2034, HB 2137, HB 2246, HB 2510, HB 2585, HB 2619, HB 2702 reported correctly enrolled, properly signed and presented to the Governor on May 26, 2020.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE GOVERNOR

HB 2018, HB 2034, HB 2137, HB 2246, HB 2585 approved on June 1, 2020.

The following message with the Governor's objection to HB 2054, AN ACT concerning governmental response to the 2020 COVID-19 pandemic in Kansas; providing certain relief related to health, welfare, property and economic security during this public health emergency; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2021, for the legislative coordinating council and the governor's department; relating to the state of disaster emergency; powers of the governor and executive officers; providing certain limitations and restrictions; business and commercial activities, local health officials; violations of the emergency management act; enacting the COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act; relating to limitations on liability associated with the COVID-19 public health emergency; providing immunity from civil liability for healthcare providers during the COVID-19 public health emergency; validating certain notarial acts performed while the requirements that a person must appear before a notary public are suspended; requiring county health officers to share certain information with first responder agencies and 911 call centers; imposing requirements on the Kansas department for aging and disability services related to infection prevention and control practices and recommendations, infection control inspections and providing personal protective equipment; authorizing the expanded use of telemedicine in response to the COVID-19 public health emergency and imposing requirements related thereto; suspending certain requirements related to medical care facilities and expiring such provisions; providing for temporary suspension of certain healthcare professional licensing and practice requirements; delegation and supervision requirements; conditions of licensure and renewal and reinstatement of licensure; relating to authorized use of two-way electronic audio-visual communication by courts to secure the health and safety of court users, staff and judicial officers; authorizing the temporary sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption off of certain licensed premises; relating to changes in the employment security law in response to the COVID-19 public health emergency; eligibility for benefits; contribution rates; federal reimbursement; employer notifications; shared work plan eligibility; authorizing counties to adopt orders relating to public health that are less stringent than statewide executive orders; requiring the board of county commissioners to approve orders of a local health officer; requiring city governing bodies to approve local disaster orders of the mayor; providing for severability of this act; amending Section 1 of 2020 House Substitute for Senate Bill No. 102, K.S.A. 48-924, 48-932, 48-939, 65-201, 65-202 and 65-468 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 19-101a, 41-2653, 44-702, 44-705, as amended by section 2 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 27, 44-709, 44-710, 44-757 and 48-925 and repealing the existing sections, was received on May 26, 2020.

# MESSAGE ROM THE GOVERNOR REGARDING VETO OF HOUSE BILL 2054

House Bill 2054 is a sweeping piece of legislation that would have long-lasting consequences for the people of Kansas as we continue to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 in our state.

I support provisions of House Bill 2054 that extend a crucial emergency declaration upon which Kansas' entire COVID-19 response effort is based. With no emergency declaration in place, critical federal support through FEMA, in addition to all Executive Orders issued under the previous act, will expire. Months of sacrifice and work on the part of Kansas families, local officials, public health leaders, and emergency response teams to limit the harm inflicted by this global public health pandemic will be lost.

Unfortunately, this legislation comes attached to policy provisions I cannot support.

- 1. House Bill 2054 politicizes and hampers the ability of the Executive Branch to act swiftly on behalf of Kansans in the face of an emergency. I am willing to accept changes to Kansas Emergency Management Act (KEMA) that extend additional legislative oversight during times of emergency, within reason. Unfortunately, House Bill 2054 goes beyond reasonable legislative oversight and fails to make appropriate amendments to the law. First, the legislation demands that a supermajority of legislative leaders on the State Finance Council approve emergency actions. The bill also needlessly and dangerously hamstrings the government's ability to respond to future threats from COVID-19. Finally, House Bill 2054 fails to provide a reasonable mechanism for the extension of emergency declarations during the many months each year that the Legislature is not in session.
- 2. House Bill 2054 creates unnecessary, unprecedented bureaucracy that will impede on the timely distribution of federal coronavirus relief. I am willing to engage the Kansas Legislature in the proper, efficient distribution of federal Coronavirus Relief Funds. This is why I included both Republican legislative leaders and Republican budget committee chairs on the Strengthening People and Revitalizing Kansas (SPARK) Taskforce for the newly established Recovery Office. However, House Bill 2054 goes beyond collaboration to add unwarranted, unprecedented bureaucracy to the process. It will inevitably delay and confuse efforts for providing relief to Kansas communities and businesses. Kansas accepts billions of dollars in aid each year from the federal government. Kansas law provides the Executive Branch authority to not only accept federal funds, but to expend such funds. This legislative overreach is not only unprecedented, it will delay the process to an extent that will endanger our ability to disperse funds by December 31, 2020, as required by federal law.
- 3. House Bill 2054 undermines a thoughtful compromise originally reached on liability protections to protect both individuals and responsible business owners. My administration engaged key stakeholders in a thorough discussion to amend COVID-19-related civil liability protections in a responsible manner. After weeks of negotiation, a compromise was reached. House Bill 2054 fails to honor this compromise and discards all of the progress made in prior negotiations.

House Bill 2054 was debated, voted on, and written while most Kansans were asleep and was never intended to address reasonable concerns and bring KEMA in line

with our present circumstances. Rather, it was designed to trigger a high-stakes game of political chicken, combining provisions that are essential to COVID-19 response with a wide ranging, special interest "wish-list" of unrelated and unnecessary provisions. I call on the Kansas Legislature to send a clean proposal to my desk that will provide clarity and legal certainty for all elements of our emergency response moving forward.

Therefore, under Article 2, Section 14(a) of the Kansas Constitution, I hereby veto House Bill 2054.

Dated: May 26, 2020

Laura Kelly
Governor of Kansas

The Legislature having adjourned Sine Die on May 21, 2020, there was no opportunity for reconsideration of **Senate Substitute for HB 2054**.

The following message with the Governor's objection to **HB 2510**, AN ACT concerning education; creating the Kansas promise scholarship act; requiring a Kansas foster care children annual academic report card; authorizing the state board of regents on behalf of Kansas state university to sell certain real property in Saline county; authorizing school districts to pay tuition and fees for concurrent and dual enrollment of students; requiring tuition waiver for dual or concurrently enrolled foster students; authorizing the practice of the healing arts by healing arts school clinics; providing ACT college entrance exams and workkeys assessments to nonpublic school students; amending K.S.A. 65-2877a, as amended by section 5 of chapter 52 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, 72-3220, 72-3221, 72-3222, 72-3223, 72-3224 and 75-53,112 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-2707, 17-7668 and 72-5179 and repealing the existing sections, was received on June 1, 2020.

# MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR REGARDING VETO OF HOUSE BILL 2510

House Bill 2510 includes valuable provisions—such as free ACT exams for high school students and a foster care report card—that I would sign into law if they were presented in a standalone bill. The Kansas Promise Scholarship is also a laudable effort to make higher education more accessible to vulnerable Kansans who come of age in the foster care system, and to incentivize Kansas graduates to establish their careers here.

Although well-intentioned, House Bill 2510 as a whole would annually deplete millions from state funds at a time when Kansas faces a \$1.3 billion budget shortfall. I cannot in good conscience sign a bill establishing a new discretionary spending program that is unrelated to Kansas COVID-19 response efforts when such severe financial strain looms in the months ahead. I have made Kansas children in foster care one of the top priorities of my administration. At this time of fiscal crisis we must focus on preserving the foster care programs and services already in place.

Therefore, under Article 2, Section 14(a) of the Constitution, I hereby veto House Bill 2510.

Dated: June 1, 2020

# Laura Kelly Governor of Kansas

The Legislature having adjourned Sine Die on May 21, 2020, there was no opportunity for reconsideration of **HB 2510**.

The following message with the Governor's objection to **HB 2619**, AN ACT concerning financial institutions; enacting the Kansas economic recovery loan deposit program; relating to credit unions, field of membership; banks, trust companies and savings and loan institutions, privilege tax, deduction of net interest received from certain agricultural real estate loans and single family residence loans; amending K.S.A. 75-4237 and 79-1109 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 17-2205 and repealing the existing sections, was received on June 1, 2020.

## MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR REGARDING VETO OF HOUSE BILL 2619

House Bill 2619 establishes a new Economic Recovery Linked Deposit Loan Program for businesses in response to the economic downturn caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. This 10-year program would make up to \$60 million available for low-interest loans to businesses and agricultural producers through the Pooled Money Investment Board.

I support efforts to provide economic relief to Kansas small businesses and agricultural producers who have been hard hit by the COVID-19 pandemic. However, federal funding made available to Kansas through the CARES Act is a more appropriate funding source for this effort. With a \$1.3 billion budget shortfall looming, we must protect every state resource at our disposal to make ends meet in the months ahead, including earnings from the state's investment portfolio.

House Bill 2619 also grants authority to the Kansas State Treasurer to administer the loan program. These programs have historically been administered by the Kansas Department of Commerce, and that should continue in our COVID-19 response effort.

Finally, this bill includes a problematic income tax exemption for for-profit banks. While the efforts of Kansas banks and credit unions to reach a compromise on this legislation are laudable, I cannot in good conscience agree to providing tax breaks for banks in light of the looming budget shortfall. Additionally, the CARES Act already provides relief for banks that will far exceed the benefits of this legislation.

Therefore, under Article 2, Section 14(a) of the Constitution, I hereby veto House Bill 2619.

Dated: June 1, 2020

Laura Kelly

Governor of Kansas

The Legislature having adjourned Sine Die on May 21, 2020, there was no opportunity for reconsideration of **HB 2619**.

The following message with the Governor's objection to **HB 2702**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to income tax, enacting the Kansas taxpayer protection act regulating paid tax return preparers, extending certain return filing and tax payment deadlines; property taxation, rates, truth in taxation and establishing notice and public hearing requirements prior to approval to exceed revenue neutral rate, discontinuing the city and county tax lid, time for payment of real property and personal property taxes, providing for waiver of interest and fees for late property tax payments for a certain period of time, extending the time for listing and publication of delinquent real estate subject to sale, prohibiting valuation increase of real property solely as the result of normal repair, replacement or maintenance, establishment of a payment plan for the payment of delinquent or nondelinquent taxes; amending K.S.A. 79-1110, 79-1460, 79-1801, 79-2024, 79-2302, 79-2303, 79-2925c, 79-3221 and 79-3225 and repealing the existing sections, was received on June 1, 2020.

## MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR REGARDING VETO OF HOUSE BILL 2702

During the COVID-19 pandemic our local governments have risen to the challenge of providing services to citizens when COVID-19 threatens the normal operations of businesses and government agencies alike. I am keenly aware of the challenges facing Kansas taxpayers, especially those facing unemployment or decreased income as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

However, the COVID-19 pandemic has also required our local governments to do more with less. Local governments rely heavily on property taxes to fund essential programs and services, but by allowing property tax payments to be made as late as August 10, 2020, with no penalties or interest, House Bill 2702 would potentially deprive local governments of essential funding at a time it is needed the most. Local governments cannot meet increased demand for police, fire, emergency medical, and other services if a primary funding source for local governments is withdrawn. Additionally, HB 2702 places significant administrative burdens on local governments when local officials should be focused on addressing the threats and challenges of COVID-19 in their communities.

I have long supported responsible property tax relief, but the provisions of HB 2702 cause more problems than they solve. Now is not the time to create more problems and burdens for local governments.

Therefore, under Article 2, Section 14(a) of the Constitution, I hereby veto House Bill 2702.

Dated: June 1, 2020

Laura Kelly
Governor of Kansas

The Legislature having adjourned Sine Die on May 21, 2020, there was no opportunity for reconsideration of **HB 2702**.

#### MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The Senate announces the following bills and concurrent resolutions are hereby transmitted to the House with final disposition:

House Bills that died in Conference: HB 2160, HB 2466.

House Bills that died on the Senate Calendar: S Sub 2063, S Sub HB 2154, S Sub HB 2244, S Sub 2346, S Sub HB 2396, HB 2420, HB 2432, HB 2447, HB 2451, HB 2452, HB 2462, HB 2464, HB 2479, S Sub HB 2480, S Sub HB 2487, S Sub HB 2490, HB 2501, Sub 2506, HB 2507, HB 2509, S Sub HB 2515, HB 2524, S Sub HB 2540, HB 2575, HB 2618, HB 2646, HB 2713.

House Bills that died in Senate Committees: HB 2006, HB 2041, HB 2048, HB 2066, HB 2082, HB 2105, HB 2133, S Sub HB 2143, HB 2147, HB 2173, HB 2179, HB 2185, HB 2198, HB 2199, HB 2206, HB 2239, HB 2243, HB 2274, HB 2279, HB 2281, HB 2307, HB 2314, HB 2326, HB 2336, HB 2360, HB 2369, HB 2371, HB 2372, HB 2389, HB 2402, HB 2426, HB 2428, HB 2429, HB 2438, HB 2448, HB 2449, HB 2454, HB 2456, HB 2463, HB 2467, HB 2469, HB 2470, HB 2495, HB 2496, HB 2500, HB 2503, HB 2516, HB 2518, HB 2521, HB 2528, HB 2546, HB 2547, HB 2548, HB 2554, HB 2571, HB 2583, HB 2587, HB 2596, HB 2689, HB 2695, HB 2699, HB 2708.

House Concurrent Resolutions that died in Senate Committees: HCR 5020.

TITLE AND HISTORY

OF

**HOUSE BILLS** 

AND

HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

This report includes all House originated bills, resolutions, and concurrent resolutions considered by the 2020 Legislature (including those carried over from 2019). Executive Reorganization Orders and Petitions presented to the House of Representatives during the 2020 Session are also included.

#### TITLE AND HISTORY OF HOUSE BILLS

#### H 2002 Bill by Representative Resman

#### Limiting the property tax exemption for fire districts.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, December 20, 2018

01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 45

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Local Government—HJ 52

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

### H 2003 Bill by Representative Victors

#### Creating the limited driver's license and identification card for certain individuals.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Wednesday, December 26, 2018

01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 45

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 52

02/01/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Transportation; Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 104

03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 20, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2004 Bill by Representative Rhiley

# Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict use of automatic dialing-announcing devices and to prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, December 27, 2018

01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 45

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 52

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2005 Bill by Representative Bishop

# Allowing an individual to itemize deductions in Kansas despite not itemizing on their federal return.

01/14/2019 House-Prefiled for Introduction on Wednesday, January 2, 2019

01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 45

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 52

01/27/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 29, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

02/19/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HJ 2096

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2006 Bill by Representative Williams

# Economic development program evaluations and disclosure of certain data; development incentives for rural housing shortage and rural housing incentive district bonds.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Friday, January 4, 2019

01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 45

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 52

01/23/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 31, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 112-N

02/20/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 203

02/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 241

02/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 122 Nay: 0—HJ 259

```
02/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 166
         02/28/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Commerce—SJ 167
         03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing continuation: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 8:30 AM Room
         03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing continuation: Tuesday, March 12, 2019, 8:30 AM Room
         03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Monday, March 11, 2019, 8:30 AM Room 548-S
         03/27/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by
                 Committee on Commerce—SJ 335
         02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Commerce
                 —SJ 1247
         05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee
H 2008 Bill by Representative Williams
         Exempting Kansas from daylight saving time.
         01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Monday, January 7, 2019
         01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 46
         01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 52
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
H 2009
        Bill by Representatives Highberger, Victors
         Changing the designation of columbus day to indigenous peoples day.
         01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Tuesday, January 8, 2019
         01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 46
         01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 52
         02/01/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 6, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
H 2010 Bill by Representative Ward
         Lobbying restrictions; certain elected state officers and executive staff.
         01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019
         01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 46
         01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 52
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
H 2011 Bill by Representative Hoheisel
         Sales tax exemption for required textbooks.
         01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019
         01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 46
         01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 52
         02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 12, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
H 2012 Bill by Representative Carmichael
         Replacing the workers compensation prevailing factor standard with a substantial
                 factor standard.
         01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019
         01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 46
         01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic
                 Development—HJ 52
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
```

#### H 2013 Bill by Representative Carmichael

# Amending the edition of the AMA medical guide used to determine impairment for awarding workers compensation benefits.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019

01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 46

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 52

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2014 Bill by Representative Carmichael

# Amending the disallowance of workers compensation benefits for fighting or horseplay when not work related.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019

01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 46

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 52

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2015 Bill by Representative Carmichael

# Repealing state contract requirements regarding anti-Israel boycotts.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019

01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 46

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 52

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2016 Bill by Representative Carmichael

# Allowing injured workers who are receiving their social security benefits to keep the full amount of their workers compensation.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019

01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 46

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 52

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2017 Bill by Representative Curtis

# Restoring local control over certain compensation, wage and benefit requirements for construction projects.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019

01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 46

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 52

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2018 Bill by Representative Carmichael

# Senate Substitute for Substitute for HB 2018 by Committee on Utilities -

Restricting cities and counties from imposing certain regulations and fees on a video service provider for the provision of communications service through a micro wireless facility.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019

01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 46

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 52

01/24/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 81

01/24/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, January 28, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

```
02/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by
                 Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 235
         02/27/2019 House-Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on
                 Appropriations-HJ 302
         03/12/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Referred to
                 Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 336
         03/15/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by
                 Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 352
         03/25/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 434
         03/26/2019 House—Final Action - Substitute passed as amended; Yea: 120 Nay: 4—HJ
         03/26/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 291
         04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 356
         03/17/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee
                 on Utilities—SJ 1475
         03/17/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by
                 Committee on Utilities—SJ 1483
         05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report adopted—SJ 1769
         05/21/2020 Senate—Call the Question - failed Yea: 16 Nay: 24—SJ 1769
         05/21/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action - Substitute passed as amended; Yea: 33
                 Nay: 5-SJ 1769
         05/21/2020 House—Concurred with amendments; Yea: 104 Nay: 9—HJ 2734
         05/21/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Tuesday, May 26, 2020—HJ
                 2777
         05/21/2020 House—Approved by Governor on Monday, June 1, 2020—HJ 2777
H 2019 Bill by Representative Carmichael
         Changing penalties for certain voting crimes.
         01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019
         01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 46
         01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 52
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
H 2020 Bill by Representative Carmichael
         Changing the supreme court clerk's information requirements for licensed
                 attorneys and changing procedures related to the supreme court
                 nominating commission and the judicial district nominating commissions.
         01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019
         01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 46
         01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 52
         01/23/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, January 28, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
        Bill by Representative Corbet
         Elections; term limits for offices of state treasurer and insurance commissioner.
         01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019
         01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 46
         01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 52
         02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 14, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
        Bill by Representative Ward
```

H 2022

Enacting the Kansas working families pay raise act.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Friday, January 11, 2019
01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 47
01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 52
05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2023 Bill by Representative Ward

## Enacting the Kansas protection against terrorist act.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Friday, January 11, 2019 01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 47 01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 52 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2024 Bill by Representative Highberger

## Amending the no-call act to restrict the use of automatic dialing devices.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Friday, January 11, 2019 01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 47 01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications—HJ 52 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2025 Bill by Representative Capps

# Including a person who has filed a petition for adoption in the definition of an interested party in the child in need of care code.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Friday, January 11, 2019 01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 47 01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 52 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2026 Bill by Representative Frownfelter

# Enacting the fire sprinkler industry act.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Friday, January 11, 2019—HJ 49 01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 47

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 52

02/06/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 12, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2027 Bill by Joint Corrections and Juvenile Justice Oversight

# Evidence based juvenile programs; lapsing and appropriating \$6,000,000 state general fund moneys from department of health and environment—division of health care finance to the department of corrections.

01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 47

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation and Public Safety Budget
—HJ 52

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2028 Bill by Joint Corrections and Juvenile Justice Oversight

# Allowing money in the evidence-based programs account managed by the department of corrections to be used for transportation to programs and electronic monitoring.

01/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 47

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation and Public Safety Budget

—HJ 52 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2029 Bill by Representative Ward

## Repealing the health care compact.

01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 47

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ  $52\,$ 

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2030 Bill by Representative Ward

# Expanding eligibility for medicaid benefits to the extent permitted by the affordable care act.

01/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 47

 $01/15/2019\ House$ —Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 52

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2032 Bill by Representative Frownfelter

# Requiring that sports gaming be operated and managed solely by racetrack gaming facilities.

01/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 51

01/16/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 57

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2034 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Senate Substitute for HB 2034 by Committee on Judiciary - Requiring restitution be due immediately unless the court orders a payment plan.

01/16/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 57

01/17/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 67

01/17/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 24, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

02/04/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 108

02/07/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 131

02/08/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 101 Nay: 15—HJ 140

02/11/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 83

02/12/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 85

03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

03/21/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 274

02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary— SJ 1247

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1759

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report adopted—SJ 1759

05/21/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action - Substitute passed as amended; Yea: 40 Nay: 0—SJ 1788

05/21/2020 House—Concurred with amendments; Yea: 114 Nay: 3—HJ 2699

05/21/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Tuesday, May 26, 2020—HJ 2777

05/21/2020 House—Approved by Governor on Monday, June 1, 2020—HJ 2777

#### H 2036 Bill by Representative Woodard

# Repeal of prohibition on use of state appropriated moneys to lobby on gun control issues.

01/16/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 57 01/17/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 67 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### Bill by Representatives Pittman, Gartner

## Relating to the veterans benefit lottery games, creating the veterans benefit lottery game fund and transferring moneys to veterans service programs.

01/17/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 67

01/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 70

01/25/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Federal and State Affairs; Referred to Committee on Veterans and Military-HJ 84

01/30/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 5, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 218-N

02/06/2019 House—Hearing continuation: Tuesday, February 12, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 218-N

02/18/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Veterans and Military—HJ 193

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2040 Bill by Taxation

## Providing sales tax authority for Finney county.

01/17/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 67

01/17/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 23, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

01/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 70

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2041 Bill by Insurance

## Prohibiting certain unfair or deceptive acts or practices under a life insurance policy for a living organ donor.

01/17/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 67

01/17/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 23, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

01/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 70

02/07/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Insurance—HJ 131

02/27/2019 House-Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 308

03/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Insurance—HJ 346

03/20/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 396

03/21/2019 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 94 Nay: 29—HJ 407

03/22/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 276

03/26/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ

02/14/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance; Referred to Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 1279 05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2042 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

#### Removing the authority of the secretary of state to prosecute election crimes.

01/17/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 69

01/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 70

01/23/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, January 28, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

- 01/31/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 102
- 02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302
- 03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 308
- 03/13/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 343 05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

# H 2043 Bill by Representative Gartner

#### Review of tax credits, tax exemptions and economic development programs.

- 01/17/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 69
- 01/18/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Taxation-HJ 70
- 01/23/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 30, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N
- 02/08/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HJ 140
- 05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

#### H 2046 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Clarifying concurrent or consecutive sentencing for persons convicted of new crimes while on release for a felony.

- 01/22/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 71
- 01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 76
- 01/30/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 4, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S
- 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2047 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

#### Changing the criminal penalties for certain drug crimes.

- 01/22/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 71
- 01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 76
- 02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S
- 02/20/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 21, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S
- 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2048 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Clarifying the definition of comparable offense under the Kansas criminal code, the timing of claiming error on appeal, and the grounds for a motion to correct an illegal sentence.

- 01/22/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 71
- 01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 76
- 02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S
- 02/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 235
- 02/27/2019 House—Committee of the Whole Be passed as amended—HJ 273
- 02/27/2019 House—Emergency Final Action Passed as amended; Yea: 122 Nay: 2—
- 02/28/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 167
- 03/06/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 170
- 03/11/2019 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 19, 2019, 10:30 AM Room 346-S
- 03/26/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 293
- 02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary—

```
SJ 1247
05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee
```

#### H 2051 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

## Amending the requirements for offender registration.

01/22/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 72

01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 76 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

### H 2052 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Allowing earned discharge credit for people on probation.

01/22/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 72

01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 76 01/30/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 6, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2053 Bill by Insurance

# Providing for short-term, limited-duration health plans.

01/22/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 72

01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 76

01/30/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 4, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

01/16/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

02/21/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Insurance—HJ 2112

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

## H 2054 Bill by Insurance

# Senate Substitute for HB 2054 by Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance - Enacting the governmental response to the 2020 COVID-19 pandemic in Kansas and providing certain relief related to health, welfare, property and economic security during this public health emergency.

01/22/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 72

01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 76

01/23/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, January 28, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

02/26/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Insurance—HJ 249

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 308

03/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Insurance—HJ 346

03/25/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 434

03/26/2019 House-Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 101 Nay: 23-HJ 482

03/26/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 291

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ

03/13/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 1425

03/16/2020 Senate—Committee of the Whole - Substitute bill be passed—SJ 1429

03/16/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action - Substitute passed; Yea: 29 Nay: 5—SJ 1462

05/21/2020 House—Nonconcurred with amendments; Conference Committee requested;

- appointed Representative Patton, Representative Ralph and Representative Carmichael as conferees—HJ 2697
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Motion to accede adopted; Senator Wilborn, Senator Rucker and Senator Miller appointed as conferees
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Conference Committee Report agree to disagree adopted; Senator Wilborn, Senator Rucker and Senator Miller appointed as second conferees—SJ 1773
- 05/21/2020 House—Conference Committee Report agree to disagree adopted; Representative Patton, Representative Ralph and Representative Ward appointed as second conferees—HJ 2697
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 27 Nay: 11—SJ
- 05/21/2020 House—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 76 Nay: 34—HJ
- 05/21/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Friday, May 22, 2020—HJ
- 05/21/2020 House—Vetoed by Governor; Returned to House on Tuesday, May 26, 2020 —HJ 2777
- 05/21/2020 House—No motion to reconsider vetoed bill; Veto sustained

## H 2055 Bill by Insurance

#### Making certain self-funded association health plans subject to the jurisdiction of the commissioner.

- 01/22/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 72
- 01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 76
- 01/23/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, January 28, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N
- 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2056 Bill by Insurance

## Exempting health plans issued to associations of small employers from certain statutory provisions governing small employer health plans.

- 01/22/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 72
- 01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 76
- 01/23/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 30, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N
- 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2057 Bill by Insurance

## Specifying the conditions under which a small employer carrier may establish certain classes of business.

- 01/22/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 73
- 01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 76
- 01/23/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 30, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2058 Bill by Insurance

# Updating definitions relating to small employer health plans and association health

- 01/22/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 73
- 01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 76
- 01/23/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 30, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N
- 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2059 Bill by Insurance

## Exempting certain association health plans from requirements pertaining to small employer health plans.

01/22/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 73

01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 76

01/30/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 4, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2060 Bill by Representative Parker

### Repealing prohibition on municipal regulation of paid leave for employees.

01/22/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 73

01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 76

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2061 Bill by Representative Parker

## Repealing prohibition on municipal regulation of minimum wages.

01/22/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 73

01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 76

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2062 Bill by Agriculture

### Relating to the applicability of conditions for operating recreational trails.

01/22/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 74

01/23/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 76

01/23/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 30, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2063 Bill by Taxation

# Senate Substitute for HB 2063 by Committee on Assessment and Taxation Discontinuing state property tax levies for the Kansas educational building fund and the state institutions building fund and providing for financing from the state general fund.

01/23/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 75

01/23/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, January 29, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

01/24/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 81

01/31/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Taxation—HJ 102

02/06/2019 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 102 Nay: 14—HJ 119

02/06/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 69

02/07/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 71

02/13/2019 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 9:30 AM Room 548-S

02/26/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 1380

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

#### H 2065 Bill by Judiciary

# Removing the duty of the driver of an authorized emergency vehicle to drive with due regard for the safety of all others.

01/23/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 77

01/24/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 81

01/25/2019 House—Hearing continuation: Wednesday, January 30, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

01/25/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, January 29, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2066 Bill by Health and Human Services

# Expanding medicaid eligibility by enacting the KanCare bridge to a healthy Kansas program.

01/23/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 77

01/24/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 81

02/06/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 11, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

02/26/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 244

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 308

03/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 346

03/20/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended Yea: 70 Nay: 54 —HJ 396

03/21/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 69 Nay: 54—HJ 408

03/22/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 276

03/26/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 284

05/01/2019 Senate—Motion to withdraw from Committee on Public Health and Welfare not adopted; Yea: 23 Nay: 13—SJ 594

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2067 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Providing for audio and video broadcasts of legislative meetings.

01/24/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 80

01/25/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs-HJ 84

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

### H 2068 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Creating the Kansas sports wagering act.

01/24/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 80

01/25/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 84

05/02/2019 House—Motion to withdraw from Committee on Federal and State Affairs pending—HJ 865

05/03/2019 House—Motion to withdraw from Committee on Federal and State Affairs withdrawn—HJ 869

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

### H 2069 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Providing certain requirements regarding the taking of minutes of meetings of legislative committees.

01/24/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 80

01/25/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 84

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2074 Bill by Representatives Probst, Alcala, Benson, Clayton, Finney, Horn, Kuether, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Parker, Pittman, Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Warfield, Whipple, Winn, Woodard, Xu

# Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.

01/24/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 81

01/25/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 84

02/06/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 11, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2075 Bill by Representative Woodard

## Elections; petition circulator requirements.

01/24/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 81

01/25/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 84

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2077 Bill by Representative Houser

# Requiring suicide risk evaluation upon admission to certain treatment facilities.

01/24/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 81

01/25/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 84

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2078 Bill by Appropriations

# Appropriations for the department of education for FY 2019, 2020 and 2021; increasing BASE aid for certain school years; continuing 20 mill statewide levy for schools and exempting certain portion of property used for residential purposes from such levy.

01/24/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 81

01/25/2019 House-Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget-HJ 84

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2080 Bill by Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

# Electric utilities and recovery of transmission costs.

01/24/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 81

01/25/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 84

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2081 Bill by Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

#### Reestablishing the Kansas electric transmission authority.

01/24/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 81

01/25/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 84

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2082 Bill by Health and Human Services

# Allowing pharmacists to administer drugs pursuant to a prescription order.

01/24/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 81

01/25/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 84

02/01/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 6, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

02/26/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 249

02/28/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 304

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 308

03/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 346 03/20/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 376 03/21/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 122 Nay: 1—HJ 412 03/22/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 276 03/26/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 284 05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee H 2086 Bill by Taxation Exempting mechanical amusement devices from sales tax, providing for use of a tax stamp. 01/25/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 83 01/28/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 88 02/27/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 6, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee H 2089 Bill by Representative Gartner Enacting the Kansas death with dignity act. 01/28/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 86 01/29/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 90 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee H 2090 Bill by Representatives Clayton, Amyx, Benson, Carlin, Gartner, Highberger, Hodge, Kuether, Lusk, Moore, Neighbor, Parker, Probst, Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Whipple, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education. 01/29/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 89 01/30/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 95 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee H 2091 Bill by Representative Pittman Allowing early voting in person at least 10 days prior to an election. 01/29/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 89 01/30/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 95 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee H 2092 Bill by Representatives Pittman, Finney Allowing voter registration on election day. 01/29/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 90 01/30/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 95 02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee H 2093 Bill by Taxation Providing for a sales tax exemption for sales of currency, certain coins and bullion. 01/29/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 90 01/30/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 96 01/30/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 6, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N 02/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Taxation—HJ 178 05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2094 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

### Requiring the department for children and families to offer services to children with problem sexual behavior and to such child's family.

01/29/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 93

01/30/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 95

01/30/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 5, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2095 Bill by Representative Finney

#### Providing for the Alpha Kappa Alpha distinctive license plate.

01/29/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 93

01/30/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 96

02/06/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 12, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2096 Bill by Representative Highberger

#### Establishing the Kansas children's savings account program.

01/29/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 93

01/30/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ

02/20/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 25, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 281-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2098 Bill by Judiciary

### Making changes to the Kansas open records act for disclosure of criminal investigation records.

01/29/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 93

01/30/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 95

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2100 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

#### Providing a post-retirement benefit increase (COLA) for certain KPERS retirants.

01/29/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 93

01/30/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ

02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 11, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 281-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2102 Bill by Appropriations

#### Establishing the KanCare bridge to a healthy Kansas program.

01/29/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 93

01/30/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 95

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2105 Bill by Judiciary

#### Updating laws concerning limited liability companies.

01/30/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 95

01/30/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 4, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

01/31/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 102

02/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 169

02/20/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 203

02/21/2019 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 117 Nay: 0—HJ 211

02/21/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 117

02/22/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 121

03/11/2019 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 20, 2019, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

03/25/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 282

02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary— SJ 1247

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2106 Bill by K-12 Education Budget

### Increasing the BASE aid under the Kansas school equity and enhancement act and making appropriations for the department of education.

01/30/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 99

01/31/2019 House—Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 102

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2107 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Requiring full reimbursement for contraceptive prescriptions.

01/30/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 99

01/31/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 102

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2108 Bill by K-12 Education Budget

### Authorizing school districts to expend at-risk education funds on evidence-based learning programs.

01/30/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 99

01/31/2019 House—Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 102

02/05/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 546-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2109 Bill by Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

### Requiring electric public utilities to acquire a permit from the state corporation commission prior to the siting of certain electric transmission lines.

01/30/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 99

01/31/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 101

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2110 Bill by Representatives Rhiley, Highberger, Amyx, Capps, Carlin, Carmichael, French, Hoheisel, Howard, Lynn, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Probst, Ruiz, L., Waggoner, Warfield, Xu

Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.

01/30/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 99

01/31/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 101

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2111 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Requirements for the sale of firearms at gun shows or over the internet.

01/30/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 99

01/31/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 102 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2113 Bill by Elections

#### Petition requirements for recognition of political parties.

01/31/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 100

02/01/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 104

02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 12, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2114 Bill by Agriculture

#### Allowing counties to impose a severance tax on limestone.

01/31/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 101

02/01/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 104

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2115 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

### Requiring verification of certain hours billed by contractors under certain contracts.

01/31/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 101

02/01/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 104

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2116 Bill by Representatives Rhiley, Bergquist, Wasinger

### Allowing taxpayers to attend BOTA hearings by use of audio or video electronic communication.

01/31/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 101

02/01/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 104

03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, March 18, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2117** Bill by Transportation

#### Providing for the Knights of Columbus distinctive license plate.

01/31/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 101

02/01/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 104

02/06/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 12, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2118 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

# Senate Substitute for HB 2118 by Committee on Assessment and Taxation Concerning property taxation; establishing notice and public hearing requirements prior to approval by a governing body to exceed its revenue neutral rate; providing a waiver of interest and fees on certain delinquent property taxes for a period of time and delaying preparation of delinquent real estate tax list and notice; prohibiting valuation increase for real property solely as the result of normal repair, replacement or maintenance of existing structure.

01/31/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 101

02/01/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 104

02/11/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 218-N 02/18/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 190

```
02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302
```

03/22/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 416

03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 437

03/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Motion to rerefer to committee failed— HJ 513

03/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 515

03/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 106 Nay: 18—HJ 529

03/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 334

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 356

03/04/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 9:30 AM Room 152-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 1754

05/21/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action - Substitute passed as amended; Yea: 35 Nay: 2—SJ 1760

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

# H 2120 Bill by Representatives Mason, Smith, E., Bergquist, Bishop, Carlin, Concannon, Dierks, Dove, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finney, Hibbard, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Moore, Ousley, Owens, Rahjes, Resman, Samsel, Schreiber, Thimesch, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Wasinger, Wheeler

### Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.

01/31/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 101

02/01/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 104 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2121 Bill by Appropriations

### Supplemental appropriations for FY 2019, FY 2020, FY 2021, FY 2022, FY 2023 and FY 2024 for various state agencies.

01/31/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 101

02/01/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 104

02/06/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2122 Bill by Appropriations

#### Appropriations for FY 2020, FY 2021 and FY 2022 for various state agencies.

01/31/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 101

02/01/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 104

03/06/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2124 Bill by Representatives Parker, Benson, Carlin, Clayton, Horn, Kuether, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Warfield, Woodard, Xu

#### Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.

02/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 107

02/05/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 113

#### H 2128 Bill by Representatives Ward, Hodge

Decreasing the sales and use tax rate on food and food ingredients.

02/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 107

02/05/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 113

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2129 Bill by Representatives Ward, Gartner, Warfield

#### Creating the gun safety red flag act.

02/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 107

02/05/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 113

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2130 Bill by Representatives Ruiz, S., Woodard, Alcala, Ballard, Bishop, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Cox, Curtis, Finney, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Holscher, Horn, Kessinger, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Ward,

Warfield, Weigel, Whipple, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Xu

### Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.

02/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 107

02/05/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 113

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2131 Bill by Rural Revitalization

### Providing for a sales tax exemption for construction and certain purchases for businesses qualifying as part of an enterprise zone.

02/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 110

02/05/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 113

02/11/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 14, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 582-N

02/28/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Rural Revitalization; Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 304

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2132 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

#### Increasing the criminal penalty for lewd and lascivious behavior.

02/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 110

02/05/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ

02/06/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 12, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2133 Bill by Taxation

#### Required reporting for entities who deliver alcoholic liquors to consumers.

02/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 110

02/05/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 113

02/05/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Taxation; Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 113

02/06/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 14, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

02/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 233

03/12/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 333

03/13/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 121 Nay: 2—HJ 339

03/13/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 188

```
03/14/2019 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 20, 2019, 10:30 AM Room 144-S
```

03/14/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—SJ 194

03/21/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—SJ 273

02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—SJ 1247

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2134 Bill by Taxation

#### Sales tax exemption for nonprofit integrated community care organizations.

02/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 110

02/05/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Taxation-HJ 113

02/12/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2135 Bill by Local Government

#### Restrictions on city and county political sign regulations repealed.

02/05/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 113

02/06/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Local Government—HJ 118

02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 218-N

02/21/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Local Government—HJ 219

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302  $\,$ 

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2137 Bill by Judiciary

# Senate Substitute for HB 2137 by Committee on Judiciary - Reviewing and continuing expiring exceptions to the disclosure of public records under the open records act and eliminating a photograph record requirement in the scrap metal theft reduction act.

02/05/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 113

02/06/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 118

02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 11, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 169

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 308

03/19/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 368

03/25/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 442

03/26/2019 House-Final Action - Passed; Yea: 124 Nay: 0-HJ 482

03/26/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 291

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 356

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1759

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report adopted—SJ 1768

05/21/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action - Substitute passed; Yea: 40 Nay: 0—SJ 1768

05/21/2020 House—Concurred with amendments; Yea: 121 Nay: 0—HJ 2698

05/21/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Tuesday, May 26, 2020—HJ 2777

05/21/2020 House—Approved by Governor on Monday, June 1, 2020—HJ 2777

#### H 2138 Bill by Taxation

#### Required fee for entry into a sexually oriented business.

02/05/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 113

02/06/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Taxation-HJ 118

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2139 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

### Permitting local eligible employers to affiliate with KP&F with regard to coverage of certain local corrections employees.

02/05/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 114

02/06/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ

02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 281-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2141 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

# Amortizing the state and school KPERS actuarial accrued liability for a period of 30 years and eliminating certain level-dollar employer contribution payments.

02/05/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 114

02/06/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2142 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

#### Increasing the lump-sum death benefit for retirants under KPERS.

02/05/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 114

02/06/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2143 Bill by Insurance

# Senate Substitute for HB 2143 by Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance - Amending provisions related to and providing for certain healthcare benefit coverages.

02/05/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 114

02/06/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 118

02/06/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 11, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

02/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Insurance—HJ 169

02/20/2019 House-Final Action - Passed; Yea: 121 Nay: 0-HJ 202

02/20/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 112

02/21/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 117

03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 9:30 AM Room 546-S

03/20/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 228

04/05/2019 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 555

02/14/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance; Referred to Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 1279

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2145 Bill by K-12 Education Budget

### Making appropriations for fiscal years 2020 and 2021 for the department of education for special education and related services.

02/05/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 114

02/06/2019 House—Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 118

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2146 Bill by Health and Human Services

### Providing for certain business entities to engage in the corporate practice of medicine.

02/05/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 114

02/06/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 118

02/06/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 12, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2147 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

### Increasing bond maturity limitations in the Kansas rural housing incentive district act.

02/05/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 114

02/06/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 118

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 112-N

02/21/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 213

02/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 243

02/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 123 Nay: 0—HJ 262

02/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 166

02/28/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Commerce—SJ 167

03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 8:30 AM Room 548-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2148 Bill by Representative Rhiley

#### Unemployment benefits for privately contracted school bus drivers.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 116

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 124

02/25/2020 House—Motion to withdraw from Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development pending—HJ 2141

02/26/2020 House—Motion to withdraw from Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development not adopted; Yea: 44 Nay: 81—HJ 2149

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2149 Bill by Children and Seniors

#### Requiring a timely determination of KanCare eligibility.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 116

02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

02/07/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors-HJ 124

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2150** Bill by Representatives Erickson, Humphries

Enacting the Kansas hope scholarship act.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 116 02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 125 02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 14, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 546-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2151 Bill by Judiciary

### Granting immunity from civil liability to the person who files a citizen-initiated grand jury petition.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 116

02/07/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Judiciary-HJ 125

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2152 Bill by Judiciary

#### Creating the assistance animal integrity act.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 116

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 125

02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 11, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2153 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Repealing statutes pertaining to student religious associations.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 116

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 124

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2154 Bill by Rural Revitalization

# Senate Substitute for HB 2154 by Committee on Commerce - Amending employment security law with respect to benefit eligibility, contribution rates, shared work program requirements and other matters to address COVID-19 and to comply with federal COVID-19 employment security law emergency administrative grant and reimbursement funding requirements.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 116

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 125

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 582-N

02/19/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 197

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 308

03/12/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 335

03/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 512

03/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 111 Nay: 12—HJ 530

03/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 334

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Commerce—SJ 356

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Commerce—SJ 1758

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

#### H 2155 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Improving the Kansas medicolegal death investigation system.

02/06/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 117

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 125 02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2156 Bill by Agriculture

## Clarifying that it is unlawful for a person to submit an inspection report concerning wood-destroying pests unless that person is a pesticide applicator with the correct certification and license.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 117

02/07/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Agriculture-HJ 124

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2157 Bill by Children and Seniors

### Concerning state benefit requirements and limitations for the temporary assistance for needy families program.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 117

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 125

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2158 Bill by Appropriations

### Authorizing the board of regents on behalf of the university of Kansas to sell certain real property in Douglas county.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 117

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 124

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2159 Bill by Appropriations

### Authorizing the board of regents on behalf of Kansas state university to sell certain real property in Saline county.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 117

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 124

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2160 Bill by Taxation

## Providing sales tax authority for Dickinson, Jackson, Russell, Thomas and Wabaunsee counties, and providing a sales tax exemption for sales of certain coins or bullion.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 117

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 125

02/11/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

02/26/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HJ 255

03/07/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 316

03/08/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 112 Nay: 7—HJ 320

03/08/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 175

03/11/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 177

03/13/2019 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 19, 2019, 9:30 AM Room 548-S

03/21/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by

Committee on Assessment and Taxation-SJ 241

03/26/2019 Senate—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—SJ 290

03/27/2019 Senate—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 39 Nay: 0—SJ 310

04/04/2019 House—Nonconcurred with amendments; Conference Committee requested; appointed Representative Johnson, Representative Mason and Representative Gartner as conferees—HJ 565

04/04/2019 Senate—Motion to accede adopted; Senator Tyson, Senator Kerschen and Senator Holland appointed as conferees—SJ 505

05/04/2019 Senate—Conference Committee Report agree to disagree adopted; Senator Tyson, Senator Kerschen and Senator Holland appointed as second conferees— SJ 756

05/04/2019 House—Conference Committee Report agree to disagree adopted; Representative Johnson, Representative Mason and Representative Gartner appointed as second conferees—HJ 1806

05/21/2020 House—Died in Conference

#### H 2161 Bill by Representative Alcala

#### Creating the Kansas animal abuse offender repository.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 117

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 125

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2163 Bill by Representatives Karleskint, Holscher, Horn, Kessinger

#### Providing for the legal use of medical cannabis.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 117

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 125

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2164 Bill by Representative Ousley

#### Repealing the adoption protection act.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 117

02/07/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs-HJ 124

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2165 Bill by Representatives Delperdang, Bergquist, Capps, Carpenter, W., Highland, Hoheisel, Holscher, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Moore, Owens, Patton, Pittman, Probst, Resman, Seiwert, Smith, E., Thomas

### Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.

02/06/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 117

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ

02/20/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 25, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 281-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2166** Bill by Education

#### Requiring personal financial literacy courses for high school graduation.

02/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 118

02/07/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Education-HJ 124

02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 12, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 218-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2168 Bill by Higher Education Budget

# Increasing the rate and expanding the base of the hospital provider assessment and extending the quality care assessment imposed on skilled nursing care facilities.

```
02/06/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 120
```

02/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 124

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

02/22/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Appropriations—HJ 225

02/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 256

02/27/2019 House-Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 122 Nay: 1-HJ 264

02/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 166

02/28/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Education—SJ 167

03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 144-S

03/22/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Education—SJ 277

03/26/2019 Senate—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—SJ 290

03/27/2019 Senate—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 39 Nay: 0—SJ 310

04/02/2019 House—Nonconcurred with amendments; Conference Committee requested; appointed Representative Waymaster, Representative Hoffman and Representative Wolfe Moore as conferees—HJ 551

04/02/2019 Senate—Motion to accede adopted; Senator Baumgardner, Senator Alley and Senator Sykes appointed as conferees—SJ 354

03/17/2020 Senate—Senator McGinn, Senator Billinger, and Senator Hawk are appointed to replace Senator Baumgardner, Senator Alley, and Senator Sykes on the Conference Committee—SJ 1482

03/19/2020 Senate—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 33 Nay: 6—SJ 1499

03/19/2020 House—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 91 Nay: 24—HJ 2629

04/27/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Tuesday, March 24, 2020 04/27/2020 House—Approved by Governor on Thursday, April 2, 2020

#### H 2169 Bill by Elections

# Expand the definition of express advocacy in the campaign finance act to cover phrases where reasonable minds could not differ and delete the requirement that the name of treasurers of organizations be disclosed in advertisements.

02/06/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 120

02/07/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Elections-HJ 124

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 21, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2173 Bill by Agriculture

#### Establishing a commercial industrial hemp program.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 122

02/07/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 138

02/22/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Agriculture—HJ 224

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 308

03/20/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by

Committee on Agriculture—HJ 383

03/25/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 465

03/26/2019 House-Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 119 Nay: 5-HJ 483

03/26/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 291

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 356

03/11/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 159-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2175 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

#### Enacting the fair share act.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 122

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2176 Bill by Elections

#### Elections; unlawful collection of voted or unvoted ballots.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 122

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 138

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

02/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Elections—HJ 232

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Elections—HJ 308

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2179 Bill by Transportation

#### Adopting the Driver's Privacy Protection Act.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 122

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 138

02/11/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

02/20/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Transportation—HJ 205

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 308

03/20/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Transportation—HJ 392

03/25/2019 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 124 Nay: 0—HJ 429

03/25/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 280

03/26/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Transportation—SJ 284

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2180 Bill by Transportation

### Substitute for HB 2180 - Changing certain registration and title fees on vehicles and disposition of funds.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 122

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 138

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 21, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

02/24/2020 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Transportation—HJ 2118

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 2185

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2181 Bill by Representatives Alcala, Bishop, Warfield

#### Disposition of seized firearms by law enforcement agencies.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 122

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2182 Bill by Representative Hodge

### Requiring increased motor vehicle insurance coverage for people with convictions relating to driving under the influence.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 123

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2183 Bill by Education

#### Requiring a computer science course for high school graduation.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 123

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 138

02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 218-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2184 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Enacting the massage therapist licensure act.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 123

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2185 Bill by Health and Human Services

### Clarifying the naturopathic medicine scope of practice to include diagnostic imaging.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 131

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 138

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

02/22/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 227

02/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 256

02/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 123 Nay: 1—HJ 266

02/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 166

02/28/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 167

03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 9:30 AM Room 118-N

03/21/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 274

02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 1247

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2186 Bill by Children and Seniors

#### Granting employees who earn sick leave the right to use it to care for their family members.

02/07/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 131

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development-HJ 138

02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 21, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2187 Bill by Children and Seniors

#### Establishing the office of the child advocate for children's protection and services.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 131

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 138

02/18/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

02/26/2020 House-Withdrawn from Committee on Children and Seniors; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House-Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 2185

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2189 Bill by Representative Parker

#### Elections; voting provisional ballot allowed when voter moves to a new county without reregistering.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 131

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2190 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Prohibiting the state corporation commission from authorizing certain charges for electric service.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 131

02/08/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs-HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2192 Bill by Judiciary

#### Court of appeals judges to be nominated by the supreme court nominating commission and appointed by the governor.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 132

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2193 Bill by Judiciary

#### Requiring assets seized pursuant to the Kansas standard asset seizure and forfeiture act to be returned upon acquittal.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 132

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2194 Bill by Representatives Pittman, Kessinger

#### Allowing wagering losses for Kansas itemized deductions.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 132

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 138

H 2195 Bill by Representatives Pittman, Blex, Ellis, Hodge, Horn, Karleskint, Neighbor, Parker, Probst, Ruiz, S., Woodard, Xu

#### Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 132

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2196 Bill by Representatives Pittman, Awerkamp, Bergquist, Ellis, Eplee, Highland, Hineman,

#### Creating a presumption in favor of shared parenting time for temporary orders.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 132

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2198 Bill by Health and Human Services

### Allowing the use of expedited partner therapy to treat a sexually transmitted disease.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 132

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 138

02/11/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 14, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

02/22/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 227

02/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 256

02/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 89 Nay: 35—HJ 267

02/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 166

02/28/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 167

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2199 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Amending documentation requirements related to preparation of dead bodies.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 132

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 138

02/08/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

02/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 169

Consent Calendar by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ

02/20/2019 House-Final Action - Passed; Yea: 120 Nay: 1-HJ 202

02/20/2019 Senate-Received and Introduced-SJ 112

02/21/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 117

03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 9:30 AM Room 118-N

03/21/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 274

02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 1247

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2200 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Exempting hair threading from the practice of cosmetology.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 132

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 138 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2202 Bill by Representative Huebert

### Hillsdale cemetery district; deannexing territory of the district within Valley Center.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 132

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2204 Bill by Appropriations

# Prohibiting the Kansas lottery from entering into or extending an existing management contract with a lottery gaming facility manager without prior legislative approval.

02/08/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 137

02/11/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 146

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2205 Bill by Appropriations

### Eliminating the client obligation for persons receiving home and community-based services.

02/08/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 138

02/11/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 146

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2206 Bill by Judiciary

### Changing the bonding and cost requirements for animals taken into custody under a violation of cruelty to animals.

02/08/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 138

02/08/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 12, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/11/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 146

02/21/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 219

02/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed

02/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 124 Nay: 0—HJ 268

02/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 166

02/28/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 167

03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 12, 2019, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

03/26/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 292

02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary— SJ 1247

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2207 Bill by K-12 Education Budget

# Requirements for school district construction contracts relating to requests for proposals that specify particular products or particular installation methods.

02/08/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 138

02/11/2019 House—Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 146

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2210 Bill by Judiciary

### Amending uninsured motorist coverage provision requirements in automobile liability insurance policies.

02/08/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 138

02/11/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 146

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2212 Bill by Taxation

#### Apportionment of corporate income under the multistate tax compact; election.

02/08/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 138

02/11/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 12, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

02/11/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 146

02/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HJ 178

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2216 Bill by Representative Alcala

#### Establishing state employee student loan repayment assistance act.

02/08/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 142

02/11/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Higher Education Budget—HJ 146

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 281-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2217 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

#### Enacting the Kansas thrift savings plan act.

02/08/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 142

02/11/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 146

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 308

03/07/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 281-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2218 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

### Ending legislator participation in KPERS and establishing an annual salary structure for legislators.

02/08/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 142

02/11/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2219 Bill by Representative Alcala

### Requiring bodies subject to the Kansas open meetings act to record proceedings and make the recordings available to the public.

02/08/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 142

02/11/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 146

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2220 Bill by Elections

### Free state election act; eliminate proof of citizenship; same day registration and voting; other.

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 145

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 152

#### H 2221 Bill by Transportation

### Designating a bridge on United States highway 77 in Cowley county as the SGT Kevin Gilbertson veterans memorial bridge.

02/11/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 145

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 152

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2222 Bill by Representative Alcala

### Prohibiting food establishments from providing single-use plastic straws to consumers.

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 145

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 152

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2224 Bill by Representative Probst

# Requiring the state corporation commission and the secretary of health and environment to assess certain fees upon operators of class I and class II injection wells and establishing the state geological survey monitoring well fund

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 145

02/12/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 152

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2226 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Making changes to the scrap metal theft reduction act.

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 145

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 152

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2227 Bill by Children and Seniors

### Prohibiting the use of conversion therapy unless it is administered by a leader or official of any religious denomination as part of counseling services.

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 145

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 152

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2228 Bill by Children and Seniors

#### Relating to penalties for operating a child care facility without a license.

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 145

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 152

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

02/26/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 244

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 308

03/20/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 390

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2229 Bill by Children and Seniors

### Concerning the admission into evidence of any tape or recording created using an electronic monitoring device in an adult care home.

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 146

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 152

01/15/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Children and Seniors; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2185

Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2185

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2230 Bill by Representative Rhiley

### Requiring law enforcement officers to impound the vehicles of certain uninsured owners.

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 146

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 152

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2231 Bill by Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

### Requiring the state corporation commission to study electric rates and consider certain factors in establishing just and reasonable electric rates.

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 146

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 152

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2232 Bill by Taxation

#### Income tax treatment of net operating loss carryback on the sale of certain hotels.

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 146

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 152

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2233 Bill by Education

### Requiring school districts to provide a stipend for teachers to purchase classroom supplies.

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 146

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 152

02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 218-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2234 Bill by Representative Ousley

#### Creating the voluntary gun safety act.

02/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 146

02/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 152

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2235 Bill by Social Services Budget

### Concerning tax clearance certificates for individuals offered jobs with the state or any agency thereof; when required.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 148

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Social Services Budget—HJ 160

#### HISTORY OF BILLS

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Social Services Budget; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Social Services Budget—HJ 308

03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, March 18, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 144-S

03/26/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Social Services Budget—HJ 525

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

#### H 2236 Bill by Representative Rhiley

### Establishing cause for suspension or termination of county appraisers based on the percentage of informal hearing requests.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 148

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Local Government—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2237 Bill by Local Government

#### Allow cities and counties to publish legal notices on the internet.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 148

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Local Government—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2239 Bill by Local Government

#### Liquor sales by licensees in common consumption areas.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 149

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Local Government—HJ 160

02/14/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 218-N

02/21/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Local Government—HJ 219

02/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 243

02/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 121 Nay: 3—HJ 270

02/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 166

02/28/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—SJ 167

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2240 Bill by Representative Victors

### Requiring the state corporation commission to ensure that a seismic risk analysis is conducted upon class II disposal wells.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 149

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2241 Bill by Representatives Xu, Erickson

#### Creating the crime of rape by misrepresentation of identity.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 149

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2242 Bill by Judiciary

# Relating to instances when reports of abuse, neglect or exploitation are sent to both the department for children and families and the appropriate law enforcement agency.

```
02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 149
02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 160
05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
```

#### H 2243 Bill by Judiciary

### Exempting animal shelters from registration requirements as a charitable organization.

```
02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 149
```

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 160

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/22/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 228

02/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 256

02/27/2019 House-Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 118 Nay: 6-HJ 271

02/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 166

02/28/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 167

03/11/2019 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 20, 2019, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2244 Bill by Judiciary

#### Senate Substitute for HB 2244 by Committee on Judiciary - Enacting the COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 149

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 160

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 308

03/06/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 12, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

03/20/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 391

03/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 527

03/27/2019 House-Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 89 Nay: 35-HJ 531

03/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 334

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 356

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1772

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

#### H 2245 Bill by Representative Pittman

#### Creating the crime of abandoning a human corpse.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 149

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2246 Bill by Transportation

# Amending oversight, administration and regulation of certain duties, responsibilities and activities of the insurance department relating to riskbased capital instructions, definition of long-term care insurance, conversion plans of reciprocals to mutual insurance companies.

appointment and removal of securities commissioner and assessing penalties from excess lines and creating and authorizing certain transfers

to the cancer research and public information trust fund for the university of Kansas medical center and changing the rate of the hospital provider assessment imposed by the department of health and environment and granting Wichita state university bonding authority for certain capital improvement projects.

```
02/12/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 149
```

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 160

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

02/22/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Transportation—HJ 228

02/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 121 Nay: 1—HJ 258

02/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 166

02/28/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Transportation—SJ 167

03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 8:30 AM Room 546-S

03/18/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Transportation—SJ 207

03/25/2019 Senate—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as further amended—SJ 281

03/26/2019 Senate—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 39 Nay: 0—SJ 290

04/01/2019 House—Nonconcurred with amendments; Conference Committee requested; appointed Representative Proehl, Representative Thimesch and Representative Helgerson as conferees—HJ 543

04/01/2019 Senate—Motion to accede adopted; Senator Petersen, Senator Goddard and Senator Pettey appointed as conferees—SJ 346

04/05/2019 House—Motion to concur with amendments in conference failed; Yea: 7 Nay: 114 (Remains in Conference)—HJ 807

05/21/2020 House—Representative Waymaster, Representative Hoffman, and
Representative Wolfe Moore are appointed to replace Representative Proehl,
Representative Thimesch, and Representative Helgerson on the Conference
Committee—HJ 2695

05/21/2020 Senate—Senator McGinn, Senator Billinger, and Senator Hawk are appointed to replace Senator Petersen, Senator Goddard, and Senator Pettey on the Conference Committee—SJ 1773

05/21/2020 Senate—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 35 Nay: 4—SJ 1789

05/21/2020 House—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 112 Nay: 2—HJ 2725

05/21/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Tuesday, May 26, 2020—HJ  $\,$  2777

05/21/2020 House—Approved by Governor on Monday, June 1, 2020—HJ 2777

#### H 2247 Bill by Transportation

### Designating a portion of United States highway 77 as the Capt Donald Root Strother memorial highway.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 149

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 160

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2249 Bill by Representative Hodge

### Providing an income tax credit for expenditures to construct health or education facilities by Kansas Collegiate Athletic Conference member institutions.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 152

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 160

#### H 2250 Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Establishing a child tax credit.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 152

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2251 Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Increasing income tax credit for household and dependent care expenses.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 152

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2252 Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Income tax credit for increased salaries paid to Kansas employees.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 152

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2253 Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Awarding costs and attorney fees to plaintiffs prevailing in unpaid wage claims.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 152

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic

Development-HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2254 Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Requiring banks to make a minimum amount of subprime loans.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 152

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2255** Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Creating the Kansas youth advisory council.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 152

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2256 Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Creating the community leaders service act.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 152

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 160

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 218-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2257 Bill by K-12 Education Budget

#### Requirements for school district bullying policies; investigation of complaints.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 160

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 546-S

H 2258 Bill by Representatives Holscher, Alcala, Barker, Clayton, Ellis, Frownfelter, Henderson, Horn, Kessinger, Lusk, Murnan, Parker, Probst, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Schreiber, Smith, E., Stogsdill, Toplikar, Whipple, Winn, Woodard, Xu

### Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2259 Bill by Representative Finney

### Providing for fair consideration for employment to persons with records of conviction.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2260 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

### Updating the per diem for injured employees when away from their residence for medical treatment.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2261 Bill by Taxation

#### Decreasing the sales and use tax rate on food and food ingredients to 5.5%.

02/12/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 160

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2262 Bill by Representative Whipple

#### Enacting the Kansas buy American act.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2263 Bill by Representative Whipple

### Prohibiting the denial of earned maternity leave benefits after an employee has given notice of intent to take maternity leave.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2264 Bill by Representative Whipple

### Providing a tax credit to pell grant recipients at a postsecondary educational institution.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2265 Bill by Representative Whipple

### Award of college credit hours for passing CLEP and other college examination programs.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Higher Education Budget—HJ 160 02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 281-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2266 Bill by Representative Whipple

#### Prohibiting universities from charging fees for certain scholarship applications.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Higher Education Budget—HJ 160  $\,$ 

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2267 Bill by Taxation

#### Sales tax exemption for fencing used in agricultural use.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2268 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

### Removing sodomy between consenting members of the same sex from criminal sodomy.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2269 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Allowing the state to be liable for damages caused by wrongful acts relating to calculating earned discharge credit for juveniles and good time credit for adults.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ

02/14/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2271 Bill by Agriculture

### Imposing a criminal penalty upon owners who allow livestock to run at large and allowing county sheriffs to seize such livestock that are on a highway.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 153

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2272 Bill by Taxation

### Increasing the sales tax collection threshold for certain retailers and the required timeframe for payment of tax.

02/12/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 154

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 160

#### H 2273 Bill by Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

#### Establishing the wind generation permit and property protection act.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 154

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications—HJ 160

02/18/2019 House—Hearing: (neutral) Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 8:30 AM Room 281-N

02/18/2019 House—Hearing: (proponents) Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 8:30 AM Room 281-N

02/20/2019 House—Hearing: (opponents) Thursday, February 21, 2019, 8:30 AM Room 281-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2274 Bill by Representatives Eplee, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Barker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carpenter, B., Carpenter, W., Clark, Collins, Corbet, Croft, Delperdang, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Erickson, Esau, Finch, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hoffman, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Landwehr, Lewis, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Owens, Patton, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Schreiber, Smith, A., Smith, E., Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Toplikar, Vickrey, Warren, Wasinger

### Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 154

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 160

02/14/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Health and Human Services; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 308

03/13/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 343

03/25/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 433

03/26/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 85 Nay: 39—HJ 483

03/26/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 291

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 356

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### **H 2275** Bill by Representative Rhiley

### County boards of tax appeals are created to hear appeals from county appraisers and hearing officers.

02/12/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 154

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2276 Bill by Representative Vickrey

### Prohibiting the use of a wireless communication device in a school zone or a road construction zone.

02/12/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 154

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 160

#### H 2277 Bill by Representative Vickrey

#### Providing for increased penalties for right-of-way violations.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 154

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2278 Bill by Taxation

#### Calculating income tax rates through the use of formulas.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 154

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 160

01/15/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, January 21, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2279 Bill by Representatives Victors, Curtis

# Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking and requiring law enforcement officers to provide information about timing of release from custody when an arrest is made following a domestic violence call.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 154

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 160

02/14/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 21, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 232

02/27/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended

02/27/2019 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 124 Nay: 0—HJ 302

02/28/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 167

03/06/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 170

03/11/2019 Senate—Hearing: Monday, March 18, 2019, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

03/26/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 295

02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary— SJ 1247

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2280 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

### Amendments to the Kansas expanded lottery act relating to racetrack gaming and Wyandotte county horse racing.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 154

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 160

02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 21, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2281** Bill by Judiciary

# Providing that a court order modifying a criminal sentence only modifies the portion of the sentence referenced by the court and not remaining portions of the original sentence.

02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 154

02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 160

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/21/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on

```
Judiciary—HJ 219
         02/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 243
         02/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 102 Nay: 22—HJ 271
         02/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 166
         02/28/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 167
         03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 10:30 AM Room 346-S
         03/26/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on
                 Judiciary—SJ 292
         02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary—
                 SJ 1247
         05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee
H 2282 Bill by Representatives Schreiber, Ballard, Carmichael, Clark, Concannon, Cox, Curtis,
                 Dierks, Dietrich, Eplee, Henderson, Hibbard, Highberger, Hodge, Horn, Houser,
                 Kessinger, Kuether, Long, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Parker,
                 Probst, Smith, A., Stogsdill, Sutton, Wasinger, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Xu
         Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
         02/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 154
         02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ
         02/14/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
        Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice
         Exempting certain victims from being considered an aggressor or participant as a
                 mitigating factor when considering a departure sentence.
         02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 157
         02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ
         02/18/2019 House—Hearing: Friday, February 22, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
H 2284 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice
         Amending assault and battery to increase penalty for assault or battery of a health
                 care provider, creating the crime of unlawful interference with a health
                 care provider and increasing penalties for interference with a firefighter or
                 emergency medical services.
         02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 157
         02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ
```

H 2285 Bill by Representative Capps

### Creating the Kansas legal tender act; providing for sales exemption from and modification for sales of specie legal tender.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 157

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2286 Bill by Representative Toplikar

Making appropriations for FY 2020 for the Kansas state school for the deaf.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 157

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 165

03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 19, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2287 Bill by Representatives Stogsdill, Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Benson, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Dierks, Ellis, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Karleskint, Kessinger, Kuether, Lusk, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Toplikar, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Wheeler, Whipple, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu

#### Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 157 02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 165 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2288 Bill by Representatives Erickson, Arnberger, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, Carpenter, B., Collins, Delperdang, Dove, Garber, Helmer, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Mason, Owens, Seiwert, Smith, E., Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Vickrey, Waggoner, Wasinger

#### Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.

02/13/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 157

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 165

02/18/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 21, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 218-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2289 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Repealing public convenience and necessity requirements for motor carriers.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 157

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 165 03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 21, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2291 Bill by Judiciary

### Increasing caps on damages in wrongful death actions and escalating them annually based on the consumer price index.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 158

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 165

02/14/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2292 Bill by Judiciary

# Allow prosecutor's office to enter into agreements for supervision of people on diversion and allowing people on diversion to participate in the certified drug treatment program.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 158

02/13/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 19, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2293 Bill by Representative Rhiley

#### Changing to one year averages when determining ag land valuations.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 158

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2294 Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Requiring a motion and notice when municipalities transfer funds from a utility fund to the general fund.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 158

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2295 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Providing for the licensure of anesthesiologist assistants.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 158

02/14/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 165

02/28/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Health and Human Services; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 304

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2178

#### H 2296 Bill by Insurance

#### Increasing fines and providing for the impoundment of vehicles for violations of the Kansas automobile injury reparations act.

02/13/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 158

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2297 Bill by Representatives Ballard, Amyx, Benson, Carlin, Clayton, Curtis, Dierks, Finney, Gartner, Henderson, Highberger, Holscher, Horn, Kessinger, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Schreiber, Stogsdill, Warfield, Weigel, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu

#### Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 158

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2298 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Allowing the assignment of dental insurance benefits under the state healthcare benefits program.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 158

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 165 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2299 Bill by Representatives Holscher, Concannon, Ellis, Horn, Howard, Karleskint, Probst, Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Warfield, Weigel, Whipple, Woodard

#### Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.

02/13/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 158

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ

02/18/2019 House—Hearing: Friday, February 22, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2300 Bill by Representative Burroughs

#### Providing for the back the badge license plate.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 158

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2301 Bill by Representative Whipple

# Establishing the tax credit for low income postsecondary students scholarship program act and providing for the elimination of the tax credit for low income students scholarship program act.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 158

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2302 Bill by Representatives Whipple, Hodge, Ohaebosim

#### Sunsetting the food sales tax credit and enacting the food sales tax refund.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 159

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 165

03/08/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2303 Bill by Representatives Finney, Alcala, Ballard, Benson, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Henderson, Highberger, Holscher, Horn, Moore, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Probst, Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Warfield, Winn, Woodard, Xu

#### Enacting the Kansas safe access act.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 159

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2304 Bill by Representatives Whipple, Hodge, Ohaebosim

#### Sales tax holiday for sales of certain school supplies, computers and clothing.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 159

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2305 Bill by Representatives Holscher, Clayton, Concannon, Ellis, Gartner, Karleskint, Kessinger, Kuether, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Warfield, Weigel, Woodard, Xu

### Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 159

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ

01/22/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, January 27, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2306 Bill by Representatives Holscher, Ellis, Gartner, Howard, Karleskint, Kuether, Probst,

### Ruiz, S., Schreiber, Stogsdill, Warfield, Weigel, Whipple, Woodard Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 159

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 165

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2307 Bill by Health and Human Services

### Establishing non-covered dental benefits under health insurance plans and limitations on plan changes.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 159

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 165

02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

02/26/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 249

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 308

03/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 346

03/25/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 434

03/26/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 91 Nay: 33—HJ 484

03/26/2019 Senate-Received and Introduced-SJ 291

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 356

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2308 Bill by Representative Helgerson

### City of Wichita and Sedgwick county authorized to consolidate city and county government.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 159

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Local Government—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2309 Bill by Representative Helgerson

#### Recreating the Kansas arts commission.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 159

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2310 Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Reducing the sales and use tax rate of food and food ingredients.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 159

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2311 Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Sales tax exemption for food and food ingredients.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 159

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2312 Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Establishing the rural revitalization student loan repayment program.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 159

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2313 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

### Increasing workers compensation treatment expense limits from \$500 to \$2,000 for injured workers prior to claim approval.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 160

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2314 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

#### Rehabilitation of abandoned property by cities.

02/13/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 160

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 165

02/18/2019 House—Hearing: Friday, February 22, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 112-N

02/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 234

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 308

03/19/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 367

03/25/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 443

03/26/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended: Yea: 97 Nav: 27—HJ 485

03/26/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 291

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Ethics, Elections and Local Government
—SJ 356

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2315 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

#### Unemployment benefits for privately contracted school bus drivers.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 161

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 165

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2316 Bill by Representative Finney

#### Removing the option to pay a cash bond in municipal court.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 161

02/14/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Judiciary-HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2317** Bill by Representative Finney

### Requiring certain electric transmission lines to acquire a siting permit from the state corporation commission.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 161

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 165

H 2318 Bill by Representatives Garber, Donohoe, French, Helmer, Highland, Huebert, Rahjes, Rhiley, Smith, E., Thimesch, Thomas, Toplikar, Williams

#### Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 161

02/14/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs-HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2319 Bill by Representatives Garber, Donohoe, French, Helmer, Highland, Huebert, Rahjes, Rhiley, Smith, E., Thimesch, Thomas, Toplikar, Waggoner, Warfield, Wheeler, Williams

#### Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 161

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

### H 2320 Bill by Representatives Garber, Donohoe, French, Helmer, Highland, Huebert, Rhiley Enacting the marriage and constitution restoration act.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 161

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

### H 2321 Bill by Representatives Garber, Donohoe, French, Helmer, Highland, Huebert, Rahjes, Rhiley

#### Creating the optional elevated marriage act.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 161

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

### H 2322 Bill by Representatives Garber, Donohoe, French, Helmer, Highland, Huebert, Rahjes, Rhiley, Smith, E., Thomas, Toplikar, Waggoner

#### Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 161

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

### H 2323 Bill by Representatives Garber, Donohoe, French, Helmer, Highland, Huebert, Rahjes Imposing an excise tax on admission to adult-oriented businesses.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 161

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2324 Bill by Representatives Whipple, Holscher

### Prohibiting the use of non-disclosure agreements to silence victims of workplace sexual harassment.

02/13/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 161

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2325 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

### Reciprocal recognition of concealed carry licenses issued by other jurisdictions; reducing minimum age requirement for a license to carry a concealed

# handgun.

02/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 164

 $02/15/2019\ House$ —Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 182

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2326 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Amendments regarding license to carry a concealed handgun.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 164

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 182

03/06/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 12, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 438

03/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 525

03/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 83 Nay: 41—HJ 532

03/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 334

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—SJ 356

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

## H 2327 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

# Increasing retirement benefit cap and decreasing employee contribution rate for members of the Kansas Police and Firemen's Retirement System in certain circumstances.

02/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 164

02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 281-N

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 182

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2328 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

# Requiring certain military service that is concurrent with KPERS participating service to be credited as additional KPERS participating service.

02/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 164

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2329 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

# Increasing KPERS employee contribution rate for school district employees and making appropriations for FY 2020 for the department of education for a pay increase for KPERS covered school district employees.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 164

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 182

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 308

03/07/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 281-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2330 Bill by Education

# Policies and procedures to prohibit and investigate bullying.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 164

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 182 02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 218-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2331 Bill by Judiciary

# Amending remedies for victims of sexual abuse by a duly ordained minister of religion.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 165

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 182

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2332 Bill by Judiciary

# Allowing punitive and exemplary damages in a wrongful death action.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 165

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 182

02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## **H 2333** Bill by Judiciary

# Allowing a court to make a finding that a final decree of adoption take effect at an earlier date.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 165

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 182

01/23/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 29, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2130

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

# H 2334 Bill by Judiciary

# Expanding the list of people before whom a deposition shall not be taken.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 165

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 182

02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 18, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2335 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Adding to the list of entities authorized to buy prison made goods.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 165

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2336 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Clarifying when offenders under supervision of the secretary of corrections are awarded jail credit.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 165

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 182

02/18/2019 House—Hearing: Friday, February 22, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 235

02/27/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 273

02/27/2019 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed; Yea: 124 Nay: 0—HJ 300

02/28/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 167
03/06/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 170
03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 10:30 AM Room 346-S
05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2337 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Making changes to the community corrections advisory boards and grant programs.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 165

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 182

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 308

03/07/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

03/20/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 396

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

# H 2338 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Exempting Kansas correctional industries from the provisions on state contract purchases.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 178

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 182

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2339 Bill by Health and Human Services

# Updating the naturopathic doctor licensure act.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 182 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

03/21/2020 House—Died in Co

## H 2340 Bill by Taxation

# Delaying distribution of certain property taxes paid under protest and requiring certain information on protested or exempt property taxes be provided to local taxing jurisdictions.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 182

03/08/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HJ 440

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

## **H 2341** Bill by Appropriations

# Ensuring a public employee's right to resign from a public employee organization.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 182

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2342 Bill by Rural Revitalization

Allowing the secretary for children and families to request a waiver from the U.S.

# department for agriculture for time limited assistance.

02/14/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 179

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 182

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2343 Bill by Children and Seniors

# Removing provisional employment from adult care homes, home health agencies and providers of disability services.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 182

02/18/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 21, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2344 Bill by Children and Seniors

# Requiring written informed consent before administering an antipsychotic medication to an adult care home resident.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 182

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2345 Bill by Taxation

# Tax lid exception when budget was higher in prior five years.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 182

02/27/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 6, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

03/22/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HJ 421

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

# H 2346 Bill by Children and Seniors

# Senate Substitute for HB 2346 by Committee on Education - Relating to standards for school-administered vision screenings; amending the capital improvement state aid calculation; authorizing ACT college entrance exams and workkeys assessments for students enrolled in nonpublic schools; requiring a Kansas foster care children annual academic report card; and authorizing payment of a student's dual or concurrent enrollment in a postsecondary educational institution.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179

02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 182

02/20/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, February 25, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

02/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 234

02/27/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 273

02/27/2019 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 113 Nay: 11— HJ 301

02/28/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 167

03/06/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Education—SJ 170

03/07/2019 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 144-S

03/04/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 144-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

# H 2347 Bill by Children and Seniors

Establishing the Kansas Alzheimer's disease advisory council.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179 02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 182 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2348 Bill by Judiciary

# Increasing liability limits for the healthcare stabilization fund.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179 02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 182 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2349 Bill by Taxation

# Sales tax collections by remote sellers.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179 02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 182 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2350 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Removing felony violation of possession, cultivation and distribution of marijuana.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179
02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ
182
05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2351 Bill by Transportation

# Allowing oversize or overweight utility vehicles to operate at all times and all weather and road conditions when responding to emergency utility outages.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 179 02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 182 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2352 Bill by Taxation

# Providing changes to nexus for the sales and use tax law; requiring tax collection by marketplace facilitators; imposing sales tax on digital products.

02/14/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 180 02/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 182 02/18/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 21, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2354 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

# Substitute for HB 2354 by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development - Resolving liability concerns regarding high school apprenticeships and on-the-job training programs.

02/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 181

02/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 188

02/18/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 02/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 235

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/22/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 416 03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 438
03/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Motion by Representative Barker to
rerefer to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development passed
—HJ 527
05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2355 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

# Granting federal law enforcement officers who work with state task forces arrest authority.

02/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 181

02/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 188

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2356 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

# Motor vehicle sales tax sourced to registration of vehicle.

02/15/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 181

02/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 188

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2357 Bill by Health and Human Services

# Exempting out-of-state licensed healthcare professionals from Kansas licensure requirements when traveling with a sports team.

02/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 181

02/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ  $188\,$ 

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2358 Bill by Health and Human Services

# Imposing requirements to prescribe opioid drugs.

02/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 181

02/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 188

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2359 Bill by Children and Seniors

# Establishing the child welfare system delivery task force.

02/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 181

02/18/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors-HJ 188

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2360 Bill by Children and Seniors

# Concerning criminal history checks of employees and volunteers that have unsupervised access to children, the elderly or individuals with disabilities.

02/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 181

02/15/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

02/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 188

02/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 234

02/27/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 273

02/27/2019 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 124 Nay: 0—HJ 301

02/28/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 167

03/06/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 170

03/06/2019 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

03/25/2019 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 282

02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary— SJ 1247

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

## **H 2361** Bill by Children and Seniors

# Creating conditions for the administration of certain tests, questionnaires, surveys and examinations.

02/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 181

02/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 188

02/18/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Children and Seniors; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 308

03/14/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 345

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

# H 2362 Bill by Veterans and Military

# Creating the Kansas military base task force.

02/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 182

02/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Veterans and Military—HJ 188

02/18/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 21, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 218-N

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Veterans and Military; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Veterans and Military—HJ 308

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2363 Bill by Veterans and Military

# Requiring inquiry about veteran status in supervised loans.

02/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 182

02/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 188

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2364 Bill by Transportation

# Creating the Kansas Aerospace Commission.

02/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 182

02/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 188

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## **H 2366** Bill by Rural Revitalization

# Allowing apparatus operators to provide ground ambulance transportation for certain patients in rural areas.

02/15/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 182

02/18/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 188

02/18/2019 House—Hearing: Friday, February 22, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 582-N

02/27/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Rural Revitalization; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 302

03/06/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 308
05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2367 Bill by Taxation

Authorizing transfers from the state general fund to the local ad valorem tax reduction fund and county and city revenue sharing fund if the city or county has a new road construction or bridge improvement plan and the plan is approved by the secretary of transportation.

02/18/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 187 02/19/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 196 03/08/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2368 Bill by Taxation

Tax lid exception for transportation construction projects.

02/18/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 187 02/19/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 196 03/08/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2369 Bill by Taxation

Authorizing the secretary of transportation to designate toll projects on new and existing highways and changing financing requirements for toll or turnpike projects.

02/18/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 187
02/19/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 196
03/14/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 20, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 112-N
03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by
Committee on Appropriations—HJ 434
03/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 526
03/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 114 Nay: 10—HJ 533
03/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 334
04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Transportation—SJ 356
05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2370 Bill by Taxation

Providing for an increase in motor fuel taxes and rate trips.

02/18/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 187 02/19/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 196 03/08/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 12, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2371 Bill by Taxation

Providing for an increase in permit fees for oversize or overweight vehicles and requiring registration for escort vehicle service operators.

02/18/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 187
02/19/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 196
03/08/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N
03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by
Committee on Taxation—HJ 441
03/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 527
03/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 102 Nay: 22—HJ 533

03/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 334 04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Transportation—SJ 356 05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2372 Bill by Taxation

# Providing for an increase in registration fees for electric and hybrid vehicles.

02/18/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 187

02/19/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Taxation-HJ 196

03/08/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HJ 441

03/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 527

03/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 73 Nay: 51—HJ 534

03/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 334

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Transportation—SJ 356

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# **H 2373** Bill by Appropriations

# Creating the transportation planning program.

02/18/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 188

02/19/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 196

03/07/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 311

03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 19, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

03/22/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Transportation—HJ 421

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

# **H 2374** Bill by Appropriations

# Increasing the payment of reward for persons providing certain information.

02/19/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 195

02/20/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 201

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2375 Bill by Appropriations

# Allowing private plaintiffs to bring an action under the Kansas false claims act.

02/19/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 195

02/20/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 201

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2376 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Authorizing amendments to a registrant's birth certificate when there is a change in the registrant's sex.

02/19/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 195

02/20/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 201

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2377 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# No liability for charitable vision screenings and donations of eyeglasses.

02/19/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 196

02/20/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 201

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2378 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Prohibiting firearm possession restrictions in subsidized housing agreements.

02/19/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 196

02/20/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 201

03/06/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2379 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Exemption from alcoholic liquor enforcement tax for self-distribution of alcoholic liquor by microbreweries and microdistilleries.

02/19/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 196

02/20/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 201

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2380 Bill by Taxation

# Length of time prior to use of debt collection agencies for delinquent taxes; time for payment of sales and liquor drink tax; liability of person to collect sales or compensating use tax; administration of liquor enforcement tax.

02/19/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 196 02/20/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 201

03/08/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 12, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HJ 441

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

## H 2381 Bill by Taxation

# Providing for a \$.06 increase in motor fuel taxes.

02/19/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 196

02/20/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Taxation-HJ 201

03/08/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 12, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2382 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Authorize counties which have zoning regulations to abate nuisances.

02/20/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 199

02/21/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 209

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2383 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Amendments regarding the licensure and regulation of barbering.

02/20/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 199

02/21/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 209

03/15/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Referred to Committee on General Government Budget—HJ 351

03/15/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 19, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 281-N

03/22/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on General Government Budget—HJ 417

03/25/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Handwritten Motion to Amend - Offered by Representative Highberger—HJ 474

03/25/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Motion to recommend favorably for passage failed—HJ 474

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

# H 2384 Bill by Taxation

# Amending powers, duties and functions of the Kansas state board of cosmetology relating to licensing and hearings.

02/20/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 200

02/21/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 209

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2385 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Designating the polka as the official state dance.

02/20/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 206

02/21/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 209

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

03/05/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2190

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

## H 2386 Bill by Taxation

# Transfers to the local ad valorem tax reduction fund.

02/21/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 209

02/22/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 221

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2387 Bill by Appropriations

# Requiring the state employee healthcare benefits program to accept participation as a provider by any willing pharmacist.

02/25/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 233

02/26/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 239

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2388 Bill by Taxation

# Extending the length of time for the Kansas corporation NOL carryforward.

02/27/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 297

02/28/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 304

03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, March 18, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HI 442

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

## H 2389 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Requiring electronic prescriptions for certain controlled substances.

03/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 307

03/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 311

03/14/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 19, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

03/20/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 391

03/25/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 466

03/26/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended: Yea: 122 Nav: 2—HJ 485

03/26/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 291

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 356

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2390 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

## Authorizing sports wagering under the Kansas expanded lottery act.

03/06/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 307 03/07/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 311 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2391 Bill by Appropriations

# Recertification of professional employees' organizations to represent teachers

03/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 319

03/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 320

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2392 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Requiring visual observation of alleged victim of child abuse or neglect as part of investigation.

03/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 328

03/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 330

03/12/2019 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 336

03/19/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 21, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S 03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by

Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 438

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

## H 2393 Bill by Appropriations

# Setoff against debtors; relating to support debt matched by gaming facilities.

03/11/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 328

03/12/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 330

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2394 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Changing the elements and making changes to the criminal penalties of abuse of a child.

03/12/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 330

03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, March 18, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

03/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 339

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2395 Bill by Appropriations

# Substitute for HB 2395 by Committee on K-12 Education Budget - Amending the Kansas school equity and enhancement act and making appropriations to the department of education.

03/12/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 330

03/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 339

03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, March 18, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 546-S

03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 14, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 546-S

03/22/2019 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 420

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

# H 2396 Bill by Appropriations

# Senate Substitute for HB 2396 by Committee on Judiciary – Enacting the governmental response to the 2020 COVID-19 pandemic in Kansas and providing certain relief related to health, welfare, property and economic security during this public health emergency.

```
03/12/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 336
03/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ
       339
03/14/2019 House—Hearing: Monday, March 18, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 152-S
03/19/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on
       Corrections and Juvenile Justice-HJ 368
03/25/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 443
03/26/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended: Yea: 97 Nav: 27—HJ 486
03/26/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 291
```

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 356

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1772

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

# H 2397 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Amending the definition of dangerous regulated animal and restricting proximity of such animals to members of the public.

03/13/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 338 03/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 345 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2398 Bill by Taxation

# Requiring the repeal or suspension of existing sales tax exemption when implementing any new exemption.

03/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 338

03/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 345

03/14/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 19, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2399 Bill by Taxation

# Sales tax exemption extension for Gove county healthcare endowment foundation,

03/13/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 338

03/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 345

03/14/2019 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 19, 2019, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

03/22/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HJ 421

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

## Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Substitute for HB 2400 by Committee on Federal and State Affairs - Regulating the sale and distribution of kratom products as a part of and supplemental to the Kansas food, drug and cosmetic act.

03/18/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 358

03/19/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 362

01/23/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 30, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

02/24/2020 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2117

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

# Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Providing an exception to the quorum requirements for shareholder meetings for certain corporations.

```
03/19/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 362
```

03/20/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 372

01/15/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 23, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

01/30/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2010

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Judiciary— HJ 2178

02/27/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 4, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

03/16/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be further amended and be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2242

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

## H 2402 Bill by Appropriations

# Authorizing certain business entities to hire physicians and chiropractors.

03/19/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 362

03/19/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

03/20/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 372

03/20/2019 House—Hearing: (opponents) Wednesday, March 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

03/20/2019 House—Hearing: (proponents) Wednesday, March 20, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

03/20/2019 House—Hearing continuation: Thursday, March 21, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

03/22/2019 House—Hearing continuation: Friday, March 22, 2019, 11:00 AM Room 546-S

03/22/2019 House—Hearing: (neutral) Thursday, March 21, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S 03/22/2019 House—Hearing: (opponents) Thursday, March 21, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

03/22/2019 House—Hearing: (proponents) Thursday, March 21, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 546-S

03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 438

03/26/2019 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 525

03/27/2019 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 106 Nay: 18—HJ 534

03/27/2019 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 334

04/03/2019 Senate—Referred to Committee on Public Health and Welfare—SJ 356

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2403 Bill by Taxation

## Establishing the joint committee on child welfare system oversight.

03/20/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 372

03/21/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 402

03/21/2019 House—Hearing: Friday, March 22, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 436

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

## H 2404 Bill by Taxation

## Establishing the Kansas senior services task force.

03/20/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 372

03/21/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 402

03/21/2019 House—Hearing: Friday, March 22, 2019, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

03/25/2019 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 437

03/11/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar, Rereferred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 2203

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2405 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Creating the legislative task force on bullying prevention in public schools.

03/21/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 413

03/22/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 416

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2406 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Relinquishment of firearms pursuant to certain court orders.

03/21/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 413

03/22/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 416

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2407 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Publication of school district bullying prevention policies.

03/21/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 413

03/22/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 416

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2408 Bill by Taxation

# Allowing third-party fee simple appraisals to be filed with county appraisers for residential property.

03/22/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 415

03/25/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 429

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2409 Bill by Taxation

# Providing a tax credit for donations to certain postsecondary educational institutions that provide scholarships to students with financial need.

03/22/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 423

03/25/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 429

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2410 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Providing for the filling of a vacancy in the office of the state treasurer by statewide district convention.

03/25/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 429

03/26/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 481

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2411 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

## Limiting the review of certain rules and regulations by the director of the budget.

03/25/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 442

03/26/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 481

01/15/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 23, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

02/14/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2072

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

# H 2412 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Updating certain requirements relating to advanced practice registered nurses.

03/26/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 480

03/27/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 529

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2413 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Enacting the human solution for Kansas act; regulation of the production and sale of medicinal cannabis.

04/03/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 555

04/04/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 561

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2414 Bill by Taxation

# Providing a sales tax exemption for the principle foundation.

04/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 561

04/05/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 608

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2415 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Regulating the practice of medicine and surgery regarding inquiries about a patient's firearm ownership.

04/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 565

04/05/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services-HJ 608

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2416 Bill by Taxation

# Substitute for HB 2416 by House Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development - Enacting the Kansas targeted employment act to provide tax credits for the employment of persons with developmental disabilities.

04/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 605

04/05/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 608

01/27/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Taxation; Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 1972

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Referred to

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2185 03/12/2020 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2216

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

# H 2417 Bill by Taxation

# Extending the length of time for the Kansas corporation NOL carryforward.

04/04/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 606

04/05/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 608

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2418 Bill by Taxation

Length of time prior to use of debt collection agencies for delinquent taxes; time for payment of sales and liquor drink tax; liability of person to collect sales or compensating use tax; administration of liquor enforcement tax.

04/05/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 607 05/01/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 838 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2419 Bill by Appropriations

# Reconciling conflicting amendments to certain statutes.

05/02/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 865

05/03/2019 House—Referred to Committee of the Whole

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

# H 2420 Bill by Representative Williams

# Allowing military surplus vehicles to register with the division of vehicles for road use.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Wednesday, October 30, 2019

01/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1926

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1932

01/15/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 23, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

02/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Transportation—HJ 2066

02/18/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2087

02/19/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 122 Nay: 0—HJ 2094

02/19/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1293

02/20/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Transportation—SJ 1297

03/04/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 546-S

03/17/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Transportation—SJ 1483

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

# H 2421 Bill by Representative Williams

# Allowing individuals who raise assistance dogs to have the same right to accommodation as trainers of assistance dogs and requiring assistance dogs to be trained by accredited training facilities.

01/13/2020 House-Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, October 31, 2019

01/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1926

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 1932

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2422 Bill by Representative Williams

# Establishing daylight saving time as the permanent standard time in Kansas.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Monday, November 4, 2019

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1926

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 1932

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2423 Bill by Representative Rhiley

# Driving under the influence is a disqualification for election or appointment as a sheriff.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Tuesday, December 3, 2019

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 1932

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2424 Bill by Representative Benson

# Police officer-involved death of a person; mandatory investigation; report open if no criminal charges; Kansas open records act change.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Tuesday, December 3, 2019

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1932

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2425 Bill by Representative Houser

# Enact the Kansas anti-red flag act which prohibits the enforcement of extreme risk protection orders that prevent certain individuals from buying or possessing a firearm and establishes a criminal penalty for violations.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Wednesday, December 4, 2019

01/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 1932

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2426 Bill by Representative Highberger

# Revising cross-references in the civil procedure codes.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, December 12, 2019

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1932

01/22/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, January 27, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

01/28/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1976

02/03/2020 House-Final Action - Passed; Yea: 114 Nay: 0-HJ 2016

02/03/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1236

02/04/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1238

02/12/2020 Senate—Hearing: Monday, February 17, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

## H 2427 Bill by Representative Murnan

# Providing for a Kansas income tax subtraction modification for national service education awards.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Monday, December 16, 2019

01/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1932

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2428 Bill by Representative Dietrich

# Requiring the board of technical professions to adopt license fee amounts by rules and regulations.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Tuesday, December 17, 2019

01/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation and Public Safety Budget
—HJ 1932

01/22/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 30, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 142-S

02/03/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Transportation and Public Safety Budget—HJ 2017

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2125

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 120 Nay: 5—HJ 2149

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Commerce—SJ 1405 05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

## H 2429 Bill by Representatives Owens, Finney

# Adding a public defender to the Kansas criminal justice reform commission.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Tuesday, December 17, 2019

01/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1932

01/22/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, January 28, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

01/30/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2009

02/19/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2096

02/20/2020 House-Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 121 Nay: 1-HJ 2099

02/20/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1298

02/21/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1307

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2430 Bill by Representative Rhiley

# Property tax lid; cities and counties repealed.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Tuesday, December 17, 2019

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1932

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2431 Bill by Representative Rhiley

# Designating a bridge on United States highway 166 in Cowley county as the SGT Tyler A Juden memorial bridge.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Friday, December 20, 2019

01/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1932

01/15/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

01/23/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Transportation—HJ 1967

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

## H 2432 Bill by Representative Highland

# Creating the Kansas pesticide waste disposal program and allowing up to \$50,000 to be transferred annually from the Kansas agricultural remediation fund to a new Kansas pesticide waste disposal fund.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Monday, December 30, 2019

01/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 1932

01/22/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, January 28, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

02/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2065

02/19/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2096

02/20/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 122 Nay: 0—HJ 2099

02/20/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1298

02/21/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 1307

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 159-S

03/18/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on

## HISTORY OF BILLS

# Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 1489 05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

# H 2433 Bill by Representative Samsel

# Designating the watermelon as the state fruit of Kansas.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Wednesday, January 8, 2020

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 1932

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2434 Bill by Representative Finney

# Revoking authority to suspend driving privileges for the nonpayment of fines from traffic citations.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 9, 2020

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1932

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2435 Bill by Representative Pittman

# Amending credits on court-imposed fines for community service.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 9, 2020

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1932

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2436 Bill by Representative Rhiley

## Rate of interest for unpaid and overpayment of taxes.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Friday, January 10, 2020

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1927

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1932

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2437 Bill by Representative Highland

# Prohibiting the use of identifiable meat terms on labels of meat analogs without either an accompanying disclaimer that the product does not contain meat or the inclusion of the word "imitation" before the name of the meat food product being imitated.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Friday, January 10, 2020

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1928

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 1932

01/14/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 23, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

02/06/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2028

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/05/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2187

03/11/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2204

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

# H 2438 Bill by Representative Concannon

# Allowing certain exceptions to the confidentiality of state child death review board documents.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Friday, January 10, 2020

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1928

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 1932

01/15/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

02/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 2065

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2142

02/26/2020 House-Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0-HJ 2150

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2439 Bill by Legislative Post Audit Committee

# Removing the requirement that certain entities submit certain reports to the division of post audit.

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1928

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 1932

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 4, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2106

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

## H 2440 Bill by Taxation

# Providing for the election of county appraisers.

01/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1932

01/15/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1937

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2441 Bill by Taxation

# Expanding the ability for cities and school districts to operate and finance a community historical museum.

01/15/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1936

01/16/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1951

01/21/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

02/18/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HJ 2090

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

## H 2442 Bill by Taxation

# Removing the line for reporting compensating use tax from income tax returns.

01/15/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1937

01/16/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1951

01/21/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2443 Bill by Representative Victors

# Requiring resident tuition rates for certain Native American students at public postsecondary educational institutions.

01/15/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1937

01/16/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Higher Education Budget—HJ 1951

01/23/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 29, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 281-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2444 Bill by Representatives Williams, Francis

# Providing for the blackout distinctive license plate.

01/15/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1937

01/16/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1951

01/21/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 23, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2445 Bill by Joint Corrections and Juvenile Justice Oversight

# Allowing children who run away to be placed in a juvenile detention facility for 24 hours.

01/15/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1937

01/16/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ

01/22/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, January 28, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2446 Bill by Judiciary

# Clarifying when a receipt of property seized by law enforcement should be sent to the court and who seized weapons should be returned to.

01/16/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1949

01/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1953

01/21/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2447 Bill by Judiciary

# Changing how two-way electronic audio-visual communication is used in courts.

01/16/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1949

01/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1953

01/21/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 23, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2066

02/19/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2096

02/20/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 83 Nay: 39—HJ 2100

02/20/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1298

02/21/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1307

05/21/2020 Senate—Hearing: Monday, May 18, 2020, 9:30 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee on Ways and Means—SJ 1753

05/21/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Ways and Means; Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1753

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1772

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

## H 2448 Bill by Judiciary

# Changing penalties for crimes related to motor vehicles.

01/16/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1949

01/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1953

01/21/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by

# Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2066 02/18/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2087 02/19/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 98 Nay: 25—HJ 2095 02/19/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1293 02/20/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1297 03/04/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 346-S 05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee H 2449 Bill by Judiciary Changing the requirements for board of indigents' defense services appointments. 01/16/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1949

01/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1953

01/21/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 23, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary-HJ 2066

02/19/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2096

02/20/2020 House-Final Action - Passed; Yea: 99 Nay: 23-HJ 2102

02/20/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1298

02/21/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1307

03/04/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2450 Bill by Judiciary

# Amending the Kansas clean indoor air act to include vaping of tobacco-derived products.

01/16/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1949

01/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1953

01/21/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 23, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2066

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

# H 2451 Bill by Agriculture

# Amending Kansas department of agriculture division of animal health license, permit and registration renewal deadlines.

01/16/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1950

01/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 1953

01/22/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 29, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

02/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2065

02/19/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2096

02/20/2020 House-Final Action - Passed; Yea: 122 Nay: 0-HJ 2102

02/20/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1298

02/21/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 1307

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 159-S

03/16/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 1463

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

## H 2452 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

# Providing certain KP&F tier II spousal and children's benefits for death resulting from a service-connected disability.

```
01/16/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1950
01/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 1953
01/22/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 29, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 281-N
02/11/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 2047
02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2125
02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2150
03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402
03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 1405
```

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 9:30 AM Room 546-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 1758

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

## H 2453 Bill by Representative Rhiley

# Creating the open borders for Kansas jobs act; recognizing professional licenses issued by other jurisdictions.

01/16/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1950

01/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 1953

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2454 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

# Self-storage unit rentals; sales and towing of property for nonpayment of rent or abandonment; contractual value of property.

01/16/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1950

01/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 1953

01/21/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 23, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 01/29/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 1982 02/18/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2087

02/19/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 114 Nay: 9—HJ 2095

02/19/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1293 02/20/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Commerce—SJ 1297

03/09/2020 Senate—Hearing: Friday, March 13, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 548-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2455 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

# Awarding a state contract preference for businesses that partner with the job corps to employ or train workers.

01/16/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1950

01/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 1953

01/21/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 23, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2456 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Clarifying the definition of the term "possession" in the Kansas criminal code.

01/21/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1954

01/22/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice-HJ

1957

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 3, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/11/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2047

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2141

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 124 Nay: 1—HJ 2151

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2457 Bill by Judiciary

# Allowing a court case file to be opened and sealed when amending a birth certificate.

01/21/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1955

01/22/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

01/22/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1957

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## **H 2458** Bill by Transportation

# Creating the negligent driving violation.

01/21/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1955

01/22/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1957

01/22/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 30, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2459 Bill by Representatives Samsel, Baker, Bishop, Carlson, Collins, Concannon, Dietrich, Finney, Hineman, Hoheisel, Horn, Kessinger, Lusk, Mastroni, Moore, Ohaebosim, Owens, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, S., Schreiber, Smith, A., Thompson, Wolfe Moore, Woodard

# Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.

01/21/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1955

01/22/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 1957

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 10, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2460 Bill by Taxation

# Providing an income tax credit for qualified railroad track maintenance expenditures of short line railroads.

01/21/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1955

01/22/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1957

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 3, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2461 Bill by Judiciary

# Enacting the public litigation coordination act to restrict contracts by public entities for legal services on a contingent fee basis.

01/22/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1956

01/23/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1966

01/23/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 29, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to

Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2185 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2462 Bill by Agriculture

# Updating provisions related to the Kansas department of agriculture division of conservation.

01/22/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1956

01/23/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 1966

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 3, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

02/18/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2088

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2141

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2151

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 159-S

03/16/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 1463

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

# H 2463 Bill by Agriculture

# Amending the Kansas pesticide law's licensure requirements and the Kansas chemigation safety law's permittee requirements.

01/22/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1957

01/23/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 1966

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 10, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2106

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2141

02/26/2020 House-Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 125 Nay: 0-HJ 2152

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 1405

03/11/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 159-S 05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

H 2464 Bill by Agriculture

## Updating egg repacking requirements for retailers.

01/22/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1957

01/23/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 1966

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2106

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2125

02/26/2020 House-Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 121 Nay: 4-HJ 2152

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 159-S

03/18/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 1489

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

## H 2465 Bill by Education

# Amending the tax credit for low income students scholarship program act to expand student eligibility.

- 01/22/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1957
- 01/23/2020 House—Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 1966
- 01/23/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 30, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 546-S
- 02/12/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 2057
- 02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178
- 03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 2185
- 03/05/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be further amended and be passed as amended by Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 2190
- 05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

## H 2466 Bill by Taxation

# Enacting the Kansas taxpayer protection act; requiring the signature and tax identification number of paid tax return preparers on income tax returns; authorizing actions to enjoin paid tax return preparers from engaging in certain conduct; extending certain income and privilege tax return filing and payment deadlines.

- 01/22/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1959
- 01/22/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, January 27, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N
- 01/23/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1966
- 02/04/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Taxation—HJ 2020
- 02/10/2020 House—Final Action Passed; Yea: 118 Nay: 1—HJ 2042
- 02/10/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1252
- 02/11/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 1265
- 03/04/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 9:30 AM Room 152-S
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 1755
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report adopted—SJ 1768
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action Passed as amended; Yea: 40 Nay: 0—SJ 1768
- 05/21/2020 House—Nonconcurred with amendments; Conference Committee requested; appointed Representative Patton, Representative Ralph and Representative Carmichael as conferees—HJ 2698
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Motion to accede adopted; Senator Wilborn, Senator Rucker and Senator Miller appointed as conferees—SJ 1774
- 05/21/2020 House—Died in Conference

## H 2467 Bill by Judiciary

# Removing the spousal exception from sexual battery and requiring a domestic violence offender assessment on a first conviction of domestic battery.

- 01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1964
- 01/23/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, January 27, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S
- 01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1969
- 01/28/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1976
- 02/06/2020 House—Committee of the Whole Be passed as amended—HJ 2028
- 02/07/2020 House—Final Action Passed as amended; Yea: 105 Nay: 15—HJ 2037

02/10/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1252 02/11/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1265 05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

## H 2468 Bill by Judiciary

# Changing the elements and making changes to the criminal penalties of abuse of a child and creating the crime of aggravated abuse of a child.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1964

01/23/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, January 28, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1969

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2130

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

# H 2469 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Extending terminal medical release to inmates in the custody of the department of corrections with a condition likely to cause death within 120 days.

01/23/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1964

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1969

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 3, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/11/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2047

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2142

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 120 Nay: 5—HJ 2153

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

## H 2470 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Clarifying jurisdiction and supervision of offenders in a certified drug abuse treatment program.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1964

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1969

02/03/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/17/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2083

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2125

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2153

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2471 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Allowing members who are not legislators or public employees on the Kansas criminal justice reform commission be reimbursed for mileage.

01/23/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1964

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1969

01/24/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, January 28, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2472 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Authorizing use of certified drug abuse treatment programs for certain crimes.

01/23/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1964

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1969

02/03/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2473 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Modifying the penalties for sexual contact between certain juveniles and excluding such juveniles from offender registration.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1969

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 4, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2065

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

## H 2474 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Changing the penalties for violating the Kansas offender registration act, creating a method by which the court can waive payment of fees, and allowing offenders to register in a single location.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1969

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 4, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/18/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2088

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

## H 2475 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Making offender registration for certain drug crimes five years.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1969

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 4, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/18/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2089

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

# **H 2476** Bill by Representatives Capps, Bergquist, Blex, Collins, Donohoe, Dove, Garber, Helmer, Houser, Howard, Rhiley, Seiwert, Waggoner

# Displaying the national motto in every public building.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 1969

01/27/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 30, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2477 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

Designating General Election Day as a legal public holiday.

```
01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965
01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 1969
01/27/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 30, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S
05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
```

## H 2478 Bill by Insurance

# Updating certain definitions and requirements of the third party administrators act.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965

01/23/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 29, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 1969

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Insurance—HJ 2107

02/24/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders—

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2479 Bill by Insurance

# Codifying the NAIC corporate governance model regulation into statute.

01/23/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1965

01/23/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 29, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 1969

02/18/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Insurance—HJ 2090

02/19/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders— HJ 2094

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2125

02/26/2020 House-Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0-HJ 2154

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 9:30 AM Room 546-S

03/16/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 1472

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

## H 2480 Bill by Insurance

Senate Substitute for HB 2480 by Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance - Establishing a process for a reciprocal to convert to a mutual insurance company, providing for flexibility when certain penalties are assessed from excess lines, updating the version of risk-based capital instructions in effect, updating the definition of long-term care in the long-term care act, updating the securities commissioner appointment and removal process and updating suspension, denial and revocation of licensure and certain other licensure requirements of insurance agents and public adjusters.

```
01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965
```

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 1969

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 3, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

02/18/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Insurance—HJ 2090

02/19/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders—

## HJ 2094

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2129

02/26/2020 House-Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0-HJ 2154

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 1405

03/11/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 9:30 AM Room 546-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 1758

05/21/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance; Referred to Committee on Ways and Means—SJ 1753

05/21/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Ways and Means; Rereferred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 1753

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

# H 2481 Bill by Transportation

# Allowing police vehicles to equip blue-only lights.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965

01/24/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 30, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1969

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2482 Bill by Transportation

# Excluding air bags from the definition of cost of repairs for salvage vehicles.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965

01/24/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 29, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1968

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2483 Bill by Children and Seniors

## Prohibiting certain licensed individuals from using conversion therapy on minors.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 1969

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2484 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Increasing good time credits for certain offenders.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1969

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 3, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/11/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2047

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

# H 2485 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

## Aligning the felony loss thresholds for certain property crimes.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1965

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1969

02/03/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/14/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2072

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

# H 2486 Bill by Veterans and Military

# Allowing all current national guard and reservist members an exemption from vehicle property tax.

01/23/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1966

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1969

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2487 Bill by Education

Senate Substitute for HB 2487 by Committee on Education - Providing for individuals with disabilities by clarifying authority of the Kansas commission for he deaf and hard of hearing; enacting the audiology and speech-language pathology interstate compact; providing disability placards to school districts, interlocal cooperatives, postsecondary educational institutions and institutions under the direction of the department for aging and disability services; and updating references to emotional disability.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1966

01/24/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Education-HJ 1969

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 4, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 218-N

02/07/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Education—HJ 2038

02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2162

02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed; Yea: 118 Nay: 7—HJ 2170

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 144-S

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Education—SJ 1405

03/18/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Education—SI 1489

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

# H 2488 Bill by Education

# Authorizing schools to maintain supplies of certain emergency medications and to administer such medication in emergency situations.

01/23/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1966

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 1969

01/27/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 30, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 218-N

02/07/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Education—HJ 2038

02/27/2020 House-Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507-HJ 2180

# H 2489 Bill by Transportation

# Providing for the proud educator license plate.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1966

01/24/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, January 29, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1969

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2490 Bill by Taxation

Senate Substitute for HB 2490 by Committee on Assessment and Taxation Concerning property taxation; relating to the state board of tax appeals,
orders and notices, service by electronic means, time to request full and

complete opinion, board member service after term expires; relating to appeals, prohibiting valuation increases in certain appeals, burden of proof in district court; relating to county appraisers, eligibility list, notification when person no longer holds office; appraisal standards; and buildings and improvements destroyed or substantially destroyed by natural disaster.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1966

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1969

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 10, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

02/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Taxation—HJ 2066

02/17/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders— HJ 2082

03/11/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2204

03/12/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 118 Nay: 2—HJ 2209

03/12/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1421

03/13/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 1423

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 1754

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

# H 2491 Bill by Representatives Highberger, Benson, Clayton, Gartner, Horn, Ruiz, S., Xu Providing for adjusted income tax rates and sales tax exemptions for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products.

01/23/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1966

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1969

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2492 Bill by Appropriations

# Ending participation of certain employees of the legislative branch in the Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan.

01/23/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1966

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 1969

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2493 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Requiring legislative members of the sentencing commission to be members of senate judiciary and house corrections and juvenile justice.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1966

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 3, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/11/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2047

02/27/2020 House-Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507-HJ 2180

### H 2494 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Amending the criminal penalties for unlawfully tampering with electronic monitoring equipment.

01/23/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1966

01/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1969

02/03/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/17/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on

## HISTORY OF BILLS

Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2083 02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

## H 2495 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Authorizing the crime victims compensation board to waive application time restrictions for a victim of a sexually violent crime to receive compensation for mental health counseling.

01/24/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1968

01/24/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, January 27, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

01/27/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1972

02/17/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2083

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2141

02/26/2020 House-Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0-HJ 2155

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

## H 2496 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

# Authorizing court services officers and community corrections officers to provide a certification of identification to offenders.

01/24/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1968

01/27/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1972

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/18/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2088

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2125

02/26/2020 House-Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0-HJ 2155

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

## H 2497 Bill by Transportation

# Requiring drivers to proceed with due caution when passing stationary vehicles displaying hazard warning lights and providing a penalty for violation.

01/24/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1969

01/27/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1972

01/30/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1986

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2498 Bill by Taxation

# Excluding hypothetical leased fee when determining fair market value for real property.

01/24/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1969

01/27/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1972

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2499 Bill by Taxation

# Providing a tax credit for expenditures for placing into service a qualified alternative-fuel fueling station.

```
01/24/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1969
         01/27/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1972
         02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
H 2500
        Bill by Judiciary
         Amending the Kansas power of attorney act regarding the form of a power of
                 attorney and the duties of third parties relying and acting on a power of
         01/24/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1969
         01/24/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, January 28, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S
         01/27/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 1972
         02/17/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by
                 Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2083
         02/20/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2104
         02/20/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 122 Nay: 0—
         02/24/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1323
         02/25/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1324
         03/04/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 346-S
         05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee
H 2501 Bill by Transportation
         Allowing salvage vehicle pools to apply for ownership documents for vehicles that
                 are disclaimed by insurance companies.
         01/27/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1971
         01/28/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1975
         01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 4, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N
         02/07/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by
                 Committee on Transportation—HJ 2038
         02/19/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2096
         02/20/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 119 Nay: 3—HJ 2103
         02/20/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1298
         02/21/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Transportation—SJ 1307
         02/26/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 5, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 546-S
         03/16/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by
                 Committee on Transportation—SJ 1472
         05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders
H 2502 Bill by Transportation
         Designating a portion of United States highway 77 as the Cpl. Allen E. Oatney and
                 SP4 Gene A. Myers memorial highway.
         01/27/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1971
         01/28/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1975
         02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N
         02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by
                 Committee on Transportation—HJ 2107
         02/26/2020 House-Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on
                 Appropriations—HJ 2178
         03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to
                 Committee on Transportation—HJ 2185
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
```

# H 2503 Bill by Appropriations

# Authorizing the transfer of \$268,412,000 from the state general fund to the KPERS fund during fiscal year 2020 and eliminating certain level-dollar employer contribution payments.

01/27/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1972

01/28/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 1975

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 3, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N 02/11/2020 House—Committee Report without recommendation by Committee on

Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 2047

 $02/25/2020\ House\--Committee$  of the Whole - Be passed as amended ---HJ 2128

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2156

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Ways and Means—SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 548-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

# H 2504 Bill by Representatives Neighbor, Ballard, Benson, Carlson, Cox, Delperdang, Gartner, Holscher, Horn, Kessinger, Kuether, Lusk, Lynn, Murnan, Ousley, Resman, Stogsdill, Warren, Winn

# Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.

01/27/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1972

01/28/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1975

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2505 Bill by Representatives Owens, Carpenter, W.

# Allowing a greater use of detention for juvenile offenders who violate probation.

01/27/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1972

01/28/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1975

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

# H 2506 Bill by Representative Croft

# Substitute for HB 2506 by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development - Expanding the military spouse and service member's expedited licensure law to all applicants who have established or intend to establish residency in Kansas.

01/27/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1972

01/28/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 1975

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2142

02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Substitute bill be passed as amended— HJ 2163

02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Substitute passed as amended; Yea: 123 Nay: 2—HJ 2171

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Commerce—SJ 1405

03/10/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Commerce—SJ 1415

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

H 2507 Bill by Representatives Tarwater, Blex, Carpenter, W., Corbet, Croft, Delperdang, Dietrich, Dove, Erickson, Esau, Frownfelter, Hineman, Hoheisel, Huebert, Humphries, Mason, Mastroni, Owens, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Samsel, Seiwert, Smith, E., Sutton, Thimesch, Thomas, Warren, Wasinger, Williams Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based

### learning programs.

01/27/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1972

01/27/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 30, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N

01/28/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development-HJ 1975

02/12/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2055

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2141

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 97 Nay: 27—HJ 2156

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Commerce—SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 548-S

03/12/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Commerce—SJ 1421

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

#### H 2508 Bill by Elections

#### The secretary of state shall be elected on a nonpartisan basis and shall resign before running for another office.

01/28/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1975

01/29/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 1979

01/30/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2509 Bill by Local Government

#### Vacating certain blocks in the original town plat set aside for a college and a park of the city of Americus and vesting fee simple title in the city.

01/28/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1975

01/29/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Local Government—HJ 1979

02/04/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 218-N

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Local Government—HJ 2107

02/24/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders— HJ 2116

02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2162

02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed; Yea: 122 Nay: 3—HJ 2170

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Ethics, Elections and Local Government -SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 9:30 AM Room 142-S

03/16/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Ethics, Elections and Local Government—SJ 1463

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

#### H 2510 Bill by Local Government

#### Creating the Kansas promise scholarship act; requiring a Kansas foster care children annual academic report card; authorizing the state board of

regents on behalf of Kansas state university to sell certain real property in Saline county; providing payment or waiver of tuition for certain dually or concurrently enrolled students; authorizing the practice of the healing arts by healing arts school clinics; providing ACT college entrance exams and workkeys assessments to nonpublic school students.

- 01/28/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1975
- 01/29/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Local Government—HJ 1979
- 02/04/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 218-N
- 02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Local Government—HJ 2107
- 02/24/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders— HJ 2116
- 02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole Be passed—HJ 2163
- 02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action Passed; Yea: 122 Nay: 3—HJ 2173
- 03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402
- 03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Ethics, Elections and Local Government
  —SJ 1405
- 03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 9:30 AM Room 142-S
- 03/12/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Ethics, Elections and Local Government—SJ 1421
- 03/17/2020 Senate—Committee of the Whole Be passed as amended—SJ 1475
- 03/17/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action Passed as amended; Yea: 39 Nay: 0—SJ 1481
- 05/21/2020 House—Nonconcurred with amendments; Conference Committee requested; appointed Representative Waymaster, Representative Hoffman and Representative Wolfe Moore as conferees—HJ 2697
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Motion to accede adopted; Senator Baumgardner, Senator Alley and Senator Sykes appointed as conferees—SJ 1773
- 05/21/2020 House—Representative Tarwater, Representative Corbet, and Representative Frownfelter are appointed to replace Representative Waymaster, Representative Hoffman, and Representative Wolfe Moore on the Conference Committee—HJ 2695
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 37 Nay: 2—SJ 1796
- 05/21/2020 House—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 110 Nay: 3—HJ 2713
- 05/21/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Tuesday, May 26, 2020—HJ 2777
- 05/21/2020 House—Vetoed by Governor; Returned to House on Monday, June 1, 2020 —HJ 2779
- 05/21/2020 House—No motion to reconsider vetoed bill; Veto sustained

#### H 2511 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

Prohibiting the use of state resources to enforce any federal directive or act that would regulate firearms, firearm ammunition or firearm accessories in a more restrictive manner than state law.

- 01/28/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1975
- 01/29/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 1979
- 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
- H 2512 Bill by Representatives Carpenter, B., Bishop, Burris, Capps, Carlin, Carmichael, Carpenter, W., Erickson, Hodge, Hoheisel, Howard, Humphries, Moore, Owens, Resman, Rhiley, Sawyer, Seiwert, Straub, Tarwater, Thimesch, Waggoner, Ward, Woodard, Xu, Yeager

### Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.

01/28/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1975

01/29/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 1979

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2513 Bill by Taxation

## Requiring marketplace facilitators to collect and remit sales, use and transient guest taxes from sales made through their platforms; removing click-through nexus provisions.

01/28/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1975

01/29/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Taxation-HJ 1979

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 5, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

02/04/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 10, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2514 Bill by Representative Rhiley

### Requiring counties to purchase certain property if valuation is disputed by taxpayer.

01/28/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1975

01/29/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 1979

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2515 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

# Senate Substitute for HB 2515 by Committee on Education - Concerning postsecondary education; creating the Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act; regulating private and out-of-state postsecondary educational institutions; clarifying the authority of healing arts schools exempted from the private and out-of-state postsecondary educational institutions act to practice healing arts.

01/28/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1975

01/29/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, January 30, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N

01/29/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 1979

02/12/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2055 02/20/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2104

02/20/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 116 Nay: 6—HJ 2104

02/24/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1323

02/25/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Education—SJ 1324

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Monday, March 9, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 144-S

03/18/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Education—SJ 1490

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

#### H 2516 Bill by Rural Revitalization

#### Enacting the first-time home buyer savings account act.

01/29/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1977

01/30/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 1986

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 582-N

02/21/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by

#### Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 2112

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2129

02/26/2020 House-Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 123 Nay: 2-HJ 2157

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Assessment and Taxation—SJ 1405

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2517 Bill by Representatives Karleskint, Amyx, Dove, Horn

### Property tax abatement for agricultural improvement destroyed or substantially destroyed by a natural disaster.

01/29/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1978

01/30/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Taxation-HJ 1986

02/10/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

03/12/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Taxation—HJ 2216

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2518 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

### Counting any crime with a domestic violence designation as a prior conviction under domestic battery.

01/29/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1978

01/30/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 1986

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S 02/18/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2088

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2141

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2157

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2519 Bill by Education

### Creating the students' right to know act to provide information on postsecondary education options.

01/29/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1978

01/30/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 1986

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 218-N 02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Education—HJ 2144

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Education—HJ 2185

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2520 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Increasing penalty for assault and battery against a sports official.

01/29/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1978

01/30/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 1986

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Federal and State Affairs; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2185

03/10/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Rereferred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2201

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2521 Bill by Judiciary

#### Enacting the revised uniform athlete agents act.

01/29/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1978

01/30/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Judiciary-HJ 1986

01/30/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 3, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/17/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2083

02/20/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2104

02/20/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 122 Nay: 0— HJ 2105

02/24/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1323

02/25/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1324

03/04/2020 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2522 Bill by Appropriations

#### Establishing the rural hospital innovation grant program.

01/29/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1978

01/30/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 1985

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

03/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2222

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

#### H 2523 Bill by Judiciary

#### Enacting the Kansas assistance animals in housing act.

01/29/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1978

01/30/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Judiciary-HJ 1986

01/30/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 4, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2524 Bill by Transportation

### Updating motor carrier laws and regulation of motor carriers by the state corporation commission.

01/29/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1978

01/30/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1986

01/30/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 4, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

02/12/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Transportation—HJ 2060

02/17/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 118 Nay: 0—HJ 2082

02/17/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1282

02/18/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Transportation—SJ 1287

02/26/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 5, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 546-S

03/16/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Transportation—SJ 1473

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

#### H 2525 Bill by Transportation

### Designating a bridge on United States highway 77 as the PFC Loren H. Larson memorial bridge.

01/29/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1978

01/30/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1986

02/10/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2526 Bill by K-12 Education Budget

### Amending the capital improvement state aid schedule to exclude U.S.D. No. 207, Fort Leavenworth.

01/29/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1978

01/30/2020 House-Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget-HJ 1986

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 546-S

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 2107

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2527 Bill by Rural Revitalization

### Removing sunset provisions for closed sessions and privileged records regarding trauma cases.

01/29/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1978

01/30/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 1986

01/30/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 4, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 281-N

02/12/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 2059

02/17/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders— HJ 2082

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 2185

03/12/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 2216

03/13/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders— HJ 2220

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

### H 2528 Bill by Representatives Hoheisel, Baker, Bergquist, Blex, Claeys, Delperdang, Mason, Owens

### Owens Providing for all vehicles more than 35 years old to qualify as an antique vehicle.

01/29/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1979 01/30/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 1986

01/30/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

02/14/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Transportation—HJ 2075

02/17/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders— HJ 2082

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2141

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 124 Nay: 1—HJ 2158

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Transportation—SJ 1405

03/11/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 546-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2529 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

Amending STAR bonds by adding rural redevelopment projects and major business and medical facilities, increasing certain project investment and sales requirements, adding a return on investment analysis and other requirements and approvals by the secretary and extending the sunset date.

01/29/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1979

01/30/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 1986

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 17, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2185 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2530 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

Amending the definition of "race" in the Kansas act against discrimination to include traits historically associated with race, including hair texture and protective hairstyles.

01/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1985

01/31/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2012

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2531 Bill by Transportation

Establishing a fee on firefighter distinctive license plates.

01/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1985

01/31/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 2013

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Transportation—HJ 2107

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2532 Bill by Judiciary

### Authorizing the department of education to contract with a private vendor to install and operate school bus cameras.

01/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1985

01/31/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2013

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 10, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2533 Bill by Judiciary

#### Enacting the uniform family law arbitration act.

01/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1985

01/31/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2013

02/03/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/17/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2083

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2534 Bill by Appropriations

Abolishing the well plugging assurance fund and transferring all assets and

#### liabilities to the abandoned oil and gas well fund.

01/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1985

01/31/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2012

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2535 Bill by Appropriations

Repealing obsolete provision requiring the state corporation commission and the department of health and environment enter into an interagency agreement for integration of certain oil and gas regulatory operations on or before November 1, 1982.

01/30/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1985

01/31/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2012

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2536 Bill by Appropriations

Substitute for HB 2536 by Committee on Appropriations – Updating the state corporation commission's authority to regulate and determine responsibility for abandoned oil and gas wells, providing methods for the commission to plug such wells including reimbursement for certain plugging operations and abolishing the well plugging assurance fund and transferring all assets and liabilities to the abandoned oil and gas well fund.

01/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1985

01/31/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2012

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

 $03/09/2020\ House — Committee\ Report\ recommending\ substitute\ bill\ be\ passed\ by$ 

Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2198

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2537 Bill by Taxation

### Requiring that remote sellers make \$100,000 in gross receipts from sales for sales tax nexus requirements.

01/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1985

01/31/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2013

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 10, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2538 Bill by Taxation

#### Increasing the Kansas standard deduction.

01/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1985

01/31/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2013

01/31/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

02/19/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by

Committee on Taxation—HJ 2096

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2539 Bill by Representative Carmichael

Creating a traffic infraction for operating a vehicle while fatigued.

01/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1985

01/31/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 2013

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2540 Bill by K-12 Education Budget

Senate Substitute for HB2540 by Committee on Education - Extending the sunset date of the high-density at-risk student weighting; providing requirements for school district at-risk fund expenditures and identification of students eligible to receive at-risk programs and services.

01/31/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2012

02/03/2020 House—Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 2016

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 10, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 546-S

02/24/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 2117

02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2169

02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 111 Nay: 14—HJ 2176

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 144-S

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Education—SJ 1405

03/18/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Education—SJ 1490

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

#### H 2541 Bill by Taxation

Allowing certain private not-for-profit postsecondary educational institutions to recoup credit card fees by permitting a surcharge for credit card transactions in the same manner as municipal universities, community colleges, technical colleges and vocational educational schools.

01/31/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2012

02/03/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Taxation-HJ 2016

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Taxation—HJ 2140

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2542 Bill by Taxation

Increasing the subtraction modification for social security income to \$100,000.

01/31/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2012

02/03/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2016

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2543 Bill by Taxation

Amending the definition of alternative fuel for the alternative-fueled motor vehicle property expenditure tax credit.

01/31/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2012

02/03/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2016

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2544 Bill by Judiciary

Requiring prosecutors to disclose their intent to introduce testimony from a jailhouse witness and to forward information to the Kansas bureau of investigation.

01/31/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2012

02/03/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2016

02/03/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 6, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2545 Bill by Representative Amyx

### Purchases of property and construction of buildings by townships are subject to a protest petition and election procedure.

02/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2015

 $02/04/2020\ House$ —Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic

Development—HJ 2020 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

## H 2546 Bill by Representatives Owens, Croft, Erickson, Lynn, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger Creating the crime of sexual extortion and adding the crime to the Kansas offender registration act.

02/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2015

02/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2020

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 17, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2107

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2141

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2158

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2547 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

#### Making changes to suspended drivers' license requirements.

02/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2015

02/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2020

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/18/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2090

02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2125

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2159

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Transportation—SJ 1405

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2548 Bill by Joint Special Claims Against the State

### Claims against the state submitted by the Joint Committee on Special Claims Against the State.

02/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2015

02/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2020

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2129

03/12/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2216

03/13/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 115 Nay: 1—HJ 2220

03/16/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1429

03/18/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Ways and Means—SJ 1474

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2549 Bill by Social Services Budget

#### Setting the protected income level for persons receiving home and communitybased services at 150% of SSI.

02/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2015

02/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Social Services Budget—HJ 2020

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 144-S

02/24/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Social Services Budget—HJ 2117

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2550 Bill by Social Services Budget

#### Increasing reimbursement rates for providers of home and community-based services under the intellectual or developmentally disabled waiver.

02/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2015

02/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Social Services Budget—HJ 2020

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 144-S

02/24/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Social Services Budget—HJ 2117

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2551 Bill by Judiciary

#### Allowing courts to prohibit possession of a firearm in a temporary custody order pursuant to the care and treatment act for mentally ill persons.

02/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2016

02/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2020

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2552 Bill by Representatives Erickson, Williams

#### Creating the Kansas reading readiness act.

02/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2016

02/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 2020

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 546-S

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 2144

02/26/2020 House-Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations-HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 2185

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2553 Bill by Taxation

#### Providing income tax modifications for global intangible low-taxed income, business interest, capital contributions and FDIC premiums.

02/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2016

02/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2020

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 17, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2554 Bill by Judiciary

#### Enacting the uniform fiduciary income and principal act (UFIPA).

02/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2016

02/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2020

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S 02/21/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2112 02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2125 02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2159 03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402 03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405 03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 346-S 05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2555 Bill by Appropriations

## Transferring \$268,412,000 from the state general fund to the Kansas public employees retirement fund in FY 2020 and eliminating certain level-dollar KPERS employer contribution payments.

02/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2016 02/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2020 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2556 Bill by Insurance

#### Establishing insurance coverage parity for orthotic devices and prosthetic devices.

 $02/03/2020\;House\\--Introduced\\---HJ\;2016$ 

02/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 2020

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2557 Bill by Insurance

### Establishing a \$100 maximum out-of-pocket cost-share per month per covered person for prescription insulin drugs.

02/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2019

02/06/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 2024

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2558 Bill by Insurance

#### Establishing the securities act victim restitution program.

02/04/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2019

02/06/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 2024

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

02/26/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Insurance—HJ 2177

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 2185

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2559** Bill by Elections

#### Lobbyist reports late filing.

02/04/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2019

02/06/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 2023

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

02/19/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Elections—HJ 2096

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2560 Bill by Elections

#### Electronic filing of campaign reports for state offices.

02/04/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2019

02/06/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 2023

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

02/19/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Elections—HJ 2096

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2561 Bill by Elections

### Authorizing legislative assistants and committee assistants to accept one gift of not to exceed \$100 in value each legislative session from legislators.

02/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2019

02/06/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 2023

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Elections—HJ 2106

02/27/2020 House-Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507-HJ 2180

#### H 2562 Bill by Elections

#### Delete the treasurer's name from candidate political ads.

02/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2019

02/06/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 2023

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

02/19/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Elections—HJ 2096

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2563 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

## Increasing the minimum age to purchase or possess cigarettes and tobacco products from 18 to 21; prohibiting cigarette vending machines and flavored vaping products.

02/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2019

02/04/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

02/06/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2024

02/21/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2110

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

#### H 2564 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

### Prescribing certain duties on the chairperson of legislative committees related to the provision of testimony presented to the committee.

02/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2019

02/06/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs-HJ 2024

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2565 Bill by Representatives Ward, Bishop, Yeager

### Concerning employment security law, relating to the number of weeks a claimant is eligible for benefits.

02/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2020

02/06/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2023

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2566 Bill by Representative Ward

### Concerning employment security law, relating to compensation of the pre-payment waiting period.

02/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2020

02/06/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2023

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2567 Bill by Taxation

#### Increasing the subtraction modification for social security income.

02/04/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2021

02/06/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2024

02/06/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2568 Bill by Transportation

### Allowing local authorities to decrease a speed limit to 5 miles per hour and decrease any speed limit without requiring an engineering and traffic investigation.

02/06/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2023

02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 2031

02/14/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2569 Bill by Transportation

### Allowing model year vehicle dealer license plates to be displayed on antique vehicles.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2023

02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 2031

02/07/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2570 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Limiting certain Schedule II, III and IV opioid prescriptions to a seven-day supply.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2023

02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2031

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Health and Human Services;

Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2571 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

### Club and drinking establishment liquor license eligibility; spouse is a law enforcement officer in another county.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2023

02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2031

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2130

03/11/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2204

03/12/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 108 Nay: 12—HJ 2210

03/12/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1421

03/13/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—SJ 1423

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2572 Bill by Education

### Creating the educator protection act to provide excess professional liability insurance coverage for teachers.

02/06/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2023

02/07/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 10, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 218-N

02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 2031

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2573 Bill by Education

### Requiring students pass an American civics test in order to graduate with a high school diploma.

02/06/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2023

02/07/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 218-N

02/07/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Education-HJ 2031

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Education; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2574 Bill by Education

## Amending the school sports head injury prevention act to require schools to establish concussion management teams to supervise the concussion management process.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2023

02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2031

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2575 Bill by Agriculture

## Amending the Kansas drycleaner environmental response act to change the required deductible rate, environmental surcharge rate and penalty fine amount.

02/06/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2023

02/07/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Agriculture-HJ 2031

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 17, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

02/24/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2116

02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2165

02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 95 Nay: 29— HJ 2174

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 1405

03/11/2020 Senate—Hearing: Monday, March 16, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 159-S

03/18/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources—SJ 1489

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

#### H 2576 Bill by Representative Smith, A.

#### Require county treasurers to mail property tax bills before December 10 each year.

02/06/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2023

02/07/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Taxation-HJ 2031

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

02/21/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Taxation—HJ 2113

02/24/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders— HJ 2116

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2577 Bill by Representative Rhiley

#### Authorization for counties to impose a local motor fuels tax with voter approval.

02/06/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2023

02/07/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Taxation-HJ 2031

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

### H 2578 Bill by Representatives Capps, Blex, Dove, Ellis, Erickson, Helmer, Hineman, Hoheisel, Horn, Houser, Howard, Moore, Newland, Pittman, Rhiley, Xu

#### Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2023

02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2031

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2579 Bill by Health and Human Services

## Updating certain provisions of the prescription monitoring program act relating to program data, storage and access and increasing the membership of the advisory committee.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2028

02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2031

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2580 Bill by Representative Dove

### City unilateral annexation powers eliminated unless property owners consent to annexation.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2028

02/07/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Local Government-HJ 2031

02/07/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 218-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2581 Bill by Representative Dove

### Require a vote of approval by persons living in an area to be regulated by city extraterritorial zoning or subdivision regulations.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2028

02/07/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Local Government-HJ 2031

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2582 Bill by K-12 Education Budget

### Creating the behavioral health intervention weighting as part of the Kansas school equity and enhancement act.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2028

02/07/2020 House-Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget-HJ 2031

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 546-S

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on K-12 Education Budget; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 2185

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2583 Bill by Local Government

#### Clarify the vacation of territory from city boundaries or release of easements.

02/06/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2028

02/07/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Local Government-HJ 2031

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 218-N

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Local Government—HJ 2107

02/24/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders— HJ 2116

02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2163

02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed; Yea: 124 Nay: 1—HJ 2176

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Ethics, Elections and Local Government
—SI 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 9:30 AM Room 142-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2584 Bill by Local Government

### Allowing cities, counties and local governments to raise the minimum wage by ordinance, resolution or law.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2029

02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2031

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2585 Bill by Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

## Senate Substitute for HB 2585 by Committee on Utilities - Exempting certain public utilities from Kansas income taxation and allowing the state corporation commission to approve certain contract and reduced electric rates and associated cost recovery from all rate classes.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2029

02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications—HJ 2031

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 582-N

02/24/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications—HJ 2116

02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2165

02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 123 Nay: 2— HJ 2172

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Utilities—SJ 1405

03/11/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 548-S

03/17/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Utilities—SJ 1483

05/21/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Ways and Means—SJ 1753

05/21/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Ways and Means and re-referred to Committee of the Whole—SJ 1753

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report adopted—SJ 1769

05/21/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action - Substitute passed as amended; Yea: 39 Nay: 1—SJ 1769

05/21/2020 House—Motion to nonconcur with amendments and appoint conferees failed; Representative Seiwert, Representative Schreiber and Representative

```
Finney as conferees—HJ 2699
         05/21/2020 House—Concurred with amendments; Yea: 75 Nay: 45—HJ 2699
         05/21/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Tuesday, May 26, 2020—HJ
         05/21/2020 House—Approved by Governor on Monday, June 1, 2020—HJ 2777
H 2586 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development
         Affording public employees and professional employees certain rights with respect
                 to withholding of public employee organization and professional employee
                 organization dues.
         02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2029
         02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic
                 Development-HJ 2031
         02/10/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N
         02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on
                 Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2130
         02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on
                 Appropriations—HJ 2178
         03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to
                 Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2185
         05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
H 2587 Bill by Judiciary
         Allowing venue for an agency adoption to be where a state agency or their
                 subcontracting agencies have offices when the state is the agency.
         02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2029
         02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2031
         02/07/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 11, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S
         02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on
                 Judiciary-HJ 2107
         02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2141
         02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 124 Nay: 1—HJ 2160
         03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402
         03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405
         05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee
H 2588
        Bill by Appropriations
         Providing for the FORWARD transportation program.
         02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2029
         02/07/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2031
         02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N
         03/16/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by
                 Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2239
         05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar
        Bill by Representatives Capps, Blex, French, Garber, Helmer, Howard, Newland
         Requiring student athletes to participate in school athletics based upon their
```

H 2590 Bill by Representative Capps

biological gender at birth. 02/07/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2030

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

02/10/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2042

H 2589

### Allowing law enforcement to have access to certain data from the department for children and families.

02/07/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2030

02/10/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2042

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2591 Bill by Representative Capps

### Allow members of the house of representatives and senate remain in a courtroom closed by a judge pursuant to court rule.

02/07/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2031

02/10/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2042

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2592 Bill by Transportation

## Providing for the American legion, knights of Columbus and proud educator distinctive license plates and providing for lowered license plate commitments and costs prior to production.

02/07/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2031

02/10/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 2042

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

02/24/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Transportation—HJ 2118

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2593 Bill by Taxation

#### Tax credit for contributions to technical colleges.

02/07/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2031

02/10/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2042

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2594 Bill by Appropriations

#### Supplemental appropriations for FY 2020 and FY 2021 for various state agencies.

02/07/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2031

02/10/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2042

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2595 Bill by General Government Budget

### Eliminating the 30-day delay before offering state surplus property for sale to the general public.

02/07/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2031

02/07/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 10, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 281-N

02/10/2020 House—Referred to Committee on General Government Budget—HJ 2042

02/13/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on General Government Budget—HJ 2065

02/19/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2096

02/20/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended: Yea: 118 Nav: 3—HJ 2103

02/20/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1298

02/21/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Ways and Means—SJ 1307

02/26/2020 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 4, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 548-S

03/04/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on Consent Calendar by Committee on Ways and Means—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders

```
-SJ 1409
         03/17/2020 Senate—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—SJ 1475
         03/17/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action - Passed; Yea: 36 Nay: 3—SJ 1482
         04/27/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Tuesday, March 24, 2020
         04/27/2020 House—Approved by Governor on Thursday, April 2, 2020
H 2596 Bill by Federal and State Affairs
         Allowing an alcoholic liquor manufacturer to obtain a drinking establishment
                 license under certain conditions.
         02/07/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2031
         02/10/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2042
```

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S 02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Federal and State Affairs-HJ 2130 03/11/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2204 03/12/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 113 Nay: 7—HJ 2210 03/12/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1421 03/13/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—SJ 1423

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2597 Bill by Appropriations

#### Substitute for HB 2597 by Committee on Appropriations - Appropriations for FY 2020, 2021 and 2022 for various state agencies.

02/07/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2039 02/10/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2042 02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N 03/16/2020 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2241 05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2598 Bill by Insurance

#### Substitute for HB 2598 by Committee on Insurance - Providing for enhanced regulation of pharmacy benefits managers and requiring licensure of such entities rather than registration of such entities.

02/10/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2041 02/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 2047 02/12/2020 House—Hearing: (proponents) Monday, February 17, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N 02/12/2020 House—Hearing: (opponents) Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N 02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Insurance—HJ 2144 02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### Bill by Representative Capps H 2599

#### Repealing certain obligations of a purchaser after sale of business for unpaid retailers' sales taxes.

02/10/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2041 02/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2047 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2600 Bill by Representative Probst

### All contract for deeds must be filed with the county register of deeds by the seller within 10 days after execution or such contract shall be deemed void.

02/10/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2041

02/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Local Government—HJ 2047

 $02/12/2020\ House-Hearing:\ Wednesday,\ February\ 19,2020,9:00\ AM\ Room\ 218-N$ 

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2601 Bill by Education

### Specifying the required childhood immunizations for child care facility and school attendance.

02/10/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2041

02/11/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

02/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 2047

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2602 Bill by Health and Human Services

### Expanding newborn screening services and increasing transfers from the medical assistance fee fund to the Kansas newborn screening fund.

02/10/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2041

 $02/11/2020\ House$ —Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2047

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2603 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Amending behavioral sciences professional licensing requirements.

02/10/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2041

02/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2047

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Health and Human Services;

Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to

Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2185

#### H 2604 Bill by Representative Helmer

### Requiring persons convicted of child abuse to register under the Kansas offender registration act.

02/10/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2041

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

02/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2047

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2605 Bill by Representative Warren

## Enacting the fairness in condemnation act requiring the condemning authority to provide the property owner notice of a planned condemnation proceeding, an offer for purchase and a court review of compliance with this act.

02/10/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2041

02/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2047

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2606 Bill by Elections

### Provide for the filling of a vacancy in the office of state treasurer and insurance commissioner by statewide district convention.

02/10/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2041

02/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 2047

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N 02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Elections; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Elections—HJ 2185

03/16/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Elections—HJ 2241

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2607 Bill by Taxation

## Substitute for HB 2607 by Committee on Taxation - Providing for county treasurers to establish a payment plan for the payment of delinquent or nondelinquent taxes.

02/10/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2043

02/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2047

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

02/26/2020 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Taxation—HJ 2163

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2608 Bill by Representative Pittman

### Regulating funeral processions and creating a violation for not properly yielding to funeral processions.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2045

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 2055

02/14/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Transportation—HJ 2107

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2609 Bill by Representatives Pittman, Croft, Ellis, Weigel

### Requiring the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office to submit an initial application for a VA state veterans home construction grant.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2045

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Social Services Budget—HJ 2055

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2610 Bill by Representatives Pittman, Croft, Ellis, Weigel

#### Authorizing the issuance of bonds for the construction of a state veterans home.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2045

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Social Services Budget—HJ 2055

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2611 Bill by Representatives Cox, Curtis, Finney, Hoheisel, Samsel, Stogsdill

#### Allowing certain criminal offenses to be expunged automatically.

02/11/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2045

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2055

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

### H 2612 Bill by Representatives Holscher, Finney, Gartner, Henderson, Kuether, Lusk, Neighbor, Samsel, Winn, Woodard

### Endorsements by individuals for candidates or office holders must be in writing and must be removed from the website and other social media of the

### candidate or office holder upon receipt of a written request by the individual or civil fines may be imposed.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2045

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 2055

02/19/2020 House—Hearing and possible action: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2613 Bill by Representatives Samsel, Lynn

#### Creating the crime of harassment of a sports official.

02/11/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2045

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2055

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2185

03/10/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2201

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2614 Bill by Representatives Holscher, Barker, Delperdang, Finney, Gartner, Henderson, Kuether, Neighbor, Samsel, Winn, Woodard

### Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2046

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 2055

02/14/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2615 Bill by Representative Croft

### Replacing the BOTA small claims appeal process with a mediation process for certain tax appeals.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2046

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2055

03/06/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2616 Bill by Representative Croft

### Rate of sales and compensating use tax on food and food ingredients and implementing formulaic adjustment to tax rate.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2046

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2055

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2617 Bill by Representatives Highberger, Horn

### Providing for adjusted income tax rates and sales tax treatment for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2046

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2055

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2618 Bill by Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

Establishing a state broadband grant program under the department of commerce

```
to encourage the deployment of broadband in the state.
```

- 02/11/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2046
- 02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications—HJ 2055
- 02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 13, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 582-N
- 02/24/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications—HJ 2117
- 02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole Be passed as amended—HJ 2167
- 02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action Passed as amended; Yea: 120 Nay: 5— HJ 2175
- 03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402
- 03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Utilities—SJ 1405
- 03/09/2020 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 548-S
- 03/17/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Utilities—SJ 1483
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

#### H 2619 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

# Senate Substitute for HB 2619 by Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance - Enacting the Kansas economic recovery loan deposit program, updating field of membership requirements of credit unions and allowing privilege tax deductions on agricultural real estate loans and single family residence loans.

- 02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2046
- 02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 2055
- 02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 281-N
- 02/19/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 2096
- 02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole Be passed—HJ 2141
- 02/26/2020 House—Final Action Passed; Yea: 118 Nay: 7—HJ 2161
- 03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402
- 03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 1405
- 03/11/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 9:30 AM Room 546-S
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 1758
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance; Referred to Committee on Ways and Means—SJ 1753
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Ways and Means; Rereferred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance—SJ 1753
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report adopted—SJ 1758
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action Substitute passed; Yea: 29 Nay: 11—SJ 1768
- 05/21/2020 House—Concurred with amendments; Yea: 114 Nay: 3—HJ 2700
- 05/21/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Tuesday, May 26, 2020—HJ 2777
- 05/21/2020 House—Vetoed by Governor; Returned to House on Monday, June 1, 2020
  —HJ 2780
- 05/21/2020 House—No motion to reconsider vetoed bill; Veto sustained

#### H 2620 Bill by Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

### Prohibiting the use or offering of technology that transmits inaccurate caller identification information.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2046 02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications—HJ 2055 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2621 Bill by Agriculture

#### Authorizing the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism to purchase land in Kingman county.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2046

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2055

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

02/21/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2110

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2622 Bill by Agriculture

#### Requiring poachers to pay a fine to certain landowners and law enforcement agencies.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2046

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2055

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2623 Bill by Agriculture

#### Establishing requirements for claiming pollinator-friendly solar sites.

02/11/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2046

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2055

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 582-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2624 Bill by Transportation

#### Allowing distinctive license plates to be personalized license plates.

02/11/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2046

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 2055

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2625 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

#### Preempting cities and counties from prohibiting or regulating paper or plastic carryout bags and other single-use plastic items.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2046

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2055

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N

02/19/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 1:15 PM Room 112-N

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2130

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on

Appropriations—HJ 2178

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2626 Bill by Representative Toplikar

#### Increasing the Kansas standard deduction and personal exemption for income tax purposes.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2047

#### HISTORY OF BILLS

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2055 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2627 Bill by Representative Toplikar

### Increasing income tax credit for expenditures to make principal dwelling accessible to persons with a disability.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2047

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2055

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2628 Bill by Representative Toplikar

### Allowing an individual to itemize deductions in Kansas despite not itemizing on their federal return.

02/11/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2048

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2055

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2629 Bill by Children and Seniors

### Requiring the secretary for aging and disability services to regulate supplemental nursing services agencies in the state of Kansas.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2048

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 2055

02/12/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2630 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Updating certain provisions of the Kansas dental practice act.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2048

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2055

 $02/26/2020\ House-Withdrawn\ from\ Committee\ on\ Health\ and\ Human\ Services;$ 

Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2630

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2631 Bill by Health and Human Services

### Prohibiting disparate treatment by pharmacy benefits managers of certain pharmacies and pharmaceutical services providers.

02/11/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2048

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2055

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Health and Human Services;

Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2632 Bill by Health and Human Services

### Authorizing the sale of smoking cessation aids to individuals who are are least 16 years of age.

02/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2048

 $02/12/2020\ House{---Referred}\ to\ Committee\ on\ Health\ and\ Human\ Services{----HJ}\ 2055$ 

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2633 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Establishing requirements relating to how certain health insurers treat dental care

2897

#### service claims; reimbursements; prior authorization; denials.

02/11/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2048

02/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2055 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2634 Bill by Representative Hodge

#### Removing minimum fines for a failure to maintain financial security.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2049

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Insurance—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2635 Bill by Representative Stogsdill

### Imposing a privilege tax on the gross receipts from the sale of firearms and ammunition.

02/12/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2049

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2636 Bill by Representative Stogsdill

### Prohibiting the possession of large capacity ammunition magazines and the carrying of handguns with large capacity ammunition magazines.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2049

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2637 Bill by Representative Neighbor

### Prohibiting employers and employment agencies from requiring or using compensation history of job applicants in the employment process.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2050

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2638 Bill by Representatives Xu, Lynn

## Authorizing medical student and residency loan assistance to encourage the practice of obstetrics and gynecology in medically underserved areas of the state.

02/12/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2050

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2639 Bill by Representative Waggoner

#### Providing a sales tax exemption for purchases by crisis pregnancy centers.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2050

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2064

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2640 Bill by Representative Xu

#### Establishing an income tax credit for the practice of carbon farming.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2050

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2064

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2641 Bill by Representatives Ruiz, S., Woodard

Amending statutes related to the recognition of marriages.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2050

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2642 Bill by Representatives Hoheisel, Bergquist, Bishop, Burris, Capps, Carmichael,

Carpenter, B., Carpenter, W., Delperdang, Erickson, Finney, Helgerson, Helmer, Hodge, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Landwehr, Moore, Ohaebosim, Owens, Probst, Rhiley, Sawyer, Seiwert, Victors, Ward, Williams, Yeager

Substitute for HB 2642 by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development - Removing a restriction, for purposes of employment security law, on leasing of certain employees by client lessees of lessor employing units.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2050

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2063

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2185

03/16/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N

03/18/2020 House—Committee Report recommending substitute bill be passed by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2293

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2643 Bill by Representative Ruiz, S.

### Making an employer's actions to limit or punish the disclosure of wage information by an employee an unlawful employment practice.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2050

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2644 Bill by Representative Horn

### Enacting the Kansas Paid Family Leave Act, establishing the Family and Medical Leave Insurance Fund.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2050

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2645 Bill by Representative Xu

### Prohibiting pelvic, rectal, or prostate exams on unconscious patients without informed consent.

02/12/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2050

 $02/13/2020\ House{---}Referred\ to\ Committee\ on\ Health\ and\ Human\ Services{---}HJ\ 2063$ 

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2646** Bill by Representative Victors

### Allowing the attorney general to coordinate training for law enforcement agencies on missing and murdered indigenous people.

```
02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2050
02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2063
02/17/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S
02/21/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2112
02/25/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2125
02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2161
03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402
03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—SJ 1405
03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 144-S
03/18/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—SJ 1490
05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders
```

#### H 2647 Bill by Judiciary

## Requiring earlier notice of anticipated release from custody of a person who may be a sexually violent predator to the attorney general and a multidisciplinary team and specifying where such person will be detained during civil commitment proceedings.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2050 02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2063 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2648 Bill by Representative Toplikar

### Adjusting the credit and income amounts for the income tax credit for purchases of food in this state.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2050 02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2064 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2649 Bill by Representative Warren

### Providing for the availability and use of the wheelchair emblem decal on a personalized license plate.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2050 02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Transportation—HJ 2064 02/14/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 582-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2650 Bill by Representatives Pittman, Arnberger, Croft, French, Gartner, Lynn, Neighbor, Ruiz, S., Warfield, Wasinger, Weigel, Xu

### Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of

Kansas.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2063

03/04/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

03/10/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed and placed on

Consent Calendar by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2201

03/11/2020 House—Withdrawn from Consent Calendar and placed on General Orders—

HJ 2203

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

#### H 2651 Bill by Representative Pittman

Creating the crime of aggravated abuse of a child.

#### HISTORY OF BILLS

02/12/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2652 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

#### Amending the definition of knife for the crime of criminal possession of a firearm.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2653 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

### Clarifying inspection, permit, certification and fee requirements for amusement rides under the Kansas amusement ride act.

02/12/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2654 Bill by Taxation

#### Sales tax exemption for purchases made by SOAR special needs.

02/12/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2064

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2655 Bill by Taxation

#### Sales tax exemption for friends of hospice of Jefferson county.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2064

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2656 Bill by Taxation

### Discontinuing apportionment of countywide retailers' sales tax imposed for general purposes between the county and cities located therein.

02/12/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2064

03/06/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2657 Bill by Taxation

### Requiring marketplace facilitators to collect and remit sales and compensating use tax.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2064

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2658 Bill by Representative Ward

#### Establishing the affordable prescription drug importation program.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2659 Bill by Elections

## Mail ballot elections amended to allow counting of mailed ballots received three business days after the election if postmark shows the ballot was mailed on or before the election day.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2660 Bill by Representative Parker

### Requiring the department of health and environment to make long-acting reversible contraceptives more accessible.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2661 Bill by Representative Parker

### Enacting the right to family planning act, requiring contraceptives to be available at pharmacies.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2662 Bill by Representative Parker

### Establishing the energy efficiency benchmark act to promote cost savings for the state and other entities through increased energy efficiency.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2051

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2663 Bill by Representative Parker

### Allowing physicians to decide whether to provide patients with certain information based on the physician's reasonable professional medical judgment.

02/12/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2052

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2664** Bill by Representative Parker

### Enacting the rape survivor information act, requiring certain entities to provide information to sexual assault survivors.

02/12/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2052

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2665 Bill by Representative Parker

#### **Enacting the Kansas Paid Sick Leave Act.**

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2052

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2666 Bill by Representative Parker

#### Prohibiting employers from taking adverse employment action against an employee

### based on employee's reproductive medical history or reproductive medical decisions.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2052

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2667 Bill by Representatives Croft, Resman

### Requiring law enforcement agencies to adopt policies requiring an investigation and public report be completed after officer-involved deaths.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2052

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2668 Bill by Representatives Croft, Esau, Lynn, Tarwater, Warren

### Establishing the property tax relief act and providing an expiration for the selective assistance for effective relief credit and the homestead property tax refund.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2052 02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2064

02/24/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 24, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2669 Bill by Agriculture

## Requiring the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism to establish state threatened and endangered species lists that are based on the federal threatened and endangered species lists.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2052

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 582-N

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2670 Bill by Representative Concannon

#### Enacting the audiology and speech language pathology interstate compact.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2052

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2671 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Authorizing sports wagering under the Kansas expanded lottery act.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2062

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2071

03/04/2020 House—Hearing: (proponents) Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

03/04/2020 House—Hearing: (neutral) Thursday, March 12, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

03/04/2020 House—Hearing: (opponents) Thursday, March 12, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2672 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

### Authorizing licensees under the club and drinking establishment act to sell and serve cereal malt beverages.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2063 02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2071 02/25/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 5, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2673 Bill by Judiciary

Conferring original jurisdiction to the supreme court to hear certain actions related to the health care provider insurance availability act, the healthcare stabilization fund and claims for noneconomic loss in medical malpractice liability actions.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2063 02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2071 02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2178

#### H 2674 Bill by Judiciary

Allowing investigations of child deaths by coroner before performing an autopsy.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2063

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2071

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2675 Bill by Judiciary

Authorizing judges to extend protection from abuse orders for more reasons.

02/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2063

02/13/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 17, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2071

02/20/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2107

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2676 Bill by Education

Requiring publication of school district bullying policies and requiring a report on bullying incidents at each school district attendance center.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2063

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 2071

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2677 Bill by Rural Revitalization

Establishing a primary health center and enacting the primary health center pilot program act contingent upon state acceptance into a demonstration program under the centers for medicare and medicaid innovation.

02/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2063

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 2071

02/14/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 17, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 582-N

02/21/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Rural Revitalization—HJ 2112

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2678 Bill by Financial Institutions and Pensions

Affiliation with the Kansas police and firemen's retirement system by the Kansas

#### department of wildlife, parks and tourism for membership of certain law enforcement officers and employees.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2063

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions—HJ 2071

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2679 Bill by Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

#### Allowing public utilities to implement demand-side programs to increase energy efficiency.

02/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2067

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 2071

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2680 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Updating certain provisions of the optometry law pertaining to scope of practice, definitions and related requirements.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2067

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2071 02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Health and Human Services;

Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2185

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2681 Bill by Health and Human Services

#### Establishing the advisory committee on harm reduction within the department of health and environment.

02/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2067

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2071

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2682** Bill by Appropriations

#### Allowing private plaintiffs to bring an action under the Kansas false claims act.

02/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2067

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2071

03/13/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2683 Bill by Taxation

#### Providing a sales tax exemption for sent, inc.

02/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2067

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2071

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2684 Bill by Taxation

#### Providing for the required mill levy for financing education for the subsequent two school years and extending the exemption for residential property from the statewide school levy.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2067

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2071

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2685 Bill by Taxation

#### Imposing sales tax on digital property and subscription services.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2067

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2071

02/26/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 4, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2686 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

### Removing felony violation of possession of marijuana and releasing people currently in prison for such violations.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2067

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2071

02/17/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2687 Bill by Elections

## Clarifying who may deliver advance voting ballots placing limitations on the number of such advance ballots that a person may deliver and establishing criminal penalties for violations.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2067

02/14/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Elections-HJ 2071

02/17/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 212-N

02/21/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Elections—HJ 2110

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Elections—HJ 2185

03/16/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Elections—HJ 2242

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

#### H 2688 Bill by Agriculture and Natural Resources Budget

## Allowing the state board of veterinary examiners to make assessments to recoup certain administrative costs and to remit all moneys collected by the board from fees, charges, assessments and penalties to the veterinary examiners fee fund.

02/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2067

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources Budget—HJ 2071

02/17/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 142-S

02/21/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources Budget—HJ 2110

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2689 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

## Amending the angel investor tax credit with respect to the definition of qualified securities, tax credit limitations and amounts, investor requirements and extending the date that credits may be allowed.

02/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2067

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic

Development-HJ 2071

02/17/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 02/19/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 1:15 PM Room 112-N

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by

Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2142

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2185

03/09/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2198

03/12/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2215

03/13/2020 House—Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 103 Nay: 12—HJ 2221

03/16/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1429

03/18/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Commerce—SJ 1474

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2690 Bill by Education

### Requirements for school districts to administer certain tests, questionnaires, surveys and examinations under the student data privacy act.

02/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2068

02/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 2071

02/17/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 218-N

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Education—HJ 2130

02/27/2020 House—Stricken from Calendar by Rule 1507—HJ 2180

#### H 2691 Bill by Taxation

## Authorizing the state corporation commission to issue securitized ratepayer-backed bonds for electric generation facilities; enacting the Kansas electricity bill reduction bonds act, K-EBRA bonds.

02/14/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2070

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2692 Bill by Health and Human Services

### Transferring powers, duties and functions of the emergency medical services board to the secretary of health and environment.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2070

 $02/17/2020\ House$ —Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2693 Bill by Judiciary

#### Creating a civil cause of action for victims of certain alcohol related incidents.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2070

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2694 Bill by Taxation

#### Providing for a sales tax exemption for purchases by animal shelters.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2070

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2695 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

## Allowing special agents from the department of corrections to attend the Kansas law enforcement training center.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2070

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2082

02/18/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2130

02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2163

02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2175

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2696 Bill by Taxation

#### Providing a tax lid exception for transportation construction projects.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2070

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2697 Bill by Education

## Creating the campus intellectual diversity act to establish an office of public policy events at each public postecondary educational institution.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2070

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Education—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2698 Bill by Taxation

#### Authorizing counties to impose an earnings tax.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2070

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2699 Bill by Judiciary

## Requiring court services officers to assist with child in need of care cases when directed by a judge.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2070

02/14/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 17, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2082

02/21/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2112

02/25/2020 House-Committee of the Whole - Be passed-HJ 2141

02/26/2020 House—Final Action - Passed; Yea: 105 Nay: 20—HJ 2162

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2700 Bill by Children and Seniors

#### Amending provisions concerning the abuse, neglect and financial exploitation of certain adults to update the list of mandatory reporters, create a definition

of "financial exploitation" and increase the number of working days in which DCF must complete an initial investigation from 30 to 60 working days.

02/14/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2070

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2082

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2185

03/10/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 2201

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2701 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

## Providing an employment preference for persons with a disability for state government positions.

02/14/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2070

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2082

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178

03/04/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Appropriations; Rereferred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2185

03/04/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2702 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

Enacting the Kansas taxpayer protection act; establishing notice and public hearing requirements prior to approval by a governing body to exceed its revenue neutral rate for the imposition of property tax and discontinuing the city and county tax lid; providing a waiver of interest and fees on certain delinquent property taxes for a period of time and delaying preparation of delinquent real estate tax list and notice; prohibiting valuation increase for real property solely as the result of normal repair, replacement or maintenance of existing structure; providing for county treasurers to establish a payment plan for the payment of delinquent or nondelinquent taxes; requiring the state board of tax appeals to serve orders and notices by electronic means if requested by the party; prohibiting county appraisers and the state board of tax appeals from increasing the valuation of county appraised property in valuation appeals

02/14/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2071

02/17/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2082

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2130

02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2167

02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2174

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Commerce—SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Friday, March 13, 2020, 8:30 AM Room 548-S

03/16/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Commerce—SJ 1463

03/17/2020 Senate—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—SJ 1475

- 03/17/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action Passed as amended; Yea: 39 Nay: 0—SJ 1482
- 05/21/2020 House—Nonconcurred with amendments; Conference Committee requested; appointed Representative Tarwater, Representative Corbet and Representative Frownfelter as conferees—HJ 2697
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Motion to accede adopted; Senator Tyson, Senator Kerschen and Senator Holland appointed as conferees—SJ 1775
- 05/21/2020 House—Representative Johnson, Representative Mason, and Representative Gartner are appointed to replace Representative Tarwater, Representative Corbet, and Representative Frownfelter on the Conference Committee—HJ 2695
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Conference Committee Report agree to disagree adopted; Senator Tyson, Senator Kerschen and Senator Holland appointed as second conferees— SJ 1775
- 05/21/2020 House—Conference Committee Report agree to disagree adopted; Representative Johnson, Representative Mason and Representative Gartner appointed as second conferees—HJ 2697
- 05/21/2020 Senate—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 35 Nay: 2—SJ 1776
- 05/21/2020 House—Substitute motion to not adopt and appoint a conference committee failed—HJ 2699
- 05/21/2020 House—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 89 Nay: 28—HJ 2700
- 05/21/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Tuesday, May 26, 2020—HJ 2777
- 05/21/2020 House—Vetoed by Governor; Returned to House on Monday, June 1, 2020
  —HJ 2781
- 05/21/2020 House—No motion to reconsider vetoed bill; Veto sustained

#### H 2703 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

## Preempting local building and construction codes more stringent than national model codes, with certain exceptions.

02/14/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2071

02/17/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N 02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2704 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

# Amending unemployment insurance disqualification provisions relating to dates disqualification begins, illness or injury, pension or retirement pay and employment for an educational institution.

02/14/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2071

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2705 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

#### Exempting petroleum landmen from the provisions of employment security law.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2071

02/17/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, February 18, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 112-N

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2082

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development-HJ 2130 02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Calendar; Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2178 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2706 Bill by Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

Establishing the public employee safety and health program within the department of labor, permitting investigations of public employee deaths and injuries and updating the provisions of public employee safety and health law.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2077

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2707** Bill by Judiciary

Allowing military service members ordered to relocate to terminate leases.

02/14/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2077

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2708 Bill by Corrections and Juvenile Justice

Creating a drug abuse treatment program for people on diversion and allowing county attorneys to enter into agreements with court services and community corrections for supervision.

02/14/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2077

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 2082

02/18/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, February 20, 2020, 1:30 PM Room 152-S

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice-HJ 2130

02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed—HJ 2162

02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed; Yea: 125 Nay: 0—HJ 2171

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 2709 Bill by Agriculture

Removing cannabis products that contain up to 0.3% THC from the list of controlled substances listed in schedule I of the uniform controlled substances act.

02/14/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2077

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Agriculture—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2710 Bill by Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

#### Requiring petrochemical manufacturing facilities and petroleum refineries to use a skilled and trained workforce.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2077

02/17/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and

Telecommunications—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2711 Bill by Health and Human Services

## Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2077

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2082

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2712 Bill by Health and Human Services

# Updating the pharmacy act of the state of Kansas, relating to powers, duties and functions of the board of pharmacy; investigations, audits and inspections and telepharmacy.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2077

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 2082 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2713 Bill by Judiciary

# Enacting the revised uniform law on notarial acts and validating certain notarial acts performed while the requirements that a person must appear before a notary public are suspended.

02/14/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2078

02/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2082

02/17/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

02/25/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2131

02/26/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Be passed as amended—HJ 2165

02/26/2020 House—Emergency Final Action - Passed as amended; Yea: 122 Nay: 3—HJ 2173

03/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1402

03/05/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1405

03/05/2020 Senate—Hearing: Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 10:30 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Hearing: Monday, May 18, 2020, 9:30 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Judiciary; Referred to Committee on Ways and Means—SJ 1753

05/21/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Ways and Means; Rereferred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1753

05/21/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed as amended by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1759

05/21/2020 Senate—Died on Senate General Orders

#### H 2714 Bill by Appropriations

## Increasing state financial assistance to local health departments under specified circumstances.

02/18/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2092

02/19/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2094

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2715** Bill by Appropriations

## Prohibiting the secretary of health and environment from amending or enacting regulations that would create new or increase air quality control fees.

02/18/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2092

02/19/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2094

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2716 Bill by Appropriations

#### Requiring information technology security training for state agencies.

02/18/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2092

02/19/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2094

03/13/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2717 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Creating the Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act.

02/18/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2092

02/19/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2094

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2718 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

## Prohibiting municipal zoning ordinances that exclude federally licensed firearms manufacturers, importers or dealers.

02/18/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2092

02/19/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2094

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2719 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Changing process for collection of debts owed to courts.

02/19/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2094

02/20/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2099

02/26/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Federal and State Affairs; Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2178

02/27/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 4, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2720 Bill by Taxation

## Providing a refundable income tax credit for certain purchases of food and discontinuing the nonrefundable food sales tax credit.

02/19/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2097

02/20/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2099

03/04/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, March 9, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2721 Bill by Taxation

## Extending the eligible time period for the rural opportunity zone loan repayment program and income tax credit.

02/19/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2097

02/20/2020 House-Referred to Committee on Taxation-HJ 2099

02/20/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, February 24, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2722 Bill by Taxation

## Establishing tax withholding requirements when certain employees work in multiple states.

02/19/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2097

02/20/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2099

02/27/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 5, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

03/11/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Taxation—HJ 2205

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2723 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

## Requiring medical directors of emergency medical services to provide medical oversight of such services and emergency medical service providers.

02/21/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2109

02/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2116

03/04/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 10, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2724 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Creating the Kansas student academic improvement act.

02/21/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2110

02/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2116

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2725 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Creating the Kansas exceptional child academic improvement act.

02/21/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2110

02/24/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2116

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2726 Bill by Taxation

#### Extending the dates when corporate tax returns are required to be filed.

02/24/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2116

02/25/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2123

02/27/2020 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 4, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

03/11/2020 House—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Taxation—HJ 2205

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 2727 Bill by Taxation

# Requiring the repeal or suspension of existing sales tax exemption when implementing any new exemption, providing for a sales tax exemption for envision, inc. and friends of hospice of Jefferson county and imposing sales tax on certain services.

02/24/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2116

02/25/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2123

03/04/2020 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 12, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2728** Bill by Appropriations

## Requiring the department of administration to raze the Docking state office building and preserve the existing energy center of the building.

02/25/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2141

02/26/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2147

03/13/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 112-N

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2729 Bill by Taxation

#### Sales tax exemption for storytime village, inc.

02/25/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2145

02/26/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2147

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2730 Bill by Taxation

#### Sales tax exemption for registered charitable organizations.

02/26/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2147

02/27/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2180

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2731** Bill by Appropriations

### Creating the wartime veteran and first responder survivors' grant program and fund.

02/26/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2163

02/27/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2180

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2732 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Requiring Kansas postsecondary educational institutions to adopt a policy and protocols concerning sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence and stalking.

03/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2182

03/05/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2187

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2733 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

## Requiring relinquishment of firearms pursuant to certain court orders related to domestic violence.

03/05/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2187

03/06/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2196

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2734 Bill by Taxation

## Updating field of membership requirements of credit unions and allowing privilege tax deductions on certain business and single family residence loans.

03/06/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2196

03/09/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2197

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2735 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Enacting statutes to preserve families that include a parent who is blind.

03/09/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2197

03/10/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2201

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 2736** Bill by Appropriations

Authorizing the department of administration to issue bonds to construct and equip a department of health and environment laboratory on parking lot No. 4 of the capitol complex in Topeka; current laboratory identified and sold as state surplus real estate.

03/09/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2198

03/10/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2201

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2737 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

# Authorizing school districts to install and operate school bus cameras and providing enhanced criminal penalties for vehicles improperly passing school buses.

03/10/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2199

03/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2203

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2738 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

## Requiring restitution to be due immediately unless the court orders a payment plan.

03/10/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2200

03/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2203

03/12/2020 House—Withdrawn from Committee on Federal and State Affairs; Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2208

03/12/2020 House—Hearing: Monday, March 16, 2020, 3:30 PM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2739 Bill by Taxation

## Changing to an eight-year simple average and changing the capitalization rate for valuation of agricultural land for purposes of property taxation.

03/11/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2203

03/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2208

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2740 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Creating the Kansas medical marijuana regulation act.

03/11/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2203

03/12/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2208

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2741 Bill by Taxation

#### Providing a sales tax exemption for area agencies on aging.

03/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2208

03/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2220

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2742 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

#### Creating the Kansas equal access act to authorize the use of medical marijuana.

03/12/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2208

03/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2220

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2743 Bill by Taxation

## Allowing the chief justice of the Kansas supreme court to alter or suspend deadlines to secure the health and safety of court users, staff and judicial officers.

03/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2220

03/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2229

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2744 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

Allowing evidence-based program account money to be used on certain children, requiring the department of corrections to build data systems, and allowing for overall case length limit extensions for certain juvenile offenders.

#### HISTORY OF BILLS

03/16/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2238 03/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—HJ 2264 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2745 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

## Requiring the state corporation commission to develop a comprehensive state energy plan.

03/16/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2238 03/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications—HJ 2264 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2746 Bill by Taxation

#### Providing for a temporary higher interest rate for municipal bonds.

03/16/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2259 03/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 2264 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2747 Bill by Federal and State Affairs

Authorizing the state board of education to grant waivers for school districts from the requirement to provide a minimum number of school hours during the school term.

03/16/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2260 03/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on K-12 Education Budget—HJ 2264 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### TITLE AND HISTORY OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

H 5001 Concurrent Resolution by Representative Corbet

#### Constitutional amendment; term limits for the secretary of state and attorney general.

01/14/2019 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Thursday, January 10, 2019—HJ 47

01/14/2019 House-Introduced

01/15/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 52

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 5003 Concurrent Resolution by Representative Corbet

#### Constitutional amendment; term limits; legislators.

01/15/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 51

01/16/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 57

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 5004 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Garber, Awerkamp, Bergquist, Blex, Burris,

Carpenter, W., Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Highland, Hoffman, Huebert, Jacobs,

Resman, Rhiley, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Tarwater, Thimesch, Vickrey

#### Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.

01/28/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 86

01/29/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 90

03/13/2019 House—Hearing: Thursday, March 21, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 5005 Concurrent Resolution by Elections

#### Constitutional amendment; reapportionment, deleting requirement for adjustment of census data for military personnel and students.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 123

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### **H 5006** Concurrent Resolution by Representative Parker

#### Revising article 10 of the Kansas constitution; establishing a redistricting commission.

02/07/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 133

02/08/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 138

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 5007 Concurrent Resolution by Local Government

#### Constitutional amendment granting counties home rule powers.

02/12/2019 House-Introduced-HJ 149 02/13/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Local Government—HJ 160

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 5008 Concurrent Resolution by Representative Ousley

#### Proposition to repeal section 12 of article 15 of the Kansas constitution, regarding membership and nonmembership in labor organizations.

02/13/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 161

02/14/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 165

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 5009 Concurrent Resolution by Federal and State Affairs

Making application to the U.S. congress to call a convention of the states.

02/20/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 200

02/21/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 209

03/06/2019 House—Hearing: Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

03/20/2019 House—Committee Report recommending resolution be adopted by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 391

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

H 5010 Concurrent Resolution by Federal and State Affairs

## Constitutional amendment to require the Kansas supreme court to issue decisions within one year of final arguments.

03/26/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 480

03/27/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 529

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 5012 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins, Sawyer

Adjournment of the 2019 Legislature until May 1, 2019.

04/05/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 712

05/01/2019 House—Referred to Committee on Calendar and Printing—HJ 838

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 5013 Concurrent Resolution by Federal and State Affairs

## Proposing to amend section 11 of article 1 of the constitution of the state of Kansas regarding the filling of vacancies in executive offices.

04/05/2019 House—Introduced—HJ 712

05/01/2019 House-Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs-HJ 838

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 5016 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Victors, Alcala, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S.

#### Urging Congress to provide healthcare to deported veterans.

01/13/2020 House—Prefiled for Introduction on Friday, January 10, 2020

01/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 1928

01/14/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 1932

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 5017 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins, Sawyer

# Providing for the appointment of a committee to inform the governor that the two houses of the legislature are organized and ready to receive communications.

01/13/2020 House-Introduced

01/13/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 1929

01/13/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1151

01/13/2020 Senate—Adopted without roll call—SJ 1151

01/21/2020 House—Enrolled on Tuesday, January 21, 2020—HJ 1955

#### H 5018 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins, Sawyer

## Providing for a joint session of the House of Representatives and Senate to hear a message from the Governor.

01/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1929

01/13/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 1929

01/13/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1151

01/13/2020 Senate—Adopted without roll call—SJ 1151 01/21/2020 House—Enrolled on Tuesday, January 21, 2020—HJ 1955

H 5019 Concurrent Resolution by Federal and State Affairs

# Amending the bill of rights of the constitution of the state of Kansas to reserve to the people the right to regulate abortion through their elected state representatives and senators.

01/16/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1950

01/16/2020 House—Hearing: Tuesday, January 21, 2020, 9:00 AM Room 346-S

01/17/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 1953

01/23/2020 House—Committee Report recommending resolution be adopted by Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 1967

05/21/2020 House-Died on Calendar

#### H 5020 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins, Sawyer

## Providing for the adjournment of the Senate and House of Representatives for a period of time during the 2020 regular session of the Legislature.

02/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2020

02/04/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 2020

02/04/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1241

02/06/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Interstate Cooperation—SJ 1244

02/07/2020 Senate—Withdrawn from Committee on Interstate Cooperation; Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 1247

05/21/2020 Senate—Died in Senate Committee

#### H 5021 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Ruiz, S., Woodard

## Constitutional amendment to repeal section 16 of article 15 of the constitution of the state of Kansas relating to marriage.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2052 02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 5022 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Xu, Ballard, Bishop, Clayton, Finney, Gartner, Highberger, Holscher, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Victors, Warfield, Winn, Woodard

#### Recognizing global climate crisis

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2053

02/13/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2063

05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 5023 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins, Sawyer

## Providing for the adjournment of the Senate and House of Representatives for a period of time during the 2020 regular session of the Legislature.

02/26/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2178

02/26/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 2179

02/27/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1399

02/27/2020 Senate—Adopted without roll call—SJ 1399

03/10/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Secretary of State on Tuesday, March 10, 2020—HJ 2201

#### H 5024 Concurrent Resolution by Federal and State Affairs

Amending the bill of rights of the constitution of the state of Kansas regarding the right to abortion, the right to require government funding for abortion and

#### the power of the legislature to regulate abortion.

- 03/10/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2200
- 03/11/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 2203 05/21/2020 House—Died in Committee
- H 5025 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Ryckman, Sawyer, Finch, Hawkins, Winn Ratifying and providing the continuation of the March 12, 2020, state of disaster emergency declaration for the state of Kansas.
  - 03/13/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2228
  - 03/13/2020 House—Emergency Final Action Adopted; Yea: 116 Nay: 0—HJ 2228
  - 03/16/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 1429
  - 03/18/2020 Senate—Final Action Adopted as amended; Yea: 37 Nay: 2—SJ 1487
  - 03/18/2020 House—Nonconcurred with amendments; Conference Committee requested; appointed Representative Finch, Representative Mason and Representative Sawyer as conferees—HJ 2294
  - 03/18/2020 Senate—Motion to accede adopted; Senator Wilborn, Senator Rucker and Senator Hensley appointed as conferees—SJ 1489
  - 03/19/2020 Senate—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 39 Nay: 0—SJ 1500
  - 03/19/2020 House—Conference Committee Report was adopted; Yea: 115 Nay: 0—HJ 2627
  - 03/19/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Secretary of State on Friday, March 20, 2020

#### TITLE AND HISTORY OF HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

H 6025 Resolution by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins, Sawyer

Providing for the organization of the House of Representatives in 2020.

01/13/2020 House-Introduced

01/13/2020 House-Adopted without roll call-HJ 1926

01/27/2020 House—Enrolled on Monday, January 27, 2020—HJ 1973

H 6026 Resolution by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins, Sawyer

Providing for changes in seat assignments in the house of representatives for the 2020 session.

01/13/2020 House-Introduced

01/13/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 1926

01/27/2020 House—Enrolled on Monday, January 27, 2020—HJ 1973

H 6027 Resolution by Representatives Bishop, Hoheisel

Congratulating and commending Wichita as a 2019 All-America City award winner.

01/22/2020 House-Introduced

01/22/2020 House-Adopted without roll call-HJ 1957

01/28/2020 House—Enrolled on Tuesday, January 28, 2020—HJ 1976

H 6028 Resolution by Representatives Huebert, Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps,

Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, Carpenter, B., Carpenter, W., Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager

### Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.

01/29/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1979

01/29/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 1979

02/06/2020 House—Enrolled on Thursday, February 6, 2020—HJ 2029

H 6029 Resolution by Representative Ruiz, S.

Designating January 30, 2020, as Latina Leaders Day at the Capitol.

01/29/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1981

01/30/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 2008

02/06/2020 House—Enrolled on Thursday, February 6, 2020—HJ 2029

H 6030 Resolution by Representative Concannon

Recognizing February 7, 2020, as Wear Red Day.

02/06/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2024

02/06/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 2024 02/12/2020 House—Enrolled on Wednesday, February 12, 2020—HJ 2061

#### H 6031 Resolution by Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

## Disapproving executive reorganization order no. 46 that establishes the Kansas energy office.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2060

03/18/2020 House—Final Action - Adopted; Yea: 74 Nay: 44—HJ 2292

03/19/2020 House—Enrolled on Thursday, March 19, 2020

#### H 6032 Resolution by Appropriations

## Disapproving executive reorganization order no. 44 that relates to the newly named Kansas department of human services.

02/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2060

03/18/2020 House—Final Action - Adopted; Yea: 82 Nay: 35—HJ 2291

03/19/2020 House—Enrolled on Thursday, March 19, 2020

#### H 6033 Resolution by Representatives Highberger, Horn

### Recognizing the 100th Anniversary of the League of Women Voters of the United

02/13/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2064

02/13/2020 House-Adopted without roll call-HJ 2064

02/18/2020 House—Enrolled on Tuesday, February 18, 2020—HJ 2092

#### H 6034 Resolution by General Government Budget

# Approving executive reorganization order No. 45 that transfers certain powers, duties and functions to the division of the state employee health benefits plan within the department of administration.

 $02/14/2020\; House -\!\!-\!\!Introduced -\!\!-\!\!HJ\; 2076$ 

05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

#### H 6035 Resolution by Representatives Schreiber, Highland

#### Recognizing September as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month.

02/18/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2085

02/18/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 2085

02/21/2020 House—Enrolled on Friday, February 21, 2020—HJ 2114

# H 6036 Resolution by Representatives Seiwert, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Barker, Bergquist, Burris, Capps, Carpenter, B., Carpenter, W., Collins, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dove, Ellis, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Johnson, Landwehr, Long, Mason, Owens, Patton, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch,

Thomas, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster

#### Honoring Agent Orange victims.

02/25/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 2124

02/25/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 2124

03/06/2020 House—Enrolled on Friday, March 6, 2020—HJ 2196

#### H 6037 Resolution by Representative Williams

#### Recognizing the week of February 24, 2020, as National Public Schools Week.

02/26/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2147

02/26/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 2147

03/06/2020 House—Enrolled on Friday, March 6, 2020—HJ 2196

#### H 6038 Resolution by Representative Dietrich

#### Honoring the 30th anniversary of the Parents as Teachers program in Kansas.

03/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2183

03/04/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 2183

03/09/2020 House—Enrolled on Monday, March 9, 2020—HJ 2198

H 6039 Resolution by Representatives Schreiber, Amyx, Ballard, Capps, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Cox, Croft, Dietrich, Ellis, Esau, Finney, French, Garber, Gartner, Highberger, Hoheisel, Howard, Jacobs, Jennings, Karleskint, Kessinger, Kuether, Long, Mastroni, Murnan, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Pittman, Resman, Rhiley, Samsel, Sawyer, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Tarwater, Thompson, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Woodard, Xu, Yeager

## Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.

03/05/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2188

03/05/2020 House-Adopted without roll call-HJ 2188

03/13/2020 House—Enrolled on Friday, March 13, 2020—HJ 2236

H 6040 Resolution by Representatives Mason, Amyx, Barker, Capps, Carlson, Carpenter, B.,
Carpenter, W., Collins, Croft, Dietrich, Ellis, Eplee, Esau, French, Gartner,
Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hoheisel, Howard, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings,
Johnson, Kelly, Kessinger, Mastroni, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Resman, Rhiley,
Schreiber, Seiwert, Tarwater, Waggoner, Waymaster, Yeager

## Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.

03/12/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2208 05/21/2020 House—Died on Calendar

H 6041 Resolution by Representatives Humphries, Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Benson, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Burris, Burroughs, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, Carpenter, B., Carpenter, W., Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Curtis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Donohoe, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Garber, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Mastroni, Moore, Murnan, Neighbor, Newland, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, Parker, Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Schreiber, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager

## Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

03/18/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2290

03/18/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 2290

03/19/2020 House—Enrolled on Thursday, March 19, 2020

#### HISTORY OF HOUSE PETITIONS

No House Petitions submitted

#### HISTORY OF EXECUTIVE REORGANIZATION ORDERS

#### **ERO 44** Executive Reorganization Order by Governor Kelly

Renaming the Kansas department for children and families the Kansas department of human services; abolishing the Kansas department for aging and disability services and transferring the functions to the Kansas department of human services; transferring the functions of the department of corrections regarding the juvenile services programs and juvenile facilities and institutions, excluding the Larned juvenile correctional facility, to the Kansas department of human services.

1/30/2020 House—Received 1/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1986

1/31/2020 House—Referred to House Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2012

2/12/2020 House—Committee Report from House Committee on Appropriations recommending adoption of resolution disapproving ERO 44—HJ 2060

2/12/2020 House—HR 6032 Introduced by House Committee on Appropriations—HJ 2060

3/18/2020 House—HR 6032 Disapproving ERO 44 adopted by the House; Yea: 82 Nay: 35—HJ 2291

#### ERO 45 Executive Reorganization Order by Governor Kelly

Transferring the functions of the state employee health benefits plan and the state worker compensation self-insurance fund from the department of health and environment to the division of the state employee health benefits plan within the department of administration.

1/30/2020 House-Received

1/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 1999

1/31/2020 House—Referred to House Committee on General Government Budget—HJ 2013

2/14/2020 House—Committee report from House Committee on General Government Budget recommending adoption of resolution approving ERO 45—HJ 2076

2/14/2020 House—HR 6034 introduced by House Committee on General Government Budget—HJ 2076

5/21/2020 House—Time limit for action expired. ERO becomes effective July 1, 2020.

#### ERO 46 Executive Reorganization Order by Governor Kelly

Establishing the Kansas energy office and transferring the powers, duties and functions of energy division of the state corporation commission as described in K.S.A. 74-616(a) through (d), 74-617, 74-622, 75-37,125 and 75-37,129, to the Kansas energy office.

1/30/2020 House-Received

1/30/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 2005

1/31/2020 House—Referred to House Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications—HJ 2012

2/12/2020 House—Committee Report from House Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications recommending adoption of resolution disapproving ERO 46—HJ 2060

2/12/2020 House—HR 6031 Introduced by House Committee on Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications—HJ 2060

3/18/2020 House—HR 6031 Disapproving ERO 46 adopted by the House; Yea: 74 Nay: 44—HJ 2292

# HOUSE CALENDAR

No. 46

#### **JANUARY 13, 2020 THROUGH MAY 21, 2020**

## ACTION ON HOUSE BILLS CARRIED OVER FROM 2019 SESSION

2002 Died, Committee 2003 Died, Committee 2004 Died, Committee 2005 Died, Calendar 2006 Died, Sen Committee 2008 Died, Committee 2009 Died, Committee 2010 Died, Committee 2011 Died, Committee 2012 Died, Committee 2013 Died, Committee 2014 Died, Committee 2015 Died, Committee 2016 Died, Committee 2017 Died, Committee S Sub for Sub 2018 Signed, Eff Dt. 7/1/20 2019 Died, Committee 2020 Died. Committee 2021 Died, Committee 2022 Died, Committee 2023 Died, Committee 2024 Died, Committee 2025 Died, Committee 2026 Died, Committee 2027 Died, Committee 2028 Died, Committee 2029 Died. Committee 2030 Died, Committee 2032 Died, Committee 2034 Signed, Eff Dt. 6/11/20 2036 Died. Committee 2037 Died, Calendar

2040 Died, Committee 2041 Died, Sen Committee 2042 Died, Calendar 2043 Died, Calendar 2046 Died, Committee 2047 Died, Committee 2048 Died, Sen Committee 2051 Died, Committee 2052 Died, Committee 2053 Stricken, Rule 1507 2054 Vetoed, Sustained 2055 Died, Committee 2056 Died. Committee 2057 Died, Committee 2058 Died, Committee 2059 Died, Committee 2060 Died, Committee 2061 Died, Committee 2062 Died, Committee S Sub 2063 Died, Sen Calendar 2065 Died, Committee 2066 Died, Sen Committee 2067 Died, Committee 2068 Died, Committee 2069 Died, Committee 2074 Died, Committee 2075 Died, Committee 2077 Died, Committee 2078 Died, Committee 2080 Died, Committee 2081 Died, Committee 2082 Died, Sen Committee 2086 Died, Committee 2089 Died, Committee 2090 Died, Committee 2091 Died, Committee 2092 Died, Committee 2093 Died, Calendar 2094 Died, Committee 2095 Died, Committee 2096 Died. Committee 2098 Died, Committee 2100 Died, Committee 2102 Died, Committee 2105 Died, Sen Committee 2106 Died, Committee 2107 Died, Committee 2108 Died, Committee 2109 Died, Committee 2110 Died, Committee 2111 Died, Committee 2113 Died, Committee 2114 Died, Committee 2115 Died, Committee 2116 Died, Committee 2117 Died, Committee S Sub 2118 Died, Calendar 2120 Died, Committee 2121 Died, Committee 2122 Died, Committee 2124 Died, Committee 2128 Died, Committee 2129 Died, Committee 2130 Died, Committee 2131 Died, Committee

2132 Died, Committee	2192 Died, Committee	2253 Died, Committee
2133 Died, Sen Committee	2193 Died, Committee	2254 Died, Committee
2134 Died, Committee	2194 Died, Committee	2255 Died, Committee
2135 Died, Committee	2195 Died, Committee	2256 Died, Committee
2137 Signed, Eff Dt. 7/1/20	2196 Died, Committee	2257 Died, Committee
2138 Died, Committee	2198 Died, Sen Committee	2258 Died, Committee
2139 Died, Committee	2199 Died, Sen Committee	2259 Died, Committee
2141 Died, Committee	2200 Died, Committee	2260 Died, Committee
2142 Died, Committee	2202 Died, Committee	2261 Died, Committee
2143 Died, Sen Committee	2204 Died, Committee	2262 Died, Committee
2145 Died, Committee	2205 Died, Committee	2263 Died, Committee
2146 Died, Committee	2206 Died, Sen Committee	2264 Died, Committee
2147 Died, Sen Committee	2207 Died, Committee	2265 Died, Committee
2148 Died, Committee	2210 Died, Committee	2266 Died, Committee
2149 Died, Committee	2212 Died, Calendar	2267 Died, Committee
2150 Died, Committee	2216 Died, Committee	2268 Died, Committee
2151 Died, Committee	2217 Died, Committee	2269 Died, Committee
2152 Died, Committee	2218 Died, Committee	2271 Died, Committee
2153 Died, Committee	2219 Died, Committee	2272 Died, Committee
S Sub	2220 Died, Committee	2273 Died, Committee
2154 Died, Sen Calendar	2221 Died, Committee	2274 Died, Sen Committee
2155 Died, Committee	2222 Died, Committee	2275 Died, Committee
2156 Died, Committee	2224 Died, Committee	2276 Died, Committee
2157 Died, Committee	2226 Died, Committee	2277 Died, Committee
2158 Died, Committee	2227 Died, Committee	2278 Died, Committee
2159 Died, Committee	2228 Died, Calendar	2279 Died, Sen Committee
2160 Died, Conf	2229 Died, Committee	2280 Died, Committee
2161 Died, Committee	2230 Died, Committee	2281 Died, Sen Committee
2163 Died, Committee	2231 Died, Committee	2282 Died, Committee
2164 Died, Committee	2232 Died, Committee	2283 Died, Committee
2165 Died, Committee	2233 Died, Committee	2284 Died, Committee
2166 Died, Committee	2234 Died, Committee	2285 Died, Committee
2168 Signed, Eff Dt. 4/9/20	2235 Died, Calendar	2286 Died, Committee
2169 Died, Committee	2236 Died, Committee	2287 Died, Committee
2173 Died, Committee	2237 Died, Committee	2288 Died, Committee
2175 Died, Sen Committee 2175 Died, Committee	2239 Died, Sen Committee	2289 Died, Committee
2176 Died, Committee	2240 Died, Committee	2291 Died, Committee
2179 Died, Committee	2241 Died, Committee	2292 Died, Committee
Sub		
	2242 Died, Committee	2293 Died, Committee
2180 Died, Committee 2181 Died, Committee	2243 Died, Sen Committee S Sub	2294 Died, Committee
		2295 Died, Committee
2182 Died, Committee	2244 Died, Sen Calendar	2296 Died, Committee 2297 Died, Committee
2183 Died, Committee	2245 Died, Committee	
2184 Died, Committee	2246 Signed, Eff Dt. 6/11/20	2298 Died, Committee
2185 Died, Sen Committee	2247 Died, Committee	2299 Died, Committee
2186 Died, Committee	2249 Died, Committee	2300 Died, Committee
2187 Died, Committee	2250 Died, Committee	2301 Died, Committee
2189 Died, Committee	2251 Died, Committee	2302 Died, Committee
2190 Died, Committee	2252 Died, Committee	2303 Died, Committee

2304 Died, Committee	2344 Died, Committee	2384 Died, Committee
2305 Died, Committee	2345 Died, Calendar	2385 Died, Calendar
2306 Died, Committee	S Sub	2386 Died, Committee
2307 Died, Sen Committee	2346 Died, Sen Calendar	2387 Died, Committee
2308 Died, Committee	2347 Died, Committee	2388 Died, Calendar
2309 Died, Committee	2348 Died, Committee	2389 Died, Sen Committee
2310 Died, Committee	2349 Died, Committee	2390 Died, Committee
2311 Died, Committee	2350 Died, Committee	2391 Died, Committee
2312 Died, Committee	2351 Died, Committee	2392 Died, Calendar
2313 Died, Committee	2352 Died, Committee	2393 Died, Committee
2314 Died, Sen Committee	Sub	2394 Died, Committee
2315 Died, Committee	2354 Died, Committee	Sub
2316 Died, Committee	2355 Died, Committee	2395 Died, Calendar
2317 Died, Committee	2356 Died, Committee	S Sub
2318 Died, Committee	2357 Died, Committee	2396 Died, Sen Calendar
2319 Died, Committee	2358 Died, Committee	2397 Died, Committee
2320 Died, Committee	2359 Died, Committee	2398 Died, Committee
2321 Died, Committee	2360 Died, Sen Committee	2399 Died, Calendar
2322 Died, Committee	2361 Died, Calendar	Sub
2323 Died, Committee	2362 Died, Committee	2400 Died, Calendar
2324 Died, Committee	2363 Died, Committee	2401 Died, Calendar
2325 Died, Committee	2364 Died, Committee	2402 Died, Sen Committee
2326 Died, Sen Committee	2366 Died, Committee	2403 Died, Calendar
2327 Died, Committee	2367 Died, Committee	2404 Died, Committee
2328 Died, Committee	2368 Died, Committee	2405 Died, Committee
2329 Died, Committee	2369 Died, Sen Committee	2406 Died, Committee
2330 Died, Committee	2370 Died, Committee	2407 Died, Committee
2331 Died, Committee	2371 Died, Sen Committee	2408 Died, Committee
2332 Died, Committee	2372 Died, Sen Committee	2409 Died, Committee
2333 Stricken, Rule 1507	2373 Died, Calendar	2410 Died, Committee
2334 Died, Committee	2374 Died, Committee	2411 Died, Calendar
2335 Died, Committee	2375 Died, Committee	2412 Died, Committee
2336 Died, Sen Committee	2376 Died, Committee	2413 Died, Committee
2337 Died, Calendar	2377 Died, Committee	2414 Died, Committee
2338 Died, Committee	2378 Died, Committee	2415 Died, Committee
2339 Died, Committee	2379 Died, Committee	2416 Died, Calendar
2340 Died, Calendar	2380 Died, Calendar	2417 Died, Committee
2341 Died, Committee	2381 Died, Committee	2418 Died, Committee
2342 Died, Committee	2382 Died, Committee	2419 Died, Calendar
2343 Died, Committee	2383 Died, Calendar	

# NUMERICAL SCHEDULE OF HOUSE BILLS 2020 SESSION

2420 Died, Sen Calendar	2423 Died, Committee	2426 Died, Sen Committee
2421 Died, Committee	2424 Died, Committee	2427 Died, Committee
2422 Died, Committee	2425 Died, Committee	2428 Died, Sen Committee

2429 Died, Sen Committee	2478 Died, Committee	2523 Died, Committee
2430 Died, Committee	2479 Died, Sen Calendar	2524 Died, Sen Calendar
2431 Stricken, Rule 1507	S Sub	2525 Died, Committee
2432 Died, Sen Calendar	2480 Died, Sen Calendar	2526 Stricken, Rule 1507
2433 Died, Committee	2481 Died, Committee	2527 Died, Calendar
2434 Died, Committee	2482 Died, Committee	2528 Died, Sen Committee
2435 Died, Committee	2483 Died, Committee	2529 Died, Committee
2436 Died, Committee	,	2530 Died, Committee
*	2484 Stricken, Rule 1507	
2437 Died, Calendar	2485 Stricken, Rule 1507	2531 Stricken, Rule 1507
2438 Died, Sen Committee	2486 Died, Committee	2532 Died, Committee
2439 Died, Calendar	S Sub	2533 Stricken, Rule 1507
2440 Died, Committee	2487 Died, Sen Calendar	2534 Died, Committee
2441 Died, Calendar	2488 Stricken, Rule 1507	2535 Died, Committee
2442 Died, Committee	2489 Died, Committee	Sub
2443 Died, Committee	S Sub	2536 Died, Calendar
2444 Died, Committee	2490 Died, Sen Calendar	2537 Died, Committee
2445 Died, Committee	2491 Died, Committee	2538 Died, Calendar
2446 Died, Committee	2492 Died, Committee	2539 Died, Committee
2447 Died, Sen Calendar	2493 Stricken, Rule 1507	S Sub
2448 Died, Sen Committee	2494 Stricken, Rule 1507	2540 Died, Sen Calendar
2449 Died, Sen Committee	2495 Died, Sen Committee	2541 Died, Calendar
2450 Stricken, Rule 1507	2496 Died, Sen Committee	2542 Died, Committee
2451 Died, Sen Calendar	2497 Died, Committee	2543 Died, Committee
2452 Died, Sen Calendar	2498 Died, Committee	2544 Died, Committee
2453 Died, Committee	2499 Died, Committee	2545 Died, Committee
2454 Died, Sen Committee	2500 Died, Sen Committee	2546 Died, Sen Committee
2455 Died, Committee	2501 Died, Sen Calendar	2547 Died, Sen Committee
2456 Died, Sen Committee	2502 Died, Committee	2548 Died, Sen Committee
2457 Died, Committee	2503 Died, Sen Committee	2549 Stricken, Rule 1507
2458 Died, Committee	2504 Died, Committee	2550 Stricken, Rule 1507
2459 Died, Committee	2505 Died, Committee	2551 Died, Committee
2460 Died, Committee	2506 Died, Sen Calendar	2552 Died, Committee
2461 Died, Committee	2507 Died, Sen Calendar	2553 Died, Committee
2462 Died, Sen Calendar	2508 Died, Committee	2554 Died, Sen Committee
2463 Died, Sen Committee	2509 Died, Sen Calendar	2555 Died, Committee
2464 Died, Sen Calendar	2510 Vetoed, Sustained	2556 Died, Committee
2465 Died, Calendar	2511 Died, Committee	2557 Died, Committee
2466 Died, Conf	2512 Died, Committee	2558 Died, Committee
2467 Died, Sen Committee	2513 Died, Committee	2559 Stricken, Rule 1507
2468 Stricken, Rule 1507	2514 Died, Committee	2560 Stricken, Rule 1507
2469 Died, Sen Committee	S Sub	2561 Stricken, Rule 1507
2470 Died, Sen Committee	2515 Died, Sen Calendar	2562 Stricken, Rule 1507
2471 Died, Committee	2516 Died, Sen Committee	2563 Died, Calendar
2472 Died, Committee	2517 Died, Calendar	2564 Died, Committee
2473 Stricken, Rule 1507	2518 Died, Sen Committee	2565 Died, Committee
2474 Stricken, Rule 1507	2519 Died, Committee	2566 Died, Committee
2474 Stricken, Rule 1507 2475 Stricken, Rule 1507	2520 Died, Committee	2567 Died, Committee
2476 Died, Committee	2521 Died, Committee	2568 Died, Committee
*	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
2477 Died, Committee	2522 Died, Calendar	2569 Died, Committee

2570 Died, Committee	2616 Died
2571 Died, Sen Committee	2617 Died
2572 Died, Committee	2618 Died
2573 Died, Committee	S Sub
2574 Died, Committee	2619 Veto
2575 Died, Sen Calendar	2620 Died
2576 Died, Calendar	2621 Stric
2577 Died, Committee	2622 Died
2578 Died, Committee	2623 Died
2579 Died, Committee	2624 Died
2580 Died, Committee	2625 Died
2581 Died, Committee	2626 Died
2582 Died, Committee	2627 Died
2583 Died, Sen Committee	2628 Died
2584 Died, Committee	2629 Died
2585 Signed, Eff Dt. 7/1/20	2630 Died
2586 Died, Committee	2631 Died
2587 Died, Sen Committee	2632 Died
2588 Died, Calendar	2633 Died
2589 Died, Committee	2634 Died
2590 Died, Committee	2635 Died
2591 Died, Committee	2636 Died
2592 Stricken, Rule 1507	2637 Died
2593 Died, Committee	2638 Died
2594 Died, Committee	2639 Diec
2595 Signed, Eff Dt. 7/1/20	2640 Died
2596 Died, Sen Committee	2641 Died
Sub	Sub
2597 Died, Calendar	2642 Died
Sub	2643 Diec
2598 Stricken, Rule 1507	2644 Died
2599 Died, Committee	2645 Died
	2646 Died
2600 Died, Committee	
2601 Died, Committee	2647 Died
2602 Died, Committee	2648 Died
2603 Died, Committee	2649 Died
2604 Died, Committee	2650 Died
2605 Died, Committee	2651 Died
2606 Died, Calendar	2652 Died
2607 Died, Calendar	2653 Died
2608 Stricken, Rule 1507	2654 Died
2609 Died, Committee	2655 Died
2610 Died, Committee	2656 Died
2611 Died, Committee	2657 Died
2612 Died, Committee	2658 Died
2613 Died, Committee	2659 Died
2614 Died, Committee	2660 Died
2615 Died, Committee	2661 Died

2616 Died, Committee
2617 Died, Committee
2618 Died, Sen Calendar
S Sub
2619 Vetoed, Sustained
2620 Died, Committee
2621 Stricken, Rule 1507
2622 Died, Committee
2623 Died, Committee
2624 Died, Committee
2625 Died, Committee
2626 Died, Committee
2627 Died, Committee
2628 Died, Committee
2629 Died, Committee
2630 Died, Committee
2631 Died, Committee
2632 Died, Committee
2633 Died, Committee
2634 Died, Committee
2635 Died, Committee
2636 Died, Committee
2637 Died, Committee
2638 Died, Committee
2639 Died, Committee
2640 Died, Committee
2641 Died, Committee
Sub
2642 Died, Calendar
2643 Died, Committee
2644 Died, Committee
2645 Died, Committee
2646 Died, Sen Calendar
2647 Died, Committee
2648 Died, Committee
2649 Died, Committee
2650 Died, Calendar
2651 Died, Committee
2652 Died, Committee
2653 Died, Committee
2654 Died, Committee
2655 Died, Committee
2656 Died, Committee
2657 Died, Committee
2658 Died, Committee
2659 Died, Committee
2660 Died, Committee
2661 Died, Committee
2001 Died, Committee

2662 Died, Committee 2663 Died, Committee 2664 Died, Committee 2665 Died, Committee 2666 Died, Committee 2667 Died, Committee 2668 Died, Committee 2669 Died, Committee 2670 Died, Committee 2671 Died, Committee 2672 Died, Committee 2673 Died, Committee 2674 Died, Committee 2675 Stricken, Rule 1507 2676 Died, Committee 2677 Died, Committee 2678 Died, Committee 2679 Died, Committee 2680 Died, Committee 2681 Died, Committee 2682 Died, Committee 2683 Died, Committee 2684 Died, Committee 2685 Died, Committee 2686 Died, Committee 2687 Died, Calendar 2688 Stricken, Rule 1507 2689 Died, Sen Committee 2690 Stricken, Rule 1507 2691 Died, Committee 2692 Died, Committee 2693 Died, Committee 2694 Died, Committee 2695 Died, Sen Committee 2696 Died, Committee 2697 Died, Committee 2698 Died, Committee 2699 Died, Sen Committee 2700 Died, Committee 2701 Died, Committee 2702 Vetoed, Sustained 2703 Died, Committee 2704 Died, Committee 2705 Died, Committee 2706 Died, Committee 2707 Died, Committee 2708 Died, Sen Committee 2709 Died, Committee

2931

2710 Died, Committee	2723 Died, Committee	2736 Died, Committee
2711 Died, Committee	2724 Died, Committee	2737 Died, Committee
2712 Died, Committee	2725 Died, Committee	2738 Died, Committee
2713 Died, Sen Calendar	2726 Died, Calendar	2739 Died, Committee
2714 Died, Committee	2727 Died, Committee	2740 Died, Committee
2715 Died, Committee	2728 Died, Committee	2741 Died, Committee
2716 Died, Committee	2729 Died, Committee	2742 Died, Committee
2717 Died, Committee	2730 Died, Committee	2743 Died, Committee
2718 Died, Committee	2731 Died, Committee	2744 Died, Committee
2719 Died, Committee	2732 Died, Committee	2745 Died, Committee
2720 Died, Committee	2733 Died, Committee	2746 Died, Committee
2721 Died, Committee	2734 Died, Committee	2747 Died, Committee
2722 Died, Calendar	2735 Died, Committee	

# ACTION ON HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS CARRIED OVER FROM 2019 SESSION

5001 Died, Committee	5006 Died, Committee	5010 Died, Committee
5003 Died, Committee	5007 Died, Committee	5012 Died, Committee
5004 Died, Committee	5008 Died, Committee	5013 Died, Committee
5005 Died, Committee	5009 Died, Calendar	

# NUMERICAL SCHEDULE OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS, 2020 SESSION

5016 Died, Committee	5020 Died, Sen Committee	5024 Died, Committee
5017 Enrolled	5021 Died, Committee	5025 Enrolled
5018 Enrolled	5022 Died, Committee	
5019 Died, Calendar	5023 Enrolled	

## NUMERICAL SCHEDULE OF HOUSE RESOLUTIONS, 2020 SESSION

6025 Enrolled	6031 Enrolled	6037 Enrolled
6026 Enrolled	6032 Enrolled	6038 Enrolled
6027 Enrolled	6033 Enrolled	6039 Enrolled
6028 Enrolled	6034 Died, Calendar	6040 Died, Calendar
6029 Enrolled	6035 Enrolled	6041 Enrolled
6030 Enrolled	6036 Enrolled	

# ACTION ON SENATE BILLS CARRIED OVER FROM 2019 SESSION

27 Passed	H Sub	164 Died Committee
_,		164 Died, Committee
32 Died, Committee	125 Died, Calendar	173 CCR Adopted
42 Died, Committee	Sub	178 Died, Committee
45 Died, Committee	126 Died, Committee	210 Died, Committee
49 Died, Committee	131 Died, Committee	218 Died, Committee
58 Died, Committee	134 Died, Committee	Sub
Sub	135 Died, Committee	219 Died, Committee
62 Died, Committee	140 Died, Committee	221 Died, Calendar
66 CCR Adopted	H Sub	225 Died, Committee
Sub	142 P Am, Sen Con	228 Died, Committee
75 Died, Committee	150 Died, Committee	230 Died, Calendar
99 Died, Calendar	152 Died, Committee	232 Died, Committee
H Sub	153 Died, Committee	H Sub
102 P Am, Sen Con	155 Passed	235 Died, Calendar
104 Died, Committee	157 Died, Committee	
108 Died, Committee	162 Died, Committee	

# NUMERCIAL SCHEDULE OF SENATE BILLS, 2020 SESSION

251 Died, Calendar	294 Died, Calendar	373 Stricken, Rule 1507
253 Died, Committee	295 Died, Committee	374 Died, Committee
254 Died, Committee	297 Died, Committee	375 Died, Committee
255 Died, Committee	302 Died, Committee	377 Died, Committee
256 Died, Committee	304 Stricken, Rule 1507	380 Died, Committee
258 Died, Committee	305 Stricken, Rule 1507	381 Died, Committee
262 Died, Calendar	306 Stricken, Rule 1507	382 Stricken, Rule 1507
264 Died, Committee	307 Stricken, Rule 1507	383 Died, Committee
265 Died, Calendar	308 Died, Committee	384 Stricken, Rule 1507
266 Died, Calendar	309 Died, Committee	386 Died, Committee
267 Died, Committee	315 Died, Committee	390 Died, Committee
270 Stricken, Rule 1507	319 Died, Committee	402 Died, Committee
271 Stricken, Rule 1507	322 Died, Committee	404 Died, Committee
272 Died, Committee	326 Stricken, Rule 1507	405 Stricken, Rule 1507
275 Stricken, Rule 1507	331 Died, Committee	406 Died, Committee
277 Stricken, Rule 1507	334 Died, Committee	409 Died, Committee
283 Died, Committee	335 Died, Committee	417 Died, Committee
284 Stricken, Rule 1507	337 Died, Committee	420 Stricken, Rule 1507
285 Stricken, Rule 1507	339 Died, Committee	423 Died, Committee
286 Died, Committee	342 Died, Committee	424 Died, Committee
287 Died, Committee	345 Died, Committee	427 Died, Calendar
288 Died, Committee	346 Died, Committee	432 Died, Committee
289 Stricken, Rule 1507	354 Stricken, Rule 1507	433 Died, Committee
290 Stricken, Rule 1507	355 Died, Committee	454 Died, Committee
292 Stricken, Rule 1507	358 Died, Committee	474 Died, Committee
293 Died, Committee	371 Died, Committee	491 Died, Committee

#### ACTION ON SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS CARRIED OVER FROM 2019 SESSION

1613 Not adopted

# NUMERICAL SCHEDULE OF SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS, 2020 SESSION

1614 Died, Calendar 1615 Adopted

#### **LEGEND**

CCR Conference Committee Report Conf Comm Conference Committee

Conf Comm Conference Co
Con Concur

Eff Dt Effective Date

H House

P Am Passed as amended

Sub Substitute Sen Senate

# Summary of Actions on House Bills and Resolutions $2020 \; Session$

#### HOUSE BILLS

House bills introduced in the 2020 session	
House bills carried over from 2019 session	
House bills passed both houses and presented to Governor	11
House bills signed by Governor7	
House bills signed with line item vetoes0	
House bills vetoed by Governor4	
House bills returned unsigned0	
House bills killed or died	672
House bills killed in House	
House bills that died on House Calendar48	
House bills that died in House committees504	
House bills killed in Senate0	
House bills that died on Senate Calendar27	
House bills that died in Senate committees62	
House bills that died in conference	
Total	683
House Concurrent Resolutions	
House concurrent resolutions introduced in 2020 session	
House concurrent resolutions carried over from 2019 session	15
House concurrent resolutions adopted by both houses8	
House concurrent resolutions that died in committee14	
House concurrent resolutions that died on calendar2	
House concurrent resolutions killed in House0	
House concurrent resolutions that died in Senate Committee1	
House concurrent resolutions that died on Senate Calendar0	
House concurrent resolutions killed in Senate0	
Subtotal	.25
Total	25
House Resolutions	
House resolutions introduced in 2020 session	17
House resolutions adopted15	
House resolutions that died in committee0	
House resolutions that died on calendar2	
House resolutions killed0	
Subtotal	.17
Total	17

#### APPOINTMENTS, GUESTS, COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS, IN THE 2020 HOUSE JOURNAL

#### APPOINTMENTS

Of Susan Kannarr, chief clerk, p. 1923 Of Foster Chisholm, sergeant-at-arms, p. 1923 Of Rev. Eunice Brubaker, chaplain, p. 1923 Committee assignments, pp. 1933-1935.

#### SPECIAL GUESTS

- Speaker Ryckman introduced Dr. Sheryl Beard, President of the Kansas Academy of Family Physicians, the group that sponsors the doctor of the day program, p. 1930.
- Rep. Cox introduced Reis Miller, 2019 winner of the SkillsUSA Culinary National Championship. Joining us are his mother Linda Miller and his father Matt Miller, Matt Ziegenhorn, Entrepreneurial Leadership Instructor, and Justin Hoffman, Culinary Director, p. 1947.
- Rep. Rahjes introduced members of the Kansas Agriculture and Rural Leadership Program, known as KARL, p. 1948.
- Reps. Bishop and Hoheisel introduced Wichita City Council members who were present as part of the 2019 All-America City Award, p. 1958.
- Rep. Dietrich introduced the 2019 6A State Champion Cross Country teams: Washburn Rural High School boys and Mill Valley High School girls, p. 1961.
- Rep. Collins introduced Deputy Kurt Grotheer, named Deputy Sheriff of the Year by the Kansas Sheriff's Association, p. 1974.
- Rep. Huebert introduced the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year, Tabatha Rosproy, a preschool, early childhood teacher at Winfield Early Learning Center in the Winfield School District, and the rest of the Teacher of the Year Team: Kara Belew, Amy Hillman, Shawn Hornung, Stefanie Lane, Julie Loevenstein, Lara McDonald, Melissa Molteni, pp. 1980-1981.
- Rep. Susan Ruiz introduced Latina leaders visiting the Capitol, Delia Garcia, Secretary of Labor and Delores Huerta, the co-founder of the United Farm Workers of America, who received the Presidential Medal of Freedom, p. 2008.
- Rep. Highland introduced the Wabaunsee Lady Chargers Volleyball State 2A Champions for 2019, pp. 2040-2041.
- Rep. Humphries and Rep. Ballard introduced members of the JAG-K organization, p. 2044-2045.
- Rep. Highberger introduced members of the League of Women Voters who were celebrating the 100<sup>th</sup> Anniversary of the group, pp. 2064-2065.
- Rep. Carlson introduced Anthony Meals, agriculture teacher at USD 384, Blue Valley-Randolph, winner of the National Association of Agricultural Educators Outstanding Early Career Teacher Award, p. 2080.
- Rep. Pittman introduced members of Leavenworth High School's Jr. ROTC program, the national winners of Raider competition, p. 2081.
- Rep. Helmer introduced members of the Winfield High School 2019 National Champions for Skills USA in Engineering, Technology & Design, p. 2081.
- Rep. Schreiber introduced members of the 8<sup>th</sup> grade class in Americus, USD 251 North Lyon county who started the Never Let Go charitable fund for families of children

- with cancer, pp. 2086-2087.
- Rep. Collins introduced the 2019 Class 3A softball champions, Frontenac High School Lady Raiders softball team, p. 2093.
- Rep. Thompson introduced members of Kansas FFA and its officers, p. 2115-2116.
- Rep. Seiwert introduced Mrs. Barbara Osborn and her granddaughter, Amber Kerschen, as well as Dale Anderson, all of whom were affected by the use of Agent Orange during the Vietnam War,
- p. 2125.
- Rep. Concannon introduced Chad Lorenz, 2018 Sunflower State Games Athlete of the Year and National Congress of State Games Adult Male Athlete of the Year, who competed in long distance running even though he has a history of heart procedures, p. 2146.
- Rep. Holscher introduced Ken Thomas, teacher, and the Blue Valley Northwest High School Civics "We the People" team, 2181.
- Rep. Dietrich introduced representatives of the Parents as Teacher group, p. 2184.
- Rep. Schreiber recognized visitors representing businesses that were honored as Kansas Small Businesses, pp. 2189-2190.
- Rep. Pittman introduced Spencer Angell of Olathe and Anna Hastings of Olathe South, who are student officers of the International Thespians in recognition of Theater in our Schools Advocacy Day, p. 2202.
- Rep. Neighbor introduced Mrs. Becky Tate of Shawnee Mission North High School, winner of the 2019 National Yearbook Advisor of the Year, p. 2206.
- Rep. Newland introduced Ben Cutler, who is providing college tuition to graduates of Neodesha High School, p. 2207.
- Rep. Humphries introduced Carly Bowden, a 2019-2020 Milken Educator Award winner, p. 2238.

#### COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

During the interim since adjournment of the 2019 Regular Session of the Legislature:

- From Derek Schmidt, Kansas Attorney General, pursuant to K.S.A. 22a-243, the 2019 annual report of the Kansas State Child Death Review Board.
- From James R. Hubbard, Attorney, in accordance with the requirements of K.S.A. 19-5005(e), the Johnson County Educational Research Triangle Authority, its Annual Report concerning the financial activities of the Authority.
- From Ethan Belshe, Legislative Liaison, Kansas Department for Children and Families, the
- Crossover Youth Working Group Interim Report.
- From Megan Milner, Director of Community Based Services, Kansas Department of Corrections-Juvenile Services, the 2019 Kansas Juvenile Justice Oversight Committee Annual Report.
- From Julie Menghini, Communications Director/Legislative Director, Kansas Department of Labor, the 2019 Economic Report.
- From the Governmental Ethics Commission, the 2019 Annual Report.
- From Jeff Zmuda, Acting Secretary of Corrections, the Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Report.
- From the Kansas Criminal Justice Reform Commission, the report to the 2020 Kansas Legislature.

From Bob Page, President and Chief Executive Officer, The University of Kansas Hospital Authority, in accordance with KSA 76-3312(p), the 2019 Annual Report.

From Clark Shultz, Executive Director, Health Care Stabilization Fund, in accordance with 2019 HB 2119, the Report to the 2020 Kansas Legislature from the Kansas HealthCare Stabilization Fund Board of Governors.

From Scott W. Miller, Director of Investments, in compliance with K.S.A. 75-4222(h), the Annual Report of the Pooled Money Investment Board for Fiscal Year 2019.

From the Office of Governor Laura Kelly:

Executive Directive No. 19-502, Authorizing the Establishment of a Federal Fund.

Executive Directive No. 19-503, Authorizing Personnel Transactions.

Executive Directive No. 19-504, Authorizing Personnel Transactions.

Executive Directive No. 19-505, Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

Executive Directive No. 19-506, Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

Executive Directive No. 19-507, Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

Executive Directive No. 19-508, Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

Executive Directive No. 19-509, Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

Executive Directive No. 19-510, Authorizing Personnel Transactions and Authorizing Expenditure of Federal Funds.

From Earl Lewis, Acting Director, Kansas Water Office, in accordance with K.S.A. 74-99f05, the State of Kansas Geographic Information Systems Policy Board FY 2019 Annual Report for July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019.

Executive Order No. 19-09, Promoting cooperation in economic development.

Executive Order No. 19-10, Establishing the Governor's Council on Medicaid Expansion.

#### During the 2020 Legislative Session:

Executive Order No. 19-11, Establishing the Governor's Council on Tax Reform, pp. 1924-1925.

From Dwight D. Keen, Commission Chairman and Ryan A. Hoffman, Director, Conservation Division, Kansas Corporation Commission; Abandoned Oil & Gas Well Status Annual Report 2020 and Oil & Gas Remediation Site Status Annual Report 2020, p. 1925

From Herman T. Jones, Superintendent, Kansas Highway Patrol; pursuant to KSA 60-4117, Annual Report regarding State Forfeiture Funds, December 2018 - November 2019, p. 1925.

Oath of office for Stephanie Yeager, appointed to replace Brandon Whipple to represent the 96<sup>th</sup> District, p. 1931.

From Derek Schmidt, Kansas Attorney General, pursuant to K.S.A.74-7316; 2019 annual report of the Crime Victims Compensation Board, p. 1932.

From Derek Schmidt, Kansas Attorney General, pursuant to K.S.A. 75-723; 2019 annual report of the Abuse, Neglect and Exploitation Unit, p. 1932.

From From Elaine Frisbie, Kansas Board of Regents, in accordance with KSA 75-7226, the annual report on the KAN-ED Fund, p. 1951.

From Elaine Frisbie, Kansas Board of Regents, in accordance with state law, the annual report on several of the student financial aid programs administered by the Kansas Board of Regents, p. 1951.

From Elaine Frisbie, Kansas Board of Regents, in accordance with KSA 74-32,402, the annual report on the Postsecondary Technical Education Authority, p. 1951.

- From Jeff Zmuda, Acting Secretary, Kansas Department of Corrections, pursuant to K.S.A. 75-52,148, report of Crimes Committed by Sex Offenders While in Custody, p. 1951.
- From Connie Owen, Chair, Kansas Water Authority, 2020 Annual Report to the Governor and
- Legislature, p. 1967.
- From Kirk D. Thompson, Director, Kansas Bureau of Investigation, in compliance with K.S.A. 60-4117, regarding the status of the KBI State Forfeiture Fund, p. 1967.
- From Jake LaTurner, Kansas State Treasurer; 2019 Annual Report to the Kansas Legislature, p. 2008.
- From Laura Howard, Secretary, Kansas Department for Children and Families; pursuant to K.S.A. 65-176, results of DCF's inspections of state children's institutions, and recommendations for insuring proper sanitary conditions and adequate health supervision at those facilities, p. 2020.
- From Derek Schmidt, Kansas Attorney General, as required by K.S.A. 60-4117(d)(1); Annual Report for Attorney General's State Medicaid Fraud Forfeiture Fund, p. 2032.
- From Earl Lewis, Director, as per K.S.A. 82a-1307; Kansas Water Marketing Program water supply contracts, p. 2032.
- From Dave Heinemann, Chair, Board of Directors, Kansas Guardianship Program; 2019 Annual Report, p. 2032.
- From Martha K. Gabehart, Executive Director, Kansas Commission on Disability Concerns, Annual Report FY 2019, p. 2071.
- From Kansas Department for Aging and Disability Services, Care Annual Report for State Fiscal Year 2019, p. 2094.
- From Laura N. Jurgensen, JD, Assistant Director, Special Education and Title Services, Kansas State Department of Education; pursuant to K.S.A. 72-6143(g), information relating to School Safety and Security; and 2020 Memo based on 2018 -2019 Data.pdf; Memo Based on 2017-18 Data.pdf, p. 2182.
- From Delia Garcia, Secretary, Kansas Department of Labor, 2019 Annual Report.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE GOVERNOR

- State of the State address by Governor Laura Kelly, pp. 1937-1946.
- Executive Directive No. 20-511, concerning authorizing expenditure of federal funds, p. 1957.
- Executive Order No. 20-01, Establishing the court of appeals nominating commission, p. 1976.
- Executive Reorganization Order No. 44, creating the Kansas Department of Human Services, pp. 1986-1999.
- Executive Reorganization Order No. 45, concerning the State Employee Health Plan and the State Self Insurance Fund moving into the Department of Administration, pp.1999-2005.
- Executive Reorganization Order No. 46, establishing the Energy Office as a separate, independent entity, pp. 2005-2008.
- Executive Order No. 20-02, concerning reorganizing the Kansas Early Childhood Advisory Council, p. 2032.
- Executive Directive No. 20-512, concerning authorizing personnel transactions, p.

2042.

- Executive Order No. 20-03, concerning extending states of local disaster emergency relating to COVID-19, p. 2265.
- Executive Order No. 20-04, concerning temporarily prohibiting mass gatherings to limit the spread of COVID-19, p. 2265.
- Executive Order No. 20-05, concerning temporarily prohibiting utility and internet disconnects, p. 2265.
- Executive Order No. 20-06, concerning temporarily prohibiting evictions and foreclosures, p. 2265.

## **AUTHOR INDEX**

This index includes all legislation sponsored by House Members, House committees, Joint Committees, Select Committees and Special Committees. Members with an asterisk resigned either prior to or during the 2020 session but sponsored bills that were still available for consideration.

#### Alcala, John

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2161 Creating the Kansas animal abuse offender repository.
- HB 2181 Disposition of seized firearms by law enforcement agencies.
- HB 2216 Establishing state employee student loan repayment assistance act.
- HB 2219 Requiring bodies subject to the Kansas open meetings act to record proceedings and make the recordings available to the public.
- HB 2222 Prohibiting food establishments from providing single-use plastic straws to consumers.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HCR 5016 Urging Congress to provide healthcare to deported veterans.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Amyx, Mike

- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2517 Property tax abatement for agricultural improvement destroyed or substantially destroyed by a natural disaster.
- HB 2545 Purchases of property and construction of buildings by townships are subject to a protest petition and election procedure.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Arnberger, Tory

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Awerkamp, Francis

- HB 2196 Creating a presumption in favor of shared parenting time for temporary orders.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Baker, Dave

- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2528 Providing for all vehicles more than 35 years old to qualify as an antique vehicle.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Ballard, Barbara

- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Barker, John

- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2614 Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Benson, David

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2424 Police officer-involved death of a person; mandatory investigation; report open if no criminal charges; Kansas open records act change.
- HB 2491 Providing for adjusted income tax rates and sales tax exemptions for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Bergquist, Emil

- HB 2116 Allowing taxpayers to attend BOTA hearings by use of audio or video electronic communication.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2196 Creating a presumption in favor of shared parenting time for temporary orders.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HB 2528 Providing for all vehicles more than 35 years old to qualify as an antique vehicle.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights

- for all human life.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Bishop, Elizabeth

- HB 2005 Allowing an individual to itemize deductions in Kansas despite not itemizing on their federal return.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2181 Disposition of seized firearms by law enforcement agencies.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2565 Concerning employment security law, relating to the number of weeks a claimant is eligible for benefits.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6027 Congratulating and commending Wichita as a 2019 All-America City award
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Blex, Doug

- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2528 Providing for all vehicles more than 35 years old to qualify as an antique vehicle.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2589 Requiring student athletes to participate in school athletics based upon their biological gender at birth.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### **Burris**, Jesse

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## **Burroughs, Tom**

- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2300 Providing for the back the badge license plate.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Capps, Michael

- HB 2025 Including a person who has filed a petition for adoption in the definition of an interested party in the child in need of care code.
- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2285 Creating the Kansas legal tender act; providing for sales exemption from and modification for sales of specie legal tender.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2589 Requiring student athletes to participate in school athletics based upon their biological gender at birth.
- HB 2590 Allowing law enforcement to have access to certain data from the department for children and families.
- HB 2591 Allow members of the house of representatives and senate remain in a courtroom closed by a judge pursuant to court rule.
- HB 2599 Repealing certain obligations of a purchaser after sale of business for unpaid retailers' sales taxes.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.

- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Carlin, Sydney

- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act. HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Carlson, Suzi

- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Carmichael, John

- HB 2012 Replacing the workers compensation prevailing factor standard with a substantial factor standard.
- HB 2013 Amending the edition of the AMA medical guide used to determine impairment for awarding workers compensation benefits.
- HB 2014 Amending the disallowance of workers compensation benefits for fighting or horseplay when not work related.

- HB 2015 Repealing state contract requirements regarding anti-Israel boycotts.
- HB 2016 Allowing injured workers who are receiving their social security benefits to keep the full amount of their workers compensation.
- HB 2018 Removing power of secretary of state to prosecute election crimes.
- HB 2019 Changing penalties for certain voting crimes.
- HB 2020 Changing the supreme court clerk's information requirements for licensed attorneys and changing procedures related to the supreme court nominating commission and the judicial district nominating commissions.
- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2539 Creating a traffic infraction for operating a vehicle while fatigued.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Carpenter, Blake

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Carpenter, Will

- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2505 Allowing a greater use of detention for juvenile offenders who violate probation.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at

- any polling place in the county.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Claeys, J. R.

- HB 2528 Providing for all vehicles more than 35 years old to qualify as an antique vehicle.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Clark, Lonnie

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Clayton, Stephanie

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2491 Providing for adjusted income tax rates and sales tax exemptions for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products.

- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Collins, Kenneth

- HB 2136 Establishing municipal vacancy appointment limitations.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Concannon, Susan

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2438 Allowing certain exceptions to the confidentiality of state child death review board documents.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2670 Enacting the audiology and speech language pathology interstate compact.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6030 Recognizing February 7, 2020, as Wear Red Day.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Corbet, Ken

- HB 2021 Elections; term limits for offices of state treasurer and insurance commissioner.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.

- HCR 5001 Constitutional amendment; term limits for the secretary of state and attorney general.
- HCR 5003 Constitutional amendment; term limits; legislators.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Cox, Tom

- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2611 Allowing certain criminal offenses to be expunged automatically.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Croft, Chris

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2506 Expanding the military spouse and servicemember's expedited licensure law to certain other license, certificate or registration applicants.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2546 Creating the crime of sexual extortion and adding the crime to the Kansas offender registration act.
- HB 2609 Requiring the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office to submit an initial application for a VA state veterans home construction grant.
- HB 2610 Authorizing the issuance of bonds for the construction of a state veterans home.
- HB 2615 Replacing the BOTA small claims appeal process with a mediation process for certain tax appeals.
- HB 2616 Rate of sales and compensating use tax on food and food ingredients and implementing formulaic adjustment to tax rate.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas.
- HB 2667 Requiring law enforcement agencies to adopt policies requiring an investigation and public report be completed after officer-involved deaths.
- HB 2668 Establishing the property tax relief act and providing an expiration for the selective assistance for effective relief credit and the homestead property tax refund.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.

- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Curtis, Pam

- HB 2017 Restoring local control over certain compensation, wage and benefit requirements for construction projects.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2279 Requiring law enforcement officers to provide information about timing of release from custody when an arrest is made following a domestic violence call.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2611 Allowing certain criminal offenses to be expunged automatically.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Delperdang, Leo

- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2528 Providing for all vehicles more than 35 years old to qualify as an antique vehicle.
- HB 2614 Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Dierks, Diana

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team

HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Dietrich, Brenda

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2428 Requiring the board of technical professions to adopt license fee amounts by rules and regulations.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6038 Honoring the 30th anniversary of the Parents as Teachers program in Kansas.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Donohoe, Owen

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2320 Enacting the marriage and constitution restoration act.
- HB 2321 Creating the optional elevated marriage act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.
- HB 2323 Imposing an excise tax on admission to adult-oriented businesses.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Dove, Willie

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2517 Property tax abatement for agricultural improvement destroyed or substantially destroyed by a natural disaster.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2580 City unilateral annexation powers eliminated unless property owners consent to

- annexation.
- HB 2581 Require a vote of approval by persons living in an area to be regulated by city extraterritorial zoning or subdivision regulations.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Ellis, Ronald

- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2196 Creating a presumption in favor of shared parenting time for temporary orders.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2609 Requiring the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office to submit an initial application for a VA state veterans home construction grant.
- HB 2610 Authorizing the issuance of bonds for the construction of a state veterans home.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Eplee, John

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance
- HB 2196 Creating a presumption in favor of shared parenting time for temporary orders.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.

- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Erickson, Renee

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2150 Enacting the Kansas hope scholarship act.
- HB 2241 Creating the crime of rape by misrepresentation of identity.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2546 Creating the crime of sexual extortion and adding the crime to the Kansas offender registration act.
- HB 2552 Creating the Kansas reading readiness act.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Esau, Charlotte

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2668 Establishing the property tax relief act and providing an expiration for the selective assistance for effective relief credit and the homestead property tax refund.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Finch, Blaine

HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be

- reversible.
- HCR 5025 Ratifying and providing the continuation of the March 12, 2020, state of disaster emergency declaration for the state of Kansas.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Finney, Gail

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2092 Allowing voter registration on election day.
- HB 2095 Providing for the Alpha Kappa Alpha distinctive license plate.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2259 Providing for fair consideration for employment to persons with records of conviction.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2316 Removing the option to pay a cash bond in municipal court.
- HB 2317 Requiring certain electric transmission lines to acquire a siting permit from the state corporation commission.
- HB 2429 Adding a public defender to the Kansas criminal justice reform commission.
- HB 2434 Revoking authority to suspend driving privileges for the nonpayment of fines from traffic citations.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2611 Allowing certain criminal offenses to be expunged automatically.
- HB 2612 Endorsements by individuals for candidates or office holders must be in writing and must be removed from the website and other social media of the candidate or office holder upon receipt of a written request by the individual or civil fines may be imposed.
- HB 2614 Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Francis, Shannon

HB 2444 Providing for the blackout distinctive license plate.

- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### French, David

- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2320 Enacting the marriage and constitution restoration act.
- HB 2321 Creating the optional elevated marriage act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.
- HB 2323 Imposing an excise tax on admission to adult-oriented businesses.
- HB 2589 Requiring student athletes to participate in school athletics based upon their biological gender at birth.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Frownfelter, Stan

- HB 2026 Enacting the fire sprinkler industry act.
- HB 2032 Requiring that sports gaming be operated and managed solely by racetrack gaming facilities.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Garber, Randy

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2320 Enacting the marriage and constitution restoration act.

- HB 2321 Creating the optional elevated marriage act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.
- HB 2323 Imposing an excise tax on admission to adult-oriented businesses.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HB 2589 Requiring student athletes to participate in school athletics based upon their biological gender at birth.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Gartner, Jim

- HB 2037 Relating to the veterans benefit lottery games, creating the veterans benefit lottery game fund and transferring moneys to veterans service programs.
- HB 2043 Review of tax credits, tax exemptions and economic development programs.
- HB 2089 Enacting the Kansas death with dignity act.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2129 Creating the gun safety red flag act.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2491 Providing for adjusted income tax rates and sales tax exemptions for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2612 Endorsements by individuals for candidates or office holders must be in writing and must be removed from the website and other social media of the candidate or office holder upon receipt of a written request by the individual or civil fines may be imposed.
- HB 2614 Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
  - HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the

19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Hawkins, Daniel

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HCR 5012 Adjournment of the 2019 Legislature until May 1, 2019.
- HCR 5017 Providing for the appointment of a committee to inform the governor that the two houses of the legislature are organized and ready to receive communications.
- HCR 5018 Providing for a joint session of the House of Representatives and Senate to hear a message from the Governor.
- HCR 5020 Providing for the adjournment of the Senate and House of Representatives for a period of time during the 2020 regular session of the Legislature.
- HCR 5023 Providing for the adjournment of the Senate and House of Representatives for a period of time during the 2020 regular session of the Legislature.
- HCR 5025 Ratifying and providing the continuation of the March 12, 2020, state of disaster emergency declaration for the state of Kansas.
  - HR 6025 Providing for the organization of the House of Representatives in 2020.
  - HR 6026 Providing for changes in seat assignments in the house of representatives for the 2020 session.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Helgerson, Henry

- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2308 City of Wichita and Sedgwick county authorized to consolidate city and county government.
- HB 2309 Recreating the Kansas arts commission.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Helmer, Cheryl

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2320 Enacting the marriage and constitution restoration act.
- HB 2321 Creating the optional elevated marriage act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.

- HB 2323 Imposing an excise tax on admission to adult-oriented businesses.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2589 Requiring student athletes to participate in school athletics based upon their biological gender at birth.
- HB 2604 Requiring persons convicted of child abuse to register under the Kansas offender registration act.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Henderson, Broderick

- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2612 Endorsements by individuals for candidates or office holders must be in writing and must be removed from the website and other social media of the candidate or office holder upon receipt of a written request by the individual or civil fines may be imposed.
- HB 2614 Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Hibbard, Larry\*

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.

## Highberger, Dennis "Boog"

- HB 2009 Changing the designation of columbus day to indigenous peoples day.
- HB 2024 Amending the no-call act to restrict the use of automatic dialing devices.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2096 Establishing the Kansas children's savings account program.
- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.

- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2426 Revising cross-references in the civil procedure codes.
- HB 2491 Providing for adjusted income tax rates and sales tax exemptions for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products.
- HB 2617 Providing for adjusted income tax rates and sales tax treatment for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6033 Recognizing the 100th Anniversary of the League of Women Voters of the United
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Highland, Ron

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2196 Creating a presumption in favor of shared parenting time for temporary orders.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2320 Enacting the marriage and constitution restoration act.
- HB 2321 Creating the optional elevated marriage act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.
- HB 2323 Imposing an excise tax on admission to adult-oriented businesses.
- HB 2432 Creating the Kansas pesticide waste disposal program and allowing up to \$50,000 to be transferred annually from the Kansas agricultural remediation fund to a new Kansas pesticide waste disposal fund.
- HB 2437 Prohibiting the use of identifiable meat terms on labels or in advertisements of meat analogs without either an accompanying disclaimer that the product does not contain meat or the inclusion of the word "imitation" before the name of the meat food product being imitated.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6035 Recognizing September as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.

HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Hineman, Don

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2196 Creating a presumption in favor of shared parenting time for temporary orders.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Hodge, Tim

- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2128 Decreasing the sales and use tax rate on food and food ingredients.
- HB 2182 Requiring increased motor vehicle insurance coverage for people with convictions relating to driving under the influence.
- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2249 Providing an income tax credit for expenditures to construct health or education facilities by Kansas Collegiate Athletic Conference member institutions.
- HB 2250 Establishing a child tax credit.
- HB 2251 Increasing income tax credit for household and dependent care expenses.
- HB 2252 Income tax credit for increased salaries paid to Kansas employees.
- HB 2253 Awarding costs and attorney fees to plaintiffs prevailing in unpaid wage claims.
- HB 2254 Requiring banks to make a minimum amount of subprime loans.
- HB 2255 Creating the Kansas youth advisory council.
- HB 2256 Creating the community leaders service act.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2294 Requiring a motion and notice when municipalities transfer funds from a utility fund to the general fund.
- HB 2302 Sunsetting the food sales tax credit and enacting the food sales tax refund.
- HB 2304 Sales tax holiday for sales of certain school supplies, computers and clothing.
- HB 2310 Reducing the sales and use tax rate of food and food ingredients.
- HB 2311 Sales tax exemption for food and food ingredients.
- HB 2312 Establishing the rural revitalization student loan repayment program.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2634 Removing minimum fines for a failure to maintain financial security.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Hoffman, Kyle

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Hoheisel, Nick

- HB 2011 Sales tax exemption for required textbooks.
- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2528 Providing for all vehicles more than 35 years old to qualify as an antique vehicle.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2611 Allowing certain criminal offenses to be expunged automatically.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6027 Congratulating and commending Wichita as a 2019 All-America City award winner.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Holscher, Cindy

- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2163 Providing for the legal use of medical cannabis.

- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2324 Prohibiting the use of non-disclosure agreements to silence victims of workplace sexual harassment.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2612 Endorsements by individuals for candidates or office holders must be in writing and must be removed from the website and other social media of the candidate or office holder upon receipt of a written request by the individual or civil fines may be imposed.
- HB 2614 Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Horn, Eileen

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2163 Providing for the legal use of medical cannabis.
- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2491 Providing for adjusted income tax rates and sales tax exemptions for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2517 Property tax abatement for agricultural improvement destroyed or substantially

- destroyed by a natural disaster.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2617 Providing for adjusted income tax rates and sales tax treatment for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products.
- HB 2644 Enacting the Kansas Paid Family Leave Act, establishing the Family and Medical Leave Insurance Fund.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6033 Recognizing the 100th Anniversary of the League of Women Voters of the United States.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Houser, Michael

- HB 2077 Requiring suicide risk evaluation upon admission to certain treatment facilities.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2425 Enact the Kansas anti-red flag act which prohibits the enforcement of extreme risk protection orders that prevent certain individuals from buying or possessing a firearm and establishes a criminal penalty for violations.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Howard, Ron

- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2589 Requiring student athletes to participate in school athletics based upon their biological gender at birth.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.

- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Huebert, Steve

- HB 2202 Hillsdale cemetery district; deannexing territory of the district within Valley Center.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2320 Enacting the marriage and constitution restoration act.
- HB 2321 Creating the optional elevated marriage act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.
- HB 2323 Imposing an excise tax on admission to adult-oriented businesses.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Humphries, Susan

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2150 Enacting the Kansas hope scholarship act.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the

19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Jacobs, Trevor

- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
  - HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Jennings, Russell

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Johnson, Steven

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Karleskint, Jim

- HB 2163 Providing for the legal use of medical cannabis.
- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.

- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2517 Property tax abatement for agricultural improvement destroyed or substantially destroyed by a natural disaster.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Kelly, Jim

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Kessinger, Jan

- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2163 Providing for the legal use of medical cannabis.
- HB 2194 Allowing wagering losses for Kansas itemized deductions.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Kuether, Annie

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2612 Endorsements by individuals for candidates or office holders must be in writing and must be removed from the website and other social media of the candidate or office holder upon receipt of a written request by the individual or civil fines may be imposed.
- HB 2614 Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Landwehr, Brenda

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Lewis, Greg\*

HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible

### Long, Marty

- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of

the Year.

HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Lusk, Nancy

- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2612 Endorsements by individuals for candidates or office holders must be in writing and must be removed from the website and other social media of the candidate or office holder upon receipt of a written request by the individual or civil fines may be imposed.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Lynn, Megan

- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2546 Creating the crime of sexual extortion and adding the crime to the Kansas offender registration act.
- HB 2613 Creating the crime of harassment of a sports official.
- HB 2638 Authorizing medical student and residency loan assistance to encourage the practice of obstetrics and gynecology in medically underserved areas of the state.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas.
- HB 2668 Establishing the property tax relief act and providing an expiration for the selective assistance for effective relief credit and the homestead property tax refund.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Mason, Les

HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance

- plans.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2528 Providing for all vehicles more than 35 years old to qualify as an antique vehicle.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Mastroni, Leonard

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Moore, J.C.

- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the

19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

# Murnan, Monica

- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2427 Providing for a Kansas income tax subtraction modification for national service education awards.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

# Neighbor, Cindy

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2612 Endorsements by individuals for candidates or office holders must be in writing and must be removed from the website and other social media of the candidate or office holder upon receipt of a written request by the individual or civil fines may be imposed.
- HB 2614 Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.
- HB 2637 Prohibiting employers and employment agencies from requiring or using compensation history of job applicants in the employment process.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Newland, Joe

HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.

- HB 2589 Requiring student athletes to participate in school athletics based upon their biological gender at birth.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Ohaebosim, KC

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2302 Sunsetting the food sales tax credit and enacting the food sales tax refund.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2304 Sales tax holiday for sales of certain school supplies, computers and clothing.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Orr, Boyd

- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Ousley, Jarrod

- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2164 Repealing the adoption protection act.
- HB 2234 Creating the voluntary gun safety act.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.

- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HCR 5008 Proposition to repeal section 12 of article 15 of the Kansas constitution, regarding membership and nonmembership in labor organizations.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Owens, Stephen

- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2429 Adding a public defender to the Kansas criminal justice reform commission.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2505 Allowing a greater use of detention for juvenile offenders who violate probation.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2528 Providing for all vehicles more than 35 years old to qualify as an antique vehicle.
- HB 2546 Creating the crime of sexual extortion and adding the crime to the Kansas offender registration act.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Pannbacker, Bill

- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the

19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Parker, Brett

- HB 2060 Repealing prohibition on municipal regulation of paid leave for employees.
- HB 2061 Repealing prohibition on municipal regulation of minimum wages.
- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2189 Elections; voting provisional ballot allowed when voter moves to a new county without reregistering.
- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2660 Requiring the department of health and environment to make long-acting reversible contraceptives more accessible.
- HB 2661 Enacting the right to family planning act, requiring contraceptives to be available at pharmacies.
- HB 2662 Establishing the energy efficiency benchmark act to promote cost savings for the state and other entities through increased energy efficiency.
- HB 2663 Allowing physicians to decide whether to provide patients with certain information based on the physician's reasonable professional medical judgment.
- HB 2664 Enacting the rape survivor information act, requiring certain entities to provide information to sexual assault survivors.
- HB 2665 Enacting the Kansas Paid Sick Leave Act.
- HB 2666 Prohibiting employers from taking adverse employment action against an employee based on employee's reproductive medical history or reproductive medical decisions.
- HCR 5006 Revising article 10 of the Kansas constitution; establishing a redistricting commission.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Patton, Fred

- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the

- Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Phillips, Tom

- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Pittman, Jeff

- HB 2037 Relating to the veterans benefit lottery games, creating the veterans benefit lottery game fund and transferring moneys to veterans service programs.
- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2091 Allowing early voting in person at least 10 days prior to an election.
- HB 2092 Allowing voter registration on election day.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2194 Allowing wagering losses for Kansas itemized deductions.
- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2196 Creating a presumption in favor of shared parenting time for temporary orders.
- HB 2245 Creating the crime of abandoning a human corpse.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2435 Amending credits on court-imposed fines for community service.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2608 Regulating funeral processions and creating a violation for not properly yielding to funeral processions.
- HB 2609 Requiring the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office to submit an initial application for a VA state veterans home construction grant.
- HB 2610 Authorizing the issuance of bonds for the construction of a state veterans home.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas.
- HB 2651 Creating the crime of aggravated abuse of a child.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Probst, Jason

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2224 Requiring the state corporation commission and the secretary of health and environment to assess certain fees upon operators of class I and class II injection wells and establishing the state geological survey monitoring well fund.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2600 All contract for deeds must be filed with the county register of deeds by the seller within 10 days after execution or such contract shall be deemed void.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Proehl, Richard

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Rahjes, Ken

HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance

- plans.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2321 Creating the optional elevated marriage act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.
- HB 2323 Imposing an excise tax on admission to adult-oriented businesses.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Ralph, Bradley

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Resman, John

- HB 2002 Limiting the property tax exemption for fire districts.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2196 Creating a presumption in favor of shared parenting time for temporary orders.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2667 Requiring law enforcement agencies to adopt policies requiring an investigation and public report be completed after officer-involved deaths.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of
  - HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of

Kansas and Taiwan.

HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

# Rhiley, Bill

- HB 2004 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict use of automatic dialing-announcing devices and to prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2116 Allowing taxpayers to attend BOTA hearings by use of audio or video electronic communication.
- HB 2148 Unemployment benefits for privately contracted school bus drivers.
- HB 2230 Requiring law enforcement officers to impound the vehicles of certain uninsured owners.
- HB 2236 Establishing cause for suspension or termination of county appraisers based on the percentage of informal hearing requests.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2275 County boards of tax appeals are created to hear appeals from county appraisers and hearing officers.
- HB 2293 Changing to one year averages when determining ag land valuations.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2320 Enacting the marriage and constitution restoration act.
- HB 2321 Creating the optional elevated marriage act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.
- HB 2423 Driving under the influence is a disqualification for election or appointment as a
- HB 2430 Property tax lid; cities and counties repealed.
- HB 2431 Designating a bridge on United States highway 166 in Cowley county as the SGT Tyler A Juden memorial bridge.
- HB 2436 Rate of interest for unpaid and overpayment of taxes.
- HB 2453 Creating the open borders for Kansas jobs act; recognizing professional licenses issued by other jurisdictions.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2514 Requiring counties to purchase certain property if valuation is disputed by taxpayer.
- HB 2577 Authorization for counties to impose a local motor fuels tax with voter approval.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.

- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Ruiz, Louis

- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HCR 5016 Urging Congress to provide healthcare to deported veterans.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Ruiz, Susan

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2491 Providing for adjusted income tax rates and sales tax exemptions for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products.

- HB 2641 Amending statutes related to the recognition of marriages.
- HB 2643 Making an employer's actions to limit or punish the disclosure of wage information by an employee an unlawful employment practice.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas.
- HCR 5016 Urging Congress to provide healthcare to deported veterans.
- HCR 5021 Constitutional amendment to repeal section 16 of article 15 of the constitution of the state of Kansas relating to marriage.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6029 Designating January 30, 2020, as Latina Leaders Day at the Capitol.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Ryckman, Ron

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HCR 5012 Adjournment of the 2019 Legislature until May 1, 2019.
- HCR 5017 Providing for the appointment of a committee to inform the governor that the two houses of the legislature are organized and ready to receive communications.
- HCR 5018 Providing for a joint session of the House of Representatives and Senate to hear a message from the Governor.
- HCR 5020 Providing for the adjournment of the Senate and House of Representatives for a period of time during the 2020 regular session of the Legislature.
- HCR 5023 Providing for the adjournment of the Senate and House of Representatives for a period of time during the 2020 regular session of the Legislature.
- HCR 5025 Ratifying and providing the continuation of the March 12, 2020, state of disaster emergency declaration for the state of Kansas.
  - HR 6025 Providing for the organization of the House of Representatives in 2020.
  - HR 6026 Providing for changes in seat assignments in the house of representatives for the 2020 session.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Samsel, Mark

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2433 Designating the watermelon as the state fruit of Kansas.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2611 Allowing certain criminal offenses to be expunged automatically.
- HB 2612 Endorsements by individuals for candidates or office holders must be in writing

- and must be removed from the website and other social media of the candidate or office holder upon receipt of a written request by the individual or civil fines may be imposed.
- HB 2613 Creating the crime of harassment of a sports official.
- HB 2614 Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Sawver, Tom

- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HCR 5012 Adjournment of the 2019 Legislature until May 1, 2019.
- HCR 5017 Providing for the appointment of a committee to inform the governor that the two houses of the legislature are organized and ready to receive communications.
- HCR 5018 Providing for a joint session of the House of Representatives and Senate to hear a message from the Governor.
- HCR 5020 Providing for the adjournment of the Senate and House of Representatives for a period of time during the 2020 regular session of the Legislature.
- HCR 5023 Providing for the adjournment of the Senate and House of Representatives for a period of time during the 2020 regular session of the Legislature.
- HCR 5025 Ratifying and providing the continuation of the March 12, 2020, state of disaster emergency declaration for the state of Kansas.
  - HR 6025 Providing for the organization of the House of Representatives in 2020.
  - HR 6026 Providing for changes in seat assignments in the house of representatives for the 2020 session.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Schreiber, Mark

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be

- reversible.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6035 Recognizing September as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Seiwert, Joe

- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Smith, Adam

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2576 Require county treasurers to mail property tax bills before December 10 each year.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.

2985

- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Smith, Eric

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Stogsdill, Jerry

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.

- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2611 Allowing certain criminal offenses to be expunged automatically.
- HB 2635 Imposing a privilege tax on the gross receipts from the sale of firearms and ammunition.
- HB 2636 Prohibiting the possession of large capacity ammunition magazines and the carrying of handguns with large capacity ammunition magazines.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Straub, Alicia

- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Sutton, Bill

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Tarwater, Sean

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2668 Establishing the property tax relief act and providing an expiration for the selective assistance for effective relief credit and the homestead property tax refund.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the

2987

- Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Thimesch, Jack

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Thomas, Adam

- HB 2165 Providing membership in the KP&F retirement system for security officers of the department of corrections.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Thompson, Kent

- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team

- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Toplikar, John

- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2286 Making appropriations for FY 2020 for the Kansas state school for the deaf.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.
- HB 2626 Increasing the Kansas standard deduction and personal exemption for income tax purposes.
- HB 2627 Increasing income tax credit for expenditures to make principal dwelling accessible to persons with a disability.
- HB 2628 Allowing an individual to itemize deductions in Kansas despite not itemizing on their federal return.
- HB 2648 Adjusting the credit and income amounts for the income tax credit for purchases of food in this state.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Vickrey, Jene

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2276 Prohibiting the use of a wireless communication device in a school zone or a road construction zone.
- HB 2277 Providing for increased penalties for right-of-way violations.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HCR 5004 Proposition to amend section 1 of the Kansas bill of rights regarding equal rights for all human life.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Victors, Ponka-We

- HB 2003 Creating the limited driver's license and identification card for certain individuals.
- HB 2009 Changing the designation of columbus day to indigenous peoples day.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.

- HB 2240 Requiring the state corporation commission to ensure that a seismic risk analysis is conducted upon class II disposal wells.
- HB 2279 Requiring law enforcement officers to provide information about timing of release from custody when an arrest is made following a domestic violence call.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2443 Requiring resident tuition rates for certain Native American students at public postsecondary educational institutions.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HB 2646 Allowing the attorney general to coordinate training for law enforcement agencies on missing and murdered indigenous people.
- HCR 5016 Urging Congress to provide healthcare to deported veterans.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

# Waggoner, Paul

- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2322 Creating a cause of action for censorship or suppression of social media speech.
- HB 2476 Displaying the national motto in every public building.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2546 Creating the crime of sexual extortion and adding the crime to the Kansas offender registration act.
- HB 2639 Providing a sales tax exemption for purchases by crisis pregnancy centers.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Ward, Jim

- HB 2010 Lobbying restrictions; certain elected state officers and executive staff.
- HB 2022 Enacting the Kansas working families pay raise act.
- HB 2023 Enacting the Kansas protection against terrorist act.
- HB 2029 Repealing the health care compact.
- HB 2030 Expanding eligibility for medicaid benefits to the extent permitted by the affordable care act.

- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2128 Decreasing the sales and use tax rate on food and food ingredients.
- HB 2129 Creating the gun safety red flag act.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2565 Concerning employment security law, relating to the number of weeks a claimant is eligible for benefits.
- HB 2566 Concerning employment security law, relating to compensation of the prepayment waiting period.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HB 2658 Establishing the affordable prescription drug importation program.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Warfield, Freda

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2129 Creating the gun safety red flag act.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2181 Disposition of seized firearms by law enforcement agencies.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of

- Kansas.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Warren, Kellie

- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2546 Creating the crime of sexual extortion and adding the crime to the Kansas offender registration act.
- HB 2605 Enacting the fairness in condemnation act requiring the condemning authority to provide the property owner notice of a planned condemnation proceeding, an offer for purchase and a court review of compliance with this act.
- HB 2649 Providing for the availability and use of the wheelchair emblem decal on a personalized license plate.
- HB 2668 Establishing the property tax relief act and providing an expiration for the selective assistance for effective relief credit and the homestead property tax refund
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Wasinger, Barbara

- HB 2116 Allowing taxpayers to attend BOTA hearings by use of audio or video electronic communication.
- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2274 Requiring notification to patients that the effects of a medication abortion may be reversible.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2288 Creating the Kansas student and educator freedom of religious speech act.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2546 Creating the crime of sexual extortion and adding the crime to the Kansas offender registration act.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of

the Year.

HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

### Waymaster, Troy

- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6036 Honoring Agent Orange victims.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Weigel, Virgil

- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2609 Requiring the Kansas commission on veterans affairs office to submit an initial application for a VA state veterans home construction grant.
- HB 2610 Authorizing the issuance of bonds for the construction of a state veterans home.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Wheeler, John

- HB 2120 Establishing restrictions on the use of step therapy protocols by health insurance plans.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

# Whipple, Brandon\*

HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness

- insurance policies.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2262 Enacting the Kansas buy American act.
- HB 2263 Prohibiting the denial of earned maternity leave benefits after an employee has given notice of intent to take maternity leave.
- HB 2264 Providing a tax credit to pell grant recipients at a postsecondary educational institution.
- HB 2265 Award of college credit hours for passing CLEP and other college examination programs.
- HB 2266 Prohibiting universities from charging fees for certain scholarship applications.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2301 Establishing the tax credit for low income postsecondary students scholarship program act and providing for the elimination of the tax credit for low income students scholarship program act.
- HB 2302 Sunsetting the food sales tax credit and enacting the food sales tax refund.
- HB 2304 Sales tax holiday for sales of certain school supplies, computers and clothing.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2324 Prohibiting the use of non-disclosure agreements to silence victims of workplace sexual harassment.

## Williams, Kristev

- HB 2006 Requiring the department of commerce to create a database of economic development incentive program information.
- HB 2008 Exempting Kansas from daylight saving time.
- HB 2318 Constitutional restrictions on taxpayer funding for abortions.
- HB 2319 Enacting the human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act.
- HB 2420 Allowing military surplus vehicles to register with the division of vehicles for road use.
- HB 2421 Allowing individuals who raise assistance dogs to have the same right to accommodation as trainers of assistance dogs and requiring assistance dogs to be trained by accredited training facilities.
- HB 2422 Establishing daylight saving time as the permanent standard time in Kansas.
- HB 2444 Providing for the blackout distinctive license plate.
- HB 2507 Liability protection for businesses that participate in high school work-based learning programs.
- HB 2552 Creating the Kansas reading readiness act.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6037 Recognizing the week of February 24, 2020, as National Public Schools Week.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Winn, Valdenia

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2504 Providing a sales tax exemption for child advocacy centers.
- HB 2612 Endorsements by individuals for candidates or office holders must be in writing and must be removed from the website and other social media of the candidate or office holder upon receipt of a written request by the individual or civil fines may be imposed.
- HB 2614 Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
- HCR 5025 Ratifying and providing the continuation of the March 12, 2020, state of disaster emergency declaration for the state of Kansas.
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Wolfe Moore, Kathy

- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

# Woodard, Brandon

- HB 2036 Repeal of prohibition on use of state appropriated moneys to lobby on gun control issues.
- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2075 Elections; petition circulator requirements.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and

- gender identity or expression.
- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.
- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2299 Making changes to mitigating factors used by court in granting a departure sentence.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2306 Extending the time that victims of child sex abuse have to bring a cause of action.
- HB 2459 Limiting utilization review conducted by health plans under certain circumstances involving the treatment of mental illness or substance abuse disorder.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2612 Endorsements by individuals for candidates or office holders must be in writing and must be removed from the website and other social media of the candidate or office holder upon receipt of a written request by the individual or civil fines may be imposed.
- HB 2614 Requiring transportation network companies to require drivers to display official trade dress.
- HB 2641 Amending statutes related to the recognition of marriages.
- HCR 5021 Constitutional amendment to repeal section 16 of article 15 of the constitution of the state of Kansas relating to marriage.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

#### Xu. Rui

- HB 2074 Requiring coverage of preexisting conditions by individual accident and sickness insurance policies.
- HB 2090 Voter registration; departments of aging and disability services; children and families; labor and state board of education.
- HB 2110 Amending the Kansas no-call act to restrict text message solicitations and certain uses of automatic dialing-announcing devices and prohibit certain conveyances of telephone numbers and the transmission of inaccurate caller-ID information.
- HB 2124 Requiring health insurance plans to cover contraceptives.
- HB 2130 Amending the Kansas act against discrimination to include sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- HB 2195 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2241 Creating the crime of rape by misrepresentation of identity.
- HB 2258 Enacting housing protections for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, human trafficking or stalking.
- HB 2282 Abolishing the death penalty and creating the crime of aggravated murder.
- HB 2287 Due process for terminating teachers' contracts.

- HB 2297 Permanently exempting postsecondary educational institutions from the public buildings law under the personal and family protection act.
- HB 2303 Enacting the Kansas safe access act.
- HB 2305 Making changes to requirements to make a claim to the crime victims' compensation board.
- HB 2491 Providing for adjusted income tax rates and sales tax exemptions for food and food ingredients and feminine hygiene products.
- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2578 Sales tax exemption for sales of farm products sold at farmers' markets.
- HB 2638 Authorizing medical student and residency loan assistance to encourage the practice of obstetrics and gynecology in medically underserved areas of the state.
- HB 2640 Establishing an income tax credit for the practice of carbon farming.
- HB 2645 Prohibiting pelvic, rectal, or prostate exams on unconscious patients without informed consent.
- HB 2650 Designating February 15 of each year as Susan B. Anthony Day in the state of Kansas.
- HCR 5022 Recognizing global climate crisis
  - HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
  - HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## Yeager, Stephanie

- HB 2512 Sedgwick county voters, in the 2020 election cycle, may vote on election day at any polling place in the county.
- HB 2565 Concerning employment security law, relating to the number of weeks a claimant is eligible for benefits.
- HB 2642 Extending the maximum period of eligibility for unemployment insurance until April 1, 2021.
- HR 6028 Congratulating and commending the members of the 2020 Kansas Teacher of the Year team.
- HR 6039 Recognizing the Kansas Small Business Development Center's 2020 Business of the Year.
- HR 6040 Recognizing the 31st anniversary of sister-state relations between the State of Kansas and Taiwan.
- HR 6041 Recognizing Kansas' celebration of the 100th anniversary of the ratification of the 19th Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

## **State Legislature, House Committees(Various)**

Agriculture and Natural Resources Budget

HB 2688 Allowing the state board of veterinary examiners to make assessments to recoup certain administrative costs and to remit all moneys collected by the board from fees, charges, assessments and penalties to the veterinary examiners fee fund.

#### Agriculture

- HB 2062 Relating to the applicability of conditions for operating recreational trails.
- HB 2114 Allowing counties to impose a severance tax on limestone.
- HB 2156 Clarifying that it is unlawful for a person to submit an inspection report

- concerning wood-destroying pests unless that person is a pesticide applicator with the correct certification and license.
- HB 2173 Establishing a commercial industrial hemp program.
- HB 2271 Imposing a criminal penalty upon owners who allow livestock to run at large and allowing county sheriffs to seize such livestock that are on a highway.
- HB 2451 Amending Kansas department of agriculture division of animal health license, permit and registration renewal deadlines.
- HB 2462 Updating provisions related to the Kansas department of agriculture division of conservation.
- HB 2463 Amending the Kansas pesticide law's licensure requirements and the Kansas chemigation safety law's permittee requirements.
- HB 2464 Updating egg repacking requirements for retailers.
- HB 2575 Amending the Kansas drycleaner environmental response act to change the required deductible rate, environmental surcharge rate and penalty fine amount.
- HB 2621 Authorizing the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism to purchase land in Kingman county.
- HB 2622 Requiring poachers to pay a fine to certain landowners and law enforcement agencies.
- HB 2623 Establishing requirements for claiming pollinator-friendly solar sites.
- HB 2669 Requiring the secretary of wildlife, parks and tourism to establish state threatened and endangered species lists that are based on the federal threatened and endangered species lists.
- HB 2709 Removing cannabis products that contain up to 0.3% THC from the list of controlled substances listed in schedule I of the uniform controlled substances act.

### **Appropriations**

- HB 2078 Appropriations for the department of education for FY 2019, 2020 and 2021; increasing BASE aid for certain school years; continuing 20 mill statewide levy for schools and exempting certain portion of property used for residential purposes from such levy.
- HB 2102 Establishing the KanCare bridge to a healthy Kansas program.
- HB 2121 Supplemental appropriations for FY 2019, FY 2020, FY 2021, FY 2022, FY 2023 and FY 2024 for various state agencies.
- HB 2122 Appropriations for FY 2020, FY 2021 and FY 2022 for various state agencies.
- HB 2158 Authorizing the board of regents on behalf of the university of Kansas to sell certain real property in Douglas county.
- HB 2159 Authorizing the board of regents on behalf of Kansas state university to sell certain real property in Saline county.
- HB 2204 Prohibiting the Kansas lottery from entering into or extending an existing management contract with a lottery gaming facility manager without prior legislative approval.
- HB 2205 Eliminating the client obligation for persons receiving home and community-based services.
- HB 2341 Ensuring a public employee's right to resign from a public employee organization.
- HB 2373 Creating the transportation planning program.
- HB 2374 Increasing the payment of reward for persons providing certain information.
- HB 2375 Allowing private plaintiffs to bring an action under the Kansas false claims act.
- HB 2387 Requiring the state employee healthcare benefits program to accept participation as a provider by any willing pharmacist.
- HB 2391 Recertification of professional employees' organizations to represent teachers
- HB 2393 Setoff against debtors; relating to support debt matched by gaming facilities.

- HB 2395 Amending the Kansas school equity and enhancement act and other statutes related to the education of elementary and secondary students, and making appropriations to the department of education.
- HB 2396 Allowing use of certified drug abuse treatment programs for certain offenders convicted of unlawful cultivation or distribution of controlled substances.
- HB 2402 Authorizing certain business entities to hire physicians and chiropractors.
- HB 2419 Reconciling conflicting amendments to certain statutes.
- HB 2492 Ending participation of certain employees of the legislative branch in the Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan.
- HB 2503 Amortizing the state and school KPERS unfunded actuarial liability over a 25-year period and authorizing the transfer of \$268,412,000 from the state general fund to the KPERS fund during fiscal year 2020 and eliminating certain level-dollar employer contribution payments.
- HB 2522 Establishing the rural hospital innovation grant program.
- HB 2534 Abolishing the well plugging assurance fund and transferring all assets and liabilities to the abandoned oil and gas well fund.
- HB 2535 Repealing obsolete provision requiring the state corporation commission and the department of health and environment enter into an interagency agreement for integration of certain oil and gas regulatory operations on or before November 1, 1982.
- HB 2536 Updating the state corporation commission's authority to regulate abandoned oil and gas wells, providing methods for the commission to plug such wells and authorizing payments from the abandoned oil and gas well fund for certain plugging operations.
- Sub HB 2536 Substitute for HB 2536 by Committee on Appropriations Updating the state corporation commission's authority to regulate and determine responsibility for abandoned oil and gas wells, providing methods for the commission to plug such wells including reimbursement for certain plugging operations and abolishing the well plugging assurance fund and transferring all assets and liabilities to the abandoned oil and gas well fund
  - HB 2555 Transferring \$268,412,000 from the state general fund to the Kansas public employees retirement fund in FY 2020 and eliminating certain level-dollar KPERS employer contribution payments.
  - HB 2588 Providing for the FORWARD transportation program.
  - HB 2594 Supplemental appropriations for FY 2020 and FY 2021 for various state agencies.
  - HB 2597 Appropriations for FY 2020, FY 2021 and FY 2022 for various state agencies.
- Sub HB 2597 Substitue for HB 2597 by Committee on Appropriations Appropriations for FY 2020, FY 2021 and FY 2022 for various state agencies.
  - HB 2682 Allowing private plaintiffs to bring an action under the Kansas false claims act.
  - HB 2714 Increasing state financial assistance to local health departments under specified circumstances.
  - HB 2715 Prohibiting the secretary of health and environment from amending or enacting regulations that would create new or increase air quality control fees.
  - HB 2716 Requiring information technology security training for state agencies.
  - HB 2728 Requiring the department of administration to raze the Docking state office building and preserve the existing energy center of the building.
  - HB 2731 Creating the wartime veteran and first responder survivors' grant program and fund.
  - HB 2736 Authorizing the department of administration to issue bonds to construct and equip a department of health and environment laboratory on parking lot No. 4 of the capitol complex in Topeka; current laboratory identified and sold as state

- surplus real estate.
- HR 6032 Disapproving executive reorganization order no. 44 that relates to the newly named Kansas department of human services.

#### Children and Seniors

- HB 2149 Requiring a timely determination of KanCare eligibility.
- HB 2157 Concerning state benefit requirements and limitations for the temporary assistance for needy families program.
- HB 2186 Granting employees who earn sick leave the right to use it to care for their family members.
- HB 2187 Establishing the office of the child advocate for children's protection and services.
- HB 2227 Prohibiting the use of conversion therapy unless it is administered by a leader or official of any religious denomination as part of counseling services.
- HB 2228 Relating to penalties for operating a child care facility without a license.
- HB 2229 Concerning the admission into evidence of any tape or recording created using an electronic monitoring device in an adult care home.
- HB 2343 Removing provisional employment from adult care homes, home health agencies and providers of disability services.
- HB 2344 Requiring written informed consent before administering an antipsychotic medication to an adult care home resident.
- HB 2346 Relating to standards for school-administered vision screenings.
- HB 2347 Establishing the Kansas Alzheimer's disease advisory council.
- HB 2359 Establishing the child welfare system delivery task force.
- HB 2360 Concerning background checks of employees and volunteers that have unsupervised access to children, the elderly or individuals with disabilities.
- HB 2361 Creating conditions for the administration of certain tests, questionnaires, surveys and examinations.
- HB 2483 Prohibiting certain licensed individuals from using conversion therapy on minors.
- HB 2629 Requiring the secretary for aging and disability services to regulate supplemental nursing services agencies in the state of Kansas.
- HB 2700 Amending provisions concerning the abuse, neglect and financial exploitation of certain adults to update the list of mandatory reporters, create a definition of "financial exploitation" and increase the number of working days in which DCF must complete an initial investigation from 30 to 60 working days.

## Commerce, Labor and Economic Development

- HB 2118 Providing income tax credits for aerospace and aviation program graduates and their employers.
- HB 2147 Increasing bond maturity limitations in the Kansas rural housing incentive district act.
- HB 2175 Enacting the fair share act.
- HB 2260 Updating the per diem for injured employees when away from their residence for medical treatment.
- HB 2280 Amendments to the Kansas expanded lottery act relating to racetrack gaming and Wyandotte county horse racing.
- HB 2313 Increasing workers compensation treatment expense limits from \$500 to \$2,000 for injured workers prior to claim approval.
- HB 2314 Rehabilitation of abandoned property by cities.
- HB 2315 Unemployment benefits for privately contracted school bus drivers.
- HB 2354 Resolving liability concerns regarding high school apprenticeships and on-the-job training programs.
- Sub HB 2354 Substitute for HB 2354 by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic

- Development Resolving liability concerns regarding high school apprenticeships and on-the-job training programs.
- HB 2355 Granting federal law enforcement officers who work with state task forces arrest authority.
- HB 2356 Motor vehicle sales tax sourced to registration of vehicle.
- Sub HB 2416 Substitute for HB 2416 by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development Enacting the Kansas targeted employment act to provide tax credits for the employment of persons with developmental disabilities.
  - HB 2454 Self-storage unit rentals; sales an towing of property for nonpayment of rent or abandonment; contractual value of property.
  - HB 2455 Awarding a state contract preference for businesses that partner with the job corps to employ or train workers.
  - Sub HB 2506 by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development Expanding the military spouse and service member's expedited licensure law to all applicants who have established or intend to establish residency in Kansas.
    - HB 2515 Creating the Kansas promise scholarship program.
    - HB 2529 Amending STAR bonds by adding rural redevelopment projects and major business and medical facilities, increasing certain project investment and sales requirements, adding a return on investment analysis and other requirements and approvals by the secretary and extending the sunset date.
    - HB 2586 Affording public employees and professional employees certain rights with respect to withholding of public employee organization and professional employee organization dues.
    - HB 2625 Preempting cities and counties from prohibiting or regulating paper or plastic carryout bags and other single-use plastic items.
  - Sub HB 2642 Substitute for HB 2642 by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development Removing a restriction, for purposes of employment security law, on leasing of certain employees by client lessees of lessor employing units.
    - HB 2653 Clarifying inspection, permit, certification and fee requirements for amusement rides under the Kansas amusement ride act.
    - HB 2689 Amending the angel investor tax credit with respect to the definition of qualified securities, tax credit limitations and amounts, investor requirements and extending the date that credits may be allowed.
    - HB 2701 Providing an employment preference for persons with a disability for state government positions.
    - HB 2702 Decoupling the KIT and KIR workforce training programs from the high performance incentive fund program and enhancing the workforce training tax credit.
    - HB 2703 Preempting local building and construction codes more stringent than national model codes, with certain exceptions.
    - HB 2704 Amending unemployment insurance disqualification provisions relating to dates disqualification begins, illness or injury, pension or retirement pay and employment for an educational institution.
    - HB 2705 Exempting petroleum landmen from the provisions of employment security law.
    - HB 2706 Establishing the public employee safety and health program within the department of labor, permitting investigations of public employee deaths and injuries and updating the provisions of public employee safety and health law.

#### Corrections and Juvenile Justice

Sub HB 2018 Substitute for HB 2018 by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice - Creating the Kansas criminal justice reform commission.

- HB 2042 Removing the authority of the secretary of state to prosecute election crimes.
- HB 2046 Clarifying concurrent or consecutive sentencing for persons convicted of new crimes while on release for a felony.
- HB 2047 Changing the criminal penalties for certain drug crimes.
- HB 2048 Clarifying the definition of comparable offense under the Kansas criminal code.
- HB 2050 Amending available sanctions for violation of condition of postrelease supervision.
- HB 2051 Amending the requirements for offender registration.
- HB 2052 Allowing earned discharge credit for people on probation.
- HB 2132 Increasing the criminal penalty for lewd and lascivious behavior.
- HB 2268 Removing sodomy between consenting members of the same sex from criminal sodomy.
- HB 2269 Allowing the state to be liable for damages caused by wrongful acts relating to calculating earned discharge credit for juveniles and good time credit for adults.
- HB 2283 Exempting certain victims from being considered an aggressor or participant as a mitigating factor when considering a departure sentence.
- HB 2284 Amending assault and battery to increase penalty for assault or battery of a health care provider, creating the crime of unlawful interference with a health care provider and increasing penalties for interference with a firefighter or emergency medical services.
- HB 2335 Adding to the list of entities authorized to buy prison made goods.
- HB 2336 Clarifying when offenders under supervision of the secretary of corrections are awarded jail credit.
- HB 2337 Making changes to the community corrections advisory boards and grant programs.
- HB 2338 Exempting Kansas correctional industries from the provisions on state contract purchases.
- HB 2350 Removing felony violation of possession, cultivation and distribution of marijuana.
- HB 2456 Clarifying the definition of the term "possession" in the Kansas criminal code.
- HB 2469 Extending terminal medical release to inmates in the custody of the department of corrections with a condition likely to cause death within 90 days.
- HB 2470 Clarifying jurisdiction and supervision of offenders in a certified drug abuse treatment program.
- HB 2471 Allowing members who are not legislators or public employees on the Kansas criminal justice reform commission be reimbursed for mileage.
- HB 2472 Authorizing use of certified drug abuse treatment programs for certain crimes.
- HB 2473 Modifying the penalties for sexual contact between certain juveniles and excluding such juveniles from offender registration.
- HB 2474 Changing the penalties for violating the Kansas offender registration act and creating a method by which the court can waive payment of fees.
- HB 2475 Making offender registration for certain drug crimes five years and only available to law enforcement.
- HB 2484 Increasing good time credits for certain offenders.
- HB 2485 Aligning the felony loss thresholds for certain property crimes.
- HB 2493 Requiring legislative members of the sentencing commission to be members of senate judiciary and house corrections and juvenile justice.
- HB 2494 Amending the criminal penalties for unlawfully tampering with electronic monitoring equipment.
- HB 2495 Authorizing the crime victims compensation board to waive application time restrictions for a victim of a sexually violent crime to receive compensation for

- mental health counseling.
- HB 2496 Authorizing court services officers and community corrections officers to provide a certification of identification to offenders.
- HB 2518 Counting any crime with a domestic violence designation as a prior conviction under domestic battery.
- HB 2547 Making changes to suspended drivers' license requirements.
- HB 2652 Amending the definition of knife for the crime of criminal possession of a firearm.
- HB 2686 Removing felony violation of possession of marijuana and releasing people currently in prison for such violations.
- HB 2695 Allowing special agents from the department of corrections to attend the Kansas law enforcement training center.
- HB 2708 Creating a drug abuse treatment program for people on diversion and allowing county attorneys to enter into agreements with court services and community corrections for supervision.

#### Education

- HB 2166 Requiring personal financial literacy courses for high school graduation.
- HB 2183 Requiring a computer science course for high school graduation.
- HB 2233 Requiring school districts to provide a stipend for teachers to purchase classroom supplies.
- HB 2330 Policies and procedures to prohibit and investigate bullying.
- HB 2465 Amending the tax credit for low income students scholarship program act to expand student eligibility.
- HB 2487 Including emotional disability rather than emotional disturbance in the definitions of "children with disabilities" and "individuals with disabilities."
- HB 2488 Authorizing schools to maintain supplies of certain emergency medications and to administer such medication in emergency situations.
- HB 2519 Creating the students' right to know act to provide information on postsecondary education options.
- HB 2572 Creating the educator protection act to provide excess professional liability insurance coverage for teachers.
- HB 2573 Requiring students pass an American civics test in order to graduate with a high school diploma.
- HB 2574 Amending the school sports head injury prevention act to require schools to establish concussion management teams to supervise the concussion management process
- HB 2601 Specifying the required childhood immunizations for child care facility and school attendance.
- HB 2676 Requiring publication of school district bullying policies and requiring a report on bullying incidents at each school district attendance center.
- HB 2690 Requirements for school districts to administer certain tests, questionnaires, surveys and examinations under the student data privacy act.
- HB 2697 Creating the campus intellectual diversity act to establish an office of public policy events at each public postecondary educational institution.

## Elections

- HB 2113 Petition requirements for recognition of political parties.
- HB 2169 Expand the definition of express advocacy in the campaign finance act to cover phrases where reasonable minds could not differ and delete the requirement that the name of treasurers of organizations be disclosed in advertisements.
- HB 2176 Elections; unlawful collection of voted or unvoted ballots.

- HB 2220 Free state election act; eliminate proof of citizenship; same day registration and voting; other.
- HB 2508 The secretary of state shall be elected on a nonpartisan basis and shall resign before running for another office.
- HB 2559 Lobbyist reports late filing.
- HB 2560 Electronic filing of campaign reports for state offices.
- HB 2561 Authorizing legislative assistants and committee assistants to accept one gift of not to exceed \$100 in value each legislative session from legislators.
- HB 2562 Delete the treasurer's name from candidate political ads.
- HB 2606 Provide for the filling of a vacancy in the office of state treasurer and insurance commissioner by statewide district convention.
- HB 2659 Mail ballot elections amended to allow counting of mailed ballots received three business days after the election if postmark shows the ballot was mailed on or before the election day.
- HB 2687 Clarifying who may deliver advance voting ballots placing limitations on the number of such advance ballots that a person may deliver and establishing criminal penalties for violations.
- HCR 5005 Constitutional amendment; reapportionment, deleting requirement for adjustment of census data for military personnel and students.

## Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications

- HB 2080 Electric utilities and recovery of transmission costs.
- HB 2081 Reestablishing the Kansas electric transmission authority.
- HB 2109 Requiring electric public utilities to acquire a permit from the state corporation commission prior to the siting of certain electric transmission lines.
- HB 2231 Requiring the state corporation commission to study electric rates and consider certain factors in establishing just and reasonable electric rates.
- HB 2273 Establishing the wind generation permit and property protection act.
- HB 2585 Exempting the retail sale of electricity by public utilities for electric vehicle charging stations from the jurisdiction of the state corporation commission.
- HB 2618 Establishing a state broadband grant program under the department of commerce to encourage the deployment of broadband in the state.
- HB 2620 Prohibiting the use or offering of technology that transmits inaccurate caller identification information.
- HB 2679 Allowing public utilities to implement demand-side programs to increase energy efficiency.
- HB 2710 Requiring petrochemical manufacturing facilities and petroleum refineries to use a skilled and trained workforce.
- HR 6031 Disapproving executive reorganization order no. 46 that establishes the Kansas energy office.

## Federal and State Affairs

- HB 2034 Enacting the supported decision-making agreements act to provide a statutory framework for adults who want decision-making assistance.
- HB 2067 Providing for audio and video broadcasts of legislative meetings.
- HB 2068 Creating the Kansas sports wagering act.
- HB 2069 Providing certain requirements regarding the taking of minutes of meetings of legislative committees.
- HB 2094 Requiring the department for children and families to offer services to children with problem sexual behavior and to such child's family.
- HB 2107 Requiring full reimbursement for contraceptive prescriptions.

- HB 2111 Requirements for the sale of firearms at gun shows or over the internet.
- HB 2115 Requiring verification of certain hours billed by contractors under certain contracts.
- HB 2153 Repealing statutes pertaining to student religious associations.
- HB 2190 Prohibiting the state corporation commission from authorizing certain charges for electric service.
- HB 2226 Making changes to the scrap metal theft reduction act.
- HB 2289 Repealing public convenience and necessity requirements for motor carriers.
- HB 2325 Reciprocal recognition of concealed carry licenses issued by other jurisdictions; reducing minimum age requirement for a license to carry a concealed handgun.
- HB 2326 Recognizing licenses to carry a concealed firearm issued by other jurisdictions.
- HB 2376 Authorizing amendments to a registrant's birth certificate when there is a change in the registrant's sex.
- HB 2377 No liability for charitable vision screenings and donations of eyeglasses.
- HB 2378 Prohibiting firearm possession restrictions in subsidized housing agreements.
- HB 2379 Exemption from alcoholic liquor enforcement tax for self-distribution of alcoholic liquor by microbreweries and microdistilleries.
- HB 2382 Authorize counties which have zoning regulations to abate nuisances.
- HB 2383 Amendments regarding the licensure and regulation of barbering.
- HB 2385 Designating the polka as the official state dance.
- HB 2389 Requiring electronic prescriptions for certain controlled substances.
- HB 2390 Authorizing sports wagering under the Kansas expanded lottery act.
- HB 2392 Adding household members to the list of mandatory reporters of child abuse and neglect.
- HB 2394 Changing the elements and making changes to the criminal penalties of abuse of a child.
- HB 2397 Amending the definition of dangerous regulated animal and restricting proximity of such animals to members of the public.
- HB 2400 Creating the kratom consumer protection act.
- Sub HB 2400 Substitute for HB 2400 by Committee on Federal and State Affairs Regulating the sale and distribution of kratom products as a part of and supplemental to the Kansas food, drug and cosmetic act.
  - HB 2401 Providing an exception to the quorum requirements for shareholder meetings for certain corporations.
  - HB 2405 Creating the legislative task force on bullying prevention in public schools.
  - HB 2406 Relinquishment of firearms pursuant to certain court orders.
  - HB 2407 Publication of school district bullying prevention policies.
  - HB 2410 Providing for the filling of a vacancy in the office of the state treasurer by statewide district convention.
  - HB 2411 Limiting the review of certain rules and regulations by the director of the budget.
  - HB 2412 Updating certain requirements relating to advanced practice registered nurses.
  - HB 2413 Enacting the human solution for Kansas act; regulation of the production and sale of medicinal cannabis.
  - HB 2415 Regulating the practice of medicine and surgery regarding inquiries about a patient's firearm ownership.
  - HB 2477 Designating General Election Day as a legal public holiday.
  - HB 2511 Prohibiting the use of state resources to enforce any federal directive or act that would regulate firearms, firearm ammunition or firearm accessories in a more restrictive manner than state law.
  - HB 2520 Increasing penalty for assault and battery against a sports official.
  - HB 2530 Amending the definition of "race" in the Kansas act against discrimination to

3005

- include traits historically associated with race, including hair texture and protective hairstyles.
- HB 2563 Increasing the minimum age to purchase or possess cigarettes and tobacco products from 18 to 21; prohibiting cigarette vending machines and flavored vaping products.
- HB 2564 Prescribing certain duties on the chairperson of legislative committees related to the provision of testimony presented to the committee.
- HB 2571 Club and drinking establishment liquor license eligibility; spouse is a law enforcement officer in another county.
- HB 2596 Allowing an alcoholic liquor manufacturer to obtain a drinking establishment license under certain conditions.
- HB 2671 Authorizing sports wagering under the Kansas expanded lottery act.
- HB 2672 Authorizing licensees under the club and drinking establishment act to sell and serve cereal malt beverages.
- HB 2717 Creating the Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act.
- HB 2718 Prohibiting municipal zoning ordinances that exclude federally licensed firearms manufacturers, importers or dealers.
- HB 2719 Changing process for collection of debts owed to courts.
- HB 2723 Requiring medical directors of emergency medical services to provide medical oversight of such services and emergency medical service providers.
- HB 2724 Creating the Kansas student academic improvement act.
- HB 2725 Creating the Kansas exceptional child academic improvement act.
- HB 2732 Requiring Kansas postsecondary educational institutions to adopt a policy and protocols concerning sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence and stalking.
- HB 2733 Requiring relinquishment of firearms pursuant to certain court orders related to domestic violence.
- HB 2735 Enacting statutes to preserve families that include a parent who is blind.
- HB 2737 Authorizing school districts to install and operate school bus cameras and providing enhanced criminal penalties for vehicles improperly passing school buses.
- HB 2738 Requiring restitution to be due immediately unless the court orders a payment plan.
- HB 2740 Creating the Kansas medical marijuana regulation act.
- HB 2742 Creating the Kansas equal access act to authorize the use of medical marijuana.
- HB 2744 Allowing evidence-based program account money to be used on certain children, requiring the department of corrections to build data systems, and allowing for overall case length limit extensions for certain juvenile offenders.
- HB 2745 Requiring the state corporation commission to develop a comprehensive state energy plan.
- HB 2747 Authorizing the state board of education to grant waivers for school districts from the requirement to provide a minimum number of school hours during the school term
- HCR 5009 Making application to the U.S. congress to call a convention of the states.
- HCR 5010 Constitutional amendment to require the Kansas supreme court to issue decisions within one year of final arguments.
- HCR 5013 Proposing to amend section 11 of article 1 of the constitution of the state of Kansas regarding the filling of vacancies in executive offices.
- HCR 5019 Amending the bill of rights of the constitution of the state of Kansas to reserve to the people the right to regulate abortion through their elected state representatives and senators.

HCR 5024 Amending the bill of rights of the constitution of the state of Kansas regarding the right to abortion, the right to require government funding for abortion and the power of the legislature to regulate abortion.

#### Financial Institutions and Pensions

- HB 2100 Providing a post-retirement benefit increase (COLA) for certain KPERS retirants.
- HB 2139 Permitting local eligible employers to affiliate with KP&F with regard to coverage of certain local corrections employees.
- HB 2141 Amortizing the state and school KPERS actuarial accrued liability for a period of 30 years and eliminating certain level-dollar employer contribution payments.
- HB 2142 Increasing the lump-sum death benefit for retirants under KPERS.
- HB 2217 Enacting the Kansas thrift savings plan act.
- HB 2218 Ending legislator participation in KPERS and establishing an annual salary structure for legislators.
- HB 2327 Increasing retirement benefit cap and decreasing employee contribution rate for members of the Kansas Police and Firemen's Retirement System in certain circumstances.
- HB 2328 Requiring certain military service that is concurrent with KPERS participating service to be credited as additional KPERS participating service.
- HB 2329 Increasing KPERS employee contribution rate for school district employees and making appropriations for FY 2020 for the department of education for a pay increase for KPERS covered school district employees.
- HB 2452 Providing certain KP&F tier II spousal and children's benefits for death resulting from a service-connected disability.
- HB 2619 Adjusting the frequency of the KPERS actuarial experience study.
- HB 2678 Affiliation with the Kansas police and firemen's retirement system by the Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism for membership of certain law enforcement officers and employees.

#### General Government Budget

- HB 2595 Eliminating the 30-day delay before offering state surplus property for sale to the general public.
- HR 6034 Approving executive reorganization order No. 45 that transfers certain powers, duties and functions to the division of the state employee health benefits plan within the department of administration.

### Health and Human Services

- HB 2066 Updating certain requirements relating to advanced practice registered nurses.
- HB 2082 Allowing pharmacists to administer drugs pursuant to a prescription order.
- HB 2146 Providing for certain business entities to engage in the corporate practice of medicine.
- HB 2155 Improving the Kansas medicolegal death investigation system.
- HB 2184 Enacting the massage therapist licensure act.
- HB 2185 Clarifying the naturopathic medicine scope of practice to include diagnostic imaging.
- HB 2198 Allowing the use of expedited partner therapy to treat a sexually transmitted disease.
- HB 2199 Amending documentation requirements related to preparation of dead bodies.
- HB 2200 Exempting hair threading from the practice of cosmetology.
- HB 2295 Providing for the licensure of anesthesiologist assistants.
- HB 2298 Allowing the assignment of dental insurance benefits under the state healthcare benefits program.

- HB 2307 Establishing non-covered dental benefits under health insurance plans and limitations on plan changes.
- HB 2339 Updating the naturopathic doctor licensure act.
- HB 2357 Exempting out-of-state licensed healthcare professionals from Kansas licensure requirements when traveling with a sports team.
- HB 2358 Imposing requirements to prescribe opioid drugs.
- HB 2570 Limiting certain Schedule II, III and IV opioid prescriptions to a seven-day supply.
- HB 2579 Updating certain provisions of the prescription monitoring program act relating to program data, storage and access and increasing the membership of the advisory committee.
- HB 2602 Expanding newborn screening services and increasing transfers from the medical assistance fee fund to the Kansas newborn screening fund.
- HB 2603 Amending behavioral sciences professional licensing requirements.
- HB 2630 Updating certain provisions of the Kansas dental practice act.
- HB 2631 Prohibiting disparate treatment by pharmacy benefits managers of certain pharmacies and pharmaceutical services providers.
- HB 2632 Authorizing the sale of smoking cessation aids to individuals who are are least 16 years of age.
- HB 2633 Establishing requirements relating to how certain health insurers treat dental care service claims; reimbursements; prior authorization; denials.
- HB 2680 Updating certain provisions of the optometry law pertaining to scope of practice, definitions and related requirements.
- HB 2681 Establishing the advisory committee on harm reduction within the department of health and environment.
- HB 2692 Transferring powers, duties and functions of the emergency medical services board to the secretary of health and environment.
- HB 2711 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2712 Updating the pharmacy act of the state of Kansas, relating to powers, duties and functions of the board of pharmacy; investigations, audits and inspections and telepharmacy.

### Higher Education Budget

HB 2168 Authorizing the state board of regents to sell and convey certain real property in Cherokee county and Riley county on behalf of Kansas state university.

### Insurance

- HB 2041 Prohibiting certain unfair or deceptive acts or practices under a life insurance policy for a living organ donor.
- HB 2053 Providing for short-term, limited-duration health plans.
- HB 2054 Providing for fully-insured association health plans.
- HB 2055 Making certain self-funded association health plans subject to the jurisdiction of the commissioner.
- HB 2056 Exempting health plans issued to associations of small employers from certain statutory provisions governing small employer health plans.
- HB 2057 Specifying the conditions under which a small employer carrier may establish certain classes of business.
- HB 2058 Updating definitions relating to small employer health plans and association health plans.
- HB 2059 Exempting certain association health plans from requirements pertaining to small

- employer health plans.
- HB 2143 Updating the version of risk-based capital instructions in effect.
- HB 2296 Increasing fines and providing for the impoundment of vehicles for violations of the Kansas automobile injury reparations act.
- HB 2478 Updating certain definitions and requirements of the third party administrators act.
- HB 2479 Codifying the NAIC corporate governance model regulation into statute.
- HB 2480 Updating the definition of long-term care insurance contained in the long-term care insurance act.
- HB 2556 Establishing insurance coverage parity for orthotic devices and prosthetic devices.
- HB 2557 Establishing a \$100 maximum out-of-pocket cost-share per month per covered person for prescription insulin drugs.
- HB 2558 Establishing the securities act victim restitution program.
- HB 2598 Providing for enhanced regulation of pharmacy benefits managers and requiring licensure of such entities rather than registration of such managers.
- Sub HB 2598 Substitute for Sub HB 2598 by Committee on Insurance Providing for enhanced regulation of pharmacy benefits managers and requiring licensure of such entities rather than registration of such managers.

## Judiciary

- HB 2065 Removing the duty of the driver of an authorized emergency vehicle to drive with due regard for the safety of all others.
- HB 2098 Making changes to the Kansas open records act for disclosure of criminal investigation records.
- HB 2105 Updating laws concerning limited liability companies.
- HB 2137 Legislative review of exceptions to disclosure of public records under the Kansas open records act.
- HB 2151 Granting immunity from civil liability to the person who files a citizen-initiated grand jury petition.
- HB 2152 Creating the assistance animal integrity act.
- HB 2192 Court of appeals judges to be nominated by the supreme court nominating commission and appointed by the governor.
- HB 2193 Requiring assets seized pursuant to the Kansas standard asset seizure and forfeiture act to be returned upon acquittal.
- HB 2206 Changing the bonding and cost requirements for animals taken into custody under a violation of cruelty to animals.
- HB 2210 Amending uninsured motorist coverage provision requirements in automobile liability insurance policies.
- HB 2242 Relating to instances when reports of abuse, neglect or exploitation are sent to both the department for children and families and the appropriate law enforcement agency.
- HB 2243 Exempting animal shelters from registration requirements as a charitable organization.
- HB 2244 Authorizing the use of cannabidiol treatment preparation to treat certain medical conditions.
- HB 2281 Providing that a court order modifying a criminal sentence only modifies the portion of the sentence referenced by the court and not remaining portions of the original sentence.
- HB 2291 Increasing caps on damages in wrongful death actions and escalating them annually based on the consumer price index.
- HB 2292 Allow prosecutor's office to enter into agreements for supervision of people on diversion and allowing people on diversion to participate in the certified drug

- treatment program.
- HB 2331 Amending remedies for victims of sexual abuse by a duly ordained minister of religion.
- HB 2332 Allowing punitive and exemplary damages in a wrongful death action.
- HB 2333 Allowing a court to make a finding that a final decree of adoption take effect at an earlier date.
- HB 2334 Expanding the list of people before whom a deposition shall not be taken.
- HB 2348 Increasing liability limits for the healthcare stabilization fund.
- HB 2446 Clarifying when a receipt of property seized by law enforcement should be sent to the court and who seized weapons should be returned to.
- HB 2447 Changing how two-way electronic audio-visual communication is used in courts.
- HB 2448 Changing penalties for crimes related to motor vehicles.
- HB 2449 Changing the requirements for board of indigents' defense services appointments.
- HB 2450 Amending the Kansas clean indoor air act to include vaping of tobacco-derived products.
- HB 2457 Allowing a court case file to be opened and sealed when amending a birth certificate.
- HB 2461 Enacting the public litigation coordination act to restrict contracts by public entities for legal services on a contingent fee basis.
- HB 2467 Removing the spousal exception from sexual battery.
- HB 2468 Changing the elements and making changes to the criminal penalties of abuse of a child and creating the crime of aggravated abuse of a child.
- HB 2500 Amending the Kansas power of attorney act regarding the form of a power of attorney and the duties of third parties relying and acting on a power of attorney.
- HB 2521 Enacting the revised uniform athlete agents act.
- HB 2523 Enacting the Kansas assistance animals in housing act.
- HB 2532 Authorizing the department of education to contract with a private vendor to install and operate school bus cameras.
- HB 2533 Enacting the uniform family law arbitration act.
- HB 2544 Requiring prosecutors to disclose their intent to introduce testimony from a jailhouse witness and to forward information to the Kansas bureau of investigation
- HB 2551 Allowing courts to prohibit possession of a firearm in a temporary custody order pursuant to the care and treatment act for mentally ill persons.
- HB 2554 Enacting the uniform fiduciary income and principal act (UFIPA).
- HB 2587 Allowing venue for an agency adoption to be where a state agency or their subcontracting agencies have offices when the state is the agency.
- HB 2647 Requiring earlier notice of anticipated release from custody of a person who may be a sexually violent predator to the attorney general and a multidisciplinary team and specifying where such person will be detained during civil commitment proceedings.
- HB 2673 Conferring original jurisdiction to the supreme court to hear certain actions related to the health care provider insurance availability act, the healthcare stabilization fund and claims for noneconomic loss in medical malpractice liability actions.
- HB 2674 Allowing investigations of child deaths by coroner before performing an autopsy.
- HB 2675 Authorizing judges to extend protection from abuse orders for more reasons.
- HB 2693 Creating a civil cause of action for victims of certain alcohol related incidents.
- HB 2699 Requiring court services officers to assist with child in need of care cases when directed by a judge.
- HB 2707 Allowing military service members ordered to relocate to terminate leases.
- HB 2713 Enacting the revised uniform law on notarial acts.

# K-12 Education Budget

- HB 2106 Increasing the BASE aid under the Kansas school equity and enhancement act and making appropriations for the department of education.
- HB 2108 Authorizing school districts to expend at-risk education funds on evidence-based learning programs.
- HB 2145 Making appropriations for fiscal years 2020 and 2021 for the department of education for special education and related services.
- HB 2207 Requirements for school district construction contracts relating to requests for proposals that specify particular products or particular installation methods.
- HB 2257 Requirements for school district bullying policies; investigation of complaints.
- Sub HB 2395 Substitute for HB 2395 by Committee on K-12 Education Budget Amending the Kansas school equity and enhancement act and making appropriations to the department of education.
  - HB 2526 Amending the capital improvement state aid schedule to exclude U.S.D. No. 207, Fort Leavenworth.
  - HB 2540 Requiring moneys attributable to at-risk student weighting be expended for approved at-risk educational programs.
  - HB 2582 Creating the behavioral health intervention weighting as part of the Kansas school equity and enhancement act.

## Local Government

- HB 2135 Restrictions on city and county political sign regulations repealed.
- HB 2237 Allow cities and counties to publish legal notices on the internet.
- HB 2239 Liquor sales by licensees in common consumption areas.
- HB 2509 Vacating certain blocks in the original town plat set aside for a college and a park of the city of Americus and vesting fee simple title in the city.
- HB 2510 Special districts may be dissolved and responsibilities assumed by a city.
- HB 2583 Clarify the vacation of territory from city boundaries or release of easements.
- HB 2584 Allowing cities, counties and local governments to raise the minimum wage by ordinance, resolution or law.
- HCR 5007 Constitutional amendment granting counties home rule powers.

#### Rural Revitalization

- HB 2131 Providing for a sales tax exemption for construction and certain purchases for businesses qualifying as part of an enterprise zone.
- HB 2154 Making unemployment benefits available for federal and state employees who are required to work without pay.
- HB 2342 Allowing the secretary for children and families to request a waiver from the U.S. department for agriculture for time limited assistance.
- HB 2366 Allowing apparatus operators to provide ground ambulance transportation for certain patients in rural areas.
- HB 2516 Enacting the first-time home buyer savings account act.
- HB 2527 Removing sunset provisions for closed sessions and privileged records regarding trauma cases.
- HB 2677 Establishing a primary health center and enacting the primary health center pilot program act contingent upon state acceptance into a demonstration program under the centers for medicare and medicaid innovation.

### Social Services Budget

HB 2235 Concerning tax clearance certificates for executive branch job applicants and

- employees; when required.
- HB 2549 Setting the protected income level for persons receiving home and communitybased services at 150% of SSI.
- HB 2550 Increasing reimbursement rates for providers of home and community-based services under the intellectual or developmentally disabled waiver.

### Taxation

- HB 2040 Providing sales tax authority for Finney county.
- HB 2063 Tax lid exemption when taxing entity abolished and duties assumed by a city or county.
- HB 2086 Exempting mechanical amusement devices from sales tax, providing for use of a tax stamp.
- HB 2093 Providing for a sales tax exemption for sales of currency, certain coins and bullion.
- HB 2133 Required reporting for entities who deliver alcoholic liquors to consumers.
- HB 2134 Sales tax exemption for nonprofit integrated community care organizations.
- HB 2138 Required fee for entry into a sexually oriented business.
- HB 2160 Providing sales tax authority for Wabaunsee county.
- HB 2212 Apportionment of corporate income under the multistate tax compact; election.
- HB 2232 Income tax treatment of net operating loss carryback on the sale of certain hotels.
- HB 2261 Decreasing the sales and use tax rate on food and food ingredients to 5.5%.
- HB 2267 Sales tax exemption for fencing used in agricultural use.
- HB 2272 Increasing the sales tax collection threshold for certain retailers and the required timeframe for payment of tax.
- HB 2278 Calculating income tax rates through the use of formulas.
- HB 2340 Restricting distribution of certain property taxes paid under protest.
- HB 2345 Tax lid exception when budget was higher in prior seven years.
- HB 2349 Sales tax collections by remote sellers.
- HB 2352 Providing changes to nexus for the sales and use tax law; requiring tax collection by marketplace facilitators; imposing sales tax on digital products.
- HB 2367 Authorizing transfers from the state general fund to the local ad valorem tax reduction fund and county and city revenue sharing fund if the city or county has a new road construction or bridge improvement plan and the plan is approved by the secretary of transportation.
- HB 2368 Tax lid exception for transportation construction projects.
- HB 2369 Authorizing the secretary of transportation to designate toll projects on new and existing highways and changing financing requirements for toll or turnpike projects.
- HB 2370 Providing for an increase in motor fuel taxes and rate trips.
- HB 2371 Providing for an increase in permit fees for oversize or overweight vehicles and required registration for escort vehicle service operators.
- HB 2372 Providing for an increase in registration fees for electric and hybrid vehicles.
- HB 2380 Length of time prior to use of debt collection agencies for delinquent taxes; time for payment of sales and liquor drink tax; liability of person to collect sales or compensating use tax.
- HB 2381 Providing for a \$.06 increase in motor fuel taxes.
- HB 2384 Amending powers, duties and functions of the Kansas state board of cosmetology relating to licensing and hearings.
- HB 2386 Transfers to the local ad valorem tax reduction fund.
- HB 2388 Length of time for Kansas corporation NOL carryforward.
- HB 2398 Requiring the repeal or suspension of existing sales tax exemption when

- implementing any new exemption.
- HB 2399 Sales tax exemption extension for Gove county healthcare endowment foundation, inc.
- HB 2403 Establishing the joint committee on child welfare system oversight.
- HB 2404 Establishing the Kansas senior services task force.
- HB 2408 Allowing third-party fee simple appraisals to be filed with county appraisers for residential property.
- HB 2409 Providing a tax credit for donations to certain postsecondary educational institutions that provide scholarships to students with financial need.
- HB 2414 Providing a sales tax exemption for the principle foundation.
- HB 2416 Creating the Kansas targeted employment act; income tax credit.
- HB 2417 Extending the length of time for the Kansas corporation NOL carryforward.
- HB 2418 Length of time prior to use of debt collection agencies for delinquent taxes; time for payment of sales and liquor drink tax; liability of person to collect sales or compensating use tax; administration of liquor enforcement tax.
- HB 2440 Providing for the election of county appraisers.
- HB 2441 Expanding the ability for cities and school districts to operate and finance a community historical museum.
- HB 2442 Removing the line for reporting compensating use tax from income tax returns.
- HB 2460 Providing an income tax credit for qualified railroad track maintenance expenditures of short line railroads.
- HB 2466 Enacting the Kansas taxpayer protection act; requiring the signature and tax identification number of paid tax return preparers on income tax returns; authorizing actions to enjoin paid tax return preparers from engaging in certain conduct
- HB 2490 Kansas corporation NOL carryforward extension.
- HB 2498 Excluding hypothetical leased fee when determining fair market value for real property.
- HB 2499 Providing a tax credit for expenditures for placing into service a qualified alternative-fuel fueling station.
- HB 2513 Requiring marketplace facilitators to collect and remit sales, use and transient guest taxes from sales made through their platforms; removing click-through nexus provisions.
- HB 2537 Requiring that remote sellers make \$100,000 in gross receipts from sales for sales tax nexus requirements.
- HB 2538 Increasing the Kansas standard deduction.
- HB 2541 Allowing certain private not-for-profit postsecondary educational institutions to recoup credit card fees by permitting a surcharge for credit card transactions in the same manner as municipal universities, community colleges, technical colleges and vocational educational schools.
- HB 2542 Increasing the subtraction modification for social security income to \$100,000.
- HB 2543 Amending the definition of alternative fuel for the alternative-fueled motor vehicle property expenditure tax credit.
- HB 2553 Providing income tax modifications for global intangible low-taxed income, business interest, capital contributions and FDIC premiums.
- HB 2567 Increasing the subtraction modification for social security income.
- HB 2593 Tax credit for contributions to technical colleges.
- HB 2607 Providing for installment payment plans for property taxes owed on primary residential property.
- Sub HB 2607 Substitute for HB 2607 by Committee on Taxation Providing for county treasurers to establish a payment plan for the payment of delinquent or

- nondelinquent taxes.
- HB 2654 Sales tax exemption for purchases made by SOAR special needs.
- HB 2655 Sales tax exemption for friends of hospice of Jefferson county.
- HB 2656 Discontinuing apportionment of countywide retailers' sales tax imposed for general purposes between the county and cities located therein.
- HB 2657 Requiring marketplace facilitators to collect and remit sales and compensating use
- HB 2683 Providing a sales tax exemption for sent, inc.
- HB 2684 Providing for the required mill levy for financing education for the subsequent two school years and extending the exemption for residential property from the statewide school levy.
- HB 2685 Imposing sales tax on digital property and subscription services.
- HB 2691 Authorizing the state corporation commission to issue securitized ratepayerbacked bonds for electric generation facilities; enacting the Kansas electricity bill reduction bonds act, K-EBRA bonds.
- HB 2694 Providing for a sales tax exemption for purchases by animal shelters.
- HB 2696 Providing a tax lid exception for transportation construction projects.
- HB 2698 Authorizing counties to impose an earnings tax.
- HB 2720 Providing a refundable income tax credit for certain purchases of food and discontinuing the nonrefundable food sales tax credit.
- HB 2721 Extending the eligible time period for the rural opportunity zone loan repayment program and income tax credit.
- HB 2722 Establishing tax withholding requirements when certain employees work in multiple states.
- HB 2726 Extending the dates when corporate tax returns are required to be filed.
- HB 2727 Requiring the repeal or suspension of existing sales tax exemption when implementing any new exemption, providing for a sales tax exemption for envision, inc. and friends of hospice of Jefferson county and imposing sales tax on certain services.
- HB 2729 Sales tax exemption for storytime village, inc.
- HB 2730 Sales tax exemption for registered charitable organizations.
- HB 2734 Updating field of membership requirements of credit unions and allowing privilege tax deductions on certain business and single family residence loans.
- HB 2739 Changing to an eight-year simple average and changing the capitalization rate for valuation of agricultural land for purposes of property taxation.
- HB 2741 Providing a sales tax exemption for area agencies on aging.
- HB 2743 Allowing the chief justice of the Kansas supreme court to alter or suspend deadlines to secure the health and safety of court users, staff and judicial officers.
- HB 2746 Providing for a temporary higher interest rate for municipal bonds.

### **Transportation**

- HB 2117 Providing for the Knights of Columbus distinctive license plate.
- HB 2179 Adopting the Driver's Privacy Protection Act.
- HB 2180 Changing certain registration and title fees on vehicles and disposition of funds.
- Sub HB 2180 Substitute for HB 2180 by Committee on Transportation Changing certain registration and title fees on vehicles and disposition of funds.
  - HB 2221 Designating a bridge on United States highway 77 in Cowley county as the SGT Kevin Gilbertson veterans memorial bridge.
  - HB 2246 Changing the requirements to begin production on distinctive license plates.
  - HB 2247 Designating a portion of United States highway 77 as the Capt Donald Root Strother memorial highway.

- HB 2351 Allowing oversize or overweight utility vehicles to operate at all times and all weather and road conditions when responding to emergency utility outages.
- HB 2364 Creating the Kansas Aerospace Commission.
- HB 2458 Creating the negligent driving violation.
- HB 2481 Allowing police vehicles to equip blue-only lights.
- HB 2482 Excluding air bags from the definition of cost of repairs for salvage vehicles.
- HB 2489 Providing for the proud educator license plate.
- HB 2497 Requiring drivers to proceed with due caution when passing stationary vehicles displaying hazard warning lights and providing a penalty for violation.
- HB 2501 Allowing salvage vehicle pools to apply for ownership documents for vehicles that are disclaimed by insurance companies.
- HB 2502 Designating a portion of United States highway 77 as the Cpl. Allen E. Oatney and SP4 Gene A. Myers memorial highway.
- HB 2524 Updating motor carrier laws and regulation of motor carriers by the state corporation commission.
- HB 2525 Designating a bridge on United States highway 77 as the PFC Loren H. Larson memorial bridge.
- HB 2531 Establishing a fee on firefighter distinctive license plates.
- HB 2568 Allowing local authorities to decrease a speed limit to 5 miles per hour and decrease any speed limit without requiring an engineering and traffic investigation.
- HB 2569 Allowing model year vehicle dealer license plates to be displayed on antique vehicles.
- HB 2592 Providing for the American legion, knights of Columbus and proud educator distinctive license plates and providing for lowered license plate commitments and costs prior to production.
- HB 2624 Allowing distinctive license plates to be personalized license plates.

# Veterans and Military

- HB 2362 Creating the Kansas military base task force.
- HB 2363 Requiring inquiry about veteran status in supervised loans.
- HB 2486 Allowing all current national guard and reservist members an exemption from vehicle property tax.

## **State Legislature, Joint Committees**

## Joint Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice Oversight

- SB 14 Evidence based juvenile programs; lapsing and appropriating \$6,000,000 state general fund moneys from department of health and environment-division of health care finance to the department of corrections.
- HB 2027 Evidence based juvenile programs; lapsing and appropriating \$6,000,000 state general fund moneys from department of health and environment-division of health care finance to the department of corrections.
- HB 2028 Allowing money in the evidence-based programs account managed by the department of corrections to be used for transportation to programs and electronic monitoring.
- HB 2445 Allowing children who run away to be placed in a juvenile detention facility for 24 hours.

## Joint Committee on Special Claims Against the State

- SB 25 Claims against the state.
- HB 2548 Claims against the state submitted by the Joint Committee on Special Claims

Against the State.

#### Legislative Post Audit Committee

- SB 258 Removing the requirement that certain entities submit certain reports to the division of post audit.
- HB 2439 Removing the requirement that certain entities submit certain reports to the division of post audit.

#### Joint Committee on Pensions, Investments and Benefits

SB 15 Amending the definition of "service-connected" in the Kansas police and firemen's retirement system.

# Robert G. (Bob) Bethell Joint Committee on Home and Community Based Services and KanCare Oversight

- SB 10 Eliminating the client obligation for persons receiving home and community-based services.
- SB 11 Establishing the licensure of dental therapists.
- SB 12 Changing eligibility requirements and limitations for public assistance programs.

### State Legislature, Special Committees

Senate Select Committee on Federal Tax Code Implementation

- SB 104 Enacting the Kansas taxpayer protection act; requiring the signature and tax identification number of paid tax return preparers on income tax returns; and authorizing actions to enjoin paid tax return preparers from engaging in certain conduct.
- SB 142 Appropriations for the department of education for FY 2020 and FY 2021 in response to litigation; increasing BASE aid for certain school years.
- SB 147 Appropriations for the department of education for FY 2019, 2020 and 2021; continuing 20 mill statewide levy for schools and exempting certain portion used for residential purposes from such levy.
- SB 204 Establishing the legislative post audit economic development incentive review subcommittee.

# **SUBJECT INDEX**

This index includes all legislation sponsored by House and Senate Members, House and Senate Committees, Joint Committees and Special Committees.

Abortion	3021	Economic Development	3035
Administration, State Department of	3021	Elections	3035
Administrative Procedure	3021	Emergencies and Disasters	3035
Adult Care Homes	3021	Energy	3035
Aged Persons	3021	Environment	3035
Aging and Disability Services, Department for	3021	Ethics, Governmental	3035
Agriculture	3021	Executive Reorganization Orders	3036
Alcoholic Beverages	3022	Family Law	3036
Animals	3022	Financial Institutions	3036
Appropriations	3023	Fire and Fire Protection	3036
Arts and Culture	3024	Firearms	3036
Attorney General	3024	Funds	3037
Attorneys	3024	Funerals	3037
Barbers and Barbering	3024	Gambling and Gaming	3037
Behavioral Sciences	3024	Health and Environment, Department of	3038
Boards, Commissions and Task Forces	3024	Health and Health Care	3039
Bonds	3025	Health Professions and Practices	3041
Cemeteries	3025	Information Technology	3041
Children and Families, Department for	3025	Insurance	3041
Children and Minors	3026	Labor and Employment	3043
Cigarettes and Tobacco Products	3026	Law Enforcement	3044
Cities	3026	Legislature	3044
Civil Procedure and Civil Actions	3027	Libraries	3045
Civil Rights	3027	Licenses and Licensure	3045
Colleges and Universities	3027	Military	3045
Commerce, Department of	3028	Motor Carriers	3045
Compacts	3028	Motor Vehicles	3045
Constitutional Amendments (Kansas)	3028	Municipalities	3046
Constitutional Amendments (U.S.)	3029	Oil and Gas	3047
Consumer Protection	3029	Open Meetings	3047
Contracts and Contractors	3029	Open Records	3047
Corporation Commission, State	3029	Pharmacists and Pharmacy	3047
Corporations and Business Entities	3029	Private Detectives	3047
Corrections, Department of	3030	Public Officers and Employees	3047
Cosmetologists and Cosmetology	3030	Publications	3048
Counties	3030	Railroads	3048
Courts	3031	Real Estate	3048
COVID-19	3031	Records and Recordation	3048
Crimes, Punishment and Criminal Procedure	3032	Redistricting	3048
Disabilities, Persons with	3034	Repealers	3048
Discrimination	2024	Desolutions	2049

## Subject Index

Retirement and Pensions	3049	Statutes	3054
Revenue, Department of	3050	Taxation	3054
Roads and Highways	3050	Telecommunications	3058
Rules and Regulations, Administrative	3050	Townships	3058
Schools	3051	Traffic Regulations	3058
Secretary of State	3053	Transportation	3058
Securities	3053	Trusts and Trustees	3058
State	3053	Uniform Acts	3058
State Agencies	3053	Utilities	3059
State Fair	3053	Veterinarians	3059
State Finance	3053	Waste	3059
State Property	3053	Water	3059
State Treasurer	3054	Wildlife, Parks and Tourism	3059
		Workers Compensation	3059

Abortion	1	S 311	Residents, Electronic monitoring
HCR 5019	Constitutional amendment, No right to abortion	S 451	Residents, Involuntary transfer or discharge, right to
HCR 5024	Constitutional amendment, No right to abortion	H 2629	appeal Supplemental nursing services agencies
SCR 1613	Constitutional amendment, No right to abortion	11 202)	Supplemental harsing services agencies
H 2318	Funding by taxpayers, prohibition of		
H 2274	Medication abortions, Notification requirements	Aged Pe	rsons
S 167	Medication abortions, Notification requirements	H 2700	Abuse, neglect or exploitation, Financial exploitation
Adminis	tration, State Department of	H 2242	Abuse, neglect or exploitation, Reports of
	, <b>.</b>	H 2186	Care of, right to use sick leave
H 2736	Bonds, Health and environment laboratory,	H 2347	Kansas Alzheimer's disease advisory council
S 487	construction of Bonds, Health and environment laboratory,	H 2404 H 2500	Kansas senior services task force Power of attorney
5 107	construction of	11 2500	1 over or another
H 2455	Contracts, Preference for job corps program	Aging ar	nd Disability Services, Department for
	participants	ERO 44	Abolishment of
H 2187	Office of the child advocate for children's protection	S 407	Acute psychiatric care for children
H 2262	and services Secretary, Kansas buy American act	H 2487	Disability license plates and placards
S 180	Secretary, Kansas buy American act	S 284	Disability license plates and placards
H 2439	Secretary, Write-off of accounts and taxes receivable,	H 2550	Home and community-based services, Rate increase
	Report to legislative post audit, removal of	S 208	Home and community-based services, Rate increase
S 258	Secretary, Write-off of accounts and taxes receivable,	S 348 ERO 44	Home and community-based services, Rate increase
IID 6024	Report to legislative post audit, removal of	S 232	Human services, department of Powers, duties and functions, Adult care home
HR 6034	State employee health benefits plan division, State employee health benefits plan, administration of	3 232	receivership
S 45	State employee health benefits plan division, State	H 2343	Providers of disability services, Provisional
5.5	employee health benefits plan, administration of		employment
SCR 1763	State employee health benefits plan division, State	S 313	Providers of disability services, Provisional
	employee health benefits plan, administration of	S 100	employment Sexually violent predator treatment program,
ERO 45	State employee health benefits plan division, State	5 100	Transitional release or conditional release
	workers compensation self-insurance fund, administration of	H 2629	Supplemental nursing services agencies
HR 6034	State employee health benefits plan division, State		
	workers compensation self-insurance fund,	Agricult	ure
	administration of	H 2432	Agricultural chemicals, Agricultural and specialty
SCR 1763	State employee health benefits plan division, State workers compensation self-insurance fund,		chemical remediation act, Kansas pesticide waste
	administration of		disposal program, creation of
ERO 45	State employee health benefits plan division, State	H 2463	Agricultural chemicals, Chemigation, Criminal
	workers compensation self-insurance fund,	S 457	history record checks Agricultural land, Property tax, Mapping, soil survey
	administration of	H 2293	Agricultural land, Property tax, Mapping, son survey Agricultural land, Property tax, Valuation
H 2595	Surplus property, sale requirements	H 2739	Agricultural land, Property tax, Valuation
		H 2640	Carbon farming
Adminis	trative Procedure	S 117	Department of agriculture, Animal health, division of,
S 262	Board of tax appeals, Complete opinion, request of	6.117	Commissioner, duties of
H 2411	Rules and regulations filing act, Director of the	S 117	Department of agriculture, Animal health, division of, Contagious and infectious diseases
	budget, review by	H 2451	Department of agriculture, Animal health, division of,
Adult C	are Homes		License, permit and registration deadlines
		H 2451	Department of agriculture, Animal health, division of,
H 2054	COVID-19, Inspections for infection control		Vaccination tags
H 2396	COVID-19, Inspections for infection control	H 2462	Department of agriculture, Conservation, division of
H 2054 H 2396	COVID-19, Personal protective equipment COVID-19, Personal protective equipment	H 2437	Department of agriculture, Food, drug and cosmetic act, Meat analogs, labeling of
H 2360	Employees, Criminal history record checks	H 2222	Department of agriculture, Food, drug and cosmetic
S 450	Employees, Dementia care training		act, Plastic straws, prohibition of
H 2343	Employees, Provisional employment	H 2173	Department of agriculture, Industrial hemp,
S 313	Employees, Provisional employment	~ ~~-	Commercial industrial hemp program
H 2168 S 409	Quality care assessment, Extension	S 233	Department of agriculture, Industrial hemp,
S 409 S 232	Quality care assessment, Permanent Receivership, Powers and duties of receivers	S 345	Commercial industrial hemp program  Department of agriculture, Industrial hemp, Effective
S 232	Receivership, Process	5 545	disposal of
H 2344	Residents, Antipsychotic medication, informed	H 2400	Department of agriculture, Kratom products,
	written consent for		regulation of
H 2229	Residents, Electronic monitoring		

S 270	Department of agriculture, Water resources, division of, Chief engineer, Multi-year flex accounts	H 2672	Clubs and drinking establishments, Licensure, Sale of cereal malt beverage
S 329	Department of agriculture, Water resources, division of, Chief engineer, Qualifications of	S 417	Clubs and drinking establishments, Licensure, Sale of cereal malt beverage
S 182	Department of agriculture, Water resources, division	H 2596	Clubs and drinking establishments, Purchases,
S 182	of, Chief engineer, Rules and regulations Department of agriculture, Water resources, division	H 2672	Manufacturer licenses, requirements for Clubs and drinking establishments, Sale of alcoholic
S 182	of, Water appropriation act, Violations Department of agriculture, Water resources, division	S 417	beverages, Cereal malt beverage Clubs and drinking establishments, Sale of alcoholic
	of, Water appropriation act, Water measuring devices	S 221	beverages, Cereal malt beverage Clubs and drinking establishments, Sale of alcoholic
H 2464 H 2173	Egg repacking requirements Industrial hemp, Commercial industrial hemp	H 2054	beverages, Consumption off licensed premises Clubs and drinking establishments, Sale of alcoholic
S 233	program Industrial hemp, Commercial industrial hemp	Н 2396	beverages, Nonoriginal containers Clubs and drinking establishments, Sale of alcoholic
	program		beverages, Nonoriginal containers
S 345 S 224	Industrial hemp, Effective disposal of Kansas retail pet shop act	H 2054	COVID-19, Sale of alcoholic beverages, Nonoriginal containers
S 308	Milk and dairy products, On-farm retail sales, Labeling and advertising requirements	S 417	Licenses and permits, Clubs and drinking establishments, Class A club special events,
S 300	Milk and dairy products, On-farm retail sales, Prohibition of	H 2571	authorization of Licenses and permits, Clubs and drinking
H 2432	Pesticides, Kansas pesticide waste disposal program,		establishments, Eligibility
H 2463	creation of Pesticides, Licensees, Criminal history record checks	S 433	Licenses and permits, Clubs and drinking establishments, Eligibility
H 2463	Pesticides, Licensees, Financial responsibility, proof of	H 2596	Licenses and permits, Clubs and drinking establishments, Manufacturers
H 2156	Pesticides, Licensees, Unlawful acts	H 2672	Licenses and permits, Clubs and drinking
S 111	Poultry facilities, County protest petition	6.417	establishments, Sale of cereal malt beverage
S 112 S 111	Poultry facilities, County protest petition Poultry facilities, Establishment of	S 417	Licenses and permits, Clubs and drinking establishments, Sale of cereal malt beverage
S 111	Poultry facilities, Establishment of	S 164	Licenses and permits, Effective date
S 110	Poultry facilities, Health impact assessment	S 433	Licenses and permits, Enforcement
H 2640	Tax credits, Carbon farming	S 483	Licenses and permits, Farm wineries
		S 432	Licenses and permits, Special order shipping
Alcoholi	c Beverages	H 2672	Licenses and permits, Temporary permits, Sale of cereal malt beverage
H 2239	Alcoholic liquor, Consumption, Common consumption areas	S 417	Licenses and permits, Temporary permits, Sale of cereal malt beverage
H 2239	Alcoholic liquor, Consumption, Common	S 408	Liquor control act, Liquor enforcement tax,
	consumption areas, Liquor sales		distribution of, State fair capital improvements fund
S 408	Alcoholic liquor, Consumption, Common	H 2379	Microbreweries, Enforcement tax exemption
0.221	consumption areas, State fair grounds	S 207	Microbreweries, Enforcement tax exemption
S 221 H 2133	Alcoholic liquor, Consumption, Off licensed premises Alcoholic liquor, Delivery of, Required reporting	H 2379	Microdistilleries, Enforcement tax exemption
H 2380		S 207	Microdistilleries, Enforcement tax exemption
H 2379	Alcoholic liquor, Enforcement tax, Administration of Alcoholic liquor, Enforcement tax, Exemption from	S 432	Retailers, Sunday hours, change of
S 207	Alcoholic liquor, Enforcement tax, Exemption from	S 456	Retailers, Sunday hours, change of
S 432	Alcoholic liquor, Retailers, Sunday hours, change of	S 483	Wine and wineries, Farm wineries, Kansas product
S 456	Alcoholic liquor, Retailers, Sunday hours, change of		requirement in domestic wine, elimination of
S 226	Cereal malt beverages, Days and hours of sale	S 483	Wine and wineries, Farm wineries, Licensure
H 2672	Cereal malt beverages, Days and nours of sale	S 432	Wine and wineries, Special order shipping
S 417	Cereal malt beverages, Temporary permits		
H 2693	Civil actions, Alcoholic beverage provider	Animals	
H 2693	Civil actions, Dram shop	H 2161	Animal abuse offender repository, creation of
S 417	Clubs and drinking establishments, Class A clubs,	H 2206	Animal cruelty
5 417	Special events, authorization of	H 2243	Animal shelters, Charitable organization act,
H 2571	Clubs and drinking establishments, Licensure,	11 22 .5	exemption from
	Eligibility	H 2397	Dangerous regulated animals
S 433	Clubs and drinking establishments, Licensure,	H 2421	Dogs, Assistance dogs, Accredited training facilities,
	Eligibility		required training by
S 433	Clubs and drinking establishments, Licensure,	H 2421	Dogs, Assistance dogs, Raisers, right of
H 2596	Enforcement Clubs and drinking establishments, Licensure,	H 2669	accommodation for Endangered and threatened species, listing of
11 4370	Manufacturers, exception for	H 2271	Livestock running at large

S 117	Pet animals, Contagious and infectious diseases	H 2078	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2020
S 224	Pet animals, Retail pet shop act	H 2106	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2020
H 2622	Wildlife, Poaching	H 2145	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2020
Appropr	riations	H 2329	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2020
		H 2395	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2020
H 2122	2019 session, Appropriations for FY 2020	S 44	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2020
S 75 H 2122	2019 session, Appropriations for FY 2020	S 142	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2020
	2019 session, Appropriations for FY 2021	S 147	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2020
S 75 H 2122	2019 session, Appropriations for FY 2021	S 156	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2020
S 75	2019 session, Appropriations for FY 2022	H 2078	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2021
H 2121	2019 session, Appropriations for FY 2022 2019 session, Supplemental, Appropriations for FY	H 2106	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2021
11 2121	2019 session, supplemental, Appropriations for 1-1	H 2145	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2021
S 72	2019 session, Supplemental, Appropriations for FY	H 2395	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2021
5 /2	2019 session, supplemental, Appropriations for 1 1	S 44	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2021
H 2597	2020 session, Appropriations for FY 2020	S 142 S 147	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2021
S 66	2020 session, Appropriations for FY 2020		Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2021
S 386	2020 session, Appropriations for FY 2020	S 318 S 1	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2021
H 2597	2020 session, Appropriations for FY 2021	5 1	Education, department of, Transportation weightings funded by the state general fund
S 66	2020 session, Appropriations for FY 2021	H 2711	Health and environment, department of,
S 386	2020 session, Appropriations for FY 2021	11 2/11	Appropriations for FY 2020 and 2021
H 2597	2020 session, Appropriations for FY 2022	S 252	Health and environment, department of,
S 66	2020 session, Appropriations for FY 2022	3 232	Appropriations for FY 2020 and 2021
S 386	2020 session, Appropriations for FY 2022	S 363	Health and environment, department of,
H 2548	2020 session, Claims against the state	5 505	Appropriations for FY 2021 and 2022
H 2594	2020 session, Supplemental, Appropriations for FY	H 2027	Health and environment, department of, Division of
	2020	11 2027	health care finance, Evidence-based juvenile
H 2597	2020 session, Supplemental, Appropriations for FY		programs
	2020	S 14	Health and environment, department of, Division of
S 66	2020 session, Supplemental, Appropriations for FY		health care finance, Evidence-based juvenile
	2020		programs
S 385	2020 session, Supplemental, Appropriations for FY	H 2711	Insurance department, Appropriations for FY 2020
	2020		and 2021
H 2594	2020 session, Supplemental, Appropriations for FY	S 252	Insurance department, Appropriations for FY 2020
	2021		and 2021
H 2597	2020 session, Supplemental, Appropriations for FY	H 2063	Juvenile justice authority, State institutions building
	2021		fund, State general fund, transfer to
S 66	2020 session, Supplemental, Appropriations for FY	S 466	Juvenile justice authority, State institutions building
	2021		fund, State general fund, transfer to
S 385	2020 session, Supplemental, Appropriations for FY	H 2063	Kansas commission on veterans affairs, State
	2021		institutions building fund, State general fund,
H 2550	Aging and disability services, department for, Home		transfer to
	and community-based services, rate increase	S 466	Kansas commission on veterans affairs, State
S 208	Aging and disability services, department for, Home		institutions building fund, State general fund,
0.240	and community-based services, rate increase		transfer to
S 348	Aging and disability services, department for, Home	H 2503	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
11.2062	and community-based services, rate increase		Kansas public employees retirement fund, State
H 2063	Aging and disability services, department for, State		general fund, transfer to
	institutions building fund, State general fund, transfer to	H 2555	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
S 466			Kansas public employees retirement fund, State
3 400	Aging and disability services, department for, State institutions building fund, State general fund,		general fund, transfer to
	transfer to	S 321	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
S 370	Budget estimates, biennial		Kansas public employees retirement fund, State
S 370	Consensus revenue estimates, biennial	0.260	general fund, transfer to
H 2054	Coronavirus relief fund, Legislative coordinating	S 368	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
11 2054	council		Kansas public employees retirement fund, State
H 2396	Coronavirus relief fund, Legislative coordinating	H 2063	general fund, transfer to
	council	П 2003	State board of regents, Kansas educational building
H 2027	Corrections, department of, Evidence-based juvenile	S 466	fund, State general fund, transfer to State board of regents, Kansas educational building
	programs	3 400	
S 14	Corrections, department of, Evidence-based juvenile	H 2711	fund, State general fund, transfer to State finance council, Appropriations for FY 2022
	programs	S 252	State finance council, Appropriations for FY 2022 State finance council, Appropriations for FY 2022
H 2078	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2019	H 2286	State school for the deaf, Appropriations for FY 2020
H 2395	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2019	H 2121	Supplemental, Appropriations for FY 2019
S 44	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2019	S 72	Supplemental, Appropriations for FY 2019
S 147	Education, department of, Appropriations for FY 2019	H 2594	Supplemental, Appropriations for FY 2020

H 2597	Supplemental, Appropriations for FY 2020	Attorney	ys
S 66 S 385	Supplemental, Appropriations for FY 2020	H 2449	Board of indigents' defense services appointments
H 2594	Supplemental, Appropriations for FY 2020 Supplemental, Appropriations for FY 2021	H 2292	County and district attorneys, Diversion agreements
H 2597	Supplemental, Appropriations for FY 2021 Supplemental, Appropriations for FY 2021	H 2461	Fees, Contingent fees, restriction of
S 66	Supplemental, Appropriations for FY 2021	S 444	Fees, Contingent fees, restriction of
S 385	Supplemental, Appropriations for FY 2021	S 446	Fees, Contingent fees, restriction of
H 2246	University of Kansas medical center, Cancer research	S 107	Fees, Property and casualty insurance judgments
	and public information trust fund, State general	H 2253	Fees, Unpaid wage claims
	fund, transfer to	H 2500	Kansas power of attorney act
S 255	University of Kansas medical center, Cancer research	S 445	Legal advertising, requirements and restrictions
	and public information trust fund, State general	H 2020	Open records act, information subject to
	fund, transfer to	S 445	Soliciting for legal services, Protected health information, restriction on
H 2246	Wichita state university, Bonding authority	S 447	Third-party litigation funding
Autsand	Culture	5	rand party insparen randing
Ai ts anu	Culture	Barbers	and Barbering
H 2309	Kansas arts commission, recreation of		o .
H 2309	Kansas creative arts industries commission, functions	H 2383	Board of barbering, Powers, duties and functions, Fees
	of	S 365	Board of barbering, Powers, duties and functions,
	~ .	3 303	Fees
Attorney	General	H 2383	Board of barbering, Powers, duties and functions,
S 106	Actions, Wrongful conviction, collateral actions	11 2303	Licenses
S 422	Actions, Wrongful conviction, collateral actions	S 365	Board of barbering, Powers, duties and functions,
S 64	CLEAR act		Licenses
S 65	Corrupt reporting act		
H 2305	Crime victims compensation board, Applications,	Behavio	ral Sciences
	requirements for	H 2453	Behavior analysts, Recognition of licenses from other
H 2495	Crime victims compensation board, Applications,	П 2433	jurisdictions
0.202	requirements for	H 2603	Behavioral sciences regulatory board, Licensure,
S 293	Duties and responsibilities, Address confidentiality program	11 2005	Addiction counselors
S 293	Duties and responsibilities, Charitable organizations	H 2603	Behavioral sciences regulatory board, Licensure,
S 64	Duties and responsibilities, Clergy sexual abuse		Marriage and family therapists
S 65	Duties and responsibilities, Corruption by public	H 2603	Behavioral sciences regulatory board, Licensure,
	officer or employee		Professional counselors
S 293	Duties and responsibilities, Election crimes,	H 2603	Behavioral sciences regulatory board, Licensure,
	prosecution of	*****	Psychologists
S 371	Duties and responsibilities, Human trafficking, notice	H 2603	Behavioral sciences regulatory board, Licensure,
	of	H 2227	Social workers Conversion therapy, prohibition of
S 211	Duties and responsibilities, Kansas youth suicide	H 2483	Conversion therapy, prohibition of
0.212	prevention coordinator, appointment of	S 367	Conversion therapy, prohibition of
S 213	Duties and responsibilities, Public agency or employee, representation of	H 2453	Social work practice, Licenses from other
H 2461	Duties and responsibilities, Public litigation		jurisdictions, recognition of
112.01	coordination act		
S 444	Duties and responsibilities, Public litigation	Boards,	Commissions and Task Forces
	coordination act	H 2603	Behavioral sciences regulatory board
S 64	Duties and responsibilities, State grand jury	H 2383	Board of barbering
S 65	Duties and responsibilities, State grand jury	S 365	Board of barbering
H 2375	False claims, Private plaintiffs	S 340	Board of cosmetology
H 2682	False claims, Private plaintiffs	H 2146	Board of healing arts
H 2646	Human trafficking advisory board, Missing and	H 2295	Board of healing arts
S 455	murdered indigenous people Human trafficking advisory board, Missing and	H 2402	Board of healing arts
3 433	murdered indigenous people	S 120	Board of healing arts
H 2374	Information reward amount	S 223	Board of healing arts
H 2226	Scrap metal theft reduction act	S 452	Board of healing arts
S 219	Scrap metal theft reduction act	H 2066	Board of nursing
S 467	Statewide alert system, Missing military members,	H 2412 H 2579	Board of nursing
	Camo alert system	H 25/9 H 2712	Board of pharmacy Board of pharmacy
HCR 5001	Term limits	H 2116	Board of tax appeals
S 212	Victim notification, VINE coordinator	H 2490	Board of tax appeals
H 2671	White collar crime fund	H 2615	Board of tax appeals
			11

3025

H 2702			
	Board of tax appeals	H 2736	Health and environment laboratory, construction of
S 177	Board of tax appeals	S 487	Health and environment laboratory, construction of
S 262	Board of tax appeals	H 2691	K-EBRA bonds
S 265	Board of tax appeals	S 198	K-EBRA bonds
S 272	Board of tax appeals	S 437	K-EBRA bonds
S 273	Board of tax appeals	H 2147	Kansas rural housing incentive district act, Bond
S 500	Board of tax appeals		maturity limitations
H 2428	Board of technical professions	H 2006	Kansas rural housing incentive district act, Special
H 2688	Board of veterinary examiners		obligation bonds
H 2305	Crime victims compensation board	H 2746	Municipalities, Interest rate
H 2495	Crime victims compensation board	S 235	Municipalities, Interest rate
H 2429	Criminal justice reform commission	S 498	STAR bonds, Briefing for state finance council
H 2471	Criminal justice reform commission	H 2529	STAR bonds, Projects, Eligibility
H 2366	Emergency medical services board	H 2529	STAR bonds, Projects, Requirements
S 83	Emergency medical services board	S 498	STAR bonds, State sales tax financing, limit and
S 99	Emergency medical services board		project requirements
S 225	Healthcare access improvement panel	H 2529	STAR bonds, Sunset date, extension of
H 2646	Human trafficking advisory board	S 498	STAR bonds, Sunset date, extension of
S 455	Human trafficking advisory board	H 2610	State veterans home, construction of
H 2449	Indigents' defense services	S 478	State veterans home, construction of
H 2173	Industrial hemp regulatory commission	S 480	State veterans home, construction of
S 233	Industrial hemp regulatory commission	S 305	Vehicle dealers
H 2020	Judicial district nominating commission	H 2246	Wichita state university
H 2347	Kansas Alzheimer's disease advisory council		
H 2623	Kansas biological survey	Cemeter	ries
H 2359	Kansas child welfare services delivery task force		
H 2429	Kansas closed case task force	S 389	Cemetery corporations, Purposes of sepulture,
S 102	Kansas closed case task force		definition of
H 2487	Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing	H 2202	Cemetery districts, Deannexation of city territory
S 230	Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing	S 155	Cemetery districts, Deannexation of city territory
H 2695	Kansas commission on peace officers' standards and		
	training	Childrer	and Families, Department for
S 89	Kansas criminal justice coordinating council	H 2700	Abuse, neglect or financial exploitation, Aged persons
H 2018	Kansas criminal justice reform commission	H 2094	Children in need of care, Problem sexual behavior,
H 2630	Kansas dental board	П 2094	voluntary services for
S 11	Kansas dental board	H 2744	Cross-over youth, Risk and needs assessment
H 2081	Kansas electric transmission authority	S 162	Foster care, Case management contractor, Missing
S 181	Kansas energy policy task force	3 102	children, notification on
H 2255	Kansas human rights commission	H 2346	Foster care, Foster care student report card
H 2742	Kansas medical cannabis advisory board	H 2510	Foster care, Foster care student report card
H 2362	Kansas military and veterans task force		
S 4	The state of the s		
TT 0 46 :	Kansas objections board	S 384	Foster care, Foster care student report card
H 2404	Kansas objections board Kansas senior services task force	S 166	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers
H 2404 H 2384			Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency
	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology	S 166 S 276	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements
H 2384	Kansas senior services task force	S 166	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent
H 2384 H 2387	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission	S 166 S 276 H 2346	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment
H 2384 H 2387 S 217	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission	S 166 S 276	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council	S 166 S 276 H 2346	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing,
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405 H 2395	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405 H 2395 S 216	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487 ERO 44	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405 H 2395 S 216 H 2469	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick county charter commission	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing,
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405 H 2395 S 216 H 2469 S 406 H 2493	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick county charter commission Sentencing commission	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487 ERO 44 S 230	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405 H 2409 S 216 H 2469 S 406 H 2493 S 458	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick county charter commission Sentencing commission State banking board	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487 ERO 44	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Office of the child advocate for children's protection
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405 H 2395 S 216 H 2469 S 406 H 2493	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick county charter commission Sentencing commission	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487 ERO 44 S 230 H 2187	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Office of the child advocate for children's protection and services
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405 S 216 H 2469 S 406 H 2493 S 458 H 2438	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick county charter commission Sentencing commission State banking board State child death review board	\$ 166 \$ 276 H 2346 H 2510 \$ 335 H 2487 ERO 44 \$ 230 H 2187	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Office of the child advocate for children's protection and services Performance-based contracting, requirements for
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 S 216 H 2469 S 406 H 2493 S 458 H 2438 S 214	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick county charter commission Sentencing commission State banking board State child death review board State child death review board Substance abuse policy board	\$ 166 \$ 276 H 2346 H 2510 \$ 335 H 2487 ERO 44 \$ 230 H 2187 \$ 6 \$ 440	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Office of the child advocate for children's protection and services Performance-based contracting, requirements for Public assistance, Cash assistance, Work participation
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405 H 2395 S 216 H 2469 S 406 H 2493 S 458 H 2438 S 214 S 89	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick county charter commission Sentencing commission State banking board State child death review board State child death review board Substance abuse policy board Substance abuse policy board Supreme court nominating commission	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487 ERO 44 S 230 H 2187 S 6 S 440 S 485	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Office of the child advocate for children's protection and services Performance-based contracting, requirements for Public assistance, Cash assistance, Work participation
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 S 216 H 2495 S 406 H 2493 S 458 H 2438 S 214 S 89 H 2020	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick county charter commission Sentencing commission State banking board State child death review board State child death review board Substance abuse policy board	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487 ERO 44 S 230 H 2187 S 6 S 440 S 485 S 379	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Office of the child advocate for children's protection and services Performance-based contracting, requirements for Public assistance, Cash assistance, Work participation Public assistance, Cash assistance, Wiver request
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 S 216 H 2495 S 406 H 2493 S 458 H 2438 S 214 S 89 H 2020	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick county charter commission Sentencing commission State banking board State child death review board State child death review board Substance abuse policy board Supreme court nominating commission UST redevelopment fund compensation advisory	\$ 166 \$ 276 H 2346 H 2510 \$ 335 H 2487 ERO 44 \$ 230 H 2187 \$ 6 \$ 440 \$ 485 \$ 379 \$ 484	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Office of the child advocate for children's protection and services Performance-based contracting, requirements for Public assistance, Cash assistance, Work participation Public assistance, Cash assistance, Work participation Public assistance, Food assistance, Waiver request
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405 H 2395 S 216 H 2469 S 406 H 2493 S 458 H 2438 S 214 S 89 H 2020 S 285	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick county charter commission Sentencing commission State banking board State child death review board State child death review board Substance abuse policy board Supreme court nominating commission UST redevelopment fund compensation advisory	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487 ERO 44 S 230 H 2187 S 6 S 440 S 485 S 379 S 484 H 2157	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Office of the child advocate for children's protection and services Performance-based contracting, requirements for Public assistance, Cash assistance, Work participation Public assistance, Food assistance, Waiver request
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405 H 2395 S 216 H 2469 S 406 H 2493 S 458 H 2438 S 214 S 89 H 2020 S 285	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick country charter commission Sentencing commission State banking board State child death review board State child death review board Substance abuse policy board Supreme court nominating commission UST redevelopment fund compensation advisory board	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487 ERO 44 S 230 H 2187 S 6 S 440 S 485 S 379 S 484 H 2157 S 12	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Office of the child advocate for children's protection and services Performance-based contracting, requirements for Public assistance, Cash assistance, Work participation Public assistance, Food assistance, Waiver request Public assistance, Food assistance, Waiver request Public assistance, Recipients, Eligibility requirements
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 S 216 H 2395 S 406 H 2493 S 458 H 2438 S 214 S 89 H 2020 S 285	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick county charter commission Sentencing commission State banking board State child death review board State child death review board Substance abuse policy board Supreme court nominating commission UST redevelopment fund compensation advisory board  Development finance authority, issuance of bonds	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487 ERO 44 S 230 H 2187 S 6 S 440 S 485 S 379 S 484 H 2157	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Office of the child advocate for children's protection and services Performance-based contracting, requirements for Public assistance, Cash assistance, Work participation Public assistance, Food assistance, Waiver request
H 2384 H 2387 S 217 S 387 H 2255 H 2395 H 2405 H 2395 S 216 H 2469 S 406 H 2493 S 458 H 2438 S 214 S 89 H 2020 S 285	Kansas senior services task force Kansas state board of cosmetology Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas state employees healthcare commission Kansas youth advisory council Legislative task force on bullying prevention Legislative task force on dyslexia Pooled money investment board Prisoner review board Sedgwick country charter commission Sentencing commission State banking board State child death review board State child death review board Substance abuse policy board Supreme court nominating commission UST redevelopment fund compensation advisory board	S 166 S 276 H 2346 H 2510 S 335 H 2487 ERO 44 S 230 H 2187 S 6 S 440 S 485 S 379 S 484 H 2157 S 12	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers Foster care, School attendance, residency requirements Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent enrollment Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Human services, department of Kansas commission for the deaf and hard of hearing, Powers, duties and functions Office of the child advocate for children's protection and services Performance-based contracting, requirements for Public assistance, Cash assistance, Work participation Public assistance, Food assistance, Waiver request Public assistance, Food assistance, Waiver request Public assistance, Recipients, Eligibility requirements

		H 2438	State child death review board, Record confidentiality,
		П 2436	exceptions
	and Minors	S 214	State child death review board, Record confidentiality, exceptions
H 2392 H 2331	Abuse, neglect or exploitation, Investigations of Abuse, neglect or exploitation, Mandatory reporters	S 211	Suicide prevention, Kansas youth suicide prevention coordinator
H 2392 S 37	Abuse, neglect or exploitation, Mandatory reporters Abuse, neglect or exploitation, Mandatory reporters	S 404	Termination of parental rights, Sexual assault
S 218 H 2242	Abuse, neglect or exploitation, Mandatory reporters Abuse, neglect or exploitation, Reports of	Cigarett	es and Tobacco Products
S 407	Acute psychiatric care	H 2450	Electronic cigarettes, prohibition of
H 2674	Autopsies	H 2563	Electronic cigarettes, prohibition of
H 2186	Care of, right to use sick leave	H 2563	Minimum age to purchase
H 2228	Child care facilities, Operation without a license, civil	H 2632	Smoking cessation aids, authorization of sales
S 312	fine Child care facilities, Operation without a license, civil fine	H 2563	Vending machines and self-service displays, prohibition of
S 469	Child care facilities, Operation without a license, civil	Cities	
H 2403	Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on	H 2509	Americus, Vacating certain blocks in the town plat
H 2445	Children in need of care, Detention facilities	H 2580	Annexation, Consent of property owners
H 2025	Children in need of care, Interested party, definition of	S 442	Board of public utilities, Customers of, information
H 2590	Children in need of care, Law enforcement access to		requests
	information	S 448	Board of public utilities, Utility bill fees, limitation of
S 332	Children in need of care, No-run order, requirement of	H 2703	Building construction and related codes, preemption
S 108	Children in need of care, Parent's custody, removal		of
*******	from, Presumption of unfitness	H 2202	Cemetery districts, Deannexation of city territory
H 2094	Children in need of care, Problem sexual behavior,	S 155	Cemetery districts, Deannexation of city territory
11 2447	voluntary services for	H 2308	City-county consolidation, Wichita and Sedgwick
H 2447	Children in need of care, Proceedings, Audio-visual communication	H 2441	county, authorization of Community historical museum
H 2699	Children in need of care, Supervision by court	S 278	Community historical museum
11 2099	services	S 414	Community improvement district, Sales tax
H 2346	Foster care, Foster care student report card	5 414	assessment, exemption of grocery stores
H 2510	Foster care, Foster care student report card	S 362	Fireworks
S 384	Foster care, Foster care student report card	S 243	Lemonade or other beverage stands, prohibiting
S 166	Foster care, Grandparents as caregivers		regulation of
S 461	Foster care, High-risk missing persons	H 2054	Local disaster emergency declarations, approval by
H 2359	Foster care, Kansas child welfare services delivery		governing body
	task force	H 2396	Local disaster emergency declarations, approval by
S 162	Foster care, Missing children, notification on		governing body
H 2735	Foster care, Nondiscrimination against blind foster	H 2237	Official publications on a website, authorization of
11.2164	parent	H 2703	Ordinances, Preemption, Building construction and
H 2164 S 276	Foster care, Placement entities, religious freedom Foster care, School attendance, residency	S 435	related codes Ordinances, Preemption, Personal delivery devices
3 2 / 0	requirements	H 2625	Ordinances, Preemption, Plastic carryout bags
H 2346	Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent	H 2060	Policies, Employer wage, benefit and leave policies
	enrollment	H 2061	Policies, Employer wage, benefit and leave policies
H 2510	Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent	H 2584	Policies, Employer wage, benefit and leave policies
	enrollment	H 2625	Policies, Plastic carryout bags and other single-use
S 335	Foster care, Tuition waiver for dual and concurrent		products, Ordinances, preemption of
	enrollment	H 2017	Policies, Public construction contract wages
H 2319	Human trafficking and child exploitation prevention	H 2314	Property, Abandoned, rehabilitation of
	act	H 2063	Property, Property tax lid
H 2505	Juvenile offenders, Detention	H 2118	Property, Property tax lid
S 227	Juvenile offenders, Expungement	H 2430	Property, Property tax lid
ERO 44 H 2744	Juvenile offenders, Human services, department of Juvenile offenders, Overall case length, limitation of	H 2696 H 2702	Property, Property tax lid Property, Property tax lid
H 2096	Kansas children's savings account program	S 294	Property, Property tax lid
H 2096	Kansas children's savings account program  Kansas youth advisory council	H 2509	Property, Territory or easements, vacation of
H 2187	Office of the child advocate for children's protection	H 2583	Property, Territory or easements, vacation of
	and services	S 362	Regulations, Fireworks
H 2360	Service providers, Criminal history record checks	H 2135	Regulations, Political sign restrictions, repeal of
S 37	Sheldon's law	H 2581	Regulations, Subdivision regulations
S 218	Sheldon's law	S 248	Regulations, Subdivision regulations
H 2674	State child death review board, Autopsy results	H 2367	Road construction and bridge improvement funding

S 190	Dood construction and buildes immercement for direct	S 161	Destruction from above Drimony accuracy
H 2656	Road construction and bridge improvement funding	S 101 S 88	Protection from abuse, Primary aggressor
S 396	Sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of	S 88	Protection from abuse, Violation, criminal penalties Protection from stalking, sexual assault or human
H 2510	Special districts, dissolution of	3 00	trafficking, Violation, criminal penalties
H 2509	Vacation of territory or easements	H 2425	Protection orders, Extreme risk
H 2583	Vacation of territory or easements	S 183	Protection orders, Extreme risk
H 2583	Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning	H 2406	Protection orders, Firearms, relinquishment of
S 248	Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning	H 2733	Protection orders, Firearms, relinquishment of
H 2718	Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion	S 415	Protection orders, Firearms, relinquishment of
S 296	Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on	H 2129	Protection orders, Gun safety
3 2 7 0	Zonnig, Rezonnig request, mintation on	H 2234	Protection orders, Gun safety
Civil Dw	ocedure and Civil Actions	H 2675	Protection orders, Protection from abuse, extension of
		S 88	Protection orders, Violation of, criminal penalties
H 2693	Actions and proceedings, Alcoholic beverage provider	H 2334	Rules of civil procedure, Depositions
S 446	Actions and proceedings, Attorney fees, Contingent	S 447	Rules of civil procedure, Discovery, Third-party
	fees, restriction of		agreements
S 107	Actions and proceedings, Attorney fees, Property and	S 334	Rules of civil procedure, Evidence, authentication of
	casualty insurance judgments	S 447	Rules of civil procedure, Subpoenas, Third-party
H 2322	Actions and proceedings, Censorship of social media		funded actions
	website user speech	S 253	Service of process, Business entities
S 106	Actions and proceedings, Collateral actions for	H 2331	Settlement agreements, Non-disclosure agreement,
	wrongful conviction		clergy abuse
S 422	Actions and proceedings, Collateral actions for	H 2647	Sexually violent predators, Commitment proceedings,
******	wrongful conviction		Detention during
H 2693	Actions and proceedings, Dram shop	S 416	Sexually violent predators, Commitment proceedings,
S 372	Actions and proceedings, Liens, false or fraudulent		Detention during
H 2673	Actions and proceedings, Medical malpractice,	H 2647	Sexually violent predators, Commitment proceedings,
0.46	Certain claims, supreme court original jurisdiction		Notice prior to
S 46	Actions and proceedings, Misappropriated property,	S 416	Sexually violent predators, Commitment proceedings,
0.55	recovery of		Notice prior to
S 55 S 183	Actions and proceedings, Partition	S 100	Sexually violent predators, Transitional release or
5 165	Actions and proceedings, Protection orders, Extreme risk		conditional release
H 2406	Actions and proceedings, Protection orders, Firearms,	H 2426	Small claims
11 2400	relinquishment of	H 2034	Supported decision-making agreements act
H 2733	Actions and proceedings, Protection orders, Firearms,	S 447	Third-party litigation funding
11 2/33	relinquishment of	H 2743	Time limitations, Health and safety deadline,
S 415	Actions and proceedings, Protection orders, Firearms,	S 102	extension of
5 .15	relinquishment of	5 102	Time limitations, Health and safety deadline, extension of
H 2129	Actions and proceedings, Protection orders, Gun	H 2533	Uniform family law arbitration act
	safety	S 477	Warrants, Bench warrants, Judgments related to
H 2234	Actions and proceedings, Protection orders, Gun	5 4//	medical debt
	safety		medicai deot
S 88	Actions and proceedings, Protection orders, Violation	Civil Die	xhts
	of, criminal penalties	Civil Rig	gnus
H 2331	Actions and proceedings, Victims of clergy sex abuse	Disc	erimination, this index
S 333	Care and treatment for mentally ill persons,	H 2320	Marriage and constitution restoration act
	Competency to stand trial	H 2164	Religion, exercise of, Foster care and adoption
H 2551	Care and treatment for mentally ill persons, Firearm	112101	placement entities
	rights	H 2288	Religion, exercise of, Kansas student and educator
H 2332	Damages, Punitive damages		freedom of religious speech act
H 2291	Damages, Wrongful death		5 1
H 2426	Evidence, Records and documents	Colleges	and Universities
S 334	Evidence, Records and documents	_	
H 2193	Forfeiture, Acquittal	H 2697	Campus intellectual diversity act
H 2377	Immunity, Charitable vision screenings and	S 299	Community colleges, Campaign finance
0.477	eyeglasses	H 2439	Corporations, Contract with educational institutions,
S 477	Judgments, Medical debt, Bench warrants, prohibition	0.050	Report to legislative post audit, removal of
H 2244	of	S 258	Corporations, Contract with educational institutions,
п 2244	Liability, COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act	11.2420	Report to legislative post audit, removal of
H 2306	Limitations on actions, Victims of child sex abuse	H 2439	Corporations, Contract with the state board of regents,
S 476	Limitations on actions, Victims of child sex abuse	S 258	Report to legislative post audit, removal of Corporations, Contract with the state board of regents,
H 2426	Limited actions	3 238	Report to legislative post audit, removal of
H 2324	Non-disclosure agreements for sexual harassment	H 2487	Disability license plates and placards
232T	claims	S 284	Disability license plates and placards  Disability license plates and placards
H 2675	Protection from abuse, Extension of	5 204	Sistering freeine places and placeards
20,5			

H 2510	Healing arts schools, Clinic services, authorization to perform	H 2731	Regents, state board of, Wartime veteran and first responder survivors' grant program
H 2515	Healing arts schools, Clinic services, authorization to	H 2266	Scholarships, Application fees, prohibition of
11 2313	perform	H 2409	Scholarships, Financial need
S 277		H 2510	Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship act
32//	Healing arts schools, Clinic services, authorization to		
11.07.40	perform	H 2515	Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship act
H 2742	Medical cannabis use	H 2515	Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary
H 2297	Postsecondary educational institutions, Concealed		education act
	firearms, restriction of	S 336	Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary
H 2697	Postsecondary educational institutions, Office of		education act
	public policy events, establishment of	H 2301	Scholarships, Tax credit scholarship program
H 2266	Postsecondary educational institutions, Scholarship	H 2732	Sexual assault, Policies and protocols
	application fees, prohibition of	H 2664	Sexual assault, Survivors, information and care for
H 2732	Postsecondary educational institutions, Sexual assault	S 474	Student athletes, Compensation for use of name,
	policies and protocols		image or athletic reputation
H 2519	Postsecondary educational institutions, Students' right	H 2521	Student athletes, Revised uniform athlete agents act
	to know act	S 135	Student loan repayment, Rural opportunity zones
S 271	Postsecondary educational institutions, Students' right	H 2312	Student loan repayment, Rural revitalization program
	to know act	H 2443	Tuition and fees, Native American students
H 2515	Private and out-of-state postsecondary educational	H 2266	Tuition and fees, Scholarship application fees,
	institutions		prohibition of
S 354	Private and out-of-state postsecondary educational	S 255	University of Kansas, Medical center, trust fund
555.	institutions	H 2638	University of Kansas, School of medicine, Rural
H 2541	Private not-for-profit postsecondary educational	11 2000	practice loan assistance
11 25 11	institutions, Credit card payments	S 381	University of Kansas, School of medicine, Rural
H 2265	Regents, state board of, Exam credit hours	5 501	practice loan assistance
H 2515	Regents, state board of, Exam electricals Regents, state board of, Kansas reinvest in	H 2224	University of Kansas, State geological survey
11 2313	postsecondary education act	11 2224	Offiversity of Kansas, State geological survey
S 336	Regents, state board of, Kansas reinvest in		
3 330	postsecondary education act	Commo	vac Department of
H 2515	Regents, state board of, Private and out-of-state	Comme	rce, Department of
11 2313	postsecondary educational institution act	H 2618	Broadband grants
S 354	Regents, state board of, Private and out-of-state	H 2006	Economic development data, disclosure of
3 334		S 176	Economic development data, disclosure of
		51/0	Economic development data, disclosure of
Н 2150	postsecondary educational institution act	H 2740	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program
Н 2159	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of,		
	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university	H 2740	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program
H 2159 H 2168	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of,	H 2740	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program
H 2168	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university	H 2740 H 2312	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program ts
	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of,	H 2740 H 2312 <b>Compac</b> H 2029	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of
<b>H 2168</b> H 2510	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact
H 2168	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of,	H 2740 H 2312 <b>Compac</b> H 2029	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of
<b>H 2168</b> H 2510	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of,	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Only of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of,	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  tional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  ttional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  ttional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  tional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  tional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004 SCR 1604	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  ttional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 H 2515	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004 SCR 1604 SCR 1604	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  tional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004 SCR 1608 HCR 5013	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  tional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 H 2515 S 336	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004 SCR 1604 SCR 1608 HCR 5013 HCR 5013	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  ttional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies Labor organizations, membership
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 H 2515	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university? Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004 HCR 5008 HCR 5013 HCR 5013 HCR 5013 HCR 5013 HCR 5013	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  tional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies Labor organizations, membership Marriage provision, repeal of
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 H 2515 S 336 H 2510	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5007 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004 SCR 1608 HCR 5013 HCR 5013 HCR 5008 HCR 5013 HCR 5008	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  tional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies Labor organizations, membership Marriage provision, repeal of Reapportionment, Census data adjustments
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 H 2515 S 336	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004 SCR 1604 SCR 1608 HCR 5013 HCR 5013 HCR 5013 HCR 5015 HCR 5005 HCR 5006 HCR 5006 HCR 5006 HCR 5006	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  ttional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies Labor organizations, membership Marriage provision, repeal of Reapportionment, Census data adjustments Redistricting commission
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 S 336 H 2510 H 2515	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university? Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004 SCR 1608 HCR 5013 HCR 5013 HCR 5015 HCR 5015 HCR 5015 HCR 5015 HCR 5021 HCR 5005 HCR 5016 HCR 5016	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  tional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies Labor organizations, membership Marriage provision, repeal of Reapportionment, Census data adjustments Redistricting commission State highway fund uses, limitation on
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 H 2515 S 336 H 2510	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5007 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004 SCR 1608 HCR 5013 HCR 5008 HCR 5013 HCR 5008 HCR 5013 HCR 5006 SCR 1600 SCR 1601	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  tional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies Labor organizations, membership Marriage provision, repeal of Reapportionment, Census data adjustments Redistricting commission State highway fund uses, limitation on Supreme court, Selection process
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 S 336 H 2510 H 2515 H 2515	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5004 SCR 1604 SCR 1604 SCR 1608 HCR 5013 HCR 5013 HCR 5010 HCR 5021 HCR 5021 HCR 5010 SCR 1601 SCR 1601 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  ttional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies Labor organizations, membership Marriage provision, repeal of Reapportionment, Census data adjustments Redistricting commission State highway fund uses, limitation on Supreme court, Selection process Supreme court, Time limit on decisions
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 S 336 H 2510 H 2515	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5008 HCR 5013 HCR 5008 HCR 5013 HCR 5008 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  tional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies Labor organizations, membership Marriage provision, repeal of Reapportionment, Census data adjustments Redistricting commission State highway fund uses, limitation on Supreme court, Selection process Supreme court, Time limit on decisions Term limits, Attorney general
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 S 336 H 2510 H 2515 H 2515	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5004 SCR 1604 SCR 1604 SCR 1608 HCR 5013 HCR 5013 HCR 5010 HCR 5021 HCR 5021 HCR 5010 SCR 1601 SCR 1601 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  ttional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies Labor organizations, membership Marriage provision, repeal of Reapportionment, Census data adjustments Redistricting commission State highway fund uses, limitation on Supreme court, Selection process Supreme court, Time limit on decisions Term limits, Attorney general Term limits, Legislators
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 S 336 H 2510 H 2515 S 336	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004 SCR 1608 HCR 5013 HCR 5005 HCR 5008 HCR 5010 HCR 5001 HCR 5001 HCR 5001 HCR 5001 HCR 5001 HCR 5001 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  tional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies Labor organizations, membership Marriage provision, repeal of Reapportionment, Census data adjustments Redistricting commission State highway fund uses, limitation on Supreme court, Selection process Supreme court, Time limit on decisions Term limits, Attorney general
H 2168 H 2510 H 2158 H 2168 S 173 H 2510 H 2515 S 336 H 2510 H 2515 S 336 H 2515	Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, University of Kansas Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act Regents, state board of, Scholarships, Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act	H 2740 H 2312 Compac H 2029 H 2212 S 115 Constitu HCR 5019 HCR 5024 SCR 1613 HCR 5007 SCR 1610 HCR 5004 SCR 1608 HCR 5013 HCR 5005 HCR 5008 HCR 5010 HCR 5001 HCR 5001 HCR 5001 HCR 5001 HCR 5001 HCR 5001 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010 HCR 5010	Kansas medical marijuana regulation program Rural revitalization student loan repayment program  ts  Health care compact, repeal of Multistate tax compact National popular vote compact  ttional Amendments (Kansas)  Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion Abortion rights, No right to abortion County home rule Court of appeals' selection process Equal rights, application before birth Equal rights, application before birth Executive article made gender neutral Executive office vacancies Labor organizations, membership Marriage provision, repeal of Reapportionment, Census data adjustments Redistricting commission State highway fund uses, limitation on Supreme court, Selection process Supreme court, Time limit on decisions Term limits, Attorney general Term limits, Legislators

a		S 492	Energy efficiency investment act, Public utilities,
Constitu	tional Amendments (U.S.)	H 2585	Demand-side programs, approval of Income tax, Rates, overcollection or undercollection
HCR 5009	Convention to amend the constitution, application for		of
Consum	er Protection	S 126	Income tax, Rates, overcollection or undercollection of
H 2363	Consumer credit, Consumer loans to veterans	H 2524	Motor carriers, Certificates of convenience and
H 2319	Consumer protection act, Human trafficking and child		necessity
11 2017	exploitation prevention act	H 2534	Oil and gas, Abandoned wells, Abandoned oil and gas
H 2400	Kratom products, Kratom consumer protection act		well fund, use of
H 2400	Kratom products, Sale and production, regulation of	H 2536	Oil and gas, Abandoned wells, Abandoned oil and gas
H 2004	No-call act, Robocalls, prevention of		well fund, use of
H 2110	No-call act, Robocalls, prevention of	H 2536	Oil and gas, Abandoned wells, Investigation of
H 2024	No-call act, Telephone caller identification system,	H 2224	Oil and gas, Injection wells, Fees
	False information	H 2240	Oil and gas, Injection wells, Seismic risk analysis
H 2024	No-call act, Telephone solicitor	H 2535	Oil and gas, Interagency agreement with department
S 46	Pawnbrokers and precious metal dealers,	*** ****	of health and environment, repeal of
	Misappropriated property, recovery of	H 2536	Oil and gas, Interagency agreement with department
H 2137	Scrap metal theft reduction act	11.0745	of health and environment, repeal of
H 2226	Scrap metal theft reduction act	H 2745	State energy plan, development of
S 219	Scrap metal theft reduction act	H 2585	Utilities, Electric utilities, Contract rates, Approval of
S 344	Scrap metal theft reduction act	S 339	Utilities, Electric utilities, Contract rates, Approval of
H 2454	Self-storage rental units, Rights of operators, Sales	H 2585	Utilities, Electric utilities, Contract rates, Cost
	and towing of property	0.220	recovery of
	5 1 1 2	S 339	Utilities, Electric utilities, Contract rates, Cost
Contrac	ts and Contractors	11.2601	recovery of
		H 2691	Utilities, Electric utilities, K-EBRA bonds, Electric
H 2017	Construction contracts, Counties and cities	C 100	generation facilities
H 2207	Construction contracts, School districts	S 198	Utilities, Electric utilities, K-EBRA bonds, Electric
S 148	Construction contracts, School districts	C 427	generation facilities
S 347	Insurance department, requirements for	S 437	Utilities, Electric utilities, K-EBRA bonds, Utility
H 2262	Kansas buy American act	11 2100	property
H 2461	Municipalities, Legal services, Contingent fees,	H 2190	Utilities, Electric utilities, Rates, Certain charges,
	restriction of	C 124	prohibition of
S 444	Municipalities, Legal services, Contingent fees,	S 124	Utilities, Electric utilities, Rates, Certain charges, prohibition of
0.46	restriction of	H 2585	Utilities, Electric utilities, Rates, Schedule of rates,
S 46	Pawnbrokers and precious metal dealers,	11 2303	discount of
11.2500	Misappropriated property, recovery of	H 2585	Utilities, Electric utilities, Vehicle charging stations
H 2500	Power of attorney, Liability	S 145	Utilities, Municipal utilities, Rates, regulation of
H 2454	Self-storage rental units, Property, contractual value of	S 442	Utilities, Public utilities, Boards of public utilities,
H 2015	State, Anti-Israel boycotts, repeal of		Information requests
H 2115	State, Computer work hours, verification of	S 145	Utilities, Public utilities, Boards of public utilities,
S 56	State, Computer work hours, verification of		Rates, regulation of
S 6	State, Department for children and families,	H 2679	Utilities, Public utilities, Energy efficiency investment
30	Performance-based contracts		act, Demand-side programs, approval of
S 57	State, Information technology projects, Joint	S 431	Utilities, Public utilities, Energy efficiency investment
5 57	committee on information technology, review by		act, Demand-side programs, approval of
S 180	State, Kansas buy American act	S 492	Utilities, Public utilities, Energy efficiency investment
H 2204	State, Kansas lottery, Gaming facilities, legislative		act, Demand-side programs, approval of
11 2201	approval of	H 2585	Utilities, Public utilities, Rates, overcollection or
H 2461	State, Legal services, Contingent fees, restriction of		undercollection of
S 444	State, Legal services, Contingent fees, restriction of	S 126	Utilities, Public utilities, Rates, overcollection or
H 2455	State, Preference for job corps program participants		undercollection of
	,	H 2018	Video competition act, Statewide authorization
Carnara	tion Commission, State	S 380	Video competition act, Statewide authorization
-	ition Commission, State		
H 2231	Electric rates, study of	Corpora	tions and Business Entities
H 2081	Electric transmission, Kansas electric transmission	•	
	authority, re-establishment of	H 2421	Assistance dogs, Accredited training facilities,
H 2317	Electric transmission, Transmission lines, Siting	11.2421	required training by
	permit approval, requirements for	H 2421 H 2105	Assistance dogs, Raisers, right of accommodation for
H 2679	Energy efficiency investment act, Public utilities,	H 2103	Business entity standard treatment act Charitable organizations, Animal shelters, exemption
a 12:	Demand-side programs, approval of	11 2243	from registration
S 431	Energy efficiency investment act, Public utilities,	S 293	Charitable organizations, Regulation by attorney
	Demand-side programs, approval of	5 273	general

H 2439	Domestic nonprofit corporations, Legal services to indigent inmates, Report to legislative post audit,	H 2200	Practice of cosmetology, Threading, exemption of
	removal of	Counties	S
S 258	Domestic nonprofit corporations, Legal services to	H 2440	Appraisers, Election of
	indigent inmates, Report to legislative post audit,	S 264	Appraisers, Eligible persons
	removal of	H 2340	Appraisers, Engine persons Appraisers, Protests and exemptions, notice of
S 251	Fees, Business entity information reports	S 266	Appraisers, Qualifications
S 251	Filings with secretary of state	H 2236	Appraisers, Quantications Appraisers, Suspension or removal of
S 424	Filings with secretary of state	H 2340	Appraisers, Suspension or removal of
S 371	Human trafficking, posting of notice	S 3	Board of county commissioners, Election
H 2401	Kansas general corporation code, Articles of incorporation		commissioner
H 2401	Kansas general corporation code, Quorum requirements	H 2054	Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders and declarations, County health officer emergency
H 2105	Limited liability companies, Revised limited liability	******	orders
	company act	H 2396	Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders
S 325	Practice of medicine, Business entity, definition of		and declarations, County health officer emergency
H 2146	Practice of medicine, Certificate of authorization		orders
H 2402	Practice of medicine, Certificate of authorization	H 2054	Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders
S 120	Practice of medicine, Certificate of authorization		and declarations, Governor's state of emergency
S 327	Practice of medicine, Certificate of authorization		orders
S 494	Pyramid promotional scheme, exemptions	H 2396	Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders
S 253	Service of process		and declarations, Governor's state of emergency
H 2138	Sexually oriented businesses, Entry fee	******	orders
S 137	Sexually oriented businesses, Entry fee	H 2054	Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders
H 2323	Sexually oriented businesses, Excise tax		and declarations, Local disaster emergency
S 371	Sexually oriented businesses, Human trafficking,		declarations, approval of
	posting of notice	H 2396	Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders and declarations, Local disaster emergency
Correcti	ons, Department of	S 111	declarations, approval of Board of county commissioners, Poultry facilities,
H 2337	Community corrections, Advisory board	3 111	establishment of
H 2292	Community corrections, Advisory board Community corrections, Diversion agreements	S 112	Board of county commissioners, Poultry facilities,
H 2337	Community corrections, Grant programs	3112	establishment of
H 2269	Custody or supervision, Early discharge calculations	H 2273	Board of county commissioners, Wind generation
H 2686	Custody or supervision, release from	11 22/3	facilities
H 2028	Evidence-based programs, Evidence-based programs	H 2703	Building construction and related codes, preemption
	account, authorized uses		of
H 2027	Evidence-based programs, Juvenile programs	H 2308	City-county consolidation, Wichita and Sedgwick
S 14	Evidence-based programs, Juvenile programs		county, authorization of
H 2744	Juvenile offenders, Confidential data system	H 2340	Clerk, Protests and exemptions, notice of
ERO 44	Juvenile offenders, Human services, department of	H 2674	Coroners, Child autopsies
H 2338	Kansas correctional industries, State contract	H 2054	County health officers, Appointment and removal of
	purchasing, exemption from	H 2396	County health officers, Appointment and removal of
H 2018	Kansas criminal justice reform commission	H 2054	County health officers, Board of county
S 331	Kansas open records act, exception to		commissioners, Review, amendment or revocation
H 2139	Kansas police and firemen's retirement system,		of orders
	affiliation with	H 2396	County health officers, Board of county
H 2165	Kansas police and firemen's retirement system,		commissioners, Review, amendment or revocation
	affiliation with		of orders
S 121	Kansas police and firemen's retirement system, affiliation with	H 2054	County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders
H 2335	Prison-made goods	H 2396	County health officers, COVID-19 information-
H 2469	Prisoner review board, Terminal medical release	11 2570	sharing with emergency responders
S 95	Secretary, Sentence of death, Duties regarding drugs	H 2054	County health officers, Orders
5,5	used	H 2396	County health officers, Orders
S 96	Secretary, Sentence of death, Inspection of facility	S 118	County hospitals, Closure of, debt liability
H 2695	Special agents, Law enforcement training center	S 362	Fireworks
11 20/3	-r about, zan emoroanen duning center	HCR 5007	Home rule, constitutional amendment
Cosmot	logists and Cosmotology	S 243	Lemonade or other beverage stands, prohibiting
Cosmeto	logists and Cosmetology	5 2-15	regulation of
H 2384	Board of cosmetology, Licensure	H 2271	Livestock running at large
H 2384	Board of cosmetology, Powers, duties and functions,	H 2577	Local motor fuels tax, Election, requirement of
	Administrative actions	H 2382	Nuisances, abatement of
S 340	Board of cosmetology, Powers, duties and functions,	H 2237	Official publications on a website, authorization of
	Disciplinary and enforcement actions, non-licensees	11 2237	of a weeste, authorization of

** ** **	P		
H 2060	Policies, Employer wage, benefit and leave policies	S 403	Judges and justices, Court of appeals, judge selection
H 2061	Policies, Employer wage, benefit and leave policies	GCD 1610	process
H 2584	Policies, Employer wage, benefit and leave policies	SCR 1610	Judges and justices, Court of appeals, judge selection
H 2625	Policies, Plastic carryout bags and other single-use	~ ~ ~ ~	process
*****	products, Resolutions, preemption of	S 269	Judges and justices, Retirement system for judges,
H 2017	Policies, Public construction contract wages		Mandatory retirement age, increase of
H 2135	Political sign regulation restrictions, repeal of	SCR 1610	Judges and justices, Supreme court, justice selection
H 2600	Register of deeds, Contract for deeds, filing of		process
H 2367	Road construction and bridge improvement funding	S 177	Judicial review, Board of tax appeals
S 190	Road construction and bridge improvement funding	H 2151	Jurors and juries, Grand juries, Immunity
S 13	Rural opportunity zones	S 58	Jurors and juries, Grand juries, Immunity
S 406	Sedgwick county, Charter commission	S 64	Jurors and juries, Grand juries, State grand jury
H 2308	Sedgwick county, Consolidation with Wichita	S 65	Jurors and juries, Grand juries, State grand jury
S 423	Sedgwick county, Urban area nuisance abatement act	S 331	Kansas open records act, exception for court
H 2512	Sedgwick county, Voting at any polling place		employees
H 2647	Sheriff, Commitment proceedings for sexually violent	H 2316	Municipal court, Appearance bonds
	predators	H 2611	Municipal court, Automatic expungement
S 416	Sheriff, Commitment proceedings for sexually violent	S 331	Municipal court, Kansas open records act, exception
	predators		for employees
H 2423	Sheriff, Qualifications for office	H 2054	Supreme court, Health and safety deadline, extension
H 2698	Taxation, Earnings tax		of
S 400	Taxation, Earnings tax	H 2396	Supreme court, Health and safety deadline, extension
H 2114	Taxation, Limestone severance tax, option of		of
S 298	Taxation, Property tax, Attorney fees and costs,	H 2743	Supreme court, Health and safety deadline, extension
	payment of		of
H 2275	Taxation, Property tax, County boards of tax appeals	S 102	Supreme court, Health and safety deadline, extension
H 2118	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid,	5 102	of
11 2110	Discontinuation of	H 2020	Supreme court, Nominating commission
H 2702	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid,	H 2192	Supreme court, Nominating commission
11 2 / 02	Discontinuation of	H 2673	Supreme court, Original jurisdiction, certain claims
S 294	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid,	11 2075	related to medical malpractice
5274	Discontinuation of	SCR 1610	Supreme court, Selection process
H 2063	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Exemption	S 119	Supreme court, Specialty courts
	raxation, rroperty tax, rroperty tax nd, Exemption		Supreme court, Specialty courts
П 2606	Toyotion Proporty toy Proporty toy lid Examption	LI 2054	Tachnology Audio vigual communication
H 2696	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Exemption	H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication
H 2430	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of	H 2396	Technology, Audio-visual communication
	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property		
H 2430 H 2514	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of	H 2396 H 2447	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication
H 2430	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment,	H 2396	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of	H 2396 H 2447	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication
H 2430 H 2514	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment,	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19 Adult care homes, Inspections
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Inspections
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19 Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340	Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Coroporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Coroprations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information-
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, COVID-19 information-
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Coropartions and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403 SCR 1610	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 S 102	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Coropartions and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County, Deadlines, extension of
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403 SCR 1610 H 2699	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 S 10254	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Coropations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County, Deadlines, extension of Courts, Technology, use of
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403 SCR 1610 H 2699 H 2292	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process Court services, Child in need of care cases Court services, Diversion agreements	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 S 102	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County, Deadlines, extension of Courts, Deadlines, extension of Courts, Technology, use of COVID-19 response and reopening for business
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 2440 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403 SCR 1610 H 2699 H 2699 H 2292 H 2591	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on  Court of appeals, Selection process Court services, Child in need of care cases Court services, Diversion agreements Courtrooms, closure of, Legislative members	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 S 102 S 102	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Coropartions and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County, Deadlines, extension of Courts, Technology, use of COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403 SCR 1610 H 2699 H 2592 L 2591 S 429	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on  Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process Court of speals, Selection process Court services, Child in need of care cases Court services, Diversion agreements Courtrooms, closure of, Legislative members District court, Arrest bond schedule	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 S 10254	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund Coroprations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County, Peadlines, extension of Courts, Technology, use of COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403 SCR 1610 H 2699 H 2292 H 2591 S 429 S 83	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process Court services, Child in need of care cases Court services, Diversion agreements Courtrooms, closure of, Legislative members District court, Arrest bond schedule District court, Fines, penalties and forfeitures	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 E 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County, Deadlines, extension of Courts, Deadlines, extension of CovID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 2440 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403 SCR 1610 H 2699 H 2299 H 2591 S 429 S 83 H 2020	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on  Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process Court services, Child in need of care cases Court services, Child in need of care cases Court services, Diversion agreements Courtrooms, closure of, Legislative members District court, Arrest bond schedule District court, Fines, penalties and forfeitures District court, Judicial district nominating commission	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 S 102 S 102	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County, Deadlines, extension of Courts, Technology, use of COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act COVID-19 response and reopening for business
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403 SCR 1610 H 2699 H 2592 E 2591 S 429 S 833 H 2591 S 429 S 833 H 2020 S 119	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process Court services, Child in need of care cases Court services, Diversion agreements Courtrooms, closure of, Legislative members District court, Arrest bond schedule District court, Judicial district nominating commission District court, Specialty courts	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 S 102 S 102 H 2054 H 2396	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund County, health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders County healt
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403 SCR 1610 H 2699 H 2292 H 2591 S 429 S 83 H 2020 S 119 S 87	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process Court services, Child in need of care cases Court services, Diversion agreements Courtrooms, closure of, Legislative members District court, Arrest bond schedule District court, Fines, penalties and forfeitures District court, Specialty courts District court, Specialty courts District court, Suspended drivers' licenses, amnesty	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 S 102 S 102 S 102 H 2244 H 2396	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County, Deadlines, extension of Courts, Deadlines, extension of COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act Employment security, Benefits
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403 SCR 1610 H 2699 H 2292 H 2591 S 429 S 83 H 2020 S 119 S 87 H 2192	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Firearms businesses, prohibition of exclusion Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on  Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process Court services, Child in need of care cases Court services, Diversion agreements Courtrooms, closure of, Legislative members District court, Trest bond schedule District court, Fines, penalties and forfeitures District court, Fines, penalties and forfeitures District court, Suspended drivers' licenses, amnesty District court, Tax appeals	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 S 102 S 102 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus r
H 2430 H 2514 H 2656 S 396 S 236 H 2340 H 2280 S 98 S 240 H 2581 S 248 H 2718 S 296 Courts H 2192 S 403 SCR 1610 H 2699 H 2292 H 2591 S 429 S 83 H 2020 S 119 S 87	Taxation, Property tax, Property tax lid, Repeal of Taxation, Property tax, Valuation appeal, Property purchase, requirement of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Retailers' sales tax, Rate limitations Taxation, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of Wyandotte county, Horse racing Wyandotte county, Horse racing Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Extraterritorial zoning Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on Zoning, Rezoning request, limitation on Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process Court of appeals, Selection process Court services, Child in need of care cases Court services, Diversion agreements Courtrooms, closure of, Legislative members District court, Arrest bond schedule District court, Fines, penalties and forfeitures District court, Specialty courts District court, Specialty courts District court, Suspended drivers' licenses, amnesty	H 2396 H 2447 COVID- H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 H 2054 H 2396 S 102 S 102 S 102 H 2244 H 2396	Technology, Audio-visual communication Technology, Audio-visual communication  19  Adult care homes, Inspections Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment Coronavirus relief fund Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of Corporations and business entities, Business and commercial activity, limitation of County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, COVID-19 information- sharing with emergency responders County health officers, Orders County health officers, Orders County, Deadlines, extension of Courts, Deadlines, extension of COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act Employment security, Benefits

H 2054	Kansas emergency management act, State of disaster emergency declarations, Board of county	S 45	Crimes against persons, Battery, Public safety sector employees
	commissioners	H 2520	Crimes against persons, Battery, Sports officials
H 2396	Kansas emergency management act, State of disaster emergency declarations, Board of county	H 2613	Crimes against persons, Harassment of a sports official
	commissioners	H 2485	Crimes against persons, Loss value
H 2054	Kansas emergency management act, State of disaster emergency declarations, Extension of	S 108	Crimes against persons, Manslaughter, Involuntary manslaughter
H 2396	Kansas emergency management act, State of disaster emergency declarations, Extension of	S 45	Crimes against persons, Manslaughter, Public safety sector employees
H 2054	Notarial acts, validity of	H 2282	Crimes against persons, Murder, Aggravated
H 2396	Notarial acts, validity of	S 21	Crimes against persons, Murder, Aggravated
H 2713	Notarial acts, validity of	H 2485	Crimes against property, Loss value
SCR 1616	State of disaster emergency declaration, ratification of	H 2206	Crimes against the public morals, Animal cruelty
HCR 5025	State of disaster emergency declaration, ratification of	S 373	Crimes against the public morals, Buying sexual relations
Crimes,	<b>Punishment and Criminal Procedure</b>	H 2068	Crimes against the public morals, Gambling, Misuse of nonpublic sports information
H 2394	Crimes affecting family relationships and children, Abuse of a child	H 2671	Crimes against the public morals, Gambling, Misuse of nonpublic sports information
H 2468	Crimes affecting family relationships and children, Abuse of a child	S 23	Crimes against the public morals, Gambling, Misuse of nonpublic sports information
H 2604	Crimes affecting family relationships and children, Abuse of a child	H 2068	Crimes against the public morals, Gambling, Sports
H 2651	Crimes affecting family relationships and children,	H 2390	wagering exemption Crimes against the public morals, Gambling, Sports
S 108	Abuse of a child Crimes affecting family relationships and children,	H 2671	wagering exemption Crimes against the public morals, Gambling, Sports
11 2204	Abuse of a child		wagering exemption
H 2394	Crimes affecting family relationships and children, Aggravated abuse of a child	S 23	Crimes against the public morals, Gambling, Sports wagering exemption
H 2468	Crimes affecting family relationships and children, Aggravated abuse of a child	S 222	Crimes against the public morals, Gambling, Sports wagering exemption
H 2651	Crimes affecting family relationships and children, Aggravated abuse of a child	S 283	Crimes against the public morals, Gambling, Sports
S 215	Crimes affecting family relationships and children,	S 373	wagering exemption Crimes against the public morals, Promoting the sale
H 2319	Endangering a child Crimes affecting family relationships and children,	S 373	of sexual relations Crimes against the public morals, Selling sexual
	Human trafficking and child exploitation prevention act	H 2245	relations Crimes against the public peace, Abandonment of a
H 2740	Crimes affecting family relationships and children,		human corpse
H 2687	Unlawful storage of medical marijuana	H 2485	Crimes against the public peace, Loss value
П 2007	Crimes affecting government functions, Advance	H 2622	Crimes against the public peace, Poaching
S 372	voting, Ballot return, limitation on Crimes affecting government functions, Liens, false	H 2652	Crimes against the public safety, Criminal possession of a weapon by a convicted felon
H 2485	or fraudulent Crimes affecting government functions, Loss value	H 2494	Crimes against the public safety, Electronic monitoring devices, tampering with
H 2474	Crimes affecting government functions, Obstructing	11 2225	
	apprehension or prosecution	H 2325	Crimes against the public safety, Firearms, Criminal
S 420	Crimes affecting government functions, Obstructing	11 2022	possession, Concealed, exemption from
5 .20	apprehension or prosecution	H 2023	Crimes against the public safety, Firearms, Criminal
S 88	Crimes affecting government functions, Violation of a	H 2636	selling
5 00	protective order	H 2030	Crimes against the public safety, Firearms, Large capacity ammunition magazines
H 2485	Crimes affecting public trust, Loss value	11 2406	
H 2284	Crimes against persons, Assault, Healthcare provider	H 2406	Crimes against the public safety, Firearms, Possession while subject to relinquishment order
S 413	Crimes against persons, Assault, Private correctional employees	H 2733	Crimes against the public safety, Firearms, Possession
H 2520	Crimes against persons, Assault, Sports officials	0.415	while subject to relinquishment order
H 2467	Crimes against persons, Battery, Domestic	S 415	Crimes against the public safety, Firearms, Possession
H 2518	Crimes against persons, Battery, Domestic	11 2022	while subject to relinquishment order
S 85	Crimes against persons, Battery, Domestic	H 2023	Crimes against the public safety, Firearms, Sales to
S 161	Crimes against persons, Battery, Domestic	ц 2101	persons on terrorist watch list, prohibition of
S 215	Crimes against persons, Battery, Domestic	H 2181	Crimes against the public safety, Firearms, Seizure
H 2284	Crimes against persons, Battery, Healthcare provider	H 2111	and disposition
S 413	Crimes against persons, Battery, Private correctional employees	П 2111	Crimes against the public safety, Firearms, Transfers without background check

S 261	Crimes against the public safety, Firearms, Unlawful storage	H 2563	Crimes outside the criminal code, Cigarette and tobacco infractions, Purchase and possession by
S 80	Crimes against the public safety, Possession of a	G 122	minor
H 2284	weapon by a felon Crimes against the public safety, Unlawful interference with a firefighter	S 132 H 2173	Crimes outside the criminal code, Electioneering Crimes outside the criminal code, Hemp product manufacture or sales
H 2284	Crimes against the public safety, Unlawful	S 233	Crimes outside the criminal code, Hemp product
H 2284	interference with a healthcare provider Crimes against the public safety, Unlawful interference with an emergency medical services	Н 2737	manufacture or sales Crimes outside the criminal code, Improperly passing school bus
H 2396	attendant	H 2271	Crimes outside the criminal code, Livestock running
П 2390	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Certified drug abuse treatment programs	H 2429	at large Criminal justice reform commission
H 2470	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Certified drug	H 2048	Criminal procedure, Appeals
H 2472	abuse treatment programs Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Certified drug	S 161	Criminal procedure, Arrest, Domestic violence, primary aggressor
11 24/2	abuse treatment programs	H 2279	Criminal procedure, Arrest, Notifications to victim
H 2163	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Controlled	S 160	Criminal procedure, Arrest, Notifications to victim
	substances, Cannabis, Medical cannabis	S 319	Criminal procedure, Bonds, Appearance bonds,
H 2413	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Controlled		release of surety
	substances, Cannabis, Medical cannabis	S 429	Criminal procedure, Bonds, Arrest bonds
H 2740	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Controlled	S 333	Criminal procedure, Competency to stand trial
	substances, Cannabis, Medical cannabis	H 2048	Criminal procedure, Correction of sentence
H 2742	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Controlled	H 2292	Criminal procedure, Diversion, Certified drug
0.112	substances, Cannabis, Medical cannabis	11 2472	treatment program
S 113	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Controlled substances, Cannabis, Medical cannabis	H 2472	Criminal procedure, Diversion, Certified drug treatment program
H 2709	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Controlled	H 2708	Criminal procedure, Diversion, Certified drug
11 2/07	substances, Cannabis, THC content	11 2700	treatment program
S 449	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Controlled	H 2611	Criminal procedure, Expungement, Automatic
	substances, Cannabis, THC content		expungement
H 2709	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Controlled substances, Scheduling	S 227	Criminal procedure, Expungement, Victims of human trafficking
S 449	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Controlled	H 2544	Criminal procedure, Jailhouse witness testimony
H 2350	substances, Scheduling Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Marijuana,	S 160 H 2604	Criminal procedure, Lethality assessment Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Aggravated
П 2330	Possession, cultivation and distribution of	П 2004	child endangerment
H 2686	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Marijuana,	S 420	Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Breach of
11 2000	Possession, cultivation and distribution of	5 .20	privacy
H 2709	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Marijuana, THC content	H 2604	Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Child abuse
S 449	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Marijuana, THC content	H 2051	Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Drug offenses
S 494	Crimes involving property, Conducting a pyramid promotional scheme	H 2475	Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Drug offenses
S 134	Crimes involving property, Counterfeiting currency	H 2474	Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Location
H 2448	Crimes involving property, Evidence of intent to		and information, requirement of
0.01	deprive	H 2546	Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Sexual
S 81	Crimes involving property, Evidence of intent to deprive	H 2473	extortion Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Unlawful
H 2448	Crimes involving property, Theft		voluntary sexual relations
S 81	Crimes involving property, Theft	S 373	Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Unlawful
S 420	Crimes involving violations of personal rights, Breach		voluntary sexual relations
	of privacy	S 227	Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Victims of
H 2523	Crimes involving violations of personal rights,	******	human trafficking
11.0450	Improper denial of an assistance animal	H 2051	Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Violations
H 2450	Crimes involving violations of personal rights, Kansas	H 2474 S 420	Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Violations Criminal procedure, Offender registration, Violations
	clean indoor air act, Electronic cigarettes, prohibited when	S 154	Criminal procedure, Order setting aside conviction or
H 2742	Crimes involving violations of personal rights, Kansas	5.51	diversion, Victims of human trafficking
	clean indoor air act, Medical cannabis use	H 2406	Criminal procedure, Order to relinquish firearms
H 2563	Crimes involving violations of personal rights, Kansas	H 2733	Criminal procedure, Order to relinquish firearms
	clean indoor air act, Places closed to minors,	S 415	Criminal procedure, Order to relinquish firearms
	exemptions for	H 2743	Criminal procedure, Speedy trial, Health and safety
H 2523	Crimes involving violations of personal rights,		deadline, extension of
	Misrepresentation of entitlement to an assistance	S 102	Criminal procedure, Speedy trial, Health and safety
	animal		deadline, extension of

0.210		0.10	Dil Garage
S 319	Criminal procedure, Sureties, release of	S 19	Punishment, Sentencing, Presentence investigation
H 2469	Criminal procedure, Terminal medical release	0.421	report
S 154	Criminal procedure, Vacatur, Victims of human	S 421	Punishment, Sentencing, Restitution
** * * * * * *	trafficking	S 428	Racial profiling and other biased policing, data
H 2446	Criminal procedure, Warrants, Seized property,		collection
	disposition of	S 428	Search and seizure, Racial profiling and other biased
S 133	Criminal procedure, Warrants, Seized property,		policing, data collection
	disposition of	S 373	Sex offenses, Buying sexual relations
H 2332	Damages for wrongful death	H 2132	Sex offenses, Lewd and lascivious behavior
S 227	Defenses, Compulsion	S 373	Sex offenses, Promoting the sale of sexual relations
H 2456	Definition of possession	H 2241	Sex offenses, Rape, Misrepresentation of identity
S 101	Driving offenses, Driving under the influence of	S 373	Sex offenses, Selling sexual relations
	alcohol or drugs, Ignition interlock	S 388	Sex offenses, Sexual battery, Misrepresentation
S 405	Driving offenses, Driving under the influence of	H 2467	Sex offenses, Sexual battery, Spouses
	alcohol or drugs, Ignition interlock	H 2546	Sex offenses, Sexual extortion
S 405	Driving offenses, Driving under the influence of	H 2268	Sex offenses, Sodomy, Members of the same sex
	alcohol or drugs, Person under 21 years of age	S 388	Sex offenses, Sodomy, Misrepresentation
H 2742	Driving offenses, Driving under the influence of	H 2473	Sex offenses, Unlawful voluntary sexual relations
	alcohol or drugs, Presence of metabolites, no	S 373	Sex offenses, Unlawful voluntary sexual relations
	presumption based on	S 355	Sex offenses, Victims, Psychiatric or psychological
S 86	Driving offenses, Driving under the influence of		examinations, prohibition of
	alcohol or drugs, Sentencing	S 373	Sex offenses, Victims, Psychiatric or psychological
S 320	Infectious disease tests		examinations, prohibition of
S 491	Infectious disease tests	H 2258	Victims, Housing protections
H 2151	Jurors and juries, Grand juries, Immunity	S 150	Victims, Housing protections
S 58	Jurors and juries, Grand juries, Immunity	S 212	Victims, Notification
S 64	Jurors and juries, Grand juries, State grand jury	S 355	Victims, Psychiatric or psychological examinations,
S 65	Jurors and juries, Grand juries, State grand jury		prohibition of
S 95	Punishment, Death penalty, Duties regarding drugs	S 373	Victims, Psychiatric or psychological examinations,
	used to carry out sentence of death		prohibition of
S 96	Punishment, Death penalty, Inspection of facility	S 421	Victims, Restitution
	designated to carry out sentence of death		,
H 2282	Punishment, Death penalty, Repeal of	Disabilit	ies, Persons with
S 21	Punishment, Death penalty, Repeal of		ics, i ci sons with
S 21 H 2052	Punishment, Death penalty, Repeal of Punishment, Earned discharge credit	H 2421	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of
	Punishment, Earned discharge credit	H 2421 H 2152	
H 2052	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation,	H 2421	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of
H 2052 H 2470	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs	H 2421 H 2152	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations
H 2052	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation,	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Paoching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified frug abuse	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 284	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history classification	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history classification Punishment, Sentencing, Departure	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 S 471	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks State government employment preference
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2299	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history classification Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Departure	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2299 H 2396	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history classification Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Departure	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 S 471 H 2034	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks State government employment preference State government employment preference Supported decision-making agreements
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2283 H 2299 H 2399 S 108	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history classification Punishment, Sentencing, Departure	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 S 471	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks State government employment preference State government employment preference Supported decision-making agreements
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2299 H 2396 S 108 S 85	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history classification Punishment, Sentencing, Departure	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 S 471 H 2034	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks State government employment preference State government employment preference State government employment preference Supported decision-making agreements
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2283 H 2299 H 2399 S 108	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Domestic battery Punishment, Sentencing, Domestic battery Punishment, Sentencing, Domestic battery	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 S 471 H 2034 Discrimi	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and pl
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2283 H 2396 S 108 S 85 S 86	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history classification Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Domestic battery Punishment, Sentencing, Driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 H 2034 Discrimi	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks State government employment preference State government employment preference Supported decision-making agreements  ination  Blind individuals, Parental rights Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2299 H 2396 S 108 S 85 S 86 H 2047	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history classification Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs Punishment, Sentencing, Drug crimes	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 S 471 H 2034 Discrimi	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks State government employment preference
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2299 S 108 S 85 S 86 H 2047 H 2435	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history classification Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Domestic battery Punishment, Sentencing, Doriving under the influence of alcohol or drugs Punishment, Sentencing, Fines	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 S 471 H 2034 Discrimi H 2735 H 2717 H 2413 H 2740	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansa power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks State government employment preference State government employment preference Supported decision-making agreements  Ination  Blind individuals, Parental rights Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act Medical cannabis use
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2283 H 2299 H 2396 S 108 S 85 S 86 H 2044 H 2472	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history classification Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Downestic battery Punishment, Sentencing, Downestic battery Punishment, Sentencing, Driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs Punishment, Sentencing, Drug crimes Punishment, Sentencing, Fines	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 H 2034 Discrimi H 2735 H 2717 H 2413 H 2740 H 2742	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks State government employment preference State government employment preference Supported decision-making agreements  Ination  Blind individuals, Parental rights Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act Medical cannabis use Medical cannabis use
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2299 H 2396 S 108 S 85 S 86 H 2047 H 2435 H 2047 H 2435 H 2047 H 2047 H 2048 H 2047 H 2048 H 2047 H 2048 H 2047 H 2048 H	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Drug crimes Punishment, Sentencing, Drug crimes Punishment, Sentencing, Fines Punishment, Sentencing, Fines Punishment, Sentencing, Good time credits Punishment, Sentencing, Good time credits	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 S 471 H 2034 Discrimi H 2735 H 2717 H 2131 H 2742 H 2742 H 2744 H 2744 H 2744 H 2744 H 2744 H 27530	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks State government employment preference State government sployment preference State government sploymen
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2299 S 108 S 85 S 86 H 2047 H 2435 H 2484 S 103 H 2484 S 103 H 2484 S 103 H 2484 S 103 H 2484 S 103 H 2481	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Violations, sanctions for Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Criminal history classification Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Domestic battery Punishment, Sentencing, Domestic battery Punishment, Sentencing, Domestic battery Punishment, Sentencing, Domestic battery Punishment, Sentencing, Drug crimes Punishment, Sentencing, Fines Punishment, Sentencing, Good time credits Punishment, Sentencing, Good time credits Punishment, Sentencing, Good time credits Punishment, Sentencing, Modification of sentence	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 S 471 H 2034 Discrimi H 2735 H 2717 H 2413 H 2740 H 2742 H 2740 S 250	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks State government employment preference State government employment preference Supported decision-making agreements  ination  Blind individuals, Parental rights Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act Medical cannabis use Medical cannabis use Medical cannabis use Race, Hair texture and protective hairstyles
H 2052 H 2470 H 2396 H 2034 H 2738 S 497 H 2622 H 2396 H 2472 H 2708 H 2336 H 2048 H 2283 H 2299 H 2396 S 108 S 85 S 86 H 2047 H 2435 H 2047 H 2435 H 2047 H 2047 H 2048 H 2047 H 2048 H 2047 H 2048 H 2047 H 2048 H	Punishment, Earned discharge credit Punishment, Parole, postrelease and probation, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Restitution, Payment, timing of Punishment, Restitution, Poaching Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse treatment programs Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Credit for jail time served Punishment, Sentencing, Departure Punishment, Sentencing, Drug crimes Punishment, Sentencing, Drug crimes Punishment, Sentencing, Fines Punishment, Sentencing, Fines Punishment, Sentencing, Good time credits Punishment, Sentencing, Good time credits	H 2421 H 2152 H 2523 H 2487 S 284 H 2487 S 284 H 2500 H 2487 S 230 H 2360 H 2701 S 471 H 2034 Discrimi H 2735 H 2717 H 2131 H 2742 H 2742 H 2744 H 2744 H 2744 H 2744 H 2744 H 27530	Assistance animals, Dogs, training of Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations Assistance animals, Housing accommodations License plates and placards, Aging and disability services institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions License plates and placards, School districts License plates and placards, School districts Power of attorney, Kansas power of attorney act Power of attorney, Sign language interpreters Service providers, Criminal history record checks State government employment preference State government sployment preference State government sploymen

		******	
H 2130	Sexual orientation and gender identity	H 2659	Mail ballot election act
S 84	Sexual orientation and gender identity	S 131	Municipalities, Filing deadline when no primary
H 2322	Speech, Social media website user, censorship of	S 260	Municipalities, Recounts
H 2153	Student religious association statutes, repeal of	H 2075	Petitions, Circulator requirements
		H 2113	Petitions, Political parties, recognition of
Economi	ic Development	S 116	Petitions, Political parties, recognition of
H 2689	Angel investor tax credit	H 2562	Political advertising, Attribution requirements
S 414	Community improvement district, Sales tax	H 2135	Political advertising, Political signs, City and county
3 414	assessment, exemption of grocery stores		regulation restrictions, repeal of
H 2585		H 2169	Political advertising, Treasurer listing, deletion of
S 339	Electric rates, Reduced rates, approval of	S 129	Polling places, Voting at any county polling place
H 2702	Electric rates, Reduced rates, approval of	S 115	Presidential, National popular vote compact
П 2/02	High performance incentive fund, Workforce training	S 256	Presidential, Preference primary, repeal of
11 2006	participation requirement	H 2090	Registration, Certain state agencies
H 2006	Incentives, Data, disclosure of	S 159	Registration, DMV license application
S 176	Incentives, Data, disclosure of	H 2092	Registration, Election day
H 2006	Incentives, Rural housing incentive districts, Special	H 2220	Registration, Election day
11.0500	obligation bonds	S 43	Registration, Election day
H 2529	Incentives, STAR bonds	H 2220	Registration, Proof of citizenship
S 498	Incentives, STAR bonds	S 149	Registration, Proof of citizenship
S 5	Kansas reinvestment act	H 2508	Secretary of state, Nonpartisan
S 204	Legislative post audit economic development	H 2512	Sedgwick county, Voting at any polling place
** ***	incentive review subcommittee	H 2189	Voters, Moving to a new county, Provisional ballot,
H 2006	Rural housing incentive districts, Special obligation		allowance of
	bonds	S 129	Voters, Polling places, Any county polling place
H 2721	Rural opportunity zones	S 149	Voters, Proof of citizenship, Birth certificate upon
S 13	Rural opportunity zones		consent
S 125	Rural opportunity zones	Emerger	ncies and Disasters
S 135	Rural opportunity zones	U	
H 2702	Workforce training tax credit	COI	ID-19, this index
		H 2054	Kansas emergency management act, Governor and
Elections	8		executive officers, powers of
H 2659	Advance voting, Ballot counting, time for	H 2396	Kansas emergency management act, Governor and
H 2687	Advance voting, Ballot return, limitation on		executive officers, powers of
H 2091	Advance voting, In person	H 2054	Kansas emergency management act, Orders
S 412	Advance voting, Permanent advance voting status	H 2396	Kansas emergency management act, Orders
H 2687	Ballots, Mailed ballots, Ballot return, limitation on	H 2054	Kansas emergency management act, State of disaster
H 2659	Ballots, Mailed ballots, Counting, time for		emergency declarations, extension of
S 310	Ballots, Paper ballots, requirement of	H 2396	Kansas emergency management act, State of disaster
S 412	Ballots, Permanent advance voting		emergency declarations, extension of
S 351	Ballots, Provisional ballots, Counting of	H 2054	Kansas emergency management act, Violations of
H 2189	Ballots, Provisional ballots, Moving to a new county		
		H 2396	Kansas emergency management act, Violations of
H 2176	Ballots, Unlawful collection of	H 2054	Local disaster emergency declarations
	Ballots, Unlawful collection of Campaign finance, Community colleges	H 2054 H 2396	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations
H 2176 S 299	Campaign finance, Community colleges	H 2054	Local disaster emergency declarations
H 2176		H 2054 H 2396 S 235	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations
H 2176 S 299	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities,	H 2054 H 2396	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations
H 2176 S 299 S 256	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and	H 2054 H 2396 S 235	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of
H 2176 S 299 S 256	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 <b>Energy</b> S 393	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate,	H 2054 H 2396 S 235	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities,
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 <b>Energy</b> S 393 H 2273	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate,	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 <b>Energy</b> S 393 H 2273 H 2662	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 <b>Energy</b> S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 <b>Energy</b> S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 <b>Energy</b> S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 <b>Energy</b> S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46 H 2623	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of Renewable energy, Pollinator friendly solar sites
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 <b>Energy</b> S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299 S 256	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 <b>Energy</b> S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46 H 2623 H 2745	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of Renewable energy, Pollinator friendly solar sites State energy plan, development of
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299 S 256	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 <b>Energy</b> S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46 H 2623	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of Renewable energy, Pollinator friendly solar sites State energy plan, development of
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299 S 256 S 257	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 <b>Energy</b> S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46 H 2623 H 2745	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of Renewable energy, Pollinator friendly solar sites State energy plan, development of
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299 S 256 S 257 S 132	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Crimes, Electioneering Crimes, Prosecutorial authority	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 Energy S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46 H 2623 H 2745 Environ	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of Renewable energy, Pollinator friendly solar sites State energy plan, development of  ment Carbon dioxide, Eminent domain
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299 S 256 S 257 S 132 H 2018	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Crimes, Electioneering Crimes, Prosecutorial authority Crimes, Prosecutorial authority	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 Energy S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46 H 2623 H 2745 Environ S 395 H 2575	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of Renewable energy, Pollinator friendly solar sites State energy plan, development of  ment  Carbon dioxide, Eminent domain Kansas drycleaner environmental response act
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299 S 256 S 257 S 132 H 2018 H 2042	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Crimes, Electioneering Crimes, Prosecutorial authority Crimes, Prosecutorial authority Crimes, Voting crimes, penalties for	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 Energy S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46 H 2623 H 2745 Environ S 395	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of Renewable energy, Pollinator friendly solar sites State energy plan, development of  ment Carbon dioxide, Eminent domain
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299 S 256 S 257 S 132 H 2018 H 2042 H 2019	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Crimes, Electioneering Crimes, Prosecutorial authority Crimes, Prosecutorial authority	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 Energy S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46 H 2623 H 2745 Environ S 395 H 2575 S 153	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of Renewable energy, Pollinator friendly solar sites State energy plan, development of  ment  Carbon dioxide, Eminent domain Kansas drycleaner environmental response act Pollutant spill, cleaning of
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299 S 256 S 257 S 132 H 2018 H 2042 H 2019 S 3	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Crimes, Electioneering Crimes, Prosecutorial authority Crimes, Prosecutorial authority Crimes, Voting crimes, penalties for Election commissioner, Appointment of	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 Energy S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46 H 2623 H 2745 Environ S 395 H 2575 S 153	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of Renewable energy, Pollinator friendly solar sites State energy plan, development of  ment  Carbon dioxide, Eminent domain Kansas drycleaner environmental response act
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299 S 256 S 257 S 132 H 2018 H 2042 H 2019 S 3	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Crimes, Electioneering Crimes, Prosecutorial authority Crimes, Prosecutorial authority Crimes, Voting crimes, penalties for Election commissioner, Appointment of Election commissioner, Board of county commissioners, authority of	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 Energy S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46 H 2623 H 2745 Environ S 395 H 2575 S 153 Ethics, (	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of Renewable energy, Pollinator friendly solar sites State energy plan, development of  ment  Carbon dioxide, Eminent domain Kansas drycleaner environmental response act Pollutant spill, cleaning of  Governmental  Legislative assistants, Gifts per session
H 2176 S 299 S 256 H 2612 H 2169 H 2560 S 299 S 256 S 257 S 132 H 2018 H 2019 S 3 S 3	Campaign finance, Community colleges Campaign finance, Contributions by certain entities, repeal of Campaign finance, Endorsements of candidates and office holders, Civil fines Campaign finance, Express advocacy of a candidate, definition of Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, Reports, Electronic filing for all state offices Campaign finance, School districts with 5,000 or more students Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Crimes, Electioneering Crimes, Prosecutorial authority Crimes, Prosecutorial authority Crimes, Voting crimes, penalties for Election commissioner, Appointment of Election commissioner, Board of county	H 2054 H 2396 S 235 Energy S 393 H 2273 H 2662 S 488 HR 6031 ERO 46 H 2623 H 2745 Environ S 395 H 2575 S 153	Local disaster emergency declarations Local disaster emergency declarations No-fund warrants, issuance of  Electric generation, Net metering Electric generation, Wind generation facilities, construction of Energy efficiency benchmarking act Kansas energy office, Director of Kansas energy office, Disapproval of Kansas energy office, Establishment of Renewable energy, Pollinator friendly solar sites State energy plan, development of  ment  Carbon dioxide, Eminent domain Kansas drycleaner environmental response act Pollutant spill, cleaning of  Governmental

H 2559	Lobbyists and lobbying, Reports, late filing penalties	H 2619	Banks, Privilege tax, Residence loan interest
H 2010	Lobbyists and lobbying, Restrictions, Elected state		deduction
	officers and executive staff	H 2734	Banks, Privilege tax, Residence loan interest
S 51 S 51	Lobbyists and lobbying, Restrictions, Legislators Lobbyists and lobbying, Restrictions, State officers	S 238	deduction Banks, Privilege tax, Residence loan interest
3 31	and employees	3 236	deduction
H 2036	Lobbyists and lobbying, State moneys, Use for gun	S 259	Banks, Privilege tax, Residence loan interest
11 2010	control issues, prohibition of Officers and employees, state, Lobbying restrictions,	H 2363	deduction
H 2010	Elected state officers and executive staff	H 2054	Consumer loans, Veteran status, inquiry of Credit unions, Membership, field of
S 51	Officers and employees, state, Lobbying restrictions,	H 2619	Credit unions, Membership, field of
	Legislators	H 2734	Credit unions, Membership, field of
S 51	Officers and employees, state, Lobbying restrictions, State officers and employees	H 2619 S 239	Credit unions, Privilege tax Credit unions, Privilege tax
	State officers and employees	H 2516	First-time homebuyer savings accounts
Executiv	e Reorganization Orders	S 458	State banking board, Member compensation, increase
HR 6032	ERO 44, department of human services, Disapproval	11.0054	of
TIK 0032	of	H 2254	State banking code, Loans and borrowing, Subprime loans, minimum amount of
SCR 1761	ERO 44, department of human services, Disapproval		ionis, illiminali alloane of
ERO 44	of ERO 44, department of human services,	Fire and	Fire Protection
LICO 44	Establishment of	H 2002	Fire districts, Property tax exemption, limitation of
HR 6034	ERO 45, state employee health benefits plan division,	H 2026	Fire sprinklers, Fire sprinkler industry act
	Approval of	S 362	Fireworks, Regulation of
SCR 1763	ERO 45, state employee health benefits plan division,	S 362 S 206	Fireworks, Retail sales
ERO 45	Approval of ERO 45, state employee health benefits plan division,	S 468	State fire marshal, Fire deaths, investigation of State fire marshal, Fire deaths, investigation of
	Transfer of	S 206	State fire marshal, Fire safety standards
S 488	ERO 46, Kansas energy office, Director confirmation	H 2026	State fire marshal, Fire sprinkler industry act
HR 6031 ERO 46	ERO 46, Kansas energy office, Disapproval of ERO 46, Kansas energy office, Establishment of	S 468	State fire marshal, Law enforcement powers
LICO TO	ERO 40, Ransas energy office, Establishment of		
		Firearm	8
Family I	Law	Firearm	
•		Firearm H 2297	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational
Family I H 2333 H 2735	Aw  Adoption, Final decree, date of  Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind		Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions
H 2333 H 2735	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2325	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2325	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326 H 2406	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2326 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Forfeiture, disposition of
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157 H 2533	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245 H 2181 H 2129 H 2425	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Forfeiture, disposition of Gun safety red flag act Kansas anti-red flag act
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157 H 2533	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Uniform family law arbitration act	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2326 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245 H 2181 H 2129 H 2425 H 2717	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Forfeiture, disposition of Gun safety red flag act Kansas anti-red flag act Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157 H 2533 Financia	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Uniform family law arbitration act  Il Institutions  Banks, Interest deduction, Agricultural loans	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2326 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245 H 2181 H 2129 H 2425 H 2717 H 2636	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order ac
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157 H 2533	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Uniform family law arbitration act	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2326 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245 H 2181 H 2129 H 2425 H 2717	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Forfeiture, disposition of Gun safety red flag act Kansas anti-red flag act Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act Large capacity ammunition magazines, prohibition of Lobbyists and lobbying, Use of state money for gun
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157 H 2533 Financia H 2619 H 2619 H 2619	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting and parenting time Uniform family law arbitration act  Il Institutions  Banks, Interest deduction, Agricultural loans Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2326 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245 H 2181 H 2129 H 2425 H 2717 H 2636 H 2036	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extr
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157 H 2533 Financia H 2619 H 2619 H 2054 H 2619 H 2054	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Uniform family law arbitration act  Il Institutions  Banks, Interest deduction, Agricultural loans Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245 H 2181 H 2129 H 2425 H 2717 H 2636 H 2036 S 80 H 2378	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Forfeiture, disposition of Gun safety red flag act Kansas anti-red flag act Kansas afterarms industry nondiscrimination act Large capacity ammunition magazines, prohibition of Lobbyists and lobbying, Use of state money for gun control issues, prohibition of Possession, Housing rental agreements
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157 H 2533 Financia H 2619 H 2619 H 2619	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Uniform family law arbitration act  Il Institutions  Banks, Interest deduction, Agricultural loans Banks, Interest deduction, Residence loans Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2326 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245 H 2181 H 2129 H 2425 H 2717 H 2636 H 2036	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Forfeiture, disposition of Gun safety red flag act Kansas anti-red flag act Kansas anti-red flag act Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act Large capacity ammunition magazines, prohibition of Lobbyists and lobbying, Use of state money for gun control issues, prohibition of Possession, Convicted felon Possession, Housing rental agreements Possession, Inquiries on patient ownership,
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157 H 2533 Financia H 2619 H	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Uniform family law arbitration act  Il Institutions  Banks, Interest deduction, Agricultural loans Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2326 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245 H 2181 H 2129 H 2425 H 2717 H 2636 H 2036 S 80 H 2378 H 2415	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extr
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157 H 2533 Financia H 2619 H	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Uniform family law arbitration act  Il Institutions  Banks, Interest deduction, Agricultural loans Banks, Interest deduction, Residence loans Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction Banks, Privilege tax, Credits, Contributions to technical colleges	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245 H 2181 H 2129 H 2425 H 2717 H 2636 H 2036 S 80 H 2378 H 2415 H 2636	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Forfeiture, disposition of Gun safety red flag act Kansas anti-red flag act Kansas anti-red flag act Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act Large capacity ammunition magazines, prohibition of Lobbyists and lobbying, Use of state money for gun control issues, prohibition of Possession, Lonvicted felon Possession, Housing rental agreements Possession, Inquiries on patient ownership, prohibition of Possession, Large capacity ammunition magazines, prohibition of
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157 H 2533 Financia H 2619 H 2619 H 2619 H 2619 H 2619 H 2734 S 238 S 238 S 259	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Uniform family law arbitration act  Il Institutions  Banks, Interest deduction, Agricultural loans Banks, Interest deduction, Residence loans Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction Banks, Privilege tax, Credits, Contributions to technical colleges Banks, Privilege tax, Residence loan interest	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2326 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245 H 2181 H 2129 H 2425 H 2717 H 2636 H 2036 S 80 H 2378 H 2415 H 2415 H 2415	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extr
H 2333 H 2735 H 2164 H 2587 H 2533 H 2735 H 2320 H 2321 H 2641 H 2457 S 404 H 2196 S 157 H 2533 Financia H 2619 H	Adoption, Final decree, date of Adoption, Nondiscrimination against blind prospective parent Adoption, Placement entities, religious freedom Adoption, Venue for agency adoption Arbitration Divorce, Legal custody, residency and parenting time, Nondiscrimination against blind parent Marriage, Marriage and constitution restoration act Marriage, Optional elevated marriage act Marriage, Recognition of Parentage act, Birth certificate, amendment of Parentage act, Parental rights, termination of Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Temporary parenting plans, Shared parenting time Uniform family law arbitration act  Il Institutions  Banks, Interest deduction, Agricultural loans Banks, Interest deduction, Residence loans Banks, Privilege tax, Business loan interest deduction Banks, Privilege tax, Credits, Contributions to technical colleges	H 2297 H 2325 H 2326 H 2326 H 2325 H 2326 H 2406 H 2733 S 415 H 2718 H 2425 S 183 S 245 H 2181 H 2129 H 2425 H 2717 H 2636 H 2036 S 80 H 2378 H 2415 H 2636	Concealed, Carrying, Postsecondary educational institutions Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Age requirement Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Foreign jurisdiction, issued by Concealed, License, Relinquishment subject to court order Discriminatory zoning regulations, prohibition of Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Extreme risk protective order act Forfeiture, disposition of Gun safety red flag act Kansas anti-red flag act Kansas anti-red flag act Kansas firearms industry nondiscrimination act Large capacity ammunition magazines, prohibition of Lobbyists and lobbying, Use of state money for gun control issues, prohibition of Possession, Lonvicted felon Possession, Housing rental agreements Possession, Inquiries on patient ownership, prohibition of Possession, Large capacity ammunition magazines, prohibition of

H 2733	Possession, Relinquishment of firearms subject to	H 2742	Creation of, Kansas medical cannabis revenues fund
	court order	H 2432	Creation of, Kansas pesticide waste disposal fund
S 415	Possession, Relinquishment of firearms subject to	S 224	Creation of, Kansas retail pet shop act fee fund
	court order	H 2413	Creation of, Medical cannabis regulation fund
S 8	Purchase, Three-day waiting period	H 2740	Creation of, Medical marijuana business entity
S 261	Roy'Ale Spencer firearm safety act		regulation fund
H 2111	Sale, Background checks	H 2740	Creation of, Medical marijuana dispensary regulation
H 2023	Sale, Persons on terrorist watch list	*** ***	fund
H 2635	Sale, Privilege tax, levy of	H 2638	Creation of, OBGYN medical loan repayment fund
H 2511	State moneys, Use for federal gun regulations,	S 381	Creation of, OBGYN medical loan repayment fund
	prohibition of	H 2638	Creation of, OBGYN medical residency bridging fund
S 261	Storage requirements	S 381	Creation of, OBGYN medical residency bridging fund
H 2111 H 2234	Transfer, Background checks	H 2522 H 2737	Creation of, Rural hospital innovation grant fund
H 2234	Voluntary gun safety act		Creation of, School bus safety zone fund
ъ.		S 219 H 2558	Creation of, Scrap metal data repository fund Creation of, Securities act victim restitution fund
Funds		S 283	Creation of, Sports wagering receipts fund
H 2309	Abolishment of, Kansas creative arts industries	H 2224	Creation of, State geological survey monitoring well
	commission fund	11 2224	fund
H 2395	Abolishment of, Mineral production education fund	S 47	Creation of, Student opportunity scholarship fund
H 2534	Abolishment of, Well plugging assurance fund	H 2629	Creation of, Supplemental nursing services agency
H 2536	Abolishment of, Well plugging assurance fund	11 2029	regulation fund
HR 6034	Administration of, State workers compensation self-	H 2037	Creation of, Veterans benefit lottery game fund
	insurance fund	H 2731	Creation of, Wartime veteran and first responder
SCR 1763	Administration of, State workers compensation self-		survivors' grant fund
	insurance fund	H 2671	Creation of, White collar crime fund
ERO 45	Administration of, State workers compensation self-	S 283	Creation of, White collar crime fund
	insurance fund	S 170	Crediting to, Air quality fee fund
H 2534	Amendment of, Abandoned oil and gas well fund	S 83	Crediting to, EMS revolving fund
H 2536	Amendment of, Abandoned oil and gas well fund	S 137	Crediting to, Family and children investment fund
H 2413	Creation of, Alcohol and drug rehabilitation fund	S 241	Crediting to, Job creation program fund
H 2740	Creation of, Alcohol and drug rehabilitation fund	S 152	Crediting to, Water management program fund
H 2737	Creation of, Bus camera reimbursement fund	S 169	Crediting to, Water management program fund
H 2246	Creation of, Cancer research and public information trust fund	S 350	Dissolution of, Health care stabilization fund, when
S 255		S 493	Dissolution of, Health care stabilization fund, when
3 233	Creation of, Cancer research and public information trust fund	H 2386	Distribution of, Local ad valorem tax reduction fund
S 293	Creation of, Charitable organizations fee fund	H 2348	Liability of, Healthcare stabilization fund
H 2173	Creation of, Commercial industrial hemp processor	H 2173	Renaming of, Alternative crop act licensing fee fund
112175	fund	S 233 S 285	Renaming of, Alternative crop act licensing fee fund Sunset of, UST redevelopment fund
S 233	Creation of, Commercial industrial hemp processor	S 241	Transfer from, County and city revenue sharing fund
	fund	S 241	Transfer from, Local ad valorem tax reduction fund
H 2487	Creation of, Commission for the deaf and hard of	HR 6034	Transfer from, State workers compensation self-
	hearing registration fee fund	1110 0034	insurance fund
S 230	Creation of, Commission for the deaf and hard of	SCR 1763	Transfer from, State workers compensation self-
	hearing registration fee fund	5010 1705	insurance fund
H 2277	Creation of, Driver's education fund	ERO 45	Transfer from, State workers compensation self-
H 2644	Creation of, Family and medical leave insurance fund		insurance fund
S 2	Creation of, Federal medical assistance percentage	H 2246	Transfer to, Cancer research and public information
	stabilization fund		trust fund
S 168	Creation of, Home inspectors license fee fund	H 2063	Transfer to, Kansas educational building fund
H 2319	Creation of, Human trafficking and child exploitation	S 268	Transfer to, Local ad valorem tax reduction fund
	prevention grants fund	H 2063	Transfer to, State institutions building fund
H 2323	Creation of, Human trafficking and child exploitation	S 466	Transfer to, State institutions building fund
11.2264	prevention grants fund	H 2028	Use of, Evidence-based programs account
H 2364	Creation of, Kansas aerospace commission fund	H 2744	Use of, Evidence-based programs account
H 2309 H 2309	Creation of, Kansas arts commission checkoff fund Creation of, Kansas arts commission fund		
H 2309	Creation of, Kansas arts commission fund Creation of, Kansas arts commission gifts, grants and	Funerals	S
П 2309	bequests fund	H 2608	Funeral processions, Traffic regulations
H 2309	Creation of, Kansas arts commission special gifts fund	S 359	Irrevocable prepaid arrangements, Monetary cap,
H 2096	Creation of, Kansas arts commission special grits fund Creation of, Kansas children's savings account	3 337	removal of
11 2000	program expense fund	S 48	Transportation arrangements
H 2096	Creation of, Kansas children's savings account	2 10	r
2070	program trust fund	Gamblir	ng and Gaming
H 2572	Creation of, Kansas educator liability fund	Gamoni	is and Gaming
H 2742	Creation of, Kansas medical cannabis regulation fund	H 2671	Compacts, Sports wagering
	-	H 2671	Gaming facilities, Debt setoff, Child support

H 2393	Gaming facilities, Debt setoff, Support debt matched	H 2228	Child care facilities, Operation without a license, civil
H 2204	by Gaming facilities, Management contracts, legislative	S 312	fine Child care facilities, Operation without a license, civil
H 2032	approval of Gaming facilities, Sports gambling	S 469	fine Child care facilities, Operation without a license, civil
H 2068	Gaming facilities, Sports gambling		fine
H 2390	Gaming facilities, Sports gambling	H 2662	Energy efficiency benchmarking act
H 2671	Gaming facilities, Sports gambling	H 2027	Evidence-based juvenile programs
S 23	Gaming facilities, Sports gambling	S 14	Evidence-based juvenile programs
S 222	Gaming facilities, Sports gambling	H 2715	Fees, Air quality control fees
H 2068	Kansas sports wagering act	S 170	Fees, Air quality control fees
S 23	Kansas sports wagering act	S 482	Fees, Air quality control fees
S 283	Kansas sports wagering act	S 152	Fees, Water management program fund fees
H 2068	Lottery, Sports gambling	S 169	Fees, Water management program fund fees
H 2390	Lottery, Sports gambling	H 2681	Harm reduction advisory committee, establishment of
H 2671	Lottery, Sports gambling	Healthca	re facilities, Adult Care Homes, this index
S 23	Lottery, Sports gambling	H 2274	Healthcare facilities, Fines
S 222	Lottery, Sports gambling	S 167	Healthcare facilities, Fines
S 283	Lottery, Sports gambling	H 2343	Home health agencies, Provisional employment
H 2037	Lottery, Veterans benefit lottery game	S 313	Home health agencies, Provisional employment
S 465	Parimutuel racing, Electronic gaming machine	H 2054	Hospitals, Licensure and operation of
	income, Expanded lottery act fund	H 2396	Hospitals, Licensure and operation of
H 2280	Parimutuel racing, Wyandotte county horse racing	H 2522	Hospitals, Rural hospital innovation grant program
S 98	Parimutuel racing, Wyandotte county horse racing	S 439	Human milk, requirements for
S 240	Parimutuel racing, Wyandotte county horse racing	H 2535	Interagency agreement with state corporation
S 465	Racetrack gaming facilities, Electronic gaming		commission, repeal of
	machine income, Expanded lottery act fund	H 2536	Interagency agreement with state corporation
H 2068	Racetrack gaming facilities, Sports gambling		commission, repeal of
H 2390	Racetrack gaming facilities, Sports gambling	H 2575	Kansas drycleaner environmental response act
H 2671	Racetrack gaming facilities, Sports gambling	H 2742	Kansas equal access act
S 222	Racetrack gaming facilities, Sports gambling	H 2742	Kansas medical cannabis advisory board
S 283	Racetrack gaming facilities, Sports gambling	H 2742	Kansas medical cannabis agency
H 2280	Racetrack gaming facilities, Wyandotte county horse	H 2303	Kansas safe access act
	racing	S 195	Kansas safe access act
S 98	Racetrack gaming facilities, Wyandotte county horse	H 2736	Laboratory at Forbes field, surplus property
	racing	H 2736	Laboratory, construction of
S 240	Racetrack gaming facilities, Wyandotte county horse	S 487	Laboratory, construction of
	racing	H 2714	Local health departments, State financial assistance,
H 2068	Racing and gaming commission, Sports gambling,		amounts
	regulation of	H 2660	Long-acting reversible contraceptives
H 2390	Racing and gaming commission, Sports gambling,	H 2107	Medicaid, Coverage, Contraceptives
*** ****	regulation of	S 349	Medicaid, Dental benefit
H 2671	Racing and gaming commission, Sports gambling,	H 2711	Medicaid, Eligibility, Expansion
	regulation of	S 246	Medicaid, Eligibility, Expansion
S 23	Racing and gaming commission, Sports gambling,	S 252	Medicaid, Eligibility, Expansion
G 222	regulation of	H 2149	Medicaid, Eligibility, Timely determination
S 222	Racing and gaming commission, Sports gambling, regulation of	S 2	Medicaid, Federal medical assistance percentage stabilization
S 283	Racing and gaming commission, Sports gambling,	H 2205	Medicaid, Home and community-based services,
5 203	regulation of	11 2203	Protected income
H 2032	Sports gambling, Conduct of	H 2549	Medicaid, Home and community-based services,
H 2068	Sports gambling, Conduct of		Protected income
H 2390	Sports gambling, Conduct of	S 10	Medicaid, Home and community-based services,
H 2671	Sports gambling, Conduct of		Protected income
S 23	Sports gambling, Conduct of	S 439	Medicaid, Human milk, reimbursement for
S 222	Sports gambling, Conduct of	H 2602	Newborn screenings
S 283	Sports gambling, Conduct of	S 364	Newborn screenings
	-	H 2413	Office of medical cannabis regulation
		S 194	Organ donations and transplants
Health a	nd Environment, Department of	S 153	Pollutant spill, cleaning of
11	Ishaana faailitiaa Adult Cana Harres diis	S 110	Poultry facilities, Health impact assessment
	lthcare facilities, Adult Care Homes, this	H 2658	Prescription drugs, Affordable prescription drug
	index		importation program
S 170	Asbestos control program, Fees and civil penalties,	H 2677	Primary health center, Rules and regulations
	Air quality fee fund, deposit into	H 2155	Public health, division of, State medical examiner

S 171	Public water supply systems, Construction or repair, lead levels	S 95	Board of healing arts, Duties regarding drugs used to carry out sentence of death
S 171	Public water supply systems, Loan program	H 2054	Board of healing arts, Licensure and regulation
S 363	Safety net clinics, Funding for	H 2396	Board of healing arts, Licensure and regulation
H 2601	Secretary, Childhood immunizations, requirement of	H 2740	Board of healing arts, Physician certification to
H 2224	Secretary, Injection wells, fees		recommend medical marijuana
H 2658	Secretary, Powers, duties and functions, Affordable	H 2645	Board of healing arts, Professional incompetency
	prescription drug importation program	H 2244	Cannabis-related healthcare, Cannabidiol treatment
H 2692	Secretary, Powers, duties and functions, Emergency		preparation
	medical services	H 2709	Cannabis-related healthcare, Cannabis products
S 320	Secretary, Powers, duties and functions, Infectious		containing not more than 0.3% THC
	disease, designation of	S 449	Cannabis-related healthcare, Cannabis products
S 491	Secretary, Powers, duties and functions, Infectious		containing not more than 0.3% THC
	disease, designation of	H 2742	Cannabis-related healthcare, Certification to
S 96	Secretary, Powers, duties and functions, Inspection of	11.21.62	recommend medical marijuana
	facility designated to carry out sentence of death	H 2163	Cannabis-related healthcare, Medical cannabis
S 153	Secretary, Powers, duties and functions, Spill cleanup	H 2413	Cannabis-related healthcare, Medical cannabis
H 2715	Secretary, Rules and regulations, Air quality control fees	H 2740 H 2742	Cannabis-related healthcare, Medical cannabis Cannabis-related healthcare, Medical cannabis
S 482		S 113	Cannabis-related healthcare, Medical cannabis  Cannabis-related healthcare, Medical cannabis
3 402	Secretary, Rules and regulations, Air quality control fees	H 2303	Cannabis-related healthcare, Medical use marijuana
S 152	Secretary, Rules and regulations, Class 1 and 5	S 195	Cannabis-related healthcare, Medical use marijuana
3 132	underground injection control wells	H 2661	Contraceptives, Availability at pharmacies
H 2664	Sexual assault survivors, Information and care	H 2107	Contraceptives, Insurance coverage
S 409	Skilled nursing care facilities, Quality care assessment	H 2124	Contraceptives, Insurance coverage
HR 6034	State employee health benefits plan, transfer to	S 163	Contraceptives, Insurance coverage
	department of administration	H 2660	Contraceptives, Long-acting reversible contraceptives
SCR 1763	State employee health benefits plan, transfer to	H 2709	Controlled substances, Cannabis products containing
	department of administration		not more than 0.3% THC
ERO 45	State employee health benefits plan, transfer to	S 449	Controlled substances, Cannabis products containing
	department of administration		not more than 0.3% THC
HR 6034	State workers compensation self-insurance fund,	S 234	Controlled substances, Electronic prescriptions
	transfer to department of administration	H 2163	Controlled substances, Medical cannabis
SCR 1763	State workers compensation self-insurance fund,	H 2413	Controlled substances, Medical cannabis
	transfer to department of administration	H 2740	Controlled substances, Medical cannabis
ERO 45	State workers compensation self-insurance fund,	H 2742	Controlled substances, Medical cannabis
0.005	transfer to department of administration	S 113	Controlled substances, Medical cannabis
S 285 S 287	Storage tanks, Replacement, reimbursement for	S 325	Corporate practice of medicine, Business entity,
S 287	Storage tanks, Replacement, reimbursement for	S 327	definition of
3 283	Storage tanks, Underground fund and aboveground fund, Maximum liability, increase of	H 2245	Corporate practice of medicine, Naturopathic doctors Decedents, Abandonment of
S 286	Storage tanks, Underground fund and aboveground	H 2674	Decedents, Abandonment of Decedents, Coroners, Child autopsies
3 200	fund, Maximum liability, increase of	H 2155	Decedents, Coroners, Training and education
S 285	Storage tanks, Underground fund and aboveground	H 2199	Decedents, Cremation of
	fund, Sunset, extension of	S 48	Decedents, Transportation of
S 286	Storage tanks, Underground fund and aboveground	S 11	Dental care, Dental therapists
	fund, Sunset, extension of	H 2298	Dental care, State healthcare benefits program
S 285	Storage tanks, UST redevelopment fund	S 349	Dental care, State oral health plan
	compensation advisory board, sunset of	H 2366	Emergency medical services, Apparatus operator
S 285	Storage tanks, UST redevelopment fund, sunset of	H 2692	Emergency medical services, Emergency medical
H 2527	Trauma advisory committee, Closed meetings		services board, Powers and duties
H 2527	Trauma advisory committee, Records, privileged	S 99	Emergency medical services, Emergency medical
H 2457	Vital statistics, Birth certificate, Amendments of	******	services board, Powers and duties
H 2376	Vital statistics, Birth certificate, Change in sex	H 2366	Emergency medical services, Emergency medical
S 463	X-ray systems, regulation of	0.02	services board, Rural area, definition of
**	177 11 6	S 83	Emergency medical services, EMS revolving fund
Health a	nd Health Care	H 2723 H 2415	Emergency medical services, Medical directors
COL	TD-19, this index	H 2510	Firearm ownership inquiries, prohibition of Healing arts, Practice of, Healing arts school clinics
H 2295	Board of healing arts, Anesthesiologist assistants,	H 2515	Healing arts, Practice of, Healing arts school clinics
11 4473	licensure of	S 277	Healing arts, Practice of, Healing arts school clinics
S 223	Board of healing arts, Anesthesiologist assistants,	S 475	Healing arts, Providers, Healthcare conscience
3 223	licensure of	2 .73	protection act
H 2146	Board of healing arts, Corporate practice of medicine	H 2029	Health care compact, repeal of
H 2402	Board of healing arts, Corporate practice of medicine	H 2143	Healthcare benefits coverage, Commissioner of
S 120	Board of healing arts, Corporate practice of medicine		insurance, exempt from jurisdiction

## SUBJECT INDEX

S 32	Healthcare benefits coverage, Commissioner of	S 439	Medicaid, Human milk, reimbursement for
0.02	insurance, exempt from jurisdiction	S 407	Mental health, Acute psychiatric care for children
S 425	Home and community-based services, Attendant care	H 2227	Mental health, Conversion therapy, prohibition of
	services, Provisional employment	H 2483	Mental health, Conversion therapy, prohibition of
H 2256	Home and community-based services, Community	S 367	Mental health, Conversion therapy, prohibition of
	leaders service act	S 249	Mental health, Insurance coverage, Utilization review
H 2205	Home and community-based services, Protected		
	income	H 2453	Mental health, Mental health services planning
H 2549	Home and community-based services, Protected		council, Technicians, Recognition of licenses from
	income		other jurisdictions
S 10	Home and community-based services, Protected	H 2582	Mental health, School district behavioral health
H 2550	income	H 2077	intervention teams
S 208	Home and community-based services, Rate increase Home and community-based services, Rate increase	H 20//	Mental health, Treatment facilities, Suicide risk evaluation
S 208	Hospitals and healthcare-related facilities, Charge	H 2453	Midwifery, Recognition of authorization to practice
3 202	estimates, disclosure of	11 2433	by other jurisdictions
S 118	Hospitals and healthcare-related facilities, Closure,	H 2339	Naturopathy, Naturopathic doctor licensure act
5 110	Debt liability	S 341	Naturopathy, Naturopathic doctor licensure act
S 280	Hospitals and healthcare-related facilities, Closure,	H 2185	Naturopathy, Scope of practice
	Notification of	H 2602	Newborn screenings
H 2168	Hospitals and healthcare-related facilities, Hospital	S 364	Newborn screenings
	provider assessment, Rate and use	S 194	Organ donations and transplants
H 2246	Hospitals and healthcare-related facilities, Hospital	S 114	Persons in custody, Healthcare costs, payment of
	provider assessment, Rate and use	S 165	Podiatry
S 225	Hospitals and healthcare-related facilities, Hospital	H 2658	Prescription drugs, Affordable prescription drug
0.271	provider assessment, Rate and use	0.224	importation program
S 371	Hospitals and healthcare-related facilities, Human	S 234	Prescription drugs, Electronic prescriptions,
H 2677	trafficking, posting of notice Hospitals and healthcare-related facilities, Primary	H 2389	Controlled substances
11 2077	health center pilot program act	11 2309	Prescription drugs, Electronic prescriptions, Required when
H 2522	Hospitals and healthcare-related facilities, Rural	S 234	Prescription drugs, Electronic prescriptions, Required
	hospital innovation grant program		when
S 281	Hospitals and healthcare-related facilities, Service	H 2557	Prescription drugs, Insulin, Cost-share obligation cap
	prices, disclosure of	H 2570	Prescription drugs, Opioids and similar drugs,
H 2601	Immunizations for students		Prescriptions, Limitations
S 320	Infectious disease tests	H 2358	Prescription drugs, Opioids and similar drugs,
S 491	Infectious disease tests		Prescriptions, Requirements
H 2645	Informed consent for pelvic exams	H 2579	Prescription drugs, Prescription monitoring program
H 2347	Kansas Alzheimer's disease advisory council	11 2120	act
H 2089 H 2030	Kansas death with dignity act	H 2120 S 93	Prescription drugs, Step therapy protocols
H 2714	Kansas program of medical assistance Local health departments, State financial assistance,	S 363	Prescription drugs, Step therapy protocols Safety net clinics, funding for
11 2/17	amounts	H 2574	School sports head injury prevention act, Concussion
H 2107	Medicaid, Coverage, Contraceptives	11 23 / 4	management teams
S 231	Medicaid, Drug rebates, Deposit into state general	H 2664	Sexual assault survivors, Information and care
	fund	H 2198	Sexually transmitted diseases, Expedited partner
H 2711	Medicaid, Eligibility, Expansion		therapy
S 246	Medicaid, Eligibility, Expansion	S 144	Sexually transmitted diseases, Expedited partner
S 252	Medicaid, Eligibility, Expansion		therapy
H 2102	Medicaid, Eligibility, KanCare bridge to a healthy	H 2298	State healthcare benefits program, Dental benefits
0.54	Kansas	H 2387	State healthcare benefits program, Pharmacy benefits
S 54	Medicaid, Eligibility, KanCare bridge to a healthy	S 217 H 2054	State healthcare benefits program, Pharmacy benefits
H 2030	Kansas Medicaid, Eligibility, Kansas program of medical	П 2034	State of disaster emergencies by governor, Counties may order less stringent measures
11 2030	assistance	H 2396	State of disaster emergencies by governor, Counties
H 2149	Medicaid, Eligibility, Timely determination	11 2370	may order less stringent measures
S 2	Medicaid, Federal medical assistance percentage	HCR 5025	State of disaster emergencies by governor, COVID-19
	stabilization		state of disaster emergency declaration
S 122	Medicaid, Foster care youth	SCR 1616	State of disaster emergencies by governor, COVID-19
H 2205	Medicaid, Home and community-based services,		state of disaster emergency declaration
	Protected income	H 2629	Supplemental nursing services agencies
H 2549	Medicaid, Home and community-based services,	H 2034	Supported decision-making agreements
0.10	Protected income	H 2054	Telemedicine and telehealth, practice of
S 10	Medicaid, Home and community-based services,	H 2396	Telemedicine and telehealth, practice of
	Protected income	H 2077	Treatment facilities, Suicide risk evaluation

11.2620	II CI 1 1 C II. D 1	TT 2207	N 1 ' T' 1 '
H 2638	University of Kansas school of medicine, Rural practice loan assistance	H 2396 H 2453	Nurses and nursing, Licensure and practice Nurses and nursing, Nurse anesthetists, Recognition
S 381	University of Kansas school of medicine, Rural practice loan assistance	H 2453	of licenses from other jurisdictions Occupational therapists, Recognition of licenses from
S 463	X-ray systems, regulation of		other jurisdictions
		H 2377	Optometrists and ophthalmologists, Charitable vision screenings
Health P	Professions and Practices	H 2680	Optometrists and ophthalmologists, Optometry law
H 2295	Anesthesiologist assistants, licensure of	H 2453	Optometrists and ophthalmologists, Recognition of
S 223	Anesthesiologist assistants, licensure of	H 2357	licenses from other jurisdictions
H 2357	Athletic trainers, Licensure, Association with athletic	П 2337	Physical therapists, Licensure, Association with athletic teams, exemption for
	teams, exemption for	H 2453	Physical therapists, Licensure, Recognition of licenses
H 2487	Audiologists, Licensure, Audiology and speech-	11 2 100	from other jurisdictions
H 2670	language pathology interstate compact Audiologists, Licensure, Audiology and speech-	H 2358	Physician assistants, Opioid and similar prescriptions,
	language pathology interstate compact	11.2452	requirements
S 443	Audiologists, Licensure, Audiology and speech-	H 2453	Physician assistants, Recognition of licenses from
	language pathology interstate compact	H 2740	other jurisdictions Physicians, Certification to recommend medical
S 490	Audiologists, Licensure, Audiology and speech-	11 2/40	marijuana
*** ****	language pathology interstate compact	H 2488	Physicians, Emergency medication for schools,
H 2742	Certification to recommend medical marijuana		prescription of
H 2155 H 2146	Coroners, district and deputy, Training and education	H 2357	Physicians, Licensure, Association with athletic
S 120	Corporate practice of medicine Corporate practice of medicine		teams, exemption for
S 325	Corporate practice of medicine	H 2663	Physicians, Medical judgment, protection of
H 2630	Dentists and dentistry, Dental practices act, updates to	H 2358	Physicians, Opioid and similar prescriptions,
S 11	Dentists and dentistry, Dental therapists	S 165	requirements for Podiatrists, Terminology
H 2630	Dentists and dentistry, Licensure	H 2453	Respiratory therapists, Recognition of licenses from
H 2453	Dieticians, Recognition of licenses from other	11 2 100	other jurisdictions
11.2266	jurisdictions	H 2487	Speech-language pathologists, Licensure, Audiology
H 2366 S 99	Emergency medical services, Apparatus operators Emergency medical services, Attendants		and speech-language pathology interstate compact
H 2723	Emergency medical services, Medical directors	H 2670	Speech-language pathologists, Licensure, Audiology
H 2453	Emergency medical services, Recognition of	0.442	and speech-language pathology interstate compact
	certificates from other jurisdictions	S 443	Speech-language pathologists, Licensure, Audiology
H 2415	Firearm ownership inquiries, prohibition of	S 490	and speech-language pathology interstate compact Speech-language pathologists, Licensure, Audiology
S 475	Healthcare conscience protection act	3 470	and speech-language pathology interstate compact
S 366	Licensure, Expedited		
S 366 H 2184	Licensure, Reports Massage therapists, licensure of	Informa	tion Technology
S 452	Massage therapists, licensure of		
S 327	Naturopathic doctors, Corporate practice of medicine	S 57	Joint committee on information technology, Information technology project contracts, review of
H 2339	Naturopathic doctors, Naturopathic doctor licensure	H 2716	State agencies, Cybersecurity reports
	act	H 2716	State agencies, Security training
H 2453	Naturopathic doctors, Naturopathic doctor licensure		, , ,
S 341	act Naturopathic doctors, Naturopathic doctor licensure	Insuran	ce
5 541	act	H 2055	Accident and health, Association health plans,
H 2185	Naturopathic doctors, Scope of practice		Commissioner of insurance
H 2066	Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered	H 2143	Accident and health, Association health plans,
	nurses, Licenses and licensure		Commissioner of insurance
H 2412	Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Licenses and licensure	S 36	Accident and health, Association health plans, Commissioner of insurance
H 2358		11 2050	
11 2330			
	Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Opioid and similar prescriptions,	H 2058	Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions
	nurses, Opioid and similar prescriptions, requirements	H 2143	Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans,
H 2066	nurses, Opioid and similar prescriptions, requirements Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered	H 2143	Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions
	nurses, Opioid and similar prescriptions, requirements Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice		Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans,
H 2066 H 2412	nurses, Opioid and similar prescriptions, requirements Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered	H 2143 S 30	Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions
H 2412	nurses, Opioid and similar prescriptions, requirements Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice	H 2143	Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully
	nurses, Opioid and similar prescriptions, requirements Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered	H 2143 S 30	Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully insured
H 2412	nurses, Opioid and similar prescriptions, requirements Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice Nurses and nursing, Board of nursing, Rules and	H 2143 S 30 H 2054	Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully insured Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully insured
H 2412 H 2066 H 2412	nurses, Opioid and similar prescriptions, requirements Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice Nurses and nursing, Board of nursing, Rules and regulations Nurses and nursing, Board of nursing, Rules and regulations	H 2143 S 30 H 2054	Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully insured Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully insured Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully
H 2412 H 2066	nurses, Opioid and similar prescriptions, requirements Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice Nurses and nursing, Board of nursing, Rules and regulations Nurses and nursing, Board of nursing, Rules and regulations Nurses and nursing, Emergency medication for	H 2143 S 30 H 2054 H 2143 S 29	Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully insured Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully insured Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully insured
H 2412 H 2066 H 2412	nurses, Opioid and similar prescriptions, requirements Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice Nurses and nursing, Advanced practice registered nurses, Scope of practice Nurses and nursing, Board of nursing, Rules and regulations Nurses and nursing, Board of nursing, Rules and regulations	H 2143 S 30 H 2054 H 2143	Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Definitions Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully insured Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully insured Accident and health, Association health plans, Fully

H 2059	Accident and health, Association health plans, Small	H 2246	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,
11 01 42	employer health plans, exemption from	0.204	Conversion plans, approval of
H 2143	Accident and health, Association health plans, Small	S 304	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,
0.21	employer health plans, exemption from	11.2470	Conversion plans, approval of
S 31	Accident and health, Association health plans, Small	H 2479	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,
0.24	employer health plans, exemption from	0.202	Corporate governance structure, determination of
S 34	Accident and health, Association health plans, Small employer health plans, exemption from	S 303	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions, Fingerprinting
S 357	Accident and health, Billing practices, Balance	S 357	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,
3 33/	billing, prohibition of	3 33/	Independent dispute resolution
S 357	Accident and health, Billing practices, Surprise	S 495	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions, Kansas
5 551	medical bills	5 475	guaranteed coverage pool act, establishment of
S 464	Accident and health, Coverage, Breast cancer	S 495	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions, Kansas
5 .0.	examinations	5 .,,	uninsurable health plan act, reinstatement of
H 2124	Accident and health, Coverage, Contraceptives	S 402	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,
S 163	Accident and health, Coverage, Contraceptives		Licensure
H 2307	Accident and health, Coverage, Dental services	H 2246	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,
H 2633	Accident and health, Coverage, Dental services		Penalties, assessment of
S 282	Accident and health, Coverage, Description of	H 2480	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,
S 401	Accident and health, Coverage, Hearing aids		Penalties, assessment of
H 2556	Accident and health, Coverage, Orthotic devices	S 292	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,
H 2074	Accident and health, Coverage, Preexisting conditions		Penalties, assessment of
H 2556	Accident and health, Coverage, Prosthetic devices	H 2598	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,
S 357	Accident and health, End surprise medical bills act		Pharmacy benefits managers, licensure of
H 2711	Accident and health, Health insurance plan	S 438	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,
	reinsurance		Pharmacy benefits managers, licensure of
S 252	Accident and health, Health insurance plan	H 2246	Commissioner, Securities commissioner, Appointing
0.40#	reinsurance		authority
S 495	Accident and health, Kansas guaranteed coverage	S 290	Commissioner, Securities commissioner, Appointing
S 495	pool act, establishment of Accident and health, Kansas uninsurable health	H 2246	authority Commissioner, Securities commissioner, Removal
3 493	insurance plan act, Reinstatement of	П 2240	authority
S 109	Accident and health, Kansas uninsurable health	S 290	Commissioner, Securities commissioner, Removal
5 107	insurance plan act, Repeal of	3 2 7 0	authority
H 2557	Accident and health, Prescription insulin drugs, Cost-	H 2021	Commissioner, Term limits
11 2557	share obligation maximum	H 2410	Commissioner, Vacancy, filling of
S 376	Accident and health, Prescription insulin drugs, Cost-	H 2606	Commissioner, Vacancy, filling of
5570	share obligation maximum	H 2479	Companies and fraternal benefit societies, Model
S 324	Accident and health, Private contract		regulation, codification of
H 2053	Accident and health, Short-term policies	S 347	Financial examinations, Examiners, compensation of
S 35	Accident and health, Short-term policies	S 347	Financial examinations, Fees
H 2057	Accident and health, Small employer carriers	H 2348	Healthcare stabilization fund
S 33	Accident and health, Small employer carriers	S 325	Healthcare stabilization fund
H 2053	Accident and health, Specially designed policies	S 350	Healthcare stabilization fund, Board of governors
S 35	Accident and health, Specially designed policies	S 493	Healthcare stabilization fund, Board of governors
H 2120	Accident and health, Step therapy protocols	H 2673	Healthcare stabilization fund, Certain civil actions,
S 93	Accident and health, Step therapy protocols		supreme court original jurisdiction
H 2459	Accident and health, Utilization review, Mental illness	S 350	Healthcare stabilization fund, Coverage requirements
S 249	Accident and health, Utilization review, Mental illness	S 493	Healthcare stabilization fund, Coverage requirements
H 2459	Accident and health, Utilization review, Substance use	S 350	Healthcare stabilization fund, Dissolution, when
	disorder	S 493	Healthcare stabilization fund, Dissolution, when
S 249	Accident and health, Utilization review, Substance use	S 303	Insurance department, Employees, fingerprinting of
11.0470	disorder	S 346	Insurance department, Surplus real estate
H 2478	Administrators, Third party administrators act	S 66	Insurance holding companies, Enterprise risk reports
S 347	Commissioner, Contract requirements	S 291	Investigations, Investigators, Powers, duties and
H 2572 S 291	Commissioner, Educator protection act Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions, Anti-	S 402	functions Licensure, Agents
3 291	fraud investigations	S 402 S 402	Licensure, Agents Licensure, Producers
H 2055	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,	H 2041	Life insurance and annuities, Living organ donors
11 2000	Association health plans	H 2041	Long-term care insurance act, definitions
S 36	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions,	H 2480	Long-term care insurance act, definitions  Long-term care insurance act, definitions
5 50	Association health plans	H 2230	Motor vehicle coverage, Kansas automobile injury
S 32	Commissioner, Powers, duties and functions, Certain	11 2230	reparations act
	healthcare benefits coverage, exemption from	H 2296	Motor vehicle coverage, Kansas automobile injury
	<i>5</i> / 1		reparations act
			-

3043

H 2182	Motor vehicle coverage, Minimum bodily injury damage limit, increase of	H 2154	Employment security, Benefits, Certain federal employees
H 2634	Motor vehicle coverage, Minimum fines, removal of	H 2704	Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification,
S 352	Motor vehicle coverage, Peer-to-peer vehicle sharing act	H 2704	Employment for educational institution Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification,
H 2210	Motor vehicle coverage, Uninsured motorist,		Fraud
S 489	Coverage Motor vehicle coverage, Uninsured motorist,	H 2704	Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification, Illness or injury
H 2631	Exceptions Pharmacy benefits managers, Federal 340B covered	H 2413	Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification, Medical cannabis use, prohibition of
	entities, treatment of	H 2740	Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification,
H 2598	Pharmacy benefits managers, Licensure		Medical cannabis use, prohibition of
S 438 H 2598	Pharmacy benefits managers, Licensure Pharmacy benefits managers, Registration, end of	H 2742	Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification, Medical cannabis use, prohibition of
S 438	Pharmacy benefits managers, Registration, end of	H 2704	Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification,
H 2246	Property and casualty, Excess lines coverage		Pension or retirement pay
H 2480	Property and casualty, Excess lines coverage	H 2704	Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification,
S 292	Property and casualty, Excess lines coverage		Time of
S 107	Property and casualty, Judgments, attorney fees	H 2565	Employment security, Benefits, Eligibility
S 323		S 378	
5 323	Property and casualty, Nonrenewal of policy, Altered		Employment security, Benefits, Eligibility
	terms, exception of	S 394	Employment security, Benefits, Eligibility
H 2246	Reciprocals, Conversion plan	H 2565	Employment security, Benefits, Maximum duration
S 304	Reciprocals, Conversion plan	H 2642	Employment security, Benefits, Maximum duration
H 2246	Reciprocals, Mutual insurance companies, conversion	S 27	Employment security, Benefits, Maximum duration
11 22 10	into	S 378	Employment security, Benefits, Maximum duration
0.204			
S 304	Reciprocals, Mutual insurance companies, conversion	S 394	Employment security, Benefits, Maximum duration
	into	H 2054	Employment security, Benefits, Notification of certain
S 453	Reinsurance of risks, Credit for reinsurance model		benefits
	law	H 2154	Employment security, Benefits, Notification of certain
H 2143	Risk-based capital instructions		benefits
H 2246	Risk-based capital instructions	H 2396	Employment security, Benefits, Notification of certain
S 289	Risk-based capital instructions		benefits
H 2572	Schools, Educator liability insurance, Educator	H 2148	Employment security, Benefits, Privately contracted
11 25 / 2	protection act	11 21 10	school bus drivers
H 2298	State healthcare benefits program, Dental benefits, assignment of	H 2315	Employment security, Benefits, Privately contracted school bus drivers
11 2207		0.20	
H 2387	State healthcare benefits program, Pharmacy benefits, participation	S 38	Employment security, Benefits, Privately contracted school bus drivers
S 217	State healthcare benefits program, Pharmacy benefits,	H 2054	Employment security, Benefits, Waiting period
	participation	H 2154	Employment security, Benefits, Waiting period
S 387	State healthcare benefits program, Unaffiliated	H 2396	Employment security, Benefits, Waiting period
	healthcare benefits package	H 2566	Employment security, Benefits, Waiting period
S 228	Third-party administrators, fees	S 27	Employment security, Benefits, Waiting period
		S 392	Employment security, Benefits, Waiting period
T 1	1E 1 4	H 2054	Employment security, Benefits, Work search
Labor ai	nd Employment	11 2034	requirement
H 2521	Athlete agents, Revised uniform athlete agents act	H 2154	Employment security, Benefits, Work search
H 2653	Department of labor, Agritourism activities, regulation	П 2134	requirement
	of	11 2206	
H 2653	Department of labor, Amusement rides, regulation of	H 2396	Employment security, Benefits, Work search
H 2706	Department of labor, Division of industrial safety and		requirement
П 2/00		H 2054	Employment security, Employers, Contributions,
11.2710	health, Public employee safety and health programs		Employer account, charging of
H 2710	Employees, Hazardous facilities, Skilled and trained	H 2154	Employment security, Employers, Contributions,
	workforce, requirements		Employer account, charging of
H 2060	Employees, Hazardous facilities, Wage, benefit and	H 2396	Employment security, Employers, Contributions,
	leave policies		Employer account, charging of
H 2061	Employees, Hazardous facilities, Wage, benefit and	H 2054	Employment security, Employers, Contributions,
	leave policies		Rates
H 2584	Employees, Hazardous facilities, Wage, benefit and leave policies	H 2154	Employment security, Employers, Contributions,
H 2644	Employees, Hazardous facilities, Wage, benefit and leave policies	H 2396	Rates Employment security, Employers, Contributions,
⊔ 2665			Rates
H 2665	Employees, Hazardous facilities, Wage, benefit and	S 501	Employment security, Employers, Contributions,
11.2250	leave policies		Rates
H 2259	Employment eligibility, Criminal records	H 2054	Employment security, Employers, Negative account
H 2637	Employment practices, Compensation history	H 2154	Employment security, Employers, Negative account
H 2666	Employment practices, Reproductive health history	H 2396	Employment security, Employers, Negative account
			1 1 1 1 1 1

## SUBJECT INDEX

H 2054	Employment security, Employers, Reimbursement,	S 161	Domestic violence calls, Primary aggressor
	charging of	H 2355	Federal law enforcement officers, Arrest authority
H 2154	Employment security, Employers, Reimbursement,	S 358	Highway patrol, Ignition interlock, oversight of
11.2207	charging of	S 345 S 426	Industrial hemp, effective disposal of
H 2396	Employment security, Employers, Reimbursement, charging of	H 2161	Interrogations, policy on use of deception Kansas bureau of investigation, Animal abuse
H 2054	Employment security, Employers, Shared work plan	11 2101	offender repository, creation of
H 2154	Employment security, Employers, Shared work plan	H 2360	Kansas bureau of investigation, Criminal history
H 2396	Employment security, Employers, Shared work plan	11 2300	record checks
H 2642	Employment security, Lessor employing units and	S 102	Kansas closed case task force
	client lessees, Leasing of certain employees,	S 331	Kansas open records act, Exception
	restrictions on	S 461	Missing persons, High-risk missing persons, Foster
S 27	Employment security, Lessor employing units and		children
	client lessees, Leasing of certain employees,	H 2424	Police officer-involved deaths, Independent
	restrictions on		investigation, requirement of
S 419	Employment security, Misclassification of employees,	H 2667	Police officer-involved deaths, Independent
C 410	Order enjoining business	C 420	investigation, requirement of
S 419	Employment security, Misclassification of employees, Penalties	S 430	Police officer-involved deaths, Independent
H 2705	Employment security, Petroleum landmen, exclusion	H 2424	investigation, requirement of Police officer-involved deaths, Report, release of
11 2 / 03	of	H 2667	Police officer-involved deaths, Report, release of
H 2455	Federal job corps program, state contract preference	S 430	Police officer-involved use of force, Independent
H 2354	High school on-the-job training programs, liability	5 450	investigation, requirement of
H 2507	High school on-the-job training programs, liability	S 426	Policies, use of deception in interrogations
H 2510	Kansas promise scholarship act	S 428	Racial profiling and other biased policing
H 2515	Kansas promise scholarship act	H 2664	Sexual assault survivors, Information and care
H 2515	Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act	H 2647	Sheriff, Commitment proceedings for sexually violent
S 336	Kansas reinvest in postsecondary education act		predators
H 2022	Kansas working families pay raise act	S 416	Sheriff, Commitment proceedings for sexually violent
H 2175	Labor organizations, Fair share fees	11.0400	predators
HCR 5008 H 2263	Labor organizations, Membership Leave, Maternity leave, denial or reduction of	H 2423 H 2695	Sheriff, Qualifications for office Training center, Special agents, attending of
		H 2093	training center, Special agents, attending of
H 2644 H 2186	Leave, Paid family leave act	Lagialat	
H 2644 H 2186 H 2665	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members	Legislat	ure
H 2186		S 241	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act	S 241 S 203	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a	S 241 S 203 S 203	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act	S 241 S 203 S 203	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees, Information technology, joint committee
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly On, Meetings, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2341	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor	S 241 S 203 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements,	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2341 H 2706 H 2324	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of	S 241 S 203 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Meetings, Testimony
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2341	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name,	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2341 H 2706 H 2324 S 474	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name, image or athletic reputation	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Home and community-based
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2341 H 2706 H 2324	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name, image or athletic reputation Unlawful employment practices, Wages, discussion or	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564 S 348	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Home and community-based services, study of
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2341 H 2706 H 2324 S 474	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name, image or athletic reputation Unlawful employment practices, Wages, discussion or disclosure of	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Home and community-based
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2706 H 2324 S 474 H 2643 H 2643	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name, image or athletic reputation Unlawful employment practices, Wages, discussion or disclosure of	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564 S 348	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Home and community-based services, study of Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2341 H 2706 H 2324 S 474	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name, image or athletic reputation Unlawful employment practices, Wages, discussion or disclosure of	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564 S 348	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Meeting Sethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Home and community-based services, study of Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2341 H 2706 H 2324 S 474 H 2643 H 2643 H 2643	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name, image or athletic reputation Unlawful employment practices, Wages, discussion or disclosure of Wages, Discussion or disclosure of	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564 S 348	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Home and community-based services, Study of Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2341 H 2706 H 2324 S 474 H 2643 H 2643 H 2622 S 141 H 2253	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employees and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name, image or athletic reputation Unlawful employment practices, Wages, discussion or disclosure of Wages, Discussion or disclosure of Wages, Minimum wage, increase of Wages, Minimum wage, increase of Wages, Unpaid wage claims, attorney fees and costs	S 241 S 203 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564 S 348 H 2711	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Home and community-based services, study of Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2341 H 2706 H 2324 S 474 H 2643 H 2643 H 2622 S 141 H 2253	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name, image or athletic reputation Unlawful employment practices, Wages, discussion or disclosure of Wages, Discussion or disclosure of Wages, Minimum wage, increase of	S 241 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564 S 348	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Home and community-based services, study of Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2341 H 2706 H 2324 S 474 H 2643 H 2643 H 2643 H 2622 S 141 H 2253	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name, image or athletic reputation Unlawful employment practices, Wages, discussion or disclosure of Wages, Discussion or disclosure of Wages, Minimum wage, increase of Wages, Unpaid wage claims, attorney fees and costs Forcement	S 241 S 203 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564 S 348 H 2711	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Home and community-based services, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days Districts, Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2665 H 2391 H 2341 H 2706 H 2324 S 474 H 2643 H 2643 H 2622 S 141 H 2253 Law Enf	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name, image or athletic reputation Unlawful employment practices, Wages, discussion or disclosure of Wages, Discussion or disclosure of Wages, Minimum wage, increase of Wages, Minimum wage, increase of Wages, Unpaid wage claims, attorney fees and costs Forcement Children in need of care, Access to information	S 241 S 203 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564 S 348 H 2711	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Home and community-based services, study of Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and
H 2186 H 2665 H 2506 S 366 S 391 H 2453 H 2060 H 2061 H 2341 H 2706 H 2324 S 474 H 2643 H 2643 H 2643 H 2622 S 141 H 2253	Leave, Sick leave, Care of family members Leave, Sick leave, Kansas paid sick leave act Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Expedited process Licensure, Occupational licenses, Right to earn a living act Licensure, Open borders for Kansas jobs act Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Policies, Wage, benefit and leave Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Public employee organizations, Resignation of public employee Public employers and employees, Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor Sexual harassment non-disclosure agreements, prohibition of Student athletes, Compensation for use of name, image or athletic reputation Unlawful employment practices, Wages, discussion or disclosure of Wages, Discussion or disclosure of Wages, Minimum wage, increase of Wages, Unpaid wage claims, attorney fees and costs Forcement	S 241 S 203 S 203 S 203 H 2564 H 2403 S 57 S 418 H 2067 H 2069 S 203 H 2564 S 348 H 2711	Appropriation acts, Certain funds, requirements of Bills, Introduction, requests for, Legislators only Bills, Requirements Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Chairpersons, duties Committees, Child welfare system oversight, joint committee on Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Information technology project contracts, review of Committees, Information technology, joint committee on, Meetings, monthly Committees, Meetings, Broadcasts of Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Minutes, requirements for Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Meetings, Testimony Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Home and community-based services, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight, Meeting days Districts, Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming

S 257	Districts, Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming	S 366	Occupational licenses and certifications, Expedited process
S 204	provisions Division of legislative post audit, Economic	S 391	Occupational licenses and certifications, Right to earn a living act
5 204	development incentive review subcommittee	H 2156	Pesticide businesses
H 2439	Division of legislative post audit, Reports to, Removal	H 2463	Pesticide businesses
11 2437	of	H 2598	Pharmacy benefits managers
S 258	Division of legislative post audit, Reports to, Removal	S 438	Pharmacy benefits managers
5 250	of	H 2357	Physical therapists
H 2204	Gaming facility contracts, approval of	H 2357	Physicians
HR 6025	House of representatives, Organization, 2020 session	S 220	Professional license, Disqualifications, Criminal
HR 6026	House of representatives, Seat assignments, 2020	5 220	records
1111 0020	session	H 2487	Speech-language pathologists
H 2067	Kansas transparency act	H 2670	Speech-language pathologists
H 2231	Legislative coordinating council, Electric rates, study	S 443	Speech-language pathologists
11 2231	of	S 490	Speech-language pathologists
S 231	Legislative research department, State general fund	H 2428	Technical professions
H 2591	receipts, report of Legislators, Closed courtrooms, Authorization to remain	Military	
H 2218	Legislators, Compensation	H 2731	Educational assistance, Wartime veteran and first
HCR 5005	Legislators, Districts, Reapportionment of		responder survivors' grant program
HCR 5006	Legislators, Districts, Redistricting commission	H 2362	Kansas military and veterans task force
H 2218	Legislators, Retirement, KPERS, end of participation	H 2328	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS)
HCR 5003	Legislators, Term limits	H 2246	License plates, Retired and discharged
H 2137	Open records, Exceptions to disclosure, review of		servicemembers
S 427	Open records, Exceptions to disclosure, review of	S 473	Low-income family postsecondary savings accounts
SCR 1603	Rules, Joint, 2019-2020 biennium		incentive program
SCR 1746	Senate, Organization, 2020 session	S 467	Servicemembers, Missing military members, Camo
SCR 1747	Senate, Seat assignments, 2020 session		alert system
S 254	Session laws, Publication requirements	H 2486	Servicemembers, Motor vehicles, property tax
HCR 5020	Sessions, Adjournment, 2020 session		exemption
SCR 1615	Sessions, Adjournment, 2020 session	H 2707	Servicemembers, Rental agreements, termination of
HCR 5023	Sessions, Adjournment, 2020 session	H 2731	Servicemembers, Wartime veteran and first responder
HCR 5018	Sessions, Governor's message		survivors' grant program
HCR 5017	Sessions, Organization of two houses, governor	H 2363	Veterans, Consumer loans
	informed	S 467	Veterans, Missing veterans, Camo alert system
		H 2610	Veterans, State veterans home, construction of, Bonds for
Librarie	S	S 478	Veterans, State veterans home, construction of, Bonds
H 2067	Kansas transparency act		for
		S 480	Veterans, State veterans home, construction of, Bonds
	and Licensure	H 2609	for Veterans, State veterans home, construction of, Grant,
H 2066	Advanced practice registered nurses		application for
H 2412	Advanced practice registered nurses	S 479	Veterans, State veterans home, construction of, Grant,
H 2295	Anesthesiologist assistants		application for
S 223 H 2357	Anesthesiologist assistants Athletic trainers	H 2037	Veterans, Veterans benefit lottery game, establishment
			of
H 2487 H 2670	Audiologists	H 2731	Veterans, Wartime veteran and first responder
S 443	Audiologists		survivors' grant program
S 443 S 490	Audiologists Audiologists		
H 2383	Barbers	Motor C	arriers
S 365	Barbers	H 2289	Public conveyance and necessity, Requirements,
H 2463	Chemigation users	11 2209	repeal of
H 2325	Concealed carry	H 2524	Regulation by state corporation commission,
H 2326	Concealed carry	11 2324	Certificates of convenience and necessity
H 2384	Cosmetologists		certificates of convenience and necessity
S 11	Dental therapists	Motor V	ohiolos
H 2630	Dentists	Motor V	enicies
S 168	Home inspectors	Insu	rance, this index
H 2184	Massage therapists		
S 452	Massage therapists		fic Regulations, this index
S 341	Naturopathic doctors	H 2569	Antique vehicles, Vehicle dealer license plate
H 2506	Occupational licenses and certifications, Expedited	H 2448	Crimes, Fleeing or attempting to elude
	process	S 81	Crimes, Fleeing or attempting to elude
	*	S 305	Dealers and manufacturers, Bonds

S 326	Drivers' licenses, Class A and B weight restrictions	S 383	License plates, Distinctive plates, Production
S 356	Drivers' licenses, Class A and B weight restrictions		requirements
H 2496	Drivers' licenses, Court services and community	H 2246	License plates, Distinctive plates, Proud educator
** ***	corrections	H 2489	License plates, Distinctive plates, Proud educator
H 2003	Drivers' licenses, Limited license and identification	H 2592	License plates, Distinctive plates, Proud educator
0.405	card	S 383	License plates, Distinctive plates, Proud educator
S 405 S 326	Drivers' licenses, Motorized bicycles	H 2246	License plates, Distinctive plates, Retired and
S 342	Drivers' licenses, Renewal, Electronic Drivers' licenses, Renewal, Electronic	S 316	discharged military members License plates, Distinctive plates, Together as one
S 342	Drivers' licenses, Renewal, Online	3 310	foundation
S 143	Drivers' licenses, Restrictions	H 2531	License plates, Fees, Firefighters plate
S 275	Drivers' licenses, Restrictions	S 390	License plates, Placement of, Concrete mixer trucks
S 87	Drivers' licenses, Suspension, Amnesty	S 302	License plates, Shipping requirements
H 2547	Drivers' licenses, Suspension, Fees	S 306	Ownership, transfer of, Odometer recording
H 2592	Drivers' licenses, Suspension, Fees	S 352	Peer-to-peer vehicle sharing act
S 275	Drivers' licenses, Suspension, Fees	H 2487	Persons with a disability, License plates and placards,
H 2434	Drivers' licenses, Suspension, Nonpayment of fines		Aging and disability services institutions
S 143	Driving privileges, Restrictions	S 284	Persons with a disability, License plates and placards,
S 275	Driving privileges, Restrictions		Aging and disability services institutions
S 101	Driving under the influence, Ignition interlock	H 2649	Persons with a disability, License plates and placards,
S 358	Driving under the influence, Ignition interlock	****	Personalized plate, decal on
S 405	Driving under the influence, Ignition interlock	H 2487	Persons with a disability, License plates and placards,
S 405	Driving under the influence, Person under 21 years of	0.204	Postsecondary educational institutions
H 2372	age Electric and hybrid vehicles, Registration fees	S 284	Persons with a disability, License plates and placards, Postsecondary educational institutions
S 189	Electric and hybrid vehicles, Registration fees	H 2487	Persons with a disability, License plates and placards,
H 2065	Emergency vehicles, Duty and liability	11 2407	School districts
S 62	Emergency vehicles, Police vehicle, exemption of	S 284	Persons with a disability, License plates and placards,
H 2371	Escort vehicles, registration of	5 20 .	School districts
H 2547	Fees, Drivers' licenses, suspension of	H 2481	Police vehicles, Blue lights, equipping with
H 2180	Fees, Registration	H 2528	Registration, Antique vehicles
H 2372	Fees, Registration	H 2372	Registration, Fees, Electric and hybrid vehicles
S 139	Fees, Registration	S 189	Registration, Fees, Electric and hybrid vehicles
S 189	Fees, Registration	H 2180	Registration, Fees, Vehicles
H 2180	Fees, Titles	H 2420	Registration, Military surplus vehicles
S 139	Fees, Titles	S 330	Registration, Military surplus vehicles
H 2230	Impoundment	S 435	Registration, Personal delivery devices, exemption of
H 2296	Impoundment	H 2501	Salvage vehicles, Pools, ownership documents
S 302 H 2095	License plates, Design	H 2482 H 2532	Salvage vehicles, Repairs, cost of
H 2246	License plates, Distinctive plates, Alpha kappa alpha License plates, Distinctive plates, Alpha kappa alpha	H 2737	School buses, Stop signal arm cameras School buses, Stop signal arm cameras
H 2592	License plates, Distinctive plates, Alpha kappa alpha	S 472	School buses, Stop signal arm cameras
H 2592	License plates, Distinctive plates, American legion	S 253	Service of process against nonresidents
S 383	License plates, Distinctive plates, American legion	H 2351	Size and weight limitations, Oversize or overweight
H 2300	License plates, Distinctive plates, Back the badge		loads, Emergency utility outages
H 2592	License plates, Distinctive plates, Back the badge	H 2371	Size and weight limitations, Oversize or overweight
S 314	License plates, Distinctive plates, Back the blue		loads, Permits
H 2444	License plates, Distinctive plates, Blackout	S 187	Size and weight limitations, Oversize or overweight
H 2592	License plates, Distinctive plates, Blackout		loads, Permits
H 2117	License plates, Distinctive plates, Knights of	H 2356	Sourcing, sales tax
	Columbus	H 2180	Titles, Fees
H 2246	License plates, Distinctive plates, Knights of	H 2614	Transportation network companies, Official trade
11.0500	Columbus	0.274	dress, requirement of
H 2592	License plates, Distinctive plates, Knights of	S 374	Vehicle identification number, Certified VIN inspector
S 383	Columbus License plates, Distinctive plates, Knights of	H 2276	program Wireless telecommunications device, use of
3 303	Columbus	S 441	Wireless telecommunications device, use of
S 315	License plates, Distinctive plates, Love, Chloe	S 459	Wireless telecommunications device, use of
2 213	foundation	5 -13)	
H 2624	License plates, Distinctive plates, Personalization	Municip	alities
S 383	License plates, Distinctive plates, Personalization		
H 2246	License plates, Distinctive plates, Production	H 2746	Bonds, Interest rate
	requirements	S 235	Bonds, Interest rate
H 2592	License plates, Distinctive plates, Production	S 338	Budgets, Alternative adoption procedure
	requirements	H 2316	Courts, Appearance bonds

H 2611	Courts, Automatic expungement		
S 131	Elections, Filing deadline when no primary	Pharma	cists and Pharmacy
S 260 H 2425	Elections, Recounts Extreme risk protective orders, Adoption or	S 95	Board of pharmacy, Duties regarding drugs used to
11 2423	enforcement, prohibition of		carry out sentence of death
S 245	Extreme risk protective orders, Adoption or	H 2389	Board of pharmacy, Electronic prescriptions
	enforcement, prohibition of	S 234	Board of pharmacy, Electronic prescriptions
H 2294	Funds, General funds, transfer from utility funds	H 2712	Board of pharmacy, Investigations
H 2294	Funds, Utility funds, transfer to general funds	H 2740	Board of pharmacy, Kansas medical marijuana regulation program
S 489	Insurance, Motor vehicle coverage, Uninsured motorist coverage, exceptions	H 2712	Board of pharmacy, Rules and regulations
H 2461	Legal services, Contingent fees, restriction of	H 2712	Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy, audits and
S 444	Legal services, Contingent fees, restriction of		inspections of
H 2054	Local disaster emergency declarations, Governing	H 2661	Contraceptives, availability of
	body approval, requirement of	H 2358	Opioids and similar prescriptions, Requirements to
H 2396	Local disaster emergency declarations, Governing	H 2631	prescribe Pharmacy benefits managers, Federal 340B covered
11 2476	body approval, requirement of	11 2031	entities, treatment of
H 2476 S 235	National motto, display of No-fund warrants, emergency issuance of	H 2598	Pharmacy benefits managers, Pharmacy benefits
S 435	Personal delivery devices, Regulations, preemption of		managers licensure act
S 247	Photographic traffic signal enforcement system,	H 2453	Pharmacy technicians, Recognition of licenses from
	prohibition of		other jurisdictions
H 2625	Plastic carryout bags and other single-use products,	S 234	Prescription drugs, Electronic prescriptions,
*****	Resolutions or ordinances, preemption of	H 2389	Controlled substances Prescription drugs, Electronic prescriptions, Required
H 2510 H 2018	Special districts, Dissolution Telecommunications, regulation of	11 2307	when
S 380	Telecommunications, regulation of	S 234	Prescription drugs, Electronic prescriptions, Required
S 145	Utility services, Rates, regulation of		when
	, , , ,	H 2570	Prescription drugs, Opioids and similar prescriptions,
Oil and	Gas	11 2002	Prescribing limitations
H 2534	Abandoned wells, Abandoned oil and gas well fund	H 2082 H 2632	Scope of practice, Drugs, administration of Smoking cessation aids, authorization of sales
H 2536	Abandoned wells, Abandoned oil and gas well fund	H 2387	State healthcare benefits program participation
H 2536	Abandoned wells, Plugging of	S 217	State healthcare benefits program participation
H 2240	Injection wells, Seismic risk analysis		1 0 1 1
H 2224	State geological survey, Monitoring wells	Private 1	Detectives
H 2224	State geological survey, Monitoring wells		Detectives
	State geological survey, Monitoring wells	Private 1 H 2453	
H 2224  Open Me H 2020	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission	H 2453	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions
H 2224  Open Me H 2020 H 2219	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission  Recordings of meetings, Public availability	H 2453	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other
H 2224  Open M  H 2020  H 2219  H 2020	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  ectings  Judicial district nominating commission  Recordings of meetings, Public availability  Supreme court nominating commission	H 2453	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee	H 2453	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions
H 2224  Open M  H 2020  H 2219  H 2020	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  ectings  Judicial district nominating commission  Recordings of meetings, Public availability  Supreme court nominating commission	H 2453  Public C S 65 H 2236	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of
H 2224  Open Mo H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of	H 2453  Public C S 65 H 2236 H 2586	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of	H 2453  Public C S 65 H 2236  H 2586 S 361	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of
H 2224  Open M H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re H 2020	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission  Recordings of meetings, Public availability  Supreme court nominating commission  Trauma advisory committee  Violations, defense of  ecords  Attorney information	H 2453  Public C S 65 H 2236 H 2586	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees'
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  ectings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  ecords  Attorney information Copies	H 2453  Public C  S 65 H 2236  H 2586 S 361 H 2391	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of
H 2224  Open M H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re H 2020	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  ecords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records	H 2453  Public C S 65 H 2236  H 2586 S 361	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees'
H 2224  Open Mo H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re H 2020 S 434 H 2098	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  ectings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  ecords  Attorney information Copies	H 2453  Public C  S 65 H 2236  H 2586 S 361 H 2391	Detectives  Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees  Corruption by  County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  ecords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees	H 2453  Public C	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 S 454	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  ecords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Election security records	H 2453  Public C S 65 H 2236 H 2586 S 361 H 2391 S 175 H 2341 S 213	Detectives  Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees  Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general
H 2224  Open M H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 S 454 S 331	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  ectings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Election security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Judicial branch employees	H 2453  Public C	Detectives  Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Difficers and Employees  Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general Legislative branch, Kansas public employees deferred
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 S 454 S 331 H 2137	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  ectings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  Ccords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Judicial branch employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Judicial branch employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review	H 2453  Public C	Detectives Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general Legislative branch, Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan, Participation, end of
H 2224  Open M H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 S 454 S 331	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  ecords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Election security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review	H 2453  Public C S 65 H 2236 H 2586 S 361 H 2391 S 175 H 2341 S 213	Detectives  Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Difficers and Employees  Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general Legislative branch, Kansas public employees deferred
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 S 454 S 331 L 2137 S 427	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  ectings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  Ccords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Judicial branch employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Judicial branch employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review	H 2453  Public C	Detectives  Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees  Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general Legislative branch, Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan, Participation, end of Lobbying restrictions, Elected officials and executive
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 S 454 S 331 H 2137 S 427 S 331 H 2527	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  ecords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Election security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Local correctional or detention officer Disclosure, Exceptions, Trauma advisory committee	H 2453  Public C	Detectives  Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees  Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general Legislative branch, Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan, Participation, end of Lobbying restrictions, Elected officials and executive staff Lobbying restrictions, State officers and employees Public employee safety and health programs,
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 H 2137 S 427 S 331 H 2137 S 427 S 331 H 2527 S 434	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  ecords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Election security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Local correctional or detention officer Disclosure, Exceptions, Local correctional or detention officer Disclosure, Exceptions, Trauma advisory committee Fees	H 2453  Public C	Detectives  Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees  Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, Professional employees' organizations, Professional employees to the more of Employee organizations, Professional employees organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general Legal stative branch, Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan, Participation, end of Lobbying restrictions, Elected officials and executive staff Lobbying restrictions, State officers and employees Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 S 454 S 331 H 2137 S 427 S 331 H 2527	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  ectings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  Cords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Judicial branch employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Local correctional or detention officer Disclosure, Exceptions, Trauma advisory committee Fees Police officer-involved death reports, Release of,	H 2453  Public C S 65 H 2236 H 2586 S 361 H 2391 S 175 H 2341 S 213 H 2492 H 2010 S 51	Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Difficers and Employees  Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general Legislative branch, Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan, Participation, end of Lobbying restrictions, Elected officials and executive staff Lobbying restrictions, State officers and employees Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor State officers and employees, Employment
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 S 454 S 331 H 2137 S 427 S 331 H 2527 S 434 H 2424	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  ecords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Election security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Local correctional or detention officer Disclosure, Exceptions, Trauma advisory committee Fees Police officer-involved death reports, Release of, when	H 2453  Public C  S 65 H 2236 H 2586 S 361 H 2391 S 175 H 2341 S 213 H 2492 H 2010 S 51 H 2706 H 2701	Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees  Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general Legislative branch, Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan, Participation, end of Lobbying restrictions, Elected officials and executive staff Lobbying restrictions, State officers and employees Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor State officers and employees, Employment preference, disabled persons
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 H 2137 S 427 S 331 H 2137 S 427 S 331 H 2527 S 434	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  ectings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  Cords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Judicial branch employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Local correctional or detention officer Disclosure, Exceptions, Trauma advisory committee Fees Police officer-involved death reports, Release of,	H 2453  Public C	Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees  Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, Professional employees' organizations, Professional employees organizations, Professional employees organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general Legal stative branch, Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan, Participation, end of Lobbying restrictions, Elected officials and executive staff Lobbying restrictions, State officers and employees Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor State officers and employees, Employment preference, disabled persons State officers and employees, Employment
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 S 454 S 331 H 2137 S 427 S 331 H 2527 S 434 H 2424	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  ecords  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Election security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Local correctional or detention officer Disclosure, Exceptions, Trauma advisory committee Fees Police officer-involved death reports, Release of, when	H 2453  Public C  S 65 H 2236 H 2586 S 361 H 2391 S 175 H 2341 S 213 H 2492 H 2010 S 51 H 2706 H 2701	Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Officers and Employees  Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general Legislative branch, Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan, Participation, end of Lobbying restrictions, Elected officials and executive staff Lobbying restrictions, State officers and employees Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor State officers and employees, Employment preference, disabled persons
H 2224  Open M  H 2020 H 2219 H 2020 H 2527 S 213  Open Re  H 2020 S 434 H 2098 S 454 S 331 S 454 S 331 H 2137 S 427 S 331 H 2527 S 434 H 2667	State geological survey, Monitoring wells  eetings  Judicial district nominating commission Recordings of meetings, Public availability Supreme court nominating commission Trauma advisory committee Violations, defense of  Attorney information Copies Disclosure, Criminal investigation records Disclosure, Exceptions, Cyber security records Disclosure, Exceptions, Department of corrections employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Judicial branch employees Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Legislative review Disclosure, Exceptions, Local correctional or detention officer Disclosure, Exceptions, Trauma advisory committee Fees Police officer-involved death reports, Release of, when	H 2453  Public C	Licensure, Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions  Difficers and Employees  Corruption by County officers and employees, Appraisers, suspension or removal of Employee organizations, Dues, withholding of Employee organizations, Professional employees' organizations, Professional employees' organizations, recertification of Employee organizations, Public employee right to choose act Employee organizations, Public employee, resignation of Legal representation by the attorney general Legislative branch, Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan, Participation, end of Lobbying restrictions, Elected officials and executive staff Lobbying restrictions, State officers and employees Public employee safety and health programs, department of labor State officers and employees, Employment preference, disabled persons State officers and employees, Employment preference, disabled persons

Publicati	ions	HCR 5021	Marriage provision in the Kansas constitution
H 2237	City and county official publications, Website	S 256 H 2430	Presidential preference primary Property tax lid
S 254	publication, authorization of	H 2289	Public conveyance and necessity requirements for motor carriers
	· ·	H 2015	State contracts, anti-Israel boycott provisions
Railroad	s	H 2153	Student religious association statutes
H 2460 S 499	Income tax credits, Short line railroads Income tax credits, Short line railroads	H 2554 H 2036	Uniform principal and income act (1997) Use of state money for gun control issues, prohibition of
Real Est	ate	Resoluti	
H 2314	Abandoned property, rehabilitation of	SCR 1609 SCR 1756	Condemning, Declaration of a national emergency Congratulating and commending, Award-winning
S 42	Brokers and salespersons, Definitions, Interest	SCK 1/30	educators in Kansas
S 42 H 2600	Brokers and salespersons, Definitions, Rebates Contract for deed, Registration of deeds, requirement	SCR 1750	Congratulating and commending, Buhler high school
П 2000	of		boys cross country team
S 395	Eminent domain, Carbon dioxide	SCR 1751	Congratulating and commending, Buhler high school
H 2605	Fairness in condemnation act	SCR 1749	girls cross country team Congratulating and commending, Buhler high school
H 2258	Housing, Protections for certain victims	Delt 1715	girls golf team
S 150 S 168	Housing, Protections for certain victims  Kansas home inspectors professional competency and	HR 6028	Congratulating and commending, Teacher of the year
5 100	financial responsibility act	000 1550	team
S 372	Liens, false or fraudulent	SCR 1752	Congratulating and commending, Teacher of the year team
S 55	Partition, Uniform partition of heirs property act	HR 6027	Congratulating and commending, Wichita, 2019 all-
H 2062 H 2378	Recreational trails, operation of		America city award winner
H 2152	Rental agreements, Firearm possession, restriction of Residential landlord tenant act, Reasonable	HCR 5009	Congress, applying, Constitutional convention
112102	accommodations, Assistance animals	HCR 5019	Constitutional amendments, Abortion rights, No right to abortion
H 2707	Residential landlord tenant act, Rental agreement termination, Military servicemembers	HCR 5024	Constitutional amendments, Abortion rights, No right to abortion
Records	and Recordation	SCR 1613	Constitutional amendments, Abortion rights, No right to abortion
H 2098	Criminal records, Disclosure of	HCR 5009	Constitutional amendments, Convention to amend
H 2259 S 220	Criminal records, Employment consideration Criminal records, Professional occupation licensure,	HCR 5007	constitution, application for Constitutional amendments, County home rule powers, grant of
H 2179 S 372	State board of education, exemption of Division of motor vehicles, Records, disclosure of Liens, false or fraudulent	SCR 1610	Constitutional amendments, Court of appeals, Selection process
H 2219	Open meeting recordings, public availability of	HCR 5004	Constitutional amendments, Equal rights, application
	cords, this index	000 1001	before birth
H 2438	State child death review board, Record confidentiality, exceptions	SCR 1604 SCR 1608	Constitutional amendments, Equal rights, application before birth Constitutional amendments, Executive article made
S 214	State child death review board, Record confidentiality, exceptions	SCK 1008	gender neutral
	exceptions	HCR 5013	Constitutional amendments, Executive offices,
Redistric	rting		vacancies
	8	HCR 5008	Constitutional amendments, Labor organization membership
S 256 S 257	Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas constitutional amendment conforming provisions Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas	HCR 5021	Constitutional amendments, Marriage provision, repeal of
3 231	constitutional amendment conforming provisions	HCR 5005	Constitutional amendments, Reapportionment, Census data adjustments
Repealer	·s	HCR 5006	Constitutional amendments, Redistricting commission
S 362		SCR 1601	Constitutional amendments, State highway fund uses,
S 362 H 2135	Bottle rocket ban City and county political sign regulation restrictions	SCR 1610	limitation on Constitutional amendments, Supreme court, Selection
H 2282	Death penalty	SCR 1610	constitutional amendments, Supreme court, Selection process
S 21	Death penalty	HCR 5010	Constitutional amendments, Supreme court, Time
H 2029	Health care compact		limit on decisions
H 2535	Interagency agreement for regulation of oil and gas operations	HCR 5001	Constitutional amendments, Term limits, Attorney
Н 2536	Interagency agreement for regulation of oil and gas operations	HCR 5003	general Constitutional amendments, Term limits, Legislators
S 109	Kansas uninsurable health insurance plan act		

HCR 5001	Constitutional amendments, Term limits, Secretary of state	H 2165	Kansas police and firemen's retirement system (KP&F), Affiliation, Corrections, department of
HR 6029 HR 6038	Designating, Latina leaders day at the capitol Honoring, Parents as teachers, 30th anniversary	H 2139	Kansas police and firemen's retirement system (KP&F), Affiliation, Local corrections
SCR 1765	Honoring, Parents as teachers, 30th anniversary	S 121	Kansas police and firemen's retirement system
HR 6036	Honoring, United States servicemembers exposed to		(KP&F), Affiliation, Local corrections
SCR 1762	agent orange Honoring, United States servicemembers exposed to agent orange	H 2678	Kansas police and firemen's retirement system (KP&F), Affiliation, Wildlife, parks and tourism, Kansas department of
HR 6032	Legislature, House of representatives, ERO 44, disapproval of	H 2452	Kansas police and firemen's retirement system (KP&F), Benefits, Death benefits, Service-
HR 6034	Legislature, House of representatives, ERO 45, approval of	Н 2327	connected disability, resulting from Kansas police and firemen's retirement system
HR 6031	Legislature, House of representatives, ERO 46, disapproval of	S 200	(KP&F), Benefits, Maximum benefits, increase of Kansas police and firemen's retirement system
HR 6025	Legislature, House of representatives, Organization, 2020 session	H 2327	(KP&F), Benefits, Maximum benefits, increase of Kansas police and firemen's retirement system
HR 6026	Legislature, House of representatives, Seat assignments, 2020 session	11 2327	(KP&F), Contributions, Employees, decrease in certain circumstances
SCR 1603	Legislature, Rules, Joint, 2019-2020 biennium	S 200	Kansas police and firemen's retirement system
SCR 1761	Legislature, Senate, ERO 44, disapproval of	3 200	(KP&F), Contributions, Employees, decrease in
SCR 1763	Legislature, Senate, ERO 45, approval of	~ ~	certain circumstances
SCR 1746	Legislature, Senate, Organization, 2020 session	S 343	Kansas police and firemen's retirement system
SCR 1747	Legislature, Senate, Seat assignments, 2020 session		(KP&F), Deferred retirement option program
HCR 5020	Legislature, Sessions, Adjournment, 2020 session		(DROP), Eligible members
SCR 1615	Legislature, Sessions, Adjournment, 2020 session	H 2492	Kansas public employees deferred compensation plan,
HCR 5023	Legislature, Sessions, Adjournment, 2020 session		Legislative branch employees, Participation, end of
HCR 5018	Legislature, Sessions, Governor's message	H 2619	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
HCR 5017	Legislature, Sessions, Organization of two houses,		Actuarial experience study, frequency of
	governor informed	H 2100	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
HCR 5025	Ratifying, State of disaster emergency declaration,		Benefits, Cost-of-living adjustment
	COVID-19	S 74	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
SCR 1616	Ratifying, State of disaster emergency declaration,		Benefits, Cost-of-living adjustment
	COVID-19	H 2142	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
HR 6041	Recognizing, 19th amendment, 100th anniversary		Benefits, Lump-sum death benefit, increase of
HR 6039	Recognizing, Businesses of the year, 2020	S 209	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
SCR 1766	Recognizing, Businesses of the year, 2020	5 207	Board of trustees, Powers and duties
HR 6035	Recognizing, Childhood cancer awareness month	H 2217	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
HCR 5022	Recognizing, Current global climate crisis	11 2217	Contributions, Contribution plan, defined, Kansas
SCR 1759	Recognizing, Delta Sigma Theta sorority, inc.		thrift savings plan act
SCR 1753	Recognizing, Dolores Huerta	H 2329	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
SCR 1757	Recognizing, JAG-K day	11 2329	Contributions, Employee contributions, increase of,
HR 6040	Recognizing, Kansas and Taiwan sister-state relations		School district employees
SCR 1758	Recognizing, Kansas Black legislative day at the	H 2141	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
SCR 1/36		П 2141	
IID (022	capitol		Contributions, Employer contributions, Level-dollar
HR 6033	Recognizing, League of women voters, 100th	*** ****	payments, elimination of
CCD 1760	anniversary	H 2503	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
SCR 1760	Recognizing, League of women voters, 100th anniversary		Contributions, Employer contributions, Level-dollar payments, elimination of
HR 6037	Recognizing, National public schools week	H 2555	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
SCR 1764	Recognizing, National public schools week		Contributions, Employer contributions, Level-dollar
SCR 1748	Recognizing, Roy'Ale foundation		payments, elimination of
HR 6030	Recognizing, Wear red day at the capitol	S 73	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
SCR 1755	Recognizing, Wear red day at the capitol		Contributions, Employer contributions, Level-dollar
SCR 1754	Recognizing, Wichita police department		payments, elimination of
SCR 1767	Supporting, Amtrak heartland flyer extension	S 321	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
SCR 1614	Supporting, Farmers in the Rattlesnake creek subbasin	5 521	Contributions, Employer contributions, Level-dollar
SCR 1611	Urging, Complete 2020 census		payments, elimination of
HCR 5016	Urging, Healthcare for deported veterans	S 368	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS),
		3 300	Contributions, Employer contributions, Level-dollar
Retireme	ent and Pensions		payments, elimination of
H 2217	Contributions, Contribution plan, defined, Kansas	S 202	Kansas public employees retirement system (KPERS), Employment after retirement, Benefit suspension,
	thrift savings plan act		elimination of
H 2100	Cost-of-living adjustment		
S 74	Cost-of-living adjustment		

S 274	Kansas public employees retirement system	S 288	Memorial highways, designation of, Cpl. Allen E.
	(KPERS), Employment after retirement, Employer contributions, First employed retirants aged 65, not	S 237	Oatney and Sp4. Gene A. Myers memorial highway Memorial highways, designation of, John Lee Bremer
	required for		memorial highway
H 2218	Kansas public employees retirement system	H 2502	Memorial highways, designation of, Pfc. Loren H.
	(KPERS), Legislator participation, end of		Larson memorial bridge
H 2142	Kansas public employees retirement system	H 2525	Memorial highways, designation of, Pfc. Loren H.
	(KPERS), Lump-sum death benefit, increase of		Larson memorial bridge
S 210	Kansas public employees retirement system	S 377	Memorial highways, designation of, Senator Bud
5210	(KPERS), Membership, Community developmental	5577	Burke memorial highway
	disability organizations, Direct support positions	H 2221	Memorial highways, designation of, Sgt. Kevin
H 2141	Kansas public employees retirement system		Gilbertson veterans memorial bridge
11 2171	(KPERS), Participating employers, State and school,	S 136	Memorial highways, designation of, Sgt. Kevin
	Actuarial accrued liability, amortization of	5 150	Gilbertson veterans memorial bridge
S 73	Kansas public employees retirement system	H 2431	Memorial highways, designation of, Sgt. Tyler A
5 75	(KPERS), Participating employers, State and school,	11 2431	Juden memorial bridge
	Actuarial accrued liability, amortization of	H 2588	Road construction and bridge improvement,
H 2503		П 2366	
П 2303	Kansas public employees retirement system	6 172	Eisenhower legacy transportation program
	(KPERS), Participating employers, State and school,	S 173	Road construction and bridge improvement,
0.221	Unfunded actuarial liability, amortization of	11.2500	Eisenhower legacy transportation program
S 321	Kansas public employees retirement system	H 2588	Road construction and bridge improvement,
	(KPERS), Participating employers, State and school,		FORWARD program
	Unfunded actuarial liability, amortization of	S 375	Road construction and bridge improvement,
H 2328	Kansas public employees retirement system		FORWARD program
	(KPERS), Participating service credit, Concurrent	H 2367	Road construction and bridge improvement, Funding
	military service, addition of	S 190	Road construction and bridge improvement, Funding
H 2217	Kansas thrift savings plan act	H 2369	Toll projects, Secretary of transportation, authority of
S 269	Retirement system for judges, Mandatory retirement	S 192	Toll projects, Secretary of transportation, authority of
	age, increase of	H 2373	Transportation planning program
		S 186	Transportation planning program
Revenue	, Department of	H 2369	Turnpikes, financing requirements
H 2173	Industrial hemp regulatory commission	S 192	Turnpikes, financing requirements
S 233	Industrial hemp regulatory commission	Rules an	nd Regulations, Administrative
S 233 S 405	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock		
S 233 S 405 H 2179	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of	Rules an	Aging and disability services, department for,
S 233 S 405	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course	H 2629	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements	H 2629 S 371	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards	H 2629 S 371 S 452	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439 S 258	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of	H 2629  S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439 S 258 S 205	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439 S 258 S 205 S 462	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439 S 258 S 205	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax,	H 2629  S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Air quality
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439 S 258 S 205 S 462 H 2656	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of ptechnical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439 S 258 S 205 S 462	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax,	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439 S 258 S 205 S 462 H 2656 S 396	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Ixansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439 S 258 S 205 S 462 H 2656 S 396 H 2006	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Dental services
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439 S 258 S 205 S 462 H 2656 S 396	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Ixansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349 H 2662	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439 S 258 S 205 S 462 H 2656 S 396 H 2006 S 432	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Wine gallonage taxes, submission of	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act Health and environment, department of, Home and
S 233 S 405 H 2179 S 266 H 2490 S 297 S 219 H 2439 S 258 S 205 S 462 H 2656 S 396 H 2006 S 432	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349 H 2662 H 2549	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of thechnical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services
\$ 233 \$ 405 H 2179 \$ 266 H 2490 \$ 297 \$ 219 H 2439 \$ 258 \$ 205 \$ 462 H 2656 \$ 396 H 2006 \$ 432	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Wine gallonage taxes, submission of  and Highways	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349 H 2662	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services
\$ 233 \$ 405 H 2179 \$ 266 H 2490 \$ 297 \$ 219 H 2439 \$ 258 \$ 205 \$ 462 H 2656 \$ 396 H 2006 \$ 432 <b>Roads a</b> H 2588	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countymide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Wine gallonage taxes, submission of  nd Highways Eisenhower legacy transportation program	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349 H 2662 H 2549 S 320	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of
\$ 233 \$ 405 H 2179 \$ 266 H 2490 \$ 297 \$ 219 H 2439 \$ 258 \$ 205 \$ 462 H 2656 \$ 396 H 2006 \$ 432	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Wine gallonage taxes, submission of  md Highways  Eisenhower legacy transportation program Eisenhower legacy transportation program	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349 H 2662 H 2549	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of
\$ 233 \$ 4005 \$ H 2179 \$ 266 \$ H 2490 \$ 297 \$ 219 \$ H 2439 \$ \$ 258 \$ \$ 205 \$ \$ 462 \$ H 2656 \$ \$ 396 \$ H 2006 \$ 432 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Wine gallonage taxes, submission of  M Highways Eisenhower legacy transportation program Eisenhower legacy transportation program FORWARD program	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349 H 2662 H 2549 S 320 S 491	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of
\$ 233 \$ 405 H 2179 \$ 266 H 2490 \$ 297 \$ 219 H 2439 \$ 258 \$ 205 \$ 462 H 2656 \$ 396 H 2006 \$ 432 \$ \$ \$\$	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Wine gallonage taxes, submission of  md Highways  Eisenhower legacy transportation program Eisenhower legacy transportation program FORWARD program FORWARD program	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349 H 2662 H 2549 S 320	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of
\$ 233 \$ 405 H 2179 \$ 266 H 2490 \$ 297 \$ 219 H 2430 \$ 258 \$ 205 \$ 462 H 2606 \$ 396 H 2006 \$ 432 <b>Roads al</b> H 2588 <b>S 173</b> H 2588 <b>S 174</b> H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 <b>S 175</b> <b>S 175</b> <b>S 175</b> <b>S 17</b>	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Wine gallonage taxes, submission of  MHighways  Eisenhower legacy transportation program Eisenhower legacy transportation program FORWARD program FORWARD program Memorial highways, designation of, Capt. Donald	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349 H 2662 H 2549 S 320 S 491 H 2677	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Primary health center pilot program act
\$ 233 \$ 405 H 2179 \$ 266 H 2490 \$ 297 \$ 219 H 2430 \$ 258 \$ 205 \$ 462 H 2606 \$ 396 H 2006 \$ 432 <b>Roads al</b> H 2588 <b>S 173</b> H 2588 <b>S 174</b> H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 H 2588 <b>S 175</b> H 2588 <b>S 175</b> <b>S 175</b> <b>S 175</b> <b>S 17</b>	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Wine gallonage taxes, submission of  M Highways Eisenhower legacy transportation program FORWARD program FORWARD program FORWARD program Memorial highways, designation of, Capt. Donald Root Strother memorial highway	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349 H 2662 H 2549 S 320 S 491	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Primary health center pilot program act Health and environment, department of, Rural
\$ 233 \$ 405 H 2179 \$ 266 H 2490 \$ 297 \$ 219 H 2439 \$ 258 \$ 205 \$ 462 H 2656 \$ 396 H 2006 \$ 432 \$ \$ <b>Roads al</b> H 2588 \$ 173 H 2588 \$ 375 H 2247	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Wine gallonage taxes, submission of  md Highways  Eisenhower legacy transportation program Eisenhower legacy transportation program FORWARD program FORWARD program Memorial highways, designation of, Capt. Donald Root Strother memorial highway Memorial highways, designation of, Capt. Donald	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349 H 2662 H 2549 S 320 S 491 H 2677	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of pharmacy, Telepharmacy Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Primary health center pilot program act Health and environment, department of, Rural hospital innovation grant program
\$ 233 \$ 405 H 2179 \$ 266 H 2490 \$ 297 \$ 219 H 2439 \$ 258 \$ 205 \$ 462 H 2656 \$ 396 H 2006 \$ 432 \$ \$ <b>Roads al</b> H 2588 \$ 173 H 2588 \$ 375 H 2247	Industrial hemp regulatory commission Motor vehicles, division of, Ignition interlock Motor vehicles, division of, Records, disclosure of Property valuation, director of, Appraisal course requirements Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Property valuation, director of, Appraisal standards Scrap metal, Tonnage tax Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Income tax abatement records, Report to legislative post audit, removal of Secretary, Kansas charitable gaming act Secretary, Tax information, Prohibiting disclosure of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Countywide retailers' sales tax, Apportionment, discontinuation of Taxation, Tax information, disclosure of Taxation, Wine gallonage taxes, submission of  M Highways Eisenhower legacy transportation program FORWARD program FORWARD program FORWARD program Memorial highways, designation of, Capt. Donald Root Strother memorial highway	H 2629 S 371 S 452 H 2712 H 2712 H 2428 S 404 H 2618 H 2715 S 482 S 349 H 2662 H 2549 S 320 S 491 H 2677	Aging and disability services, department for, Supplemental nursing services agencies Attorney general, Human trafficking, notice of Board of healing arts, Massage therapy Board of pharmacy, Investigations Board of technical professions, Fees Children and families, department of, Termination of parental rights, information sharing Commerce, department of, Broadband grant program Health and environment, department of, Air quality control fees Health and environment, department of, Dental services Health and environment, department of, Energy efficiency benchmarking act Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services Health and environment, department of, Home and community-based services Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Infectious disease, designation of Health and environment, department of, Primary health center pilot program act Health and environment, department of, Rural

H 2631	In surement Assessment Dhammany has of the management	11 2526	Comital immuovamenta Etata aid avaluaisma Faut
S 387	Insurance department, Pharmacy benefits managers Kansas state employees healthcare commission, State	H 2526	Capital improvements, State aid exclusions, Fort Leavenworth school district
	healthcare benefits program	S 382	Capital improvements, State aid exclusions, Fort
S 283	Lottery, Kansas sports wagering act		Leavenworth school district
S 283	Racing and gaming commission, Kansas sports wagering act	H 2346	Capital improvements, State aid exclusions, Virtual school students
H 2510	Regents, state board of, Kansas promise scholarship act	S 382	Capital improvements, State aid exclusions, Virtual school students
H 2515	Regents, state board of, Kansas promise scholarship	H 2441	Community historical museum
	act	S 278	Community historical museum
H 2515	Regents, state board of, Kansas reinvest in	H 2256	Community leaders service act
	postsecondary education act	H 2573	Curriculum, American civics
S 336	Regents, state board of, Kansas reinvest in	S 271	Curriculum, American civics
	postsecondary education act	H 2183	Curriculum, Computer science
H 2515	Regents, state board of, Private and out-of-state	H 2395	Curriculum, Computer science
	postsecondary educational institution act	H 2166	Curriculum, Personal financial literacy
S 354	Regents, state board of, Private and out-of-state	H 2395	Curriculum, Personal financial literacy
11.0701	postsecondary educational institution act	H 2395	Dyslexia task force
H 2731	Regents, state board of, Wartime veteran and first	H 2346	Finance, ACT and workkeys assessments
H 2516	responder survivors' grant program	S 337 H 2540	Finance, ACT and workkeys assessments
П 2310	Revenue, department of, First-time homebuyer savings account act	H 2078	Finance, At-risk education fund, expenditures from Finance, BASE aid, amount of
S 405	Revenue, department of, Ignition interlock	H 2106	Finance, BASE aid, amount of
H 2713	Secretary of state, Revised uniform law or notarial	H 2395	Finance, BASE aid, amount of
11 2713	acts	S 44	Finance, BASE aid, amount of
H 2619	State treasurer, Kansas economic recovery loan	S 142	Finance, BASE aid, amount of
	deposit program	H 2395	Finance, Capital improvements, Bond authority
S 244	Sunset, five years after adoption		approval
H 2669	Wildlife, parks and tourism, Nongame and	H 2346	Finance, Capital improvements, State aid exclusions,
	endangered species conservation act		Fort Leavenworth school district
	•	H 2526	Finance, Capital improvements, State aid exclusions,
Schools			Fort Leavenworth school district
	A 1 . C . 1 1	S 382	Finance, Capital improvements, State aid exclusions,
S 411	Attendance, Compulsory attendance age		Fort Leavenworth school district
S 276	Attendance, Eligibility requirements	H 2346	Finance, Capital improvements, State aid exclusions,
H 2183	Boards of education, Computer science, requirement of		Virtual school students
H 2207	Boards of education, Construction contracts	S 382	Finance, Capital improvements, State aid exclusions,
S 7	Boards of education, Elections, date of	11 2100	Virtual school students
S 7	Boards of education, Meetings	H 2108	Finance, Funds, At-risk education fund, expenditures from
H 2586	Boards of education, Professional employee	H 2145	Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY
	organization dues, withholding of	11 2143	2020
S 361	Boards of education, Professional employee	S 156	
	organization dues, withholding of		Finance Special education Appropriations for FY
TT 2200		5 150	Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2020
H 2288	Boards of education, Student and employee religious		2020
	speech	H 2145	
H 2287	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process		2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY
H 2287 S 52	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process	H 2145	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021
H 2287 S 52 H 2150	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act	H 2145 S 318 H 2395	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act	H 2145 S 318 H 2395 S 317	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Preceding year
H 2287 S 52 H 2150	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying	H 2145 S 318 H 2395 S 317 H 2078	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Preceding year Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention	H 2145 S 318 H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Preceding year Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying	H 2145 S 318 H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention	H 2145  S 318  H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 444 S 147	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Preceding year Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Delicies and procedures	H 2145  S 318  H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44 S 147 S 156	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Preceding year Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405 H 2257 H 2330	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Policies and procedures	H 2145  S 318  H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44 S 147 S 156 S 235	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Delicies and procedures	H 2145  S 318  H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44 S 147 S 156 S 235 H 2395	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Unencumbered balances
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405 H 2257 H 2330 H 2395	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Policies and procedures	H 2145  S 318  H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44 S 147 S 156 S 235 H 2395 H 2395	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Preceding year Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Unencumbered balances Finance, Weightings, At-risk
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405 H 2257 H 2330 H 2395 H 2405	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Policies and procedures	H 2145 S 318 H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44 S 147 S 156 S 235 H 2395 H 2395 H 2540	Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Unencumbered balances Finance, Unencumbered balances Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405 H 2257 H 2330 H 2395 H 2405 H 2407	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Policies and procedures	H 2145 S 318 H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44 S 147 S 156 S 235 H 2395 H 2395 H 2395	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Preceding year Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Unencumbered balances Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk
H 2287 \$ 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405 H 2257 H 2330 H 2395 H 2405 H 2407 H 2676 \$ 410 H 2676	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Report to state board	H 2145 S 318 H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44 S 147 S 156 S 235 H 2395 H 2395 H 2540	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Preceding year Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Unencumbered balances Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405 H 2257 H 2330 H 2395 H 2405 S 410 H 2676 S 410 H 2676 S 410	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Report to state board	H 2145  S 318  H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 444 S 147 S 156 S 235 H 2395 H 2395 H 2540 S 156 S 436	2020 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Preceding year Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Unencumbered balances Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405 H 2257 H 2330 H 2395 H 2407 H 2407 S 410 H 2676 S 410 H 2330	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Reporting and investigation	H 2145  S 318  H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44 S 147 S 156 S 235 H 2395 H 2395 H 2540 S 156 S 436 H 2395	Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Unencumbered balances Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, Behavioral health intervention
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405 H 2257 H 2330 H 2395 H 2407 H 2676 S 410 H 2676 S 410 H 2330 H 2330 H 2405	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Reporting and investigation Capital improvements, Bond authority approval	H 2145  S 318  H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44 S 147 S 156 S 235 H 2395 H 2395 H 2540 S 156 S 436 H 2395 H 2582 H 2582 H 2582	Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Preceding year Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Unencumbered balances Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, Behavioral health intervention Finance, Weightings, Behavioral health intervention Finance, Weightings, Biligh-density at-risk
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405 H 2257 H 2330 H 2395 H 2407 H 2407 S 410 H 2676 S 410 H 2330	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Reporting and investigation Capital improvements, Bond authority approval Capital improvements, State aid exclusions, Fort	H 2145  S 318  H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44 S 147 S 156 S 235 H 2395 H 2540 S 156 S 436 H 2395 H 2542 E 2395 H 2540 S 156 S 436	Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Unencumbered balances Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, Behavioral health intervention Finance, Weightings, Behavioral health intervention Finance, Weightings, Bilph-density at-risk Finance, Weightings, High-density at-risk Finance, Weightings, High-density at-risk
H 2287 S 52 H 2150 H 2395 H 2395 H 2405 H 2257 H 2330 H 2395 H 2407 H 2676 S 410 H 2676 S 410 H 2330 H 2330 H 2405	speech Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Boards of education, Teachers' contracts, due process Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Kansas hope scholarship act Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Legislative task force on bullying prevention Bullying, Policies and procedures Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Report to state board Bullying, Reporting and investigation Capital improvements, Bond authority approval	H 2145  S 318  H 2395 S 317 H 2078 H 2395 S 44 S 147 S 156 S 235 H 2395 H 2395 H 2540 S 156 S 436 H 2395 H 2582 H 2582 H 2582	Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Appropriations for FY 2021 Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Excess cost Finance, Special education, Preceding year Finance, Statewide levy, continuation of Finance, Unencumbered balances Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, At-risk Finance, Weightings, Behavioral health intervention Finance, Weightings, Behavioral health intervention Finance, Weightings, Biligh-density at-risk

H 2510	Foster care students, Foster care student report card	H 2329	School districts, Employees, compensation increase
S 384	Foster care students, Foster care student report card	H 2346	School districts, Foster care student report card
S 122	Foster care students, Online instruction	H 2510	School districts, Foster care student report card
H 2354		S 384	
	High school on-the-job training programs, Liability		School districts, Foster care student report card
H 2507	High school on-the-job training programs, Liability	H 2476	School districts, National motto, display of
H 2346	Kansas challenge to secondary students act, Dual and	H 2166	School districts, Personal financial literacy courses
	concurrent enrollment, costs of	H 2288	School districts, Student and employee religious
H 2510	Kansas challenge to secondary students act, Dual and		speech
11 2010	concurrent enrollment, costs of	H 2361	School districts, Student data privacy act, Tests,
0.225		11 2301	
S 335	Kansas challenge to secondary students act, Dual and		questionnaires, surveys and examinations
	concurrent enrollment, costs of	H 2346	School districts, Vision screenings
S 436	Kansas school equity and enhancement act, Definition	H 2747	School districts, Waiver from school term
	of at-risk		requirements
H 2288	Kansas student and educator freedom of religious	S 142	School districts, Waiver from school term
11 2200	speech act	5 142	requirements
11.2572		11.2407	
H 2573	Nonpublic schools, Curriculum, American civics	H 2487	Special education, Emotional disability
S 271	Nonpublic schools, Curriculum, American civics	H 2395	Special education, Excess cost
H 2346	Nonpublic schools, Foster care student report card	S 317	Special education, State aid based on preceding year
H 2510	Nonpublic schools, Foster care student report card	H 2589	Sports, High school activities association, Biological
S 384	Nonpublic schools, Foster care student report card	11 200)	gender at birth
H 2725		H 2589	
H 2/25	Scholarships, Kansas exceptional child academic		Sports, Participation, Biological gender at birth
	improvement act	H 2574	Sports, School sports head injury prevention act
H 2150	Scholarships, Kansas hope scholarship act	H 2183	State board of education, Academic performance
H 2395	Scholarships, Kansas hope scholarship act		standards, Computer science
H 2552	Scholarships, Kansas reading readiness act	H 2346	State board of education, ACT and workkeys
H 2724	Scholarships, Kansas student academic improvement	11 23 10	
11 2/24	* '	0.227	assessments, provision of
	act	S 337	State board of education, ACT and workkeys
S 47	Scholarships, Student opportunity scholarship		assessments, provision of
	program	H 2540	State board of education, At-risk educational
H 2301	Scholarships, Tax credit scholarship program		programs
H 2395	Scholarships, Tax credit scholarship program	H 2257	State board of education, Bullying, Model policy
H 2465		H 2676	
	Scholarships, Tax credit scholarship program	П 20/0	State board of education, Bullying, Report to
H 2725	School choice, Kansas exceptional child academic		legislature
	improvement act	S 410	State board of education, Bullying, Report to
H 2150	School choice, Kansas hope scholarship act		legislature
H 2395	School choice, Kansas hope scholarship act	H 2054	State board of education, Closure of schools, approval
H 2552	School choice, Kansas reading readiness act		of
H 2724	School choice, Kansas student academic improvement	H 2396	State board of education, Closure of schools, approval
11 2/24		11 2390	
	act		of
H 2054	School closure, state board approval of	H 2183	State board of education, Curriculum standards,
H 2396	School closure, state board approval of		Computer science
H 2395	School districts, Accountability reports	H 2166	State board of education, Curriculum standards,
H 2108	School districts, At-risk education fund, expenditures		Personal financial literacy
11 2100	from	H 2361	
** ***		П 2301	State board of education, Student data privacy act,
H 2395	School districts, At-risk education fund, expenditures		Tests, questionnaires, surveys and examinations
	from	S 47	State board of education, Student opportunity
H 2540	School districts, At-risk education fund, expenditures		scholarship program
	from	H 2519	State board of education, Students' right to know act
S 353	School districts, Budget, allocation of moneys	S 271	State board of education, Students' right to know act
H 2257			
	School districts, Bullying policies and procedures	S 220	State board of education, Teacher licensure, Criminal
H 2330	School districts, Bullying policies and procedures		records
S 299	School districts, Campaign finance	H 2453	State board of education, Teacher licensure,
H 2233	School districts, Classroom supplies stipend		Recognition of licenses from other jurisdictions
H 2256	School districts, Community leaders service act	H 2090	State board of education, Voter registration program
H 2207	School districts, Construction contracts	H 2747	State board of education, Waiver of school term
	School districts, Construction contracts School districts, Construction contracts	11 2/4/	
H 2395			requirements
S 148	School districts, Construction contracts	S 142	State board of education, Waiver of school term
H 2487	School districts, Disability license plates and placards		requirements
S 284	School districts, Disability license plates and placards	H 2395	Statewide levy, Continuation of
H 2346	School districts, Dual and concurrent enrollment,	H 2684	Statewide levy, Continuation of
11 25 10	costs of	S 44	Statewide levy, Continuation of
II 2510			
H 2510	School districts, Dual and concurrent enrollment,	S 147	Statewide levy, Continuation of
	costs of	S 235	Statewide levy, Continuation of
S 335	School districts, Dual and concurrent enrollment,	S 151	Statewide levy, Exemption, residential property
	costs of	S 235	Statewide levy, Exemption, residential property

H 2361	Student data, Tests, questionnaires, surveys and		
11.2600	examinations, Conditions for	Securition	es
H 2690	Student data, Tests, questionnaires, surveys and examinations, Consent required for	H 2558	Administrator, Powers, duties and functions
H 2488	Student health, Emergency medication, maintenance	S 216	Israel, issued by, State moneys, investment of
112.00	of	H 2246	Securities commissioner, Appointment
H 2601	Student health, Immunizations	H 2480	Securities commissioner, Appointment
H 2742	Student health, Medical cannabis use	S 290	Securities commissioner, Appointment
H 2233	Teachers, Classroom supplies stipend	H 2246 H 2480	Securities commissioner, Removal Securities commissioner, Removal
H 2287	Teachers, Contracts, due process	S 290	Securities commissioner, Removal
S 52 S 220	Teachers, Contracts, due process Teachers, Licensure, Criminal records	H 2558	Securities violations, Securities act victim restitution
H 2453	Teachers, Licensure, Criminal records Teachers, Licensure, Recognition of licenses from	11 2000	program
11 2433	other jurisdictions	State	1 0
H 2586	Teachers, Professional employees' organizations,		Dadish assisting Franchis Com
	Dues, withholding of	H 2008 H 2422	Daylight saving time, Exemption from Daylight saving time, Permanent standard time
S 361	Teachers, Professional employees' organizations,	H 2650	Days of commemoration, Susan B. Anthony day
*** *****	Dues, withholding of	H 2385	Emblems and symbols, Dance, polka
H 2391	Teachers, Professional employees' organizations,	S 158	Emblems and symbols, Dance, polka
H 2572	Recertification of Teachers, Professional liability insurance, Educator	H 2433	Emblems and symbols, Fruit, watermelon
11 23/2	protection act	H 2476	Emblems and symbols, National motto, display of
S 1	Transportation, Appropriations from state general	H 2477	Holidays, General election day
	fund	H 2009	Holidays, Indigenous peoples day
H 2395	Transportation, Required when	C4-4- A -	
H 2148	Transportation, School buses, Drivers, unemployment	State Ag	gencies
11 2215	benefits	H 2115	Computer work hours, verification of
H 2315	Transportation, School buses, Drivers, unemployment benefits	S 56	Computer work hours, verification of
S 38	Transportation, School buses, Drivers, unemployment	H 2393	Debt collection, Support debt matched by gaming
5 50	benefits	H 2235	facilities Employees, Tax clearance certificate, requirement of
H 2532	Transportation, School buses, Stop signal arm	H 2716	Information technology, Cybersecurity reports
	cameras	S 57	Information technology, Information technology
H 2737	Transportation, School buses, Stop signal arm		projects, Joint committee on information and
	cameras		technology, review by
S 472	Transportation, School buses, Stop signal arm cameras	H 2716	Information technology, Security training
H 2346	Vision screenings	H 2364	Kansas aerospace commission, creation of
11 25 10	vision screenings	S 180 H 2018	Kansas buy American act Kansas criminal justice reform commission, creation
Secretar	y of State	11 2010	of
	•	H 2476	National motto, display of
S 293 S 256	Address confidentiality program Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas	S 244	Rules and regulations, sunset of
3 230	constitutional amendment conforming provisions		
S 257	Census data, reapportionment of, 2019 Kansas	State Fa	ir
	constitutional amendment conforming provisions	S 408	State fair board, Common consumption area, creation
S 293	Charitable organizations	5 .00	of. Beer and wine
S 253	Corporations and partnerships, Service of process		,
H 2018	Election crimes, Prosecutorial authority	State Fir	nance
H 2042 S 293	Election crimes, Prosecutorial authority Election crimes, Prosecutorial authority	S 370	Budget estimates, biennial
H 2508	Election of, Nonpartisan	S 370	Consensus revenue estimates, biennial
S 424	Notaries public, Certificate of appointment, Fees	S 231	General fund, Medicaid drug rebates
H 2054	Notaries public, Notarial acts, validation of	S 268	General fund, Transfers, Local ad valorem tax
H 2396	Notaries public, Notarial acts, validation of		reduction fund
H 2713	Notaries public, Revised uniform law on notarial acts	S 216	Pooled money investment board, Investment in
S 254	Publication requirements		securities issued by Israel
S 424	Reports and filings, Business entity information,	S 216	State moneys, Investment in securities issued by Israel
S 251	Business information Reports and filings, Business entity information, Fees	H 2511	State moneys, Use for federal gun regulations, prohibition of
S 251	Reports and filings, Business entity information, rees Reports and filings, Business entity information,	H 2036	State moneys, Use for gun control issues, prohibition
5 251	Reports	11 2030	of
H 2508	Resignation of, when		
HCR 5001	Term limits	State Pr	operty
H 2090	Voter registration program	S 229	• •
		H 2168	Capitol, Capitol area plaza authority, abolishment of Conveyance of real property, Cherokee county
		11 2100	25.1.1. Junice of fear property, Cherokee county

S 346	Conveyance of real property, Insurance department building	H 2702	Board of tax appeals, Service of order or notice by electronic means
H 2159 H 2168	Conveyance of real property, Kansas state university Conveyance of real property, Riley county	S 265	Board of tax appeals, Service of order or notice by electronic means
H 2158	Conveyance of real property, University of Kansas	H 2615	Board of tax appeals, Small claims, repeal of
S 173	Conveyance of real property, University of Kansas	H 2490	Board of tax appeals, Valuation appeals
H 2728	Docking state office building	H 2702	Board of tax appeals, Valuation appeals
S 487	Docking state office building	S 272	Board of tax appeals, Valuation appeals
H 2736	Health and environment laboratory, construction of	H 2698	Earnings tax
S 487	Health and environment laboratory, construction of	S 400	Earnings tax
S 49	State parks, Camp site and cabin fees	H 2689	Economic development, Incentives, Angel investor
S 346	Surplus property, Insurance department building		tax credit
H 2736	Surplus property, Laboratory at Forbes field	H 2702	Economic development, Incentives, High
H 2595	Surplus property, Sale requirements		performance incentive fund, Workforce training
			requirements
State Tre	easurer	S 204	Economic development, Incentives, LPA economic
11.0610	D 1.0 10 0 W		development incentive review subcommittee
H 2619	Powers, duties and functions, Kansas economic	S 498	Economic development, Incentives, STAR bonds
H 2619	recovery loan deposit program	H 2702	Economic development, Incentives, Workforce
H 2019	Rules and regulations, Kansas economic recovery		training tax credit
H 2096	loan deposit program	S 502	Income tax, Checkoff, State historical society historic
	Savings accounts, Children's savings accounts		sites
S 473	Savings accounts, Low-income family postsecondary	H 2553	Income tax, Corporations, Certain business
	savings accounts incentive program, Charitable organizations		modifications
S 473	Savings accounts, Low-income family postsecondary	H 2553	Income tax, Corporations, Global intangible low-
3 4/3	savings accounts, Low-income family postsecondary savings accounts incentive program, Military		taxed income (GILTI)
	families	H 2212	Income tax, Corporations, Multistate tax compact
H 2021	Term limits	H 2726	Income tax, Corporations, Return filing dates
H 2410	Vacancy, filling of	H 2118	Income tax, Credits, Aerospace and aviation students
H 2606	Vacancy, filling of	11.05.43	and employers
11 2000	vacancy, mining or	H 2543	Income tax, Credits, Alternative-fueled motor vehicle
64-4-4-		11.0640	property expenditures
Statutes		H 2640	Income tax, Credits, Carbon farming
H 2419	Conflicts, reconciliation of	H 2250 H 2593	Income tax, Credits, Child, qualifying
		H 2593	Income tax, Credits, Contributions to technical colleges
Taxation		H 2627	Income tax, Credits, Disabled accessibility, costs
		S 140	Income tax, Credits, Eisenhower foundation
H 2380	Alcoholic beverages, Liquor enforcement tax,	3 140	contributions
*** *****	Administration of	S 26	Income tax, Credits, Employment of blind or disabled
H 2379	Alcoholic beverages, Liquor enforcement tax,	3 20	individuals
	Exemption from	H 2648	Income tax, Credits, Food purchases, Amount of
S 207	Alcoholic beverages, Liquor enforcement tax,	11 2046	credit
11 2200	Exemption from	H 2720	Income tax, Credits, Food purchases, Sunset of
H 2380	Alcoholic beverages, Liquor enforcement tax,	S 184	Income tax, Credits, Food purchases, Sunset of
11 2410	Payment, time of	S 398	Income tax, Credits, Food purchases, Sunset of
H 2418	Alcoholic beverages, Liquor enforcement tax,	H 2251	Income tax, Credits, Household and dependent care
S 177	Payment, time of Board of tax appeals, Appeals to court of appeals	11 2201	expenses
H 2490	Board of tax appeals, Appeals to district court, Burden	H 2096	Income tax, Credits, Kansas children's savings
П 2490	of proof	11 2070	account program
S 309	Board of tax appeals, Appeals to district court, Burden	H 2249	Income tax, Credits, Kansas collegiate athletic
3 309	of proof		conference member institutions
S 266	Board of tax appeals, Appraisal course requirements	H 2416	Income tax, Credits, Kansas targeted employment act
H 2490	Board of tax appeals, Appraisar course requirements  Board of tax appeals, Board member, continued	H 2264	Income tax, Credits, Pell grant recipients
112.70	service of	S 13	Income tax, Credits, Purchases from qualified vendors
S 500	Board of tax appeals, Board member, continued	S 185	Income tax, Credits, Purchases from qualified vendors
2 200	service of	H 2499	Income tax, Credits, Qualified alternative-fuel fueling
H 2490	Board of tax appeals, Complete opinion, request of		station
S 262	Board of tax appears, Complete opinion, request of	H 2043	Income tax, Credits, Review of
H 2116	Board of tax appeals, Hearings by telephone	H 2721	Income tax, Credits, Rural opportunity zones
S 273	Board of tax appeals, Hearings by telephone	S 13	Income tax, Credits, Rural opportunity zones
H 2615	Board of tax appeals, Mediation	S 125	Income tax, Credits, Rural opportunity zones
H 2490	Board of tax appeals, Service of order or notice by	S 135	Income tax, Credits, Rural opportunity zones
	electronic means	S 185	Income tax, Credits, Rural opportunity zones
		H 2252	Income tax, Credits, Salary increases

3055

11 2201	I	11.21.62	M. E. J
H 2301	Income tax, Credits, Scholarship programs	H 2163	Medical cannabis
H 2409	Income tax, Credits, Scholarship programs	S 113	Medical cannabis
H 2465	Income tax, Credits, Scholarship programs	H 2388	Modifications, Corporations, depreciation deductions
H 2668	Income tax, Credits, Selective assistance for effective	H 2577	Motor fuels, County motor fuels tax option, Election,
	senior relief		requirement of
H 2460	Income tax, Credits, Short line railroads	S 13	Motor fuels, Definitions
S 499	Income tax, Credits, Short line railroads	S 185	Motor fuels, Definitions
H 2216	Income tax, Credits, Student loan assistance	H 2370	Motor fuels, Rates
S 104	Income tax, Deductions, Expense deduction	H 2381	Motor fuels, Rates
S 185	Income tax, Deductions, Expense deduction	S 188	Motor fuels, Rates
S 196	Income tax, Deductions, Expense deduction	H 2370	Motor fuels, Trip permits
H 2516	Income tax, Deductions, First-time homebuyer	H 2381	Motor fuels, Trip permits
******	accounts	S 188	Motor fuels, Trip permits
H 2005	Income tax, Deductions, Itemized	H 2323	Privilege tax, Adult-oriented businesses
H 2628	Income tax, Deductions, Itemized	H 2734	Privilege tax, Banks, Interest deduction, Business
S 13	Income tax, Deductions, Itemized		loans
S 185	Income tax, Deductions, Itemized	S 238	Privilege tax, Banks, Interest deduction, Business
H 2232	Income tax, Deductions, Net operating losses		loans
H 2388	Income tax, Deductions, Net operating losses	S 259	Privilege tax, Banks, Interest deduction, Business
H 2417	Income tax, Deductions, Net operating losses		loans
H 2490	Income tax, Deductions, Net operating losses	H 2734	Privilege tax, Banks, Interest deduction, Residence
H 2542	Income tax, Deductions, Social security	11 2/54	loans
H 2567	Income tax, Deductions, Social security	S 259	
		S 239	Privilege tax, Banks, Interest deduction, Residence
S 174	Income tax, Deductions, Social security		loans
S 179	Income tax, Deductions, Social security	H 2593	Privilege tax, Credits, Contributions to technical
H 2538	Income tax, Deductions, Standard		colleges
H 2626	Income tax, Deductions, Standard	S 140	Privilege tax, Credits, Eisenhower foundation
S 91	Income tax, Deductions, Standard		contributions
H 2194	Income tax, Deductions, Wagering losses	H 2734	Privilege tax, Deductions, Interest deduction,
H 2698	Income tax, Earnings tax		Business loans
S 400	Income tax, Earnings tax	S 238	Privilege tax, Deductions, Interest deduction,
H 2442	Income tax, Forms and instructions, Compensating		Business loans
11 2 1 12	use tax reporting line	S 259	Privilege tax, Deductions, Interest deduction,
H 2466	Income tax, Forms and instructions, Filing date	3 237	Business loans
11 2400		11 2724	
11.0700	extension	H 2734	Privilege tax, Deductions, Interest deduction,
H 2702	Income tax, Forms and instructions, Filing date		Residence loans
	extension	S 259	Privilege tax, Deductions, Interest deduction,
H 2726	Income tax, Forms and instructions, Filing date		Residence loans
	extension	H 2635	Privilege tax, Firearms and ammunition, sale of
H 2466	Income tax, Forms and instructions, Paid preparers	H 2413	Privilege tax, Medical cannabis
H 2702	Income tax, Forms and instructions, Paid preparers	H 2466	Privilege tax, Returns, Filing dates
S 104	Income tax, Forms and instructions, Paid preparers	H 2702	Privilege tax, Returns, Filing dates
H 2466	Income tax, Forms and instructions, Payment date	S 239	Privilege tax, State credit unions
	extension	H 2517	Property tax, Abatement, Agricultural improvement,
H 2702	Income tax, Kansas taxpayer protection act	11 2017	destruction of
H 2285	Income tax, Modifications, Legal tender	S 125	Property tax, Abatement, Agricultural improvement,
H 2427		3 123	destruction of
H 2427	Income tax, Modifications, National service education	0.242	
	awards	S 242	Property tax, Abatement, Agricultural improvement,
S 174	Income tax, Modifications, Social security benefits,		destruction of
	subtraction of	S 125	Property tax, Abatement, Commercial real property,
H 2626	Income tax, Personal exemption		destruction of
H 2585	Income tax, Public utilities, Exemptions	S 125	Property tax, Abatement, Public grain warehouse,
S 126	Income tax, Public utilities, Exemptions		destruction of
H 2585	Income tax, Public utilities, Overcollection or	H 2517	Property tax, Agricultural improvement, Destroyed or
	undercollection		substantially destroyed
S 126	Income tax, Public utilities, Overcollection or	S 125	Property tax, Agricultural improvement, Destroyed or
0.120	undercollection	0.120	substantially destroyed
S 127	Income tax, Public utilities, Reimbursement charge	S 242	Property tax, Agricultural improvement, Destroyed or
		3 242	
H 2278	Income tax, Rates	0.200	substantially destroyed
H 2491	Income tax, Rates	S 298	Property tax, Appeals, Attorney fees and costs
H 2668	Income tax, Refunds, Homestead, expiration of	H 2275	Property tax, Appeals, County boards of tax appeals
H 2668	Income tax, Refunds, Property tax relief act	H 2490	Property tax, Appeals, Judicial review
H 2722	Income tax, Withholding requirements	S 177	Property tax, Appeals, Judicial review
H 2436	Interest rates, Unpaid and overpayment of taxes	S 309	Property tax, Appeals, Judicial review
H 2466	Kansas taxpayer protection act	H 2408	Property tax, Appeals, Valuation
S 104	Kansas taxpayer protection act	S 264	Property tax, Appraisals, County appraisers, Eligible
S 268	Local ad valorem tax reduction fund, transfer to		persons
			1

#### Subject Index

S 266	Property tax, Appraisals, County appraisers,	S 235	Property tax, Schools, Residential property exemption
S 266	Qualifications Property tax, Appraisals, Registered mass appraiser,	H 2395 H 2684	Property tax, Schools, Statewide levy Property tax, Schools, Statewide levy
3 200	course requirements	S 44	Property tax, Schools, Statewide levy
H 2490	Property tax, Appraisals, Standards	S 147	Property tax, Schools, Statewide levy
S 297	Property tax, Appraisals, Standards	S 235	Property tax, Schools, Statewide levy
H 2054	Property tax, Banks, Interest deduction, Business	H 2063	Property tax, State levies, discontinuation of
	loans	S 466	Property tax, State levies, discontinuation of
H 2054	Property tax, Banks, Interest deduction, Residence	S 263	Property tax, Tax estimate, notice of
	loans	H 2118	Property tax, Tax lid, Discontinuation of
H 2576	Property tax, Billing, timing of	H 2702	Property tax, Tax lid, Discontinuation of
H 2490	Property tax, Buildings and improvements, destroyed	S 294	Property tax, Tax lid, Discontinuation of
S 242	or substantially destroyed Property tax, Buildings and improvements, destroyed	H 2063 H 2345	Property tax, Tax lid, Exceptions Property tax, Tax lid, Exceptions
3 242	or substantially destroyed	H 2368	Property tax, Tax lid, Exceptions  Property tax, Tax lid, Exceptions
S 298	Property tax, Classification appeals	H 2696	Property tax, Tax lid, Exceptions
S 125	Property tax, Commercial real property, Destroyed or	S 13	Property tax, Tax lid, Exceptions
	substantially destroyed	S 185	Property tax, Tax lid, Exceptions
H 2441	Property tax, Community historical museum	S 191	Property tax, Tax lid, Exceptions
S 278	Property tax, Community historical museum	S 470	Property tax, Tax lid, Exceptions
H 2517	Property tax, Credits, Agricultural improvement,	H 2430	Property tax, Tax lid, Repeal of
	destruction of	H 2340	Property tax, Taxes paid under protest, distribution of
S 125	Property tax, Credits, Agricultural improvement,	H 2702	Property tax, Truth in taxation
S 242	destruction of Property tax, Credits, Agricultural improvement,	S 294 S 301	Property tax, Truth in taxation Property tax, Valuation, 3-year cycle
3 242	destruction of	H 2293	Property tax, Valuation, Agricultural land
S 125	Property tax, Credits, Commercial real property,	H 2739	Property tax, Valuation, Agricultural land
	destruction of	H 2490	Property tax, Valuation, Appeals
S 125	Property tax, Credits, Public grain warehouse,	H 2702	Property tax, Valuation, Appeals
	destruction of	S 272	Property tax, Valuation, Appeals
H 2118	Property tax, Delinquent taxes, Interest and fees	S 486	Property tax, Valuation, Assessed valuation increase
H 2702 H 2002	Property tax, Delinquent taxes, Interest and fees	H 2498	deferral program
S 279	Property tax, Exemptions, Fire districts, limitation of Property tax, Exemptions, Humanitarian services, not-	П 2498	Property tax, Valuation, Fair market value, determination of
5217	for-profit	H 2514	Property tax, Valuation, Property purchase,
H 2340	Property tax, Exemptions, Information provided to		requirement of
	local government	H 2118	Property tax, Valuation, Repairs and maintenance
S 201	Property tax, Exemptions, Land subject to mitigation	H 2702	Property tax, Valuation, Repairs and maintenance
	easements	S 295	Property tax, Valuation, Repairs and maintenance
H 2486	Property tax, Exemptions, Motor vehicles, Military	S 263	Property tax, Valuation, Tax estimate, notice of
H 2043	servicemembers Property tax, Exemptions, Review of	H 2302 S 184	Refunds, Food sales tax Refunds, Food sales tax
S 147	Property tax, Exemptions, Review of Property tax, Exemptions, Statewide school levy	S 91	Refunds, Golden years homestead property tax freeze
S 151	Property tax, Exemptions, Statewide school levy	5,1	act
H 2118	Property tax, Golden years homestead property tax	S 104	Refunds, Golden years homestead property tax freeze
	freeze act		act
S 104	Property tax, Golden years homestead property tax	S 91	Refunds, Homestead, Disabled veteran renters,
0.125	freeze act	S 104	inclusion of
S 125 S 457	Property tax, Installment payment plan Property tax, Land devoted to agricultural use, Soil	5 104	Refunds, Homestead, Disabled veteran renters, inclusion of
5 757	survey mapping	H 2118	Refunds, Homestead, Golden years homestead
H 2702	Property tax, Levies, Truth in taxation		property tax freeze act
S 294	Property tax, Levies, Truth in taxation	S 91	Refunds, Homestead, Renters, inclusion of
H 2386	Property tax, Local ad valorem tax reduction fund,	H 2656	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax,
0.000	Distribution to political subdivisions		Apportionment, discontinuation of
S 268	Property tax, Local ad valorem tax reduction fund,	S 396	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax,
S 457	Transfer to Property tax, Mapping, Agricultural land	S 414	Apportionment, discontinuation of Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax,
H 2118	Property tax, Payment plan	5 714	Community improvement districts, exemption of
H 2607	Property tax, Payment plan		grocery stores
H 2702	Property tax, Payment plan	S 236	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax,
S 486	Property tax, Payment plan		County general and special authority
S 125	Property tax, Public grain warehouse, Destroyed or	H 2160	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax,
	substantially destroyed		Dickinson county
S 151	Property tax, Schools, Residential property exemption		

S 13	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Dickinson county	H 2727	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Friends of hospice of Jefferson county
S 185	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Dickinson county	H 2093	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Gold and silver coins, bullion
H 2040	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Finney county	H 2160	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Gold and silver coins, bullion
H 2160	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Jackson county	S 13	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Gold and silver coins, bullion
S 13	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Jackson county	S 185	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Gold and silver coins, bullion
S 185	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Jackson county	H 2399	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Gove county healthcare endowment foundation, inc.
H 2160	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Russell county	S 123 H 2285	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Kids need to eat, inc. Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Legal tender
S 13	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Russell county	H 2398	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Limitation on new exemptions
S 185	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Russell county	H 2727	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Limitation on new exemptions
H 2160	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Thomas county	S 178	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Limitation on new exemptions
S 13	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Thomas county	H 2086	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Mechanical amusement devices
S 185	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Thomas county	S 13	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Midland care connection, inc.
H 2160	Sales and use tax, City and county retailers' sales tax, Wabaunsee county	S 185	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Midland care connection, inc.
H 2380 H 2418	Sales and use tax, Collections, Debt collection agency	H 2134	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Nonprofit community
H 2599	Sales and use tax, Collections, Debt collection agency Sales and use tax, Collections, Liens	S 178	care organizations Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Nonprofit community
H 2380	Sales and use tax, Collections, Persons liable	5 170	care organizations
H 2418	Sales and use tax, Collections, Persons liable	H 2011	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Required textbooks
H 2599	Sales and use tax, Collections, Persons liable	H 2043	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Review of
S 328	Sales and use tax, Coupons, treatment of	H 2730	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Sales by
H 2352	Sales and use tax, Digital products		organizations, expiration
H 2685	Sales and use tax, Digital property	H 2304	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Sales tax holiday,
S 397	Sales and use tax, Digital property		School supplies, computers and clothing
S 460	Sales and use tax, Electronic filing	H 2683	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Sent, inc.
H 2694	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Animal shelters	H 2654	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, SOAR special needs
H 2741	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Area agencies on	H 2729	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Storytime village, inc.
11.2720	aging	S 496	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Storytime village, inc.
H 2730	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Charitable organizations	S 123	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Summer food service program, nonprofit sponsor of
H 2504	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Child advocacy centers	H 2414	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, The principle foundation
H 2639	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Crisis pregnancy centers	H 2311 H 2491	Sales and use tax, Food, Exemption Sales and use tax, Food, Exemption
H 2131	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Enterprise zone,	H 2617	Sales and use tax, Food, Exemption
11 2131	business	H 2720	Sales and use tax, Food, Food sales tax refund act
H 2727	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Envision, inc.	S 184	Sales and use tax, Food, Food sales tax refund act
H 2195	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Farm products sold at	S 398	Sales and use tax, Food, Food sales tax refund act
	farmers' markets	H 2128	Sales and use tax, Food, Rate of taxation
H 2578	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Farm products sold at farmers' markets	H 2261 H 2310	Sales and use tax, Food, Rate of taxation Sales and use tax, Food, Rate of taxation
H 2491	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Feminine hygiene products	H 2616 H 2617	Sales and use tax, Food, Rate of taxation Sales and use tax, Food, Rate of taxation
H 2617	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Feminine hygiene products	S 76 S 197	Sales and use tax, Food, Rate of taxation Sales and use tax, Food, Rate of taxation
H 2267	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Fencing, agricultural use	H 2302 H 2720	Sales and use tax, Food, Refund Sales and use tax, Food, Refund
H 2311	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Food and food ingredients	S 184 S 398	Sales and use tax, Food, Refund Sales and use tax, Food, Refund
H 2491	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Food and food ingredients	H 2727	Sales and use tax, I post, iterating Sales and use tax, Imposition of tax on certain services
H 2617	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Food and food ingredients	H 2352 H 2513	Sales and use tax, Marketplace facilitators Sales and use tax, Marketplace facilitators
H 2655	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Friends of hospice of	H 2657	Sales and use tax, Marketplace facilitators
2000	Jefferson county	S 266	Sales and use tax, Marketplace facilitators

S 369	Sales and use tax, Marketplace facilitators	H 2351	Size and weight limitations, Oversize and overweight
S 399	Sales and use tax, Marketplace facilitators		loads, Emergency utility outages
S 322	Sales and use tax, Motor vehicles, Rebates	H 2371	Size and weight limitations, Oversize and overweight
H 2356	Sales and use tax, Motor vehicles, Sourcing		loads, Permits
H 2352 H 2513	Sales and use tax, Nexus	S 187	Size and weight limitations, Oversize and overweight
H 2513	Sales and use tax, Nexus Sales and use tax, Nexus	S 267	loads, Permits Size and weight limitations, Secured loads, Violation,
S 266	Sales and use tax, Nexus	3 207	penalty for
S 369	Sales and use tax, Nexus	H 2568	Speed limits, Decreasing limits in certain districts
H 2272	Sales and use tax, Pexus Sales and use tax, Payment, time of	H 2568	Speed limits, Engineering and traffic investigation
H 2380	Sales and use tax, Payment, time of	S 79	Turn lanes, Left turns
H 2418	Sales and use tax, Payment, time of	S 441	Violations, Distracted driving
S 460	Sales and use tax, Payment, time of	S 459	Violations, Distracted driving
H 2128	Sales and use tax, Rates, Food	H 2539	Violations, Driving while fatigued
H 2261	Sales and use tax, Rates, Food	H 2458	Violations, Negligent driving
H 2310	Sales and use tax, Rates, Food	H 2277	Violations, Right-of-way
H 2616 H 2617	Sales and use tax, Rates, Food Sales and use tax, Rates, Food	H 2497	Violations, Unlawful passing of a stationary vehicle
S 76	Sales and use tax, Rates, Food Sales and use tax, Rates, Food	Т	-4-4:
S 197	Sales and use tax, Rates, Food Sales and use tax, Rates, Food	Transpo	rtation
H 2302	Sales and use tax, Refunds, Food sales tax	Moto	or Vehicles, this index
H 2720	Sales and use tax, Refunds, Food sales tax	H 2364	Aviation and airports, Division of aviation,
S 184	Sales and use tax, Refunds, Food sales tax		abolishment of
S 398	Sales and use tax, Refunds, Food sales tax	S 307	Boats and boating, Personal flotation devices
H 2349	Sales and use tax, Remote sellers	S 470	Construction projects, Tax lid, exception for
S 369	Sales and use tax, Remote sellers	H 2588	Department of transportation, Eisenhower legacy
S 360	Sales and use tax, Sales tax authority, Sherwood		transportation program
H 2685	improvement district Sales and use tax, Subscription services	S 173	Department of transportation, Eisenhower legacy
S 397	Sales and use tax, Subscription services  Sales and use tax, Subscription services	H 2588	transportation program  Department of transportation, FORWARD program
S 462	Sales and use tax, Tax information, prohibiting	S 375	Department of transportation, FORWARD program
	disclosure of	H 2369	Department of transportation, Secretary, Authority,
H 2114	Severance tax, County option, limestone		Toll projects
S 369	Transient guest tax, Marketplace facilitators	S 192	Department of transportation, Secretary, Authority,
			Toll projects
Telecom	munications	H 2367	Department of transportation, Secretary, Roads and
H 2618	Broadband grant program	C 100	bridges, Construction and improvement, approval of
H 2620	Caller-ID spoofing, prohibition of technology	S 190	Department of transportation, Secretary, Roads and bridges, Construction and improvement, approval of
H 2004	No-call act, Robocalls, prevention of	H 2373	Department of transportation, Transportation planning
H 2110	No-call act, Robocalls, prevention of	11 23 / 3	program
H 2018	Video competition act, Video service providers,	S 186	Department of transportation, Transportation planning
0.200	Communications services		program
S 380	Video competition act, Video service providers, Wireless services	H 2367	Road construction and bridge improvement, Approval
	WIFEIESS SETVICES		of
Townshi	ne	S 190	Road construction and bridge improvement, Approval
	•	H 2367	Road construction and bridge improvement, Funding
S 131	Officials, Oath of office, timing of	S 190	Road construction and bridge improvement, Funding
H 2545	Powers of, Buildings, construction of	SCR 1601	State highway fund uses, limitation on
H 2545	Powers of, Property, purchase of		<b>g</b> ,,
Troffic I	Regulations	Trusts a	nd Trustees
	e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	H 2719	District court, Debt collection
H 2434	Driving privileges, Suspension authority, revocation	H 2554	Uniform fiduciary income and principal act
0.62	of, Nonpayment of fines		,
S 62 H 2608	Emergency vehicles, Police vehicle, exemption of Funeral processions	Uniform	Acts
	ruletal processions  hicles, this index		
S 435	Personal delivery devices	H 2521 H 2713	Revised uniform athlete agents act
S 247	Photographic traffic signal enforcement system,	H 2/13 S 194	Revised uniform law on notarial acts Uniform anatomical gift act
	prohibition of	H 2533	Uniform family law arbitration act
H 2532	School buses, Stop signal arm cameras	H 2554	Uniform fiduciary income and principal act
S 472	School buses, Stop signal arm cameras	S 55	Uniform partition of heirs property act
H 2276	School or construction zone, Wireless communication	H 2558	Uniform securities act
	device, use of		

For page numbers see "Title and History of Bills" in House and Senate Journal Books (Bill numbers printed in **bold** type are enacted bills.)

Utilities		Water	
Corr	poration Commission, State, this index	S 201	Dams and water obstruction, Property tax exemptions
H 2585	Electric utilities, Contract rates, approval of		mitigation easements
S 339	Electric utilities, Contract rates, approval of	SCR 1614	Rattlesnake creek subbasin impairment, Farmers,
H 2679	Electric utilities, Energy efficiency, Demand-side		support of
	programs	S 270	Water appropriation act, Multi-year flex accounts
S 431	Electric utilities, Energy efficiency, Demand-side	S 182	Water appropriation act, Violations of
	programs	S 182	Water measuring devices
S 492	Electric utilities, Energy efficiency, Demand-side programs	S 329	Water resources, division of, Chief engineer
H 2081	Electric utilities, Kansas electric transmission	Wildlife,	, Parks and Tourism
	authority, re-establishment of	S 307	Boats and boating, Personal flotation devices
S 181	Electric utilities, Kansas energy policy task force	H 2397	Dangerous regulated animals
S 393	Electric utilities, Net metering and easy connection	S 49	Department of wildlife, parks and tourism, Fees,
*****	act		Cabins and camp sites
H 2190	Electric utilities, Rates, Certain charges, prohibition of	S 50	Department of wildlife, parks and tourism, Fees, Licenses
S 124	Electric utilities, Rates, Certain charges, prohibition of	S 50	Department of wildlife, parks and tourism, Fees, Permits
H 2585	Electric utilities, Rates, Schedule of rates, discount of	H 2678	Department of wildlife, parks and tourism, Kansas
H 2231	Electric utilities, Rates, Study of	11 2076	police and firemen's retirement system (KP&F),
S 181	Electric utilities, Services, study of		affiliation with
H 2109	Electric utilities, Transmission, Definitions	H 2621	Department of wildlife, parks and tourism, Purchase
H 2109	Electric utilities, Transmission, Proposed siting,	11 2021	of property, Kingman county
	notice of	S 481	Department of wildlife, parks and tourism, Purchase
H 2317	Electric utilities, Transmission, Proposed siting,	5 401	of property, Kingman county
	notice of	H 2622	Hunting, Poaching
H 2080	Electric utilities, Transmission, Recovery of costs	H 2062	Recreational trails, operation of
S 24	Electric utilities, Transmission, Recovery of costs	H 2669	Secretary, Endangered and threatened species, listing
H 2585	Electric utilities, Vehicle charging stations	11 200)	of
S 395	Eminent domain, Carbon dioxide	H 2669	Secretary, Endangered and threatened species, listing
H 2319	Internet service providers, Human trafficking and	11 200)	of
	child exploitation prevention act	Woulson	
H 2679	Natural gas, Energy efficiency, Demand-side	workers	s Compensation
	programs	H 2014	Benefits, Disallowances, Fighting or horseplay
S 431	Natural gas, Energy efficiency, Demand-side	H 2413	Benefits, Disqualification for medical cannabis use,
	programs		prohibition of
S 492	Natural gas, Energy efficiency, Demand-side programs	H 2740	Benefits, Disqualification for medical cannabis use, prohibition of
H 2351	Oversize or overweight vehicles, Emergency outages	H 2742	Benefits, Disqualification for medical cannabis use,
S 442	Public utilities, Boards of public utilities, Information	1127.2	prohibition of
	requests	H 2260	Benefits, Medical treatment per diem
S 145	Public utilities, Boards of public utilities, Rates,	H 2016	Benefits, Retirement benefits, Reduction for receipt of
	regulation of	S 146	Benefits, Retirement benefits, Reduction for receipt of
S 448	Public utilities, Boards of public utilities, Utility bill	H 2260	Benefits, Unauthorized medical expenses
	fees, limitation of	H 2313	Benefits, Unauthorized medical expenses
H 2585	Public utilities, Income tax, Exemptions	S 172	Benefits, Unauthorized medical expenses
S 126	Public utilities, Income tax, Exemptions	H 2012	Causation standard, Prevailing factor
S 127	Public utilities, Income tax, Expenses, reimbursement	H 2260	Healthcare provider, Employee choice
	charge	S 172	Healthcare provider, Unauthorized medical expenses
H 2585	Public utilities, Income tax, Overcollection or	H 2013	Impairment, Functional impairment, American
	undercollection		medical association guidelines
S 126	Public utilities, Income tax, Overcollection or	S 92	Impairment, Functional impairment, American
	undercollection		medical association guidelines
		H 2013	Impairment, Permanent impairment, American
Veterina	rians		medical association guidelines
		S 92	Impairment, Permanent impairment, American
H 2688	Veterinary practice act, Administrative costs	- /-	medical association guidelines
Waste			Č.

H 2432 Pesticide waste, Kansas pesticide waste disposal program, creation of H 2222 Solid waste, Plastic straws, prohibition of

## **HOUSE JOURNAL**

**PROCEEDINGS** 

OF THE

## House of Representatives

OF

# The Legislature

OF THE

STATE OF KANSAS

2020 SPECIAL SESSION JUNE 3 THROUGH JUNE 4, 2020

SUSAN W. KANNARR, Chief Clerk of the House

DIVISION OF PRINTING DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION TOPEKA, KANSAS 2020

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### **SPECIAL SESSION, 2020**

PAGE
OFFICERS AND MEMBERS
Officers of the House
Troops Williams (unphasedically, with country, secupation, party and district)v
RULES
Legislative Rules
HOUSE JOURNAL
Explanation of Abbreviations and Page Numberingxii
Text of House Journal
TITLE AND HISTORY OF HOUSE BILLS
House Bills and Resolutions
Numerical Schedule of House Bills
Summary of Action on House Bills
Communications from State Officers
GENERAL INDEX
Index by Author
INDEX BY SUBJECT39

# $Governor \\ LAURA KELLY, Topeka$

Lieutenant Governor LYNN ROGERS, Wichita

#### OFFICERS OF THE HOUSE

Special Session of 2020

#### **HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES**

#### 2020 Special Session

Name	Party	Dist.	Occupation
Alcala, John, Shawnee	Dem.	57	Retired
Amyx, Mike, Douglas	Dem.	45	Barber
Arnberger, Tory, Barton		112	Human Resources
• •			Director, Pryor
			Automatic
Awerkamp, Francis, Pottawatomie	Rep.	61	Business owner
Baker, Dave, Morris		68	Consultant/realtor
Ballard, Barbara, Douglas		44	University Administrator
Barker, John, Dickinson	Rep.	70	Retired Judge
Bergquist, Emil, Sedgwick	Rep.	91	Retired Aircraft R and D
Bishop, Elizabeth, Sedgwick	Dem.	88	Retired
Blex, Doug, Montgomery	Rep.	12	Wildlife Biologist/Farmer
Burris, Jesse, Sumner	Rep.	82	Attorney
Burroughs, Tom, Wyandotte		33	Ret. Colgate-Palmolive
Capps, Michael, Sedgwick	Rep.	85	Business Management
	•		Consultant
Carlin, Sydney, Riley	Dem.	66	Investments, Property
			manager
Carlson, Suzi, Clay		64	Retired Municipal Judge
Carmichael, John, Sedgwick	Dem.	92	Attorney
Carpenter, Blake, Sedgwick	Rep.	81	Contractor
Carpenter, Will, Butler		75	Business Owner
Claeys, J. R., Saline		69	Nonprofit Management
Clark, Lonnie, Geary		65	Retired
Clayton, Stephanie, Johnson		19	Social Media Consultant
Collins, Kenneth, Crawford	Rep.	2	Convenience Store Owner
Concannon, Susan, Mitchell	Rep.	107	Philanthropy
Corbet, Ken, Shawnee		54	Small Business Owner
Cox, Tom, Johnson		17	Small Business Owner
Croft, Chris, Johnson	Rep.	8	Retired Army
Curtis, Pam, Wyandotte		32	Community Relations
*Day, Jennifer, Johnson		48	Real Estate Investor
Delperdang, Leo, Sedgwick	Rep.	94	Retired
Dierks, Diana, Saline	Rep.	71	Realtor
Dietrich, Brenda, Shawnee	Rep.	52	Retired Superintendent
Donohoe, Owen, Johnson		39	Medical Sales
Dove, Willie, Wyandotte		38	Insurance Sales
Ellis, Ronald, Jefferson	Rep.	47	Rancher
Eplee, John, Atchison		63	Family Physician
Erickson, Renee, Sedgwick		87	Retired
Esau, Charlotte, Johnson		14	Genealogist
Finch, Blaine, Franklin		59	Attorney
Finney, Gail, Sedgwick		84	Small Business Owner
Francis, Shannon, Seward		125	Property Management
French, David, Leavenworth		40	Retired
Frownfelter, Stan, Wyandotte		37	Small Business Owner

Garber, Randy, Nemaha	Rep.	62	Retired Navy/Construction Worker
Gartner, Jim, Shawnee	Dem.	53	Retired
Hawkins, Daniel, Sedgwick		100	Insurance Agent
Helgerson, Henry, Sedgwick		83	Businessman
Helmer, Cheryl, Sumner	Rep.	79	Professional School Counselor
Henderson, Broderick, Wyandotte	Dem.	35	Parking Controller Office
Highberger, Dennis "Boog", Douglas	Dem.	46	Attorney
Highland, Ron, Pottawatomie		51	Retired Veterinarian
Hineman, Don, Lane	Rep.	118	Farmer
Hodge, Tim, Harvey	Dem.	72	Attorney
Hoffman, Kyle, Comanche	Rep.	116	Farmer/Rancher
Hoheisel, Nick, Sedgwick		97	
Holscher, Cindy, Johnson	Dem.	16	
Horn, Eileen, Douglas		10	Consultant
Houser, Michael, Cherokee	Rep.	1	Construction Estimator
Howard, Ron, Sedgwick		98	Lawn Care
Huebert, Steve, Sedgwick		90	Self-Employed
Humphries, Susan, Sedgwick	Rep.	99	Attorney
Jacobs, Trevor, Bourbon		4	Welder
Jennings, Russell, Kearny		122	Self-Employed
Johnson, Steven, Saline		108	Farmer
Karleskint, Jim, Leavenworth	Rep.	42	Retired School Superinendent
Kelly, Jim, Montgomery	Rep.	11	Banker
Kessinger, Jan, Johnson		20	Management and Sales Consultant
Kuether, Annie, Shawnee	Dem.	55	Retired
Landwehr, Brenda, Sedgwick	Rep.	105	Retired
Long, Marty, Grant		124	Farmer/Small Business
Lusk, Nancy, Johnson	Dem.	22	Small Business Owner
Lynn, Megan, Johnson		49	Children's Ministry Assistant
Mason, Les, McPherson	Rep.	73	Retired
Mastroni, Leonard, Rush	Rep.	117	Retired County Commissioner/Judge
Moore, J.C., Sedgwick		93	Retired Teacher
Murnan, Monica, Crawford	Dem.	3	Education Administrator
Neighbor, Cindy, Johnson	Dem.	18	Retired Medical Administrator
Newland, Joe, Wilson	Rep.	13	Farmer-Rancher
Ohaebosim, KC, Sedgwick		89	
Orr, Boyd, Meade		115	Farmer/Rancher
Ousley, Jarrod, Johnson	Dem.	24	Paint Contractor
Owens, Stephen, Harvey		74	Self-employed
Pannbacker, Bill, Washington	Rep.	106	Farmer/stockman
Parker, Brett, Johnson	Dem.	29	Teacher
Patton, Fred, Shawnee	Rep.	50	Attorney
Phillips, Tom, Riley	Rep.	67	Community Development Consultant

Pittman, Jeff, Leavenworth	Dam	41	Supply chain technologist
Probst, Jason, Reno		102	Freelance Writer
Proehl, Richard, Labette		7	Banker
Rahjes, Ken, Phillips		110	Agricultural
ranjes, ixen, i minps	reep.	110	Communications
Ralph, Bradley, Ford	Ren	119	Attorney
Resman, John, Johnson		121	Retired Deputy Sheriff
Rhiley, Bill, Sumner		80	rectifed Deputy Sheriff
Ruiz, Louis, Wyandotte		31	Retired: Lucent
Ruiz, Susan, Johnson		23	Social Work
Ryckman, Ron, Johnson		78	Contractor
Samsel, Mark, Franklin		5	Attorney/KSHSAA Referee
Sawyer, Tom, Sedgwick		95	Accountant
Schreiber, Mark, Lyon	Rep.	60	Retired
Seiwert, Joe, Reno	Rep.	101	Agricultural Business Owner
Smith, Adam, Wallace		120	Farmer/Rancher
Smith, Eric, Coffey		76	Deputy Sheriff
Stogsdill, Jerry, Johnson		21	Real Estate Investor
Straub, Alicia, Barton	1	113	Merchandising Contractor
Sutton, Bill, Johnson		43	Inventory Control
Tarwater, Sean, Johnson		27	Business Owner
Thimesch, Jack, Kingman		114	Farmer/Construction
Thomas, Adam, Johnson		26	Restaurant Owner
Thompson, Kent, Allen		9	Real Estate/Rancher
Toplikar, John, Johnson		15	Carpenter/Contractor
Vickrey, Jene, Miami		6	Floor Covering
Victors, Ponka-We, Sedgwick		103	Community Support Worker/Volunteer
Waggoner, Paul, Reno	_	104	Manager, Waggoners, Inc.
Ward, Jim, Sedgwick		86	Attorney
Warfield, Freda, Shawnee		58	Retired
Warren, Kellie, Johnson		28	Attorney
Wasinger, Barbara, Ellis		111	Business Owner
Waymaster, Troy, Russell		109	Farmer/Office Manager
Weigel, Virgil, Shawnee		56	Retired
Wheeler, John , Finney		123	Retired Attorney
Williams, Kristey, Butler	1	77	Former mayor/Former teacher
Winn, Valdenia, Wyandotte		34	College Professor
Wolfe Moore, Kathy, Wyandotte		36	External Liaison/KU Hospital
Woodard, Brandon, Johnson		30	Higher Education Fundraising
Xu, Rui, Johnson	Dem.	25	Marketing Analyst
Yeager, Stephanie, Sedgwick	Dem.	96	Digital Twist, Owner

<sup>\*</sup> Rep. Day sworn June 3, 2020 replacing Rep. Benson who resigned effective May 15, 2020

## STANDING COMMITTEES OF THE HOUSE 2020 Special Session

See 2020 Regular Session committee information.

#### LEGISLATIVE RULES

For rules governing the 2020 Special Session, please refer to the Legislative Rules for the 2019-2020 Biennium.

# Journal of the House

2020 SPECIAL SESSION JUNE 3 THROUGH ADJOURNMENT JUNE 4, 2020

SUSAN W. KANNARR, Chief Clerk of the House

#### **EXPLANATION OF ABBREVIATIONS**

Substantial economy of space was achieved in the text of the Journals by shortening the numerous references to bill and resolution numbers. Placing these in boldface type facilitates locating the bills readily on each page. The abbreviations used are as follows:

HB 2001	House Bill No. 2001
HCR 5001	House Concurrent Resolution No. 5001
HR 6001	House Resolution No. 6001
HP 2001	House Petition No. 2001
SB 1	Senate Bill No. 1
SCR 1601	Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 1601

#### EXPLANATION OF PAGE NUMBERING

The Senate and House Journals are printed in separate volumes. Paging in both Journals is consecutive and begin with page 1, continuing through the two-year biennium.

Under the section "History of Bills" HJ and SJ page numbers refer to the separate House Journal and Senate Journal volumes.

#### SPECIAL SESSION

## Journal of the House

#### FIRST DAY

 $\label{eq:hall of the House of Representatives,} Hall of the House of Representatives, Topeka, KS, Wednesday, June 3, 2020, 8:00 a.m.$ 

Pursuant to the Governor's proclamation of May 26<sup>th</sup>, 2020, the house met in special session at 8:00 a.m.

The following proclamation of the governor was read by Catherine Gunsalus, Assistant Secretary of State.

### PROCLAMATION CALLING THE LEGISLATURE INTO SPECIAL SESSION

#### TO THE PEOPLE OF KANSAS, GREETINGS:

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic presents unprecedented challenges to Kansans and to our state government; and

WHEREAS, this public health emergency has required the government to take emergency action to mitigate the spread of COVID-19, and through those actions and the individual conduct of Kansans, the daily numbers of new cases, hospitalizations, and deaths as a result of COVID-19 have been steadily decreasing, though new cases continue to arise and present new threats to the state; and

WHEREAS, the presence and threat of COVID-19 has wreaked economic destruction across Kansas' economy, with businesses closed, revenues plummeting, and unemployment rising at historic rates to historic levels; and

WHEREAS, a state of disaster emergency must be in place for the Division of Emergency Management and other state agencies to conduct emergency response activities such as providing medication, testing supplies, personal protective equipment, food assistance, and other essential emergency services across the state; and

WHEREAS, under the Emergency Management Act, a state of disaster emergency can extend for more than 15 days only with the consent of the State Finance Council or the Legislature; and

WHEREAS, the stability of our economy and the safety of Kansans depend on the Legislature extending of the state of disaster emergency.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, LAURA KELLY, GOVERNOR OF THE STATE OF KANSAS, by the authority vested in me by the Constitution of the State of Kansas, do hereby call the

#### Legislature of the State of Kansas into Special Session

at the Capitol in Topeka, Kansas, on the 3<sup>rd</sup> day of June, 2020, at the hour of 8:00 o'clock a.m., to extend the state of disaster emergency and to enact appropriate

amendments to the Emergency Management Act so as to provide for emergency response to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic.

DONE: At the Capitol in Topeka under the Great Seal of the State this 26<sup>th</sup> day of May, A.D. 2020

BY THE GOVERNOR: LAURA KELLY

Governor of Kansas Scott Schwab Secretary of State

#### MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

Over the last few months Kansans have faced unprecedented challenges because of COVID-19. Through it all, Kansans have shown resiliency and compassion that has served as strong reminder that we are all in this together.

I have called this special session of the Legislature for a simple and clear purpose. During the COVID-19 pandemic our state must be able to respond to this emergency to protect the health and safety of Kansans, and keep our economy open. Our state is in a precarious position. Although we have made it through the initial peak of COVID-19 cases, and although the numbers have been trending steadily downward over the last several weeks, we must not be lulled into a sense of complacency.

We continue to learn more about this deadly virus every day, and the moment we let down our guard, we leave our state susceptible to a resurgence of the virus that could endanger the lives of Kansans and the working of our economy. As I have said before, the most important purpose of this special session is to ensure that our government can continue to respond as necessary to this evolving pandemic. That means extending the emergency declaration and making reasonable amendments to the Kansas Emergency Management Act. I believe we can accomplish these goals quickly and efficiently together.

I am heartened that in the days leading up to this special session legislators on both sides of the aisle have come together to work with my office to seek a bipartisan solution to the emergency management issues facing our state. Each side has given and taken in this process, and that is how government should work. The product will not be perfect in the eyes of either side, but it will work for Kansans – and that is our job.

Every state lawmaker should embrace the opportunity to work together in a bipartisan fashion to keep Kansans safe. Their efforts can be historic in not only helping today's Kansans, but also future generations who also will face the tragic toll of unexpected disasters.

We will continue to face these challenges together as we work towards our economic

recovery. I look forward to working with the Legislature to pass emergency legislation that is in the best interests of all Kansans. It is what Kansans expect of us as leaders -- and it's what Kansans deserve.

Respectfully,

Laura Kelly Governor

#### OATH OF OFFICE

Representative-elect Jennifer Day took and subscribed to the following oath of office, which was administered by Scott Schwab, Secretary of State.

STATE OF KANSAS, COUNTY OF SHAWNEE, SS:

I do solemnly swear, or affirm, that I will support the Constitution of the United States, and the Constitution of the State of Kansas, and will faithfully discharge the duties of the office of member of the House of Representatives, so help me God.

Subscribed and sworn to, or affirmed, before me this 3<sup>rd</sup> day of June, 2020.

Scott Schwab
Secretary of State

Speaker Ryckman called the House to order.

The roll was called with 118 members present.

Reps. Barker, Donohoe, Frownfelter, Mastroni, Moore, Parker and Schreiber were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Present later: Reps. Frownfelter and Parker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker,

Our Gracious Heavenly Father,
we come before You today,
thankful for all You have done for us,
but fully aware of how desperately we need Your help.
We didn't know we would be here today
but are reminded that although
"we can make our plans,
the Lord determines our steps." (Proverbs 16:9)
As our leaders meet today,
give them wisdom, grace and discernment.
These are difficult days with difficult decisions that need to be made.
Your Word also tells us
"we can make our own plans,
but the Lord gives the right answer." (Proverbs 16:1)
May we seek Your answers to these difficulties today.

And, please, Lord, be with our nation.

We need forgiveness – we need healing.

Now is the time we need to humble ourselves,
and to pray and seek Your face
and to turn from our wicked ways.
Then You will hear from heaven
and will forgive our sin and heal our land. (2 Chronicles 7:14)
May it be so, Lord.
This I pray in Christ's Name, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Vickrey.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Sawyer, **HR 6001**, by Reps. Ryckman, Hawkins and Sawyer, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

#### HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6001—

A RESOLUTION relating to the organization of the House of Representatives.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas:

That the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives notify the Senate that the House is organized with the following officers:

Ron Ryckman, speaker, Blaine Finch, speaker pro tem, Dan Hawkins, majority leader, Tom Sawyer, minority leader, Susan Kannarr, chief clerk, Foster Chisholm, sergeant at arms, and awaits the pleasure of the Senate.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Sawyer, **HR 6002**, by Reps. Ryckman, Hawkins and Sawyer, as follows, was introduced and adopted:

#### HOUSE RESOLUTION No. HR 6002-

A RESOLUTION relating to assignment of seats of the House of Representatives.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas: That the members of the 2020 special session of the legislature shall occupy the same seats assigned pursuant to 2020 House Resolution No. 6026 with the following exception: Day, seat No. 75.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

On motion of Rep. Sawyer HCR 5001 by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins and Sawyer, was introduced and adopted.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. 5001 --

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION relating to a committee to inform the governor that the two houses of the legislature are duly organized and ready to receive communications.

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas, the Senate concurring therein:

That a committee of two members from the Senate and three members from the House of Representatives be appointed to wait upon the governor, and inform the governor that the two houses of the legislature are duly organized and are ready to receive any communications the governor may have to present.

In accordance with HCR 5001, Speaker Ryckman appoints Reps. Huebert, Burris and Lusk to wait upon the Governor.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 9:30 a.m.

#### LATE MORNING SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing adoption of SR 1701, a resolution relating to the organization of the Senate and selection of the following officers:

Susan Wagle, President,

Jeff Longbine, Vice President,

Jim Denning, Majority Leader,

Anthony Hensley, Minority Leader,

Corey Carnahan, Secretary,

Don Cackler, Sergeant-at-Arms,

and awaits the pleasure of the House of Representatives.

Announcing adoption of HCR 5001, a concurrent resolution relating to a committee to wait upon the Governor and advise her the Legislature is duly organized and ready to receive communications. Senators McGinn and Ware are appointed as Senate members of the committee to wait upon the Governor.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 12:30 p.m.

#### AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 3:30 p.m.

#### LATE AFTERNOON SESSION

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills and concurrent resolution were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2001**, AN ACT concerning the criminal justice reform commission; relating to membership; public defender; expenses for certain members; extension of report deadline; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6902 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Jennings and Owens.

**HB 2002**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to diversion agreements; creating a certified drug abuse treatment program for people on diversion; supervision by court services or community corrections; amending K.S.A. 22-2907, 75-5291 and 75-52,144 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 22-2909 and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Jennings and Owens.

**HB 2003**, AN ACT concerning property taxation; relating to buildings and improvements destroyed or substantially destroyed by natural disaster; amending K.S.A. 79-1613 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Karleskint.

**HB 2004**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to sentencing; good time credits; program credits; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 21-6821 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Highberger.

HB 2005, AN ACT concerning economic development; relating to angel investor tax credits; qualified securities; credit limitations and amounts; investor requirements; qualified Kansas business designation requirements; bioscience businesses; program expiration date; amending K.S.A. 74-8132, 74-8133 and 74-8136 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Croft.

HB 2006, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; relating to health insurance coverage; expanding medical assistance eligibility; implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program; directing the department of health and environment to study certain medicaid expansion topics; adding meeting days to the Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight to monitor implementation; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022; amending K.S.A. 65-6207, 65-6208, as amended by section 9 of 2019 House Bill No. 2246, 65-6209, 65-6210, 65-6211, 65-6212, 65-6217 and 65-6218, as amended by section 2 of 2019 House Bill No. 2168, and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 39-7,160 and 40-3213 and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Ward, Amyx, Bishop, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Highberger, Kuether, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Warfield, Wolfe Moore, Xu and Yeager.

**HB 2007**, AN ACT concerning workers compensation; relating to occupational diseases; COVID-19; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-5a01 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Ward.

**HB 2008**, AN ACT concerning appropriations for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, for the department of transportation; authorizing the issuance of certain bonds; amending K.S.A. 68-2320 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Ward.

**HB 2009**, AN ACT concerning the 2020 general election; enacting the 2020 general election health and safety advance voting act; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 25-1122 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Ward.

HB 2010, AN ACT concerning law enforcement; relating to hiring of law

enforcement officers; allegations of serious misconduct; relating to law enforcement disciplinary records; subject to open records act; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 45-221 and repealing the existing section, by Representatives Holscher, Clayton, Curtis, Day, Finney, Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Ward, Warfield, Winn and Xu.

**HB 2011**, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to credits; increasing the household and dependent care expenses credit; amending K.S.A. 79-32,111c and repealing the existing section, by Representative Hodge.

**HB 2012**, AN ACT concerning sales and compensating use taxation; relating to exemptions; defining food and food ingredients and exempting sales from tax; amending K.S.A. 79-3602 and 79-3606 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Hodge.

**HB 2013**, AN ACT concerning sales and compensating use taxation; relating to rates; food and food ingredients; disposition of revenue; amending K.S.A. 79-3602, 79-3603, as amended by section 13 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 173, 79-3620, 79-3703, as amended by section 14 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 173, and 79-3710 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Hodge.

**HB 2014**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to sales and compensating use taxes; requiring collection and remittance by marketplace facilitators; providing nexus for retailers doing business in this state; amending K.S.A. 79-3702 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Johnson.

**HB 2015**, AN ACT concerning occupational regulation; relating to occupational licenses for certain applicants; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 48-3406 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Croft.

HB 2016, AN ACT concerning governmental response to the 2020 COVID-19 pandemic in Kansas; providing certain relief related to health, welfare, property and economic security during this public health emergency; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2021, for the governor's department; requiring the state finance council's approval for certain expenditures; relating to the state of disaster emergency; powers of the governor and executive officers; providing certain limitations and restrictions; business and commercial activities; violations of the Kansas emergency management act; relating to the closure of schools by executive order; requiring state board of education approval prior to any such closure; enacting the COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act; relating to limitations on liability associated with the COVID-19 public health emergency; providing immunity from civil liability for certain healthcare providers during the COVID-19 public health emergency; providing an affirmative defense for adult care homes; enacting the COVID-19 contact tracing privacy act; relating to privacy of persons whose information is collected through contact tracing and the confidentiality of contact data; authorizing the secretary of health and environment and local health officers to establish and operate systems of contact tracing during the COVID-19 pandemic; validating certain notarial acts performed while the requirements that a person must appear before a notary public are suspended; requiring local health officers to share certain information with first responder agencies and 911 call centers; imposing requirements on the Kansas department for aging and disability services related to infection prevention and control practices and recommendations, infection control inspections and providing personal protective equipment; authorizing the expanded use of telemedicine in response to the COVID-19 public health

emergency and imposing requirements related thereto; suspending certain requirements related to medical care facilities and expiring such provisions; providing for temporary suspension of certain healthcare professional licensing and practice requirements; delegation and supervision requirements; conditions of licensure and renewal and reinstatement of licensure; relating to authorized use of two-way electronic audiovisual communication by courts to secure the health and safety of court users, staff and judicial officers; authorizing the temporary sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption off of certain licensed premises; relating to changes in the employment security law in response to the COVID-19 public health emergency; eligibility for benefits; contribution rates; federal reimbursement; employer notifications; shared work plan eligibility; authorizing counties to adopt orders relating to public health that are less stringent than statewide executive orders; relating to review, amendment or revocation of local disaster orders by the board of county commissioners; review, amendment or revocation of local disaster orders of a mayor by a city governing body; relating to local health officers; appointment, removal, powers and duties; providing for severability of this act; amending section 1 of 2020 House Substitute for Senate Bill No. 102, K.S.A. 48-924, 48-932, 48-939, 65-201, 65-202 and 65-468 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 19-101a, 41-2653, 44-702, 44-705, as amended by section 2 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 27, 44-709, 44-710, 44-757, 48-925 and 48-925, as amended by section 33 of this act, and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Judiciary.

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. HCR 5002-

By Representatives Xu, Alcala, Clayton, Curtis, Henderson, Highberger, Holscher, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Warfield, Winn and Yeager

**HCR 5002**—A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

WHEREAS, Police use of force is among the leading causes of death for young men of color; and

WHEREAS, Black people, including Black women and girls, Native Americans and Latinos are killed by police at disproportionately higher rates than their White peers; and

WHEREAS, Police brutality and the use of excessive force have robbed countless communities of precious lives, inflicted intergenerational harm and trauma to families and intensified our Nation's mental health crisis; and

WHEREAS, The killings of hundreds each year, and the demonstrations that followed, have brought sustained national attention to the racially biased police violence against people; and

WHEREAS, The conduct of police officers who engage in racial profiling and excessive force, which can include shootings, brutal beatings, fatal chokings and any other excessive treatment, is a violation of federal and state constitutional law; and

WHEREAS, The rule of law within our Nation is undermined when police officers engage in conduct that is inconsistent with federal and state constitutional law; and

WHEREAS, The Legislature of the State of Kansas has a moral and constitutional

obligation to protect the civil rights and liberties of all people within the State of Kansas from police abuses: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the State of Kansas, the Senate concurring therein: That we support strengthening efforts to eliminate instances of excessive use of force, to conduct stringent oversight and independent investigations into instances of police brutality, racial profiling and excessive use of force, and to hold individual law enforcement officers and police departments accountable, including:

- (a) Calling on the United States Department of Justice to:
- (1) Reinstitute its role in investigating police departments that violate civil rights and individual instances of police brutality, violence and racial profiling; and
- (2) take on a role in filing briefs urging courts to reconsider decisions that permit unreasonable and excessive police practices and establish meaningful oversight of consent decrees; and
- (b) establishing independent all-civilian review boards with the authority to effectively investigate incidents of police misconduct to ensure meaningful community-level oversight, transparency, accountability and discipline of police officers; and

Be it further resolved: That we call for the adoption of sound and unbiased law enforcement policies at all levels of government that reduce the disparate impact of police brutality and use of force on Black and Brown people and other historically marginalized communities; and

Be it further resolved: That the Secretary of State shall send an enrolled copy of this resolution to Representative Xu.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

Speaker Ryckman referred HB 2016 to Committee of the Whole.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, pursuant to House Rule 2311, **HB 2016** was advanced to Final Action on Bills and Concurrent Resolutions, subject to amendment, debate and roll call.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 88; Nays 30; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 7.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Baker, Ballard, Bergquist, Blex, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Day, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Gartner, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Neighbor, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Nays: Bishop, Burris, Burroughs, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Garber, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Horn, Jacobs, Murnan, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Stogsdill, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Awerkamp, Barker, Donohoe, Mastroni, Moore, Parker, Schreiber.

#### FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

On motion of Rep. Carmichael to refer **HB 2016** to the committee on Judiciary, the motion did not prevail.

Also, on motion of Rep. Ward to amend **HB 2016** Rep. Landwehr requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment not germane.

Rep. Ward challenged the ruling of the Rules Chair.

Roll call was demanded on Rep. Ward's challenge of the ruling of the Rules Chair, the question being "Shall the Rules Chair be sustained?"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 76; Nays 43; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 6.

Yeas: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Nays: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Day, Dierks, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Barker, Donohoe, Mastroni, Moore, Schreiber, Toplikar.

The Rules Chair was sustained.

Also, roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Curtis to amend **HB 2016** on page 6, by striking all in lines 39 through 43;

By striking all on pages 7 through 9;

On page 10, by striking all in lines 1 through 12;

On page 49, in line 41, by striking "33" and inserting "25";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 11, by striking all after the semicolon; by striking lines 12 through 15; in line 16, by striking all before "enacting"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 38; Nays 81; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 6.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Day, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S.,

Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Barker, Donohoe, Mastroni, Moore, Parker, Schreiber. The motion of Rep. Curtis did not prevail.

Also, on motion of Rep. Rhiley to amend HB 2016, the motion did not prevail.

Also, roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Pittman to amend **HB 2016** on page 57, following line 11, by inserting:

- "Sec. 41. K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-5a01 is hereby amended to read as follows: 44-5a01. (a) Where the employer and employee or—workman worker are subject by law or election to the provisions of the—workmen's workers compensation act, the disablement or death of an employee or—workman worker resulting from an occupational disease as defined in this section shall be treated as the happening of an injury by accident, and the employee or—workman worker or, in case of death,—his the employee's or worker's dependents shall be entitled to compensation for such disablement or death resulting from an occupational disease, in accordance with the provisions of the—workmen's—workers compensation act as in cases of injuries by accident—which\_that are compensable thereunder, except as specifically provided otherwise for occupational diseases, including as provided for the occupational disease of COVID-19 pursuant to subsection (g). In no circumstances shall an occupational disease be construed to include injuries caused by repetitive trauma as defined in K.S.A. 44-508, and amendments thereto.
- (b) "Occupational disease"—shall mean means only a disease arising out of and in the course of the employment resulting from the nature of the employment in which the employee was engaged under such employer, and—which that was actually contracted while so engaged, except as provided by subsection (g). "Nature of the employment" shall mean means, for purposes of this section, that to the occupation, trade or employment in which the employee was engaged, there is attached a particular and peculiar hazard of such disease—which that distinguishes the employment from other occupations and employments; and—which that creates a hazard of such disease—which that is in excess of the hazard of such disease in general. Except as provided by subsection (g), the disease must appear to have had its origin in a special risk of such disease connected with the particular type of employment and to have resulted from that source as a reasonable consequence of the risk. Ordinary diseases of life and conditions to which that the general public is or may be exposed to outside of the particular employment, and hazards of diseases and conditions attending employment in general, shall not be compensable as occupational diseases, except that compensation shall not

be payable for pulmonary emphysema or other types of emphysema unless it is proved, by clear and convincing medical evidence to a reasonable probability, that such emphysema was caused, solely and independently of all other causes, by the employment with the employer against whom the claim is made, except that, if it is proved to a reasonable medical probability that an existing emphysema was aggravated and contributed to by the employment with the employer against whom the claim is made, compensation shall be payable for the resulting condition of the workman, but only to the extent such condition was so contributed to and aggravated by the employment.

- (c) In no case shall an employer be liable for compensation under this section unless disablement results within one year or death results within three years in case of silicosis, or one year in case of any other occupational disease, after the last injurious exposure to the hazard of such disease in such employment, or, in case of death, unless death follows continuous disability from such disease, commencing within the period above limited, for which compensation has been paid or awarded or timely claim made as provided in the workmen's compensation act, and results within seven years after such last exposure. Where payments have been made on account of any disablement from which death shall thereafter result such payments shall be deducted from the amount of liability provided by law in case of death. The time limit prescribed by this section shall not apply in the case of an employee whose disablement or death is due to occupational exposure to ionizing radiation., the motion did not prevail.
- (d) Except as provided by subsection (g), where an occupational disease is aggravated by any disease or infirmity, not itself compensable, or where disability or death from any other cause, not itself compensable, is aggravated, prolonged, accelerated or in any wise contributed to by an occupational disease, the compensation payable shall be reduced and limited to such proportion only of the compensation that would be payable if the occupational disease were the sole cause of the disability or death, as such occupational disease, as a causative factor, bears to all the causes of such disability or death, such reduction in compensation to be effected by reducing the number of weekly or monthly payments or the amounts of such payments, as under the circumstances of the particular case may be for the best interest of the claimant or claimants.
- (e) No compensation for death from an occupational disease shall be payable to any person whose relationship to the deceased employee or workman arose subsequent to the beginning of the first compensable disability save only to afterborn children.
- (f) The provisions of K.S.A. 44-570, and amendments thereto, shall apply in case of an occupational disease.
- (g) (1) Notwithstanding any provisions of the workers compensation act to the contrary, the following provisions shall apply to a claim for compensation for death involving a diagnosis of the occupational disease of COVID-19 where the employer against whom the claim is made by the employee's or worker's dependents is the department of corrections and where the deceased employee or worker was engaged in work that involved contact with or work in proximity to or in the same space as a prisoner or inmate.
- (A) There shall be a rebuttable presumption that the COVID-19 disease arose out of and in the course of the employment in which the employee was engaged and was contracted while the employee was so engaged, and that the employment was the

prevailing factor in causing the COVID-19. In any event in such a case, a requirement that the COVID-19 resulted from the nature of the employment, as defined in subsection (b), shall not apply. The claimant shall not be required to prove that the COVID-19 resulted from the nature of the employment, as defined in subsection (b), and had its origin in a special risk of such disease connected with the particular type of employment and resulted from that source.

- (B) A claim shall not be denied on the basis that the disease of COVID-19 is considered an ordinary disease of life or a hazard of disease attending employment in general.
- (C) There shall be a conclusive presumption that the COVID-19 was the sole cause of the death.
- (2) The provisions of this subsection shall be effective retroactively to January 1, 2020.
- (3) The provisions of this subsection shall expire on May 1, 2021, unless the legislature acts to reauthorize such provisions.
- (4) The provisions of this subsection shall not be construed so as to limit or exclude any claim for compensation based on an occupational disease.
- (5) If any provision of this subsection or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this subsection that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this subsection are declared to be severable.":

Also on page 57, in line 14, after the second comma by inserting "44-5a01,"; And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 2, in the title, in line 12, after the second semicolon by inserting "workers compensation; relating to occupational diseases, department of corrections employees, COVID-19;"; in line 15, after the second comma by inserting "44-5a01,"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 57; Nays 63; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 5.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Cox, Curtis, Day, Delperdang, Dove, Ellis, Esau, Finney, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Howard, Karleskint, Kuether, Lusk, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Owens, Parker, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Rahjes, Resman, Rhiley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Smith, E., Stogsdill, Thomas, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Bergquist, Blex, Burris, Capps, Carlson, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Croft, Dierks, Dietrich, Eplee, Erickson, Finch, Francis, Garber, Hawkins, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Newland, Orr, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Proehl, Ralph, Ryckman, Samsel, Seiwert, Smith, A., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Barker, Donohoe, Mastroni, Moore, Schreiber.

The motion of Rep. Pittman did not prevail.

Also, on motion of Rep. Carmichael to amend HB 2016, the motion did not prevail.

Also, on motion of Rep. Ousley to amend HB 2016, the motion did not prevail.

Also, roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Clayton to amend **HB 2016** on page 18, following line 43, by inserting:

"New Sec. 24. (a) As used in this section:

- (1) "Financial hardship resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic" means: (A) A significant loss of income, significant increase in necessary expenses or inability to work suffered by an individual or a family as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic; and
- (B) the individual's or the family's financial resources are depleted to the extent that making mortgage or rent payments would leave the individual or family unable to purchase food, medicine or other goods, supplies or services necessary to the individual's or family's health and safety.
- (2) "Default payment list" means a list maintained by each bank, financial entity, or landlord, as such term is referenced in subsection (b)(3), operating in Kansas of individuals and families that have experienced financial hardship resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic.
- (b) (1) No bank or financial entity operating in Kansas shall foreclose on a residential property in Kansas when all defaults or violations of the mortgage are substantially caused by a financial hardship resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic;
- (2) No bank or financial entity operating in Kansas shall evict a residential tenant when all defaults or violations of the rental agreement are substantially caused by a financial hardship resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic; and
- (3) No landlord, whether an individual, company, bank, financial lending entity, nursing home, long-term care facility or other such entity shall evict a residential tenant when all defaults or violations of the rental agreement are substantially caused by a financial hardship resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic.
- (4) The provisions of paragraphs (2) and (3) shall not apply to a foreclosure on any multi-family residential property in which residential tenants rent from a landlord, so long as the foreclosure will not result in the eviction of any tenants.
- (5) (A) This section shall not prohibit the continuation of any judicial foreclosure or judicial eviction proceedings filed before July 1, 2020; and
- (B) an eligible lending institution initiating judicial foreclosure or judicial eviction proceedings on and after July 1, 2020, shall have the burden of pleading and proving that the foreclosure or eviction proceeding is not being initiated solely because of defaults or violations of mortgages or rental agreements substantially caused by a financial hardship resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic.
  - (6) This section shall not be construed to:
- (A) Relieve mortgage borrowers or tenants who have not suffered a financial hardship resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic from the obligation to comply with mortgage or rental agreements, or to continue making required mortgage or rent payments;
- (B) prevent foreclosures or evictions for mortgage or rental agreement violations not due to a financial hardship resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic; or
- (C) otherwise replace or supersede any other law or rule or regulation relating to foreclosures.
  - (c) This section shall not apply to foreclosures initiated by the United States

government.

- (d) (1) Each bank, financial entity or landlord, as such term is referenced in subsection (b)(3), operating in Kansas, shall maintain a default payment list.
- (2) Each bank, financial entity or landlord, as such term is referenced in subsection (b)(3), operating in Kansas, shall review its default payment list with the state treasurer, or the state treasurer's designee, to verify that each individual or family is eligible to remain on the list for the upcoming year. If an individual or family has been determined by the state treasurer or the state treasurer's designee as being ineligible to remain on the default payments list, the bank, financial entity or landlord, as such term is referenced in subsection (b)(3), operating in Kansas shall make a good faith effort to negotiate payment plans with such individual or family to address moneys owed before instituting judicial proceedings against such individual or family.
- (3)(A) The state treasurer shall develop guidelines for determining eligibility to remain on an eligible lending institution's default payment list and for annually reviewing each eligible lending institution's default payment list.
- (B)(i) The program described under this section shall cease 90 days following a determination by the governor of Kansas, in consultation with such experts as the governor deems necessary, that financial hardships resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic have abated to an acceptable level. The governor shall announce such determination on the date that such determination is made.
- (ii) The state treasurer shall provide at least 90 days' prior notice before suspending any program initiated by any bank, financial entity or landlord, as such term is referenced in subsection (b)(3), operating in Kansas, with regard to this section.";

On page 49, in line 42, by striking "33" and inserting "34"; On page 57, in line 18, by striking "33" and inserting "34";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

In the title, on page 1, in line 35, after the semicolon by inserting "prohibiting certain entities from foreclosing or evicting individuals and families experiencing financial hardship resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic; on page 2, in line 17, by striking "33" and inserting "34"

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 40; Nays 76; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 9.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Ballard, Bishop, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Cox, Curtis, Day, Finney, Frownfelter, Gartner, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Holscher, Horn, Howard, Kuether, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Ward, Warfield, Weigel, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu, Yeager.

Nays: Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Blex, Burris, Capps, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Croft, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Esau, Finch, Francis, French, Garber, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Houser, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Landwehr, Long, Lynn, Mason, Newland, Orr, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rhiley, Ryckman, Samsel, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Waggoner, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Wheeler, K. Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Barker, Bergquist, Carlson, Donohoe, Lusk, Mastroni, Moore, Parker, Schreiber.

The motion of Rep. Clayton did not prevail.

Also, on motion of Rep. Hodge to amend HB 2016, Rep. B. Carpenter requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment not germane.

Rep. Hodge challenged the ruling, the question being "Shall the Rules Chair be sustained?" The Rules Chair was sustained.

Also, on motion of Rep. Ralph, **HB 2016** be amended on page 49, in line 38, by striking "of"

#### FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

HB 2016, AN ACT concerning governmental response to the 2020 COVID-19 pandemic in Kansas; providing certain relief related to health, welfare, property and economic security during this public health emergency; making and concerning appropriations for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2021, for the governor's department; requiring the state finance council's approval for certain expenditures; relating to the state of disaster emergency; powers of the governor and executive officers; providing certain limitations and restrictions; business and commercial activities; violations of the Kansas emergency management act; relating to the closure of schools by executive order; requiring state board of education approval prior to any such closure; enacting the COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act; relating to limitations on liability associated with the COVID-19 public health emergency; providing immunity from civil liability for certain healthcare providers during the COVID-19 public health emergency; providing an affirmative defense for adult care homes; enacting the COVID-19 contact tracing privacy act; relating to privacy of persons whose information is collected through contact tracing and the confidentiality of contact data; authorizing the secretary of health and environment and local health officers to establish and operate systems of contact tracing during the COVID-19 pandemic; validating certain notarial acts performed while the requirements that a person must appear before a notary public are suspended; requiring local health officers to share certain information with first responder agencies and 911 call centers; imposing requirements on the Kansas department for aging and disability services related to infection prevention and control practices and recommendations, infection control inspections and providing personal protective equipment; authorizing the expanded use of telemedicine in response to the COVID-19 public health emergency and imposing requirements related thereto; suspending certain requirements related to medical care facilities and expiring such provisions; providing for temporary suspension of certain healthcare professional licensing and practice requirements; delegation and supervision requirements; conditions of licensure and renewal and reinstatement of licensure; relating to authorized use of two-way electronic audiovisual communication by courts to secure the health and safety of court users, staff and judicial officers; authorizing the temporary sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption off of certain licensed premises; relating to changes in the employment security law in response to the COVID-19 public health emergency; eligibility for benefits; contribution rates; federal reimbursement; employer notifications; shared work plan eligibility; authorizing counties to adopt orders relating to public health that are less stringent than statewide executive orders; relating to review, amendment or revocation of local disaster orders by the board of county commissioners; review, amendment or revocation of local disaster orders of a mayor by a city governing body; relating to local health officers; appointment, removal, powers and duties; providing for severability of this act; amending section 1 of 2020 House Substitute for Senate Bill No. 102, K.S.A. 48-924, 48-932, 48-939, 65-201, 65-202 and 65-468 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 19-101a, 41-2653, 44-702, 44-705, as amended by section 2 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 27, 44-709, 44-710, 44-757, 48-925 and 48-925, as amended by section 33 of this act, and repealing the existing sections, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 107; Nays 12; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 6.

Yeas: Alcala, Amyx, Arnberger, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Capps, Carlin, Carlson, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Clayton, Collins, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Croft, Day, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Ellis, Eplee, Erickson, Finch, Finney, Francis, French, Frownfelter, Gartner, Hawkins, Helgerson, Helmer, Henderson, Highberger, Hineman, Hoffman, Hoheisel, Holscher, Horn, Howard, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Kuether, Landwehr, Long, Lusk, Lynn, Mason, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Orr, Ousley, Owens, Pannbacker, F. Patton, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Ryckman, Samsel, Sawyer, Seiwert, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Straub, Sutton, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thomas, Thompson, Toplikar, Vickrey, Victors, Waggoner, Ward, Warfield, Warren, Wasinger, Waymaster, Weigel, Wheeler, K. Williams, Winn, Wolfe Moore, Woodard, Xu.

Nays: Burris, Burroughs, Curtis, Esau, Garber, Highland, Hodge, Houser, Jacobs, Newland, Rhiley, Yeager.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Barker, Donohoe, Mastroni, Moore, Parker, Schreiber.

The bill passed, as amended.

#### EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

Mr. Speaker: I vote "yes" on **HB 2016.** "People talk about the middle of the road as though it were unacceptable. Actually, all human problems, excepting morals, come into the gray areas. Things are not all black and white. There have to be compromises. The middle of the road is all of the usable surface. The extremes, right and left, are in the gutters." – President Dwight D. Eisenhower. This bill is not perfect. But it is the result of a better process, and collaboration, and difficult compromise. It is the middle of the road. Which leads Kansas to 2021. To the stars, through difficulties. – Mark Samsel

Mr. Speaker: I vote "NO" on **HB 2016.** I support parts of this bill. However, a COVID-19 emergency is not occurring and does not seem sufficiently likely to occur in Kansas. Also, through her prior exercise of emergency powers, the Governor seriously damaged our state's economy. I therefore find it inappropriate to even limitedly approve and extend any of the Governor's emergency proclamations. Further, the Governor's blatant disregard for our religious freedoms expressly protected by Section 7 of the Kansas Constitution's Bill of Rights through her mass gatherings prohibitions causes me to question whether she'll respect limitations imposed on her by statute. —

-JESSE BURRIS, RANDY GARBER, BILL RHILEY

Mr. Speaker: I reluctantly vote Yes today on HB 2016. This bill should have had a committee hearing and vote before it came to the floor. The governmental reaction to the Covid-19 pandemic has been an epic public policy failure so far. The overreaction by public officials has helped kill the once thriving American economy and the livelihoods of millions. I believe this bill will help in areas of business liability, governmental accountability, and the elimination of one-person "emergency" rule by state governors and county health officials. On that basis I saw HB2016 as in the best interest of my constituents. – PAUL WAGGONER

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2017**, AN ACT concerning health and healthcare; enacting the Kansas equal access act; relating to medical cannabis; providing for the licensure and regulation of the manufacture, transportation and sale of medical cannabis; amending K.S.A. 44-1009, 44-1015, 79-5201 and 79-5210 and K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 8-1567, 21-5703, 21-5705, 21-5706, 21-5707, 21-5709, 21-5710, 21-6109, 23-3201, 38-2269, 44-501, 44-706 and 65-1120 and repealing the existing sections, by Representatives Holscher, Bishop, Curtis, Frownfelter, Pittman, Ruiz, S., Xu and Yeager.

**HB 2018**, AN ACT concerning workers compensation; relating to occupational diseases; COVID-19; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-5a01 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Sawyer.

**HB 2019**, AN ACT establishing the office of the child advocate for children's protection and services within the department of administration; prescribing certain powers, duties and functions; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 38-2211, 38-2212, 38-2213, 38-2309 and 38-2310 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Ousley.

**HB 2020**, AN ACT concerning employment security law; relating to disqualification for benefits; disqualification begin dates, illness or injury, receipt of pension or retirement pay, part-time employment for an educational institution; penalties during declaration of state of disaster emergency; amending K.S.A. 2019 Supp. 44-706 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Ousley.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Thursday, June 4, 2020.

#### SPECIAL SESSION

# Journal of the House

#### SECOND DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, Торека, KS, Thursday, June 4, 2020, 11:00 а.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 115 members present.

Reps. Arnberger, Barker, Donohoe, Frownfelter, Holscher, Mastroni, Moore, Parker, Schreiber and Victors were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Representative Vickrey,

Lord, it is such a privilege to serve in this House,
this historic House.
Give us wisdom today,
your direction to do what's right for our state.
There are so many troubles, so many challenges right now,
but Lord challenges are opportunities
and we place them in your hands.
We ask for your guidance and your help.
Help us have unity here and do what is right,
do what is good,
and do your work for the State of Kansas,
for the people of Kansas,
in Jesus name. Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Hineman.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2021**, AN ACT concerning sales and compensating use tax; relating to rates and future formulaic adjustments; food and food ingredients; disposition of revenue; amending K.S.A. 79-3602, 79-3603, as amended by section 13 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 173, 79-3620, 79-3703, as amended by section 14 of 2020 Senate Bill No. 173, and 79-3710 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Hodge.

On motion of Rep. Hawkins, the House recessed until 2:30 p.m.

#### AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker pro tem Finch in the chair.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

**HB 2022**, AN ACT concerning the disposition of state real property; authorizing the state board of regents on behalf of Kansas state university to sell certain real property in Saline county, by Representative Claeys.

#### REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: HB 2001, HB 2002, HB 2004, HB 2008, HB 2022.

Children and Seniors: HB 2019.

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: HB 2007, HB 2015, HB 2018, HB 2020.

Corrections and Juvenile Justice: HB 2010.

Elections: HB 2009.

Federal and State Affairs: HB 2017, HCR 5002.

Health and Human Services: HB 2006.

Taxation: HB 2003, HB 2005, HB 2011, HB 2012, HB 2013, HB 2014, HB 2021.

#### REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HR 6001, HR 6002 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on June 4, 2020.

#### MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

Announcing adoption of SCR 1601. Announcing passage of HB 2016.

#### INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS

On emergency motion of Rep. Hawkins, **SCR 1601**, A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION relating to the 2020 special session of the legislature and providing for adjournment thereof, was introduced and adopted.

The hour for final adjournment having arrived, Speaker Ryckman said, "By virtue of the authority vested in me, as Speaker of the House of Representatives of the 2020 special session, I do now declare the House adjourned sine die."

JENNY HAUGH, JULIA WERNER, Journal Clerks. SUSAN W. KANNARR, Chief Clerk.

# REPORT ON ENROLLED BILLS

**HB 2016 Special Session** reported correctly enrolled, properly signed and presented to the Governor on June 5, 2020.

#### REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

HCR 5001 Special Session reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on June 8, 2020.

# MESSAGES FROM THE GOVERNOR

HB 2016 Special Session approved on June 8, 2020.

TITLE AND HISTORY

OF

HOUSE BILLS

AND

HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

H 2001 Bill by Representatives Jennings, Owens

Adding a public defender to the Kansas criminal justice reform commission, allowing nonlegislator members to receive mileage, tolls and parking, and extending the due date for the final report of the commission.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 6 06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 20 06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2002 Bill by Representatives Jennings, Owens

Creating a drug abuse treatment program for people on diversion and allowing county attorneys to enter into agreements with court services and community corrections for supervision.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 6 06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 20 06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2003 Bill by Representative Karleskint

Providing for the property tax abatement of certain buildings or improvements destroyed or substantially destroyed by natural disaster.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 6
06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 20
06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2004 Bill by Representative Highberger

Increasing good time and program credits for certain offenders.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 6 06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 20 06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2005 Bill by Representative Croft

Updating the angel investor tax credit with respect to the definition of qualified securities, tax credit limitations and amounts, investor requirements, requirements for designation as a qualified Kansas business, application to bioscience businesses and extending the date that credits may be allowed.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 6 06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 20 06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2006 Bill by Representatives Ward, Amyx, Bishop, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Finney, Frownfelter, Highberger, Kuether, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, S., Sawyer, Stogsdill, Victors, Warfield, Wolfe Moore, Xu, Yeager

Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 6 06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services—HJ 20

(SJ & HJ Nos. refer to 2020 Special Session Senate and House Journals)

06/04/2020 House-Died in Committee

#### H 2007 Bill by Representative Ward

Amending workers compensation law regarding occupational diseases to provide certain presumptions for compensation for COVID-19 with respect to all employers.

06/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 6

06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development—HJ 20

06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2008 Bill by Representative Ward

Authorizing the Kansas department of transportation to issue up to \$100,000,000 in additional bonds during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

06/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 6

06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 20

06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2009 Bill by Representative Ward

Enacting the 2020 general election health and safety advance voting act requiring all registered voters to receive an advance voting ballot for the November election, unless the voter opts out of receiving such advance ballot.

06/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 6

06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Elections—HJ 20

06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

H 2010 Bill by Representatives Holscher, Clayton, Curtis, Day, Finney, Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Ward, Warfield, Winn, Xu

Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 7

06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice—HJ 20

06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2011 Bill by Representative Hodge

Increasing the income tax credit for household and dependent care expenses.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 7

06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 20

06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2012 Bill by Representative Hodge

Exempting sales of food and food ingredients from the sales and compensating use tax.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 7

06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 20

06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2013 Bill by Representative Hodge

Decreasing the sales and use tax rate on food and food ingredients.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 7

06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 20

06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2014 Bill by Representative Johnson

Requiring marketplace facilitators to collect and remit sales and compensating use tax and providing nexus for retailers doing business in this state.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 7

06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 20

06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2015 Bill by Representative Croft

Expanding the military spouse and service member's expedited licensure law to all applicants who have established or intend to establish residency in Kansas.

06/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 7

06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic

Development—HJ 20

06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### H 2016 Bill by Judiciary

Enacting the governmental response to the 2020 COVID-19 pandemic in Kansas and providing certain relief related to health, welfare, property and economic security during this public health emergency.

06/03/2020 House-Introduced-HJ 7

06/03/2020 House—Bill referred to the Committee of the Whole—HJ 9

06/03/2020 House—Motion to advance the bill to Emergency Final Action subject to amendment and debate adopted. Yea: 88 Nay: 30—HJ 9

06/03/2020 House—Committee of the Whole - Motion to refer to committee failed

 $Committee \ on \ Judiciary \\ 06/03/2020 \ House—Emergency \ Final \ Action - Passed \ as \ amended; \ Yea: 107 \ Nay: 12—HJ$ 

06/03/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 9

06/03/2020 Senate—Referred to Committee on Judiciary—SJ 9

06/04/2020 Senate—Committee Report recommending bill be passed by Committee on Judiciary—SJ 11

06/04/2020 Senate—Motion to Call the Question Yea: 19 Nay: 17

06/04/2020 Senate—Emergency Final Action - Passed; Yea: 26 Nay: 12—SJ 11

06/04/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to Governor on Friday, June 5, 2020—HJ 21

06/04/2020 House—Approved by Governor on Monday, June 8, 2020—HJ 21

H 2017 Bill by Representatives Holscher, Bishop, Curtis, Frownfelter, Pittman, Ruiz, S., Xu, Yeager

Creating the Kansas equal access act to authorize the use of medical marijuana.

(SJ & HJ Nos. refer to 2020 Special Session Senate and House Journals)

```
06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 18
06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 20
06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee
```

#### H 2018 Bill by Representative Sawyer

Amending workers compensation law regarding occupational diseases to provide certain presumptions for compensation for COVID-19 with respect to all employers.

```
06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 18
06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic
Development—HJ 20
06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee
```

#### H 2019 Bill by Representative Ousley

Establishing the office of the child advocate for children's protection and services.

```
06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 18
06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Children and Seniors—HJ 20
06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee
```

#### H 2020 Bill by Representative Ousley

Amending unemployment insurance disqualification provisions relating to dates disqualification begins, illness or injury, pension or retirement pay and employment for an educational institution and suspending certain civil penalties.

```
06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 18
06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic
Development—HJ 20
06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee
```

#### H 2021 Bill by Representative Hodge

Decreasing the sales and use tax rate on food and food ingredients and providing for future formulaic rate adjustments.

```
06/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 19
06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Taxation—HJ 20
06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee
```

#### H 2022 Bill by Representative Claeys

Authorizing the state board of regents on behalf of Kansas state university to sell certain real property in Saline county.

```
06/04/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 19
06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Appropriations—HJ 20
06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee
```

#### TITLE AND HISTORY OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

H 5001 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins, Sawyer Providing for the appointment of a committee to inform the governor that the legislature is organized and ready to receive communications during the 2020 special session.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 5
06/03/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 5
06/03/2020 Senate—Received and Introduced—SJ 3
06/03//2020 Senate—Adopted without roll call—SJ 3

06/04/2020 House—Enrolled and presented to the Secretary of State on Monday, June 8, 2020—HJ 21

H 5002 Concurrent Resolution by Representatives Xu, Alcala, Clayton, Curtis, Henderson, Highberger, Holscher, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Ruiz, L., Ruiz, S., Stogsdill, Warfield, Winn, Yeager

Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 8
06/04/2020 House—Referred to Committee on Federal and State Affairs—HJ 20
06/04/2020 House—Died in Committee

#### TITLE AND HISTORY OF HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

H 6001 Resolution by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins, Sawyer Providing for the organization of the House of Representatives for the 2020 special session.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 4 06/03/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 4 06/03/2020 House—Enrolled on Thursday, June 4, 2020—HJ 20

H 6002 Resolution by Representatives Ryckman, Hawkins, Sawyer

Providing for assignment of seats in the House of Representatives for the 2020 special

session.

06/03/2020 House—Introduced—HJ 4 06/03/2020 House—Adopted without roll call—HJ 4 06/03/2020 House—Enrolled on Thursday, June 4, 2020—HJ 20

#### HISTORY OF HOUSE PETITIONS

No petitions submitted during 2020 Special Session.

# HOUSE CALENDAR

# Special Session No. 3

# **JUNE 3, 2020 THROUGH JUNE 4, 2020**

# NUMERICAL SCHEDULE OF HOUSE BILLS

2001 Died, Committee	2009 Died, Committee	2017 Died, Committee
2002 Died, Committee	2010 Died, Committee	2018 Died, Committee
2003 Died, Committee	2011 Died, Committee	2019 Died, Committee
2004 Died, Committee	2012 Died, Committee	2020 Died, Committee
2005 Died, Committee	2013 Died, Committee	2021 Died, Committee
2006 Died, Committee	2014 Died, Committee	2022 Died, Committee
2007 Died, Committee	2015 Died, Committee	

# NUMERICAL SCHEDULE OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

2016 Signed, Eff Dt 6/9/20

5001 Adopted, Enrolled 5002 Died, Committee

2008 Died, Committee

# NUMERICAL SCHEDULE OF HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

6001 Adopted, Enrolled 6002 Adopted, Enrolled

# NUMERICAL SCHEDULE OF SENATE BILLS

No Senate bills considered by the House

# NUMERICAL SCHEDULE OF SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

1601 Adopted

# Summary of Actions on House Bills, Resolutions and Concurrent Resolutions

House Bills
House bills introduced in the 2020 special session
House bills passed both houses and presented to Governor
House bills signed by Governor1
House bills becoming law without Governor's signature. 0
House bills with line item vetoes0
House bills vetoed by Governor0
House bills killed in House0
House bills killed in Senate0
House bills that died in House
House bills that died in Senate0
House bills that died in conference committees0
Subtotal
TOTAL
101/12
House Concurrent Resolutions
House concurrent resolutions introduced in 2020 special session2
House concurrent resolutions adopted by both houses1
House concurrent resolutions killed in House0
House concurrent resolutions killed in Senate0
House concurrent resolutions that died in House
House concurrent resolutions that died in Senate0
TOTAL2
House Resolutions
House resolutions introduced in 2020 special session2
House resolutions adopted2
House resolutions killed0
House resolutions that died in committee0
House resolutions that died on Calendar0
TOTAL2

# **COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS**

From the office of Governor Laura Kelly:

Proclamation calling the Legislature into Special Session to extend the state of disaster emergency and to enact appropriate amendments to the Emergency Management Act so as to provide for emergency response to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic., p. 1.

Message from the Governor regarding the 2020 special session, p.2

# **AUTHOR INDEX**

This index includes all legislation sponsored by House Members, House committees, Joint Committees, Select Committees and Special Committees. Only Representatives and committees sponsoring bills or resolutions during the 2020 Special Session are listed.

#### Alcala, John

HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

# Amyx, Mike

HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.

### Bishop, Elizabeth

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2017 Creating the Kansas equal access act to authorize the use of medical marijuana.

# Carlin, Sydney

HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.

#### Carmichael, John

HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.

#### Claeys, J. R.

HB 2022 Authorizing the state board of regents on behalf of Kansas state university to sell certain real property in Saline county.

#### Clayton, Stephanie

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2010 Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

#### Croft, Chris

- HB 2005 Updating the angel investor tax credit with respect to the definition of qualified securities, tax credit limitations and amounts, investor requirements, requirements for designation as a qualified Kansas business, application to bioscience businesses and extending the date that credits may be allowed.
- HB 2015 Expanding the military spouse and service member's expedited licensure law to all applicants who have established or intend to establish residency in Kansas.

#### Curtis, Pam

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2010 Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.
- HB 2017 Creating the Kansas equal access act to authorize the use of medical marijuana.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

#### Day, Jennifer

HB 2010 Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations

34 Author Index

and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.

#### Finney, Gail

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2010 Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.

#### Frownfelter, Stan

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2017 Creating the Kansas equal access act to authorize the use of medical marijuana.

#### Hawkins, Daniel

- HCR 5001 Providing for the appointment of a committee to inform the governor that the legislature is organized and ready to receive communications during the 2020 special session.
  - HR 6001 Providing for the organization of the House of Representatives for the 2020 special session.
  - HR 6002 Providing for assignment of seats in the House of Representatives for the 2020 special session.

#### Henderson, Broderick

HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

#### Highberger, Dennis "Boog"

- HB 2004 Increasing good time and program credits for certain offenders.
- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

#### Hodge, Tim

- HB 2011 Increasing the income tax credit for household and dependent care expenses.
- HB 2012 Exempting sales of food and food ingredients from the sales and compensating use tax.
- HB 2013 Decreasing the sales and use tax rate on food and food ingredients.
- HB 2021 Decreasing the sales and use tax rate on food and food ingredients and providing for future formulaic rate adjustments.

#### Holscher, Cindy

- HB 2010 Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.
- HB 2017 Creating the Kansas equal access act to authorize the use of medical marijuana.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

#### Jennings, Russell

- HB 2001 Adding a public defender to the Kansas criminal justice reform commission, allowing nonlegislator members to receive mileage, tolls and parking, and extending the due date for the final report of the commission
- HB 2002 Creating a drug abuse treatment program for people on diversion and allowing county attorneys to enter into agreements with court services and community corrections for supervision.

#### Johnson, Steven

HB 2014 Requiring marketplace facilitators to collect and remit sales and compensating use tax and providing nexus for retailers doing business in this state.

#### Karleskint, Jim

HB 2003 Providing for the property tax abatement of certain buildings or improvements destroyed or

For page numbers see "Title and History of Bills" in House and Senate Journal Books

AUTHOR INDEX 35

substantially destroyed by natural disaster.

#### Kuether, Annie

HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.

#### Ohaebosim, KC

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

#### Ousley, Jarrod

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2019 Establishing the office of the child advocate for children's protection and services.
- HB 2020 Amending unemployment insurance disqualification provisions relating to dates disqualification begins, illness or injury, pension or retirement pay and employment for an educational institution and suspending certain civil penalties.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

#### Owens, Stephen

- HB 2001 Adding a public defender to the Kansas criminal justice reform commission, allowing nonlegislator members to receive mileage, tolls and parking, and extending the due date for the final report of the commission.
- HB 2002 Creating a drug abuse treatment program for people on diversion and allowing county attorneys to enter into agreements with court services and community corrections for supervision.

#### Parker, Brett

HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.

#### Pittman, Jeff

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2017 Creating the Kansas equal access act to authorize the use of medical marijuana.

#### Probst, Jason

HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.

#### Ruiz, Louis

HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

#### Ruiz, Susan

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2010 Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.
- HB 2017 Creating the Kansas equal access act to authorize the use of medical marijuana.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

36 Author Index

#### Ryckman, Ron

- HCR 5001 Providing for the appointment of a committee to inform the governor that the legislature is organized and ready to receive communications during the 2020 special session.
- HR 6001 Providing for the organization of the House of Representatives for the 2020 special session.
- HR 6002 Providing for assignment of seats in the House of Representatives for the 2020 special session.

#### Sawyer, Tom

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2018 Amending workers compensation law regarding occupational diseases to provide certain presumptions for compensation for COVID-19 with respect to all employers.
- HCR 5001 Providing for the appointment of a committee to inform the governor that the legislature is organized and ready to receive communications during the 2020 special session.
  - HR 6001 Providing for the organization of the House of Representatives for the 2020 special session.
  - HR 6002 Providing for assignment of seats in the House of Representatives for the 2020 special session.

#### Stogsdill, Jerry

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2010 Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

#### Victors, Ponka-We

HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.

#### Ward, Jim

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2007 Amending workers compensation law regarding occupational diseases to provide certain presumptions for compensation for COVID-19 with respect to all employers.
- HB 2008 Authorizing the Kansas department of transportation to issue up to \$100,000,000 in additional bonds during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.
- HB 2009 Enacting the 2020 general election health and safety advance voting act requiring all registered voters to receive an advance voting ballot for the November election, unless the voter opts out of receiving such advance ballot.
- HB 2010 Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.

#### Warfield, Freda

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2010 Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

# Winn, Valdenia

- HB 2010 Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

AUTHOR INDEX 37

#### Wolfe Moore, Kathy

HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.

#### Xu, Rui

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2010 Prohibiting hire of certain law enforcement officers with history of serious misconduct allegations and making certain law enforcement disciplinary records public records.
- HB 2017 Creating the Kansas equal access act to authorize the use of medical marijuana.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

#### Yeager, Stephanie

- HB 2006 Expanding medical assistance eligibility and implementing a health insurance plan reinsurance program.
- HB 2017 Creating the Kansas equal access act to authorize the use of medical marijuana.
- HCR 5002 Condemning all acts of police brutality, racial profiling and the use of excessive and militarized force throughout the country.

### State Legislature, House Committees

#### Judiciary

HB 2016 Enacting the governmental response to the 2020 COVID-19 pandemic in Kansas and providing certain relief related to health, welfare, property and economic security during this public health emergency.

# **SUBJECT INDEX**

This index includes all legislation sponsored by House and Senate Members, House and Senate Committees, Joint Committees and Special Committees.

Administration, State Department of	40	Emergencies and Disasters	42
Adult Care Homes	40	Funds	42
Alcoholic Beverages	40	Health and Environment, Department of	42
Appropriations	40	Health and Health Care	42
Boards, Commissions and Task Forces	40	Health Professions and Practices	42
Bonds	40	Insurance	42
Children and Families, Department for	40	Labor and Employment	42
Children and Minors	40	Law Enforcement	43
Cities	40	Legislature	43
Civil Procedure and Civil Actions	40	Licenses and Licensure	43
Colleges and Universities	40	Municipalities	43
Corrections, Department of	40	Open Records	43
Counties	40	Resolutions	43
Courts	41	Rules and Regulations, Administrative	43
COVID-19	41	Schools	43
Crimes, Punishment and Criminal Procedure	41	Secretary of State	43
Discrimination	42	State Finance	43
Economic Development	42	State Property	43
Elections	42	Taxation	43
		Transportation	44
		Workers Compensation	44

For page numbers see "Title and History of Bills" in House and Senate Journal Books (Bill numbers printed in **bold** type are enacted bills.)

#### Administration, State Department of

H 2019 Office, child advocate for children's protection and services, establishment of

#### **Adult Care Homes**

- H 2016 Inspections for infection control
  - S 7 Inspections for infection control
  - S 8 Inspections for infection control
- H 2016 Personal protective equipment
  - S 7 Personal protective equipment
  - S 8 Personal protective equipment

#### Alcoholic Beverages

- H 2016 Clubs and drinking establishments, Sale of alcoholic beverages, Nonoriginal containers
  - S 7 Clubs and drinking establishments, Sale of alcoholic beverages, Nonoriginal containers
  - S 8 Clubs and drinking establishments, Sale of alcoholic beverages, Nonoriginal containers

#### Appropriations

- H 2016 Coronavirus relief fund, Governor's department
  - S 7 Coronavirus relief fund, Governor's department
  - S 8 Coronavirus relief fund, Legislative coordinating council
- H 2016 Coronavirus relief fund, State finance council
  - S 7 Coronavirus relief fund, State finance council
- H 2008 Department of transportation, Appropriations for FY 2021
- H 2006 Health and environment, department of, Appropriations for FYs 2020 and 2021
- H 2006 Insurance department, Appropriations for FYs 2020 and 2021
- H 2006 State finance council, Appropriations for FYs 2020 and 2021

#### **Boards, Commissions and Task Forces**

- H 2001 Criminal justice reform commission
- H 2017 Kansas medical cannabis advisory board

#### **Bonds**

H 2008 Department of transportation, authorization for

#### Children and Families, Department for

- S 5 Foster care, Foster care student report card
- S 5 Foster care, Tuition waivers for dual and concurrent enrollment
- H 2019 Office, child advocate for children's protection and services, establishment of

#### Children and Minors

- S 5 Foster care, Foster care student report card
- S 5 Foster care, Tuition waivers for dual and concurrent enrollment
- H 2019 Office, child advocate for children's protection and services, establishment of

#### Cities

- H 2016 Local disaster emergency declarations, approval by governing body
  - S 7 Local disaster emergency declarations, approval by governing body
  - S 8 Local disaster emergency declarations, approval by governing body

#### Civil Procedure and Civil Actions

- H 2016 Liability, COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act
  - S 7 Liability, COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act
  - S 8 Liability, COVID-19 response and reopening for business liability protection act

#### Colleges and Universities

- S 5 Healing arts schools, Clinics, authorization to perform services
- H 2017 Medical cannabis use
- H 2022 Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university
  - S 5 Regents, state board of, Real property, conveyance of, Kansas state university
  - S 5 Regents, state board of, Rules and regulations, Kansas promise scholarship act
  - S 5 Scholarships, Kansas promise scholarship act

#### Corrections, Department of

S 6 Inmates, release due to COVID-19

#### Counties

- H 2016 Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders and declarations, County health officer emergency
  - 8.7 Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders and declarations, County health officer emergency orders
  - S 8 Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders and declarations, County health officer emergency orders
- H 2016 Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders and declarations, Governor's state of disaster emergency orders
  - S 7 Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders and declarations, Governor's state of disaster emergency orders
  - S 8 Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders and declarations, Governor's state of disaster emergency orders
- H 2016 Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders and declarations, Local disaster emergency declarations, approval of
  - S 7 Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders and declarations, Local disaster emergency declarations, approval of
  - S 8 Board of county commissioners, Emergency orders and declarations, Local disaster emergency declarations, approval of

II 2017	Constant of the Constant of th	II 2016	COVID 10
H 2016	County health officers, Appointment and removal of	H 2016	COVID-19 response and reopening for business
S 7 S 8	County health officers, Appointment and removal of County health officers, Appointment and removal of	S 7	liability protection act COVID-19 response and reopening for business
H 2016	County health officers, COVID-19 information-	3 /	liability protection act
11 2010	sharing with emergency responders	S 8	COVID-19 response and reopening for business
S 7	County health officers, COVID-19 information-	5 0	liability protection act
5,	sharing with emergency responders	H 2009	Elections, 2020 general election health and safety
S 8	County health officers, COVID-19 information-		advance voting act
	sharing with emergency responders	H 2016	Kansas emergency management act, Governor and
H 2016	County health officers, Orders, Review, amendment		executive officers, powers of
	or revocation by county commissioners	S 7	Kansas emergency management act, Governor and
S 7	County health officers, Orders, Review, amendment		executive officers, powers of
	or revocation by county commissioners	S 8	Kansas emergency management act, Governor and
S 8	County health officers, Orders, Review, amendment		executive officers, powers of
	or revocation by county commissioners	H 2016	Kansas emergency management act, Orders
		S 7	Kansas emergency management act, Orders
Courts		S 8	Kansas emergency management act, Orders
H 2016	Supreme court, Health and safety deadline, extension	H 2016	Kansas emergency management act, State of disaster
	of		emergency declarations, Board of county commissioners
S 7	Supreme court, Health and safety deadline, extension	S 7	
	of	5 /	emergency declarations, Board of county
S 8	Supreme court, Health and safety deadline, extension		commissioners
	of	S 8	
H 2016	Technology, Audio-visual communication		emergency declarations, Board of county
S 7	Technology, Audio-visual communication		commissioners
S 8	Technology, Audio-visual communication	H 2016	Kansas emergency management act, State of disaster
			emergency declarations, Extension of
COVID-	19	S 7	
H 2016	Adult care homes, Inspections		emergency declarations, Extension of
S 7	Adult care homes, Inspections	S 8	
S 8	Adult care homes, Inspections	H 2016	emergency declarations, Extension of
H 2016	Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment	H 2016 S 7	Kansas emergency management act, Violations of Kansas emergency management act, Violations of
S 7	Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment	S 8	
S 8	Adult care homes, Personal protective equipment	H 2016	Labor and employment, Employment security benefits
H 2016 S 7	Coronavirus relief fund Coronavirus relief fund	H 2020	Labor and employment, Employment security benefits
S 8	Coronavirus relief fund	S 7	Labor and employment, Employment security benefits
H 2016	Corporations and business entities, Business and	S 8	Labor and employment, Employment security benefits
11 2010	commercial activity, limitation of	H 2016	Notarial acts, validity of
S 7	Corporations and business entities, Business and	S 7	Notarial acts, validity of
	commercial activity, limitation of	S 8	
S 8	Corporations and business entities, Business and	H 2016	School closures, approval by state board
	commercial activity, limitation of	S 7	School closures, approval by state board
H 2016	Corporations and business entities, COVID-19	S 3	Taxation, COVID-19 state tax abatement and relief act
	response and reopening for business liability	H 2007	Workers compensation, Eligibility for
	protection act	H 2018	Workers compensation, Eligibility for
S 7	Corporations and business entities, COVID-19	S 1	Workers compensation, Eligibility for
	response and reopening for business liability	H 2007	Workers compensation, Rebuttable presumptions
S 8	protection act Corporations and business entities, COVID-19	H 2018	Workers compensation, Rebuttable presumptions
30	response and reopening for business liability	S 1	Workers compensation, Rebuttable presumptions
	protection act		
S 6	Corrections, Inmates, release of due to COVID-19	Crimos	<b>Punishment and Criminal Procedure</b>
H 2016	County health officers, COVID-19 information-	H 2017	
	sharing with emergency responders	H 2017	Crimes involving alcohol or drugs, Medical cannabis Crimes involving violations of personal rights, Kansas
S 7	County health officers, COVID-19 information-	11 201/	clean indoor air act, Medical cannabis use
	sharing with emergency responders	H 2001	Criminal justice reform commission
S 8	County health officers, COVID-19 information-	H 2002	Criminal procedure, Diversion
	sharing with emergency responders	H 2017	Driving offenses, Driving under the influence of
H 2016	County health officers, Orders		alcohol or drugs, Metabolites, presence of
S 7	County health officers, Orders	S 6	Punishment, Early release due to COVID-19, terms of
S 8 H 2016	COVID 10 centest tracing privacy set	H 2002	Punishment, Sentencing, Certified drug abuse
H 2016	COVID-19 contact tracing privacy act		treatment programs

treatment programs

H 2016 COVID-19 contact tracing privacy act S 7 COVID-19 contact tracing privacy act 42 Subject Index

COVID-19 response and reopening for business

Healing arts, Practice of, Healing arts school clinics

S 7 COVID-19 response and reopening for business

S 8 COVID-19 response and reopening for business

liability protection act

liability protection act

liability protection act

Medicaid eligibility, expansion of

H 2016

S 5 H 2006

H 2004	Punishment, Sentencing, Credits, Good time credits	H 2017	Medical cannabis, Certification to recommend
H 2004	Punishment, Sentencing, Credits, Program credits	H 2017	Medical cannabis, Kansas equal access act
Discrimi	ination	H 2017	Medical cannabis, Regulation of
H 2017	Medical cannabis use	H 2016	Nurses and nursing, Licensure and practice
		S 7	Nurses and nursing, Licensure and practice
т.	· D 1 4	S 8	Nurses and nursing, Licensure and practice
	ic Development	H 2016	State of disaster emergencies by governor, County
H 2005	Angel investor tax credit	0.7	orders, authorizing less stringent measures
		S 7	State of disaster emergencies by governor, County
Election	S	0.0	orders, authorizing less stringent measures
H 2009	Advance voting, 2020 general election health and	S 8	State of disaster emergencies by governor, County
	safety advance voting act	H 2016	orders, authorizing less stringent measures Telemedicine and telehealth, practice of
	, ,	S 7	Telemedicine and telehealth, practice of
F		S 8	Telemedicine and telehealth, practice of
	ncies and Disasters	3.0	retemedicine and teleneanti, practice of
H 2016	Kansas emergency management act, Governor and		
0.7	executive officers, powers of		Professions and Practices
S 7	Kansas emergency management act, Governor and	H 2017	Medical marijuana, certification to recommend
S 8	executive officers, powers of Kansas emergency management act, Governor and	H 2016	Nurses and nursing, Licensure and practice
36	executive officers, powers of	S 7	Nurses and nursing, Licensure and practice
H 2016	Kansas emergency management act, Orders	S 8	Nurses and nursing, Licensure and practice
S 7	Kansas emergency management act, Orders  Kansas emergency management act, Orders		
S 8	Kansas emergency management act, Orders	Insuran	ce
H 2016	Kansas emergency management act, State of disaster	H 2006	Accident and health, Health insurance plan
	emergency declarations, extension of		reinsurance
S 7	Kansas emergency management act, State of disaster		
	emergency declarations, extension of	T -1	
S 8	Kansas emergency management act, State of disaster		nd Employment
	emergency declarations, extension of	H 2020	Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification,
H 2016	Kansas emergency management act, Violations of	11.2020	Employment by educational institution
S 7	Kansas emergency management act, Violations of	H 2020	Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification,
S 8	Kansas emergency management act, Violations of	H 2017	Illness or injury Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification,
H 2016	Local disaster emergency declarations	11 2017	Medical cannabis use, prohibition of
S 7	Local disaster emergency declarations	H 2020	Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification,
S 8	Local disaster emergency declarations	11 2020	Pension or retirement pay
		H 2020	Employment security, Benefits, Disqualification,
Funds			Time of
H 2017	Creation of, Kansas medical cannabis regulation fund	H 2016	Employment security, Benefits, Notification of certain
H 2017	Creation of, Kansas medical cannabis revenues fund		benefits
H 2017	Creation of, Law enforcement community-based	S 7	Employment security, Benefits, Notification of certain
	policing programs fund		benefits
		S 8	Employment security, Benefits, Notification of certain
Hoalth a	nd Environment, Department of		benefits
		H 2016	Employment security, Benefits, Waiting period
	lthcare facilities, Adult care homes, this	S 7	Employment security, Benefits, Waiting period
	index	S 8	Employment security, Benefits, Waiting period
H 2016	Hospitals, Licensure and operation of	H 2016	Employment security, Benefits, Work search
S 7	Hospitals, Licensure and operation of	6.7	requirement
S 8	Hospitals, Licensure and operation of	S 7	Employment security, Benefits, Work search
H 2017	Kansas equal access act	S 8	requirement
H 2006	Medicaid eligibility, expansion of	38	Employment security, Benefits, Work search requirement
		H 2016	Employment security, Employers, Contributions,
Health a	nd Health Care	11 2010	Employer account, charging of
H 2016	Board of healing arts, Licensure and regulation	S 7	Employer account, charging of Employment security, Employers, Contributions,
S 7	Board of healing arts, Licensure and regulation	5 /	Employer account, charging of
S 8	Board of healing arts, Licensure and regulation	S 8	Employment security, Employers, Contributions,
II 2016	COVID 10		Paralaman and American and Amer

For page numbers see "Title and History of Bills" in House and Senate Journal Books (Bill numbers printed in **bold** type are enacted bills.)

Employer account, charging of

limitation

limitation

H 2016 Employment security, Employers, Contributions, Rate

H 2016 Employment security, Employers, Negative account

S 7 Employment security, Employers, Contributions, Rate

Employment security, Employers, Contributions, Rate

# SUBJECT INDEX

S 7	Employment security, Employers, Negative account	SCR 1601	Legislature, Sessions, Adjournment, 2020 special
S 8 H 2016	Employment security, Employers, Negative account	HCR 5001	session
П 2010	Employment security, Employers, Reimbursement, Account, charging of	HCK 3001	Legislature, Sessions, Governor informed
S 7	Employment security, Employers, Reimbursement,	Rules en	d Regulations, Administrative
	Account, charging of	S 5	Regents, state board of, Kansas promise scholarship
S 8	Employment security, Employers, Reimbursement, Account, charging of	55	act
H 2016	Employment security, Employers, Shared work plan		
S 7 S 8	Employment security, Employers, Shared work plan	Schools	
H 2020	Employment security, Employers, Shared work plan Employment security, Penalties, suspension of	H 2016	Closure, state board approval of
S 5	Kansas promise scholarship act	S 7 S 5	Closure, state board approval of
	1 1	S 5	Dual or concurrent enrollment, cost of Foster care student report card
Law Enf	forcement	H 2016	State board of education, Closure of schools, approval
	Hiring prohibition, Misconduct and use of excessive		of
	force	S 7	State board of education, Closure of schools, approval of
H 2010 HCR 5002	Kansas open records act, Officer disciplinary records Police brutality, condemnation of	H 2017	Student health, Medical cannabis use
Lagislate		Secretar	y of State
H 2006		H 2016	Notaries public, Notarial acts, validation of
11 2000	Committees, Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and	S 7	Notaries public, Notarial acts, validation of
IID (001	KanCare oversight, Meeting days	S 8	Notaries public, Notarial acts, validation of
HR 6001	House of representatives, Organization, 2020 special session	State Fir	
HR 6002	House of representatives, Seat assignments, 2020	State FII H 2016	State finance council, coronavirus relief fund
	special session	S 7	State finance council, coronavirus relief fund
S 8	Legislative coordinating council, Coronavirus relief	H 2016	State moneys, Coronavirus relief fund
	fund	S 7	State moneys, Coronavirus relief fund
SCR 1701 SCR 1601	Senate, Organization, 2020 special session Sessions, Adjournment, 2020 special session	S 8	State moneys, Coronavirus relief fund
HCR 5001	Sessions, Organization of two houses, governor		
	informed	State Pro	operty
		H 2022	
Licenses	and Licensure	S 5	Conveyance of real property, Kansas state university
H 2015	Occupational licenses and certifications, Expedited		
	process	Taxation	
		H 2005	Economic development incentives, Angel investor tax
Municip	alities	H 2011	credit
H 2016		H 2011	Income tax, Credits for household and dependent care expenses
	commission chair or mayor, Governing body	S 4	Income tax, Forms and instructions, Filing date
	approval, requirement of		extension
S 7	Local disaster emergency declarations by county commission chair or mayor, Governing body	S 4	Income tax, Forms and instructions, Paid preparers
	approval, requirement of	S 4	Income tax, Kansas taxpayer protection act
S 8		S 4 H 2003	Privilege tax, Returns, Filing date extension Property tax, Abatement, Building or improvement,
	commission chair or mayor, Governing body		destruction of
	approval, requirement of	S 2	Property tax, Abatement, Building or improvement, destruction of
Open Re		S 9	Property tax, Abatement, Building or improvement, destruction of
H 2010	Law enforcement disciplinary records	H 2003	Property tax, Credit, Building or improvement,
Resolution	ons	S 2	destruction of Property tax, Credit, Building or improvement,
HCR 5002	Condemning, Police brutality, acts of	3.2	destruction of
HR 6001	Legislature, House of representatives, Organization, 2020 special session	S 9	Property tax, Credit, Building or improvement, destruction of
HR 6002	Legislature, House of representatives, Seat	S 4	Property tax, Delinquent taxes, Interest and fees
		S 4	
	assignments, 2020 special session		Property tax, Levies, Taxpayer protection act
SCR 1701	assignments, 2020 special session Legislature, Senate organization, 2020 special session	S 4 S 4	Property tax, Taxpayer protection act Property tax, Taxpayer protection act Property tax, Valuation, Repairs and maintenance

# 44 Subject Index

S 3	Sales and use tax, COVID-19 state tax abatement and relief act		Compensation
S 3	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, COVID-19 state tax abatement and relief act	H 2017	Benefits, Disqualification, Medical cannabis use prohibition of
H 2012	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Food and food ingredients	H 2007	Occupational disease, COVID-19, Compensational disease, COVID-19, COVID-19
S 3	Sales and use tax, Exemptions, Sales tax holiday, COVID-19 state tax abatement and relief act	H 2018	Occupational disease, COVID-19, Compensation eligibility for
H 2013	Sales and use tax, Food, rate of taxation	S 1	Occupational disease, COVID-19, Compensation eligibility for
H 2021 H 2014	Sales and use tax, Food, rate of taxation Sales and use tax, Marketplace facilitators	H 2007	Occupational disease, COVID-19, Rebuttable presumptions
H 2014	Sales and use tax, Nexus	H 2018	Occupational disease, COVID-19, Rebuttable presumptions
ranspo	rtation	S 1	Occupational disease, COVID-19, Rebuttable
	Department of transportation, Bonds, authorization of		presumptions